
Chair Chanter

Vice Chair Bryant

Commissioner Agostini

Commissioner Beale

Commissioner Grey

Thursday, June 26, 2025, 2:00 PM
City Council Chamber
69-825 Highway 111
Rancho Mirage, CA 92270

REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING  

AGENDA

1. GENERAL

1.A. CALL TO ORDER

1.B. FLAG SALUTE

1.C. OATH OF OFFICE - Commissioner Beale

1.D. ROLL CALL - Agostini, Beale, Grey, Bryant, Chanter

2. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

3.A. June 12, 2025, Regular Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the June 12, 2025, Regular Planning Commission Meeting Minutes as
presented.

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS

4.A. Environmental Assessment Case No. EA25-0002 and Preliminary Development Plan Case No.
PDP25-0002 – Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments – Applicant: National Community Renaissance.
Consideration of an Affordable Housing Development, Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments, Consisting
of 150 Units Distributed Across Seven (7) Two- and Three-Story Walk-Up Buildings. Located South of Via
Vail and East of Key Largo Avenue (APN: 685-090-016)

— RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution No. 2025-PC-(Next-in-Order), recommending that the City
Council take the following actions: 1) Adopt Resolution No. 2025-(Next-in-Order), adopting and approving
the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program and Mitigated Negative Declaration (SCH#2025050959)
for the Proposed Project based on Environmental Assessment Case No. EA25-0002; and 2) Adopt
Resolution No. 2025-(Next-in-Order), approving Preliminary Development Plan Case No. PDP25-0002
regarding the proposed Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments

5. NON-AGENDA PUBLIC COMMENTS

An opportunity for the public to speak on issues not on the agenda for a maximum of three (3) minutes per
speaker.

6. ADJOURNMENT



PUBLIC NOTICES

Agenda Materials: Any staff reports for agenda items, as well as agenda materials provided to a majority of the
legislative body following distribution of the agenda, are available for public inspection in the Planning Department
at Rancho Mirage City Hall, located at 69-825 Highway 111, Rancho Mirage, CA  92270, during normal business
hours.

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA): If you are an individual with a disability and need a reasonable
modification or accommodation pursuant to the ADA, please contact the City Clerk’s Office at (760) 324-4511 Ext.
488, or via e-mail to CityClerk@RanchoMirageCA.gov, prior to the meeting. Providing notice at least 48 hours in
advance of the meeting is suggested, so a determination may be made as to whether the request is feasible.

Livestream: This meeting may be viewed via Livestream on the City’s website at www.RanchoMirageCA.gov.

Public Comments: Written public comments may be submitted to the City Clerk via email to
CityClerk@RanchoMirageCA.gov or mail/delivery to ATTN: City Clerk, City of Rancho Mirage, 69-825 Highway 111,
Rancho Mirage, CA  92270. Please submit written public comments at least three (3) hours in advance of the
meeting to ensure they may be fully considered. Written public comments received during the meeting will be
distributed to the legislative body and made available to the public following the meeting.

Oral public comments/testimony may be provided in person at the meeting during the non-agenda public comment
period and during the public comment/testimony period for each agenda item. Public comments are limited to three
(3) minutes per speaker. Please fill out a Request to Speak slip prior to the start of the meeting and submit it to the
City Clerk. You will be called upon to speak at the appropriate time. Please submit a separate slip for each item on
which you wish to speak.
Declaration of Posting: I, Kristie Ramos, City Clerk of the City of Rancho Mirage, do hereby declare that the
foregoing meeting agenda was posted on the City of Rancho Mirage website at www.RanchoMirageCA.gov, on the
Rancho Mirage City Hall bulletin board at 69-825 Highway 111, Rancho Mirage, CA  92270, and at the Rancho
Mirage Library & Observatory at 71-100 Highway 111, Rancho Mirage, CA  92270, at least 72 hours in advance of
the meeting.

Date Posted: June 20, 2025

mailto:CityClerk@RanchoMirageCA.gov
https://www.ranchomirageca.gov/our_city/city_boards___commissions/planning_commission.php
http://www.ranchomirageca.gov/
mailto:CityClerk@RanchoMirageCA.gov


 

Planning Commission Staff Report

 
June 12, 2025, Regular Planning Commission Meeting Minutes

 

DATE ITEM #

June 26, 2025 APPROVAL OF MINUTES - 3A.

Presented To Presented By

Planning Commission Deanna Mendoza, Development Services Technician

 

 RECOMMENDED ACTION

Approve the June 12, 2025, Regular Planning Commission Meeting Minutes as presented.

 

Attachments

Attachment 1 - Draft 06/12/2025 PC Minutes

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/ranchomirageca%2Factions%2F684863fb359f51005f99e814%2FPC-Meeting-06-12-2025-%20draft%20minutes.pdf?alt=media&token=20c2aead-85fe-4060-a57e-841f090e22f8
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/ranchomirageca%2Factions%2F684863fb359f51005f99e814%2FPC-Meeting-06-12-2025-%20draft%20minutes.pdf?alt=media&token=20c2aead-85fe-4060-a57e-841f090e22f8
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/ranchomirageca%2Factions%2F684863fb359f51005f99e814%2FPC-Meeting-06-12-2025-%20draft%20minutes.pdf?alt=media&token=20c2aead-85fe-4060-a57e-841f090e22f8


Chair Agostini
Vice Chair Chanter

Commissioner Beale
Commissioner Bryant

Commissioner Grey

REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING

69-825 Highway 111, Rancho Mirage, CA 92270

Thursday, June 12, 2025, 2:00 PM

DRAFT MINUTES

1. GENERAL

1.A. CALL TO ORDER

Chair Agostini called the meeting to order at 2:00 PM.

1.B. FLAG SALUTE

Commissioner Grey led the flag salute.

1.C. OATH OF OFFICE - Commissioner Beale -

The item was continued to the next regular Planning Commission meeting scheduled for June 26, 2025, at 2:00 P.M., at

Rancho Mirage City Hall.

1.D. ROLL CALL - Agostini, Beale, Bryant, Chanter, Grey-

Present: Bryant, Grey, Chanter, Agostini.

Absent: Beale.

MOVED/SECONDED BY BRYANT/CHANTER TO EXCUSE COMMISSIONER BEALE’S ABSENCE. MOTION
CARRIED 4/0.

2. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS

Vice Chair Chanter thanked Chair Agostini and stated that he had done a great job as chair.

Chair Agostini thanked fellow Commissioners for the opportunity to serve as Chair and expressed that he looked forward to

passing the position.

Commissioner Bryant echoed Vice Chair Chanter’s comments and expressed appreciation to fellow Commissioners and to

all individuals serving on the City’s Boards and Commissions. He acknowledged their valuable contribution to the

community. He also noted the new digital agenda system and highlighted its effectiveness.

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

3.A. April 24, 2025, Regular Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
— RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the April 24, 2025, Regular Planning Commission Meeting Minutes as
presented.

Attachment 1



MOVED/SECONDED BY CHANTER/GREY TO APPROVE THE APRIL 24, 2025, REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION
MEETING MINUTES AS PRESENTED. MOTION CARRIED 4/0.

4. ACTION ITEMS

4.A. Appointment of Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson
— RECOMMENDED ACTION: Appoint a Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson.

Ben Torres, Planning Manager, presented the staff report.

No public testimony was provided.

A discussion ensued

MOVED/SECONDED BY GREY/AGOSTINI TO APPOINT VICE CHAIR CHANTER AS CHAIR AND COMMISSIONER
BRYANT AS VICE CHAIR OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION. MOTION CARRIED 4/0.

Chair Chanter began chairing the meeting.

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS

5.A. Sign Program Case No. SIPR25-0001 – Cotino Town Center Sign Program – Applicant: DMB Development
LLC on Behalf of ECRM Commercial. Consideration of a Sign Program to Establish Sign Criteria for the Cotino
Town Center, Located in Section 31, Approximately 650 Feet South of the Monterey Avenue and Gerald Ford Drive
Intersection, on the West Side of Monterey Avenue (APNs: 685-220-048 & 685-540-036)

— RECOMMENDED ACTION: 1) Approve the filing of a Notice of Exemption pursuant to the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Section 15162 (Subsequent EIRs and Negative Declarations); and, 2) Approve
Sign Program Case No. SIPR25-0001, subject to the Conditions of Approval and based on the content and Findings
in the staff report.

Lezlee Perez, Assistant Planner, presented the staff report.

No public testimony was provided.

A discussion ensued.

MOVED/SECONDED BY AGOSTINI /GREY TO 1) APPROVE THE FILING OF A NOTICE OF EXEMPTION PURSUANT
TO THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) SECTION 15162 (SUBSEQUENT EIRS AND
NEGATIVE DECLARATIONS); AND, 2) APPROVE SIGN PROGRAM CASE NO. SIPR25-0001, SUBJECT TO THE
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL AND BASED ON THE CONTENT AND FINDINGS IN THE STAFF REPORT. MOTION
CARRIED 4/0.

5.B. Minor Conditional Use Permit Case No. CUP25-0004 – 5 Rancho Clancy – Applicant: Mark Temple
Construction, Inc. Consideration of a Pickleball Court, Located at 5 Rancho Clancy (APN: 682-090-010)

— RECOMMENDED ACTION: 1) Approve the filing of a Notice of Exemption pursuant to the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Section 15303 (Class 3 – New Construction); and, 2) Approve Minor Conditional
Use Permit Case No. CUP25-0004, subject to the Conditions of Approval and based on the content and Findings in
the staff report.

Lezlee Perez, Assistant Planner, presented the staff report.

No public testimony was provided.

A discussion ensued.

MOVED/SECONDED BY GREY/BRYANT TO 1) APPROVE THE FILING OF A NOTICE OF EXEMPTION PURSUANT
TO THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) SECTION 15303 (CLASS 3 – NEW



CONSTRUCTION); AND, 2) APPROVE MINOR CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT CASE NO. CUP25-0004, SUBJECT TO
THE CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL AND BASED ON THE CONTENT AND FINDINGS IN THE STAFF REPORT, WITH
THE ADDED CONDITION THAT TREES ALONG THE NORTH AND WEST BE INCREASED TO 24 INCH BOX.
MOTION CARRIED 4/0.

6. NON-AGENDA PUBLIC COMMENTS

None.

7. ADJOURNMENT

Chair Chanter adjourned the meeting at 2:39 P.M.

Prepared by: Deanna Mendoza, Development Service Technician

Date Approved by Planning Commission: 



 

Planning Commission Staff Report

 
Environmental Assessment Case No. EA25-0002 and Preliminary Development Plan Case No. PDP25-0002
– Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments – Applicant: National Community Renaissance. Consideration of
an Affordable Housing Development, Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments, Consisting of 150 Units
Distributed Across Seven (7) Two- and Three-Story Walk-Up Buildings. Located South of Via Vail and East
of Key Largo Avenue (APN: 685-090-016)

 

DATE ITEM #

June 26, 2025 PUBLIC HEARINGS - 4A.

Presented To Presented By

Planning Commission Pilar Fløtterud, Senior Planner

 

 RECOMMENDED ACTION

Adopt Resolution No. 2025-PC-(Next-in-Order), recommending that the City Council take the following actions:
 
1)    Adopt Resolution No. 2025-(Next-in-Order), adopting and approving the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting
Program and Mitigated Negative Declaration (SCH#2025050959) for the Proposed Project based on Environmental
Assessment Case No. EA25-0002; and
 
2)    Adopt Resolution No. 2025-(Next-in-Order), approving Preliminary Development Plan Case No. PDP25-0002
regarding the proposed Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments

DISCUSSION

 
FACTS

1. Applicant: National Community Renaissance

2. Request: Consideration of an affordable housing development, Rancho Mirage
Affordable Apartments, consisting of 150 units distributed across seven
(7) two- and three-story walk-up buildings. The development will include
residential amenities such as a pool, community room, leasing office,
laundry facilities, game court, butterfly garden, and a tot lot. Of the 150
units, 149 will be income-restricted affordable units, with one unit
reserved for on-site management.

3. Location: South of Via Vail and east of Key Largo Avenue
A.P.N.: 685-090-016

4. Parcel Size: 217,800 square feet – 5 acres

5. Existing Land Use and
General Plan/Zoning:

High-Density Residential (R-H) / Affordable Housing Overlay (AHO)

 
 PROJECT SUMMARY



The proposed project is an affordable housing development, Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments, consisting of
150 units distributed across seven (7) two- and three-story walk-up buildings. The development will include
residential amenities such as a pool, community room, leasing office, laundry facilities, game court, butterfly
garden, and a tot lot. Of the 150 units, 149 will be income-restricted affordable units, with one unit reserved for on-
site management. The proposed project will have a density of approximately 30 dwelling units per acre.
 
BACKGROUND
As part of the City’s 2021–2029 Housing Element, nine Housing Element Inventory Sites (Sites A through I) were
identified to accommodate the City’s Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) requirement of 1,076 units across
extremely low-, very low-, low-, and moderate-income levels.
 
Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments is located on Housing Element Inventory Site B, a 5± acre property. The
subject parcel used to be part of a larger 52± site which included the Rancho Mirage Dog Park which was split-
zoned as Open Space–Private Park (OS/PP) and Residential High Density (R-H). To facilitate the development of
affordable housing on this site, on July 18, 2024, the City Council approved Environmental Assessment Case No.
EA24-0003, General Plan Zoning Map Amendment Case No. GPZMA24-0002, and Specific Plan Amendment
Case No. SP24-0001 to reconfigure the land use designations. The amendments shifted the R-H designation to the
eastern portion of the site and consolidated the OS/PP designation on the western portion.
 
In August 2023, the Rancho Mirage Housing Authority issued a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) to develop at least
150 affordable multi-family units on this parcel. The site was strategically chosen due to its high resource
designation by the California Tax Credit Allocation Committee (CTCAC) and the California Department of Housing
and Community Development (HCD), which enhances its competitiveness for state funding.
 
In late November of 2023, the City was made aware of changes in resource designation by CTCAC taking effect
January of 2024. To preserve the CTCAC designation and maximize affordable housing production on Site B, the
City pursued Disposition and Development Agreements (DDAs) for multiple sites, including the subject site, prior to
the changes in resource designations and split the 25± acre residential portion into three parcels (two ten acre sites
and the subject 5 acre site). On December 21, 2023, the Housing Authority Board authorized DDAs to establish site
control with the following developers: Pacific West Communities Inc., National Community Renaissance of
California and USA Properties Fund, and Blieu LLC. National Community Renaissance of California and USA
Properties Fund was selected to develop the proposed 150-unit project on the subject site.
 
The Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments project proposes a total of 150 units, of which 149 will be income-
restricted affordable units, with one unit reserved for on-site management. Income eligibility and rental rates will
adhere to the income limits established annually by the California Department of Housing and Community
Development (HCD), based on Area Median Income (AMI) thresholds published by the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD). These categories generally include:
 

Acutely low income: 0–15% of AMI
Extremely low income: 15–30% of AMI
Very low income: 30–50% of AMI
Low income: 50–80% of AMI
Moderate income: 80–120% of AMI

 
The project represents a significant step toward meeting the City’s RHNA goals while ensuring housing affordability
in a high-opportunity area.
 
Subject Site and Surrounding General Plan, Zoning, and Land Uses
The Project site is located south of Via Vail, between Monterey Avenue and Key Largo Avenue in Rancho Mirage.
The site consists of a 5±-acre-sized parcel, shaped in a rectangular configuration and consisting of undeveloped
vacant desert lands with sparse vegetation. In alignment with the intended land use, the project is proposing the
development of a multifamily affordable housing project.
 
The site is designated for Residential High Density (R-H) with an Affordable Housing Overlay (AHO). The R-H
zoning district allows for the development of high density single- and multi-family residential homes including
apartments that encompass traits of a planned community. Similar residential developments such as affordable
housing and senior living are allowed and preferred in an R-H zone.
 
 General Plan and Zoning Designation Land Use

Project Site Residential High-Density (R-H) / Affordable
Housing Overlay (AHO) Vacant land



Development Standards Code Analysis
Category RMMC Proposed Project
Zoning Residential High Density (R-H), Affordable

Housing Overlay (AHO)
Residential High Density (R-H), Affordable
Housing Overlay (AHO)

Lot Area 8,000 square feet - minimum 217,800 square feet / 5 acres
Lot Coverage 35% (76,230 square feet) 30% (66,060 square feet)

North Residential High-Density (R-H) / Affordable
Housing Overlay (AHO) Rosette Apartments

East Mixed Use (M-U) / Rancho Monterey Specific Plan Vacant land

South Residential High-Density (R-H) / Affordable
Housing Overlay (AHO) Vacant land

West Open Space  – Public Park (OS-PP) / Monterey
Specific Plan Vacant land

 
ANALYSIS
 
Review Authority (Rancho Mirage Municipal Code Section 17.34.010)
Preliminary Development Plan applications require City Council approval.  Therefore, the Planning Commission’s
role in this matter is to forward a recommendation to the City Council for the discretionary entitlement described in
this staff report.
 
Development Plan Permit (Rancho Mirage Municipal Code Chapter 17.42)
The purpose of the Development Plan Permit is to establish consistency with the General Plan and protect the
integrity and character of the residential and commercial areas of the city.  The process ensures that new
development yields a pleasant living environment and attracts the interest of residents and visitors as the result of
consistent exemplary design.
 
Affordable Housing Overlay (AHO) (Rancho Mirage Municipal Code Section 17.14.030 (E))
The proposed project is located within the Residential High Density (R-H) zoning district and is subject to the
provisions of the Affordable Housing Overlay (AHO), which was adopted to facilitate the development of affordable
housing. Under the AHO, residential densities are permitted up to 28 dwelling units per acre, and additional density,
incentives, and waivers may be granted pursuant to State Density Bonus Law and Rancho Mirage Municipal Code
Section 17.22.020. The AHO also allows for deviations from certain development standards when such
modifications increase development efficiency and are deemed appropriate or necessary by the City Council.
 
In accordance with these provisions, the applicant is proposing a density of 30 dwelling units per acre, which
exceeds the base AHO threshold but is consistent with state density bonus allowances. Additional deviations
include a reduced front setback of 5 feet 3 inches, increased maximum building height of 39 feet (three stories),
modified parking ratios, open space requirements, and reduced minimum unit sizes. These adjustments are
intended to maximize site efficiency while preserving significant portions of the site for shared open space,
amenities, and circulation.
 
The AHO also permits reduced unit size standards to help remove constraints to affordable housing production.
The City's standard multi-family residential unit size minimums range from 850 to 1,000 square feet.  The proposed
unit sizes range from approximately 520 to 1,016 square feet.  The unit sizes proposed are consistent with
allowances granted in other areas such as the Highway 111 and Section 19 Specific Plans, which permit reduced
square footages for affordable units as well those typical in  low-income housing tax credit projects. In addition, the
City’s Housing Element addresses the need to remove constraints based on unit size, as long as all State
requirements are met.  Additionally, while the standard open space requirement is 300 square feet per unit, the
project proposes 97 square feet of private open space per unit, in accordance with the open space reductions
permitted under the AHO and State Density Bonus Law. This applies only to private open space and does not
include the project’s common open space areas, which total approximately 27,816 square feet and include the
central courtyard, pool deck, tot lot, butterfly garden, and surrounding landscape areas designed for passive and
active recreation.
 
The project remains compatible with the R-H/AHO land use and zoning designation and is supported by the City’s
policies to encourage affordable housing development. The table below summarizes the proposed development
standards compared to the underlying zoning district and allowances granted through the AHO and density bonus
provisions.
 



Maximum
Building

Height/No. of
Stories

 

20 feet/ 1-story with deviations considered with
AHO

39 feet 5 inches
3-stories

Residential
Density

AHO allows up to 28 du/ac. The project is also
eligible for state density bonus.

30 DU/AC
 
 

Setbacks Front: 20 feet
Side: 10 feet
Street side: 15 feet
Rear: 20 feet

Front: 5 feet 3 inches
Side: 50 feet
Street side: N/A
Rear: 30 feet 9 inches

Open Space 300 square feet private outdoor living space per
unit (for non affordable units). Housing Element
references reductions for affordable housing.

97 square feet of private open space provided
per unit.
 
27,816 square feet of common open space

Off-Street
Parking

Standards

1 br: 1 covered for each unit and 1 off-street
guest space for every 2 units
 
2 br or more: 2 covered for each unit and 1 off-
street guest space for 2 units

1 stall per 1 br
1.5 stalls per 2 br, 3 br
 
Total for 150 units = 206 spaces
 
Proposed: 219 spaces

Parking Design
Standards

Standard Driveway (2-way) width: 24 feet
Standard Stall: 9 feet x 18 feet
Parallel Stall: 9 feet x 26 feet (4 feet space every
2 stalls)

Standard Driveway (2-way) width: 24 feet
Standard Stall: 9 feet x 18 feet
Parallel Stall: 9 feet x 26 feet (4 feet space every
2 stalls)

Minimum Area
for Apartments in

R-H

1 br: 850 square feet
2 br: 900 square feet
3 br: 1000 square feet

1 br: 520 to 541 square feet
2 br: 745 to 756 square feet
3 br: 1,016 to 1,029 square feet

Bicycle Parking Short Term: 5% of motorized vehicle parking
Long Term: 5% of motorized vehicle parking

Short Term: 12 bikes
Long Term: 12 bikes

DU/AC = dwelling units per acre
br = bedroom

 
 
In accordance with the AHO, the City Council may approve deviations from standard development regulations if
such modifications are found to promote greater development efficiency and are deemed appropriate in the context
of the project’s objectives.
 
PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002
 
Site Plan – Sheet A.01
The project includes seven (7) walk-up apartment buildings ranging from two to three stories in height, containing
150 total units, with 149 income-restricted affordable units and one unit reserved for on-site property managers.
The residential buildings are situated primarily along the western and southern portions of the site. The western
end of the site is activated by a collection of resident-focused amenities including a game court, tot lot, butterfly
garden, and open turf area, all of which are linked by pedestrian pathways and surrounded by drought-tolerant
landscaping. A community clubhouse with a pool, lounge, playground, and leasing facilities anchors the eastern
edge of the site, adjacent to the Via Vail frontage.
 
The proposed unit mix includes:

46 one-bedroom units
54 two-bedroom units
50 three-bedroom units

 
Setbacks, Density, and Lot Coverage
The applicant is requesting relief from the standard 20-foot front yard setback requirement to allow buildings to be
located as close as 5 feet 3 inches from the front property line. However, due to the existing street configuration
and parkway width, this setback results in a distance of approximately 20 feet from the back of curb to the nearest
building, thereby preserving the original intent of the setback, which is to provide visual and spatial separation
between the public right-of-way and residential structures.
 



The proposed project proposes a density of approximately 30 dwelling units per acre (DU/AC), which is consistent
with the AHO adopted by the City Council and State Density Bonus Law. All 150 units are designed with private
patios or balconies, offering individual outdoor space for residents. While the project remains within the AHO’s
density threshold, it is also well below the maximum allowable density permitted under the State Density Bonus
Law for qualifying affordable housing developments (California’s Density Bonus Law requires local governments to
grant an 80% density bonus to housing projects in which all of the units (other than manager’s units) are restricted
to lower-income residents).
 
The proposed site plan includes a lot coverage of approximately 30%, equating to 122,290 square feet of building
footprint on the five-acre (217,800 square foot) site, which is well below the maximum coverage typically allowed
for multifamily development.  
 
Access and Circulation – Sheets A.01, A.02, and A.04
Primary vehicular access will be provided from Via Vail at two points along the northern project boundary, one near
the northwest corner and the second near the southeast corner. The north entry is designed to accommodate two-
way traffic which allows ingress and egress, while the south entry will be egress only. The vehicular gates are
proposed to be managed via keypads, remote transmitters, or equivalent controlled entry systems (Knox Box).
Both entry points connect to a central internal drive aisle that loops through the site. All internal drive aisles meet or
exceed a 24-foot minimum width and accommodate a 38-foot turning radius, ensuring compliance with fire
apparatus maneuverability standards. Both the City Engineer and Fire Department have reviewed and approved
the access configuration for adequate sight distance and circulation.
 
Parking – Sheet G.03
The project proposes a total of 219 parking spaces distributed across three parking areas: the northern, central,
and southern parking lots. Of these, 141 spaces are covered by proposed carports and 78 spaces are uncovered.
There is no on-street parking proposed. Given that this is an affordable housing development, the applicant has
requested a parking reduction pursuant to the AHO, which permits deviations from standard development
requirements to support the feasibility of affordable housing. The proposed parking supply and configuration are
considered consistent with the AHO provisions and reflective of the project’s income-restricted unit mix and site
design.
 
Covered Parking
Under Rancho Mirage Municipal Code (RMMC) Section 17.26.070, a minimum of 25% of total parking must be
covered. The project exceeds this requirement, with 141 covered spaces out of 219, representing approximately
64% of total parking. Final carport design will be reviewed at the Final Development Plan (FDP) stage pursuant to
Condition of Approval #24.
 
ADA Parking
The project provides a total of 9 ADA-accessible spaces, which meets the requirement for a project with 219 total
spaces per RMMC Section 17.26.060. Each major parking area includes one van-accessible stall in accordance
with ADA regulations.
 
These spaces are distributed proportionally among the three parking lots:

Northern Lot (95 spaces): 4 accessible stalls (3 covered, 1 uncovered)
Central Lot (20 spaces): 1 accessible van stall (uncovered)
Southern Lot (104 spaces): 5 accessible stall (3 covered, 2 uncovered)

 
Per RMMC Table 3-8, a project with 219 total parking spaces must provide a minimum of seven (7) ADA-accessible
spaces. The proposed provision of nine (9) ADA spaces meets and exceeds this requirement, ensuring full
compliance with both City standards mandates.
 
Electric Vehicle Charging Stations
Consistent with RMMC Section 17.26.030, the project proposes a substantial number of electric vehicle charging
(EV) provisions:

23 EV charging spaces (EVCS) are provided across all lots
An additional 88 spaces will be EV-capable (EV receptacles)

 
These proposed spaces exceed the required three EVCS minimum for the project.
 
Drainage and Grading – Sheets C1-C3



The project site slopes gently from west to east with an elevation change of approximately 14 feet. The applicant
proposes a graded pad for all buildings and drive aisles, along with a landscaped retention basin located at the
southeast corner of the site. The northern edge aligns with the future Rosette Apartments to the north, while the
western edge transitions into a future affordable housing development. The proposed pad elevations are designed
to be compatible with surrounding grades, maintaining only a 3- to 4-foot differential. The offsite basin is designed
to retain the project’s increased stormwater runoff in compliance with NPDES and City drainage standards. Final
grading and drainage plans will be reviewed by the City Engineer and the Public Works Department prior to
building permit issuance.
 
Design and Architecture – Sheets G.05 & G.06
The proposed project embraces a contemporary desert modern design, characterized by flat rooflines, clean
geometric massing, and thoughtful articulation that complements the City’s high quality architectural identity. The
buildings incorporate deep overhangs, recessed balconies, and parapet rooflines that not only provide passive
shading and reduce solar gain but also add depth and rhythm to the façades. Vertical and horizontal modulation is
used throughout to break up massing and avoid visual monotony, especially on the larger three-story buildings.
 
Building heights range from approximately 22 to 39 feet, with parapet screens strategically designed to conceal
rooftop mechanical equipment. The clubhouse reflects the same architectural language as the residential buildings,
incorporating similar materials, massing elements, and finishes to ensure continuity across the development.
 
A cohesive and well-coordinated materials and color palette reinforces the project’s unified visual identity while
introducing texture and contrast:
 

Stucco Finishes: The primary wall surface is finished in a smooth sand stucco soft off-white tone, with
secondary accent colors in warm taupe, medium brown, and muted sage green to articulate massing
transitions and recessed areas.
Accent Cladding: Select walls and balcony surrounds are treated with composite wood-look siding in a rich
amber-brown hue, providing natural contrast and enhancing the residential character of the buildings.
Stone Veneer: A light, chalky-white stacked stone veneer is used at base locations and key architectural
corners to add depth, texture, and grounding to the overall design.
Windows & Doors: White vinyl windows and durable balcony doors with clean profiles reinforce the light,
modern aesthetic while offering energy efficiency.
Metal Elements: Matte black painted metal is used for balcony railings, parapet caps, awnings, and window
shrouds, adding a contemporary contrast to the otherwise earthy palette.

 
Together, these elements result in a visually cohesive yet dynamic community that reflects the values of
contemporary desert architecture: environmental responsiveness, simplicity of form, and expressive materiality.
The integration of parapet heights, shading strategies, and varied massing across the buildings ensures the
development is both architecturally compelling and functionally suited to the desert climate.
 
Floor Plans – Sheets A1.1-A.1.2, A2.1-A2.2, A3.1-A3.2, A6.1, A7.1-7.2
The project proposes seven walk-up apartment buildings utilizing five building types labeled A through E. Each
building type accommodates a mix of one-, two-, and three-bedroom units.
 
Building Type A:  Building 1 includes twelve units, composed of four two-bedroom and eight three-bedroom units
and distributed with four units per floor, and building areas of approximately 10,481 square feet (ground floor),
9,627 square feet (second floor), and 7,943 square feet (third floor).
 
Building Type B: Buildings 2 and 5, the most common configuration, each contain fifteen units, composed of five
one-bedroom, four two-bedroom, and six three-bedroom units and distributed as five units per floor, with building
areas of approximately 12,466 square feet (ground), 11,720 square feet (second), and 11,814 square feet (third).
 
Building Type C: Buildings 3 and 4 consist of ten units per building with two one-bedroom, four two-bedroom, and
four three-bedroom units and distributed as four units on the ground floor, three on the second, and three on the
third, with floor areas of approximately 10,584, 10,183, and 9,909 square feet, respectively.
 
Building Type D: Building 6 contains six units with four two-bedroom and two three-bedroom and distributed as two
units per floor, with floor areas of approximately 7,252 square feet (ground), 7,007 square feet (second), and 7,341
square feet (third).
 



Building Type E: Building 7 houses both residential and amenity uses. It includes six residential units with three
one-bedroom and three two-bedroom and distributed as two units on the ground floor, three on the second, and
one on the third, along with community-serving spaces such as a leasing office, mail and parcel room, and fitness
center. Its floor areas are approximately 10,443 square feet (ground), 7,474 square feet (second), and 1,978
square feet (third).
 
All buildings are three stories, except for portions of Buildings 3, 4, and 7, which step down to two stories. No
elevators are proposed, and all upper-story units are accessed by exterior stairs. All 26 ground-floor units, which
serve as ADA-accessible units, have been designed in compliance with applicable accessibility standards.
 
Elevations – Sheets A1.3-A1.4, A2.3-A2.4, A3.3-A3.4, A6.2, A7.3-A7.4
The project’s architectural style embraces a desert modern vocabulary defined by rectilinear massing, parapet
rooflines, inset balconies and articulated façades. The use of deep overhangs, layered wall planes and
complementary materials helps to break up the scale of the buildings and provide architectural interest across the
development. Each building type has been carefully designed to reflect subtle variations while maintaining a unified
overall aesthetic. Across the development, buildings range in height from approximately 22 feet to 39 feet at their
tallest point. While the maximum height of 39 feet occurs at select architectural elements, such as stair towers,
most of the building massing remains closer to 35 feet, maintaining a consistent and moderate scale throughout the
site. These taller elements comprise only a portion of each building’s overall elevation length, helping reduce the
perceived height and bulk.
 
The proposed building heights and three-story massing are appropriate for the surrounding context. To the north,
the adjacent Rosette Apartments is a two-story (maximum 30 feet) affordable housing development; to the east, the
Rancho Monterey Specific Plan allows for densities up to 20 dwelling units per acre and building heights of up to 44
feet. To the south lies another future affordable housing site, while to the west, the project is buffered by acres of
City-owned parkland. The combination of height variation, and architectural articulation allows the development to
integrate sensitively into this evolving residential area while providing much-needed affordable housing at an
efficient scale. The heights included also help meet the City’s Request for Proposals and DDA requirement of 150
units.
 
Building 1 (Type A) – Sheets A1.3 & A1.4
This three-story structure presents a distinctly horizontal façade, defined by recessed balconies and articulated
structural bays. The front elevation features vertical elements clad in warm, wood-toned composite siding, creating
contrast with the light off-white stucco used across the main building mass. Accent panels in medium brown stucco
highlight recessed areas and frame the window groupings. At the base, a light, chalky-white stacked stone veneer
grounds the building and adds tactile richness. Matte black metal balcony railings and awnings establish a
cohesive visual rhythm and frame the lighter tones, while parapets conceal rooftop equipment and reinforce the
building’s clean, linear silhouette. The building reaches a maximum height of approximately 38 feet 9 inches at the
central stair tower, which comprises roughly 25% of the elevation; the rest of the parapet line steps down to around
35 feet, and the second story component stands at approximately 25 feet 4 inches.
 
Buildings 2 and 5 (Type B) – Sheets A2.3 & A2.4
These buildings mirror each other and include a symmetrical front elevation with grouped balconies, stair towers,
and vertical massing breaks. The façade integrates a palette of warm earth-tone stuccos, including soft terracotta
and muted sage green, to distinguish individual units and shared circulation corridors. The central vertical bay is
clad in natural-looking amber-toned wood composite, emphasizing the building’s spine. Black metal window
shrouds deepen the shadow lines around recessed fenestration, while the light stone veneer base treatment wraps
around building corners to anchor the structure visually. Extended roof overhangs provide architectural shading,
enhancing both comfort and energy performance. These structures reach a maximum height of 39 feet 4 inches at
the stair tower elements, occupying approximately 30% of the building length. The remaining portions are 35 feet 6
inches in height.
 
Buildings 3 and 4 (Type C) – Sheets A3.1 & A3.2
These buildings are the largest on the site and are designed with multiple step-backs and height transitions to
minimize perceived massing. Their elevations alternate between light cream-colored stucco and medium to dark
accent hues, including warm taupe and soft brown, with key vertical elements clad in textured stone veneer and
wood-look siding to add contrast and rhythm. The balconies are staggered and lined with black metal railings,
providing vertical interest and dynamic shadow patterns throughout the day. Together, the material layering and
articulation help visually break up the building mass while maintaining a unified architectural language. Maximum
height is 38 feet 7 inches at upper stair wells and vertical parapet features, covering 25-30% of the building length.
Significant sections step down to approximately 25 to 35 feet, especially along the two-story portions.
 



Building 6 (Type D) – Sheets A6.1 & A6.2
Smaller in footprint but still three stories, this three-story structure mirrors the architectural style of the larger
buildings. Vertical composite siding in a warm wood tone defines the corners and entry bays, balanced by recessed
balconies and a varied parapet line. The stucco is applied in a three-tone scheme featuring light off-white, rich
brown, and muted green, helping tie the building into the overall development. Despite its compact mass, Building
6 includes the project’s signature architectural components such as stone veneer at the base, matte black railings,
and metal shading elements at key window locations, ensuring a consistent design expression. The central stair
core rises to approximately 38 feet 11 inches, though this higher element spans only about 25% of the elevation.
Most of the structure is approximately 35 feet.
 
Building 7 (Type E) – Sheet A7.1 & A7.2
As the smallest and only partially two-story structure, Building 7 presents a unique transitional elevation that faces
the central courtyard. With its lower roofline simplified massing, and a restrained material application this building
acts as a focal point along Via Vail. Wood-look siding is used sparingly, appearing only at selected architectural
highlights, while stone veneer is reserved for base treatments at primary entrances. The light and warm-toned
stucco palette is continued here but applied with subtle variation to maintain harmony with surrounding buildings.
The structure provides a visual transition and acts as a community anchor at the southern edge of the site. The
community clubhouse is part of Building 7 and centrally located along the eastern edge of the site and houses key
resident amenities including a leasing office, fitness room, multi-purpose clubroom, and parcel/mail room. Support
spaces, including restrooms, maintenance, and pool equipment storage, are also incorporated. The structure is
designed in the same contemporary desert modern style as the residential buildings, using a consistent palette of
off-white stucco, earth-tone accents, wood-textured cladding, and light stone veneer. This structure reaches a
maximum of 38 feet for the top of the stair elements and 36 feet 6 inches at the partial third-story segment, which
makes up about 40% of the overall length. The bulk of the building remains between 22 and 26 feet.
 
Landscaping – Pages L1–L3
The proposed landscape design supports both aesthetic appeal and long-term sustainability. Drawing inspiration
from native desert landscapes, the planting palette prioritizes drought-tolerant and low-maintenance species that
provide seasonal interest, texture, and color while conserving water in alignment with the City’s landscaping and
water efficiency standards.
 
Tree plantings are thoughtfully distributed to provide shade, define pedestrian corridors, and soften building edges.
Selected species include Palo Verde, Mulga Acacia, and Desert Willow, each chosen for their seasonal blooms and
size. These trees help mitigate heat island effects, and frame views toward the surrounding mountains.
 
Shrub and accent plantings are interspersed throughout planter beds, around building entries, and within gathering
spaces. Species such as Fairy Duster, Red Yucca, Texas Ranger, and Baja Ruellia offer year-round visual interest
with their varied leaf textures and bursts of magenta, coral, and violet hues. These selections are arranged in
groupings to establish rhythm and contrast while supporting pollinators and local habitat.
 
Groundcover materials include ¾-inch “Jesse Gold” crushed rock and “Desert Gold” decomposed granite. These
materials are used to frame planting beds, define pedestrian edges, and transition between hardscape and
softscape areas.
 
Approximately 3,700 square feet, or 1.7% of the total site area, is dedicated to hybrid Bermuda turf, concentrated
within active recreation areas such as the playground and game court. Turf use is intentionally limited to high-
function zones where natural play surfaces are appropriate and beneficial. This ensures the project strikes a
balance between recreational needs and long-term water use efficiency.
 
In support of walkability and pedestrian comfort, a 6-foot-wide sidewalk is proposed along the Via Vail frontage,
consistent with the City’s Section 30 Design Guidelines. The sidewalk is separated from the curb by a landscaped
parkway and designed to blend with the site’s planting layout, offering shaded walking routes along the street edge.
Along the Via Vail frontage, the landscape plan incorporates a generous mix drought-tolerant plantings, including
flowering shrubs such as Red Fairy Duster, Baja Ruellia, and Texas Ranger, as well as accent grasses like Deer
Grass and Bermuda Lovegrass that soften the building edge. Layered tree plantings such as Desert Willow and
Palo Verde provide shade and visual rhythm while reinforcing the pedestrian scale of the corridor
 
Fencing and screening elements include a mix of decorative steel picket fencing, masonry walls, and privacy
fencing at targeted locations. These are integrated into the overall landscape and architectural design to delineate
boundaries, buffer utility and trash enclosures, and ensure both privacy and visual permeability where needed.
Fence elevations and materials are consistent with the modern desert design character of the project.
 



Overall, the landscape plan creates a livable and inviting environment for residents through a carefully composed
plant palette. Final irrigation design and planting specifications will be reviewed during the Final Development Plan.
 
Photometric Plans & Lighting Specifications – Pages E2–E5
Lighting across the site is provided through a combination of fixture types, including 15-foot-tall freestanding pole
lights located within the parking lots and drive aisles, wall-mounted building fixtures typically installed between 8
and 10 feet in height, and low-profile under-canopy lighting integrated into the carport structures. The two
floodlights attached to the pool house are intended solely to illuminate the immediate pool area and are directed
downward to minimize glare and light spill. These fixtures are fully shielded and comply with City lighting standards,
providing functional safety lighting while maintaining minimal ambient impact on surrounding areas. Exterior lighting
will utilize fully shielded fixtures that direct illumination downward, consistent with RMMC Section 17.18.050. Final
fixture selection and placement will be verified during the Final Development Plan review. Condition of Approval
#15 requires that lighting be maintained in accordance with City standards
 
Architectural Review Working Group (ARWG)
The project was reviewed by the ARWG on May 27, 2025. Key comments focused on the detail of rooftop
drainage, pedestrian circulation, materials, and shading strategies. Overall, the project was well received.
Conditions of Approval #25-29 have been included to address these concerns, with review to occur during the
FDP’s review.
 
Final Development Plan (FDP)
Prior to issuance of building permits, a Final Development Plan is required. The FDP will provide final construction
drawings, drainage and grading plans, lighting layouts, and landscaping plans. Substantial compliance will be
reviewed at staff level; significant changes may trigger further discretionary review.
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002
The City of Rancho Mirage, acting as the Lead Agency under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA),
conducted an Initial Study for Environmental Assessment Case No. EA25-0002 to evaluate the potential
environmental impacts of the proposed Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments project. Based on the results of the
Initial Study, the City determined that the project would not have a significant impact on the environment with the
incorporation of mitigation measures, and therefore, a Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) is the appropriate
level of environmental review pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15070.
 
The Initial Study identified potential impacts to Biological Resources, Cultural and Tribal Cultural Resources, which
warranted mitigation to ensure the project would not result in significant adverse effects. Mitigation measures were
developed to address potential disturbance to sensitive biological habitat and to ensure that proper procedures are
followed should cultural or tribal resources be discovered during ground-disturbing activities.
 
In accordance with CEQA Guidelines Section 15097, a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) has
been prepared. The MMRP outlines the specific mitigation measures required, the timing of their implementation,
and the responsible parties for ensuring compliance. The MMRP has been incorporated into the project’s
conditions of approval and will be enforced throughout the construction phase to verify that all environmental
safeguards are implemented as intended.
 
A 30-day public review period for the Draft Mitigated Negative Declaration was originally scheduled to commence
on May 23, 2025, and end at 5:00 p.m. on June 23, 2025. However, because publishing the original Notice of Intent
in The Desert Sun was inadvertently delayed until May 29, 2025, the public comment period has been extended by
seven (7) days. The deadline to submit written comments was 5:00 p.m. on June 30, 2025. A Notice of
Determination will be filed with the Riverside County Clerk following final action by the City Council.
 
AB 52 Tribal Consultation
Public Resource Code 21074 identifies “Tribal Cultural Resources” as “sites, features, places, cultural landscapes,
sacred places, and objects with culture value to California Native American Tribe” and that are either included or
determined to be eligible for inclusion on the national, state, or local register of historic resources or that are
determined by the lead agency, in its discretion, to be significant when taking into consideration the significance of
the resource to a California Native American Tribe.   
 
Assembly Bill 52 (AB 52) requires lead agencies to notify their local tribes about development projects. It also
mandates lead agencies consult with Tribes if requested and sets the principals for conducting and concluding the
required consultation process. Pursuant to AB 52 consultation requirements, the City of Rancho Mirage initiated AB
52 consultation process. The City contacted 16 tribes and representatives provided by the Native American
Heritage Commission (NAHC).



 
Pursuant to AB 52 requirements, the City of Rancho Mirage initiated a consultation process for a 30-day period
from April 24, 2024, to May 24, 2024. The Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians (ACBCI) requested consultation
and recommended three mitigation measures related to tribal monitoring, cultural sensitivity training, and
procedures for discovery of human remains. These measures have been incorporated into the MMRP.
 
Public Noticing
In compliance with the with RMMC Section 17.74.020, a Notice of Public Hearing was mailed on June 11, 2025, to
all property owners within a 1,000-foot radius of the subject property boundary, as identified on the most recent
equalized Riverside County Assessor’s roll. In the event fewer than 25 individual property owners are located within
500 feet, the Code requires the mailing radius to be extended to 1,000 feet. Public notices were sent to property
owners within a 1,000-foot radius.
 
The notice was also published in The Desert Sun newspaper on Sunday, June 15, 2025, a publication of general
circulation within the Coachella Valley. Additionally, the public notice was posted at three locations as required by
law: Rancho Mirage City Hall, the Rancho Mirage Library & Observatory, and the City’s official website.
 
 
FINDINGS

 
Pursuant to Section 17.42.060 (Findings and decision) for Preliminary Development Plans, the review authority
may approve a development plan permit, only if all of the following findings are made:
 

A. The proposed development is:
 

1. Allowed within the respective zoning district, because the proposed project identifies the development
standards for the development of the property as an affordable apartment complex. The PDP is
consistent with and will implement the intent of the Affordable Housing Overlay (AHO) and
Residential High Density (R-H) Zoning District.
 

2. Generally, in compliance with all of the applicable provisions of Title 17 of the City’s Municipal Code that are
necessary to carry out the purpose and requirements of the respective zoning district, including prescribed
development standards and applicable design guidelines. While the project generally complies with the
applicable provisions of Title 17 of the City’s Municipal Code, the AHO expressly permits deviations
from certain standards such as front yard setbacks, building height, and parking, when such
modifications support increased development efficiency and do not compromise the intent of the
underlying zoning district. In this case, the proposed design has been evaluated under the AHO
provisions and is considered consistent with the purpose and requirements of the zoning district,
while taking advantage of the flexibility afforded by the overlay to deliver a high-quality affordable
housing project.

 
3. Consistent with the general plan and specific plan, because development of the site is consistent with the

General Plan and Monterey Specific Plan given that it advances several key goals and policies related
to housing, land use, and community design. Specifically, it supports the following:
 

Housing Element Goal H-1: Encourage the production of a diverse range of housing types to
meet the needs of all income levels.

 
Policy H-1.2: Promote the development of affordable housing through incentives, flexible
development standards, and zoning tools such as the Affordable Housing Overlay.

 
Policy H-2.1: Support the development of new rental housing for very low-, low-, and moderate-
income households.

 
Land Use Element Goal LU-1: Promote development patterns that support a high quality of life
and efficient use of land.

 
Policy LU-1.4: Encourage infill development on underutilized parcels within existing urban
areas.

 
Community Design Element Goal CD-1: Promote high-quality, context-sensitive architecture
and site design.



 
Policy CD-1.5: Ensure new multifamily developments are designed to be attractive, compatible
with surrounding uses, and sensitive to the desert environment.

 
By aligning with these policies, the project advances the City’s broader goals of increasing
affordable housing supply, enhancing neighborhood character, and ensuring sustainable growth.
 

4. The proposed project would produce a comprehensive development incorporating a more enhanced
environment and architectural excellence (e.g., appropriate variety of structure placement and orientation
opportunities, appropriate mix of structure sizes, high quality architectural design, increased amounts of
landscaping and open space, improved solutions to the design and placement of parking facilities, etc.) than
would normally be possible under more standard district development requirements. By utilizing the
flexibility of the AHO, the applicant has positioned buildings toward the center of the site, allowing for
generous setbacks from surrounding properties and establishing a walkable, pedestrian-friendly
interior courtyard that serves as the heart of the development. The project incorporates varying
building heights, with two- and three-story structures strategically arranged to reduce massing and
enhance visual interest while maintaining compatibility with the neighborhood context. The design
promotes a mix of structure sizes and orientations, unifying the site with consistent desert modern
architecture, ample open space, and drought-tolerant landscaping. Parking is thoughtfully distributed
along the site perimeter and tucked behind buildings, reducing its visual impact. This combination of
spatial efficiency, design sensitivity, and amenity-rich planning results in a project that exceeds the
quality and cohesion typically achievable under conventional zoning standards.
 

5. The design, location, shape, size, operating characteristics, and the provision of public and emergency
vehicle access and public services and utilities (e.g., drainage, fire protection, sewers, water, etc.), would
ensure that the proposed development would not endanger, jeopardize, or otherwise constitute a hazard to
the public convenience, health, interest, safety, or welfare, or injurious to the property or improvements in the
vicinity and the applicable zoning district, because the project will be developed pursuant to proposed
project in accordance to the R-H and AHO. The Mitigation Monitoring Program shall be implemented
with each development. All proposed buildings within the project site meet the required setbacks.
 

6. The design, location, and proposed uses would be compatible with the character of existing development in
the surrounding neighborhood, because the project, as conditioned, meets the proposed standards for
the project under the AHO and Zoning Ordinance requirements for lot coverage, setbacks, height
limitations, and landscaping as described in this report. The project site is bordered to the north by
the future Rosette Apartments and to the south by a planned affordable housing development. The
proposed building heights and pad elevations are comparable to those of these adjacent
developments, with differences of only 3 to 4 feet, ensuring smooth visual and functional transitions
across property lines. While some buildings reach maximum heights up to 39 feet, those elevations
are limited to portions of the building massing, often less than 30% of the overall building length,
helping to reduce perceived scale. The thoughtful placement of buildings at the center of the site,
combined with a strong landscaping buffer along Via Vail and the incorporation of a central courtyard,
further enhances compatibility with the neighborhood’s evolving residential character.

 
7. The subject site is physically suitable for the type and density/intensity of development being proposed,

because the project site is physically suitable for a 150 unit affordable housing apartment
development given that the project site has an Affordable Housing Overlay per the Municipal Code
and Housing Element of the General Plan. The project’s three-story design approach enables an
efficient use of the five-acre site by maximizing vertical space, thereby preserving more ground-level
area for open space, recreational amenities, and landscaping. This design supports a well-organized
site layout that includes a central courtyard, playground, pool area, and walking paths, contributing
to a livable and community-oriented environment. In addition, the multi-story layout accommodates
the required parking without dominating the site, allowing for clear internal circulation and
emergency vehicle access while maintaining a pedestrian-friendly atmosphere
 

8. The proposed project has been reviewed in compliance with the provisions of the California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA); as the project is considered infill on a vacant pad site within and existing commercial
center and there would be no potential significant negative effects upon environmental quality and natural
resources that would not be properly mitigated and monitored, unless findings are made in compliance with
CEQA.  An Initial Study was prepared, and a Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) (SCH#2025050959)
was circulated for public review based on Environmental Assessment Case No. EA25-0002, pursuant
to CEQA Guidelines Section 15074. The analysis concluded that, with incorporation of mitigation
measures, all potential impacts, particularly those related to biological and cultural/tribal resources,



would be reduced to a less-than-significant level. A Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program
(MMRP) has been developed and included as part of the project conditions to ensure proper
implementation and ongoing compliance. No substantial evidence has been presented indicating the
project would result in significant impacts that cannot be mitigated, and no circumstances triggering
the need for an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) have been identified.

 
Pursuant to Section 17.22.070 (Processing of bonus request) In addition to the findings required for the approval of
a development plan permit in compliance with Chapter, the approval of a density bonus shall require the following
additional findings to be made in a positive manner:
 

1. The development project would not be a hazard or nuisance to the city at large or establish a use or
development inconsistent with the goals and policies of the general plan; because the project is designed
as an affordable housing development consistent with the purpose and intent of the General Plan,
Housing Element, and AHO. The use is compatible with the surrounding context and supports
adopted land use and housing goals by providing much-needed rental units for lower-income
households without introducing incompatible uses or operations.

 
2. The number of dwellings can be accommodated by existing and planned infrastructure capacities; because

while the project site is currently undeveloped, the applicant will be required to construct necessary
off-site infrastructure improvements to ensure adequate water, sewer, stormwater, and utility service
to the site. These improvements are feasible and will be conditioned as part of the project approval.
Additionally, the site will be developed with appropriate on-site circulation, emergency vehicle
access, and drainage facilities, ensuring that the planned 150-unit residential development can be
supported without.

 
3. Adequate evidence exists to ensure that the development of the property would result in the provision of

affordable housing in a manner consistent with the purpose and intent of this chapter; because the applicant
has committed to restricting 149 of the 150 units for income-qualified tenants and has incorporated
affordability requirements consistent with State Density Bonus Law (Government Code Section
65915). These units will be subject to affordability covenants ensuring long-term compliance with
income restrictions.

 
4. In the event that the city does not grant at least one financial concession or incentive as defined in state law

(Section 65915) in addition to the density bonus, that additional concessions or incentives are not necessary
to ensure affordable housing costs; because the applicant has entered into a Disposition and
Development agreement with the City and has included concessions as part of the AHO.

 
5. There are sufficient provisions to guarantee that the lower and very low income units would remain affordable

in the future, through the inclusion of a recorded disposition and development agreement that will
ensure compliance with state law requirements, including minimum affordability durations, income
verification, and rent controls as mandated by Government Code Section 65915(c). These provisions
will be monitored and enforced by the City to ensure the ongoing affordability of the units.

 
 

 

Attachments

Attachment 1 - Aerial Photo.pdf
Attachment 2 - Conditions of Approval.pdf
Attachment 3 – Public Hearing Notice.pdf
Attachment 4 – Draft Mitigated Negative Declaration.pdf
Attachment 5 – Draft Notice of Determination.pdf
Attachment 6 - PC Reso.pdf
Attachment 7 - CC Reso MND MMRP.pdf
Attachment 8 - CC Reso PDP.pdf
Attachment 9 – PDP25-0002 Exhibit Booklet.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/ranchomirageca%2Factions%2F6852ef51e9cca60070c9edd1%2FAttachment%201%20-%20Aerial%20Photo.pdf?alt=media&token=ee444f62-df23-42c7-810d-276a6a22e54f
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/ranchomirageca%2Factions%2F6852ef51e9cca60070c9edd1%2FAttachment%201%20-%20Aerial%20Photo.pdf?alt=media&token=ee444f62-df23-42c7-810d-276a6a22e54f
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/ranchomirageca%2Factions%2F6852ef51e9cca60070c9edd1%2FAttachment%201%20-%20Aerial%20Photo.pdf?alt=media&token=ee444f62-df23-42c7-810d-276a6a22e54f
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/ranchomirageca%2Factions%2F6852ef51e9cca60070c9edd1%2FAttachment%202%20-%20Conditions%20of%20Approval.pdf?alt=media&token=0e13dc87-a5a6-4770-a0d7-beae9dcc564f
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/ranchomirageca%2Factions%2F6852ef51e9cca60070c9edd1%2FAttachment%202%20-%20Conditions%20of%20Approval.pdf?alt=media&token=0e13dc87-a5a6-4770-a0d7-beae9dcc564f
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/ranchomirageca%2Factions%2F6852ef51e9cca60070c9edd1%2FAttachment%202%20-%20Conditions%20of%20Approval.pdf?alt=media&token=0e13dc87-a5a6-4770-a0d7-beae9dcc564f
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/ranchomirageca%2Factions%2F6852ef51e9cca60070c9edd1%2FAttachment%203%20%E2%80%93%20Public%20Hearing%20Notice.pdf?alt=media&token=743b2755-e60a-4055-9924-57fb872d397f
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/ranchomirageca%2Factions%2F6852ef51e9cca60070c9edd1%2FAttachment%203%20%E2%80%93%20Public%20Hearing%20Notice.pdf?alt=media&token=743b2755-e60a-4055-9924-57fb872d397f
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/ranchomirageca%2Factions%2F6852ef51e9cca60070c9edd1%2FAttachment%203%20%E2%80%93%20Public%20Hearing%20Notice.pdf?alt=media&token=743b2755-e60a-4055-9924-57fb872d397f
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/ranchomirageca%2Factions%2F6852ef51e9cca60070c9edd1%2FAttachment%204%20%E2%80%93%20Draft%20Mitigated%20Negative%20Declaration.pdf?alt=media&token=f62e0cf0-dec3-4a45-887e-bcc52c408465
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/ranchomirageca%2Factions%2F6852ef51e9cca60070c9edd1%2FAttachment%204%20%E2%80%93%20Draft%20Mitigated%20Negative%20Declaration.pdf?alt=media&token=f62e0cf0-dec3-4a45-887e-bcc52c408465
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/ranchomirageca%2Factions%2F6852ef51e9cca60070c9edd1%2FAttachment%204%20%E2%80%93%20Draft%20Mitigated%20Negative%20Declaration.pdf?alt=media&token=f62e0cf0-dec3-4a45-887e-bcc52c408465
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/ranchomirageca%2Factions%2F6852ef51e9cca60070c9edd1%2FAttachment%205%20%E2%80%93%20Draft%20Notice%20of%20Determination.pdf?alt=media&token=41823586-c504-4e84-85bb-f9dc0d244ff4
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/ranchomirageca%2Factions%2F6852ef51e9cca60070c9edd1%2FAttachment%205%20%E2%80%93%20Draft%20Notice%20of%20Determination.pdf?alt=media&token=41823586-c504-4e84-85bb-f9dc0d244ff4
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/ranchomirageca%2Factions%2F6852ef51e9cca60070c9edd1%2FAttachment%205%20%E2%80%93%20Draft%20Notice%20of%20Determination.pdf?alt=media&token=41823586-c504-4e84-85bb-f9dc0d244ff4
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/ranchomirageca%2Factions%2F6852ef51e9cca60070c9edd1%2FAttachment%206%20-%20PC%20Reso.pdf?alt=media&token=47c452c7-1af1-4bc0-a5a2-93abc69779a3
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/ranchomirageca%2Factions%2F6852ef51e9cca60070c9edd1%2FAttachment%206%20-%20PC%20Reso.pdf?alt=media&token=47c452c7-1af1-4bc0-a5a2-93abc69779a3
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/ranchomirageca%2Factions%2F6852ef51e9cca60070c9edd1%2FAttachment%206%20-%20PC%20Reso.pdf?alt=media&token=47c452c7-1af1-4bc0-a5a2-93abc69779a3
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/ranchomirageca%2Factions%2F6852ef51e9cca60070c9edd1%2FAttachment%207%20-%20CC%20Reso%20MND%20MMRP.pdf?alt=media&token=e749b055-e91e-4d7f-94e5-14e153a47374
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/ranchomirageca%2Factions%2F6852ef51e9cca60070c9edd1%2FAttachment%207%20-%20CC%20Reso%20MND%20MMRP.pdf?alt=media&token=e749b055-e91e-4d7f-94e5-14e153a47374
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/ranchomirageca%2Factions%2F6852ef51e9cca60070c9edd1%2FAttachment%207%20-%20CC%20Reso%20MND%20MMRP.pdf?alt=media&token=e749b055-e91e-4d7f-94e5-14e153a47374
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/ranchomirageca%2Factions%2F6852ef51e9cca60070c9edd1%2FAttachment%208%20-%20CC%20Reso%20PDP.pdf?alt=media&token=b0fbf24c-cf13-496b-a9c3-12f735b5fb21
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/ranchomirageca%2Factions%2F6852ef51e9cca60070c9edd1%2FAttachment%208%20-%20CC%20Reso%20PDP.pdf?alt=media&token=b0fbf24c-cf13-496b-a9c3-12f735b5fb21
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/ranchomirageca%2Factions%2F6852ef51e9cca60070c9edd1%2FAttachment%208%20-%20CC%20Reso%20PDP.pdf?alt=media&token=b0fbf24c-cf13-496b-a9c3-12f735b5fb21
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/ranchomirageca%2Factions%2F6852ef51e9cca60070c9edd1%2FAttachment%209%20%E2%80%93%20PDP25-0002%20Exhibit%20Booklet.pdf?alt=media&token=3568843b-9657-4029-a5cc-6dafaa54fe00
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/ranchomirageca%2Factions%2F6852ef51e9cca60070c9edd1%2FAttachment%209%20%E2%80%93%20PDP25-0002%20Exhibit%20Booklet.pdf?alt=media&token=3568843b-9657-4029-a5cc-6dafaa54fe00
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/ranchomirageca%2Factions%2F6852ef51e9cca60070c9edd1%2FAttachment%209%20%E2%80%93%20PDP25-0002%20Exhibit%20Booklet.pdf?alt=media&token=3568843b-9657-4029-a5cc-6dafaa54fe00


           ATTACHMENT 1  

Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments  
Environmental Assessment Case No. EA25-0002  

and Preliminary Development Plan Case No. PDP25-0002 

 



EA25-0002 & PDP25-0002 Page 1 of 19 

EA25-0002& PDP25-0002  Page 1 of 19 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 

Special conditions (or portions thereof) are designated by bold. 

GENERAL FOR EA25-0002 & PDP25-0002    

1. All improvements shall conform to the provisions of the Rancho Mirage Municipal
Code (RMMC), unless specifically modified by any of the following conditions.

2. Development of the Subject Property shall require the appropriate entitlement
process as determined by the Planning Division.

3. This approval shall be effective for two (2) years from the date of the City Council
approval, except as may be set forth in the related Disposition and Development
Agreement. Building and Engineering Permits are required to be obtained by the
applicant within two years of the project approval, except as may be set forth in the
Disposition and Development Agreement. If no permits have been obtained, the
application will expire and become null and void.

4. The applicant shall execute a written acknowledgment to the Planning Division
stating acceptance of and compliance with all of the Conditions of Approval for
Case Nos. EA25-0002 & PDP25-0002 and that the plans submitted are in
compliance with the Conditions of Approval.  No modifications shall be made to
said plans without written approval from the appropriate decision-making body.

5. The Development Services Director may grant deviations from the timing of
requirements listed in the Conditions of Approval and the site design, as long as
all requirements in the related Disposition and Development Agreement (DDA) are
met.

6. The Development Services Director may grant deviations from the timing of
requirements listed in the Conditions of Approval, including but not limited
to pad certifications and compaction reports, as long as all requirements in
the related Disposition and Development Agreement (DDA) are met.

7. The Conditions of Approval set forth herein may include certain fees, dedication
requirements, reservation requirements, and other exactions.  Pursuant to
Government Code Section 66020(d)(1), these Conditions constitute written notice
of a statement of the amount of such fees, and a description of the dedications,
reservations, and other exactions.  You are hereby further notified that the 90-day
approval period in which you may protest these fees, dedications, reservations,
and other exactions, pursuant to Government Code Section 66020(a), has begun.

8. Prior to issuance of any permits, the applicant shall acknowledge that the approved
project and any or all proposed modifications to the approved project shall be
completed in accordance with applicable City Ordinances, Guidelines, and other
requirements in effect at the time of building permit issuance.

ATTACHMENT 2



EA25-0002 & PDP25-0002        Page 2 of 19 

 

EA25-0002& PDP25-0002         Page 2 of 19 

CONFORMANCE 

9. The development of the subject property shall conform substantially with the 
approved exhibits contained in Case Nos. EA25-0002 & PDP25-0002 on file in 
the Planning Division of the City of Rancho Mirage.  This includes all dimensional 
and size specifications, landscaping, hardscape, water elements, parking areas, 
design treatments (including color and materials), and the locations of buildings, 
structures and plant materials as shown in the PDP exhibit as attached to this staff 
report. 

 

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT CASE NO. PDP25-0002: 

 

FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN REQUIRED 

10. A Final Development Plan application (FDP) shall be required prior to issuance of 
any grading or building permits (application on file with the Planning Division).  The 
Final Development Plan (FDP) shall include a complete set of Building 
Construction Plans, Final Lighting Plans (including cut-sheets with Photometric 
Plan), Precise Grading Plan, Wall Plans, Final Landscaping and Irrigation Plans, 
a written response to the project Conditions of Approval, and any other 
requirements as listed in the Final Development Plan application. 

A) As part of the FDP application submittal, the applicant shall submit a letter 
of approval from the City’s contracted waste hauler, Burrtec, for the trash 
bin enclosures design.  Said enclosures shall be designed to accommodate 
trash, recycle, and organic waste receptacles as required by State law. 

11. The Development Services Director shall consider the FDP permit application.  The 
Development Services Director may approve a FDP permit if it substantially 
conforms to the Preliminary Development Plan, and associated Conditions of 
Approval. 

12. The Development Services Director shall consider the Final Development Plan 
Permit application. He or she may approve a Final Development Plan permit if it 
substantially conforms to the Preliminary Development Plan and associated 
Conditions of Approval. 

13. The approved Preliminary Development Plan may be modified only with City 
approval in a manner pursuant to Section 17.42.120 (Modification of a 
Development Plan Permit) and terms of the Disposition and Development 
Agreement.  The Development Services Director may consider minor 
modifications to an approved Preliminary/Final Development Plan. 

14. The project shall be completed in accordance with the Ordinances, requirements, 
guidelines and other criteria in effect at the time of construction, and/or in 
accordance with the provisions in the Agreement. 

 



EA25-0002 & PDP25-0002        Page 3 of 19 

 

EA25-0002& PDP25-0002         Page 3 of 19 

FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN – LIGHTING 

15. All exterior lighting shall be shown on the Final Development Plan and shall be 
low-level directed lighting, energy-efficient and shielded or recessed so that direct 
glare and reflections are confined within the boundaries of the subject site.  All pole 
or building mounted lighting shall be directed downward and away from adjoining 
properties and public right of way.  Lighting shall not blink, flash, or be of unusually 
high intensity or brightness.  All lighting fixtures shall be appropriate in scale, 
intensity, and height to the building and shall be subject to review and approval by 
the Planning Division.  A photometric plan shall be required as a part of the Final 
Development Plan application and shall show a zero-foot-candlelight reading 
at all property lines and/or prove light is contained fully on the subject 
property. 
 

OTHER 

16. All green waste shall be disposed of at a permitted composting facility. 

17. The applicant shall undertake or cause to be undertaken such action or actions as 
are necessary to permit and/or otherwise accommodate the implementation of 
recycling services.  Such action or actions may include, but are not limited to:  
designating and providing adequate area at convenient locations with appropriate 
access for the placement of dumpsters and/or bin sets; constructing permanent 
enclosures that meet all requirements of the Code of the City of Rancho Mirage 
for each dumpster and/or bin set; providing for the security of each dumpster to 
discourage scavenging, and; providing adequate indoor area at convenient 
locations for the collection and short-term storage of recyclables.  The applicant 
shall submit a “Recycling Program” that has been reviewed by an agent of the City, 
which, at a minimum, explains, states or otherwise defines:  (1) recyclables 
generated by type; (2) estimate by pounds for each recyclable generated; (3) 
number of dumpsters and/or plastic bin sets (one set equals three “baskets”) 
needed to accommodate estimated recyclables; (4) location of each dumpster 
(may be identified on a map attached as an exhibit); (5) method of collection such 
as curbside at each residential unit or at rear of property by dumpster, etc.; and (6) 
pick-up schedule for recyclables.  The applicant shall provide other such 
information as may be necessitated by the development proposal. 

18. The development shall comply with the requirements of Assembly Bill AB341. 
Recycling containers shall be sized in accordance with the anticipated need as 
approved by the City’s contracted waste hauler.  The applicant shall also 
participate in the Burrtec Organic and Food Waste Recycling program.  
Recycling bin enclosures shall be located and architecturally screened in 
accordance with the Rancho Mirage Municipal Code as approved by Staff. 

19. As part of the FDP submittal, the applicant shall obtain a letter of 
compliance/approval from the City’s contracted Waste Hauler (Burrtec) for the 
design of their trash bin enclosures.  Said enclosures shall be designed to 
accommodate trash, recycle, and organic waste receptacles as required by State 
law. 



EA25-0002 & PDP25-0002        Page 4 of 19 

 

EA25-0002& PDP25-0002         Page 4 of 19 

20. All water features shall be maintained in compliance with Ordinance No. 844. 

21. All new landscaping shall be water efficient landscaping and shall be installed and 
maintained in compliance with Chapter 17.24 (Landscaping Standards) of the 
Rancho Mirage Municipal Code. 

22. The mitigation measures contained in the Mitigated Negative Declaration 
(SCH Number 2025050959) based on Environmental Case No. EA25-0002 are 
hereby incorporated as Conditions of Approval.  The property owner shall 
be responsible for implementing the mitigation measures contained within 
the adopted Mitigated Negative Declaration, as necessary.   

23. Developer shall comply with all obligations, duties, requirements, and 
covenants listed in the associated Disposition and Development Agreement, 
and all representations and warranties therein shall be true and accurate in 
all material respects. 

24. The applicant must provide plans and obtain permits for the proposed 
carports prior to the first certificate of occupancy being issued by the 
Building Division.  

25. The final landscape plan shall include additional BBQ structures and at least 
one sink or wash station to support outdoor resident gatherings. These 
features shall be integrated within common open space areas and designed 
with durable, weather-resistant materials. 

26. The applicant shall revise building elevations to further refine massing and 
articulation using a simplified, cohesive design approach. Emphasis shall be 
placed on softening abrupt wall terminations and refining window 
placements to reduce visual clutter and enhance building rhythm. The 
revised elevations shall be included as part of the Final Development Plan.  

27. All stone veneer applications shall incorporate consistent end cap detailing 
across all elevations to ensure a uniform and finished appearance. The Final 
Development Plan shall reflect this treatment. 

28. The west elevation of Building 1 shall be revised to reduce visual bulk. 
Acceptable modifications may include, but are not limited to, shortening the 
depth of central projections or incorporating architectural screening 
elements such as louvers. 

29. A clearly defined pedestrian pathway shall be provided between the eastern 
and western courtyards. The final site plan shall illustrate this connection 
through the use of enhanced paving, landscaping, or other design 
treatments that promote walkability and spatial continuity. 

30. The project shall be an affordable housing development and any necessary 
covenants shall be recorded to ensure continued affordability as described 
in the associated Disposition and Development Agreement, which includes 
but is not limited to: rental units shall remain affordable to and occupied by 



EA25-0002 & PDP25-0002        Page 5 of 19 

 

EA25-0002& PDP25-0002         Page 5 of 19 

lower income households for a period of 55 years for rental housing, and 
45 years for ownership housing. The initial occupants of all ownership 
units shall be lower income households, and the units shall be subject to 
an equity sharing agreement consistent with California Government Code 
Section 65915(c)(2). These requirements shall be covenants or restrictions 
running with the land and enforceable against any owner who violates a 
covenant or restriction and each successor-in-interest who continues the 
violation.  

 

FILING FEES 

31. Within 5 days of project approval the applicant shall submit to the City of 
Rancho Mirage a check in the total amount of $3,018.75 made payable to the 
City of Rancho Mirage for the CEQA filing fees for the IS/MND (SCH# 
2025050959). 

HARDSCAPE, LANDSCAPE AND SCREENING  

32. In conformance with Rancho Mirage Municipal Code Chapter 17.24, a complete 
set of on-site and off-site Landscaping Plans and installation schedules shall be 
required for all public and private street parkway areas between any curb and the 
right of way line or perimeter wall, including any common areas, and shall be 
submitted to, and approved by the Planning Division prior to issuance of a building 
permit. 

33. The plans shall be submitted as a Landscape Documentation Package in 
accordance with Ordinance No. 990.  Such Plan(s) shall be consistent with the 
Preliminary Landscape Plan, and the applicant shall provide evidence that the 
landscape plan has been reviewed and approved by the Riverside County Office 
of the Agricultural Commissioner and the Coachella Valley Water District (CVWD) 
prior to issuance of permits as a component of the Final Development Plan (FDP) 
or conformance check. 

34. Where walls are shown on the development plan they shall be designed consistent 
with the approved plan set with aesthetic relief and be of high-quality architectural 
design to complement adjacent developments. 

PLANNING DIVISION 

 

35. The final landscaping and irrigation plans shall incorporate incorporating the use 
of Evapotranspiration (ET) irrigation “smart” controllers which shall include 
automatic water scheduling, rain and temperature sensors, or a comparable 
system.   

36. Landscaping, Wall and Grading Plans shall demonstrate that all electrical 
transformers, utility pads, cable TV and phone boxes, and similar utility fixtures will 
be screened, pursuant to Chapter 17.20 of the Rancho Mirage Municipal Code 
and/or installed underground if required. 



EA25-0002 & PDP25-0002        Page 6 of 19 

 

EA25-0002& PDP25-0002         Page 6 of 19 

LANDSCAPE VERIFICATION 

37. Per RMMC Section 17.20.040 (E), all mechanical equipment must be 
screened. 

38. All roof vents and plumbing stacks shall be routed to the interior side and/or rear 
of the structure so as to not be seen from the front building elevation.  All vents 
and stacks shall be of a color compatible with the Planning approved building 
color(s) and have non-reflective surfaces. 

39. Landscaping, Wall, and Grading Plans shall demonstrate that all electrical 
transformers, utility pads, cable TV and phone boxes, and similar utility fixtures will 
be screened, and/or installed underground if required pursuant to RMMC Chapters 
12.16 Underground Utility Lines and 17.20 General Property and Use Standards. 

40. Landscaping.  The plans shall be submitted as a Landscape Documentation 
Package in accordance with Ordinance No. 990, and as amended by Ordinance 
1101.  Such Plan(s) shall be consistent with the Preliminary Landscape Plan, and 
the applicant shall provide evidence that the landscape plan has been reviewed 
and approved by the Coachella Valley Water District (CVWD) prior to requesting a 
final inspection.   

A) The project landscape architect shall submit written verification that the 
landscaping and irrigation has been installed per the approved plans.   

B) Vegetation with spikes that may be harmful to pedestrians shall be a 
minimum of three (3) feet away from walkways. 

C) The Planning Division reserves the right to request additional landscaping 
upon final inspection if it is determined that areas are devoid of plant or 
ground cover material, or the execution of the landscaping plan does not 
comply with the FDP landscape plans. 

41. Walls.  Where perimeter walls are shown on the development plan they shall be 
designed with aesthetic relief and be of high-quality architectural design to 
complement adjacent developments. All top-of-wall elevations and adjacent finish 
grade elevations for the project perimeter and entry walls shall be subject to review 
and approval by the Planning Division and City Engineer.  The applicant shall 
contact the adjacent property owners if grading outside the subdivision boundaries 
is required for construction of the perimeter walls. This shall be accomplished prior 
to issuance of any permit. 

42. Lighting.  All exterior lighting shall be shown on the Final Development Plan and 
shall be low-level directed lighting, energy-efficient and shielded or recessed so 
that direct glare and reflections are confined within the boundaries of the subject 
site and shall be directed downward and away from adjoining properties and public 
right of way.  Lighting shall not blink, flash, or be of unusually high intensity or 
brightness.  All lighting fixtures shall be appropriate in scale, intensity, and height 
to the building and shall be subject to review and approval by the Planning Division.  

BUILDING AND SAFETY DIVISION 



EA25-0002 & PDP25-0002        Page 7 of 19 

 

EA25-0002& PDP25-0002         Page 7 of 19 

TUMF FEE AND DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES (DIF) 

43. The applicant shall pay to the Building Division the Transportation Uniform 
Mitigation Fee (TUMF) in effect at the time the Building Permits are issued, unless 
otherwise permitted by the Coachella Valley Association of Governments (CVAG).  

COACHELLA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT (CVWD) LETTER 

44. Prior to occupancy, if applicable, a letter from CVWD shall be submitted stating 
that all the district fees have been paid and all requirements have been met for 
development.  The City and CVWD reserve the right to apply water conservation 
requirements to the project at the time of Final Development Plan approval and 
prior to permit issuance. Any required changes shall be reviewed ministerially by 
City staff and by CVWD pursuant to their adopted protocol. 

PERMITS & CLEARANCES 

45. The applicant shall provide evidence of permit(s) or clearance(s) from the following 
agencies: 

• City Planning Division 

• City Engineer 

• City Attorney 

• Fire Marshal 

• Riverside County Department of Environmental Health 

• Imperial Irrigation District 

• Coachella Valley Water District 

• Burrtec 

• Palm Springs Unified School District 

• South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT – Prior to City Council Approval of the Final Map, 
the following Conditions shall be satisfied: 

FORMATION AND/OR ANNEXATION TO CFD 

46. Pursuant to Ordinance No485 the applicant shall provide evidence that formation 
of, or annexation to a Communities Facilities District (CFD) No. 1 –Police and Fire 
services - to pay the City annually, or as otherwise determined by the City, for 
public service costs associated with this project has been initiated. This requires 
the submittal of an application fee, the preparation of a boundary map, and 6-8 
weeks processing time. The applicant is advised to begin the application process 
as soon as possible, because the CFD annexation must occur prior to issuance of 
Grading Permits, or prior to Final Map approval if there is one 



EA25-0002 & PDP25-0002        Page 8 of 19 

 

EA25-0002& PDP25-0002         Page 8 of 19 

STUDIES AND CALCULATIONS REQUIRED 

47. The applicant shall submit a soils report, geological and hydrology studies, and 
hydraulic calculations, as required by the City Engineer, prior to approval of the 
Grading Plan. 

SECTION 30 COLORED SIDEWALK 

48. Plans for the required Section 30 colored sidewalk, in accordance with City 
standards, shall be submitted to the Planning Division and City Engineer and shall 
be shown on the plan. The sidewalk shall have a medium broom finish on 4” thick 
P.C.C (Portland Cement Concrete).  The color shall be Davis Co.  “Yosemite 
Brown” or approved equal.  Where the sidewalk or street improvement and 
landscape is located on private property, a public access easement shall be 
provided and recorded, subject to the approval of the City Engineer.  The approved 
sidewalk shall be constructed along the project frontage and shall be maintained 
in perpetuity in a safe condition by the applicant. 

GRADING & DRAINAGE PLAN 

49. The applicant shall be required to submit a grading and drainage plan prepared by 
a licensed civil engineer to the City Engineer for plan check and approval.  The 
grading and drainage plan shall be consistent with any and all conditions of 
approval associated with any applicable subdivision map and any Development 
Permit entitlements issued for the subject project by the City or any other 
responsible public agency.  The grading and drainage plan shall conform to all city 
policies, standards and regulations applicable to the project.  In addition, if the 
project involves grading and drainage issues related to Coachella Valley Water 
District (CVWD) facilities, written evidence of the District’s approval shall be 
required as a condition of permit issuance. 

STORMWATER RETENTION 

50. Per Municipal Code Section 15.64.140.B, if the project is less than 1 acre or if it is 
south of the Whitewater Flood Channel, the grading of the project may be designed 
for the drainage to be conveyed to an “acceptable disposal site as determined by 
the City Engineer”.  Since this project is south of the Whitewater Channel, it can 
be designed to retain the “incremental increase” runoff, so as not to increase the 
peak flows into the existing connection to the Whitewater Channel.  Surface streets 
are not considered “an acceptable disposal site” for common “nuisance water” from 
sprinklers and cleaning.  Therefore, at a minimum, all projects shall make 
provisions to absorb such “nuisance water” to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.  
As a commercial project, frequent stormwater flows across walkways shall be 
reduced as much as possible by use of an onsite piped drainage network or 
channel drains across walkways where surface swales intercept them. A 
Hydrology/Hydraulic Report, in accordance with the Riverside County Hydrology 
Manual, shall be submitted from a Registered Civil Engineer, showing how this 
stormwater is handled. 



EA25-0002 & PDP25-0002        Page 9 of 19 

 

EA25-0002& PDP25-0002         Page 9 of 19 

WQMP 

51. Whether they are in areas that must retain 100% stormwater or not, all 
discretionary projects that meet any of the following criteria must submit “Project-
Specific Water Quality Management Plans (WQMP)” in accordance with Appendix 
H of the Whitewater River Region Storm Water Management Plan (SWMP) 
(available at:http://content.rcflood.org/NPDES/WhitewaterWS.aspx) 

A.) “single family hillside residences that create 10,000 square feet or more 
of impervious area where natural slope is 25% or greater; 

B) single-family hillside residences that create 10,000 square feet of 
impervious area where the natural slope is 10% or greater where erosive 
soil conditions are known; 

C.) Commercial and industrial developments of 100,000 square foot or more; 

D.) Automotive repair shops [includes Standard Industrial Classification 
(SIC) codes 5013, 7532, 7333,7534, 7537, 7538, and 7539]; 

E.) Retail gasoline outlets disturbing greater than 5,000 square feet; 

F.) Restaurants disturbing greater than 5,000 square feet; 

G.) Home subdivisions with 10 or more housing units; 

H.) Parking lots of 5,000 square feet or more or with 25 or more parking 
spaces and potentially exposed to Urban Runoff; or 

I.) Discharge into the MS4 (aka Municipal Storm Drain System) and disturb 
an area of one acre or more, or disturb less than one acre, but are part of a 
larger common plan of development or sale (referred to as Other 
Development Projects) 

 

If any of the above criteria exist, or at the discretion of the City, a Final 
WQMP shall be required prior to permit issuance, with Recording of a 
Covenant, or other approved mechanism, establishing the WQMP as a 
Public Record that shall apply upon occupancy, and continuing forward, to 
all future operators/residents of the project. Any approved design 
modifications that take place during construction shall be documented and 
incorporated into the Recorded WQMP Covenant prior to occupancy. On 
the basis of criteria C, G and H, this project will need to do a WQMP 
addressing the maintenance of their stormwater retention systems. 

STANDARD AGREEMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS  

52. If public infrastructure is to be included in this project, the applicant shall execute 
and submit the City of Rancho Mirage’s Standard Agreement for Construction of 
Public Improvements for review and approval by the City Engineer and City 
Attorney.   

http://content.rcflood.org/NPDES/WhitewaterWS.aspx


EA25-0002 & PDP25-0002        Page 10 of 19 

 

EA25-0002& PDP25-0002         Page 10 of 19 

STREET IMPROVEMENTS  

53. Street improvements shall be required as specified below. Paved access in 
accordance with the City Master Plan of Streets and City Standards shall be 
provided to the subdivision.  Plans for the construction of the required street 
improvements shall be designed by a California Registered Engineer and 
approved by the City Engineer prior to Final Map approval.  All street construction 
shall be in conformance with these plans and the City’s General Plan and Standard 
Details.  Plans shall be approved prior to or concurrent with Final Development 
Plan approval and construction shall occur prior to occupancy.  The developer shall 
furnish proof that any Sewer and Water Improvement Plans have been reviewed 
and approved by CVWD.  The developer shall furnish proof that the Fire Marshal 
has approved the Water Plans and Street layout for the project. 

A.) Public Streets – Via Vail 

i. Right-of-way along Via Vail at a width of 33 feet on each side of 
centerline shall be dedicated to the City of Rancho Mirage. The 
applicant shall be responsible for the design and construction 
of full street improvements along their project frontage on Via 
Vail, including but not limited to pavement, curb and gutter, 
sidewalk, parkway landscaping, streetlights, and stormwater 
improvements, all to the satisfaction of the City Engineer and 
the Public Works Department. All easements and right-of-way 
dedications must be provided as required by the City and 
reflected in the approved improvement plans.  

ii. Plans for the required 6’ curb adjacent sidewalk, shall be 
submitted to the City Engineer, and shall be shown on the 
landscape and plans and shall be constructed along the 
frontage.  Curb and Gutter shall be installed along both sides of 
Via Vail on the project frontage with the curb face at a distance 
from centerline to be determined by the City Engineer. At the 
southeasterly end of Via Vail a temporary asphalt 90’ diameter 
offset cul-de-sac turn-around area per a modified Standard 400-
B, shall be designed and constructed to the satisfaction of the 
City Engineer and the Fire Department.   

iii. The design of the entry way shall be subject to the approval of the 
City Engineer and Fire Department. 

iv. Landscape and irrigation plans for all public street parkways and 
median islands shall conform to City standards and be submitted for 
review and approval by the City Engineer and Planning Division. 
Boulders shall not exceed 15” in height within 3 feet of a public street 
curb.  Canopy trees shall be placed a minimum of 10 feet from public 
street curb and a minimum of 5 feet from sidewalks.  Palm trees shall 
be placed a minimum of 5 feet from public street curb or sidewalk 
with a minimum trunk height of 10 feet.  Right of way lines shall be 



EA25-0002 & PDP25-0002        Page 11 of 19 

 

EA25-0002& PDP25-0002         Page 11 of 19 

shown on the final landscape plan. 

B.) Private Streets/Parking Lots 

i. Private street and/or parking lot paving shall consist of a minimum of 
3” A.C. paving over 4” of compacted Class II aggregate base 
material.  On private streets and parking lots, and as may be required 
by a condition of approval, decorative concrete or other surfacing 
materials shall be reviewed by Public Works for conformance to 
Public Works standards. 

ii. On private streets and parking lots, non-standard curb and gutter 
maybe acceptable if the City’s standard drainage criteria is satisfied, 
and the specific non-standard curb and gutter is approved by the 
Department of Public Works. 

iii. The parking lot design and construction shall be completed in 
accordance with the City of Rancho Mirage standards and codes 
unless superseded by more stringent requirements from the State or 
Federal ADA guidelines.  Such design shall include demonstration of 
adequate fire and delivery truck turning movements. 

iv. In accordance with Municipal Code 17.26.070(d), all required off-
street parking areas shall be designed so that surface water shall not 
drain over any sidewalks or adjoining parcels. 

v. Private streets within the project shall be constructed with a minimum 
two-way travel way of 24 feet and marked for “no parking” by red 
paint or signage. Any median islands shall have a minimum of 24 
feet clearance on either side of them. Private street paving shall 
consist of a minimum of 3” A.C. paving over 4” of compacted Class 
II aggregate base material, unless alternative paving materials are 
approved. 

DEDICATION OF DRAINAGE EASEMENTS 

54. All easements for drainage facilities necessary to accommodate the final approved 
Grading and Drainage Plan shall be offered for dedication to the appropriate 
serving agency.  Such offer shall be incorporated on the Final Map or as required 
by the City Engineer. 

DEDICATION OF PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENTS 

55. Public utility easements as necessary adjacent to the curb and gutter and edge of 
pavement shall be provided by the property owner for all public and private streets, 
and for public streets where the public right-of-way is less than the required 10 
feet.  All necessary utilities; sewer, water, electric, phone, fiber optic 
communications, natural gas, and television cable shall be provided to the lots and 
along the property frontage, unless otherwise approved.  

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES REQUIRED 



EA25-0002 & PDP25-0002        Page 12 of 19 

 

EA25-0002& PDP25-0002         Page 12 of 19 

56. All existing or proposed Imperial Irrigation District, Telephone, CATV, or other 
overhead service facilities, shall be installed underground in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 12.16 of the Rancho Mirage Municipal Code.  The 
undergrounding installation of all existing or proposed overhead distribution utility 
lines shall be completed and/or appropriate guarantee arrangements shall be 
entered into for any structure constructed pursuant to this approval as required by 
the City Engineer. Such guarantee arrangement shall be approved by the City 
administrative staff and the City Attorney and shall include the posting of 
improvement security adequate to secure the periphery of the subject property; 
and as identified above and as required in Section 12.16 of the Rancho Mirage 
Municipal Code. 

SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM 

57. A sanitary sewer system shall be required and shall be installed in accordance with 
the provisions established and set forth by the regulations of the Coachella Valley 
Water District, the Riverside County Department of Public Health, and/or the 
regional Water Quality Control Board.  All necessary easements shall be provided.  

 

DOMESTIC WATER SYSTEM 

58. A domestic water system shall be required and shall be installed in accordance 
with the provisions established and set forth by the regulations of the Coachella 
Valley Water District, the Riverside County Department of Public Health, and/or 
the regional Water Quality Control Board.  All necessary easements shall be 
provided. 

LAQMP 

59. The applicant shall prepare a Local Air Quality Management Plan (LAQMP) 
pursuant to Ordinance No 855, Municipal Code Chapter 7.01.  Said LAQMP shall 
detail the project’s potential impacts upon the air quality of the area and any 
necessary mitigation measures, and shall be submitted to the Public Works 
Department for review and approval prior to the issuance of the Grading Permit.  
For ease of preparing a LAQMP, the applicant may contact the Public Works 
Department regarding use of the LAQMP worksheet.  Projects over 10 acres shall 
also submit the 8.5x11 format Dust Control Plan Required by the South Coast Air 
Quality Management District for review by the City.  At the time of payment of the 
permit fees the developer shall submit a “dust control deposit” to be determined 
from the acreage and the current fee schedule. 

SWPPP / NOI 

60. Prior to issuance of Grading Permits, the Property Owner shall submit the 
completed NOI (Notice Of Intent) form and site plan with the appropriate fee, to the 
State Water Quality Control Board for the General Construction Activity Storm 
Water Permit.  The WDID number issued shall be placed on the cover sheet of the 
Grading Plans as Proof of Submittal.  The SWPPP promised by the NOI is required 
to be kept on the project site and may be requested for viewing by City or Water 



EA25-0002 & PDP25-0002        Page 13 of 19 

 

EA25-0002& PDP25-0002         Page 13 of 19 

Quality Control Board personnel.  

BLOWSAND MITIGATION PLAN 

61. Since this project is located in an area that is subject to occasional high winds and 
migrating sand, the subdivider shall be required to submit a blowsand mitigation 
plan prepared by a licensed civil engineer to the City Engineer for plan check and 
approval.  The blowsand mitigation plan shall identify the specific measures and 
describe the specific procedures that will be implemented to adequately mitigate 
blowsand impacts on all of the project’s on-site and off-site improvements.  All 
improvements for blowsand protection shall be depicted on the project’s grading 
and drainage plan.  In addition all marketing materials and CC&R’s shall identify 
that the project is located within a blowsand area. 

CONSTRUCTION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 

62. The construction of all required public and private improvements, including but not 
limited to landscaping, sewer, water, curb and gutters, paving, drainage facilities, 
and other required improvements shall be completed prior to occupancy of any 
structure and/or the owner shall enter into an agreement, acceptable to the City, 
ensuring the construction of such improvements within eighteen (18) months of 
project approval or City Council approval of the Final Map. 

WRITTEN VERIFICATION 

63. Prior to release of bonds or financial guarantees, the applicant or his successor 
shall provide written verification that the improvements have been installed in 
accordance with the approved plans. 

AS-BUILT PLANS 

64. A complete set of “As-Built” Grading, Sewer, Water, Landscaping, Street, Storm 
Drain and all other required improvement plans shall be submitted by the engineer 
of record for review and approval, prior to release of Subdivision Bonds. 

PROPERTY CONFIGURATION 

65. If processed concurrently with a PDP application, a subdivision map shall be 
processed and recorded.  Other types of projects shall confirm that the property is 
already appropriately configured, or may adjust the property through Subdivision 
Map, Parcel Merger or Lot Line Adjustment as needed, with written authorization 
provided by the Planning and Engineering Divisions. In lieu of a Subdivision 
Map, a Record of Survey shall be done prior to project occupancy, showing 
monumentation of the project boundary and the street centerline. 

SECURITY 

66. In accordance with the request of the Rancho Mirage Police Chief, the site shall 
be fenced and gated for security purposes during construction.  Screening material 
shall be placed on the fence to help block blowsand and to block views through 



EA25-0002 & PDP25-0002        Page 14 of 19 

 

EA25-0002& PDP25-0002         Page 14 of 19 

the fence.  If necessary, the applicant shall provide a state licensed private security 
officer during the time construction workers are not onsite.   

PAD CERTIFICATION 

67. Prior to release of Building Permits, a Pad Certification submitted from a Licensed 
Land Surveyor or Civil Engineer, attesting to the elevation matching the rough 
grade pad elevation shall be submitted to validate the rough grading completion. 

COMPACTION REPORT 

68. Prior to the release of Building Permits, the Lot (s) for the building(s) shall have a 
compaction report submitted from a Geotechnical Engineer attesting to the 
buildable pad being compacted at least 90% of maximum relative density.  If any 
over-excavation, or slopes steeper than 2:1, are needed for the building pad, a 
Geotechnical Engineer shall submit a document attesting to the acceptability of 
this non-standard earthwork in accordance with the recommendations of the 
preliminary soil report. 
 

FIRE MARSHAL 
 
Fire Apparatus Access Roads 

69. Fire apparatus access roads, commonly referred to as fire lanes, shall be provided 
for every facility or building when any portion of an exterior wall of the first story is 
located more than 150 feet from a public roadway, as measured along an approved 
route. Extenuating circumstances, increased hazards, and additional fire safety 
features as deemed necessary by RVCFD may affect these requirements. For 
additional information related to residential tract development. 

 
A) Fire Apparatus Access Road Design - Roadways must be engineered to 

support emergency response apparatus. Roadways must be designed to 
facilitate turning radii of apparatus and meet requirements for gradient, height 
clearance, and width. Specific criteria pertaining to the design of fire apparatus 
access roadways are detailed below. 
 

Required Number of Fire Apparatus Access Roads: 
70. A) One access will be required where any portion of an exterior wall of the first 

story of a building is located more than 150 feet from a fire access roadway. The 
required access distance is to be measured by an approved route around the 
exterior of the building. 
 
1) Location of Fire Apparatus Access Roads: 
For purposes of determining the suitability of public roads and fire apparatus 
access roadways for staging fire apparatus and facilitating fire suppression 
operations for a particular structure, the following criteria shall apply: 
 
a) To protect fire apparatus, personnel, and equipment from damage and injury 
from falling debris, the edge of fire access roadways serving buildings shall be 



EA25-0002 & PDP25-0002        Page 15 of 19 

 

EA25-0002& PDP25-0002         Page 15 of 19 

located between 15 and 40 feet from the building, or as otherwise determined by 
Riverside County Fire. These distances are measured from the face of the building 
to the top edge of the curb face or rolled curb flow line nearest the structure. This 
road shall be positioned parallel to the building. 
 
2) Width of Fire Access Roads - The minimum width of a fire access roadway is 
24 feet, unless as approved by Riverside County Fire. Where a center median is 
included within the roadway, the required width shall be provided on both sides of 
the median. The width of fire department access roads is measured from top face 
of the curb to top face of the curb on streets with standard vertical curbs and 
gutters, and from flow line to flow line on streets with rolled, sloped, flared, or other 
non-vertical curb and gutter configurations. Flow line is the lowest continuous 
elevation on a curb. Road sections and curb details or approved city street 
improvement plans may be required to verify method of measurement. 
 
3) Parking Restrictions - Parking is not permitted on roadways that are less than 
28 feet in width. Parking on one side is permitted on a roadway that is at least 28 
feet but less than 36 feet in width. Parking on two sides is permitted on a roadway 
36 feet or more in width. 
 
4) Vertical Clearance - Fire access roads shall have an unobstructed vertical 
clearance of not less than 13 feet 6 inches. If trees are located adjacent to the fire 
access roadway, place a note on the plans stating that all vegetation overhanging 
the fire access roadway shall be maintained to provide a clear height of 13 feet 6 
inches at all times. 
 
5) Fire Apparatus Access Road Grade - The grade for access roads shall not 
exceed 15%. Cross-slope shall not be greater than 2.5% for paved access 
roadways. 
 
6) Inside and Outside Turning Radii - The inside turning radius for an access road 
shall be 17 feet or greater. The outside turning radius for an access road shall be 
38 feet or greater. As fire apparatus are unable to negotiate tight “S” curves, a 56-
foot straight leg must be provided between these types of compound turns or the 
radii and/or road width must be increased accordingly. 
 
7) Dead-end Access Roadways - Dead-end roadways in excess of 150 feet shall 
be designed and constructed with approved turnarounds or hammerheads. 
Turnarounds shall meet the turning radius requirements identified above. The 
minimum cul-de-sac radius is 38 feet with no parking allowed. 

 
Obstructions to Emergency Vehicle Access 

71. Existing or proposed gates and barriers crossing fire apparatus access roadways 
must be shown on the plans. Information such as the location, type of gate (e.g., 
swinging, sliding), dimensions, type of construction, and method of operation 
(manual, electric) must also be provided. Note or identify the following: 

 



EA25-0002 & PDP25-0002        Page 16 of 19 

 

EA25-0002& PDP25-0002         Page 16 of 19 

A) Clear Width – Gated openings for egress and ingress of vehicles shall not be 
less than 24 feet clear width. Gates serving a single direction of travel shall not 
be less than 12 feet clear width. The vertical clearance shall not be less than 
13 feet 6 inches, including landscaping and/or trees. This reduction in width is 
applicable only to the area immediately adjacent to the guardhouse or gate. 
Roads leading up to and beyond the guard house or gate shall meet standard 
fire lane width requirements.  

B) Turning Radii - The minimum inside turning radius is 17 feet with an outside 
radius of 38 feet for both the exterior and the interior approach to the gate. 

C) Setbacks from the Street - Gates and barriers shall be located a minimum of 
56 feet from any public roadway.  

D) Setbacks from First Interior Turn - A 27-foot minimum unobstructed setback is 
required from a gate to the first turn to allow emergency apparatus clearance. 

E) Manually Operated Gate and Barrier Design - Typical gate designs may include 
sliding gates, swinging gates or arms, or guard posts with a chain traversing 
the opening. 

F) Electrically Operated Gates and Barriers: 
In the event of loss of power to the gate operating mechanism, it shall be 
manually operated without any other actions, knowledge, or manipulation of the 
operating mechanism being necessary and without the use of battery back-up 
power. If the gate cannot be opened manually, a secondary source of reliable 
power by means of an emergency generator or a capacitor with enough reserve 
to automatically, immediately, and completely open the gate upon loss of 
primary power shall be provided for fail-open operation. In the event of 
mechanical failure, gates shall remain locked in the open position until full 
operation has been restored. 

 
Access to Structures 

72. A) Hose pull –The hose pull distance is set at 150 feet due to a variety of factors, 
including standard hose lengths, weight of equipment, hydraulic properties, and 
accepted operational procedures. 
 
1) Hose pull is measured along a path that simulates the route a firefighter may 
take to access all portions of the exterior of a structure from the nearest public road 
or fire lane. All obstructions such as fences, planters, vegetation, topography, 
parked cars, and other structures must be considered when determining whether 
a building is accessible from a particular location on the fire access roadway. Hose 
pull measurements shall begin at the edge of the roadway or fire apparatus access 
road. 
 

Requirements for Residential Tract Developments 
73. The following requirements apply to all new residential tract developments with 

one and two-family homes and multi-family projects. 
 

A) Number of access points 



EA25-0002 & PDP25-0002        Page 17 of 19 

 

EA25-0002& PDP25-0002         Page 17 of 19 

1) A minimum of two vehicle access and egress points are required for any 
development containing 150 or more single family dwellings and/ or 200 multifamily 
dwelling units, or when the distance to an access point is more than 1,320 feet. 

 
2) Where two fire apparatus access roads are required, they shall be placed a 
distance apart equal to not less than one-half of the length of the maximum overall 
diagonal dimension of the property or area to be served, measured in a straight 
line between accesses. 

 
B) Cul-de-sacs. 

 
1) Any street that is a required fire lane and greater than 150 feet in length shall 
be provided with a 38-foot minimum turning radius or other approved turnaround 
within 150’ of the end of the fire lane. 

 
2) The cul-de-sac “bulb” (the portion at the dead-end of the cul-de-sac street which 
is wider than the cul-de-sac “neck” leading to it shall be identified as a fire lane with 
red curbs or “Fire Lane—No Parking” signs. Fire lane markings may be omitted 
from the bulb if one or more of the following applies: 

 
a. A three-point turn may be made within 150’ of the end of the cul-de-sac with all 
areas along the curb assumed to be occupied by parked vehicles. Auto-Turn 
software or other approved methods shall be used to demonstrate this unless a 
standard hammerhead turnaround template is used. 

 
b. The length of the cul-de-sac street, including any driveway or spur road 
accessed from the bulb that is a required fire lane, is not more than 150 feet. 

 
c. The radius of the cul-de-sac is at least 46 feet; or 

 
3) Cul-de-sacs longer than 150 feet that are required to be designated as fire lanes 
may contain a center island provided that: 

 
a. A minimum 28-foot-wide drive lane with an adequate inside turning radius is 
provided around the island, and   
 
b. Island landscaping will not intrude into the drive lane, and 

 
c. The island is designated a no parking area with red curbs or fire lane signs. 

 
Hydrant and Fire Flow Requirements 

74. A) Water Availability – To facilitate the review process and avoid unnecessary 
delays in project approval, applicants are required to submit data sheets from a 
water purveyor providing water availability information must be no older than 
twelve months. 

 



EA25-0002 & PDP25-0002        Page 18 of 19 

 

EA25-0002& PDP25-0002         Page 18 of 19 

B) Hydrant Location – Hydrants shall be provided at street intersections, along 
required fire apparatus access roads, and adjacent to public streets in the 
quantities and up to the maximum distances prescribed in CFC Appendix C Table 
C105.1. 
 
1) Hydrants, fire department connections, exterior fire protection system control 
valves, or any other exterior fire protection system components that may require 
immediate access shall be located where they will not be visually or operationally 
obstructed (behind fences or walls, in bushes, behind parking spaces, etc.). Three 
feet clear space shall be maintained around the circumference of fire hydrants. 

 
Adverse Impacts  

75. The proposed project may have a cumulative adverse impact on the Fire 
Department's ability to provide an acceptable level of service.  These impacts 
include an increased number of emergency and public service calls due to the 
increased presence of structures, traffic, and population. The project 
proponents/developers will be expected to provide for a proportional mitigation to 
these impacts via capital improvements and/or impact fees. 
 

Access 

76. Fire Department emergency vehicle apparatus access road locations and design 
shall be in accordance with the California Fire Code, City of Rancho Mirage 
Municipal Code, and Riverside County Fire Department Standards.  Plans must 
be submitted to the Fire Department for review and approval prior to building permit 
issuance. 
 

Water 

77. Fire Department water system(s) for fire protection shall be in accordance with the 
California Fire Code, City of Rancho Mirage Municipal and Riverside County Fire 
Department Standards.  Plans must be submitted to the Fire Department for review 
and approval prior to building permit issuance. 

 

CITY ATTORNEY – PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF BUILDING PERMITS THE 
FOLLOWING CONDITIONS SHALL BE SATISFIED: 

78. The applicant shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City, its agents, 
officers, and employees from any claim, action, or proceeding against the City or 
its agents, officers, or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this permit 
approval.  The City shall notify the applicant of any claim, action, or proceeding 
and the City shall cooperate in the defense.  If the City fails to notify the applicant 
of any claim, action or proceeding, the permittee shall not thereafter be responsible 
to defend, indemnify, or hold harmless the city. 

79. The applicant shall reimburse the City for any court and attorney’s fees which the 
City may be required to pay as a result of any claim or action brought against the 



EA25-0002 & PDP25-0002        Page 19 of 19 

 

EA25-0002& PDP25-0002         Page 19 of 19 

City because of this project.  Although the applicant is the real party in interest in 
an action, the City may, at its sole discretion, participate in the defense of the 
action, but such participation shall not relieve the permittee of any obligation under 
this Condition. 

80. Pursuant to RMMC Chapter 15.64.280, all public improvements proposed with the 
Development Plan submittal, or required by the adopted approval Conditions, shall 
be guaranteed by cash bonds, letters of credit, or other legal instruments 
acceptable to the City Attorney and City Council. 

81. Written authorization must be obtained from any certified, licensed or registered 
professional who signed the original building plans authorizing the plans to be 
made available by the City to all subsequent owners upon request (if on file with 
the City at the time of the request) for use by any subsequent owners solely for the 
construction, maintenance, operation, and use of the subject building(s) at the 
project site. 

82. In the event that the applicant receives a notice of default from any lender in 
connection with funds loaned to the applicant for the proposed development, or 
that any security instrument given by the applicant to any lender is foreclosed upon 
whether through a trustee’s sale or otherwise, or that the applicant files a petition 
for bankruptcy, the applicant shall immediately notify the City of such notice of 
default, foreclosure sale, and/or filing of the bankruptcy petition, as the case may 
be. 

83. The current and future property owner(s) shall be responsible for maintaining in 
compliance with all City standards for the same, the on-site and off-site 
landscaping and integrated architectural features required by this entitlement.  
Landscape maintenance shall consist of regular watering mowing, pruning, 
fertilizing, clearing of debris and weeds, and the removal and replacement of 
irrigation systems, in compliance with all relevant and applicable provisions of the 
Rancho Mirage Municipal Code.  Integrated architectural features must be kept in 
a manner which maintains the desirability of the immediate area and neighboring 
areas and respects the harmonious relationship with existing and adjoining 
developments.  Due regard for preservation of each feature and its intended 
irrigation with surrounding landscaping, buildings, structures, screening and signs 
is required.  All features must be maintained in a manner commonly accepted by 
professionals who are experts in the care and preservation of each particular type 
of feature.  A covenant to assure continued maintenance of on-site and off-site 
required landscaping and integrated architectural features by the current and 
future property owners or other liable entity, consistent with the terms and 
provisions of this condition of approval, shall be prepared in a format approved by 
the City Attorney and recorded in the Office of the Riverside County Recorder 
against all parcels created with this subdivision and any subsequent amendments 
thereto. 

 



Planning Division 
69-825 Highway 111

Rancho Mirage, CA 92270 
Planning@RanchoMirageCA.gov 

(760) 328-2266

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
Thursday, June 26, 2025 – 2:00 p.m. 

Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments  
Environmental Assessment Case No. EA25-0002 and 
Preliminary Development Plan Case No. PDP25-0002 

Applicant: National Community Renaissance 

Request:  Consideration of an affordable housing development, Rancho Mirage 
Affordable Apartments, consisting of 150 units distributed across seven (7) 
two- and three-story walk-up buildings on a 5-acre site (approximately 
217,800 square feet). Of the 150 units, 149 will be income-restricted 
affordable units, with one unit reserved for on-site management. 

Location: South of Via Vail and east of Key Largo Avenue 
A.P.N.: 685-090-016 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a Public Hearing will be held before the City of Rancho 
Mirage Planning Commission regarding consideration of the above-referenced affordable 
housing development, pursuant to Rancho Mirage Municipal Code Title 17. An 
environmental assessment application was submitted for the subject project and the 
determination was made that the project required an initial study. An Initial Study has 
been prepared to result in the recommendation to adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration 
(MND). A Notice of Intent to Adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration was published in the 
Desert Sun and distributed to interested parties. A 30-day public review period for the 
Draft Mitigated Negative Declaration commenced on May 29, 2025. 

The Public Hearing will be held on Thursday, June 26, 2025, at 2:00 p.m., in the Council 
Chamber, 69-825 Highway 111, Rancho Mirage, California, at which time and place 
pertinent testimony will be heard. The file, including all environmental information, is 
available for public inspection at City Hall, Monday through Friday, between 8:00 a.m. 
and 5:00 p.m., and will be posted on the City’s website with the publication of the Planning 
Commission Agenda, to be posted at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 

Written testimony may be submitted to the City Clerk via email to 
CityClerk@RanchoMirageCA.gov, or mailed to City of Rancho Mirage, ATTN: City Clerk, 
69-825 Highway 111, Rancho Mirage, CA 92270. Written testimony must be received no

ATTACHMENT 3

mailto:Planning@RanchoMirageCA.gov
mailto:CityClerk@RanchoMirageCA.gov


EA25-0002 & PDP25-0002  June 26, 2025 
 
later than 11:00 a.m. on the day of the hearing to be considered by the Planning 
Commission. 
 
GOVERNMENT CODE § 65009 NOTICE: If you challenge this proposed activity in court, 
you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the Public 
Hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Planning 
Commission sufficiently prior to the Public Hearing to enable its consideration by them. 

 
Vicinity Map – Not to Scale  

 



City of Rancho Mirage 

Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family 

Apartments 

Initial Study/ Mitigated Negative Declaration 

Lead Agency:  
City of Rancho Mirage 

69-825 Highway 111

Rancho Mirage, California 92270 

Prepared by:  

Terra Nova Planning & Research, Inc.Ò 

42635 Melanie Place, Suite 101 

Palm Desert, California 92211 

May 2025 

ATTACHMENT 4



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  2 

ENVIRONMENTAL INITIAL STUDY 
Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family 

Apartments 
 
 

Project Title: Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family 
Apartments 

City Project No: Environmental Assessment Case No. EA25-
0002 and Preliminary Development Plan Case 
No. PDP25-0002 

Lead Agency Name 
and Address: 

City of Rancho Mirage 
69-825 Highway 111 
Rancho Mirage, California 92270 
Phone: (760) 328-2266 

Applicant: National Community Renaissance of California 
Contact Person: Pilar Fløtterud– Senior Planner 
Phone Number: (760) 328-2266 EXT 208 
Project Location: South of Via Vail and east of Key Largo 

Avenue 
Accessor Parcel 
Number: 

685-090-016 

General Plan 
Designation: 

High Density-Residential (R-H), Affordable 
Housing Overlay (AHO) 

Zoning Designation: High Density Residential (R-H), Affordable 
Housing Overlay (AHO) 

 
  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  3 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL INITIAL STUDY ................................................................................ 2 

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE HOUSING FAMILY APARTMENTS ........................ 2 
CHAPTER 1: PROJECT DESCRIPTION ......................................................................... 7 

Project Location ............................................................................................................ 7 
Utilities ........................................................................................................................ 11 
Environmental Setting and Surrounding Land Uses ................................................... 11 
Other public agencies whose approval is required ..................................................... 12 

CHAPTER 2: ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS AND DETERMINATION ........................ 20 
Determination: ............................................................................................................ 22 

1.1 Setting ........................................................................................................................... 23 
1.2 Discussion of Impacts: ................................................................................................... 24 
1.3 Mitigation Measures ...................................................................................................... 26 

2 - Agriculture and Forestry Resources ...................................................................... 27 
2.1 Setting ........................................................................................................................... 27 
2.2 Discussion of Impacts: ................................................................................................... 28 
2.3 Mitigation Measures ...................................................................................................... 28 

3 - Air Quality .............................................................................................................. 29 
3.1 Setting ........................................................................................................................... 29 
3.2 Discussion of Impacts: ................................................................................................... 31 
3.3 Mitigation Measures ...................................................................................................... 36 

4 - Biological Resources ............................................................................................. 37 
4.1 Setting ........................................................................................................................... 38 
4.2 Discussion of Impacts: ................................................................................................... 39 
4.3 Mitigation Measures: ..................................................................................................... 41 

5 - Cultural Resources ................................................................................................ 42 
5.1 Setting ........................................................................................................................... 42 
5.2 Discussion of Impacts: ................................................................................................... 43 
5.3 Mitigation Measures: ..................................................................................................... 45 

6 - Energy ................................................................................................................... 46 
6.1 Setting ........................................................................................................................... 46 
6.2 Discussion of Impacts: .................................................................................................. 46 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  4 

6.3 Mitigation Measures: ..................................................................................................... 51 
7 - Geology and Soils ................................................................................................. 52 

7.1 Setting ........................................................................................................................... 53 
7.2 Discussion of Impacts: ................................................................................................... 54 
7.3 Mitigation Measures: ..................................................................................................... 57 

8 – Greenhouse Gas Emissions ................................................................................. 58 
8.1 Setting ........................................................................................................................... 58 
8.2 Discussion of Impacts: ................................................................................................... 59 
8.3 Mitigation Measures: ..................................................................................................... 60 

9 - Hazards and Hazardous Materials ........................................................................ 61 
9.1 Setting ........................................................................................................................... 62 
9.2 Discussion of Impacts: .................................................................................................. 64 
9.3 Mitigation Measures: ..................................................................................................... 66 

10 - Hydrology and Water Quality ............................................................................... 67 
10.1 Setting ......................................................................................................................... 68 
10.2 Discussion of Impacts: ................................................................................................. 68 
10.3 Mitigation Measures: ................................................................................................... 71 

11 - Land Use and Planning ....................................................................................... 72 
11.1 Setting ......................................................................................................................... 72 
11.2 Discussion of Impacts: ................................................................................................. 72 
11.3 Mitigation Measures: ................................................................................................... 73 

12 - Mineral Resources ............................................................................................... 74 
12.1 Setting ......................................................................................................................... 74 
12.2 Discussion of Impacts: ................................................................................................. 75 
12.3 Mitigation Measures: ................................................................................................... 75 

13 - Noise.................................................................................................................... 76 
13.1 Setting ......................................................................................................................... 76 
13.2 Discussion of Impacts: ................................................................................................. 77 
13.3 Mitigation Measures: ................................................................................................... 83 
None required. ..................................................................................................................... 83 

14 - Population and Housing ...................................................................................... 84 
14.1 Setting ......................................................................................................................... 84 
14.2 Discussion of Impacts: ................................................................................................. 85 
14.3 Mitigation Measures: ................................................................................................... 85 

15 - Public Services .................................................................................................... 86 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  5 

15.1 Setting ......................................................................................................................... 86 
15.2 Discussion of Impacts: ................................................................................................. 87 
15.3 Mitigation Measures: ................................................................................................... 89 

16 - Recreation ........................................................................................................... 90 
16.1 Setting ......................................................................................................................... 90 
16.2 Discussion of Impacts: ................................................................................................. 90 
16.3 Mitigation Measures .................................................................................................... 90 

17 - Transportation ..................................................................................................... 91 
17.1 Setting ......................................................................................................................... 91 
17.2 Discussion of Impacts: ................................................................................................. 92 
17.3 Mitigation Measures: .................................................................................................... 98 

18 - Tribal Cultural Resources .................................................................................... 99 
18.1 Setting ......................................................................................................................... 99 
18.2 Discussion of Impacts: ............................................................................................... 101 
18.3 Mitigation Measures: ................................................................................................. 101 

19 - Utilities and Service Systems ............................................................................ 103 
19.1 Setting ....................................................................................................................... 103 
19.2 Discussion of Impacts: ............................................................................................... 105 
19.3 Mitigation Measures: ................................................................................................. 108 

20 - Wildfire ............................................................................................................... 109 
20.1 Setting ....................................................................................................................... 109 
20.2 Discussion of Impacts: ............................................................................................... 110 
20.3 Mitigation Measures: ................................................................................................. 110 

21 - Mandatory Findings of Significance ................................................................... 111 
21.1 Discussion of Impacts: ............................................................................................... 111 
21.3 Mitigation Measures: ................................................................................................. 112 

Chapter 3: References ................................................................................................. 115 

Chapter 4: Appendices ................................................................................................. 117 
Chapter 5: Report Preparers ........................................................................................ 117 
 

 
 
  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  6 

 
TABLES 
Table 1  Rancho Mirage Afforadable Housing Family Apartments Permitted and Proposed  

Development ................................................................................................................ 8 
Table 2  South Coast Air Quality Management District Criteria Air Pollutant Thresholds ........ 31 
Table 3  Maximum Daily Construction-Related Emissions (pounds per day) ........................... 33 
Table 4  Maximum Daily Operational-Related Emissions (pounds per day) ............................ 34 
Table 5  Localized Significance Thresholds Comparison with Daily Maximum Construction 

Emissions (pounds per day) ....................................................................................... 35 
Table 6  Previously Recorded Cultural Resources within the Project Vicinity .......................... 44 
Table 7  Construction Equipment Fuel Consumption Estimates .............................................. 47 
Table 8  Construction Worker Fuel Consumption Estimates .................................................... 49 
Table 9  Operational Energy Demand ...................................................................................... 50 
Table 10  Total Operation GHG Emission per Source ............................................................... 59 
Table 11  Projected Greenhouse Gas Emissions Summary ...................................................... 60 
Table 12  Project Indoor Water Consumption Demand .............................................................. 69 
Table 13  Project Outdoor Water Consumption Demand ........................................................... 70 
Table 14  Ambient Noise Level Measurements .......................................................................... 77 
Table 15  Construction Equipment Noise Level Summary ......................................................... 78 
Table 16  Construction Noise Level Compliance ........................................................................ 79 
Table 17  Exterior Noise Levels From Traffic ............................................................................. 79 
Table 18  Interior Noise Level per Residential Floor .................................................................. 80 
Table 19  Project Operational Compliance ................................................................................. 80 
Table 20  Estimate Nois Level Contours without the Project in 2026 ......................................... 81 
Table 21  Estimate Nois Level Contours with the Project in 2026 .............................................. 82 
Table 22  Vibration Source Levels for Construction Equipment ................................................. 83 
Table 23  Project Construction Vibration Levels ......................................................................... 83 
Table 24  Regional Housing Need Allocation, 2022 to 2029 ...................................................... 85 
Table 25  Project Trip Generation Rates .................................................................................... 93 
Table 26  Project Trip Generation Results ................................................................................. 93 
Table 27  Traffic Impact Report Study Area ............................................................................... 93 
Table 28  Intersection Analysis for Existing Conditions .............................................................. 94 
Table 29  Intersection Analysis at Project Buildout in 2026 Conditions ...................................... 95 
Table 30  Intersection Analysis for Cumulative Conditions ........................................................ 96 
Table 31  Project Wastewater Generation ................................................................................ 107 
Table 32  Remaining Capacity for Riverside County’s Regional Landfills ................................ 107 
Table 33  Estimated Solid Waste Generation at Project Buildout ............................................ 108 
Table 34 Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program .......................................................... 113 
 
EXHIBITS 
Exhibit 1 Regional Location Map .......................................................................................... 13 
Exhibit 2  Project Location Map ............................................................................................. 14 
Exhibit 3  Project Site Plan ..................................................................................................... 15 
Exhibit 4(a) Building Elevation for Building 2 & 5 ...................................................................... 16 
Exhibit 4(b) Building Elevation for Building 3 & 4 ...................................................................... 17 
Exhibit 4(c) Building Elevation for Building 7 & Community Center .......................................... 18 
Exhibit 5  Preliminary Landscape Plan .................................................................................. 19 
 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  7 

CHAPTER 1: PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
Project Location 
The Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartment Project (Project) is a multi-family 
apartment complex proposed on 5±-acres of City-owned land located southeast of Key Largo 
Avenue and Via Vail in the City of Rancho Mirage, Riverside County. Formally, the site is located 
within the northeastern quarter of Section 30, Township 4 South, Range 6 East, San Bernardino 
Base and Meridian.  

Existing Site Conditions 

Currently, the proposed site is an undeveloped infill parcel, part of a larger vacant lot, covered 
with loose sand and desert vegetation. The property is bound by undeveloped desert lands to the 
north, south, east, and west. Surrounding development includes the Monterey Marketplace 
Shopping Center to the north and northeast, Rancho Mirage Dog Park to the northwest, single-
family residential units to the south and west, and Monterey Avenue to the east. Although no 
development has yet occurred, the Rosette Apartments complex is a City-approved apartment 
housing project on the northern property abutting the site. Construction of that project is expected 
to begin in the next several months. 

Surrounding Land Uses 

In compliance with the property’s subdivision as part of the Monterey and Dinah Shore land 
holding, owned by the City of Rancho Mirage and intended for future affordable housing 
development, the Project proposes a multi-family housing development in which 149 units out of 
150 will be reserved for affordable housing. Development planned by the Project is consistent 
with the parcel’s land use/zoning designation as High Density-Residential (R-H), within an 
Affordable Housing Overlay (AHO).  

A R-H land use allows residential development to consist of smaller, single-family and multi-family 
attached dwelling units at a density range between 5 to 9 dwelling units per acre (du/ac). An AHO 
zone provides incentives and density bonus to allow for the creative and effective development 
of affordable residential development. Under the AHO zone, an affordable housing project can 
propose a density of up to 28 du/ac. Modified standards will be subject to review by the City 
Council.  

Table 1 provides a summary of permitted and proposed developments which the Project is subject 
to or exempt from as a high-density residential affordable housing development. 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  8 

Table 1 
Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Permitted and Proposed Development 

Category Section Municipal Code Proposed Design Concession/Waiver 
Compliance 

APN  685-090-016 685-090-016  
Land Use/Zoning RMMC 17.08.010 General Plan Designation: HDR 

Zoning Code: R-H 
Overlay District: AHO 

General Plan Designation: HDR 
Zoning Code: R-H 
Overlay District: AHO 

 

Lot Area RMMC 17.08.020 8,000 sf minimum ±217,800 sf (5 acres)  
Lot Coverage RMMC 17.08.020 35% maximum ±66,060 sf, 30%   
Main Building Height/ 
Number of Stories 

RMMC 17.08.020 20’0”/1-story ±39’ 4”/3-story Density Bonus Incentive/ 
Concession Request 

Residential Density RMMC 17.08.020 5.9 du/ac (gross) 
28 du/ac (per AHO) 

30 du/ac 
 
State Density Bonus: 50.4 du/ac 

Complies with allowable 
density bonus increase of 
80% under State law  

Setbacks RMMC 17.08.020 Front: 20’0” 
Side (each): 10’0” 
Side (street): 15’0” 
Rear: 20’0” 

Front: 8’-8’ ¾” minimum (varies) 
Side (each): 51’0” minimum 
(varies) 
Side (street): N/A 
Rear: 20’ 9” minimum 

 

Additional Height 
Restrictions & Setbacks 

RMMC 17.20.100 Setbacks shall increase at a 
minimum rate of two feet for 
each one foot of additional 
building height above 20’0” 

Proposed development 
complies with additional 
setback requirement except for 
the building on the western 
property line 

Density Bonus Incentive/ 
Concession Request 

Private Outdoor Living 
Space 

RMMC 17.08.020 300 sf per unit 97 sf per unit Density Bonus Incentive/ 
Concession Request 

Off-Street Parking RMMC 17.26.040 1BR:  1 space/unit (covered),  
          1 guest space/2 du 
2BR:  2 spaces/unit (2 covered), 
          1 guest space/2 du 
3BR:  2 spaces/unit (2 covered),  
          1 guest space/2 du 
Total for 150 units: 335 spaces 

1BR: 1 space/du 
2BR: 1.5 spaces/du 
3BR: 1.5 spaces/du 
Total parking allowed per state 
density bonus for 150 units: 206 
spaces 
Proposed: 219 spaces 

Complies with minimum 
parking requirements 
under State density 
bonus law 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  9 

Table 1 
Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Permitted and Proposed Development 

Category Section Municipal Code Proposed Design Concession/Waiver 
Compliance 

Parking Design RMMC 17.26.070 Driveway (2-way) width: 24 ft 
Stall: 9’x18’ 
Parallel Stall: 9’x26’ (4’ every 2 
stalls) 

Driveway (2-way) width: 24 ft 
Stall: 9’x18’ 
Parallel Stall: None 

 

Minimum Area for 
Apartments in R-H 

RMMC 17.06.010 1BR: 850 sf minimum 
2BR: 900 sf minimum 
3BR: 1000 sf minimum 

1BR: 520 sf & ±541 sf (net) 
2BR: 745 sf & ±756 sf (net) 
3BR: ±1016 sf & ±1029 sf (net) 
 
Minimum area for apartment for 
tax credit 
1BR: 450 sf 
2BR: 700 sf 
3BR: 900 sf 

Density Bonus Incentive/ 
Concession Request; 
Unit sizes exceed 
minimum sizes required 
under tax credit 
guidelines  

Bicycle Parking RMMC 17.26.100 Short-Term Bicycle Parking: 5% 
of motorized vehicle 
Long-Term Bicycle Parking: 5% 
of motorized vehicle 

Short-Term: 12 bikes minimum 
Long-Term: 12 bikes minimum 

 

Laundry Facility Section 15-TCAC 
Specific Design 
Requirements 

Washer and dryer ratio for family 
projects is 1:10 

Common laundry facilities 
consist of 15 washers and 15 
dryers 

 

Parking Lot Landscape RMMC 17.26.70 Interior parking spaces shall 
have a continuous six-foot wide 
planter strip at the front of parking 
space 

Landscape planter strip 
provided at the front of each 
parking space with a width that 
varies from 6’-0’ and under with 
a minimum width of ±3’0” 

Density bonus 
incentive/concession 
request 

Landscape RMMC 17.24.040 10% coverage minimum Approximately 42,802± sf of 
landscape is proposed, 
providing 20% coverage 

 

Source: Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Project Data, May 2025.  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  10 

 

The proposed Project would include seven multi-family residential buildings, totaling 150 dwelling 
units, as well as amenity space, recreational facilities, and parking areas. Buildout also requires 
the extension of Via Vail along the property’s eastern boundary. The following provides a detailed 
report of the proposed residential development and road improvements. Exhibit 3 through 5 
provide a visual representation of the information provided below.  

● Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments: The 5± acre parcel will be 
developed to include seven permanent three-story residential buildings, totaling to 
66,060± square feet. Each residential building is configured as a three-story walk-up with 
no elevator. The property’s residential development is divided by a north-south driveway, 
which separates the development into an east and west portion. The east portion includes 
Building 1, 2 and 5 through 7. The west portion includes Building 3 and 4. The two portions 
are connected by a pedestrian walkway. Driveways are also provided on the north and 
south boundaries of the Project. 
 

o Residential Units: Of the 150 units available for leasing, approximately 42 units are 
1-bedroom (28%), 69 units are 2-bedroom (46%), and 39 units are 3-bedroom 
units (26%). Each unit includes a living room, kitchen, bathroom, closet/storage 
space, and a private patio/balcony. A total of 149 dwelling units are designated for 
affordable housing and 1 dwelling unit is designated for management.  
 

● On-site Amenities: A variety of complementary amenities are provided and accessible 
within communal spaces located between residential buildings. 
 

o Community Center: The Community Center is a one-story building, totaling 3,353± 
square feet. The facility provides a shared room, kitchen and patio space, as well 
as a laundry room, bike room, leasing office, mail room, and two office spaces. 
 

o Playground: Located immediately west of the Community Center, the play area is 
suitable for young children.  

 
o Swimming Pool: The 948 square foot swimming pool includes lounge chairs with 

desert landscape enclosing the area. The swimming pool is located west of the 
playground and east of the pool house. The pool house is a one-story building 
used to store pool equipment and provides restrooms and shower stalls. 

 
o Game Court: A green open space turf area is located to the west of the pool house 

and may be used to play a variety of field sports.  
 

o Butterfly Garden: A desert landscape garden is located on the west half of the 
residential development and provides passive open space for residents.  

 
o Grilling Station: There is an outdoor grilling station located west of the butterfly 

garden and beneath a tree canopy with outdoor seating. 
 

 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  11 

● Landscape: A total landscape area of 42,802± square feet is proposed along the site’s 
perimeter, as well as within open spaces between residential buildings. All vegetation used 
for landscaping will be drought tolerant and noninvasive.  
 

● On-site Parking: A total of 219 parking stalls are proposed, including 141 covered carport 
spaces and 78 uncovered spaces. Of the 219 parking units, 23 stalls are EV charging 
stations, and 90 stalls are EV charging compatible. Parking is located along the property’s 
north and south boundary with additional parking along the perimeter of the development’s 
east and west residential portions.  
 

● Circulation and Roadway Access: The site provides two points of access along the future 
extension of Via Vail, located immediately adjacent to the site’s eastern boundary. The 
north access point functions as a gated entry point with a resident and guest queuing lane, 
intercom, keypad system, and a turnaround. The second access point functions as the 
site’s exit route and is located at the southeast corner of the Project. 
 

● Road Improvements: The extension of Via Vail bounds the property’s eastern frontage for 
0.066 miles. Buildout of Via Vail to the dimensions of a Local Collector (60 feet of right-of-
way width and 40 feet of curb-to-curb pavement width) is proposed so as to accommodate 
two travel lanes, as well as a bike path, and pedestrian sidewalk on the west side only.  

 

Utilities  
The Project is located in an area of Rancho Mirage where the following utility providers currently 
service residential and commercial users.    

Domestic Water: Coachella Valley Water District 

Wastewater: Coachella Valley Water District  

Solid Waste: Burrtec Waste Industries 

Electrical: Imperial Irrigation District 

Natural Gas: Southern California Gas 

Telecommunication: Frontier, Spectrum, others 

Cable: Spectrum 

 

Environmental Setting and Surrounding Land Uses 
The Project site is part of a large infill parcel, owned by the City of Rancho Mirage. Surrounding 
development consists of single-family residential development and commercial/retail facilities. 
The following delineates the property’s surrounding urbanized setting.   

West:   Vacant desert land, single family homes 

North: Vacant desert land, approved apartment project—Rosette Apartments, Monterey 
Marketplace Shopping Center, Rancho Mirage Dog Park 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  12 

South: Vacant desert land, Low Density Single-Family Residential  

East: Vacant desert land, Desert Gateway Plaza beyond Monterey Avenue 

 

Other public agencies whose approval is required 
Coachella Valley Water District 

Regional Water Quality Control Board  

















Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  20 

 

CHAPTER 2: ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS AND DETERMINATION 
Environmental Factors Potentially Affected: 

The environmental factors checked below would be potentially affected by this Project, involving 
at least one impact that is a "Potentially Significant Impact" as indicated by the checklist on the 
following pages. 

 Aesthetics  Agriculture and 
Forestry Resources  Air Quality 

 Biological Resources  Cultural Resources  Energy 

 Geology / Soils  Greenhouse Gas 
Emissions  Hazards & Hazardous 

Materials 

 Hydrology / Water 
Quality  Land Use / Planning  Mineral Resources 

 Noise  Population / Housing  Public Services 

 Recreation  Transportation  Tribal Cultural Resources 

 Utilities / Service 
Systems  Wildfire  Mandatory Findings of 

Significance 
 

  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  21 

Evaluation of Environmental Impacts: 

1) A brief explanation is required for all answers except "No Impact" answers that are adequately 
supported by the information sources a lead agency cites in the parentheses following each 
question. A "No Impact" answer is adequately supported if the referenced information sources 
show that the impact simply does not apply to projects like the one involved (e.g., the project falls 
outside a fault rupture zone). A "No Impact" answer should be explained where it is based on 
project-specific factors as well as general standards (e.g., the project will not expose sensitive 
receptors to pollutants, based on a project specific screening analysis). 

2) All answers must take account of the whole action involved, including off-site as well as on-
site, cumulative as well as project-level, indirect as well as direct, and construction as well as 
operational impacts. 

3) Once the lead agency has determined that a particular physical impact may occur, then the 
checklist answers must indicate whether the impact is potentially significant, less than significant 
with mitigation, or less than significant. "Potentially Significant Impact" is appropriate if there is 
substantial evidence that an effect may be significant. If there are one or more "Potentially 
Significant Impact" entries when the determination is made, an EIR is required. 

4) "Negative Declaration: Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated" applies where the 
incorporation of mitigation measures has reduced an effect from "Potentially Significant Impact" 
to a "Less Than Significant Impact." The lead agency must describe the mitigation measures, and 
briefly explain how they reduce the effect to a less than significant level (mitigation measures from 
"Earlier Analyses," as described in (5) below, may be cross-referenced). 

5) Earlier analyses may be used where, pursuant to the tiering, program EIR, or other CEQA 
process, an effect has been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or negative declaration. Section 
15063(c)(3)(D). In this case, a brief discussion should identify the following: 

a) Earlier Analysis Used. Identify and state where they are available for review. 

b) Impacts Adequately Addressed. Identify which effects from the above checklist were 
within the scope of and adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable 
legal standards, and state whether such effects were addressed by mitigation measures 
based on the earlier analysis. 

c) Mitigation Measures. For effects that are "Less than Significant with Mitigation 
Measures Incorporated," describe the mitigation measures which were incorporated or 
refined from the earlier document and the extent to which they address site-specific 
conditions for the project. 

6) Lead agencies are encouraged to incorporate into the checklist references to information 
sources for potential impacts (e.g., general plans, zoning ordinances). Reference to a previously 
prepared or outside document should, where appropriate, include a reference to the page or 
pages where the statement is substantiated. 

7) Supporting Information Sources: A source list should be attached, and other sources used or 
individuals contacted should be cited in the discussion. 

8) This is only a suggested form, and lead agencies are free to use different formats; however, 
lead agencies should normally address the questions from this checklist that are relevant to a 
project's environmental effects in whatever format is selected.  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  22 

9) The explanation of each issue should identify: a) the significance criteria or threshold, if any, 
used to evaluate each question; and b) the mitigation measure identified, if any, to reduce the 
impact to less than significance. 

 
Determination: (To be completed by the Lead Agency) On the basis of this initial evaluation: 

 

 
 
______________________________________________________ 
Pilar Fløtterud, Senior Planner 
City of Rancho Mirage 

 
 
_________________ 
Date: 
 

  

 I find that the proposed project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the environment, 
and a NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared. 

 

 

I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, 
there will not be a significant effect in this case because revisions in the project have been 
made by or agreed to by the project proponent. A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
will be prepared. 

 I find that the proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment, and an 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required. 

 I find that the proposed project MAY have a "potentially significant impact" or "potentially 
significant unless mitigated" impact on the environment, but at least one effect 1) has been 
adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and 2) 
has been addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis as described on 
attached sheets. An ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required, but it must analyze 
only the effects that remain to be addressed. 

 I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, 
because all potentially significant effects (a) have been analyzed adequately in an earlier EIR 
or NEGATIVE DECLARATION pursuant to applicable standards, and (b) have been avoided 
or mitigated pursuant to that earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION, including revisions 
or mitigation measures that are imposed upon the proposed project, nothing further is 
required. 

5/19/2025



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  23 

Environmental Checklist and Discussion: 

The following checklist evaluates the proposed Project’s potential adverse impacts. For those 
environmental topics for which a potential adverse impact may exist, a discussion of the existing 
site environment related to the topic is presented followed by an analysis of the Project’s potential 
adverse impacts. When the Project does not have any potential for adverse impacts for an 
environmental topic, the reasons why there are no potential adverse impacts are described.   

 
1 - Aesthetics 

AESTHETICS -- Would the project:  
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

with Mitigation 
Incorporation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

a) Have a substantial adverse effect on 
a scenic vista?     

b) Substantially damage scenic 
resources, including, but not limited to, 
trees, rock outcroppings, and historic 
buildings within a state scenic 
highway? 

    

c) In non-urbanized areas, 
substantially degrade the existing 
visual character or quality of public 
views of the site and its surroundings? 
(Public views are those that are 
experienced from publicly accessible 
vantage point). If the project is in an 
urbanized area, would the project 
conflict with applicable zoning and 
other regulations governing scenic 
quality? 

    

d) Create a new source of substantial 
light or glare, which would adversely 
affect day or nighttime views in the 
area? 

    

Sources: Rancho Mirage General Plan, 2017; Project Material; Google Earth Pro.  
 

1.1 Setting  
 

The City of Rancho Mirage is in the Coachella Valley, a relatively flat desert valley located in the 
northwestern region of the Colorado Desert Province. Like the Valley, Rancho Mirage is an arid 
desert environment consisting of wind disturbed alluvial sediment, desert scrub, hills and 
mountain ranges. The City is situated near the base of the Santa Rosa Mountains at an elevation 
of 252 feet above sea level, on average. 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  24 

According to the Rancho Mirage 2017 General Plan, the mountain ranges encompassing the 
Coachella Valley, including the San Jacinto and Santa Rosa Mountains, are recognized as a 
national resource by the Bureau of Land Management and U.S. Forest Service. Locally, the City 
classifies the Santa Rosa Mountains as a scenic vista and resource. Thus, specific regulatory 
codes aim to protect scenic viewsheds to the Santa Rosa Mountains so as to ensure new 
development does not limit or distract the natural landscape. Other scenic resources consisting 
of trees, rock outcrops, historical buildings and the like are not prevalent in Rancho Mirage. 

The Project site, located at the east side of Key Largo Avenue, west of Monterey Avenue, and 
west of future Vai Vail extension, is currently an undeveloped parcel 5± acres in size. The parcel 
consists of sandy soil, desert shrubs, and gentle slopes towards the northeast at an elevation 
between 285 and 305 feet above mean sea level. Directly to the north, south, east, and west there 
are undeveloped, vacant lots, similar to the property. Within the Project area, development 
consists of residential communities, commercial/retail facilities, and street infrastructure. Although 
no prior development has occurred on-site, there are signs of disturbance including tire tracks, 
dog prints, trash and human footprints. However, the site's existing condition can be generally 
characterized as being in its natural state.  

 

1.2 Discussion of Impacts:  
 

a) LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT. The Project includes the construction of seven 
residential buildings, reaching a maximum height of 39’ 4” or three stories tall. The 
development is designed with a desert modern aesthetic with buildings consisting of three 
dimensional cut-outs varying in textures between natural wood, off-white plaster, and stone 
veneer. Landscape is included throughout the property and along the site’s frontage on Vai 
Vail. Specific development designs are listed in Table 1 and are in accordance with the City 
development standard codified in the Rancho Mirage Municipal Code or permitted in 
accordance with the State density bonus law for affordable housing development. 
Nonetheless, the Project’s design will be reviewed by the City Planning Department for its 
consistency with the City’s visual design standards and compatibility with existing residential 
development as required under General Plan Policy LU 3.1.   
 
The visual character of the surrounding area consists of natural desert landscape as described 
in detail in the following section:  
 

● North: At the forefront, there is expansive desert terrain with the Rancho Mirage Dog 
Park and the Monterey Marketplace Shopping Center visible at a distance. The slopes 
of the Indio Hill are visible at this vantage point, as well as the San Bernardino and 
Little San Bernardino Mountains beyond to the northwest and northeast, respectively. 
 

● South: Expansive desert terrain covers the viewshed’s low to mid-point with the Santa 
Rosa Mountains visible at a distance.  

 
● West: Expansive desert terrain covers the low to mid-point of the viewshed with 

residential development visible at a distance, and background views including the San 
Jacinto and San Bernardino Mountains. 

 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  25 

● East: At the forefront, there is expansive desert terrain with commercial development 
located to the northeast and beyond Monterey Avenue. At this vantage point, the Little 
San Bernardino Mountains are visible at a distance. 

 
The dominant scenic vistas from the Project site include distant views from the Santa Rosa 
Mountains to the south, San Jacinto Mountains to the west, San Bernardino Mountains to the 
northwest, and Little San Bernardino Mountains to the north and east. Development of the 
proposed residential buildings would cause the natural desert landscape on-site to be 
removed. However, the land is vacant and highly disturbed by ongoing human activities and 
nearby urban uses; thereby, reducing its value as a seismic resource. Construction of the 
parcel in accordance with City development standards for setback, landscape, and building 
design assures the Project would not cause significant damage to surrounding scenic vistas. 
Furthermore, the nearest receptors to these changes are residential units located west of Via 
Josefina. However, the nearest unit is approximately 1,200 feet, at which point the proposed 
building’s height would not significantly obstruct scenic views of the Little San Bernardino 
Mountains to the northeast. The primary vistas of the San Jacinto and Santa Rosa Mountains 
to the west and southwest will not be affected for these residences, because the Project 
occurs to their east. Therefore, development of the Project is not anticipated to limit scenic 
vistas currently visible within existing developed areas.  

In accordance with City mandates, the Project will include a total of 42,802± square feet of 
landscape spread across the 5± acre parcel and along the property’s perimeter. Landscape 
along the site’s frontage with Via Vail is also proposed. The plants used are desert native 
and/or noninvasive and would allow for the Project to minimize its contrast with the 
surrounding natural landscape and resemble the visual character of the City. As such, the 
Project is not expected to substantially limit or cause an incompatibility with the surrounding 
area or the City as a whole. Potential impacts to scenic vistas are therefore limited and 
considered less than significant.  

b) NO IMPACT. According to the California Department of Transportation’s (Caltrans) State 
Scenic Highway System map, the segment of Highway-111 that traverses the City’s southern 
boundary along the foothills of the Santa Rosa Mountains, about 3.3 miles southwest of the 
Project, is categorized as a highway for potential classification.1 Nonetheless, there is no 
official classified state scenic highway within the City planning area. The Project’s 
development would therefore not visually impact any scenic resources within a state scenic 
highway.  

 
Additionally, there are no scenic resources such as trees, rock outcroppings, historical 
buildings, or any other features potentially categorized as scenic resources within or in 
proximity to the Project area. Adverse effects to scenic resources are therefore expected to 
be negligible.  

c) NO IMPACT. The City General Plan designates the parcel for High Density Residential with 
an Affordable Housing Overlay. The Project’s compliance with development standards under 
this land use is demonstrated in Table 1. As shown, the Project will not conflict with any 
development standards that protect the City’s scenic quality and resources. As such, potential 
impacts to scenic resources will be avoided by design. No impacts are anticipated.    

 
1  California Department of Transportation, California State Scenic Highway System Map, 

https://caltrans.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=465dfd3d807c46cc8e8057116f1
aacaa, accessed March 2025.  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  26 

 
d) LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT. Project lighting will consist of parking lot lighting, 

building and landscaping lighting, typical of residential development. The Project is required 
to comply with the City’s Municipal Code Section 17.18.050 which mandates exterior light 
fixtures to be shielded so as to direct lighting downward and prevent spillage onto adjacent 
property. Consistent with City standards, the Project would not create a source of substantial 
light or glare which would adversely affect day and nighttime views in the area. Therefore, no 
significant impacts from the use of exterior lighting would occur in connection to the Project’s 
operation.  

 
1.3 Mitigation Measures 
 
None required. 
  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  27 

2 - Agriculture and Forestry Resources 
AGRICULTURE AND FORESTRY 

RESOURCES – In determining whether 
impacts to agricultural resources are 
significant environmental effects, lead 
agencies may refer to the California 
Agricultural Land Evaluation and Site 
Assessment Model (1997) prepared by 
the California Dept. of Conservation as 
an optional model to use in assessing 
impacts on agriculture and farmland. 
Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

with Mitigation 
Incorporation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique 
Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide 
Importance (Farmland), as shown on 
the maps prepared pursuant to the 
Farmland Mapping and Monitoring 
Program of the California Resources 
Agency, to non-agricultural use? 

    

b) Conflict with existing zoning for 
agricultural use, or a Williamson Act 
contract?  

    

c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or 
cause rezoning of forest land, 
timberland, or timberland zoned 
Timberland Production? 

    

d) Result in the loss of forest land or 
conversion of forest land to non forest 
use? 

    

e) Involve other changes in the existing 
environment which, due to their location 
or nature, could result in conversion of 
Farmland, to non-agricultural use?  

    

Sources: The City of Rancho Mirage General Plan, 2017; California Department of Conservation, State 
Important Farmland Finder, Accessed May 2024; Project Material. 
 
2.1 Setting 
 
The City of Rancho Mirage is classified as “urban and built-up land” by the California Department 
of Conservation, Farmland Conservancy Program.2 No portion of the City’s planning area has 
been identified as prime farmland or farmland of statewide importance. The City’s 2017 General 

 
2  California Department of Conservation, Important Farmland Finder, 

https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/DLRP/CIFF/, Accessed May 2024.  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  28 

Plan does not include designations for agricultural, farmland or forestry use. Additionally, there 
are no forest lands or timberland production within the City, likely due to the Coachella Valley’s 
arid desert environment that reaches extreme summer temperatures above 108 degrees 
Fahrenheit (°F). 

2.2 Discussion of Impacts:  
 
a-e) NO IMPACT:  
   

 Farmland: According to the California Department of Conservation, there are no prime 
farmlands or farmland of statewide importance at or near the Project site. As such, the risk 
of converting prime or unique farmland to non-agricultural use will not occur. In addition, 
the property is zoned for residential use and thus, the Project would not conflict with any 
land use designation for agriculture production. No farmland would be impacted by the 
Project’s construction or operation.  

   
 Williamson Act: Based on the California Department of Conservation Division of Land 

Resources Protection, there is no land within the Project area under a Williamson Act 
contract. Therefore, no violation of the Williamson Act would occur by the Project’s 
implementation. 

 
Forestry: Neither forest land resources nor the production of timberland occur within the 
City or on the Project site. The Project will not cause the loss or conversion of forest lands 
to non-forest use. Given the lack of resources and timberland production, no impacts to 
forest land uses are anticipated.  
 
In all, the Project would not involve the loss or conversion of agricultural or forestry land. 
The parcel is designated for residential use and implementation of the Project would 
comply with permitted land uses in accordance with the property’s designation. As such, 
no impacts to agricultural and forestry lands would result from the Project.  

 
2.3 Mitigation Measures 
 
None required. 
  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  29 

3 - Air Quality 
AIR QUALITY –  Where available, the 
significance criteria established by the 
applicable air quality management or 
air pollution control district may be 
relied upon to make the following 
determinations. Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

with Mitigation 
Incorporation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

a) Conflict with or obstruct 
implementation of the applicable air 
quality plan? 

    

b) Result in a cumulatively 
considerable net increase of any 
criteria pollutant for which the project 
region is non-attainment under an 
applicable federal or state ambient air 
quality standard? 

    

c) Expose sensitive receptors to 
substantial pollutant concentrations?     

d) Result in other emissions (such as 
those leading to odors) adversely 
affecting a substantial number of 
people? 

    

Sources: SCAQMD 2022 Air Quality Management Plan, South Coast Air Quality Management District, 
December 2022; SCAQMD Rule Book, accessed March 2025; CalEEMod Version 2022.1, accessed April 
2025; Air Quality Report, April 2025 (Appendix A); Core Rancho Mirage Traffic Analysis Report, Urban 
Crossroads, December 2024 (Appendix I); Project Material; Google Earth Pro.  
 

3.1 Setting  
 
The Coachella Valley, including the City Rancho Mirage, is located in the Salton Sea Air Basin 
(SSAB) portion of Riverside County in which South Coast Air Quality Management District 
(SCAQMD) is the lead agency for matters dealing with air emissions. Currently, SCAQMD 
operates and manages three ambient air monitoring stations in the Coachella Valley, including 
Palm Springs, Indio, and Mecca.  
 
Enabled by the federal Clean Air Act (CAA), SCAQMD is a regional air pollution control agency 
responsible for the development of an air quality management plan to set a framework from which 
regional jurisdictions can adequately limit and/or regulate sources of criteria air pollutants in 
compliance with federal and state Ambient Air Quality Standards (AAQS). The 2022 Air Quality 
Management Plan (AQMP) is the latest plan adopted by SCAQMD which expands on previous 
regulation strategies, technology, best management practices, programs, and incentives to 
reduce emissions below acceptable thresholds.  
 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  30 

Particulate Matter 
Particulate Matter (PM) is composed of microscopic solid particles with a diameter of 10 or 2.5 
micrometers (PM10 or PM2.5) present in the air. High levels of PM10 and 2.5 have been related 
to health problems including asthma, chronic obstructive pulmonary disease exacerbation, 
respiratory disease, and even death. Common sources of PM10 and 2.5 include construction 
sites, unpaved roads, fields, smoke stacks, and fire. Currently, federal NAAQS PM10 and PM2.5 
standards are higher than California’s Ambient Air Quality Standards (CAAQS). CAAQS annual 
standards for PM10 and PM2.5 are 12 micrograms per cubic meter (µg/m3) and 20 µg/m3, 
respectively. In comparison to CAAQS, SSAB currently exceeds the statewide threshold for PM10 
by releasing a high of 39 µg/m3 for 2018 to 2020.3 The Coachella Valley’s PM10 emissions exceed 
the CAAQS by 195%. As such, the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) declared the 
Coachella Valley as “Serious” nonattainment for PM104 and required a state implementation plan 
to be drafted in response to the region’s nonattainment status which sets methods, strategies, 
and programs in place to achieve attainment.  
 
The 2003 Coachella Valley PM10 State Implementation Plan (CVSIP) is the latest plan 
addressing the Valley’s nonattainment. The 2003 CVSIP outlines dust control strategies in 
addition to new control measures to achieve and demonstrate attainment. Proposed actions and 
regulatory measures to reduce PM10 emitting sources include the following:  
 

• Additional stabilizing or paving of unpaved surfaces, including parking lots 
• A prohibition on building new unpaved roads 
• Requiring more detailed dust control plans for builders in the Valley that specify the use 

of more aggressive and frequent watering, soil stabilization, wind screens, and phased 
development to minimize fugitive dust 

• Designating a worker to monitor dust control at construction sites 
• Testing requirements for soil and road surfaces 

 
Additionally, Rancho Mirage Municipal Code Section 7.01.041 outlines PM10 fugitive dust control 
requirements during construction and demolition activities to ensure PM10 emissions are reduced 
to the greatest extent possible.  
 
Ozone and Ozone Precursors 
Ozone is not emitted but rather created in the atmosphere when nitrous oxide (NOx) and volatile 
organic compounds (VOC) react under sunlight. While both NOx and VOC contribute to ozone, 
ozone regulation standards reduce NOx. Federal and state ozone standards are the same for 8-
hour ozone levels at 0.070 parts per million (ppm). The Coachella Valley exceeds the 8-hour 
ozone standard with a high emission of 0.095 ppm (136% above the state ozone standard).5 
Therefore, the Coachella Valley is classified a “Severe-15” non-attainment area for ozone.6 Yet 
the Coachella Valley has a limited impact on ozone levels in comparison to high levels of ozone 
formed in the South Coast Air Basin (SCAB) to the west that travel downwind to the Valley. 
Nonetheless, the Valley must substantially reduce NOx to attain the standard by August 2038 as 

 
3  South Coast Air Quality Management District, Air Quality Management Plan, Table 2-13.  
4  Environmental Protection Agency, Current Nonattainment Counties for All Criteria Pollutants, 

https://www3.epa.gov/airquality/greenbook/ancl.html, access March 2025.  
5  South Coast Air Quality Management District, Air Quality Management Plan, Table 2-7.  
6  Environmental Protection Agency, Current Nonattainment Counties for All Criteria Pollutants, 

https://www3.epa.gov/airquality/greenbook/ancl.html, access March 2025.  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  31 

required by the EPA. The SCAQMD is taking action to reduce emissions by implementing planned 
regulations and programs, and thus improve ozone air quality in the Coachella Valley to reach 
attainment.  
 
Regional Significant Threshold Criteria 
Criteria air pollutants monitored by SCAQMD include carbon monoxide (CO), nitrous oxide (NOx), 
sulfur monoxide (SOx), PM of 10 and 2.5, and volatile organic compounds (VOC). Each air 
pollutant is assigned a daily maximum emission threshold which identifies the highest emission 
level a single source is allowed to release during construction and operation. Table 2 lists 
SCAQMD’s construction and operation thresholds.  
 

Table 2 
South Coast Air Quality Management District Criteria Air Pollutant Thresholds 

Pollutant CO NOx SOx PM10 PM2.5 VOC 
Construction (lbs/day) 550 100 150 150 55 75 

Operation (lbs/day) 550 55 150 150 55 55 
Source: South Coast AQMD CEQA Handbook, https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-
source/ceqa/handbook/south-coast-aqmd-air-quality-significance-thresholds.pdf?sfvrsn=25, 
revised March 2023.  

 
A Project-specific California Emission Estimator Model (CalEEMod) model run was prepared in 
April 2025 (Appendix A). The following analysis of potential impacts to air quality associated with 
the Project construction and operation are based on results from CalEEMod.  
 
3.2 Discussion of Impacts:  
 

a) NO IMPACT: The Project site is located within the Salton Sea Air Basin and is subject to 
SCAQMD’s 2022 AQMP and the 2003 CVSIP. These plans strictly regulate and limit the 
source of emissions in the Coachella Valley and implement comprehensive strategies to 
reduce pollutants and, in turn, improve air quality to appropriate levels for federal and state 
attainment. The AQMP is based, in part, on the land use plans for the jurisdictions in the 
region. As such, conformity with future growth forecasts can assure the Project’s consistency 
with air quality plans and standards. The Southern California Association of Governments 
(SCAG) projects a population size of 25,200 by 2045 for the City of Rancho Mirage. 

 
 The Project proposes the development of a multi-family residential apartment complex on 5±-

acres designated/zoned R-H/AHO. In conformance with the parcel’s permitted land use and 
development standards, the Project includes 150 residential units. The construction and 
operation of a residential development within a previously undeveloped parcel would generate 
population growth. The Project is estimated to increase the local population size by 485, based 
on Project-specific inputs for land use (Apartment Mid Rise) and project size (150 units) in 
CalEEMod Version 2022.1.  The population growth in connection to the Project has been 
accounted for by the City’s 2017 General Plan through its residential land use designation, in 
addition to the property’s allowed density bonus of up to 28 du/ac as an affordable housing 
development.  As such, the Project would be part of the City’s anticipated population growth 
and residential land use as predicted in the City General Plan and SCAG’s 2020 Regional 
Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy (RTP/SCS). 

 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  32 

 Furthermore, the Project must also adhere to all plans, policies, and rules implemented by the 
SCAQMD, the most notable being the SCAQMD Rule Book.7 The Project would be required 
to comply with Rule 201 which is a permit to construct, mandating a written authorization from 
the Executive Office to use and operate equipment related to the construction, erection, or 
alteration of a building. Additionally, the Project would also need to comply with Rule 403 
which implements fugitive dust control measures during ground disturbance from construction 
activities. Compliance with Rule 403 would minimize the potential for the Project to emit 
excessive PM10 and PM2.5 from extensive disturbance of the 5±-acre parcel. Compliance with 
these rules and other applicable mandates would ensure the Project does not conflict or 
obstruct emission reduction standards enforced by SCAQMD to comply with NAAQS and 
CAAQS.  

 
 As discussed above, the Project will comply with all applicable plans, policies, and rules and 

thus, would not limit the implementation of SCAQMD’s 2022 AQMP or 2003 CVSIP for 
achieving attainment in the future. No impacts are therefore anticipated.  

 
b) LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT: As previously discussed, the SSAB portion of the 

Coachella Valley is classified as nonattainment for PM10 and ozone. As a result, the Project 
is required to strictly regulate and limit PM10 and ozone emitting sources at every stage of 
construction and operation, in addition to CO, NOx, PM2.5, and VOC to ensure emissions do 
not exceed SCAQMD thresholds (See Table 2).  

 
 The subject site consists of an undeveloped, unoccupied parcel designated for high density 

residential use and located within an urbanized portion of Rancho Mirage. The Project 
includes the development of permanent multi-family residential apartment buildings with 
amenity spaces and on-site parking. Construction of Via Vail is also included as part of the 
site’s buildout. CalEEMod does not provide an exact land use type for each proposed 
development feature and thus, modifications to the model were made to accurately represent 
the proposed Project. As such, the following land uses were used to model the development: 
apartment mid-rise, parking lot, and road construction. The apartment mid-rise land use 
includes the site's total residential building square footage, plus that of the Community Center 
and the recreational swimming pool; road construction represents the proposed road 
improvements along the 0.066 mile stretch of Via Vail located immediately adjacent to the 
site’s eastern frontage. 

 
 No structures exist on-site; therefore, no demolition is required prior to construction. A two-

year construction period is assumed starting in February 2027 with buildout by 2029.  
 
 Criteria air pollutants will be released during both construction and operational phases of the 

Project. The following sections identify point sources of emissions at each phase and draw a 
comparison to SCAQMD’s thresholds to determine whether the Project would result in a 
cumulative net increase for PM10 or ozone, or exceed permitted levels of emission for CO, 
NOx, PM2.5, and VOC. 

 

 
7  South Coast Air Quality Management District, SCAQMD Rule Book, 

https://www.aqmd.gov/home/rules-compliance/rules/scaqmd-rule-book, accessed March 2025.  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  33 

 Construction Emissions 
 For analysis purposes, it is assumed that the Project’s grading would result in a net export of 

45,000 cubic yards of dirt/soil from the site. Construction on-site includes multiple phases of 
development including site preparation, grading, building construction, paving, and 
architectural coating. However, prior to any on-site improvements, construction of Via Vail is 
required to provide adequate access to the site. As such, buildout of Via Vail is also modeled 
and would include four development phases: 1) linear, grubbing & land clearing, 2) linear, 
grading & excavation, 3) linear, drainage, utilities & sub-grade, and 4) linear, paving. The 
construction of off-site and on-site improvements would emit air pollutants from heavy 
construction equipment, off-road equipment, construction materials, land disturbance, 
delivery trucks, and commuting construction workers. As shown in Table 3, the Project will not 
exceed SCAQMD thresholds for any regulated criteria pollutant.  

 
Table 3 

Maximum Daily Construction-Related Emissions (pounds per day) 
Pollutant CO NOx SOx PM10 PM2.5 VOC 

Daily Maximum1 47.4 41.3 0.12 21.8 10.8 4.84 
SCAQMD Threshold 550 100 150 150 55 75 

Exceeds? No No No No No No 
1 Highest emission occur during the summer and thus are reflected here to analyze worst-case-
scenario.  
Source: CalEEMod Version 2022.1 (Appendix A) 

 
 The data reflects the maximum daily unmitigated emission over a 24-month construction 

period. Highest pollutant emissions typically occur during the summer and thus, are 
represented in Table 3 to analyze the worst-case scenario. As shown, the Project’s maximum 
daily construction emissions will fall well below SCAQMD significance thresholds and thus, 
emissions are not expected to exceed permitted levels at any point in the construction’s 
duration. Additionally, the Project will implement architectural coating standards and fugitive 
dust control measures required by SCAQMD under Rule 403 and Rule 1113, and best 
management practices (BMPs) to further reduce emissions. Under these conditions, the 
Project’s emissions from construction are expected to have less than significant impact. 

 
 Operational Emissions 
 At buildout, the Project will operate seven multi-family residential apartment buildings, totaling 

150 units. Complementary amenities including a Community Center and a swimming pool will 
be provided. For analysis purposes, a population size of 485 residents is assumed. 
Additionally, the Project is anticipated to generate 722 trip-ends per day according to the traffic 
report prepared by Urban Crossroads (Appendix I). Operational emissions stem from five 
categories including mobile (vehicle), area (architectural coating), and energy (natural gas, 
electricity). Default settings in CalEEMod were used to estimate operational emissions given 
that each land use corresponds to a specific average demand factor. Table 4 indicates the 
Project will not exceed SCAQMD threshold for any criteria pollutant.  

 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  34 

Table 4 
Maximum Daily Operational-Related Emissions (pounds per day) 

Pollutant CO NOx SOx PM10 PM2.5 VOC 
Daily Emissions1 39.8 3.46 0.09 7.27 1.91 4.89 

SCAQMD Thresholds 550 55 150 150 55 55 
Exceeds? No No No No No No 

1 Highest emission occur during the summer and thus, are reflected here to analyze worst-case-
scenario. 
Source: CalEEMod Version 2022.1 (Appendix A)  

 
 The data reflects the combined maximum daily emission levels projected to occur over the 

Project’s lifespan. Therefore, the Project is not anticipated to exceed SCAQMD thresholds at 
any point in its long-term operation. Nonetheless, the Project currently plans to provide 27 
electrical vehicle charging stations on-site as an alternative to fueled vehicles to off-set a 
percentage of mobile emissions. Additionally, the site will include a photovoltaic system as 
mandated in the Energy Code, part of the Title 24, California Building Code. Implementation 
of these features is projected to reduce source emissions and thus lessen daily emissions 
during the Project’s operation. Impacts related to operational emissions are therefore 
anticipated to be less than significant. 

 
Cumulative Impacts 

 SCAQMD has not developed a systemic approach in determining the potential for cumulative 
impact. Nonetheless, the emission thresholds for construction and operation are established 
so as to minimize individual impacts, and thus, collectively avoid the potential for cumulative 
impact for regulated criteria pollutants, especially PM10 and ozone. As shown in Table 3 and 
Table 4, the Project would not exceed emission thresholds for any pollutant during 
construction or operation. So, although the Project would result in an incremental change to 
regional emissions, it would not contribute to a cumulatively considerable impact to the 
region’s nonattainment designation. As such, the potential for the Project to result in 
cumulative impacts is less than significant.  

 
c) LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT: The subject site is an undeveloped, vacant parcel. In 

proximity, there is a residential community along the west side of Key Largo Avenue, with the 
nearest unit being just east of the corridor and located approximately 1,200 feet west from the 
Project site. The residential unit is a sensitive receptor, considering that sensitive receptors 
are vulnerable groups of the community that are prone to health impacts related to extended 
exposure to pollutants at high concentrations. Sensitive receptors typically occur in various 
urban land uses including hospitals, schools, rest homes, and residences. In response to the 
potential threat to sensitive receptors, SCAQMD established localized significance thresholds 
(LSTs).  

 
LSTs represent the maximum emissions from a project that would not cause substantial 
impact to the ambient air quality standard near sensitive receptors. These thresholds control 
the level of emissions permitted by various air pollutants including NOx, CO, PM10, and PM2.5 
for projects up to 5 acres in size.  

 
The Project proposes the development/disturbance of 5-acres and would become a source of 
emissions. SCAQMD’s LSTs are applicable to the Project and thus, the Project must adhere 
to these thresholds so as to ensure impacts to sensitive receptors are minimized. The Project 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  35 

is located at a distance greater than 500 meters from the nearest receptor; nonetheless, the 
Project is evaluated under LSTs at said distance to determine whether the Project exceeds 
the most stringent emissions thresholds for a project closer to a sensitive receptor. As shown 
in Table 5, on-site emissions would not exceed permitted levels and thus, the development 
would not cause significant impacts to nearby receptors located at or greater than 500 meters.  

 
Table 5 

Localized Significance Thresholds Comparison with Daily Maximum Construction 
Emissions (pounds per day) 

Pollutants  NOx CO PM10 PM2.5 
Maximum Emissions 41.3 47.4 21.8 10.8 

LST Thresholds 875 31,115 248 128 
Exceeds? No No No No 

Source: CalEEMod Version 2022.1 (Appendix A); SCAQMD Localized Significance Thresholds 
Methodology, revised June 2008.  

 
The Project will include residential buildings and complementary amenity spaces. No major 
stationary pollutants including landfills, refineries, chemical plants, and oil fields would operate 
within the subject site. Therefore, LST operational emissions are not applicable to the Project 
and, as such, an LST analysis is not required for this Project. Less than significant impacts 
would occur.  

 
Health Impact 
As shown in Table 3 and Table 4, the Project would not exceed SCAQMD emission thresholds 
for construction or operation. As such, the Project would not violate the 2022 AQMP, 2003 
CVSIP, or contribute substantially to existing and future air quality emissions.  

 
Although the Project will emit below the thresholds for air pollutants, it is not possible to 
calculate the degree to which exposure to various levels of criteria pollutant emissions will 
impact an individual’s health. There are several variables that make accurate predictions of a 
Project-specific health impact difficult: 

 
• Not all individuals will be affected equally due to medical history. Some may have medical 

pre-dispositions, and diet and exercise levels tend to vary across a population.  
 

• Due to the dispersing nature of pollutants via wind, it is difficult to locate and identify which 
group of individuals will be impacted, either directly or indirectly. 
 

• There are currently no approved methodologies or studies to base assumptions on, such 
as baseline health level or emission level-to-health risk ratios. 
 

Due to these limitations, the extent to which the Project poses a health risks is uncertain. 
However, because the Project will not exceed SCAQMD thresholds, it is anticipated that the 
Project’s emissions of criteria pollutants will cause less than significant health impacts.  

 
d) NO IMPACT: The detection of odors is subjective and largely depends on the individual’s 

sensitivity to smells. However, objectionable odors are typically associated with the operation 
of industrial facilities, agricultural uses (livestock and farming), and waste management sites.  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  36 

 
None of these operations will occur on-site by the Project’s development and thus, no impacts 
from odor are anticipated.  

 
3.3 Mitigation Measures 
 
None required. 
  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  37 

4 - Biological Resources 

BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES – Would 
the project:  

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

with Mitigation 
Incorporation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

a) Have a substantial adverse effect, 
either directly or through habitat 
modifications, on any species identified 
as a candidate, sensitive, or special 
status species in local or regional plans, 
policies, or regulations, or by the 
California Department of Fish and 
Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife 
Service? 

    

b) Have a substantial adverse effect on 
any riparian habitat or other sensitive 
natural community identified in local or 
regional plans, policies, and regulations 
or by the California Department of Fish 
and Wildlife or US Fish and Wildlife 
Service? 

    

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on 
federally protected wetlands as defined 
by Section 404 of the Clean Water Act 
(including, but not limited to, marsh, 
vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct 
removal, filling, hydrological 
interruption, or other means? 

    

d) Interfere substantially with the 
movement of any native resident or 
migratory fish or wildlife species or with 
established native resident or migratory 
wildlife corridors, or impede the use of 
native wildlife nursery sites? 

    

e) Conflict with any local policies or 
ordinances protecting biological 
resources, such as a tree preservation 
policy or ordinance? 

    

f) Conflict with the provisions of an 
adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, 
Natural Community Conservation Plan, 
or other approved local, regional, or 
state habitat conservation plan? 

    

Sources: City of Rancho Mirage General Plan, 2017; Biological Resources Assessment and Coachella 
Valley Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Compliance Report prepared by WSA USA 
Environment and Infrastructure Inc., May 2024 (Appendix B); Project Material; Google Earth Pro.  
 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  38 

4.1 Setting 
 

The Coachella Valley, part of the Colorado Desert Province, is an arid desert environment 
comprised of sand dunes, flood channels, alkaline sediment within a relatively flat valley 
depression, east of the Salton Sea and enclosed by steep mountain ranges including the San 
Bernardino and Little San Bernardino Mountains to the north and northwest, San Jacinto 
Mountains to the northwest, and Santa Rosa Mountains to the south and southwest. The natural 
landscape of the Valley encompasses a variety of ecosystems including plants and wildlife that 
have adapted to the desert environment. To minimize potential harm to native wildlife and local 
biological resources, all development located in the Coachella Valley is subject to regulatory plans 
and policies including the U.S. Endangered Species Act (ESA), Migratory Bird Treaty Act (MBTA), 
California Endangered Species Act (CESA), and the Coachella Valley Multiple Species Habitat 
Conservation Plan (CVMSHCP). 

The federal Endangered Species Act is a biological conservation policy that identifies “threatened” 
and “endangered” species that require federal protection from adverse effects including 
fragmentation, habitat loss, predation, or disease. The ESA is enforced by the U.S. Fish and 
Wildlife Service (USFWS) and the National Marine Fisheries Service. The Migratory Bird Treaty 
Act is an international policy prohibiting the unlawful purchase, capture, kill, and/or possession or 
attempt to possess any migratory bird, nest, egg, or parts.  

Similar to the federal ESA, the California Endangered Species Act is a wildlife conservation policy 
which identifies state-listed “endangered”, “threatened” and “candidate” species for classification, 
protected by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW). CESA prohibits the take of 
state-listed species.  

On a regional scale, the CVMSHCP is a comprehensive regional plan that addresses the 
conservation needs of native wildlife and plant species to ensure proper measures are in effect 
to balance environmental protection and city economic development. The CVMSHCP 
accomplishes this by conserving unfragmented habitats for viable population of species within the 
planning area.  

Rancho Mirage is a Level 2 conservation classification in the CVMSHCP’s plan area profile. The 
classification indicates that the City has natural value worth conserving but given the existing land 
uses and level of disturbance, impacts to the natural quality have extensively diminished potential 
biological resources. As such, the City’s developed area is not identified as a CVMSHCP 
conservation area. No regional or local biological conservation areas occur within the developed 
portion of Rancho Mirage. South of the City is the Rancho Mirage Mountain Reserve, a 
conservation management area that houses most of the City’s biological resources in the Santa 
Rosa Mountains. The Project is approximately 3.70 miles northeast of the Santa Rosa Mountains 
foothill. 

A site-specific biological assessment report was prepared by WSP USA Environmental and 
Infrastructure Inc in May 2024 (Appendix B). The report consists of a literature review and an 
onsite field survey conducted on April 18, 2024, which analyzes the site’s habitat viability and 
determines the probability for species including those of federal, state, and local concern to occur 
within the Project’s boundaries. The following discussion is based on the evidence and result from 
the biological assessment report. 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  39 

4.2 Discussion of Impacts:  
 

a-b) LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT WITH MITIGATION: The Project site is a ±5 acres 
parcel, currently undeveloped and consisting of native vegetation, very sandy surface, and 
relatively flat with small undulating hills. Similar conditions exist to the north, south, east, and 
west of the site where no prior development has occurred. Development near the Project site 
consists of commercial/retail shops to the north and east, and residential communities to the 
south and west. Given the parcel’s proximity to development, including the Rancho Mirage 
Dog Park, the site shows signs of disturbance as observed during the field assessment.  

 
 The field survey was conducted on April 18, 2024, by a WSP Senior Wildlife Biologist to 

assess the current conditions of the Project site and evaluate the potential for suitable habitat 
to sustain biological resources and special status species. A variety of native vegetation and 
wildlife were observed during the field survey. No special status species or active 
nests/nesting birds were detected. The following is a detailed summary of the field 
assessment findings.  

 
 Vegetation: The Project site consists of sparse and disturbed shrubs including creosote bush, 

four-wing saltbush, and dyebush. Annual species observed include desert dicoria, Spanish 
needles, narrow leaved forget me not, fanleaf cricklemat, Sahara mustard, and old han 
schismus. Of these plant species, none are classified as endangered or threatened, or 
protected by the USFWS or CDFW.  

 
 Wildlife: Vertebrate species and species common to the desert scrub and/or Coachella Valley 

area were observed on-site within the Project area, such as the American crow, house finch, 
verdin, and Say’s phoebe. None of the wildlife observed are classified as species of concern 
or federally and/or state listed species. Evidence of rodent burrows was not detected, likely 
due to the sandy nature of the site that does not provide a suitable burrowing substrate. No 
actively nesting birds were detected on or adjacent to the Project site at the time of the field 
survey. No species listed as threatened or endangered were observed on the site. No riparian 
species or habitat was observed onsite.  

 
 Special Status Species: Based on the literature review, a total of 36 special status biological 

species consisting of 11 plant species, 2 vegetation communities, 5 invertebrate species, 4 
amphibians and reptiles, 8 bird species, and 6 mammal species, have a likelihood of occurring 
on-site or within a 5 mile radius. The probability of any of these species occurring on-site 
ranges from low to very low or absent.  

 
 Six out of nineteen species are protected by CVMSHCP, including the Coachella Valley milk-

vetch, Coachella giant sand treader cricket, Coachella Valley Jerusalem cricket, burrowing 
owl, Palm Springs pocket mouse, and Coachella Valley (Palm Springs) round-tailed ground 
squirrel. These species are expected to have a low to very low probability of occurrence on-
site.  

 
 The burrowing owl is not listed as threatened or endangered by the USFWS or CDFW. 

However, the species falls into classification as a Bird of Conservation Concern (BCC) by the 
USFWS and a Species of Special Concern (SSC) by the CDFW, which was recently proposed 
for listing in California. Additionally, the burrowing owl is protected under the MBTA, which 
prohibits the take of the species. No burrows suitable for burrowing owls were observed on or 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  40 

adjacent to the Project site. However, if a burrowing owl is found on-site, it must be avoided 
or relocated prior to any ground disturbance. 

 
A USFWS IPAC report was generated for the site where the results yielded 5 sensitive wildlife, 
and 1 plant species with a potential to be impacted by the Project’s development. Potential 
impacts are anticipated to be minimal considering the site’s limited suitable habitat and lack 
of prior occurrences. For instance, the Monarch butterfly requires milkweeds for larval 
development which were not observed within the property’s boundaries. There is no quality 
habitat present for desert tortoise due to the sandy nature of the soil and high level of 
disturbance. Suitable habitat for the Coachella Valley fringe-toed lizard is present but the site 
is isolated from other open space and highly disturbed, and the species is protected under the 
CVMSHCP. Least Bell’s vireo is absent from the site due to the lack of riparian habitat.  

 
In regard to nesting birds, they are protected by the MBTA and the state Fish and Game Code. 
To avoid potential impacts to nesting birds during the nesting season, a nesting bird survey 
must be conducted by a qualified ornithologist or biologist, prior to on-site disturbance as 
mandated under Mitigation Measure BIO-1. Implementation would ensure any potential 
impacts to nest birds and/or nests are avoided in accordance with the MBTA. The pre-
construction survey would also function to survey the site for burrowing owls and thus ensure 
the species’ protection from on-site construction activities.  

 
No special status species were observed on-site. No nesting sites or migratory bird species 
were detected during the field survey. The probability of any protected species by the USFWS, 
CDFW or CVMSHCP in being present on-site now or in the future is low to very low. Therefore, 
the probability of the Project to impact any species of special concern is limited. A nesting bird 
survey will be performed prior to construction activities to ensure no harm to nests, mitigatory 
birds, or burrowing owls is inflicted as a result of the development. The Project will comply 
with all regulatory requirements regarding the conservation and protection of biological 
resources. With the implementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-1, the Project is expected to 
cause less than significant impacts.  

 
c) NO IMPACT: There are no federally protected wetlands located on the Project site or within 

proximity to the site. For this reason, the Project is not expected to impact jurisdictional waters 
in any capacity. No impact will occur.   

 
d) LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT: No active nesting sites, nesting birds, or migratory birds 

were observing on-site or in adjacent lands. The parcel is not located within a wildlife corridor, 
or a biological conservation area as shown in the City’s General Plan Exhibit 16. The City 
manages the Rancho Mirage Mountain Reserve area, part of the Santa Rosa Mountains, that 
encompass approximately 5,000 acres including small canyons, washes, and extensive rocky 
and rough terrain supporting a wide variety of plants and wildlife. The area is also designated 
as the Coachella Valley Mountain Conservancy (CVMC) Area of Interest. The foothill of the 
Santa Rosa Mountains is approximately 3.70 miles southwest of the Project site. Given the 
large distance between the Project site and the Santa Rosa Mountains, the Project is unlikely 
to substantially interfere with the movement of native wildlife or impact native nursery sites. 
To reduce any impacts to potential nesting sites and migratory bird species, the Project will 
be required to implement Mitigation Measure BIO-1. As such, impacts to the local wildlife 
corridor and biological conservation areas in relation to the Project are expected to be less 
than significant. 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  41 

 
e,f) NO IMPACT: All development including the Project is subject to the CVMSHCP as the City 

has incorporated the local conservation plan as part of its biological conservation 
requirements. For this reason, the Project will be required to adhere to CVMSHCP’s 
regulations and standards and will pay the mitigation fee required under the Plan. Additionally, 
the Project will be required to comply with federal and state environmental policies relating to 
endangered or threatened species and migratory birds. By law, the Project and any activities 
relating to its construction and operation will follow all relevant federal, state, and local policies, 
regulations, and/or standards. The Project is not anticipated to violate any regulatory 
framework. No impacts are anticipated. 

 
4.3 Mitigation Measures:  
 

BIO-1:  Migratory Bird Treaty Act 

A site-specific nesting bird survey shall be performed by a qualified ornithologist or 
biologist no more than 3 days prior to vegetation removal or ground disturbance 
activities if construction is proposed during the nesting season (January 15 through 
August 31). If active nests are found during the pre-construction nesting bird 
survey, the biologist shall assess the conditions and establish an appropriate nest 
buffer to be marked on the ground. Nest buffers are species specific and shall be 
100 to 300 feet for unlisted songbirds and at least 500 feet for birds-of-prey and 
species listed as threatened or endangered. The nesting area shall not be 
disturbed until the biologist has determined the young have fledged or the nest is 
no longer active. The biologist has the authority to stop work if the nesting area 
exhibits signs of disturbance.   



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  42 

5 - Cultural Resources 

 CULTURAL RESOURCES – Would 
the project:  

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

with Mitigation 
Incorporation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

a) Cause a substantial adverse 
change in the significance of a 
historical resource as defined in 
§15064.5? 

    

b) Cause a substantial adverse 
change in the significance of an 
archaeological resource pursuant to 
§15064.5? 

    

c) Disturb any human remains, 
including those interred outside of 
formal cemeteries? 

    

Sources: City of Rancho Mirage General Plan, 2017; Historical/Archeological Resources Survey Report 
for Assessor’s Parcel Number 685-090-016 in the City of Rancho Mirage, prepared by CRM TECH in July 
2024 (Appendix C).  
 

5.1 Setting 
 

Prehistoric Period 

Historical research suggests a cultural chronology for the desert region occurring over four 
periods which include the (1) Paleoindian Period (8,000 to 10,000-12,000 years ago), (2) Early 
Archaic Period (8,000 to 4,000 years ago), (3) Late Archaic Period (4,000 to 1,5000 years ago), 
and (4) Late Prehistoric Period (1,500 years ago to the Spanish missions).  

The Paleoindian Period is characterized by small, mobile bands of hunters and gathers, who 
relied on small and large game animals and wild plants for subsistence and generally used simple 
stone tools.  

The Early and Late Archaic Periods experienced a decrease in population density with indigenous 
groups depending largely on foraging rather than hunting. Very few archeological tools, sites, and 
other remains have been identified in connection to this time period. A continuation of the same 
trend occurred during the Late Archaic Period with mobile groups settled near available seasonal 
food resources and relied on opportunistic hunting of game animals. Groundstone artifacts for 
food processing were prominent during this time period.  

The Late Prehistoric Period saw seasonal settlement patterns, with people relying heavily on 
available seasonal animals and wild plants. An introduction of ceramic and bow/arrows occurred 
during this time period. 

The Holocene Lake Cahuilla was a prehistoric freshwater lake that attracted much settlement and 
resource procurement activities. The lake gradually desiccated over many cultural periods, 
resulting in indigenous groups moving away from its receding shores towards rivers, streams, and 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  43 

mountains. Numerous historical sites have been identified along the former shoreline. Culturally 
significant resources within these areas have included brown and buff ware ceramics, a variety 
of groundstone, and projectile point types, ornaments, and cremation remains.  

Historical Period 

Due to its harsh environment, few non-Indians ventured into the desert valley during the Mexican 
and early American periods, except for those who traveled along the established trails. The most 
notable was the Cocomaricopa Trail, an ancient Indian trading route that was “discovered” in 1862 
and known as the Indian trading route after that. The wagon trail traverses a similar route to that 
of present-day State Route 111. The trail served as the main thoroughfare between coastal 
southern California and the Colorado River, until the completion of the Southern Pacific Railroad 
in 1876 to 1877, at which point non-Indian settlement in the Coachella Valley appeared with the 
establishment of railroad stations and spread further with claims of public land through the 
Homestead Act, the Desert Land Act, and other federal land laws. Farming was the dominant 
economic activity in the Valley prior to the late 1920s, when new industries were introduced 
including equestrian camps, resorts, hotels, and eventually country clubs.  

In Rancho Mirage, the first sign of settlement occurred in the 1910s and 1920s when several date 
ranches were established within the present-day City boundary. Small residential communities 
gradually appeared with development after the end of World War II (WWII) rapidly attributing to 
the City’s growth. With the development of the Thunderbird Country Club and the Tamarisk 
Country Club, along with five other cove communities along Highway-111 setting the framework 
for development trends within the City of Rancho Mirage.  

A Project-specific historical and archeological resource survey report was prepared by CRM 
TECH in July 2024 (Appendix C). The report evaluates and determines whether the proposed 
Project would cause substantial adverse changes to any “historical resources”, as defined by 
CEQA that may exist in and around the Project area. Assessment of potential historical resources 
within a 1-mile radius of the Project site includes a historical/archeological resource records 
search, historical background research, Native American participation, and a field survey 
conducted by a CRM Tech archeologist and two Native American monitors from the Agua 
Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians (ACBCI) on May 14, 2024.  

The following analysis is based on results from the historical/archeological report.  

5.2 Discussion of Impacts:  
 

a-b) LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT WITH MITIGATION INCORPORATED: 
 

Record Search 
According to the search of historical records, the Project area has not previously been studied 
for potential historical or archeological resources. However, records identify a total of 35 
previously completed cultural resource studies, in addition to one conducted by CRM TECH 
on the adjacent northern parcel in April 2024 which is yet to be incorporated into EIC records. 
From the 35 surveys, 17 cultural resources within a one-mile radius have been recorded in 
the California Historical Resources Inventory, which include four prehistoric sites, seven 
historic-period sites, and six isolates (sites with fewer than three artifacts). Table 6 lists all 17 
culturally significant sites located in a one-mile radius from the Project site.  
 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  44 

Table 6 
Previously Recorded Cultural Resources within the Project Vicinity 

Primary 
Number Trinomial Description Date 

Recorded 
33-003440 CA-RIV-3440H Remains of Edom Station and Siding on 

Southern Pacific Railroad 1999 

33-005625 N/A Remains of Kubic Ranch 2004 

33-009498 CA-RIV-6381H Southern Pacific (now Union Pacific) 
Railroad 2005 

33-009748 CA-RIV-6495H Early alignment of Rio del Sol Road (now 
Bob Hope Drive), ca. 1941-1958 2000 

33-010953 N/A Two sanitary cans 2000 
33-010954 N/A Sanitary cans 2000 
33-010955 N/A Sanitary cans 2000 
33-010956 N/A Sanitary cans 2000 
33-015933 N/A Beer cans from a six-pack 2000 
33-017005 CA-RIV-8852H Refuse scatter 2007 

33-017007 CA-RIV-8854 Scattered groundstone and flaked-stone 
artifacts 

2007 

33-017008 CA-RIV-8855H Remains of collapsed wood-and-metal 
shed 

2007 

33-017009 CA-RIV-8856 Cremation remains 2007 

33-017010 CA-RIV-8857 Cremation remains with associated lithic 
artifacts 

2007 

33-017011 CA-RIV-8858 Scattered groundstone and flaked-stone 
artifacts 

2007 

33-017012 N/A Pottery sherd 2007 
33-026824 CA-RIV-12609H Refuse scatter 2017 

Source: Historical/Archeological Resource Survey Report for Assessor’s Parcel 
Number 685-090-016 prepared by CRM TECH, July 2024.  

 
The nearest historical site is Site 33-017008, located a half-mile northwest of the Project area 
and consisting of remains of a collapsed shed of unknown age. None of the 17 cultural 
resources are within proximity to the Project area and will not be subject to potential loss or 
damage by the Project’s construction and operation.  

 
Native American Participation 
The CRM TECH inquiry to the NAHC yielded no Native American cultural resources in the 
Project vicinity. Nonetheless, the NAHC recommended that local Native Americans groups be 
consulted for further information on potential cultural resources in the area. On April 22, 2024, 
analysts with the ACBCI historical preservation office replied to CRM Tech’s request for 
information by identifying the area as the tribe’s Traditional Use Area and asking for the 
following actions to be taken in connection to the Project’s implementation: 1) all cultural 
resources documentation generated for this Project to be shared for review and 2) qualified 
archaeologists perform a cultural resources inventory prior to development and an approved 
ACBCI monitor be present. 

  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  45 

Historical Background Research 
Historical records research yielded no evidence of any settlement or development activities 
within the Project area throughout the historic period. Gradual development has appeared 
with greater real estate development occurring since the 1990s, notably in the surrounding 
area with the construction of the Monterey Marketplace Shopping Center and residential units 
on the west side of Key Largo Avenue.  

 
Field Survey 
Findings from the field survey resulted in no cultural resources being uncovered or identified 
in the Project area pursuant to the California Public Resource Code definition of “historical 
resources.”  The report does note that buried resources could occur, and that impacts to those 
resources could be significant if not mitigated. In order to reduce impacts to less than 
significant levels, Mitigation Measure CUL-1 is provided below. 

 
The Native American Sacred Lands File identified no properties of traditional cultural value in 
the vicinity, and no notable cultural features were known to be present in the Project area 
throughout the historical period. Therefore, the site is regarded as having no historical 
resource present within the site boundary.  

 
Conclusion 
Based on the results from the assessment prepared in determining whether historical 
resources are likely to be present in the Project area, the report concludes with no substantial 
adverse change to any known historical resources. However, to avoid potential adverse 
effects from ground disturbance, implementation of Mitigation Measure CUL-1 would be 
required to reduce impacts to less than significant levels.  

 
c) LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT: The Project site is not known to have been used for 

human burials or previously utilized as a cemetery. As such, the property is unlikely to harbor 
human remains. However, in accordance with State law, if human remains are discovered 
during ground-disturbance, all construction activities must cease immediately, and the County 
Coroner must be notified of the findings. The Coroner will evaluate and make a final 
determination on the significance of the remains and whether local Native American tribes 
need to be contacted. With compliance with State mandates, the Project would result in less 
than significant impact to potentially occurring human remains.  

 
5.3 Mitigation Measures:  
 

CUL-1: If buried materials are discovered during any earth-moving operations associated 
with the project, all work in the immediate area should be halted or diverted until a 
qualified archeologist can evaluate the nature and significance of the find.  

  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  46 

6 - Energy 

ENERGY – Would the project: 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

with Mitigation 
Incorporation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

a) Result in potentially significant 
environmental impact due to wasteful, 
inefficient, or unnecessary 
consumption of energy resources, 
during project construction or 
operation? 

    

b) Conflict with or obstruct a state or 
local plan for renewable energy or 
energy efficiency? 

    

Sources: City of Rancho Mirage General Plan, 2017; California Cities, Southern California Edison, 
accessed June 2024; About IID Energy, Imperial Irrigation District, accessed June 2024; Company Profile, 
Southern California Gas, accessed June 2024, Air Quality Report, April 2025 (Appendix A).  
 

6.1 Setting 
 

Electricity 

 The Project site is serviced by Imperial Irrigation District (IID). IID is a local service provider for 
the eastern portion of the Coachella Valley including portions of Rancho Mirage and all Imperial 
County, to cover approximately 6,471 square miles and more than 165,000 people. IID manages 
and operates its electricity system in Riverside and Imperial county to provide its customers 
energy from a variety of sources including renewables.8  

Natural Gas 

Southern California Gas (SCG) is one of the largest natural gas providers, encompassing 
approximately 24,000 square miles and servicing nearly 21.1 million customers.9 SCE operates 
transmission lines crossing the Coachella Valley, along Interstate-10 to the north and a system of 
high pressure distribution lines to its service areas in Rancho Mirage. SCG will provide natural 
gas energy to the Project site. 

6.2 Discussion of Impacts:  
 
a) LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT: The Project proposes the development of 5± acres of 

vacant land to include seven permanent residential apartment buildings, a Community Center, 
and multiple recreational amenities. Construction and operation of the Project would consume 
energy in the form of electricity, natural gas, and gasoline. The following section analyzes the 

 
8  Imperial Irrigation District, About IID Energy, https://www.iid.com/energy/about-iid-energy, accessed 

June 2024. 
9  Southern California Gas, Company Profile, https://www.socalgas.com/about-us/company-profile, 

accessed June 2024.  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  47 

energy consumption at each phase of development and determines whether energy use 
would result in environmental impact due to wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary consumption.  

 
 Construction Energy Use 
 The Project’s construction phase will include site preparation, grading, building construction, 

paving and architectural coating. Additionally, buildout of Via Vail would include linear, 
grubbing & land clearing, drainage & excavation, and utilities & sub-grade construction 
phases. The construction phases for both on-site and off-site improvements are estimated to 
occur over a 24-month construction period. During this time, energy use would primarily stem 
from the use of construction equipment and construction workers’ vehicles commuting to and 
from work.  

 
 Table 7 provides a thorough overview of the type of construction equipment that may be found 

at the site during the specific construction phase and calculates the equipment’s fuel 
consumption based on the construction duration, construction equipment power rating, and 
load factors programmed in CalEEMod (Appendix A). The aggregate fuel consumption rate 
for all equipment is estimated at 18.5 horsepower hours per gallon, per the California Air 
Resources Board’s (CARB’s) Carl Moyer Program Guidelines (2017), Table D-12 Fuel 
Consumption Rate Factor. CalEEMod assumed all construction equipment is diesel powered. 
The Project’s construction equipment is estimated to consume approximately 62,757 gallons 
of diesel fuel within the 24-month construction period.  

 
Table 7 

Construction Equipment Fuel Consumption Estimates 
Construction 

Phase 
Duration 

(days) Equipment HR 
Rating Qty Usage 

Hours 
Load 

Factor 
HP-

hrs/day 
Fuel 

Consumption 

Site 
Preparation 20 

Rubber Tired 
Dozers 367 3 7 0.40 3083 3333 

Tractors/Loaders/ 
Backhoes 84 4 5 0.37 622 672 

Other 
Construction 
Equipment 

150 1 7 0.42 189 204 

Grading 50 

Excavators 36 1 7 0.38 96 259 
Graders 148 1 7 0.41 425 1149 

Rubber Tired 
Dozers 367 1 7 0.40 1028 2778 

Tractors/Loaders/ 
Backhoes 84 3 5 0.37 466 1259 

Other 
Construction 
Equipment 

150 1 3 0.42 189 511 

Building 
Construction 

 
 
 

415 

Cranes 367 1 7 0.29 745 16712 
Forklifts 82 3 5 0.20 246 5518 

Generator Sets 14 1 7 0.74 73 1638 
Tractors/Loaders/ 

Backhoes 84 3 5 0.37 466 10454 

Welders 46 1 7 0.45 145 3253 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  48 

Table 7 
Construction Equipment Fuel Consumption Estimates 

Construction 
Phase 

Duration 
(days) Equipment HR 

Rating Qty Usage 
Hours 

Load 
Factor 

HP-
hrs/day 

Fuel 
Consumption 

Paving 35 

Pavers 81 2 7 0.42 476 901 
Paving 

Equipment 89 2 5 0.36 320 605 

Rollers 36 2 7 0.38 192 363 
Architectural 

Coating 50 Air Compressors 37 1 6 0.48 107 289 

Linear, 
Grubbing & 

Land Clearing 
10 

Crawler Tractors 87 1 7 0.43 262 142 
Excavators 36 1 7 0.38 96 52 

Signal Boards 6 1 7 0.82 34 19 

Linear, Grading 
& Excavation 20 

Crawler Tractors 87 1 7 0.43 262 283 
Excavators 36 3 7 0.38 287 311 

Graders 148 1 7 0.41 425 459 
Rollers 36 2 7 0.38 192 207 

Rubber Tired 
Loaders 150 2 5 0.36 540 584 

Scrapers 423 2 7 0.48 2843 3073 
Signal Boards 6 1 7 0.82 34 37 

Tractors/Loaders/ 
Backhoes 84 2 5 0.37 311 336 

Linear, 
Drainage & 
Sub-Grade 

25 

Air Compressors 37 1 7 0.48 124 168 
Generator Sets 14 1 7 0.74 73 98 

Graders 148 1 1 0.41 61 82 
Plate Compactors 8 1 7 0.43 24 32 

Pumps 11 1 7 0.74 57 77 
Rough Terrain 

Forklifts 96 1 7 0.40 269 364 

Scrapers 423 2 7 0.48 2843 3842 
Signal Boards 6 1 7 0.82 34 46 

Tractors/Loaders/ 
Backhoes 84 2 5 0.37 311 420 

Linear, Paving 40 

Pavers 81 1 7 0.42 238 515 
Paving 

Equipment 89 1 5 0.36 160 346 

Rollers 36 3 7 0.38 287 621 
Signal Boards 6 1 7 0.82 34 74 

Tractors/Loaders/ 
Backhoes 84 2 5 0.37 311 672 

Total Construction Equipment Fuel Demand (Gallons Diesel Fuel) 62,757 
Source: CalEEMod Version 2022.1 (Appendix A) 

 
Table 8 provides an overview of fuel consumption as it relates to construction workers’ 
commute to and from the construction site. Estimates are based on trip type (worker, hauling, 
vendor), construction duration, rate of daily worker trips, and trip length as modeled by 
CalEEMod. For purposes of this analysis, it may be assumed that worker trips are by car, 
hauling trips are by Class 8 truck, and vendor trips are by delivery truck. The average vehicle 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  49 

fuel economy estimate for each trip type was derived from the U.S. Department of Energy 
Alternative Fueled Data Center.  
 

Table 8 
Construction Worker Fuel Consumption Estimates 

Construction 
Phase 

Duration 
(days) 

Trip 
Type 

Worker 
Trips/Day 

Trip 
Length 
(miles) 

VMT Avg. Fuel 
Economy 

(mpg) 

Fuel 
Consumption 

(gallons) 
Site 

Preparation 20 Worker 20 18.5 7400 24.4 303 

Grading 50 Worker 17.5 18.5 16187.5 24.4 663 
Hauling 113 20 113000 6.4 17656 

Building 
Construction 415 Worker 108 18.5 829170 24.4 33982 

Vendor 16.2 10.2 68574.6 7.7 8906 

Paving  35 Worker 15 18.5 9712.5 24.4 398 
Hauling 0.77 20 539 6.4 84 

Architectural 
Coating 50 Worker 21.7 18.5 20072.5 24.4 823 

Linear, 
Grubbing & 

Land Clearing 
10 Worker 7.5 18.5 1387.5 24.4 57 

Linear, 
Grading & 
Excavation 

20 
Worker 32.5 18.5 12025 24.4 493 

Vendor 1 10.2 204 7.7 26 

Linear, 
Drainage, 

Utilities & Sub-
Grade 

25 Worker 27.5 18.5 12718.75 24.4 521 

Linear, Paving 40 Worker 20 18.5 14800 24.4 607 
Hauling 0.77 20 616 6.4 96 

Total Construction Worker Fuel Demand (Gallons Diesel Fuel) 64,616 
Source: CalEEMod Version 2022.1. (Appendix A) 

 
 In total, the construction phase would generate a fuel demand of 127,373 gallons of fuel. This 

fuel consumption will occur only once, and all related construction diesel fuel demands will 
end immediately after the 24-month construction period.  

 
Although energy demand from construction is temporary, the Project would be required to 
adhere to the state Low Carbon Fuel Standards which are regulatory standards designed to 
improve transportation fuel efficiency and achieve environmental benefits, such as lowering 
carbon fuel emissions and improving air quality. Compliance with these standards would 
ensure the Project’s fuel consumption during construction does not adversely affect the 
surrounding environment. Any potential impacts will be limited and cease after the 
construction period has been completed.  

 
 Operation Energy Use 
 At buildout, the Project site would consume electricity to power kitchen appliances 

(refrigerators, ovens, toasters), electronics (televisions, Wi-Fi boxes, computers), HVAC, EV 
charging stations, and indoor/outdoor lighting. CalEEMod generates default electricity and 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  50 

natural gas consumption based on land use inputs. For the Project, the following land uses 
were included: apartments mid-rise, parking lot, and road construction. One thing to note is 
the energy use by the swimming pool (i.e., heat pump) and Community Center (i.e., light 
fixtures, appliances, HVAC) are accounted under the residential land use. Table 9 
summarizes each land use estimated energy demand.  

 
Table 9 

Operational Energy Demand 

Land Use Electricity 
(kWh/yr) 

Natural Gas 
(kBTU/yr) 

Apartment Mid-Rise 848,874 1,933,922 
Parking Lot 76,317 0 

Total Operational Energy Demand 925,191 1,933,922 
Source: CalEEMod Version 2022.1. (Appendix A) 

 
 As shown in Table 9, the Project’s operation would generate an annual energy demand of 

925,191 kWh of electricity and 1,933,922 kBTU of natural gas. To manage the use of 
electricity on-site, the Project’s design, construction, installation, and operation must adhere 
to the latest standards for energy efficiency established in Title 24 of the California Building 
Code. Part of these provisions include solar power for multifamily residential buildings with a 
solar zone located on the roof or overhang of the building to provide at least 15 percent of roof 
coverage per building. The use of renewable energy would off-set electricity use supplied by 
nonrenewable resources such as fossil fuel, coal, and natural gas. Consequently, the Project 
would minimize energy consumption from nonrenewable resources to the greatest extent 
possible. Adherence to these and other energy efficiency standards as outlined in the City 
General Plan, Municipal Code, and the City 2013 Energy Action Plan, would ensure the 
proposed multifamily residential development does not become a source of wasteful, 
inefficient, and unnecessary energy consumption. As such, less than significant impacts from 
energy consumption during the Project’s long-term operation are anticipated. 

 
 Summary 
 The proposed Project would generate an energy demand during construction and operation. 

Energy use during construction would be temporary and thus cause no permanent impacts to 
the Project’s energy use. However, energy consumption during operation would be on-going 
and last the entire duration of the property’s lifespan. Operational usage would be managed 
by the property’s compliance with stringent energy codes established in the State Building 
Code for multifamily residential development. These provisions specifically aim to reduce 
energy consumption; thereby, improving the usage and efficiency of energy. In accordance 
with all applicable mandates, the Project’s operational energy use would not significantly 
impact the environment from wasteful, inefficient, and unnecessary energy consumption. For 
these reasons, potential impacts are anticipated as being less than significant.  

 
b) NO IMPACT: Energy efficiency is mandatory under the State’s Energy Code, a part of the 

California Building Code, Title 24, which requires all residential development to fulfill minimum 
standards for energy conservation. Part of these mandates includes solar power for 
multifamily residential buildings, as previously discussed. Additionally, the Project would be 
required to comply with applicable standards for energy efficiency under the City 2013 Energy 
Action Plan and the City Municipal Code. Adherence is required by law and, as such, the 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  51 

Project would not conflict or violate any state or local standard regarding renewable energy or 
energy efficiency. No impacts would occur.   

 
6.3 Mitigation Measures: 
 
None required. 
  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  52 

7 - Geology and Soils  

GEOLOGY AND SOILS – Would the 
project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

with Mitigation 
Incorporation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

a) Directly or indirectly cause potential 
substantial adverse effects, including 
the risk of loss, injury, or death 
involving: 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   i) Rupture of a known earthquake 
fault, as delineated on the most recent 
Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault 
Zoning Map issued by the State 
Geologist for the area or based on 
other substantial evidence of a known 
fault? Refer to Division of Mines and 
Geology Special Publication 42. 

    

   ii) Strong seismic ground shaking?     
  iii) Seismic-related ground failure, 
including liquefaction?     

  iv) Landslides?     
b) Result in substantial soil erosion or 
the loss of topsoil?     
c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil 
that is unstable, or that would become 
unstable as a result of the project, and 
potentially result in on- or off-site 
landslide, lateral spreading, 
subsidence, liquefaction or collapse? 

    

d) Be located on expansive soil, as 
defined in Table 18-1-B of the Uniform 
Building Code (1994), creating 
substantial direct or indirect risk to life 
or property? 

    

e) Have soils incapable of adequately 
supporting the use of septic tanks or 
alternative wastewater disposal 
systems where sewers are not 
available for the disposal of 
wastewater? 

    

f) Directly or indirectly destroy a 
unique paleontological resource or 
site or unique geologic feature? 

    

Sources:  City of Rancho Mirage General Plan, 2017; Rancho Mirage General Plan Environmental Impact 
Report, 2005; Southern California Earthquake Data Center, accessed June 2024; Design-Phase 
Geotechnical Investigation Report for the Proposed Rancho Mirage Apartments, prepared by Petra 
Geoscience, July 2024 (Appendix D).  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  53 

7.1 Setting 
 

Rancho Mirage is located in an area with numerous active faults, including the Banning fault and 
the Garnet Hill fault. Both faults are located outside the City limits north of Interstate-10 (I-10), 
along the foothills of the San Bernardino Mountains. These local faults, as well as regional faults 
including the San Andreas, San Jacinto, and San Gorgonio Pass faults, have the potential to 
cause strong ground shaking in Rancho Mirage. The City is also susceptible to soil settlement, 
landslide, collapsible soil, ground subsidence, and soil erosion.  
 
Ground shaking 
The Banning and Garnet Hill faults are located approximately 3.40 miles to the north. Both faults 
are part of the San Andreas fault system. The Banning fault is a right-lateral strike-slip fault, 
capable of inducing a <7.0 magnitude earthquake.10 The Garnet Hill fault is a right-lateral strike-
slip fault with an earthquake capacity of <7.0 magnitude.11  
 
Secondary active faults capable of causing damage to Rancho Mirage include the San Jacinto 
fault, located within the San Jacinto Mountains, southwest of the City; and the San Gorgonio Pass 
fault, located in the San Gorgonio Pass to the west of the City. The San Andreas fault is a strike-
slip fault where the North American and Pacific tectonic plates meet. The San Andreas fault 
crosses the Coachella Valley from the Salton Sea, north of Rancho Mirage and through Desert 
Hot Springs. The fault can induce a magnitude <8.0 earthquake, likely to impact Rancho Mirage. 
The risk of seismically induced ground shaking is high given Rancho Mirage’s proximity to the 
Banning and Garnet Hill fault, as well as the influence of regional faults such as the San Andreas. 
 
Liquefaction 
Seismically induced liquefaction occurs when loose, unconsolidated, sandy soil is in proximity to 
groundwater less than 50 feet from the ground surface. When the soil particles become saturated, 
the effect is a loss of bearing strength, which causes the surface to become unstable and 
jeopardize the structural integrity of buildings built on top. In Rancho Mirage, seismically induced 
liquefaction hazards are considered low given the local groundwater level is at depth greater than 
50 feet. 
 
Soil Settlement  
Settlement of the ground surface occurs when fine, unconsolidated alluvial soil becomes 
compacted during a seismic event. According to Rancho Mirage’s General Plan Exhibit 23, most 
of the City’s developed area, including the Project site, is located within an area classified as 
highly susceptible to seismically induced settlement.  
 
Landslide 
Those portions of Rancho Mirage located adjacent to the San Jacinto and Santa Rosa Mountains 
are highly susceptible to landslides given their proximity to steep mountains which may result in 
rock falls and landslides in the event of a seismic event. As shown in the City’s General Plan 
Exhibit 24, the Project site is located in the City’s northeastern corner within an area with low 
susceptibility for seismically induced rockfall and/or landslide. 
 

 
10  Southern California Earthquake Data Center, Banning Fault, accessed June 2024.  
11  Southern California Earthquake Data Center, Garnet Hill Fault, accessed June 2024. 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  54 

Collapsible Soil  
Collapsible soil is soil sediment recently laid down by wind or water. Typically, the soil loses its 
strength and becomes rearranged when saturated, causing a substantial and rapid soil 
settlement. Rancho Mirage’s developed area is comprised of alluvial and aeolian sediment that 
are prone to collapse.  
 
Ground Subsidence  
Ground subsidence is the gradual settlement of the ground surface, generally attributed to the 
rapid decline of regional groundwater basins. With the projected population growth in the 
Coachella Valley, withdrawal of the groundwater basin will become more prevalent, thus 
presenting an increasing risk for ground subsidence in Rancho Mirage and all regional cities. The 
local water districts have implemented groundwater replenishment programs to offset the 
withdrawal of groundwater. 
 
Soil Erosion  
Soil erosion occurs when loose sediment is transported by wind, water, and/or agricultural 
activities. The loss of mass results in atmospheric dust which impacts road visibility and impacts 
the regional air quality. The majority of Rancho Mirage’s developed area is classified as a Very 
Severe Wind Erosion Hazard Zone (VSWEHZ). The Project site is located within a VSWEHZ. 
 
Flooding  
Flooding during a seismic event may be a result of failures of water tanks, reservoirs, retention 
basins, recharge basins, and other water storage facilities. Rancho Mirage has a low probability 
of seismically induced flooding. 
 
Paleontological Resources 
Paleontological resources are the remains or traces of prehistoric life that once occupied the area. 
The City is generally regarded as an area with low sensitivity to paleontological resources, 
according to the City’s 2005 General Plan EIR.  
To evaluate the property’s susceptibility to geological hazards, a Project-specific Geotechnical 
Investigation Report was prepared by Petra Geoscience in July 2024 (Appendix D). The 
investigation includes a subsurface exploration survey, laboratory test, and percolation test. The 
basis of the following analysis stems from the report.  
 

7.2 Discussion of Impacts:  
 

a.i NO IMPACT: The subject site is not located on or near an active fault line as defined by the 
California Department of Conservation, Alquist Priolo Site Investigation Map.12 No signs of 
faulting were observed within the property during the field survey. Therefore, the probability 
for impact due to fault rupture on-site is considered negligible. No impacts are anticipated. 

 
a.ii LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT: The Project site is located within a relatively flat region 

of Rancho Mirage’s northeast planning area. The site is comprised of unconsolidated, 
windblown sand and covered by sparse desert vegetation. The likelihood for the site to be 
adversely affected by strong ground shaking is analyzed below.  

 
12  California Department of Conservation, Alquist-Priolo Site Investigation Reports, 

https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/informationwarehouse/apreports/, accessed March 2025.  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  55 

 
 The site is located more than 3 miles (3.36 miles exactly) from the nearest active fault line, 

being the San Andreas Fault, traversing along the foothills of the Indio Hills and located 
outside the City boundary.  

 
 The Coachella Valley segment of the San Andreas fault can generate the greatest level of 

ground shaking in the region, at an estimated magnitude of 8.0. On the Modified Mercalli 
Intensity (MMI) scale, which categorizes the potential for damage on a scale of 1 (none) to 12 
(severe), the Coachella Valley segment of the San Andreas fault is associated with an 8 to 7 
damage level. In the worst case (Level 8), strong ground shaking from the San Andreas fault 
can cause structural damage, overturn heavy furniture and cause columns, chimneys, and 
walls to fall. The potential for damage is moderate to heavy and perceived shaking is severe. 

 
 To ensure structural integrity during strong ground shaking, the Project is required to conform 

with the latest California Seismic Code and applicable development standards as established 
in the City General Plan and Rancho Mirage Municipal Code. In accordance with these safety 
standards, the Project’s design and construction will incorporate collapse-resistance 
measures so as to reduce the potential for structural damage or collapse in the event of 
seismically induced ground shaking. Therefore, although the Project site has a moderate 
chance for damage caused by seismically induced ground shaking, implementation of building 
standards will minimize the potential for significant damage. As such, less than significant 
impacts are anticipated.  

 
a.iii NO IMPACT: During the geotechnical field survey, the greatest depth explored reached 66 

feet below the ground surface. Groundwater was not encountered at this depth. Furthermore, 
a monitoring well located approximately a half-a-mile to the north places groundwater at a 
depth of 160± feet below the surface. The site’s groundwater is therefore located at a depth 
of or greater than 160 feet, which eliminates the probability for seismically induced liquefaction 
to occur on-site and cause structural damage to the proposed residential buildings. The 
property’s susceptibility for liquefaction is negligible and thus, no impacts are anticipated.  

 
 
a.iv NO IMPACT: The property is located on the Valley floor and within a relatively flat region of 

Rancho Mirage. There are no slopes, hillsides, or mountains at or within proximity to the site. 
The nearest susceptible landslide area is the Indio Hills, located approximately 3.40 miles 
from the property. At this distance, the risk for a seismically induced landslide is limited. The 
potential for landslides to cause adverse effects to the property and proposed development is 
negligible. No impacts will occur.   

 
b) LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT: Disturbance of the topsoil during construction is 

generally regarded as increasing the probability of soil erosion by wind and water. However, 
in accordance with SCAQMD Rule 403, irrigation of the site is required prior to and during any 
ground disturbance so as to manage fugitive dust from soil erosion. Additionally, the Rancho 
Mirage Municipal Code requires all new development to implement a Stormwater Pollution 
Prevention Plan (SWPPP) and Water Quality Management Plan (WQMP) to specify actions 
taken to manage and avoid storm runoff during construction and in the long term. In 
accordance with these standards, development of the Project is not anticipated to increase 
the site’s susceptibility to soil erosion. Additionally, once fully built, the Project site will include 
impervious surfaces such as building foundations, sidewalks, parking areas, and landscape, 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  56 

all of which stabilize the soil and prevent soil erosion. For these reasons, the probability for 
impact from soil erosion is low. Less than significant impacts are anticipated. 

 
c) LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT: The probability for soil failure within the property is 

analyzed in the following sections. 
  
 Landslides 
 Refer to Question a.iv in this Section for analysis on the probability for landslides. No impacts 

are anticipated.  
 
 Lateral Spreading 
 Lateral spreading is caused by liquefaction and seismically induced ground shaking that 

liquefies the topsoil resulting in the soil column’s loss of strength.13 Typically, lateral spreading 
occurs in fine grained materials on shallow slopes or flat terrain. The subject site is relatively 
flat and covered by unconsolidated sandy soil with a groundwater level estimated at a depth 
of 160± feet below the ground surface. At this distance, the probability for lateral spreading to 
occur at the Project site negligible.  

 
 Subsidence 
 Subsidence is a byproduct of excessive groundwater pumping which lowers the soil column, 

resulting in the gradual settling or sudden sinking of the surface. The Coachella Valley Water 
District, in compliance with the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA), 
implements groundwater replenishment measures to maintain constant levels. These 
measures ensure groundwater levels do not substantially decrease to the extent of causing 
subsidence. Therefore, the probability for the Project site to be impacted by ground failure as 
it relates to subsidence is limited.  

 
 Liquefaction 
 Refer to Question a.iii in this Section for analysis on the likelihood for liquefaction. No impacts 

are anticipated.  
 
 Soil Collapse 
 Soils prone to collapse include wind deposited sands and silts, alluvial fans or debris flow 

sediments deposited by flash floods. These soils may be partially supported by clay, silt, or 
carbonate bonds which when saturated, collapse and undergo rearrangement, resulting in 
substantial and rapid settlement under relatively light loads. According to the soil survey, the 
soil material found on-site is very loose to very dense, poorly graded eolian sand. Soil found 
at a depth of at least 10 feet was determined as prone to settlement. However, the grading 
requirements which will be imposed on the Project by the City will include the over-excavation 
of these soils, the proper compaction of soils and other geotechnical standards to assure that 
soil collapse does not occur. These standard requirements will assure that impacts will be 
less than significant.   

 
d) NO IMPACT: Expansive clay may occur in fine-grained soils. These soil types expand and 

contract with changes in moisture content. The soil material found on-site was characterized 
as very loose to very dense, poorly graded eolian sand with a moisture content less than 
0.5%. To determine the potential for soil collapse by exposure to moisture, a percolation test 

 
13  US Geological Survey, Lateral Spread, https://www.usgs.gov/media/images/lateral-spread, July 2023.  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  57 

was performed. Results from the test concluded with the soil on-site having a safety factor of 
1, indicating the soil’s stability in contact with water. Clay was not encountered in the soil 
column, and is not expected to occur. No impact is expected. 

  
e) NO IMPACT: On-site wastewater collection and treatment services will be provided by the 

Coachella Valley Water District. No septic tank will be required to fulfill wastewater services. 
Therefore, no geological impacts related to soil collapse from an on-site septic tank would 
occur as part of the proposed development. As such, no impacts would occur.  

 
f) NO IMPACT: The City of Rancho Mirage is located within an area with low sensitivity to 

paleontological resources. Additionally, there are no records of paleontological resources 
being uncovered during the development of surrounding land uses in the proximity of the 
Project site. Therefore, no paleontological resources are expected to occur within the property 
area and thus, no impacts will occur.  

 
7.3 Mitigation Measures:  
 
None required. 
  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  58 

8 – Greenhouse Gas Emissions  

GREENHOUSE EMISSIONS – 
Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

with Mitigation 
Incorporation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

a) Generate greenhouse gas 
emissions, either directly or indirectly, 
that may have a significant impact on 
the environment? 

    

b) Conflict with an applicable plan, 
policy or regulation adopted for the 
purpose of reducing the emissions of 
greenhouse gases? 

    

Sources: South Coast Air Quality Management District, Greenhouse Gases, accessed June 2024; 
Rancho Mirage Sustainability Plan, March 2013; Air Quality Report, April 2025 (Appendix A); Project 
Material. 
 

8.1 Setting 
 

Greenhouse Gases (GHGs) are naturally occurring with the release of water vapor, carbon 
dioxide (CO2), methane (CH4), nitrous oxide (N2O), and ozone (O3) into the atmosphere which 
then capture heat radiated by the sun to create the greenhouse effect. With the introduction of 
human activities including the burning of fossil fuels and agricultural practices, the release of 
GHGs into the atmosphere has accelerated over the decades to the extent of causing changes 
to global weather patterns, noted as global climate change or global warming. 

In response to global climate change, Assembly Bill 32 (AB 32) and Senate Bill 32 (SB 32) were 
passed to set GHG emission guidelines to achieve 1990 emissions levels by 2020 and a level of 
40% below 1990 emission levels by 2030. 

Pursuant to the State GHG reduction goals, the City of Rancho Mirage adopted a Sustainability 
Plan (SP) in March 2013. The 2013 SP is an implementation plan for Rancho Mirage to reach 
target emission reduction goals through goals, policies, and standards. A GHG emission inventory 
was provided and projected emissions are stated assuming current and future developments 
implement reduction standards. The City reduction goal is 19.8% below 1990 emission levels by 
2020.14 

In compliance with state legislation, SCAQMD adopted a tiered approach to determine GHG 
significance thresholds for stationary sources. Specific thresholds are dependent on land use. 
Residential projects have an annual GHG threshold of 3,000 metric tons of CO2 equivalent 
(MTCO2e) per year. The following is the “tiered” system approach in determining if a project’s 
GHG emissions would be considered significant according to CEQA standards:  

● Tier 1: Is there an applicable exception? 

 
14  Rancho Mirage Sustainability Plan, Table 1, March 2013.  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  59 

● Tier 2: Is the project compliant with a greenhouse gas reduction plan that is, at a minimum, 
consistent with the goals of AB 32? 

● Tier 3: Is the project below an absolute threshold (10,000 MTCO2e/yr for industrial 
projects; 3,000 MTCO2e/yr for residential and commercial projects)? 

● Tier 4: Is the project below a (yet to be set) performance threshold? 
● Tier 5: Would the project achieve a screening level with off-site mitigation? 

 
SCAQMD’s tier system approach is implemented in the following impact analysis regarding the 
Project’s emission of GHG during construction and operation.  

8.2 Discussion of Impacts:  
 
a-b) LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT: A Project-specific air quality report was prepared 

using CalEEMod, a modeling program used to calculate emissions based on land use and 
related operations for projecting emissions including GHG from stationary sources (Appendix 
A). Construction GHG emissions include the use of construction equipment and transportation 
of construction materials and personnel. Operational GHG emissions consist of a variety of 
sources including area sources, energy usage, mobile sources, waste, and water. 

 
 Construction Emissions 
 A construction duration of 2-years is projected starting in February 2027 with a full buildout by 

2029. Construction activities resulting in short-term GHG emissions would stem from the 
operation of construction equipment, employee commutes, material hauling, and other ground 
disturbances. For 2027, emissions are estimated at 674 MTCO2e. For 2028, emissions are 
estimated at 486 MTCO2e, and for 2029, emissions are estimated at 27.5 MTCO2e. The 
Project’s construction would emit a total of 1,187.50 MTCO2e/year over the 24-month 
construction period. To determine if construction-related GHG emissions will result in a 
cumulative impact, construction GHG emissions were amortized over a 30-year period and 
added to annual operational emissions to be compared to applicable GHG thresholds. Table 
11 summaries construction emissions with annual operational emissions for this specific 
Project.  

 
 Operational Emissions 
 At buildout, the Project would consist of seven residential multifamily apartment buildings and 

complementary amenities including a Community Center facility and outdoor recreational 
amenities. During operation, the Project would consist of six sources of GHG emissions 
including mobile, area, energy usage, water, waste, and refrigerant. These sources would 
generate the Project’s annual emissions, estimated at 1,659 MTCO2e/year. Table 10 shows 
each emission source in relation to the Project’s annual GHG emissions. 

  
Table 10 

Total Operation GHG Emission per Source 
Source of Emission Annual Emissions  

(MTCO2e per year) 
Area 1.86 
Mobile 1,311 
Energy  

Electricity 192 
Natural Gas 103 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  60 

Table 10 
Total Operation GHG Emission per Source 

Source of Emission Annual Emissions  
(MTCO2e per year) 

Water 15.1 
Waste 36.3 
Refrigerant 0.08 

TOTAL 1,659 
Source: CalEEMod Version 2022.1. (Appendix A) 

 
 

Table 11 
Projected Greenhouse Gas Emissions Summary 

Development Phases Annual Emissions 
(MTCO2e per year) 

Construction (2027-2029)  
Total Emissions 1,187.50 

Operation  
Construction: 30-year amortized 39.58 

Annual Operation 1,659 
Total Operation 1,698.58 

SCAQMD Threshold 3,000 
Exceeds? No 

Source: CalEEMod Version 2022.1. (Appendix A) 
 
Table 11 displays the total construction and operational emissions for the Project with specified 
modifications. Annual GHG emissions are estimated to be 1,698.58 MTCO2e/year which falls 
below SCAQMD Tier 3 threshold at 3,000 MTCO2e/year. As mentioned above, the Project would 
be subject to the Rancho Mirage SP and the City’s 2013 Energy Action Plan. In accordance with 
these plans, the Project would be required to adhere to reduction standards to assist in the City’s 
reduction goal and overall, the State’s SB 32 objective of achieving a GHG emission level of 40% 
below 1990 levels by 2030. The Project would also adhere to rules and standards under SCAQMD 
2022 AQMP. These standards would ensure that the Project’s GHG emissions do not 
substantially impact the environment. Therefore, less than significant impacts would occur as a 
result from the Project’s construction and operation.  
 
8.3 Mitigation Measures:  
 
None required. 
  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  61 

9 - Hazards and Hazardous Materials  

HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS 
MATERIALS – Would the project:  

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

with Mitigation 
Incorporation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

a) Create a significant hazard to the 
public or the environment through the 
routine transport, use, or disposal of 
hazardous materials? 

    

b) Create a significant hazard to the 
public or the environment through 
reasonably foreseeable upset and 
accident conditions involving the 
release of hazardous materials into the 
environment? 

    

c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle 
hazardous or acutely hazardous 
materials, substances, or waste within 
one-quarter mile of an existing or 
proposed school? 

    

d) Be located on a site which is included 
on a list of hazardous materials sites 
compiled pursuant to Government Code 
Section 65962.5 and, as a result, would 
it create a significant hazard to the 
public or the environment? 

    

e) For a project located within an airport 
land use plan or, where such a plan has 
not been adopted, within two miles of a 
public airport or public use airport, 
would the project result in a safety 
hazard for people residing or working in 
the project area? 

    

f) Impair implementation of or physically 
interfere with an adopted emergency 
response plan or emergency evacuation 
plan? 

    

g) Expose people or structures to a 
significant risk of loss, injury or death 
involving wildland fires, including where 
wildlands are adjacent to urbanized 
areas or where residences are 
intermixed with wildlands? 

    

Sources: City of Rancho Mirage General Plan, 2017; National Community Renaissance of California, 
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment, April 2024 (Appendix E); Project Material; Google Earth Pro.  
 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  62 

9.1 Setting  
 

Federal, state, and local standards impose restrictions/regulation on the transport, use, storage, 
and disposal of hazardous material, specific to facilities including new commercial, industrial, 
institutional, or accessory use, that are involve in the manufacturing, storage, or processing of 
hazardous substances in sufficient quantity to pose a hazardous risk. 
 
Numerous commercial, quasi industrial, and medical operation are classified “small quantity 
generators” in Rancho Mirage, given their use of hazardous/toxic material and potential for 
accidental spills, air emissions, and other discharge into the environment. These hazardous waste 
sources include the Eisenhower Medical Center and the Desert Orthopedic Center, according to 
the City’s 2017 General Plan. At this time, there are no active hazardous waste sites found in 
Rancho Mirage as reported in the Hazardous Waste and Substance Site List (Cortese List) by 
the California Department of Toxic Substances Control. 

Apart from commercial, institutional, and industrial facilities, households may also pose a 
hazardous risk with the improper disposal of common household products. Hazardous waste 
typically found in homes includes household cleaners, paints, pesticides, solvents, used 
automobile fluids, and batteries. To limit the potential harm to human health and the environment 
with the mishandling and/or improper disposal of household hazardous waste, the City offers 
household hazardous waste pick-ups at no cost to residents. 

A site-specific Phase I Environmental Site Assessment was prepared to evaluate the property’s 
existing environmental condition and related susceptibility to hazardous impacts from the 
development of a multi-family residential project on the site’s 5±acre parcel (Appendix E). The 
assessment includes a review of aerial photographs, environmental database review, and a site 
inspection performed on April 18, 2024.    
 
Investigation For Potential Hazardous Sites  
Aerial photographs were reviewed in order to assess the gradual change in land use over time 
and identify sources of potential hazardous material storage usage, and disposal, near the Project 
site. Observation yielded that in 1953 no manmade structures appeared in the Project area, until 
1959 through 2020 when greater development gradually evolved to what is present today. Within 
this same period, no landfills, large aboveground tanks, oil wells, or pipelines were visible nor are 
currently present on-site or within adjoining properties. No previous use of the site for storage or 
disposal of hazardous material has occurred. And as such, the property was not identified as a 
potential hazardous material site as part of the environmental database review.  
Nonetheless, seven properties within a one-mile distance from the site are identified as having 
the potential to release hazardous materials into the subsurface soil and/or groundwater. Yet, 
none of the properties are located adjacent to the site or up-gradient (west-northwest). Therefore, 
the site’s location and distance from hazardous sites, the potential for hazardous material to 
impact the proposed development is considered negligible. Further investigation of the site or 
nearby vicinity through other resources were obtained to furthermore evaluate its environment 
condition. The following are the results from each investigation  

• Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB): The properties listed in the RWQCB 
database are known to have released potentially hazardous materials into the 
underlying soil and/or groundwater. The site was not listed within the RWQCB 
database. Nor any property within a 0.25 mile from the property.  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  63 

• Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC): A search of the database revealed 
that the site was not located within the DTSC database, nor any property within 0.25 
mile and up-gradient from the site.  

• California Geologic Energy Management Division (CalGEM): The CalGEM provides a 
map in which oil wells are identified. There were no oil wells shown to be present within 
the subject site or within 1 mile of the site. The closest reported oil well is Chevron, 
located approximately 5.6 miles north-northwest of the site.  

• South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD): No records of the property 
were encountered in SCAQMD’s database. The closest reported property is The Home 
Depot property located approximately 700 feet northeast of the site. The Home Depot 
is reported due to its use of a diesel-powered electric generator. Release of diesel at 
this property was not reported by the AQMD. There were no AQMD-regulated 
properties located up-gradient and within 0.25 miles of the site.  

 
Lastly, on April 18, 2024, a Terra Nova Planning & Research Inc. representative visited the site 
to assess its current use and visually search for indications of surface and subsurface 
contamination. Observations recorded during the site inspection include the following:  

● The site appeared in an undeveloped and natural state. Manmade structures were 
not encountered within the site. Its surface was covered with wind-blown sand and 
desert vegetation.  

● Very small quantities of nuisance debris were encountered locally within the site. 
This debris included plastic sheeting, cardboard, lumber, clothing, and empty food 
and beverage containers. Potentially hazardous nuisance debris was not 
encountered within the site.  

● None of the following were observed within the site: 

o Fill ports or vent pipes to underground storage tanks 

o Aboveground storage tanks 

o Indications of septic systems 

o Pools of liquid or potentially hazardous substances 

o Groundwater wells 

o Clarifiers, pits, sumps, or other underground waste disposal areas 

o Stained soils 

o Unusual or noxious odors 

 
The surrounding property was also observed for evidence for possible contaminant releases. In 
summary, the adjoining properties consist of undeveloped lands, residential development, 
commercial/retail shopping center, dog park, local transit corridors, and a construction yard. No 
potential source of hazardous material was observed in the visible portions of the properties 
located within proximity to the subject site.  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  64 

Conclusions 
Due to the absence of prior development on the site, sources of hazardous material were not 
encountered at any point in the multi-phase investigation. Based on the review of databases, 
there is a low potential for contaminants from off-site properties to affect the underlying soil and/or 
groundwater at the site. The findings indicate that the site’s existing environmental conditions do 
not warrant regulatory involvement, including actions leading to environmental soil sampling, soil 
remediation, groundwater sampling, and groundwater remediation. As such, the property is 
regarded as having no prior exposure to hazardous material and thus, no cumulative impacts by 
the proposed Project’s use of hazardous material during construction and operation would occur.  
 
9.2 Discussion of Impacts:  
 
a-b) LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT: As previously mentioned, the Project would include 

the use of hazardous material during the 24-month construction period and long-term 
operation. These materials will be present in small quantities and will not pose an 
environmental risk. The following sections analyze sources of hazardous material and waste 
at each stage of development and evaluate their respective potential for impact. 

  
 Construction 

For analysis purposes, it is assumed the Project’s construction phase would occur over a 24-
month period starting in February 2027 with buildout in 2029. During construction, heavy duty 
construction equipment will be present on-site. This construction equipment is powered by 
fuel, stored in sealed containers so as to avoid accidental spills. A fueling station consisting 
of a paved surface may be assigned within the construction area to focus refueling activities 
within a dedicated area and catch any potential spills to eliminate the potential for adverse 
effects to the soil quality. Additionally, the Project will be required to comply with all appropriate 
federal, state, and local legislation regarding the transport, use, storage, and disposal of 
hazardous material which establish best management practices when handling hazardous 
material. With compliance with regulatory policies and standards, the Project’s construction is 
unlikely to pose a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the use of 
hazardous materials. Less than significant impacts are expected.  

 
 Operation 

At buildout, the Project will include seven residential buildings, totaling 150 units, a community 
building, and outdoor recreational facilities such as a playground, grilling station, and 
swimming pool. As such, the Project is expected to routinely use chemicals and cleaners to 
properly maintain the swimming pool and other public areas. Additionally, each residential unit 
is likely to use, store, and dispose of household hazardous material/waste, including cleaners, 
paints, and batteries. None of these chemicals or substances will be concentrated at 
significant quantities to pose a hazardous risk. Additionally, Burrtec Inc., the City’s waste 
hauler, offers residents in Rancho Mirage curb-side pickup of household hazardous waste at 
no extra cost. Given the small amounts of hazardous material, and option for proper disposal, 
the Project’s operation is unlikely to cause an acute hazardous risk. No reasonably 
foreseeable upset is likely to occur involving the lease of hazardous material into the 
environment. The Project’s long term operation is not expected to release hazardous 
materials in large quantities. Less than significant impacts are anticipated.  

 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  65 

 Summary  
Hazardous material will be present onsite in limited quantities which reduces the likelihood for 
the Project to pose a significant hazardous risk. During construction, the Project will be subject 
to regulations regarding the transport, use, storage, and disposal of hazardous material. In 
compliance with these regulations, the Project will ensure less than significant impact will 
occur during the construction phase. Once operational, hazardous materials will consist of 
household products which will be found in low quantity, unlikely to cause a significant 
hazardous accident. Overall, the transport, use, storage, and disposal of hazardous material 
in relation to the Project’s construction and operation are not expected to pose a significant 
hazardous risk. Less than significant impacts will occur. 

 
c) NO IMPACT: Rancho Mirage contains two public schools: Rancho Mirage Elementary School 

and the Rancho Mirage High School. In relation to the Project site, the Rancho Mirage 
Elementary School is approximately 4.28 miles southwest, and Rancho Mirage High School 
is approximately 2.73 miles northwest. These schools are located at a distance greater than 
0.25 miles from the Project site. The Project is therefore not expected to use or store 
hazardous material in significant quantities or emit hazardous emissions, materials, or 
substances which could otherwise pose a risk. Impacts to existing schools. 

 
d) NO IMPACT: According to the Cortese List, there are no contaminated areas in Rancho 

Mirage. The Project site consists of a vacant 5±-acre parcel which has been left in its natural 
state since at least 1904.15 Surrounding development consists of residential properties and 
commercial/retail shops. A site-specific environmental site assessment was conducted which 
included the review of environmental database results, and found 7 properties located within 
1 mile of the site to be listed as potential sources of the release of hazardous material. 
However, due to their relative distance and location, the potential for hazardous material to 
be released on-site and impact the soil/groundwater was determined as negligible.  

 
 The Project is not located on or in proximity to an area that has been classified as a polluted 

or hazardous site. Additionally, no potentially emitting facilities are located within the Project’s 
area. For this reason, the Project is not expected to contribute to a hazardous site. The Project 
will not pose a significant hazard to the public or environment. No impacts will occur.  

 
e) NO IMPACT: There are no commercial or private airports in Rancho Mirage. The nearest 

airport is the Palm Springs International Airport, located approximately 6.08 miles west of the 
Project site. The Project is farther than 2 miles from the airport and located outside the airport’s 
land use plan. Considering the Project’s distance from the Palm Springs International Airport, 
the Project’s development will not result in a safety hazard for people residing or working in 
the Project area. No impacts will occur.  

 
f) LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT: Prior to construction, the Fire Marshal’s Office will 

review the Project site plan to ensure the Project is consistent with all appropriate safety 
standards and emergency operation plans including the City’s Emergency Operational Plan 
(EOP) and the County’s Multi-Jurisdictional Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (MJLHMP). As such, 
the Project will not violate any state or local safety codes or emergency plan in the event of a 
local or regional accident.  

  

 
15  National Community Renaissance of California, Phase I Environmental Site Assessment, April 2024.  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  66 

 The extension of Via Vail along the east boundary of the Project site will provide direct access 
to and from the site. Via Vail will be constructed in compliance with the City’s circulation 
standards specific to a local roadway. As such, the Project will provide a direct evacuation 
route during an emergency. Overall, the Project will comply with all safety codes and as such, 
will not violate or interfere with an emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan. 
Impacts are expected to be less than significant.  

 
g) LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT: According to California Department of Forestry and 

Fire Prevention (CalFire) Fire Hazard Severity Zones model, Rancho Mirage is not located 
within a Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zone (VHFHSZ). The Project site is not located on or 
in proximity to an area with a fire hazard severity classification. The nearest area is in the 
Santa Rosa Mountains, located approximately 4.80 miles southwest from the site. To reduce 
potential risks related to fire, the Project will be required to comply with all state and local fire 
codes regarding fire prevention to ensure the safety of residents and workers occupying the 
site. The Project is not expected to significantly expose people or structures to loss, injury, or 
death involving a wildland fire because the site is not located in proximity to an area 
susceptible to fires and the Project will minimize potential impacts by complying with state and 
local fire code. Impacts related to fire hazards are expected to be less than significant.   

 
9.3 Mitigation Measures:  
 
None required. 
  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  67 

10 - Hydrology and Water Quality  

HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY 
– Would the project:  

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

with Mitigation 
Incorporation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

a) Violate any water quality standards 
or waste discharge requirements?     
b) Substantially decrease groundwater 
supplies or interfere substantially with 
groundwater recharge such that the 
project may impede sustainable 
groundwater management of the 
basin? 

    

c) Substantially alter the existing 
drainage pattern of the site or area, 
including through the alteration of the 
course of a stream or river, or through 
the addition of impervious surfaces, in 
a manner which would: 
i) Result in substantial erosion or 
siltation on- or off-site? 

    

ii) Substantially increase the rate or 
amount of surface runoff in a manner 
which would result in flooding on- or 
offsite? 

    

iii) Create or contribute runoff water 
which would exceed the capacity of 
existing or planned stormwater 
drainage systems or provide 
substantial additional sources of 
polluted runoff? 

    

iv) Impede or redirect flood flows?     
d) In flood hazard, tsunami, or seiche 
zones, risk release of pollutants due to 
project inundation? 

    

e) Conflict with or obstruct implementa-
tion of a water quality control plan or 
sustainable groundwater management 
plan? 

    

Sources: City of Rancho Mirage General Plan, 2017; Preliminary Drainage Study for Rancho Mirage 
Affordable Apartments in Rancho Mirage, California prepared by Atlas Civil Design, Inc., October 2024 
(Appendix F); Water Quality Management Plan for Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments in Rancho 
Mirage, CA prepared by Atlas Civil Design, Inc., October 2024 (Appendix G); 2020 Urban Water 
Management Plan, July 2021; Project Material; Google Earth Pro.   



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  68 

 
10.1 Setting  
 
The City of Rancho Mirage, like the Coachella Valley, has a subtropical desert climate with annual 
rainfall ranging from 4 to 6 inches. However, during severe thunderstorms, the intensity of rainfall 
can saturate the desert surface and substantially reduce percolation, leading to floods. Increased 
urbanization which includes impervious surfaces (i.e., buildings, sidewalks, roadways, driveways) 
also raises the probability for runoff. 

In Rancho Mirage, the areas with a flood hazard are located in proximity to the Whitewater River 
and its tributaries, mountain canyons, and their alluvial fans, as well as runoff from the Indio Hills 
drainage. Based on the City General Plan Exhibit 26 (Flood Map), the center to southern region 
of the City planning area between Gerald Ford Drive and Highway-111 have a Zone X flood zone 
designation, typically associated with lands with a 2% chance of flooding once every year. To the 
north, the land is outside flood Zone X due to its relative distance from regional mountain ranges 
and the Whitewater River.  

The Project site is located to the northeast of the City planning area and outside a flood hazard 
zone.  

A Preliminary Drainage Study (Appendix F) and a Water Quality Management Plan (Appendix G) 
were prepared for the Project by Atlas Civic Design, Inc. in October 2024. The following analysis 
is based on the findings of the two reports.  

10.2 Discussion of Impacts:  
 
a) LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT: The Project proposes a multi-family housing 

development on 5-acres of vacant land, east of Key Largo Avenue and south of Via Vail. The 
property would include 66,060± square feet of residential building space. Additional facilities 
include 4,108± square feet of in/outdoor communal space, 108,938± square feet of 
hardscape, and 42,802± square feet of landscape. Off-site improvements include buildout of 
Via Vail along the site’s eastern boundary. Pursuant to Chapter 15.64 (Grading) of the City 
Municipal Code, the Project is required to comply with standards regarding stormwater 
drainage so as to avoid the discharge of polluted runoff that may find its way into the regional 
groundwater supply.  

 
 Based on the Project-specific drainage study, the property’s existing drainage pattern shows 

significant runoff from surrounding vacant parcels including the open space property to the 
west and portions of the vacant parcel to the south. The runoff, not infiltrated by the site’s 
sandy soil, drains across the property and onto the vacant northern and eastern parcels, 
planned for the extension of Via Vail. To manage on- and off-site runoff, the Project proposes 
site improvements to include a drainage system comprised of swales, sidewalk and gutter, 
and two underground storage basins (BMP 1 and BMP 2). Basin 1 is designed to collect on 
site runoff as well as part of the Via Vail right-of-way runoff from the centerline to the property’s 
frontage, as required by the City. Basin 2 is designed to collect and store off-site runoff from 
the southern property that is tributary to the site. 

 
 Evaluation of the proposed drainage system for its consistency with the City’s requirement for 

100-year storm retention under 1, 3, 6, and 24-hour storm durations, concluded that the 
proposed underground pipe system adequately manages on and off site storm runoff and 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  69 

thus, no runoff would occur as a result of the Project’s development. Additionally, the Project-
specific Water Quality Management Plan lists non-structural and structural source control 
BMPs the Project would implement once operational. Some of these BMPs include irrigation 
system and landscape maintenance, common area litter control, street sweeping on private 
streets and parking lots, and compliance with all applicable ordinance codes regarding water 
use and stormwater drainage. As such, conformance with applicable standards as mandated 
by the City Municipal Code and implementation of BMPs would ensure the Project does not 
result in a decline in the local and regional water quality. Less than significant impacts are 
anticipated.  

 
b) LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT: Sources of water consumption by the Project would 

stem from construction activities through fugitive dust control and operational indoor and 
outdoor activities related to residential, landscape, and swimming pool uses.  

  
 Construction Water Use 
 The Project’s construction will consist of multiple phases including site preparation, grading, 

building construction, paving, and architectural coating, lasting for 24-months with a projected 
operational date in 2029. Ground disturbance related to construction would occur during site 
preparation and grading, and would require on-site irrigation in accordance with SCAQMD 
Rule 403 for fugitive dust control. The site’s irrigation is limited to only ground disturbance 
activities and would cease altogether after grading has ended. The temporary and infrequent 
use of water for irrigation purposes during the Project’s construction would not substantially 
limit CVWD’s water supply under current and future conditions.  

 
 Operational Water Use 

Water use related to the Project’s long-term operation will consist of residential use, amenity 
space (i.e., Community Center, swimming pool), and landscape irrigation. Table 12 and Table 
13 summarize water consumption by proposed land use, and concludes with a total Project 
water consumption rate of 28.26 acres-feet per year (AFY).  
 

 
Table 12 

Project Indoor Water Consumption Demand 

Land Use Size Water Demand 
Factor1 

Water 
Demand 

(gpd) 

Water 
Demand 

(AFY) 
Multi-Family Residential 150 units 55 22,275 24.95 

Community Center 3,353 sf 35 321.52 0.36 
Total (Annual In-Door Water Demand) 25.31 

1 CA Indoor Water Use Performance Standard 
Source: Project Material. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  70 

 
Table 13 

Project Outdoor Water Consumption Demand 

Land Use Area 
(ft2) 

ETo1 

(in/yr) 
Water 

Demand (gpd) 
Water 

Demand 
(AFY) 

Landscape  42,802 76.46 2,501.55 2.80 
Swimming Pool 948 76.46 135.44 0.15 

Total (Annual Out-Door Water Use) 2.95 
1 Reference Evapotranspiration (ETo) for ETo Zone 4 from CVWD Landscape Ordinance 1302.5, 
Appendix C.  
Source: Project Material.  

 
 As shown, the Project would generate a total water demand of 28.26 AFY which accounts for 

less than one percent (0.017% exactly) of the Coachella Valley Water District’s (CVWD’s) 
total gross water supply of 164,966 AFY by 2045.16 Although water demand from landscape 
irrigation is projected at 2.8 AFY, usage is anticipated to be lower considering that landscape 
vegetation will comply with the City’s development standard under Section 17.24.040(g) of 
the Municipal Code for water-efficient and drought-tolerant plants that require minimal 
irrigation.. 

 
 The Project is not expected to substantially reduce groundwater supply serviced by CVWD 

because its annual water demand accounts for less than one percent of the Water District’s 
annual water supply as projected by the Urban Water Management Plan. Additionally, 
consistent with the parcel’s intended land use under the City General Plan, the Project would 
not result in an unexpected water demand outside the UWMP when determining whether 
CVWD current and project water supply would adequately, and reliability meet future water 
demands in accordance with projected City buildout, since the UMWP is based on land use 
designations. As such, the Project would not limit or decrease CVWD’s potential to supply 
sufficient potable water to current and future users. Less than significant impacts to 
groundwater supply would occur.  

 
c.i) LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT: The proposed on site drainage system includes 

swales, sidewalk and gutter, and two underground storage basins as detailed in Question (a) 
of this Section. The property’s drainage improvements are designed to follow the property’s 
existing drainage pattern that drains southwest to northeast. A Project-specific drainage study 
was prepared to assess the design's compliance with City development standards for storm 
drainage. The report concluded that the Project adequately retains and manages a 100-year 
storm in 1-hour, 3, 6, and 24-hour durations. Therefore, no runoff would occur and, in turn, no 
soil erosion from water would result from the property’s surface runoff. Additionally, the 
property will include impervious surfaces such as building foundations, paved sidewalks, 
asphalt parking area, as well as landscape, all of which stabilize the soil and reduce the 
probability for soil erosion to occur. The risk for soil erosion to significantly affect the site is 
minimized by stabilizing improvements. As such, less than significant impacts are anticipated.  

 

 
16  Table 4-10 in the 2020 Coachella Valley Regional Urban Water Management Plan, July 2021.  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  71 

c.ii) LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT: The site is currently undeveloped and unoccupied. 
There are no existing flood control improvements within the 5± acre parcel.  Implementation 
of the proposed improvements would reduce off-site runoff crossing the site and adequately 
retain and manage on- and off-site storm runoff as determined by the Project-specific drainage 
study. For these reasons, the Project would not result in an increase in surface runoff and 
thus, would not increase the susceptibility for flooding on or within the vicinity of the Project 
site. Less than significant impacts would occur.  

 
c.iii, iv) NO IMPACT: As discussed in Question c.i, the Project drainage system is designed to 

withstand a 100-year storm, meaning runoff on site would be adequately managed to prevent 
runoff from flooding the site and adjacent properties. The proposed drainage system will retain 
the mandated storm flow and thus, no stormwater flow will be exceeded. As such, no impacts 
are anticipated.  

 
d) NO IMPACT: The site is not located near the ocean or a body of water where tsunamis or 

seiche zones are a concern. According to the Project-specific drainage study, the property is 
located within a FEMA Zone X and thus, designated as an area of minimal flood hazard with 
an annual 0.2% chance of flooding. Therefore, flood hazards due to a tsunami, seiche, or 
storm event have no probability of occurring at or near the site. No impacts would occur.   

 
e) LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT: As analyzed in Question (a) of this Section, 

implementation of the Project would not substantially interfere or prevent the CVWD from 
meeting its services area water demand now or in the foreseeable future. Nor would the 
Project prevent the CVWD from implementing a recycling system or groundwater basin 
recharge system. The Project’s operation would control polluted stormwater runoff. At no 
point, would the Project limit the groundwater management plan from being implemented. As 
such, potential impacts to the effectiveness of the 2020 UWMP will be less than significant.  

 
10.3 Mitigation Measures:  
 
None required. 
  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  72 

11 - Land Use and Planning  

LAND USE AND URBAN 
PLANNING – Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

with Mitigation 
Incorporation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

a) Physically divide an established 
community?     

b) Cause a significant 
environmental impact due to a 
conflict with any land use plan, 
policy, or regulation adopted for 
the purpose of avoiding or 
mitigating an environmental 
effect? 

    

Sources: City of Rancho Mirage General Plan, 2017; Project Material; Google Earth Pro.  
 

11.1 Setting  
 

According to the City’s 2017 General Plan Table 2, the citywide developed area constitutes 
predominantly of open space (47%), followed by residential properties (35%), commercial (9%), 
and institutional facilities (2%). The Project site’s parcel is designated High Density Residential 
(R-H) with an Affordable Housing Overlay (AHO). The R-H designation allows for smaller, single-
family and multi-family attached dwelling units with a density capacity between 5 to 9 du/ac. The 
AHO allows for the creative and efficient development of affordable housing projects, providing 
density bonuses of up to 28 units per acre and modified development standards, as identified in 
the City’s certified Housing Element and implemented through Chapter 17.22 of the City’s 
Municipal Code.  

The development of affordable housing, as the Project proposes, is compatible with the urbanized 
surroundings that include commercial/retail shops, main corridors with access to public 
transportation, schools, and residential communities. Within the Project area, undeveloped, 
vacant parcels consisting of native vegetation and sandy soil are located to the north, south, east 
and west. These parcels are zoned for High Density Residential/Affordable Housing Overlay 
(north and south), Commercial/retail (east), and Open Space-Public Parks (west). Currently, on 
the north side of the site is the Monterey Marketplace Shopping Center and Rancho Mirage Dog 
Park, to the south and west are single-family residential development, and to the east is the Desert 
Gateway commercial center beyond Monterey Avenue.  

The Project will be subject to the City’s General Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and regulations 
applicable to a parcel with a R-H/AHO designation.  
 
11.2 Discussion of Impacts:  
 
a) NO IMPACT: The subject property is currently undeveloped, vacant desert land. No prior 

development has occurred, and no existing residential structures occupy the site. Surrounding 
the Project site are commercial/retail shopping centers to the north and east, and single family 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  73 

residential properties to the south and west. Neighboring residential properties and 
communities are expected to continue operating independently from the Project.  Therefore, 
the Project will not adversely impact an existing residential community given the relative 
distance and status of operation of each property. The Project will not physically divide an 
established community. No impacts to existing communities would occur. 
  

b) NO IMPACT: Under the City’s General Plan Land Use/Zoning Map, the site is designated 
High Density Residential with an Affordable Housing Overlay. The Project aligns with the City 
intended land use as it proposes a multi-family residential development in which all but one 
of the available units will be utilized by very low to low-income households for affordable 
housing. To maximize density capacity while maintaining appropriate living conditions, the 
AHO zone allows for modified development standards and density bonuses, up to 28 units 
per acre, as identified in the City’s certified Housing Element. The Project’s proposed 
standards are consistent with the AHO zone and will be subject to review and approval by the 
City Council.  

 
In addition to development standards, the Project will be required to comply with the City’s 
regulations including, but not limited to, safety standards and building codes. The Project will 
comply with all applicable federal, state, and local policies and ordinance.  For this reason, no 
impacts to the environment due to a conflict in land use or policy would occur as it related to 
the Project’s design, construction, and operation.  

 
11.3 Mitigation Measures:  
 
None required. 
  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  74 

 
12 - Mineral Resources 

MINERAL RESOURCES – Would the 
project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

with Mitigation 
Incorporation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

a) Result in the loss of availability of a 
known mineral resource that would be 
of value to the region and the 
residents of the state? 

    

b) Result in the loss of availability of a 
locally important mineral resource 
recovery site delineated on a local 
general plan, specific plan or other 
land use plan? 

    

Sources: Rancho Mirage General Plan, 2017; Rancho Mirage General Plan Environmental Report 
Element, 2005.  
 

12.1 Setting 
 
Mineral resources in Rancho Mirage are limited within the City’s Sphere of Influence (SOI) and 
consist of sand and gravel deposits, collectively known as aggregate. Aggregate is used 
extensively in the production of construction materials such as asphalt concrete.  

The Surface of Mining and Reclamation Act of 1975 (SMARA) has developed mineral land 
classifications maps to protect and develop mineral resources. According to the SMARA, four 
land use classifications are used to identify an area’s sensitivity for mineral resources:  
 

Mineral Resource Zone 1 (MRZ-1): This land use classification refers to areas where 
enough geological information is available, or it may be inferred that there is a low 
likelihood for mineral resources to be present.  
Mineral Resource Zone 2 (MRZ-2): This land use classification refers to areas where 
enough geological information is available, or it may be inferred that there is a high 
likelihood for mineral resources to be present.  
Mineral Resource Zone 3 (MRZ-3): This land use classification refers to areas where there 
is not enough geological information to determine its significance of mineral resources. 
Additional information about the quality of minerals in the area would upgrade the areas 
to an MRZ-2 or downgrade the areas to an MRZ-1.  

Mineral Resource Zone 4 (MRZ-4): This land use classification refers to areas where there 
is not enough geological information to make a determination for either MRZ-1 or MRZ-2.  

 
According to the City’s 2005 General Plan EIR, the City is classified as MRZ-1. There are no 
active mineral extraction sites in operation within the City planning area.  
 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  75 

12.2 Discussion of Impacts:  
 
a-b) NO IMPACT: The majority of Rancho Mirage’s developed areas, including the Project site, 

are classified as MRZ-1. As such, the probability of locally important mineral deposits 
occurring within the property or in proximity is considered very low. Additionally, the Project 
site is designated for residential use which does not allow for mining or mineral extraction. 
The development of the Project is not expected to result in the loss of mineral resources. 
Therefore, no impacts will occur.  

 
12.3 Mitigation Measures:  
 
None required. 
  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  76 

13 - Noise  

NOISE – Would the project result in: 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

with Mitigation 
Incorporation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

a) Generation of a substantial 
temporary or permanent increase in 
ambient noise levels in the vicinity of 
the project in excess of standards 
established in the local general plan 
or noise ordinance, or applicable 
standards of other agencies? 

    

b) Generation of excessive 
groundborne vibration or 
groundborne noise levels? 

    

c) For a project located within the 
vicinity of a private airstrip or an 
airport land use plan or, where such a 
plan has not been adopted, within two 
miles of a public airport or public use 
airport, would the project expose 
people residing or working in the 
project area to excessive noise 
levels? 

    

Sources: City of Rancho Mirage General Plan, 2017; Rancho Mirage General Plan Environmental Impact 
Report, 2005; Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis in the City of Rancho Mirage, Urban 
Crossroads, January 2025 (Appendix H).  
 

13.1 Setting 
 

Noise 
Noise is defined as sound that is undesirable and interferes with daily life. For Rancho Mirage, 
the main source of noise stems from traffic along Interstate-10 (I-10), as well as regional roadways 
including Highway-111 and arterials, and to a lesser extent, the Southern Pacific Railroad and the 
Palm Springs International Airport.  
 

Traffic noise along I-10 generally depends on the volume of traffic, the percentage of trucks, 
average traffic speed, and conditions of the roadway. I-10 noise level is projected to measure 85 
dBA CNEL17 Within the City’s northern region, nearest to I-10, traffic noise at a range between 60 
and 65 dBA is projected.18 Arterial roadways in Rancho Mirage including Monterey Avenue, Dinah 
Shore Drive, and Bob Hope Drive, currently range between 71 dBA to 79 dBA. To minimize the 
exposure to extensive noise, the City General Plan assigns land use according to the land use 

 
17  Rancho Mirage General Plan, Environmental Impact Report, 2005.  
18  Rancho Mirage General Plan, Future Noise Contours, Exhibit 18, 2017.  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  77 

compatibility with the existing ambient noise. As such, sensitive land uses such as residential, 
schools, hospitals, and outdoor recreational spaces are generally within areas where existing 
noise levels are consistent with the City’s noise standard of 65 dBA CNEL.    

The Southern Pacific Railroad line located along I-10 and north of Rancho Mirage, contributes to 
the City’s local ambient noise level but not extensively, given that trains pass only periodically and 
have a limited duration. The Palm Springs International Airport located northeast of Rancho 
Mirage also contributes a minimal portion to the City’s ambient noise level considering that no 
portion of the City is located within the airport’s noise corridor and the airport’s Master Plan 
imposes limitations to the overflight in Rancho Mirage.  
 
Vibration 
Rancho Mirage does not have vibration thresholds established in the City General Plan or City 
Municipal Code. Therefore, the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) construction 
related vibration thresholds are used to establish impacts on the Project.  
 

A noise and vibration analysis report was prepared for the Project by Urban Crossroads in January 
2025 (Appendix H). The report characterizes current ambient noise levels and evaluates the 
future exterior noise environment from construction and stationary sources during long-term 
operation, and vibration impacts during construction for their potential to cause adverse changes 
to the existing ambient environment. The following analysis is based on the report’s findings.   

 

13.2 Discussion of Impacts:  
 

a) LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT: To evaluate the potential impacts to the local ambient 
environment, existing noise levels within the Project area were measured by Urban Crossroad 
Inc. on May 23, 2024. The noise level is measured in the unit of energy average sound levels 
(Leq) which describes noise over a specified period by simplifying the cumulative effect as if it 
were a constant sound during the same period. Table 14 list noise levels identified during 
daytime (7 am to 6 pm), evening (6 pm to 10 pm) and nighttime (10 pm to 7 am) at each 
measuring location near sensitive receptors located in proximity to the property, which consist 
of single-family residential units. A map of the monitoring locations is provided in Appendix H.   

  
Table 14 

Ambient Noise Level Measurements 
Location Description Energy Average Noise Level  

(dBA Leq) 
Daytime Evening Nighttime 

L1 Located northwest of the Project site 
near a residence at 102 Clear Water Way 55.5 56.8 54.4 

L2 
Located west of the Project site near the 
Unitarian Universalist Church at 72425 
Via Vail 

51.9 54.4 51.5 

L3 
Located west of the Project site near the 
Rancho Mirage Dog Park at 34100 Key 
Largo Avenue 

55.5 56.8 54.4 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  78 

Table 14 
Ambient Noise Level Measurements 

Location Description Energy Average Noise Level  
(dBA Leq) 

Daytime Evening Nighttime 
L4 Located northwest of the Project site 

near a residence at 34620 Via Josefina 53.1 58.0 54.1 

L5 Located northwest of the Project site 
near a residence at 72740 Via Florencia 53.9 59.0 51.5 

Source: Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis in the City of Rancho Mirage, 
Urban Crossroads, January 2025 (Appendix H).  

 
 To accurately project noise emissions related to the Project’s development, project-specific 

inputs were provided in the modeling software so as to account for the development’s off-site 
noise generation from traffic and on-site noise generation from residential land use.  

 
 Construction Noise 

The Project’s construction is assumed to occur over five phases including site preparation, 
grading, building construction, paving, and architectural coating. Construction related noise at 
each phase would occur as a result of on-site use of heavy construction machinery. However, 
the use of construction equipment on-site is expected to have a limited effect on the existing 
noise level considering the equipment is highly mobile, thus noise disturbance will not be 
focused on one area where sensitive land uses such as neighboring residential property can 
be substantially affected. Additionally, construction activities will be limited to less sensitive 
daytime hours and no activities will occur on Sundays or national holidays.  
 
Table 15 summarizes the report’s findings on construction noise related to the Project’s 
development and Table 16 evaluates the Project’s noise impact to sensitive receptors during 
construction. Construction related noise in addition to existing ambient noise levels will not 
cause adverse effects to receptors. As such, less than significant impact from construction 
noise is anticipated in connection to the property’s development.   

 
Table 15 

Construction Equipment Noise Level Summary 
Receiver 
Location1 

Construction Noise Levels (dBA Leq) 
Site 

Preparation Grading Building 
Construction Paving Architectural 

Coating 
Highest 
Levels2 

R1 49.6 52.6 50.6 52.6 46.6 52.6 
R2 49.0 52.0 50.0 52.0 46.0 52.0 
R3 54.4 57.4 55.4 57.4 51.4 57.4 
R4 50.4 53.4 51.4 53.4 47.4 53.4 
R5 52.0 55.0 53.0 55.0 49.0 55.0 

1 Noise receiver are shown in Exhibit 11-A of the Noise and Vibration Report 
2 Construction noise level calculations based on distance from the construction activity, which is 
measured from the Project site boundary to the nearest receiver locations. 
Source: Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis in the City of Rancho Mirage, Urban 
Crossroads, January 2025 (Appendix H). 

  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  79 

Table 16 
Construction Noise Level Compliance 

Receiver Location1 
Construction Noise Level (dBA Leq) 

Highest Construction 
Noise Levels2 Threshold3 Threshold 

Exceeded?4 

R1 52.6 80 No 
R2 52.0 80 No 
R3 57.4 80 No 
R4 53.4 80 No 
R5 55.0 80 No 

1 Noise receiver are shown in Exhibit 11-A of the Noise and Vibration Report 
2 Highest construction noise level calculations based on distance from the construction noise 
source activity to the nearest receiver location 
3 Federal Transit Administration, Transit Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment Manual, 
construction noise level thresholds 
4 Do the estimated Project construction noise level exceed the construction noise level threshold? 
Source: Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis in the City of Rancho Mirage, Urban 
Crossroads, January 2025 (Appendix H). 

  
Operational Noise 
Operation related noise will be generated both on- and off-site. On-site noise will stem from 
the operation of machinery including HVAC systems, on-site traffic noise, and noise from 
residential activities. Off-site noise will largely stem from increased vehicle use to and from 
the site and along neighboring corridors. The following analysis evaluates noise sources 
related to the Project and determines the extent of potential impact to nearby sensitive 
receptors.  
 
On-Site Noise 
Traffic noise generated within the property line was modeled and compared to the City’s Land 
Use compatibility threshold for unmitigated exterior noise levels at or below 70 dBA CNEL. 
Based on the results, the Project will not exceed the City’s 70 CNEL threshold for exterior 
noise and thus, residential buildings proposed on-site would not be adversely impacted by 
excessive exterior noise levels.  
 

Table 17 
Exterior Noise Levels From Traffic 

Receiver 
Location Roadway 

Unmitigated 
Noise Level 
(dBA CNEL) 

Land Use 
Compatibility 

Exterior 
Noise Level 
Threshold 

Threshold 
Exceeded? 

BLDG 1 Via Vail 55.6 Normally Acceptable 70 No 
BLDG 7 Via Vail 55.4 Normally Acceptable 70 No 

Source: Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis in the City of Rancho Mirage, 
Urban Crossroads, January 2025 (Appendix H). 

 
Interior noise levels are a reduction of exterior noise levels through building construction. 
Typical building construction will provide a noise reduction (NR) of approximately 12 dBA with 
“windows-open” and a minimum 25 dBA noise reduction with “windows-closed”. The Project’s 
interior noise levels were modeled under the assumption of “windows-open” to determine 
whether on-site traffic noise would exceed the City’s interior noise standard of 45 dBA for 
residential land uses. As shown below, the 45 dBA interior noise threshold will not be 
exceeded by the Project’s on-site traffic noise.  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  80 

 
Table 18 

Interior Noise Level per Residential Floor 

Receiver 
Location 

Noise 
Level at 
Facade1 

Required 
Interior 
Noise 

Reduction2 

Estimated 
Interior 
Noise 

Reduction3 

Upgrade 
Windows4 

Recommended 
STC 

Interior 
Noise 
Level5 

First Floor 
BLDG 1 55.2 10.2 12.0 No 27 43.2 
BLDG 7 55.0 10.0 12.0 No 27 43.0 

Second Floor 
BLDG 1 54.6 9.6 12.0 No 27 42.6 
BLDG 7 54.4 9.4 12.0 No 27 42.4 

Third Floor 
BLDG 1 54.6 9.6 12.0 No 27 42.6 
BLDG 7 54.4 9.4 12.0 No 27 42.4 

1 Exterior noise level at the façade with a windows closed condition requiring a means of mechanical 
ventilation (e.g. air conditioning) 
2 Noise reduction required to satisfy the 45 dBA CNEL interior noise standard 
3 A minimum of 25 dBA noise reduction is assumed with standard building construction; 12 dBA assumed 
open windows 
4 Does the required interior noise reduction trigger upgraded with a minimum STC rating of greater than 27? 
5 Estimates interior noise level with minimum STC rating for all windows 
Source: Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis in the City of Rancho Mirage, Urban Crossroads, 
January 2025 (Appendix H). 

 
On-site noise impacts to nearby sensitive receptors was determined to include roof-top air 
conditioning units, trash enclosure activities, and parking lot activities. Noise levels from these 
sources were derived from noise measurements from similar types of activities, or taken from 
manufacturers’ specification sheets, to represent the noise levels expected with the 
development of the Project. The Project’s operational noise levels were then compared to the 
City’s noise standards to determine if at any point during a 24-hour period the Project would 
exceed noise thresholds for daytime, evening, and nighttime hours. Table 19 summarizes the 
findings and shows that the Project will not exceed noise level thresholds at any nearby 
receiver location. 
 

Table 19 
Project Operational Compliance 

Receiver 
Location1 

Project Operational 
Noise Levels (dBA Leq)2 

Noise Level Standards 
(dBA Leq)3 

Threshold Exceeded?4 

Day Eve. Night Day Eve. Night Day Eve. Night 
R1 27.1 27.1 25.5 55 50 45 No No No 
R2 26.3 26.3 24.8 55 50 45 No No No 
R3 31.8 31.8 30.3 55 50 45 No No No 
R4 27.0 27.0 25.2 55 50 45 No No No 
R5 29.6 29.6 28.1 55 50 45 No No No 

1 See Exhibit 9-A in the Noise and Vibration Report for the receiver locations 
2 Proposed Project operational noise level calculations included in Appendix 10.1 of the Report 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  81 

Table 19 
Project Operational Compliance 

Receiver 
Location1 

Project Operational 
Noise Levels (dBA Leq)2 

Noise Level Standards 
(dBA Leq)3 

Threshold Exceeded?4 

Day Eve. Night Day Eve. Night Day Eve. Night 
3 City of Rancho Mirage exterior noise level standards by land use as shown in Table A-1 in the City 
Municipal Code 
4 Do the estimated Project operational noise source activities exceed the noise level standard? 
“Day” = 7 am to 6 pm”; “Evening” = 6 pm to 10 pm; “Night” = 10 pm to 7 am.  
Source: Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis in the City of Rancho Mirage, Urban Crossroads, 
January 2025 (Appendix H). 
 

Traffic Noise   
 Traffic noise levels were measured within fourteen different roadway segments located in 

proximity to the Project site. Additionally, modeling was performed to compare the noise levels 
with and without the Project at different stages including future 2026 ambient growth, and 
2026 ambient growth plus cumulative effects. Table 20 summarizes exterior traffic noise levels 
for 2026 without the Project and Table 21 summarizes noise levels assuming Project buildout. 
The noise level is measured on a scale of community noise equivalent level (CNEL) which 
increases noise sensitivity up to 10 dBA to account for perception of noise as double the 
loudness during evening and nighttime hours. 

 
Table 20 

Estimate Nois Level Contours without the Project in 2026 

ID Road Segment 
CNEL at 

Receiving 
Land Use 

(dBA) 

Distance to Contour from 
Centerline (ft) 

70 dBA 
CNEL 

65 dBA 
CNEL 

60 dBA 
CNEL 

1 Dinah Shore Dr w/o Key Largo Ave 66.5 35 76 163 
2 Dinah Shore Dr e/o Key Largo Ave 66.9 37 80 173 
3 Dinah Shore Dr e/o George 

Montgomery 
66.2 34 72 156 

4 Dinah Shore Dr e/o Shoppers Ln 66.6 35 76 164 
5 Dinah Shore Dr e/o Monterey Ave 67.4 40 86 186 
6 Via Vail w/o Key Largo Ave 53.0 2 5 10 
7 Key Lago Ave s/o Dinah Shore Dr 52.8 2 5 10 
8 Key Largo Ave s/o Via Vail 47.5 1 2 4 
9 Mirriam Wy n/o Dinah Shore Dr 55.9 3 7 16 
10 George 

Montgomery 
s/o Dinah Shore Dr 50.3 1 3 7 

11 Shoppers Ln n/o Dinah Shore Dr 57.1 4 9 19 
12 Shoppers Ln s/o Dinah Shore Dr 52.2 2 4 9 
13 Monterey Ave n/o Dinah Shore Dr 71.4 74 159 343 
14 Monterey Ave s/o Dinah Shore Dr 70.8 68 147 316 

Source: Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis in the City of Rancho Mirage, 
Urban Crossroads, January 2025 (Appendix H). 

 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  82 

Table 21 
Estimate Nois Level Contours with the Project in 2026 

ID Road Segment 
CNEL at 

Receiving 
Land Use 

(dBA) 

Distance to Contour from 
Centerline (ft) 

70 dBA 
CNEL 

65 dBA 
CNEL 

60 dBA 
CNEL 

1 Dinah Shore Dr w/o Key Largo Ave 66.5 35 76 164 
2 Dinah Shore Dr e/o Key Largo Ave 66.9 38 82 177 
3 Dinah Shore Dr e/o George 

Montgomery 
66.2 34 74 159 

4 Dinah Shore Dr e/o Shoppers Ln 66.6 36 78 168 
5 Dinah Shore Dr e/o Monterey Ave 67.4 40 86 186 
6 Via Vail w/o Key Largo Ave 53.0 2 5 10 
7 Key Lago Ave s/o Dinah Shore Dr 52.8 3 6 12 
8 Key Largo Ave s/o Via Vail 47.5 1 2 4 
9 Mirriam Wy n/o Dinah Shore Dr 55.9 3 7 16 
10 George 

Montgomery 
s/o Dinah Shore Dr 50.3 1 3 7 

11 Shoppers Ln n/o Dinah Shore Dr 57.1 4 9 19 
12 Shoppers Ln s/o Dinah Shore Dr 52.2 2 4 9 
13 Monterey Ave n/o Dinah Shore Dr 71.4 74 160 345 
14 Monterey Ave s/o Dinah Shore Dr 70.8 68 147 317 

Source: Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis in the City of Rancho Mirage, 
Urban Crossroads, January 2025 (Appendix H). 

 
 The data indicate that the Project would result in an increase of noise contours in certain 

roadway segments, but that noise levels perceived by surrounding land uses would remain 
the same as without Project development. According to the threshold of significance related 
to off-site noise generated by a project, a project will cause adverse effects near sensitive 
land uses if off-site noise increases by 3 dBA CNEL or more. Considering the proposed 
Project would not increase the noise perceived by sensitive land uses beyond the range 
expected with the City’s ambient growth, sensitive receptors would experience a less than 
significant noise level increase due to unmitigated Project-related traffic noise levels.  

 
 In all, the proposed Project will not exceed significant noise thresholds during construction or 

operation. Noise levels generated on-site and off-site will adhere to applicable standards and 
thus minimize the potential for significant impact to nearby sensitive receptors, those being 
single-family residential units to the south, and west of the property. The Project’s noise 
impacts are therefore expected to be less than significant.  

 
b) LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT: Groundborne vibration is generally caused by the use 

of heavy construction equipment. The duration and amplitude of vibration can vary widely 
depending on type of equipment and purpose for which it is used. Equipment typical for high 
rate impact vibration includes jackhammer, hoe rams, and certain types of pavement 
breakers.  

 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  83 

Table 22 
Vibration Source Levels for Construction Equipment 

Equipment PPV (in/sec) at 25 feet 
Small bulldozer 0.003 
Jackhammer 0.035 

Loaded Trucks 0.076 
Large bulldozer 0.089 
Vibratory Roller 0.210 

Source: California Department of Transportation and Construction 
Vibration Guidance Manual, April 2020.  

 
 The Project site is currently a vacant, undeveloped parcel. Construction phases for the 

Project’s development will include site preparation, grading, building construction, paving, and 
architectural coating. Any construction equipment used on-site will be required to comply with 
the Caltrans vibration threshold of 0.3 inch-per-second PPV for structures and 0.2 inch-per-
second PPV for human annoyance. Construction vibration velocity levels are estimated to 
range up to 0.01 PPV (in/sec) and thus fall below the thresholds at all noise-sensitive receiver 
locations. Residential projects in proximity to the Project would therefore experience less than 
significant impacts. Additionally, the vibration levels perceived by receptors is not expected to 
last the entire duration of the site’s construction but rather occur only early in the grading 
process. Therefore, potential impacts would be temporary and short in duration, would be 
below established thresholds, and would result in less than significant impacts to sensitive 
receptors.   

 
Table 23 

Project Construction Vibration Levels 

Location1 
Distance to 

Construction 
Activity (ft)2 

Typical Construction Vibration Levels PPV (in/sec)3 Thresholds 
PPV 

(in/sec)4 

Threshold 
Exceeded?5 Small 

bulldozer 
Jack-

hammer 
Loaded 
Truck 

Large 
bulldozer 

Vibratory 
Roller 

Highest 
Vibration 

Level 
R1 1,275 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.30 No 
R2 1,353 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.30 No 
R3 648 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.30 No 
R4 1,181 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.30 No 
R5 1,025 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.30 No 

1 Receiver are shown in Exhibit 11-A of the Noise and Vibration Report 
2 Distance from receiver building façade to Project construction boundary (Project site boundary) 
3 Based on the Vibration Source Levels of Construction Equipment 
4 Caltrans Transportation and Construction Vibration Guidance Manual, April 2020, Table 19, p. 38 
5 Does the peak vibration exceed the acceptable vibration thresholds?  
Source: Source: Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis in the City of Rancho Mirage, Urban Crossroads, 
January 2025 (Appendix H). 

 
c) NO IMPACT: There are no commercial or private airports in operation within Rancho Mirage. 

The nearest airport is the Palm Springs International Airport, located approximately 6.08 miles 
northeast from the Project. The Project site is not located on or in proximity to the airport’s 
noise contour. As such, noise impacts associated with the operation of the Palm Springs 
International Airport is considered negligible. No impacts will occur.   

 
13.3 Mitigation Measures:  
None required.   



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  84 

14 - Population and Housing  

POPULATION AND HOUSING – 
Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

with Mitigation 
Incorporation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

a) Induce substantial unplanned 
population growth in an area, either 
directly (for example, by proposing 
new homes and businesses) or 
indirectly (for example, through 
extension of roads or other 
infrastructure)? 

    

b) Displace substantial numbers of 
existing people or housing, 
necessitating the construction of 
replacement housing elsewhere? 

    

Sources: City of Rancho Mirage General Plan, Housing Element, updated 2022; California Department 
of Finance, Table 2: E-5 City/County Population and Housing Elements, dated January 2024; U.S. Census 
Bureau, American Community Survey Data, accessed May 2025; Southern California Association of 
Governments, Demographics and Growth Forecast Technical Report, September 2020; Project’s material.  

 
14.1 Setting 
 
According to the Department of Finance, the City of Rancho Mirage is projected to have had a 
population size of 16,992 in 2024.19 At the time of the Housing Element update (2022), the City’s 
population was characterized by its predominant older population, over the age of 55, which 
comprised nearly 70% of the City’s total population. Additionally, the typical household size is 
estimated at 1.8320 with a medium household income of $109,943,.21 The number of occupied 
dwellings is 9,406, with the majority being single-family detached owner-occupied homes, 
according to the City’s General Plan 2021-2029 Housing Element. By 2045, the City is projected 
to have a population size of 25,200.22 

According to the Housing Element of the City General Plan, the Regional Housing Needs 
Assessment (RHNA) generated by the Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) 
for the City is presented in the table below for the 2022 to 2029 planning period.  

 

 
19  California Department of Finance, Table 2: E-5 City/County Population and Housing Estimates, dated 

January 2024. 
20  California Department of Finance, Table 2: E-5 City/County Population and Housing Estimates, dated 

January 2024. 
21  United States Census Bureau, American Community Survey Data: Rancho Mirage, Table S1901, 

https://data.census.gov/table/ACSST5Y2023.S1901?g=160XX00US0659500, accessed May 2025.   
22  Southern California Association of Governments, Demographics and Growth Forecast Technical 

Report, September 2020.  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  85 

Table 24 
Regional Housing Need Allocation, 2022 to 2029 

Income Category Number of Units 
Extremely Low Income 215 

Very Low Income 215 
Low Income 318 

Moderate Income 328 
Above Moderate Income 670 

TOTAL 1,746 
Source: Consultation with the City of Rancho Mirage, Planning Department, April 
2025 

 

14.2 Discussion of Impacts:  
 

a) LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT: The Project includes seven permanent multi-family 
residential buildings, as well as complementary outdoor amenities. The Project site is a 
subdivision of a larger City-owned parcel, 50± acres in size, planned for park and affordable 
housing development. The Project proposes to develop a total of 150 units, 149 of which will 
be used for affordable living. The Project aligns with the City’s intended land use and strategy 
to meet affordable housing needs consistent with the City General Plan and thus is included 
in the City’s projected build out and population growth. 

 
 The Project proposes the extension of Via Vail, currently classified as “local roadway”, to 

provide direct access to the property. Once operational, Via Vail will be frequented by 
occupants, guests, and staff. Via Vail will provide direct access to the property and manage 
traffic to and from the property in accordance with the City’s circulation standards. The 
likelihood of the Project indirectly inducing unplanned population growth because of the 
extension of Via Vail is minimal, since it is part of the General Plan’s anticipated circulation 
system.  

 
 Overall, the Project is consistent with the City’s intended land use to increase the availability 

of affordable housing in Rancho Mirage. The Project’s proposal to develop multi-family 
residential buildings and extend Via Vail is therefore unlikely to cause a substantial, unplanned 
population growth in the local area or in the City. For these reasons, impacts are anticipated 
to be less than significant. 

 
b) NO IMPACT: The subject property is vacant, unoccupied desert land. The site has been in its 

natural state since at least 1904. There are no structures or buildings within the property to 
suggest prior development of the site for residential use. The Project’s development will not 
displace existing people or force the relocation of homes.  The Project does not require the 
construction of replacement housing. Therefore, no impacts related to displacement or 
relocation are anticipated.    

 
14.3 Mitigation Measures:  
 
None required. 
  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  86 

15 - Public Services 

PUBLIC SERVICES – Would the 
project:   

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

with 
Mitigation 

Incorporation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

a) Would the project result in 
substantial adverse physical impacts 
associated with the provision of new 
or physically altered governmental 
facilities, need for new or physically 
altered governmental facilities, the 
construction of which could cause 
significant environmental impacts, in 
order to maintain acceptable service 
ratios, response times or other 
performance objectives for any of the 
public services: 

    

i) Fire protection?     
ii) Police protection?     
iii) Schools?     
iv) Parks?     
v) Other public facilities?     

Sources: City of Rancho Mirage General Plan, 2017; Project Material; Google Earth Pro.  
 

15.1 Setting  
 

Fire Protection Services 
Under contract with the County of Riverside, the City outsources fire protection, fire prevention, 
rescue and medical emergency service to the Riverside County Fire Department. A typical 
response time for the Fire Department is 5 minutes, which includes fire fighters and certified 
paramedics on scene. Two fire stations operated by the Riverside County Fire Department are 
located in Rancho Mirage: Station No. 50 and No. 69. 
 
Rancho Mirage Station No. 50 is located at 70801 Highway 111 and is responsible for providing 
fire protection services to the City’s southern portion. The Station is equipped with one medic 
engine including a fire truck and ambulance and staffed with two firefighters and one 
firefighter/paramedic at all times of the day.  
 
Rancho Mirage Station No. 69 is located at 7175 General Ford Drive and is responsible for 
covering the northern portion of Rancho Mirage. Equipment at this station includes one medic 
engine and one medic unit. A total of three firefighters and two firefighters/paramedics are on duty 
24 hours, 7 days a week. 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  87 

 
In addition to the two fire stations located in Rancho Mirage, the Riverside County Fire Department 
operates five other fire stations in proximity to Rancho Mirage, in Thousand Palms, Palm Desert, 
Indian Wells, and North Bermuda Dunes, which would assist the City in the event of a major 
incident.  
 
Police Protection Services 
The Riverside County Sheriff’s Department provides police protection to the City under a service 
contract. The County operates one police station at 73705 Gerald Ford Drive in Palm Desert. The 
Palm Desert police station services both the city of Palm Desert and Rancho Mirage. The station 
is staffed with 10 dedicated police personnel, 19 patrol deputies, and 4 non-dedicated deputies 
aided in patrol. Police response time can vary significantly, depending on the location of patrol 
cars at the time of the call. The average emergency response time for Priority 1 calls is 5.06 
minutes.23 
 
Schools 
The Palm Springs Unified School District (PSUSD) and Desert Sands Unified School District 
(DSUSD) provide public school services to Rancho Mirage.  
The PSUSD operates an elementary school and a high school in the City. Rancho Mirage 
Elementary School is located at 42985 Indian Trail and is an educational facility for class levels K 
to 6 with a student body of 420, as recorded in 2016. Rancho Mirage High School is located at 
31001 Rattler Road and provides service to class levels 9 to 12 for a student population capacity 
of 2,300. Currently students living in the City are required to attend middle school in surrounding 
communities. There are no DSUSD schools in Rancho Mirage. 
 
Parks 
The Parks and Trails Commission maintains and operates the parks and trails for recreational 
needs in the City. Currently the City has 5 parks, 1 located towards the City’s northeastern corner 
and the remaining 4 located towards the western portion, along the Santa Rosa Mountains. 
Additionally, 6 trails are located along the Whitewater Storm Channel and in the Santa Rosa 
Mountains. 
 
Other Public Facilities 
Rancho Mirage City Hall includes the Council chambers, administrative offices and support 
facilities, located at 69825 Highway-111, and the Rancho Mirage Library and Observatory, located 
at 71100 Highway-111. These facilities provide services and amenities for the residents of the 
City. 
 
15.2 Discussion of Impacts:  
 
a.i-v) LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT: 
 

Fire Protection Services 
The Rancho Mirage Station No. 69 will provide fire protection services to the Project site given 
the Station proximity to the Project, approximately 1.14 mile to the southwest. The 
professional staff will be able to access the Project site from Via Vail. The Project site will be 

 
23  Consultation with the Riverside County Sheriff’s Department’s Lieutenant Christopher Ternes , April 

2025. 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  88 

designed according to the City’s safety standards to ensure adequate access and mobility in 
the event of an emergency. 
 
The Project would result in the build out of permanent residential buildings on a previously 
unoccupied and undeveloped parcel. The Project will increase the local population size and 
thus increase the demand for public services relating to fire protection. To reduce the 
probability for adverse effects to the Riverside County Fire Department, the Project will adhere 
to the state and regional fire regulation and safety code. The Fire Marshall will review the site 
plan to ensure Project compliance with all applicable standards. Additionally, the Project will 
be required to Developer Impact Fees to contribute its fair share to the financial cost of 
maintaining and equipping the Fire Station.  
 
The implementation of state and regional codes and payment of mitigation fee assures the 
Project will cause less than significant impact to the availability, response rate, and 
effectiveness of the Riverside County Fire Department. As such, the Fire Department is 
expected to maintain its classification as an Insurance Service Office (ISO) Class 2.    
 
Police Protection Services 
The Palm Desert Sheriff Station, located approximately 1.13 miles southeast from the Project 
site, will provide police services to the property. The professional staff will be able to access 
the Project site from the proposed extension of Via Vail.  
Given the Project will generate population growth, the need for police protection services is 
expected to increase as a result. To reduce potential impacts, the Project will be required to 
pay Developer Impact Fees to contribute to the financial cost of maintaining a well-staffed and 
equipped police department. With these measures in place, the Project’s potential impacts 
are reduced to less than significant levels. 
 
Schools 
The Project is expected to house families which will include school-aged children. The nearest 
school facility to the Project site is approximately 2.82 miles to the northwest. The high school 
has a student population capacity of 2,300 has and currently has 1,491 enrolled students. 
Other schools will accommodate younger children in DSUSD’s system. The Project would be 
required to pay a mitigation fee of $4.79 per square foot of the residential construction to offset 
impacts to schools.24  
 
The development of the Project is not anticipated to exceed the capacity of local schools. The 
payment of the mitigation fee is expected to reduce potential impacts related to the Project’s 
development. Therefore, less than significant impacts are anticipated. 
 
Parks 
There are a number of parks and trails throughout the City’s planning area. The nearest to the 
Project site is the Rancho Mirage Dog Park located at the southeast corner of Via Vail and 
Key Largo Avenue 790 feet northwest from the site. The Project is not expected to cause the 
accelerated physical deterioration of the dog park or any local park since recreational 
amenities such as a swimming pool, playground, garden, and game court will be provided on-
site. The local parks are likely to experience a marginal increase of weekly visitors as a result 

 
24  Palm Springs Unified School District, Developer Fee, https://www.psusd.us/Page/2400, accessed May 

2024.  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  89 

of the Project, but adverse effects related to the increase are expected to be minimal. As such, 
impacts from the proposed development in relation to the physical condition of local parks and 
trails are expected to be less than significant. 
 
Other Public Facilities 
The Rancho Mirage City Hall is located 3.57 miles southwest of the Project. The likelihood of 
the government facility requiring the construction of a new facility as a byproduct to the 
Project’s development is nil. No impacts would result. 

 
15.3 Mitigation Measures:  
 
None required. 

  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  90 

16 - Recreation  

RECREATION – Would the project:  
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

with 
Mitigation 

Incorporation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

a) Would the project increase the use 
of existing neighborhood and regional 
parks or other recreational facilities 
such that substantial physical 
deterioration of the facility would occur 
or be accelerated? 

    

b) Does the project include 
recreational facilities or require the 
construction or expansion of 
recreational facilities, which might 
have an adverse physical effect on the 
environment? 

    

Source: City of Rancho Mirage General Plan, 2017; Project Material; Google Earth Pro.  
 

16.1 Setting 
 
Rancho Mirage consists of five public parks, one located towards the City’s northeastern region 
and the other four located towards the south, along the foothills of the Santa Rosa Mountains. 
The Rancho Mirage Dog Park, located at the southeast corner of Via Vail and Key Largo Avenue 
is the nearest public park to the Project site, approximately 790 feet to the northwest. Additionally, 
the City has six hiking trails, two of which are located along the Whitewater Storm Channel and 
the remaining four located in the Santa Rosa Mountains. Other recreational facilities such as the 
Rancho Mirage Library and Observatory, is located along Highway-111 and approximately 3.70 
miles southwest of the Project property. 
16.2 Discussion of Impacts:  
 
a-b) LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT: On 5± acres of undeveloped desert land, the Project 

proposes the buildout of seven multi-family residential apartment buildings as well as outdoor 
recreational amenities including a playground, swimming pool, game field, and grilling station. 
The Project will increase the local population size and thus the use of regional parks and 
recreational facilities. However, the increase is expected to be minimal given the inclusion of 
recreational amenities on-site. Therefore, potential impacts such as the physical deterioration 
of local recreational spaces are anticipated to be minimal. The Project does not warrant the 
construction or expansion of recreational facilities. As such, impacts to recreational spaces as 
a result of the Project’s development are expected to be less than significant.  

 
16.3 Mitigation Measures:  
 
None required.  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  91 

17 - Transportation 

TRANSPORTATION – Would the 
project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

with Mitigation 
Incorporation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

a) Conflict with a program, plan, 
ordinance or policy addressing the 
circulation system, including transit, 
roadway, bicycle and pedestrian 
facilities? 

    

b) Conflict or be inconsistent with CEQA 
Guidelines § 15064.3, subdivision (b)?     

c) Substantially increase hazards due to 
a geometric design feature (e.g., sharp 
curves or dangerous intersections) or 
incompatible uses (e.g., farm 
equipment)? 

    

d) Result in inadequate emergency 
access?     

Source: City of Rancho Mirage General Plan, 2017; SunLine Transit Agency, Fixed Route Bus Network, 
accessed March 2025; Core Rancho Mirage Traffic Analysis Report, Urban Crossroads, December 2024 
(Appendix I); Core Rancho Mirage Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) Screening Analysis Report, Urban 
Crossroads, November 2024 (Appendix I); Project Material.  

17.1 Setting 
 

Circulation Network 
The circulation network in Rancho Mirage consists of two regional routes including Highway-111 
and Interstate-10, and local corridors varying in street classification dependent on their respective 
connectivity to local areas. In accordance with the City Circulation Plan, there are five street 
classifications which include, but are not limited to major arterials, minor arterials, and major 
collectors.  
 
Major arterials are six-lane divided roadways that are highly trafficked and are main 
thoroughfares. Monterey Avenue, Bob Hope Drive, and Highway-111 are example of major 
arterials. Minor arterials are four-lane divided roadways that typically carry traffic along the 
perimeter of major development. This classification includes Gerald Ford Drive and Frank Sinatra 
Drive. Lastly, major collectors are four lane divided roadways that distribute traffic between low to 
high trafficked corridors. Examples include parts of County Club Drive and Morningside Drive.  
 
These and all corridors within the City planning area are required to operate at a level of service 
(LOS) D or better. + 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  92 

Public Transportation 
The SunLine Transit Agency (STA) provides public transportation services to the City including 
fixed route bus services (SunBus) and on-demand rideshare service (SunRide). STA operates 
eleven bus routes, three of which cross or operate within Rancho Mirage. These SunBus routes 
include Route 1 (West Valley), Route 4, and Route 10 (Commuter Link).25  
 
Non-Motorized Circulation 
The City maintains more than 50 miles of sidewalks, bicycle lanes, golf cart paths, and multi-use 
trails within existing roadways and rights-of-way.  
The Project site, located within a highly urbanized portion of the City’s northeastern region, is 
bound by Key Largo Avenue to the west and Monterey Avenue to the east. Future extension of 
Via Vail to the north and along the property’s eastern boundary is proposed as part of the Project 
buildout. Off-site road improvements include the following:  
 

● Via Vail is proposed as a 2-lane Local Collector extending from the northern property 
boundary to the southern boundary, with an on-street bike lane and sidewalk on the 
corridor’s west side. 
 

From Via Vail, the northern Project access point is proposed as a gated entry point, designed to 
accommodate separate visitors and resident entry lanes, with a minimum 50 foot stacking 
distance. A crosswalk is proposed for north-south crossing on the west of Via Vail and north 
Project access intersection. From Via Vail, the southern Project access point is proposed as a 
restricted gated outbound/exit only. A cross street stop sign is proposed within an outbound 
shared left-right lane. A crosswalk is proposed for north-south crossing on the west of Via Vail 
and south Project access intersection.  
 
17.2 Discussion of Impacts:  
 

a) LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT: Implementation of a residential development within an 
unoccupied parcel would increase the local population size which, in turn, would increase the 
number of vehicles traveling within the City’s circulation system. An increase in single-car 
vehicle use can directly reflect a drop in LOS below acceptable levels.  In order to evaluate 
the Project’s potential impacts to the City’s LOS policy, a traffic analysis was prepared by 
Urban Crossroad for the Project in December 2024 (Appendix I). The analysis incorporates 
the City’s Transportation Analysis Policy and Riverside County’s Transportation Analysis 
Guidelines for Level of Service and Vehicle Miles Traveled.  

  
 Project Traffic Volume 

The report estimates the volume of daily trips generated by the Project once operational. Trip 
rates are based upon trip-generation statistics published in the Institute of Transportation 
Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation, 11th Edition (2021) for affordable housing. As shown in 
Table 26, the Project is anticipated to generate a total of 772 daily trips, 54 of which would 
occur in the morning peak hour and 70 in the evening peak hour.  

 
  

 
25  SunLine Transit Agency, Fixed Route Bus Network, https://infopoint.sunline.org/InfoPoint, accessed 

March 2025. 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  93 

Table 25 
Project Trip Generation Rates 

Land Use ITE LU 
Code Quantity1 AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour Daily 

In Out Total In Out Total 
Affordable 
Housing 223 150 DU 0.10 0.26 0.36 0.27 0.19 0.46 4.81 

 
Table 26 

Project Trip Generation Results 

Land Use ITE LU 
Code Quantity1 AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour Daily 

In Out Total In Out Total 
Affordable 
Housing 223 150 DU 15 39 54 41 29 70 722 

1 DU= Dwelling Unit 
Source: Core Rancho Mirage Traffic Scoping Letter and VMT Screening Scope prepared 
by Urban Crossroads, November 2024.  

 
 Study Area 

The Project study area includes any intersection of “Collector” or higher classification at which 
the proposed Project would add 50 or more peak hour trips. These intersections were 
evaluated for potential traffic inefficiency as a direct result from the Project’s implementation. 
The street intersections are listed in the table below and visually represented in Exhibit 1-2 of 
the traffic report.  

   
Table 27 

Traffic Impact Report Study Area 
# Intersection # Intersection 
1 Key Largo Av/ Dinah Shore Dr 5 Monterey Av/ Dinah Shore Dr 
2 Key Lago Av/ Via Vail 6 Via Vail/ N. Project Access 
3 Miriam Wy-George Montogomery/ 

Dinah Shore Dr 
7 Via Vail/ S. project Access 

4 Shoppers Ln/ Dinah Shore Dr   
 

Existing 2024 Traffic Conditions 
Based on the traffic volume observed during the peak hour conditions using traffic count data 
collected in April 2024, the results show that all interceptions currently operate at acceptable 
LOS during peak hours.  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  94 

Table 28 
Intersection Analysis for Existing Conditions 

# Intersection Traffic 
Control1 

Intersection Approach Lanes2 Delay3 

(secs) 
Level of 
Service Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound 

L T R L T R L T R L T R AM PM AM PM 
1 Key Largo Av/ 

Dinah Shore Dr TS 1 0 1 0 0 0 1 3 0 1 3 0 14.7 8.1 B A 
2 Key Lago Av/ 

Via Vail CSS 0.5 0.5 d 0.5 0.5 d 0 1! 0 0 1! 0 9.0 9.5 A A 
3 Miriam Wy-

George 
Montogomery/ 
Dinah Shore Dr 

TS 1 1 0 1 1 0 2 3 0 1 3 1 4.1 18.8 A B 

4 Shoppers Ln/ 
Dinah Shore Dr TS 1 1 0 2 1 0 2 3 0 1 3 1 24.9 45.4 C D 

5 Monterey Av/ 
Dinah Shore Dr TS 2 3 0 2 3 1>> 2 2 1 2 2 1 34.1 41.7 C D 

6 Via Vail/ N. 
Project Access 

 Future Intersection     

7 Via Vail/ S. 
project Access 

 Future Intersection     
1 TS = Traffic Singal; CSS= Cross-street stop 
2 When a right turn is designated, the lane can either be striped or unstriped. To function as a right turn lane there must be 
sufficient width for right turning vehicles to travel outside the through lanes. 
L= Left; T= Through; R=Right; d= Defacto Right Turn Lanes; 0.5= Shared Lane; 1!= Shared Left/Through/Right lane; >>= 
Free-Right Turn 
3 Per the Highway Capacity Manual (7th Edition), overall average intersections delay and level of service are shown for 
intersections with traffic signal or all way stop control. For intersections with cross street stop control, the delay and level of 
service for the worst individual movement (or movement sharing a single lane) are shown. Delay and level of service is 
calculated using Syncho 12 analysis software.  

 
Project Year 2026 Traffic Volume 
Forecasted traffic conditions assume trip generation based on the proposed land use with buildout by 2026. An ambient growth 
factor of 4.04% (2 percent per year over 2 years, 2024 to 2026) is added to future traffic projections so as to account for the City’s 
regional traffic growth. The results indicate that all intersections will continue to operate within the City’s LOS standard of D or 
better. As such, traffic increases by the Project’s implementation are not expected to have significant impacts to the local circulation 
system.  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  95 

Table 29 
Intersection Analysis at Project Buildout in 2026 Conditions 

# Intersection Traffic 
Control1 

Intersection Approach Lanes2 Delay3 

(secs) 
Level of 
Service Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound 

L T R L T R L T R L T R AM PM AM PM 
1 Key Largo Av/ 

Dinah Shore 
Dr 

TS 1 0 1 0 0 0 1 3 0 1 3 0 15.0 10.1 B B 

2 Key Lago Av/ 
Via Vail CSS 0.5 0.5 d 0.5 0.5 d 0 1! 0 0 1! 0 9.4 10.8 B C 

3 Miriam Wy-
George 

Montogomery/ 
Dinah Shore 

Dr 

TS 1 1 0 1 1 0 2 3 0 1 3 1 4.4 21.4 A C 

4 Shoppers Ln/ 
Dinah Shore 

Dr 
TS 1 1 0 2 1 0 2 3 0 1 3 1 26.0 46.2 C D 

5 Monterey Av/ 
Dinah Shore 

Dr 
TS 2 3 0 2 3 1>> 2 2 1 2 2 1 37.0 46.3 D D 

6 Via Vail/ N. 
Project 
Access 

CSS 0.5 0.5 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7.3 7.3 A A 

7 Via Vail/ S. 
project 
Access 

CSS 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 1! 0 0 0 0 8.7 8.6 A A 

1 TS = Traffic Singal; CSS= Cross-street stop 
2 When a right turn is designated, the lane can either be striped or unstriped. To function as a right turn lane there must be sufficient 
width for right turning vehicles to travel outside the through lanes. 
L= Left; T= Through; R=Right; d= Defacto Right Turn Lanes; 0.5= Shared Lane; 1!= Shared Left/Through/Right lane; >>= Free-Right 
Turn; 1= Improvement 
3 Per the Highway Capacity Manual (7th Edition), overall average intersections delay and level of service are shown for intersections 
with traffic signal or all way stop control. For intersections with cross street stop control, the delay and level of service for the worst 
individual movement (or movement sharing a single lane) are shown. Delay and level of service is calculated using Syncho 12 
analysis software.  

 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  96 

Cumulative Traffic Conditions 
A total of 22 cumulative developments were identified as posing a potential cumulative effect in the local circulation system in 
connection with the Project buildout. Of the 22 cumulative developments, the proposed Via Vail Village project located immediately 
north of the site was included to account for traffic generated within the Project area by a future affordable housing development. 
The ambient growth factor of 4.04 percent was also applied to future cumulative traffic conditions. As shown in Table 30, traffic 
from the proposed Project and other cumulative projects would not reduce LOS below acceptable levels. All intersections will 
continue to operate at a LOS D, at minimum.  

 

Table 30 
Intersection Analysis for Cumulative Conditions 

# Intersection Traffic 
Control1 

Intersection Approach Lanes2 Delay3 

(secs) 
Level of 
Service Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound 

L T R L T R L T R L T R AM PM AM PM 
1 Key Largo Av/ 

Dinah Shore Dr 
TS 1 0 1 0 0 0 1 3 0 1 3 0 18.2 15.8 B B 

2 Key Lago Av/ 
Via Vail 

CSS 0.5 0.5 d 0.5 0.5 d 0 1! 0 0 1! 0 11.8 22.6 B C 

3 Miriam Wy-
George 

Montogomery/ 
Dinah Shore Dr 

TS 1 1 0 1 1 0 2 3 0 1 3 1 6.6 25.0 A C 

4 Shoppers Ln/ 
Dinah Shore Dr 

TS 1 1 0 2 1 0 2 3 0 1 3 1 27.1 46.6 C D 

5 Monterey Av/ 
Dinah Shore Dr 

TS 2 3 0 2 3 1>> 2 2 1 2 2 1 42.1 53.7 D D 

6 Via Vail/ N. 
Project Access 

CSS 0.5 0.5 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7.3 7.5 A A 

7 Via Vail/ S. 
project Access 

CSS 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 1! 0 0 0 0 9.2 9.3 A A 
1 TS = Traffic Singal; CSS= Cross-street stop 
2 When a right turn is designated, the lane can either be striped or unstriped. To function as a right turn lane there must be sufficient width 
for right turning vehicles to travel outside the through lanes. 
L= Left; T= Through; R=Right; d= Defacto Right Turn Lanes; 0.5= Shared Lane; 1!= Shared Left/Through/Right lane; >>= Free-Right Turn; 
1= Improvement 
3 Per the Highway Capacity Manual (7th Edition), overall average intersections delay and level of service are shown for intersections with 
traffic signal or all way stop control. For intersections with cross street stop control, the delay and level of service for the worst individual 
movement (or movement sharing a single lane) are shown. Delay and level of service is calculated using Syncho 12 analysis software.  

 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  97 

 
Conclusion 
Project generated traffic is not expected to cause traffic inefficiencies at any studied 
intersection under projected 2026 conditions or cumulative conditions, both of which account 
for regional traffic growth. All intersections will operate at acceptable LOS at or above an LOS 
D. Although the Project would have limited effects to the local circulation system, the traffic 
report makes the following recommendations as to ensure the buildout of Via Vail achieves 
acceptable peak hour operations with full occupancy of the Project, which have been 
incorporated into Project design.  

 
● The northerly access entry design must accommodate separate visitor and resident entry 

lanes, with minimum 50 ft. stacking distance. A crosswalk should be provided for north-
south crossing on the west leg of the Via Vail and north Project access intersection 

● The southerly access exit design is recommended to be modified to provide a minimum 
25 ft spacing between exit gate and stop bar. A cross street sign control is recommended 
with one outbound share left-right lane. A crosswalk should be provided for north-south 
crossing on the west leg of the Via Vail and south Project access intersection  

 
The proposed Project would cause less than significant impacts to traffic movement within 
corridors at or near the Project site.  

 
b) LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT: Under CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.3, subdivision 

(b), all lead agencies are required to adopt a VMT analysis approach in evaluating 
transportation impacts for a proposed project. However, prior to a full VMT analysis, projects 
are evaluated for proposed development, urban setting, and trip generation so as to determine 
whether an exemption is appropriate. The VMT screening for the Project (Appendix I) 
concluded that the Project is exempt from a VMT analysis based on the following: 

  
● The Project’s residential component meets the Project Type Screening criteria for 

Affordable Housing by having 100% affordable housing 
● The Project’s affordable housing will allow nearby interactions between Project residents, 

retail jobs, and retail services which will reduce auto VMT by encouraging pedestrian and 
bicycle activity. This determination of non-significant VMT impact is consistent with the 
intent of SB 743.  

● The Project’s location in a low VMT area for residential uses meets the map-based 
screening criteria and no further analysis is necessary.  

 
 Based on these findings, the Project would not be required to prepare a full VMT analysis 

given the development would not cause adverse effects related to an increase in vehicle miles 
traveled by nature of the land use within a highly urbanized area of Rancho Mirage. As such, 
potential impacts will be less than significant.  

 
c, d) LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT: Access points to the proposed Project would be 

provided by two entry/exit points on the north and south side along the property’s frontage 
with Via Vail. Regional access to the site will be provided by Key Largo Avenue, Dinah Shore 
Drive, Monterey Avenue, and Interstate-10. Emergency vehicles will have access to the site 
via Key Largo and Via Vail. The design of the corridor will occur in accordance with the City’s 
standards for a local roadway and other standards pursuant to the City Municipal Code. The 
design of the access points would be reviewed by the Police and Fire Departments as well as 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  98 

the City Engineer to assure adequate sight lines and turning movements. As such, the Project 
would not increase hazards due to geometric design features or provide inadequate 
emergency access.  

 
17.3 Mitigation Measures:  
 
None required. 
 
  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  99 

18 - Tribal Cultural Resources  
TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES – 
Would the project cause a substantial 
adverse change in the significance of a 
tribal cultural resource, defined in 
Public Resources Code § 21074 as 
either a site, feature, place, cultural 
landscape that is geographically 
defined in terms of the size and scope 
of the landscape, sacred place,  or 
object with cultural value to a California 
Native American tribe, and that is: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

with Mitigation 
Incorporation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

i) Listed or eligible for listing in the 
California Register of Historical 
Resources, or in a local register of 
historical resources as defined in Public 
Resources Code section5020.1(k), or 

    

ii) A resource determined by the lead 
agency, in its discretion and supported 
by substantial evidence, to be 
significant pursuant to criteria set forth 
in subdivision (c) of Public Resources  
Code § 5024.1. In applying the criteria 
set forth in subdivision (c) of Public 
Resource Code § 5024.1, the lead 
agency shall consider the significance 
of the resource to a California Native 
American tribe. 

    

Source: City of Rancho Mirage General Plan, 2017; California Natural Resources Agency, Coachella 
Valley Mountains Conservancy Returns Ancestral Land to the Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians, 
October 2024; Historical/Archaeological Resources Survey Report for Assessor’s Parcel Number 685-
090-016 in City of Rancho Mirage prepared by CRM TECH, July 2024 (Appendix C).  
 

18.1 Setting  
 
The Coachella Valley is the original home of the Takic-speaking Cahuilla people. The Cahuilla 
people are generally divided into three groups based on their geographic settings and include (1) 
Pass Cahuilla of the San Gorgonio Pass-Palm Springs area, (2) Mountain Cahuilla of the San 
Jacinto and Santa Rosa Mountains and the Cahuilla Valley, and (3) Desert Cahuilla of the eastern 
Coachella Valley.  
 
Although geographically divided, these tribes interacted amongst themselves through trade, 
intermarriage, and ceremonies. The Cahuilla depended on the natural landscape for subsidence 
with their diet consisting of seeds, roots, wild fruits and berries, as well as common game animals 
and, when the Holocene Lake Cahuilla was present, fish and waterfowl. The Cahuilla hunted with 
throwing sticks, clubs, nets, traps, and scares, and other common tools included manos and 
metates, mortars and pestles, hammerstones, fire drills, awls, arrow-straighteners, and stone 
knives and scrapers. These lithic tools were made from locally sourced material as well as 
materials procured through trade and travel.  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  100 

Cultivation practices became prominent in the Coachella Valley and helped the Cahuilla share 
the landscape. The planting of palms by the Cahuilla is well-documented as well as their burning 
practices to generate higher yields, control pests, and avoid the accumulation of dead 
undergrowth.  
 
It is estimated the Cahuilla population ranged from 3,600 to as high as 10,000 people covering 
the Coachella Valley and greater southern California territory encompassing over 2,400 square 
miles, prior to European contact. During the 19th century, the Cahuilla population experienced a 
drastic decline as a direct result of European disease, most notably smallpox, for which the Native 
people had no immunity.  
 
Today, Native Americans of Pass or Desert Cahuilla heritage are affiliated with one or more of 
the Indian reservations in and near the Coachella Valley including the Agua Caliente, Morongo, 
Cabazon, Torres Martinez, and Augustine. As part of their reservation land, the Agua Caliente 
Band of Cahuilla Indian is steward to 34,000 acres26 of desert land within regional cities including 
Palm Springs, Cathedral City, and Rancho Mirage. In Rancho Mirage, a total of six Cahuilla 
cultural heritage sites were identified within the City boundary and one in the City’s Sphere of 
Influence (SOI). Other sites are located adjacent or in proximity to the City which include the 
Bradley Canyon Trail, Magnesia Spring, and Edom Hill/Indio Hills.27 
 
Under California Assembly Bill 52, local governments must request consultation with local Native 
tribes prior to considering new proposed development which would trigger a CEQA assessment. 
Specifically, AB 52 updated CEQA guidelines to include a tribal cultural resource section in which 
a project would be categorized as causing significant impact if adverse changes to “tribal cultural 
resources”. Public Resources Code Section 21074 defines “tribal cultural resources” as:  
 

• Sites, features, places, cultural landscapes, sacred places, and objects which cultural 
value to a California Native American tribe that are either of the following: included or 
determined to be eligible for inclusion in the California Register of Historical Resources, 
or included in a local register of historical resources as defined in subdivision (k) of Section 
5020.1 

• A resource determined by the lead agency in its discretion and supported by substantial 
evidence, to be significant pursuant to criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Section 5024.1. 
In applying the criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Section 5024.1 for the purposes of this 
paragraph, the lead agency shall consider the significance of the resource to a California 
Native American tribe.  

• A cultural landscape that meets the criteria of subdivision (a) is a tribal cultural resource 
to the extent that the landscape is geographically defined in terms of the size and scope 
of the landscape.  

• A historical resource described in Section 21084.1, a unique archaeological resource as 
defined in subdivision (g) of Section 21083.2, or a “nonunique archeological resource” as 
defined in subdivision (h) of Section 21083.2 may also be a tribal cultural resource if it 
conforms with the criteria of subdivision (a).  

 
26  California Natural Resources Agency, Coachella Valley Mountains Conservancy Returns Ancestral 

Land to the Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians, https://resources.ca.gov/Newsroom/Page-
Content/News-List/Coachella-Valley-Mountains-Conservancy-Returns-Ancestral-Land-to-the-Agua-
Caliente, October 2024. 

27  City of Rancho Mirage General Plan, Open Space and Conservation Element, 2017.  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  101 

 

18.2 Discussion of Impacts:  
 
a,b) LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT WITH MITIGATION INCORPORATED: A 

historical/archeological resources survey report was prepared to assess the potential for 
cultural and tribal cultural resources within the Project’s 5± acre parcel. A written request for 
records on tribal resources within a 1-mile radius of the Project site was sent to the State of 
California Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) on April 16, 2024. The findings yield 
negative results for recorded tribal cultural resources at or within proximity to the Project. 
Nonetheless, in accordance with the NAHC recommendation, ACBCI was consulted for 
additional information on potential tribal cultural resources in the vicinity. On April 22, 2024, a 
cultural resources analyst with ACBCI tribal historical preservation office, identified the Project 
as located within the tribe’s Traditional Use area and request review of all cultural resource 
documents generated for the Project. Additionally, there was a request for a qualified 
archaeologist to perform a cultural resource inventory with an ACBCI resource monitor, prior 
to any development approval.  

  
 

Although less than significant impacts were identified in the cultural resource report, the 
possibility for tribal resources to occur at the site cannot be completely ruled out, resulting in 
the implementation of Mitigation Measure CUL-1 in Section 5 above. In addition, the City has 
undertaken consultation under AB 52, which began March 21, 2025, and concluding April 23, 
2025. A total of 21 representatives from 11 local tribes were contacted and as of April 14, the 
City received two responses that did not wish to comment and one, Agua Caliente Band of 
Cahuilla Indian Tribe (ACBCI) providing a response to consult. From the consultation meeting, 
ACBCI requested for on-site monitoring to be present at all times in regard to ground 
disturbance activities during the construction process. Additionally, preconstruction training 
will be conducted prior to construction and if the unexpected event human remains were to 
found on-site the necessary measures will be executed as stated in Mitigation Measure TRI-
3. All tribe-specific requirements associated with the protection and conservation of tribal 
cultural resources potentially located within the Project site are listed in Section 18.3 and 
subject to conditional approval.  

 
18.3 Mitigation Measures:  
 

TRI-1 The Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians must be notified a minimum of 30 days 
period to any earth-moving activities including grading, grubbing, trenching, or 
excavations at the site. All earth-moving activities including grading, grubbing, 
trenching, or excavations at the site shall be monitored by a qualified archeologist 
and/or approved Agua Caliente Native American Cultural Resource Monitor(s).  

 

TRI-2 A qualified archeologist and approved Agua Caliente Native American Cultural 
Resource Monitor(s) shall provide preconstruction training for all earthmoving 
construction personnel prior to the stat of any ground-disturbing activities, 
regarding how to recognize the types of Tribal Cultural Resources and/or 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  102 

archaeological resources that may be encountered and to instruct personnel about 
action to be taken in the event of a discovery. Should cultural materials be 
discovered, they shall be recorded and evaluated in the field. The monitors shall 
be prepared to recover artifacts to avoid construction delays but must have the 
power to temporarily halt or divert construction equipment to allow for controlled 
archeological recovery if a substantial cultural deposits is encountered. If artifacts 
are discovered, these shall be cataloged and analyzed. The archeologist and 
monitor, in discussion with the Tribal Historic Preservation Office, shall determine 
and implement the best course of action for the treatment and disposition of the 
artifacts.  

 

TRI-3 In the unexpected event human remains are uncovered during construction 
activities, all construction work taking place within the vicinity of the discovered 
remains must cease and the necessary steps to ensure the integrity of the 
immediate area must be taken. The County Coroner must be notified within 24 
hours of the discovery of human remains. If the remains discovered are determined 
by the Coroner to be of Native American descent, the Coroner shall contact the 
Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) within 24 hours. The NAHC would 
in turn contact the Most Likely Descendant (MLD) would determine further action 
to be taken. The NLD would have 48 hours to access the site and make a 
recommendation regarding disposition of the remains.  

  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  103 

19 - Utilities and Service Systems  

UTILITIES AND SERVICE 
SYSTEMS – Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

with Mitigation 
Incorporation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

a) Require or result in the relocation 
or construction of new or expanded 
water, wastewater treatment or storm 
drainage, electric power, natural gas, 
or telecommunications facilities, the 
construction or relocation of which 
could cause significant environmental 
effects? 

    

b) Have sufficient water supplies 
available to serve the project and 
reasonably foreseeable future 
development during normal, dry and 
multiple dry years? 

    

c) Result in a determination by the 
wastewater treatment provider which 
serves or may serve the project that it 
has adequate capacity to serve the 
projects projected demand in addition 
to the providers existing 
commitments? 

    

d) Generate solid waste in excess of 
state or local standards, or in excess 
of the capacity of local infrastructure, 
or otherwise impair the attainment of 
solid waste reduction goals? 

    

e) Comply with federal, state, and 
local management and reduction 
statues and regulations related to 
solid waste? 

    

Sources: Rancho Mirage General Plan (2017); 2020 Coachella Valley Regional Urban Water Management 
Plan (June 2021); Coachella Valley Water District general information (accessed June 2024); California 
Department of Water Resource, Coachella Valley Groundwater Basin, Indio Subbasin (updated February 
2024).  

19.1 Setting 
 
Domestic Water 
The Coachella Valley Water District (CVWD) provides Rancho Mirage with domestic water drawn 
primarily from the Whitewater River subbasin, underlying the City. The CVWD operates a 
domestic water system consisting of 97 active wells, 2,000 miles of pipeline, and 133 million 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  104 

gallons of storage in 65 enclosed distribution reservoirs. The CVWD service area encompasses 
regional cities including Cathedral City, Rancho Mirage, Palm Desert, Indian Wells, La Quinta, 
and Coachella28 to service a consumer base of 235,000 people. 
 
All domestic water serviced by CVWD comes from groundwater basins. For Rancho Mirage, the 
West Valley portion of the Whitewater River subbasin is the City’s main source of potable water. 
Daily demand for potable water averages 240.9 acre feet (af) and CVWD delivers 87,959 AFY to 
its service area.29 The subbasin has a total storage capacity of 29.8 million af per year.30  
 
In addition to domestic water services, CVWD, in collaboration with the Desert Water Agency 
(DWA), coordinates subbasin recharge efforts to ensure the Whitewater River subbasin’s 
groundwater levels are not reduced substantially with the increased demand for potable water. 
CVWD operates and maintains groundwater recharge facilities in three locations in the Coachella 
Valley, including the Palm Springs (WWR-GRF), the Thomas E. Levy GRF (TEL-GRF), and the 
Palm Desert GRF (PD-GRF). Each facility consists of multiple recharge ponds that collect 
stormwater, natural runoff from nearby mountains, and water imported from the Colorado River 
Aqueduct. These groundwater replenishment efforts ensure the local availability to groundwater 
in the foreseeable future.  
 
Wastewater 
The CVWD also provides wastewater and recycling services to its service area including Rancho 
Mirage. The CVWD wastewater reclamation system consists of approximately 1,100 miles of 
collection piping and 5 wastewater reclamation plants (WRPs). On a daily basis, CVWD’s 
wastewater system collects and treats approximately 17 million gallons per day from nearly 
95,000 individual connections. The main focus of the recycle water system is to provide non-
potable water to regional golf courses and homeowners for irrigation purposes in an attempt to 
conserve the use of domestic water.  
 
Solid Waste 
Burrtec Waste Industries (Burrtec) is contracted by the City to provide solid waste management 
and disposal services to residential, commercial, and institutional properties/facilities. Most of the 
collected waste is transported to the Edom Hill Transfer Station, located at 70100 Edom Hill Road 
in Cathedral City. The landfill is a transfer station indicating that the waste will be processed at a 
local point before its final disposal site. The Edom Hill transfer station has a maximum permitted 
throughput of 3,500 tons per day and permitted capacity of 17,777 cubic yard for general waste 
such as agricultural, construction, food, green materials, industrial, metals, and the like.31 

 
28  Coachella Valley Water District, CVWD Water Map, http://www.cvwd.org/333/CVWD-Map, accessed 

June 2024. 
29  Coachella Valley Water District, Domestic Water, https://www.cvwd.org/161/Domestic-Water, 

accessed June 2024. 
30  California Department of Water Resource, Coachella Valley Groundwater Basin, Indio Subbasin, 

updated February 2004.  
31  California Department of Recycle, Solid Waste Information System Facility/Site Activity Details for 

Edom Hill Transfer Station, 
https://www2.calrecycle.ca.gov/SolidWaste/SiteActivity/Details/5189?siteID=4186, accessed June 
2024. 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  105 

Electricity 
Imperial Irrigation District (IID) provides a portion of Rancho Mirage with electricity services. IID 
is a not-for-profit utility district focused on the providing low service rates. Currently, IID service 
rates are lower than SCE rates. IID energy is derived in part by renewable sources including 
biomass, biowaste, geothermal, hydroelectric, solar, and wind.  
 
Natural Gas 
Southern California Gas (SCG) is the gas utility provider servicing Rancho Mirage. SCG operates 
miles of transmission lines that run along Intertate-10 and high pressure distribution lines that 
intercept each service area including Rancho Mirage. The City’s distribution line is located under 
Monterey Avenue and travels north-south with subsections branching off to specific regions.  
 
Telecommunication 
Spectrum (formerly Time Warner Capable) and Frontier Communications provide the City’s 
telephone and capable service.  
19.2 Discussion of Impacts:  
 
a) LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT: The Project proposes the development of a multi-family 

residential apartment complex on 5±-acres of undeveloped land. No utility service or 
underground systems are present within the proposed parcel. As such, the Project warrants 
the extension of utility connections on-site from nearby development including residential 
communities to the west of Key Largo Avenue. According to the Project’s conceptual grading 
plans, the extension of Via Vail adjacent to the property would include a public sanitary sewer 
line and public water main to connect the property with CVWD’s domestic water and 
wastewater system. Implementation of these utility connections has been planned prior to the 
Project’s proposal given that the property is zoned for residential use and thus, CVWD has 
anticipated the need to provide utility connection at the site once a formal development has 
been proposed and accepted by the City.  

 
 Other utility services including electricity, natural gas, and telecommunication follow the same 

framework of building internal frameworks so as to gradually accommodate a greater demand, 
on the basis of the City’s forecasted growth. As described above, the Project is consistent 
with the City General Plan Land Use and development standards for a R-H/AHO and thus, 
utility expansion to accommodate the parcel’s residential development has been planned in 
accordance with the City buildout. As such, the Project would not result in a significant 
environmental impact from the expansion or construction of new utility connections, as all 
expansions have been planned and are subject to the most current development standards 
and regulations designed to minimize environmental impact as mandated by CEQA. As such, 
less than significant impacts are anticipated.  

 
b) LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT: The Project’s development is expected to generate a 

water demand during construction and operation. The following section characterizes water 
usage at each phase of development and determine their respective potential for adverse 
effects onto CVWD’s supply of potable water.  

 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  106 

  
Construction 
For analysis purposes, a construction duration of 24-month is assumed with a start date in 
February 2027 with buildout in 2029. During construction, hauling trucks are expected to 
deliver water to the site so as to irrigate the property in accordance with SCAQMD’s fugitive 
dust control mandate under Rule 403. The site’s irrigation will occur during ground 
disturbance, Including site preparation and grading. Irrigation needs for construction are 
therefore temporary and expected to occur for a short period. The Project’s construction would 
not generate a permanent water demand and thus, water demand related to irrigation of the 
construction site would not cause substantial impact to CVWD’s supply of potable water.      

  
 Operation 

Once operational, the Project site will consist of seven multi-family residential apartment 
buildings, totaling 150 dwelling units, a Community Center, 948 sf swimming pool, and a 
landscape area of 42,802± sf. These land uses are described in Table 12 and Table 13 in 
Section 10 (Hydrology and Water Quality). As shown in those Tables, the Project’s operational 
water demand for indoor and outdoor water use would total to 28.26 acres-feet per year (AFY). 
The Project’s annual water demand of 28.26 AFY would account for less than one percent 
(0.017% exactly) of the CVWD’s total gross water supply of 164,966 AFY by 2045. 32 Although 
water demand for landscaping is estimated at 2.80 AFY, the exact water demand for 
landscape irrigation is anticipated to be lower, considering the Project’s compliance with 
Rancho Mirage Municipal Code Section 17.24.040(g) which mandates all vegetation used for 
landscape be drought-tolerant and water-efficient. In accordance with water efficient 
standards, the Project’s permanent water demand would not substantially reduce 
groundwater supply served by CVWD.  
 
Additionally, projected water demand for future years is estimated by the 2022 UWMP in 
accordance with local jurisdictions’ land use. The Project is consistent with the parcel’s land 
use of High-Density Residential with an Affordable Housing Overlay, and thus, the Project’s 
proposal for a multi-family residential project within Rancho Mirage would not result in an 
unplanned development with a water demand beyond CVWD projected supply. As such, less 
than significant impact from the Project’s water demand is anticipated.  

 
c) LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT: CVWD will also provide wastewater treatment services 

to the Project site. The treatment facility for the Project is WRP-4 located in Indio. According 
to the 2022 Urban Water Management Plan, WRP-4 has a treatment capacity of 9.9-million 
gallons per day (gpd). Based on the Project’s land use and total square footage, the site is 
estimated to generate 37,500 gallons of wastewater per day, which equates to less than one 
percent of WRP-4 daily treatment capacity, as shown in Table 31. Given the Project would 
not contribute to an excessive volume of wastewater treated by CVWD sewer system, related 
impacts are expected to be less than significant.  

 

 
32  Table 4-10 in the 2020 Coachella Valley Regional Urban Water Management Plan, July 2021.  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  107 

Table 31 
Project Wastewater Generation 

Land Use Size Generation Rate1 

(gpd) 
Daily Wastewater 

Generated 
Multi-Family 
Residential 150 250 37,500 

% of CVWD’s WRP-4 Daily Treatment Capacity 0.38 
1 Coachella Valley Water District Regulations Governing Sanitation Service, under CVWD 
Ordinance No. 1427.1, December 2017.  

 
 

d) LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT: Burrtec provides solid waste services to residential, 
commercial, and institutional users in the City of Rancho Mirage. Most of the collected waste 
is transported to the Edom Hill Transfer Station, located at 70100 Edom Hill Road in Cathedral 
City, before the waste is transported to one of five landfills managed by the Riverside County 
Department of Waste Resources. These landfills include the Badlands Sanitary Landfill, 
Blythe, Desert Center, Lamb Canyon, and Oasis Sanitary Landfill. Table 32 lists each landfill 
and their remaining capacity. As shown, these landfills have a combined remaining capacity 
of 18.6-million cubic yards (CY).  

 
Table 32 

Remaining Capacity for Riverside County’s Regional Landfills 
Site Name Remaining Capacity (CY) 

Badlands Sanitary Landfill 4,900,000 
Blythe Sanitary Landfill 3,271,203 
Desert Center Sanitary Landfill 102,850 
Lamb Canyon Sanitary Landfill 14,540,000 
Oasis Sanitary Landfill 204,558 

Total (Remaining Capacity) 18,608,611 
Source: CalRecycle, SWIS Facility/Site Activity Details, 
https://www2.calrecycle.ca.gov/SolidWaste/Site/Search, accessed 
March 2025.  

 
 Construction Waste 

The Project would generate solid waste during construction and operation. Construction-
related waste would consist of cardboard, plastic, construction material, and similar material 
that must be recycled, reused, or repurposed in accordance with the City mandate to divert 
all recyclable construction waste from regional landfills as stated in City Municipal Code 
Section 7.07.060 (Construction and Demolition Debris Plan). In compliance with the City’s 
diversion program, the Project would prepare a construction and demolition debris plan to 
estimate the volume of solid waste diverted from the Project’s construction. Nonetheless, the 
Project is not anticipated to generate significant solid waste during construction given that no 
demolition will occur as part of the Project buildout. Therefore, construction-related solid waste 
would result in less than significant impact to regional landfills.  

 
 Operation Waste 
 At buildout, the Project site will include 150 dwelling units, a Community Center, and outdoor 

recreational spaces. Solid waste generated will largely result from residential activities. Based 
on the Project’s proposed land use and size, the site is estimated to generate 164.45 CY of 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  108 

solid waste per year. The Project would account for less than one percent of Riverside County 
regional landfill capacity of 18.6-million cubic yards. As a result, potential impacts to regional 
landfills would be less than significant.  

 
Table 33 

Estimated Solid Waste Generation at Project Buildout 

Land Use Size Waste Production Factor 
(lbs/size/day) 

Daily Waste 
Production 

(lbs) 

Annual Waste 
Production 

(CY) 
Multi-Family 
Residencies 150 DU 5.31  796.50 145.36 

Community 
Center 3,353 sf 3.12 104.61 19.09 

Total (Annual Solid Waste Generation) 164.45 
% of Regional Landfill Capacity 0.00088 

Source: Coachella Valley Water District, Regulations Governing Sanitation Service, 
Table A-1, https://cvwd.org/ArchiveCenter/ViewFile/Item/860, December 2017.  

 
e) NO IMPACT: As required by the California Building Code and Rancho Mirage Municipal 

Code, the Project would adhere to all applicable waste reduction and recycling standards. As 
such, no conflicts are anticipated and thus, no impacts would occur.  

 

19.3 Mitigation Measures:  
 
None required. 
  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  109 

20 - Wildfire 

WILDFIRE – Would the project:  
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

with Mitigation 
Incorporation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

If located in or near state 
responsibility areas or lands classified 
as very high fire hazard severity 
zones, would the project: 

    

a) Substantially impair an adopted 
emergency response plan or 
emergency evacuation plan? 

    

b) Due to slope, prevailing winds, and 
other factors, exacerbate wildfire 
risks, and thereby expose project 
occupants to, pollutant concentrations 
from a wildfire or the uncontrolled 
spread of a wildfire? 

    

c) Require the installation or 
maintenance of associated 
infrastructure (such as roads, fuel 
breaks, emergency water sources, 
power lines or other utilities) that may 
exacerbate fire risk or that may result 
in temporary or ongoing impacts to 
the environment? 

    

d) Expose people or structures to 
significant risks, including downslope 
or downstream flooding or landslides, 
as a result of runoff, post-fire slope 
instability, or drainage changes? 

    

Sources: City of Rancho Mirage General Plan, 2017; California Department of Forestry and Fire 
Prevention, Fire Hazard Severity Zones in State Responsibility Area Map, April 2024; Preliminary Drainage 
Study for Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments, Atlas Civil Design, Inc., October 2024 (Appendix F); 
Project Material.    

20.1 Setting 
 

The California Department of Forestry and Fire Prevention (CalFire) reports on probability of an 
area being impacted by wildfires based on regional fire history, native vegetation, terrain, weather, 
and proximity to wildlands. CalFire Fire Hazard Severity Zones models Moderate, High, and Very 
High Fire Hazard Severity Zones (VHFHSZ) at a statewide scale.  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  110 

According to the latest 2023 Fire Hazard model, Rancho Mirage is not located within an area with 
a moderate, high, or very high fire hazard classification.33 The nearest fire hazard area to the City 
is located within the Santa Rosa Mountains with a moderate to high fire hazard ranking. No areas 
within the City are identified as state responsibility areas. In the event of a fire emergency, the 
local jurisdiction will be responsible for providing immediate support. 

 
20.2 Discussion of Impacts:  
 
a-d) NO IMPACT: The City of Rancho Mirage receives fire protection services from the Riverside 

County Fire Department and coordinates its emergency response activities with the County’s 
Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) as well as the County’s Multi-Jurisdictional Local Hazard 
Mitigation Plan (MJLHMP). The Project site is not in or near a wildfire hazard area, and will 
not be subject to wildfire, given its urban setting, the lack of substantial vegetation on and 
around the site, and the development patterns in this portion of the City. Prior to construction, 
the Project plans will be reviewed by the City and the Fire Department to ensure that the 
Project will not conflict or impact the effective implementation of the emergency plans. In 
addition, the Project will be required to comply with all local safety regulations and standards, 
including the Fire Code, to ensure the appropriate preventative measures are being 
implemented to reduce the risk for fire or other natural hazards. No impacts will occur.  

 

20.3 Mitigation Measures:  
 
None required. 
  

 
33  California Department of Forestry and Fire Prevention, Fire Hazard Severity Zones in State 

Responsibility Area, https://calfire-forestry.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id 
=988d431a42b242b29d89597ab693d008, accessed May 2024.  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  111 

21 - Mandatory Findings of Significance  

MANDATORY FINDINGS OF 
SIGNIFICANCE  

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

with 
Mitigation 

Incorporation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

a) Does the project have the potential 
to substantially degrade the quality of 
the environment, substantially reduce 
the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, 
cause a fish or wildlife population to 
drop below self-sustaining levels, 
threaten to eliminate a plant or animal 
community, substantially reduce the 
number or restrict the range of a rare 
or endangered plant or animal or 
eliminate important examples of the 
major periods of California history or 
prehistory? 

    

b) Does the project have impacts that 
are individually limited, but 
cumulatively considerable? 
("Cumulatively considerable" means 
that the incremental effects of a 
project are considerable when viewed 
in connection with the effects of past 
projects, the effects of other current 
projects, and the effects of probable 
future projects)? 

    

c) Does the project have 
environmental effects, which will 
cause substantial adverse effects on 
human beings, either directly or 
indirectly? 

    

 
21.1 Discussion of Impacts:  
 
a) LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT WITH MITIGATION INCORPORATED: As discussed 

in Section 4 (Biological Resources) of this report, the Project-specific biological resource 
assessment determined the property as having limited value as habitat for special status 
species considering the site’s isolation, surrounding urban setting, level of disturbance, and 
lack of suitable substrate. For these reasons, most special status species identified as 
potentially occurring on-site have a low to very probability or are otherwise categorized as 
absent. As such, the probability for the Project to cause adversely affect or limit access to key 
habitats for special status species is negligible. No impacts to special status species would 
occur in connection to the Project construction and operation. Nonetheless, the site consists 
of dense desert shrubs that may be suitable for bird nesting. If construction activities are 
scheduled within the nesting season (mid-January to end of August), a preconstruction survey 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  112 

is mandatory so as to ensure the property does not house nesting birds. Implementation of 
Mitigation Measure BIO-1 is required in accordance with the Mitigatory Bird Treaty Act. The 
survey will also assure the absence of burrowing owls, even though no suitable burrows were 
identified on the site. Compliance with relevant plans, policies, standards, in addition to the 
mitigation measure would ensure the Project does not result in substantial impacts to any 
species. As such, less than significant impacts are anticipated with mitigation. 

 Section 5 (Cultural Resources) discussed the probability for historical and archeological 
resources to be uncovered at the Project site. As determined, the property does not include 
any historical resource. Although identified as a Traditional Use Area for local native American 
tribes, the field survey yielded no evidence to suggest the site may include significant cultural 
resources. But given the property has not been previously disturbed, the probability for cultural 
resources to be uncovered may not be completely ruled out. As such, all ground disturbance 
activities during construction must comply with Mitigation Measure CUL-1. The measure 
requires that all construction activities cease immediately and for a qualified archeologist to 
evaluate the findings so as to determine significance of the artifact. In accordance with 
Mitigation Measure CUL-1, less than significant impact would occur to cultural resources 
within the property boundary. Building from this, Section 18 (Tribal Cultural Resources), in 
accordance with tribal consultation, mandates Mitigation Measure TRI-1 through TRI-3 to be 
implemented, which would require preconstruction training prior to ground disturbance, on-
site tribal monitoring, and preventative measures in the unexpected event human remains are 
encountered at the site. Implementation of these mitigation measures will avoid causing 
significant effect to nonrenewable cultural and tribal cultural resources and thus, the Project 
would result in less than significant impacts.   

b) LESS THAN SIGNFICANT IMPACT WITH MITIGATION INCORPORATED: Cumulative 
impacts would result if the proposed Project, in combination with other proposed projects, 
would cause an impact to be cumulatively significant. In this case, the proposed Project is 
consistent with the City’s General Plan, and its impacts have been studied in that context in 
the General Plan EIR. In addition, as described in this document, all impacts associated with 
this Project can be mitigated to less than significant levels. Similarly, other projects occurring 
in the City will be required to assess their impacts, and conformance with predicted growth 
patterns, to ascertain whether their development would exceed planned growth rates. In the 
case of the proposed Project, cumulative impacts will remain less than significant, and not 
cumulatively considerable.  

c) LESS THAN SIGNFICANT IMPACT: Adverse effects to humans from development typically 
occur in connect to geologic hazards, air quality impacts, and noise. As described in this 
document, the Project will be designed and constructed to meet or exceed all Building Code 
requirements, so as to ensure that people living in the apartments are protected to the greatest 
extent from geologic hazards. Section 3 of this document demonstrates that the Project will 
not exceed any threshold established by the SCAQMD, including Local Significance 
Thresholds, and that sensitive receptors will not be exposed to high concentrations of air 
pollutants. Finally, the noise analysis clearly shows that noise levels at and from the Project 
site will not increase significantly, and will remain within the City’s standards for Project 
residents and for surrounding sensitive receptors. Impacts to humans will be less than 
significant. 

21.3 Mitigation Measures:  
 
None required.  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  113 

 

Table 34: Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program  

Mitigation Measure Responsible 
Agency Timing 

Verification 
(Date and 
Initials) 

BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES  

A site-specific nesting bird survey shall be performed by a qualified 
ornithologist or biologist no more than 3 days prior to vegetation 
removal or ground disturbance activities. If active nests are found 
during the pre-construction nesting bird survey, the biologist shall 
assess the conditions and establish an appropriate nest buffer to be 
marked on the ground. Nest buffer are species specific and shall be 
100 to 300 feet for unlisted songbirds and at least 500 feet for birds-
of-prey and species listed as threatened or endangered. The nesting 
area shall not be disturbed until the biologist has determined the 
young have fledged or the nest is no longer active. The biologist has 
the authority to stop work if the nesting area exhibit signs of 
disturbance. 

The Project’s 
assigned 
ornithologist or 
biologist, and the 
City Planning 
Department would 
share monitoring 
responsibilities.  

 
 

CULTURAL RESOURCES  

If buried materials are discovered during any earth-moving operations 
associated with the project, all work in the immediate area should be 
halted or diverted until a qualified archeologist can evaluate the 
nature and significance of the find. 

The Project’s 
qualified 
archeologist and 
City Planning 
Department would 
share 
responsibility.  

 
   

 

TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES  

The Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians must be notified a 
minimum of 30 days period to any earth-moving activities including 
grading, grubbing, trenching, or excavations at the site. All earth-
moving activities including grading, grubbing, trenching, or 
excavations at the site shall be monitored by a qualified archeologist 
and/or approved Agua Caliente Native American Cultural Resource 
Monitor(s).  

Project’s qualified 
archeologist and/or 
ACBCI Cultural 
Resource Monitor, 
and City Planning 
Department would 
share 
responsibility.  

     

A qualified archeologist and approved Agua Caliente Native 
American Cultural Resource Monitor(s) shall provide preconstruction 
training for all earthmoving construction personnel prior to the start 
of any ground-disturbing activities, regarding how to recognize the 
types of Tribal Cultural Resources and/or archaeological resources 
that may be encountered and to instruct personnel about action to 
be taken in the event of a discovery. Should cultural materials be 
discovered, they shall be recorded and evaluated in the field. The 
monitors shall be prepared to recover artifacts to avoid construction 
delays but must have the power to temporarily halt or divert 
construction equipment to allow for controlled archeological recovery 
if a substantial cultural deposits is encountered. If artifacts are 
discovered, these shall be cataloged and analyzed. The archeologist 
and monitor, in discussion with the Tribal Historic Preservation 
Office, shall determine and implement the best course of action for 
the treatment and disposition of the artifacts. 

Project’s qualified 
archeologist, 
ACBCI Cultural 
Resource Monitor, 
City Planning 
Department would 
share 
responsibility.  

  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  114 

 

  

In the unexpected event human remains are uncovered during 
construction activities, all construction work taking place within the 
vicinity of the discovered remains must cease and the necessary 
steps to ensure the integrity of the immediate area must be taken. 
The County Coroner must be notified within 24 hours of the 
discovery of human remains. If the remains discovered are 
determined by the Coroner to be of Native American descent, the 
Coroner shall contact the Native American Heritage Commission 
(NAHC) within 24 hours. The NAHC would in turn contact the Most 
Likely Descendant (MLD) would determine further action to be 
taken. The NLD would have 48 hours to access the site and make a 
recommendation regarding disposition of the remains. 

Project Applicant 
and City Planning 
Department would 
share 
responsibility.  

  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  115 

CHAPTER 3: REFERENCES  
• 2020 Coachella Valley Regional Urban Water Management Plan (June 2021) 

• 2020 Coachella Valley Regional Urban Water Management Plan, July 2021.  

• 2020 Urban Water Management Plan, July 2021 

• About IID Energy, Imperial Irrigation District, accessed June 2024 

• California Cities, Southern California Edison, accessed June 2024 

• California Department of Conservation, Alquist-Priolo Site Investigation Reports, 
https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/informationwarehouse/apreports/, accessed March 
2025.  

• California Department of Conservation, Important Farmland Finder, 
https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/DLRP/CIFF/, Accessed May 2024.  

• California Department of Conservation, State Important Farmland Finder, Accessed May 
2024 

• California Department of Finance, Table 2: E-5 City/County Population and Housing 
Estimate, dated January 2024.  

• California Department of Forestry and Fire Prevention, Fire Hazard Severity Zones in 
State Responsibility Area Map, April 2024 

• California Department of Recycle, Solid Waste Information System Facility/Site Activity 
Details for Edom Hill Transfer Station, 
https://www2.calrecycle.ca.gov/SolidWaste/SiteActivity/Details/5189?siteID=4186, 
accessed June 2024. 

• California Department of Transportation, California State Scenic Highway System Map, 
https://caltrans.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=465dfd3d807c46cc8
e8057116f1aacaa, accessed March 2025.  

• California Department of Water Resource, Coachella Valley Groundwater Basin, Indio 
Subbasin, updated February 2004.  

• California Natural Resources Agency, Coachella Valley Mountains Conservancy Returns 
Ancestral Land to the Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians, October 2024 

• City of Rancho Mirage General Plan, Open Space and Conservation Element, 2017.  

• Coachella Valley Water District general information (accessed June 2024) 

• Coachella Valley Water District, CVWD Water Map, http://www.cvwd.org/333/CVWD-
Map, accessed June 2024. 

• Coachella Valley Water District, Domestic Water, https://www.cvwd.org/161/Domestic-
Water, accessed June 2024. 

• Company Profile, Southern California Gas, accessed June 2024. 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  116 

• Environmental Protection Agency, Current Nonattainment Counties for All Criteria 
Pollutants, https://www3.epa.gov/airquality/greenbook/ancl.html, access March 2025.  

• Imperial Irrigation District, About IID Energy, https://www.iid.com/energy/about-iid-
energy, accessed June 2024. 

• National Community Renaissance of California, Phase I Environmental Site 
Assessment, April 2024.  

• Palm Springs Unified School District, Developer Fee, https://www.psusd.us/Page/2400, 
accessed May 2024.  

• Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Preliminary Site Plan, March 2025. 

• Rancho Mirage General Plan (2017) 

• Rancho Mirage General Plan Environmental Impact Report, 2005 

• Rancho Mirage General Plan, Housing Element, updated 2022 

• Rancho Mirage Sustainability Plan, March 2013.  

• SCAQMD 2022 Air Quality Management Plan, South Coast Air Quality Management 
District, December 2022 

• SCAQMD Rule Book, accessed March 2025; CalEEMod Version 2022.1, accessed 
March 2025 

• South Coast Air Quality Management District, Air Quality Management Plan.  

• South Coast Air Quality Management District, Greenhouse Gases, accessed June 2024 

• South Coast Air Quality Management District, SCAQMD Rule Book, 
https://www.aqmd.gov/home/rules-compliance/rules/scaqmd-rule-book, accessed March 
2025.  

• South Coast AQMD CEQA Handbook, revised March 2023. 

• Southern California Association of Governments 

• Southern California Association of Governments, Demographics and Growth Forecast 
Technical Report, September 2020.  

• Southern California Earthquake Data Center, accessed June 2024 

• Southern California Gas, Company Profile, https://www.socalgas.com/about-
us/company-profile, accessed June 2024.  

• SunLine Transit Agency, Fixed Route Bus Network, 
https://infopoint.sunline.org/InfoPoint, accessed March 2025. 

• U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey Data, 
https://data.census.gov/table/ACSST5Y2023.S1901?g=160XX00US0659500, accessed 
May 2025.  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  117 

• US Geological Survey, Lateral Spread, https://www.usgs.gov/media/images/lateral-
spread, July 2023.  

 

CHAPTER 4: APPENDICES  
Appendix A Air Quality Report 
Appendix B Biological Resources Assessment 
Appendix C Historical/Archeological Resources Survey Report 
Appendix D Design-Phase Geotechnical Investigation Report 
Appendix E Phase I Environmental Site Assessment 

Appendix F Preliminary Drainage Study 
Appendix G Water Quality Management Plan 
Appendix H Noise and Vibration Analysis 
Appendix I Traffic Analysis Report & Vehicle Miles Traveled Screening Analysis Report 
  

CHAPTER 5: REPORT PREPARERS 
Lead Agency 
City of Rancho Mirage 
69825 Highway 111 
Rancho Mirage, CA 92270 
 

CEQA Consultant 
Terra Nova Planning & Research, Inc. 
42635 Melanie Place, Suite 101 
Palm Desert, CA 92211



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  A 

 
Appendix A 

Air Quality Report



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

1 / 51

Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report

Table of Contents

1. Basic Project Information

1.1. Basic Project Information

1.2. Land Use Types

1.3. User-Selected Emission Reduction Measures by Emissions Sector

2. Emissions Summary

2.1. Construction Emissions Compared Against Thresholds

2.2. Construction Emissions by Year, Unmitigated

2.4. Operations Emissions Compared Against Thresholds

2.5. Operations Emissions by Sector, Unmitigated

3. Construction Emissions Details

3.1. Linear, Grubbing & Land Clearing (2027) - Unmitigated

3.3. Linear, Grading & Excavation (2027) - Unmitigated

3.5. Linear, Drainage, Utilities, & Sub-Grade (2027) - Unmitigated

3.7. Linear, Paving (2027) - Unmitigated

3.9. Site Preparation (2027) - Unmitigated



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

2 / 51

3.11. Grading (2027) - Unmitigated

3.13. Building Construction (2027) - Unmitigated

3.15. Building Construction (2028) - Unmitigated

3.17. Building Construction (2029) - Unmitigated

3.19. Paving (2028) - Unmitigated

3.21. Paving (2029) - Unmitigated

3.23. Architectural Coating (2028) - Unmitigated

3.25. Architectural Coating (2029) - Unmitigated

4. Operations Emissions Details

4.1. Mobile Emissions by Land Use

4.1.1. Unmitigated

4.2. Energy

4.2.1. Electricity Emissions By Land Use - Unmitigated

4.2.3. Natural Gas Emissions By Land Use - Unmitigated

4.3. Area Emissions by Source

4.3.1. Unmitigated

4.4. Water Emissions by Land Use

4.4.1. Unmitigated



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

3 / 51

4.5. Waste Emissions by Land Use

4.5.1. Unmitigated

4.6. Refrigerant Emissions by Land Use

4.6.1. Unmitigated

4.7. Offroad Emissions By Equipment Type

4.7.1. Unmitigated

4.8. Stationary Emissions By Equipment Type

4.8.1. Unmitigated

4.9. User Defined Emissions By Equipment Type

4.9.1. Unmitigated

4.10. Soil Carbon Accumulation By Vegetation Type

4.10.1. Soil Carbon Accumulation By Vegetation Type - Unmitigated

4.10.2. Above and Belowground Carbon Accumulation by Land Use Type - Unmitigated

4.10.3. Avoided and Sequestered Emissions by Species - Unmitigated

5. Activity Data

5.1. Construction Schedule

5.2. Off-Road Equipment

5.2.1. Unmitigated



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

4 / 51

5.3. Construction Vehicles

5.3.1. Unmitigated

5.4. Vehicles

5.4.1. Construction Vehicle Control Strategies

5.5. Architectural Coatings

5.6. Dust Mitigation

5.6.1. Construction Earthmoving Activities

5.6.2. Construction Earthmoving Control Strategies

5.7. Construction Paving

5.8. Construction Electricity Consumption and Emissions Factors

5.9. Operational Mobile Sources

5.9.1. Unmitigated

5.10. Operational Area Sources

5.10.1. Hearths

5.10.1.1. Unmitigated

5.10.2. Architectural Coatings

5.10.3. Landscape Equipment

5.11. Operational Energy Consumption



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

5 / 51

5.11.1. Unmitigated

5.12. Operational Water and Wastewater Consumption

5.12.1. Unmitigated

5.13. Operational Waste Generation

5.13.1. Unmitigated

5.14. Operational Refrigeration and Air Conditioning Equipment

5.14.1. Unmitigated

5.15. Operational Off-Road Equipment

5.15.1. Unmitigated

5.16. Stationary Sources

5.16.1. Emergency Generators and Fire Pumps

5.16.2. Process Boilers

5.17. User Defined

5.18. Vegetation

5.18.1. Land Use Change

5.18.1.1. Unmitigated

5.18.1. Biomass Cover Type

5.18.1.1. Unmitigated



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

6 / 51

5.18.2. Sequestration

5.18.2.1. Unmitigated

6. Climate Risk Detailed Report

6.1. Climate Risk Summary

6.2. Initial Climate Risk Scores

6.3. Adjusted Climate Risk Scores

6.4. Climate Risk Reduction Measures

7. Health and Equity Details

7.1. CalEnviroScreen 4.0 Scores

7.2. Healthy Places Index Scores

7.3. Overall Health & Equity Scores

7.4. Health & Equity Measures

7.5. Evaluation Scorecard

7.6. Health & Equity Custom Measures

8. User Changes to Default Data



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

7 / 51

1. Basic Project Information

1.1. Basic Project Information

Data Field Value

Project Name Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments

Construction Start Date 2/1/2027

Operational Year 2029

Lead Agency —

Land Use Scale Project/site

Analysis Level for Defaults County

Windspeed (m/s) 3.30

Precipitation (days) 0.80

Location 33.797385503049995, -116.39430045644497

County Riverside-Salton Sea

City Rancho Mirage

Air District South Coast AQMD

Air Basin Salton Sea

TAZ 5671

EDFZ 19

Electric Utility Imperial Irrigation District

Gas Utility Southern California Gas

App Version 2022.1.1.29

1.2. Land Use Types

Land Use Subtype Size Unit Lot Acreage Building Area (sq ft) Landscape Area (sq
ft)

Special Landscape
Area (sq ft)

Population Description

Apartments Mid
Rise

150 Dwelling Unit 3.00 7,889 42,802 — 485 —



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

8 / 51

Parking Lot 224 Space 2.00 0.00 0.00 — — —

Road Construction 0.07 Mile 0.32 0.00 0.00 — — —

1.3. User-Selected Emission Reduction Measures by Emissions Sector

No measures selected

2. Emissions Summary

2.1. Construction Emissions Compared Against Thresholds

Criteria Pollutants (lb/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)
Un/Mit. ROG NOx CO SO2 PM10T PM2.5T CO2e

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Unmit. 4.84 41.3 47.4 0.12 21.8 10.8 15,778

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Unmit. 5.24 44.3 50.2 0.09 22.5 11.0 10,688

Average Daily (Max) — — — — — — —

Unmit. 1.23 10.5 14.2 0.03 3.51 1.53 4,068

Annual (Max) — — — — — — —

Unmit. 0.22 1.92 2.59 0.01 0.64 0.28 674

Exceeds (Daily Max) — — — — — — —

Threshold 75.0 100 550 150 150 55.0 —

Unmit. No No No No No No —

Exceeds (Average
Daily)

— — — — — — —

Threshold 75.0 100 550 150 150 55.0 —

Unmit. No No No No No No —

2.2. Construction Emissions by Year, Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (lb/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

9 / 51

Year ROG NOx CO SO2 PM10T PM2.5T CO2e

Daily - Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

2027 4.84 41.3 47.4 0.12 21.8 10.8 15,778

2028 1.28 8.18 18.6 0.02 1.80 0.60 4,002

Daily - Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

2027 5.24 44.3 50.2 0.09 22.5 11.0 10,688

2028 3.64 14.6 25.4 0.04 2.52 0.93 5,577

2029 3.51 14.0 25.0 0.04 2.49 0.89 5,531

Average Daily — — — — — — —

2027 1.23 10.5 14.2 0.03 3.51 1.53 4,068

2028 1.07 6.44 12.5 0.02 1.35 0.46 2,929

2029 0.15 0.35 0.73 < 0.005 0.08 0.03 166

Annual — — — — — — —

2027 0.22 1.92 2.59 0.01 0.64 0.28 674

2028 0.20 1.17 2.29 < 0.005 0.25 0.08 485

2029 0.03 0.06 0.13 < 0.005 0.02 < 0.005 27.4

2.4. Operations Emissions Compared Against Thresholds

Criteria Pollutants (lb/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)
Un/Mit. ROG NOx CO SO2 PM10T PM2.5T CO2e

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Unmit. 3.58 3.46 39.8 0.09 7.27 1.91 10,596

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Unmit. 2.39 3.63 20.8 0.08 7.27 1.91 9,628

Average Daily (Max) — — — — — — —

Unmit. 2.88 3.54 28.3 0.08 7.27 1.91 10,011

Annual (Max) — — — — — — —

Unmit. 0.53 0.65 5.16 0.01 1.33 0.35 1,658



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

10 / 51

Exceeds (Daily Max) — — — — — — —

Threshold 55.0 55.0 550 150 150 55.0 —

Unmit. No No No No No No —

Exceeds (Average
Daily)

— — — — — — —

Threshold 55.0 55.0 550 150 150 55.0 —

Unmit. No No No No No No —

Exceeds (Annual) — — — — — — —

Threshold — — — — — — 3,000

Unmit. — — — — — — No

2.5. Operations Emissions by Sector, Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (lb/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)
Sector ROG NOx CO SO2 PM10T PM2.5T CO2e

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Mobile 2.55 2.89 31.0 0.08 7.23 1.87 8,489

Area 0.99 0.08 8.53 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 22.8

Energy 0.03 0.49 0.21 < 0.005 0.04 0.04 1,784

Water — — — — — — 90.4

Waste — — — — — — 209

Refrig. — — — — — — 0.06

Total 3.58 3.46 39.8 0.09 7.27 1.91 10,596

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Mobile 2.11 3.14 20.6 0.07 7.23 1.87 7,545

Area 0.26 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Energy 0.03 0.49 0.21 < 0.005 0.04 0.04 1,784

Water — — — — — — 90.4

Waste — — — — — — 209



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

11 / 51

Refrig. — — — — — — 0.06

Total 2.39 3.63 20.8 0.08 7.27 1.91 9,628

Average Daily — — — — — — —

Mobile 2.23 3.02 23.9 0.08 7.23 1.87 7,916

Area 0.62 0.04 4.21 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 11.3

Energy 0.03 0.49 0.21 < 0.005 0.04 0.04 1,784

Water — — — — — — 90.4

Waste — — — — — — 209

Refrig. — — — — — — 0.06

Total 2.88 3.54 28.3 0.08 7.27 1.91 10,011

Annual — — — — — — —

Mobile 0.41 0.55 4.36 0.01 1.32 0.34 1,311

Area 0.11 0.01 0.77 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 1.86

Energy 0.01 0.09 0.04 < 0.005 0.01 0.01 295

Water — — — — — — 15.0

Waste — — — — — — 34.7

Refrig. — — — — — — 0.01

Total 0.53 0.65 5.16 0.01 1.33 0.35 1,658

3. Construction Emissions Details

3.1. Linear, Grubbing & Land Clearing (2027) - Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (lb/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)
Location ROG NOx CO SO2 PM10T PM2.5T CO2e

Onsite — — — — — — —

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment 0.29 2.62 3.02 < 0.005 0.14 0.13 431



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

12 / 51

Dust From Material
Movement

— — — — 0.46 0.05 —

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Average Daily — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment 0.01 0.07 0.08 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 11.8

Dust From Material
Movement

— — — — 0.01 < 0.005 —

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Annual — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment < 0.005 0.01 0.02 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 1.95

Dust From Material
Movement

— — — — < 0.005 < 0.005 —

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Offsite — — — — — — —

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Worker 0.03 0.04 0.35 0.00 0.10 0.02 92.1

Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hauling 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Average Daily — — — — — — —

Worker < 0.005 < 0.005 0.01 0.00 < 0.005 < 0.005 2.70

Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hauling 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Annual — — — — — — —

Worker < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 0.00 < 0.005 < 0.005 0.45

Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hauling 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3.3. Linear, Grading & Excavation (2027) - Unmitigated



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

13 / 51

Criteria Pollutants (lb/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)
Location ROG NOx CO SO2 PM10T PM2.5T CO2e

Onsite — — — — — — —

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment 2.39 19.8 23.6 0.05 0.83 0.77 5,431

Dust From Material
Movement

— — — — 2.78 0.30 —

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Average Daily — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment 0.13 1.08 1.29 < 0.005 0.05 0.04 298

Dust From Material
Movement

— — — — 0.15 0.02 —

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Annual — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment 0.02 0.20 0.24 < 0.005 0.01 0.01 49.3

Dust From Material
Movement

— — — — 0.03 < 0.005 —

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Offsite — — — — — — —

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Worker 0.12 0.15 1.52 0.00 0.42 0.10 399

Vendor < 0.005 0.03 0.01 < 0.005 0.01 < 0.005 31.6

Hauling 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Average Daily — — — — — — —

Worker 0.01 0.01 0.10 0.00 0.02 0.01 23.4

Vendor < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 1.73

Hauling 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Annual — — — — — — —



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

14 / 51

Worker < 0.005 < 0.005 0.02 0.00 < 0.005 < 0.005 3.87

Vendor < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 0.29

Hauling 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3.5. Linear, Drainage, Utilities, & Sub-Grade (2027) - Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (lb/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)
Location ROG NOx CO SO2 PM10T PM2.5T CO2e

Onsite — — — — — — —

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment 1.98 16.8 19.4 0.05 0.65 0.60 4,852

Dust From Material
Movement

— — — — 2.32 0.25 —

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment 1.98 16.8 19.4 0.05 0.65 0.60 4,852

Dust From Material
Movement

— — — — 2.32 0.25 —

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Average Daily — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment 0.14 1.15 1.33 < 0.005 0.04 0.04 332

Dust From Material
Movement

— — — — 0.16 0.02 —

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Annual — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment 0.02 0.21 0.24 < 0.005 0.01 0.01 55.0

Dust From Material
Movement

— — — — 0.03 < 0.005 —

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Offsite — — — — — — —



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

15 / 51

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Worker 0.12 0.12 2.27 0.00 0.36 0.08 397

Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hauling 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Worker 0.10 0.13 1.29 0.00 0.36 0.08 338

Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hauling 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Average Daily — — — — — — —

Worker 0.01 0.01 0.11 0.00 0.02 0.01 24.7

Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hauling 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Annual — — — — — — —

Worker < 0.005 < 0.005 0.02 0.00 < 0.005 < 0.005 4.10

Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hauling 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3.7. Linear, Paving (2027) - Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (lb/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)
Location ROG NOx CO SO2 PM10T PM2.5T CO2e

Onsite — — — — — — —

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment 0.64 5.50 8.00 0.01 0.22 0.20 1,201

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Average Daily — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment 0.07 0.60 0.88 < 0.005 0.02 0.02 132

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

16 / 51

Annual — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment 0.01 0.11 0.16 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 21.8

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Offsite — — — — — — —

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Worker 0.09 0.09 1.65 0.00 0.26 0.06 289

Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hauling < 0.005 0.06 0.01 < 0.005 0.02 < 0.005 52.7

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Average Daily — — — — — — —

Worker 0.01 0.01 0.13 0.00 0.03 0.01 28.8

Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hauling < 0.005 0.01 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 5.78

Annual — — — — — — —

Worker < 0.005 < 0.005 0.02 0.00 0.01 < 0.005 4.77

Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hauling < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 0.96

3.9. Site Preparation (2027) - Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (lb/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)
Location ROG NOx CO SO2 PM10T PM2.5T CO2e

Onsite — — — — — — —

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment 2.66 24.2 24.1 0.04 1.04 0.95 4,581

Dust From Material
Movement

— — — — 17.2 8.84 —

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

17 / 51

Off-Road Equipment 2.66 24.2 24.1 0.04 1.04 0.95 4,581

Dust From Material
Movement

— — — — 17.2 8.84 —

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Average Daily — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment 0.15 1.33 1.32 < 0.005 0.06 0.05 251

Dust From Material
Movement

— — — — 0.94 0.48 —

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Annual — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment 0.03 0.24 0.24 < 0.005 0.01 0.01 41.6

Dust From Material
Movement

— — — — 0.17 0.09 —

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Offsite — — — — — — —

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Worker 0.09 0.09 1.65 0.00 0.26 0.06 289

Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hauling 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Worker 0.07 0.09 0.94 0.00 0.26 0.06 246

Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hauling 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Average Daily — — — — — — —

Worker < 0.005 < 0.005 0.06 0.00 0.01 < 0.005 14.4

Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hauling 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Annual — — — — — — —

Worker < 0.005 < 0.005 0.01 0.00 < 0.005 < 0.005 2.38



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

18 / 51

Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hauling 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3.11. Grading (2027) - Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (lb/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)
Location ROG NOx CO SO2 PM10T PM2.5T CO2e

Onsite — — — — — — —

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment 1.40 12.5 15.0 0.02 0.54 0.50 2,601

Dust From Material
Movement

— — — — 6.27 3.01 —

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Average Daily — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment 0.19 1.71 2.05 < 0.005 0.07 0.07 356

Dust From Material
Movement

— — — — 0.86 0.41 —

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Annual — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment 0.04 0.31 0.37 < 0.005 0.01 0.01 59.0

Dust From Material
Movement

— — — — 0.16 0.08 —

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Offsite — — — — — — —

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Worker 0.08 0.08 1.44 0.00 0.23 0.05 253

Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hauling 0.16 8.09 1.93 0.05 2.18 0.72 7,676

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

19 / 51

Average Daily — — — — — — —

Worker 0.01 0.01 0.14 0.00 0.03 0.01 31.5

Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hauling 0.02 1.16 0.27 0.01 0.30 0.10 1,051

Annual — — — — — — —

Worker < 0.005 < 0.005 0.03 0.00 0.01 < 0.005 5.21

Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hauling < 0.005 0.21 0.05 < 0.005 0.05 0.02 174

3.13. Building Construction (2027) - Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (lb/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)
Location ROG NOx CO SO2 PM10T PM2.5T CO2e

Onsite — — — — — — —

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment 0.85 7.69 10.1 0.02 0.28 0.25 1,976

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment 0.85 7.69 10.1 0.02 0.28 0.25 1,976

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Average Daily — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment 0.33 2.97 3.88 0.01 0.11 0.10 762

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Annual — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment 0.06 0.54 0.71 < 0.005 0.02 0.02 126

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Offsite — — — — — — —

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Worker 0.46 0.47 8.90 0.00 1.41 0.33 1,559



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

20 / 51

Vendor 0.02 0.49 0.21 < 0.005 0.14 0.05 508

Hauling 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Worker 0.39 0.51 5.05 0.00 1.41 0.33 1,327

Vendor 0.02 0.53 0.22 < 0.005 0.14 0.05 507

Hauling 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Average Daily — — — — — — —

Worker 0.16 0.18 2.44 0.00 0.54 0.13 547

Vendor 0.01 0.20 0.08 < 0.005 0.06 0.02 196

Hauling 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Annual — — — — — — —

Worker 0.03 0.03 0.45 0.00 0.10 0.02 90.5

Vendor < 0.005 0.04 0.01 < 0.005 0.01 < 0.005 32.4

Hauling 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3.15. Building Construction (2028) - Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (lb/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)
Location ROG NOx CO SO2 PM10T PM2.5T CO2e

Onsite — — — — — — —

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment 0.82 7.29 10.1 0.02 0.25 0.23 1,976

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment 0.82 7.29 10.1 0.02 0.25 0.23 1,976

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Average Daily — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment 0.59 5.22 7.21 0.01 0.18 0.16 1,415

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

21 / 51

Annual — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment 0.11 0.95 1.32 < 0.005 0.03 0.03 234

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Offsite — — — — — — —

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Worker 0.45 0.42 8.32 0.00 1.41 0.33 1,530

Vendor 0.01 0.47 0.20 < 0.005 0.14 0.05 496

Hauling 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Worker 0.37 0.47 4.68 0.00 1.41 0.33 1,302

Vendor 0.01 0.51 0.21 < 0.005 0.14 0.05 495

Hauling 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Average Daily — — — — — — —

Worker 0.28 0.30 4.21 0.00 1.01 0.24 997

Vendor 0.01 0.35 0.15 < 0.005 0.10 0.03 355

Hauling 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Annual — — — — — — —

Worker 0.05 0.05 0.77 0.00 0.18 0.04 165

Vendor < 0.005 0.06 0.03 < 0.005 0.02 0.01 58.8

Hauling 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3.17. Building Construction (2029) - Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (lb/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)
Location ROG NOx CO SO2 PM10T PM2.5T CO2e

Onsite — — — — — — —

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment 0.80 6.99 10.0 0.02 0.23 0.21 1,976



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

22 / 51

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Average Daily — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment 0.03 0.25 0.35 < 0.005 0.01 0.01 69.6

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Annual — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment 0.01 0.04 0.06 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 11.5

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Offsite — — — — — — —

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Worker 0.31 0.42 4.41 0.00 1.41 0.33 1,280

Vendor 0.01 0.48 0.20 < 0.005 0.14 0.05 482

Hauling 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Average Daily — — — — — — —

Worker 0.01 0.01 0.19 0.00 0.05 0.01 48.2

Vendor < 0.005 0.02 0.01 < 0.005 0.01 < 0.005 17.0

Hauling 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Annual — — — — — — —

Worker < 0.005 < 0.005 0.04 0.00 0.01 < 0.005 7.97

Vendor < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 2.81

Hauling 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3.19. Paving (2028) - Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (lb/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)
Location ROG NOx CO SO2 PM10T PM2.5T CO2e

Onsite — — — — — — —

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

23 / 51

Off-Road Equipment 0.55 5.27 7.72 0.01 0.21 0.19 1,177

Paving 0.17 — — — — — —

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Average Daily — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment 0.05 0.48 0.71 < 0.005 0.02 0.02 108

Paving 0.02 — — — — — —

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Annual — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment 0.01 0.09 0.13 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 17.9

Paving < 0.005 — — — — — —

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Offsite — — — — — — —

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Worker 0.05 0.06 0.65 0.00 0.20 0.05 181

Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hauling < 0.005 0.06 0.01 < 0.005 0.02 < 0.005 51.3

Average Daily — — — — — — —

Worker < 0.005 0.01 0.08 0.00 0.02 < 0.005 17.8

Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hauling < 0.005 0.01 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 4.72

Annual — — — — — — —

Worker < 0.005 < 0.005 0.01 0.00 < 0.005 < 0.005 2.94

Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hauling < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 0.78

3.21. Paving (2029) - Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (lb/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

24 / 51

Location ROG NOx CO SO2 PM10T PM2.5T CO2e

Onsite — — — — — — —

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment 0.54 5.13 7.72 0.01 0.19 0.18 1,177

Paving 0.17 — — — — — —

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Average Daily — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment < 0.005 0.02 0.03 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 4.61

Paving < 0.005 — — — — — —

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Annual — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment < 0.005 < 0.005 0.01 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 0.76

Paving < 0.005 — — — — — —

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Offsite — — — — — — —

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Worker 0.04 0.06 0.61 0.00 0.20 0.05 178

Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hauling < 0.005 0.06 0.01 < 0.005 0.02 < 0.005 50.0

Average Daily — — — — — — —

Worker < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 0.00 < 0.005 < 0.005 0.74

Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hauling < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 0.20

Annual — — — — — — —

Worker < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 0.00 < 0.005 < 0.005 0.12

Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

25 / 51

Hauling < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 0.03

3.23. Architectural Coating (2028) - Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (lb/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)
Location ROG NOx CO SO2 PM10T PM2.5T CO2e

Onsite — — — — — — —

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment 0.11 0.81 1.12 < 0.005 0.02 0.01 134

Architectural Coatings 1.47 — — — — — —

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Average Daily — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment 0.01 0.06 0.08 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 9.96

Architectural Coatings 0.11 — — — — — —

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Annual — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment < 0.005 0.01 0.02 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 1.65

Architectural Coatings 0.02 — — — — — —

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Offsite — — — — — — —

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Worker 0.07 0.09 0.94 0.00 0.28 0.07 260

Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hauling 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Average Daily — — — — — — —

Worker 0.01 0.01 0.09 0.00 0.02 < 0.005 20.7

Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

26 / 51

Hauling 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Annual — — — — — — —

Worker < 0.005 < 0.005 0.02 0.00 < 0.005 < 0.005 3.43

Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hauling 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3.25. Architectural Coating (2029) - Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (lb/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)
Location ROG NOx CO SO2 PM10T PM2.5T CO2e

Onsite — — — — — — —

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment 0.10 0.79 1.11 < 0.005 0.01 0.01 134

Architectural Coatings 1.47 — — — — — —

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Average Daily — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment 0.01 0.05 0.07 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 8.39

Architectural Coatings 0.09 — — — — — —

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Annual — — — — — — —

Off-Road Equipment < 0.005 0.01 0.01 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 1.39

Architectural Coatings 0.02 — — — — — —

Onsite truck 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Offsite — — — — — — —

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Worker 0.06 0.08 0.88 0.00 0.28 0.07 256

Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

27 / 51

Hauling 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Average Daily — — — — — — —

Worker < 0.005 < 0.005 0.07 0.00 0.02 < 0.005 17.1

Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hauling 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Annual — — — — — — —

Worker < 0.005 < 0.005 0.01 0.00 < 0.005 < 0.005 2.84

Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hauling 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4. Operations Emissions Details

4.1. Mobile Emissions by Land Use

4.1.1. Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (lb/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)
Land Use ROG NOx CO SO2 PM10T PM2.5T CO2e

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Apartments Mid Rise 2.55 2.89 31.0 0.08 7.23 1.87 8,489

Parking Lot 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total 2.55 2.89 31.0 0.08 7.23 1.87 8,489

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Apartments Mid Rise 2.11 3.14 20.6 0.07 7.23 1.87 7,545

Parking Lot 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total 2.11 3.14 20.6 0.07 7.23 1.87 7,545

Annual — — — — — — —

Apartments Mid Rise 0.41 0.55 4.36 0.01 1.32 0.34 1,311

Parking Lot 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

28 / 51

Total 0.41 0.55 4.36 0.01 1.32 0.34 1,311

4.2. Energy

4.2.1. Electricity Emissions By Land Use - Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (lb/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)
Land Use ROG NOx CO SO2 PM10T PM2.5T CO2e

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Apartments Mid Rise — — — — — — 1,066

Parking Lot — — — — — — 95.9

Total — — — — — — 1,162

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Apartments Mid Rise — — — — — — 1,066

Parking Lot — — — — — — 95.9

Total — — — — — — 1,162

Annual — — — — — — —

Apartments Mid Rise — — — — — — 177

Parking Lot — — — — — — 15.9

Total — — — — — — 192

4.2.3. Natural Gas Emissions By Land Use - Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (lb/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)
Land Use ROG NOx CO SO2 PM10T PM2.5T CO2e

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Apartments Mid Rise 0.03 0.49 0.21 < 0.005 0.04 0.04 622

Parking Lot 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total 0.03 0.49 0.21 < 0.005 0.04 0.04 622

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

29 / 51

Apartments Mid Rise 0.03 0.49 0.21 < 0.005 0.04 0.04 622

Parking Lot 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total 0.03 0.49 0.21 < 0.005 0.04 0.04 622

Annual — — — — — — —

Apartments Mid Rise 0.01 0.09 0.04 < 0.005 0.01 0.01 103

Parking Lot 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total 0.01 0.09 0.04 < 0.005 0.01 0.01 103

4.3. Area Emissions by Source

4.3.1. Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (lb/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)
Source ROG NOx CO SO2 PM10T PM2.5T CO2e

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Hearths 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Consumer Products 0.18 — — — — — —

Architectural Coatings 0.08 — — — — — —

Landscape Equipment 0.74 0.08 8.53 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 22.8

Total 0.99 0.08 8.53 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 22.8

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Hearths 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Consumer Products 0.18 — — — — — —

Architectural Coatings 0.08 — — — — — —

Total 0.26 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Annual — — — — — — —

Hearths 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Consumer Products 0.03 — — — — — —

Architectural Coatings 0.01 — — — — — —



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

30 / 51

Landscape Equipment 0.07 0.01 0.77 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 1.86

Total 0.11 0.01 0.77 < 0.005 < 0.005 < 0.005 1.86

4.4. Water Emissions by Land Use

4.4.1. Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (lb/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)
Land Use ROG NOx CO SO2 PM10T PM2.5T CO2e

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Apartments Mid Rise — — — — — — 90.4

Parking Lot — — — — — — 0.00

Total — — — — — — 90.4

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Apartments Mid Rise — — — — — — 90.4

Parking Lot — — — — — — 0.00

Total — — — — — — 90.4

Annual — — — — — — —

Apartments Mid Rise — — — — — — 15.0

Parking Lot — — — — — — 0.00

Total — — — — — — 15.0

4.5. Waste Emissions by Land Use

4.5.1. Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (lb/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)
Land Use ROG NOx CO SO2 PM10T PM2.5T CO2e

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Apartments Mid Rise — — — — — — 209



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

31 / 51

Parking Lot — — — — — — 0.00

Total — — — — — — 209

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Apartments Mid Rise — — — — — — 209

Parking Lot — — — — — — 0.00

Total — — — — — — 209

Annual — — — — — — —

Apartments Mid Rise — — — — — — 34.7

Parking Lot — — — — — — 0.00

Total — — — — — — 34.7

4.6. Refrigerant Emissions by Land Use

4.6.1. Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (lb/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)
Land Use ROG NOx CO SO2 PM10T PM2.5T CO2e

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Apartments Mid Rise — — — — — — 0.06

Total — — — — — — 0.06

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Apartments Mid Rise — — — — — — 0.06

Total — — — — — — 0.06

Annual — — — — — — —

Apartments Mid Rise — — — — — — 0.01

Total — — — — — — 0.01

4.7. Offroad Emissions By Equipment Type



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

32 / 51

4.7.1. Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (lb/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)
Equipment Type ROG NOx CO SO2 PM10T PM2.5T CO2e

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Total — — — — — — —

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Total — — — — — — —

Annual — — — — — — —

Total — — — — — — —

4.8. Stationary Emissions By Equipment Type

4.8.1. Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (lb/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)
Equipment Type ROG NOx CO SO2 PM10T PM2.5T CO2e

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Total — — — — — — —

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Total — — — — — — —

Annual — — — — — — —

Total — — — — — — —

4.9. User Defined Emissions By Equipment Type

4.9.1. Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (lb/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)
Equipment Type ROG NOx CO SO2 PM10T PM2.5T CO2e

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

33 / 51

Total — — — — — — —

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Total — — — — — — —

Annual — — — — — — —

Total — — — — — — —

4.10. Soil Carbon Accumulation By Vegetation Type

4.10.1. Soil Carbon Accumulation By Vegetation Type - Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (lb/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)
Vegetation ROG NOx CO SO2 PM10T PM2.5T CO2e

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Total — — — — — — —

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Total — — — — — — —

Annual — — — — — — —

Total — — — — — — —

4.10.2. Above and Belowground Carbon Accumulation by Land Use Type - Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (lb/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)
Land Use ROG NOx CO SO2 PM10T PM2.5T CO2e

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Total — — — — — — —

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Total — — — — — — —

Annual — — — — — — —

Total — — — — — — —



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

34 / 51

4.10.3. Avoided and Sequestered Emissions by Species - Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (lb/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)
Species ROG NOx CO SO2 PM10T PM2.5T CO2e

Daily, Summer (Max) — — — — — — —

Avoided — — — — — — —

Subtotal — — — — — — —

Sequestered — — — — — — —

Subtotal — — — — — — —

Removed — — — — — — —

Subtotal — — — — — — —

— — — — — — — —

Daily, Winter (Max) — — — — — — —

Avoided — — — — — — —

Subtotal — — — — — — —

Sequestered — — — — — — —

Subtotal — — — — — — —

Removed — — — — — — —

Subtotal — — — — — — —

— — — — — — — —

Annual — — — — — — —

Avoided — — — — — — —

Subtotal — — — — — — —

Sequestered — — — — — — —

Subtotal — — — — — — —

Removed — — — — — — —

Subtotal — — — — — — —

— — — — — — — —



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

35 / 51

5. Activity Data

5.1. Construction Schedule

Phase Name Phase Type Start Date End Date Days Per Week Work Days per Phase Phase Description

Linear, Grubbing & Land
Clearing

Linear, Grubbing & Land
Clearing

2/1/2027 2/12/2027 5.00 10.0 —

Linear, Grading &
Excavation

Linear, Grading &
Excavation

2/13/2027 3/12/2027 5.00 20.0 —

Linear, Drainage, Utilities,
& Sub-Grade

Linear, Drainage, Utilities,
& Sub-Grade

3/13/2027 4/16/2027 5.00 25.0 —

Linear, Paving Linear, Paving 4/17/2027 6/11/2027 5.00 40.0 —

Site Preparation Site Preparation 3/12/2027 4/8/2027 5.00 20.0 —

Grading Grading 4/9/2027 6/17/2027 5.00 50.0 —

Building Construction Building Construction 6/18/2027 1/18/2029 5.00 415 —

Paving Paving 11/15/2028 1/2/2029 5.00 35.0 —

Architectural Coating Architectural Coating 11/24/2028 2/1/2029 5.00 50.0 —

5.2. Off-Road Equipment

5.2.1. Unmitigated

Phase Name Equipment Type Fuel Type Engine Tier Number per Day Hours Per Day Horsepower Load Factor

Linear, Grubbing &
Land Clearing

Crawler Tractors Diesel Average 1.00 7.00 87.0 0.43

Linear, Grubbing &
Land Clearing

Excavators Diesel Average 1.00 7.00 36.0 0.38

Linear, Grubbing &
Land Clearing

Signal Boards Electric Average 1.00 7.00 6.00 0.82

Linear, Grading &
Excavation

Crawler Tractors Diesel Average 1.00 7.00 87.0 0.43



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

36 / 51

0.3836.07.003.00AverageDieselExcavatorsLinear, Grading &
Excavation

Linear, Grading &
Excavation

Graders Diesel Average 1.00 7.00 148 0.41

Linear, Grading &
Excavation

Rollers Diesel Average 2.00 7.00 36.0 0.38

Linear, Grading &
Excavation

Rubber Tired Loaders Diesel Average 1.00 5.00 150 0.36

Linear, Grading &
Excavation

Scrapers Diesel Average 2.00 7.00 423 0.48

Linear, Grading &
Excavation

Signal Boards Electric Average 1.00 7.00 6.00 0.82

Linear, Grading &
Excavation

Tractors/Loaders/Back
hoes

Diesel Average 2.00 5.00 84.0 0.37

Linear, Drainage,
Utilities, & Sub-Grade

Air Compressors Diesel Average 1.00 7.00 37.0 0.48

Linear, Drainage,
Utilities, & Sub-Grade

Generator Sets Diesel Average 1.00 7.00 14.0 0.74

Linear, Drainage,
Utilities, & Sub-Grade

Graders Diesel Average 1.00 7.00 148 0.41

Linear, Drainage,
Utilities, & Sub-Grade

Plate Compactors Diesel Average 1.00 7.00 8.00 0.43

Linear, Drainage,
Utilities, & Sub-Grade

Pumps Diesel Average 1.00 7.00 11.0 0.74

Linear, Drainage,
Utilities, & Sub-Grade

Rough Terrain Forklifts Diesel Average 1.00 7.00 96.0 0.40

Linear, Drainage,
Utilities, & Sub-Grade

Scrapers Diesel Average 2.00 7.00 423 0.48

Linear, Drainage,
Utilities, & Sub-Grade

Signal Boards Electric Average 1.00 7.00 6.00 0.82

Linear, Drainage,
Utilities, & Sub-Grade

Tractors/Loaders/Back
hoes

Diesel Average 2.00 5.00 84.0 0.37

Linear, Paving Pavers Diesel Average 1.00 7.00 81.0 0.42

Linear, Paving Paving Equipment Diesel Average 1.00 5.00 89.0 0.36



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

37 / 51

Linear, Paving Rollers Diesel Average 3.00 7.00 36.0 0.38

Linear, Paving Signal Boards Electric Average 1.00 7.00 6.00 0.82

Linear, Paving Tractors/Loaders/Back
hoes

Diesel Average 2.00 5.00 84.0 0.37

Site Preparation Rubber Tired Dozers Diesel Average 3.00 7.00 367 0.40

Site Preparation Tractors/Loaders/Back
hoes

Diesel Average 4.00 5.00 84.0 0.37

Site Preparation Other Construction
Equipment

Diesel Average 1.00 3.00 150 0.42

Grading Excavators Diesel Average 1.00 7.00 36.0 0.38

Grading Graders Diesel Average 1.00 7.00 148 0.41

Grading Rubber Tired Dozers Diesel Average 1.00 7.00 367 0.40

Grading Tractors/Loaders/Back
hoes

Diesel Average 3.00 5.00 84.0 0.37

Grading Other Construction
Equipment

Diesel Average 1.00 3.00 150 0.42

Building Construction Cranes Diesel Average 1.00 7.00 367 0.29

Building Construction Forklifts Diesel Average 3.00 5.00 82.0 0.20

Building Construction Generator Sets Diesel Average 1.00 7.00 14.0 0.74

Building Construction Tractors/Loaders/Back
hoes

Diesel Average 3.00 5.00 84.0 0.37

Building Construction Welders Diesel Average 1.00 7.00 46.0 0.45

Paving Pavers Diesel Average 2.00 7.00 81.0 0.42

Paving Paving Equipment Diesel Average 2.00 5.00 89.0 0.36

Paving Rollers Diesel Average 2.00 7.00 36.0 0.38

Architectural Coating Air Compressors Diesel Average 1.00 6.00 37.0 0.48

5.3. Construction Vehicles

5.3.1. Unmitigated



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

38 / 51

Phase Name Trip Type One-Way Trips per Day Miles per Trip Vehicle Mix

Site Preparation — — — —

Site Preparation Worker 20.0 18.5 LDA,LDT1,LDT2

Site Preparation Vendor — 10.2 HHDT,MHDT

Site Preparation Hauling 0.00 20.0 HHDT

Site Preparation Onsite truck — — HHDT

Grading — — — —

Grading Worker 17.5 18.5 LDA,LDT1,LDT2

Grading Vendor — 10.2 HHDT,MHDT

Grading Hauling 113 20.0 HHDT

Grading Onsite truck — — HHDT

Building Construction — — — —

Building Construction Worker 108 18.5 LDA,LDT1,LDT2

Building Construction Vendor 16.0 10.2 HHDT,MHDT

Building Construction Hauling 0.00 20.0 HHDT

Building Construction Onsite truck — — HHDT

Paving — — — —

Paving Worker 15.0 18.5 LDA,LDT1,LDT2

Paving Vendor — 10.2 HHDT,MHDT

Paving Hauling 0.77 20.0 HHDT

Paving Onsite truck — — HHDT

Architectural Coating — — — —

Architectural Coating Worker 21.6 18.5 LDA,LDT1,LDT2

Architectural Coating Vendor — 10.2 HHDT,MHDT

Architectural Coating Hauling 0.00 20.0 HHDT

Architectural Coating Onsite truck — — HHDT

Linear, Grubbing & Land Clearing — — — —

Linear, Grubbing & Land Clearing Worker 7.50 18.5 LDA,LDT1,LDT2



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

39 / 51

Linear, Grubbing & Land Clearing Vendor 0.00 10.2 HHDT,MHDT

Linear, Grubbing & Land Clearing Hauling 0.00 20.0 HHDT

Linear, Grubbing & Land Clearing Onsite truck — — HHDT

Linear, Grading & Excavation — — — —

Linear, Grading & Excavation Worker 32.5 18.5 LDA,LDT1,LDT2

Linear, Grading & Excavation Vendor 1.00 10.2 HHDT,MHDT

Linear, Grading & Excavation Hauling 0.00 20.0 HHDT

Linear, Grading & Excavation Onsite truck — — HHDT

Linear, Drainage, Utilities, &
Sub-Grade

— — — —

Linear, Drainage, Utilities, &
Sub-Grade

Worker 27.5 18.5 LDA,LDT1,LDT2

Linear, Drainage, Utilities, &
Sub-Grade

Vendor 0.00 10.2 HHDT,MHDT

Linear, Drainage, Utilities, &
Sub-Grade

Hauling 0.00 20.0 HHDT

Linear, Drainage, Utilities, &
Sub-Grade

Onsite truck — — HHDT

Linear, Paving — — — —

Linear, Paving Worker 20.0 18.5 LDA,LDT1,LDT2

Linear, Paving Vendor 0.00 10.2 HHDT,MHDT

Linear, Paving Hauling 0.77 20.0 HHDT

Linear, Paving Onsite truck — — HHDT

5.4. Vehicles

5.4.1. Construction Vehicle Control Strategies

Non-applicable. No control strategies activated by user.

5.5. Architectural Coatings



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

40 / 51

Parking Area Coated (sq ft)Phase Name Residential Interior Area
Coated (sq ft)

Residential Exterior Area
Coated (sq ft)

Non-Residential Interior Area
Coated (sq ft)

Non-Residential Exterior Area
Coated (sq ft)

Architectural Coating 15,975 5,325 0.00 0.00 5,227

5.6. Dust Mitigation

5.6.1. Construction Earthmoving Activities

Phase Name Material Imported (cy) Material Exported (cy) Acres Graded (acres) Material Demolished (sq. ft.) Acres Paved (acres)

Linear, Grubbing & Land
Clearing

— — 0.32 0.00 —

Linear, Grading & Excavation 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 —

Linear, Drainage, Utilities, &
Sub-Grade

— — 0.32 0.00 —

Site Preparation — — 26.3 0.00 —

Grading — 45,000 8.00 0.00 —

Paving 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.32

5.6.2. Construction Earthmoving Control Strategies

Non-applicable. No control strategies activated by user.

5.7. Construction Paving

Land Use Area Paved (acres) % Asphalt

Apartments Mid Rise — 0%

Parking Lot 2.00 100%

Road Construction 0.32 100%

5.8. Construction Electricity Consumption and Emissions Factors

kWh per Year and Emission Factor (lb/MWh)
Year kWh per Year CO2 CH4 N2O



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

41 / 51

2027 103 457 0.03 < 0.005

2028 0.00 457 0.03 < 0.005

2029 0.00 457 0.03 < 0.005

5.9. Operational Mobile Sources

5.9.1. Unmitigated

Land Use Type Trips/Weekday Trips/Saturday Trips/Sunday Trips/Year VMT/Weekday VMT/Saturday VMT/Sunday VMT/Year

Apartments Mid
Rise

722 722 722 263,512 10,146 10,146 10,146 3,703,455

Parking Lot 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

5.10. Operational Area Sources

5.10.1. Hearths

5.10.1.1. Unmitigated

Hearth Type Unmitigated (number)

Apartments Mid Rise —

Wood Fireplaces 0

Gas Fireplaces 0

Propane Fireplaces 0

Electric Fireplaces 0

No Fireplaces 150

Conventional Wood Stoves 0

Catalytic Wood Stoves 0

Non-Catalytic Wood Stoves 0

Pellet Wood Stoves 0



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

42 / 51

5.10.2. Architectural Coatings

Residential Interior Area Coated (sq
ft)

Residential Exterior Area Coated (sq
ft)

Non-Residential Interior Area Coated
(sq ft)

Non-Residential Exterior Area
Coated (sq ft)

Parking Area Coated (sq ft)

69413 46,854 0.00 0.00 5,227

5.10.3. Landscape Equipment

Season Unit Value

Snow Days day/yr 0.00

Summer Days day/yr 180

5.11. Operational Energy Consumption

5.11.1. Unmitigated

Electricity (kWh/yr) and CO2 and CH4 and N2O and Natural Gas (kBTU/yr)
Land Use Electricity (kWh/yr) CO2 CH4 N2O Natural Gas (kBTU/yr)

Apartments Mid Rise 848,874 457 0.0330 0.0040 1,933,922

Parking Lot 76,317 457 0.0330 0.0040 0.00

5.12. Operational Water and Wastewater Consumption

5.12.1. Unmitigated

Land Use Indoor Water (gal/year) Outdoor Water (gal/year)

Apartments Mid Rise 6,101,066 981,696

Parking Lot 0.00 0.00

5.13. Operational Waste Generation



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

43 / 51

5.13.1. Unmitigated

Land Use Waste (ton/year) Cogeneration (kWh/year)

Apartments Mid Rise 111 —

Parking Lot 0.00 —

5.14. Operational Refrigeration and Air Conditioning Equipment

5.14.1. Unmitigated

Land Use Type Equipment Type Refrigerant GWP Quantity (kg) Operations Leak Rate Service Leak Rate Times Serviced

Apartments Mid Rise Average room A/C &
Other residential A/C
and heat pumps

R-410A 2,088 < 0.005 2.50 2.50 10.0

Apartments Mid Rise Household
refrigerators and/or
freezers

R-134a 1,430 0.12 0.60 0.00 1.00

5.15. Operational Off-Road Equipment

5.15.1. Unmitigated

Equipment Type Fuel Type Engine Tier Number per Day Hours Per Day Horsepower Load Factor

5.16. Stationary Sources

5.16.1. Emergency Generators and Fire Pumps

Equipment Type Fuel Type Number per Day Hours per Day Hours per Year Horsepower Load Factor

5.16.2. Process Boilers

Equipment Type Fuel Type Number Boiler Rating (MMBtu/hr) Daily Heat Input (MMBtu/day) Annual Heat Input (MMBtu/yr)



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

44 / 51

5.17. User Defined

Equipment Type Fuel Type

5.18. Vegetation

5.18.1. Land Use Change

5.18.1.1. Unmitigated

Vegetation Land Use Type Vegetation Soil Type Initial Acres Final Acres

5.18.1. Biomass Cover Type

5.18.1.1. Unmitigated

Biomass Cover Type Initial Acres Final Acres

5.18.2. Sequestration

5.18.2.1. Unmitigated

Tree Type Number Electricity Saved (kWh/year) Natural Gas Saved (btu/year)

6. Climate Risk Detailed Report

6.1. Climate Risk Summary

Cal-Adapt midcentury 2040–2059 average projections for four hazards are reported below for your project location. These are under Representation Concentration Pathway (RCP) 8.5 which
assumes GHG emissions will continue to rise strongly through 2050 and then plateau around 2100.

Climate Hazard Result for Project Location Unit

Temperature and Extreme Heat 23.4 annual days of extreme heat

Extreme Precipitation 0.00 annual days with precipitation above 20 mm



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

45 / 51

Sea Level Rise — meters of inundation depth

Wildfire 0.00 annual hectares burned

Temperature and Extreme Heat data are for grid cell in which your project are located. The projection is based on the 98th historical percentile of daily maximum/minimum temperatures from
observed historical data (32 climate model ensemble from Cal-Adapt, 2040–2059 average under RCP 8.5). Each grid cell is 6 kilometers (km) by 6 km, or 3.7 miles (mi) by 3.7 mi.
Extreme Precipitation data are for the grid cell in which your project are located. The threshold of 20 mm is equivalent to about ¾ an inch of rain, which would be light to moderate rainfall if
received over a full day or heavy rain if received over a period of 2 to 4 hours. Each grid cell is 6 kilometers (km) by 6 km, or 3.7 miles (mi) by 3.7 mi.
Sea Level Rise data are for the grid cell in which your project are located. The projections are from Radke et al. (2017), as reported in Cal-Adapt (Radke et al., 2017, CEC-500-2017-008), and
consider inundation location and depth for the San Francisco Bay, the Sacramento-San Joaquin River Delta and California coast resulting different increments of sea level rise coupled with
extreme storm events. Users may select from four scenarios to view the range in potential inundation depth for the grid cell. The four scenarios are: No rise, 0.5 meter, 1.0 meter, 1.41 meters
Wildfire data are for the grid cell in which your project are located. The projections are from UC Davis, as reported in Cal-Adapt (2040–2059 average under RCP 8.5), and consider historical data
of climate, vegetation, population density, and large (> 400 ha) fire history. Users may select from four model simulations to view the range in potential wildfire probabilities for the grid cell. The
four simulations make different assumptions about expected rainfall and temperature are: Warmer/drier (HadGEM2-ES), Cooler/wetter (CNRM-CM5), Average conditions (CanESM2), Range of
different rainfall and temperature possibilities (MIROC5). Each grid cell is 6 kilometers (km) by 6 km, or 3.7 miles (mi) by 3.7 mi.

6.2. Initial Climate Risk Scores

Climate Hazard Exposure Score Sensitivity Score Adaptive Capacity Score Vulnerability Score

Temperature and Extreme Heat 1 0 0 N/A

Extreme Precipitation N/A N/A N/A N/A

Sea Level Rise N/A N/A N/A N/A

Wildfire N/A N/A N/A N/A

Flooding N/A N/A N/A N/A

Drought 0 0 0 N/A

Snowpack Reduction N/A N/A N/A N/A

Air Quality Degradation N/A N/A N/A N/A

The sensitivity score reflects the extent to which a project would be adversely affected by exposure to a climate hazard. Exposure is rated on a scale of 1 to 5, with a score of 5 representing the
greatest exposure.
The adaptive capacity of a project refers to its ability to manage and reduce vulnerabilities from projected climate hazards. Adaptive capacity is rated on a scale of 1 to 5, with a score of 5
representing the greatest ability to adapt.
The overall vulnerability scores are calculated based on the potential impacts and adaptive capacity assessments for each hazard. Scores do not include implementation of climate risk reduction
measures.

6.3. Adjusted Climate Risk Scores

Climate Hazard Exposure Score Sensitivity Score Adaptive Capacity Score Vulnerability Score

Temperature and Extreme Heat 1 1 1 2



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

46 / 51

Extreme Precipitation N/A N/A N/A N/A

Sea Level Rise N/A N/A N/A N/A

Wildfire N/A N/A N/A N/A

Flooding N/A N/A N/A N/A

Drought 1 1 1 2

Snowpack Reduction N/A N/A N/A N/A

Air Quality Degradation N/A N/A N/A N/A

The sensitivity score reflects the extent to which a project would be adversely affected by exposure to a climate hazard. Exposure is rated on a scale of 1 to 5, with a score of 5 representing the
greatest exposure.
The adaptive capacity of a project refers to its ability to manage and reduce vulnerabilities from projected climate hazards. Adaptive capacity is rated on a scale of 1 to 5, with a score of 5
representing the greatest ability to adapt.
The overall vulnerability scores are calculated based on the potential impacts and adaptive capacity assessments for each hazard. Scores include implementation of climate risk reduction
measures.

6.4. Climate Risk Reduction Measures

7. Health and Equity Details

7.1. CalEnviroScreen 4.0 Scores

The maximum CalEnviroScreen score is 100. A high score (i.e., greater than 50) reflects a higher pollution burden compared to other census tracts in the state.

Indicator Result for Project Census Tract

Exposure Indicators —

AQ-Ozone 88.7

AQ-PM 7.34

AQ-DPM 43.4

Drinking Water 45.4

Lead Risk Housing 1.31

Pesticides 0.00

Toxic Releases 3.08

Traffic 64.6

Effect Indicators —



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

47 / 51

CleanUp Sites 0.00

Groundwater 0.00

Haz Waste Facilities/Generators 43.3

Impaired Water Bodies 0.00

Solid Waste 0.00

Sensitive Population —

Asthma 20.9

Cardio-vascular 16.5

Low Birth Weights 20.3

Socioeconomic Factor Indicators —

Education 25.9

Housing 86.8

Linguistic 7.38

Poverty 21.5

Unemployment 4.23

7.2. Healthy Places Index Scores

The maximum Health Places Index score is 100. A high score (i.e., greater than 50) reflects healthier community conditions compared to other census tracts in the state.

Indicator Result for Project Census Tract

Economic —

Above Poverty 47.56833055

Employed 15.56525087

Median HI 74.56691903

Education —

Bachelor's or higher 65.96945977

High school enrollment 100

Preschool enrollment 48.45374054

Transportation —



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

48 / 51

Auto Access 37.4566919

Active commuting 25.81804183

Social —

2-parent households 97.56191454

Voting 86.88566662

Neighborhood —

Alcohol availability 82.80508148

Park access 2.194276915

Retail density 35.17259079

Supermarket access 45.92583087

Tree canopy 17.8108559

Housing —

Homeownership 83.62633132

Housing habitability 22.35339407

Low-inc homeowner severe housing cost burden 25.38175286

Low-inc renter severe housing cost burden 6.274862056

Uncrowded housing 70.21686129

Health Outcomes —

Insured adults 97.45925831

Arthritis 0.0

Asthma ER Admissions 80.6

High Blood Pressure 0.0

Cancer (excluding skin) 0.0

Asthma 0.0

Coronary Heart Disease 0.0

Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease 0.0

Diagnosed Diabetes 0.0

Life Expectancy at Birth 94.6



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

49 / 51

Cognitively Disabled 39.7

Physically Disabled 49.3

Heart Attack ER Admissions 64.0

Mental Health Not Good 0.0

Chronic Kidney Disease 0.0

Obesity 0.0

Pedestrian Injuries 19.6

Physical Health Not Good 0.0

Stroke 0.0

Health Risk Behaviors —

Binge Drinking 0.0

Current Smoker 0.0

No Leisure Time for Physical Activity 0.0

Climate Change Exposures —

Wildfire Risk 0.0

SLR Inundation Area 0.0

Children 79.8

Elderly 0.9

English Speaking 70.5

Foreign-born 10.7

Outdoor Workers 98.2

Climate Change Adaptive Capacity —

Impervious Surface Cover 47.2

Traffic Density 47.5

Traffic Access 23.0

Other Indices —

Hardship 34.9

Other Decision Support —



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

50 / 51

2016 Voting 92.5

7.3. Overall Health & Equity Scores

Metric Result for Project Census Tract

CalEnviroScreen 4.0 Score for Project Location (a) 7.00

Healthy Places Index Score for Project Location (b) 56.0

Project Located in a Designated Disadvantaged Community (Senate Bill 535) No

Project Located in a Low-Income Community (Assembly Bill 1550) No

Project Located in a Community Air Protection Program Community (Assembly Bill 617) No

a: The maximum CalEnviroScreen score is 100. A high score (i.e., greater than 50) reflects a higher pollution burden compared to other census tracts in the state.
b: The maximum Health Places Index score is 100. A high score (i.e., greater than 50) reflects healthier community conditions compared to other census tracts in the state.

7.4. Health & Equity Measures

No Health & Equity Measures selected.

7.5. Evaluation Scorecard

Health & Equity Evaluation Scorecard not completed.

7.6. Health & Equity Custom Measures

No Health & Equity Custom Measures created.

8. User Changes to Default Data

Screen Justification

Land Use The residential development is proposed on 5-acres or 217,800 square feet of vacant land to
include seven permanent three-story tall residential buildings, outdoor amenity space including
a Community Center and swimming pool, and on-site parking. These on-site improvements are
represented under "Residential" and "Parking" land uses. Given CalEEMod does not have a
separate recreational land use for a community center, the facilities's 3,353 square feet are
added to the total building area under "Residential". Similarly, the swimming pool square
footage (948 sf) is added to the total building area for "Residential" because CalEEMod's
recreational swimming pool land use only represents buildings associated with the land use,
such as restrooms/changing rooms. The total lot acreage is modified to account for these
added on-site usage (i.e., Community Center and swimming pool). Off-site development of Via



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments Detailed Report, 4/7/2025

51 / 51

Vail adjacent to the property's eastern frontage is proposed and reflect under "Linear" land use.

Construction: Construction Phases The project is estimated to begin construction in February 2027 and be operation by 2029.

Operations: Vehicle Data The Project-specific traffic report projects the residential development will generate 772 daily
vehicle trips. 
To calculate weekday trips rate, daily vehicle trips were divided by "Apartment Mid Rise" size to
generate a rate of 4.813 size per day.

Construction: Off-Road Equipment "Other Construction Equipment" accounts for water trucks irrigating the site for dust control
measures, pursuant to SCAQMD Rule 403. 
Adjusted CalEEMod construction equipment duration assuming that primary equipment
operate an average of 7 hrs/day, material-handling equipment operate an avg. of 5 hrs/day, and
other construction equipment operate an avg. of 3 hrs/day.

Construction: Dust From Material Movement Development of the residential parcel would result in the export of 45,000 CY of material.
Grading and excavation of Via Vail would result in a balanced site, meaning the amount of
material imported and exported is the same.

Construction: Trips and VMT The Project's total paved area is 2 acres for parking and 0.32 acres for Via Vail. 
The total paved area is then converted from ac to sf and multiplied by the average depth of
pavement (0.25 ft). 
The value is converted to cubic yards and divided by CalEEMod default value of hauling trips
(16 cubic yards per hauling trip). 
The total paving duration for parking and Via Vail is 75 days, which divides the total number of
hauling trips, resulting in the Project generating 0.773 hauling trips per day during the two
paving phases.

Operations: Hearths None of the residential units would include a fireplace or wood stove.

Operations: Architectural Coatings Added residential interior to reflect the total building area.



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  B 

 

Appendix B 
Biological Resources Assessment



VIA VAIL 3 PROJECT

Biological Resources Assessment & Coachella Valley
Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Compliance Report

RIVERSIDE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Prepared for:
Terra Nova Planning and Research

42635 Melanie Place, Suite 101
Palm Desert, CA  92211
Nicole Criste, Principal
Phone: (760) 568-9918

Prepared by:
WSP USA Environment & Infrastructure Inc.

862 E Hospitality Ln #350
San Bernardino, CA 92408

(909) 888-1106
WSP Job # US-EI-P585_1.9734

Principal Field Investigator:
Dale Hameister

Report Author:
Dale Hameister

Survey: May 2024



Via Vail 3 Apartment Homes Project
Biological Resources Assessment
May 2024

Page ii

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0 INTRODUCTION.............................................................................................................1

2.0 PROJECT LOCATION / DESCRIPTION.........................................................................1

3.0 REGULATORY FRAMEWORK.......................................................................................1
3.1 Federal ................................................................................................................1
3.2 State ....................................................................................................................2
3.3 Coachella Valley Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan..............................4

4.0 METHODS ......................................................................................................................5
4.1 Literature Review.................................................................................................5
4.2 Field Assessment.................................................................................................5

5.0 RESULTS .......................................................................................................................5
5.1 Coachella Valley Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan..............................5
5.2 Weather Conditions .............................................................................................6
5.3 Topography and Soils ..........................................................................................6
5.4 Vegetation............................................................................................................6
5.5 Wildlife .................................................................................................................6
5.6 Special Status Biological Resources....................................................................6
5.7 Discussion of the Special-status Species Tables ...............................................15
5.7.1 CVMSHCP Covered Species.............................................................................15
5.7.2 Potentially Occurring Species Not Covered Under the CVMSHCP and USFWS

IPAC Species ....................................................................................15

6.0 DISCUSSION................................................................................................................16
6.1 Protection of Nesting Birds.................................................................................16
6.2 Burrowing Owl ...................................................................................................16

7.0 CONCLUSION ..............................................................................................................16

8.0 LITERATURE CITED AND REFERENCES ..................................................................17



Via Vail 3 Apartment Homes Project
Biological Resources Assessment
May 2024

Page iii

LIST OF TABLES
Table 1. Special Status Plants.................................................................................................7
Table 2. Special Status Vegetation Communities ....................................................................8
Table 3-5. Special Status Wildlife ...............................................................................................9

LIST OF APPENDICES
Appendix A. Figures

Figure 1. Project Location
Figure 2. USGS Topo
Figure 3. Site Vicinity
Figure 4. Soils
Figure 5. Vegetation
Figure 6. CVMSHCP

Appendix B. Plants and Vertebrate Wildlife Observed
Appendix C. Site Photos
Appendix D. Coachella Valley Native Plants Recommended for Landscaping
Appendix E. Prohibited Invasive Ornamental Plants
Appendix F. USFWS IPaC Report



Via Vail 3 Apartment Homes Project
Biological Resources Assessment
May 2024

Page 1

1.0 INTRODUCTION
At the request of Terra Nova Planning and Research (Client), this biological resource assessment
report (BRAR) was prepared by WSP USA Environment & Infrastructure Inc. (WSP) for the
proposed Via Vail 3 Apartment Homes Project (project site/project), located in the city of Rancho
Mirage, Riverside County., California. Information contained herein is intended to be used for
compliance with the Coachella Valley Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan (CVMSHCP),
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), as well as federal and California Endangered
Species Acts.
2.0 PROJECT LOCATION / DESCRIPTION
The purpose of the proposed project is to development of apartment homes. To document the
current biological resources within the project, a general biological resources assessment is
required. This will provide a detailed assessment of the existing conditions. The project is located
in Parcel 3, generally located north of B Street, southwest of Via Vail and east of Key Largo
Avenue, in the city of Rancho Mirage, Riverside County. (Appendix A – Figure 1). Specifically,
the project site is located within Section 30; Township 4 South; Range 6 East as shown on the
United States Geological Survey (USGS) Cathedral City, California, 7.5-minute topographic
quadrangle (Appendix A – Figure 2). The geographic coordinates near the approximate center of
the project area are 33.795865° north latitude and -116.392824° west longitude. The elevation of
the project site ranges from approximately 296 to 312 feet above mean sea level.
3.0 REGULATORY FRAMEWORK
3.1 Federal
Endangered Species Act (ESA) – The United States Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) and the
National Marine Fisheries Service are the designated federal agencies accountable for
administering the ESA. The ESA defines species as “endangered” or “threatened” and provides
regulatory protection at the federal level.

 Section 9 of the ESA prohibits the “take” of listed (i.e., endangered or threatened) species.
The ESA’s definition of take is “to harass, harm, pursue, hunt, shoot, wound, kill, trap, capture,
collect, or attempt to engage in such conduct.” Recognizing that take cannot always be
avoided, Section 10(a) includes provisions for take that is incidental to, but not the purpose
of, otherwise lawful activities. Specifically, Section 10(a) (1) (A) permits (authorized take
permits) are issued for scientific purposes. Section 10(a) (1) (B) permits (incidental take
permits) are issued for the incidental take of listed species that does not jeopardize the
species.

 Section 7 (a) (2) requires federal agencies to evaluate the proposed project with respect to
listed or proposed listed, species and their respective critical habitat (if applicable). Federal
agencies must employ programs for the conservation of listed species and are prohibited from
authorizing, funding, or carrying out any action that would jeopardize a listed species or
destroy or modify its “critical habitat.”

As defined by the ESA, “individuals, organizations, states, local governments, and other non-
federal entities are affected by the designation of critical habitat only if their actions occur on
federal lands, require a federal permit, license, or other authorization, or involve federal funding.
Section 10(a) of the ESA authorizes the issuance of incidental take permits and establishes
standards for the content of habitat conservation plans (see Section 3.3 below).
Migratory Bird Treaty Act (MBTA) – Treaties signed by the U.S., Great Britain, Mexico, Japan,
and the countries of the former Soviet Union make it unlawful to pursue, capture, kill, and/or



Via Vail 3 Apartment Homes Project
Biological Resources Assessment
May 2024

Page 2

possess, or attempt to engage in any such conduct to any migratory bird, nest, egg or parts thereof
listed in the document. As with the ESA, the MBTA also allows the Secretary of the Interior to
grant permits for the incidental take of these protected migratory bird species.
National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) – If portions of a proposed project could fall under the
jurisdiction of a federal agency (i.e., U.S. Bureau of Reclamation, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers)
they are subject to environmental review pursuant to NEPA. NEPA establishes certain criteria
that must be adhered to for any project that is “financed, assisted, conducted or approved” by a
federal agency. The federal lead agency is required to “determine whether the proposed action
will significantly affect the quality of the human environment.”
Section 404 of the Clean Water Act – This section of the Clean Water Act, administered by the
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), regulates the discharge of dredged and fill material into
“waters of the United States.” The USACE has created a series of nationwide permits that
authorize certain activities within waters of the U.S. provided that the proposed activity does not
exceed the impact threshold of 0.5 acre for nationwide permits, takes steps to avoid impacts to
wetlands and other designated U.S. waters where practicable, minimizes potential impacts to
wetlands, and provides compensation for any remaining, unavoidable impacts through activities
to restore or create wetlands. For projects that exceed the threshold for nationwide permits,
individual permits under Section 404 can be issued. An inspection of the project site to determine
presence or absence of potential jurisdictional wetlands and waters was conducted during the
assessment for this project.
3.2 State
California Endangered Species Act (CESA) – This legislation is similar to the federal ESA, but it
is administered by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW – formerly Department
of Fish and Game). The CDFW is authorized to enter into “memoranda of understanding” with
individuals, public agencies, and other institutions to import, export, take, or possess state-listed
species for scientific, educational, or management purposes. CESA prohibits the take of state-
listed species except as otherwise provided in state law. Unlike the federal ESA, the CESA applies
the take prohibitions to species currently petitioned for state-listing status (candidate species).
State lead agencies are required to consult with CDFW to ensure that actions are not likely to
jeopardize the continued existence of any state-listed species or result in the destruction or
degradation of occupied habitat.
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) – The basic goal of CEQA is to maintain a high-
quality environment now and in the future. The specific goals are for California's public agencies
to:

1) identify the significant environmental effects of their actions; and, either
2) avoid those significant environmental effects, where feasible; or
3) mitigate those significant environmental effects, where feasible.

CEQA applies to "projects" proposed to be undertaken or requiring approval by state and local
government agencies. Projects are activities that have the potential to have a physical impact on
the environment and may include the enactment of zoning ordinances, the issuance of conditional
use permits and the approval of tentative subdivision maps. Where a project requires approvals
from more than one public agency, CEQA requires one of these public agencies to serve as the
"lead agency."
A "lead agency" must complete the environmental review process required by CEQA. The most
basic steps of the environmental review process are to:

4) Determine if the activity is a "project" subject to CEQA.



Via Vail 3 Apartment Homes Project
Biological Resources Assessment
May 2024

Page 3

5) Determine if the "project" is exempt from CEQA.
6) Perform an Initial Study to identify the environmental impacts of the project and determine

whether the identified impacts are "significant". Based on its findings of "significance", the
lead agency prepares one of the following environmental review documents:
a) Negative Declaration if it finds no "significant" impacts.
b) Mitigated Negative Declaration if it finds "significant" impacts but revises the project

to avoid or mitigate those significant impacts.
c) Environmental Impact Report (EIR) if it finds "significant" impacts.

While there is no ironclad definition of "significance", Article 5 of the State CEQA Guidelines
(California Natural Resources Agency 2014) provides criteria to lead agencies in determining
whether a project may have significant effects.
The Native Plant Protection Act (NPPA) – The NPPA includes measures to preserve, protect, and
enhance rare and endangered native plant species. Definitions for “rare and endangered” are
different from those contained in CESA. However, the list of species afforded protection in
accordance with the NPPA includes those listed as rare and endangered under CESA. NPPA
provides limitations on take as follows: “no person will import into this state, or take, possess, or
sell within this state” any rare or endangered native plants, except in accordance with the
provisions outlined in the act. If a landowner is notified by CDFW, pursuant to section 1903.5 that
a rare or endangered plant is growing on their property, the landowner shall notify CDFW at least
10 days prior to the changing of land uses to allow CDFW to salvage the plants.
Natural Community Conservation Planning (NCCP) Program – A NCCP, which is managed by
the CDFW, is intended to conserve multiple species and their associated habitats, while also
providing for compatible use of private lands. Through local planning, the NCCP planning process
is designed to provide protection for wildlife and natural habitats before the environment becomes
so fragmented or degraded by development that species listing are required under CESA. Instead
of conserving small, often isolated “islands” of habitat for just one listed species, agencies, local
jurisdictions, and/or other interested parties have an opportunity through the NCCP to work
cooperatively to develop plans that consider broad areas of land for conservation that would
provide habitat for many species. Partners enroll in the programs, and by mutual consent, areas
considered to have high conservation priorities or values are set aside and protected from
development. Partners may also agree to study, monitor, and develop management plans for
these high value “reserve” areas. The NCCP provides an avenue for fostering economic growth
by allowing approved development in areas with lower conservation value. The project site is in
a combined Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP) / NCCP, see Section 3.3.
Sections 1600-1603 of the State Fish and Game Code – The California Fish and Game (Wildlife)
Code, pursuant to Sections 1600 through 1603, regulates all diversions, obstructions, or changes
to the natural flow or bed, channel, or bank of any river, stream, or lake that supports fish or
wildlife resources. Under state code, CDFW jurisdiction is assessed in the field based on one, or
a combination, of the following criteria:

7) At minimum, intermittent, and seasonal flow through a bed or channel with banks and that
also supports fish or other aquatic life.

8) A watercourse having a surface or subsurface flow regime that supports or that has
supported riparian vegetation.

9) Hydrogeomorphically distinct top-of-embankment to top-of-embankment limits.
10) Outer ground cover and canopy extents of, typically, riparian associated vegetation

species that would be sustained by surface and/or subsurface waters of the watercourse.



Via Vail 3 Apartment Homes Project
Biological Resources Assessment
May 2024

Page 4

The CDFW requires that public and private interests apply for a “Streambed Alteration
Agreement” for any project that may impact a streambed or wetland. The CDFW has maintained
a “no net loss” policy regarding impacts to streams and waterways and requires replacement of
lost habitats on at least a 1:1 ratio.
Section 2081 of the State Fish and Game Code – Under Section 2081 of the California Fish and
Game Code, the CDFW authorizes individuals or public agencies to import, export, take, or
possess state endangered, threatened, or candidate species in California through permits or
memoranda of understanding. These acts, which are otherwise prohibited, may be authorized
through permits or “memoranda of understanding” if (1) the take is incidental to otherwise lawful
activities, (2) impacts of the take are minimized and fully mitigated, (3) the permit is consistent
with regulations adopted in accordance with any recovery plan for the species in question, and
(4) the applicant ensures suitable funding to implement the measures required by the CDFW. The
CDFW shall make this determination based on the best scientific information reasonably available
and shall include consideration of the species’ capability to survive and reproduce.
Section 3505.5 of the State Fish and Game Code – This section makes it unlawful to take,
possess, or destroy any birds in the order Falconiformes or Strigiformes (birds-of-prey, e.g.: owls,
hawks, eagles, etc.) or to take, possess, or destroy the nest or eggs of any bird-of-prey.
Clean Water Act – The Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) regulates activities
pursuant to Section 401(a)(1) of the Clean Water Act (CWA). Section 401 of the CWA specifies
that certification from the State is required for any applicant requesting a federal license or permit
to conduct any activity including, but not limited to, the construction or operation of facilities that
may result in any discharge into navigable waters. Through the Porter Cologne Water Quality
Control Act, the RWQCB asserts jurisdiction over Waters of the State of California (WSC) which
is generally the same as WUS but may also include isolated waterbodies. The Porter Cologne
Act defines WSC as “surface water or ground water, including saline waters, within the boundaries
of the state”.
3.3 Coachella Valley Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan
Finalized in October 2008, and amended in 2016, the CVMSHCP is a comprehensive regional
plan that addresses the conservation needs of 27 species of native flora and fauna and 24 natural
vegetation communities occurring throughout the Coachella Valley region of western Riverside
County, California. Permits for the CVMSHCP were issued by the CDFW on September 9, 2008
and the United States Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) on October 1, 2008 (TE104604-0).
Managed by the Coachella Valley Conservation Commission (CVCC), CVMSHCP participants
include Riverside County, the Cities of Cathedral City, Coachella, Desert Hot Springs, Indian
Wells, Indio, La Quinta, Palm Desert, Palm Springs, Rancho Mirage, as well as the Coachella
Valley Association of Governments (CVAG), Coachella Valley Water District, Imperial Irrigation
District, Mission Springs Water District and the California Department of Transportation (CVAG
2008, 2016).
The CVMSHCP serves two primary purposes: Balancing environmental protection and economic
development objectives in the CVMSHCP planning area and simplifying compliance with
endangered species related laws. The CVMSHCP accomplishes this by conserving
unfragmented habitat to permanently protect and secure viable populations of the covered 27
species within the planning area. The covered species include those plants and animals that are
either currently listed as threatened or endangered, are proposed for listing, or are believed by an
appointed Scientific Advisory Committee, USFWS and CDFW, to have a high probability of being
proposed for listing in the future if not conserved by the CVMSHCP. The goal of the CVMSHCP
is to meet the requirements of the ESA and CESA, while at the same time allowing for the
economic growth (land development) within the plan area without significant delay or hidden



Via Vail 3 Apartment Homes Project
Biological Resources Assessment
May 2024

Page 5

costs. Under the CVMSHCP, land development/mitigation fees are collected from all new
development projects occurring in the plan area. The purpose of this fee is to support the
assembly of a preserve system for the covered species and natural vegetation communities within
areas identified as having high conservation value (CVAG 2008).
4.0 METHODS
4.1 Literature Review
In preparation for the field surveys, a literature search was conducted to identify special status
biological resources known from the vicinity of the project site. In the context of this report, and
for the purpose of this assessment, vicinity is defined as areas within a 5-mile radius of the project
site.
The literature search included a review of the following documents:

 California Natural Diversity Data Base (CNDDB) RareFind 5 (CDFW 2024a)
 Special Animals List (CDFW 2024b)
 California Native Plant Society's (CNPS) Inventory of Rare, Threatened, and

Endangered Plants of California (CNPS 2023a)
 CVMSHCP (CVAG 2008)
 United States Department of Agriculture (USDA), Natural Resources Conservation

Service (NRCS). 2024. Web Soil Survey
 USGS 7.5’ Cathedral City. quadrangle (USGS 2021)

Scientific nomenclature for this document follows standard reference sources: For plant
communities, CVMSHCP (CVAG 2008), Sawyer et. al (2009), and/or Holland (1986); for flora,
Jepson eFlora (2022) and the USDA NRCS PLANTS Database (2022); for amphibians, reptiles,
and mammals, CDFW (2016); and for birds, California Bird Records Committee (2022).
4.2 Field Assessment
The field assessment was conducted on 18 April 2024 by WSP Senior Wildlife Biologist Dale
Hameister. On-site suitable habitat was assessed based on the presence of constituent habitat
elements (e.g., soils, vegetation, and topography) characteristic of the potentially occurring
special status biological resources determined by the literature review. The entire site and
adjacent properties were also assessed for burrowing owl (Athene cunicularia). Inaccessible
areas were scanned for burrowing owl habitat and sign (i.e., burrows & perches with whitewash)
with binoculars. All on-site flora and fauna observed or otherwise detected (e.g., vocalizations,
presence of scat, tracks, and/or bones) during the assessment were recorded in field notes and
are included in Appendix B. General weather and site conditions were also recorded at the
beginning and end of the survey. Temperatures and wind speeds were recorded with a handheld
Kestrel 2000 anemometer. Percent cloud cover was visually estimated.
5.0 RESULTS
The project site contains sandy soils the entire site comprises of highly disturbed creosote scrub.
There is an active dog park to the west and a commercial development to the north of the project
site. There is a small amount of undeveloped land to the south and east with residential
development beyond. MPeople were observed using the project site to walk their dogs and let
them run off leash. Representative site photos are included in Appendix C.
5.1 Coachella Valley Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan
The project site is located within the CVMSHCP fee area and the but is not located within or
adjacent to any Conservation Areas (Figure 4, Appendix A). The development of the project site



Via Vail 3 Apartment Homes Project
Biological Resources Assessment
May 2024

Page 6

will have no effect on any CVMSHCP Conservation Areas. The project site is 2.2 miles southeast
of the Thousand Palms Conservation Area.
5.2 Weather Conditions
Weather conditions during the field assessment were clear and warm. There was 40% cloud cover
with temperatures that ranged from 78 to 84 degrees Fahrenheit. Winds were calm with wind
speeds measured between 0 to 2 miles per hour.
5.3 Topography and Soils
The project site is very sandy and relatively flat with small undulating hills. One soil type, Myoma
fine sand has been mapped on the project site. (USDA, NRCS. 2024) (Appendix A - Figure 3).
Typically, Myoma soils are light olive gray, moderately alkaline fine and very fine sands to a depth
of about 31 inches. Below 31 inches they are strongly alkaline very fine sands.
The site does not contain active sand dunes or clay lenses.
5.4 Vegetation
The project site consists of sparse and disturbed creosote scrub. The entire property shows signs
of disturbance including tire tracks, dog prints and scat, trash, and human footprints. Shrubs
observed include creosote bush (Larrea tridentata), four-wing saltbush (Atriplex canescens), and
dyebush (Psorothamnus emoryi). Annual species observed include desert dicoria (Dicoria
canescens), Spanish needles (Palafoxia arida), narrow leaved forget me not (Johnstonella
angustifolia), fanleaf crinklemat (Tiquilia plicata), Sahara mustard (Brassica tournefortii), old han
schismus (Schismus barbatus).
5.5 Wildlife
Vertebrate wildlife directly observed and/or detected otherwise (e.g., scat, bones, tracks, feathers,
burrows, etc.) were typical to species common to the region (Appendix B). This included some
species common to desert scrub and/or developed areas of Coachella Valley. Wildlife observed
onsite includes American crow (Corvus brachyrhynchos), house finch (Haemorhous mexicanus),
verdin (Auriparus flaviceps), and Say's phoebe (Sayornis saya).
The number of species detected does not represent the total number of species that may occur
on the project site. Brief, one visit assessments are limited by the seasonal timing and short
duration of the survey period as well as the nocturnal, fossorial and/or migratory habits of many
animals. It had rained the night before the survey, so the sandy surface was wet.  There was not
much evidence of rodent burrows as the sandy nature of the site would not provide a good
burrowing substrate. No actively nesting birds were detected on or adjacent to the site during the
assessment.
5.6 Special Status Biological Resources
Some plant and/or animal taxa are designated as having special status due to declining
populations, limited geographic distributions and/or vulnerability to climate change, habitat loss
and/or fragmentation. Some have been listed as threatened or endangered by the USFWS or by
the CDFW and are protected by the federal and state ESAs. Others have been identified, and are
managed as sensitive by the USFWS, CDFW, or by private conservation organizations, including
the CNPS, but have not been formally listed as threatened or endangered. Impacts to such
species can still be considered significant under the CEQA, if not avoided, minimized and/or
mitigated by specific project design and implementation.
The literature review and field visit resulted in a list of 36 special status biological resources which
occur or potentially occur on the project site and/or vicinity (5-mile radius) of the project site.



Via Vail 3 Apartment Homes Project
Biological Resources Assessment
May 2024

Page 7

Tables 1-5 provide a summary of these resources, their current conservation status, habitat
associations and potential to occur on the project site. No species listed as threatened or
endangered were observed on the site.
Table 1. Special Status Plant Species

Species Protective Status Habitat Flowering
Period

Occurrence
Probability

Abronia villosa var. aurita
chaparral sand-verbena

F: None
C: None

CNPS: List 1B.1
State Rank: S2

MSHCP: No

Sandy areas in chaparral
and coastal sage scrub,
dunes; 75-1600 m (246-

5249 ft.) above mean sea
level (AMSL).

January -
August

Absent
Chaparral and sage

scrub habitats lacking.
Records within the

region may be
erroneous,

misidentifications of
common subspecies.

The common subs
species is present.

Taxonomy of species is
questionable [A.

Sanders pers. com]

Astragalus lentiginosus
var. coachellae

Coachella Valley
milkvetch

F: END
C: None

CNPS List: 1B.2
State Rank: S1
MSHCP: Yes

Sandy flats, washes,
alluvial fans, sand field,
dunes and dune edges;

windblown sand deposits
40-655 m (131-2182 ft.)
AMSL, a CA endemic.

February -
May

Low
Aeolian [wind-

deposited] sand habitat
is present, but highly

disturbed and isolated.
Records in the vicinity
include one from the

1990s and the
remaining from 1975.
Not observed during

the survey.

Astragalus tricarinatus
triple-ribbed milkvetch

F: END
C: None

CNPS List: 1B.2
State Rank: S2
MSHCP: Yes

Sandy or gravelly areas in
Joshua tree woodland &
Sonoran desert scrub,

450-1,190 m (1,476-3,904
ft.) AMSL.

February -
May

Absent
Habitat potentially
suitable but site is

below elevation for this
species.

Chorizanthe xanti var.
leucotheca

white-bracted
spineflower

F: None
C: None

CNPS List: 1B.2
State Rank: S3

MSHCP: No

Sandy or gravelly areas in
Mojave desert scrub,

pinyon-juniper woodland,
and coastal scrub; 300-
1200 m (984-4003 ft.)

AMSL.

April - June Absent
Habitat lacking

Euphorbia misera
cliff spurge

F: None
C: None

CNPS List: 2B.2
State Rank: S2

MSHCP: No

Rocky coastal bluff,
coastal scrub, Mojave

scrub; 10-500 m (33-1640
ft) AMSL.

December -
October

Absent
Rocky coastal bluff and

Mojave Desert scrub
habitat [cliffs] lacking
on-site, known from

adjacent steep cliffs of
Whitewater Cyn.  This

population has declined
over the years and may

now be extirpated.
Only a single individual

found during most
recent survey [CNPS
2018, CCH 2018, A.
Sanders pers. com.]



Via Vail 3 Apartment Homes Project
Biological Resources Assessment
May 2024

Page 8

Imperata brevifolia
California satintail

F: None
C: None

CNPS List: 2B.1
State Rank: S3

MSHCP: No

Coastal scrub, chaparral,
riparian scrub, Mojave
scrub, meadows and

seeps; 0-1215 m (0-3986
ft.) AMSL.

September -
May

Absent
No suitable moist

habitat onsite

Nemacaulis denudata var.
gracilis

slender cottonheads

F: None
C: None

CNPS: List 2B.2
State Rank: S2

MSHCP: No

Coastal and desert
dunes, in Sonoran Desert
scrub (sandy); -50 to 400
m (164-1312 ft.) AMSL.

April – May
(rarely March)

Low
Habitat marginal, sandy
soils are present, 1948
CNDDB record is ~4

mi. W of the site, along
Hwy. 111

Penstemon
pseudospectabilis ssp.

pseudospectabilis
desert beardtongue

F: None
C: None

CNPS List: 2B.2
State Rank: S3

MSHCP: No

Sandy or rocky washes in
Mojave Desert scrub and
Sonoran desert scrub; 80-

1953 m (262 – 6407 ft.)
AMSL.

January - May Absent
No suitable habitat

Petalonyx linearis
narrow-leaf sandpaper-

plant

F: None
C: None

CNPS List: 2B.3
State Rank: S3?

MSHCP: No

Sandy or rocky canyons
in Mojave and Sonoran

desert scrubs

(Jan-Feb)Mar-
May(Jun-Dec)

Absent
Closest CNDDB record

is ~5 mi. NE. of site
and is from 1879.

Saltugilia latimeri
Latimer's woodland-

gilia

F: None
C: None

CNPS: List 1B.2
Global Rank: G3
State Rank: S3

MSHCP: No

Rocky, sandy, often
granitic, sometimes
washes in chaparral,
Mojave desert scrub,
pinyon and juniper

woodland; 400-1900 m
(1312-6234 ft) AMSL.

March-June

Absent
(Suitable habitat

lacking, site below
known elevational
range of species)

Selaginella eremophila
desert spike-moss

F: None
C: None

CNPS: List 2B.2
State Rank: S2S3

MSHCP: No

Shaded areas in crevices
among rocks or on

gravelly soils in Sonoran
desert scrub; 200-900 m

(656-2953 ft.) AMSL.

June

Absent
(Site is fully exposed to
sun, shaded areas very

limited)

Table 2. Special Status Vegetation Communities

Community Protective Status
(F=Federal, C=California)

Occurrence
Probability

Desert Fan Palm Oasis
Woodland

F: ND
C: ND
State rank: S3.2
CVMSHCP: No

Absent
This habitat is not present on project site.

Southern Riparian Forest
F: ND
C: ND
State rank: S4
CVMSHCP: No

Absent
This habitat is not present on project site.



Via Vail 3 Apartment Homes Project
Biological Resources Assessment
May 2024

Page 9

Table 3. Special Status Invertebrates

Species Protective Status
(F=Federal, C=California) Habitat Occurrence

Probability

Bombus crotchii
Crotch’s bumble bee

F: C
C: C - END

State Rank: S2
CVMSHCP: No

Mainly coastal California east
to the Sierra-Cascade Crest

and south into Baja.

Absent
Most records are
from cismontane

(coastal and inland
valley) California.

Not expected on this
site unless there
were sufficient
flowering plants
favored by this

species.

Dinacoma caseyi
Casey’s June beetle

F: END
C: None

State rank: S1
MSHCP: No

Known from only two main
populations in the southern

Palm Springs area,
generally associated with Palm

Canyon Wash and its
associated floodplain.  Needs
soils that are not too rocky or

compacted and difficult to
burrow in.

Absent
The site is 4.8 miles

E of the currently
known range of the
species.  Site is not
located within the

historic range of the
species.

Danaus plexippus
Monarch Butterfly

F: C
C: CSC

State Rank: S2S3
CVMSHCP: No

Can be found in a variety of
areas where milkweed and

flowering plants are present;
milkweeds are necessary for

breeding

Absent
No milkweed present

on-site. Very little
remaining vegetation
for nectar sources.

Macrobaenetes valgum
Coachella giant sand treader

cricket

F: None
C: None

State rank: S1S2
MSHCP: Yes

Wind-deposited sand dune
ridges, winter rains somewhat

regulate abundance

Low
Habitat at site is
marginal, very

limited loose wind-
deposited sand

areas.  Area is highly
disturbed.

Stenopelmatus cahuilaensis
Coachella Valley Jerusalem

cricket

F: None
C: None

State rank: S1S2
MSHCP: Yes

Sand dune and sand field
habitats, in the vicinity of the
north base of the San Jacinto

Mountains

Low
Habitat at site is
marginal, very

limited loose wind-
deposited sand

areas.  Area is highly
disturbed.

Table 3. Special Status Amphibians & Reptiles

Species Protective Status
(F=Federal, C=California) Habitat Occurrence

Probability

Anniella stebbinsi
southern California legless

lizard

F = None
C = SSC

NDDB Element Rank:
Global = G3
State = S3

MSHCP = No

Occurs in a variety of habitats,
but seems to prefer areas with

loose, moist soils (high
moisture content).

Low
Some potential
habitat onsite,
although soil

moisture is likely low



Via Vail 3 Apartment Homes Project
Biological Resources Assessment
May 2024

Page 10

Gopherus agassizi
desert tortoise

Fed: THR
Cal: THR

NDDB Element Rank:
Global = G3
State = S2S3

MSHCP = Yes (Conserved
Habitat on-site for this

species)

Various desert communities
and habitats (Mojave creosote

bush scrub, Joshua tree
woodland, saltbush scrub);
washes, arroyos, bajadas,

rocky hillsides, open flat desert

Absent
Fine sandy soils and

disturbed and
isolated nature of

site are not suitable
habitat.  Soil type

would not be
suitable for burrows.

Phrynosoma mcallii
Flat-tailed horned lizard

F: ND
C: SSC
State rank: S2
CVMSHCP: Yes

Fine sand in desert washes
and flats with vegetative cover
and ants, generally below 600

feet elevation in Riverside,
San Diego, and Imperial

Counties.

Absent
Habitat marginal and
poor quality, sandy

areas are
surrounded by

development and
have been highly

disturbed. CNDDB
records in vicinity

are historic and have
been mostly
developed.

Uma inornata
Coachella Valley fringe-toed

lizard

F = THR
C = END

NDDB Element Rank:
Global = G1Q

State = S1
CVMSHCP = Yes

Restricted to sandy areas in
the Coachella Valley; requires
fine, loose, windblown sand

interspersed with hardpan and
widely spaced desert shrubs

Absent
Although loose
sandy soils are

present, the site is
isolated and

disturbed.  Records
in the vicinity are

from the 1994 and
1975.

Table 4. Special Status Birds

Species Status Habitat Probability

Aquila chrysaetos
golden eagle

F: None
C: FP,WL

NDDB Element Rank:
State Rank: S3

Global: G5
MSHCP: No

Forages over rolling foothills,
mountain areas, sage-

juniper flats, and desert.
Cliff-walled canyons used for

nesting, sometimes large
trees in open areas

Nesting: Absent (Project
site does not support

nesting habitat.

Foraging: Low (Do not
forage in urban areas

frequently)

Athene cunicularia
burrowing owl

F = BLM Sensitive,
BCC

C = SSC (burrows)
NDDB Element Rank:

Global: G4
State: S3

MSHCP: Yes

Open, dry annual or
perennial grassland, deserts
& scrublands characterized
by low-growing vegetation

Nesting: Absent
No suitable burrows were

observed.

Foraging: Low
Foraging habitat is

available onsite and on
adjacent properties,

however the project site is
isolated from other open
areas and the site has a
high level of dog activity
which would discourage

owls.



Via Vail 3 Apartment Homes Project
Biological Resources Assessment
May 2024

Page 11

Table 4. Special Status Birds

Species Status Habitat Probability

Dendroica petechia
yellow warbler

F: MBTA, BCC
C: SSC (nesting), F&G

Code
NDDB Element Rank:

Global: G5
State: S3S4
MSHCP: Yes

Riparian forest and
woodland; nests along

Mojave River, Santa Ana
River, Kern River, and many

others in s. Calif.

Nesting: Absent

No suitable habitat.

Foraging: Low

No suitable habitat.

Empidonax traillii extimus
southwestern willow flycatcher

F: END (subspecies),
MBTA

C: END (full species),
F&G Code

NDDB Element Rank:
Global: G5T2

State: S1
MSHCP: Yes

Riparian woodlands

Nesting: Absent

habitat lacking

Foraging: Absent

habitat lacking

Falco mexicanus
prairie falcon

F = None, BCC
C = WL

NDDB Element
Global = G5
State = S4

MSHCP = No

Breeding sites located on
cliffs, forages far afield even

to marshlands and ocean
shores

Nesting: Absent
(habitat lacking)

Foraging: Low
may forage over site

Lanius ludovicianus
loggerhead shrike

F: MBTA, BCC
C: SSC (nesting), F&G

Code
NDDB Element Rank:

Global = G4
State = S4

MSHCP = No

Associated with a variety of
vegetation communities
including creosote bush

scrub, Joshua tree
woodland.  Nests in trees

and shrubs.

Nesting: Low

low amount of nesting
habitat on site

Foraging: High (common
in region)

Toxostoma lecontei
Le Conte’s thrasher

F = BLM Sensitive,
BCC

C = SSC (San Joaquin
population only)

NDDB Element Ranks:
Global = G4
State = S3

MSHCP = Yes (Other
Conserved Habitat and
modeled habitat on-site

for this species)

Desert resident, primarily of
open desert wash, desert
scrub, alkali desert scrub,

and desert succulent scrub
habitats; commonly nests in

a dense, spiny shrub or
densely branched cactus in
desert wash habitat, usually

2-8 feet above ground

Nesting: Absent (Dense,
spiny shrubs lacking

onsite

Foraging: Low
spiny shrubs lacking

onsite

Vireo bellii pusillus
least Bell’s vireo

F: END (nesting),
MBTA

C: END (nesting), F&G
Code

NDDB Element Ranks:
Global = G5T2

State = S2
MSHCP = Yes

Willow riparian woodlands

Nesting: Absent

habitat lacking

Foraging: Absent

habitat lacking



Via Vail 3 Apartment Homes Project
Biological Resources Assessment
May 2024

Page 12

Table 5. Special Status Mammals
Species Status Habitat Probability

Chaetodipus fallax pallidus
pallid San Diego pocket

mouse

F = None
C = SSC

NDDB Element
Global = G5T34

State = S3S4
MSHCP = No

Desert border areas in
desert wash, desert scrub,

desert succulent scrub,
pinon-juniper, etc.; sandy
herbaceous areas usually
in association with rocks or

coarse gravel.

Low
Onsite habitat is

marginal and contains
no rocky areas.

Corynorhinus townsendii
Townsend's big-eared bat

F = None
C = SSC

NDDB Element
Global = G3G4

State = S2
WBWG = H

MSHCP = No

Generally viewed as a cave-
dwelling species, but the

western subspecies are also
found on/in human-made
structures (e.g. old mine
workings and buildings).

Roosts in open but
extremely sensitive to
human disturbance.

Roosting: Absent
(roosting habitat not

present)
Foraging: Low

Unlikely to forage due to
disturbance and adjacent

development.

Neotoma lepida intermedia
San Diego desert woodrat

F = None
C = SSC

NDDB Element
Global = G5T3T4

State = S3S4
MSHCP = No

The most common habitats
are chaparral, coastal sage
scrub (including Riversidean

sage scrub and Diegan
coastal sage scrub) and
grassland, although this

subspecies also occurs in
desert habitats.

Absent
No nests were observed

onsite

Ovis canadensis nelsoni pop. 2
Peninsular bighorn sheep

DPS

F = END
C = THR

NDDB Element
Global = G4T3Q

State = S1
MSHCP = Yes

Optimal habitat includes
steep-walled canyons and
ridges bisected by rocky or

sandy washes with available
water.

Absent
Outside of species range
and no habitat present

Perognathus longimembris bangsi
Palm Springs pocket mouse

F = BLM Sensitive
C = SSC

NDDB Element
Global = G5T2

State = S2
MSHCP = Yes

(modeled habitat
present)

Desert scrub, sandy,
loosely-packed soils.

Low
Sandy areas present

onsite.  The project site is
isolated from other open
areas and the site has a

high level disturbance and
dog activity

Xerospermophilus tereticaudus
Coachella Valley (Palm Springs)

round-tailed ground squirrel

F = BLM Sensitive
C = SSC

NDDB Element
Global = G5T2Q

State = S2
MSHCP = Yes

(modeled habitat
present)

Sand fields, dunes and
hummocks in Sonoran
creosote bush scrub,

mesquite, saltbush and
desert sink scrub.  Also may
occur in course sandy and
pebbly alluvial substrates

along washes.

Low
Sandy areas present

onsite.  The project site is
isolated from other open
areas and the site has a

high level disturbance and
dog activity. CNDDB

record from less than 1
mi. NW of site but is from

1954.  No potential
burrows observed.

Definitions of occurrence probability:
Occurs: Observed on the site by WSP personnel or recorded on-site by other qualified biologists.
High: Observed in similar habitat in region by qualified biologists, or habitat on the site is a type often

utilized by the species and the site is within the known range of the species.
Moderate: Reported sightings in surrounding region, or site is within the known range of the species and

habitat on the site is a type occasionally used by the species.
Low: Site is within the known range of the species but habitat on the site is rarely used by the species.
Very Low: Species not expected on site, but can not be completely ruled out.
Absent: A focused study failed to detect the species, or no suitable habitat is present.



Via Vail 3 Apartment Homes Project
Biological Resources Assessment
May 2024

Page 13

Definitions of status designations and occurrence probabilities.
Federal designations: (federal Endangered Species Act, US Fish and Wildlife Service):

END: Federally listed, Endangered.
THR: Federally listed, Threatened.
BCC: Bird of Conservation Concern
C: Candidate for Federal listing
ND: Not designated.

State designations: (California Endangered Species Act, California Dept. of Fish and Game)
END: State listed, Endangered.
THR: State listed, Threatened.
C: Candidate for State listing
RARE: State listed as Rare (Listed "Rare" animals have been re-designated as Threatened, but Rare

plants have retained the Rare designation.)
SSC: Species of Special Concern.
WL: Watch List Species.
ND: Not designated.

CDFW CNDDB rankings: Animals
S1 = Extremely endangered: <6 viable occurrences or <1,000 individuals, or < 2,000 acres of occupied habitat
S2 = Endangered: about 6-20 viable occurrences or 1,000 - 3,000 individuals, or 2,000 to 10,000 acres of occupied
habitat
S3 = Restricted range, rare: about 21-100 viable occurrences, or 3,000 – 10,000 individuals, or 10,000 – 50,000
acres of occupied habitat
S4 = Apparently secure; some factors exist to cause some concern such as narrow habitat or continuing threats
S5 = Demonstrably secure; commonly found throughout its historic range
SH = all sites are historical, this species may be extinct, further field work is needed

CDFW CNDDB rankings: Plants and Vegetation Communities
S1 = Less than 6 viable occurrences OR less than 1,000 individuals OR less than 2,000 acres
S1.1 = very threatened
S1.2 = threatened
S1.3 = no current threats known
S2 = 6-20 viable occurrences OR 1,000-3,000 individuals OR 2,000-10,000 acres
S2.1 = very threatened
S2.2 = threatened
S2.3 = no current threats known
S3 = 21-80 viable occurrences or 3,000-10,000 individuals OR 10,000-50,000 acres
S3.1 = very threatened
S3.2 = threatened
S3.3 = no current threats known
S4 = Apparently secure within California; this rank is clearly lower than S3, but factors exist to cause some concern.
i.e., there is some threat, or somewhat narrow habitat.
S5 = Demonstrably secure to ineradicable in California.

California Native Plant Society (CNPS) designations:
California Rare Plant Ranks (CRPR) Note: According to the CNPS
(http://www.cnps.org/programs/Rare_Plant/inventory/names.htm), ALL plants on Lists 1A, 1B, 2A, and 2B meet
definitions for state listing as threatened or endangered under Secs. 2062 and 2067 (California Endangered Species
Act) of the California Department of Fish and Game Code. Certain plants on Lists 3 and 4 do as well.
The CDFW (http://www.dfg.ca.gov/hcpb/species/t_e_spp/nat_plnt_consv.shtml) states that plants on Lists 1A, 1B,
2A, and 2B of the CNPS Inventory consist of plants that may qualify for listing, and recommends they be addressed
in CEQA projects (CEQA Guidelines Section 15380). However, a plant need not be in the Inventory to be considered
a rare, threatened, or endangered species under CEQA. In addition, CDFW recommends, and local governments
may require, protection of plants which are regionally significant, such as locally rare species, disjunct populations of
more common plants, or plants on the CNPS Lists 3 and 4.
List 1A: Plants presumed extinct in California.
List 1B: Plants rare and endangered in California and throughout their range.
List 2A: Plants presumed extirpated in California, but more common elsewhere.
List 2B: Plants rare, threatened, or endangered in California, but more common elsewhere.
List 3: Plants for which more information is needed.
List 4: Plants of limited distribution; a "watch list."

http://www.cnps.org/programs/Rare_Plant/inventory/names.htm
http://www.dfg.ca.gov/hcpb/species/t_e_spp/nat_plnt_consv.shtml


Via Vail 3 Apartment Homes Project
Biological Resources Assessment
May 2024

Page 14

CA Endemic: Taxa that occur only in California
CNPS Threat Code:
.1 - Seriously endangered in California (over 80% of occurrences threatened / high degree and immediacy of threat)
.2 – Fairly endangered in California (20-80% occurrences threatened)
.3 – Not very endangered in California (<20% of occurrences threatened, or no current threats known)
Note: All List 1A (presumed extinct in California) and some List 3 (need more information- a review list) plants lacking
any threat information receive no threat code extension. Also, these Threat Code guidelines represent a starting point
in the assessment of threat level. Other factors, such as habitat vulnerability and specificity, distribution, and condition
of occurrences, are also considered in setting the Threat Code.

Western Bat Working Group (WBWG) designations:
The Western Bat Working Group is comprised of agencies, organizations and individuals interested in bat research,
management and conservation from the 13 western states and provinces. Its goals are (1) to facilitate communication
among interested parties and reduce risks of species decline or extinction; (2) to provide a mechanism by which
current information on bat ecology, distribution and research techniques can be readily accessed; and (3) to develop
a forum to discuss conservation strategies, provide technical assistance and encourage education programs.
H: High: Species which are imperiled or are at high risk of imperilment based on available information
on distribution, status, ecology and known threats.
M: Medium: Species which warrant a medium level of concern and need closer evaluation, more
research, and conservation actions of both the species and possible threats. A lack of meaningful information is a
major obstacle in adequately assessing these species' status and should be considered a threat.
L: Low: Species for which most of the existing data support stable populations, and for which the
potential for major changes in status in the near future is considered unlikely. There may be localized concerns, but
the overall status of the species is believed to be secure. Conservation actions would still apply for these bats, but
limited resources are best used on High and Medium status species.
P: Periphery: This designation indicates a species on the edge of its range, for which no other
designation has been determined.
CVMSHCP designations
Yes: Conserved by the CVMSHCP
No: Not Specifically Conserved by the CVMSHCP
C: Considered, but not included in the CVMSHCP



Via Vail 3 Apartment Homes Project
Biological Resources Assessment
May 2024

Page 15

5.7 Discussion of the Special-status Species Tables
Based on examination of historic aerial photography of the site (on Google Earth Pro), the
California fan palm oasis and southern riparian forest are not present at the site or within the
vicinity.

5.7.1 CVMSHCP Covered Species
Nineteen of the species listed in Tables 1 – 3 are conserved under the CVMSHCP: Coachella
Valley milk-vetch, triple-ribbed milk-vetch, Mecca aster, Little San Bernardino Mountains
linanthus, Coachella giant sand treader cricket, Coachella Valley Jerusalem cricket, desert
pupfish, desert tortoise, flat-tailed horned lizard, Coachella Valley fringe-toed lizard, burrowing
owl, Southwestern willow flycatcher, crissal thrasher Le Contes’ thrasher, Least Bell’s vireo,
western yellow bat, Palm Springs pocket mouse, Coachella Valley (Palm Springs) round-tailed
ground squirrel, and Peninsular bighorn sheep. Six of these species are expected to have at least
a low to very low probability of occurring on the project site. These include Coachella Valley milk-
vetch, Coachella giant sand treader cricket, Coachella Valley Jerusalem cricket, burrowing owl,
Palm Springs pocket mouse, and Coachella Valley (Palm Springs) round-tailed ground squirrel.
Participation in the CVMSHCP, and participation in the plan, if required will fully mitigate project
related impacts (although none are anticipated) to all of these CVMSHCP covered species with
the exception of burrowing owl.

No burrows suitable for burrowing owl use were observed on or adjacent to the project site. Where
accessible, adjacent vacant lands were surveyed within 500 feet of the site.  No burrowing owls,
their sign, or burrows capable of supporting owls were observed in this buffer area. The burrowing
owl is not listed as threatened or endangered by the USFWS or CDFW. It is, however, managed
as a Bird of Conservation Concern (BCC) by the USFWS and designated as a SSC by the CDFW.
It is also protected from take by the MBTA and California Fish and Game Code. The burrowing
owl is a covered species under the CVMSHCP, however the federal permit for the CVMSHCP
does not allow take of this species under the MBTA. For these reasons, all burrowing owls must
be avoided or relocated prior to any ground disturbing activities. No burrowing owls, owl sign, or
suitable burrows were observed during the survey.

5.7.2 Potentially Occurring Species Not Covered Under the CVMSHCP and USFWS IPAC
Species

Seven special status species that are not covered by the CVMSHCP are considered to have at
least some potential (low to very low) to occur on or forage over the project site. Prairie falcon are
expected to have a low probability to forage over the site (although this would be rare given the
developed nature of the site and surrounding area). Prairie falcon is not listed as threatened or
endangered by either State or Federal agencies but is considered a “Species of Special Concern”
by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife. Slender cottonheads are expected to have a
low probability of growing on this site. Slender cottonheads were not observed during the survey.
This plant species is not listed as threatened or endangered and are generally not expected to
occur on the site. Still, they could not be absolutely ruled out due to presence of marginally
suitable habitat and the seasonal timing of the site visit.
The USFWS IPAC report generated for this project lists five sensitive wildlife species and one
plant as having potential to be affected by development of this project. As discussed in Tables 1
– 3 in Section 5.6, none of the listed species are expected to occur onsite. Monarch butterflies
require milkweeds for larval development and other flowering plants for adult nectar sources. No
milkweed plants were observed on the site. There is no quality habitat present for desert tortoise



Via Vail 3 Apartment Homes Project
Biological Resources Assessment
May 2024

Page 16

due to the sandy nature of the soil which do not provide good burrowing substrate as well as the
high level of disturbance. Suitable habitat for Coachella Valley fringe-toed lizard is present,
however the site is highly disturbed and isolated from other open areas.  The most recent record
in the areas for Coachella Valley fringed-toed lizard are from 1994. Least Bell’s vireo is absent
from the site due to a lack of any suitable riparian habitat.
6.0 DISCUSSION
The proposed project includes the permanent disturbance of approximately 5 acres of disturbed
creosote scrub to build apartment homes.
6.1 Protection of Nesting Birds
All native bird species that are excluded from coverage under the CVMSHCP are still protected
by the MBTA and the state Fish and Game Code. This includes virtually all native migratory and
resident bird species. Avoidance of impacts to these birds is a requirement of the federal permit
issued for the CVMSHCP. To avoid impacting nesting birds either avoidance of project-related
disturbance during the nesting season, nesting bird surveys should be conducted by a qualified
ornithologist or biologist immediately prior to on-site disturbance. If nesting birds are found, no
work would be permitted near the nest until young have fledged. There is no established protocol
for nest avoidance, however, when consulted the CDFW generally recommends avoidance
buffers of about 500 feet for birds-of-prey and species listed as threatened or endangered, and
100–300 feet for unlisted songbirds.
6.2 Burrowing Owl
As noted above, no burrowing owls or their sign were present on site. Also, no burrows or burrow
surrogates that could be used by burrowing owls were present on the site at the time of this
survey. This species nests and roosts underground so is uniquely vulnerable to ground disturbing
activities. Since no burrowing owl sign or suitable burrows were observed, a search for burrowing
owls during the required MBTA survey prior to construction should be sufficient to ensure there
are no impacts to burrowing owls. The MBTA survey should be conducted prior to initiating
construction to ensure that no nesting birds have moved onto the site in the interim between this
survey and project startup. Unless avoidable, all burrowing owls present must be relocated prior
to any ground disturbing activities. If burrows are found on-site, a Burrowing Owl Relocation and
Management Plan will be prepared to describe and outline how the burrowing owl will be actively
or passively relocated per CDFW guidelines. Prior to construction, any owls occurring on-site will
be relocated prior to vegetation removal or grading activities. Relocation will require prior
permission from the CDFW, at a minimum, but is not anticipated at this time. Since the burrowing
owl is a covered species under the CVMSHCP, additional mitigation/conservation measures will
not be required.
7.0 CONCLUSION
The project site is highly disturbed and being used as a homeless camp and for local people to
run their dogs off leash.  No sensitive species were observed within the project area.  No nesting
bird activity was observed.  Suitable nesting habitat is present so a clearance nesting bird survey
should be conducted prior to any ground disturbance.



Via Vail 3 Apartment Homes Project
Biological Resources Assessment
May 2024

Page 17

8.0 LITERATURE CITED AND REFERENCES
California Bird Records Committee. 2023. Official California Checklist. Accessed online at:

http://californiabirds.org/ca_list.asp.
California Department of Fish and Game (CDFG). 2012. Staff report on Burrowing Owl Mitigation.

CDFG, Sacramento, CA.
California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW). 2024a. California Natural Diversity Data Base,

Rarefind 5. Report for the Rancho Mirage, Cathedral City, Palm Springs, Myoma, La
Quinta, Toro Peak, and Palm View Peak. quadrangles. Accessed at:
dfg.ca.gov/biogeodata/cnddb/mapsanddata.asp

CDFW. 2024b. Special Animals List. April. Periodic publication. Sacramento, CA. Accessed
online at: https://nrm.dfg.ca.gov/FileHandler.ashx?DocumentID=109406&inline=1

CDFW. 2016. Complete List of Amphibian, Reptile, Bird and Mammal Species in California.
Accessed online at: https://nrm.dfg.ca.gov/FileHandler.ashx?DocumentID=87155&inline

California Legislative Information. 2021. Fish and Game Code of California.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codesTOCSelected.xhtml?tocCode=FGC&tocTitle
=+Fish+and+Game+Code+-+FGC

CDFW. 2015a. California Wildlife Habitat Relationships, Life History Accounts and Range Maps.
Accessed online at: http://www.dfg.ca.gov/biogeodata/cwhr/cawildlife.aspx

CDFW. 2015b. Threatened and Endangered Species, Species Lists and Accounts, Species
Accounts-Fish. Accessed online at: https://www.dfg.ca.gov/wildlife/nongame/t_e_spp/

CDFW. 2016. Complete List of Amphibian, Reptile, Bird and Mammal Species in California.
Accessed online at: nrm.dfg.ca.gov/FileHandler.ashx?DocumentID=87155&inline=1

California Native Plant Society (CNPS). 2024a. Inventory of Rare, Threatened, and Endangered
Plants of California. Report for the Valerie. quadrangles. Accessed online at:
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org

CNPS. 2024b. The California Rare Plant Ranking System. Accessed online at:
https://www.cnps.org/cnps/rareplants/ranking.php

California Natural Resources Agency. 2014. CEQA Guidelines. Accessed online at:
http://resources.ca.gov/ceqa/guidelines/

CVAG. 2016. Final Major Amendment to the Coachella Valley Multiple Species Habitat
Conservation Plan/Natural Community Conservation Plan. Accessed online at:
https://www.cvmshcp.org/Plan%20Documents/10.%20CVAG%20MSHCP%20Plan%20S
ection%203.0.pdf

CVAG. 2008. Coachella Valley Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan. Accessed online at:
cvmshcp.org

Holland, R.F. 1986. Preliminary Descriptions of the Terrestrial Natural Communities of California.
Prepared for the California Department of Fish and Game.

Jepson Flora Project (2nd ed.). 2023. Jepson eFlora. Accessed online at:
http://ucjeps.berkeley.edu/IJM.html

Sawyer, J.O., T. Keeler-Wolf, and J.M. Evens. 2009. A manual of California vegetation (2nd ed.).
California Native Plant Society, Sacramento, CA.

Shuford, W. D., and Gardali, T. (Ed.). 2008. California Bird Species of Special Concern: A ranked
assessment of species, subspecies, and distinct populations of birds of immediate

http://californiabirds.org/ca_list.asp
http://www.dfg.ca.gov/biogeodata/cnddb/mapsanddata.asp
https://nrm.dfg.ca.gov/FileHandler.ashx?DocumentID=87155&inline
http://www.dfg.ca.gov/biogeodata/cwhr/cawildlife.aspx
https://www.dfg.ca.gov/wildlife/nongame/t_e_spp/
https://nrm.dfg.ca.gov/FileHandler.ashx?DocumentID=87155&inline=1
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/
https://www.cnps.org/cnps/rareplants/ranking.php
http://resources.ca.gov/ceqa/guidelines/
http://www.cvmshcp.org/
http://ucjeps.berkeley.edu/IJM.html


Via Vail 3 Apartment Homes Project
Biological Resources Assessment
May 2024

Page 18

conservation concern in California. Studies of Western Birds 1. Western Field
Ornithologists, Camarillo, California, and California Department of Fish and Game,
Sacramento.

United States Department of Agriculture (USDA), Soil Conservation Service. 1980. A Soil Survey
of Riverside County, California, Coachella Valley Area.
https://www.nrcs.usda.gov/Internet/FSE_MANUSCRIPTS/california/riversideCA1980/rive
rsideCA1980.pdf

USDA, Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS). 2024. The PLANTS Database. National
Plant Data Team. Accessed online at: plants.usda.gov

USDA, NRCS. 2024. Web Soil Survey. Accessed online at:
http://websoilsurvey.nrcs.usda.gov/app/

USFWS. 2016. Bird Laws and Treaties. Accessed online at:
http://www.fws.gov/migratorybirds/RegulationsandPolicies.html

USGS 7.5’ Cathedral City, Calif. 7.5-minute topographic quadrangles (USGS 2021)

http://websoilsurvey.nrcs.usda.gov/app/
http://www.fws.gov/migratorybirds/RegulationsandPolicies.html


APPENDIX A

FIGURES



P
at

h:
 Z

:\3
55

4_
N

at
ur

al
R

es
ou

rc
es

\T
er

ra
N

ov
a_

V
ia

V
ai

l_
U

S
-E

I-
P

58
5_

1.
97

34
\A

rc
P

ro
\T

er
ra

N
ov

a_
V

ia
V

ai
l_

U
S

_E
l_

P
58

5.
ap

rx
,  

U
S

M
T

73
83

46
  5

/1
7/

20
24

0 10.5
Miles °

Service Layer Credits: World Street Map: City of Palm Desert, City of Riverside, County of Riverside, Bureau of Land Management, Esri, HERE, Garmin, NGA, USGS, NPS
World Street Map: Esri, HERE, Garmin, NGA, USGS

FIGURE 1
Project Vicinity and Location

Via Vail
Parcel 3 Apartment Homes Project

Coachella Valley, CA

Project Boundary

CA Counties

1 inch =1 miles



P
at

h:
 Z

:\3
55

4_
N

at
ur

al
R

es
ou

rc
es

\T
er

ra
N

ov
a_

V
ia

V
ai

l_
U

S
-E

I-
P

58
5_

1.
97

34
\A

rc
P

ro
\T

er
ra

N
ov

a_
V

ia
V

ai
l_

U
S

_E
l_

P
58

5.
ap

rx
,  

U
S

M
T

73
83

46
  5

/1
7/

20
24

MyomaCathedral City

Rancho Mirage La Quinta

0 10.5
Miles °

Service Layer Credits: USA Topo Maps: Copyright:© 2013 National Geographic Society, i-cubed

FIGURE 2
USGS 7.5' Topo Quad: Coachella Valley

Via Vail
Parcel 3 Apartment Homes Project

Coachella Valley, CA

Project Boundary

1 inch =1 miles



P
at

h:
 Z

:\3
55

4_
N

at
ur

al
R

es
ou

rc
es

\T
er

ra
N

ov
a_

V
ia

V
ai

l_
U

S
-E

I-
P

58
5_

1.
97

34
\A

rc
P

ro
\T

er
ra

N
ov

a_
V

ia
V

ai
l_

U
S

_E
l_

P
58

5.
ap

rx
,  

U
S

M
T

73
83

46
  5

/1
7/

20
24

0 200100
Feet °

Service Layer Credits: Hybrid Reference Layer: Esri Community Maps Contributors, Loma Linda University, UC Riverside, City of Palm Desert, County of Riverside, California State
Parks, © OpenStreetMap, Microsoft, Esri, TomTom, Garmin, SafeGraph, GeoTechnologies, Inc, METI/NASA, USGS, Bureau of Land Management, EPA, NPS, US Census Bureau,

FIGURE 3
Soils

Via Vail
Parcel 3 Apartment Homes Project

Coachella Valley, CA

Project Boundary

Myoma fine sand, 5 to
15 percent slopes

Myoma fine sand, 0 to 5
percent slopes

1 inch =200 feet



P
at

h:
 Z

:\3
55

4_
N

at
ur

al
R

es
ou

rc
es

\T
er

ra
N

ov
a_

V
ia

V
ai

l_
U

S
-E

I-
P

58
5_

1.
97

34
\A

rc
P

ro
\T

er
ra

N
ov

a_
V

ia
V

ai
l_

U
S

_E
l_

P
58

5.
ap

rx
,  

U
S

M
T

73
83

46
  5

/1
7/

20
24

10

10

Ramon Rd

Dinah Shore Dr

Westin Mission
Hills Golf Resort

& Spa

Thousand
Palms

Country Club DrCountry Club Dr

B
o

b
H

o
p

e
D

r

P
o

rto
la

A
v

e

M
o

n
te

re
y

A
v

e

Sunrise Country
Club

Mission Hills
Country Club

Tamarisk
Country Club

Springs Country
Club

Sunnylands
Historic Estate

Date Palm
Country Club

Monterey
Country Club

Desert Willow

Rancho Mirage

Ramon Rd

Ivey Ranch
Country Club

Willis Palms

Country Club Dr

Classic Club
Golf Course

Toscana
Country Club

Indian Ridge
Country Club

Palm Valley
Country Club

The Lakes
Country Club

Desert Falls
Country Club

Coachella
Valley National
Wildlife Refuge

0 5,0002,500
Feet °

Service Layer Credits: World Imagery: Earthstar Geographics
Hybrid Reference Layer: UC Riverside, City of Palm Desert, County of Riverside, California State Parks, Esri, TomTom, Garmin, SafeGraph, GeoTechnologies, Inc, METI/NASA, USGS,

FIGURE 4
CVMSHCP

Via Vail
Parcel 3 Apartment Homes Project

Coachella Valley, CA

Project Boundary

Conservation Areas

Santa Rosa and San Jacinto Mountains

Thousand Palms

1 inch =5,000 feet



P
at

h:
 Z

:\3
55

4_
N

at
ur

al
R

es
ou

rc
es

\T
er

ra
N

ov
a_

V
ia

V
ai

l_
U

S
-E

I-
P

58
5_

1.
97

34
\A

rc
P

ro
\T

er
ra

N
ov

a_
V

ia
V

ai
l_

U
S

_E
l_

P
58

5.
ap

rx
,  

U
S

M
T

73
83

46
  5

/1
7/

20
24

0 200100
Feet °

Service Layer Credits: Hybrid Reference Layer: Esri Community Maps Contributors, Loma Linda University, UC Riverside, City of Palm Desert, County of Riverside, California State
Parks, © OpenStreetMap, Microsoft, Esri, TomTom, Garmin, SafeGraph, GeoTechnologies, Inc, METI/NASA, USGS, Bureau of Land Management, EPA, NPS, US Census Bureau,

FIGURE 5
Vegetation Communities

Via Vail
Parcel 3 Apartment Homes Project

Coachella Valley, CA

Project Boundary

Creosote Scrub

1 inch =200 feet



APPENDIX B

PLANTS AND VERTEBRATE WILDLIFE OBSERVED



Vertebrate Species Observed

Corvidae
Corvus brachyrhynchos American crow

Fringillidae
Haemorhous mexicanus house finch

Remizidae
Auriparus flaviceps verdin

Tyrannidae
Sayornis saya Say's phoebe



Plant Species Observed

Amaranthaceae
Atriplex canescens four-wing saltbush

Asteraceae
Dicoria canescens desert dicoria
Palafoxia arida Spanish needles

Boraginaceae
Johnstonella angustifolia narrow leaved forget me not
Tiquilia plicata fanleaf crinklemat

Brassicaceae
Brassica tournefortii Sahara mustard

Fabaceae
Psorothamnus emoryi dyebush

Geraniaceae
Erodium cicutarium red stemmed filaree

Loasaceae
Petalonyx thurberi sandpaper plant

Nyctaginaceae
Abronia villosa desert sand verbena

Onagraceae
Chylismia claviformis ssp. claviformis browneyes

Zygophyllaceae
Larrea tridentata creosote bush

Poaceae
Schismus barbatus old han schismus



APPENDIX C

SITE PHOTOS



Photo 1. Looking north across the site.

Photo 2. Looking west across the site.



Photo 3. Looking west across the site shows a portion of the homeless camp.

Photo 4. Showing annual species within the sandy site.



APPENDIX D

CVMSHCP Table 4-112:
Coachella Valley Native Plants Recommended for Landscaping



Coachella Valley Native Plants Recommended for Landscaping

BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME

Trees
Washingtonia filifera California fan palm
Cercidium floridum blue palo verde
Chilopsis linearis desert willow
Olneya tesota ironwood tree
Prosopis glandulosa var. torreyana honey mesquite

Shrubs
Acacia greggii cat’s claw acacia
Ambrosia dumosa burro bush
Atriplex canescens four wing saltbush
Atriplex lentiformis quailbush
Atriplex polycarpa cattle spinach
Baccharis sergiloides squaw water-weed
Bebia juncea sweet bush
Cassia (Senna) covesii desert senna
Condalia parryi crucilllo
Crossosoma bigelovii crossosoma
Dalea emoryi dye weed
Dalea (Psorothamnus) schottii indigo bush
Datura meteloides jimson weed
Encelia farinosa brittle bush
Ephedra aspera Mormon tea
Eriogonum fasciculatum California buckwheat
Eriogonum wrightii membranaceum Wright’s buckwheat
Fagonia laevis no common name
Gutierrezia sarothrae matchweed
Haplopappus acradenius goldenbush
Hibiscus denudatus desert hibiscus
Hoffmannseggia microphylla rush pea
Hymenoclea salsola cheesebush
Hyptis emoryi desert lavender
Isomeris arborea bladder pod
Juniperus californica California juniper
Krameria grayi ratany
Krameria parvifolia little-leaved ratany
Larrea tridentata creosote bush
Lotus rigidus desert rock pea
Lycium andersonii box thorn
Petalonyx linearis long-leaved sandpaper plant
Petalonyx thurberi sandpaper plant
Peucephyllum schottii pygmy cedar
Prunus fremontii desert apricot
Rhus ovata sugar-bush
Salazaria mexicana paper-bag bush
Salvia apiana white sage
Salvia eremostachya Santa Rosa sage



Salvia vaseyi wand sage
Simmondsia chinensis jojoba
Sphaeralcia ambigua globemallow (desert mallow)
Sphaeralcia ambigua rosacea apricot mallow
Trixis californica trixis
Zauschneria californica California fuchsia

Groundcovers
Mirabilis bigelovii wishbone bush (four o’clock)
Mirabilis tenuiloba white four o’clock (thin-lobed)

Vines
Vitis girdiana desert grape

Accent
Muhlenbergia rigens deer grass

Herbaceous Perennials
Adiantum capillus-veneris maiden-hair fern
Carex alma sedge
Dalea parryi Parry dalea
Eleocharis montevidensis spike rush
Equisetum laevigatum horsetail
Juncus bufonis toad rush
Juncus effuses juncus
Juncus macrophyllus juncus
Juncus mexicanus Mexican rush
Juncus xiphioides juncus
Notholaena parryi Parry cloak fern
Pallaea mucronata bird-foot fern

Cacti and Succulents
Agave deserti desert agave
Asclepias albicans desert milkweed (buggy-whip)
Asclepias subulata ajamete
Dudleya arizonica live-forever
Dudleya saxosa rock dudleya
Echinocereus engelmannii calico hedgehog cactus
Ferocactus acanthodes barrel cactus
Fouquieria splendens ocotillo
Mamillaria dioica nipple cactus
Mamillaria tetrancistra corkseed cactus
Nolina parryi Parry nolina
Opuntia acanthocarpa stag-horn or deer-horn cholla
Opuntia bigelovii teddy bear or jumping cholla
Opuntia basilaris beavertail cactus
Opuntia echinocarpa silver or golden cholla
Opuntia ramosissima pencil cholla, darning needle cholla
Yucca schidigera Mojave yucca, Spanish dagger
Yucca whipplei Our Lord’s candle



APPENDIX E

Prohibited Invasive Ornamental Plants



Prohibited Invasive Ornamental Plants

BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME

Acacia spp. (all species except A. greggii) (all species except native catclaw
acacia)

Arundo donax giant reed or arundo grass
Atriplex semibaccata Australian saltbush
Avena barbata slender wild oat
Avena fatua wild oat
Brassica tournefortii African or Saharan mustard
Bromus madritensis ssp. rubens red brome
Bromus tectorum cheat grass or downy brome
Cortaderia jubata [syn.C. atacamensis] jubata grass or Andean pampas grass
Cortaderia dioica [syn. C. selloana] pampas grass
Descurainia sophia tansy mustard
Eichhornia crassipes water hyacinth
Elaegnus angustifolia Russian olive
Foeniculum vulgare sweet fennel
Hirschfeldia incana Mediterranean or short-pod mustard
Lepidium latifolium perennial pepperweed
Lolium multiflorum Italian ryegrass
Nerium oleander oleander
Nicotiana glauca tree tobacco
Oenothera berlandieri Mexican evening primrose
Olea europea European olive tree
Parkinsonia aculeata Mexican palo verde
Pennisetum clandestinum Kikuyu grass
Pennisetum setaceum fountain grass
Phoenix canariensis Canary Island date palm
Phoenix dactylifera date palm
Ricinus communis castorbean
Salsola tragus Russian thistle
Schinus mole Peruvian pepper tree
Schinus terebinthifolius Brazilian pepper tree
Schismus arabicus Mediterranean grass
Schismus barbatus Saharan grass, Abu Mashi
Stipa capensis no common name
Tamarix spp. (all species) tamarisk or salt cedar
Taeniatherum caput-medusae Medusa-head
Tribulus terrestris puncturevine
Vinca major periwinkle
Washingtonia robusta Mexican fan palm
Yucca gloriosa Spanish dagger

Sources: California Exotic Pest Plant Council, United States Department of Agriculture-Division of Plant Health
and Pest Prevention Services, California Native Plant Society, Fremontia Vol. 26 No. 4, October 1998, The
Jepson Manual; Higher Plants of California, and County of San Diego Department of Agriculture.



APPENDIX F

USFWS IPaC Report



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

May 2025 

City of Rancho Mirage C 

Appendix C 
Historical/Archaeological Resources Survey Report



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

HISTORICAL/ARCHAEOLOGICAL RESOURCES SURVEY REPORT 

 

ASSESSOR’S PARCEL NUMBER 685-090-016 
 

City of Rancho Mirage 

Riverside County, California 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

For Submittal to: 

 

Development Services Department, Planning Division 

City of Rancho Mirage 

69825 Highway 111 

Rancho Mirage, CA 92270 

 

Prepared for: 

 

Terra Nova Planning and Research, Inc. 

42635 Melanie Place, Suite 101 

Palm Desert, CA 92211 

 

Prepared by: 

 

CRM TECH 

1016 East Cooley Drive, Suite A/B 

Colton, CA 92324 

 

Bai “Tom” Tang, Principal Investigator 

Michael Hogan, Principal Investigator 

 

 

 

July 1, 2024 

CRM TECH Contract No. 4127 



 

 

 

 

Title: Historical/Archaeological Resources Survey: Assessor’s Parcel Number 

685-090-016, City of Rancho Mirage, Riverside County, California  

 

Author(s): Bai “Tom” Tang, Principal Investogator/Historian 

Frank Raslich, Archaeologist/Report Writer 

Michael Richards, Archaeologist 

 

Consulting Firm: CRM TECH 

1016 East Cooley Drive, Suite A/B 

Colton, CA 92324 

(909) 824-6400 

 

Date: July 1, 2024 

 

For Submittal to: Development Services Department, Planning Division 

City of Rancho Mirage 

69825 Highway 111 

Rancho Mirage, CA 92270 

(760) 328-2266 

 

Prepared for: Nicole Criste, Vice President 

Terra Nova Planning and Research, Inc. 

42635 Melanie Place, Suite 101 

Palm Desert, CA 92211 

(760) 320-9811 

 

Project Size: Approximately five acres 

 

USGS Quadrangle: Cathedral City, Calif., 7.5’ quadrangle (Section 30, T4S R6E, San 

Bernardino Baseline and Meridian) 

 

Keywords: Coachella Valley region, western Colorado Desert; no “historical 

resources” under CEQA 

 



 i 

 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

Between April and July 2024, at the request of Terra Nova Planning and Research, Inc., 

CRM TECH performed a cultural resources survey on approximately five acres of 

vacant desert land in the northeastern portion of the City of Rancho Mirage, Riverside 

County, California. The subject property of the study, Assessor’s Parcel Number 685-

090-016, is located to the south of Dinah Shore Drive and between Monterey Avenue 

and Key Largo Avenue, in the northeast quarter of Section 30, T4S R6E, San 

Bernardino Baseline and Meridian. 

 

The study is a part of the environmental review process for a proposed housing 

development project on the property. The City of Rancho Mirage, as the lead agency 

for the project, required the study in compliance with the California Environmental 

Quality Act (CEQA). The purpose of the study is to provide the City with the necessary 

information and analysis to determine whether the proposed project would cause 

substantial adverse changes to any “historical resources,” as defined by CEQA, that 

may exist in or around the project area.  

 

In order to identify such resources, CRM TECH reviewed the results of a recent 

historical/archaeological resources records search on an adjacent property, contacted 

pertinent Native American representatives, pursued historical background research, 

and carried out an intensive-level field survey. Throughout the course of these research 

procedures, no cultural resources of prehistoric or historic origin were encountered 

within or adjacent to the project area. Therefore, CRM TECH recommends to the City 

of Rancho Mirage a finding that the proposed project will have No Impact on any 

“historical resources.”  

 

No further cultural resources investigation is recommended for the project unless 

development plans undergo such changes as to include areas not covered by this study. 

However, if buried cultural materials are discovered during any earth-moving 

operations associated with the project, all work in the immediate area should be halted 

or diverted until a qualified archaeologist can evaluate the nature and significance of 

the finds. 

  



 ii 

 

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ................................................................................................................... i 
INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................................................ 1 
SETTING .............................................................................................................................................. 4 

Current Natural Setting ..................................................................................................................... 4 
Cultural Setting ................................................................................................................................. 4 

Prehistoric Context........................................................................................................................ 4 
Ethnohistoric Context ................................................................................................................... 5 
Historic Context ............................................................................................................................ 7 

RESEARCH METHODS ..................................................................................................................... 7 
Records Search.................................................................................................................................. 7 
Native American Participation .......................................................................................................... 8 
Historical Background Research....................................................................................................... 8 
Field Survey ...................................................................................................................................... 8 

RESULTS AND FINDINGS ................................................................................................................ 9 
Records Search.................................................................................................................................. 9 
Native American Participation .......................................................................................................... 9 
Historical Background Research..................................................................................................... 10 
Field Survey .................................................................................................................................... 11 

DISCUSSION ..................................................................................................................................... 11 
CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS ............................................................................. 12 
REFERENCES ................................................................................................................................... 13 
APPENDIX 1: Personnel Qualifications ............................................................................................ 15 
APPENDIX 2: Native American Responses ...................................................................................... 19 
 

 

LIST OF FIGURES 

 

Figure 1. Project vicinity....................................................................................................................... 1 
Figure 2. Project area ............................................................................................................................ 2 
Figure 3. Recent satellite image of the project area .............................................................................. 3 
Figure 4. Typical landscape in the project area .................................................................................... 4 
Figure 5. The project area and vicinity in 1855-1856 ......................................................................... 10 
Figure 6. The project area and vicinity in 1901 .................................................................................. 10 
Figure 7. The project area and vicinity in 1941 .................................................................................. 11 
Figure 8. The project area and vicinity in 1951-1958 ......................................................................... 11 
 



 1 

 

INTRODUCTION 

 

Between April and July 2024, at the request of Terra Nova Planning and Research, Inc., CRM TECH 

performed a cultural resources survey on approximately five acres of vacant desert land in the 

northeastern portion of the City of Rancho Mirage, Riverside County, California (Fig. 1). The 

subject property of the study, Assessor’s Parcel Number 685-090-016, is located to the south of 

Dinah Shore Drive and between Monterey Avenue and Key Largo Avenue, in the northeast quarter 

of Section 30, T4S R6E, San Bernardino Baseline and Meridian (Figs. 2, 3). 

 

The study is a part of the environmental review process for a proposed housing development project 

on the property. The City of Rancho Mirage, as the lead agency for the project, required the study in 

compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA; PRC §21000, et seq.). The 

purpose of the study is to provide the City with the necessary information and analysis to determine 

whether the proposed project would cause substantial adverse changes to any “historical resources,” 

as defined by CEQA, that may exist in or around the project area.  

 

In order to identify such resources, CRM TECH reviewed the results of a recent historical/ 

archaeological resources records search on an adjacent property, contacted pertinent Native 

American representatives, pursued historical background research, and carried out an intensive-level 

field survey. The following report is a complete account of the methods, results, and final conclusion 

of the study. Personnel who participated in the study are named in the appropriate sections below, 

and their qualifications are provided in Appendix 1. 

 

 
 

Figure 1. Project vicinity. (Based on USGS Santa Ana, Calif., 120’x60’ quadrangle [USGS 1979]) 



 2 

 

 
 

Figure 2. Project area. (Based on USGS Cathedral City and Myoma, Calif., 7.5’ quadrangles [USGS 1978; 1981]) 
 

 



 3 

 

 
 

Figure 3. Recent satellite image of the project area. (Based on Google Earth imagery) 
 

 



 4 

SETTING 

 

CURRENT NATURAL SETTING 

 

The City of Rancho Mirage is located in the Coachella Valley, a northwest-southeast trending desert 

valley that constitutes the western end of the Colorado Desert. Dictated by this geographic setting, 

the climate and environment of the region are typical of the southern California desert country, 

marked by extremes in temperature and aridity. Temperatures in the region reach over 120 degrees 

Fahrenheit in summer, and dip to near freezing in winter. Average annual precipitation is less than 

five inches, and the average annual evaporation rate exceeds three feet. 

 

The rectangular shaped project area lies on a generally level and sandy desert ridge between the San 

Jacinto Mountains to the southwest and the Indio Hills to the northeast. It is surrounded by other 

parcels of vacant land of similar character, with the Monterey Marketplace shopping center further 

to the north and a residential neighborhood to the west across Kay Largo Avenue (Fig. 3). Elevations 

in the project area range roughly from 300 feet to 315 feet above mean sea level, with the terrain 

sloping gently downward to the northeast. Vegetation in the project area consists of a scattered 

growth of native plants, mainly creosote bushes and other small desert shrubs and grasses.  

 

 
 

Figure 4. Typical landscape in the project area, view to the southwest. (Photograph taken on May 14, 2024) 

 

CULTURAL SETTING 

 

Prehistoric Context 

 

Numerous investigations on the history of cultural development in southern California have led 

researchers to propose a number of cultural chronologies for the desert regions. A specific cultural 

sequence for the Colorado Desert was offered by Schaefer (1994) on the basis of the many 

archaeological studies conducted in the area. The earliest time period identified is the Paleoindian 



 5 

(ca. 8,000 to 10,000-12,000 years ago), when “small, mobile bands” of hunters and gatherers, who 

relied on a variety of small and large game animals as well as wild plants for subsistence, roamed the 

region (Schaefer 1994:63). These small groups settled “on mesas and terraces overlooking larger 

washes” (Schaefer 1994:64). The artifact assemblage of that period typically consists of very simple 

stone tools, “cleared circles, rock rings, [and] some geoglyph types” (Schaefer 1994). 

 

The Early Archaic Period follows and dates to ca. 8,000 to 4,000 years ago. It appears that a 

decrease in population density occurred at this time and that the indigenous groups of the area relied 

more on foraging than hunting. Very few archaeological remains have been identified to this time 

period. The ensuing Late Archaic Period (ca. 4,000 to 1,500 years ago) is characterized by continued 

low population densities and groups of “flexible” sizes that settled near available seasonal food 

resources and relied on “opportunistic” hunting of game animals. Groundstone artifacts for food 

processing were prominent during this time period. 

 

The most recent period in Schaefer’s scheme, the Late Prehistoric, dates from ca. 1,500 years ago to 

the time of the Spanish missions, saw the continuation of the seasonal settlement pattern. Peoples of 

the Late Prehistoric Period were associated with the Patayan cultural pattern and relied more heavily 

on the availability of seasonal “wild plants and animal resources” (Schaefer 1994:66). It was during 

this period that ceramics and the bow/arrow were introduced into the region. 

 

The shores of Holocene Lake Cahuilla, during times of its presence, attracted much settlement and 

resource procurement activities. In times of the lake’s desiccation and absence, according to 

Schaefer (1994:66), the Native people moved away from its receding shores towards rivers, streams, 

and mountains. Numerous archaeological sites dating to the last high stand of Holocene Lake 

Cahuilla, roughly between 1600 and 1700 A.D., have been identified along its former shoreline. 

Testing and mitigative excavations at these sites have recovered brown and buff ware ceramics, a 

variety of groundstone and projectile point types, ornaments, and cremation remains. 

 

Ethnohistoric Context 

 

The Coachella Valley is a historical center of Native American settlement, where U.S. surveyors 

noted large numbers of Indian villages and rancherías, occupied by the Cahuilla people, in the mid-

19th century. The origin of the name “Cahuilla” is unclear, but may originate from their own word 

káwiya, meaning master or boss (Bean 1978). The Takic-speaking Cahuilla are generally divided by 

anthropologists into three groups, according to their geographic setting: the Pass Cahuilla of the San 

Gorgonio Pass-Palm Springs area, the Mountain Cahuilla of the San Jacinto and Santa Rosa 

Mountains and the Cahuilla Valley, and the Desert Cahuilla of the eastern Coachella Valley. The 

basic written sources on Cahuilla culture and history include Kroeber (1925), Strong (1929), and 

Bean (1978), based on information provided by such Cahuilla informants as Juan Siva, Francisco 

Patencio, Katherine Siva Saubel, and Mariano Saubel. The following ethnohistoric discussion is 

based primarily on these sources. 

 

The Cahuilla did not have a single name that referred to an all-inclusive tribal affiliation. Instead, 

membership was in terms of lineages or clans. Each lineage or clan belonged to one of two main 

divisions of the people, known as moieties. Their moieties were named for the Wildcat, or Tuktum, 

and Coyote, or Istam. Members of clans in one moiety had to marry into clans from the other 



 6 

moiety. Individual clans had villages, or central places, and territories they called their own, for 

purposes of hunting game, and gathering raw materials for food, medicine, ritual, or tool use. They 

interacted with other clans through trade, intermarriage, and ceremonies. 

 

Cahuilla subsistence was defined by the surrounding landscape and primarily based on the hunting 

and gathering of wild and cultivated foods, exploiting nearly all of the resources available in a highly 

developed seasonal mobility system. They were adapted to the arid conditions of the desert floor, the 

lacustral cycles of Holocene Lake Cahuilla, and the environments of the nearby mountains. When 

the lake was full, or nearly full, the Cahuilla would take advantage of the resources presented by the 

body of fresh water, building elaborate stone fish traps. Once the lake had desiccated, they relied on 

the available terrestrial resources. The cooler temperatures and resources available at higher 

elevations in the nearby mountains were also taken advantage of. 

 

The Cahuilla diet included seeds, roots, wild fruits and berries, acorns, wild onions, piñon nuts, and 

mesquite and screw beans. Medicinal plants such as creosote, California sagebrush, yerba buena and 

elderberry were typically cultivated near villages (Bean and Saubel 1972). Common game animals 

included deer, antelope, big horn sheep, rabbits, wood rats and, when Holocene Lake Cahuilla was 

present, fish and waterfowl. The Cahuilla hunted with throwing sticks, clubs, nets, traps, and snares, 

as well as bows and arrow (Bean 1978; CSRI 2002). Common tools included manos and metates, 

mortars and pestles, hammerstones, fire drills, awls, arrow-straighteners, and stone knives and 

scrapers. These lithic tools were made from locally sourced material as well as materials procured 

through trade or travel. They also used wood, horn, and bone spoons and stirrers; baskets for 

winnowing, leaching, grinding, transporting, parching, storing, and cooking; and pottery vessels for 

carrying water, storage, cooking, and serving food and drink (Bean 1978; CSRI 2002). 

 

As the landscape defined their subsistence practices, the tending and cultivation practices of the 

Cahuilla helped shape the landscape. Biological studies have recently found evidence that the fan 

palms found in the Coachella Valley and throughout the southeastern California desert 

(Washingtonia filifera) may not be relics from a paleo-tropical environment, but instead a relatively 

recent addition brought to the area and cultivated by native populations (Anderson 2005). The 

planting of palms by the Cahuilla is well-documented, as is their enhancement of palm stands 

through the practice of controlled burning (Anderson 2005; Bean and Saubel 1972). Burning palm 

stands would increase fruit yield dramatically by eliminating pests such as the palm borer beetle, 

date scales, and spider mites (Bean and Saubel 1972). It also prevented out-of-control wildfires by 

eliminating dead undergrowth before it accumulated to dangerous levels. The Cahuilla also burned 

stands of chia to produce higher yields, and deergrass to yield straighter, more abundant stalks for 

basketry (Bean and Saubel 1972; Anderson 2005). 

 

Population data prior to European contact is almost impossible to obtain, but estimates range from 

3,600 to as high as 10,000 persons covering a territory of over 2,400 square miles. During the 19th 

century, the Cahuilla population was decimated as a result of European diseases, most notably 

smallpox, for which the Native peoples had no immunity. Today, Native Americans of Pass or 

Desert Cahuilla heritage are mostly affiliated with one or more of the Indian reservations in and near 

the Coachella Valley, including Agua Caliente, Morongo, Cabazon, Torres Martinez, and Augustine. 

There has been a resurgence of traditional ceremonies in recent years, and the language, songs, and 

stories are now being taught to the youngest generations. 



 7 

 

Historic Context 

 

In 1823-1825, José Romero, José Maria Estudillo, and Romualdo Pacheco became the first noted 

European explorers to travel through the Coachella Valley when they led a series of expeditions in 

search of a route to Yuma (Johnston 1987:92-95). Due to its harsh environment, few non-Indians 

ventured into the desert valley during the Mexican and early American periods, except those who 

traveled along the established trails. The most important of these trails was the Cocomaricopa Trail, 

an ancient Indian trading route that was “discovered” in 1862 by William David Bradshaw and 

known after that as the Bradshaw Trail (Gunther 1984:71; Ross 1992:25). In much of the Coachella 

Valley, this historic wagon road traversed a similar course to that of present-day State Route 111. 

During the 1860s-1870s, the Bradshaw Trail served as the main thoroughfare between coastal 

southern California and the Colorado River, until the completion of the Southern Pacific Railroad in 

1876-1877 brought an end to its heyday (Johnston 1987:185). 

 

Non-Indian settlement in the Coachella Valley began in the 1870s with the establishment of railroad 

stations along the Southern Pacific Railroad, and spread further in the 1880s after public land was 

opened for claims under the Homestead Act, the Desert Land Act, and other federal land laws 

(Laflin 1998:35-36; Robinson 1948:169-171). Farming became the dominant economic activity in 

the valley thanks to the development of underground water sources, often in the form of artesian 

wells. Around the turn of the century, the date palm was introduced into the Coachella Valley, and 

by the late 1910s dates were the main agricultural crop and the tree an iconic image celebrating the 

region as the “Arabia of America” (Shields Date Gardens 1957). Then, starting in the 1920s, a new 

industry featuring equestrian camps, resorts, hotels, and eventually country clubs began to spread 

throughout the Coachella Valley, transforming it into southern California’s premier winter retreat. 

 

In the Rancho Mirage area, the first notable settlement activities occurred in the 1910s-1920s, when 

several date ranches were established within the present-day city boundary (Love and Tang 1996:7). 

In 1924, R.P. “Bert” Davie and E.E. McIntyre subdivided the Rancho Rio del Sol Estates around 

today’s Clancy Lane, creating a small community nicknamed “Little Santa Monica” (Love and Tang 

1996:8). Ten years later, Louis Blankenhorn and Laurence Macomber began a new subdivision at 

the mouth of Magnesia Spring Canyon, and for the first time bestowed the name Rancho Mirage on 

the community (Love and Tang 1996). After the end of WWII, Rancho Mirage embarked on a 

period of rapid growth. With the development of the Thunderbird Country Club and the Tamarisk 

Country Club in 1951-1952, Rancho Mirage set the trend in the post-WWII boom among the five 

cove communities along Highway 111 (Love and Tang 1996:8-9). This trend has continued into the 

present and has given rise to the City of Rancho Mirage’s popular reputation as the “country club 

city.” 

 

 

RESEARCH METHODS 

 

RECORDS SEARCH 

 

The historical/archaeological resources records search results used for this study was prepared for an 

adjacent property to the north (now Assessor’s Parcel Number 685-090-017). The records search 



 8 

was conducted by CRM TECH archaeologist Nina Gallardo on February 9, 2024, at the Eastern 

Information Center (EIC) of the California Historical Resources Information System. Located on the 

campus of the University of California, Riverside, the EIC is the State of California’s official 

cultural resource records repository for the County of Riverside. 

 

In addition, CRM TECH also reviewed the results of other records searches completed nearby in 

recent years to compile a complete inventory of previously identified cultural resources and existing 

cultural resources reports within a one-mile radius of the current project location. Previously 

identified cultural resources include properties designated as California Historical Landmarks, Points 

of Historical Interest, or Riverside County Historic Landmarks, as well as those listed in the National 

Register of Historic Places, the California Register of Historical Resources, or the California 

Historical Resources Inventory. 

 

NATIVE AMERICAN PARTICIPATION 

 

On April 16, 2024, CRM TECH submitted a written request to the State of California Native 

American Heritage Commission (NAHC) for a records search in the commission’s Sacred Lands 

File. The NAHC is the State of California’s trustee agency for the protection of “tribal cultural 

resources,” as defined by California Public Resources Code §21074, and is tasked with identifying 

and cataloging properties of Native American cultural value throughout the state. In the meantime, 

CRM TECH contacted the nearby Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians for additional 

information on potential Native American cultural resources in the vicinity and invited tribal 

participation in the upcoming archaeological field survey. Responses from the NAHC and the Agua 

Caliente Band are attached to this report in Appendix 2 and summarized in the sections below. 

 

HISTORICAL BACKGROUND RESEARCH 

 

Historical background research for this study was conducted by CRM TECH archaeologist Frank 

Raslich. Sources consulted during the research included published literature in local history, 

historical maps of the Coachella Valley area, and aerial/satellite photographs of the project vicinity. 

Among the maps consulted for this study were the U.S. General Land Office’s (GLO) land survey 

plat maps dated 1856 and the U.S. Geological Survey’s (USGS) topographic maps dated 1904-1981, 

which are available at the websites of the U.S. Bureau of Land Management and the USGS. The 

aerial and satellite photographs, taken in 1959-2024, are accessed at the Nationwide Environmental 

Title Research (NETR) Online website and through the Google Earth software. 

 

FIELD SURVEY 

 

On May 14, 2024, CRM TECH archaeologist Michael Richards carried out the field survey of the 

project area with the assistance of Native American monitors Luz Salazar and Xitlaly Madrigal from 

the Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians. The survey was conducted at an intensive level by 

walking a series of parallel north-south transects at 15-meter (approximately 50-foot) intervals. In 

this way, the entire project area was systematically and carefully examined for any evidence of 

human activities dating to the prehistoric or historic period (i.e., 50 years or older). Ground visibility 

was good (above 75%) throughout the course of the survey (Fig. 4). 

 



 9 

RESULTS AND FINDINGS 

 

RECORDS SEARCH 

 

According to EIC records, the project area had not been surveyed systematically for cultural 

resources prior to this study, and no cultural resources had been recorded within or adjacent to the 

project boundaries. Within the one-mile scope of the records search, EIC records identify a total of 

35 previously completed cultural resources studies on various tracts of land and linear features. In 

addition, in April 2024 CRM TECH completed a similar study on the adjacent property to the north, 

which is yet to be incorporated into EIC records. 

 

As a result of the past survey efforts, 17 cultural resources within the one-mile radius have been 

recorded into the California Historical Resources Inventory, including four prehistoric (i.e., Native 

American) sites, seven historic-period sites, and six isolates (i.e., localities with fewer than three 

artifacts), as listed below in Table 1. The nearest among these, Site 33-017008, was located roughly 

a half-mile northwest of the project area and consisted of the remains of a collapsed shed of 

unknown age. Since none of the 17 known cultural resources was found in close proximity to the 

project location, none of them requires further consideration during this study. 

 
Table 1. Previously Recorded Cultural Resources within the Scope of the Records Search 

Primary 

Number 
Trinomial Description 

Date 

Recorded 

33-003440 CA-RIV-3440H Remains of Edom Station and Siding on Southern Pacific Railroad 1999 

33-005625 N/A Remains of Kubic Ranch 2004 

33-009498 CA-RIV-6381H Southern Pacific (now Union Pacific) Railroad 2005 

33-009748 CA-RIV-6495H Early alignment of Rio del Sol Road (now Bob Hope Drive), ca. 

1941-1958 

2000 

33-010953 N/A Two sanitary cans 2000 

33-010954 N/A Sanitary can 2000 

33-010955 N/A Sanitary can 2000 

33-010956 N/A Sanitary can 2000 

33-015933 N/A Beer cans from a six-pack 2000 

33-017005 CA-RIV-8852H Refuse scatter 2007 

33-017007 CA-RIV-8854 Scattered groundstone and flaked-stone artifacts 2007 

33-017008 CA-RIV-8855H Remains of collapsed wood-and-metal shed 2007 

33-017009 CA-RIV-8856 Cremation remains 2007 

33-017010 CA-RIV-8857 Cremation remains with associated lithic artifacts 2007 

33-017011 CA-RIV-8858 Scattered groundstone and flaked-stone artifacts 2007 

33-017012 N/A Pottery sherd 2007 

33-026824 CA-RIV-12609H Refuse scatter 2017 

 

NATIVE AMERICAN PARTICIPATION 

 

In response to CRM TECH’s inquiry, the NAHC reported in a letter dated May 6, 2024, that the 

Sacred Lands File search yielded negative results for Native American cultural resources in the 

project vicinity. Noting that the absence of specific information would not necessarily indicate the 

absence of cultural resources, however, the NAHC recommended that local Native American groups 

be consulted for further information and provided a referral list of potential contacts in the region 

who may have knowledge of such resources. The NAHC’s reply is attached in Appendix 2 for 



 10 

reference by the City of Rancho Mirage in future government-to-government consultations with the 

pertinent Native American representatives, if necessary. 

 

On April 22, 2024, Xitlaly Madrigal, Cultural Resources Analyst with the Agua Caliente Tribal 

Historic Preservation Office, replied to CRM TECH in writing. In the letter, she identified the 

project location as a part of the tribe’s Traditional Use Area and requested to review all cultural 

resources documentation generated for this project, including the records search results. In addition, 

she requested that a qualified archaeologist perform a cultural resources inventory prior to 

development and an approved Agua Caliente Native American Cultural Resource Monitor be present 

during any ground-disturbing activities in the project area (see Appendix 2). As mentioned above, 

representatives of the Agua Caliente Tribal Historic Preservation Office subsequently participated in 

the archaeological field survey on May 14, 2024. 

 

HISTORICAL BACKGROUND RESEARCH 

 

Historical sources consulted for this study yielded no evidence of any settlement or development 

activities within the project area throughout the historic period (Figs. 5-8; NETR Online 1959-1979). 

In the late 19th and early 20th centuries, the nearest human-made feature known to be extant was the 

Southern Pacific (now Union Pacific) Railroad, which was later joined by U.S. Highway 60/70/99, 

the forerunner of today’s Interstate Highway 10 (Figs. 6, 7). By the 1950s, some scattered buildings 

had appeared in the vicinity, but none of them was located within or adjacent to the project 

boundaries (Fig. 8; NETR Online 1959). Since the 1990s, real estate development has accelerated 

noticeably in the surrounding area, as exemplified by the construction of the Monterey Marketplace  

 

 
 

Figure 5. The project area and vicinity in 1855-1856. 

(Source: GLO 1856a; 1856b)  

 
 

Figure 6. The project area and vicinity in 1901. (Source: 

USGS 1904)  



 11 

 
 

Figure 7. The project area and vicinity in 1941. (Source: 

USGS 1941)  

 
 

Figure 8. The project area and vicinity in 1951-1958. 

(Source: USGS 1958)   

 

shopping center and the residential tracts on the west side of Key Largo Avenue (NETR Online 

1959-2005). In contrast, the project area has remained unsettled, undeveloped, and evidently unused 

to the present time (NETR Online 1959-2020). 

 

FIELD SURVEY 

 

The field survey of the project area produced negative results for potential “historical resources.” 

Throughout the course of the survey, no buildings, structures, objects, sites, features, or artifact 

deposits of prehistoric or historical origin were encountered. Scattered refuse was noted over 

portions of the property, but all the items are clearly modern in origin, evidently associated with a 

homeless encampment nearby, and none of them is of any historical/archaeological interest. 

 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

The purpose of this study is to identify any cultural resources within the project area and to assist the 

City of Rancho Mirage in determining whether such resources meet the official definition of 

“historical resources,” as provided in the California Public Resources Code, in particular CEQA. 

According to PRC §5020.1(j), “‘historical resource’ includes, but is not limited to, any object, 

building, site, area, place, record, or manuscript which is historically or archaeologically significant, 

or is significant in the architectural, engineering, scientific, economic, agricultural, educational, 

social, political, military, or cultural annals of California.” 

 



 12 

More specifically, CEQA guidelines state that the term “historical resources” applies to any such 

resources listed in or determined to be eligible for listing in the California Register of Historical 

Resources, included in a local register of historical resources, or determined to be historically 

significant by the lead agency (Title 14 CCR §15064.5(a)(1)-(3)). Regarding the proper criteria for 

the evaluation of historical significance, CEQA guidelines mandate that “generally a resource shall 

be considered by the lead agency to be ‘historically significant’ if the resource meets the criteria for 

listing on the California Register of Historical Resources” (Title 14 CCR §15064.5(a)(3)). A 

resource may be listed in the California Register if it meets any of the following criteria: 

 

(1) Is associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad patterns 

of California’s history and cultural heritage.  

(2) Is associated with the lives of persons important in our past. 

(3) Embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, region, or method of 

construction, or represents the work of an important creative individual, or possesses high 

artistic values.  

(4) Has yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important in prehistory or history. 

(PRC §5024.1(c)) 

 

As discussed above, no potential “historical resources” were previously recorded within or adjacent 

to the project area, and none was found during the present survey. The Native American Sacred 

Lands File identified no properties of traditional cultural value in the vicinity, and no notable cultural 

features were known to be present in the project area throughout the historic period. Based on these 

findings, and in light of the criteria listed above, the present study concludes that no “historical 

resources” exist within or adjacent to the project area. 

 

 

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

CEQA establishes that “a project that may cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a 

historical resource is a project that may have a significant effect on the environment” (PRC 

§21084.1). “Substantial adverse change,” according to PRC §5020.1(q), “means demolition, 

destruction, relocation, or alteration such that the significance of a historical resource would be 

impaired.” 

 

In conclusion, the present study has identified no “historical resources” within or adjacent to the 

project area. Therefore, CRM TECH presents the following recommendations to the City of Rancho 

Mirage: 

 

• The proposed project will not cause a substantial adverse change to any known “historical 

resources.” 

• No further cultural resources investigation is necessary for the project unless development plans 

undergo such changes as to include areas not covered by this study. 

• If buried cultural materials are discovered during any earth-moving operations associated with 

the project, all work in the immediate area should be halted or diverted until a qualified 

archaeologist can evaluate the nature and significance of the find. 

 



 13 

 

REFERENCES 

 

Anderson, M. Kat 

   2005 Tending the Wild: Native American Knowledge and the Management of California’s 

Natural Resources. University of California Press, Berkeley. 

Bean, Lowell John 

   1978 Cahuilla. In Robert F. Heizer (ed.): Handbook of North American Indians, Vol. 8: 

California; pp. 575-587. Smithsonian Institution, Washington, D.C. 

Bean, Lowell John, and Katherine Siva Saubel 

   1972 Temalpakh: Cahuilla Indian Knowledge and Usage of Plants. Malki Museum Press, 

Banning, California. 

CSRI (Cultural Systems Research, Inc.) 

   2002 The Native Americans of Joshua Tree National Park: An Ethnographic Overview and 

Assessment Study. Http://www.cr.nps.gov/history/online_books/jotr/history6.htm.  

GLO (General Land Office, U.S. Department of the Interior)  

   1856a Plat map: Township No. 4 South Range No. 5 East, SBBM; surveyed in 1855-1856. 

   1856b Plat map: Township No. 4 South Range No. 6 East, SBBM; surveyed in 1855-1856. 

Gunther, Jane Davies 

   1984 Riverside County, California, Place Names: Their Origins and Their Stories. J.D. 

Gunther, Riverside. 

Johnston, Francis J. 

   1987 The Bradshaw Trail; revised edition. Historical Commission Press, Riverside. 

Kroeber, Alfred L. 

   1925 Handbook of the Indians of California. Bureau of American Ethnology Bulletin 78. 

Government Printing Office, Washington, D.C. 

Laflin, Patricia 

   1998 Coachella Valley California: A Pictorial History. The Donning Company, Virginia 

Beach, Virginia. 

Love, Bruce, and Bai “Tom” Tang 

   1996 Cultural Resources Report: Rancho Mirage General Plan, City of Rancho Mirage, 

Riverside County, California. On File, Eastern Information Center, University of California, 

Riverside. 

NETR (Nationwide Environmental Title Research) Online 

   1959-2020 Aerial photographs of the project vicinity; taken in 1959, 1972, 1977, 1979, 1984, 

1996, 2002, 2005, 2009, 2010, 2012, 2014, 2016, 2018, and 2020. 

http://www.historicaerials.com. 

Robinson, W.W. 

   1948 Land in California. University of California Press, Berkeley. 

Ross, Delmer G. 

   1992 Gold Road to La Paz: An Interpretive Guide to the Bradshaw Trail. Tales of the Mojave 

Road Publishing Company, Essex, California. 

Schaefer, Jerry 

   1994 The Challenge of Archaeological Research in the Colorado Desert: Recent Approaches 

and Discoveries. Journal of California and Great Basin Anthropology 16(1):60-80. 

 



 14 

 

Shields Date Gardens 

   1957 Coachella Valley Desert Trails and the Romance and Sex Life of the Date. Shields Date 

Gardens, Indio. 

Strong, William Duncan 

   1929 Aboriginal Society in Southern California. University of California Publications in 

American Archaeology and Ethnology, Vol. 26. 

USGS (United States Geological Survey, U.S. Department of the Interior)  

   1904 Map: Indio, Calif. (30’, 1:125,000); surveyed in 1901. 

   1941 Map: Edom, Calif. (15’, 1:62,500); aerial photographs taken in 1941. 

   1958 Map: Thousand Palms, Calif. (15’, 1:62,500); aerial photographs taken in 1951-1956, 

field-checked in 1958. 

   1978 Map: Myoma, Calif. (7.5’, 1:24,000); 1958 edition photorevised in 1972, photoinspected 

in 1978. 

   1979 Map: Santa Ana, Calif. (120’x60’, 1:250,000); 1959 edition revised. 

   1981 Map: Cathedral City, Calif. (7.5’, 1:24,000); 1958 edition photorevised in 1978. 

  



 15 

 

APPENDIX 1: 

PERSONNEL QUALIFICATIONS 

 

PRINCIPAL INVESTIGATOR/HISTORIAN 

Bai “Tom” Tang, M.A. 

 

Education 

 

1988-1993 Graduate Program in Public History/Historic Preservation, University of California, 

Riverside. 

1987 M.A., American History, Yale University, New Haven, Connecticut. 

1982 B.A., History, Northwestern University, Xi’an, China. 

 

2000 “Introduction to Section 106 Review,” presented by the Advisory Council on Historic 

Preservation and the University of Nevada, Reno. 

1994 “Assessing the Significance of Historic Archaeological Sites,” presented by the 

Historic Preservation Program, University of Nevada, Reno. 

 

Professional Experience 

 

2002- Principal Investigator, CRM TECH, Riverside/Colton, California. 

1993-2002 Project Historian/Architectural Historian, CRM TECH, Riverside, California. 

1993-1997 Project Historian, Greenwood and Associates, Pacific Palisades, California. 

1991-1993 Project Historian, Archaeological Research Unit, University of California, Riverside. 

1990 Intern Researcher, California State Office of Historic Preservation, Sacramento. 

1990-1992 Teaching Assistant, History of Modern World, University of California, Riverside. 

1988-1993 Research Assistant, American Social History, University of California, Riverside. 

1985-1988 Research Assistant, Modern Chinese History, Yale University. 

1985-1986 Teaching Assistant, Modern Chinese History, Yale University. 

1982-1985 Lecturer, History, Xi’an Foreign Languages Institute, Xi’an, China. 

 

Cultural Resources Management Reports 

 

Preliminary Analyses and Recommendations Regarding California’s Cultural Resources Inventory 

System (with Special Reference to Condition 14 of NPS 1990 Program Review Report). California 

State Office of Historic Preservation working paper, Sacramento, September 1990. 

 

Numerous cultural resources management reports with the Archaeological Research Unit, 

Greenwood and Associates, and CRM TECH, since October 1991. 

  



 16 

PRINCIPAL INVESTIGATOR/ARCHAEOLOGIST 

Michael Hogan, Ph.D., RPA (Registered Professional Archaeologist) 

 

Education 

 

1991 Ph.D., Anthropology, University of California, Riverside. 

1981 B.S., Anthropology, University of California, Riverside; with honors. 

1980-1981 Education Abroad Program, Lima, Peru. 

 

2002 “Section 106—National Historic Preservation Act: Federal Law at the Local Level,” 

UCLA Extension Course #888.  

2002 “Recognizing Historic Artifacts,” workshop presented by Richard Norwood, 

Historical Archaeologist. 

2002 “Wending Your Way through the Regulatory Maze,” symposium presented by the 

Association of Environmental Professionals. 

1992 “Southern California Ceramics Workshop,” presented by Jerry Schaefer. 

1992 “Historic Artifact Workshop,” presented by Anne Duffield-Stoll. 

 

Professional Experience 

 

2002- Principal Investigator, CRM TECH, Riverside/Colton, California. 

1999-2002 Project Archaeologist/Field Director, CRM TECH, Riverside, California. 

1996-1998 Project Director and Ethnographer, Statistical Research, Inc., Redlands, California. 

1992-1998 Assistant Research Anthropologist, University of California, Riverside. 

1992-1995 Project Director, Archaeological Research Unit, U.C. Riverside. 

1993-1994 Adjunct Professor, Riverside Community College, Mt. San Jacinto College, U.C. 

Riverside, Chapman University, and San Bernardino Valley College. 

1991-1992 Crew Chief, Archaeological Research Unit, U.C. Riverside. 

1984-1998 Project Director, Field Director, Crew Chief, and Archaeological Technician for 

various southern California cultural resources management firms. 

 

Research Interests 

 

Cultural Resource Management, Southern Californian Archaeology, Settlement and Exchange 

Patterns, Specialization and Stratification, Culture Change, Native American Culture, Cultural 

Diversity. 

 

Cultural Resources Management Reports 

 

Principal investigator for, author or co-author of, and contributor to numerous cultural resources 

management study reports since 1986.  

 

Memberships 

 

Society for American Archaeology; Society for California Archaeology; Pacific Coast 

Archaeological Society; Coachella Valley Archaeological Society.  



 17 

 

PROJECT ARCHAEOLOGIST/REPORT WRITER 

Frank J. Raslich, M.A. 

 

Education 

 

2016- Ph.D. candidate, Michigan State University, East Lansing. 

2010 M.A., Anthropology, Michigan State University, East Lansing. 

2005 B.A., Anthropology, University of Michigan, Flint. 

 

2019 Grant and Research Proposal Writing for Archaeologists; Society for American 

Archaeology online seminar. 

2014 Bruker Industries Tracer S1800 pXRF Training; presented by Dr. Bruce Kaiser, 

Bruker Scientific. 

 

Professional Experience 

 

2022- Project Archaeologist/Report Writer, CRM TECH, Colton, California. 

2022 Archaeological Monitor, Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians, Palm Springs, 

California. 

2014-2022 Board of Directors, Ziibiwing Center of Anishinabe Culture and Lifeways, Saginaw 

Chippewa Indian Tribe of Michigan. 

2008-2021 Archaeological Consultant, Saginaw Chippewa Indian Tribe of Michigan. 

2019 Archaeologist, Sault Tribe of Chippewa Indians and Little Traverse Bay Band of 

Odawa Indians. 

2016-2018 Adjunct Lecturer, Michigan State University, East Lansing. 

2017-2018 Adjunct Lecturer, University of Michigan, Flint. 

2009-2017 Teaching Assistant, Michigan State University, East Lansing. 

2008-2014 Research Assistant, Intellectual Property Issues in Cultural Heritage, Simon Fraser 

University, British Columbia, Canada. 

2010-2013 Research Assistant, Michigan State University, East Lansing. 

2009-2011 Archaeologist/Crew Chief, Saginaw Chippewa Indian Tribe of Michigan. 

 

Publications 

 

2017 Preliminary Results of a Handheld X-Ray Fluorescence (pXRF) Analysis on a Marble 

Head Sarcophagus Sculpture from the Collection of the Kresge Art Center, Michigan 

State University. Submitted to Jon M. Frey, Department of Art, Art History, and 

Design, Michigan State University, East Lansing. 

2013 Geochemical Analysis of the Dickenson Group of the Upper Peninsula, Michigan: A 

study of an Accreted Terrane of the Superior Province. Geological Society of 

America Abstracts with Programs 45:4(53).  



 18 

PROJECT ARCHAEOLOGIST 

Michael D. Richards, M.A., Registered Professional Archaeologist 

 

Education 
 

2002 M.A., Anthropology, California State University, Northridge (CSUN). 

1986 B.A., Anthropology: University of California, Los Angeles (UCLA). 

1982 A.A., Los Angeles Valley College, Los Angeles, California. 

 

2015 Section 106 workshop. 

2000 CSUN “Olmec” field excavation and lab analysis; La Venta, Mexico. 

1999 Rock art recording, UCLA Extension; Little Lake, California. 

1998 Rock art symposium, UCLA Extension. 

 

Professional Experience 
 

2018- Project Archaeologist/Paleontologist, CRM TECH, Colton, Calif. 

2016-2018 Co-Principal Investigator/Archaeologist, LSA Associates Inc. 

2012-2016 Co-Principal Investigator/Archaeologist, ICF International (Jones & Stokes). 

2010-2012 Co-Principal Investigator/Archaeologist, various CRM firms (on call). 

2007-2010 Principal Investigator/Field Director/Crew Chief, ASM Affiliates, Inc. 

2004-2007 Project Manager/Co-Principal Investigator, ArchaeoPaleo Resource Management, Inc. 

2003-2004 Staff Archaeologist/Crew Chief, SRI, Inc. 

2000-2003 Project Archaeologist/Field Director, Ancient Enterprises (Clewlow, Jr.). 

1999-2000 Staff Archaeologist/Lab Crew Chief, CSC/Edwards Air Force Base. 

 

Memberships 

 

Society for American Archaeology; Society for California Archaeology; Archaeological Institute of 

America; Conejo Open Space Trails Advisory Committee; Conejo Valley Historical Society. 

 

 

PROJECT ARCHAEOLOGIST/NATIVE AMERICAN LIAISON 

Nina Gallardo, B.A. 

 

Education 

 

2004 B.A., Anthropology/Law and Society, University of California, Riverside. 

 

Professional Experience 

 

2004- Project Archaeologist, CRM TECH, Riverside/Colton, California. 

 

Cultural Resources Management Reports 

 

Co-author of and contributor to numerous cultural resources management reports since 2004. 

  



 19 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 2 

 

NATIVE AMERICAN RESPONSES 
 



 

 

 



21 

 

 
 



22 

 

 
 



23 

Native American Heritage Commission 
Native American Contact List 

Riverside County 
5/6/2024 

Tribe Name Fed (F) 
Non-Fed (N) 

Contact Person Contact Address Phone # Fax # Email Address Cultural 
Affiliation 

Counties 

Agua Caliente Band 
of Cahuilla Indians 

F Lacy Padilla, Director of 
Historic Preservation/THPO 

5401 Dinah Shore Drive  
Palm Springs, CA, 92264 

(760) 333-5222 (760) 699-6919 ACBCI-THPO@aguacaliente.net Cahuilla Imperial, Riverside, San 
Bernardino, San Diego 

Augustine Band of 
Cahuilla Indians 

F Tribal Operations,  84-001 Avenue 54  
Coachella, CA, 92236 

(760) 398-4722   info@augustinetribe-nsn.gov Cahuilla Imperial, Riverside, San 
Bernardino, San Diego 

Cabazon Band of 
Mission Indians 

F Doug Welmas, Chairperson 84-245 Indio Springs Parkway  
Indio, CA, 92203 

(760) 342-2593 (760) 347-7880 jstapp@cabazonindians-nsn.gov Cahuilla Imperial, Riverside, San 
Bernardino, San Diego 

Cahuilla Band of 
Indians 

F Anthony Madrigal, Tribal 
Historic Preservation Officer 

52701 CA Highway 371  
Anza, CA, 92539 

(951) 763-5549   anthonymad2002@gmail.com Cahuilla Imperial, Riverside, San 
Bernardino, San Diego 

Cahuilla Band of 
Indians 

F BobbyRay Esaprza, Cultural 
Director 

52701 CA Highway 371  
Anza, CA, 92539 

(951) 763-5549   besparza@cahuilla-nsn.gov Cahuilla Imperial, Riverside, San 
Bernardino, San Diego 

Cahuilla Band of 
Indians 

F Erica Schenk, Chairperson 52701 CA Highway 371  
Anza, CA, 92539 

(951) 590-0942 (951) 763-2808 chair@cahuilla-nsn.gov Cahuilla Imperial, Riverside, San 
Bernardino, San Diego 

Los Coyotes Band of 
Cahuilla and Cupeño 
Indians 

F Ray Chapparosa, 
Chairperson 

P.O. Box 189  
Warner Springs, CA, 92086-0189 

(760) 782-0711 (760) 782-0712   Cahuilla Imperial, Riverside, San 
Bernardino, San Diego 

Morongo Band of 
Mission Indians 

F Ann Brierty, THPO 12700 Pumarra Road  
Banning, CA, 92220 

(951) 755-5259 (951) 572-6004 abrierty@morongo-nsn.gov Cahuilla 
Serrano 

Imperial, Kern, Los Angeles, 
Riverside, San Bernardino, 
San Diego 

Morongo Band of 
Mission Indians 

F Robert Martin, Chairperson 12700 Pumarra Road  
Banning, CA, 92220 

(951) 755-5110 (951) 755-5177 abrierty@morongo-nsn.gov Cahuilla 
Serrano 

Imperial, Kern, Los Angeles, 
Riverside, San Bernardino, 
San Diego 

Quechan Tribe of the 
Fort Yuma 
Reservation 

F Jill McCormick, Historic 
Preservation Officer 

P.O. Box 1899  
Yuma, AZ, 85366 

(928) 261-0254   historicpreservation@quechantribe.com Quechan Imperial, Kern, Los Angeles, 
Riverside, San Bernardino, 
San Diego 

Quechan Tribe of the 
Fort Yuma 
Reservation 

F Manfred Scott, Acting 
Chairman - Kw'ts'an Cultural 
Committee 

P.O. Box 1899  
Yuma, AZ, 85366 

(928) 210-8739   culturalcommittee@quechantribe.com Quechan Imperial, Kern, Los Angeles, 
Riverside, San Bernardino, 
San Diego 

Quechan Tribe of the 
Fort Yuma 
Reservation 

F Jordan Joaquin, President, 
Quechan Tribal Council 

P.O.Box 1899  
Yuma, AZ, 85366 

(760) 919-3600   executivesecretary@quechantribe.com Quechan Imperial, Kern, Los Angeles, 
Riverside, San Bernardino, 
San Diego 

Ramona Band of 
Cahuilla 

F John Gomez, Environmental 
Coordinator 

P. O. Box 391670  
Anza, CA, 92539 

(951) 763-4105 (951) 763-4325 jgomez@ramona-nsn.gov Cahuilla Imperial, Riverside, San 
Bernardino, San Diego 

Ramona Band of 
Cahuilla 

F Joseph Hamilton, 
Chairperson 

P.O. Box 391670  
Anza, CA, 92539 

(951) 763-4105 (951) 763-4325 admin@ramona-nsn.gov Cahuilla Imperial, Riverside, San 
Bernardino, San Diego 

Santa Rosa Band of 
Cahuilla Indians 

F Vanessa Minott, Tribal 
Administrator 

P.O. Box 391820  
Anza, CA, 92539 

(951) 659-2700 (951) 659-2228 vminott@santarosa-nsn.gov Cahuilla Imperial, Los Angeles, 
Orange, Riverside, San 
Bernardino, San Diego 

Santa Rosa Band of 
Cahuilla Indians 

F Steven Estrada, Tribal 
Chairman 

P.O. Box 391820  
Anza, CA, 92539 

(951) 659-2700 (951) 659-2228 sestrada@santarosa-nsn.gov Cahuilla Imperial, Los Angeles, 
Orange, Riverside, San 
Bernardino, San Diego 

Soboba Band of 
Luiseno Indians 

F Isaiah Vivanco, Chairperson P.O. Box 487  
San Jacinto, CA, 92581 

(951) 654-5544 (951) 654-4198 ivivanco@soboba-nsn.com Cahuilla 
Luiseno 

Imperial, Los Angeles, 
Orange, Riverside, San 
Bernardino, San Diego 

Soboba Band of 
Luiseno Indians 

F Jessica Valdez, Cultural 
Resource Specialist 

P.O. Box 487  
San Jacinto, CA, 92581 

(951) 663-6261 (951) 654-4198 jvaldez@soboba-nsn.gov Cahuilla 
Luiseno 

Imperial, Los Angeles, 
Orange, Riverside, San 
Bernardino, San Diego 

Soboba Band of 
Luiseno Indians 

F Joseph Ontiveros, Tribal 
Historic Preservation Officer 

P.O. Box 487  
San Jacinto, CA, 92581 

(951) 663-5279 (951) 654-4198 jontiveros@soboba-nsn.gov Cahuilla 
Luiseno 

Imperial, Los Angeles, 
Orange, Riverside, San 
Bernardino, San Diego 



24 

 

Torres-Martinez 
Desert Cahuilla 
Indians 

F Mary Belardo, Cultural 
Committee Vice Chair 

P.O. Box 1160  
Thermal, CA, 92274 

(760) 397-0300   belardom@gmail.com Cahuilla Imperial, Riverside, San 
Bernardino, San Diego 

Torres-Martinez 
Desert Cahuilla 
Indians 

F Thomas Tortez, Chairperson P.O. Box 1160  
Thermal, CA, 92274 

(760) 397-0300 (760) 397-8146 thomas.tortez@tmdci.org Cahuilla Imperial, Riverside, San 
Bernardino, San Diego 

Torres-Martinez 
Desert Cahuilla 
Indians 

F Gary Resvaloso, TM MLD P.O. Box 1160  
Thermal, CA, 92274 

(760) 777-0365   grestmtm@gmail.com Cahuilla Imperial, Riverside, San 
Bernardino, San Diego 

Torres-Martinez 
Desert Cahuilla 
Indians 

F Alesia Reed, Cultural 
Committee Chairwoman 

P.O. Box 1160  
Thermal, CA, 92274 

(760) 397-0300   lisareed990@gmail.com Cahuilla Imperial, Riverside, San 
Bernardino, San Diego 

Torres-Martinez 
Desert Cahuilla 
Indians 

F Abraham Becerra, Cultural 
Coordinator 

P.O. Box 1160  
Thermal, CA, 92274 

(760) 397-0300   abecerra@tmdci.org Cahuilla Imperial, Riverside, San 
Bernardino, San Diego 

          
This list is current only as of the date of this document. Distribution of this list does not relieve any person of statutory responsibility as defined in Section 7050.5 of the Health and Safety Code, Section 

5097.94 of the Public Resource Section 5097.98 of the Public Resources Code. 
  

This list is only applicable for contacting local Native Americans with regard to cultural resources assessment for the proposed Rancho Mirage 2 Project, Riverside County. 

Record: PROJ-2024-002329 
Report Type: List of Tribes 

Counties: Riverside 
NAHC Group: All 

 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  D 

 

Appendix D 
Design-Phase Geotechnical Investigation Report



EN
G

IN
EER

S  +
  G

EO
LO

G
ISTS  +

  EN
VIRO

N
M

EN
TAL   SC

IEN
TISTS

DESIGN-PHASE GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION REPORT
PROPOSED RANCHO MIRAGE APARTMENTS

APPROXIMATELY 5 ACRES SOUTH OF THE RANCHO MIRAGE DOG PARK
A PORTION OF ASSESSOR’S PARCEL NO. 685-090-011

RANCHO MIRAGE, RIVERSIDE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

NATIONAL CORE

July 25, 2024
J.N. 24-112



 
 

ENGINEERS   +   GEOLOGISTS   +   ENVIRONMENTAL   SCIENTISTS 

 

 
Offices Strategically Positioned Throughout Southern California 
DESERT REGION OFFICE 
42-240 Green Way, Suite E, Palm Desert, CA 92211 
T: 760.340.5303   F: 760.340.5096 
For more information visit us online at www.petra-inc.com 

 

 

July 25, 2024 

J.N. 24-112 

 

 

NATIONAL CORE 

430 E. State Street, Suite 100 

Eagle, Idaho 83616 
 

Attention: Ms. Taylor Libolt Varner 

 

Subject:  Design-Phase Geotechnical Investigation Report, Proposed Rancho Mirage 

Apartments, Approximately 5 Acres South of the Rancho Mirage Dog Park, a Portion 

of Assessor’s Parcel No. 685-090-011, Rancho Mirage, Riverside County, California 

 

Dear Ms. Libolt Varner: 

 

Petra Geosciences, Inc. (Petra) is submitting herewith our geotechnical investigation report for the 

proposed construction of approximately 150 apartments at the subject location in the city of Rancho Mirage. 

The proposed improvements will also include utilities, paved parking, landscaping, and on-site stormwater 

retention. This work was performed in general accordance with the scope of services outlined in our 

Proposal No. 24-112P, dated January 17, 2024. This report presents the results of our field investigation, 

laboratory testing, and our engineering and geologic analysis, judgment, opinions, conclusions and 

recommendations pertaining to geotechnical design aspects of the proposed improvements. 

 

It is a pleasure to be of service to you on this project. Should you have any questions regarding the contents 

of this report, or should you require additional information, please do not hesitate to contact us. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

PETRA GEOSCIENCES, INC. 

 

 

 

 

Alan Pace 

Senior Associate Geologist 

 

 

 

http://www.petra-inc.com/


NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

 

PURPOSE AND SCOPE OF SERVICES ..................................................................................................................... 1 

LOCATION AND SITE DESCRIPTION ..................................................................................................................... 2 

PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS .................................................................................................................................. 2 

FIELD EXPLORATION AND TESTING .................................................................................................................... 3 
Subsurface Exploration ...................................................................................................................................... 3 
Laboratory Testing ............................................................................................................................................. 3 
Percolation Testing ............................................................................................................................................. 4 

FINDINGS .................................................................................................................................................................... 5 
Regional Geologic Setting ................................................................................................................................. 5 
Local Geology and Subsurface Soil Conditions ................................................................................................. 5 
Groundwater ....................................................................................................................................................... 6 
Faulting .............................................................................................................................................................. 6 

Secondary Seismic Hazards ..................................................................................................................................... 6 
Seismically Induced Landsliding ....................................................................................................................... 6 
Seismically Induced Flooding ............................................................................................................................ 6 
Liquefaction and Seismically Induced Settlement ............................................................................................. 6 

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS ........................................................................................................ 9 
General Feasibility ............................................................................................................................................. 9 

Earthwork and Grading ............................................................................................................................................ 9 
General Specifications ....................................................................................................................................... 9 
Geotechnical Observations and Testing ............................................................................................................. 9 
Demolition, Clearing and Grubbing ................................................................................................................. 10 
Unsuitable Soil Removals and Bottom Processing .......................................................................................... 10 
Grading at Site Boundaries .............................................................................................................................. 11 
Excavation Characteristics ............................................................................................................................... 11 
Fill Placement .................................................................................................................................................. 11 
Imported Soils .................................................................................................................................................. 11 
Volumetric Changes - Bulking, Shrinkage and Subsidence ............................................................................. 12 
Temporary Excavations.................................................................................................................................... 12 
Expansive Soil Conditions ............................................................................................................................... 12 

PRELIMINARY FOUNDATION DESIGN CONSIDERATIONS ............................................................................ 13 
Seismic Design Parameters .............................................................................................................................. 13 
Discussion ........................................................................................................................................................ 15 
Foundation System ........................................................................................................................................... 16 
Allowable Soil Bearing Capacity, Anticipated Settlement and Lateral Resistance .......................................... 16 
Estimated Static Settlement .............................................................................................................................. 16 
Seismically Induced Settlement ....................................................................................................................... 17 
Lateral Resistance ............................................................................................................................................ 17 

Guidelines for Footings and Slabs on-Grade Design and Construction ................................................................. 17 
Conventional Slabs on-Grade System .............................................................................................................. 18 
Post-Tensioned Slabs on-Grade System ........................................................................................................... 20 
Foundation Excavation Observations ............................................................................................................... 23 

General Corrosivity Screening ............................................................................................................................... 23 
Post-Grading Considerations ................................................................................................................................. 24 

Utility Trenches ................................................................................................................................................ 24 
Site Drainage .................................................................................................................................................... 25 
Bottomless Trench Drains ................................................................................................................................ 26 

Retaining Walls ...................................................................................................................................................... 26 
Active and At-Rest Earth Pressures ................................................................................................................. 26 
Earthquake Loads Retaining Walls .................................................................................................................. 27 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

 

Subdrainage ...................................................................................................................................................... 27 
Waterproofing .................................................................................................................................................. 28 
Wall Backfill .................................................................................................................................................... 28 
Geotechnical Observation and Testing ............................................................................................................. 28 

Masonry Block Walls ............................................................................................................................................ 28 
Exterior Concrete Flatwork .................................................................................................................................... 29 

General ............................................................................................................................................................. 29 
Thickness and Joint Spacing ............................................................................................................................ 29 
Reinforcement .................................................................................................................................................. 30 
Edge Beams (Optional) .................................................................................................................................... 30 
Subgrade Preparation ....................................................................................................................................... 30 
Drainage ........................................................................................................................................................... 31 
Tree Wells ........................................................................................................................................................ 31 

Swimming Pool and Spa ........................................................................................................................................ 31 
Allowable Bearing and Settlement ................................................................................................................... 31 
Lateral Earth Pressures ..................................................................................................................................... 32 
Stability of Temporary Excavation .................................................................................................................. 32 
Temporary Access Ramps ................................................................................................................................ 32 
Pool Bottom ..................................................................................................................................................... 32 
Pool Decking .................................................................................................................................................... 32 

Plumbing Fixtures .................................................................................................................................................. 33 

ACCESS ROADS........................................................................................................................................................ 33 
Asphalt Pavement............................................................................................................................................. 33 

PLAN REVIEW .......................................................................................................................................................... 34 

REPORT LIMITATIONS ........................................................................................................................................... 34 

REFERENCES ............................................................................................................................................................ 36 
 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

 

FIGURES RW-1 through RW-3 – RETAINING WALL DETAILS 

FIGURE 1 – SITE LOCATION MAP 

FIGURE 2 – BORING LOCATION MAP 

APPENDIX A – BORING LOGS 

APPENDIX B – LABORATORY TEST PROCEDURES / LABORATORY DATA SUMMARY 

APPENDIX C – SEISMIC HAZARD ANALYSIS 

APPENDIX D – DRY SAND SETTLEMENT 

APPENDIX E – PERCOLATION / INFILTRATION 

APPENDIX F – STANDARD GRADING RECOMMENDATIONS/RETAINING WALLS  

 

 



 

 

DESIGN-PHASE GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION REPORT 

PROPOSED RANCHO MIRAGE APARTMENTS 

APPROXIMATELY 5 ACRES SOUTH OF THE RANCHO MIRAGE DOG PARK 

A PORTION OF ASSESSOR’S PARCEL NO. 685-090-011 

RANCHO MIRAGE, RIVERSIDE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

 

 

PURPOSE AND SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

Petra Geosciences, Inc. (Petra) is presenting herein our design-phase geotechnical investigation report for 

an apartment buildings complex and various improvements that are currently proposed at the vacant site 

located in the city of Rancho Mirage, California. The improvements include the construction of a series of 

apartment buildings and associated utilities, paved parking, landscaping, and on-site stormwater retention. 

The purposes of this investigation were to 1) obtain information regarding surface and subsurface geologic 

conditions within the area of the proposed construction, 2) evaluate the engineering properties of the onsite 

soil materials, and 3) provide conclusions and recommendations for design and construction of the proposed 

improvements. To accomplish these objectives, our scope of services included the following: 

 

1. Reviewing of published and unpublished literature and maps pertaining to regional faulting, seismic 

hazards and soil and geologic conditions within and adjacent to the site that could influence the 

design of the proposed structural elements. 

 

2. Reviewing of historical aerial photographs of the area of proposed construction. 

 

3. Performing a subsurface investigation within the area of proposed construction. The investigation 

consisted of drilling 3 exploratory borings to depths of 20 to 66 feet using a hollow-stem drilling 

rig. Additionally, drilling 1 exploratory boring to 10 feet below ground surface using the hollow-

stem auger drilling method and performing a falling-head percolation test in the borehole. The 

boring logs are presented in Appendix A and the percolation tests results and infiltration rate 

calculations are presented in Appendix E. 

 

4. Logging and field-classifying soil materials encountered in each boring in accordance with the 

visual-manual procedures outlined in the Unified Soil Classification System and the American 

Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM) Procedure D 2488-90. All field activities were 

performed by or under the direct observation of a State of California Certified Engineering 

Geologist. 

 

5. Collecting representative bulk and relatively undisturbed soil samples for laboratory analysis. 

Undisturbed samples will be retrieved at 3- to 10-foot depth intervals utilizing a 2.4-inch inside 

diameter, modified-California split-spoon sampler. In addition, where granular soils were 

encountered within the saturated zone, these materials were selectively sampled using the Standard 

Penetration Test (SPT) method in accordance with ASTM Procedure D 1586-92. 

 

6. Performing appropriate laboratory analysis on soil samples which included the following: in-situ 

and maximum dry density; in-situ and optimum moisture content; sieve analysis, remolded direct 

shear; collapse analysis; soluble sulfate and chloride content; general soil corrosivity (Sulfate, 

Chloride, pH and minimum resistivity). 

 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 2 

 

 

 

7. Engineering and geologic analyses of the field and laboratory data as they pertain to the proposed 

construction. 

 

8. An evaluation of faulting and seismicity of the region, and the possible impact of regional 

seismicity on the proposed construction. 

 

9. Preparation of this geotechnical report presenting the results of our evaluation and 

recommendations for the proposed development in general conformance with the 2022 California 

Building Code (2022 CBC) and in accordance with applicable state and local jurisdictional 

requirements. 

 

LOCATION AND SITE DESCRIPTION 

 

The area of study considered under the scope of this investigation consists of 5 acres located to the southeast 

of the Rancho Mirage Dog Park. The location of the site with respect to nearby roadways and other 

landmarks is shown on the Site Location Map, Figure 1. The subject site is vacant and is bordered on the 

north by vacant land and existing shopping center along Dinah Shore Drive, on the east by vacant land and 

Monterey Avenue, on the west by vacant land and Key Largo Avenue, and on the south by undeveloped 

vacant land. The topography is approximately flat and level, with approximately 10 feet of relief from the 

south end of the site to the north end. The subject site’s natural landscaping consists of few grasses and 

light desert scrub with no trees. 

 

PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS 

 

Petra understands that the site is to be developed into approximately 150 apartments. Additionally, the 

improvements will consist of utilities, paved parking, landscaping, and on-site storm water retention. 

Neither grading plans nor specific details related to the proposed improvements were provided to Petra at 

the time this report was prepared. Based on the nearby development and the relatively flat topography of 

the site, Petra assumes that earthwork is generally limited to minor cuts and fills to establish finished grade 

elevations. It should be noted, however, that remedial grading (i.e., excavation and re-compaction of any 

existing undocumented fill soils that are present on the site and loose native soils) will entail deeper cuts 

from exiting grades as recommended in subsequent sections of this report. No extensive subterranean 

construction is anticipated. 

 

  



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 3 

 

 

 

FIELD EXPLORATION AND TESTING 

 

Subsurface Exploration 

 

Our subsurface exploration was performed on June 7, 2024, and involved the following: 

 

• Drilling and sampling of two relatively shallow borings (B-2 and B-3) to depths of 20 feet below 

the existing ground surface and one deep boring (B-1) to a depth of 66 feet below the existing 

ground surface. All of the borings were drilled utilizing a truck-mounted, hollow-stem auger drill 

rig. 

 

• Drilling one boring to a depth of 10 feet (Boring P-1) and performing a percolation test to observe 

infiltration characteristics of subsurface materials for stormwater retention design. 

 

Earth materials encountered in each of the exploratory borings were field classified and logged in 

accordance with Unified Soil Classification System, USCS, procedures. In addition, our subsurface 

exploration included the collection of bulk and relatively undisturbed samples of the subsurface soils for 

laboratory testing purposes. Bulk samples consisted of selected earth materials obtained at various depth 

intervals from selected borings. Relatively undisturbed samples were collected using a 3-inch, outside-

diameter, modified California split-spoon soil sampler lined with 1-inch-high brass or stainless-steel rings. 

The modified sampler was driven with successive 30-inch drops of a hydraulically operated 140-pound 

automatic trip hammer. Blow counts for each 6-inch driving increment were recorded on the field logs. The 

central portions of the driven core samples were placed in sealed containers and transported to our 

laboratory for testing. The approximate locations of the exploratory borings are shown on the attached 

Boring Location Map, Figure 2, and descriptive exploration logs are presented in Appendix A. 

 

In addition to the above sampling method, Standard Penetration Tests (SPT's) were also performed at 

selected depth intervals in accordance with the American Society for Testing Materials (ASTM) Standard 

Procedure D 1586. This method consists of mechanically driving an unlined standard split-barrel sampler 

18 inches into the soil with successive 30-inch drops of the 140-pound automatic trip hammer. Blow counts 

for each 6-inch driving increment were recorded on the exploration logs. The number of blows required to 

drive the standard split-spoon sampler for the last 12 of the 18 inches was identified as the uncorrected 

standard penetration resistance (N). Disturbed soil samples from the unlined standard split-spoon samplers 

were placed in plastic bags and transported to our laboratory for testing. 

 

Laboratory Testing 
 
In order to evaluate the engineering properties of onsite soils, a number of laboratory tests were performed 

on selected samples considered representative of the materials encountered within the study area. These 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 4 

 

 

 

laboratory tests were performed shortly after completion of our field investigation and included 

determination of in-place dry density and moisture content, maximum dry density and optimum moisture 

content, sieve analysis, collapse potential, remolded shear strength, as well as chemical and electrical 

corrosivity potential (soluble sulfate and chloride content, pH, and minimum resistivity). A description of 

laboratory test methods is provided in the Laboratory Test Procedures section of this report (Appendix B). 

Summaries of the test data are presented on the exploration logs (Appendix A) and in Appendix B of this 

report. 

 

Percolation Testing 

 

Percolation testing was conducted in Exploratory Boring P-1 in accordance with County of Riverside 

Department of Environmental Health (RCDEH) test procedures and the guidelines presented in Appendix 

VII of the County of Orange Technical Guidance Document for WQMPs. The Orange County Manual 

references the RCDEH percolation test methods as an acceptable method of obtaining site infiltration data. 

The “percolation rates” determined in accordance with the RCDEH test procedures are based on both 

horizontal (lateral) and vertical percolation. Therefore, to consider vertical percolation only, the 

“percolation rates” were converted to a reasonable estimate of the “infiltration rate” using the Porchet 

Method presented in Appendix VII of the referenced County of Orange Technical Guidance Document. 

 

Boring P-1 was converted to a percolation test hole following drilling by placing a two-inch (I.D.) 

perforated PVC pipe in the test hole. The annular space around the pipe was filled with open-graded gravel, 

approximately ¾-inch, within the annular space between the pipe and boring walls and a 3-inch-thick layer 

of gravel below the pipe. The remainder of the annular space was backfilled with boring cuttings. Clean 

water was then added to the boring to pre-soak the adjacent soils prior to performing the percolation test. 

 

The percolation test was conducted in eolian sand that exists from the near surface to below the base of the 

percolation tests. Boring P-1 was drilled to a total depth of approximately 10 feet. The test hole was filled 

with clean water to approximately 5 feet from the ground surface. The drop in water level was measured at 

10-minute intervals. From these readings, the percolation characteristics of the underlying eolian sand 

deposits was estimated. Percolation test results are presented in Appendix E and are summarized in Table 1. 

We note that the calculated infiltration rate presented in this table has a factor of safety of 1 and the project 

engineer should use an appropriate factor of safety per project Specifications. 

  



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 5 

 

 

 

TABLE 1 

Unfactored Percolation Test Results 

Test No. 
Soil Type1 

(USCS) 

Depth of 

Hole 

(Feet) 

Measured 2 

Percolation Rate 

(Minutes/Inch) 

Infiltration Rate (It) 3 

per Porchet Method 

(Inches/Hour) (F.S – 1) 

P-1 SP 10 0.57 12.0 

1 Interbedded Strata – see Boring Logs, Appendix A 
2  RCDEH Test Procedure  
3 Minutes/inch converted to inches/hour per Porchet Method 

 

FINDINGS 

 

Regional Geologic Setting 

 

The proposed development is located in the Coachella Valley, which is part of the Salton Trough 

geomorphic province of California. The Salton Trough geomorphic province encompasses the Coachella, 

Imperial and Mexicali Valleys, which extend from northeast of Palm Springs near San Gorgonio Pass to 

the Gulf of California. The geologic structure of the trough is a result of extensional forces within the earth’s 

crust. The Coachella Valley is generally bounded by the San Jacinto and Santa Rosa Mountains on the west, 

the San Bernardino and the Little San Bernardino Mountains on the north, the Cottonwood Mountains and 

the Mecca Hills on the east, and the Salton Sea to the south. Alluvial (Streams), aeolian (wind-blown), and 

lacustrine (lake) sediments are the dominant geologic units of the Coachella Valley. 

 
The watershed of the Coachella Valley empties into the Salton Sea at the lowest part of the basin. This 

basin was periodically filled with water to form the ancient Lake Cahuilla, depending on which side of its 

delta the Colorado River would drain. The sediments of the delta form a topographic high that separates the 

Salton basin, which is below sea level, from the Gulf of California (Sea of Cortez). 

 

Local Geology and Subsurface Soil Conditions 

 

In general, the soil materials underlying the site as encountered in our borings were noted to consist of very 

loose to very dense, poorly graded eolian sand to the maximum depth explored of 66 feet. The upper 3 to 4 

feet of the soil was found to be dry and very loose to loose. Soils become medium dense to dense and finer 

grained with depth. The moisture content of these native soils is very low and on the order of less than 0.5 

percent. Laboratory testing of relatively undisturbed samples of eolian sand yielded in-place dry densities 

ranging from 98 to 109 pounds per cubic foot. 

 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 6 

 

 

 

Groundwater 

 

Free groundwater was not encountered within any of the exploratory borings advanced onsite to the 

maximum depth explored of 66 feet below grades. According to a monitoring well located approximately 

0.5 miles to the north, groundwater is located approximately 160 feet below the ground surface as of July 

18, 2023 (CDWR Station 338086N1163878W001). 

 

Faulting 

 

The Coachella Valley is a seismically active area and numerous northwest-trending active faults have been 

documented within the area. The San Andreas fault zone is the most prominent fault within the Coachella 

Valley and is considered to be “active”. An “active” fault is defined as a fault that has had displacement 

within the Holocene epoch, or last ±11,000 years. Based on our review, the site is not located within a Fault 

Hazard Zone (Bryant and Hart, 2007), as defined by the state of California in the Alquist-Priolo Earthquake 

Fault Zoning Act and no evidence for faulting was observed within the site during our study. 

 

Secondary Seismic Hazards 

 

Seismically Induced Landsliding 

 

The site exhibits a generally flat topography, and no landslides exist within or near the site. Based on the 

topography across the site, the potential for landsliding is considered negligible. 

 

Seismically Induced Flooding 

 

The types of seismically induced flooding that are generally considered as potential hazards to a particular 

site normally include flooding due to a tsunami (seismic sea wave), a seiche, or failure of a major reservoir 

or other water retention structure upstream of the site. The Salton Sea is situated approximately 25 miles 

southeast of the site with an elevation approximately 500 feet lower than the subject site. In addition, no 

major reservoir is located near or upstream of the site. Therefore, the potential for seiche or inundation is 

considered negligible. Because of the inland location of the site, flooding due to a tsunami is also considered 

negligible at the site. 

 

Liquefaction and Seismically Induced Settlement 

 

Liquefaction 

Liquefaction is a soil softening dynamic response, by which an increase in the excess pore water pressure 

results in partial to full loss of soil shear strength and post-liquefaction dissipation of this pore water 

pressure results in ground settlement shortly after the earthquake. In order for liquefaction to occur, the 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 7 

 

 

 

following four factors are required: 1) saturated soil or soil situated below the groundwater table; 

2) undrained loading (strong ground shaking), such as by earthquake; 3) contractive soil response during 

shear loading, which is often the case for a soil which is initially in a loose or uncompacted state; and 

4) susceptible soil type; such as clean, uniformly graded sands, non-plastic silts, or gravels. SP117A (CGS, 

2008) discusses preliminary screening methods sufficient to evaluate liquefaction potential without 

requiring a comprehensive liquefaction analysis; one of the considerations is the depth to groundwater. 

Sites with groundwater depth of around 50 feet below ground surface and deeper (including historic high 

ground water, current conditions, and future expectations), are considered unlikely to experience 

liquefaction within the upper 50 feet of the soil profile. Due to a very deep ground water table at the subject 

property (+160 feet) the potential for liquefaction at this site is considered negligible. 

 

Dry Sand 

Dry sand settlement can occur during moderate and large earthquakes when loose, natural or fill sandy soils 

are densified and settle, often unevenly across a site. In order for dry sand settlement to occur, the following 

four factors are required: 1) Relatively dry soil or soil situated above the groundwater table; 2) undrained 

loading (strong ground shaking), such as by earthquake; 3) contractive soil response during shear loading, 

which is often the case for a soil which is initially in a loose or uncompacted state; and 4) susceptible soil 

type; such as clean, uniformly graded sands. Structures situated above seismically densifying dry sandy 

soils may experience settlement or tilting of superstructures, or both. 

 

Seismically Induced Settlement Parameters 

Assessment of liquefaction or dry sand settlement potential for a particular site requires knowledge of a 

number of regional as well as site-specific parameters, including the estimated design earthquake 

magnitude, and the associated probable peak horizontal ground acceleration at the site, subsurface 

stratigraphy and soil characteristics. Parameters such as estimated probable peak horizontal ground 

acceleration can readily be determined using published references, or by utilizing a commercially available 

computer program specifically designed to perform a probabilistic analysis. In contrast, stratigraphy and 

soil characteristics can only be accurately determined by means of a site-specific subsurface investigation 

combined with appropriate laboratory analysis of representative samples of onsite soils. 

 

Seismically Induced ‘Dry Sand’ Settlement 

Propagating earthquake waves induces shearing stresses and strains in soil materials during strong ground 

shaking. This process rearranges the structure of granular soils such that there is an increase in density, with 

a corresponding decrease in volume, which results in vertical settlement. Seismically induced settlement 

has been well documented in wet, sandy deposits undergoing liquefaction (see Tokimatsu and Seed, 1987) 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 8 

 

 

 

and in relatively dry sediments as well (Stewart et al, 1996). Specific methods to analyze potential wet and 

dry dynamic settlement are reported in Tokimatsu and Seed (1987), Pradel (1998), and Stewart et al. (2001; 

2002). Most of the referenced papers focus on the seismic effects on dry, clean sands of a uniform grain 

size, though several reports extend the literature to fine-grained soils (Stewart et al., 2001 & 2002). State 

guidelines for evaluating dynamic settlement are provided in the California Geological Survey Special 

Publication 117A (CGS, 2008). 

 

To evaluate the potential for earthquake-induced dry sand settlement at the site and its impact on the 

proposed improvements, we performed a settlement analysis of the data from our 66 feet deep boring B-1 

using LiqSVs program (Geologismiki, Version 2.3.2.11). LiqSVs is a software that evaluates liquefaction 

potential and calculates the settlement of soil deposits due to seismic loads. For the purpose of dry sand 

settlement analyses, we considered a design groundwater level at a depth of 160 feet below the existing 

ground surface, peak ground acceleration for maximum considered earthquake (PGAM) in the site vicinity 

to be approximately 0.868g, and a predominant earthquake magnitude of 7.49 Mw. 

 

The results of our analysis indicate that the loose and medium dense poorly graded eolian sand encountered 

below the ground surface to the depth of approximately 10 feet in our borings appear to be prone to dry 

sand settlement during seismic shaking. Assuming that the upper 4 feet of soil will be replaced with an 

engineered fill soil not susceptible to dynamic settlement, we estimate that total dynamic settlement up to 

about 1½ to 2-inches is possible at the ground surface due to dry sand settlement from the MCE level 

earthquake. In our opinion, differential dry sand settlement of up to about 1½ -inch over a horizontal 

distance of approximately 100 feet may occur across the proposed improvements at the ground surface. A 

summary of our dry sand settlement analysis is presented in Appendix D. The estimated dry sand settlement 

should be considered during the structural design of the foundation system of the proposed improvements. 

 

It should be noted that in the literature, prediction of the seismic settlement for unsaturated sandy soils, 

referred to as ’dry sand’ settlement, is based on observation of performance of 5 sites that were comprised 

of clean sands, i.e. sands with 5 percent fines or less. However, the shallow site soils, above the assumed 

historic high groundwater level, are comprised of sands with substantial amounts of fines. The presence of 

fines influences (reduces) the settlement potential under a seismic event. To overcome this, the measured 

resistance parameters of soils with fines are first converted to that of clean sand values and then are used in 

the predictive routines. This is an indirect approach and, therefore, lacks the performance-based verification 

requirements. In addition, sandy deposits, especially within vadose zones, contain certain amount of pore 

water that, because of surface tension properties of water molecules, create tensile intra-particle forces, 

albeit, very weak, that are expected to reduce the particle rearrangement tendencies of sandy deposits during 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 9 

 

 

 

ground shaking. Further, sometimes the ‘dry sand’ seismic settlement calculation results are multiplied by 

factor of 2 to account for bidirectional nature of seismic waves propagations. That is, the investigators are 

provided with an optional factor of 2 to multiply the results of their seismic ‘dry sand’ calculations. It is 

our professional opinion that for the reasons cited herein dry sand settlement calculations are less reliable 

compared to that of the liquefaction settlement. It is perhaps for these and potentially other reasons that 

some review agencies do not require ‘dry sand’ settlement calculations as a part of their approval process. 

 

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

General Feasibility 

 

Although the detailed development plans are not fully available, from a soils engineering and engineering 

geologic point of view and based on our current knowledge of the project, the subject property is considered 

suitable for the proposed development. It is our opinion that the proposed construction will not adversely 

affect the geologic stability of adjoining properties in an adverse manner provided grading and construction 

are performed in accordance with current standards of practice, all applicable grading ordinances and the 

recommendations presented in this report. 

 

Earthwork and Grading 

 

General Specifications 

 

All earthwork and grading should be performed in accordance with all applicable requirements of the 

grading and excavation codes of the County of Riverside, and in compliance with all applicable provisions 

of the 2022 California Building Code (2022 CBC). Grading should also be performed in accordance with 

the recommendations provided in this report. 

 

Geotechnical Observations and Testing 

 

Prior to the start of earthwork, a meeting should be held at the site with the owner’s representative, 

contractor and geotechnical consultant to discuss the work schedule and geotechnical aspects of the grading. 

Earthwork, which in this instance will generally entail removal and re-compaction of the near surface soils, 

should be accomplished under full-time observation and testing by the geotechnical consultant. A 

representative of the project geotechnical consultant should be present onsite during all earthwork 

operations to document placement and compaction of fills, as well as to document compliance with the 

other recommendations presented herein. 

 

  



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 10 

 

 

 

Demolition, Clearing and Grubbing 

 

Following any demolition, clearing operations should also include the removal of any remaining trash, 

debris, vegetation and similar deleterious materials including the root balls from any trees. Any cavities or 

excavations created upon removal of any unknown subsurface structures or inclusions should be cleared of 

loose soil, shaped to provide access for backfilling and compaction equipment and then backfilled with 

engineered fill. Note that buried deleterious materials may be encountered within the site (i.e., buried 

organics or debris) due to the past site usage and may need to be removed by hand (i.e., root pickers), during 

grading operations. 

 

The project geotechnical consultant should provide periodic observation and testing services during final 

clearing and grubbing operations to document compliance with the above recommendations. In addition, 

should unusual or adverse soil conditions or buried structures be encountered during grading that are not 

described herein, these conditions should be brought to the immediate attention of the project geotechnical 

consultant for corrective recommendations. 

 

Unsuitable Soil Removals and Bottom Processing 

 

Any existing undocumented fill and near surface native soils are considered unsuitable for support of 

proposed structures and should be removed to underlying competent alluvial materials as approved by the 

project geotechnical consultant. As such, the estimated depth of removal is recommended to be 

approximately 4 feet below the existing ground surface, or 3 feet below the bottom of the deepest footing, 

whichever is deeper. Consideration should be given to locally deepening the excavation at the location of 

tree roots, any underground structures, or proposed subterranean features (if any), including swimming 

pools if proposed, in order to provide a uniform depth of compacted fill in all areas. Soil removals could be 

locally deeper depending upon the actual exposed conditions encountered during grading. At a minimum, 

the over-excavation should extend a distance beyond the perimeter of the supported structure equal to the 

depth of the over-excavation. The actual depths and horizontal limits of removals and over-excavations 

should be evaluated upon availability of the site grading plan and during grading on the basis of 

observations and testing performed by the project geotechnical consultant. Excavated soils, if found free of 

deleterious materials, are considered acceptable for use as compacted fill. 

 

Prior to placing engineered fill, the exposed bottom surfaces in the removal areas should be approved by a 

representative of project geotechnical consultant. The exposed bottom(s) should be scarified to a minimum 

depth of 12 inches, moisture-conditioned or air-dried to achieve approximately two percent above optimum 

moisture content and then compacted with a heavy construction equipment prior to placement of fill. The 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 11 

 

 

 

minimum compaction of the upper 12 inches of the removal bottom should meet or exceed 90 percent 

relative compaction. The laboratory maximum dry density, the standard for determining relative 

compaction, and optimum moisture content for each change in soil type should be determined in accordance 

with Test Method ASTM D 1557. 

 

Grading at Site Boundaries 

 

Average remedial removals within the building pad areas, extending horizontally beyond the limits of the 

proposed structures a distance equal to the depth of the overexcavation, are anticipated to be on the order 

of 4 feet below the existing ground surface, although locally deeper over-excavation is possible. A vertical 

cut at the perimeter of any overexcavation area along the property lines is not expected to remain stable. As 

such, vertical cuts immediately adjacent to existing structures (if any) are not acceptable from geotechnical 

standpoint. Specific recommendations for protection of any existing structures or improvements adjacent 

to the recommended overexcavation, either interior or at the perimeter of the site can be provided following 

review of site development plans. Recommendations may include shoring and slot-cutting for areas 

adjacent to property boundaries and underpinning, or other methods intended to prevent settlement or 

distress to existing improvements. 

 

Excavation Characteristics 

 

Based on the observed soil types in our borings, shallow excavation of soils within the site are expected to 

be readily excavatable with conventional earthmoving equipment. 

 

Fill Placement 

 

All fill materials should be placed in approximately 6- to 8-inch-thick loose lifts, watered or air-dried as 

necessary to achieve a minimum moisture content at least 2 percent above the optimum moisture condition, 

and then compacted in-place to a minimum relative compaction of 90 percent. The laboratory maximum 

dry density and optimum moisture content for each change in soil type should be determined in accordance 

with ASTM D 1557. 

 

Imported Soils 

 

If imported soils are required to complete the planned grading, these soils should consist of clean materials 

devoid of rock exceeding a maximum dimension of 4 inches, organics, trash and other deleterious materials. 

To avoid making revisions to the foundation design, imported soils should also be granular and exhibit a 

very low expansion potential (Expansion Index 0-20). Prospective import soils should be observed at the 

source, tested and approved by the geotechnical consultant prior to importing the soils to the site. It is 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 12 

 

 

 

recommended that the project environmental consultant should also be notified so that they can confirm the 

suitability of the proposed import material from an environmental standpoint. 

 

Volumetric Changes - Bulking, Shrinkage and Subsidence 

 

An average shrinkage factor estimated at 10 to 15 percent is anticipated when excavated on-site soils are 

replaced as properly compacted fill. A subsidence, estimated at 0.15 to 0.25 feet may also occur when 

exposed bottom surfaces in removal areas are scarified and re-compacted as recommended herein. These 

estimates of shrinkage and subsidence are intended for use by project planners in estimating earthwork 

quantities and should not be considered absolute values. Contingencies should be made for balancing 

earthwork quantities based on actual shrinkage and subsidence that will occur during grading. 

 

Temporary Excavations 

 

Temporary excavations up to a depth of up to roughly four feet below existing grades may be required to 

accomplish the recommended over-excavation of existing soils. Based on the physical properties of the 

onsite soils, any temporary excavations exceeding 4 feet in height should be cut back to an inclination of 

1.5:1 (h:v) or flatter for the duration of the over-excavation of unsuitable soil material and replacement as 

compacted fill, as well as placement of underground utilities. During remedial grading the estimated 1.5:1 

(h:v) recommendation may possibly be flattened or steepened, depending on conditions observed by a 

representative of the project geotechnical consultant. Other factors which should be considered with respect 

to the stability of the temporary slopes include construction traffic and/or storage of materials on or near 

the tops of the slopes, construction scheduling, presence of nearby walls or structures adjacent to the 

excavation and weather conditions at the time of construction. Applicable requirements of the California 

Construction and General Industry Safety Orders, the Occupational Safety and Health Act, OSHA, of 1970 

and the Construction Safety Act should also be followed. 

 

Expansive Soil Conditions 

 

Based on available data, including the non-plastic, granular nature of the soils encountered in the subsurface 

exploration and the Expansion Index equal to zero in the tested representative sample, near-surface soils 

are considered Very Low in expansion potential (Expansion Index less than 20). Additional sampling and 

testing should be performed during site grading for determining actual expansion potential of the supporting 

building pad soils. 

  



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 13 

 

 

 

PRELIMINARY FOUNDATION DESIGN CONSIDERATIONS 

 

Seismic Design Parameters 

 

Earthquake loads on earthen structures and buildings are a function of ground acceleration which may be 

determined from the site-specific ground motion analysis. Alternatively, a design response spectrum can be 

developed for certain sites based on the code guidelines. To provide the design team with the parameters 

necessary to construct the design acceleration response spectrum for this project, we used two computer 

applications. Specifically, the first computer application, which was jointly developed by Structural 

Engineering Association of California (SEAOC) and California’s Office of Statewide Health Planning and 

Development (OSHPD), the SEA/OSHPD Seismic Design Maps Tool website, https://seismicmaps.org, is 

used to calculate the ground motion parameters. The second computer application, the United Stated 

Geological Survey (USGS) Unified Hazard Tool website, https://earthquake.usgs.gov/hazards/interactive/, 

is used to estimate the earthquake magnitude and the distance to surface projection of the fault. The results 

obtained from these websites are presented in Appendix C. 

 

To run the above computer applications, site latitude and longitude, seismic risk category and knowledge 

of site class are required. The site class definition depends on the direct measurement of certain soil 

properties and the ASCE 7-16 recommended procedure for calculating the average shear wave velocity 

within the upper 30 meters (approximately 100 feet) of site soils. Several methods exist to determine the 

shear wave velocity, including correlation with SPT blow counts. Based on the blow counts obtained in 

boring B-1 (including converting California Modified Sampler blow counts to SPT after Burmister (1948)) 

and Petra’s knowledge of site geologic conditions, Site Class D (D – Stiff Soil as per the SEA/OSHPD 

software) has been assigned to the subject site. 

 

Petra has assumed that the proposed structures should be categorized as Risk Category II pursuant to 2022 

CBC Table 1604.5. If the specifics of the proposed project warrant a different Risk Category, the members 

of the design team responsible for this determination may assign the appropriate Risk Category. Seismic 

design parameters provided below are not impacted by the assumed Risk Category. 

 

The following table, Table 2, provides parameters required to construct the seismic response coefficient, 

Cs, curve based on ASCE 7-16, Article 12.8 guidelines. A printout of the computer output is attached in 

Appendix C. The results of conversion of blow count data to small-strain shear wave velocity are also 

provided in Appendix C. 

 

  

https://seismicmaps.org/
https://earthquake.usgs.gov/hazards/interactive/


NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 14 

 

 

 

TABLE 2 

Seismic Design Parameters 

Ground Motion Parameters Specific Reference 
Parameter 

Value 
Unit 

Site Latitude (North) - 33.796486 ° 

Site Longitude (West) - -116.394338 ° 

Site Class Definition Section 1613.2.2 (1), Chapter 20 (2) D-Stiff (4) - 

Assumed Risk Category Table 1604A.5 (1) II - 

Mw - Earthquake Magnitude USGS Unified Hazard Tool (3) 7.49 (3) - 

R – Distance to Surface Projection of Fault USGS Unified Hazard Tool (3) 6.61 (3) km 

Ss - Mapped Spectral Response Acceleration 

Short Period (0.2 second) Figure 1613.2.1(1) (1) 1.819 (4) g 

S1 - Mapped Spectral Response Acceleration 

Long Period (1.0 second) Figure 1613.2.1(2) (1) 0.757 (4) g 

Fa – Short Period (0.2 second) Site Coefficient Table 1613A.2.3(1) (1) 1.0 (4) - 

Fv – Long Period (1.0 second) Site Coefficient Table 1613A.2.3(2) (1) Null (4) - 

SMS – MCER Spectral Response Acceleration Parameter 

Adjusted for Site Class Effect (0.2 second) 
Equation 16-36 (1) 1.819 (4) g 

SM1 - MCER Spectral Response Acceleration Parameter 

Adjusted for Site Class Effect (1.0 second) 
Equation 16-37 (1) Null (4) g 

SDS - Design Spectral Response Acceleration at 0.2-s Equation 16-38 (1) 1.213 (4) g 

SD1 - Design Spectral Response Acceleration at 1-s Equation 16-39 (1) Null (4) g 

To = 0.2 SD1/ SDS
 Section 11.4.6 (2) Null s 

Ts = SD1/ SDS
 Section 11.4.6 (2) Null s 

TL - Long Period Transition Period Figure 22-14 (2) 8 (4) s 

PGA - Peak Ground Acceleration at MCEG 
(*) Figure 22-9 (2) 0.789 (4) g 

FPGA - Site Coefficient Adjusted for Site Class Effect 
(2) Table 11.8-1 (2) 1.1 (4) - 

PGAM –Peak Ground Acceleration (2) 

Adjusted for Site Class Effect 
Equation 11.8-1 (2) 0.868 (4) g 

Design PGA ≈ (⅔ PGAM) - Slope Stability (†) Similar to Eqs. 16-38 & 16-39 (2) 0.58 g 

Design PGA ≈ (0.4 SDS) – Short Retaining Walls 
(‡) Equation 11.4-5 (2) 0.49 g 

CRS - Short Period Risk Coefficient Figure 22-18A (2) 0.893 (4) - 

CR1 - Long Period Risk Coefficient Figure 22-19A (2) 0.879 (4) - 

SDC - Seismic Design Category (§) Section 1613.2.5 (1) Null (4) - 

References: 
(1)  California Building Code (CBC), 2022, California Code of Regulations, Title 24, Part 2, Volume I and II. 
(2) American Society of Civil Engineers/Structural Engineering Institute (ASCE/SEI), 2016, Minimum Design Loads and Associated 

Criteria for Buildings and Other Structures, Standards 7-16.  
(3) USGS Unified Hazard Tool - https://earthquake.usgs.gov/hazards/interactive/ 
(4) SEI/OSHPD Seismic Design Map Application – https://seismicmaps.org 
Related References:  
    Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), 2015, NEHERP (National Earthquake Hazards Reduction Program) 

    Recommended Seismic Provision for New Building and Other Structures (FEMA P-1050). 

Notes: 

*   PGA Calculated at the MCE return period of 2475 years (2 percent chance of exceedance in 50 years). 
†   PGA Calculated at the Design Level of ⅔ of MCE; approximately equivalent to a return period of 475 years (10 percent chance of 

exceedance in 50 years). 
‡   PGA Calculated for short, stubby retaining walls with an infinitesimal (zero) fundamental period. 
§   The designation provided herein may be superseded by the structural engineer in accordance with Section 1613.2.5.1, if applicable. 

  

https://earthquake.usgs.gov/hazards/interactive/
https://seismicmaps.org/


NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 15 

 

 

 

Discussion 

 

General 

Owing to the characteristics of the subsurface soils, as defined by Site Class D-Stiff Soil designation, and 

proximity of the site to the sources of major ground shaking, the site is expected to experience strong ground 

shaking during its anticipated life span. Under these circumstances, where the code-specified design 

response spectrum may not adequately characterize site response, the 2022 CBC typically requires a site-

specific seismic response analysis to be performed. This requirement is signified/identified by the “null” 

values that are output using SEA/OSHPD software in determination of short period, but mostly, in 

determination of long period seismic parameters, see Table 2. 

 

For conditions where a “null” value is reported for the site, a variety of design approaches are permitted by 

2022 CBC and ASCE 7-16 in lieu of a site-specific seismic hazard analysis. For any specific site, these 

alternative design approaches, which include Equivalent Lateral Force (ELF) procedure, Modal Response 

Spectrum Analysis (MRSA) procedure, Linear Response History Analysis (LRHA) procedure and 

Simplified Design procedure, among other methods, are expected to provide results that may or may not be 

more economical than those that are obtained if a site-specific seismic hazards analysis is performed. These 

design approaches and their limitations should be evaluated by the project structural engineer. 

 

Seismic Design Category 

Please note that the Seismic Design Category, SDC, is also designated as “null” in Table 2. For Risk 

Category is I, II, or III structures, where the mapped spectral response acceleration parameter at 1 – second 

period, S1, is greater than or equal to 0.75, the 2022 CBC, Section 1613.2.5 requires the assignment to 

Seismic Design Category E. 

 

Equivalent Lateral Force Method 

Should the Equivalent Lateral Force (ELF) method be used for seismic design of structural elements, the 

value of Constant Velocity Domain Transition Period, Ts, is estimated to be 0.71 seconds and the value of 

Long Period Transition Period, TL, is provided in Table 2 for construction of Seismic Response Coefficient 

– Period (Cs -T) curve that is used in the ELF procedure. 

 

As stated herein, the subject site is considered to be within a Site Class D-Stiff Soil. A site-specific ground 

motion hazard analysis is not required for structures on Site Class D-Stiff Soil with S1 > 0.2 provided that 

the Seismic Response Coefficient, Cs, is determined in accordance with ASCE 7-16, Article 12.8 and 

structural design is performed in accordance with Equivalent Lateral Force (ELF) procedure. 

 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 16 

 

 

 

Foundation System 

 

In consideration of the existing surficial soils and the recommended remedial grading herein, conventional 

shallow foundations, consisting of isolated column footings interconnected with tie beams and continuous 

footings, may be used for support of the proposed structures. Structural foundation loads are currently 

unknown but are assumed to be typical for two-story light-framed construction. 

 

Eccentrically loaded footings should be avoided if possible. In the event that the design requires eccentric 

loading, the design should consider the effective footing dimensions rather than actual dimensions. Pad 

footings located closer than 2 x B (where B is the footing width) to an adjacent footing should be designed 

as a single footing. Allowable bearing capacity for square footings apply as long as L/B is less than 5 (where 

L is the footing length). 

 

Allowable Soil Bearing Capacity, Anticipated Settlement and Lateral Resistance 

 

Pad Footings 

Based on the test results (ultimate friction angle of 26.4 degrees and negligible cohesion), an allowable soil 

bearing capacity of 2,000 pounds per square foot, including dead and live loads, may be utilized for design 

of 24-inch-square pad footings that are a part of the slab system and embedded a minimum of 12 inches 

below the lowest adjacent compacted final grade. This value may be increased by 20 percent for each foot 

of embedment and by 10 percent for each additional foot of width, to a maximum value of 3,000 pounds 

per square foot. The recommended allowable bearing value includes both dead and live loads and may be 

increased by one-third for short duration wind and seismic forces. 

 

Continuous Footings 

An allowable soil bearing capacity of 1,500 pounds per square foot may be utilized for design of continuous 

footings founded at a minimum depth of 18 inches below the lowest adjacent final grade. This value may 

be increased by 20 percent for each additional foot of depth and by 10 percent for each additional foot of 

width, to a maximum value of 3,000 pounds per square foot. The recommended allowable bearing value 

includes both dead and live loads and may be increased by one-third for short duration wind and seismic 

forces. 

 

Estimated Static Settlement 

 

Based on the allowable bearing values provided above, total static settlement of the footings under the 

anticipated loads is expected to be on the order of 1 inch. Differential settlement is expected to be less than 

¾ inch over a horizontal span of 30 feet. The majority of settlement is likely to take place as footing loads 

are applied or shortly thereafter. 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 17 

 

 

 

Seismically Induced Settlement 

 

As previously noted, if remedial grading removes and replaces the upper 4 feet of existing soils as 

compacted fill, the total seismic settlement is estimated at approximately 2 inches. Differential seismic 

settlement is estimated to be around 1 ½ inches over a span of 100 feet. 

 

Lateral Resistance 

 

A passive earth pressure of 250 pounds per square foot per foot of depth, to a maximum value of 2,500 

pounds per square foot, may be used to determine lateral bearing resistance for footings. In addition, a 

coefficient of friction of 0.30 times the dead load forces may be used between concrete and the supporting 

soils to determine lateral sliding resistance. The above values may be increased by one-third when designing 

for transient wind or seismic forces. It should be noted that the above values are based on the condition 

where footings are cast in direct contact with compacted fill or competent native soils. In cases where the 

footing sides are formed, all backfill placed against the footings upon removal of forms should be 

compacted to at least 90 percent of the applicable maximum dry density. 

 

Guidelines for Footings and Slabs on-Grade Design and Construction 

 

Based on the sandy nature of the material encountered in the borings and Petra’s experience in the area, the 

site soils have expansive indices less than 20. As indicated in Section 1803.5.3 of 2022 California Building 

Code (2022 CBC), these soils are considered non-expansive and, as such, the design of slabs on-grade is 

considered to be exempt from the procedures outlined in Sections 1808.6.2 of the 2022 CBC and may be 

performed using any method deemed rational and appropriate by the project structural engineer. However, 

the following minimum recommendations are presented herein for conditions where the project design team 

may require geotechnical engineering guidelines for design and construction of footings and slabs on-grade 

the project site. 

 

The design and construction guidelines that follow are based on the above soil conditions and 

may be considered for reducing the effects of variability in fabric, composition and, therefore, 

the detrimental behavior of the site soils such as excessive short- and long-term total and 

differential heave or settlement. These guidelines have been developed on the basis of the 

previous experience of this firm on projects with similar soil conditions. Although construction 

performed in accordance with these guidelines has been found to reduce post-construction 

movement and/or distress, they generally do not positively eliminate all potential effects of 

variability in soils characteristics and future heave or settlement. 

 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 18 

 

 

 

It should also be noted that the suggestions for dimension and reinforcement provided herein 

are performance-based and intended only as preliminary guidelines to achieve adequate 

performance under the anticipated soil conditions. However, they should not be construed as 

replacement for structural engineering analyses, experience and judgment. The project 

structural engineer, architect and/or civil engineer should make appropriate adjustments to 

slab and footing dimensions, and reinforcement type, size and spacing to account for internal 

concrete forces (e.g., thermal, shrinkage and expansion), as well as external forces (e.g., 

applied loads) as deemed necessary. Consideration should also be given to minimum design 

criteria as dictated by local building code requirements. 

 

Conventional Slabs on-Grade System 

 

Considering an expansion index of less than 20, we recommend that footings and floor slabs be designed 

and constructed in accordance with the following minimum criteria. 

 

Footings 

 

1. Exterior continuous footings supporting one- and two-story structures should be founded at a minimum 

depth of 18 inches below the lowest adjacent final grade, respectively. Interior continuous footings may 

be founded at a minimum depth of 12 inches below the top of the adjacent finish floor slabs. 

 

2. In accordance with Table 1809.7 of 2022 CBC for light-frame construction, all continuous footings 

should have minimum widths of 12 inches for one- and two-story structures. We recommend all 

continuous footings should be reinforced with a minimum of two No. 4 bars, one top and one bottom. 

 

3. A minimum 12-inch-wide grade beam founded at the same depth as adjacent footings should be 

provided across garage entrances or similar openings (such as large doors or bay windows). The grade 

beam should be reinforced in a similar manner as provided above. 

 

4. Interior isolated pad footings, if required, should be a minimum of 24 inches square and founded at a 

minimum depth of 12 inches below the bottoms of the adjacent floor slabs for one- and two-story 

structures. Pad footings should be reinforced with No. 4 bars spaced a maximum of 18 inches on 

centers, both ways, placed near the bottoms of the footings. 

 

5. Exterior isolated pad footings intended for support of roof overhangs such as second-story decks, patio 

covers, and similar construction should be a minimum of 24 inches square and founded at a minimum 

depth of 18 inches below the lowest adjacent final grade. The pad footings should be reinforced with 

No. 4 bars spaced a maximum of 18 inches on centers, both ways, placed near the bottoms of the 

footings. Exterior isolated pad footings may need to be connected to adjacent pad and/or continuous 

footings via tie beams at the discretion of the project structural engineer. 

 

6. The minimum footing dimensions and reinforcement recommended herein may be modified (increased 

or decreased subject to the constraints of Chapter 18 of the 2022 CBC) by the structural engineer 

responsible for foundation design based on calculations, engineering experience and judgment. 

 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 19 

 

 

 

Building Floor Slabs 

 

1. Concrete floor slabs should be a minimum of 4 inches thick and reinforced with No. 3 bars spaced a 

maximum of 24 inches on centers, both ways. Alternatively, the structural engineer may recommend 

the use of prefabricated welded wire mesh for slab reinforcement. For this condition, the welded wire 

mesh should be of sheet type (not rolled) and should consist of 6x6/W2.9xW2.9 (per the Wire 

Reinforcement Institute, WRI, designation) or stronger. All slab reinforcement should be supported on 

concrete chairs or brick to ensure the desired placement near mid-depth. Care should be exercised to 

prevent warping of the welded wire mesh between the chairs in order to ensure its placement at the 

desired mid-slab position. 

 

Slab dimension, reinforcement type, size and spacing need to account for internal concrete forces (e.g., 

thermal, shrinkage and expansion) as well as external forces (e.g., applied loads), as deemed necessary. 

Consideration should also be given to using a control joint spacing on the order of 2 feet in each 

direction for each inch of slab thickness. 

 

It should be noted that some of the non-climatic site parameters, which may impact slabs on-

grade performance, are not known at this time, as it is the case for many projects at the design 

stage. Some of these site parameters include unsaturated soils diffusion conditions pre- and 

post-construction (e.g., casting the slabs at the end of long, dry or wet periods, maintenance 

during long, dry and wet periods, etc.), landscaping, alterations in site surface gradient, 

irrigation, trees, etc. While the effects of any or a combination of these parameters on slab 

performance cannot be accurately predicted, maintaining moisture content equilibrium within 

the soils mass and planting trees at a distance greater than half of their mature height away 

from the edge of foundation may reduce the potential for the adverse impact of these site 

parameters on slabs on-grade performance. 

 

2. Living area concrete floor slabs and areas to receive moisture sensitive floor covering should be 

underlain with a moisture vapor retarder consisting of a minimum 10-mil-thick polyethylene or 

polyolefin membrane that meets the minimum requirements of ASTM E96 and ASTM E1745 for vapor 

retarders (such as Husky Yellow Guard®, Stego® Wrap, or equivalent). All laps within the membrane 

should be sealed, and at least 2 inches of clean sand should be placed over the membrane to promote 

uniform curing of the concrete. 

 

In general, to reduce the potential for punctures, the membrane should be placed on a pad surface that 

has been graded smooth without any sharp protrusions. If a smooth surface cannot be achieved by 

grading, consideration should be given to lowering the pad finished grade an additional inch and then 

placing a 1-inch-thick leveling course of sand across the pad surface prior to the placement of the 

membrane.. Foot traffic on the membrane should be reduced to a minimum. Additional steps would 

also need to be taken to prevent puncturing of the vapor retarder during concrete placement. 

 

To comply with Section 1907.1.1 of the 2022 CBC, the living area concrete floor slab should also be 

underlain with capillary break consisting of a minimum of 4 inches of gravel or crushed stone 

containing not more than 10 percent of material that passes through a No. 4 sieve. The capillary break 

should be placed below the 10-mil moisture vapor retarder and may be considered as the structural fill 

recommended above. 

 

  



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 20 

 

 

 

At the present time, some slab designers, geotechnical professionals and concrete experts view 

the sand layer below the slab (blotting sand) as a place for entrapment of excess moisture that 

could adversely impact moisture-sensitive floor coverings. As a preventive measure, the 

potential for moisture intrusion into the concrete slab could be reduced if the concrete is placed 

directly on the vapor retarder. However, if this sand layer is omitted, appropriate curing 

methods must be implemented to ensure that the concrete slab cures uniformly. A qualified 

materials engineer or contractor with experience in slab design, construction, and curing 

should provide recommendations for alternative methods of curing and supervise the 

construction process to ensure uniform slab curing. Additional steps would also need to be 

taken to prevent puncturing of the vapor retarder during concrete placement. 

 

3. Garage floor slabs should be a minimum 4 inches thick and reinforced in a similar manner as living 

area floor slabs. Garage slabs should also be poured separately from adjacent wall footings with a 

positive separation maintained using ¾-inch-minimum felt expansion joint material. To control the 

propagation of shrinkage cracks, garage floor slabs should be quartered with weakened plane joints. 

Consideration should be given to placement of a moisture vapor retarder below the garage slab, similar 

to that provided in Item 2 above, should the garage slab be overlain with moisture sensitive floor 

covering. 

 

4. Presaturation of the subgrade below floor slabs will not be required; however, prior to placing concrete, 

the subgrade below all dwelling and garage floor slab areas should be thoroughly moistened to achieve 

a moisture content that is at least equal to or slightly greater than optimum moisture content. This 

moisture content should penetrate to a minimum depth of 12 inches below the bottoms of the slabs. 

 

5. The minimum dimensions and reinforcement recommended herein for building floor slabs may be 

modified (increased or decreased subject to the constraints of Chapter 18 of the 2022 CBC) by the 

structural engineer responsible for foundation design based on calculations, engineering experience and 

judgment. 

 

Post-Tensioned Slabs on-Grade System 

 

In consideration of the expansion index of less than 20, as predominantly exhibited by onsite soils, any 

rational and appropriate procedure may be chosen by the project structural engineer for the design of post-

tensioned slabs on-grade. Should the design engineer choose to follow the latest Code-adopted edition of 

the procedure published by the Post-Tensioning Institute (PTI DC 10.5), the following minimum design 

criteria are provided Table 3, below. 

 

  



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 21 

 

 

 

TABLE 3 

Presumptive Post-Tensioned Slab on-Grade Design Parameters for PTI Procedure 

Soil Information 

Approximate Depth of Constant Suction, feet 9 

Approximate Soil Suction, pF 3.9 

Inferred Thornthwaite Index: -20 

Average Edge Moisture Variation Distance, em in feet: 

Center Lift 

Edge Lift 

 

9.0 

4.7 

Anticipated Swell, ym in inches: 

Center Lift 

Edge Lift 

 

0.25 

0.45 

 

Modulus of Subgrade Reaction 

The modulus of subgrade reaction for design of load bearing elements depends on the size of the element 

and soil-structure interaction. However, as a first level of approximation, this value may be assumed to be 

125 pounds per cubic inch. 

 

Minimum Design Recommendations 

The soil values provided above may be utilized by the project structural engineer to design post-tensioned 

slabs on-ground in accordance with Section 1808.6.2 of the 2022 CBC and the PTI publication. Thicker 

floor slabs and larger footing sizes may be required for structural reasons and should govern the design if 

more restrictive than the minimum recommendations provided below: 

 

1. Exterior continuous footings for one- and two-story structures should be founded at a minimum depth 

of 12 inches below the lowest adjacent finished ground surface. Interior footings may be founded at a 

minimum depth of 10 inches below the tops of the adjacent finish floor slabs.  

 

2. In accordance with Table 1809.7 of 2022 CBC for light-frame construction, all continuous footings 

should have minimum widths of 12 inches for one- and two-story construction. We recommend all 

continuous footings should be reinforced with a minimum of two No. 4 bars, one top and one bottom. 

Alternatively, post-tensioned tendons may be utilized in the perimeter continuous footings in lieu of 

the reinforcement bars. 

 

3. A minimum 12-inch-wide grade beam founded at the same depth as adjacent footings should be 

provided across the large entrances or similar openings (such as warehouse doors or bay windows). 

The grade beam should be reinforced in a similar manner as provided above. 

 

4. Interior isolated pad footings, if required, should be a minimum of 24 inches square and founded at a 

minimum depth of 12 inches below the bottoms of the adjacent floor slabs for one- and two-story 

buildings. Pad footings should be reinforced with No. 4 bars spaced a maximum of 18 inches on centers, 

both ways, placed near the bottoms of the footings. 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 22 

 

 

 

5. Exterior isolated pad footings intended for support of roof overhangs such as second-story decks, patio 

covers, and similar construction should be a minimum of 24 inches square and founded at a minimum 

depth of 18 inches below the lowest adjacent final grade. The pad footings should be reinforced with 

No. 4 bars spaced a maximum of 18 inches on centers, both ways, placed near the bottoms of the 

footings. Exterior isolated pad footings may need to be connected to adjacent pad and/or continuous 

footings via tie beams at the discretion of the project structural engineer. 

 

6. The thickness of the floor slabs should be determined by the project structural engineer with 

consideration given to the expansion index of the onsite soils; however, we recommend that a minimum 

slab thickness of 4 inches be considered. 

 

7. As an alternative to designing 4-inch-thick post-tensioned slabs with perimeter footings as described in 

Items 1 and 2 above, the structural engineer may design the foundation system using a thickened slab 

design. The minimum thickness of this uniformly thick slab should be 7.5 inches. The engineer in 

charge of post-tensioned slab design may also opt to use any combination of slab thickness and footing 

embedment depth as deemed appropriate based on their engineering experience and judgment. 

 

8. Concrete floor slabs and areas to receive moisture sensitive floor covering should be underlain with a 

moisture vapor retarder consisting of a minimum 10-mil-thick polyethylene or polyolefin membrane 

that meets the minimum requirements of ASTM E96 and ASTM E1745 for vapor retarders (such as 

Husky Yellow Guard®, Stego® Wrap, or equivalent). All laps within the membrane should be sealed, 

and at least 2 inches of clean sand should be placed over the membrane to promote uniform curing of 

the concrete. To reduce the potential for punctures, the membrane should be placed on a pad surface 

that has been graded smooth without any sharp protrusions. If a smooth surface cannot be achieved by 

grading, consideration should be given to lowering the pad finished grade an additional inch and then 

placing a 1-inch-thick leveling course of sand across the pad surface prior to the placement of the 

membrane. 

 

At the present time, some slab designers, geotechnical professionals and concrete experts view 

the sand layer below the slab (blotting sand) as a place for entrapment of excess moisture that 

could adversely impact moisture-sensitive floor coverings. As a preventive measure, the 

potential for moisture intrusion into the concrete slab could be reduced if the concrete is placed 

directly on the vapor retarder. However, if this sand layer is omitted, appropriate curing 

methods must be implemented to ensure that the concrete slab cures uniformly. A qualified 

materials engineer with experience in slab design and construction should provide 

recommendations for alternative methods of curing and supervise the construction process to 

ensure uniform slab curing. Additional steps would also need to be taken to prevent puncturing 

of the vapor retarder during concrete placement. 

 

9. Presaturation of the subgrade below floor slabs will not be required; however, prior to placing concrete, 

the subgrade below all dwelling and garage floor slab areas should be thoroughly moistened to achieve 

a moisture content that is at least equal to or slightly greater than optimum moisture content. This 

moisture content should penetrate to a minimum depth of 12 inches below the bottoms of the slabs. 

 

10. The minimum footing dimensions and reinforcement recommended herein may be modified (increased 

or decreased subject to the constraints of Chapter 18 of the 2022 CBC) by the structural engineer 

responsible for foundation design based on calculations, engineering experience and judgment. 

 

  



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 23 

 

 

 

Foundation Excavation Observations 

 

All footing trenches should be observed by a representative of the project geotechnical consultant to 

document that they have been excavated into competent bearing soils prior to the placement of forms, 

reinforcement or concrete. The excavations should be trimmed neat, level and square. All loose, sloughed 

or moisture-softened soils and/or any construction debris should be removed prior to the placing of 

concrete. Excavated soils derived from footing and/or utility trenches should not be placed in building slab-

on-grade areas or exterior concrete flatwork areas unless the soils are compacted to at least 90 percent of 

maximum dry density. 

 

General Corrosivity Screening 

 

As a screening level study, very limited chemical and electrical tests were performed on samples considered 

representative of the onsite soils to identify potential corrosive characteristics of these soils. The common 

indicators associated with soil corrosivity include water-soluble sulfate and chloride levels, pH (a measure 

of acidity), and minimum electrical resistivity. Test results are presented in Table 4 below. 

 

It should be noted that Petra does not practice corrosion engineering; therefore, the test results, 

opinion and engineering judgment provided herein should be considered as general guidelines 

only. Additional analyses would be warranted, especially for cases where buried metallic building 

materials (such as copper and cast or ductile iron pipes) in contact with site soils are planned for 

the project. In many cases, the project geotechnical engineer may not be informed of these choices. 

Therefore, for conditions where such elements are considered, we recommend that other, relevant 

project design professionals (e.g., the architect, landscape architect, civil and/or structural 

engineer) also consider recommending a qualified corrosion engineer to conduct additional 

sampling and testing of near-surface soils during the final stages of site grading to provide a 

complete assessment of soil corrosivity. Recommendations to mitigate the detrimental effects of 

corrosive soils on buried metallic and other building materials that may be exposed to corrosive 

soils should be provided by the corrosion engineer as deemed appropriate. 

 

In general, a soil’s water-soluble sulfate levels and pH relate to the potential for concrete degradation; 

water-soluble chlorides in soils impact ferrous metals embedded or encased in concrete, e.g., reinforcing 

steel; and electrical resistivity is a measure of a soil’s corrosion potential to a variety of buried metals used 

in the building industry, such as copper tubing and cast or ductile iron pipes. Table 4, below, presents test 

results. with an interpretation of current code indicators and guidelines that are commonly used in this 

industry. The table includes the classifications of the soils as they relate to the various tests, as well as a 

general recommendation for possible mitigation measures in view of the potential adverse impact on 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 24 

 

 

 

various components of the proposed structures in direct contact with site soils. The guidelines provided 

herein should be evaluated and confirmed, or modified, in their entirety by the project structural engineer, 

corrosion engineer and/or the contractor responsible for concrete placement for structural concrete used in 

exterior and interior footings, interior slabs on-ground, garage slabs, wall foundations and concrete exposed 

to weather such as driveways, patios, porches, walkways, ramps, steps, curbs, etc. 

 

TABLE 4 

Soil Corrosivity Screening Results 

Test Test Results Classification General Recommendations 

Soluble Sulfates  

(Cal 417) 
0.0018 percent 

S0(1) 

Not Applicable 

No cement type restrictions; no water/cement ratio 

restrictions; 

 min. f ’c = 2,500 psi 

pH 

(Cal 643) 
7.5 Slightly Alkaline No special recommendations 

Soluble Chloride 

(Cal 422)  
330 ppm 

C1(2) 

Moderate 

 

C2(4) 

Severe 

Residence: No special recommendations, f ’c 

should not be less than 2,500 psi. 

 

Pools & Decking: Water/cement ratio should not 

exceed 0.40; min. f ’c = 5,000 psi 

Resistivity  

(Cal 643) 
20,000 ohm-cm 

Mildly 

Corrosive(3) 

A corrosion engineer should be consulted for long 

term protection of metallic elements in contact 

with site soils 

Notes: 

1. ACI 318-14, Section 19.3 

2. ACI 318-14, Section 19.3 

3. Pierre R. Roberge, “Handbook of Corrosion Engineering” 

4. Exposure classification C2 applies specifically to swimming pools and appurtenant concrete elements 

 

Post-Grading Considerations 

 

Utility Trenches 

 

All utility trenches backfill should be compacted to a minimum relative compaction of 90 percent. Due to 

the nature of the upper onsite earth materials, flooding and jetting techniques should be avoided. Therefore, 

trench backfill materials should be placed in lifts no greater than approximately 12 inches in thickness, 

watered or air-dried as necessary to achieve near optimum moisture conditions, and then mechanically 

compacted in place to a minimum relative compaction of 90 percent. A representative of the project 

geotechnical consultant should probe and test the backfills to verify adequate compaction. 

 
As an alternative for shallow trenches where pipe or utility lines may be damaged by mechanical 

compaction equipment, such as under building floor slabs, imported clean sand having a sand equivalent 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 25 

 

 

 

(SE) value of 30 or greater may be utilized. The sand backfill materials should be watered to achieve near 

optimum moisture conditions and then tamped into place. No specific relative compaction will be required; 

however, observation, probing, and if deemed necessary, testing should be performed by a representative 

of the project geotechnical consultant to verify an adequate degree of compaction. 

 
If clean, imported sand is to be used for backfill of exterior utility trenches, it is recommended that the 

upper 12 inches of trench backfill materials consist of properly compacted onsite soil materials. This is to 

mitigate infiltration of irrigation and rainwater into granular trench backfill materials. 

 
Where an exterior and/or interior utility trench is proposed in a direction parallel to a building footing, the 

bottom of the trench should not extend below a 1:1 (horizontal to vertical) plane projected downward from 

the bottom edge of the adjacent footing. Where this condition occurs, the adjacent footing should be 

deepened, or the utility constructed and the trench backfilled and compacted prior to footing construction. 

Where utility trenches cross under a building footing, these trenches should be backfilled with on-site soils 

at the point where the trench crosses under the footing to reduce the potential for water to migrate under 

the floor slabs. 

 

Site Drainage 

 

Positive surface drainage systems consisting of a combination of sloped concrete flatwork/asphalt 

pavement, sheet flow gradients, swales and surface area drains (where needed) should be provided around 

the building and within any planter areas to collect and direct all surface waters to an appropriate drainage 

facility as determined by the project civil engineer. The ground surfaces of planter and landscape areas that 

are located within 10 feet of building foundations should be sloped at a minimum gradient of 5 percent 

away from the foundations and towards the nearest area drains. The ground surface of planter and landscape 

areas that are located more than 10 feet away from building foundations may be sloped at a minimum 

gradient of 2 percent away from the foundations and towards the nearest area drains. 

 
Concrete flatwork surfaces that are located within 10 feet of building foundations should be inclined at a 

minimum gradient of one percent away from the building foundations and towards the nearest area drains. 

Concrete flatwork surfaces that are located more than 10 feet away from building foundations may be sloped 

at a minimum gradient of 1 percent towards the nearest area drains. Surface waters should not be allowed 

to collect or pond against building foundations and within the level areas of the site. All drainage devices 

should be properly maintained throughout the lifetime of the development. Future changes to site 

improvements, or planting and watering practices, should not be allowed to cause over-saturation of site 

soil adjacent to the structures. 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 26 

 

 

 

Bottomless Trench Drains 

 

When gravel filled bottomless infiltration systems are constructed near foundations, a potential exists for 

oversaturation of the foundation soils which conflicts with the intended purpose of onsite drainage facilities. 

In addition, it has been our experience that a leading cause of distress to buildings and foundations is due 

to poor management of water next to building foundations. Petra recommends a setback of at least 15 feet 

between any infiltration system and building foundations. If this setback distance cannot be maintained, 

then a modified foundation system may be required to alleviate any distress that could be caused by 

infiltration of water near the footing. A modified foundation system could consist of constructing deepened 

footings within 15 feet of the infiltration system and installing extra reinforcement. Design of a modified 

foundation system is referred to the project structural engineer. 

 

Retaining Walls 

 

Due to the relatively flat and level site, it is anticipated that tall retaining walls will not be necessary for this 

project. Shorter retaining walls may be utilized for grading and landscaping purposes. Petra should be 

afforded the opportunity to review all proposed retaining wall design. Retaining walls retaining less than 6 

feet of soil and without additional surcharge may be designed according to the following recommendations. 

 

Allowable Bearing Values 

Proposed retaining walls should be supported on spread footings using the design criteria recommended 

previously for building footings; however, when calculating passive resistance, the passive earth pressure 

for retaining walls supported by descending slopes should be reduced to 150 pounds per square foot, per 

foot of depth, to a maximum value of 1,500 pounds per square foot. 

 

Active and At-Rest Earth Pressures 

 

1. On-Site Soils Used for Backfill 

On-site soil and bedrock materials have predominant very low expansion potentials. Therefore, for this 

condition, active earth pressures equivalent to fluids having densities of 35 and 51 pounds per cubic 

foot should be used for design of cantilevered walls retaining a level backfill and ascending 2:1 backfill, 

respectively. For walls that are restrained at the top, at-rest earth pressures of 53 and 78 pounds per 

cubic foot (equivalent fluid pressures) should be used. The above values are for retaining walls that 

have been supplied with a proper subdrain system (see Figure RW-1). All walls should be designed to 

support any adjacent structural surcharge loads imposed by other nearby walls or footings in addition 

to the above-recommended active and at-rest earth pressures. 

 

2. Imported Sand, Pea Gravel, or Rock Used for Wall Backfill 

Imported clean sand exhibiting a sand equivalent value (SE) of 30 or greater, pea gravel, or crushed 

rock may be used for wall backfill to reduce the lateral earth pressures provided these granular backfill 

materials extend behind the walls to a minimum horizontal distance equal to one-half the wall height. 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 27 

 

 

 

In addition, the sand, pea gravel, or rock backfill materials should extend behind the walls to a minimum 

horizontal distance of 2 feet at the base of the wall or to a horizontal distance equal to the heel width of 

the footing, whichever is greater (see Figures RW-2 and RW-3). For the above conditions, cantilevered 

walls retaining a level backfill and ascending 2:1 backfill may be designed to resist active earth 

pressures equivalent to fluids having densities of 30 and 41 pounds per cubic foot, respectively. For 

walls that are restrained at the top, at-rest earth pressures equivalent to fluids having densities of 45 and 

62 pounds per cubic foot are recommended for design of restrained walls supporting a level backfill 

and ascending 2:1 backfill, respectively. These values are also for retaining walls supplied with a proper 

subdrain system. 

 

Furthermore, as with existing soil backfill, the walls should be designed to support any adjacent structural 

surcharge loads imposed by other nearby walls or footings in addition to the recommended active and at-

rest earth pressures. All structural calculations and details should be provided to this firm for verification 

purposes prior to grading and construction phases. 

 

Earthquake Loads Retaining Walls 

 

Note 1 of Section 1803.5.12 of the 2022 CBC indicates that the dynamic seismic lateral earth pressures on 

foundation walls and retaining walls supporting more than 6 feet of backfill height due to design earthquake 

ground motions be determined. It is unlikely that any wall retaining 6 or more feet of backfill will be 

constructed onsite. Accordingly, dynamic seismic lateral earth pressures are not considered necessary for 

this project. 

 

Subdrainage 

 

Perforated pipe and gravel subdrains should be installed behind all retaining walls to prevent entrapment of 

water in the backfill (see Figures RW-1 through RW-3). Perforated pipe should consist of 4-inch-minimum 

diameter PVC Schedule 40, or SDR-35, with the perforations laid down. The pipe should be encased in a 

1-foot-wide column of ¾-inch to 1½-inch open-graded gravel. If on-site soils are used as backfill, the open-

graded gravel should extend above the wall footings to a minimum height equal to one-third the wall height 

or to a minimum height of 1.5 feet above the footing, whichever is greater. If imported sand, pea gravel, or 

crushed rock is used as backfill, subdrain details shown on Figures RW-2 and RW-3 should be utilized. 

The open-graded gravel should be completely wrapped in filter fabric consisting of Mirafi 140N or 

equivalent. Solid outlet pipes should be connected to the subdrains and then routed to a suitable area for 

discharge of accumulated water. 

 

If a limited area exists behind the walls for installation of a pipe and gravel subdrain, a geotextile drain mat 

such as Mirafi Miradrain, or equivalent, can be used in lieu of drainage gravel. The drain mat should extend 

the full height and lengths of the walls and the filter fabric side of the drain mat should be placed up against 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 28 

 

 

 

the backcut. The perforated pipe drain line placed at the bottom of the drain mat should consist of 4-inch 

minimum diameter PVC Schedule 40 or SDR-35. The filter fabric on the drain mat should be peeled back 

and then wrapped around the drain line. 

 

Waterproofing 

 

The portions of retaining walls supporting backfill should be coated with an approved waterproofing 

compound or covered with a similar material to inhibit infiltration of moisture through the walls. 

 

Wall Backfill 

 

Where imported sand (with a Sand Equivalent of 30 or greater) or the onsite soils materials are used as 

backfill behind the proposed retaining walls, the backfill materials should be placed in approximately 6- to 

8-inch-thick maximum lifts, watered as necessary to achieve above optimum moisture conditions, and then 

mechanically compacted in place to a minimum relative compaction of 90 percent. Flooding or jetting of 

the backfill materials should be avoided. A representative of the project geotechnical consultant should 

observe the backfill procedures and test the wall backfill to verify adequate compaction. 

 

If imported pea gravel or rock is used for backfill, the gravel should be placed in approximately 2- to 3-

foot-thick lifts, thoroughly wetted but not flooded, and then mechanically tamped or vibrated into place. A 

representative of the project geotechnical consultant should observe the backfill procedures and probe the 

backfill to determine that an adequate degree of compaction is achieved. 

 

To reduce the potential for the direct infiltration of surface water into the backfill, imported sand, gravel, 

or rock backfill should be capped with at least 12 inches of on-site soil. Filter fabric such as Mirafi 140N 

or equivalent, should be placed between the soil and the imported gravel or rock to prevent fines from 

penetrating into the backfill. 

 

Geotechnical Observation and Testing 

 

All grading and construction phases associated with retaining wall construction, including backcut 

excavations, footing trenches, installation of the subdrainage systems, and placement of backfill should be 

observed and tested by a representative of the project geotechnical consultant. 

 

Masonry Block Walls 

 

Footings for free-standing masonry block walls and other rigid structures should be designed and reinforced 

utilizing the criteria recommended for conventional building foundations. Where existing surface soils are 

not removed and re-compacted as recommended herein, the footings should be extended through these 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 29 

 

 

 

loose surface soils and founded in underlying competent materials. Positive separations in walls should also 

be provided at corners and at horizontal spacing of approximately 25 feet to permit relative movement. The 

separations should be provided in the blocks and not extend through the footings. The footings should be 

poured monolithically with continuous rebars to serve as effective “grade beams” below the walls. 

 

Where remedial grading cannot be performed due to site constraints, a reduced bearing value of 1,200 

pounds per square foot should be used for 12-inch-wide continuous footings founded at a minimum depth 

of 12 inches below the lowest adjacent final grade. No increase in bearing value may be used for wider or 

deeper footings for this condition. The recommended allowable bearing value includes both dead and live 

loads and may be increased by one-third for short duration wind and seismic forces. In addition, a reduced 

passive earth pressure of 175 pounds per square foot per foot of depth, to a maximum value of 1,750 pounds 

per square foot, should be used to resist lateral loads. A coefficient of friction of 0.3 times the dead load 

forces may still be used between concrete and the supporting soils to determine lateral sliding resistance. 

An increase of one-third of the above values may also be used when designing for short duration wind or 

seismic forces. 

 

Exterior Concrete Flatwork 

 

General 

 

Near-surface compacted fill soils within the site are expected to exhibit an expansion index of 0 to 20, i.e. 

non-expansive. Subgrade preparation for areas not supported by the compacted fill supporting building 

structures should follow the guidelines presented below for pavement design and construction. We 

recommend that all exterior concrete flatwork such as sidewalks, patio slabs, large decorative slabs, 

concrete subslabs that will be covered with decorative pavers, vehicular driveways and/or access roads 

within and adjacent to the site be designed by the project architect and/or structural engineer with 

consideration given to mitigating the potential cracking and uplift that can develop in soils exhibiting 

expansion index values that fall in the very low category. The guidelines that follow should be considered 

as minimums and are subject to review and revision by the project architect, structural engineer and/or 

landscape consultant as deemed appropriate. 

 

Thickness and Joint Spacing 

 

To reduce the potential of unsightly cracking, concrete walkways, patio-type slabs, large decorative slabs 

and concrete subslabs to be covered with decorative pavers should be at least 4 inches thick and provided 

with construction joints or expansion joints every 6 feet or less. Private driveways that will be designed for 

the use of passenger cars for access to private garages should also be at least 4 inches thick and provided 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 30 

 

 

 

with construction joints or expansion joints every 10 feet or less. Concrete pavement that will be designed 

based on an unlimited number of applications of an 18-kip single-axle load in public access areas, segments 

of road that will be paved with concrete (such as bus stops and cross-walks) or access roads that will be 

subject to heavy truck loadings should have a minimum thickness of 5 inches and be provided with control 

joints spaced at maximum 10-foot intervals. A modulus of subgrade reaction of 125 pounds per cubic foot 

may be used for design of the public and access roads. 

 

Reinforcement 

 

All concrete flatwork having their largest plan-view panel dimension exceeding 10 feet should be reinforced 

with a minimum of No. 3 bars spaced 24 inches on centers, both ways. Alternatively, the slab reinforcement 

may consist of welded wire mesh of the sheet type (not rolled) with 6x6/W1.4xW1.4 designation in 

accordance with the Wire Reinforcement Institute (WRI). The reinforcement should be properly positioned 

near the middle of the slabs. 

 

The reinforcement recommendations provided herein are intended as guidelines to achieve 

adequate performance for anticipated soil conditions. The project architect, civil and/or structural 

engineer should make appropriate adjustments in reinforcement type, size and spacing to account 

for concrete internal (e.g., shrinkage and thermal) and external (e.g., applied loads) forces as 

deemed necessary. 

 

Edge Beams (Optional) 

 

Where the outer edges of concrete flatwork are to be bordered by landscaping, it is recommended that 

consideration be given to the use of edge beams (thickened edges) to prevent excessive infiltration and 

accumulation of water under the slabs. Edge beams, if used, should be 6 to 8 inches wide, extend 8 inches 

below the tops of the finish slab surfaces. Edge beams are not mandatory; however, their inclusion in 

flatwork construction adjacent to landscaped areas is intended to reduce the potential for vertical and 

horizontal movement and subsequent cracking of the flatwork related to uplift forces that can develop in 

expansive soils. 

 

Subgrade Preparation 

 

Compaction 

To reduce the potential for distress to concrete flatwork, the subgrade soils below concrete flatwork areas 

to a minimum depth of 12 inches (or deeper, as either prescribed elsewhere in this report or determined in 

the field) should be moisture conditioned to at least equal to, or slightly greater than, the optimum moisture 

content and then compacted to a minimum relative compaction of 90 percent. Where concrete public roads, 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 31 

 

 

 

concrete segments of roads and/or concrete access driveways are proposed, the upper 6 inches of subgrade 

soil should be compacted to a minimum 95 percent relative compaction. 

 

Pre-Moistening 

As a further measure to reduce the potential for concrete flatwork cracking, subgrade soils should be 

thoroughly moistened prior to placing concrete. The moisture content of the soils should be at least the 

optimum moisture content to a minimum depth of 12 inches into the subgrade. Flooding or ponding of the 

subgrade is not considered feasible to achieve the above moisture conditions since this method would likely 

require construction of numerous earth berms to contain the water. Therefore, moisture conditioning should 

be achieved with sprinklers, or a light spray applied to the subgrade over a period of few to several days 

just prior to pouring concrete. Pre-watering of the soils is intended to promote uniform curing of the 

concrete, reduce the development of shrinkage cracks and reduce the potential for differential expansion 

pressure on freshly poured flatwork. A representative of the project geotechnical consultant should observe 

and verify the density and moisture content of the soils, and the depth of moisture penetration prior to 

placing concrete. 

 

Drainage 

 

Drainage from patios and other flatwork areas should be directed to local area drains and/or graded earth 

swales designed to carry runoff water to the adjacent streets or other approved drainage structures. The 

concrete flatwork should be sloped at a minimum gradient of one percent, or as prescribed by project civil 

engineer or local codes, away from building foundations, retaining walls, masonry garden walls and slope 

areas. 

 

Tree Wells 

 

Tree wells are not recommended in concrete flatwork areas since they introduce excessive water into the 

subgrade soils and allow root invasion, both of which can cause heaving and cracking of the flatwork. 

 

Swimming Pool and Spa 
 
Allowable Bearing and Settlement 

 

Plans for the proposed project were not made available to Petra at the time this report was prepared, but it 

is common to include one (or more) pools in a multi-unit apartment complex. If a pool is proposed for the 

project, the pool may be designed as a conventional pool shell founded on natural, medium dense eolian 

sand. Any loose sand below the pool shell should be removed and replaced with engineered fill. Therefore, 

the pool shell may be designed using an allowable bearing value of 1,500 pounds per square foot. A 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 32 

 

 

 

potential for seismic differential settlement on the order of one inch to occur across the pool/spa shells 

should be considered in the design. Petra should review final plans when available to verify there are no 

additional geotechnical concerns related to the construction of a pool. 

 

Lateral Earth Pressures 

 

The pool walls should be designed assuming that an earth pressure equivalent to a fluid having a density of 

90 pounds per cubic foot is acting on the outer surface of the pool walls. For this long-term condition, the 

walls should be designed using a lateral earth pressure of 62.4H pounds per square foot (where “H” equals 

the vertical depth in feet below the ground surface) that is acting on the inner surface of the pool walls. Pool 

walls should also be designed to resist lateral surcharge pressures imposed by any adjacent footings or 

structures in addition to the above lateral earth pressures. 

 
Stability of Temporary Excavation 

 

The pool excavation is expected to expose loose to medium dense eolian sand soil. Based on the anticipated 

physical characteristics of these materials, the pool excavation sidewalls will not remain stable at a vertical 

gradient during construction of the pool. Therefore, the temporary excavation sidewalls should be sloped 

at a slope ratio of 2:1 (horizontal to vertical) or flatter before forming of the pool walls. 

 
Temporary Access Ramps 

 

It is essential that all backfill placed within temporary access ramps extending into the pool excavation be 

properly compacted and tested. This will reduce the potential for excessive settlement of the backfill and 

subsequent damage to pool decking or other structures placed on the backfill. 

 

Pool Bottom 

 

It is expected that the swimming pool bottom will rest entirely on medium dense to dense eolian sand 

deposits. Therefore, care should be taken while excavating these structures to prevent disturbance of 

subgrade soils exposed at grade in the pool bottom. 

 

Pool Decking 

 

Pool decking should be constructed in accordance with the recommendations presented in the “Exterior 

Concrete Flatwork” section of this report. 

 

  



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 33 

 

 

 

Plumbing Fixtures 

 

Leakage from the swimming pool or from any of the appurtenant plumbing could create adverse saturated 

conditions of the surrounding subgrade soils. Localized areas of oversaturation can lead to differential 

expansion (heave) of the subgrade soils and subsequent raising and shifting of concrete flatwork. Therefore, 

it is essential that all plumbing and pool fixtures be absolutely leak-free. For similar reasons, drainage from 

pool deck areas should be directed to local area drains and/or graded earth swales designed to carry runoff 

water to a suitable discharge point. 

 

ACCESS ROADS 

 

Asphalt Pavement 

 

The proposed site improvements may include construction of new asphalt-paved roads, as well as 

improvements to the existing nearby access roads. We have developed the following preliminary 

recommendations for flexible pavement design based on an assumed R-value of 40 and using Traffic Index 

(TI) values of 5.0 and 6.0. The pavement design presented herein is based on the assumption that the 

pavement will be placed directly over engineered, compacted fill placed as specified above in the section 

for Subgrade Preparation of Exterior Concrete Flatwork. 

 

R-value and traffic index parameters presented herein have been assumed. We recommend that bulk 

samples of the actual subgrade materials be collected and R-Value tested after rough grading is completed. 

Additionally, the project civil engineer should be consulted to determine appropriate or required TI values. 

Once actual as-graded testing is complete and traffic loads are confirmed, additional or modified design 

recommendations may be presented. 

 

The pavement section thicknesses presented in Table 5 are considered as minimums for the subject site 

under the assumed conditions and may be superseded by the project requirements or jurisdictional agency 

specifications if more stringent. 

 

TABLE 5 

Suggested Minimum Flexible Pavement Thickness 

Traffic Index R-Value 
Hot Mix Asphalt (alternative) 

(inches) 

Aggregate Base 

(inches) 

5.0 (Light Traffic) 40 3 4 

6.0 (Truck Traffic) 40 3 6.5 

 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 34 

 

 

 

Subgrade soils should be properly compacted, smooth, and non-yielding prior to pavement construction. 

The subgrade soils should be compacted to at least 90 percent of ASTM D 1557-07. Subgrade preparation 

recommendations are provided below. 

 

Aggregate base materials may consist of Crushed Aggregate Base, Crushed Miscellaneous Base, or 

Processed Miscellaneous Base conforming to Section 200-2 of the Standard Specifications for Public 

Works Construction (Greenbook). It should be noted that base thicknesses recommended above are based 

on the use of Crushed Aggregate base material. For conditions where either Crushed Miscellaneous Base 

or Processed Miscellaneous Base Materials are used, a 10 percent increase in base section thickness should 

be incorporated in the design and construction of the structural pavement section. 

 

The base materials should be brought to a uniform moisture near optimum moisture then compacted to at 

least 95 percent of ASTM D 1557. Asphaltic concrete materials and construction should conform to Section 

203 of the Greenbook. 

 

Subgrade drainage is an important factor that enhances pavement performance. Subgrade surfaces below 

the flexible pavement structural section should be sloped to direct run-off to suitable collection points and 

to prevent ponding. The roadways should be raised above the surrounding ground surface to facilitate 

drainage from the roadway. 

 

PLAN REVIEW 

 

This report is based on certain assumptions related to the proposed development, since no plans were 

available for Petra’s review at the time this report was prepared. We recommend that our firm be engaged 

to review the final design drawings, specifications and grading plan prior to any new construction. If we 

are not provided the opportunity to review these documents with respect to the geotechnical aspects of new 

construction and grading, it should not be assumed that the recommendations provided herein are wholly 

or in part applicable to the proposed construction. 

 

REPORT LIMITATIONS 

 

This report is based on Petra’s understanding of the proposed project and geotechnical data as described 

herein. The materials encountered on the project site, described in other literature, and utilized in our 

laboratory investigation are believed representative of the project area, and the conclusions and 

recommendations contained in this report are presented on that basis. However, soil materials can vary in 

characteristics between points of exploration, both laterally and vertically, and those variations could affect 

the conclusions and recommendations contained herein. As such, observation and testing by a geotechnical 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 35 

 

 

 

consultant during the grading and construction phases of the project are essential to confirming the basis of 

this report. To provide the greatest degree of continuity between the design and construction phases, 

consideration should be given to retaining Petra Geosciences, Inc., as geotechnical engineer of record for 

construction services. 

 

This report has been prepared consistent with that level of care being provided by other professionals 

providing similar services at the same locale and time period. The contents of this report are professional 

opinions and as such, are not to be considered a guarantee or warranty. 

 

This report should be reviewed and updated after a period of one year or if the project concept changes 

from that described herein. 

 

The information contained herein has not been prepared for use by parties or projects other than those 

named or described herein. This report may not contain sufficient information for other parties or other 

purposes. 

 

This report is subject to review by the controlling authorities for this project. Should you have any questions, 

please do not hesitate to call. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

PETRA GEOSCIENCES, INC. 

 

 

 

    

7/25/24 
Alan Pace  Siamak Jafroudi, PhD 

Senior Associate Geologist  Senior Principal Engineer 

CEG 1952  GE 2024 

 

KTM/KB/AP/SJ/lv 

 
W:\2020-2025\2024\100\24-112\Reports\24-112 110 Design-Phase Geotechnical Report.docx 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 36 

 

 

 

REFERENCES 

 
American Concrete Institute (ACI), Building Code Requirements for Structural Concrete ACI 318-14. 

 

American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM) – Standard – Section Four – Construction, Volume 04.08 Soil 

and Rock. 

 

American Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE) and Structural Engineering Institute (SEI), 2017, Minimum Design 

Loads and Associated Criteria for Buildings and Other Structures (ASCE 7-16). 

 

A. O. Architects, 2024, Draft Site Plan, Via Vail Village, Rancho Mirage, California, The Pacific Companies, Job 

Number 2023-0361, dated March 8. 

 

Bryant and Hart, E.W., W.A., 2007, Fault-Rupture Hazard Zones in California, Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault 

Zoning Act with Index to Earthquake Fault Zones Maps; California Geological Survey, Special Publication 

42, interim revision. 

 

California Building Standards Commission, 2022, California Building Code, California Code of Regulations,  

Title 24, Part 2, Volume 1 of 2, dated June. 

 

California Building Standards Commission, 2022, California Building Code, California Code of Regulations,  

Title 24, Part 2, Volume 2 of 2, dated June. 

 

California Department of Water Resources, “Water Data Library (WDL) Station Map”, Groundwater Monitor Wells, 

accessed 1/24/2023, https://wdl.water.ca.gov/Map.aspx 

 

California Geologic Survey, 2008, Special Publication 117A. 

 

______, 2020, Earthquake Zones of Required Investigation, Rancho Mirage Quadrangle, accessed July, 

https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/EQZApp/app/ 

 

Cetin,K. et al, 2009, Probabilistic Model for the Assessment of Cyclically Induced Reconsolidation (Volumetric) 

Settlements, in Journal of Geotechnical and Geoenvironmental Engineering: Vol. 135, No. 3. 

 

County of Riverside Safety Element, 2003, Chapter 6 of the General Plan (adopted October 7, 2003). 

 

Dibblee, T.W., 1953, “Generalized geologic map of Imperial Valley region, California”:  in Jahns, R.A., (ed.), 1954, 

Geology of southern California:  California Division of Mines and Geology Bulletin 170 (scale 1” = 6 miles). 

 

Dillon, J.T., and Ehlig, P.L., 1993, Displacement on the Southern San Andreas Fault: in Powell, R.E., Weldon, R.J.II, 

and Matti, J.C., eds, The San Andreas Fault System: Displacement, Palinspastic Reconstruction, and 

Geologic Evolution: Geological Society of America Memoir 178. 

 

Frost, E.G., Suitt, S.C., and Fattahipour, M., 1997, Emerging Perspectives of the Salton Trough Region with an 

Emphasis on Extensional Faulting and its Implications for Later San Andreas Deformation: South Coast 

Geological Society Annual Field Trip Guide Book no. 25, p. 57-97. 

 

Fumal, T.E., Rymer, M.J., and Seitz, G.G., 2002, Timing of Large Earthquakes since A.D., 800 on the Mission Creek 

Strand of the San Andreas Fault Zone at Thousand Palms Oasis Near Palm Springs, California: Bulletin of 

the Seismological Society of America, v. 92, p. 2841- 2860. 

 

Google Earth™ 2020, by Google Earth, Inc., http://www.google.com/earth/index.html/ , accessed March. 

 

Ishihara, K., 1985, Stability of Natural Deposits During Earthquakes, 11th International Conference on Soil Mechanics 

and Foundation Engineering, Proceedings, San Francisco, Vol. 1., pp. 321-376. 

https://wdl.water.ca.gov/Map.aspx
https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/EQZApp/app/
http://www.google.com/earth/index.html/


NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 37 

 

 

 

REFERENCES 
 

Jennings, C.W., 1975, Fault map of California with location of volcanoes, Thermal Springs, and Thermal Wells: 

California Division of Mines and Geology, Geological Data Map Series, Map No. 2. 

 

Jones, L.M., 1988, Focal Mechanisms and the State of Stress on the San Andreas Fault in Southern California: Journal 

of Geophysical Research, v. 93, p. 8869-8891. 

 

Macedo, J. and Bray, D., 2018, Key Trends in Liquefaction-Induced Building Settlement, in Journal of Geotechnical 

and Geoenvironmental Engineering: Vol. 144, No. 11. 

 

Philibosian, B., Fumal, T.E. & Weldon, R., 2011, San Andreas Fault earthquake chronology and Lake Cahuilla history 

at Coachella, California: Bulletin of the Seismological Society of America, Volume 101, No. 1, p13-38.  

 

Pradel, D., 1998, Procedure to Evaluate Earthquake-Induced Settlements in Dry Sandy Soils: in Journal of 

Geotechnical and Geoenvironmental Engineering: Vol. 124, No. 4. 

 

Sieh, K.E., and Williams, P.L., 1990, Behavior of the Southernmost San Andreas Fault during the Past 300 Years: 

Journal of Geophysical Research, v. 95, p. 6629-6645.  

 

Smith, Merrit, 1964, Map Showing Distribution and Configuration of Basement Rocks in California (South Half), 

United States Geological Survey, Oil and Gas Investigations, Map OM-215 (Sheet 2 of 2).  

 

Sneed 2001; Detection and Measurement of Land Subsidence Using Global Positioning System and Interferometric 

Synthetic Aperture Radar, Coachella Valley, California, 1996-1998, U.S. Geological Survey, Water-

Resources Investigations Report 01-4193.  

 

Sneed 2007; Detection and Measurement of Land Subsidence Using Global Positioning System Surveying and 

Interferometric Synthetic Aperture Radar, Coachella Valley, California, 1996–2005, Scientific Investigations 

Report 2007–5251, United States Geological Survey.  

 

Sneed, M., Brandt, J.T., Solt, M., 2014, Land Subsidence, Groundwater Levels, and Geology in the Coachella Valley, 

California, 1993-2010, USGS, Scientific Investigation Report 2014-5075. 

 

Southern California Earthquake Center (SCEC), 1999, Recommended Procedures for Implementation of DMG 

Special Publication 117, Guidelines for Analyzing and Mitigating Liquefaction Hazards in California: 

organized through the Southern California Earthquake Center, University of Southern California. 

 

Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction The “Greenbook”, 2018 edition, BNi Publications, Inc. 

 

Structural Engineers Association of California (SEAOC)/Office of Statewide Health Planning and Development 

(OSHPD), 2018, U. S. Seismic Design Maps, https://seismicmaps.org/ . 

 

Tokimatsu, K. and Seed, H.B., 1987; Evaluation of Settlements in Sands due to Earthquake Shaking: in Journal of 

Geotechnical Engineering, Vol. 113, No. 8, p. 861-879. 

 

United States Geological Survey (USGS), 2014, Unified Hazard Tool,  

https://earthquake.usgs.gov/hazards/interactive/  

 

Working Group on California Earthquake Probabilities (WGCEP), Field, E.H., Biasi, G.P., Bird, P., Dawson, T.E., 

Felzer, K.R., Jackson, D.D., Johnson, K.M., Jordan, T.H., Madden, C., Michael, A.J., Milner, K.R., Page, 

M.T., Parsons, T., Powers, P.M., Shaw, B.E., Thatcher, W.R., Weldon, R.J., II, and Zeng, Y., 2013, Uniform 

California earthquake rupture forecast, version 3 (UCERF3) — The time-independent model: U.S. 

Geological Survey Open-File Report 2013–1165, 97 p., California Geological Survey Special Report 228, 

and Southern California Earthquake Center Publication 1792, http://pubs.usgs.gov/of/2013/1165/

https://seismicmaps.org/
https://earthquake.usgs.gov/hazards/interactive/
http://pubs.usgs.gov/of/2013/1165/


 

 

FIGURES 
  

  

 









Scale: 1” = 2,000’

Base Map: Portions of USGS Palm Springs, Cathedral City, Myoma, Rancho
Mirage, and La Quinta Quadrangles 7.5-Minute Topographic Series, 2015

N 3186 Airway Avenue, Suite K
Costa Mesa, California 92626

PHONE: (714) 549-8921

SITE LOCATION MAP

SW of Monterey Ave. & Dinah Shore Dr.
Rancho Mirage, California

DATE: July, 2024

J.N.: 24-112
Figure 1

PETRA GEOSCIENCES, INC.

COSTA MESA   TEMECULA   LOS ANGELES   PALM DESERT   CORONA  ESCONDIDO   

SITE



N

COSTA MESA   TEMECULA   LOS ANGELES   PALM DESERT   CORONA  ESCONDIDO   

0 400200

Scale: 1” = 200’

3186 Airway Avenue, Suite K
Costa Mesa, California 92626

PHONE: (714) 549-8921

BORING LOCATION MAP

SW of Monterey Ave. & Dinah Shores Dr.
Rancho Mirage, California

DATE: July, 2024

J.N.: 24-112
Figure 2

PETRA GEOSCIENCES, INC.

HA-1

TD=8’

HA-2

TD=8’

af

Qes

B-1

TD=51.5’

B-2

TD=26.5’

B-3

TD=26.5’

B-4

TD=26.5’

365 365 TP-1

TD=5’

TP-2

TD=5’

Qyf

af
B-1

TD=5’

B-2

TD=21.5’

B-3

TD=61.5’

EXPLANATION

Artificial Fill

Approximate Location of Exploratory Boring

af

HA-2

TD=6’

B-1

TD=66’

P-1

TD=10’

B-2

TD=26’

B-3

TD=26’

Base Map: Google Earth, 2024.   



 

 

APPENDIX A 
  

  

 

BORING LOGS 





0

5

10

15

20

25

30

EOLIAN DEPOSITS (Qe)
Sand with Silt (SP-SM): Gray, dry, loose, fine-grained sand.

@2': Becomes medium-dense.

Sand (SP): Off-white to gray, dry, medium-dense, fine- to
medium-grained sand.

Sand with Silt (SP-SM): Gray to off-white, dry, medium-dense,
fine- to medium-grained sand.

@20': Becomes dense.

6
8

13

6
10
11

4
5
8

5
10
15

12
22
31

13
25
41

8
14
20

9
16
21

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.8

102.8

98.7

MAX, EI, pH,
RES, CL,
S04, DSR

COL

Project: A-2 Rancho Mirage Apartments Boring No.: B-1

Location: Rancho Mirage Elevation: ±307'

Job No.: 24-112 Client: National Core Date: 6/7/2024

Drill Method: 8" Hollow Stem Auger Driving Weight: Logged By: KTM

Depth
(Feet)

Lith-
ology

Material Description

W
A
T
E
R

Blows
per
6 in.

Samples

C
o
r
e

B
u
l
k

Moisture
Content

(%)

Laboratory Tests

Dry
Density

(pcf)

Other
Lab

Tests

E X P L O R A T I O N   L O G

Petra Geosciences, Inc.

PLATE A-1



35

40

45

50

55

60

65

@50': Becomes dense.

@60': Becomes medium-dense.

@65': Becomes dense.

Total Depth= 66.5'
No groundwater encountered
Boring backfilled with cuttings.

9
20
27

10
16
17

5
10
13

10
17
26

10
17
24

4
7
9

18
28
34

0.4

0.6

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.3

0.5

Project: A-2 Rancho Mirage Apartments Boring No.: B-1

Location: Rancho Mirage Elevation: ±307'

Job No.: 24-112 Client: National Core Date: 6/7/2024

Drill Method: 8" Hollow Stem Auger Driving Weight: Logged By: KTM

Depth
(Feet)

Lith-
ology

Material Description

W
A
T
E
R

Blows
per
6 in.

Samples

C
o
r
e

B
u
l
k

Moisture
Content

(%)

Laboratory Tests

Dry
Density

(pcf)

Other
Lab

Tests

E X P L O R A T I O N   L O G

Petra Geosciences, Inc.

PLATE A-1



0

5

10

15

20

25

30

EOLIAN DEPOSITS (Qe)
Sand with Silt (SP-SM): Gray, dry, loose, fine-grained sand.

Sand (SP): Gray, dry, merdium-dense, fine- to medium-grained
sand.

@7.5': Becomes dry.

@15': Becomes gray to off-white.

@20': No recovery.

Total Depth= 21.5'
No groundwater encountered
Boring backfilled with cuttings.

6
9

14

3
5
6

9
9

13

2
4
6

11
17
30

7
10
14

2.0

1.9

1.6

0.3

0.3

105.1

107.3

Project: A-2 Rancho Mirage Apartments Boring No.: B-2

Location: Rancho Mirage Elevation: ±313'

Job No.: 24-112 Client: National Core Date: 6/7/2024

Drill Method: 8" Hollow Stem Auger Driving Weight: Logged By: KTM

Depth
(Feet)

Lith-
ology

Material Description

W
A
T
E
R

Blows
per
6 in.

Samples

C
o
r
e

B
u
l
k

Moisture
Content

(%)

Laboratory Tests

Dry
Density

(pcf)

Other
Lab

Tests

E X P L O R A T I O N   L O G

Petra Geosciences, Inc.

PLATE A-2



0

5

10

15

20

25

30

EOLIAN DEPOSITS (Qe)
Sand with Silt (SP-SM): Gray, dry, loose, fine-grained sand.

@2': Becomes medium-dense.

Sand (SP): Gray to off-white, dry, medium-dense, fine-grained
sand.

@7.5': Becomes gray with fine- to medium-grained sand.

@20': Becomes very dense.

Total Depth= 21.5'
No groundwater encountered
Boring backfilled with cuttings.

4
5
6

6
10
11

2
5
5

6
9

16

6
9

13

22
43

50/4"

1.2

1.0

0.7

0.5

0.3

0.4

105.0

Project: A-2 Rancho Mirage Apartments Boring No.: B-3

Location: Rancho Mirage Elevation: ±308'

Job No.: 24-112 Client: National Core Date: 6/7/2024

Drill Method: 8" Hollow Stem Auger Driving Weight: Logged By: KTM

Depth
(Feet)

Lith-
ology

Material Description

W
A
T
E
R

Blows
per
6 in.

Samples

C
o
r
e

B
u
l
k

Moisture
Content

(%)

Laboratory Tests

Dry
Density

(pcf)

Other
Lab

Tests

E X P L O R A T I O N   L O G

Petra Geosciences, Inc.

PLATE A-3



0

5

10

15

20

25

30

EOLIAN DEPOSITS (Qe)
Sand with Silt (SP-SM): Gray, dry, loose, fine-grained sand.

@2': Becomes medium-dense.

Sand (SP): Gray to off-white, dry, medium-dense, fine-grained
sand.

@7.5': Becomes gray with fine- to medium-grained sand.

Total Depth= 10'
No groundwater encountered
Perc test installed within boring utilizing a 2" perforated pipe and
gravel.

7
9

17
MA

Project: A-2 Rancho Mirage Apartments Boring No.: P-1

Location: Rancho Mirage Elevation: ±308'

Job No.: 24-112 Client: National Core Date: 6/7/2024

Drill Method: 8" Hollow Stem Auger Driving Weight: Logged By: KTM

Depth
(Feet)

Lith-
ology

Material Description

W
A
T
E
R

Blows
per
6 in.

Samples

C
o
r
e

B
u
l
k

Moisture
Content

(%)

Laboratory Tests

Dry
Density

(pcf)

Other
Lab

Tests

E X P L O R A T I O N   L O G

Petra Geosciences, Inc.

PLATE A-4



 

 

APPENDIX B 
  

  

 

LABORATORY TEST PROCEDURES 

 

LABORATORY DATA SUMMARY 



 
 

ENGINEERS   +   GEOLOGISTS   +   ENVIRONMENTAL   SCIENTISTS 

 

 
Offices Strategically Positioned Throughout Southern California 
LABORATORY 
1251 W. Pomona Road, Unit #103, Corona, CA 92882 
T: 714.549.8921   F: 951.737.3199 
For more information visit us online at www.petra-inc.com 

 

LABORATORY TESTING 
 
Associated with the subsurface exploration was the collection of bulk and relatively undisturbed samples 

of soil materials for laboratory testing. The relatively undisturbed samples were obtained using a 2.4-inch, 

outside-diameter, modified California split-spoon soil sampler lined with 1-inch-high stainless-steel rings. 

The driven ring samples were placed in sealed containers and transported to our laboratory located at 1251 

W. Pomona Road, Unit #103, Corona, CA 92882, for testing. 

 

Our laboratory testing capabilities include Soil Classifications, Moisture Content and In-Situ Moisture 

Content and Dry Unit Weight, Grain Size Distribution, Remolded Direct Shear, Consolidation; all in 

accordance with the latest procedures of American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM) and 

California Department of Transportation (Caltrans). 

 

To evaluate the engineering properties of site soils, laboratory testing was performed on selected samples 

of soil considered representative of those encountered. Appropriate tests were assigned by the project 

engineer and geologist based on project plans and specifications including the level of anticipated loads, 

when available, and subsurface stratigraphy. Test results were reviewed by the laboratory manager and 

engineer-in-charge of the laboratory or his qualified designee for completeness and accuracy. A description 

of laboratory test procedures and summaries of the test data are presented in the following pages. 

 

http://www.petra-inc.com/


LABORATORY TEST PROCEDURES 

 

_____________________________________________________   ______________________________________ 

 

PETRA GEOSCIENCES, INC. Laboratory Address: 1251 W. Pomona Road, Unit 103, Corona, CA, 92882 

J.N. 24-112 

Soil Classification 

Soil materials encountered within the property were classified and described in accordance with the Unified 

Soil Classification System and in general accordance with the current version of Test Method ASTM  

D 2488. The assigned group symbols are presented in the exploration logs, Appendix A. 

 

Moisture Content and In Situ Moisture Content and Dry Unit Weight 

Moisture content of selected bulk samples and in- place moisture content and dry unit weight of selected, 

relatively undisturbed soil samples were determined in accordance with the current version of Test Method 

ASTM D 2435 and Test Method ASTM D 2216, respectively. Test data are presented in the exploration 

logs, Appendix A. 

 

Laboratory Maximum Dry Unit Weight and Optimum Moisture Content 

The maximum dry unit weight and optimum moisture content of the on-site soils were determined for 

selected bulk samples in accordance with current version of Method A of ASTM D 1557. The result of this 

test is presented on Plate B-1. 

 

Corrosivity Screening 

Chemical and electrical analyses were performed on selected bulk samples of onsite soils to determine their 

soluble sulfate content, chloride content, pH (acidity) and minimum electrical resistivity. These tests were 

performed in accordance with the current versions of California Test Method Nos. CTM 417 (sulfate),  

CTM 422 (chloride), and CTM 643 (pH and resistivity) respectively. The results of these tests are included 

on Plate B-1. 

 

Direct Shear 

The Coulomb shear strength parameters, i.e., angle of internal friction and cohesion, were determined for 

selected, relatively undisturbed and/or reconstituted-bulk samples of onsite soil. This test was performed in 

general accordance with the current version of Test Method ASTM D 3080. Three specimens were prepared 

for each test. The test specimens were inundated and then sheared under various normal loads at a constant 

strain rate of 0.005 inch per minute. The results of the direct shear test are graphically presented on  

Plate B-2. 

 

Grain Size Distribution 

Grain size analysis was performed on selected bulk samples of onsite soils in accordance with the latest 

versions of Test Method ASTM D 136 and/or ASTM C 117, or Test Method ASTM D 422 and/or ASTM 

D 6913. The test result is graphically presented on Plate B-3. 

 

Single-Point Collapse 

Volume change (collapse) characteristics of selected undisturbed soil samples were determined by one-

dimensional single-point collapse test. This test was performed in general accordance with the latest version 

of the Test Method ASTM D 5333. Axial loads were applied to laterally restrained 1-inch-high samples. 

The resulting deformation was recorded at selected time intervals. At a load approximately corresponding 

to the existing overburden pressure or the anticipated future load, the test samples were inundated in order 

to evaluate the effect of an increase in moisture content, e.g., hydro-consolidation potential (or heave). The 

results of this test are graphically presented on Plate B-4. 

 
 



 

_____________________________________________________   ______________________________________ 

 

PETRA GEOSCIENCES, INC. Laboratory Address: 1251 W. Pomona Road, Unit 103, Corona, CA, 92882 

J.N. 24-112  Plate B-1 

LABORATORY DATA SUMMARY 

Boring/ 

Test Pit/ 

Sample/ 

Number 

Sample 

Depth 

(ft.) 

Soil/ 

Bedrock 

Description1 

Compaction2 Corrosivity Screening Expansion4 

Maximum 

Dry 

Unit Weight 

(pcf) 

Optimum 

Moisture 

(%) 

Soluble 

Sulfate 

Content3 

(%) 

Chloride 

Content4 

(ppm) 

pH5 

(Acidity) 

Minimum 

Resistivity5 

(Ohm-cm) 

Index Potential 

B-1 0-5 SP 115.5 11.5 0.0018 330 7.5 20,000 -0 Very Low 

 

Test Procedures: 1  Per Test Method ASTM D 2488 4  Per California Test Method CTM 422 

 2  Per Test Method ASTM D 1557 5  Per California Test Method CTM 643 

 3  Per California Test Method CTM 417 6  Per Test Method ASTM C 117 



B-2



B-3



B-4



 

 

APPENDIX C 
  

  

 

SEISMIC HAZARD ANALYSIS



J.N: 24‐112 Project: Date: 7/20/2024

Boring: B‐1 65 feet 5 feet

Top Bottom

ft ft ft ft blows/ft blows/ft blows/ft
1 0 2.5 2.5 2.5 21 14 0.18
2 2.5 5 2.5 5.0 21 14 0.36
3 5 7.5 2.5 7.5 13 8 0.67
4 7.5 10 2.5 10.0 23 15 0.84
5 10 15 5 15.0 53 35 0.98
6 15 20 5 20.0 66 43 1.10
7 20 25 5 25.0 0 34 1.24
8 25 30 5 30.0 0 37 1.38
9 30 35 5 35.0 0 47 1.48
10 35 40 5 40.0 0 33 1.64
11 40 45 5 45.0 0 23 1.85
12 45 50 5 50.0 0 43 1.97
13 50 55 5 55.0 0 41 2.09
14 55 60 5 60.0 0 16 2.40
15 60 65 5 65.0 0 62 2.48

1
2

3 Standard penetration resistance (ASTM D1586) not to exceed 100 blows /ft (305 blows /m) as directly measured in the field without corrections. When Refusal is met for a rock 
layer, this value shall be taken as 100 blows /ft (305 blows /m).

SPT Test Interval: every

Layer 
Thickness

(di)

N‐SPT3

(Ni)

Depth to Soil/Rock Layer

Modified California sampler blow counts as directly measured in the field without corrections.
Equivalent SPT blow counts are calculated from field measured Modified California sampler blow counts using the standard Burmister formula (Burmister, 1948).
Eq. N‐SPT = 0.651 x (Mod. Cal. Sampler Blow Counts)

SITE CLASSIFICATION DETERMINATION BASED ON BLOW COUNT, N‐SPT, FOR SEISMIC DESIGN
Per Table 20.3‐1 and Section 20.4.2 of ASCE 7‐16

Site Classification
Per Table 20.3‐1

= 26 D

Average Field Standard 
Penetration Resistance

(blows/ft)

Layer 
No.
(i)

Total Depth of Boring:

National Core Apartments

Mod. Cal. 
Sampler Blow 

Counts1

Equivalent N‐
SPT2

(Ni)
𝑑



ୀଵ


𝑑
𝑁



ୀଵ

𝑵ഥ ൌ
∑ 𝒅𝒊𝒏
𝒊ୀ𝟏

∑ 𝒅𝒊
𝑵𝒊

𝒏
𝒊ୀ𝟏



USGS web services were down for some period of time and as a result this tool wasn't operational, resulting in timeout error.
USGS web services are now operational so this tool should work as expected.

24-112 National Core Apartments
Latitude, Longitude: 33.796486, -116.394338

Date 7/21/2024, 11:06:57 PM

Design Code Reference Document ASCE7-16

Risk Category II

Site Class D - Stiff Soil

Type Value Description

SS 1.819 MCER ground motion. (for 0.2 second period)

S1 0.757 MCER ground motion. (for 1.0s period)

SMS 1.819 Site-modified spectral acceleration value

SM1 null -See Section 11.4.8 Site-modified spectral acceleration value

SDS 1.213 Numeric seismic design value at 0.2 second SA

SD1 null -See Section 11.4.8 Numeric seismic design value at 1.0 second SA

Type Value Description

SDC null -See Section 11.4.8 Seismic design category

Fa 1 Site amplification factor at 0.2 second

Fv null -See Section 11.4.8 Site amplification factor at 1.0 second

PGA 0.789 MCEG peak ground acceleration

FPGA 1.1 Site amplification factor at PGA

PGAM 0.868 Site modified peak ground acceleration

TL 8 Long-period transition period in seconds

SsRT 2.146 Probabilistic risk-targeted ground motion. (0.2 second)

SsUH 2.404 Factored uniform-hazard (2% probability of exceedance in 50 years) spectral acceleration

SsD 1.819 Factored deterministic acceleration value. (0.2 second)

S1RT 0.846 Probabilistic risk-targeted ground motion. (1.0 second)

S1UH 0.963 Factored uniform-hazard (2% probability of exceedance in 50 years) spectral acceleration.

U.S. Seismic Design Maps https://www.seismicmaps.org/

1 of 3 7/21/2024, 23:07



Type Value Description

S1D 0.757 Factored deterministic acceleration value. (1.0 second)

PGAd 0.789 Factored deterministic acceleration value. (Peak Ground Acceleration)

PGAUH 0.941 Uniform-hazard (2% probability of exceedance in 50 years) Peak Ground Acceleration

CRS 0.893 Mapped value of the risk coefficient at short periods

CR1 0.879 Mapped value of the risk coefficient at a period of 1 s

CV 1.464 Vertical coefficient

U.S. Seismic Design Maps https://www.seismicmaps.org/

2 of 3 7/21/2024, 23:07



DISCLAIMER

While the information presented on this website is believed to be correct, SEAOC /OSHPD and its sponsors and contributors assume no responsibility or
liability for its accuracy. The material presented in this web application should not be used or relied upon for any specific application without competent examination
and verification of its accuracy, suitability and applicability by engineers or other licensed professionals. SEAOC / OSHPD do not intend that the use of this
information replace the sound judgment of such competent professionals, having experience and knowledge in the field of practice, nor to substitute for the
standard of care required of such professionals in interpreting and applying the results of the seismic data provided by this website. Users of the information from
this website assume all liability arising from such use. Use of the output of this website does not imply approval by the governing building code bodies responsible
for building code approval and interpretation for the building site described by latitude/longitude location in the search results of this website.

U.S. Seismic Design Maps https://www.seismicmaps.org/

3 of 3 7/21/2024, 23:07





Unified Hazard Tool https://earthquake.usgs.gov/hazards/interactive/

2 of 5 7/21/2024, 23:05



∞

∞

Unified Hazard Tool https://earthquake.usgs.gov/hazards/interactive/

3 of 5 7/21/2024, 23:05



⁻ ⁻

₀

₀

ε₀

₀

∞

∞

Unified Hazard Tool https://earthquake.usgs.gov/hazards/interactive/

4 of 5 7/21/2024, 23:05



Unified Hazard Tool https://earthquake.usgs.gov/hazards/interactive/

5 of 5 7/21/2024, 23:05



*** Deaggregation of Seismic Hazard at One Period of Spectral Acceleration *** 
*** Data from Dynamic: Conterminous U.S. 2014 (update) (unknown) **** 
PSHA Deaggregation. %contributions. 
site: Test 
longitude: 116.394°W 
latitude: 33.796°E 
imt: Peak Ground Acceleration 
vs30 = 259 m/s (Site class D) 
return period: 2475 yrs. 
#This deaggregation corresponds to: Total 
Summary statistics for PSHA PGA deaggregation, r=distance, ε=epsilon: 
Deaggregation targets:  
  Return period: 2475 yrs 
  Exceedance rate: 0.0004040404 yr⁻¹ 
  PGA ground motion: 0.94442438 g 
Recovered targets:  
  Return period: 3248.499 yrs 
  Exceedance rate: 0.00030783448 yr⁻¹ 
Totals:  
  Binned: 100 % 
  Residual: 0 % 
  Trace: 0.06 % 
Mean (over all sources):  
  m: 7.21 
  r: 7.52 km 
  ε₀: 1.58 σ 
Mode (largest m-r bin):  
  m: 7.49 
  r: 6.65 km 
  ε₀: 1.5 σ 
  Contribution: 16.34 % 
Mode (largest m-r-ε₀ bin):  
  m: 7.49 
  r: 6.61 km 
  ε₀: 1.39 σ 
  Contribution: 11.82 % 
Discretization:  
  r: min = 0.0, max = 1000.0, Δ = 20.0 km 
  m: min = 4.4, max = 9.4, Δ = 0.2 
  ε: min = -3.0, max = 3.0, Δ = 0.5 σ 
Epsilon keys:  
  ε0: [-∞ .. -2.5) 
  ε1: [-2.5 .. -2.0) 
  ε2: [-2.0 .. -1.5) 
  ε3: [-1.5 .. -1.0) 
  ε4: [-1.0 .. -0.5) 
  ε5: [-0.5 .. 0.0) 
  ε6: [0.0 .. 0.5) 
  ε7: [0.5 .. 1.0) 
  ε8: [1.0 .. 1.5) 
  ε9: [1.5 .. 2.0) 
  ε10: [2.0 .. 2.5) 
  ε11: [2.5 .. +∞] 
Closest Distance, rRup (km) Magnitude (Mw) ALL_ε ε=(-∞,-2.5) ε=[-2.5,-2) ε=[-2,-1.5)
 ε=[-1.5,-1) ε=[-1,-0.5) ε=[-0.5,0) ε=[0,0.5) ε=[0.5,1) ε=[1,1.5) ε=[1.5,2)
 ε=[2,2.5) ε=[2.5,∞) 
70 8.1 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
70 8.3 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
50 7.5 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
50 7.7 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
50 7.9 0.015 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.015 
50 8.1 0.005 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.005 
50 8.3 0.005 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.005 
30 6.1 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
30 6.3 0.005 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.005 
30 6.5 0.005 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.005 
30 6.7 0.011 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.002 0.009 
30 6.9 0.016 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.002 0.014 
30 7.1 0.052 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.003 0.049 



30 7.3 0.058 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.004 0.054 
30 7.5 0.111 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.013 0.099 
30 7.7 0.143 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.018 0.125 
30 7.9 0.418 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.166 0.252 
30 8.1 0.749 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.003 0.493 0.253 
30 8.3 0.466 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.002 0.375 0.089 
10 5.1 2.816 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 1.104 1.403 0.309 
10 5.3 3.142 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 2.397 0.289 0.456 
10 5.5 3.553 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 1.763 1.059 0.256 0.474 
10 5.7 3.036 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 1.399 0.866 0.398 0.372 
10 5.9 2.387 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.993 0.677 0.475 0.242 
10 6.1 2.727 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.662 1.011 0.877 0.177 
10 6.3 2.847 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.429 1.544 0.744 0.130 
10 6.5 3.811 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.034 0.403 2.063 0.749 0.562 
10 6.7 1.333 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.065 0.237 0.805 0.176 0.051 
10 6.9 1.699 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.057 0.136 1.204 0.264 0.039 
10 7.1 1.569 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.042 0.310 0.618 0.518 0.080 
10 7.3 15.066 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.022 9.549 3.804 1.666 0.025 
10 7.5 16.336 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.006 11.818 3.664 0.848 0.001 
10 7.7 13.058 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 9.799 2.633 0.625 0.000 
10 7.9 7.180 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 5.286 1.523 0.368 0.002 
10 8.1 13.116 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.012 9.984 2.531 0.589 0.001 
10 8.3 4.263 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.495 2.796 0.795 0.177 0.000 
Principal Sources (faults, subduction, random seismicity having > 3% contribution 
UC33brAvg_FM31:  
  Percent Contributed: 38.53 
  Distance (km): 7.7522696 
  Magnitude: 7.6290489 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.5183046 
San Andreas (San Gorgonio Pass-Garnet HIll) [1]:  
  Percent Contributed: 31.12 
  Distance (km): 6.5353046 
  Magnitude: 7.6050927 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.4767216 
  Azimuth: 31.71136 
  Latitude: 33.845511 
  Longitude: -116.35786 
San Andreas (North Branch Mill Creek) [10]:  
  Percent Contributed: 3.95 
  Distance (km): 8.2781536 
  Magnitude: 7.8816596 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.3120476 
  Azimuth: 36.358309 
  Latitude: 33.853076 
  Longitude: -116.34417 
UC33brAvg_FM32:  
  Percent Contributed: 38.48 
  Distance (km): 7.7441979 
  Magnitude: 7.6245993 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.5185216 
San Andreas (San Gorgonio Pass-Garnet HIll) [1]:  
  Percent Contributed: 30.96 
  Distance (km): 6.5353046 
  Magnitude: 7.6018745 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.478169 
  Azimuth: 31.71136 
  Latitude: 33.845511 
  Longitude: -116.35786 
San Andreas (North Branch Mill Creek) [10]:  
  Percent Contributed: 4.16 
  Distance (km): 8.2781536 
  Magnitude: 7.8512625 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.3196983 
  Azimuth: 36.358309 
  Latitude: 33.853076 
  Longitude: -116.34417 
UC33brAvg_FM31 (opt):  
  Percent Contributed: 11.5 
  Distance (km): 6.7410744 
  Magnitude: 5.807404 



  Epsilon (mean values): 1.8045724 
PointSourceFinite: -116.394, 33.801:  
  Percent Contributed: 3.82 
  Distance (km): 4.9165462 
  Magnitude: 5.6568818 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.5987339 
  Azimuth: 0 
  Latitude: 33.800983 
  Longitude: -116.39434 
PointSourceFinite: -116.394, 33.801:  
  Percent Contributed: 3.82 
  Distance (km): 4.9165462 
  Magnitude: 5.6568818 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.5987339 
  Azimuth: 0 
  Latitude: 33.800983 
  Longitude: -116.39434 
UC33brAvg_FM32 (opt):  
  Percent Contributed: 11.49 
  Distance (km): 6.740285 
  Magnitude: 5.806952 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.8046318 
PointSourceFinite: -116.394, 33.801:  
  Percent Contributed: 3.82 
  Distance (km): 4.9166413 
  Magnitude: 5.6565838 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.5988436 
  Azimuth: 0 
  Latitude: 33.800983 
  Longitude: -116.39434 
PointSourceFinite: -116.394, 33.801:  
  Percent Contributed: 3.82 
  Distance (km): 4.9166413 
  Magnitude: 5.6565838 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.5988436 
  Azimuth: 0 
  Latitude: 33.800983 
  Longitude: -116.39434 
PSHA Deaggregation. %contributions. 
site: Test 
longitude: 116.394°W 
latitude: 33.796°E 
imt: Peak Ground Acceleration 
vs30 = 259 m/s (Site class D) 
return period: 2475 yrs. 
#This deaggregation corresponds to: GMM: Abrahamson, Silva & Kamai (2014) 
Summary statistics for PSHA PGA deaggregation, r=distance, ε=epsilon: 
Deaggregation targets:  
  Return period: 2475 yrs 
  Exceedance rate: 0.0004040404 yr⁻¹ 
  PGA ground motion: 0.94442438 g 
Recovered targets:  
  Return period: 3248.499 yrs 
  Exceedance rate: 0.00030783448 yr⁻¹ 
Totals:  
  Binned: 22.08 % 
  Residual: 0 % 
  Trace: 0.05 % 
Mean (over all sources):  
  m: 7.11 
  r: 7.89 km 
  ε₀: 1.82 σ 
Mode (largest m-r bin):  
  m: 7.49 
  r: 6.64 km 
  ε₀: 1.67 σ 
  Contribution: 3.51 % 
Mode (largest m-r-ε₀ bin):  
  m: 7.49 
  r: 6.61 km 



  ε₀: 1.67 σ 
  Contribution: 3.49 % 
Discretization:  
  r: min = 0.0, max = 1000.0, Δ = 20.0 km 
  m: min = 4.4, max = 9.4, Δ = 0.2 
  ε: min = -3.0, max = 3.0, Δ = 0.5 σ 
Epsilon keys:  
  ε0: [-∞ .. -2.5) 
  ε1: [-2.5 .. -2.0) 
  ε2: [-2.0 .. -1.5) 
  ε3: [-1.5 .. -1.0) 
  ε4: [-1.0 .. -0.5) 
  ε5: [-0.5 .. 0.0) 
  ε6: [0.0 .. 0.5) 
  ε7: [0.5 .. 1.0) 
  ε8: [1.0 .. 1.5) 
  ε9: [1.5 .. 2.0) 
  ε10: [2.0 .. 2.5) 
  ε11: [2.5 .. +∞] 
Closest Distance, rRup (km) Magnitude (Mw) ALL_ε ε=(-∞,-2.5) ε=[-2.5,-2) ε=[-2,-1.5)
 ε=[-1.5,-1) ε=[-1,-0.5) ε=[-0.5,0) ε=[0,0.5) ε=[0.5,1) ε=[1,1.5) ε=[1.5,2)
 ε=[2,2.5) ε=[2.5,∞) 
70 8.1 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
70 8.3 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
50 7.7 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
50 7.9 0.005 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.005 
50 8.1 0.002 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.002 
50 8.3 0.002 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.002 
30 6.3 0.001 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 
30 6.5 0.001 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 
30 6.7 0.002 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.002 
30 6.9 0.004 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.004 
30 7.1 0.016 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.016 
30 7.3 0.018 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.018 
30 7.5 0.036 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.036 
30 7.7 0.050 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.003 0.047 
30 7.9 0.133 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.033 0.100 
30 8.1 0.241 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.110 0.130 
30 8.3 0.148 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.148 0.000 
10 5.1 1.167 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.568 0.338 0.261 
10 5.3 0.920 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.681 0.000 0.239 
10 5.5 0.731 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.516 0.038 0.178 
10 5.7 0.608 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.412 0.067 0.130 
10 5.9 0.491 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.318 0.084 0.089 
10 6.1 0.604 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.255 0.290 0.059 
10 6.3 0.667 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.305 0.329 0.033 
10 6.5 1.002 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.081 0.507 0.121 0.293 
10 6.7 0.318 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.070 0.178 0.053 0.018 
10 6.9 0.398 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.039 0.287 0.053 0.019 
10 7.1 0.380 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.018 0.205 0.143 0.014 
10 7.3 3.373 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.007 3.058 0.308 0.000 
10 7.5 3.506 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.002 3.493 0.011 0.000 
10 7.7 2.621 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 2.618 0.003 0.000 
10 7.9 1.386 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 1.356 0.030 0.000 
10 8.1 2.466 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 2.453 0.013 0.000 
10 8.3 0.783 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.783 0.000 0.000 
Principal Sources (faults, subduction, random seismicity having > 3% contribution 
UC33brAvg_FM31:  
  Percent Contributed: 8.17 
  Distance (km): 8.1838797 
  Magnitude: 7.5998188 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.7365455 
San Andreas (San Gorgonio Pass-Garnet HIll) [1]:  
  Percent Contributed: 6.58 
  Distance (km): 6.5353046 
  Magnitude: 7.5831569 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.661708 
  Azimuth: 31.71136 
  Latitude: 33.845511 
  Longitude: -116.35786 



UC33brAvg_FM32:  
  Percent Contributed: 8.14 
  Distance (km): 8.1708632 
  Magnitude: 7.5947826 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.7381942 
San Andreas (San Gorgonio Pass-Garnet HIll) [1]:  
  Percent Contributed: 6.54 
  Distance (km): 6.5353046 
  Magnitude: 7.5792035 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.6632409 
  Azimuth: 31.71136 
  Latitude: 33.845511 
  Longitude: -116.35786 
UC33brAvg_FM31 (opt):  
  Percent Contributed: 2.89 
  Distance (km): 7.0774363 
  Magnitude: 5.730687 
  Epsilon (mean values): 2.051394 
UC33brAvg_FM32 (opt):  
  Percent Contributed: 2.89 
  Distance (km): 7.076764 
  Magnitude: 5.7302345 
  Epsilon (mean values): 2.0514829 
PSHA Deaggregation. %contributions. 
site: Test 
longitude: 116.394°W 
latitude: 33.796°E 
imt: Peak Ground Acceleration 
vs30 = 259 m/s (Site class D) 
return period: 2475 yrs. 
#This deaggregation corresponds to: GMM: Boore, Stewart, Seyhan & Atkinson (2014) 
Summary statistics for PSHA PGA deaggregation, r=distance, ε=epsilon: 
Deaggregation targets:  
  Return period: 2475 yrs 
  Exceedance rate: 0.0004040404 yr⁻¹ 
  PGA ground motion: 0.94442438 g 
Recovered targets:  
  Return period: 3248.499 yrs 
  Exceedance rate: 0.00030783448 yr⁻¹ 
Totals:  
  Binned: 43.34 % 
  Residual: 0 % 
  Trace: 0.09 % 
Mean (over all sources):  
  m: 7.14 
  r: 7.7 km 
  ε₀: 1.45 σ 
Mode (largest m-r bin):  
  m: 7.49 
  r: 6.69 km 
  ε₀: 1.37 σ 
  Contribution: 6.38 % 
Mode (largest m-r-ε₀ bin):  
  m: 7.49 
  r: 6.65 km 
  ε₀: 1.36 σ 
  Contribution: 6.35 % 
Discretization:  
  r: min = 0.0, max = 1000.0, Δ = 20.0 km 
  m: min = 4.4, max = 9.4, Δ = 0.2 
  ε: min = -3.0, max = 3.0, Δ = 0.5 σ 
Epsilon keys:  
  ε0: [-∞ .. -2.5) 
  ε1: [-2.5 .. -2.0) 
  ε2: [-2.0 .. -1.5) 
  ε3: [-1.5 .. -1.0) 
  ε4: [-1.0 .. -0.5) 
  ε5: [-0.5 .. 0.0) 
  ε6: [0.0 .. 0.5) 



  ε7: [0.5 .. 1.0) 
  ε8: [1.0 .. 1.5) 
  ε9: [1.5 .. 2.0) 
  ε10: [2.0 .. 2.5) 
  ε11: [2.5 .. +∞] 
Closest Distance, rRup (km) Magnitude (Mw) ALL_ε ε=(-∞,-2.5) ε=[-2.5,-2) ε=[-2,-1.5)
 ε=[-1.5,-1) ε=[-1,-0.5) ε=[-0.5,0) ε=[0,0.5) ε=[0.5,1) ε=[1,1.5) ε=[1.5,2)
 ε=[2,2.5) ε=[2.5,∞) 
70 8.1 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
70 8.3 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
50 7.5 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
50 7.7 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
50 7.9 0.010 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.010 
50 8.1 0.003 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.003 
50 8.3 0.003 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.002 
30 6.1 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
30 6.3 0.004 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.004 
30 6.5 0.004 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.004 
30 6.7 0.008 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.002 0.006 
30 6.9 0.011 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.002 0.009 
30 7.1 0.032 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.003 0.030 
30 7.3 0.035 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.003 0.032 
30 7.5 0.070 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.012 0.058 
30 7.7 0.085 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.012 0.073 
30 7.9 0.219 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.112 0.106 
30 8.1 0.378 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.003 0.372 0.004 
30 8.3 0.226 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.002 0.224 0.000 
10 5.1 0.991 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.536 0.446 0.010 
10 5.3 1.514 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 1.392 0.000 0.122 
10 5.5 2.134 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 1.763 0.001 0.218 0.152 
10 5.7 1.804 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 1.399 0.000 0.290 0.114 
10 5.9 1.361 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.993 0.000 0.309 0.058 
10 6.1 1.421 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.662 0.439 0.276 0.044 
10 6.3 1.378 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.409 0.788 0.129 0.053 
10 6.5 1.789 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.228 0.999 0.371 0.191 
10 6.7 0.546 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.112 0.382 0.040 0.012 
10 6.9 0.701 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.078 0.526 0.095 0.002 
10 7.1 0.656 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.006 0.279 0.118 0.254 0.000 
10 7.3 5.880 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.008 5.354 0.212 0.306 0.000 
10 7.5 6.383 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.003 6.348 0.018 0.015 0.000 
10 7.7 5.390 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 5.382 0.008 0.000 0.000 
10 7.9 2.976 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 2.917 0.059 0.000 0.000 
10 8.1 5.508 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.012 5.462 0.034 0.000 0.000 
10 8.3 1.822 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.495 1.319 0.007 0.000 0.000 
Principal Sources (faults, subduction, random seismicity having > 3% contribution 
UC33brAvg_FM32:  
  Percent Contributed: 15.91 
  Distance (km): 8.056292 
  Magnitude: 7.623832 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.3878356 
San Andreas (San Gorgonio Pass-Garnet HIll) [1]:  
  Percent Contributed: 12.14 
  Distance (km): 6.5353046 
  Magnitude: 7.6010797 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.3457294 
  Azimuth: 31.71136 
  Latitude: 33.845511 
  Longitude: -116.35786 
San Andreas (North Branch Mill Creek) [10]:  
  Percent Contributed: 2.13 
  Distance (km): 8.2781536 
  Magnitude: 7.8467268 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.0820297 
  Azimuth: 36.358309 
  Latitude: 33.853076 
  Longitude: -116.34417 
UC33brAvg_FM31:  
  Percent Contributed: 15.88 
  Distance (km): 8.0622881 
  Magnitude: 7.6287094 



  Epsilon (mean values): 1.3887459 
San Andreas (San Gorgonio Pass-Garnet HIll) [1]:  
  Percent Contributed: 12.19 
  Distance (km): 6.5353046 
  Magnitude: 7.6037953 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.3448949 
  Azimuth: 31.71136 
  Latitude: 33.845511 
  Longitude: -116.35786 
San Andreas (North Branch Mill Creek) [10]:  
  Percent Contributed: 2.02 
  Distance (km): 8.2781536 
  Magnitude: 7.8788431 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.0744497 
  Azimuth: 36.358309 
  Latitude: 33.853076 
  Longitude: -116.34417 
UC33brAvg_FM31 (opt):  
  Percent Contributed: 5.78 
  Distance (km): 6.709053 
  Magnitude: 5.8000703 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.6039007 
PointSourceFinite: -116.394, 33.801:  
  Percent Contributed: 2.01 
  Distance (km): 4.9908756 
  Magnitude: 5.6523822 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.3913807 
  Azimuth: 0 
  Latitude: 33.800983 
  Longitude: -116.39434 
PointSourceFinite: -116.394, 33.801:  
  Percent Contributed: 2.01 
  Distance (km): 4.9908756 
  Magnitude: 5.6523822 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.3913807 
  Azimuth: 0 
  Latitude: 33.800983 
  Longitude: -116.39434 
UC33brAvg_FM32 (opt):  
  Percent Contributed: 5.78 
  Distance (km): 6.7081391 
  Magnitude: 5.7996854 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.6039164 
PointSourceFinite: -116.394, 33.801:  
  Percent Contributed: 2.01 
  Distance (km): 4.9908925 
  Magnitude: 5.6521468 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.3914648 
  Azimuth: 0 
  Latitude: 33.800983 
  Longitude: -116.39434 
PointSourceFinite: -116.394, 33.801:  
  Percent Contributed: 2.01 
  Distance (km): 4.9908925 
  Magnitude: 5.6521468 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.3914648 
  Azimuth: 0 
  Latitude: 33.800983 
  Longitude: -116.39434 
PSHA Deaggregation. %contributions. 
site: Test 
longitude: 116.394°W 
latitude: 33.796°E 
imt: Peak Ground Acceleration 
vs30 = 259 m/s (Site class D) 
return period: 2475 yrs. 
#This deaggregation corresponds to: GMM: Campbell & Bozorgnia (2014) 
Summary statistics for PSHA PGA deaggregation, r=distance, ε=epsilon: 
Deaggregation targets:  
  Return period: 2475 yrs 



  Exceedance rate: 0.0004040404 yr⁻¹ 
  PGA ground motion: 0.94442438 g 
Recovered targets:  
  Return period: 3248.499 yrs 
  Exceedance rate: 0.00030783448 yr⁻¹ 
Totals:  
  Binned: 4.02 % 
  Residual: 0 % 
  Trace: 0.02 % 
Mean (over all sources):  
  m: 7.46 
  r: 6.7 km 
  ε₀: 2.26 σ 
Mode (largest m-r bin):  
  m: 7.49 
  r: 6.61 km 
  ε₀: 2.25 σ 
  Contribution: 0.81 % 
Mode (largest m-r-ε₀ bin):  
  m: 7.49 
  r: 6.61 km 
  ε₀: 2.25 σ 
  Contribution: 0.81 % 
Discretization:  
  r: min = 0.0, max = 1000.0, Δ = 20.0 km 
  m: min = 4.4, max = 9.4, Δ = 0.2 
  ε: min = -3.0, max = 3.0, Δ = 0.5 σ 
Epsilon keys:  
  ε0: [-∞ .. -2.5) 
  ε1: [-2.5 .. -2.0) 
  ε2: [-2.0 .. -1.5) 
  ε3: [-1.5 .. -1.0) 
  ε4: [-1.0 .. -0.5) 
  ε5: [-0.5 .. 0.0) 
  ε6: [0.0 .. 0.5) 
  ε7: [0.5 .. 1.0) 
  ε8: [1.0 .. 1.5) 
  ε9: [1.5 .. 2.0) 
  ε10: [2.0 .. 2.5) 
  ε11: [2.5 .. +∞] 
Closest Distance, rRup (km) Magnitude (Mw) ALL_ε ε=(-∞,-2.5) ε=[-2.5,-2) ε=[-2,-1.5)
 ε=[-1.5,-1) ε=[-1,-0.5) ε=[-0.5,0) ε=[0,0.5) ε=[0.5,1) ε=[1,1.5) ε=[1.5,2)
 ε=[2,2.5) ε=[2.5,∞) 
30 7.3 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
30 7.5 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
30 7.7 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
30 7.9 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
30 8.1 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
30 8.3 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
10 5.3 0.003 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.003 
10 5.5 0.016 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.016 
10 5.7 0.026 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.026 
10 5.9 0.035 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.005 0.029 
10 6.1 0.068 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.046 0.022 
10 6.3 0.135 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.108 0.027 
10 6.5 0.215 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.039 0.151 0.025 
10 6.7 0.089 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.027 0.053 0.009 
10 6.9 0.101 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.015 0.080 0.006 
10 7.1 0.065 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.007 0.053 0.005 
10 7.3 0.748 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.003 0.723 0.022 
10 7.5 0.812 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.811 0.001 
10 7.7 0.619 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.619 0.000 
10 7.9 0.332 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.330 0.002 
10 8.1 0.578 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.576 0.001 
10 8.3 0.177 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.177 0.000 
Principal Sources (faults, subduction, random seismicity having > 3% contribution 
UC33brAvg_FM32:  
  Percent Contributed: 1.79 
  Distance (km): 6.7784225 



  Magnitude: 7.5903583 
  Epsilon (mean values): 2.2502599 
San Andreas (San Gorgonio Pass-Garnet HIll) [1]:  
  Percent Contributed: 1.57 
  Distance (km): 6.5353046 
  Magnitude: 7.5636338 
  Epsilon (mean values): 2.2415974 
  Azimuth: 31.71136 
  Latitude: 33.845511 
  Longitude: -116.35786 
UC33brAvg_FM31:  
  Percent Contributed: 1.79 
  Distance (km): 6.7745372 
  Magnitude: 7.5940581 
  Epsilon (mean values): 2.2503848 
San Andreas (San Gorgonio Pass-Garnet HIll) [1]:  
  Percent Contributed: 1.58 
  Distance (km): 6.5353046 
  Magnitude: 7.567265 
  Epsilon (mean values): 2.2411248 
  Azimuth: 31.71136 
  Latitude: 33.845511 
  Longitude: -116.35786 
PSHA Deaggregation. %contributions. 
site: Test 
longitude: 116.394°W 
latitude: 33.796°E 
imt: Peak Ground Acceleration 
vs30 = 259 m/s (Site class D) 
return period: 2475 yrs. 
#This deaggregation corresponds to: GMM: Chiou & Youngs (2014) 
Summary statistics for PSHA PGA deaggregation, r=distance, ε=epsilon: 
Deaggregation targets:  
  Return period: 2475 yrs 
  Exceedance rate: 0.0004040404 yr⁻¹ 
  PGA ground motion: 0.94442438 g 
Recovered targets:  
  Return period: 3248.499 yrs 
  Exceedance rate: 0.00030783448 yr⁻¹ 
Totals:  
  Binned: 30.56 % 
  Residual: 0 % 
  Trace: 0.05 % 
Mean (over all sources):  
  m: 7.35 
  r: 7.1 km 
  ε₀: 1.52 σ 
Mode (largest m-r bin):  
  m: 7.49 
  r: 6.63 km 
  ε₀: 1.43 σ 
  Contribution: 5.64 % 
Mode (largest m-r-ε₀ bin):  
  m: 7.49 
  r: 6.56 km 
  ε₀: 1.43 σ 
  Contribution: 5.47 % 
Discretization:  
  r: min = 0.0, max = 1000.0, Δ = 20.0 km 
  m: min = 4.4, max = 9.4, Δ = 0.2 
  ε: min = -3.0, max = 3.0, Δ = 0.5 σ 
Epsilon keys:  
  ε0: [-∞ .. -2.5) 
  ε1: [-2.5 .. -2.0) 
  ε2: [-2.0 .. -1.5) 
  ε3: [-1.5 .. -1.0) 
  ε4: [-1.0 .. -0.5) 
  ε5: [-0.5 .. 0.0) 
  ε6: [0.0 .. 0.5) 



  ε7: [0.5 .. 1.0) 
  ε8: [1.0 .. 1.5) 
  ε9: [1.5 .. 2.0) 
  ε10: [2.0 .. 2.5) 
  ε11: [2.5 .. +∞] 
Closest Distance, rRup (km) Magnitude (Mw) ALL_ε ε=(-∞,-2.5) ε=[-2.5,-2) ε=[-2,-1.5)
 ε=[-1.5,-1) ε=[-1,-0.5) ε=[-0.5,0) ε=[0,0.5) ε=[0.5,1) ε=[1,1.5) ε=[1.5,2)
 ε=[2,2.5) ε=[2.5,∞) 
50 7.7 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
50 7.9 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
50 8.1 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
50 8.3 0.001 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 
30 6.7 0.001 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 
30 6.9 0.001 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 
30 7.1 0.004 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.003 
30 7.3 0.005 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.004 
30 7.5 0.005 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.004 
30 7.7 0.008 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.002 0.006 
30 7.9 0.067 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.020 0.046 
30 8.1 0.130 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.011 0.119 
30 8.3 0.091 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.003 0.089 
10 5.1 0.658 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.620 0.038 
10 5.3 0.704 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.324 0.289 0.091 
10 5.5 0.672 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.543 0.000 0.129 
10 5.7 0.598 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.454 0.042 0.103 
10 5.9 0.501 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.359 0.076 0.066 
10 6.1 0.634 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.317 0.264 0.053 
10 6.3 0.667 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.020 0.452 0.177 0.018 
10 6.5 0.805 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.034 0.093 0.518 0.107 0.053 
10 6.7 0.379 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.065 0.055 0.218 0.030 0.012 
10 6.9 0.499 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.057 0.019 0.376 0.036 0.012 
10 7.1 0.467 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.036 0.013 0.289 0.069 0.061 
10 7.3 5.065 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.015 4.187 0.531 0.328 0.003 
10 7.5 5.635 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.004 5.468 0.153 0.011 0.000 
10 7.7 4.429 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 4.417 0.008 0.003 0.000 
10 7.9 2.485 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 2.369 0.107 0.008 0.000 
10 8.1 4.565 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 4.521 0.044 0.000 0.000 
10 8.3 1.481 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 1.477 0.005 0.000 0.000 
Principal Sources (faults, subduction, random seismicity having > 3% contribution 
UC33brAvg_FM31:  
  Percent Contributed: 12.69 
  Distance (km): 7.2244671 
  Magnitude: 7.6532072 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.4368664 
San Andreas (San Gorgonio Pass-Garnet HIll) [1]:  
  Percent Contributed: 10.77 
  Distance (km): 6.5353046 
  Magnitude: 7.6254958 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.4010122 
  Azimuth: 31.71136 
  Latitude: 33.845511 
  Longitude: -116.35786 
San Andreas (North Branch Mill Creek) [10]:  
  Percent Contributed: 1.14 
  Distance (km): 8.2781536 
  Magnitude: 7.8911321 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.3969631 
  Azimuth: 36.358309 
  Latitude: 33.853076 
  Longitude: -116.34417 
UC33brAvg_FM32:  
  Percent Contributed: 12.65 
  Distance (km): 7.2138514 
  Magnitude: 7.6495929 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.438004 
San Andreas (San Gorgonio Pass-Garnet HIll) [1]:  
  Percent Contributed: 10.7 
  Distance (km): 6.5353046 
  Magnitude: 7.6222483 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.403131 



  Azimuth: 31.71136 
  Latitude: 33.845511 
  Longitude: -116.35786 
San Andreas (North Branch Mill Creek) [10]:  
  Percent Contributed: 1.2 
  Distance (km): 8.2781536 
  Magnitude: 7.8644919 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.405447 
  Azimuth: 36.358309 
  Latitude: 33.853076 
  Longitude: -116.34417 
UC33brAvg_FM31 (opt):  
  Percent Contributed: 2.61 
  Distance (km): 6.4949545 
  Magnitude: 5.8623336 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.9321758 
UC33brAvg_FM32 (opt):  
  Percent Contributed: 2.61 
  Distance (km): 6.4941944 
  Magnitude: 5.8617784 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.9323608 
PSHA Deaggregation. %contributions. 
site: Test 
longitude: 116.394°W 
latitude: 33.796°E 
imt: Peak Ground Acceleration 
vs30 = 259 m/s (Site class D) 
return period: 2475 yrs. 
#This deaggregation corresponds to: Source Type: System 
Summary statistics for PSHA PGA deaggregation, r=distance, ε=epsilon: 
Deaggregation targets:  
  Return period: 2475 yrs 
  Exceedance rate: 0.0004040404 yr⁻¹ 
  PGA ground motion: 0.94442438 g 
Recovered targets:  
  Return period: 3248.499 yrs 
  Exceedance rate: 0.00030783448 yr⁻¹ 
Totals:  
  Binned: 77.01 % 
  Residual: 0 % 
  Trace: 0.04 % 
Mean (over all sources):  
  m: 7.63 
  r: 7.75 km 
  ε₀: 1.52 σ 
Mode (largest m-r bin):  
  m: 7.49 
  r: 6.65 km 
  ε₀: 1.5 σ 
  Contribution: 16.3 % 
Mode (largest m-r-ε₀ bin):  
  m: 7.49 
  r: 6.61 km 
  ε₀: 1.39 σ 
  Contribution: 11.81 % 
Discretization:  
  r: min = 0.0, max = 1000.0, Δ = 20.0 km 
  m: min = 4.4, max = 9.4, Δ = 0.2 
  ε: min = -3.0, max = 3.0, Δ = 0.5 σ 
Epsilon keys:  
  ε0: [-∞ .. -2.5) 
  ε1: [-2.5 .. -2.0) 
  ε2: [-2.0 .. -1.5) 
  ε3: [-1.5 .. -1.0) 
  ε4: [-1.0 .. -0.5) 
  ε5: [-0.5 .. 0.0) 
  ε6: [0.0 .. 0.5) 
  ε7: [0.5 .. 1.0) 
  ε8: [1.0 .. 1.5) 



  ε9: [1.5 .. 2.0) 
  ε10: [2.0 .. 2.5) 
  ε11: [2.5 .. +∞] 
Closest Distance, rRup (km) Magnitude (Mw) ALL_ε ε=(-∞,-2.5) ε=[-2.5,-2) ε=[-2,-1.5)
 ε=[-1.5,-1) ε=[-1,-0.5) ε=[-0.5,0) ε=[0,0.5) ε=[0.5,1) ε=[1,1.5) ε=[1.5,2)
 ε=[2,2.5) ε=[2.5,∞) 
70 8.1 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
70 8.3 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
50 7.5 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
50 7.7 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
50 7.9 0.015 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.015 
50 8.1 0.005 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.005 
50 8.3 0.005 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.005 
30 6.5 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
30 6.7 0.001 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 
30 6.9 0.005 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.005 
30 7.1 0.042 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.042 
30 7.3 0.050 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.049 
30 7.5 0.108 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.011 0.097 
30 7.7 0.142 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.017 0.125 
30 7.9 0.418 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.166 0.252 
30 8.1 0.749 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.003 0.493 0.253 
30 8.3 0.466 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.002 0.375 0.089 
10 6.1 0.016 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.016 
10 6.3 0.834 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.519 0.277 0.038 
10 6.5 2.382 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.004 1.387 0.497 0.495 
10 6.7 0.501 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.004 0.438 0.042 0.017 
10 6.9 1.160 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.008 0.970 0.159 0.023 
10 7.1 1.266 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.231 0.506 0.455 0.075 
10 7.3 14.930 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 9.507 3.762 1.637 0.024 
10 7.5 16.300 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 11.806 3.651 0.842 0.000 
10 7.7 13.054 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 9.798 2.632 0.624 0.000 
10 7.9 7.178 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 5.286 1.522 0.368 0.002 
10 8.1 13.116 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.012 9.984 2.531 0.589 0.001 
10 8.3 4.263 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.495 2.796 0.795 0.177 0.000 
Principal Sources (faults, subduction, random seismicity having > 3% contribution 
UC33brAvg_FM31:  
  Percent Contributed: 38.53 
  Distance (km): 7.7522696 
  Magnitude: 7.6290489 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.5183046 
San Andreas (San Gorgonio Pass-Garnet HIll) [1]:  
  Percent Contributed: 31.12 
  Distance (km): 6.5353046 
  Magnitude: 7.6050927 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.4767216 
  Azimuth: 31.71136 
  Latitude: 33.845511 
  Longitude: -116.35786 
San Andreas (North Branch Mill Creek) [10]:  
  Percent Contributed: 3.95 
  Distance (km): 8.2781536 
  Magnitude: 7.8816596 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.3120476 
  Azimuth: 36.358309 
  Latitude: 33.853076 
  Longitude: -116.34417 
UC33brAvg_FM32:  
  Percent Contributed: 38.48 
  Distance (km): 7.7441979 
  Magnitude: 7.6245993 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.5185216 
San Andreas (San Gorgonio Pass-Garnet HIll) [1]:  
  Percent Contributed: 30.96 
  Distance (km): 6.5353046 
  Magnitude: 7.6018745 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.478169 
  Azimuth: 31.71136 
  Latitude: 33.845511 
  Longitude: -116.35786 



San Andreas (North Branch Mill Creek) [10]:  
  Percent Contributed: 4.16 
  Distance (km): 8.2781536 
  Magnitude: 7.8512625 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.3196983 
  Azimuth: 36.358309 
  Latitude: 33.853076 
  Longitude: -116.34417 
PSHA Deaggregation. %contributions. 
site: Test 
longitude: 116.394°W 
latitude: 33.796°E 
imt: Peak Ground Acceleration 
vs30 = 259 m/s (Site class D) 
return period: 2475 yrs. 
#This deaggregation corresponds to: Source Type: Grid 
Summary statistics for PSHA PGA deaggregation, r=distance, ε=epsilon: 
Deaggregation targets:  
  Return period: 2475 yrs 
  Exceedance rate: 0.0004040404 yr⁻¹ 
  PGA ground motion: 0.94442438 g 
Recovered targets:  
  Return period: 3248.499 yrs 
  Exceedance rate: 0.00030783448 yr⁻¹ 
Totals:  
  Binned: 22.99 % 
  Residual: 0 % 
  Trace: 0.06 % 
Mean (over all sources):  
  m: 5.81 
  r: 6.74 km 
  ε₀: 1.8 σ 
Mode (largest m-r bin):  
  m: 5.5 
  r: 6.19 km 
  ε₀: 1.75 σ 
  Contribution: 3.55 % 
Mode (largest m-r-ε₀ bin):  
  m: 5.3 
  r: 4.87 km 
  ε₀: 1.76 σ 
  Contribution: 2.4 % 
Discretization:  
  r: min = 0.0, max = 1000.0, Δ = 20.0 km 
  m: min = 4.4, max = 9.4, Δ = 0.2 
  ε: min = -3.0, max = 3.0, Δ = 0.5 σ 
Epsilon keys:  
  ε0: [-∞ .. -2.5) 
  ε1: [-2.5 .. -2.0) 
  ε2: [-2.0 .. -1.5) 
  ε3: [-1.5 .. -1.0) 
  ε4: [-1.0 .. -0.5) 
  ε5: [-0.5 .. 0.0) 
  ε6: [0.0 .. 0.5) 
  ε7: [0.5 .. 1.0) 
  ε8: [1.0 .. 1.5) 
  ε9: [1.5 .. 2.0) 
  ε10: [2.0 .. 2.5) 
  ε11: [2.5 .. +∞] 
Closest Distance, rRup (km) Magnitude (Mw) ALL_ε ε=(-∞,-2.5) ε=[-2.5,-2) ε=[-2,-1.5)
 ε=[-1.5,-1) ε=[-1,-0.5) ε=[-0.5,0) ε=[0,0.5) ε=[0.5,1) ε=[1,1.5) ε=[1.5,2)
 ε=[2,2.5) ε=[2.5,∞) 
50 7.5 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
50 7.7 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
50 7.9 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
30 6.1 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
30 6.3 0.005 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.005 
30 6.5 0.005 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.005 
30 6.7 0.010 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.002 0.008 



30 6.9 0.011 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.002 0.009 
30 7.1 0.010 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.003 0.006 
30 7.3 0.007 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.003 0.004 
30 7.5 0.003 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.002 0.001 
30 7.7 0.001 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
30 7.9 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
10 5.1 2.816 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 1.104 1.403 0.309 
10 5.3 3.142 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 2.397 0.289 0.456 
10 5.5 3.553 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 1.763 1.059 0.256 0.474 
10 5.7 3.036 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 1.399 0.866 0.398 0.372 
10 5.9 2.387 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.993 0.677 0.475 0.242 
10 6.1 2.712 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.662 1.011 0.877 0.162 
10 6.3 2.013 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.429 1.025 0.466 0.092 
10 6.5 1.429 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.034 0.399 0.675 0.253 0.068 
10 6.7 0.832 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.065 0.233 0.367 0.134 0.033 
10 6.9 0.539 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.057 0.128 0.234 0.105 0.017 
10 7.1 0.303 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.042 0.080 0.112 0.064 0.005 
10 7.3 0.136 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.022 0.042 0.042 0.029 0.002 
10 7.5 0.037 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.006 0.012 0.013 0.006 0.000 
10 7.7 0.004 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.000 
10 7.9 0.001 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
Principal Sources (faults, subduction, random seismicity having > 3% contribution 
UC33brAvg_FM31 (opt):  
  Percent Contributed: 11.5 
  Distance (km): 6.7410744 
  Magnitude: 5.807404 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.8045724 
PointSourceFinite: -116.394, 33.801:  
  Percent Contributed: 3.82 
  Distance (km): 4.9165462 
  Magnitude: 5.6568818 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.5987339 
  Azimuth: 0 
  Latitude: 33.800983 
  Longitude: -116.39434 
PointSourceFinite: -116.394, 33.801:  
  Percent Contributed: 3.82 
  Distance (km): 4.9165462 
  Magnitude: 5.6568818 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.5987339 
  Azimuth: 0 
  Latitude: 33.800983 
  Longitude: -116.39434 
UC33brAvg_FM32 (opt):  
  Percent Contributed: 11.49 
  Distance (km): 6.740285 
  Magnitude: 5.806952 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.8046318 
PointSourceFinite: -116.394, 33.801:  
  Percent Contributed: 3.82 
  Distance (km): 4.9166413 
  Magnitude: 5.6565838 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.5988436 
  Azimuth: 0 
  Latitude: 33.800983 
  Longitude: -116.39434 
PointSourceFinite: -116.394, 33.801:  
  Percent Contributed: 3.82 
  Distance (km): 4.9166413 
  Magnitude: 5.6565838 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.5988436 
  Azimuth: 0 
  Latitude: 33.800983 
  Longitude: -116.39434 



 

 

APPENDIX D 
  

  

 

DRY SAND SETTLEMENT



S U M M A R Y  C A L C U L A T I O N  R E P O R T

Project title : 24-112 National Core Apartments

Location : Rancho Mirage

Petra Geosciences, Inc.

Orange County Office

3190 Airport Loop Drive, Suite J1, Costa Mesa, California 92626

www.petra-inc.com

Vertical Settlements

Test Name
B-1 I&B 2014 B-1 NCEER

S
e
tt

le
m

e
n
ts

 (
in

)

2

1.9

1.8

1.7

1.6

1.5

1.4

1.3

1.2

1.1

1

0.9

0.8

0.7

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.1

1.39

1.95

Vertical Settlements

Project File: Z:\24-112 Liq & Settle.lsvs

LiqSVs 2.3.2.11 - SPT & Vs Liquefaction Assessment Software



S P T  B A S E D  L I Q U E F A C T I O N  A N A L Y S I S  R E P O R T

:: Input parameters and analysis properties ::

Analysis method:
Fines correction method:
Sampling method:
Borehole diameter:
Rod length:
Hammer energy ratio:

Boulanger & Idriss, 2014
Boulanger & Idriss, 2014
Sampler wo liners
200mm
3.30 ft
1.20

G.W.T. (in-situ):
G.W.T. (earthq.):

Earthquake magnitude Mw:
Peak ground acceleration:
Eq. external load:

Project title : 24-112 National Core Apartments

Location : Rancho Mirage

Petra Geosciences, Inc.

Orange County Office

3190 Airport Loop Drive, Suite J1, Costa Mesa, California 92626

www.petra-inc.com

SPT Name: B-1 I&B 2014

160.00 ft
160.00 ft
7.49
0.87 g
0.00 tsf

Raw SPT Data

SPT Count (blows/ft)
50403020100

D
e
p
th

 (
ft

)

65

60

55

50

45

40

35

30

25

20

15

10

5

Raw SPT Data

Insitu

CSR - CRR Plot

CSR - CRR
10.80.60.40.20

D
e
p
th

 (
ft

)

65

60

55

50

45

40

35

30

25

20

15

10

5

CSR - CRR Plot

During earthq.

FS Plot

Factor of Safety
21.510.50

D
e
p
th

 (
ft

)

65

60

55

50

45

40

35

30

25

20

15

10

5

FS Plot

During earthq.

LPI

Liquefaction potential
0

D
e
p
th

 (
ft

)

65

60

55

50

45

40

35

30

25

20

15

10

5

LPI

During earthq.

CRR 7.50 clean sand curve

Corrected Blow Count N1(60),cs
50454035302520151050

C
y
c
li
c
 S

tr
e
s
s
 R

a
ti

o
*

0.8

0.7

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.0

CRR 7.50 clean sand curve

Liquefaction

No Liquefaction

F.S. color scheme

Almost certain it will liquefy

Very likely to liquefy

Liquefaction and no liq. are equally likely

Unlike to liquefy

Almost certain it will not liquefy

LPI color scheme

Very high risk

High risk

Low risk

Project File: Z:\24-112 Liq & Settle.lsvs

Page: 1LiqSVs 2.3.2.11 - SPT & Vs Liquefaction Assessment Software



This software is registered to: Kenton Buzbee

Raw SPT Data

SPT Count (blows/ft)
50403020100

D
e
p
th

 (
ft

)

66

64

62

60

58

56

54

52

50

48

46

44

42

40

38

36

34

32

30

28

26

24

22

20

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

2

Raw SPT Data

Insitu

CSR - CRR Plot

CSR - CRR
10.80.60.40.20

D
e
p
th

 (
ft

)

64

62

60

58

56

54

52

50

48

46

44

42

40

38

36

34

32

30

28

26

24

22

20

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

CSR - CRR Plot

During earthq.

FS Plot

Factor of Safety
21.510.50

D
e
p
th

 (
ft

)

64

62

60

58

56

54

52

50

48

46

44

42

40

38

36

34

32

30

28

26

24

22

20

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

FS Plot

During earthq.

Vertical Liq. Settlements

Cuml. Settlement (in)
10.50

D
e
p
th

 (
ft

)

64

62

60

58

56

54

52

50

48

46

44

42

40

38

36

34

32

30

28

26

24

22

20

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

Vertical Liq. Settlements

During earthq.

Lateral Liq. Displacements

Cuml. Displacement (ft)
0

D
e
p
th

 (
ft

)

64

62

60

58

56

54

52

50

48

46

44

42

40

38

36

34

32

30

28

26

24

22

20

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

Lateral Liq. Displacements

During earthq.

:: Overall Liquefaction Assessment Analysis Plots ::

Project File: Z:\24-112 Liq & Settle.lsvs

Page: 2LiqSVs 2.3.2.11 - SPT & Vs Liquefaction Assessment Software



This software is registered to: Kenton Buzbee

Test
Depth

(ft)

:: Field input data ::

SPT Field
Value

(blows)

Fines
Content

(%)

Unit
Weight
(pcf)

Infl.
Thickness

(ft)

Can
Liquefy

2.50 14 0.00 115.00 3.75 Yes

5.00 14 0.00 115.00 3.00 Yes

7.50  8 0.00 110.00 2.00 Yes

10.00 15 0.00 110.00 3.75 Yes

15.00 35 0.00 110.00 5.00 Yes

20.00 43 0.00 110.00 5.00 Yes

25.00 34 0.00 110.00 5.00 Yes

30.00 37 0.00 110.00 5.00 Yes

35.00 47 0.00 110.00 5.00 Yes

40.00 33 0.00 110.00 5.00 Yes

45.00 23 0.00 110.00 5.00 Yes

50.00 43 0.00 110.00 5.00 Yes

55.00 41 0.00 110.00 5.00 Yes

60.00 16 0.00 110.00 5.00 Yes

65.00 62 0.00 110.00 5.00 Yes

Abbreviations

Depth:
SPT Field Value:
Fines Content:
Unit Weight:
Infl. Thickness:
Can Liquefy:

Depth at which test was performed (ft)
Number of blows per foot
Fines content at test depth (%)
Unit weight at test depth (pcf)
Thickness of the soil layer to be considered in settlements analysis (ft)
User defined switch for excluding/including test depth from the analysis procedure

:: Cyclic Resistance Ratio (CRR) calculation data ::

CRR7.5Depth
(ft)

SPT
Field
Value

CN CE CB CR CS (N1)60 (N1)60csFC
(%)

σv

(tsf)
uo

(tsf)
σ'vo

(tsf)
Unit

Weight
(pcf)

Δ(Ν1)60m

2.50 14 1.70 1.20 1.15 0.75 1.30 32 32 4.0000.00115.00 0.14 0.00 0.14 0.37 0.00

5.00 14 1.60 1.20 1.15 0.75 1.30 30 30 4.0000.00115.00 0.29 0.00 0.29 0.36 0.00

7.50 8 1.53 1.20 1.15 0.80 1.18 16 16 4.0000.00110.00 0.42 0.00 0.42 0.46 0.00

10.00 15 1.28 1.20 1.15 0.85 1.26 28 28 4.0000.00110.00 0.56 0.00 0.56 0.39 0.00

15.00 35 1.06 1.20 1.15 0.85 1.30 57 57 4.0000.00110.00 0.84 0.00 0.84 0.26 0.00

20.00 43 0.99 1.20 1.15 0.95 1.30 72 72 4.0000.00110.00 1.11 0.00 1.11 0.26 0.00

25.00 34 0.93 1.20 1.15 0.95 1.30 54 54 4.0000.00110.00 1.39 0.00 1.39 0.26 0.00

30.00 37 0.89 1.20 1.15 1.00 1.30 59 59 4.0000.00110.00 1.66 0.00 1.66 0.26 0.00

35.00 47 0.85 1.20 1.15 1.00 1.30 72 72 4.0000.00110.00 1.94 0.00 1.94 0.26 0.00

40.00 33 0.82 1.20 1.15 1.00 1.30 49 49 4.0000.00110.00 2.21 0.00 2.21 0.26 0.00

45.00 23 0.73 1.20 1.15 1.00 1.30 30 30 4.0000.00110.00 2.49 0.00 2.49 0.36 0.00

50.00 43 0.78 1.20 1.15 1.00 1.30 60 60 4.0000.00110.00 2.76 0.00 2.76 0.26 0.00

55.00 41 0.76 1.20 1.15 1.00 1.30 56 56 4.0000.00110.00 3.04 0.00 3.04 0.26 0.00

60.00 16 0.59 1.20 1.15 1.00 1.17 15 15 4.0000.00110.00 3.31 0.00 3.31 0.47 0.00

65.00 62 0.73 1.20 1.15 1.00 1.30 81 81 4.0000.00110.00 3.59 0.00 3.59 0.26 0.00

Project File: Z:\24-112 Liq & Settle.lsvs

Page: 3LiqSVs 2.3.2.11 - SPT & Vs Liquefaction Assessment Software



This software is registered to: Kenton Buzbee

:: Cyclic Resistance Ratio (CRR) calculation data ::

CRR7.5Depth
(ft)

SPT
Field
Value

CN CE CB CR CS (N1)60 (N1)60csFC
(%)

σv

(tsf)
uo

(tsf)
σ'vo

(tsf)
Unit

Weight
(pcf)

Δ(Ν1)60m

σv:
uo:

σ'vo:

m:
CN:

CE:

CB:
CR:

CS:

N1(60):
Δ(Ν1)60

N1(60)cs:

CRR7.5:

Total stress during SPT test (tsf)
Water pore pressure during SPT test (tsf)

Effective overburden pressure during SPT test (tsf)

Stress exponent normalization factor
Overburden corretion factor

Energy correction factor

Borehole diameter correction factor
Rod length correction factor

Liner correction factor

Corrected NSPT to a 60% energy ratio
Equivalent clean sand adjustment

Corected N1(60) value for fines content

Cyclic resistance ratio for M=7.5

Abbreviations

σv,eq

(tsf)
rd CSR MSF CSReq,M=7.5 Ksigma CSR*

:: Cyclic Stress Ratio calculation (CSR fully adjusted and normalized) ::

Depth
(ft)

Unit
Weight
(pcf)

uo,eq

(tsf)
σ'vo,eq

(tsf)
FSMSFmax (N1)60csα

2.50 115.00 0.14 0.00 0.14 1.00 0.566 1.00 0.564 1.10 0.513 2.0002.12 321.00

5.00 115.00 0.29 0.00 0.29 0.99 0.563 1.00 0.561 1.10 0.510 2.0002.00 301.00

7.50 110.00 0.42 0.00 0.42 0.99 0.559 1.00 0.558 1.10 0.508 2.0001.35 161.00

10.00 110.00 0.56 0.00 0.56 0.98 0.555 1.00 0.553 1.10 0.503 2.0001.88 281.00

15.00 110.00 0.84 0.00 0.84 0.97 0.546 1.00 0.544 1.07 0.509 2.0002.20 571.00

20.00 110.00 1.11 0.00 1.11 0.95 0.536 1.00 0.534 0.99 0.542 2.0002.20 721.00

25.00 110.00 1.39 0.00 1.39 0.93 0.525 1.00 0.523 0.92 0.568 2.0002.20 541.00

30.00 110.00 1.66 0.00 1.66 0.91 0.513 1.00 0.511 0.87 0.590 2.0002.20 591.00

35.00 110.00 1.94 0.00 1.94 0.89 0.501 1.00 0.499 0.82 0.607 2.0002.20 721.00

40.00 110.00 2.21 0.00 2.21 0.86 0.488 1.00 0.486 0.78 0.622 2.0002.20 491.00

45.00 110.00 2.49 0.00 2.49 0.84 0.475 1.00 0.474 0.83 0.573 2.0002.00 301.00

50.00 110.00 2.76 0.00 2.76 0.82 0.462 1.00 0.461 0.72 0.643 2.0002.20 601.00

55.00 110.00 3.04 0.00 3.04 0.80 0.450 1.00 0.448 0.69 0.650 2.0002.20 561.00

60.00 110.00 3.31 0.00 3.31 0.77 0.437 1.00 0.437 0.87 0.500 2.0001.32 151.00

65.00 110.00 3.59 0.00 3.59 0.75 0.425 1.00 0.423 0.64 0.662 2.0002.20 811.00

σv,eq:
uo,eq:
σ'vo,eq:

rd:
α:

CSR :
MSF :

CSReq,M=7.5:
Ksigma:

CSR*:

FS:

Total overburden pressure at test point, during earthquake (tsf)
Water pressure at test point, during earthquake (tsf)
Effective overburden pressure, during earthquake (tsf)

Nonlinear shear mass factor
Improvement factor due to stone columns

Cyclic Stress Ratio
Magnitude Scaling Factor

CSR adjusted for M=7.5
Effective overburden stress factor

CSR fully adjusted (user FS applied)***

Calculated factor of safety against soil liquefaction

Abbreviations

1.00*** User FS:

:: Liquefaction potential according to Iwasaki ::

Depth
(ft)

FS F Thickness
(ft)

wz IL

2.50 2.000 0.00 9.62 0.002.50

5.00 2.000 0.00 9.24 0.002.50

Project File: Z:\24-112 Liq & Settle.lsvs

Page: 4LiqSVs 2.3.2.11 - SPT & Vs Liquefaction Assessment Software



This software is registered to: Kenton Buzbee

:: Liquefaction potential according to Iwasaki ::

Depth
(ft)

FS F Thickness
(ft)

wz IL

7.50 2.000 0.00 8.86 0.002.50

10.00 2.000 0.00 8.48 0.002.50

15.00 2.000 0.00 7.71 0.005.00

20.00 2.000 0.00 6.95 0.005.00

25.00 2.000 0.00 6.19 0.005.00

30.00 2.000 0.00 5.43 0.005.00

35.00 2.000 0.00 4.67 0.005.00

40.00 2.000 0.00 3.90 0.005.00

45.00 2.000 0.00 3.14 0.005.00

50.00 2.000 0.00 2.38 0.005.00

55.00 2.000 0.00 1.62 0.005.00

60.00 2.000 0.00 0.86 0.005.00

65.00 2.000 0.00 0.09 0.005.00

0.00

IL = 0.00 - No liquefaction
IL between 0.00 and 5 - Liquefaction not probable

IL between 5 and 15 - Liquefaction probable

IL > 15 - Liquefaction certain

Overall potential IL :

:: Vertical settlements estimation for dry sands ::

Depth
(ft)

(N1)60 τav p Gmax

(tsf)
α b γ ε15 Nc εNc

(%)
ΔS
(in)

Δh
(ft)

εNc

weight
factor

2.50 32 0.08 0.10 440.42 0.13 26059.76 0.00 0.00 15.06 0.16 0.0703.750.95

5.00 30 0.16 0.19 609.59 0.13 17193.03 0.00 0.00 15.06 0.20 0.0713.000.90

7.50 16 0.24 0.28 601.05 0.14 13598.84 0.01 0.01 15.06 1.38 0.3302.000.85

10.00 28 0.31 0.38 833.28 0.14 11493.75 0.00 0.00 15.06 0.25 0.1123.750.80

15.00 57 0.46 0.56
1288.6

3
0.15 9051.99 0.00 0.00 15.06 0.04 0.0245.000.70

20.00 72 0.60 0.75
1605.4

8
0.15 7634.05 0.00 0.00 15.06 0.03 0.0155.000.60

25.00 54 0.73 0.93
1629.0

2
0.16 6686.45 0.00 0.00 15.06 0.05 0.0295.000.50

30.00 59 0.85 1.11
1836.5

8
0.17 5998.99 0.00 0.00 15.06 0.04 0.0245.000.40

35.00 72 0.97 1.30
2118.7

3
0.17 5472.55 0.00 0.00 15.06 0.03 0.0165.000.30

40.00 49 1.08 1.48
1991.5

2
0.18 5053.65 0.00 0.00 15.06 0.06 0.0365.000.20

45.00 30 1.18 1.67
1793.0

8
0.19 4710.61 0.00 0.00 15.06 0.18 0.1075.000.10

50.00 60 1.28 1.85
2380.7

5
0.20 4423.37 0.00 0.00 15.06 0.04 0.0225.000.00

55.00 56 1.37 2.04
2439.6

8
0.20 4178.55 0.00 0.00 15.06 0.04 0.0255.000.00

60.00 15 1.45 2.22
1642.3

0
0.21 3966.81 0.01 0.01 15.06 0.82 0.4915.000.00

65.00 81 1.52 2.40
2998.4

9
0.22 3781.46 0.00 0.00 15.06 0.02 0.0125.000.00

Abbreviations

τav:
p:
Gmax:
α, b:

γ:
ε15:

Nc:
εNc:
Δh:
ΔS:

Average cyclic shear stress
Average stress
Maximum shear modulus (tsf)
Shear strain formula variables

Average shear strain
Volumetric strain after 15 cycles

Number of cycles
Volumetric strain for number of cycles Nc (%)
Thickness of soil layer (in)
Settlement of soil layer (in)

1.385Cumulative settlemetns:

Project File: Z:\24-112 Liq & Settle.lsvs

Page: 5LiqSVs 2.3.2.11 - SPT & Vs Liquefaction Assessment Software



S P T  B A S E D  L I Q U E F A C T I O N  A N A L Y S I S  R E P O R T

:: Input parameters and analysis properties ::

Analysis method:
Fines correction method:
Sampling method:
Borehole diameter:
Rod length:
Hammer energy ratio:

NCEER 1998
NCEER 1998
Sampler wo liners
200mm
3.30 ft
1.20

G.W.T. (in-situ):
G.W.T. (earthq.):

Earthquake magnitude Mw:
Peak ground acceleration:
Eq. external load:

Project title : 24-112 National Core Apartments

Location : Rancho Mirage

Petra Geosciences, Inc.

Orange County Office

3190 Airport Loop Drive, Suite J1, Costa Mesa, California 92626

www.petra-inc.com

SPT Name: B-1 NCEER

160.00 ft
160.00 ft
7.49
0.87 g
0.00 tsf

Raw SPT Data

SPT Count (blows/ft)
50403020100

D
e
p
th

 (
ft

)

65

60

55

50

45

40

35

30

25

20

15

10

5

Raw SPT Data

Insitu

CSR - CRR Plot

CSR - CRR
10.80.60.40.20

D
e
p
th

 (
ft

)

65

60

55

50

45

40

35

30

25

20

15

10

5

CSR - CRR Plot

During earthq.

FS Plot

Factor of Safety
21.510.50

D
e
p
th

 (
ft

)

65

60

55

50

45

40

35

30

25

20

15

10

5

FS Plot

During earthq.

LPI

Liquefaction potential
0

D
e
p
th

 (
ft

)

65

60

55

50

45

40

35

30

25

20

15

10

5

LPI

During earthq.

CRR 7.50 clean sand curve

Corrected Blow Count N1(60),cs
50454035302520151050

C
y
c
li
c
 S

tr
e
s
s
 R

a
ti

o
*

0.8

0.7

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.0

CRR 7.50 clean sand curve

Liquefaction

No Liquefaction

F.S. color scheme

Almost certain it will liquefy

Very likely to liquefy

Liquefaction and no liq. are equally likely

Unlike to liquefy

Almost certain it will not liquefy

LPI color scheme

Very high risk

High risk

Low risk

Project File: Z:\24-112 Liq & Settle.lsvs

Page: 6LiqSVs 2.3.2.11 - SPT & Vs Liquefaction Assessment Software



This software is registered to: Kenton Buzbee

Raw SPT Data

SPT Count (blows/ft)
50403020100

D
e
p
th

 (
ft

)

66

64

62

60

58

56

54

52

50

48

46

44

42

40

38

36

34

32

30

28

26

24

22

20

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

2

Raw SPT Data

Insitu

CSR - CRR Plot

CSR - CRR
10.80.60.40.20

D
e
p
th

 (
ft

)

64

62

60

58

56

54

52

50

48

46

44

42

40

38

36

34

32

30

28

26

24

22

20

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

CSR - CRR Plot

During earthq.

FS Plot

Factor of Safety
21.510.50

D
e
p
th

 (
ft

)

64

62

60

58

56

54

52

50

48

46

44

42

40

38

36

34

32

30

28

26

24

22

20

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

FS Plot

During earthq.

Vertical Liq. Settlements

Cuml. Settlement (in)
1.510.50

D
e
p
th

 (
ft

)

64

62

60

58

56

54

52

50

48

46

44

42

40

38

36

34

32

30

28

26

24

22

20

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

Vertical Liq. Settlements

During earthq.

Lateral Liq. Displacements

Cuml. Displacement (ft)
0

D
e
p
th

 (
ft

)

64

62

60

58

56

54

52

50

48

46

44

42

40

38

36

34

32

30

28

26

24

22

20

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

Lateral Liq. Displacements

During earthq.

:: Overall Liquefaction Assessment Analysis Plots ::

Project File: Z:\24-112 Liq & Settle.lsvs

Page: 7LiqSVs 2.3.2.11 - SPT & Vs Liquefaction Assessment Software



This software is registered to: Kenton Buzbee

Test
Depth

(ft)

:: Field input data ::

SPT Field
Value

(blows)

Fines
Content

(%)

Unit
Weight
(pcf)

Infl.
Thickness

(ft)

Can
Liquefy

2.50 14 0.00 120.00 3.75 Yes

5.00 14 0.00 120.00 3.00 Yes

7.50  8 0.00 120.00 2.00 Yes

10.00 15 0.00 120.00 3.75 Yes

15.00 35 0.00 120.00 5.00 Yes

20.00 43 0.00 120.00 5.00 Yes

25.00 34 0.00 120.00 5.00 Yes

30.00 37 0.00 120.00 5.00 Yes

35.00 47 0.00 120.00 5.00 Yes

40.00 33 0.00 120.00 5.00 Yes

45.00 23 0.00 120.00 5.00 Yes

50.00 43 0.00 120.00 5.00 Yes

55.00 41 0.00 120.00 5.00 Yes

60.00 16 0.00 120.00 5.00 Yes

65.00 62 0.00 120.00 5.00 Yes

Abbreviations

Depth:
SPT Field Value:
Fines Content:
Unit Weight:
Infl. Thickness:
Can Liquefy:

Depth at which test was performed (ft)
Number of blows per foot
Fines content at test depth (%)
Unit weight at test depth (pcf)
Thickness of the soil layer to be considered in settlements analysis (ft)
User defined switch for excluding/including test depth from the analysis procedure

:: Cyclic Resistance Ratio (CRR) calculation data ::

CRR7.5Depth
(ft)

SPT
Field
Value

CN CE CB CR CS (N1)60 (N1)60csα βFines
Content

(%)

σv

(tsf)
uo

(tsf)
σ'vo

(tsf)
Unit

Weight
(pcf)

2.50 14 1.64 1.20 1.15 0.75 1.20 29 0.00 1.00 29 4.0000.00120.00 0.15 0.00 0.15

5.00 14 1.48 1.20 1.15 0.75 1.20 26 0.00 1.00 26 4.0000.00120.00 0.30 0.00 0.30

7.50 8 1.35 1.20 1.15 0.75 1.20 13 0.00 1.00 13 4.0000.00120.00 0.45 0.00 0.45

10.00 15 1.25 1.20 1.15 0.85 1.20 26 0.00 1.00 26 4.0000.00120.00 0.60 0.00 0.60

15.00 35 1.07 1.20 1.15 0.85 1.20 53 0.00 1.00 53 4.0000.00120.00 0.90 0.00 0.90

20.00 43 0.94 1.20 1.15 0.95 1.20 64 0.00 1.00 64 4.0000.00120.00 1.20 0.00 1.20

25.00 34 0.84 1.20 1.15 0.95 1.20 45 0.00 1.00 45 4.0000.00120.00 1.50 0.00 1.50

30.00 37 0.76 1.20 1.15 1.00 1.20 46 0.00 1.00 46 4.0000.00120.00 1.80 0.00 1.80

35.00 47 0.69 1.20 1.15 1.00 1.20 54 0.00 1.00 54 4.0000.00120.00 2.10 0.00 2.10

40.00 33 0.63 1.20 1.15 1.00 1.20 35 0.00 1.00 35 4.0000.00120.00 2.40 0.00 2.40

45.00 23 0.59 1.20 1.15 1.00 1.20 22 0.00 1.00 22 4.0000.00120.00 2.70 0.00 2.70

50.00 43 0.55 1.20 1.15 1.00 1.20 39 0.00 1.00 39 4.0000.00120.00 3.00 0.00 3.00

55.00 41 0.51 1.20 1.15 1.00 1.20 35 0.00 1.00 35 4.0000.00120.00 3.30 0.00 3.30

60.00 16 0.48 1.20 1.15 1.00 1.20 13 0.00 1.00 13 4.0000.00120.00 3.60 0.00 3.60

65.00 62 0.45 1.20 1.15 1.00 1.20 46 0.00 1.00 46 4.0000.00120.00 3.90 0.00 3.90

Project File: Z:\24-112 Liq & Settle.lsvs

Page: 8LiqSVs 2.3.2.11 - SPT & Vs Liquefaction Assessment Software



This software is registered to: Kenton Buzbee

:: Cyclic Resistance Ratio (CRR) calculation data ::

CRR7.5Depth
(ft)

SPT
Field
Value

CN CE CB CR CS (N1)60 (N1)60csα βFines
Content

(%)

σv

(tsf)
uo

(tsf)
σ'vo

(tsf)
Unit

Weight
(pcf)

σv:

uo:
σ'vo:

CN:

CE:

CB:
CR:

CS:

N1(60):
α, β:

N1(60)cs:

CRR7.5:

Total stress during SPT test (tsf)

Water pore pressure during SPT test (tsf)
Effective overburden pressure during SPT test (tsf)

Overburden corretion factor

Energy correction factor

Borehole diameter correction factor
Rod length correction factor

Liner correction factor

Corrected NSPT to a 60% energy ratio
Clean sand equivalent clean sand formula coefficients

Corected N1(60) value for fines content

Cyclic resistance ratio for M=7.5

Abbreviations

σv,eq

(tsf)
rd CSR MSF CSReq,M=7.5 Ksigma CSR*

:: Cyclic Stress Ratio calculation (CSR fully adjusted and normalized) ::

Depth
(ft)

Unit
Weight
(pcf)

uo,eq

(tsf)
σ'vo,eq

(tsf)
FSα

2.50 120.00 0.15 0.00 0.15 1.00 0.563 1.00 0.562 1.00 0.562 2.0001.00

5.00 120.00 0.30 0.00 0.30 0.99 0.560 1.00 0.558 1.00 0.558 2.0001.00

7.50 120.00 0.45 0.00 0.45 0.98 0.557 1.00 0.555 1.00 0.555 2.0001.00

10.00 120.00 0.60 0.00 0.60 0.98 0.554 1.00 0.552 1.00 0.552 2.0001.00

15.00 120.00 0.90 0.00 0.90 0.97 0.548 1.00 0.546 1.00 0.546 2.0001.00

20.00 120.00 1.20 0.00 1.20 0.96 0.541 1.00 0.539 0.98 0.553 2.0001.00

25.00 120.00 1.50 0.00 1.50 0.94 0.533 1.00 0.531 0.93 0.569 2.0001.00

30.00 120.00 1.80 0.00 1.80 0.92 0.521 1.00 0.519 0.90 0.577 2.0001.00

35.00 120.00 2.10 0.00 2.10 0.89 0.504 1.00 0.502 0.87 0.576 2.0001.00

40.00 120.00 2.40 0.00 2.40 0.85 0.481 1.00 0.480 0.85 0.565 2.0001.00

45.00 120.00 2.70 0.00 2.70 0.80 0.454 1.00 0.453 0.83 0.546 2.0001.00

50.00 120.00 3.00 0.00 3.00 0.75 0.426 1.00 0.424 0.81 0.523 2.0001.00

55.00 120.00 3.30 0.00 3.30 0.70 0.398 1.00 0.397 0.80 0.498 2.0001.00

60.00 120.00 3.60 0.00 3.60 0.66 0.373 1.00 0.372 0.78 0.475 2.0001.00

65.00 120.00 3.90 0.00 3.90 0.62 0.352 1.00 0.351 0.77 0.455 2.0001.00

σv,eq:

uo,eq:
σ'vo,eq:

rd :

α: 

CSR :
MSF :

CSReq,M=7.5:
Ksigma:

CSR*:
FS:

Total overburden pressure at test point, during earthquake (tsf)

Water pressure at test point, during earthquake (tsf)
Effective overburden pressure, during earthquake (tsf)

Nonlinear shear mass factor

Improvement factor due to stone columns

Cyclic Stress Ratio (adjusted for improvement)
Magnitude Scaling Factor

CSR adjusted for M=7.5
Effective overburden stress factor

CSR fully adjusted (user FS applied)***

Calculated factor of safety against soil liquefaction

Abbreviations

1.00*** User FS:

:: Liquefaction potential according to Iwasaki ::

Depth
(ft)

FS F Thickness
(ft)

wz IL

2.50 2.000 0.00 9.62 0.002.50

5.00 2.000 0.00 9.24 0.002.50

7.50 2.000 0.00 8.86 0.002.50

Project File: Z:\24-112 Liq & Settle.lsvs

Page: 9LiqSVs 2.3.2.11 - SPT & Vs Liquefaction Assessment Software



This software is registered to: Kenton Buzbee

:: Liquefaction potential according to Iwasaki ::

Depth
(ft)

FS F Thickness
(ft)

wz IL

10.00 2.000 0.00 8.48 0.002.50

15.00 2.000 0.00 7.71 0.005.00

20.00 2.000 0.00 6.95 0.005.00

25.00 2.000 0.00 6.19 0.005.00

30.00 2.000 0.00 5.43 0.005.00

35.00 2.000 0.00 4.67 0.005.00

40.00 2.000 0.00 3.90 0.005.00

45.00 2.000 0.00 3.14 0.005.00

50.00 2.000 0.00 2.38 0.005.00

55.00 2.000 0.00 1.62 0.005.00

60.00 2.000 0.00 0.86 0.005.00

65.00 2.000 0.00 0.09 0.005.00

0.00

IL = 0.00 - No liquefaction
IL between 0.00 and 5 - Liquefaction not probable

IL between 5 and 15 - Liquefaction probable

IL > 15 - Liquefaction certain

Overall potential IL :

:: Vertical settlements estimation for dry sands ::

Depth
(ft)

(N1)60 τav p Gmax

(tsf)
α b γ

(%)
ε15 Nc εNc

(%)
ΔS
(in)

Δh
(ft)

2.50 29 0.08 0.10 435.37 0.13 25402.73 0.32 0.00 15.06 0.21 0.0933.75

5.00 26 0.17 0.20 593.69 0.13 16759.55 0.40 0.00 15.06 0.29 0.1063.00

7.50 13 0.25 0.30 577.12 0.14 13140.37 1.60 0.03 15.06 2.68 0.6442.00

10.00 26 0.33 0.40 839.61 0.14 11057.18 0.42 0.00 15.06 0.31 0.1383.75

15.00 53 0.49 0.60 1303.84 0.15 8669.41 0.16 0.00 15.06 0.05 0.0305.00

20.00 64 0.65 0.80 1603.23 0.16 7295.02 0.14 0.00 15.06 0.03 0.0215.00

25.00 45 0.80 1.00 1593.90 0.16 6380.88 0.22 0.00 15.06 0.08 0.0495.00

30.00 46 0.94 1.21 1758.87 0.17 5719.68 0.21 0.00 15.06 0.08 0.0465.00

35.00 54 1.06 1.41 2004.10 0.18 5214.39 0.17 0.00 15.06 0.05 0.0315.00

40.00 35 1.16 1.61 1854.13 0.19 4812.92 0.25 0.00 15.06 0.13 0.0765.00

45.00 22 1.23 1.81 1684.62 0.19 4484.53 0.37 0.00 15.06 0.33 0.1995.00

50.00 39 1.28 2.01 2149.12 0.20 4209.81 0.17 0.00 15.06 0.08 0.0465.00

55.00 35 1.31 2.21 2174.16 0.21 3975.82 0.17 0.00 15.06 0.08 0.0515.00

60.00 13 1.34 2.41 1632.34 0.22 3773.58 0.39 0.01 15.06 0.66 0.3985.00

65.00 46 1.37 2.61 2588.99 0.23 3596.63 0.11 0.00 15.06 0.04 0.0245.00

Abbreviations

τav:
p:
Gmax:
α, b:
γ:
ε15:
Nc:
εNc:

Δh:
ΔS:

Average cyclic shear stress
Average stress
Maximum shear modulus (tsf)
Shear strain formula variables
Average shear strain (%)
Volumetric strain after 15 cycles
Number of cycles
Volumetric strain for number of cycles Nc (%)

Thickness of soil layer (in)
Settlement of soil layer (in)

1.953Cumulative settlemetns:

Project File: Z:\24-112 Liq & Settle.lsvs

Page: 10LiqSVs 2.3.2.11 - SPT & Vs Liquefaction Assessment Software



This software is registered to: Kenton Buzbee

:: Lateral displacements estimation for saturated sands ::

Depth
(ft)

(N1)60 Dr

(%)
γmax

(%)
dz

(ft)
LDI LD

(ft)

2.50 29 75.39 0.00 3.75 0.000 0.00

5.00 26 71.39 0.00 3.00 0.000 0.00

7.50 13 50.48 0.00 2.00 0.000 0.00

10.00 26 71.39 0.00 3.75 0.000 0.00

15.00 53 100.00 0.00 5.00 0.000 0.00

20.00 64 100.00 0.00 5.00 0.000 0.00

25.00 45 100.00 0.00 5.00 0.000 0.00

30.00 46 100.00 0.00 5.00 0.000 0.00

35.00 54 100.00 0.00 5.00 0.000 0.00

40.00 35 82.83 0.00 5.00 0.000 0.00

45.00 22 65.67 0.00 5.00 0.000 0.00

50.00 39 87.43 0.00 5.00 0.000 0.00

55.00 35 82.83 0.00 5.00 0.000 0.00

60.00 13 50.48 0.00 5.00 0.000 0.00

65.00 46 100.00 0.00 5.00 0.000 0.00

0.00

Abbreviations

Cumulative lateral displacements:

Dr:

γmax:
dz:

LDI:

LD:

Relative density (%)
Maximum amplitude of cyclic shear strain (%)
Soil layer thickness (ft)
Lateral displacement index (ft)
Actual estimated displacement (ft)

Project File: Z:\24-112 Liq & Settle.lsvs

Page: 11LiqSVs 2.3.2.11 - SPT & Vs Liquefaction Assessment Software



References

⦁ Ronald D. Andrus, Hossein Hayati, Nisha P. Mohanan, 2009. Correcting Liquefaction Resistance for Aged Sands Using Measured 

to Estimated Velocity Ratio, Journal of Geotechnical and Geoenvironmental Engineering, Vol. 135, No. 6, June 1

⦁ Boulanger, R.W. and Idriss, I. M., 2014. CPT AND SPT BASED LIQUEFACTION TRIGGERING PROCEDURES. DEPARTMENT OF 

CIVIL & ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING COLLEGE OF ENGINEERING UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA AT DAVIS

⦁ Dipl.-Ing. Heinz J. Priebe, Vibro Replacement to Prevent Earthquake Induced Liquefaction, Proceedings of the Geotechnique-

Colloquium at Darmstadt, Germany, on March 19th, 1998 (also published in Ground Engineering, September 1998), Technical 
paper 12-57E

⦁ Robertson, P.K. and Cabal, K.L., 2007, Guide to Cone Penetration Testing for Geotechnical Engineering. Available at no cost at 

http://www.geologismiki.gr/

⦁ Youd, T.L., Idriss, I.M., Andrus, R.D., Arango, I., Castro, G., Christian, J.T., Dobry, R., Finn, W.D.L., Harder, L.F., Hynes, M.E., 

Ishihara, K., Koester, J., Liao, S., Marcuson III, W.F., Martin, G.R., Mitchell, J.K., Moriwaki, Y., Power, M.S., Robertson, P.K., 
Seed, R., and Stokoe, K.H., Liquefaction Resistance of Soils: Summary Report from the 1996 NCEER and 1998 NCEER/NSF 
Workshop on Evaluation of Liquefaction Resistance of Soils, ASCE, Journal of Geotechnical & Geoenvironmental Engineering, 
Vol. 127, October, pp 817-833

⦁ Zhang, G., Robertson. P.K., Brachman, R., 2002, Estimating Liquefaction Induced Ground Settlements from the CPT, Canadian 

Geotechnical Journal, 39: pp 1168-1180

⦁ Zhang, G., Robertson. P.K., Brachman, R., 2004, Estimating Liquefaction Induced Lateral Displacements using the SPT and 

CPT, ASCE, Journal of Geotechnical & Geoenvironmental Engineering, Vol. 130, No. 8, 861-871

⦁ Pradel, D., 1998, Procedure to Evaluate Earthquake-Induced Settlements in Dry Sandy Soils, ASCE, Journal of Geotechnical & 

Geoenvironmental Engineering, Vol. 124, No. 4, 364-368

⦁ R. Kayen, R. E. S. Moss, E. M. Thompson, R. B. Seed, K. O. Cetin, A. Der Kiureghian, Y. Tanaka, K. Tokimatsu, 2013. Shear-

Wave Velocity–Based Probabilistic and Deterministic Assessment of Seismic Soil Liquefaction Potential, Journal of Geotechnical 
and Geoenvironmental Engineering, Vol. 139, No. 3, March 1

LiqSVs 2.3.2.11 - SPT & Vs Liquefaction Assessment Software



 

 

APPENDIX E 
  

  

 

PERCOLATION / INFILTRATION 



10 6/7/2024

8 KTM

2 SP

5 to 10 ?

0.42 312

?

Initial, Do (ft.) Final, Df (ft.)

1 25 9.1 10 10.8

2 25 9.10 10 10.8

Initial, Do (ft.) Final, Df (ft.) (min/in.)

1 10 8.60 10.00 16.80 0.60

2 10 8.60 10.00 16.80 0.60
3 10 8.55 10.00 17.40 0.57

4 10 8.60 10.00 16.80 0.60

5 10 8.55 10.00 17.40 0.57

6 10 8.55 10.00 17.40 0.57

Ho = DT - Do

Hf = DT - Df 

Reference: 

Boring/Test Number: P-1

TEST RESULTS**

Percolation Rate

(gal/day/ft^2)(min/in.)

133.200.57

Inflitration Rate [Porchet Method]
#

(inches/hour)

12.00

Time 

Interval

Δt (min.)

Trial 

No.

Depth to Water, Dw
Change in 

Water Level

 ΔH (in.)

Diameter of Casing, d (in):

Depth of Slotted Casing (ft):

Trial 

No.

Time 

Interval

Δt (min.)

Depth to Water, Dw

Porosity of Annulus Material, n  :

4 tests minimum with at least two borings per basin

COSTA MESA   TEMECULA   LOS ANGELES   PALM DESERT   CORONA   ESCONDIDO

PERCOLATION TEST SUMMARY
Key Largo Avenue

Factor of Safety 

per Reference

#
 Where Infiltration Rate, It = ΔH (60r) / Δt (r + 2Havg)

PETRA GEOSCIENCES, INC.

Option 2

Testing Requirements

Tested By:

USCS Soil Type:

Depth to Groundwater (ft):

Ground Elevation (msl ft):

Change in 

Water Level

 ΔD (in.)

FACTOR OF SAFETY

DATE: June , 2024

3

    Rancho Mirage, Riverside County, CA
Appendix

EJ.N.: 24-112

Costa Mesa, California 92626
PHONE: (714) 549-8921

RCFCWCD, Design Handbook for LID, dated September, 2011

Testing Option

**Raw Results. Does Not

  Include a Factor of Safety

r = D / 2

3186 Airway Avenue, Suite K

ΔH = ΔD = Ho - Hf 

Havg = (Ho + Hf) / 2

132.32

133.20

133.20

Test Date:

Change in Height of Water 

Greater Than or Equal to 

6"? (Yes/No)*

SANDY SOIL CRITERIA TEST

yes

yes

PERCOLATION TEST

Percolation Rate

(gal/day/ft^2)

132.32

132.32
133.20

30Standard Time Interval Between Readings (min.),   [* if yes = 10, if no = 30]:

Depth from Existing Ground Surface to Bottom of Prop. Inflitration System (ft):

Total Depth of Boring, DT (ft):

Diameter of Hole, D (in):

existing

ground 

surface





 

 

APPENDIX F 
  

  

 

STANDARD GRADING SPECIFICATIONS 

 



STANDARD GRADING SPECIFICATIONS 

 

 

Page 1 

These specifications present the usual and minimum requirements for projects on which Petra Geosciences, 

Inc. (Petra) is the geotechnical consultant. No deviation from these specifications will be allowed, except 

where specifically superseded in the preliminary geology and soils report, or in other written 

communication signed by the Soils Engineer and Engineering Geologist of record (Geotechnical 

Consultant). 

 

 

I. GENERAL 

 

A. The Geotechnical Consultant is the Owner's or Builder's representative on the project. For the 

purpose of these specifications, participation by the Geotechnical Consultant includes that 

observation performed by any person or persons employed by, and responsible to, the licensed 

Soils Engineer and Engineering Geologist signing the soils report. 

 

B. The contractor should prepare and submit to the Owner and Geotechnical Consultant a work 

plan that indicates the sequence of earthwork grading, the number of "spreads" and the 

estimated quantities of daily earthwork to be performed prior to the commencement of grading. 

This work plan should be reviewed by the Geotechnical Consultant to schedule personnel to 

perform the appropriate level of observation, mapping, and compaction testing as necessary. 

 

C. All clearing, site preparation, or earthwork performed on the project shall be conducted by the 

Contractor in accordance with the recommendations presented in the geotechnical report and 

under the observation of the Geotechnical Consultant. 

 

D. It is the Contractor's responsibility to prepare the ground surface to receive the fills to the 

satisfaction of the Geotechnical Consultant and to place, spread, mix, water, and compact the 

fill in accordance with the specifications of the Geotechnical Consultant. The Contractor shall 

also remove all material considered unsatisfactory by the Geotechnical Consultant. 

 

E. It is the Contractor's responsibility to have suitable and sufficient compaction equipment on the 

job site to handle the amount of fill being placed. If necessary, excavation equipment will be 

shut down to permit completion of compaction to project specifications. Sufficient watering 

apparatus will also be provided by the Contractor, with due consideration for the fill material, 

rate of placement, and time of year. 

 

F. After completion of grading a report will be submitted by the Geotechnical Consultant. 

 

 

II. SITE PREPARATION 

 

A. Clearing and Grubbing 

 

1. All vegetation such as trees, brush, grass, roots, and deleterious material shall be disposed 

of offsite. This removal shall be concluded prior to placing fill. 

 

2. Any underground structures such as cesspools, cisterns, mining shafts, tunnels, septic 

tanks, wells, pipe lines, etc., are to be removed or treated in a manner prescribed by the 

Geotechnical Consultant. 

 

 



STANDARD GRADING SPECIFICATIONS 

 

 

Page 2 

III. FILL AREA PREPARATION 

 

A. Remedial Removals/Overexcavations 

 

1. Remedial removals, as well as overexcavation for remedial purposes, shall be evaluated by 

the Geotechnical Consultant. Remedial removal depths presented in the geotechnical report 

and shown on the geotechnical plans are estimates only. The actual extent of removal 

should be determined by the Geotechnical Consultant based on the conditions exposed 

during grading. All soft, loose, dry, saturated, spongy, organic-rich, highly fractured or 

otherwise unsuitable ground shall be overexcavated to competent ground as determined by 

the Geotechnical Consultant. 

 

2. Soil, alluvium, or bedrock materials determined by the Soils Engineer as being unsuitable 

for placement in compacted fills shall be removed from the site. Any material incorporated 

as a part of a compacted fill must be approved by the Geotechnical Consultant. 

 

3. Should potentially hazardous materials be encountered, the Contractor should stop work in 

the affected area. An environmental consultant specializing in hazardous materials should 

be notified immediately for evaluation and handling of these materials prior to continuing 

work in the affected area. 

 

B. Evaluation/Acceptance of Fill Areas 

 

All areas to receive fill, including removal and processed areas, key bottoms, and benches, shall 

be observed, mapped, elevations recorded, and/or tested prior to being accepted by the 

Geotechnical Consultant as suitable to receive fill. The contractor shall obtain a written 

acceptance from the Geotechnical Consultant prior to fill placement. A licensed surveyor shall 

provide sufficient survey control for determining locations and elevations of processed areas, 

keys, and benches. 

 

C. Processing 

 

After the ground surface to receive fill has been declared satisfactory for support of fill by the 

Geotechnical Consultant, it shall be scarified to a minimum depth of 6 inches and until the 

ground surface is uniform and free from ruts, hollows, hummocks, or other uneven features 

which may prevent uniform compaction. 

 

The scarified ground surface shall then be brought to optimum moisture, mixed as required, 

and compacted to a minimum relative compaction of 90 percent. 

 

D. Subdrains 

 

Subdrainage devices shall be constructed in compliance with the ordinances of the controlling 

governmental agency, and/or with the recommendations of the Geotechnical Consultant. 

(Typical Canyon Subdrain details are given on Plate SG-1). 

 

E. Cut/Fill & Deep Fill/Shallow Fill Transitions 

 

In order to provide uniform bearing conditions in cut/fill and deep fill/shallow fill transition 

lots, the cut and shallow fill portions of the lot should be overexcavated to the depths and the 

horizontal limits discussed in the approved geotechnical report and replaced with compacted 

fill. (Typical details are given on Plate SG-7.) 



STANDARD GRADING SPECIFICATIONS 

 

 

Page 3 

IV. COMPACTED FILL MATERIAL 

 

A. General 

 

Materials excavated on the property may be utilized in the fill, provided each material has been 

determined to be suitable by the Geotechnical Consultant. Material to be used for fill shall be 

essentially free of organic material and other deleterious substances. Roots, tree branches, and 

other matter missed during clearing shall be removed from the fill as recommended by the 

Geotechnical Consultant. Material that is spongy, subject to decay, or otherwise considered 

unsuitable shall not be used in the compacted fill. 

 

Soils of poor quality, such as those with unacceptable gradation, high expansion potential, or 

low strength shall be placed in areas acceptable to the Geotechnical Consultant or mixed with 

other soils to achieve satisfactory fill material. 

 

B. Oversize Materials 

 

Oversize material defined as rock, or other irreducible material with a maximum dimension 

greater than 12 inches in diameter, shall be taken offsite or placed in accordance with the 

recommendations of the Geotechnical Consultant in areas designated as suitable for rock 

disposal (Typical details for Rock Disposal are given on Plate SG-4). 

 

Rock fragments less than 12 inches in diameter may be utilized in the fill provided, they are 

not nested or placed in concentrated pockets; they are surrounded by compacted fine grained 

soil material and the distribution of rocks is approved by the Geotechnical Consultant. 

 

C. Laboratory Testing 

 

Representative samples of materials to be utilized as compacted fill shall be analyzed by the 

laboratory of the Geotechnical Consultant to determine their physical properties. If any material 

other than that previously tested is encountered during grading, the appropriate analysis of this 

material shall be conducted by the Geotechnical Consultant as soon as possible. 

 

D. Import 

 

If importing of fill material is required for grading, proposed import material should meet the 

requirements of the previous section. The import source shall be given to the Geotechnical 

Consultant at least 2 working days prior to importing so that appropriate tests can be performed 

and its suitability determined. 

 

 

V. FILL PLACEMENT AND COMPACTION 

 

A. Fill Layers 

 

Material used in the compacting process shall be evenly spread, watered, processed, and 

compacted in thin lifts not to exceed 6 inches in thickness to obtain a uniformly dense layer. 

The fill shall be placed and compacted on a horizontal plane, unless otherwise approved by the 

Geotechnical Consultant. 



STANDARD GRADING SPECIFICATIONS 

 

 

Page 4 

B. Moisture Conditioning 

 

Fill soils shall be watered, dried back, blended, and/or mixed, as necessary to attain a relatively 

uniform moisture content at or slightly above optimum moisture content. 

 

C. Compaction 

 

Each layer shall be compacted to 90 percent of the maximum density in compliance with the 

testing method specified by the controlling governmental agency. (In general, ASTM D 1557-

02, will be used.) 

 

If compaction to a lesser percentage is authorized by the controlling governmental agency 

because of a specific land use or expansive soils condition, the area to received fill compacted 

to less than 90 percent shall either be delineated on the grading plan or appropriate reference 

made to the area in the soils report. 

 

D. Failing Areas 

 

If the moisture content or relative density varies from that required by the Geotechnical 

Consultant, the Contractor shall rework the fill until it is approved by the Geotechnical 

Consultant. 

 

E. Benching 

 

All fills shall be keyed and benched through all topsoil, colluvium, alluvium or creep material, 

into sound bedrock or firm material where the slope receiving fill exceeds a ratio of 5 horizontal 

to 1 vertical, in accordance with the recommendations of the Geotechnical Consultant. 

 

 

VI. SLOPES 

 

A. Fill Slopes 

 

The contractor will be required to obtain a minimum relative compaction of 90 percent out to 

the finish slope face of fill slopes, buttresses, and stabilization fills. This may be achieved by 

either overbuilding the slope and cutting back to the compacted core, or by direct compaction 

of the slope face with suitable equipment, or by any other procedure that produces the required 

compaction. 

 

B. Side Hill Fills 

 

The key for side hill fills shall be a minimum of 15 feet within bedrock or firm materials, unless 

otherwise specified in the soils report. (See detail on Plate SG-5.) 

 

C. Fill-Over-Cut Slopes  

 

Fill-over-cut slopes shall be properly keyed through topsoil, colluvium or creep material into 

rock or firm materials, and the transition shall be stripped of all soils prior to placing fill. (see 

detail on Plate SG-6). 

  



STANDARD GRADING SPECIFICATIONS 

 

 

Page 5 

D. Landscaping 

 

All fill slopes should be planted or protected from erosion by other methods specified in the 

soils report. 

 

E. Cut Slopes 

 

1. The Geotechnical Consultant should observe all cut slopes at vertical intervals not 

exceeding 10 feet. 

 

2. If any conditions not anticipated in the preliminary report such as perched water, seepage, 

lenticular or confined strata of a potentially adverse nature, unfavorably inclined bedding, 

joints or fault planes are encountered during grading, these conditions shall be evaluated 

by the Geotechnical Consultant, and recommendations shall be made to treat these 

problems (Typical details for stabilization of a portion of a cut slope are given in Plates 

SG-2 and SG-3.). 

 

3. Cut slopes that face in the same direction as the prevailing drainage shall be protected from 

slope wash by a non-erodible interceptor swale placed at the top of the slope. 

 

4. Unless otherwise specified in the soils and geological report, no cut slopes shall be 

excavated higher or steeper than that allowed by the ordinances of controlling 

governmental agencies. 

 

5. Drainage terraces shall be constructed in compliance with the ordinances of controlling 

governmental agencies, or with the recommendations of the Geotechnical Consultant. 

 

 

VII. GRADING OBSERVATION 

 

A. General 

 

All cleanouts, processed ground to receive fill, key excavations, subdrains, and rock disposals 

must be observed and approved by the Geotechnical Consultant prior to placing any fill. It shall 

be the Contractor's responsibility to notify the Geotechnical Consultant when such areas are 

ready. 

 

B. Compaction Testing 

 

Observation of the fill placement shall be provided by the Geotechnical Consultant during the 

progress of grading. Location and frequency of tests shall be at the Consultants discretion based 

on field conditions encountered. Compaction test locations will not necessarily be selected on 

a random basis. Test locations may be selected to verify adequacy of compaction levels in areas 

that are judged to be susceptible to inadequate compaction. 

 

C. Frequency of Compaction Testing 

 

In general, density tests should be made at intervals not exceeding 2 feet of fill height or every 

1000 cubic yards of fill placed. This criteria will vary depending on soil conditions and the size 

of the job. In any event, an adequate number of field density tests shall be made to verify that 

the required compaction is being achieved. 

 



STANDARD GRADING SPECIFICATIONS 

 

 

Page 6 

VIII. CONSTRUCTION CONSIDERATIONS 

 

A. Erosion control measures, when necessary, shall be provided by the Contractor during grading 

and prior to the completion and construction of permanent drainage controls. 

 

B. Upon completion of grading and termination of observations by the Geotechnical Consultant, 

no further filling or excavating, including that necessary for footings, foundations, large tree 

wells, retaining walls, or other features shall be performed without the approval of the 

Geotechnical Consultant. 

 

C. Care shall be taken by the Contractor during final grading to preserve any berms, drainage 

terraces, interceptor swales, or other devices of permanent nature on or adjacent to the property. 

 

 
S:\!BOILERS-WORK\REPORT INSERTS\STANDARD GRADING SPECS 





















 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX C 
 

PRELIMINARY TITLE REPORT   



4210 Riverwalk Parkway, Suite 100
Riverside, CA 92505

Phone:  (951) 710-5944
Fax:  (951) 710-5955

CLTA Preliminary Report Form – Modified (11/17/06) Page 1

Issuing Policies of Fidelity National Title Insurance Company

Order No.:  010-30112060-A-BAM

TO:
National Community Renaissance
9421 Haven Avenue
Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730

ATTN:  Alexa Washburn
YOUR REFERENCE:  

Main Office Line:  (949) 622-5000

Title Officer:  Andrew Margo (BS-RIV)
Title Officer Phone:  (951) 710-5944 
Title Officer Fax:  (951) 710-5955 
Title Officer Email:  theATeam@fnf.com

PROPERTY ADDRESS: Vacant Land, Rancho Mirage, CA
     

AMENDED PRELIMINARY REPORT
In response to the application for a policy of title insurance referenced herein, Fidelity National Title Company 
hereby reports that it is prepared to issue, or cause to be issued, as of the date hereof, a policy or policies of title 
insurance describing the land and the estate or interest therein hereinafter set forth, insuring against loss which 
may be sustained by reason of any defect, lien or encumbrance not shown or referred to as an exception herein 
or not excluded from coverage pursuant to the printed Schedules, Conditions and Stipulations or Conditions of 
said policy forms.

The printed Exceptions and Exclusions from the coverage and Limitations on Covered Risks of said policy or 
policies are set forth in Attachment One. The policy to be issued may contain an arbitration clause. When the 
Amount of Insurance is less than that set forth in the arbitration clause, all arbitrable matters shall be arbitrated at 
the option of either the Company or the Insured as the exclusive remedy of the parties. Limitations on Covered 
Risks applicable to the CLTA and ALTA Homeowner’s Policies of Title Insurance which establish a Deductible 
Amount and a Maximum Dollar Limit of Liability for certain coverages are also set forth in Attachment One. 
Copies of the policy forms should be read. They are available from the office which issued this report.

This report (and any supplements or amendments hereto) is issued solely for the purpose of facilitating the 
issuance of a policy of title insurance and no liability is assumed hereby. If it is desired that liability be assumed 
prior to the issuance of a policy of title insurance, a Binder or Commitment should be requested. 

The policy(s) of title insurance to be issued hereunder will be policy(s) of Fidelity National Title Insurance 
Company, a Florida Corporation.

Please read the exceptions shown or referred to herein and the exceptions and exclusions set forth in 
Attachment One of this report carefully. The exceptions and exclusions are meant to provide you with 
notice of matters which are not covered under the terms of the title insurance policy and should be 
carefully considered.

It is important to note that this preliminary report is not a written representation as to the condition of title 
and may not list all liens, defects and encumbrances affecting title to the land.
Countersigned by:

Authorized Signature



4210 Riverwalk Parkway, Suite 100
Riverside, CA 92505

Phone:  (951) 710-5944
Fax:  (951) 710-5955

CLTA Preliminary Report Form – Modified (11/17/06) Page 2

AMENDED PRELIMINARY REPORT

EFFECTIVE DATE: March 26, 2024 at 7:30 a.m., Amended: April 2, 2024, Amendment No. A 

ORDER NO.:  010-30112060-A-BAM

The form of policy or policies of title insurance contemplated by this report is:

ALTA Standard Owners Policy (6-17-06)

1. THE ESTATE OR INTEREST IN THE LAND HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED OR REFERRED TO 
COVERED BY THIS REPORT IS:

A FEE  

2. TITLE TO SAID ESTATE OR INTEREST AT THE DATE HEREOF IS VESTED IN:

RANCHO MIRAGE HOUSING AUTHORITY 

3. THE LAND REFERRED TO IN THIS REPORT IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

See Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof.

https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=CC98FF36-043E-4607-8FA4-6ACC2ABF4AD4
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=CC98FF36-043E-4607-8FA4-6ACC2ABF4AD4
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=CC98FF36-043E-4607-8FA4-6ACC2ABF4AD4


PRELIMINARY REPORT Fidelity National Title Company 
Your Reference:  Order No.:  010-30112060-A-BAM

CLTA Preliminary Report Form – Modified (11/17/06) Page 3

EXHIBIT A
LEGAL DESCRIPTION

THE LAND REFERRED TO HEREIN BELOW IS SITUATED IN THE CITY OF RANCHO MIRAGE IN THE 
COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AND IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

THAT PORTION OF THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN GRANT DEED RECORDED NOVEMBER 15, 1983 AS 
INSTRUMENT NO. 237642, OFFICIAL RECORDS OF RIVERSIDE COUNTY, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 
LOCATED WITHIN THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 30, TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 6 EAST, 
SAN BERNARDINO MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE CENTER QUARTER COMER OF SAID SECTION 30 AS SHOWN ON RECORD OF 
SURVEY FILED IN BOOK 147, PAGE 6, OF RECORDS OF SURVEYS, OFFICIAL RECORDS OF SAID 
COUNTY;
THENCE NORTH 89°35’36” EAST 667.17 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER 
OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 30;
THENCE PARALLEL WITH THE EAST LINE OF THE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER NORTH 00°03’04” 
EAST 701.97 FEET TO THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING;
THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID PARALLEL LINE, NORTH 00°03’04” EAST 333.74 FEET;
THENCE PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER NORTH 89°35’36” EAST 
652.62 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER;
THENCE SOUTH 00°03’04” WEST 333.74 FEET ALONG SAID EAST LINE;
THENCE PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER SOUTH 89°35’36” WEST 
652.62 FEET TO THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING.

APN:   685-090-011 (PORTION)

https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=D486C1EB-2667-4D14-82C3-42E22B40F8E6
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=D486C1EB-2667-4D14-82C3-42E22B40F8E6
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=D486C1EB-2667-4D14-82C3-42E22B40F8E6
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=D486C1EB-2667-4D14-82C3-42E22B40F8E6
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=D486C1EB-2667-4D14-82C3-42E22B40F8E6
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=D486C1EB-2667-4D14-82C3-42E22B40F8E6
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=D486C1EB-2667-4D14-82C3-42E22B40F8E6
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=D486C1EB-2667-4D14-82C3-42E22B40F8E6
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=D486C1EB-2667-4D14-82C3-42E22B40F8E6
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=D486C1EB-2667-4D14-82C3-42E22B40F8E6
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=53BFC1C7-F9C6-4DF0-BB9D-75869C2B3935
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=53BFC1C7-F9C6-4DF0-BB9D-75869C2B3935
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=53BFC1C7-F9C6-4DF0-BB9D-75869C2B3935
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=44FF6A8B-8686-4B74-818F-6E1DDF562B19
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=44FF6A8B-8686-4B74-818F-6E1DDF562B19
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=44FF6A8B-8686-4B74-818F-6E1DDF562B19
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=44FF6A8B-8686-4B74-818F-6E1DDF562B19
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=44FF6A8B-8686-4B74-818F-6E1DDF562B19
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=44FF6A8B-8686-4B74-818F-6E1DDF562B19
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=44FF6A8B-8686-4B74-818F-6E1DDF562B19
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=44FF6A8B-8686-4B74-818F-6E1DDF562B19
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=44FF6A8B-8686-4B74-818F-6E1DDF562B19
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=44FF6A8B-8686-4B74-818F-6E1DDF562B19
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=44FF6A8B-8686-4B74-818F-6E1DDF562B19
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=44FF6A8B-8686-4B74-818F-6E1DDF562B19
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=44FF6A8B-8686-4B74-818F-6E1DDF562B19
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=44FF6A8B-8686-4B74-818F-6E1DDF562B19
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=D486C1EB-2667-4D14-82C3-42E22B40F8E6
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=D486C1EB-2667-4D14-82C3-42E22B40F8E6
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=D486C1EB-2667-4D14-82C3-42E22B40F8E6
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=D486C1EB-2667-4D14-82C3-42E22B40F8E6
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=D486C1EB-2667-4D14-82C3-42E22B40F8E6
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=D486C1EB-2667-4D14-82C3-42E22B40F8E6


PRELIMINARY REPORT Fidelity National Title Company 
Your Reference:  Order No.:  010-30112060-A-BAM

CLTA Preliminary Report Form – Modified (11/17/06) Page 4

EXCEPTIONS

AT THE DATE HEREOF, ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED AND EXCEPTIONS TO COVERAGE IN ADDITION TO 
THE PRINTED EXCEPTIONS AND EXCLUSIONS IN SAID POLICY FORM WOULD BE AS FOLLOWS:

AA. Property taxes, which are a lien not yet due and payable, including any assessments collected with taxes 
to be levied for the fiscal year 2024-2025.

A. There were no taxes levied for the fiscal year 2023-2024 as the property was vested in a public entity.

B. A Notice 

Entitled: Notice of Assessment
For: Assessment District No. 150
Executed by: County of Riverside
Recording Date: March 25, 1985
Recording No: as Instrument No. 60450 of Official Records

Reference is hereby made to said document for full particulars.

The Company requires a current demand from the taxing agency regarding the payment of this lien prior 
to closing.

C. The lien of supplemental or escaped assessments of property taxes, if any, made pursuant to the 
provisions of Chapter 3.5 (commencing with Section 75) or Part 2, Chapter 3, Articles 3 and 4, 
respectively, of the Revenue and Taxation Code of the State of California as a result of the transfer of title 
to the vestee named in Schedule A or as a result of changes in ownership or new construction occurring 
prior to Date of Policy.

1. Water rights, claims or title to water, whether or not disclosed by the public records.

2. Matters contained in that certain document

Entitled: Reciprocal Access and Utility Agreement
Dated: October 21, 1992
Executed by: The City pf Rancho Mirage, a municipal corporation, organized and existing 

under the laws of the State of California and Edwin Vlessing Partners, a 
California limited partnership

Recording Date: June 8, 1993
Recording No: as Instrument No. 214408 of Official Records

Reference is hereby made to said document for full particulars.

3. Easement(s) for the purpose(s) shown below and rights incidental thereto, as granted in a document:

Granted to: Coachella Valley Water District, a public agency of the State of California 
Purpose: underground pipeline(s) and necessary devices and appurtenances thereto
Recording Date: May 10, 2016
Recording No: as Instrument No. 2016-0188380 of Official Records
Affects: A portion of said land as described therein 

https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=5B5AD8C6-6BD2-4712-AF16-3D337FA6546D
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=5B5AD8C6-6BD2-4712-AF16-3D337FA6546D
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=5B5AD8C6-6BD2-4712-AF16-3D337FA6546D
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=5B5AD8C6-6BD2-4712-AF16-3D337FA6546D
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=5B5AD8C6-6BD2-4712-AF16-3D337FA6546D
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=960A0802-689D-4969-82FB-12C18CEFBFD0
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=960A0802-689D-4969-82FB-12C18CEFBFD0
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=960A0802-689D-4969-82FB-12C18CEFBFD0
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=960A0802-689D-4969-82FB-12C18CEFBFD0
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=960A0802-689D-4969-82FB-12C18CEFBFD0
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=FC90CEAA-9563-448D-A277-7EB3C102EF11
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=FC90CEAA-9563-448D-A277-7EB3C102EF11
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=FC90CEAA-9563-448D-A277-7EB3C102EF11
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=FC90CEAA-9563-448D-A277-7EB3C102EF11
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=FC90CEAA-9563-448D-A277-7EB3C102EF11
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=5B5AD8C6-6BD2-4712-AF16-3D337FA6546D
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=5B5AD8C6-6BD2-4712-AF16-3D337FA6546D
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=5B5AD8C6-6BD2-4712-AF16-3D337FA6546D
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=5B5AD8C6-6BD2-4712-AF16-3D337FA6546D
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=5B5AD8C6-6BD2-4712-AF16-3D337FA6546D
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=960A0802-689D-4969-82FB-12C18CEFBFD0
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=960A0802-689D-4969-82FB-12C18CEFBFD0
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=960A0802-689D-4969-82FB-12C18CEFBFD0
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=960A0802-689D-4969-82FB-12C18CEFBFD0
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=960A0802-689D-4969-82FB-12C18CEFBFD0
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=5B5AD8C6-6BD2-4712-AF16-3D337FA6546D
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=5B5AD8C6-6BD2-4712-AF16-3D337FA6546D
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=5B5AD8C6-6BD2-4712-AF16-3D337FA6546D
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=5B5AD8C6-6BD2-4712-AF16-3D337FA6546D
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=5B5AD8C6-6BD2-4712-AF16-3D337FA6546D
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=5B5AD8C6-6BD2-4712-AF16-3D337FA6546D
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=5B5AD8C6-6BD2-4712-AF16-3D337FA6546D
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=960A0802-689D-4969-82FB-12C18CEFBFD0
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=960A0802-689D-4969-82FB-12C18CEFBFD0
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=960A0802-689D-4969-82FB-12C18CEFBFD0
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=960A0802-689D-4969-82FB-12C18CEFBFD0
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=960A0802-689D-4969-82FB-12C18CEFBFD0
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=960A0802-689D-4969-82FB-12C18CEFBFD0
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=960A0802-689D-4969-82FB-12C18CEFBFD0
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=FC90CEAA-9563-448D-A277-7EB3C102EF11
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=FC90CEAA-9563-448D-A277-7EB3C102EF11
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=FC90CEAA-9563-448D-A277-7EB3C102EF11
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=FC90CEAA-9563-448D-A277-7EB3C102EF11
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=FC90CEAA-9563-448D-A277-7EB3C102EF11
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=FC90CEAA-9563-448D-A277-7EB3C102EF11
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=FC90CEAA-9563-448D-A277-7EB3C102EF11


PRELIMINARY REPORT Fidelity National Title Company 
Your Reference:  Order No.:  010-30112060-A-BAM

EXCEPTIONS
(Continued)

CLTA Preliminary Report Form – Modified (11/17/06) Page 5

4. Matters contained in that certain document

Entitled: Standard Domestic Water System and Sanitation System Installation Agreement
Dated: June 13, 2016
Executed by: Coachella Valley Water District, a public agency of the State of California and 

City of Rancho Mirage, A Municipal Corporation
Recording Date: June 21, 2016
Recording No: as Instrument No. 2016-0252637 of Official Records

Reference is hereby made to said document for full particulars.

5. Matters contained in that certain document

Entitled: Notice of Acceptance
Recording Date: May 26, 2017
Recording No: as Instrument No. 2017-0212369 of Official Records

Reference is hereby made to said document for full particulars.

6. Please be advised that our search did not disclose any open Deeds of Trust of record. If you should have 
knowledge of any outstanding obligation, please contact the Title Department immediately for further 
review prior to closing.

7. Any easements not disclosed by the public records as to matters affecting title to real property, whether or 
not said easements are visible and apparent.

8. Matters which may be disclosed by an inspection and/or by a correct ALTA/NSPS Land Title Survey of 
said Land that is satisfactory to the Company, and/or by inquiry of the parties in possession thereof.

9. Any rights of the parties in possession of a portion of, or all of, said Land, which rights are not disclosed 
by the public records.

The Company will require, for review, a full and complete copy of any unrecorded agreement, contract, 
license and/or lease, together with all supplements, assignments and amendments thereto, before issuing 
any policy of title insurance without excepting this item from coverage.

The Company reserves the right to except additional items and/or make additional requirements after 
reviewing said documents.

PLEASE REFER TO THE “INFORMATIONAL NOTES” AND “REQUIREMENTS” SECTIONS WHICH 
FOLLOW FOR INFORMATION NECESSARY TO COMPLETE THIS TRANSACTION.

END OF EXCEPTIONS

https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=0934AF07-2145-481D-A7A2-CC8B8E25DDA6
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=0934AF07-2145-481D-A7A2-CC8B8E25DDA6
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=0934AF07-2145-481D-A7A2-CC8B8E25DDA6
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=0934AF07-2145-481D-A7A2-CC8B8E25DDA6
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=0934AF07-2145-481D-A7A2-CC8B8E25DDA6
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=39962CB9-024E-4C95-AF05-0459B8E00B47
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=39962CB9-024E-4C95-AF05-0459B8E00B47
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=39962CB9-024E-4C95-AF05-0459B8E00B47
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=39962CB9-024E-4C95-AF05-0459B8E00B47
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=39962CB9-024E-4C95-AF05-0459B8E00B47
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=0934AF07-2145-481D-A7A2-CC8B8E25DDA6
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=0934AF07-2145-481D-A7A2-CC8B8E25DDA6
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=0934AF07-2145-481D-A7A2-CC8B8E25DDA6
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=0934AF07-2145-481D-A7A2-CC8B8E25DDA6
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=0934AF07-2145-481D-A7A2-CC8B8E25DDA6
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=0934AF07-2145-481D-A7A2-CC8B8E25DDA6
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=0934AF07-2145-481D-A7A2-CC8B8E25DDA6
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=39962CB9-024E-4C95-AF05-0459B8E00B47
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=39962CB9-024E-4C95-AF05-0459B8E00B47
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=39962CB9-024E-4C95-AF05-0459B8E00B47
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=39962CB9-024E-4C95-AF05-0459B8E00B47
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=39962CB9-024E-4C95-AF05-0459B8E00B47
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=39962CB9-024E-4C95-AF05-0459B8E00B47
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=39962CB9-024E-4C95-AF05-0459B8E00B47


PRELIMINARY REPORT Fidelity National Title Company 
Your Reference:  Order No.:  010-30112060-A-BAM

CLTA Preliminary Report Form – Modified (11/17/06) Page 6

REQUIREMENTS SECTION

1. This Company will require evidence of compliance with the statutory limitations incident to the 
governmental agency named below, with reference to any conveyance of an interest in the Land this 
Company will be asked to record and/or rely upon in the issuance of any form of title insurance.

Governmental agency: Rancho Mirage Housing Authority

2. In order to complete this report, the Company requires a Statement of Information to be completed by the 
following party(s),

Party(s): All parties

The Company reserves the right to add additional items or make further requirements after review of the 
requested Statement of Information.

NOTE: The Statement of Information is necessary to complete the search and examination of title under 
this order. Any title search includes matters that are indexed by name only, and having a 
completed Statement of Information assists the Company in the elimination of certain matters 
which appear to involve the parties but in fact affect another party with the same or similar name. 
Be assured that the Statement of Information is essential and will be kept strictly confidential to 
this file.

3. Furnish for review a full and complete copy of any unrecorded agreement, contract, license and/or lease 
together with all supplements, assignments and amendments thereto, prior to the close of this 
transaction.

The Company reserves the right to add additional items or make further requirements after review of the 
requested documentation.

4. Unrecorded matters which may be disclosed by an Owner’s Affidavit or Declaration. A form of the 
Owner’s Affidavit/Declaration is attached to this Preliminary Report/Commitment. This 
Affidavit/Declaration is to be completed by the record owner of the land and submitted for review prior to 
the closing of this transaction. Your prompt attention to this requirement will help avoid delays in the 
closing of this transaction. Thank you.

The Company reserves the right to add additional items or make further requirements after review of the 
requested Affidavit/Declaration.

END OF REQUIREMENTS



 

CLTA Preliminary Report Form – Modified (11/17/06) Page 1

INFORMATIONAL NOTES SECTION

1. Note:  The policy of title insurance will include an arbitration provision. The Company or the insured may 
demand arbitration. Arbitrable matters may include, but are not limited to, any controversy or claim 
between the Company and the insured arising out of or relating to this policy, any service of the Company 
in connection with its issuance or the breach of a policy provision or other obligation. Please ask your 
escrow or title officer for a sample copy of the policy to be issued if you wish to review the arbitration 
provisions and any other provisions pertaining to your Title Insurance coverage.

2. Notice: Please be aware that due to the conflict between federal and state laws concerning the 
cultivation, distribution, manufacture or sale of marijuana, the Company is not able to close or insure any 
transaction involving Land that is associated with these activities.

3. Pursuant to Government Code Section 27388.1, as amended and effective as of 1-1-2018, a 
Documentary Transfer Tax (DTT) Affidavit may be required to be completed and submitted with each 
document when DTT is being paid or when an exemption is being claimed from paying the tax. If a 
governmental agency is a party to the document, the form will not be required. DTT Affidavits may be 
available at a Tax Assessor-County Clerk-Recorder.

4. The following Exclusion(s) are added to preliminary reports, commitments and will be  included as an 
endorsement in the following policies: 

A. 2006 ALTA Owner’s Policy (06-17-06). 

6. Defects, liens, encumbrances, adverse claims, notices, or other matters not  appearing in 
the Public Records but that would be disclosed by an examination of any records 
maintained by or on behalf of a Tribe or on behalf of its members. 

B. 2006 ALTA Loan Policy (06-17-06). 

8. Defects, liens, encumbrances, adverse claims, notices, or other matters not  appearing in 
the Public Records but that would be disclosed by an examination of any records 
maintained by or on behalf of a Tribe or on behalf of its members. 

9. Any claim of invalidity, unenforceability, or lack of priority of the lien of the Insured 
Mortgage based on the application of a Tribe’s law resulting from the failure of the 
Insured Mortgage to specify State law as the governing law with respect to the lien of the 
Insured Mortgage. 

C. ALTA Homeowner’s Policy of Title Insurance (12-02-13) and CLTA Homeowner's Policy of Title 
Insurance (12-02-13). 

10. Defects, liens, encumbrances, adverse claims, notices, or other matters not appearing in 
the Public Records but that would be disclosed by an examination of any records 
maintained by or on behalf of a Tribe or on behalf of its members. 

D. ALTA Expanded Coverage Residential Loan Policy - Assessments Priority (04-02-15). 

12. Defects, liens, encumbrances, adverse claims, notices, or other matters not appearing in 
the Public Records but that would be disclosed by an examination of any records 
maintained by or on behalf of a Tribe or on behalf of its members. 

13. Any claim of invalidity, unenforceability, or lack of priority of the lien of the Insured 
Mortgage based on the application of a Tribe’s law resulting from the failure of the 
Insured Mortgage to specify State law as the governing law with respect to the lien of the 
Insured Mortgage. 

E. CLTA Standard Coverage Policy 1990 (11-09-18). 

7. Defects, liens, encumbrances, adverse claims, notices, or other matters not appearing in 
the public records but that would be disclosed by an examination of any records 
maintained by or on behalf of a tribe or on behalf of its members. 



PRELIMINARY REPORT Fidelity National Title Company 
Your Reference:  Order No.:  010-30112060-A-BAM

INFORMATIONAL NOTES
(Continued)

CLTA Preliminary Report Form – Modified (11/17/06) Page 2

8. Any claim of invalidity, unenforceability, or lack of priority of the lien of the insured 
mortgage based on the application of a tribe’s law resulting from the failure of the insured 
mortgage to specify state law as the governing law with respect to the lien of the insured 
mortgage.

5. Note:  The only conveyance(s) affecting said Land, which recorded within 24 months of the date of this 
report, are as follows:

Grantor: City of Rancho Mirage 
Grantee: Rancho Mirage Housing Authority 
Recording Date: December 12, 2023
Recording No: as Instrument No. 2023-0368272 of Official Records 

Grantor: City of Rancho Mirage
Grantee: Rancho Mirage Housing Authority
Recording Date: December 12, 2023
Recording No: as Instrument No. 2023-0368273 of Official Records 

Grantor: City of Rancho Mirage
Grantee: Rancho Mirage Housing Authority
Recording Date: December 12, 2023
Recording No: as Instrument No. 2023-0368274 of Official Records 

END OF INFORMATIONAL NOTES

Andrew Margo (BS-RIV)/tg

https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=D615BE55-A10B-4375-9944-F0BCA55EB14B
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=D615BE55-A10B-4375-9944-F0BCA55EB14B
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=D615BE55-A10B-4375-9944-F0BCA55EB14B
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=D615BE55-A10B-4375-9944-F0BCA55EB14B
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=D615BE55-A10B-4375-9944-F0BCA55EB14B
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=39499338-7AF4-40FB-B540-C4BCDCF872A3
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=39499338-7AF4-40FB-B540-C4BCDCF872A3
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=39499338-7AF4-40FB-B540-C4BCDCF872A3
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=39499338-7AF4-40FB-B540-C4BCDCF872A3
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=39499338-7AF4-40FB-B540-C4BCDCF872A3
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=790F114A-5B76-49C1-B5A9-5864FA1DBADD
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=790F114A-5B76-49C1-B5A9-5864FA1DBADD
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=790F114A-5B76-49C1-B5A9-5864FA1DBADD
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=790F114A-5B76-49C1-B5A9-5864FA1DBADD
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=790F114A-5B76-49C1-B5A9-5864FA1DBADD
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=D615BE55-A10B-4375-9944-F0BCA55EB14B
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=D615BE55-A10B-4375-9944-F0BCA55EB14B
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=D615BE55-A10B-4375-9944-F0BCA55EB14B
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=D615BE55-A10B-4375-9944-F0BCA55EB14B
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=D615BE55-A10B-4375-9944-F0BCA55EB14B
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=D615BE55-A10B-4375-9944-F0BCA55EB14B
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=D615BE55-A10B-4375-9944-F0BCA55EB14B
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=39499338-7AF4-40FB-B540-C4BCDCF872A3
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=39499338-7AF4-40FB-B540-C4BCDCF872A3
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=39499338-7AF4-40FB-B540-C4BCDCF872A3
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=39499338-7AF4-40FB-B540-C4BCDCF872A3
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=39499338-7AF4-40FB-B540-C4BCDCF872A3
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=39499338-7AF4-40FB-B540-C4BCDCF872A3
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=39499338-7AF4-40FB-B540-C4BCDCF872A3
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=790F114A-5B76-49C1-B5A9-5864FA1DBADD
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=790F114A-5B76-49C1-B5A9-5864FA1DBADD
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=790F114A-5B76-49C1-B5A9-5864FA1DBADD
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=790F114A-5B76-49C1-B5A9-5864FA1DBADD
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=790F114A-5B76-49C1-B5A9-5864FA1DBADD
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=790F114A-5B76-49C1-B5A9-5864FA1DBADD
https://go.inhere.com/DocLink/Document?guid=790F114A-5B76-49C1-B5A9-5864FA1DBADD


Wire Fraud Alert Page 1
Original Effective Date:  5/11/2017
Current Version Date:  5/11/2017 WIRE0016 (DSI Rev. 12/07/17)

TM and © Fidelity National Financial, Inc. and/or an affiliate. All rights reserved

Wire Fraud Alert
This Notice is not intended to provide legal or professional advice. If you have any questions, please consult with a lawyer.

All parties to a real estate transaction are targets for wire fraud and many have lost hundreds of thousands of dollars 
because they simply relied on the wire instructions received via email, without further verification. If funds are to be 
wired in conjunction with this real estate transaction, we strongly recommend verbal verification of wire 
instructions through a known, trusted phone number prior to sending funds.

In addition, the following non‐exclusive self‐protection strategies are recommended to minimize exposure to possible wire 
fraud.

 NEVER RELY on emails purporting to change wire instructions. Parties to a transaction rarely change wire 
instructions in the course of a transaction.

 ALWAYS VERIFY wire instructions, specifically the ABA routing number and account number, by calling the party 
who sent the instructions to you. DO NOT use the phone number provided in the email containing the instructions, 
use phone numbers you have called before or can otherwise verify. Obtain the phone number of relevant 
parties to the transaction as soon as an escrow account is opened. DO NOT send an email to verify as the 
email address may be incorrect or the email may be intercepted by the fraudster. 

 USE COMPLEX EMAIL PASSWORDS that employ a combination of mixed case, numbers, and symbols. Make 
your passwords greater than eight (8) characters. Also, change your password often and do NOT reuse the same 
password for other online accounts. 

 USE MULTI-FACTOR AUTHENTICATION for email accounts. Your email provider or IT staff may have specific 
instructions on how to implement this feature. 

For more information on wire‐fraud scams or to report an incident, please refer to the following links:

Federal Bureau of Investigation: Internet Crime Complaint Center:
http://www.fbi.gov http://www.ic3.gov

http://www.fbi.gov/
http://www.ic3.gov/


4210 Riverwalk Parkway, Suite 100
Riverside, CA 92505

Phone:  (951) 710-5944
Fax:  (951) 710-5955

Notice of Available Discounts (Rev. 01-15-20) Last Saved:  April 2, 2024 by EL2
MISC0164 (DSI Rev. 03/12/20) Escrow No.: 30112060-010-VR2-BAM

Notice of Available Discounts

Pursuant to Section 2355.3 in Title 10 of the California Code of Regulations Fidelity National Financial, Inc. and its 
subsidiaries ("FNF") must deliver a notice of each discount available under our current rate filing along with the 
delivery of escrow instructions, a preliminary report or commitment.  Please be aware that the provision of this 
notice does not constitute a waiver of the consumer's right to be charged the filed rate.   As such, your transaction 
may not qualify for the below discounts.

You are encouraged to discuss the applicability of one or more of the below discounts with a Company 
representative.  These discounts are generally described below; consult the rate manual for a full description of 
the terms, conditions and requirements for such discount.  These discounts only apply to transactions involving 
services rendered by the FNF Family of Companies.  This notice only applies to transactions involving property 
improved with a one-to-four family residential dwelling.

Not all discounts are offered by every FNF Company. The discount will only be applicable to the FNF Company 
as indicated by the named discount.

FNF Underwritten Title Company Underwritten by FNF Underwriters
CTC – Chicago Title company CTIC – Chicago Title Insurance Company
CLTC – Commonwealth Land Title Company CLTIC - Commonwealth Land Title Insurance Company
FNTC – Fidelity National Title Company of California FNTIC – Fidelity National Title Insurance Company
FNTCCA - Fidelity National Title Company of California FNTIC - Fidelity National Title Insurance Company
TICOR – Ticor Title Company of California CTIC – Chicago Title Insurance Company
LTC – Lawyer’s Title Company CLTIC – Commonwealth Land Title Insurance Company
SLTC – ServiceLink Title Company CTIC – Chicago Title Insurance Company

Available Discounts
DISASTER LOANS (CTIC, CLTIC, FNTIC)
The charge for a Lender's Policy (Standard or Extended coverage) covering the financing or refinancing by an 
owner of record, within twenty-four (24) months of the date of a declaration of a disaster area by the government 
of the United States or the State of California on any land located in said area, which was partially or totally 
destroyed in the disaster, will be fifty percent (50%) of the appropriate title insurance rate.

CHURCHES OR CHARITABLE NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATIONS (CTIC, FNTIC)
On properties used as a church or for charitable purposes within the scope of the normal activities of such 
entities, provided said charge is normally the church's obligation the charge for an owner's policy shall be fifty 
percent (50%) to seventy percent (70%) of the appropriate title insurance rate, depending on the type of coverage 
selected. The charge for a lender's policy shall be forty (40%) to fifty percent (50%) of the appropriate title 
insurance rate, depending on the type of coverage selected.



  

Attachment One – CA (Rev. 11-04-22) Last Saved:  4/2/2024 12:24 PM by EL2
MISC0267 (DSI Rev. 3/16/23) Page 1 Order No. : 30112060-010-VR2-BAM

ATTACHMENT ONE

CALIFORNIA LAND TITLE ASSOCIATION
STANDARD COVERAGE POLICY – 1990 (11-09-18)

EXCLUSIONS FROM COVERAGE
The following matters are expressly excluded from the coverage of this policy and the Company will not pay loss or damage, costs, attorneys' fees or 
expenses which arise by reason of: 
1. (a) Any law, ordinance or governmental regulation (including but not limited to building or zoning laws, ordinances, or regulations) restricting, 

regulating, prohibiting or relating (i) the occupancy, use, or enjoyment of the land; (ii) the character, dimensions or location of any improvement 
now or hereafter erected on the land; (iii) a separation in ownership or a change in the dimensions or area of the land or any parcel of which 
the land is or was a part; or (iv) environmental protection, or the effect of any violation of these laws, ordinances or governmental regulations, 
except to the extent that a notice of the enforcement thereof or a notice of a defect, lien, or encumbrance resulting from a violation or alleged 
violation affecting the land has been recorded in the public records at Date of Policy. 

(b) Any governmental police power not excluded by (a) above, except to the extent that a notice of the exercise thereof or notice of a defect, lien 
or encumbrance resulting from a violation or alleged violation affecting the land has been recorded in the public records at Date of Policy. 

2. Rights of eminent domain unless notice of the exercise thereof has been recorded in the public records at Date of Policy, but not excluding from 
coverage any taking which has occurred prior to Date of Policy which would be binding on the rights of a purchaser for value without knowledge. 

3. Defects, liens, encumbrances, adverse claims or other matters: 
(a) whether or not recorded in the public records at Date of Policy, but created, suffered, assumed or agreed to by the insured claimant; 
(b) not known to the Company, not recorded in the public records at Date of Policy, but known to the insured claimant and not disclosed in writing 

to the Company by the insured claimant prior to the date the insured claimant became an insured under this policy; 
(c) resulting in no loss or damage to the insured claimant; 
(d) attaching or created subsequent to Date of Policy; or 
(e) resulting in loss or damage which would not have been sustained if the insured claimant had paid value for the insured mortgage or for the 

estate or interest insured by this policy. 
4. Unenforceability of the lien of the insured mortgage because of the inability or failure of the insured at Date of Policy, or the inability or failure of any 

subsequent owner of the indebtedness, to comply with the applicable doing business laws of the state in which the land is situated. 
5. Invalidity or unenforceability of the lien of the insured mortgage, or claim thereof, which arises out of the transaction evidenced by the insured 

mortgage and is based upon usury or any consumer credit protection or truth in lending law. 
6. Any claim, which arises out of the transaction vesting in the insured the estate of interest insured by this policy or the transaction creating the 

interest of the insured lender, by reason of the operation of federal bankruptcy, state insolvency or similar creditors' rights laws. 

EXCEPTIONS FROM COVERAGE - SCHEDULE B, PART I 
This policy does not insure against loss or damage (and the Company will not pay costs, attorneys' fees or expenses) which arise by reason of: 
1. Taxes or assessments which are not shown as existing liens by the records of any taxing authority that levies taxes or assessments on real 

property or by the public records. 
Proceedings by a public agency which may result in taxes or assessments, or notices of such proceedings, whether or not shown by the records of 
such agency or by the public records. 

2. Any facts, rights, interests, or claims which are not shown by the public records but which could be ascertained by an inspection of the land or 
which may be asserted by persons in possession thereof. 

3. Easements, liens or encumbrances, or claims thereof, not shown by the public records. 
4. Discrepancies, conflicts in boundary lines, shortage in area, encroachments, or any other facts which a correct survey would disclose, and which 

are not shown by the public records. 
5. (a) Unpatented mining claims; (b) reservations or exceptions in patents or in Acts authorizing the issuance thereof; (c) water rights, claims or title to 

water, whether or not the matters excepted under (a), (b) or (c) are shown by the public records. 
6. Any lien or right to a lien for services, labor or material unless such lien is shown by the public records at Date of Policy. 

EXCEPTIONS FROM COVERAGE - SCHEDULE B, PART II
(Variable exceptions such as taxes, easements, CC&R’s, etc., are inserted here)

CALIFORNIA LAND TITLE ASSOCIATION 
STANDARD COVERAGE OWNER’S POLICY (02-04-22) 

EXCLUSIONS FROM COVERAGE 

The following matters are excluded from the coverage of this policy, and the Company will not pay loss or damage, costs, attorneys’ fees, or expenses 
that arise by reason of: 
1. a. any law, ordinance, permit, or governmental regulation (including those relating to building and zoning) that restricts, regulates, prohibits, or 

relates to: 
i. the occupancy, use, or enjoyment of the Land; 
ii. the character, dimensions, or location of any improvement on the Land; 
iii. the subdivision of land; or 
iv. environmental remediation or protection. 

b. any governmental forfeiture, police, regulatory, or national security power. 
c. the effect of a violation or enforcement of any matter excluded under Exclusion 1.a. or 1.b. Exclusion 1 does not modify or limit the coverage 

provided under Covered Risk 5 or 6. 
2. Any power of eminent domain. Exclusion 2 does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 7. 
3. Any defect, lien, encumbrance, adverse claim, or other matter: 



  

Attachment One – CA (Rev. 11-04-22) Last Saved:  4/2/2024 12:24 PM by EL2
MISC0267 (DSI Rev. 3/16/23) Page 2 Order No. : 30112060-010-VR2-BAM

a. created, suffered, assumed, or agreed to by the Insured Claimant; 
b. not Known to the Company, not recorded in the Public Records at the Date of Policy, but Known to the Insured Claimant and not disclosed in 

writing to the Company by the Insured Claimant prior to the date the Insured Claimant became an Insured under this policy; 
c. resulting in no loss or damage to the Insured Claimant; 
d. attaching or created subsequent to the Date of Policy (Exclusion 3.d. does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 9 or 

10); or 
e. resulting in loss or damage that would not have been sustained if consideration sufficient to qualify the Insured named in Schedule A as a 

bona fide purchaser had been given for the Title at the Date of Policy. 
4. Any claim, by reason of the operation of federal bankruptcy, state insolvency, or similar creditors’ rights law, that the transaction vesting the Title as 

shown in Schedule A is a: 
a. fraudulent conveyance or fraudulent transfer; 
b. voidable transfer under the Uniform Voidable Transactions Act; or 
c. preferential transfer: 

i. to the extent the instrument of transfer vesting the Title as shown in Schedule A is not a transfer made as a contemporaneous exchange 
for new value; or 

ii. for any other reason not stated in Covered Risk 9.b. 
5. Any claim of a PACA-PSA Trust. Exclusion 5 does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 8. 
6. Any lien on the Title for real estate taxes or assessments imposed or collected by a governmental authority that becomes due and payable after the 

Date of Policy. Exclusion 6 does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 2.b. 
7. Any discrepancy in the quantity of the area, square footage, or acreage of the Land or of any improvement to the Land. 

EXCEPTIONS FROM COVERAGE 
Some historical land records contain Discriminatory Covenants that are illegal and unenforceable by law. This policy treats any 
Discriminatory Covenant in a document referenced in Schedule B as if each Discriminatory Covenant is redacted, repudiated, removed, and 
not republished or recirculated. Only the remaining provisions of the document are excepted from coverage. 

This policy does not insure against loss or damage and the Company will not pay costs, attorneys’ fees, or expenses resulting from the terms and 
conditions of any lease or easement identified in Schedule A, and the following matters: 

PART I 
1. (a) Taxes or assessments that are not shown as existing liens by the records of any taxing authority that levies taxes or assessments on real 

property or by the Public Records; (b) proceedings by a public agency that may result in taxes or assessments, or notices of such proceedings, 
whether or not shown by the records of such agency or by the Public Records. 

2. Any facts, rights, interests, or claims that are not shown by the Public Records at Date of Policy but that could be (a) ascertained by an inspection 
of the Land, or (b) asserted by persons or parties in possession of the Land. 

3. Easements, liens or encumbrances, or claims thereof, not shown by the Public Records at Date of Policy. 
4. Any encroachment, encumbrance, violation, variation, easement, or adverse circumstance affecting the Title that would be disclosed by an 

accurate and complete land survey of the Land and not shown by the Public Records at Date of Policy. 
5. (a) Unpatented mining claims; (b) reservations or exceptions in patents or in Acts authorizing the issuance thereof; (c) water rights, claims or title to 

water, whether or not the matters excepted under (a), (b), or (c) are shown by the Public Records. 
6. Any lien or right to a lien for services, labor, material or equipment unless such lien is shown by the Public Records at Date of Policy. 
7. Any claim to (a) ownership of or rights to minerals and similar substances, including but not limited to ores, metals, coal, lignite, oil, gas, uranium, 

clay, rock, sand, and gravel located in, on, or under the Land or produced from the Land, whether such ownership or rights arise by lease, grant, 
exception, conveyance, reservation, or otherwise; and (b) any rights, privileges, immunities, rights of way, and easements associated therewith or 
appurtenant thereto, whether or not the interests or rights excepted in (a) or (b) appear in the Public Records or are shown in Schedule B. 

PART II 

(Variable exceptions such as taxes, easements, CC&R’s, etc., are inserted here) 

CLTA/ALTA HOMEOWNER’S POLICY OF TITLE INSURANCE (07-01-2021) 

EXCLUSIONS FROM COVERAGE 
The following matters are excluded from the coverage of this policy and We will not pay loss or damage, costs, attorneys' fees, or expenses that arise by 
reason of: 
1. a. any law, ordinance, permit, or governmental regulation (including those relating to building and zoning) that restricts, regulates, prohibits, or 

relates to: 
i. the occupancy, use, or enjoyment of the Land; 
ii. the character, dimensions, or location of any improvement on the Land; 
iii. the subdivision of land; or 
iv. environmental remediation or protection. 

b. any governmental forfeiture, police, or regulatory, or national security power. 
c. the effect of a violation or enforcement of any matter excluded under Exclusion 1.a. or 1.b. Exclusion 1 does not modify or limit the coverage 

provided under Covered Risk 8.a., 14, 15, 16, 18, 19, 20, 23, or 27. 
2. Any power to take the Land by condemnation. Exclusion 2 does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 17. 
3. Any defect, lien, encumbrance, adverse claim, or other matter: 

a. created, suffered, assumed, or agreed to by You; 
b. not Known to Us, not recorded in the Public Records at the Date of Policy, but Known to You and not disclosed in writing to Us by You prior to 

the date You became an Insured under this policy; 
c. resulting in no loss or damage to You; 



  

Attachment One – CA (Rev. 11-04-22) Last Saved:  4/2/2024 12:24 PM by EL2
MISC0267 (DSI Rev. 3/16/23) Page 3 Order No. : 30112060-010-VR2-BAM

d. attaching or created subsequent to the Date of Policy (Exclusion 3.d. does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 5, 
8.f., 25, 26, 27, 28, or 32); or 

e. resulting in loss or damage that would not have been sustained if You paid consideration sufficient to qualify You as a bona fide purchaser of 
the Title at the Date of Policy. 

4. Lack of a right: 
a. to any land outside the area specifically described and referred to in Item 3 of Schedule A; and 
b. in any street, road, avenue, alley, lane, right-of-way, body of water, or waterway that abut the Land. 
Exclusion 4 does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 11 or 21. 

5. The failure of Your existing structures, or any portion of Your existing structures, to have been constructed before, on, or after the Date of Policy in 
accordance with applicable building codes. Exclusion 5 does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 14 or 15. 

6. Any claim, by reason of the operation of federal bankruptcy, state insolvency, or similar creditors’ rights law, that the transfer of the Title to You is a: 
a. fraudulent conveyance or fraudulent transfer; 
b. voidable transfer under the Uniform Voidable Transactions Act; or 
c. preferential transfer: 

i. to the extent the instrument of transfer vesting the Title as shown in Schedule A is not a transfer made as a contemporaneous exchange 
for new value; or 

ii. for any other reason not stated in Covered Risk 30. 
7. Contamination, explosion, fire, flooding, vibration, fracturing, earthquake, or subsidence. 
8. Negligence by a person or an entity exercising a right to extract or develop oil, gas, minerals, groundwater, or any other subsurface substance. 
9. Any lien on Your Title for real estate taxes or assessments imposed or collected by a governmental authority that becomes due and payable after 

the Date of Policy. Exclusion 9 does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 8.a. or 27. 
10. Any discrepancy in the quantity of the area, square footage, or acreage of the Land or of any improvement to the Land. 

LIMITATIONS ON COVERED RISKS 
Your insurance for the following Covered Risks is limited on the Owner’s Coverage Statement as follows: 

• For Covered Risk 16, 18, 19, and 21 Your Deductible Amount and Our Maximum Dollar Limit of Liability shown in Schedule A. 
The deductible amounts and maximum dollar limits shown on Schedule A are as follows: 

Your Deductible Amount
Our Maximum Dollar
Limit of Liability

Covered Risk 16: 1.00% of Policy Amount Shown in Schedule A or $2,500.00 
(whichever is less)

$10,000.00

Covered Risk 18: 1.00% of Policy Amount Shown in Schedule A or $5,000.00 
(whichever is less)

$25,000.00

Covered Risk 19: 1.00% of Policy Amount Shown in Schedule A or $5,000.00 
(whichever is less)

$25,000.00

Covered Risk 21: 1.00% of Policy Amount Shown in Schedule A or $2,500.00 
(whichever is less)

$5,000.00

CLTA/ALTA HOMEOWNER'S POLICY OF TITLE INSURANCE (12-02-13) 

EXCLUSIONS 
In addition to the Exceptions in Schedule B, You are not insured against loss, costs, attorneys' fees, and expenses resulting from: 
1. Governmental police power, and the existence or violation of those portions of any law or government regulation concerning: 

a. building; 
b. zoning; 
c. land use;     
d. improvements on the Land; 
e. land division; and 
f. environmental protection. 
This Exclusion does not limit the coverage described in Covered Risk 8.a., 14, 15, 16, 18, 19, 20, 23 or 27. 

2. The failure of Your existing structures, or any part of them, to be constructed in accordance with applicable building codes.  This Exclusion does not 
limit the coverage described in Covered Risk 14 or 15. 

3. The right to take the Land by condemning it.  This Exclusion does not limit the coverage described in Covered Risk 17. 
4. Risks: 

a. that are created, allowed, or agreed to by You, whether or not they are recorded in the Public Records; 
b. that are Known to You at the Policy Date, but not to Us, unless they are recorded in the Public Records at the Policy Date; 
c. that result in no loss to You; or 
d. that first occur after the Policy Date - this does not limit the coverage described in Covered Risk 7, 8.e., 25, 26, 27 or 28. 

5. Failure to pay value for Your Title.   
6. Lack of a right: 

a. to any land outside the area specifically described and referred to in paragraph 3 of Schedule A; and 
b. in streets, alleys, or waterways that touch the Land. 
This Exclusion does not limit the coverage described in Covered Risk 11 or 21. 

7. The transfer of the Title to You is invalid as a preferential transfer or as a fraudulent transfer or conveyance under federal bankruptcy, state 
insolvency, or similar creditors’ rights laws. 

8. Contamination, explosion, fire, flooding, vibration, fracturing, earthquake, or subsidence. 
9. Negligence by a person or an Entity exercising a right to extract or develop minerals, water, or any other substances. 

LIMITATIONS ON COVERED RISKS 
Your insurance for the following Covered Risks is limited on the Owner’s Coverage Statement as follows: 

• For Covered Risk 16, 18, 19, and 21 Your Deductible Amount and Our Maximum Dollar Limit of Liability shown in Schedule A. 
The deductible amounts and maximum dollar limits shown on Schedule A are as follows: 

Our Maximum Dollar



  

Attachment One – CA (Rev. 11-04-22) Last Saved:  4/2/2024 12:24 PM by EL2
MISC0267 (DSI Rev. 3/16/23) Page 4 Order No. : 30112060-010-VR2-BAM

Your Deductible Amount Limit of Liability
Covered Risk 16: 1.00% of Policy Amount Shown in Schedule A or $2,500.00 

(whichever is less)
$10,000.00

Covered Risk 18: 1.00% of Policy Amount Shown in Schedule A or $5,000.00 
(whichever is less)

$25,000.00

Covered Risk 19: 1.00% of Policy Amount Shown in Schedule A or $5,000.00 
(whichever is less)

$25,000.00

Covered Risk 21: 1.00% of Policy Amount Shown in Schedule A or $2,500.00 
(whichever is less)

$5,000.00

ALTA OWNER’S POLICY (07-01-2021) 

EXCLUSIONS FROM COVERAGE 
The following matters are excluded from the coverage of this policy, and the Company will not pay loss or damage, costs, attorneys’ fees, or expenses 
that arise by reason of: 
1. a. any law, ordinance, permit, or governmental regulation (including those relating to building and zoning) that restricts, regulates, prohibits, or 

relates to: 
i. the occupancy, use, or enjoyment of the Land; 
ii. the character, dimensions, or location of any improvement on the Land; 
iii. the subdivision of land; or 
iv. environmental remediation or protection. 

b. any governmental forfeiture, police, regulatory, or national security power. 
c. the effect of a violation or enforcement of any matter excluded under Exclusion 1.a. or 1.b. Exclusion 1 does not modify or limit the coverage 

provided under Covered Risk 5 or 6. 
2. Any power of eminent domain. Exclusion 2 does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 7. 
3. Any defect, lien, encumbrance, adverse claim, or other matter: 

a. created, suffered, assumed, or agreed to by the Insured Claimant; 
b. not Known to the Company, not recorded in the Public Records at the Date of Policy, but Known to the Insured Claimant and not disclosed in 

writing to the Company by the Insured Claimant prior to the date the Insured Claimant became an Insured under this policy; 
c. resulting in no loss or damage to the Insured Claimant; 
d. attaching or created subsequent to the Date of Policy (Exclusion 3.d. does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 9 or 

10); or 
e. resulting in loss or damage that would not have been sustained if consideration sufficient to qualify the Insured named in Schedule A as a 

bona fide purchaser had been given for the Title at the Date of Policy. 
4. Any claim, by reason of the operation of federal bankruptcy, state insolvency, or similar creditors’ rights law, that the transaction vesting the Title as 

shown in Schedule A is a: 
a. fraudulent conveyance or fraudulent transfer; 
b. voidable transfer under the Uniform Voidable Transactions Act; or 
c. preferential transfer: 

i. to the extent the instrument of transfer vesting the Title as shown in Schedule A is not a transfer made as a contemporaneous exchange 
for new value; or 

ii. for any other reason not stated in Covered Risk 9.b. 
5. Any claim of a PACA-PSA Trust. Exclusion 5 does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 8. 
6. Any lien on the Title for real estate taxes or assessments imposed or collected by a governmental authority that becomes due and payable 

after the Date of Policy. Exclusion 6 does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 2.b. 
7. Any discrepancy in the quantity of the area, square footage, or acreage of the Land or of any improvement to the Land. 

EXCEPTIONS FROM COVERAGE 
Some historical land records contain Discriminatory Covenants that are illegal and unenforceable by law. This policy treats any 
Discriminatory Covenant in a document referenced in Schedule B as if each Discriminatory Covenant is redacted, repudiated, removed, and 
not republished or recirculated. Only the remaining provisions of the document are excepted from coverage. 

This policy does not insure against loss or damage and the Company will not pay costs, attorneys’ fees, or expenses resulting from the terms and 
conditions of any lease or easement identified in Schedule A, and the following matters: 

NOTE: The 2021 ALTA Owner’s Policy may be issued to afford either Standard Coverage or Extended Coverage. In addition to variable exceptions such 
as taxes, easements, CC&R’s, etc., the Exceptions from Coverage in a Standard Coverage policy will also include the Western Regional Standard 
Coverage Exceptions listed as 1 through 7 below: 

1. (a) Taxes or assessments that are not shown as existing liens by the records of any taxing authority that levies taxes or assessments on real 
property or by the Public Records; (b) proceedings by a public agency that may result in taxes or assessments, or notices of such 
proceedings, whether or not shown by the records of such agency or by the Public Records. 

2. Any facts, rights, interests, or claims that are not shown by the Public Records at Date of Policy but that could be (a) ascertained by an inspection 
of the Land or (b) asserted by persons or parties in possession of the Land. 

3. Easements, liens or encumbrances, or claims thereof, not shown by the Public Records at Date of Policy. 
4. Any encroachment, encumbrance, violation, variation, easement, or adverse circumstance affecting the Title that would be disclosed by an 

accurate and complete land survey of the Land and not shown by the Public Records at Date of Policy. 
5. (a) Unpatented mining claims; (b) reservations or exceptions in patents or in Acts authorizing the issuance thereof; (c) water rights, claims or title to 

water, whether or not the matters excepted under (a), (b), or (c) are shown by the Public Records. 
6. Any lien or right to a lien for services, labor, material or equipment unless such lien is shown by the Public Records at Date of Policy. 
7. Any claim to (a) ownership of or rights to minerals and similar substances, including but not limited to ores, metals, coal, lignite, oil, gas, uranium, 

clay, rock, sand, and gravel located in, on, or under the Land or produced from the Land, whether such ownership or rights arise by lease, grant, 
exception, conveyance, reservation, or otherwise; and (b) any rights, privileges, immunities, rights of way, and easements associated therewith or 
appurtenant thereto, whether or not the interests or rights excepted in (a) or (b) appear in the Public Records or are shown in Schedule B 



  

Attachment One – CA (Rev. 11-04-22) Last Saved:  4/2/2024 12:24 PM by EL2
MISC0267 (DSI Rev. 3/16/23) Page 5 Order No. : 30112060-010-VR2-BAM

2006 ALTA OWNER’S POLICY (06-17-06) 

EXCLUSIONS FROM COVERAGE 
The following matters are expressly excluded from the coverage of this policy, and the Company will not pay loss or damage, costs, attorneys' fees, or 
expenses that arise by reason of:  
1. (a) Any law, ordinance, permit, or governmental regulation (including those relating to building and zoning) restricting, regulating, prohibiting, or 

relating to 
(i) the occupancy, use, or enjoyment of the Land;  
(ii) the character, dimensions, or location of any improvement erected on the Land;  
(iii) the subdivision of land; or  
(iv) environmental protection;   
or the effect of any violation of these laws, ordinances, or governmental regulations.  This Exclusion 1(a) does not modify or limit the coverage 
provided under Covered Risk 5.  

(b) Any governmental police power.  This Exclusion 1(b) does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 6. 
2. Rights of eminent domain.  This Exclusion does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 7 or 8.    
3. Defects, liens, encumbrances, adverse claims, or other matters  

(a) created, suffered, assumed, or agreed to by the Insured Claimant;  
(b) not Known to the Company, not recorded in the Public Records at Date of Policy, but Known to the Insured Claimant and not disclosed in 

writing to the Company by the Insured Claimant prior to the date the Insured Claimant became an Insured under this policy;  
(c) resulting in no loss or damage to the Insured Claimant;  
(d) attaching or created subsequent to Date of Policy (however, this does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 9 and 10); 

or  
(e) resulting in loss or damage that would not have been sustained if the Insured Claimant had paid value for the Title.  

4. Any claim, by reason of the operation of federal bankruptcy, state insolvency, or similar creditors’ rights laws, that the transaction vesting the Title 
as shown in Schedule A, is 
(a) a fraudulent conveyance or fraudulent transfer; or 
(b) a preferential transfer for any reason not stated in Covered Risk 9 of this policy.  

5. Any lien on the Title for real estate taxes or assessments imposed by governmental authority and created or attaching between Date of Policy and 
the date of recording of the deed or other instrument of transfer in the Public Records that vests Title as shown in Schedule A. 

EXCEPTIONS FROM COVERAGE 
This policy does not insure against loss or damage, and the Company will not pay costs, attorneys’ fees or expenses, that arise by reason of: 

NOTE: The 2006 ALTA Owner’s Policy may be issued to afford either Standard Coverage or Extended Coverage. In addition to variable exceptions such 
as taxes, easements, CC&R’s, etc., the Exceptions from Coverage in a Standard Coverage policy will also include the Western Regional Standard 
Coverage Exceptions listed below as 1 through 7 below: 

1. (a) Taxes or assessments that are not shown as existing liens by the records of any taxing authority that levies taxes or assessments on real 
property or by the Public Records; (b) proceedings by a public agency that may result in taxes or assessments, or notices of such 
proceedings, whether or not shown by the records of such agency or by the Public Records. 

2. Any facts, rights, interests, or claims that are not shown by the Public Records at Date of Policy but that could be (a) ascertained by an inspection 
of the Land, or (b) asserted by persons or parties in possession of the Land. 

3. Easements, liens or encumbrances, or claims thereof, not shown by the Public Records at Date of Policy. 
4. Any encroachment, encumbrance, violation, variation, easement, or adverse circumstance affecting the Title that would be disclosed by an 

accurate and complete land survey of the Land and not shown by the Public Records at Date of Policy. 
5. (a) Unpatented mining claims; (b) reservations or exceptions in patents or in Acts authorizing the issuance thereof; (c) water rights, claims or title to 

water, whether or not the matters excepted under (a), (b), or (c) are shown by the Public Records. 
6. Any lien or right to a lien for services, labor, material or equipment unless such lien is shown by the Public Records at Date of Policy. 
7. Any claim to (a) ownership of or rights to minerals and similar substances, including but not limited to ores, metals, coal, lignite, oil, gas, uranium, 

clay, rock, sand, and gravel located in, on, or under the Land or produced from the Land, whether such ownership or rights arise by lease, grant, 
exception, conveyance, reservation, or otherwise; and (b) any rights, privileges, immunities, rights of way, and easements associated therewith or 
appurtenant thereto, whether or not the interests or rights excepted in (a) or (b) appear in the Public Records or are shown in Schedule B. 



 

 

  



 

Owner’s Declaration Printed:  6/27/2017 2:26 PM by EL2
MISC0220 (DSI Rev. 10/17/17) Page 2 Escrow No. : 30112060-010-VR2

OWNER'S DECLARATION
Escrow No.: 30112060-010-VR2-BAM
Property Address: Vacant Land

Rancho Mirage, CA 92270
The undersigned hereby declares as follows:
1. (Fill in the applicable paragraph and strike the other)

a. Declarant ("Owner") is the owner or lessee, as the case may be, of certain premises located at Vacant Land, 
Rancho Mirage, CA 92270, further described as follows:  See Preliminary Report/Commitment No.  for full 
legal description (the "Land").

b. Declarant is the ______________________________ of ____________________________________ 
("Owner"), which is the owner or lessee, as the case may be, of certain premises located at Vacant Land, 
Rancho Mirage, CA 92270, further described as follows:  See Preliminary Report/Commitment No.  for full 
legal description (the "Land").

2. (Fill in the applicable paragraph and strike the other)
a. During the period of six months immediately preceding the date of this declaration no work has been done, 

no surveys or architectural or engineering plans have been prepared, and no materials have been furnished 
in connection with the erection, equipment, repair, protection or removal of any building or other structure on 
the Land or in connection with the improvement of the Land in any manner whatsoever.

b. During the period of six months immediately preceding the date of this declaration certain work has been 
done and materials furnished in connection with _________________________ upon the Land in the 
approximate total sum of $__________, but no work whatever remains to be done and no materials remain 
to be furnished to complete the construction in full compliance with the plans and specifications, nor are 
there any unpaid bills incurred for labor and materials used in making such improvements or repairs upon 
the Land, or for the services of architects, surveyors or engineers, except as follows:  
___________________________________________. Owner, by the undersigned Declarant, agrees to and 
does hereby indemnify and hold harmless Fidelity National Title Company against any and all claims arising 
therefrom.

3. Owner has not previously conveyed the Land;  is not a debtor in bankruptcy (and if a partnership, the general partner 
thereof is not a debtor in bankruptcy); and has not received notice of any pending court action affecting the title to the 
Land.

4. Except as shown in the above-referenced Preliminary Report/Commitment, there are no unpaid or unsatisfied 
mortgages, deeds of trust, Uniform Commercial Code financing statements, regular assessments, special 
assessments, periodic assessments or any assessment from any source, claims of lien, special assessments, or 
taxes that constitute a lien against the Land or that affect the Land but have not been recorded in the public records. 
There are no violations of the covenants, conditions and restrictions as shown in the above-referenced Preliminary 
Report/Commitment.

5. The Land is currently in use as _____________________; _______________________ occupy/occupies the Land;  
and the following are all of the leases or other occupancy rights affecting the Land:
___________________________________________________________________________________

6. There are no other persons or entities that assert an ownership interest in the Land, nor are there unrecorded 
easements, claims of easement, or boundary disputes that affect the Land.

7. There are no outstanding options to purchase or rights of first refusal affecting the Land.
8. Between the most recent Effective Date of the above-referenced Preliminary Report/Commitment and the date of 

recording of the Insured Instrument(s), Owner has not taken or allowed, and will not take or allow, any action or 
inaction to encumber or otherwise affect title to the Land.

This declaration is made with the intention that Fidelity National Title Company (the "Company") and its policy issuing agents 
will rely upon it in issuing their title insurance policies and endorsements. Owner, by the undersigned Declarant, agrees to 
indemnify the Company against loss or damage (including attorneys fees, expenses, and costs) incurred by the Company as a 
result of any untrue statement made herein.
I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct and that this declaration was executed on ______ at 
_________________________________.

Signature: ________________________________



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX D 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL DATA RESOURCES, INC. REPORT 
  



FORM-LBC-KKT

®kcehCoeG htiw tropeR  ™paM suidaR RDE ehT

6 Armstrong Road, 4th floor
Shelton, CT 06484
Toll Free: 800.352.0050
www.edrnet.com

Vacant Property
Key Largo Avenue / Dinah Shore Drive
Rancho Mirage, CA  92270

Inquiry Number: 7624121.2s
April 15, 2024



TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION PAGE

Executive Summary ES1

Overview Map 2

Detail Map 3

Map Findings Summary 4

Map Findings 9

Orphan Summary 41

Government Records Searched/Data Currency Tracking GR-1

GEOCHECK ADDENDUM

Physical Setting Source Addendum A-1

Physical Setting Source Summary A-2

Physical Setting SSURGO Soil Map A-5

Physical Setting Source Map A-8

Physical Setting Source Map Findings A-10

Physical Setting Source Records Searched PSGR-1

Thank you for your business.
Please contact EDR at 1-800-352-0050

with any questions or comments.

Disclaimer - Copyright and Trademark Notice

This Report contains certain information obtained from a variety of public and other sources reasonably available to Environmental Data 
Resources, LLC.  It cannot be concluded from this Report that coverage information for the target and surrounding properties does not exist 
from other sources.  This Report is provided on an "AS IS", "AS AVAILABLE" basis. NO WARRANTY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED IS MADE 
WHATSOEVER IN CONNECTION WITH THIS REPORT. ENVIRONMENTAL DATA RESOURCES, LLC AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES, 
AFFILIATES AND THIRD PARTY SUPPLIERS DISCLAIM ALL WARRANTIES, OF ANY KIND OR NATURE, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, 
ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THIS REPORT OR ANY OF THE DATA AND INFORMATION PROVIDED IN THIS REPORT, 
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY WARRANTIES REGARDING ACCURACY, QUALITY, CORRECTNESS, COMPLETENESS, 
COMPREHENSIVENESS, SUITABILITY, MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, TITLE, NON-INFRINGEMENT, 
MISAPPROPRIATION, OR OTHERWISE. ALL RISK IS ASSUMED BY THE USER.  IN NO EVENT SHALL ENVIRONMENTAL DATA 
RESOURCES, LLC OR ITS SUBSIDIARIES, AFFILIATES OR THIRD PARTY SUPPLIERS BE LIABLE TO ANYONE FOR ANY DIRECT, 
INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL OR OTHER DAMAGES OF ANY TYPE OR KIND (INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED 
TO LOSS OF PROFITS, LOSS OF USE, OR LOSS OF DATA) INFORMATION PROVIDED IN THIS REPORT. Any analyses, estimates, 
ratings, environmental risk levels, or risk codes provided in this Report are provided for illustrative purposes only, and are not intended to 
provide, nor should they be interpreted as providing any facts regarding, or prediction or forecast of, any environmental risk for any property. 
Only an assessment performed by a qualified environmental professional can provide findings, opinions or conclusions regarding the 
environmental risk or conditions in, on or at any property.

Copyright 2024 by Environmental Data Resources, LLC. All rights reserved. Reproduction in any media or format, in whole or in part, of any
report or map of Environmental Data Resources, LLC, or its affiliates, is prohibited without prior written permission.

EDR and its logos (including Sanborn and Sanborn Map) are trademarks of Environmental Data Resources, LLC or its affiliates. All other
trademarks used herein are the property of their respective owners.

TC7624121.2s   Page 1



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC7624121.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 1

A search of available environmental records was conducted by Environmental Data Resources, Inc (EDR).
The report was designed to assist parties seeking to meet the search requirements of EPA’s Standards
and Practices for All Appropriate Inquiries (40 CFR Part 312), the ASTM Standard Practice for
Environmental Site Assessments (E1527 - 21), the ASTM Standard Practice for Environmental Site
Assessments for Forestland or Rural Property (E2247 - 16), the ASTM Standard Practice for Limited
Environmental Due Diligence: Transaction Screen Process (E1528 - 22) or custom requirements developed
for the evaluation of environmental risk associated with a parcel of real estate.

TARGET PROPERTY INFORMATION

ADDRESS

KEY LARGO AVENUE / DINAH SHORE DRIVE
RANCHO MIRAGE, CA 92270

COORDINATES

33.7968460 - 33˚ 47’ 48.64’’Latitude (North): 
116.3936500 - 116˚ 23’ 37.14’’Longitude (West): 
Zone 11Universal Tranverse Mercator: 
556129.7UTM X (Meters): 
3739602.5UTM Y (Meters): 
308 ft. above sea levelElevation:

USGS TOPOGRAPHIC MAP ASSOCIATED WITH TARGET PROPERTY

50004950 CATHEDRAL CITY, CATarget Property Map:
2021Version Date:

50004258 MYOMA, CAEast Map:
2021Version Date:

AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHY IN THIS REPORT

20200416Portions of Photo from:
USDASource:



7624121.2s   Page  2

9 SUNCRETE ROOFTILE 72470 VARNER ROAD Notify 65 Lower 4969, 0.941, North

8 PALM ELEMENTARY/MIDD GERALD FORD DRIVE/MO ENVIROSTOR, SCH Lower 4333, 0.821, ESE

C7 BEST BUY PAC #1705 34295 MONTEREY AVE CERS HAZ WASTE Lower 1303, 0.247, ENE

C6 BEST BUY PACIFIC SAL 34295 MONTEREY AVE RCRA NonGen / NLR Lower 1303, 0.247, ENE

B5 COSTCO WHOLESALE # 4 72-800 DINAH SHORE D RCRA-SQG Lower 1197, 0.227, NNE

B4 WASHINGTON CLEANERS 72817 DINAH SHORE DR CERS HAZ WASTE, DRYCLEANERS, CERS Lower 1099, 0.208, NNE

A3 CLARKS NUTRITIONAL C 34175 MONTEREY AVE RCRA NonGen / NLR Lower 1091, 0.207, NE

A2 CLARKS NUTRITIONAL C 34175 MONTEREY AVE CERS HAZ WASTE Lower 1091, 0.207, NE

1 HPC-KCB MONTEREY MAR 72771 DINAH SHORE DR RCRA NonGen / NLR Lower 787, 0.149, North

Reg AGUA CALIENTE INDIAN INDIAN RESERV Same 2806, 0.531, WNW

MAPPED SITES SUMMARY

Target Property Address:
KEY LARGO AVENUE / DINAH SHORE DRIVE
RANCHO MIRAGE, CA  92270

Click on Map ID to see full detail.

MAP RELATIVE DIST (ft. & mi.)
ID DATABASE ACRONYMS ELEVATION DIRECTIONSITE NAME ADDRESS



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC7624121.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 3

TARGET PROPERTY SEARCH RESULTS

The target property was not listed in any of the databases searched by EDR.

DATABASES WITH NO MAPPED SITES

No mapped sites were found in EDR’s search of available ("reasonably ascertainable ") government
records either on the target property or within the search radius around the target property for the
following databases:

STANDARD ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Lists of Federal NPL (Superfund) sites

NPL National Priority List
Proposed NPL Proposed National Priority List Sites
NPL LIENS Federal Superfund Liens

Lists of Federal Delisted NPL sites

Delisted NPL National Priority List Deletions

Lists of Federal sites subject to CERCLA removals and CERCLA orders

FEDERAL FACILITY Federal Facility Site Information listing
SEMS Superfund Enterprise Management System

Lists of Federal CERCLA sites with NFRAP

SEMS-ARCHIVE Superfund Enterprise Management System Archive

Lists of Federal RCRA facilities undergoing Corrective Action

CORRACTS Corrective Action Report

Lists of Federal RCRA TSD facilities

RCRA-TSDF RCRA - Treatment, Storage and Disposal

Lists of Federal RCRA generators

RCRA-LQG RCRA - Large Quantity Generators
RCRA-VSQG RCRA - Very Small Quantity Generators (Formerly Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity
                                                Generators)

Federal institutional controls / engineering controls registries

LUCIS Land Use Control Information System
US ENG CONTROLS Engineering Controls Sites List



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC7624121.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 4

US INST CONTROLS Institutional Controls Sites List

Federal ERNS list

ERNS Emergency Response Notification System

Lists of state- and tribal (Superfund) equivalent sites

RESPONSE State Response Sites

Lists of state and tribal landfills and solid waste disposal facilities

SWF/LF Solid Waste Information System

Lists of state and tribal leaking storage tanks

LUST Geotracker’s Leaking Underground Fuel Tank Report
INDIAN LUST Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
CPS-SLIC Statewide SLIC Cases

Lists of state and tribal registered storage tanks

FEMA UST Underground Storage Tank Listing
UST Active UST Facilities
AST Aboveground Petroleum Storage Tank Facilities
INDIAN UST Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land

Lists of state and tribal voluntary cleanup sites

INDIAN VCP Voluntary Cleanup Priority Listing
VCP Voluntary Cleanup Program Properties

Lists of state and tribal brownfield sites

BROWNFIELDS Considered Brownfieds Sites Listing

ADDITIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Local Brownfield lists

US BROWNFIELDS A Listing of Brownfields Sites

Local Lists of Landfill / Solid Waste Disposal Sites

WMUDS/SWAT Waste Management Unit Database
SWRCY Recycler Database
HAULERS Registered Waste Tire Haulers Listing
INDIAN ODI Report on the Status of Open Dumps on Indian Lands
ODI Open Dump Inventory
DEBRIS REGION 9 Torres Martinez Reservation Illegal Dump Site Locations
IHS OPEN DUMPS Open Dumps on Indian Land

Local Lists of Hazardous waste / Contaminated Sites

US HIST CDL Delisted National Clandestine Laboratory Register



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC7624121.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 5

HIST Cal-Sites Historical Calsites Database
SCH School Property Evaluation Program
CDL Clandestine Drug Labs
Toxic Pits Toxic Pits Cleanup Act Sites
US CDL National Clandestine Laboratory Register

Local Lists of Registered Storage Tanks

SWEEPS UST SWEEPS UST Listing
HIST UST Hazardous Substance Storage Container Database
CERS TANKS California Environmental Reporting System (CERS) Tanks
CA FID UST Facility Inventory Database

Local Land Records

LIENS Environmental Liens Listing
LIENS 2 CERCLA Lien Information
DEED Deed Restriction Listing

Records of Emergency Release Reports

HMIRS Hazardous Materials Information Reporting System
CHMIRS California Hazardous Material Incident Report System
LDS Land Disposal Sites Listing
MCS Military Cleanup Sites Listing
SPILLS 90 SPILLS 90 data from FirstSearch

Other Ascertainable Records

FUDS Formerly Used Defense Sites
DOD Department of Defense Sites
SCRD DRYCLEANERS State Coalition for Remediation of Drycleaners Listing
US FIN ASSUR Financial Assurance Information
EPA WATCH LIST EPA WATCH LIST
2020 COR ACTION 2020 Corrective Action Program List
TSCA Toxic Substances Control Act
TRIS Toxic Chemical Release Inventory System
SSTS Section 7 Tracking Systems
ROD Records Of Decision
RMP Risk Management Plans
RAATS RCRA Administrative Action Tracking System
PRP Potentially Responsible Parties
PADS PCB Activity Database System
ICIS Integrated Compliance Information System
FTTS FIFRA/ TSCA Tracking System - FIFRA (Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, & Rodenticide
                                                Act)/TSCA (Toxic Substances Control Act)
MLTS Material Licensing Tracking System
COAL ASH DOE Steam-Electric Plant Operation Data
COAL ASH EPA Coal Combustion Residues Surface Impoundments List
PCB TRANSFORMER PCB Transformer Registration Database
RADINFO Radiation Information Database
HIST FTTS FIFRA/TSCA Tracking System Administrative Case Listing
DOT OPS Incident and Accident Data
CONSENT Superfund (CERCLA) Consent Decrees
FUSRAP Formerly Utilized Sites Remedial Action Program



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC7624121.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 6

UMTRA Uranium Mill Tailings Sites
LEAD SMELTERS Lead Smelter Sites
US AIRS Aerometric Information Retrieval System Facility Subsystem
US MINES Mines Master Index File
ABANDONED MINES Abandoned Mines
MINES MRDS Mineral Resources Data System
FINDS Facility Index System/Facility Registry System
UXO Unexploded Ordnance Sites
DOCKET HWC Hazardous Waste Compliance Docket Listing
ECHO Enforcement & Compliance History Information
FUELS PROGRAM EPA Fuels Program Registered Listing
PFAS NPL Superfund Sites with PFAS Detections Information
PFAS FEDERAL SITES Federal Sites PFAS Information
PFAS TRIS List of PFAS Added to the TRI
PFAS TSCA PFAS Manufacture and Imports Information
PFAS RCRA MANIFEST PFAS Transfers Identified In the RCRA Database Listing
PFAS ATSDR PFAS Contamination Site Location Listing
PFAS WQP Ambient Environmental Sampling for PFAS
PFAS NPDES Clean Water Act Discharge Monitoring Information
PFAS ECHO Facilities in Industries that May Be Handling PFAS Listing
PFAS ECHO FIRE TRAINING Facilities in Industries that May Be Handling PFAS Listing
PFAS PART 139 AIRPORT All Certified Part 139 Airports PFAS Information Listing
AQUEOUS FOAM NRC Aqueous Foam Related Incidents Listing
BIOSOLIDS ICIS-NPDES Biosolids Facility Data
PFAS PFAS Contamination Site Location Listing
AQUEOUS FOAM Former Fire Training Facility Assessments Listing
CA BOND EXP. PLAN Bond Expenditure Plan
CHROME PLATING Chrome Plating Facilities Listing
Cortese "Cortese" Hazardous Waste & Substances Sites List
CUPA Listings CUPA Resources List
EMI Emissions Inventory Data
ENF Enforcement Action Listing
Financial Assurance Financial Assurance Information Listing
ICE Inspection, Compliance and Enforcement
HIST CORTESE Hazardous Waste & Substance Site List
HWP EnviroStor Permitted Facilities Listing
HWT Registered Hazardous Waste Transporter Database
HWTS Hazardous Waste Tracking System
HAZNET Facility and Manifest Data
MINES Mines Site Location Listing
MWMP Medical Waste Management Program Listing
NPDES NPDES Permits Listing
PEST LIC Pesticide Regulation Licenses Listing
PROC Certified Processors Database
HAZMAT Hazardous Material Facilities
UIC UIC Listing
UIC GEO UIC GEO (GEOTRACKER)
WASTEWATER PITS Oil Wastewater Pits Listing
WDS Waste Discharge System
WIP Well Investigation Program Case List
MILITARY PRIV SITES MILITARY PRIV SITES (GEOTRACKER)
PROJECT PROJECT (GEOTRACKER)
WDR Waste Discharge Requirements Listing
CIWQS California Integrated Water Quality System
CERS CERS



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC7624121.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 7

NON-CASE INFO NON-CASE INFO (GEOTRACKER)
OTHER OIL GAS OTHER OIL & GAS (GEOTRACKER)
PROD WATER PONDS PROD WATER PONDS (GEOTRACKER)
SAMPLING POINT SAMPLING POINT (GEOTRACKER)
WELL STIM PROJ Well Stimulation Project (GEOTRACKER)
UST FINDER UST Finder Database
UST FINDER RELEASE UST Finder Releases Database

EDR HIGH RISK HISTORICAL RECORDS

EDR Exclusive Records

EDR MGP EDR Proprietary Manufactured Gas Plants
EDR Hist Auto EDR Exclusive Historical Auto Stations
EDR Hist Cleaner EDR Exclusive Historical Cleaners

EDR RECOVERED GOVERNMENT ARCHIVES

Exclusive Recovered Govt. Archives

RGA LF Recovered Government Archive Solid Waste Facilities List
RGA LUST Recovered Government Archive Leaking Underground Storage Tank

SURROUNDING SITES: SEARCH RESULTS

Surrounding sites were identified in the following databases.

Elevations have been determined from the USGS Digital Elevation Model and should be evaluated on
a relative (not an absolute) basis. Relative elevation information between sites of close proximity
should be field verified. Sites with an elevation equal to or higher than the target property have been
differentiated below from sites with an elevation lower than the target property.
Page numbers and map identification numbers refer to the EDR Radius Map report where detailed
data on individual sites can be reviewed.

Sites listed in bold italics are in multiple databases.

Unmappable (orphan) sites are not considered in the foregoing analysis.

STANDARD ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Lists of Federal RCRA generators

RCRA-SQG: RCRAInfo is EPA’s comprehensive information system, providing access to data supporting
the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) of 1976 and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA)
of 1984.  The database includes selective information on sites which generate, transport, store, treat and/or
dispose of hazardous waste as defined by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA).  Small quantity
generators (SQGs) generate between 100 kg and 1,000 kg of hazardous waste per month.

     A review of the RCRA-SQG list, as provided by EDR, and dated 12/04/2023 has revealed that there is 1
     RCRA-SQG site  within approximately  0.25 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     COSTCO WHOLESALE # 4   72-800 DINAH SHORE D NNE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.227 mi.) B5 22



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC7624121.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 8

EPA ID:: CAR000005579

Lists of state- and tribal hazardous waste facilities

ENVIROSTOR: The Department of Toxic Substances Control’s (DTSC’s) Site Mitigation and Brownfields
Reuse Program’s (SMBRP’s) EnviroStor database identifes sites that have known contamination or sites for which
there may be reasons to investigate further.  The database includes the following site types: Federal
Superfund sites (National Priorities List (NPL)); State Response, including Military Facilities and State
Superfund; Voluntary Cleanup; and School sites.  EnviroStor provides similar information to the information
that was available in CalSites, and provides additional site information, including, but not limited to,
identification of formerly-contaminated properties that have been released for reuse, properties where
environmental deed restrictions have been recorded to prevent inappropriate land uses, and risk
characterization information that is used to assess potential impacts to public health and the environment at
contaminated sites.

     A review of the ENVIROSTOR list, as provided by EDR, and dated 01/22/2024 has revealed that there is
     1 ENVIROSTOR site  within approximately 1 mile of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     PALM ELEMENTARY/MIDD   GERALD FORD DRIVE/MO ESE 1/2 - 1 (0.821 mi.) 8 37
Facility Id: 33650015
Status: No Action Required

ADDITIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Local Lists of Hazardous waste / Contaminated Sites

CERS HAZ WASTE: List of sites in the California Environmental Protection Agency (CalEPA) Regulated Site
Portal which fall under the Hazardous Chemical Management, Hazardous Waste Onsite Treatment, Household
Hazardous Waste Collection, Hazardous Waste Generator, and RCRA LQ HW Generator programs.

     A review of the CERS HAZ WASTE list, as provided by EDR, and dated 01/16/2024 has revealed that there
     are 3 CERS HAZ WASTE sites within approximately  0.25 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     CLARKS NUTRITIONAL C   34175 MONTEREY AVE NE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.207 mi.) A2 11
     WASHINGTON CLEANERS   72817 DINAH SHORE DR NNE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.208 mi.) B4 16
     BEST BUY PAC #1705   34295 MONTEREY AVE ENE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.247 mi.) C7 35

Other Ascertainable Records

RCRA NonGen / NLR: RCRAInfo is EPA’s comprehensive information system, providing access to data supporting
the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) of 1976 and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA)
of 1984.  The database includes selective information on sites which generate, transport, store, treat and/or
dispose of hazardous waste as defined by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA).  Non-Generators do
not presently generate hazardous waste.

     A review of the RCRA NonGen / NLR list, as provided by EDR, and dated 12/04/2023 has revealed that



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC7624121.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 9

     there are 3 RCRA NonGen / NLR sites within approximately  0.25 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     HPC-KCB MONTEREY MAR   72771 DINAH SHORE DR N 1/8 - 1/4 (0.149 mi.) 1 9
EPA ID:: CAC003013076

     CLARKS NUTRITIONAL C   34175 MONTEREY AVE NE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.207 mi.) A3 14
EPA ID:: CAL000408442

     BEST BUY PACIFIC SAL   34295 MONTEREY AVE ENE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.247 mi.) C6 33
EPA ID:: CAL000435263

INDIAN RESERV: This map layer portrays Indian administered lands of the United States that have any area
equal to or greater than 640 acres.

     A review of the INDIAN RESERV list, as provided by EDR, and dated 12/31/2014 has revealed that there
     is 1 INDIAN RESERV site  within approximately 1 mile of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     AGUA CALIENTE INDIAN    WNW 1/2 - 1 (0.531 mi.) 0 9

DRYCLEANERS: A list of drycleaner related facilities that have EPA ID numbers. These are facilities
with certain SIC codes: power laundries, family and commercial; garment pressing and cleaners’ agents; linen
supply; coin-operated laundries and cleaning; drycleaning plants except rugs; carpet and upholster cleaning;
industrial launderers; laundry and garment services.

     A review of the DRYCLEANERS list, as provided by EDR, has revealed that there is 1 DRYCLEANERS site 
     within approximately  0.25 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     WASHINGTON CLEANERS   72817 DINAH SHORE DR NNE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.208 mi.) B4 16
Database: DRYCLEAN SOUTH COAST, Date of Government Version: 11/14/2023

Notify 65: Listings of all Proposition 65 incidents reported to counties by the State Water Resources
Control Board and the Regional Water Quality Control Board.  This database is no longer updated by the
reporting agency.

     A review of the Notify 65 list, as provided by EDR, and dated 12/06/2023 has revealed that there is 1
     Notify 65 site  within approximately 1 mile of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     SUNCRETE ROOFTILE   72470 VARNER ROAD N 1/2 - 1 (0.941 mi.) 9 40



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC7624121.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 10

There were no unmapped sites in this report.  



EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.

N
at

ur
al

 G
as

2 00

2
0

0

2

0
0

200

240

240

2 4 0

3 2
0

2
8

0

2 80

280

2 8 0

320

320

3
2 0

3 2
0

3

2 0

2 0 0

240

2



EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.

240

280

320

32
0



MAP FINDINGS SUMMARY

Search
TargetDistance Total

Database Property(Miles) < 1/8 1/8 - 1/4 1/4 - 1/2 1/2 - 1 > 1 Plotted

STANDARD ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Lists of Federal NPL (Superfund) sites

    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000NPL
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000Proposed NPL
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000NPL LIENS

Lists of Federal Delisted NPL sites

    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000Delisted NPL

Lists of Federal sites subject to
CERCLA removals and CERCLA orders

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500FEDERAL FACILITY
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500SEMS

Lists of Federal CERCLA sites with NFRAP

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500SEMS-ARCHIVE

Lists of Federal RCRA facilities
undergoing Corrective Action

    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000CORRACTS

Lists of Federal RCRA TSD facilities

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500RCRA-TSDF

Lists of Federal RCRA generators

    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250RCRA-LQG
    1  NR   NR    NR      1    0 0.250RCRA-SQG
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250RCRA-VSQG

Federal institutional controls /
engineering controls registries

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500LUCIS
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500US ENG CONTROLS
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500US INST CONTROLS

Federal ERNS list

    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001ERNS

Lists of state- and tribal
(Superfund) equivalent sites

    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000RESPONSE

Lists of state- and tribal
hazardous waste facilities

    1  NR     1      0      0    0 1.000ENVIROSTOR

Lists of state and tribal landfills
and solid waste disposal facilities

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500SWF/LF

TC7624121.2s   Page 4



MAP FINDINGS SUMMARY

Search
TargetDistance Total

Database Property(Miles) < 1/8 1/8 - 1/4 1/4 - 1/2 1/2 - 1 > 1 Plotted

Lists of state and tribal leaking storage tanks

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500LUST
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500INDIAN LUST
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500CPS-SLIC

Lists of state and tribal registered storage tanks

    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250FEMA UST
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250UST
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250AST
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250INDIAN UST

Lists of state and tribal voluntary cleanup sites

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500INDIAN VCP
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500VCP

Lists of state and tribal brownfield sites

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500BROWNFIELDS

ADDITIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Local Brownfield lists

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500US BROWNFIELDS

Local Lists of Landfill / Solid
Waste Disposal Sites

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500WMUDS/SWAT
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500SWRCY
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001HAULERS
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500INDIAN ODI
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500ODI
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500DEBRIS REGION 9
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500IHS OPEN DUMPS

Local Lists of Hazardous waste /
Contaminated Sites

    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001US HIST CDL
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000HIST Cal-Sites
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250SCH
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001CDL
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000Toxic Pits
    3  NR   NR    NR      3    0 0.250CERS HAZ WASTE
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001US CDL

Local Lists of Registered Storage Tanks

    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250SWEEPS UST
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250HIST UST
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250CERS TANKS
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250CA FID UST

Local Land Records

    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001LIENS

TC7624121.2s   Page 5



MAP FINDINGS SUMMARY

Search
TargetDistance Total

Database Property(Miles) < 1/8 1/8 - 1/4 1/4 - 1/2 1/2 - 1 > 1 Plotted

    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001LIENS 2
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500DEED

Records of Emergency Release Reports

    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001HMIRS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001CHMIRS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001LDS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001MCS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001SPILLS 90

Other Ascertainable Records

    3  NR   NR    NR      3    0 0.250RCRA NonGen / NLR
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000FUDS
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000DOD
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500SCRD DRYCLEANERS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001US FIN ASSUR
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001EPA WATCH LIST
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.2502020 COR ACTION
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001TSCA
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001TRIS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001SSTS
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000ROD
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001RMP
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001RAATS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001PRP
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001PADS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001ICIS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001FTTS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001MLTS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001COAL ASH DOE
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500COAL ASH EPA
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001PCB TRANSFORMER
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001RADINFO
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001HIST FTTS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001DOT OPS
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000CONSENT
    1  NR     1      0      0    0 1.000INDIAN RESERV
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000FUSRAP
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500UMTRA
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001LEAD SMELTERS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001US AIRS
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250US MINES
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250ABANDONED MINES
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250MINES MRDS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001FINDS
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000UXO
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001DOCKET HWC
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001ECHO
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250FUELS PROGRAM
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250PFAS NPL
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250PFAS FEDERAL SITES

TC7624121.2s   Page 6



MAP FINDINGS SUMMARY

Search
TargetDistance Total

Database Property(Miles) < 1/8 1/8 - 1/4 1/4 - 1/2 1/2 - 1 > 1 Plotted

    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250PFAS TRIS
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250PFAS TSCA
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250PFAS RCRA MANIFEST
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250PFAS ATSDR
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250PFAS WQP
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250PFAS NPDES
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250PFAS ECHO
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250PFAS ECHO FIRE TRAINING
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250PFAS PART 139 AIRPORT
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250AQUEOUS FOAM NRC
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001BIOSOLIDS
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250PFAS
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250AQUEOUS FOAM
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000CA BOND EXP. PLAN
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500CHROME PLATING
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500Cortese
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250CUPA Listings
    1  NR   NR    NR      1    0 0.250DRYCLEANERS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001EMI
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001ENF
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001Financial Assurance
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001ICE
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500HIST CORTESE
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000HWP
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250HWT
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001HWTS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001HAZNET
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250MINES
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250MWMP
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001NPDES
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001PEST LIC
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500PROC
    1  NR     1      0      0    0 1.000Notify 65
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250HAZMAT
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001UIC
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001UIC GEO
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500WASTEWATER PITS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001WDS
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250WIP
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001MILITARY PRIV SITES
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001PROJECT
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001WDR
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001CIWQS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001CERS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001NON-CASE INFO
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001OTHER OIL GAS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001PROD WATER PONDS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001SAMPLING POINT
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001WELL STIM PROJ
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250UST FINDER
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500UST FINDER RELEASE

TC7624121.2s   Page 7



MAP FINDINGS SUMMARY

Search
TargetDistance Total

Database Property(Miles) < 1/8 1/8 - 1/4 1/4 - 1/2 1/2 - 1 > 1 Plotted

EDR HIGH RISK HISTORICAL RECORDS

EDR Exclusive Records

    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000EDR MGP
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.125EDR Hist Auto
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.125EDR Hist Cleaner

EDR RECOVERED GOVERNMENT ARCHIVES

Exclusive Recovered Govt. Archives

    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001RGA LF
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001RGA LUST

   11    0    3    0    8    0    0- Totals --

NOTES:

   TP = Target Property

   NR = Not Requested at this Search Distance

   Sites may be listed in more than one database

TC7624121.2s   Page 8



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         BIAAgency:
                         Agua Caliente Indian ReservationName:
                         Indian ReservationFeature:

INDIAN RESERV:

2806 ft.
1/2-1
WNW , CA  
Region    N/A
IND RES INDIAN RESERVAGUA CALIENTE INDIAN RESERVATION CIND200693

                                                                                Not reportedFederal Facility Indicator:
                                                                                ---Active Site State-Reg Handler:
                                                                                NoFederal Universal Waste:
                                                                                YesUniversal Waste Destination Facility:
                                                                                YesUniversal Waste Indicator:
                                                                                NoOff-Site Waste Receipt:
                                                                                NoUnderground Injection Control:
                                                                                NoSmelting Melting and Refining Furnace Exemption:
                                                                                NoSmall Quantity On-Site Burner Exemption:
                                                                                NoRecycler Activity with Storage:
                                                                                NoTransfer Facility Activity:
                                                                                NoTransporter Activity:
                                                                                NoMixed Waste Generator:
                                                                                NoImporter Activity:
                                                                                NoShort-Term Generator Activity:
                                                                                OtherOperator Type:
                                                                                Eric CoughlinOperator Name:
                                                                                OtherOwner Type:
                                                                                Eric CoughlinOwner Name:
                                                                                TARZANA, CA 92270Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                                                18321 VENTURA BLVDMailing Address:
                                                                                Not reportedState District:
                                                                                Not reportedState District Owner:
                                                                                Handler ActivitiesActive Site Indicator:
                                                                                Not reportedAccessibility:
                                                                                Not reportedBiennial Report Cycle:
                                                                                Not reportedNon-Notifier:
                                                                                Not a generator, verifiedFederal Waste Generator Description:
                                                                                Not reportedLand Type:
                                                                                09EPA Region:
                                                                                Not reportedContact Title:
                                                                                AMY.V@HP-CAP.COMContact Email:
                                                                                Not reportedContact Fax:
                                                                                424-835-6575Contact Telephone:
                                                                                TARZANA, CA 92270Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                                                18321 VENTURA BLVDContact Address:
                                                                                ERIC COUGHLINContact Name:
                                                                                CAC003013076EPA ID:
                                                                                RANCHO MIRAGE, CA 92270Handler City,State,Zip:
                                                                                72771 DINAH SHORE DRHandler Address:
                                                                      Hpc-Kcb Monterey Marketplace, LlcHandler Name:
                                                                                20190502Date Form Received by Agency:

RCRA Listings:

787 ft.
0.149 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
279 ft.

 

1/8-1/4 RANCHO MIRAGE, CA  92270
North 72771 DINAH SHORE DR CAC003013076
1 RCRA NonGen / NLRHPC-KCB MONTEREY MARKETPLACE, LLC 1025833499

TC7624121.2s   Page 9



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                            Not a generator, verifiedFederal Waste Generator Description:
          HPC-KCB MONTEREY MARKETPLACE, LLCHandler Name:
                                                            20190502Receive Date:

Historic Generators:

                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Email:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Fax:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Telephone Ext:
                                                            424-835-6575Owner/Operator Telephone:
                                                            TARZANA, CA 92270Owner/Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                            18321 VENTURA BLVDOwner/Operator Address:
                                                            Not reportedDate Ended Current:
                                                            Not reportedDate Became Current:
                                                            OtherLegal Status:
          ERIC COUGHLINOwner/Operator Name:
                                                            OwnerOwner/Operator Indicator:

                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Email:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Fax:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Telephone Ext:
                                                            424-835-6575Owner/Operator Telephone:
                                                            TARZANA, CA 92270Owner/Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                            18321 VENTURA BLVDOwner/Operator Address:
                                                            Not reportedDate Ended Current:
                                                            Not reportedDate Became Current:
                                                            OtherLegal Status:
          ERIC COUGHLINOwner/Operator Name:
                                                            OperatorOwner/Operator Indicator:

Handler - Owner Operator:

                                                                                NoSub-Part P Indicator:
                                                                                NoManifest Broker:
                                                                                NoRecycler Activity Without Storage:
                                                                                NoExporter of Spent Lead Acid Batteries:
                                                                                NoImporter of Spent Lead Acid Batteries:
                                                                                NoRecognized Trader-Exporter:
                                                                                NoRecognized Trader-Importer:
                                                                                20190627Handler Date of Last Change:
                                                                                Not reportedFinancial Assurance Required:
                                                                                NoSignificant Non-Complier With a Compliance Schedule Universe:
                                                                                NoAddressed Significant Non-Complier Universe:
                                                                                NoUnaddressed Significant Non-Complier Universe:
                                                                                NoSignificant Non-Complier Universe:
                                                                                N/AGroundwater Controls Indicator:
                                                                                N/AHuman Exposure Controls Indicator:
                                                                                NoInstitutional Control Indicator:
                                                                                NoEnvironmental Control Indicator:
                                                                                No NCAPS rankingCorrective Action Priority Ranking:
                                                                                NoNon-TSDFs Where RCRA CA has Been Imposed Universe:
                                                                                NoSubject to Corrective Action Universe:
                                                                                No202 GPRA Corrective Action Baseline:
                                                                                Not on the Baseline2018 GPRA Renewals Baseline:
                                                                                Not on the Baseline2018 GPRA Permit Baseline:
                                                                                Not reportedSub-Part K Indicator:
                                                                                NHazardous Secondary Material Indicator:

HPC-KCB MONTEREY MARKETPLACE, LLC  (Continued) 1025833499

TC7624121.2s   Page 10



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                            No Evaluations FoundEvaluations:
Evaluation Action Summary:

                                                            No Violations FoundViolations:
Facility Has Received Notices of Violations:

                              ALL OTHER WASTE MANAGEMENT SERVICESNAICS Description:
                              56299NAICS Code:

List of NAICS Codes and Descriptions:

                                                            Not reportedElectronic Manifest Broker:
                                                            Not reportedNon Storage Recycler Activity:
                                                            YesCurrent Record:
                                                            NoSpent Lead Acid Battery Exporter:
                                                            NoSpent Lead Acid Battery Importer:
                                                            NoRecognized Trader Exporter:
                                                            NoRecognized Trader Importer:
                                                            NoLarge Quantity Handler of Universal Waste:
                                                            Not reportedState District Owner:

HPC-KCB MONTEREY MARKETPLACE, LLC  (Continued) 1025833499

                              Riverside County Department of Env HealthViolation Division:
                              department, if applicable.
                              waste, and hazardous property statement. Submit photos to this
                              address, accumulation start date, composition and physical state of
                              include at least: the words "hazardous waste", generator name and
                              waste containers with all the required information. Label shall
                              inspection.    CORRECTIVE ACTION: Owner/operator shall label hazardous
                              at time of inspection. Accumulation start date was updated at time of
                              reflected 12/2022 when last pickup was 6/23/23 per manifest observed
                              label on the flammables container. Accumulation start date still
                              Returned to compliance on 08/31/2023. OBSERVATION: Observed incorrectViolation Notes:
                              date.
                              characteristics of the Hazardous Waste, and starting accumulation
                              name and address of the generator, physical and chemical
                              portable tanks with the following requirements: "Hazardous Waste",
                              Failure to properly label hazardous waste accumulation containers andViolation Description:
                              Chapter 12, Section(s) 66262.34(f)
                              22 CCR 12 66262.34(f) - California Code of Regulations, Title 22,Citation:
                              08-31-2023Violation Date:
                              Clarks Nutritional Centers, IncSite Name:
                              358069Site ID:

Violations:

                              Hazardous Waste GeneratorCERS Description:
                              10643776CERS ID:
                              358069Site ID:
                              RANCHO MIRAGE, CA 92270City,State,Zip:
                              34175 MONTEREY AVEAddress:
                              CLARKS NUTRITIONAL CENTERS, INCName:

CERS HAZ WASTE:

1091 ft. Site 1 of 2 in cluster A
0.207 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
262 ft.

 

1/8-1/4 RANCHO MIRAGE, CA  92270
NE 34175 MONTEREY AVE    N/A
A2 CERS HAZ WASTECLARKS NUTRITIONAL CENTERS, INC S123537497

TC7624121.2s   Page 11



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              Not reportedAffiliation City:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Address:
                              Project CoordinatorEntity Title:
                              Joshua ClarkEntity Name:
                              Identification SignerAffiliation Type Desc:

                              ,Affiliation Phone:
                              92502Affiliation Zip:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Country:
                              CAAffiliation State:
                              RiversideAffiliation City:
                              PO Box 1609Affiliation Address:
                              Not reportedEntity Title:
                              Mailing AddressEntity Name:
                              Facility Mailing AddressAffiliation Type Desc:

Affiliation:

                              CERS,Eval Source:
                              HWEval Program:
                              Riverside County Department of Env HealthEval Division:
          return/unsaleable retail items.
          Facility is a nutrition store. Hazardous waste generated fromEval Notes:
                              Routine done by local agencyEval Type:
                              NoViolations Found:
                              08-05-2021Eval Date:
                              Compliance Evaluation InspectionEval General Type:

                              CERS,Eval Source:
                              HWEval Program:
                              Riverside County Department of Env HealthEval Division:
          Pacific Resource Recovery is the facility’s registered hauler.
          Facility is a nutrition store which generates retail hazardous waste.Eval Notes:
                              Routine done by local agencyEval Type:
                              NoViolations Found:
                              09-07-2018Eval Date:
                              Compliance Evaluation InspectionEval General Type:

                              CERS,Eval Source:
                              HWEval Program:
                              Riverside County Department of Env HealthEval Division:
          business day.
          Clark told me he would try and have an answer by the following
          1000cf total system(s) capacity) within 30 days of this inspection.
          or alert this department via CERS by disclosing if required (exceeds
          system storage capacity and report the results to chtucker@rivco.org
          Joshua Clark, explained that owner/operator shall verify refrigeration
          All violations noted were corrected at time of inspection. Spoke with
          This facility is a convenience store that generates retail hazwaste.Eval Notes:
                              Routine done by local agencyEval Type:
                              YesViolations Found:
                              08-31-2023Eval Date:
                              Compliance Evaluation InspectionEval General Type:

Evaluation:

                              CERS,Violation Source:
                              HWViolation Program:

CLARKS NUTRITIONAL CENTERS, INC  (Continued) S123537497

TC7624121.2s   Page 12



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              Riverside Cnty Env HealthEntity Name:
                              CUPA DistrictAffiliation Type Desc:

                              (951) 321-1960,Affiliation Phone:
                              92502Affiliation Zip:
                              United StatesAffiliation Country:
                              CAAffiliation State:
                              RiversideAffiliation City:
                              PO Box 1609Affiliation Address:
                              Not reportedEntity Title:
                              Ray ClarkEntity Name:
                              Property OwnerAffiliation Type Desc:

                              (951) 321-1960,Affiliation Phone:
                              92502Affiliation Zip:
                              United StatesAffiliation Country:
                              CAAffiliation State:
                              RiversideAffiliation City:
                              PO Box 1609Affiliation Address:
                              Not reportedEntity Title:
                              Ray ClarkEntity Name:
                              Legal OwnerAffiliation Type Desc:

                              ,Affiliation Phone:
                              92502Affiliation Zip:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Country:
                              CAAffiliation State:
                              RiversideAffiliation City:
                              PO Box 1609Affiliation Address:
                              Not reportedEntity Title:
                              Joshua ClarkEntity Name:
                              Environmental ContactAffiliation Type Desc:

                              ,Affiliation Phone:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Zip:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Country:
                              Not reportedAffiliation State:
                              Not reportedAffiliation City:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Address:
                              Not reportedEntity Title:
                              Clarks Nutritional Centers, IncEntity Name:
                              Parent CorporationAffiliation Type Desc:

                              (951) 321-1960,Affiliation Phone:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Zip:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Country:
                              Not reportedAffiliation State:
                              Not reportedAffiliation City:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Address:
                              Not reportedEntity Title:
                              Clarks Nutritional Centers, IncEntity Name:
                              OperatorAffiliation Type Desc:

                              ,Affiliation Phone:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Zip:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Country:
                              Not reportedAffiliation State:

CLARKS NUTRITIONAL CENTERS, INC  (Continued) S123537497

TC7624121.2s   Page 13



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              ,Affiliation Phone:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Zip:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Country:
                              Not reportedAffiliation State:
                              Not reportedAffiliation City:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Address:
                              Not reportedEntity Title:
                              Joshua ClarkEntity Name:
                              Document PreparerAffiliation Type Desc:

                              (951) 358-5055,Affiliation Phone:
                              92503Affiliation Zip:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Country:
                              CAAffiliation State:
                              RiversideAffiliation City:
                              4065 County Circle Drive, Room 104Affiliation Address:
                              Not reportedEntity Title:

CLARKS NUTRITIONAL CENTERS, INC  (Continued) S123537497

                                                                                NoTransfer Facility Activity:
                                                                                NoTransporter Activity:
                                                                                NoMixed Waste Generator:
                                                                                NoImporter Activity:
                                                                                NoShort-Term Generator Activity:
                                                                                OtherOperator Type:
                                                                                Mike ToddOperator Name:
                                                                                OtherOwner Type:
                                                                                Clark’S Nutritional Centers IncOwner Name:
                                                                                RIVERSIDE, CA 92502Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                                                PO BOX 1609Mailing Address:
                                                                                Not reportedState District:
                                                                                Not reportedState District Owner:
                                                                                Handler ActivitiesActive Site Indicator:
                                                                                Not reportedAccessibility:
                                                                                Not reportedBiennial Report Cycle:
                                                                                Not reportedNon-Notifier:
                                                                                Not a generator, verifiedFederal Waste Generator Description:
                                                                                Not reportedLand Type:
                                                                                09EPA Region:
                                                                                Not reportedContact Title:
                                                                                MIKET@CLARKSNUTRITION.COMContact Email:
                                                                                951-686-1235Contact Fax:
                                                                                909-645-4801Contact Telephone:
                                                                                RIVERSIDE, CA 92502Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                                                PO BOX 1609Contact Address:
                                                                                MIKE TODDContact Name:
                                                                                CAL000408442EPA ID:
                                                                                RANCHO MIRAGE, CA 92270Handler City,State,Zip:
                                                                                34175 MONTEREY AVEHandler Address:
                                                                      Clarks Nutritional Centers IncHandler Name:
                                                                                20150713Date Form Received by Agency:

RCRA Listings:

1091 ft. Site 2 of 2 in cluster A
0.207 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
262 ft.

 

1/8-1/4 RANCHO MIRAGE, CA  92270
NE 34175 MONTEREY AVE CAL000408442
A3 RCRA NonGen / NLRCLARKS NUTRITIONAL CENTERS INC 1024850663

TC7624121.2s   Page 14



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                            RIVERSIDE, CA 92502Owner/Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                            PO BOX 1609Owner/Operator Address:
                                                            Not reportedDate Ended Current:
                                                            Not reportedDate Became Current:
                                                            OtherLegal Status:
          MIKE TODDOwner/Operator Name:
                                                            OperatorOwner/Operator Indicator:

                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Email:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Fax:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Telephone Ext:
                                                            951-321-1960Owner/Operator Telephone:
                                                            RIVERSIDE, CA 92501Owner/Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                            4225 MARKET STOwner/Operator Address:
                                                            Not reportedDate Ended Current:
                                                            Not reportedDate Became Current:
                                                            OtherLegal Status:
          CLARK’S NUTRITIONAL CENTERS INCOwner/Operator Name:
                                                            OwnerOwner/Operator Indicator:

Handler - Owner Operator:

                                                                                NoSub-Part P Indicator:
                                                                                NoManifest Broker:
                                                                                NoRecycler Activity Without Storage:
                                                                                NoExporter of Spent Lead Acid Batteries:
                                                                                NoImporter of Spent Lead Acid Batteries:
                                                                                NoRecognized Trader-Exporter:
                                                                                NoRecognized Trader-Importer:
                                                                                20180906Handler Date of Last Change:
                                                                                Not reportedFinancial Assurance Required:
                                                                                NoSignificant Non-Complier With a Compliance Schedule Universe:
                                                                                NoAddressed Significant Non-Complier Universe:
                                                                                NoUnaddressed Significant Non-Complier Universe:
                                                                                NoSignificant Non-Complier Universe:
                                                                                N/AGroundwater Controls Indicator:
                                                                                N/AHuman Exposure Controls Indicator:
                                                                                NoInstitutional Control Indicator:
                                                                                NoEnvironmental Control Indicator:
                                                                                No NCAPS rankingCorrective Action Priority Ranking:
                                                                                NoNon-TSDFs Where RCRA CA has Been Imposed Universe:
                                                                                NoSubject to Corrective Action Universe:
                                                                                No202 GPRA Corrective Action Baseline:
                                                                                Not on the Baseline2018 GPRA Renewals Baseline:
                                                                                Not on the Baseline2018 GPRA Permit Baseline:
                                                                                Not reportedSub-Part K Indicator:
                                                                                NHazardous Secondary Material Indicator:
                                                                                Not reportedFederal Facility Indicator:
                                                                                ---Active Site State-Reg Handler:
                                                                                NoFederal Universal Waste:
                                                                                YesUniversal Waste Destination Facility:
                                                                                YesUniversal Waste Indicator:
                                                                                NoOff-Site Waste Receipt:
                                                                                NoUnderground Injection Control:
                                                                                NoSmelting Melting and Refining Furnace Exemption:
                                                                                NoSmall Quantity On-Site Burner Exemption:
                                                                                NoRecycler Activity with Storage:

CLARKS NUTRITIONAL CENTERS INC  (Continued) 1024850663

TC7624121.2s   Page 15



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                            No Evaluations FoundEvaluations:
Evaluation Action Summary:

                                                            No Violations FoundViolations:
Facility Has Received Notices of Violations:

                              WAREHOUSE CLUBS AND SUPERCENTERSNAICS Description:
                              45291NAICS Code:

List of NAICS Codes and Descriptions:

                                                            Not reportedElectronic Manifest Broker:
                                                            Not reportedNon Storage Recycler Activity:
                                                            YesCurrent Record:
                                                            NoSpent Lead Acid Battery Exporter:
                                                            NoSpent Lead Acid Battery Importer:
                                                            NoRecognized Trader Exporter:
                                                            NoRecognized Trader Importer:
                                                            NoLarge Quantity Handler of Universal Waste:
                                                            Not reportedState District Owner:
                                                            Not a generator, verifiedFederal Waste Generator Description:
          CLARKS NUTRITIONAL CENTERS INCHandler Name:
                                                            20150713Receive Date:

Historic Generators:

                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Email:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Fax:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Telephone Ext:
                                                            909-645-4801Owner/Operator Telephone:

CLARKS NUTRITIONAL CENTERS INC  (Continued) 1024850663

                                        ACTIVEPermit Status:
                                        760 3459551Representative Telephone:
                                        KYU SEOK PARKRepresentative Name:
                                        ActiveStatus:
                                        F64277Permit Number:
                                        421248Application Number:
                                        138256Facility ID:
                                        RANCHO MIRAGE, CA 92270City,State,Zip:
                                        72817 DINAH SHORE DR UNIT 101Address:
                                        WASHINGTON CLEANERSName:

DRYCLEAN SOUTH COAST:

                              Hazardous Waste GeneratorCERS Description:
                              10322539CERS ID:
                              84718Site ID:
                              RANCHO MIRAGE, CA 92270City,State,Zip:
                              72817 DINAH SHORE DR #101Address:
                              WASHINGTON CLEANERSName:

CERS HAZ WASTE:

1099 ft. Site 1 of 2 in cluster B
0.208 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
257 ft.

 

1/8-1/4 CERSRANCHO MIRAGE, CA  92270
NNE DRYCLEANERS72817 DINAH SHORE DR #101    N/A
B4 CERS HAZ WASTEWASHINGTON CLEANERS S121695312

TC7624121.2s   Page 16



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              Washington CleanersSite Name:
                              84718Site ID:

                              CERS,Violation Source:
                              HWViolation Program:
                              Riverside County Department of Env HealthViolation Division:
                              this department, if applicable.
                              state of waste, and hazardous property statement. Submit photos to
                              name and address, accumulation start date, composition and physical
                              Label shall include at least: the words ""hazardous waste"", generator
                              label hazardous waste containers with all the required information.
                              accumulation start date.    CORRECTIVE ACTION: Owner/operator shall
                              labels on dry cleaning waste drum. Information missing included
                              Returned to compliance on 06/08/2021. OBSERVATION: Observed incompleteViolation Notes:
                              date.
                              characteristics of the Hazardous Waste, and starting accumulation
                              name and address of the generator, physical and chemical
                              portable tanks with the following requirements: "Hazardous Waste",
                              Failure to properly label hazardous waste accumulation containers andViolation Description:
                              Chapter 12, Section(s) 66262.34(f)
                              22 CCR 12 66262.34(f) - California Code of Regulations, Title 22,Citation:
                              06-08-2021Violation Date:
                              Washington CleanersSite Name:
                              84718Site ID:

                              CERS,Violation Source:
                              HMRRPViolation Program:
                              Riverside County Department of Env HealthViolation Division:
                              Returned to compliance on 03/13/2018.Violation Notes:
                              date.
                              business plan is complete and accurate on or before the annual due
                              Failure to annually review and electronically certify that theViolation Description:
                              6.95, Section(s) 25508(a)(1)
                              HSC 6.95 25508(a)(1) - California Health and Safety Code, ChapterCitation:
                              07-05-2017Violation Date:
                              Washington CleanersSite Name:
                              84718Site ID:

Violations:

                              Chemical Storage FacilitiesCERS Description:
                              10322539CERS ID:
                              84718Site ID:
                              RANCHO MIRAGE, CA 92270City,State,Zip:
                              72817 DINAH SHORE DR #101Address:
                              WASHINGTON CLEANERSName:

CERS:

                                        7216SIC Code:
                                        812320NAICS Code:
                                        10/30/2003PO Issue Date:
                                        10/16/2003Application Date:
                                        3740.1499023UTM North:
                                        556.38000488UTM East:
                                        Not reportedCCAT Description:
                                        Not reportedCCAT Number:
                                        DRY CLEANING EQUIP PETROLEUM SOLVENTBCAT Description:
                                        000233BCAT Number:

WASHINGTON CLEANERS  (Continued) S121695312

TC7624121.2s   Page 17



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              Riverside County Department of Env HealthViolation Division:
                              reviewed and certified on at least an annual basis.
                              (e.g. CERS) at http://cers.calepa.ca.gov. Business plans shall be
                              updated business plan in the statewide information management system
                              management system.  CORRECTIVE ACTION: Owner/Operator shall submit an
                              plan certification was observed in the statewide information
                              Returned to compliance on 06/08/2021. OBSERVATION: No annual businessViolation Notes:
                              date.
                              business plan is complete and accurate on or before the annual due
                              Failure to annually review and electronically certify that theViolation Description:
                              Section(s) 25508.2
                              HSC 6.95 25508.2 - California Health and Safety Code, Chapter 6.95,Citation:
                              06-08-2021Violation Date:
                              Washington CleanersSite Name:
                              84718Site ID:

                              CERS,Violation Source:
                              HMRRPViolation Program:
                              Riverside County Department of Env HealthViolation Division:
                              Returned to compliance on 03/13/2018.Violation Notes:
                              date.
                              business plan is complete and accurate on or before the annual due
                              Failure to annually review and electronically certify that theViolation Description:
                              6.95, Section(s) 25508(a)(1)
                              HSC 6.95 25508(a)(1) - California Health and Safety Code, ChapterCitation:
                              02-23-2018Violation Date:
                              Washington CleanersSite Name:
                              84718Site ID:

                              CERS,Violation Source:
                              HMRRPViolation Program:
                              Riverside County Department of Env HealthViolation Division:
                              period of 3 years from the date of the training.
                              shall be retained and be made available for inspection for a minimum
                              Owner/operator shall provide training to all employees. Documentation
                              observed/provided during inspection after 2015.  CORRECTIVE ACTION:
                              Returned to compliance on 06/14/2021. OBSERVATION: No training recordsViolation Notes:
                              records for a minimum of three years.
                              hazardous material or failure to document and maintain training
                              safety procedures in the event of a release or threatened release of a
                              Failure to provide initial and annual training to all employees inViolation Description:
                              6.95, Section(s) 25505(a)(4)
                              HSC 6.95 25505(a)(4) - California Health and Safety Code, ChapterCitation:
                              06-08-2021Violation Date:
                              Washington CleanersSite Name:
                              84718Site ID:

                              CERS,Violation Source:
                              HMRRPViolation Program:
                              Riverside County Department of Env HealthViolation Division:
                              Returned to compliance on 03/13/2018.Violation Notes:
                              date.
                              business plan is complete and accurate on or before the annual due
                              Failure to annually review and electronically certify that theViolation Description:
                              6.95, Section(s) 25508(a)(1)
                              HSC 6.95 25508(a)(1) - California Health and Safety Code, ChapterCitation:
                              11-28-2017Violation Date:

WASHINGTON CLEANERS  (Continued) S121695312

TC7624121.2s   Page 18



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              Other, not routine, done by local agencyEval Type:
                              YesViolations Found:
                              11-28-2017Eval Date:
                              Other/UnknownEval General Type:

                              CERS,Eval Source:
                              HWEval Program:
                              Riverside County Department of Env HealthEval Division:
          Not reportedEval Notes:
                              Routine done by local agencyEval Type:
                              NoViolations Found:
                              08-13-2015Eval Date:
                              Compliance Evaluation InspectionEval General Type:

                              CERS,Eval Source:
                              HWEval Program:
                              Riverside County Department of Env HealthEval Division:
          Not reportedEval Notes:
                              Routine done by local agencyEval Type:
                              NoViolations Found:
                              06-26-2018Eval Date:
                              Compliance Evaluation InspectionEval General Type:

                              CERS,Eval Source:
                              HMRRPEval Program:
                              Riverside County Department of Env HealthEval Division:
          Not reportedEval Notes:
                              Other, not routine, done by local agencyEval Type:
                              YesViolations Found:
                              02-23-2018Eval Date:
                              Other/UnknownEval General Type:

                              CERS,Eval Source:
                              HMRRPEval Program:
                              Riverside County Department of Env HealthEval Division:
          Not reportedEval Notes:
                              Routine done by local agencyEval Type:
                              NoViolations Found:
                              08-13-2015Eval Date:
                              Compliance Evaluation InspectionEval General Type:

                              CERS,Eval Source:
                              HMRRPEval Program:
                              Riverside County Department of Env HealthEval Division:
          no longer legible.
          showing signs of weathering - owner/operator shall update sign before
          addressed per last inspector’s comments. NFPA sign above back door
          future submittals into CERS, review site map to ensure all items are
          This facility is a dry cleaner that handles hydrocarbon. NOTE: ForEval Notes:
                              Routine done by local agencyEval Type:
                              YesViolations Found:
                              06-08-2021Eval Date:
                              Compliance Evaluation InspectionEval General Type:

Evaluation:

                              CERS,Violation Source:
                              HMRRPViolation Program:

WASHINGTON CLEANERS  (Continued) S121695312

TC7624121.2s   Page 19



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              Not reportedEntity Title:
                              Kyu Seok ParkEntity Name:
                              OperatorAffiliation Type Desc:

                              ,Affiliation Phone:
                              92270Affiliation Zip:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Country:
                              CAAffiliation State:
                              Rancho MirageAffiliation City:
                              72817 Dinah Shore DrAffiliation Address:
                              Not reportedEntity Title:
                              Mailing AddressEntity Name:
                              Facility Mailing AddressAffiliation Type Desc:

                              ,Affiliation Phone:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Zip:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Country:
                              Not reportedAffiliation State:
                              Not reportedAffiliation City:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Address:
                              Not reportedEntity Title:
                              Billy ParkEntity Name:
                              Document PreparerAffiliation Type Desc:

Affiliation:

                              CERS,Eval Source:
                              HMRRPEval Program:
                              Riverside County Department of Env HealthEval Division:
          Not reportedEval Notes:
                              Other, not routine, done by local agencyEval Type:
                              YesViolations Found:
                              07-05-2017Eval Date:
                              Other/UnknownEval General Type:

                              CERS,Eval Source:
                              HMRRPEval Program:
                              Riverside County Department of Env HealthEval Division:
          Help with CERSEval Notes:
                              Routine done by local agencyEval Type:
                              NoViolations Found:
                              06-26-2018Eval Date:
                              Compliance Evaluation InspectionEval General Type:

                              CERS,Eval Source:
                              HWEval Program:
                              Riverside County Department of Env HealthEval Division:
          closed on waste drum.
          This facility generates dry cleaning waste. NOTE: ensure lid is storedEval Notes:
                              Routine done by local agencyEval Type:
                              YesViolations Found:
                              06-08-2021Eval Date:
                              Compliance Evaluation InspectionEval General Type:

                              CERS,Eval Source:
                              HMRRPEval Program:
                              Riverside County Department of Env HealthEval Division:
          Not reportedEval Notes:

WASHINGTON CLEANERS  (Continued) S121695312

TC7624121.2s   Page 20



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              ,Affiliation Phone:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Zip:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Country:
                              Not reportedAffiliation State:
                              Not reportedAffiliation City:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Address:
                              OwnerEntity Title:
                              Billy ParkEntity Name:
                              Identification SignerAffiliation Type Desc:

                              ,Affiliation Phone:
                              92270Affiliation Zip:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Country:
                              CAAffiliation State:
                              Rancho MirageAffiliation City:
                              72817 Dinah Shore DrAffiliation Address:
                              Not reportedEntity Title:
                              Billy ParkEntity Name:
                              Environmental ContactAffiliation Type Desc:

                              ,Affiliation Phone:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Zip:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Country:
                              Not reportedAffiliation State:
                              Not reportedAffiliation City:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Address:
                              Not reportedEntity Title:
                              Washington CleanersEntity Name:
                              Parent CorporationAffiliation Type Desc:

                              (760) 328-0452,Affiliation Phone:
                              92270Affiliation Zip:
                              United StatesAffiliation Country:
                              CAAffiliation State:
                              Rancho MirageAffiliation City:
                              72817 Dinah Shore DrAffiliation Address:
                              Not reportedEntity Title:
                              Billy ParkEntity Name:
                              Legal OwnerAffiliation Type Desc:

                              (951) 358-5055,Affiliation Phone:
                              92503Affiliation Zip:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Country:
                              CAAffiliation State:
                              RiversideAffiliation City:
                              4065 County Circle Drive, Room 104Affiliation Address:
                              Not reportedEntity Title:
                              Riverside Cnty Env HealthEntity Name:
                              CUPA DistrictAffiliation Type Desc:

                              (760) 328-0450,Affiliation Phone:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Zip:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Country:
                              Not reportedAffiliation State:
                              Not reportedAffiliation City:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Address:

WASHINGTON CLEANERS  (Continued) S121695312

TC7624121.2s   Page 21



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                                                NoInstitutional Control Indicator:
                                                                                NoEnvironmental Control Indicator:
                                                                                No NCAPS rankingCorrective Action Priority Ranking:
                                                                                NoNon-TSDFs Where RCRA CA has Been Imposed Universe:
                                                                                NoSubject to Corrective Action Universe:
                                                                                No202 GPRA Corrective Action Baseline:
                                                                                Not on the Baseline2018 GPRA Renewals Baseline:
                                                                                Not on the Baseline2018 GPRA Permit Baseline:
                                                                                Not reportedSub-Part K Indicator:
                                                                                NHazardous Secondary Material Indicator:
                                                                                Not reportedFederal Facility Indicator:
                                                                                ---Active Site State-Reg Handler:
                                                                                NoFederal Universal Waste:
                                                                                NoUniversal Waste Destination Facility:
                                                                                NoUniversal Waste Indicator:
                                                                                NoOff-Site Waste Receipt:
                                                                                NoUnderground Injection Control:
                                                                                NoSmelting Melting and Refining Furnace Exemption:
                                                                                NoSmall Quantity On-Site Burner Exemption:
                                                                                NoRecycler Activity with Storage:
                                                                                NoTransfer Facility Activity:
                                                                                NoTransporter Activity:
                                                                                NoMixed Waste Generator:
                                                                                NoImporter Activity:
                                                                                NoShort-Term Generator Activity:
                                                                                PrivateOperator Type:
                                                                                Costco Wholesale CorporationOperator Name:
                                                                                PrivateOwner Type:
                                                                                Costco Wholesale CorporationOwner Name:
                                                                                CARLSBAD, CA 92010Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                                                GREY HAWK CT, SUITE 200Mailing Address:
                                                                                Not reportedState District:
                                                                                Not reportedState District Owner:
                                                                                Handler ActivitiesActive Site Indicator:
                                                                                Not reportedAccessibility:
                                                                                2021Biennial Report Cycle:
                                                                                Not reportedNon-Notifier:
                                                                                Small Quantity GeneratorFederal Waste Generator Description:
                                                                                PrivateLand Type:
                                                                                09EPA Region:
                                                                                DIRECTOR, GLOBAL SUSTAINABILITY & COMPLIANCEContact Title:
                                                                                ENVIRONMENTALCOMPLIANCE@COSTCO.COMContact Email:
                                                                                Not reportedContact Fax:
                                                                                425-416-2334Contact Telephone:
                                                                                ISSAQUAH, WA 98027Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                                                LAKE DRContact Address:
                                                                                SHARON SAKNITContact Name:
                                                                                CAR000005579EPA ID:
                                                                                PALM DESERT, CA 92211-0000Handler City,State,Zip:
                                                                                DINAH SHORE DRIVEHandler Address:
                                                                      Costco Wholesale # 441Handler Name:
                                                                                20220225Date Form Received by Agency:

RCRA Listings:

1197 ft. Site 2 of 2 in cluster B
0.227 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
253 ft.

 

1/8-1/4 PALM DESERT, CA  92211
NNE 72-800 DINAH SHORE DRIVE CAR000005579
B5 RCRA-SQGCOSTCO WHOLESALE # 441 1001023199

TC7624121.2s   Page 22



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              D008Waste Code:

                              ChromiumWaste Description:
                              D007Waste Code:

                              CadmiumWaste Description:
                              D006Waste Code:

                              BariumWaste Description:
                              D005Waste Code:

                              ArsenicWaste Description:
                              D004Waste Code:

                              Reactive WasteWaste Description:
                              D003Waste Code:

                              Corrosive WasteWaste Description:
                              D002Waste Code:

                              Ignitable WasteWaste Description:
                              D001Waste Code:

Hazardous Waste Summary:

Click Here for Biennial Reporting System Data:

                                        2001Year:
Click Here for Biennial Reporting System Data:

                                        2013Year:
Click Here for Biennial Reporting System Data:

                                        2015Year:
Click Here for Biennial Reporting System Data:

                                        2017Year:
Click Here for Biennial Reporting System Data:

                                        2021Year:
Biennial: List of Years

                                                                                NoSub-Part P Indicator:
                                                                                NoManifest Broker:
                                                                                NoRecycler Activity Without Storage:
                                                                                NoExporter of Spent Lead Acid Batteries:
                                                                                NoImporter of Spent Lead Acid Batteries:
                                                                                NoRecognized Trader-Exporter:
                                                                                NoRecognized Trader-Importer:
                                                                                20220629Handler Date of Last Change:
                                                                                Not reportedFinancial Assurance Required:
                                                                                NoSignificant Non-Complier With a Compliance Schedule Universe:
                                                                                NoAddressed Significant Non-Complier Universe:
                                                                                NoUnaddressed Significant Non-Complier Universe:
                                                                                NoSignificant Non-Complier Universe:
                                                                                N/AGroundwater Controls Indicator:
                                                                                N/AHuman Exposure Controls Indicator:

COSTCO WHOLESALE # 441  (Continued) 1001023199

TC7624121.2s   Page 23

https://enviro.epa.gov/envirofacts/br/report?handlerId=CAR000005579&reportingYear=2001
https://enviro.epa.gov/envirofacts/br/report?handlerId=CAR000005579&reportingYear=2013
https://enviro.epa.gov/envirofacts/br/report?handlerId=CAR000005579&reportingYear=2015
https://enviro.epa.gov/envirofacts/br/report?handlerId=CAR000005579&reportingYear=2017
https://enviro.epa.gov/envirofacts/br/report?handlerId=CAR000005579&reportingYear=2021


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              Spent Solvent Mixtures.
                              F005; And Still Bottoms From The Recovery Of These Spent Solvents And
                              Above Halogenated Solvents Or Those Solvents Listed In F001, F004, And
                              Use, A Total Of Ten Percent Or More (By Volume) Of One Or More Of The
                              Trichloroethane; All Spent Solvent Mixtures/Blends Containing, Before
                              Ortho-Dichlorobenzene, Trichlorofluoromethane, And 1,1,2,
                              Chlorobenzene, 1,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-Trifluoroethane,
                              Methylene Chloride, Trichloroethylene, 1,1,1-Trichloroethane,
                              The Following Spent Halogenated Solvents: Tetrachloroethylene,Waste Description:
                              F002Waste Code:

                              Vinyl ChlorideWaste Description:
                              D043Waste Code:

                              TrichlorethyleneWaste Description:
                              D040Waste Code:

                              TetrachloroethyleneWaste Description:
                              D039Waste Code:

                              Methyl Ethyl KetoneWaste Description:
                              D035Waste Code:

                              1,1-DichloroethyleneWaste Description:
                              D029Waste Code:

                              1,2-DichloroethaneWaste Description:
                              D028Waste Code:

                              CresolWaste Description:
                              D026Waste Code:

                              M-CresolWaste Description:
                              D024Waste Code:

                              ChloroformWaste Description:
                              D022Waste Code:

                              BenzeneWaste Description:
                              D018Waste Code:

                              2,4-D (2,4-Dichlorophenoxyacetic Acid)Waste Description:
                              D016Waste Code:

                              Lindane (1,2,3,4,5,6-Hexa-Chlorocyclohexane, Gamma Isomer)Waste Description:
                              D013Waste Code:

                              SilverWaste Description:
                              D011Waste Code:

                              SeleniumWaste Description:
                              D010Waste Code:

                              MercuryWaste Description:
                              D009Waste Code:

                              LeadWaste Description:

COSTCO WHOLESALE # 441  (Continued) 1001023199

TC7624121.2s   Page 24



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              Cyclohexanone (I)Waste Description:
                              U057Waste Code:

                              Chloroform (Or) Methane, Trichloro-Waste Description:
                              U044Waste Code:

                              Benzene, Chloro- (Or) ChlorobenzeneWaste Description:
                              U037Waste Code:

                              Benzenebutanoic Acid, 4-[Bis(2-Chloroethyl)Amino]- (Or) ChlorambucilWaste Description:
                              U035Waste Code:

                              Acetaldehyde, Trichloro- (Or) ChloralWaste Description:
                              U034Waste Code:

                              Benzene (I,T)Waste Description:
                              U019Waste Code:

                              Azaserine (Or) L-Serine, Diazoacetate (Ester)Waste Description:
                              U015Waste Code:

                              Mitomycin C
                              hoxy-5-Methyl-, [1as-(1aalpha, 8beta, 8aalpha, 8balpha)]- (Or)
                              6-Amino-8-[[(Aminocarbonyl)Oxy]Methyl]-1,1a,2,8,8a,8b-Hexahydro-8a-Met
                              Azirino [2’,3’:3,4]Pyrrolo[1,2-A]Indole-4,7-Dione,Waste Description:
                              U010Waste Code:

                              Salts
                              Nicotine, & Salts (Or) Pyridine, 3-(1-Methyl-2-Pyrrolidinyl)-,(S)-, &Waste Description:
                              P075Waste Code:

                              Salts, When Present At Concentrations Greater Than 0.3%
                              When Present At Concentrations Greater Than 0.3% (Or) Warfarin, &
                              2h-1-Benzopyran-2-One, 4-Hydroxy-3-(3-Oxo-1-Phenylbutyl)-, & Salts,Waste Description:
                              P001Waste Code:

                              These Spent Solvents And Spent Solvent Mixtures.
                              Listed In F001, F002, Or F004; And Still Bottoms From The Recovery Of
                              One Or More Of The Above Nonhalogenated Solvents Or Those Solvents
                              Containing, Before Use, A Total Of Ten Percent Or More (By Volume) Of
                              2-Ethoxyethanol, And 2-Nitropropane; All Spent Solvent Mixtures/Blends
                              Ketone, Carbon Disulfide, Isobutanol, Pyridine, Benzene,
                              The Following Spent Nonhalogenated Solvents: Toluene, Methyl EthylWaste Description:
                              F005Waste Code:

                              Mixtures.
                              Bottoms From The Recovery Of These Spent Solvents And Spent Solvent
                              More Of Those Solvents Listed In F001, F002, F004, And F005; And Still
                              Solvents, And A Total Of Ten Percent Or More (By Volume) Of One Or
                              Containing, Before Use, One Or More Of The Above Nonhalogenated
                              Nonhalogenated Solvents; And All Spent Solvent Mixtures/Blends
                              Mixtures/Blends Containing, Before Use, Only The Above Spent
                              Alcohol, Cyclohexanone, And Methanol; All Spent Solvent
                              Acetate, Ethyl Benzene, Ethyl Ether, Methyl Isobutyl Ketone, N-Butyl
                              The Following Spent Nonhalogenated Solvents: Xylene, Acetone, EthylWaste Description:
                              F003Waste Code:

COSTCO WHOLESALE # 441  (Continued) 1001023199

TC7624121.2s   Page 25



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                            Not reportedDate Ended Current:
                                                            19910309Date Became Current:
                                                            PrivateLegal Status:
          COSTCO WHOLESALE CORPORATIONOwner/Operator Name:
                                                            OperatorOwner/Operator Indicator:

Handler - Owner Operator:

                              U279Waste Description:
                              U279Waste Code:

                              & Esters (Or) Dichlorophenoxyacetic Acid 2,4-D
                              2,4-D, Salts & Esters (Or) Acetic Acid, (2,4-Dichlorophenoxy)-, SaltsWaste Description:
                              U240Waste Code:

                              Benzene, Dimethyl- (I,T) (Or) Xylene (I)Waste Description:
                              U239Waste Code:

                              Ethene, Trichloro- (Or) TrichloroethyleneWaste Description:
                              U228Waste Code:

                              Benzene, Methyl- (Or) TolueneWaste Description:
                              U220Waste Code:

                              (3beta, 16beta, 17alpha, 18beta, 20alpha)-
                              11,17-Dimethoxy-18-[(3,4,5-Trimethoxybenzoyl)Oxy]-, Methyl Ester,
                              Reserpine (Or) Yohimban-16-Carboxylic Acid,Waste Description:
                              U200Waste Code:

                              2-Butanone (I,T) (Or) Methyl Ethyl Ketone (Mek) (I,T)Waste Description:
                              U159Waste Code:

                              L-Phenylalanine, 4-[Bis(2-Chloroethyl)Amino]- (Or) MelphalanWaste Description:
                              U150Waste Code:

                              5alpha, 6beta)- (Or) Lindane
                              Cyclohexane, 1,2,3,4,5,6-Hexachloro-, (1alpha, 2alpha, 3beta, 4alpha,Waste Description:
                              U129Waste Code:

                              Methane, Trichlorofluoro- (Or) TrichloromonofluoromethaneWaste Description:
                              U121Waste Code:

                              (E)-
                              Diethylstilbesterol (Or) Phenol, 4,4’-(1,2-Diethyl-1,2-Ethenediyl)Bis,Waste Description:
                              U089Waste Code:

                              Dichlorodifluoromethane (Or) Methane, Dichlorodifluoro-Waste Description:
                              U075Waste Code:

                              Daunomycin
                              7,8,9,10-Tetrahydro-6,8,11-Trihydroxy-1-Methoxy-, (8s-Cis)- (Or)
                              8-Acetyl-10-[(3-Amino-2,3,6-Trideoxy)-Alpha-L-Lyxo-Hexopyranosyl)Oxy]-
                              5,12-Naphthacenedione,Waste Description:
                              U059Waste Code:

                              2-Oxide (Or) Cyclophosphamide
                              2h-1,3,2-Oxazaphosphorin-2-Amine, N,N-Bis(2-Chloroethyl)Tetrahydro-,Waste Description:
                              U058Waste Code:

COSTCO WHOLESALE # 441  (Continued) 1001023199

TC7624121.2s   Page 26



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

          COSTCO WHOLESALE CORPORATIONOwner/Operator Name:
                                                            OperatorOwner/Operator Indicator:

                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Email:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Fax:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Telephone Ext:
                                                            425-313-8100Owner/Operator Telephone:
                                                            ISSAQUAH, WA 98027Owner/Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                            999 LAKE DROwner/Operator Address:
                                                            Not reportedDate Ended Current:
                                                            Not reportedDate Became Current:
                                                            PrivateLegal Status:
          COSTCO WHOLESALE CORPORATIONOwner/Operator Name:
                                                            OwnerOwner/Operator Indicator:

                                                            RTHOMPSON@COSTCO.COMOwner/Operator Email:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Fax:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Telephone Ext:
                                                            425-313-8100Owner/Operator Telephone:
                                                            ISSAQUAH, WA 98027Owner/Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                            999 LAKE DROwner/Operator Address:
                                                            Not reportedDate Ended Current:
                                                            19910309Date Became Current:
                                                            PrivateLegal Status:
          COSTCO WHOLESALE CORPORATIONOwner/Operator Name:
                                                            OwnerOwner/Operator Indicator:

                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Email:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Fax:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Telephone Ext:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Telephone:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Address:
                                                            Not reportedDate Ended Current:
                                                            19910309Date Became Current:
                                                            PrivateLegal Status:
          COSTCO WHOLESALE CORPOwner/Operator Name:
                                                            OperatorOwner/Operator Indicator:

                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Email:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Fax:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Telephone Ext:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Telephone:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Address:
                                                            Not reportedDate Ended Current:
                                                            19910309Date Became Current:
                                                            PrivateLegal Status:
          COSTCO WHOLESALE CORPOwner/Operator Name:
                                                            OperatorOwner/Operator Indicator:

                                                            RTHOMPSON@COSTCO.COMOwner/Operator Email:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Fax:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Telephone Ext:
                                                            425-313-8100Owner/Operator Telephone:
                                                            ISSAQUAH, WA 98027Owner/Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                            999 LAKEOwner/Operator Address:

COSTCO WHOLESALE # 441  (Continued) 1001023199

TC7624121.2s   Page 27



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                            RTHOMPSON@COSTCO.COMOwner/Operator Email:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Fax:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Telephone Ext:
                                                            425-313-8100Owner/Operator Telephone:
                                                            ISSAQUAH, WA 98027Owner/Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                            999 LAKE DROwner/Operator Address:
                                                            Not reportedDate Ended Current:
                                                            19910309Date Became Current:
                                                            PrivateLegal Status:
          COSTCO WHOLESALE CORPORATIONOwner/Operator Name:
                                                            OwnerOwner/Operator Indicator:

                                                            ENVIRONMENTALCOMPLIANCE@COSTCO.COMOwner/Operator Email:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Fax:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Telephone Ext:
                                                            425-313-8100Owner/Operator Telephone:
                                                            ISSAQUAH, WA 98027Owner/Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                            999 LAKE DROwner/Operator Address:
                                                            Not reportedDate Ended Current:
                                                            19910309Date Became Current:
                                                            PrivateLegal Status:
          COSTCO WHOLESALE CORPORATIONOwner/Operator Name:
                                                            OwnerOwner/Operator Indicator:

                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Email:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Fax:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Telephone Ext:
                                                            425-313-8100Owner/Operator Telephone:
                                                            ISSAQUAH, WA 98027Owner/Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                            999 LAKE DROwner/Operator Address:
                                                            Not reportedDate Ended Current:
                                                            19910309Date Became Current:
                                                            PrivateLegal Status:
          COSTCO WHOLESALE CORP-Owner/Operator Name:
                                                            OwnerOwner/Operator Indicator:

                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Email:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Fax:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Telephone Ext:
                                                            425-313-8100Owner/Operator Telephone:
                                                            ISSAQUAH, WA 98027Owner/Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                            999 LAKE DROwner/Operator Address:
                                                            Not reportedDate Ended Current:
                                                            19910309Date Became Current:
                                                            PrivateLegal Status:
          COSTCO WHOLESALE CORPORATIONOwner/Operator Name:
                                                            OwnerOwner/Operator Indicator:

                                                            ENVIRONMENTALCOMPLIANCE@COSTCO.COMOwner/Operator Email:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Fax:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Telephone Ext:
                                                            425-313-8100Owner/Operator Telephone:
                                                            ISSAQUAH, WA 98027Owner/Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                            999 LAKEOwner/Operator Address:
                                                            Not reportedDate Ended Current:
                                                            19910309Date Became Current:
                                                            PrivateLegal Status:

COSTCO WHOLESALE # 441  (Continued) 1001023199

TC7624121.2s   Page 28



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                            NoRecognized Trader Exporter:
                                                            NoRecognized Trader Importer:
                                                            NoLarge Quantity Handler of Universal Waste:
                                                            Not reportedState District Owner:
                                                            Large Quantity GeneratorFederal Waste Generator Description:
          COSTCO WHOLESALE # 441Handler Name:
                                                            20160804Receive Date:

                                                            Not reportedElectronic Manifest Broker:
                                                            Not reportedNon Storage Recycler Activity:
                                                            NoCurrent Record:
                                                            NoSpent Lead Acid Battery Exporter:
                                                            NoSpent Lead Acid Battery Importer:
                                                            NoRecognized Trader Exporter:
                                                            NoRecognized Trader Importer:
                                                            NoLarge Quantity Handler of Universal Waste:
                                                            Not reportedState District Owner:
                                                            Large Quantity GeneratorFederal Waste Generator Description:
          COSTCO WHOLESALE #441Handler Name:
                                                            20140301Receive Date:

Historic Generators:

                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Email:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Fax:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Telephone Ext:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Telephone:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Address:
                                                            Not reportedDate Ended Current:
                                                            19910309Date Became Current:
                                                            PrivateLegal Status:
          COSTCO WHOLESALE CORPORATIONOwner/Operator Name:
                                                            OperatorOwner/Operator Indicator:

                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Email:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Fax:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Telephone Ext:
                                                            425-313-8100Owner/Operator Telephone:
                                                            ISSAQUAH, WA 98027Owner/Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                            999 LAKE DROwner/Operator Address:
                                                            Not reportedDate Ended Current:
                                                            19910309Date Became Current:
                                                            PrivateLegal Status:
          COSTCO WHOLESALE CORPOwner/Operator Name:
                                                            OwnerOwner/Operator Indicator:

                                                            ENVIRONMENTALCOMPLIANCE@COSTCO.COMOwner/Operator Email:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Fax:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Telephone Ext:
                                                            425-313-8100Owner/Operator Telephone:
                                                            ISSAQUAH, WA 98027Owner/Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                            999 LAKEOwner/Operator Address:
                                                            Not reportedDate Ended Current:
                                                            19910309Date Became Current:
                                                            PrivateLegal Status:
          COSTCO WHOLESALE CORPORATIONOwner/Operator Name:
                                                            OperatorOwner/Operator Indicator:

COSTCO WHOLESALE # 441  (Continued) 1001023199

TC7624121.2s   Page 29



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                            Not reportedElectronic Manifest Broker:
                                                            Not reportedNon Storage Recycler Activity:
                                                            NoCurrent Record:
                                                            NoSpent Lead Acid Battery Exporter:
                                                            NoSpent Lead Acid Battery Importer:
                                                            NoRecognized Trader Exporter:
                                                            NoRecognized Trader Importer:
                                                            NoLarge Quantity Handler of Universal Waste:
                                                            Not reportedState District Owner:
                                                            Small Quantity GeneratorFederal Waste Generator Description:
          COSTCO WHOLESALE NO 441Handler Name:
                                                            20020709Receive Date:

                                                            Not reportedElectronic Manifest Broker:
                                                            Not reportedNon Storage Recycler Activity:
                                                            NoCurrent Record:
                                                            NoSpent Lead Acid Battery Exporter:
                                                            NoSpent Lead Acid Battery Importer:
                                                            NoRecognized Trader Exporter:
                                                            NoRecognized Trader Importer:
                                                            NoLarge Quantity Handler of Universal Waste:
                                                            Not reportedState District Owner:
                                                            Small Quantity GeneratorFederal Waste Generator Description:
          COSTCO WHOLESALE NO 441Handler Name:
                                                            19960901Receive Date:

                                                            NoElectronic Manifest Broker:
                                                            NoNon Storage Recycler Activity:
                                                            YesCurrent Record:
                                                            NoSpent Lead Acid Battery Exporter:
                                                            NoSpent Lead Acid Battery Importer:
                                                            NoRecognized Trader Exporter:
                                                            NoRecognized Trader Importer:
                                                            NoLarge Quantity Handler of Universal Waste:
                                                            Not reportedState District Owner:
                                                            Small Quantity GeneratorFederal Waste Generator Description:
          COSTCO WHOLESALE # 441Handler Name:
                                                            20220225Receive Date:

                                                            NoElectronic Manifest Broker:
                                                            NoNon Storage Recycler Activity:
                                                            NoCurrent Record:
                                                            NoSpent Lead Acid Battery Exporter:
                                                            NoSpent Lead Acid Battery Importer:
                                                            NoRecognized Trader Exporter:
                                                            NoRecognized Trader Importer:
                                                            NoLarge Quantity Handler of Universal Waste:
                                                            Not reportedState District Owner:
                                                            Large Quantity GeneratorFederal Waste Generator Description:
          COSTCO WHOLESALE # 441Handler Name:
                                                            20180301Receive Date:

                                                            Not reportedElectronic Manifest Broker:
                                                            Not reportedNon Storage Recycler Activity:
                                                            NoCurrent Record:
                                                            NoSpent Lead Acid Battery Exporter:
                                                            NoSpent Lead Acid Battery Importer:

COSTCO WHOLESALE # 441  (Continued) 1001023199

TC7624121.2s   Page 30



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                            NoLarge Quantity Handler of Universal Waste:
                                                            Not reportedState District Owner:
                                                            Large Quantity GeneratorFederal Waste Generator Description:
          COSTCO WHOLESALE # 441Handler Name:
                                                            20001012Receive Date:

                                                            Not reportedElectronic Manifest Broker:
                                                            Not reportedNon Storage Recycler Activity:
                                                            NoCurrent Record:
                                                            NoSpent Lead Acid Battery Exporter:
                                                            NoSpent Lead Acid Battery Importer:
                                                            NoRecognized Trader Exporter:
                                                            NoRecognized Trader Importer:
                                                            NoLarge Quantity Handler of Universal Waste:
                                                            Not reportedState District Owner:
                                                            Large Quantity GeneratorFederal Waste Generator Description:
          COACHELLA VALLEY #441Handler Name:
                                                            19990304Receive Date:

                                                            Not reportedElectronic Manifest Broker:
                                                            Not reportedNon Storage Recycler Activity:
                                                            NoCurrent Record:
                                                            NoSpent Lead Acid Battery Exporter:
                                                            NoSpent Lead Acid Battery Importer:
                                                            NoRecognized Trader Exporter:
                                                            NoRecognized Trader Importer:
                                                            NoLarge Quantity Handler of Universal Waste:
                                                            Not reportedState District Owner:
                                                            Large Quantity GeneratorFederal Waste Generator Description:
          PRICE CLUB #441Handler Name:
                                                            19960328Receive Date:

                                                            NoElectronic Manifest Broker:
                                                            NoNon Storage Recycler Activity:
                                                            NoCurrent Record:
                                                            NoSpent Lead Acid Battery Exporter:
                                                            NoSpent Lead Acid Battery Importer:
                                                            NoRecognized Trader Exporter:
                                                            NoRecognized Trader Importer:
                                                            NoLarge Quantity Handler of Universal Waste:
                                                            Not reportedState District Owner:
                                                            Small Quantity GeneratorFederal Waste Generator Description:
          COSTCO WHOLESALE # 441Handler Name:
                                                            20211112Receive Date:

                                                            Not reportedElectronic Manifest Broker:
                                                            Not reportedNon Storage Recycler Activity:
                                                            NoCurrent Record:
                                                            NoSpent Lead Acid Battery Exporter:
                                                            NoSpent Lead Acid Battery Importer:
                                                            NoRecognized Trader Exporter:
                                                            NoRecognized Trader Importer:
                                                            NoLarge Quantity Handler of Universal Waste:
                                                            Not reportedState District Owner:
                                                            Large Quantity GeneratorFederal Waste Generator Description:
          COSTCO WHOLESALE NO 441Handler Name:
                                                            20140711Receive Date:

COSTCO WHOLESALE # 441  (Continued) 1001023199

TC7624121.2s   Page 31



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                            No Evaluations FoundEvaluations:
Evaluation Action Summary:

                                                            No Violations FoundViolations:
Facility Has Received Notices of Violations:

                              ONE-HOUR PHOTOFINISHINGNAICS Description:
                              812922NAICS Code:

                              PHOTOFINISHINGNAICS Description:
                              81292NAICS Code:

                              WAREHOUSE CLUBS AND SUPERCENTERSNAICS Description:
                              452910NAICS Code:

                              WAREHOUSE CLUBS AND SUPERCENTERSNAICS Description:
                              452311NAICS Code:

                              GENERAL MERCHANDISE STORES, INCLUDING WAREHOUSE CLUBS AND SUPERCENTERSNAICS Description:
                              45231NAICS Code:

                              OTHER GASOLINE STATIONSNAICS Description:
                              447190NAICS Code:

                              PHARMACIES AND DRUG STORESNAICS Description:
                              446110NAICS Code:

                              PHARMACIES AND DRUG STORESNAICS Description:
                              44611NAICS Code:

List of NAICS Codes and Descriptions:

                                                            Not reportedElectronic Manifest Broker:
                                                            Not reportedNon Storage Recycler Activity:
                                                            NoCurrent Record:
                                                            NoSpent Lead Acid Battery Exporter:
                                                            NoSpent Lead Acid Battery Importer:
                                                            NoRecognized Trader Exporter:
                                                            NoRecognized Trader Importer:
                                                            NoLarge Quantity Handler of Universal Waste:
                                                            Not reportedState District Owner:
                                                            Large Quantity GeneratorFederal Waste Generator Description:
          COSTCO WHOLESALE #441Handler Name:
                                                            20020201Receive Date:

                                                            Not reportedElectronic Manifest Broker:
                                                            Not reportedNon Storage Recycler Activity:
                                                            NoCurrent Record:
                                                            NoSpent Lead Acid Battery Exporter:
                                                            NoSpent Lead Acid Battery Importer:
                                                            NoRecognized Trader Exporter:
                                                            NoRecognized Trader Importer:

COSTCO WHOLESALE # 441  (Continued) 1001023199

TC7624121.2s   Page 32



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                                                NoInstitutional Control Indicator:
                                                                                NoEnvironmental Control Indicator:
                                                                                No NCAPS rankingCorrective Action Priority Ranking:
                                                                                NoNon-TSDFs Where RCRA CA has Been Imposed Universe:
                                                                                NoSubject to Corrective Action Universe:
                                                                                No202 GPRA Corrective Action Baseline:
                                                                                Not on the Baseline2018 GPRA Renewals Baseline:
                                                                                Not on the Baseline2018 GPRA Permit Baseline:
                                                                                Not reportedSub-Part K Indicator:
                                                                                NHazardous Secondary Material Indicator:
                                                                                Not reportedFederal Facility Indicator:
                                                                                ---Active Site State-Reg Handler:
                                                                                NoFederal Universal Waste:
                                                                                YesUniversal Waste Destination Facility:
                                                                                YesUniversal Waste Indicator:
                                                                                NoOff-Site Waste Receipt:
                                                                                NoUnderground Injection Control:
                                                                                NoSmelting Melting and Refining Furnace Exemption:
                                                                                NoSmall Quantity On-Site Burner Exemption:
                                                                                NoRecycler Activity with Storage:
                                                                                NoTransfer Facility Activity:
                                                                                NoTransporter Activity:
                                                                                NoMixed Waste Generator:
                                                                                NoImporter Activity:
                                                                                NoShort-Term Generator Activity:
                                                                                OtherOperator Type:
                                                                                Tim DunnOperator Name:
                                                                                OtherOwner Type:
                                                                                Best Buy CoOwner Name:
                                                                                RICHFIELD, MN 55423Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                                                7601 PENN AVE SOUTHMailing Address:
                                                                                Not reportedState District:
                                                                                Not reportedState District Owner:
                                                                                Handler ActivitiesActive Site Indicator:
                                                                                Not reportedAccessibility:
                                                                                Not reportedBiennial Report Cycle:
                                                                                Not reportedNon-Notifier:
                                                                                Not a generator, verifiedFederal Waste Generator Description:
                                                                                Not reportedLand Type:
                                                                                09EPA Region:
                                                                                Not reportedContact Title:
                                                                                ENVCOMPLIANCE@BESTBUY.COMContact Email:
                                                                                952-430-6708Contact Fax:
                                                                                612-291-3406Contact Telephone:
                                                                                RICHFIELD, MN 55423Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                                                7601 PENN AVE SOUTHContact Address:
                                                                                TIM DUNNContact Name:
                                                                                CAL000435263EPA ID:
                                                                                RANCHO MIRAGE, CA 92270Handler City,State,Zip:
                                                                                34295 MONTEREY AVEHandler Address:
                                                                      Best Buy Pacific Sales #1705Handler Name:
                                                                                20180424Date Form Received by Agency:

RCRA Listings:

1303 ft. Site 1 of 2 in cluster C
0.247 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
261 ft.

 

1/8-1/4 RANCHO MIRAGE, CA  92270
ENE 34295 MONTEREY AVE CAL000435263
C6 RCRA NonGen / NLRBEST BUY PACIFIC SALES #1705 1024866674

TC7624121.2s   Page 33



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                            Not reportedElectronic Manifest Broker:
                                                            Not reportedNon Storage Recycler Activity:
                                                            YesCurrent Record:
                                                            NoSpent Lead Acid Battery Exporter:
                                                            NoSpent Lead Acid Battery Importer:
                                                            NoRecognized Trader Exporter:
                                                            NoRecognized Trader Importer:
                                                            NoLarge Quantity Handler of Universal Waste:
                                                            Not reportedState District Owner:
                                                            Not a generator, verifiedFederal Waste Generator Description:
          BEST BUY PACIFIC SALES #1705Handler Name:
                                                            20180424Receive Date:

Historic Generators:

                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Email:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Fax:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Telephone Ext:
                                                            612-291-3406Owner/Operator Telephone:
                                                            RICHFIELD, MN 55423Owner/Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                            7601 PENN AVE SOUTHOwner/Operator Address:
                                                            Not reportedDate Ended Current:
                                                            Not reportedDate Became Current:
                                                            OtherLegal Status:
          BEST BUY COOwner/Operator Name:
                                                            OwnerOwner/Operator Indicator:

                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Email:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Fax:
                                                            Not reportedOwner/Operator Telephone Ext:
                                                            612-291-3406Owner/Operator Telephone:
                                                            RICHFIELD, MN 55423Owner/Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                            7601 PENN AVE SOUTHOwner/Operator Address:
                                                            Not reportedDate Ended Current:
                                                            Not reportedDate Became Current:
                                                            OtherLegal Status:
          TIM DUNNOwner/Operator Name:
                                                            OperatorOwner/Operator Indicator:

Handler - Owner Operator:

                                                                                NoSub-Part P Indicator:
                                                                                NoManifest Broker:
                                                                                NoRecycler Activity Without Storage:
                                                                                NoExporter of Spent Lead Acid Batteries:
                                                                                NoImporter of Spent Lead Acid Batteries:
                                                                                NoRecognized Trader-Exporter:
                                                                                NoRecognized Trader-Importer:
                                                                                20180907Handler Date of Last Change:
                                                                                Not reportedFinancial Assurance Required:
                                                                                NoSignificant Non-Complier With a Compliance Schedule Universe:
                                                                                NoAddressed Significant Non-Complier Universe:
                                                                                NoUnaddressed Significant Non-Complier Universe:
                                                                                NoSignificant Non-Complier Universe:
                                                                                N/AGroundwater Controls Indicator:
                                                                                N/AHuman Exposure Controls Indicator:

BEST BUY PACIFIC SALES #1705  (Continued) 1024866674

TC7624121.2s   Page 34



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                            No Evaluations FoundEvaluations:
Evaluation Action Summary:

                                                            No Violations FoundViolations:
Facility Has Received Notices of Violations:

                              ALL OTHER WASTE MANAGEMENT SERVICESNAICS Description:
                              56299NAICS Code:

List of NAICS Codes and Descriptions:

BEST BUY PACIFIC SALES #1705  (Continued) 1024866674

                              -116.391730Longitude:
                              33.798820Latitude:
                              Center of a facility or station.,Ref Point Type Desc:
                              Not reportedCoord Name:
                              10765000Program ID:
                              HWGEnv Int Type Code:
                              Best Buy PAC #1705Facility Name:
                              438773Site ID:

Coordinates:

                              CERS,Eval Source:
                              HWEval Program:
                              Riverside County Department of Env HealthEval Division:
          unsalable/damaged merchandise and universal waste.
          Facility is a retail appliance store. Hazardous waste onsite include:Eval Notes:
                              Routine done by local agencyEval Type:
                              NoViolations Found:
                              01-25-2022Eval Date:
                              Compliance Evaluation InspectionEval General Type:

                              CERS,Eval Source:
                              HWEval Program:
                              Riverside County Department of Env HealthEval Division:
          includes unsalable/damaged merchandise and universal waste.
          Facility is a retail appliance store.  Hazardous waste on-siteEval Notes:
                              Routine done by local agencyEval Type:
                              NoViolations Found:
                              05-08-2019Eval Date:
                              Compliance Evaluation InspectionEval General Type:

Evaluation:

                              Hazardous Waste GeneratorCERS Description:
                              10765000CERS ID:
                              438773Site ID:
                              RANCHO MIRAGE, CA 92270City,State,Zip:
                              34295 MONTEREY AVEAddress:
                              BEST BUY PAC #1705Name:

CERS HAZ WASTE:

1303 ft. Site 2 of 2 in cluster C
0.247 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
261 ft.

 

1/8-1/4 RANCHO MIRAGE, CA  92270
ENE 34295 MONTEREY AVE    N/A
C7 CERS HAZ WASTEBEST BUY PAC #1705 S123537932

TC7624121.2s   Page 35



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              Not reportedAffiliation State:
                              Not reportedAffiliation City:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Address:
                              Not reportedEntity Title:
                              Best Buy Co., Inc.Entity Name:
                              Parent CorporationAffiliation Type Desc:

                              ,Affiliation Phone:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Zip:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Country:
                              Not reportedAffiliation State:
                              Not reportedAffiliation City:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Address:
                              Compliance Sr. DirectorEntity Title:
                              Tim DunnEntity Name:
                              Identification SignerAffiliation Type Desc:

                              (612) 291-3406,Affiliation Phone:
                              55423-3645Affiliation Zip:
                              United StatesAffiliation Country:
                              MNAffiliation State:
                              RichfieldAffiliation City:
                              7601 Penn Avenue South B5Affiliation Address:
                              Not reportedEntity Title:
                              Best Buy Co, Inc.Entity Name:
                              Legal OwnerAffiliation Type Desc:

                              ,Affiliation Phone:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Zip:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Country:
                              Not reportedAffiliation State:
                              Not reportedAffiliation City:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Address:
                              Not reportedEntity Title:
                              Mily MelendezEntity Name:
                              Document PreparerAffiliation Type Desc:

                              (310) 265-6725,Affiliation Phone:
                              70275Affiliation Zip:
                              United StatesAffiliation Country:
                              CAAffiliation State:
                              Rancho Palos VerdesAffiliation City:
                              580 Silver Spur RoadAffiliation Address:
                              Not reportedEntity Title:
                              TPX, L.P. c/o New Spark Holdings, Inc.Entity Name:
                              Property OwnerAffiliation Type Desc:

                              ,Affiliation Phone:
                              55423Affiliation Zip:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Country:
                              MNAffiliation State:
                              RichfieldAffiliation City:
                              7601 Penn Avenue South B5Affiliation Address:
                              Not reportedEntity Title:
                              Mailing AddressEntity Name:
                              Facility Mailing AddressAffiliation Type Desc:

Affiliation:

BEST BUY PAC #1705  (Continued) S123537932

TC7624121.2s   Page 36



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              (760) 770-6400,Affiliation Phone:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Zip:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Country:
                              Not reportedAffiliation State:
                              Not reportedAffiliation City:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Address:
                              Not reportedEntity Title:
                              Best Buy PAC #1705Entity Name:
                              OperatorAffiliation Type Desc:

                              ,Affiliation Phone:
                              55423Affiliation Zip:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Country:
                              MNAffiliation State:
                              RichfieldAffiliation City:
                              7601 Penn Avenue South B5Affiliation Address:
                              Not reportedEntity Title:
                              Tim DunnEntity Name:
                              Environmental ContactAffiliation Type Desc:

                              (951) 358-5055,Affiliation Phone:
                              92503Affiliation Zip:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Country:
                              CAAffiliation State:
                              RiversideAffiliation City:
                              4065 County Circle Drive, Room 104Affiliation Address:
                              Not reportedEntity Title:
                              Riverside Cnty Env HealthEntity Name:
                              CUPA DistrictAffiliation Type Desc:

                              ,Affiliation Phone:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Zip:
                              Not reportedAffiliation Country:

BEST BUY PAC #1705  (Continued) S123537932

            Southern California Schools & Brownfields OutreachDivision Branch:
            Shahir HaddadSupervisor:
            Not reportedProgram Manager:
            DTSCLead Agency:
            DTSCRegulatory Agencies:
            NONPL:
            24Acres:
            SchoolSite Type Detailed:
            School InvestigationSite Type:
            404494Site Code:
            11/21/2003Status Date:
            No Action RequiredStatus:
            33650015Facility ID:
            PALM DESERT, CA 92211City,State,Zip:
            GERALD FORD DRIVE/MONTEREY AVENUEAddress:
            PALM ELEMENTARY/MIDDLE SCHOOLName:

ENVIROSTOR:

4333 ft.
0.821 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
295 ft.

 

1/2-1 PALM DESERT, CA  92211
ESE SCHGERALD FORD DRIVE/MONTEREY AVENUE    N/A
8 ENVIROSTORPALM ELEMENTARY/MIDDLE SCHOOL S118756738

TC7624121.2s   Page 37



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    GERALD FORD DRIVE/MONTEREY AVENUEAddress:
                    PALM ELEMENTARY/MIDDLE SCHOOLName:

SCH:

                    Not reportedSchedule Revised Date:
                    Not reportedSchedule Due Date:
                    Not reportedSchedule Document Type:
                    Not reportedSchedule Sub Area Name:
                    Not reportedSchedule Area Name:
                    Not reportedFuture Due Date:
                    Not reportedFuture Document Type:
                    Not reportedFuture Sub Area Name:
                    Not reportedFuture Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    11/26/2003Completed Date:
                    Cost Recovery Closeout MemoCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    11/21/2003Completed Date:
                    Phase 1Completed Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    11/12/2003Completed Date:
                    Site Inspections/Visit (Non LUR)Completed Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

Completed Info:

                    Envirostor ID NumberAlias Type:
                    33650015Alias Name:
                    Project Code (Site Code)Alias Type:
                    404494Alias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    PALM SPRINGS USD-PALM ELEM/MID SCHOOLAlias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    PALM SPRINGS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICTAlias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    PALM ELEMENTARY/MIDDLE SCHOOLAlias Name:
            NMAPotential Description:
            NONE SPECIFIEDConfirmed COC:
            NONE SPECIFIED No Contaminants foundPotential COC:
            NONEPast Use:
            NONE SPECIFIEDAPN:
            -116.3797Longitude:
            33.78920Latitude:
            School DistrictFunding:
            NONE SPECIFIEDSite Mgmt Req:
            NORestricted Use:
            Not reportedSpecial Program:
            19Senate:
            47Assembly:

PALM ELEMENTARY/MIDDLE SCHOOL  (Continued) S118756738

TC7624121.2s   Page 38



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Not reportedComments:
                    11/26/2003Completed Date:
                    Cost Recovery Closeout MemoCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    11/21/2003Completed Date:
                    Phase 1Completed Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    11/12/2003Completed Date:
                    Site Inspections/Visit (Non LUR)Completed Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

Completed Info:

                    Envirostor ID NumberAlias Type:
                    33650015Alias Name:
                    Project Code (Site Code)Alias Type:
                    404494Alias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    PALM SPRINGS USD-PALM ELEM/MID SCHOOLAlias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    PALM SPRINGS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICTAlias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    PALM ELEMENTARY/MIDDLE SCHOOLAlias Name:
                    NMAPotential Description:
                    NONE SPECIFIEDConfirmed COC:
                    NONE SPECIFIED, No Contaminants foundPotential COC:
                    NONEPast Use:
                    NONE SPECIFIEDAPN:
                    -116.3797Longitude:
                    33.78920Latitude:
                    School DistrictFunding:
                    NORestricted Use:
                    11/21/2003Status Date:
                    No Action RequiredStatus:
                    Not reportedSpecial Program Status:
                    19Senate:
                    47Assembly:
                    404494Site Code:
                    Southern California Schools & Brownfields OutreachDivision Branch:
                    Shahir HaddadSupervisor:
                    Not reportedProject Manager:
                    * DTSCLead Agency Description:
                    DTSCLead Agency:
                    DTSCCleanup Oversight Agencies:
                    NONational Priorities List:
                    24Acres:
                    NONE SPECIFIEDSite Mgmt. Req.:
                    SchoolSite Type Detail:
                    School InvestigationSite Type:
                    33650015Facility ID:
                    PALM DESERT, CA 92211City,State,Zip:

PALM ELEMENTARY/MIDDLE SCHOOL  (Continued) S118756738

TC7624121.2s   Page 39



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Not reportedSchedule Revised Date:
                    Not reportedSchedule Due Date:
                    Not reportedSchedule Document Type:
                    Not reportedSchedule Sub Area Name:
                    Not reportedSchedule Area Name:
                    Not reportedFuture Due Date:
                    Not reportedFuture Document Type:
                    Not reportedFuture Sub Area Name:
                    Not reportedFuture Area Name:

PALM ELEMENTARY/MIDDLE SCHOOL  (Continued) S118756738

      Not reportedStatus:
      Not reportedGlobal ID:
      Not reportedIncident Description:
      Not reportedIssue Date:
      Not reportedDischarge Date:
      Not reportedFacility Type:
      Not reportedBoard File Number:
      Not reportedStaff Initials:
      Not reportedDate Reported:
      THOUSAND PALMS, CA 92276-3429City,State,Zip:
      72470 VARNER ROADAddress:
      SUNCRETE ROOFTILEName:

NOTIFY 65:

4969 ft.
0.941 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
222 ft.

 

1/2-1 THOUSAND PALMS, CA  92276
North 72470 VARNER ROAD    N/A
9 Notify 65SUNCRETE ROOFTILE S100178468

TC7624121.2s   Page 40



ORPHAN SUMMARY

City EDR ID Site Name Site Address Zip Database(s)

Count: 0 records.

NO SITES FOUND

TC7624121.2s   Page 41



To maintain currency of the following federal and state databases, EDR contacts the appropriate governmental agency
on a monthly or quarterly basis, as required.

Number of Days to Update: Provides confirmation that EDR is reporting records that have been updated within 90 days
from the date the government agency made the information available to the public.

STANDARD ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Lists of Federal NPL (Superfund) sites

NPL:  National Priority List
National Priorities List (Superfund). The NPL is a subset of CERCLIS and identifies over 1,200 sites for priority
cleanup under the Superfund Program. NPL sites may encompass relatively large areas. As such, EDR provides polygon
coverage for over 1,000 NPL site boundaries produced by EPA’s Environmental Photographic Interpretation Center
(EPIC) and regional EPA offices.

Date of Government Version: 02/29/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/01/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/27/2024
Number of Days to Update: 26

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 04/02/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/08/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

NPL Site Boundaries

Sources:

EPA’s Environmental Photographic Interpretation Center (EPIC)
Telephone: 202-564-7333

EPA Region 1 EPA Region 6
Telephone 617-918-1143 Telephone: 214-655-6659

EPA Region 3 EPA Region 7
Telephone 215-814-5418 Telephone: 913-551-7247

EPA Region 4 EPA Region 8
Telephone 404-562-8033 Telephone: 303-312-6774

EPA Region 5 EPA Region 9
Telephone 312-886-6686 Telephone: 415-947-4246

EPA Region 10
Telephone 206-553-8665

Proposed NPL:  Proposed National Priority List Sites
A site that has been proposed for listing on the National Priorities List through the issuance of a proposed rule
in the Federal Register. EPA then accepts public comments on the site, responds to the comments, and places on
the NPL those sites that continue to meet the requirements for listing.

Date of Government Version: 02/29/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/01/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/27/2024
Number of Days to Update: 26

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 04/02/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/08/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

NPL LIENS:  Federal Superfund Liens
Federal Superfund Liens. Under the authority granted the USEPA by CERCLA of 1980, the USEPA has the authority
to file liens against real property in order to recover remedial action expenditures or when the property owner
received notification of potential liability. USEPA compiles a listing of filed notices of Superfund Liens.

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-1

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Date of Government Version: 10/15/1991
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/02/1994
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/30/1994
Number of Days to Update: 56

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-564-4267
Last EDR Contact: 08/15/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/28/2011
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

Lists of Federal Delisted NPL sites

Delisted NPL:  National Priority List Deletions
The National Oil and Hazardous Substances Pollution Contingency Plan (NCP) establishes the criteria that the
EPA uses to delete sites from the NPL. In accordance with 40 CFR 300.425.(e), sites may be deleted from the
NPL where no further response is appropriate.

Date of Government Version: 02/29/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/01/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/27/2024
Number of Days to Update: 26

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 04/02/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/08/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

Lists of Federal sites subject to CERCLA removals and CERCLA orders

FEDERAL FACILITY:  Federal Facility Site Information listing
A listing of National Priority List (NPL) and Base Realignment and Closure (BRAC) sites found in the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Information System (CERCLIS) Database where EPA Federal Facilities
Restoration and Reuse Office is involved in cleanup activities.

Date of Government Version: 12/20/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/20/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/24/2024
Number of Days to Update: 35

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  703-603-8704
Last EDR Contact: 03/26/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/08/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

SEMS:  Superfund Enterprise Management System
SEMS (Superfund Enterprise Management System) tracks hazardous waste sites, potentially hazardous waste sites,
and remedial activities performed in support of EPA’s Superfund Program across the United States. The list was
formerly know as CERCLIS, renamed to SEMS by the EPA in 2015. The list contains data on potentially hazardous
waste sites that have been reported to the USEPA by states, municipalities, private companies and private persons,
pursuant to Section 103 of the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA).
This dataset also contains sites which are either proposed to or on the National Priorities List (NPL) and the
sites which are in the screening and assessment phase for possible inclusion on the NPL.

Date of Government Version: 01/29/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/01/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/22/2024
Number of Days to Update: 21

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  800-424-9346
Last EDR Contact: 04/02/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/22/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

Lists of Federal CERCLA sites with NFRAP

SEMS-ARCHIVE:  Superfund Enterprise Management System Archive

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-2

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



SEMS-ARCHIVE (Superfund Enterprise Management System Archive) tracks sites that have no further interest under
the Federal Superfund Program based on available information. The list was formerly known as the CERCLIS-NFRAP,
renamed to SEMS ARCHIVE by the EPA in 2015. EPA may perform a minimal level of assessment work at a site while
it is archived if site conditions change and/or new information becomes available. Archived sites have been removed
and archived from the inventory of SEMS sites. Archived status indicates that, to the best of EPA’s knowledge,
assessment at a site has been completed and that EPA has determined no further steps will be taken to list the
site on the National Priorities List (NPL), unless information indicates this decision was not appropriate or
other considerations require a recommendation for listing at a later time. The decision does not necessarily mean
that there is no hazard associated with a given site; it only means that. based upon available information, the
location is not judged to be potential NPL site.

Date of Government Version: 01/29/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/01/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/22/2024
Number of Days to Update: 21

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  800-424-9346
Last EDR Contact: 04/02/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/22/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

Lists of Federal RCRA facilities undergoing Corrective Action

CORRACTS:  Corrective Action Report
CORRACTS identifies hazardous waste handlers with RCRA corrective action activity.

Date of Government Version: 12/04/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/06/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/12/2023
Number of Days to Update: 6

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  800-424-9346
Last EDR Contact: 03/19/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/01/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

Lists of Federal RCRA TSD facilities

RCRA-TSDF:  RCRA - Treatment, Storage and Disposal
RCRAInfo is EPA’s comprehensive information system, providing access to data supporting the Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act (RCRA) of 1976 and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA) of 1984. The database
includes selective information on sites which generate, transport, store, treat and/or dispose of hazardous waste
as defined by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA). Transporters are individuals or entities that
move hazardous waste from the generator offsite to a facility that can recycle, treat, store, or dispose of the
waste. TSDFs treat, store, or dispose of the waste.

Date of Government Version: 12/04/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/06/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/12/2023
Number of Days to Update: 6

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  (415) 495-8895
Last EDR Contact: 03/19/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/01/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

Lists of Federal RCRA generators

RCRA-LQG:  RCRA - Large Quantity Generators
RCRAInfo is EPA’s comprehensive information system, providing access to data supporting the Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act (RCRA) of 1976 and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA) of 1984. The database
includes selective information on sites which generate, transport, store, treat and/or dispose of hazardous waste
as defined by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA). Large quantity generators (LQGs) generate
over 1,000 kilograms (kg) of hazardous waste, or over 1 kg of acutely hazardous waste per month.

Date of Government Version: 12/04/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/06/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/12/2023
Number of Days to Update: 6

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  (415) 495-8895
Last EDR Contact: 03/19/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/01/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-3

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



RCRA-SQG:  RCRA - Small Quantity Generators
RCRAInfo is EPA’s comprehensive information system, providing access to data supporting the Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act (RCRA) of 1976 and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA) of 1984. The database
includes selective information on sites which generate, transport, store, treat and/or dispose of hazardous waste
as defined by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA). Small quantity generators (SQGs) generate
between 100 kg and 1,000 kg of hazardous waste per month.

Date of Government Version: 12/04/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/06/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/12/2023
Number of Days to Update: 6

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  (415) 495-8895
Last EDR Contact: 03/19/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/01/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

RCRA-VSQG:  RCRA - Very Small Quantity Generators (Formerly Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity Generators)
RCRAInfo is EPA’s comprehensive information system, providing access to data supporting the Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act (RCRA) of 1976 and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA) of 1984. The database
includes selective information on sites which generate, transport, store, treat and/or dispose of hazardous waste
as defined by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA). Very small quantity generators (VSQGs) generate
less than 100 kg of hazardous waste, or less than 1 kg of acutely hazardous waste per month.

Date of Government Version: 12/04/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/06/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/12/2023
Number of Days to Update: 6

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  (415) 495-8895
Last EDR Contact: 03/19/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/01/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

Federal institutional controls / engineering controls registries

LUCIS:  Land Use Control Information System
LUCIS contains records of land use control information pertaining to the former Navy Base Realignment and Closure
properties.

Date of Government Version: 02/14/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/16/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/04/2024
Number of Days to Update: 48

Source:  Department of the Navy
Telephone:  843-820-7326
Last EDR Contact: 02/02/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/20/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

US ENG CONTROLS:  Engineering Controls Sites List
A listing of sites with engineering controls in place. Engineering controls include various forms of caps, building
foundations, liners, and treatment methods to create pathway elimination for regulated substances to enter environmental
media or effect human health.

Date of Government Version: 02/13/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/21/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/04/2024
Number of Days to Update: 43

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  703-603-0695
Last EDR Contact: 02/21/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/03/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

US INST CONTROLS:  Institutional Controls Sites List
A listing of sites with institutional controls in place. Institutional controls include administrative measures,
such as groundwater use restrictions, construction restrictions, property use restrictions, and post remediation
care requirements intended to prevent exposure to contaminants remaining on site. Deed restrictions are generally
required as part of the institutional controls.

Date of Government Version: 02/13/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/21/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/04/2024
Number of Days to Update: 43

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  703-603-0695
Last EDR Contact: 02/21/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/03/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-4

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Federal ERNS list

ERNS:  Emergency Response Notification System
Emergency Response Notification System. ERNS records and stores information on reported releases of oil and hazardous
substances.

Date of Government Version: 12/12/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/13/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/28/2024
Number of Days to Update: 77

Source:  National Response Center, United States Coast Guard
Telephone:  202-267-2180
Last EDR Contact: 03/19/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/01/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

Lists of state- and tribal (Superfund) equivalent sites

RESPONSE:  State Response Sites
Identifies confirmed release sites where DTSC is involved in remediation, either in a lead or oversight capacity.
These confirmed release sites are generally high-priority and high potential risk.

Date of Government Version: 01/22/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/23/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/08/2024
Number of Days to Update: 76

Source:  Department of Toxic Substances Control
Telephone:  916-323-3400
Last EDR Contact: 01/23/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/06/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

Lists of state- and tribal hazardous waste facilities

ENVIROSTOR:  EnviroStor Database
The Department of Toxic Substances Control’s (DTSC’s) Site Mitigation and Brownfields Reuse Program’s (SMBRP’s)
EnviroStor database identifes sites that have known contamination or sites for which there may be reasons to investigate
further. The database includes the following site types: Federal Superfund sites (National Priorities List (NPL));
State Response, including Military Facilities and State Superfund; Voluntary Cleanup; and School sites. EnviroStor
provides similar information to the information that was available in CalSites, and provides additional site information,
including, but not limited to, identification of formerly-contaminated properties that have been released for
reuse, properties where environmental deed restrictions have been recorded to prevent inappropriate land uses,
and risk characterization information that is used to assess potential impacts to public health and the environment
at contaminated sites.

Date of Government Version: 01/22/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/23/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/08/2024
Number of Days to Update: 76

Source:  Department of Toxic Substances Control
Telephone:  916-323-3400
Last EDR Contact: 01/23/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/06/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

Lists of state and tribal landfills and solid waste disposal facilities

SWF/LF (SWIS):  Solid Waste Information System
Active, Closed and Inactive Landfills. SWF/LF records typically contain an inve ntory of solid waste disposal
facilities or landfills. These may be active or i nactive facilities or open dumps that failed to meet RCRA Section
4004 criteria for solid waste landfills or disposal sites.

Date of Government Version: 11/06/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/07/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/05/2024
Number of Days to Update: 90

Source:  Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery
Telephone:  916-341-6320
Last EDR Contact: 02/06/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/20/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

Lists of state and tribal leaking storage tanks

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-5

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



LUST:  Leaking Underground Fuel Tank Report (GEOTRACKER)
Leaking Underground Storage Tank (LUST) Sites included in GeoTracker. GeoTracker is the Water Boards data management
system for sites that impact, or have the potential to impact, water quality in California, with emphasis on groundwater.

Date of Government Version: 12/04/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/05/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/28/2024
Number of Days to Update: 85

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  see region list
Last EDR Contact: 03/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/17/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

LUST REG 6L:  Leaking Underground Storage Tank Case Listing
For more current information, please refer to the State Water Resources Control Board’s LUST database.

Date of Government Version: 09/09/2003
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/10/2003
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/07/2003
Number of Days to Update: 27

Source:  California Regional Water Quality Control Board Lahontan Region (6)
Telephone:  530-542-5572
Last EDR Contact: 09/12/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/26/2011
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

LUST REG 9:  Leaking Underground Storage Tank Report
Orange, Riverside, San Diego counties. For more current information, please refer to the State Water Resources
Control Board’s LUST database.

Date of Government Version: 03/01/2001
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/23/2001
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/21/2001
Number of Days to Update: 28

Source:  California Regional Water Quality Control Board San Diego Region (9)
Telephone:  858-637-5595
Last EDR Contact: 09/26/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/09/2012
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

LUST REG 8:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks
California Regional Water Quality Control Board Santa Ana Region (8). For more current information, please refer
to the State Water Resources Control Board’s LUST database.

Date of Government Version: 02/14/2005
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/15/2005
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/28/2005
Number of Days to Update: 41

Source:  California Regional Water Quality Control Board Santa Ana Region (8)
Telephone:  909-782-4496
Last EDR Contact: 08/15/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/28/2011
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

LUST REG 7:  Leaking Underground Storage Tank Case Listing
Leaking Underground Storage Tank locations.  Imperial, Riverside, San Diego, Santa Barbara counties.

Date of Government Version: 02/26/2004
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/26/2004
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/24/2004
Number of Days to Update: 27

Source:  California Regional Water Quality Control Board Colorado River Basin Region (7)
Telephone:  760-776-8943
Last EDR Contact: 08/01/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/14/2011
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

LUST REG 5:  Leaking Underground Storage Tank Database
Leaking Underground Storage Tank locations. Alameda, Alpine, Amador, Butte, Colusa, Contra Costa, Calveras, El
Dorado, Fresno, Glenn, Kern, Kings, Lake, Lassen, Madera, Mariposa, Merced, Modoc, Napa, Nevada, Placer, Plumas,
Sacramento, San Joaquin, Shasta, Solano, Stanislaus, Sutter, Tehama, Tulare, Tuolumne, Yolo, Yuba counties.

Date of Government Version: 07/01/2008
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/22/2008
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/31/2008
Number of Days to Update: 9

Source:  California Regional Water Quality Control Board Central Valley Region (5)
Telephone:  916-464-4834
Last EDR Contact: 07/01/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/17/2011
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-6

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



LUST REG 4:  Underground Storage Tank Leak List
Los Angeles, Ventura counties. For more current information, please refer to the State Water Resources Control
Board’s LUST database.

Date of Government Version: 09/07/2004
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/07/2004
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/12/2004
Number of Days to Update: 35

Source:  California Regional Water Quality Control Board Los Angeles Region (4)
Telephone:  213-576-6710
Last EDR Contact: 09/06/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/19/2011
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

LUST REG 3:  Leaking Underground Storage Tank Database
Leaking Underground Storage Tank locations. Monterey, San Benito, San Luis Obispo, Santa Barbara, Santa Cruz counties.

Date of Government Version: 05/19/2003
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/19/2003
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/02/2003
Number of Days to Update: 14

Source:  California Regional Water Quality Control Board Central Coast Region (3)
Telephone:  805-542-4786
Last EDR Contact: 07/18/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/31/2011
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

LUST REG 2:  Fuel Leak List
Leaking Underground Storage Tank locations. Alameda, Contra Costa, Marin, Napa, San Francisco, San Mateo, Santa
Clara, Solano, Sonoma counties.

Date of Government Version: 09/30/2004
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/20/2004
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/19/2004
Number of Days to Update: 30

Source:  California Regional Water Quality Control Board San Francisco Bay Region (2)
Telephone:  510-622-2433
Last EDR Contact: 09/19/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/02/2012
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

LUST REG 1:  Active Toxic Site Investigation
Del Norte, Humboldt, Lake, Mendocino, Modoc, Siskiyou, Sonoma, Trinity counties. For more current information,
please refer to the State Water Resources Control Board’s LUST database.

Date of Government Version: 02/01/2001
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/28/2001
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/29/2001
Number of Days to Update: 29

Source:  California Regional Water Quality Control Board North Coast (1)
Telephone:  707-570-3769
Last EDR Contact: 08/01/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/14/2011
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

LUST REG 6V:  Leaking Underground Storage Tank Case Listing
Leaking Underground Storage Tank locations.  Inyo, Kern, Los Angeles, Mono, San Bernardino counties.

Date of Government Version: 06/07/2005
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/07/2005
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/29/2005
Number of Days to Update: 22

Source:  California Regional Water Quality Control Board Victorville Branch Office (6)
Telephone:  760-241-7365
Last EDR Contact: 09/12/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/26/2011
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

INDIAN LUST R9:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
LUSTs on Indian land in Arizona, California, New Mexico and Nevada

Date of Government Version: 10/25/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/17/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/13/2024
Number of Days to Update: 56

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  415-972-3372
Last EDR Contact: 01/17/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN LUST R1:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
A listing of leaking underground storage tank locations on Indian Land.

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-7

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Date of Government Version: 10/25/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/17/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/13/2024
Number of Days to Update: 56

Source:  EPA Region 1
Telephone:  617-918-1313
Last EDR Contact: 01/17/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN LUST R8:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
LUSTs on Indian land in Colorado, Montana, North Dakota, South Dakota, Utah and Wyoming.

Date of Government Version: 10/25/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/17/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/13/2024
Number of Days to Update: 56

Source:  EPA Region 8
Telephone:  303-312-6271
Last EDR Contact: 01/17/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN LUST R7:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
LUSTs on Indian land in Iowa, Kansas, and Nebraska

Date of Government Version: 10/25/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/17/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/13/2024
Number of Days to Update: 56

Source:  EPA Region 7
Telephone:  913-551-7003
Last EDR Contact: 01/17/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN LUST R10:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
LUSTs on Indian land in Alaska, Idaho, Oregon and Washington.

Date of Government Version: 10/25/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/17/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/13/2024
Number of Days to Update: 56

Source:  EPA Region 10
Telephone:  206-553-2857
Last EDR Contact: 01/17/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN LUST R6:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
LUSTs on Indian land in New Mexico and Oklahoma.

Date of Government Version: 10/25/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/17/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/13/2024
Number of Days to Update: 56

Source:  EPA Region 6
Telephone:  214-665-6597
Last EDR Contact: 01/17/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN LUST R4:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
LUSTs on Indian land in Florida, Mississippi and North Carolina.

Date of Government Version: 10/25/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/17/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/13/2024
Number of Days to Update: 56

Source:  EPA Region 4
Telephone:  404-562-8677
Last EDR Contact: 01/17/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN LUST R5:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
Leaking underground storage tanks located on Indian Land in Michigan, Minnesota and Wisconsin.

Date of Government Version: 10/04/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/17/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/13/2024
Number of Days to Update: 56

Source:  EPA, Region 5
Telephone:  312-886-7439
Last EDR Contact: 01/17/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-8

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



CPS-SLIC:  Statewide SLIC Cases (GEOTRACKER)
Cleanup Program Sites (CPS; also known as Site Cleanups [SC] and formerly known as Spills, Leaks, Investigations,
and Cleanups [SLIC] sites) included in GeoTracker. GeoTracker is the Water Boards data management system for
sites that impact, or have the potential to impact, water quality in California, with emphasis on groundwater.

Date of Government Version: 12/04/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/05/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/27/2024
Number of Days to Update: 84

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  866-480-1028
Last EDR Contact: 03/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/17/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

SLIC REG 1:  Active Toxic Site Investigations
The SLIC (Spills, Leaks, Investigations and Cleanup) program is designed to protect and restore water quality
from spills, leaks, and similar discharges.

Date of Government Version: 04/03/2003
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/07/2003
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/25/2003
Number of Days to Update: 18

Source:  California Regional Water Quality Control Board, North Coast Region (1)
Telephone:  707-576-2220
Last EDR Contact: 08/01/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/14/2011
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

SLIC REG 2:  Spills, Leaks, Investigation & Cleanup Cost Recovery Listing
The SLIC (Spills, Leaks, Investigations and Cleanup) program is designed to protect and restore water quality
from spills, leaks, and similar discharges.

Date of Government Version: 09/30/2004
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/20/2004
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/19/2004
Number of Days to Update: 30

Source:  Regional Water Quality Control Board San Francisco Bay Region (2)
Telephone:  510-286-0457
Last EDR Contact: 09/19/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/02/2012
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

SLIC REG 3:  Spills, Leaks, Investigation & Cleanup Cost Recovery Listing
The SLIC (Spills, Leaks, Investigations and Cleanup) program is designed to protect and restore water quality
from spills, leaks, and similar discharges.

Date of Government Version: 05/18/2006
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/18/2006
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/15/2006
Number of Days to Update: 28

Source:  California Regional Water Quality Control Board Central Coast Region (3)
Telephone:  805-549-3147
Last EDR Contact: 07/18/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/31/2011
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

SLIC REG 4:  Spills, Leaks, Investigation & Cleanup Cost Recovery Listing
The SLIC (Spills, Leaks, Investigations and Cleanup) program is designed to protect and restore water quality
from spills, leaks, and similar discharges.

Date of Government Version: 11/17/2004
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/18/2004
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/04/2005
Number of Days to Update: 47

Source:  Region Water Quality Control Board Los Angeles Region (4)
Telephone:  213-576-6600
Last EDR Contact: 07/01/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/17/2011
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

SLIC REG 5:  Spills, Leaks, Investigation & Cleanup Cost Recovery Listing
The SLIC (Spills, Leaks, Investigations and Cleanup) program is designed to protect and restore water quality
from spills, leaks, and similar discharges.

Date of Government Version: 04/01/2005
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/05/2005
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/21/2005
Number of Days to Update: 16

Source:  Regional Water Quality Control Board Central Valley Region (5)
Telephone:  916-464-3291
Last EDR Contact: 09/12/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/26/2011
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-9

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



SLIC REG 6V:  Spills, Leaks, Investigation & Cleanup Cost Recovery Listing
The SLIC (Spills, Leaks, Investigations and Cleanup) program is designed to protect and restore water quality
from spills, leaks, and similar discharges.

Date of Government Version: 05/24/2005
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/25/2005
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/16/2005
Number of Days to Update: 22

Source:  Regional Water Quality Control Board, Victorville Branch
Telephone:  619-241-6583
Last EDR Contact: 08/15/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/28/2011
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

SLIC REG 6L:  SLIC Sites
The SLIC (Spills, Leaks, Investigations and Cleanup) program is designed to protect and restore water quality
from spills, leaks, and similar discharges.

Date of Government Version: 09/07/2004
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/07/2004
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/12/2004
Number of Days to Update: 35

Source:  California Regional Water Quality Control Board, Lahontan Region
Telephone:  530-542-5574
Last EDR Contact: 08/15/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/28/2011
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

SLIC REG 7:  SLIC List
The SLIC (Spills, Leaks, Investigations and Cleanup) program is designed to protect and restore water quality
from spills, leaks, and similar discharges.

Date of Government Version: 11/24/2004
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/29/2004
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/04/2005
Number of Days to Update: 36

Source:  California Regional Quality Control Board, Colorado River Basin Region
Telephone:  760-346-7491
Last EDR Contact: 08/01/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/14/2011
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

SLIC REG 8:  Spills, Leaks, Investigation & Cleanup Cost Recovery Listing
The SLIC (Spills, Leaks, Investigations and Cleanup) program is designed to protect and restore water quality
from spills, leaks, and similar discharges.

Date of Government Version: 04/03/2008
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/03/2008
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/14/2008
Number of Days to Update: 11

Source:  California Region Water Quality Control Board Santa Ana Region (8)
Telephone:  951-782-3298
Last EDR Contact: 09/12/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/26/2011
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

SLIC REG 9:  Spills, Leaks, Investigation & Cleanup Cost Recovery Listing
The SLIC (Spills, Leaks, Investigations and Cleanup) program is designed to protect and restore water quality
from spills, leaks, and similar discharges.

Date of Government Version: 09/10/2007
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/11/2007
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/28/2007
Number of Days to Update: 17

Source:  California Regional Water Quality Control Board San Diego Region (9)
Telephone:  858-467-2980
Last EDR Contact: 08/08/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/21/2011
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

Lists of state and tribal registered storage tanks

FEMA UST:  Underground Storage Tank Listing
A listing of all FEMA owned underground storage tanks.

Date of Government Version: 11/16/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/16/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/13/2024
Number of Days to Update: 89

Source:  FEMA
Telephone:  202-646-5797
Last EDR Contact: 03/19/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/15/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-10

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



UST CLOSURE:  Proposed Closure of Underground Storage Tank (UST) Cases
UST cases that are being considered for closure by either the State Water Resources Control Board or the Executive
Director have been posted for a 60-day public comment period. UST Case Closures being proposed for consideration
by the State Water Resources Control Board. These are primarily UST cases that meet closure criteria under the
decisional framework in State Water Board Resolution No. 92-49 and other Board orders. UST Case Closures proposed
for consideration by the Executive Director pursuant to State Water Board Resolution No. 2012-0061. These are
cases that meet the criteria of the Low-Threat UST Case Closure Policy. UST Case Closure Review Denials and Approved
Orders.

Date of Government Version: 11/28/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/30/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/27/2024
Number of Days to Update: 89

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  916-327-7844
Last EDR Contact: 03/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/17/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

MILITARY UST SITES:  Military UST Sites (GEOTRACKER)
Military ust sites

Date of Government Version: 12/04/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/05/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/28/2024
Number of Days to Update: 85

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  866-480-1028
Last EDR Contact: 03/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/17/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

UST:  Active UST Facilities
Active UST facilities gathered from the local regulatory agencies

Date of Government Version: 12/04/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/05/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/28/2024
Number of Days to Update: 85

Source:  SWRCB
Telephone:  916-341-5851
Last EDR Contact: 03/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/17/2024
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

AST:  Aboveground Petroleum Storage Tank Facilities
A listing of aboveground storage tank petroleum storage tank locations.

Date of Government Version: 07/06/2016
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/12/2016
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/19/2016
Number of Days to Update: 69

Source:  California Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  916-327-5092
Last EDR Contact: 03/08/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/24/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN UST R9:  Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
The Indian Underground Storage Tank (UST) database provides information about underground storage tanks on Indian
land in EPA Region 9 (Arizona, California, Hawaii, Nevada, the Pacific Islands, and Tribal Nations).

Date of Government Version: 10/24/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/17/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/13/2024
Number of Days to Update: 56

Source:  EPA Region 9
Telephone:  415-972-3368
Last EDR Contact: 01/17/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN UST R6:  Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
The Indian Underground Storage Tank (UST) database provides information about underground storage tanks on Indian
land in EPA Region 6 (Louisiana, Arkansas, Oklahoma, New Mexico, Texas and 65 Tribes).

Date of Government Version: 10/24/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/17/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/13/2024
Number of Days to Update: 56

Source:  EPA Region 6
Telephone:  214-665-7591
Last EDR Contact: 01/17/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-11

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



INDIAN UST R8:  Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
The Indian Underground Storage Tank (UST) database provides information about underground storage tanks on Indian
land in EPA Region 8 (Colorado, Montana, North Dakota, South Dakota, Utah, Wyoming and 27 Tribal Nations).

Date of Government Version: 10/24/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/17/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/13/2024
Number of Days to Update: 56

Source:  EPA Region 8
Telephone:  303-312-6137
Last EDR Contact: 01/17/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN UST R7:  Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
The Indian Underground Storage Tank (UST) database provides information about underground storage tanks on Indian
land in EPA Region 7 (Iowa, Kansas, Missouri, Nebraska, and 9 Tribal Nations).

Date of Government Version: 10/24/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/17/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/13/2024
Number of Days to Update: 56

Source:  EPA Region 7
Telephone:  913-551-7003
Last EDR Contact: 01/17/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN UST R1:  Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
The Indian Underground Storage Tank (UST) database provides information about underground storage tanks on Indian
land in EPA Region 1 (Connecticut, Maine, Massachusetts, New Hampshire, Rhode Island, Vermont and ten Tribal
Nations).

Date of Government Version: 10/24/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/17/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/13/2024
Number of Days to Update: 56

Source:  EPA, Region 1
Telephone:  617-918-1313
Last EDR Contact: 01/17/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN UST R5:  Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
The Indian Underground Storage Tank (UST) database provides information about underground storage tanks on Indian
land in EPA Region 5 (Michigan, Minnesota and Wisconsin and Tribal Nations).

Date of Government Version: 10/17/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/17/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/13/2024
Number of Days to Update: 56

Source:  EPA Region 5
Telephone:  312-886-6136
Last EDR Contact: 01/17/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN UST R4:  Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
The Indian Underground Storage Tank (UST) database provides information about underground storage tanks on Indian
land in EPA Region 4 (Alabama, Florida, Georgia, Kentucky, Mississippi, North Carolina, South Carolina, Tennessee
and Tribal Nations)

Date of Government Version: 10/24/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/17/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/13/2024
Number of Days to Update: 56

Source:  EPA Region 4
Telephone:  404-562-9424
Last EDR Contact: 01/17/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN UST R10:  Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
The Indian Underground Storage Tank (UST) database provides information about underground storage tanks on Indian
land in EPA Region 10 (Alaska, Idaho, Oregon, Washington, and Tribal Nations).

Date of Government Version: 10/24/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/17/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/13/2024
Number of Days to Update: 56

Source:  EPA Region 10
Telephone:  206-553-2857
Last EDR Contact: 01/17/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-12

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Lists of state and tribal voluntary cleanup sites

VCP:  Voluntary Cleanup Program Properties
Contains low threat level properties with either confirmed or unconfirmed releases and the project proponents
have request that DTSC oversee investigation and/or cleanup activities and have agreed to provide coverage for
DTSC’s costs.

Date of Government Version: 01/22/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/23/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/08/2024
Number of Days to Update: 76

Source:  Department of Toxic Substances Control
Telephone:  916-323-3400
Last EDR Contact: 01/23/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/06/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

INDIAN VCP R1:  Voluntary Cleanup Priority Listing
A listing of voluntary cleanup priority sites located on Indian Land located in Region 1.

Date of Government Version: 07/27/2015
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/29/2015
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/18/2016
Number of Days to Update: 142

Source:  EPA, Region 1
Telephone:  617-918-1102
Last EDR Contact: 03/18/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/01/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN VCP R7:  Voluntary Cleanup Priority Lisitng
A listing of voluntary cleanup priority sites located on Indian Land located in Region 7.

Date of Government Version: 03/20/2008
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/22/2008
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/19/2008
Number of Days to Update: 27

Source:  EPA, Region 7
Telephone:  913-551-7365
Last EDR Contact: 07/08/2021
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/20/2009
Data Release Frequency: Varies

Lists of state and tribal brownfield sites

BROWNFIELDS:  Considered Brownfieds Sites Listing
A listing of sites the SWRCB considers to be Brownfields since these are sites have come to them through the MOA
Process.

Date of Government Version: 12/13/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/13/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/07/2024
Number of Days to Update: 85

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  916-323-7905
Last EDR Contact: 03/19/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/01/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

ADDITIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Local Brownfield lists

US BROWNFIELDS:  A Listing of Brownfields Sites
Brownfields are real property, the expansion, redevelopment, or reuse of which may be complicated by the presence
or potential presence of a hazardous substance, pollutant, or contaminant. Cleaning up and reinvesting in these
properties takes development pressures off of undeveloped, open land, and both improves and protects the environment.
Assessment, Cleanup and Redevelopment Exchange System (ACRES) stores information reported by EPA Brownfields
grant recipients on brownfields properties assessed or cleaned up with grant funding as well as information on
Targeted Brownfields Assessments performed by EPA Regions. A listing of ACRES Brownfield sites is obtained from
Cleanups in My Community. Cleanups in My Community provides information on Brownfields properties for which information
is reported back to EPA, as well as areas served by Brownfields grant programs.

Date of Government Version: 08/15/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/30/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/01/2023
Number of Days to Update: 93

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-566-2777
Last EDR Contact: 03/12/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/24/2024
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-13

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Local Lists of Landfill / Solid Waste Disposal Sites

WMUDS/SWAT:  Waste Management Unit Database
Waste Management Unit Database System. WMUDS is used by the State Water Resources Control Board staff and the
Regional Water Quality Control Boards for program tracking and inventory of waste management units. WMUDS is composed
of the following databases: Facility Information, Scheduled Inspections Information, Waste Management Unit Information,
SWAT Program Information, SWAT Report Summary Information, SWAT Report Summary Data, Chapter 15 (formerly Subchapter
15) Information, Chapter 15 Monitoring Parameters, TPCA Program Information, RCRA Program Information, Closure
Information, and Interested Parties Information.

Date of Government Version: 04/01/2000
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/10/2000
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/10/2000
Number of Days to Update: 30

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  916-227-4448
Last EDR Contact: 01/22/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/06/2024
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

SWRCY:  Recycler Database
A listing of recycling facilities in California.

Date of Government Version: 11/29/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/29/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/23/2024
Number of Days to Update: 86

Source:  Department of Conservation
Telephone:  916-323-3836
Last EDR Contact: 03/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/17/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

HAULERS:  Registered Waste Tire Haulers Listing
A listing of registered waste tire haulers.

Date of Government Version: 11/16/2022
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/22/2022
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/13/2023
Number of Days to Update: 83

Source:  Integrated Waste Management Board
Telephone:  916-341-6422
Last EDR Contact: 04/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/20/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN ODI:  Report on the Status of Open Dumps on Indian Lands
Location of open dumps on Indian land.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/1998
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/03/2007
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/24/2008
Number of Days to Update: 52

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  703-308-8245
Last EDR Contact: 01/26/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/06/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

ODI:  Open Dump Inventory
An open dump is defined as a disposal facility that does not comply with one or more of the Part 257 or Part 258
Subtitle D Criteria.

Date of Government Version: 06/30/1985
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/09/2004
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/17/2004
Number of Days to Update: 39

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  800-424-9346
Last EDR Contact: 06/09/2004
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

DEBRIS REGION 9:  Torres Martinez Reservation Illegal Dump Site Locations
A listing of illegal dump sites location on the Torres Martinez Indian Reservation located in eastern Riverside
County and northern Imperial County, California.

Date of Government Version: 01/12/2009
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/07/2009
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/21/2009
Number of Days to Update: 137

Source:  EPA, Region 9
Telephone:  415-947-4219
Last EDR Contact: 01/11/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-14

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



IHS OPEN DUMPS:  Open Dumps on Indian Land
A listing of all open dumps located on Indian Land in the United States.

Date of Government Version: 04/01/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/06/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/29/2015
Number of Days to Update: 176

Source:  Department of Health & Human Serivces, Indian Health Service
Telephone:  301-443-1452
Last EDR Contact: 01/17/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/06/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

Local Lists of Hazardous waste / Contaminated Sites

US HIST CDL:  National Clandestine Laboratory Register
A listing of clandestine drug lab locations that have been removed from the DEAs National Clandestine Laboratory
Register.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/21/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/04/2024
Number of Days to Update: 43

Source:  Drug Enforcement Administration
Telephone:  202-307-1000
Last EDR Contact: 02/21/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/03/2024
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

HIST CAL-SITES:  Calsites Database
The Calsites database contains potential or confirmed hazardous substance release properties. In 1996, California
EPA reevaluated and significantly reduced the number of sites in the Calsites database. No longer updated by the
state agency. It has been replaced by ENVIROSTOR.

Date of Government Version: 08/08/2005
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/03/2006
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/24/2006
Number of Days to Update: 21

Source:  Department of Toxic Substance Control
Telephone:  916-323-3400
Last EDR Contact: 02/23/2009
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/25/2009
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

SCH:  School Property Evaluation Program
This category contains proposed and existing school sites that are being evaluated by DTSC for possible hazardous
materials contamination. In some cases, these properties may be listed in the CalSites category depending on the
level of threat to public health and safety or the environment they pose.

Date of Government Version: 01/22/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/23/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/08/2024
Number of Days to Update: 76

Source:  Department of Toxic Substances Control
Telephone:  916-323-3400
Last EDR Contact: 01/23/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/06/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

CDL:  Clandestine Drug Labs
A listing of drug lab locations. Listing of a location in this database does not indicate that any illegal drug
lab materials were or were not present there, and does not constitute a determination that the location either
requires or does not require additional cleanup work.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2021
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/28/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/18/2023
Number of Days to Update: 81

Source:  Department of Toxic Substances Control
Telephone:  916-255-6504
Last EDR Contact: 03/08/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/13/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TOXIC PITS:  Toxic Pits Cleanup Act Sites
Toxic PITS Cleanup Act Sites. TOXIC PITS identifies sites suspected of containing hazardous substances where cleanup
has not yet been completed.

Date of Government Version: 07/01/1995
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/30/1995
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/26/1995
Number of Days to Update: 27

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  916-227-4364
Last EDR Contact: 01/26/2009
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/27/2009
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-15

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



CERS HAZ WASTE:  California Environmental Reporting System Hazardous Waste
List of sites in the California Environmental Protection Agency (CalEPA) Regulated Site Portal which fall under
the Hazardous Chemical Management, Hazardous Waste Onsite Treatment, Household Hazardous Waste Collection, Hazardous
Waste Generator, and RCRA LQ HW Generator programs.

Date of Government Version: 01/16/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/16/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/03/2024
Number of Days to Update: 78

Source:  CalEPA
Telephone:  916-323-2514
Last EDR Contact: 01/16/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

US CDL:  Clandestine Drug Labs
A listing of clandestine drug lab locations. The U.S. Department of Justice ("the Department") provides this
web site as a public service. It contains addresses of some locations where law enforcement agencies reported
they found chemicals or other items that indicated the presence of either clandestine drug laboratories or dumpsites.
In most cases, the source of the entries is not the Department, and the Department has not verified the entry
and does not guarantee its accuracy. Members of the public must verify the accuracy of all entries by, for example,
contacting local law enforcement and local health departments.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/21/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/04/2024
Number of Days to Update: 43

Source:  Drug Enforcement Administration
Telephone:  202-307-1000
Last EDR Contact: 02/21/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/03/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

Local Lists of Registered Storage Tanks

SWEEPS UST:  SWEEPS UST Listing
Statewide Environmental Evaluation and Planning System. This underground storage tank listing was updated and
maintained by a company contacted by the SWRCB in the early 1990’s. The listing is no longer updated or maintained.
The local agency is the contact for more information on a site on the SWEEPS list.

Date of Government Version: 06/01/1994
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/07/2005
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/11/2005
Number of Days to Update: 35

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 06/03/2005
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

HIST UST:  Hazardous Substance Storage Container Database
The Hazardous Substance Storage Container Database is a historical listing of UST sites. Refer to local/county
source for current data.

Date of Government Version: 10/15/1990
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/25/1991
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/12/1991
Number of Days to Update: 18

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  916-341-5851
Last EDR Contact: 07/26/2001
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

SAN FRANCISCO AST:  Aboveground Storage Tank Site Listing
Aboveground storage tank sites

Date of Government Version: 10/30/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/01/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/23/2024
Number of Days to Update: 83

Source:  San Francisco County Department of Public Health
Telephone:  415-252-3896
Last EDR Contact: 01/29/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/13/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

CA FID UST:  Facility Inventory Database
The Facility Inventory Database (FID) contains a historical listing of active and inactive underground storage
tank locations from the State Water Resource Control Board. Refer to local/county source for current data.

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-16

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Date of Government Version: 10/31/1994
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/05/1995
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/29/1995
Number of Days to Update: 24

Source:  California Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  916-341-5851
Last EDR Contact: 12/28/1998
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

CERS TANKS:  California Environmental Reporting System (CERS) Tanks
List of sites in the California Environmental Protection Agency (CalEPA) Regulated Site Portal which fall under
the Aboveground Petroleum Storage and Underground Storage Tank regulatory programs.

Date of Government Version: 01/16/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/16/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/03/2024
Number of Days to Update: 78

Source:  California Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  916-323-2514
Last EDR Contact: 01/16/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

Local Land Records

LIENS:  Environmental Liens Listing
A listing of property locations with environmental liens for California where DTSC is a lien holder.

Date of Government Version: 11/21/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/22/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/16/2024
Number of Days to Update: 86

Source:  Department of Toxic Substances Control
Telephone:  916-323-3400
Last EDR Contact: 02/26/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/10/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

LIENS 2:  CERCLA Lien Information
A Federal CERCLA (’Superfund’) lien can exist by operation of law at any site or property at which EPA has spent
Superfund monies. These monies are spent to investigate and address releases and threatened releases of contamination.
CERCLIS provides information as to the identity of these sites and properties.

Date of Government Version: 02/29/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/01/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/27/2024
Number of Days to Update: 26

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-564-6023
Last EDR Contact: 04/02/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/08/2024
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

DEED:  Deed Restriction Listing
Site Mitigation and Brownfields Reuse Program Facility Sites with Deed Restrictions & Hazardous Waste Management
Program Facility Sites with Deed / Land Use Restriction. The DTSC Site Mitigation and Brownfields Reuse Program
(SMBRP) list includes sites cleaned up under the program’s oversight and generally does not include current
or former hazardous waste facilities that required a hazardous waste facility permit. The list represents deed
restrictions that are active. Some sites have multiple deed restrictions. The DTSC Hazardous Waste Management
Program (HWMP) has developed a list of current or former hazardous waste facilities that have a recorded land
use restriction at the local county recorder’s office. The land use restrictions on this list were required by
the DTSC HWMP as a result of the presence of hazardous substances that remain on site after the facility (or
part of the facility) has been closed or cleaned up. The types of land use restriction include deed notice, deed
restriction, or a land use restriction that binds current and future owners.

Date of Government Version: 11/22/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/22/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/15/2024
Number of Days to Update: 85

Source:  DTSC and SWRCB
Telephone:  916-323-3400
Last EDR Contact: 02/27/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/10/2024
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

Records of Emergency Release Reports

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-17

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



HMIRS:  Hazardous Materials Information Reporting System
Hazardous Materials Incident Report System. HMIRS contains hazardous material spill incidents reported to DOT.

Date of Government Version: 12/12/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/13/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/28/2024
Number of Days to Update: 77

Source:  U.S. Department of Transportation
Telephone:  202-366-4555
Last EDR Contact: 03/20/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/01/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

CHMIRS:  California Hazardous Material Incident Report System
California Hazardous Material Incident Reporting System. CHMIRS contains information on reported hazardous material
incidents (accidental releases or spills).

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/23/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/09/2024
Number of Days to Update: 77

Source:  Office of Emergency Services
Telephone:  916-845-8400
Last EDR Contact: 01/18/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

LDS:  Land Disposal Sites Listing (GEOTRACKER)
Land Disposal sites (Landfills) included in GeoTracker. GeoTracker is the Water Boards data management system
for sites that impact, or have the potential to impact, water quality in California, with emphasis on groundwater.

Date of Government Version: 12/04/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/05/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/27/2024
Number of Days to Update: 84

Source:  State Water Qualilty Control Board
Telephone:  866-480-1028
Last EDR Contact: 03/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/17/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

MCS:  Military Cleanup Sites Listing (GEOTRACKER)
Military sites (consisting of: Military UST sites; Military Privatized sites; and Military Cleanup sites [formerly
known as DoD non UST]) included in GeoTracker. GeoTracker is the Water Boards data management system for sites
that impact, or have the potential to impact, water quality in California, with emphasis on groundwater.

Date of Government Version: 12/04/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/05/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/28/2024
Number of Days to Update: 85

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  866-480-1028
Last EDR Contact: 03/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/17/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

SPILLS 90:  SPILLS90 data from FirstSearch
Spills 90 includes those spill and release records available exclusively from FirstSearch databases. Typically,
they may include chemical, oil and/or hazardous substance spills recorded after 1990. Duplicate records that are
already included in EDR incident and release records are not included in Spills 90.

Date of Government Version: 06/06/2012
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/03/2013
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/22/2013
Number of Days to Update: 50

Source:  FirstSearch
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 01/03/2013
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

Other Ascertainable Records

RCRA NonGen / NLR:  RCRA - Non Generators / No Longer Regulated
RCRAInfo is EPA’s comprehensive information system, providing access to data supporting the Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act (RCRA) of 1976 and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA) of 1984. The database
includes selective information on sites which generate, transport, store, treat and/or dispose of hazardous waste
as defined by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA). Non-Generators do not presently generate hazardous
waste.

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-18

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Date of Government Version: 12/04/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/06/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/12/2023
Number of Days to Update: 6

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  (415) 495-8895
Last EDR Contact: 03/19/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/01/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

FUDS:  Formerly Used Defense Sites
The listing includes locations of Formerly Used Defense Sites properties where the US Army Corps of Engineers
is actively working or will take necessary cleanup actions.

Date of Government Version: 01/30/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/13/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/04/2024
Number of Days to Update: 51

Source:  U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
Telephone:  202-528-4285
Last EDR Contact: 02/13/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/27/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DOD:  Department of Defense Sites
This data set consists of federally owned or administered lands, administered by the Department of Defense, that
have any area equal to or greater than 640 acres of the United States, Puerto Rico, and the U.S. Virgin Islands.

Date of Government Version: 06/07/2021
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/13/2021
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/09/2022
Number of Days to Update: 239

Source:  USGS
Telephone:  888-275-8747
Last EDR Contact: 04/11/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/22/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

FEDLAND:  Federal and Indian Lands
Federally and Indian administrated lands of the United States. Lands included are administrated by: Army Corps
of Engineers, Bureau of Reclamation, National Wild and Scenic River, National Wildlife Refuge, Public Domain Land,
Wilderness, Wilderness Study Area, Wildlife Management Area, Bureau of Indian Affairs, Bureau of Land Management,
Department of Justice, Forest Service, Fish and Wildlife Service, National Park Service.

Date of Government Version: 04/02/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/11/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/06/2019
Number of Days to Update: 574

Source:  U.S. Geological Survey
Telephone:  888-275-8747
Last EDR Contact: 04/04/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/15/2024
Data Release Frequency: N/A

SCRD DRYCLEANERS:  State Coalition for Remediation of Drycleaners Listing
The State Coalition for Remediation of Drycleaners was established in 1998, with support from the U.S. EPA Office
of Superfund Remediation and Technology Innovation. It is comprised of representatives of states with established
drycleaner remediation programs. Currently the member states are Alabama, Connecticut, Florida, Illinois, Kansas,
Minnesota, Missouri, North Carolina, Oregon, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, and Wisconsin.

Date of Government Version: 07/30/2021
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/03/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/10/2023
Number of Days to Update: 7

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  615-532-8599
Last EDR Contact: 02/06/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/20/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

US FIN ASSUR:  Financial Assurance Information
All owners and operators of facilities that treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste are required to provide
proof that they will have sufficient funds to pay for the clean up, closure, and post-closure care of their facilities.

Date of Government Version: 12/11/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/13/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/28/2024
Number of Days to Update: 77

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-566-1917
Last EDR Contact: 03/13/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/01/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-19

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



EPA WATCH LIST:  EPA Watch List
EPA maintains a "Watch List" to facilitate dialogue between EPA, state and local environmental agencies on enforcement
matters relating to facilities with alleged violations identified as either significant or high priority. Being
on the Watch List does not mean that the facility has actually violated the law only that an investigation by
EPA or a state or local environmental agency has led those organizations to allege that an unproven violation
has in fact occurred. Being on the Watch List does not represent a higher level of concern regarding the alleged
violations that were detected, but instead indicates cases requiring additional dialogue between EPA, state and
local agencies - primarily because of the length of time the alleged violation has gone unaddressed or unresolved.

Date of Government Version: 08/30/2013
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/21/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/17/2014
Number of Days to Update: 88

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  617-520-3000
Last EDR Contact: 01/29/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/13/2024
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

2020 COR ACTION:  2020 Corrective Action Program List
The EPA has set ambitious goals for the RCRA Corrective Action program by creating the 2020 Corrective Action
Universe. This RCRA cleanup baseline includes facilities expected to need corrective action. The 2020 universe
contains a wide variety of sites. Some properties are heavily contaminated while others were contaminated but
have since been cleaned up. Still others have not been fully investigated yet, and may require little or no remediation.
Inclusion in the 2020 Universe does not necessarily imply failure on the part of a facility to meet its RCRA obligations.

Date of Government Version: 09/30/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/08/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/20/2018
Number of Days to Update: 73

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  703-308-4044
Last EDR Contact: 02/02/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/13/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TSCA:  Toxic Substances Control Act
Toxic Substances Control Act. TSCA identifies manufacturers and importers of chemical substances included on the
TSCA Chemical Substance Inventory list. It includes data on the production volume of these substances by plant
site.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2020
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/14/2022
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/24/2023
Number of Days to Update: 283

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-260-5521
Last EDR Contact: 03/14/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/24/2024
Data Release Frequency: Every 4 Years

TRIS:  Toxic Chemical Release Inventory System
Toxic Release Inventory System. TRIS identifies facilities which release toxic chemicals to the air, water and
land in reportable quantities under SARA Title III Section 313.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2022
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/13/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/07/2024
Number of Days to Update: 86

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-566-0250
Last EDR Contact: 02/15/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/27/2024
Data Release Frequency: Annually

SSTS:  Section 7 Tracking Systems
Section 7 of the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide and Rodenticide Act, as amended (92 Stat. 829) requires all
registered pesticide-producing establishments to submit a report to the Environmental Protection Agency by March
1st each year. Each establishment must report the types and amounts of pesticides, active ingredients and devices
being produced, and those having been produced and sold or distributed in the past year.

Date of Government Version: 01/16/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/17/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/27/2024
Number of Days to Update: 70

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-564-4203
Last EDR Contact: 01/17/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Annually

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-20

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



ROD:  Records Of Decision
Record of Decision. ROD documents mandate a permanent remedy at an NPL (Superfund) site containing technical
and health information to aid in the cleanup.

Date of Government Version: 02/29/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/01/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/27/2024
Number of Days to Update: 26

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  703-416-0223
Last EDR Contact: 04/02/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/10/2024
Data Release Frequency: Annually

RMP:  Risk Management Plans
When Congress passed the Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990, it required EPA to publish regulations and guidance
for chemical accident prevention at facilities using extremely hazardous substances. The Risk Management Program
Rule (RMP Rule) was written to implement Section 112(r) of these amendments. The rule, which built upon existing
industry codes and standards, requires companies of all sizes that use certain flammable and toxic substances
to develop a Risk Management Program, which includes a(n): Hazard assessment that details the potential effects
of an accidental release, an accident history of the last five years, and an evaluation of worst-case and alternative
accidental releases; Prevention program that includes safety precautions and maintenance, monitoring, and employee
training measures; and Emergency response program that spells out emergency health care, employee training measures
and procedures for informing the public and response agencies (e.g the fire department) should an accident occur.

Date of Government Version: 02/01/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/08/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/04/2024
Number of Days to Update: 56

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-564-8600
Last EDR Contact: 01/12/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

RAATS:  RCRA Administrative Action Tracking System
RCRA Administration Action Tracking System. RAATS contains records based on enforcement actions issued under RCRA
pertaining to major violators and includes administrative and civil actions brought by the EPA. For administration
actions after September 30, 1995, data entry in the RAATS database was discontinued. EPA will retain a copy of
the database for historical records. It was necessary to terminate RAATS because a decrease in agency resources
made it impossible to continue to update the information contained in the database.

Date of Government Version: 04/17/1995
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/03/1995
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/07/1995
Number of Days to Update: 35

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-564-4104
Last EDR Contact: 06/02/2008
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/01/2008
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

PRP:  Potentially Responsible Parties
A listing of verified Potentially Responsible Parties

Date of Government Version: 09/19/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/03/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/19/2023
Number of Days to Update: 16

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-564-6023
Last EDR Contact: 04/02/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/13/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

PADS:  PCB Activity Database System
PCB Activity Database. PADS Identifies generators, transporters, commercial storers and/or brokers and disposers
of PCB’s who are required to notify the EPA of such activities.

Date of Government Version: 03/20/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/04/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/09/2023
Number of Days to Update: 66

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-566-0500
Last EDR Contact: 04/04/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/15/2024
Data Release Frequency: Annually

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-21

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



ICIS:  Integrated Compliance Information System
The Integrated Compliance Information System (ICIS) supports the information needs of the national enforcement
and compliance program as well as the unique needs of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES)
program.

Date of Government Version: 11/18/2016
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/23/2016
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/10/2017
Number of Days to Update: 79

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-564-2501
Last EDR Contact: 03/28/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/15/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

FTTS:  FIFRA/ TSCA Tracking System - FIFRA (Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, & Rodenticide Act)/TSCA (Toxic Substances Control Act)
FTTS tracks administrative cases and pesticide enforcement actions and compliance activities related to FIFRA,
TSCA and EPCRA (Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act). To maintain currency, EDR contacts the
Agency on a quarterly basis.

Date of Government Version: 04/09/2009
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/16/2009
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/11/2009
Number of Days to Update: 25

Source:  EPA/Office of Prevention, Pesticides and Toxic Substances
Telephone:  202-566-1667
Last EDR Contact: 08/18/2017
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/04/2017
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

FTTS INSP:  FIFRA/ TSCA Tracking System - FIFRA (Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, & Rodenticide Act)/TSCA (Toxic Substances Control Act)
A listing of FIFRA/TSCA Tracking System (FTTS) inspections and enforcements.

Date of Government Version: 04/09/2009
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/16/2009
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/11/2009
Number of Days to Update: 25

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-566-1667
Last EDR Contact: 08/18/2017
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/04/2017
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

MLTS:  Material Licensing Tracking System
MLTS is maintained by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission and contains a list of approximately 8,100 sites which
possess or use radioactive materials and which are subject to NRC licensing requirements. To maintain currency,
EDR contacts the Agency on a quarterly basis.

Date of Government Version: 01/02/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/16/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/13/2024
Number of Days to Update: 57

Source:  Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Telephone:  301-415-0717
Last EDR Contact: 01/11/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

COAL ASH DOE:  Steam-Electric Plant Operation Data
A listing of power plants that store ash in surface ponds.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2022
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/27/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/22/2024
Number of Days to Update: 87

Source:  Department of Energy
Telephone:  202-586-8719
Last EDR Contact: 02/23/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/10/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

COAL ASH EPA:  Coal Combustion Residues Surface Impoundments List
A listing of coal combustion residues surface impoundments with high hazard potential ratings.

Date of Government Version: 01/12/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/05/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/11/2019
Number of Days to Update: 251

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 02/23/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/10/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-22

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



PCB TRANSFORMER:  PCB Transformer Registration Database
The database of PCB transformer registrations that includes all PCB registration submittals.

Date of Government Version: 09/13/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/06/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/10/2020
Number of Days to Update: 96

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-566-0517
Last EDR Contact: 02/02/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/13/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

RADINFO:  Radiation Information Database
The Radiation Information Database (RADINFO) contains information about facilities that are regulated by U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) regulations for radiation and radioactivity.

Date of Government Version: 07/01/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/01/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/23/2019
Number of Days to Update: 84

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-343-9775
Last EDR Contact: 03/25/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/08/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

HIST FTTS:  FIFRA/TSCA Tracking System Administrative Case Listing
A complete administrative case listing from the FIFRA/TSCA Tracking System (FTTS) for all ten EPA regions. The
information was obtained from the National Compliance Database (NCDB). NCDB supports the implementation of FIFRA
(Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act) and TSCA (Toxic Substances Control Act). Some EPA regions
are now closing out records. Because of that, and the fact that some EPA regions are not providing EPA Headquarters
with updated records, it was decided to create a HIST FTTS database. It included records that may not be included
in the newer FTTS database updates. This database is no longer updated.

Date of Government Version: 10/19/2006
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/01/2007
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/10/2007
Number of Days to Update: 40

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-564-2501
Last EDR Contact: 12/17/2007
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/17/2008
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

HIST FTTS INSP:  FIFRA/TSCA Tracking System Inspection & Enforcement Case Listing
A complete inspection and enforcement case listing from the FIFRA/TSCA Tracking System (FTTS) for all ten EPA
regions. The information was obtained from the National Compliance Database (NCDB). NCDB supports the implementation
of FIFRA (Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act) and TSCA (Toxic Substances Control Act). Some
EPA regions are now closing out records. Because of that, and the fact that some EPA regions are not providing
EPA Headquarters with updated records, it was decided to create a HIST FTTS database. It included records that
may not be included in the newer FTTS database updates. This database is no longer updated.

Date of Government Version: 10/19/2006
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/01/2007
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/10/2007
Number of Days to Update: 40

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-564-2501
Last EDR Contact: 12/17/2008
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/17/2008
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

DOT OPS:  Incident and Accident Data
Department of Transporation, Office of Pipeline Safety Incident and Accident data.

Date of Government Version: 01/02/2020
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/28/2020
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/17/2020
Number of Days to Update: 80

Source:  Department of Transporation, Office of Pipeline Safety
Telephone:  202-366-4595
Last EDR Contact: 01/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/06/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

CONSENT:  Superfund (CERCLA) Consent Decrees
Major legal settlements that establish responsibility and standards for cleanup at NPL (Superfund) sites. Released
periodically by United States District Courts after settlement by parties to litigation matters.

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-23

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Date of Government Version: 12/31/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/11/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/16/2024
Number of Days to Update: 5

Source:  Department of Justice, Consent Decree Library
Telephone:  Varies
Last EDR Contact: 03/28/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/15/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

BRS:  Biennial Reporting System
The Biennial Reporting System is a national system administered by the EPA that collects data on the generation
and management of hazardous waste. BRS captures detailed data from two groups: Large Quantity Generators (LQG)
and Treatment, Storage, and Disposal Facilities.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2021
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/09/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/20/2023
Number of Days to Update: 11

Source:  EPA/NTIS
Telephone:  800-424-9346
Last EDR Contact: 03/19/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/01/2024
Data Release Frequency: Biennially

INDIAN RESERV:  Indian Reservations
This map layer portrays Indian administered lands of the United States that have any area equal to or greater
than 640 acres.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/14/2015
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/10/2017
Number of Days to Update: 546

Source:  USGS
Telephone:  202-208-3710
Last EDR Contact: 04/04/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/15/2024
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

FUSRAP:  Formerly Utilized Sites Remedial Action Program
DOE established the Formerly Utilized Sites Remedial Action Program (FUSRAP) in 1974 to remediate sites where
radioactive contamination remained from Manhattan Project and early U.S. Atomic Energy Commission (AEC) operations.

Date of Government Version: 03/03/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/03/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/09/2023
Number of Days to Update: 98

Source:  Department of Energy
Telephone:  202-586-3559
Last EDR Contact: 01/29/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/13/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

UMTRA:  Uranium Mill Tailings Sites
Uranium ore was mined by private companies for federal government use in national defense programs. When the mills
shut down, large piles of the sand-like material (mill tailings) remain after uranium has been extracted from
the ore. Levels of human exposure to radioactive materials from the piles are low; however, in some cases tailings
were used as construction materials before the potential health hazards of the tailings were recognized.

Date of Government Version: 08/30/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/15/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/28/2020
Number of Days to Update: 74

Source:  Department of Energy
Telephone:  505-845-0011
Last EDR Contact: 02/15/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/27/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

LEAD SMELTER 1:  Lead Smelter Sites
A listing of former lead smelter site locations.

Date of Government Version: 02/29/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/01/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/27/2024
Number of Days to Update: 26

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  703-603-8787
Last EDR Contact: 04/02/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/08/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

LEAD SMELTER 2:  Lead Smelter Sites
A list of several hundred sites in the U.S. where secondary lead smelting was done from 1931and 1964. These sites
may pose a threat to public health through ingestion or inhalation of contaminated soil or dust

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-24

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Date of Government Version: 04/05/2001
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/27/2010
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/02/2010
Number of Days to Update: 36

Source:  American Journal of Public Health
Telephone:  703-305-6451
Last EDR Contact: 12/02/2009
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

US AIRS (AFS):  Aerometric Information Retrieval System Facility Subsystem (AFS)
The database is a sub-system of Aerometric Information Retrieval System (AIRS). AFS contains compliance data
on air pollution point sources regulated by the U.S. EPA and/or state and local air regulatory agencies. This
information comes from source reports by various stationary sources of air pollution, such as electric power plants,
steel mills, factories, and universities, and provides information about the air pollutants they produce. Action,
air program, air program pollutant, and general level plant data. It is used to track emissions and compliance
data from industrial plants.

Date of Government Version: 10/12/2016
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/26/2016
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/03/2017
Number of Days to Update: 100

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-564-2496
Last EDR Contact: 09/26/2017
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/08/2018
Data Release Frequency: Annually

US AIRS MINOR:  Air Facility System Data
A listing of minor source facilities.

Date of Government Version: 10/12/2016
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/26/2016
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/03/2017
Number of Days to Update: 100

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-564-2496
Last EDR Contact: 09/26/2017
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/08/2018
Data Release Frequency: Annually

MINES VIOLATIONS:  MSHA Violation Assessment Data
Mines violation and assessment information. Department of Labor, Mine Safety & Health Administration.

Date of Government Version: 01/02/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/03/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/04/2024
Number of Days to Update: 1

Source:  DOL, Mine Safety & Health Admi
Telephone:  202-693-9424
Last EDR Contact: 04/04/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/20/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

US MINES:  Mines Master Index File
Contains all mine identification numbers issued for mines active or opened since 1971. The data also includes
violation information.

Date of Government Version: 02/05/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/21/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/04/2024
Number of Days to Update: 43

Source:  Department of Labor, Mine Safety and Health Administration
Telephone:  303-231-5959
Last EDR Contact: 02/21/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/03/2024
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

US MINES 2:  Ferrous and Nonferrous Metal Mines Database Listing
This map layer includes ferrous (ferrous metal mines are facilities that extract ferrous metals, such as iron
ore or molybdenum) and nonferrous (Nonferrous metal mines are facilities that extract nonferrous metals, such
as gold, silver, copper, zinc, and lead) metal mines in the United States.

Date of Government Version: 01/07/2022
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/24/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/17/2023
Number of Days to Update: 82

Source:  USGS
Telephone:  703-648-7709
Last EDR Contact: 02/22/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/03/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-25

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



US MINES 3:  Active Mines & Mineral Plants Database Listing
Active Mines and Mineral Processing Plant operations for commodities monitored by the Minerals Information Team
of the USGS.

Date of Government Version: 04/14/2011
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/08/2011
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/13/2011
Number of Days to Update: 97

Source:  USGS
Telephone:  703-648-7709
Last EDR Contact: 02/22/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/03/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

ABANDONED MINES:  Abandoned Mines
An inventory of land and water impacted by past mining (primarily coal mining) is maintained by OSMRE to provide
information needed to implement the Surface Mining Control and Reclamation Act of 1977 (SMCRA). The inventory
contains information on the location, type, and extent of AML impacts, as well as, information on the cost associated
with the reclamation of those problems. The inventory is based upon field surveys by State, Tribal, and OSMRE
program officials. It is dynamic to the extent that it is modified as new problems are identified and existing
problems are reclaimed.

Date of Government Version: 11/28/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/29/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/11/2023
Number of Days to Update: 12

Source:  Department of Interior
Telephone:  202-208-2609
Last EDR Contact: 03/15/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/17/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

MINES MRDS:  Mineral Resources Data System
Mineral Resources Data System

Date of Government Version: 08/23/2022
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/22/2022
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/28/2023
Number of Days to Update: 98

Source:  USGS
Telephone:  703-648-6533
Last EDR Contact: 02/22/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/03/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

FINDS:  Facility Index System/Facility Registry System
Facility Index System. FINDS contains both facility information and ’pointers’ to other sources that contain more
detail. EDR includes the following FINDS databases in this report: PCS (Permit Compliance System), AIRS (Aerometric
Information Retrieval System), DOCKET (Enforcement Docket used to manage and track information on civil judicial
enforcement cases for all environmental statutes), FURS (Federal Underground Injection Control), C-DOCKET (Criminal
Docket System used to track criminal enforcement actions for all environmental statutes), FFIS (Federal Facilities
Information System), STATE (State Environmental Laws and Statutes), and PADS (PCB Activity Data System).

Date of Government Version: 11/03/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/08/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/20/2023
Number of Days to Update: 12

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  (415) 947-8000
Last EDR Contact: 02/27/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/10/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

ECHO:  Enforcement & Compliance History Information
ECHO provides integrated compliance and enforcement information for about 800,000 regulated facilities nationwide.

Date of Government Version: 12/17/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/28/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/04/2024
Number of Days to Update: 67

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-564-2280
Last EDR Contact: 04/04/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/15/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

DOCKET HWC:  Hazardous Waste Compliance Docket Listing
A complete list of the Federal Agency Hazardous Waste Compliance Docket Facilities.

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-26

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Date of Government Version: 05/06/2021
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/21/2021
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/11/2021
Number of Days to Update: 82

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-564-0527
Last EDR Contact: 02/20/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/03/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

UXO:  Unexploded Ordnance Sites
A listing of unexploded ordnance site locations

Date of Government Version: 09/06/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/13/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/11/2023
Number of Days to Update: 89

Source:  Department of Defense
Telephone:  703-704-1564
Last EDR Contact: 04/08/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/22/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

FUELS PROGRAM:  EPA Fuels Program Registered Listing
This listing includes facilities that are registered under the Part 80 (Code of Federal Regulations) EPA Fuels
Programs. All companies now are required to submit new and updated registrations.

Date of Government Version: 02/12/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/13/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/04/2024
Number of Days to Update: 51

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  800-385-6164
Last EDR Contact: 02/13/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/27/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

PFAS NPL:  Superfund Sites with PFAS Detections Information
EPA’s Office of Land and Emergency Management and EPA Regional Offices maintain data describing what is known
about site investigations, contamination, and remedial actions under the Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA) where PFAS is present in the environment.

Date of Government Version: 12/28/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/28/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/04/2024
Number of Days to Update: 67

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  703-603-8895
Last EDR Contact: 04/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/15/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

PFAS FEDERAL SITES:  Federal Sites PFAS Information
Several federal entities, such as the federal Superfund program, Department of Defense, National Aeronautics and
Space Administration, Department of Transportation, and Department of Energy provided information for sites with
known or suspected detections at federal facilities.

Date of Government Version: 12/28/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/28/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/04/2024
Number of Days to Update: 67

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-272-0167
Last EDR Contact: 04/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/15/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

PFAS TRIS:  List of PFAS Added to the TRI
Section 7321 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2020 (NDAA) immediately added certain
per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) to the list of chemicals covered by the Toxics Release Inventory
(TRI) under Section 313 of the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act (EPCRA) and provided a framework
for additional PFAS to be added to TRI on an annual basis.

Date of Government Version: 12/28/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/28/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/04/2024
Number of Days to Update: 7

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-566-0250
Last EDR Contact: 04/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/15/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-27

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



PFAS TSCA:  PFAS Manufacture and Imports Information
EPA issued the Chemical Data Reporting (CDR) Rule under the Toxic Substances Control Act (TSCA) and requires
chemical manufacturers and facilities that manufacture or import chemical substances to report data to EPA. EPA
publishes non-confidential business information (non-CBI) and includes descriptive information about each site,
corporate parent, production volume, other manufacturing information, and processing and use information.

Date of Government Version: 12/28/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/28/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/04/2024
Number of Days to Update: 7

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-272-0167
Last EDR Contact: 04/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/15/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

PFAS RCRA MANIFEST:  PFAS Transfers Identified In the RCRA Database Listing
To work around the lack of PFAS waste codes in the RCRA database, EPA developed the PFAS Transfers dataset by
mining e-Manifest records containing at least one of these common PFAS keywords: PFAS, PFOA, PFOS, PERFL, AFFF,
GENX, GEN-X (plus the VT waste codes). These keywords were searched for in the following text fields: Manifest
handling instructions (MANIFEST_HANDLING_INSTR), Non-hazardous waste description (NON_HAZ_WASTE_DESCRIPTION),
DOT printed information (DOT_PRINTED_INFORMATION), Waste line handling instructions (WASTE_LINE_HANDLING_INSTR),
Waste residue comments (WASTE_RESIDUE_COMMENTS).

Date of Government Version: 12/28/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/28/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/04/2024
Number of Days to Update: 7

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-272-0167
Last EDR Contact: 04/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/15/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

PFAS ATSDR:  PFAS Contamination Site Location Listing
PFAS contamination site locations from the Department of Health & Human Services, Center for Disease Control &
Prevention. ATSDR is involved at a number of PFAS-related sites, either directly or through assisting state and
federal partners. As of now, most sites are related to drinking water contamination connected with PFAS production
facilities or fire training areas where aqueous film-forming firefighting foam (AFFF) was regularly used.

Date of Government Version: 06/24/2020
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/17/2021
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/08/2022
Number of Days to Update: 601

Source:  Department of Health & Human Services
Telephone:  202-741-5770
Last EDR Contact: 01/22/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/06/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

PFAS WQP:  Ambient Environmental Sampling for PFAS
The Water Quality Portal (WQP) is a part of a modernized repository storing ambient sampling data for all environmental
media and tissue samples. A wide range of federal, state, tribal and local governments, academic and non-governmental
organizations and individuals submit project details and sampling results to this public repository. The information
is commonly used for research and assessments of environmental quality.

Date of Government Version: 12/28/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/28/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/04/2024
Number of Days to Update: 67

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-272-0167
Last EDR Contact: 04/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/15/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

PFAS NPDES:  Clean Water Act Discharge Monitoring Information
Any discharger of pollutants to waters of the United States from a point source must have a National Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit. The process for obtaining limits involves the regulated entity
(permittee) disclosing releases in a NPDES permit application and the permitting authority (typically the state
but sometimes EPA) deciding whether to require monitoring or monitoring with limits. Caveats and Limitations:
Less than half of states have required PFAS monitoring for at least one of their permittees and fewer states have
established PFAS effluent limits for permittees. New rulemakings have been initiated that may increase the number
of facilities monitoring for PFAS in the future.

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-28

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Date of Government Version: 12/28/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/28/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/04/2024
Number of Days to Update: 67

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-272-0167
Last EDR Contact: 04/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/15/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

PFAS ECHO:  Facilities in Industries that May Be Handling PFAS Listing
Regulators and the public have expressed interest in knowing which regulated entities may be using PFAS. EPA has
developed a dataset from various sources that show which industries may be handling PFAS. Approximately 120,000
facilities subject to federal environmental programs have operated or currently operate in industry sectors with
processes that may involve handling and/or release of PFAS.

Date of Government Version: 12/28/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/28/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/04/2024
Number of Days to Update: 67

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-272-0167
Last EDR Contact: 04/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/15/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

PFAS ECHO FIRE TRAINING:  Facilities in Industries that May Be Handling PFAS Listing
A list of fire training sites was added to the Industry Sectors dataset using a keyword search on the permitted
facilitys name to identify sites where fire-fighting foam may have been used in training exercises. Additionally,
you may view an example spreadsheet of the subset of fire training facility data, as well as the keywords used
in selecting or deselecting a facility for the subset. as well as the keywords used in selecting or deselecting
a facility for the subset. These keywords were tested to maximize accuracy in selecting facilities that may use
fire-fighting foam in training exercises, however, due to the lack of a required reporting field in the data systems
for designating fire training sites, this methodology may not identify all fire training sites or may potentially
misidentify them.

Date of Government Version: 12/28/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/28/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/04/2024
Number of Days to Update: 67

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-272-0167
Last EDR Contact: 04/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/15/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

PFAS PART 139 AIRPORT:  All Certified Part 139 Airports PFAS Information Listing
Since July 1, 2006, all certified part 139 airports are required to have fire-fighting foam onsite that meet military
specifications (MIL-F-24385) (14 CFR 139.317). To date, these military specification fire-fighting foams are
fluorinated and have been historically used for training and extinguishing. The 2018 FAA Reauthorization Act has
a provision stating that no later than October 2021, FAA shall not require the use of fluorinated AFFF. This provision
does not prohibit the use of fluorinated AFFF at Part 139 civilian airports; it only prohibits FAA from mandating
its use. The Federal Aviation Administration?s document AC 150/5210-6D - Aircraft Fire Extinguishing Agents provides
guidance on Aircraft Fire Extinguishing Agents, which includes Aqueous Film Forming Foam (AFFF).

Date of Government Version: 12/28/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/28/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/04/2024
Number of Days to Update: 67

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-272-0167
Last EDR Contact: 04/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/15/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

AQUEOUS FOAM NRC:  Aqueous Foam Related Incidents Listing
The National Response Center (NRC) serves as an emergency call center that fields initial reports for pollution
and railroad incidents and forwards that information to appropriate federal/state agencies for response. The spreadsheets
posted to the NRC website contain initial incident data that has not been validated or investigated by a federal/state
response agency. Response center calls from 1990 to the most recent complete calendar year where there was indication
of Aqueous Film Forming Foam (AFFF) usage are included in this dataset. NRC calls may reference AFFF usage in
the ?Material Involved? or ?Incident Description? fields.

Date of Government Version: 12/28/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/28/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/04/2024
Number of Days to Update: 67

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-267-2675
Last EDR Contact: 04/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/15/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-29

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



PCS:  Permit Compliance System
PCS is a computerized management information system that contains data on National Pollutant Discharge Elimination
System (NPDES) permit holding facilities. PCS tracks the permit, compliance, and enforcement status of NPDES
facilities.

Date of Government Version: 12/16/2016
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/06/2017
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/10/2017
Number of Days to Update: 63

Source:  EPA, Office of Water
Telephone:  202-564-2496
Last EDR Contact: 03/29/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/15/2024
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

PCS ENF:  Enforcement data
No description is available for this data

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/05/2015
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/06/2015
Number of Days to Update: 29

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-564-2497
Last EDR Contact: 03/29/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/15/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

BIOSOLIDS:  ICIS-NPDES Biosolids Facility Data
The data reflects compliance information about facilities in the biosolids program.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/03/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/16/2024
Number of Days to Update: 13

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-564-4700
Last EDR Contact: 01/03/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

PFAS:  PFAS Contamination Site Location Listing
A listing of PFAS contaminated sites included in the GeoTracker database.

Date of Government Version: 11/30/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/30/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/26/2024
Number of Days to Update: 88

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  866-480-1028
Last EDR Contact: 03/06/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/17/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

AQUEOUS FOAM:  Former Fire Training Facility Assessments Listing
Airports shown on this list are those believed to use Aqueous Film Forming Foam (AFFF), and certified by the
Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) under Title 14, Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Part 139 (14 CFR
Part 139). This list was created by SWRCB using information available from the FAA. Location points shown are
from the latitude and longitude listed on the FAA airport master record.

Date of Government Version: 11/30/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/30/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/23/2024
Number of Days to Update: 85

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  916-341-5455
Last EDR Contact: 03/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/17/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

CA BOND EXP. PLAN:  Bond Expenditure Plan
Department of Health Services developed a site-specific expenditure plan as the basis for an appropriation of
Hazardous Substance Cleanup Bond Act funds. It is not updated.

Date of Government Version: 01/01/1989
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/27/1994
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/02/1994
Number of Days to Update: 6

Source:  Department of Health Services
Telephone:  916-255-2118
Last EDR Contact: 05/31/1994
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-30

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



CHROME PLATING:  Chrome Plating Facilities Listing
This listing represents chrome plating facilities the California State Water Resources Control Board staff identified
as possibly being a source of Per- and polyfluoroalkyl substance (PFAS) contamination. Sites and locations were
identified by staff with the Division of Water Quality in the California State Water Board. Data was collected
from the CA Air Resources Board 2013 and 2018 - Cr VI emission survey, CA Emission Inventory, CA HAZ Waste discharge
database and by reviewing storm water permits. Former chrome plating sites are also included that are open site
investigation or remediation cases with the Regional Water Quality Control Boards and the Department of Toxic
Substances Control.

Date of Government Version: 11/30/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/30/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/23/2024
Number of Days to Update: 85

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  916-341-5455
Last EDR Contact: 03/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/17/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

CORTESE:  "Cortese" Hazardous Waste & Substances Sites List
The sites for the list are designated by the State Water Resource Control Board (LUST), the Integrated Waste
Board (SWF/LS), and the Department of Toxic Substances Control (Cal-Sites).

Date of Government Version: 12/13/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/13/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/07/2024
Number of Days to Update: 85

Source:  CAL EPA/Office of Emergency Information
Telephone:  916-323-3400
Last EDR Contact: 03/19/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/01/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

CUPA LIVERMORE-PLEASANTON:  CUPA Facility Listing
list of facilities associated with the various CUPA programs in Livermore-Pleasanton

Date of Government Version: 03/31/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/08/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/31/2023
Number of Days to Update: 84

Source:  Livermore-Pleasanton Fire Department
Telephone:  925-454-2361
Last EDR Contact: 02/09/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/20/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DRYCLEAN GLENN CO DIST:  Glenn County Air Pollution Control District Drycleaner Facility Listing
A listing of drycleaner facility locations, for the Glenn County Air Pollution Control District.

Date of Government Version: 01/08/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/10/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/27/2024
Number of Days to Update: 77

Source:  Glenn County Air Pollution Control District
Telephone:  530-934-6500
Last EDR Contact: 01/03/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/11/2023
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DRYCLEAN BUTTE CO DIST:  Butte County Air Quality Management DistrictDrycleaner Facility Listing
Butte County Air Quality Management DistrictDrycleaner Facility Listing.

Date of Government Version: 04/25/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/18/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/16/2024
Number of Days to Update: 90

Source:  Butte County Air Quality Management District
Telephone:  530-332-9400
Last EDR Contact: 01/03/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/11/2023
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DRYCLEAN NO SONOMA CO DIST:  Norther Sonoma County County Air Pollution Control District Drycleaner Facility Listing
A listing of drycleaner facility locations, for the Northern Sonoma County Air Pollution Control District.,

Date of Government Version: 01/05/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/10/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/27/2024
Number of Days to Update: 77

Source:  Santa Barbara County Air Pollution Control District
Telephone:  707-433-5911
Last EDR Contact: 01/03/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/11/2023
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-31

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



DRYCLEAN SACRAMENTO METO DIST:  Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management DistrictDrycleaner Facility Listing
A listing of drycleaner facility locations, for the Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District.

Date of Government Version: 01/03/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/10/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/27/2024
Number of Days to Update: 77

Source:  Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District
Telephone:  916-874-3958
Last EDR Contact: 01/03/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/11/2023
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DRYCLEAN AVAQMD:  Antelope Valley Air Quality Management District Drycleaner Listing
A listing of dry cleaners in the Antelope Valley Air Quality Management District.

Date of Government Version: 11/21/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/22/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/16/2024
Number of Days to Update: 86

Source:  Antelope Valley Air Quality Management District
Telephone:  661-723-8070
Last EDR Contact: 02/26/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/10/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DRYCLEAN AMADOR:  Amador Air District Drycleaner Facility Listing
A listing of drycleaner facility locations, for the Amador Air Quality Management District

Date of Government Version: 04/26/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/27/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/13/2023
Number of Days to Update: 77

Source:  Amador Air Quality Management District
Telephone:  209-257-0112
Last EDR Contact: 01/03/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/11/2023
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DRYCLEAN VENTURA CO DIST:  Drycleaner Facility Listing
A listing of drycleaner facility locations, for the Ventura County Air Pollution Control District.

Date of Government Version: 01/04/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/16/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/08/2024
Number of Days to Update: 23

Source:  Ventura County Air Pollution Control District
Telephone:  805-645-1421
Last EDR Contact: 01/03/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/11/2023
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DRYCLEAN SOUTH COAST:  South Coast Air Quality Management District Drycleaner Listing
A listing of dry cleaners in the South Coast Air Quality Management District

Date of Government Version: 11/14/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/16/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/12/2024
Number of Days to Update: 88

Source:  South Coast Air Quality Management District
Telephone:  909-396-3211
Last EDR Contact: 02/20/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/03/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DRYCLEAN SANTA BARB CO DIST:  Santa Barbara County Air Pollution Control District Drycleaner Facility Listing
A listing of drycleaner facility locations, for the Santa Barbara County Air Pollution Control District.

Date of Government Version: 02/19/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/17/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/01/2023
Number of Days to Update: 1475

Source:  Santa Barbara County Air Pollution Control District
Telephone:  805-961-8867
Last EDR Contact: 01/03/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/11/2023
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DRYCLEAN NO SIERRA DIST:  Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District Drycleaner Facility Listing
A listing of drycleaner facility locations, for the Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District,

Date of Government Version: 05/07/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/07/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/01/2023
Number of Days to Update: 1455

Source:  Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District
Telephone:  530-274-9350
Last EDR Contact: 01/03/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/11/2023
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-32

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



DRYCLEAN NO COAST UNIFIED DIST:  North Coast Unified Air Quality Management District Drycleaner Facility Listing
A listing of drycleaner facility locations, for the North Coast Unified Air Quality Management District.

Date of Government Version: 11/30/2016
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/19/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/01/2023
Number of Days to Update: 1473

Source:  North Coast Unified Air Quality Management District
Telephone:  707-443-3093
Last EDR Contact: 01/03/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/11/2023
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DRYCLEAN LAKE CO DIST:  Lake County Air Quality Management District Drycleaner Facility Listing
A listing of drycleaner facility locations, for the Lake County Air Quality Management District,

Date of Government Version: 04/29/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/07/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/01/2023
Number of Days to Update: 1455

Source:  Lake County Air Quality Management District
Telephone:  707-263-7000
Last EDR Contact: 01/03/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/11/2023
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DRYCLEAN GRANT:  Grant Recipients List
Assembly Bill 998 (AB 998) established the Non-Toxic Dry Cleaning Incentive Program to provide financial assistance
to the dry cleaning industry to switch from systems using perchloroethylene (Perc), an identified toxic air
contaminant and potential human carcinogen, to non-toxic and non-smog forming alternatives.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2020
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/04/2021
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/01/2023
Number of Days to Update: 816

Source:  California Air Resources Board
Telephone:  916-323-0006
Last EDR Contact: 01/26/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/06/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DRYCLEAN CALAVERAS CO DIST:  Calaveras County Environmental Management Agency Drycleaner Facility Listing
A listing of drycleaner facility locations, for the Calaveras County Environmental Management Agency.

Date of Government Version: 06/17/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/19/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/01/2023
Number of Days to Update: 1412

Source:  Calaveras County Environmental Management Agency
Telephone:  209-754-6399
Last EDR Contact: 01/03/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/16/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DRYCLEAN BAY AREA DIST:  Bay Area Air Quality Management District Drycleaner Facility Listing
Bay Area Air Quality Management District Drycleaner Facility Listing.

Date of Government Version: 02/20/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/30/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/01/2023
Number of Days to Update: 1432

Source:  Bay Area Air Quality Management District
Telephone:  415-516-1916
Last EDR Contact: 01/03/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/11/2023
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DRYCLEAN FEATHER RIVER DIST:  Feather River Air Quality Management District Drycleaner Facility Listing
A listing of drycleaner facility locations, for the Feather River Air Quality Management District.

Date of Government Version: 03/08/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/09/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/05/2023
Number of Days to Update: 88

Source:  Feather River Air Quality Management District
Telephone:  530-634-7659
Last EDR Contact: 01/03/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/11/2023
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DRYCLEAN TEHAMA CO DIST:  Tehama County Air Pollution Control District Drycleaner Facility Listing
A listing of drycleaner facility locations, for the Tehama County Air Pollution Control District.

Date of Government Version: 04/24/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/24/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/01/2023
Number of Days to Update: 1468

Source:  Tehama County Air Pollution Control District
Telephone:  530-527-3717
Last EDR Contact: 01/03/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/11/2023
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-33

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



DRYCLEANERS:  Cleaner Facilities
A list of drycleaner related facilities that have EPA ID numbers. These are facilities with certain SIC codes:
power laundries, family and commercial; garment pressing and cleaner’s agents; linen supply; coin-operated laundries
and cleaning; drycleaning plants, except rugs; carpet and upholster cleaning; industrial launderers; laundry and
garment services.

Date of Government Version: 08/31/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/08/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/27/2023
Number of Days to Update: 80

Source:  Department of Toxic Substance Control
Telephone:  916-327-4498
Last EDR Contact: 03/08/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/10/2024
Data Release Frequency: Annually

DRYCLEAN SAN DIEGO CO DIST:  San Diego County Air Pollution Control District Drycleaner Facility Listing
A listing of drycleaner facility locations, for the San Diego County Air Pollution Control District.

Date of Government Version: 03/19/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/21/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/12/2024
Number of Days to Update: 22

Source:  San Diego County Air Pollution Control District
Telephone:  858-586-2616
Last EDR Contact: 03/19/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/11/2023
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DRYCLEAN EAST KERN DIST:  Eastern Kern Air Pollution Control District District Drycleaner Facility Listing
A listing of drycleaner facility locations, for the Eastern Kern Air Pollution Control District.

Date of Government Version: 01/12/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/26/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/14/2023
Number of Days to Update: 79

Source:  Eastern Kern Air Pollution Control District
Telephone:  661-862-9684
Last EDR Contact: 01/03/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/11/2023
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DRYCLEAN IMPERIAL CO DIST:  Imperial County Air Pollution Control District Drycleaner Facility Listing
A listing of drycleaner facility locations, for the Imperial County Air Pollution Control District

Date of Government Version: 04/25/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/26/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/14/2023
Number of Days to Update: 79

Source:  Imperial County Air Pollution Control District
Telephone:  442-265-1800
Last EDR Contact: 01/03/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/11/2023
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DRYCLEAN MENDO CO DIST:  Mendocino County Air Quality Management District Drycleaner Facility Listing
A listing of drycleaner facility locations, for the Mendocino County Air Quality Management District.

Date of Government Version: 04/27/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/28/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/14/2023
Number of Days to Update: 77

Source:  Mendocino County Air Quality Management District
Telephone:  707-463-4354
Last EDR Contact: 01/03/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/11/2023
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DRYCLEAN MOJAVE DESERT DIST:  Mojave Desert Air Quality Management District Drycleaner Facility Listing
A listing of drycleaner facility locations, for the Mojave Desert Air Quality Management District.

Date of Government Version: 04/26/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/27/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/14/2023
Number of Days to Update: 78

Source:  Mojave Desert Air Quality Management District
Telephone:  760-245-1661
Last EDR Contact: 01/03/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/11/2023
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DRYCLEAN YOLO-SOLANO DIST:  Yolo-Solano Air Quality Management District Drycleaner Facility Listing
A listing of drycleaner facility locations, for the Yolo-Solano Air Quality Management District.

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-34

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Date of Government Version: 01/04/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/05/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/20/2024
Number of Days to Update: 75

Source:  Yolo-Solano Air Quality Management District
Telephone:  530-757-3650
Last EDR Contact: 01/03/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/11/2023
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DRYCLEAN SHASTA CO DIST:  Shasta County Air Quality Management District District Drycleaner Facility Listing
A listing of drycleaner facility locations, for the Shasta County Air Quality Management District.

Date of Government Version: 04/26/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/27/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/14/2023
Number of Days to Update: 78

Source:  Shasta County Air Quality Management District
Telephone:  530-225-5674
Last EDR Contact: 01/03/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/11/2023
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DRYCLEAN MONTEREY BAY DIST:  Monterey Bay Air Quality Management District Drycleaner Facility Listing
A listing of drycleaner facility locations, for the Monterey Bay Air Quality Management District.

Date of Government Version: 01/03/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/05/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/20/2024
Number of Days to Update: 75

Source:  Monterey Bay Air Quality Management District
Telephone:  831-647-9411
Last EDR Contact: 01/03/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/11/2023
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DRYCLEAN SAN LUIS OB CO DIST:  San Luis Obispo County Air Pollution Control District Drycleaner Facility Listing
A listing of drycleaner facility locations, for the San Luis Obispo County Air Pollution Control District.

Date of Government Version: 01/03/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/04/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/20/2024
Number of Days to Update: 76

Source:  San Luis Obispo County Air Pollution Control District
Telephone:  805-781-5756
Last EDR Contact: 01/03/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/11/2023
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DRYCLEAN PLACER CO DIST:  Placer County Air Quality Management District Drycleaner Facility Listing
A listing of drycleaner facility locations, for the Placer County Air Quality Management District.

Date of Government Version: 05/15/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/17/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/14/2023
Number of Days to Update: 89

Source:  Placer County Air Quality Management District
Telephone:  530-745-2335
Last EDR Contact: 01/03/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/11/2023
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DRYCLEAN SAN JOAQ VAL DIST:  San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District District Drycleaner Facility Listing
A listing of drycleaner facility locations, for the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District.

Date of Government Version: 01/04/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/04/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/21/2024
Number of Days to Update: 77

Source:  San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District
Telephone:  559-230-6001
Last EDR Contact: 01/03/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/11/2023
Data Release Frequency: Varies

EMI:  Emissions Inventory Data
Toxics and criteria pollutant emissions data collected by the ARB and local air pollution agencies.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2021
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/09/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/30/2023
Number of Days to Update: 82

Source:  California Air Resources Board
Telephone:  916-322-2990
Last EDR Contact: 03/14/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/24/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-35

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



ENF:  Enforcement Action Listing
A listing of Water Board Enforcement Actions. Formal is everything except Oral/Verbal Communication, Notice of
Violation, Expedited Payment Letter, and Staff Enforcement Letter.

Date of Government Version: 01/16/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/16/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/03/2024
Number of Days to Update: 78

Source:  State Water Resoruces Control Board
Telephone:  916-445-9379
Last EDR Contact: 01/16/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

Financial Assurance 1:  Financial Assurance Information Listing
Financial Assurance information

Date of Government Version: 01/11/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/16/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/03/2024
Number of Days to Update: 78

Source:  Department of Toxic Substances Control
Telephone:  916-255-3628
Last EDR Contact: 04/12/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

Financial Assurance 2:  Financial Assurance Information Listing
A listing of financial assurance information for solid waste facilities. Financial assurance is intended to ensure
that resources are available to pay for the cost of closure, post-closure care, and corrective measures if the
owner or operator of a regulated facility is unable or unwilling to pay.

Date of Government Version: 11/08/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/22/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/16/2024
Number of Days to Update: 86

Source:  California Integrated Waste Management Board
Telephone:  916-341-6066
Last EDR Contact: 02/20/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/20/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

ICE:  Inspection, Compliance and Enforcement
Contains data pertaining to the Permitted Facilities with Inspections / Enforcements sites tracked in Envirostor.

Date of Government Version: 02/07/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/07/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/07/2024
Number of Days to Update: 0

Source:  Department of Toxic Subsances Control
Telephone:  877-786-9427
Last EDR Contact: 02/07/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/27/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

HIST CORTESE:  Hazardous Waste & Substance Site List
The sites for the list are designated by the State Water Resource Control Board [LUST], the Integrated Waste Board
[SWF/LS], and the Department of Toxic Substances Control [CALSITES]. This listing is no longer updated by the
state agency.

Date of Government Version: 04/01/2001
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/22/2009
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/08/2009
Number of Days to Update: 76

Source:  Department of Toxic Substances Control
Telephone:  916-323-3400
Last EDR Contact: 01/22/2009
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

HWP:  EnviroStor Permitted Facilities Listing
Detailed information on permitted hazardous waste facilities and corrective action ("cleanups") tracked in EnviroStor.

Date of Government Version: 02/07/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/07/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/07/2024
Number of Days to Update: 0

Source:  Department of Toxic Substances Control
Telephone:  916-323-3400
Last EDR Contact: 02/07/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/27/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-36

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



HWT:  Registered Hazardous Waste Transporter Database
A listing of hazardous waste transporters. In California, unless specifically exempted, it is unlawful for any
person to transport hazardous wastes unless the person holds a valid registration issued by DTSC. A hazardous
waste transporter registration is valid for one year and is assigned a unique registration number.

Date of Government Version: 01/02/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/03/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/21/2024
Number of Days to Update: 78

Source:  Department of Toxic Substances Control
Telephone:  916-440-7145
Last EDR Contact: 04/04/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/15/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

HWTS:  Hazardous Waste Tracking System
DTSC maintains the Hazardous Waste Tracking System that stores ID number information since the early 1980s and
manifest data since 1993. The system collects both manifest copies from the generator and destination facility.

Date of Government Version: 10/26/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/27/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/29/2024
Number of Days to Update: 94

Source:  Department of Toxic Substances Control
Telephone:  916-324-2444
Last EDR Contact: 03/28/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/15/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

HAZNET:  Facility and Manifest Data
Facility and Manifest Data. The data is extracted from the copies of hazardous waste manifests received each year
by the DTSC. The annual volume of manifests is typically 700,000 - 1,000,000 annually, representing approximately
350,000 - 500,000 shipments. Data are from the manifests submitted without correction, and therefore many contain
some invalid values for data elements such as generator ID, TSD ID, waste category, and disposal method. This
database begins with calendar year 1993.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/03/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/21/2024
Number of Days to Update: 78

Source:  California Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  916-255-1136
Last EDR Contact: 04/04/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/15/2024
Data Release Frequency: Annually

MINES:  Mines Site Location Listing
A listing of mine site locations from the Office of Mine Reclamation.

Date of Government Version: 11/29/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/29/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/23/2024
Number of Days to Update: 86

Source:  Department of Conservation
Telephone:  916-322-1080
Last EDR Contact: 03/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/17/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

MWMP:  Medical Waste Management Program Listing
The Medical Waste Management Program (MWMP) ensures the proper handling and disposal of medical waste by permitting
and inspecting medical waste Offsite Treatment Facilities (PDF) and Transfer Stations (PDF) throughout the
state. MWMP also oversees all Medical Waste Transporters.

Date of Government Version: 11/08/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/22/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/16/2024
Number of Days to Update: 86

Source:  Department of Public Health
Telephone:  916-558-1784
Last EDR Contact: 02/27/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/10/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

NPDES:  NPDES Permits Listing
A listing of NPDES permits, including stormwater.

Date of Government Version: 11/06/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/07/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/05/2024
Number of Days to Update: 90

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  916-445-9379
Last EDR Contact: 02/06/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/20/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-37

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



PEST LIC:  Pesticide Regulation Licenses Listing
A listing of licenses and certificates issued by the Department of Pesticide Regulation. The DPR issues licenses
and/or certificates to: Persons and businesses that apply or sell pesticides; Pest control dealers and brokers;
Persons who advise on agricultural pesticide applications.

Date of Government Version: 11/22/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/22/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/16/2024
Number of Days to Update: 86

Source:  Department of Pesticide Regulation
Telephone:  916-445-4038
Last EDR Contact: 02/27/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/10/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

PROC:  Certified Processors Database
A listing of certified processors.

Date of Government Version: 11/29/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/29/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/23/2024
Number of Days to Update: 86

Source:  Department of Conservation
Telephone:  916-323-3836
Last EDR Contact: 03/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/17/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

NOTIFY 65:  Proposition 65 Records
Listings of all Proposition 65 incidents reported to counties by the State Water Resources Control Board and the
Regional Water Quality Control Board. This database is no longer updated by the reporting agency.

Date of Government Version: 12/06/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/06/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/29/2024
Number of Days to Update: 85

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  916-445-3846
Last EDR Contact: 03/08/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/24/2024
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

SAN JOSE HAZMAT:  Hazardous Material Facilities
Hazardous material facilities, including underground storage tank sites.

Date of Government Version: 11/03/2020
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/05/2020
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/26/2021
Number of Days to Update: 82

Source:  City of San Jose Fire Department
Telephone:  408-535-7694
Last EDR Contact: 01/29/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/13/2024
Data Release Frequency: Annually

SANTA CRUZ CO SITE MITI:  Site Mitigation Listing
Sites may become contaminated with toxic chemicals through illegal dumping or disposal, from leaking underground
storage tanks, or through industrial or commercial activities.The goal of the site mitigation program is to protect
the public health and the environment while facilitating completion of contaminated site clean-up projects in
a timely manner.

Date of Government Version: 12/03/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/23/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/13/2023
Number of Days to Update: 20

Source:  Santa Cruz Environmental Health Services
Telephone:  831-454-2761
Last EDR Contact: 02/09/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/27/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

UIC:  UIC Listing
A listing of wells identified as underground injection wells, in the California Oil and Gas Wells database.

Date of Government Version: 11/29/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/29/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/27/2024
Number of Days to Update: 90

Source:  Deaprtment of Conservation
Telephone:  916-445-2408
Last EDR Contact: 03/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/17/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-38

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



UIC GEO:  Underground Injection Control Sites (GEOTRACKER)
Underground control injection sites

Date of Government Version: 12/04/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/05/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/28/2024
Number of Days to Update: 85

Source:  State Water Resource Control Board
Telephone:  866-480-1028
Last EDR Contact: 03/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/17/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

WASTEWATER PITS:  Oil Wastewater Pits Listing
Water officials discovered that oil producers have been dumping chemical-laden wastewater into hundreds of unlined
pits that are operating without proper permits. Inspections completed by the Central Valley Regional Water Quality
Control Board revealed the existence of previously unidentified waste sites. The water boards review found that
more than one-third of the region’s active disposal pits are operating without permission.

Date of Government Version: 02/11/2021
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/01/2021
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/29/2021
Number of Days to Update: 90

Source:  RWQCB, Central Valley Region
Telephone:  559-445-5577
Last EDR Contact: 04/04/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/15/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

WDS:  Waste Discharge System
Sites which have been issued waste discharge requirements.

Date of Government Version: 06/19/2007
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/20/2007
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/29/2007
Number of Days to Update: 9

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  916-341-5227
Last EDR Contact: 02/09/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/27/2024
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

WIP:  Well Investigation Program Case List
Well Investigation Program case in the San Gabriel and San Fernando Valley area.

Date of Government Version: 07/03/2009
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/21/2009
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/03/2009
Number of Days to Update: 13

Source:  Los Angeles Water Quality Control Board
Telephone:  213-576-6726
Last EDR Contact: 03/15/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/01/2024
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

MILITARY PRIV SITES:  Military Privatized Sites (GEOTRACKER)
Military privatized sites

Date of Government Version: 12/04/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/05/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/28/2024
Number of Days to Update: 85

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  866-480-1028
Last EDR Contact: 03/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/17/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

PROJECT:  Project Sites (GEOTRACKER)
Projects sites

Date of Government Version: 12/04/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/05/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/28/2024
Number of Days to Update: 85

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  866-480-1028
Last EDR Contact: 03/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/17/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

WDR:  Waste Discharge Requirements Listing
In general, the Waste Discharge Requirements (WDRs) Program (sometimes also referred to as the "Non Chapter
15 (Non 15) Program") regulates point discharges that are exempt pursuant to Subsection 20090 of Title 27 and
not subject to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act. Exemptions from Title 27 may be granted for nine categories
of discharges (e.g., sewage, wastewater, etc.) that meet, and continue to meet, the preconditions listed for
each specific exemption. The scope of the WDRs Program also includes the discharge of wastes classified as inert,
pursuant to section 20230 of Title 27.

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-39

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Date of Government Version: 11/29/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/29/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/22/2024
Number of Days to Update: 85

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  916-341-5810
Last EDR Contact: 03/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/17/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

CIWQS:  California Integrated Water Quality System
The California Integrated Water Quality System (CIWQS) is a computer system used by the State and Regional Water
Quality Control Boards to track information about places of environmental interest, manage permits and other orders,
track inspections, and manage violations and enforcement activities.

Date of Government Version: 11/22/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/22/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/16/2024
Number of Days to Update: 86

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  866-794-4977
Last EDR Contact: 02/27/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/10/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

CERS:  CalEPA Regulated Site Portal Data
The CalEPA Regulated Site Portal database combines data about environmentally regulated sites and facilities in
California into a single database. It combines data from a variety of state and federal databases, and provides
an overview of regulated activities across the spectrum of environmental programs for any given location in California.
These activities include hazardous materials and waste, state and federal cleanups, impacted ground and surface
waters, and toxic materials

Date of Government Version: 01/16/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/16/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/03/2024
Number of Days to Update: 78

Source:  California Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  916-323-2514
Last EDR Contact: 01/16/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

NON-CASE INFO:  Non-Case Information Sites (GEOTRACKER)
Non-Case Information sites

Date of Government Version: 12/04/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/05/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/28/2024
Number of Days to Update: 85

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  866-480-1028
Last EDR Contact: 03/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/17/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

OTHER OIL GAS:  Other Oil & Gas Projects Sites (GEOTRACKER)
Other Oil & Gas Projects sites

Date of Government Version: 12/04/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/05/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/28/2024
Number of Days to Update: 85

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  866-480-1028
Last EDR Contact: 03/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/17/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

PROD WATER PONDS:  Produced Water Ponds Sites (GEOTRACKER)
Produced water ponds sites

Date of Government Version: 12/04/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/05/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/28/2024
Number of Days to Update: 85

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  866-480-1028
Last EDR Contact: 03/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/17/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

SAMPLING POINT:  Sampling Point ? Public Sites (GEOTRACKER)
Sampling point - public sites

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-40

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Date of Government Version: 12/04/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/05/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/28/2024
Number of Days to Update: 85

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  866-480-1028
Last EDR Contact: 03/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/17/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

WELL STIM PROJ:  Well Stimulation Project (GEOTRACKER)
Includes areas of groundwater monitoring plans, a depiction of the monitoring network, and the facilities, boundaries,
and subsurface characteristics of the oilfield and the features (oil and gas wells, produced water ponds, UIC
wells, water supply wells, etc?) being monitored

Date of Government Version: 12/04/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/05/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/28/2024
Number of Days to Update: 85

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  866-480-1028
Last EDR Contact: 03/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/17/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

UST FINDER:  UST Finder Database
EPA developed UST Finder, a web map application containing a comprehensive, state-sourced national map of underground
storage tank (UST) and leaking UST (LUST) data. It provides the attributes and locations of active and closed
USTs, UST facilities, and LUST sites from states and from Tribal lands and US territories . UST Finder contains
information about proximity of UST facilities and LUST sites to: surface and groundwater public drinking water
protection areas; estimated number of private domestic wells and number of people living nearby; and flooding
and wildfires.

Date of Government Version: 06/08/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/04/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/18/2024
Number of Days to Update: 106

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-564-0394
Last EDR Contact: 02/09/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/20/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

UST FINDER RELEASE:  UST Finder Releases Database
US EPA’s UST Finder data is a national composite of leaking underground storage tanks. This data contains information
about, and locations of, leaking underground storage tanks. Data was collected from state sources and standardized
into a national profile by EPA’s Office of Underground Storage Tanks, Office of Research and Development, and
the Association of State and Territorial Solid Waste Management Officials.

Date of Government Version: 06/08/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/31/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/18/2024
Number of Days to Update: 79

Source:  Environmental Protecton Agency
Telephone:  202-564-0394
Last EDR Contact: 02/09/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/20/2024
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

EDR HIGH RISK HISTORICAL RECORDS

EDR Exclusive Records

EDR MGP:  EDR Proprietary Manufactured Gas Plants
The EDR Proprietary Manufactured Gas Plant Database includes records of coal gas plants (manufactured gas plants)
compiled by EDR’s researchers. Manufactured gas sites were used in the United States from the 1800’s to 1950’s
to produce a gas that could be distributed and used as fuel. These plants used whale oil, rosin, coal, or a mixture
of coal, oil, and water that also produced a significant amount of waste. Many of the byproducts of the gas production,
such as coal tar (oily waste containing volatile and non-volatile chemicals), sludges, oils and other compounds
are potentially hazardous to human health and the environment. The byproduct from this process was frequently
disposed of directly at the plant site and can remain or spread slowly, serving as a continuous source of soil
and groundwater contamination.

Date of Government Version: N/A
Date Data Arrived at EDR: N/A
Date Made Active in Reports: N/A
Number of Days to Update: N/A

Source:  EDR, Inc.
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: N/A
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-41

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



EDR Hist Auto:  EDR Exclusive Historical Auto Stations
EDR has searched selected national collections of business directories and has collected listings of potential
gas station/filling station/service station sites that were available to EDR researchers. EDR’s review was limited
to those categories of sources that might, in EDR’s opinion, include gas station/filling station/service station
establishments. The categories reviewed included, but were not limited to gas, gas station, gasoline station,
filling station, auto, automobile repair, auto service station, service station, etc. This database falls within
a category of information EDR classifies as "High Risk Historical Records", or HRHR. EDR’s HRHR effort presents
unique and sometimes proprietary data about past sites and operations that typically create environmental concerns,
but may not show up in current government records searches.

Date of Government Version: N/A
Date Data Arrived at EDR: N/A
Date Made Active in Reports: N/A
Number of Days to Update: N/A

Source:  EDR, Inc.
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: N/A
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: Varies

EDR Hist Cleaner:  EDR Exclusive Historical Cleaners
EDR has searched selected national collections of business directories and has collected listings of potential
dry cleaner sites that were available to EDR researchers. EDR’s review was limited to those categories of sources
that might, in EDR’s opinion, include dry cleaning establishments. The categories reviewed included, but were
not limited to dry cleaners, cleaners, laundry, laundromat, cleaning/laundry, wash & dry etc. This database falls
within a category of information EDR classifies as "High Risk Historical Records", or HRHR. EDR’s HRHR effort
presents unique and sometimes proprietary data about past sites and operations that typically create environmental
concerns, but may not show up in current government records searches.

Date of Government Version: N/A
Date Data Arrived at EDR: N/A
Date Made Active in Reports: N/A
Number of Days to Update: N/A

Source:  EDR, Inc.
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: N/A
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: Varies

EDR RECOVERED GOVERNMENT ARCHIVES

Exclusive Recovered Govt. Archives

RGA LF:  Recovered Government Archive Solid Waste Facilities List
The EDR Recovered Government Archive Landfill database provides a list of landfills derived from historical databases
and includes many records that no longer appear in current government lists. Compiled from Records formerly available
from the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery in California.

Date of Government Version: N/A
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/01/2013
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/13/2014
Number of Days to Update: 196

Source:  Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 06/01/2012
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: Varies

RGA LUST:  Recovered Government Archive Leaking Underground Storage Tank
The EDR Recovered Government Archive Leaking Underground Storage Tank database provides a list of LUST incidents
derived from historical databases and includes many records that no longer appear in current government lists.
Compiled from Records formerly available from the State Water Resources Control Board in California.

Date of Government Version: N/A
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/01/2013
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/30/2013
Number of Days to Update: 182

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 06/01/2012
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-42

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



COUNTY RECORDS

ALAMEDA COUNTY:

CS ALAMEDA:  Contaminated Sites
A listing of contaminated sites overseen by the Toxic Release Program (oil and groundwater contamination from
chemical releases and spills) and the Leaking Underground Storage Tank Program (soil and ground water contamination
from leaking petroleum USTs).

Date of Government Version: 01/09/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/11/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/05/2019
Number of Days to Update: 53

Source:  Alameda County Environmental Health Services
Telephone:  510-567-6700
Last EDR Contact: 03/28/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/15/2024
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

UST ALAMEDA:  Underground Tanks
Underground storage tank sites located in Alameda county.

Date of Government Version: 12/26/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/26/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/19/2024
Number of Days to Update: 84

Source:  Alameda County Environmental Health Services
Telephone:  510-567-6700
Last EDR Contact: 03/28/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/15/2024
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

AMADOR COUNTY:

CUPA AMADOR:  CUPA Facility List
Cupa Facility List

Date of Government Version: 04/27/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/27/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/13/2023
Number of Days to Update: 77

Source:  Amador County Environmental Health
Telephone:  209-223-6439
Last EDR Contact: 04/26/2023
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/13/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

BUTTE COUNTY:

CUPA BUTTE:  CUPA Facility Listing
Cupa facility list.

Date of Government Version: 04/21/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/25/2017
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/09/2017
Number of Days to Update: 106

Source:  Public Health Department
Telephone:  530-538-7149
Last EDR Contact: 03/28/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/15/2024
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

CALVERAS COUNTY:

CUPA CALVERAS:  CUPA Facility Listing
Cupa Facility Listing

Date of Government Version: 12/18/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/18/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/13/2024
Number of Days to Update: 86

Source:  Calveras County Environmental Health
Telephone:  209-754-6399
Last EDR Contact: 03/15/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/01/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

COLUSA COUNTY:

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-43

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



CUPA COLUSA:  CUPA Facility List
Cupa facility list.

Date of Government Version: 04/06/2020
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/23/2020
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/10/2020
Number of Days to Update: 78

Source:  Health & Human Services
Telephone:  530-458-0396
Last EDR Contact: 01/29/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/13/2024
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY:

SL CONTRA COSTA:  Site List
List includes sites from the underground tank, hazardous waste generator and business plan/2185 programs.

Date of Government Version: 01/19/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/24/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/09/2024
Number of Days to Update: 76

Source:  Contra Costa Health Services Department
Telephone:  925-646-2286
Last EDR Contact: 01/22/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/06/2024
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

DEL NORTE COUNTY:

CUPA DEL NORTE:  CUPA Facility List
Cupa Facility list

Date of Government Version: 10/24/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/25/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/16/2024
Number of Days to Update: 83

Source:  Del Norte County Environmental Health Division
Telephone:  707-465-0426
Last EDR Contact: 02/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/06/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

EL DORADO COUNTY:

CUPA EL DORADO:  CUPA Facility List
CUPA facility list.

Date of Government Version: 08/08/2022
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/09/2022
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/01/2022
Number of Days to Update: 23

Source:  El Dorado County Environmental Management Department
Telephone:  530-621-6623
Last EDR Contact: 01/22/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/06/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

FRESNO COUNTY:

CUPA FRESNO:  CUPA Resources List
Certified Unified Program Agency. CUPA’s are responsible for implementing a unified hazardous materials and hazardous
waste management regulatory program. The agency provides oversight of businesses that deal with hazardous materials,
operate underground storage tanks or aboveground storage tanks.

Date of Government Version: 06/28/2021
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/21/2021
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/03/2022
Number of Days to Update: 72

Source:  Dept. of Community Health
Telephone:  559-445-3271
Last EDR Contact: 03/28/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/08/2024
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

GLENN COUNTY:

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-44

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



CUPA GLENN:  CUPA Facility List
Cupa facility list

Date of Government Version: 01/22/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/24/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/14/2018
Number of Days to Update: 49

Source:  Glenn County Air Pollution Control District
Telephone:  830-934-6500
Last EDR Contact: 04/12/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

HUMBOLDT COUNTY:

CUPA HUMBOLDT:  CUPA Facility List
CUPA facility list.

Date of Government Version: 08/12/2021
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/12/2021
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/08/2021
Number of Days to Update: 88

Source:  Humboldt County Environmental Health
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 02/09/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/27/2024
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

IMPERIAL COUNTY:

CUPA IMPERIAL:  CUPA Facility List
Cupa facility list.

Date of Government Version: 01/17/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/18/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/03/2024
Number of Days to Update: 76

Source:  San Diego Border Field Office
Telephone:  760-339-2777
Last EDR Contact: 04/12/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INYO COUNTY:

CUPA INYO:  CUPA Facility List
Cupa facility list.

Date of Government Version: 04/02/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/03/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/14/2018
Number of Days to Update: 72

Source:  Inyo County Environmental Health Services
Telephone:  760-878-0238
Last EDR Contact: 02/09/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/27/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

KERN COUNTY:

CUPA KERN:  CUPA Facility List
A listing of sites included in the Kern County Hazardous Material Business Plan.

Date of Government Version: 10/30/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/01/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/23/2024
Number of Days to Update: 83

Source:  Kern County Public Health
Telephone:  661-321-3000
Last EDR Contact: 02/12/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/13/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

UST KERN:  Underground Storage Tank Sites & Tank Listing
Kern County Sites and Tanks Listing.

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-45

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Date of Government Version: 10/30/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/01/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/23/2024
Number of Days to Update: 83

Source:  Kern County Environment Health Services Department
Telephone:  661-862-8700
Last EDR Contact: 02/12/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/13/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

KINGS COUNTY:

CUPA KINGS:  CUPA Facility List
A listing of sites included in the county’s Certified Unified Program Agency database. California’s Secretary
for Environmental Protection established the unified hazardous materials and hazardous waste regulatory program
as required by chapter 6.11 of the California Health and Safety Code. The Unified Program consolidates the administration,
permits, inspections, and enforcement activities.

Date of Government Version: 12/03/2020
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/26/2021
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/14/2021
Number of Days to Update: 78

Source:  Kings County Department of Public Health
Telephone:  559-584-1411
Last EDR Contact: 02/09/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/27/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

LAKE COUNTY:

CUPA LAKE:  CUPA Facility List
Cupa facility list

Date of Government Version: 10/27/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/01/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/21/2023
Number of Days to Update: 20

Source:  Lake County Environmental Health
Telephone:  707-263-1164
Last EDR Contact: 04/08/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/22/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

LASSEN COUNTY:

CUPA LASSEN:  CUPA Facility List
Cupa facility list

Date of Government Version: 07/31/2020
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/21/2020
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/09/2020
Number of Days to Update: 80

Source:  Lassen County Environmental Health
Telephone:  530-251-8528
Last EDR Contact: 04/12/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

LOS ANGELES COUNTY:

AOCONCERN:  Key Areas of Concerns in Los Angeles County
San Gabriel Valley areas where VOC contamination is at or above the MCL as designated by region 9 EPA office. Date
of Government Version: 3/30/2009 Exide Site area is a cleanup plan of lead-impacted soil surrounding the former
Exide Facility as designated by the DTSC. Date of Government Version: 7/17/2017

Date of Government Version: 03/30/2009
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/31/2009
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/23/2009
Number of Days to Update: 206

Source:  N/A
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 03/08/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/24/2024
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-46

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



HMS LOS ANGELES:  HMS: Street Number List
Industrial Waste and Underground Storage Tank Sites.

Date of Government Version: 01/16/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/18/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/26/2024
Number of Days to Update: 68

Source:  Department of Public Works
Telephone:  626-458-3517
Last EDR Contact: 04/12/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/15/2024
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

LF LOS ANGELES:  List of Solid Waste Facilities
Solid Waste Facilities in Los Angeles County.

Date of Government Version: 01/09/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/10/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/27/2024
Number of Days to Update: 77

Source:  La County Department of Public Works
Telephone:  818-458-5185
Last EDR Contact: 04/09/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/22/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

LF LOS ANGELES CITY:  City of Los Angeles Landfills
Landfills owned and maintained by the City of Los Angeles.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2022
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/12/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/29/2023
Number of Days to Update: 76

Source:  Engineering & Construction Division
Telephone:  213-473-7869
Last EDR Contact: 04/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/22/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

LOS ANGELES AST:  Active & Inactive AST Inventory
A listing of active & inactive above ground petroleum storage tank site locations, located in the City of Los
Angeles.

Date of Government Version: 06/01/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/25/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/22/2019
Number of Days to Update: 58

Source:  Los Angeles Fire Department
Telephone:  213-978-3800
Last EDR Contact: 03/19/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/01/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

LOS ANGELES CO LF METHANE:  Methane Producing Landfills
This data was created on April 30, 2012 to represent known disposal sites in Los Angeles County that may produce
and emanate methane gas. The shapefile contains disposal sites within Los Angeles County that once accepted degradable
refuse material. Information used to create this data was extracted from a landfill survey performed by County
Engineers (Major Waste System Map, 1973) as well as historical records from CalRecycle, Regional Water Quality
Control Board, and Los Angeles County Department of Public Health

Date of Government Version: 04/13/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/13/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/27/2023
Number of Days to Update: 76

Source:  Los Angeles County Department of Public Works
Telephone:  626-458-6973
Last EDR Contact: 04/11/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/22/2024
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

LOS ANGELES HM:  Active & Inactive Hazardous Materials Inventory
A listing of active & inactive hazardous materials facility locations, located in the City of Los Angeles.

Date of Government Version: 12/01/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/13/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/14/2023
Number of Days to Update: 1

Source:  Los Angeles Fire Department
Telephone:  213-978-3800
Last EDR Contact: 03/19/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/01/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-47

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



LOS ANGELES UST:  Active & Inactive UST Inventory
A listing of active & inactive underground storage tank site locations and underground storage tank historical
sites, located in the City of Los Angeles.

Date of Government Version: 12/01/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/13/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/07/2024
Number of Days to Update: 85

Source:  Los Angeles Fire Department
Telephone:  213-978-3800
Last EDR Contact: 03/19/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/01/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

SITE MIT LOS ANGELES:  Site Mitigation List
Industrial sites that have had some sort of spill or complaint.

Date of Government Version: 07/11/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/17/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/09/2024
Number of Days to Update: 84

Source:  Community Health Services
Telephone:  323-890-7806
Last EDR Contact: 01/19/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Annually

UST EL SEGUNDO:  City of El Segundo Underground Storage Tank
Underground storage tank sites located in El Segundo city.

Date of Government Version: 01/21/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/19/2017
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/10/2017
Number of Days to Update: 21

Source:  City of El Segundo Fire Department
Telephone:  310-524-2236
Last EDR Contact: 04/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/22/2024
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

UST LONG BEACH:  City of Long Beach Underground Storage Tank
Underground storage tank sites located in the city of Long Beach.

Date of Government Version: 04/22/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/23/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/27/2019
Number of Days to Update: 65

Source:  City of Long Beach Fire Department
Telephone:  562-570-2563
Last EDR Contact: 04/12/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

UST TORRANCE:  City of Torrance Underground Storage Tank
Underground storage tank sites located in the city of Torrance.

Date of Government Version: 04/12/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/02/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/13/2023
Number of Days to Update: 42

Source:  City of Torrance Fire Department
Telephone:  310-618-2973
Last EDR Contact: 04/12/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

MADERA COUNTY:

CUPA MADERA:  CUPA Facility List
A listing of sites included in the county’s Certified Unified Program Agency database. California’s Secretary
for Environmental Protection established the unified hazardous materials and hazardous waste regulatory program
as required by chapter 6.11 of the California Health and Safety Code. The Unified Program consolidates the administration,
permits, inspections, and enforcement activities.

Date of Government Version: 08/10/2020
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/12/2020
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/23/2020
Number of Days to Update: 72

Source:  Madera County Environmental Health
Telephone:  559-675-7823
Last EDR Contact: 02/09/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/27/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

MARIN COUNTY:

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-48

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



UST MARIN:  Underground Storage Tank Sites
Currently permitted USTs in Marin County.

Date of Government Version: 09/26/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/04/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/02/2018
Number of Days to Update: 29

Source:  Public Works Department Waste Management
Telephone:  415-473-6647
Last EDR Contact: 03/22/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/08/2024
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

MENDOCINO COUNTY:

UST MENDOCINO:  Mendocino County UST Database
A listing of underground storage tank locations in Mendocino County.

Date of Government Version: 09/22/2021
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/18/2021
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/22/2021
Number of Days to Update: 4

Source:  Department of Public Health
Telephone:  707-463-4466
Last EDR Contact: 02/20/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/03/2024
Data Release Frequency: Annually

MERCED COUNTY:

CUPA MERCED:  CUPA Facility List
CUPA facility list.

Date of Government Version: 11/15/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/20/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/15/2024
Number of Days to Update: 87

Source:  Merced County Environmental Health
Telephone:  209-381-1094
Last EDR Contact: 02/12/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/27/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

MONO COUNTY:

CUPA MONO:  CUPA Facility List
CUPA Facility List

Date of Government Version: 02/22/2021
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/02/2021
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/19/2021
Number of Days to Update: 78

Source:  Mono County Health Department
Telephone:  760-932-5580
Last EDR Contact: 02/16/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/03/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

MONTEREY COUNTY:

CUPA MONTEREY:  CUPA Facility Listing
CUPA Program listing from the Environmental Health Division.

Date of Government Version: 10/04/2021
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/06/2021
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/29/2021
Number of Days to Update: 84

Source:  Monterey County Health Department
Telephone:  831-796-1297
Last EDR Contact: 03/22/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/08/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

NAPA COUNTY:

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-49

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



LUST NAPA:  Sites With Reported Contamination
A listing of leaking underground storage tank sites located in Napa county.

Date of Government Version: 01/09/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/11/2017
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/02/2017
Number of Days to Update: 50

Source:  Napa County Department of Environmental Management
Telephone:  707-253-4269
Last EDR Contact: 02/16/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/03/2024
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

UST NAPA:  Closed and Operating Underground Storage Tank Sites
Underground storage tank sites located in Napa county.

Date of Government Version: 09/05/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/09/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/31/2019
Number of Days to Update: 52

Source:  Napa County Department of Environmental Management
Telephone:  707-253-4269
Last EDR Contact: 02/16/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/03/2024
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

NEVADA COUNTY:

CUPA NEVADA:  CUPA Facility List
CUPA facility list.

Date of Government Version: 10/31/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/03/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/23/2024
Number of Days to Update: 81

Source:  Community Development Agency
Telephone:  530-265-1467
Last EDR Contact: 01/22/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/06/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

ORANGE COUNTY:

IND_SITE ORANGE:  List of Industrial Site Cleanups
Petroleum and non-petroleum spills.

Date of Government Version: 10/10/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/01/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/23/2024
Number of Days to Update: 83

Source:  Health Care Agency
Telephone:  714-834-3446
Last EDR Contact: 03/13/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/13/2024
Data Release Frequency: Annually

LUST ORANGE:  List of Underground Storage Tank Cleanups
Orange County Underground Storage Tank Cleanups (LUST).

Date of Government Version: 10/10/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/01/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/23/2024
Number of Days to Update: 83

Source:  Health Care Agency
Telephone:  714-834-3446
Last EDR Contact: 03/13/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/13/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

UST ORANGE:  List of Underground Storage Tank Facilities
Orange County Underground Storage Tank Facilities (UST).

Date of Government Version: 10/10/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/01/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/23/2024
Number of Days to Update: 83

Source:  Health Care Agency
Telephone:  714-834-3446
Last EDR Contact: 03/13/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/13/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

PLACER COUNTY:

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-50

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



MS PLACER:  Master List of Facilities
List includes aboveground tanks, underground tanks and cleanup sites.

Date of Government Version: 11/09/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/09/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/21/2023
Number of Days to Update: 12

Source:  Placer County Health and Human Services
Telephone:  530-745-2363
Last EDR Contact: 02/26/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/10/2024
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

PLUMAS COUNTY:

CUPA PLUMAS:  CUPA Facility List
Plumas County CUPA Program facilities.

Date of Government Version: 03/31/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/23/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/26/2019
Number of Days to Update: 64

Source:  Plumas County Environmental Health
Telephone:  530-283-6355
Last EDR Contact: 04/12/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

RIVERSIDE COUNTY:

LUST RIVERSIDE:  Listing of Underground Tank Cleanup Sites
Riverside County Underground Storage Tank Cleanup Sites (LUST).

Date of Government Version: 01/04/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/04/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/29/2024
Number of Days to Update: 85

Source:  Department of Environmental Health
Telephone:  951-358-5055
Last EDR Contact: 12/05/2023
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/24/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

UST RIVERSIDE:  Underground Storage Tank Tank List
Underground storage tank sites located in Riverside county.

Date of Government Version: 01/04/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/04/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/21/2024
Number of Days to Update: 77

Source:  Department of Environmental Health
Telephone:  951-358-5055
Last EDR Contact: 03/08/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/24/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

SACRAMENTO COUNTY:

CS SACRAMENTO:  Toxic Site Clean-Up List
List of sites where unauthorized releases of potentially hazardous materials have occurred. 

Date of Government Version: 11/07/2022
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/21/2022
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/16/2023
Number of Days to Update: 85

Source:  Sacramento County Environmental Management
Telephone:  916-875-8406
Last EDR Contact: 03/25/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/08/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

ML SACRAMENTO:  Master Hazardous Materials Facility List
Any business that has hazardous materials on site - hazardous material storage sites, underground storage tanks,
waste generators.

Date of Government Version: 11/07/2022
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/09/2022
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/01/2023
Number of Days to Update: 82

Source:  Sacramento County Environmental Management
Telephone:  916-875-8406
Last EDR Contact: 03/25/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/08/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

SAN BENITO COUNTY:

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-51

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



CUPA SAN BENITO:  CUPA Facility List
Cupa facility list

Date of Government Version: 01/17/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/18/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/26/2024
Number of Days to Update: 8

Source:  San Benito County Environmental Health
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 01/11/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/13/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY:

PERMITS SAN BERNARDINO:  Hazardous Material Permits
This listing includes underground storage tanks, medical waste handlers/generators, hazardous materials handlers,
hazardous waste generators, and waste oil generators/handlers.

Date of Government Version: 11/08/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/09/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/07/2024
Number of Days to Update: 90

Source:  San Bernardino County Fire Department Hazardous Materials Division
Telephone:  909-387-3041
Last EDR Contact: 01/29/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/12/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

SAN DIEGO COUNTY:

HMMD SAN DIEGO:  Hazardous Materials Management Division Database
The database includes: HE58 - This report contains the business name, site address, business phone number, establishment
’H’ permit number, type of permit, and the business status. HE17 - In addition to providing the same information
provided in the HE58 listing, HE17 provides inspection dates, violations received by the establishment, hazardous
waste generated, the quantity, method of storage, treatment/disposal of waste and the hauler, and information
on underground storage tanks. Unauthorized Release List - Includes a summary of environmental contamination cases
in San Diego County (underground tank cases, non-tank cases, groundwater contamination, and soil contamination
are included.)

Date of Government Version: 11/27/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/27/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/16/2024
Number of Days to Update: 81

Source:  Hazardous Materials Management Division
Telephone:  619-338-2268
Last EDR Contact: 02/27/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/10/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

LF SAN DIEGO:  Solid Waste Facilities
San Diego County Solid Waste Facilities.

Date of Government Version: 04/04/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/05/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/27/2023
Number of Days to Update: 83

Source:  Department of Health Services
Telephone:  619-338-2209
Last EDR Contact: 04/12/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

SAN DIEGO CO LOP:  Local Oversight Program Listing
A listing of all LOP release sites that are or were under the County of San Diego’s jurisdiction. Included are
closed or transferred cases, open cases, and cases that did not have a case type indicated. The cases without
a case type are mostly complaints; however, some of them could be LOP cases.

Date of Government Version: 07/22/2021
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/19/2021
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/13/2022
Number of Days to Update: 86

Source:  Department of Environmental Health
Telephone:  858-505-6874
Last EDR Contact: 04/12/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-52

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



SAN DIEGO CO SAM:  Environmental Case Listing
The listing contains all underground tank release cases and projects pertaining to properties contaminated with
hazardous substances that are actively under review by the Site Assessment and Mitigation Program.

Date of Government Version: 03/23/2010
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/15/2010
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/09/2010
Number of Days to Update: 24

Source:  San Diego County Department of Environmental Health
Telephone:  619-338-2371
Last EDR Contact: 02/23/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/10/2024
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

SAN FRANCISCO COUNTY:

CUPA SAN FRANCISCO CO:  CUPA Facility Listing
Cupa facilities

Date of Government Version: 10/30/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/01/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/23/2024
Number of Days to Update: 83

Source:  San Francisco County Department of Environmental Health
Telephone:  415-252-3896
Last EDR Contact: 01/29/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/13/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

LUST SAN FRANCISCO:  Local Oversite Facilities
A listing of leaking underground storage tank sites located in San Francisco county.

Date of Government Version: 09/19/2008
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/19/2008
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/29/2008
Number of Days to Update: 10

Source:  Department Of Public Health San Francisco County
Telephone:  415-252-3920
Last EDR Contact: 01/29/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/13/2024
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

UST SAN FRANCISCO:  Underground Storage Tank Information
Underground storage tank sites located in San Francisco county.

Date of Government Version: 10/30/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/01/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/23/2024
Number of Days to Update: 83

Source:  Department of Public Health
Telephone:  415-252-3920
Last EDR Contact: 01/29/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/13/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

SAN FRANCISO COUNTY:

SAN FRANCISCO MAHER:  Maher Ordinance Property Listing
a listing of properties that fall within a Maher Ordinance, for all of San Francisco

Date of Government Version: 01/15/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/18/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/05/2024
Number of Days to Update: 78

Source:  San Francisco Planning
Telephone:  628-652-7483
Last EDR Contact: 01/18/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY:

UST SAN JOAQUIN:  San Joaquin Co. UST
A listing of underground storage tank locations in San Joaquin county.

Date of Government Version: 06/22/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/26/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/11/2018
Number of Days to Update: 15

Source:  Environmental Health Department
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 03/08/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/24/2024
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY:

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-53

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



CUPA SAN LUIS OBISPO:  CUPA Facility List
Cupa Facility List.

Date of Government Version: 11/08/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/09/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/07/2024
Number of Days to Update: 90

Source:  San Luis Obispo County Public Health Department
Telephone:  805-781-5596
Last EDR Contact: 02/12/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/27/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

SAN MATEO COUNTY:

BI SAN MATEO:  Business Inventory
List includes Hazardous Materials Business Plan, hazardous waste generators, and underground storage tanks.

Date of Government Version: 02/20/2020
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/20/2020
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/24/2020
Number of Days to Update: 64

Source:  San Mateo County Environmental Health Services Division
Telephone:  650-363-1921
Last EDR Contact: 03/07/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/17/2024
Data Release Frequency: Annually

LUST SAN MATEO:  Fuel Leak List
A listing of leaking underground storage tank sites located in San Mateo county.

Date of Government Version: 03/29/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/29/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/29/2019
Number of Days to Update: 61

Source:  San Mateo County Environmental Health Services Division
Telephone:  650-363-1921
Last EDR Contact: 03/01/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/17/2024
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

SANTA BARBARA COUNTY:

CUPA SANTA BARBARA:  CUPA Facility Listing
CUPA Program Listing from the Environmental Health Services division.

Date of Government Version: 09/08/2011
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/09/2011
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/07/2011
Number of Days to Update: 28

Source:  Santa Barbara County Public Health Department
Telephone:  805-686-8167
Last EDR Contact: 02/09/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/27/2024
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

SANTA CLARA COUNTY:

CUPA SANTA CLARA:  Cupa Facility List
Cupa facility list

Date of Government Version: 11/07/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/08/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/16/2023
Number of Days to Update: 8

Source:  Department of Environmental Health
Telephone:  408-918-1973
Last EDR Contact: 02/12/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/27/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

HIST LUST SANTA CLARA:  HIST LUST - Fuel Leak Site Activity Report
A listing of open and closed leaking underground storage tanks. This listing is no longer updated by the county.
Leaking underground storage tanks are now handled by the Department of Environmental Health.

Date of Government Version: 03/29/2005
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/30/2005
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/21/2005
Number of Days to Update: 22

Source:  Santa Clara Valley Water District
Telephone:  408-265-2600
Last EDR Contact: 03/23/2009
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/22/2009
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-54

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



LUST SANTA CLARA:  LOP Listing
A listing of leaking underground storage tanks located in Santa Clara county.

Date of Government Version: 03/03/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/05/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/18/2014
Number of Days to Update: 13

Source:  Department of Environmental Health
Telephone:  408-918-3417
Last EDR Contact: 02/16/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/03/2024
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY:

CUPA SANTA CRUZ:  CUPA Facility List
CUPA facility listing.

Date of Government Version: 01/21/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/22/2017
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/23/2017
Number of Days to Update: 90

Source:  Santa Cruz County Environmental Health
Telephone:  831-464-2761
Last EDR Contact: 02/09/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/27/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

SHASTA COUNTY:

CUPA SHASTA:  CUPA Facility List
Cupa Facility List.

Date of Government Version: 06/15/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/19/2017
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/09/2017
Number of Days to Update: 51

Source:  Shasta County Department of Resource Management
Telephone:  530-225-5789
Last EDR Contact: 02/09/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/27/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

SOLANO COUNTY:

LUST SOLANO:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks
A listing of leaking underground storage tank sites located in Solano county.

Date of Government Version: 06/04/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/06/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/13/2019
Number of Days to Update: 68

Source:  Solano County Department of Environmental Management
Telephone:  707-784-6770
Last EDR Contact: 02/23/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/10/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

UST SOLANO:  Underground Storage Tanks
Underground storage tank sites located in Solano county.

Date of Government Version: 09/15/2021
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/16/2021
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/09/2021
Number of Days to Update: 84

Source:  Solano County Department of Environmental Management
Telephone:  707-784-6770
Last EDR Contact: 02/23/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/10/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

SONOMA COUNTY:

CUPA SONOMA:  Cupa Facility List
Cupa Facility list

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-55

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Date of Government Version: 07/02/2021
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/06/2021
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/14/2021
Number of Days to Update: 8

Source:  County of Sonoma Fire & Emergency Services Department
Telephone:  707-565-1174
Last EDR Contact: 03/15/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/01/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

LUST SONOMA:  Leaking Underground Storage Tank Sites
A listing of leaking underground storage tank sites located in Sonoma county.

Date of Government Version: 06/30/2021
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/30/2021
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/24/2021
Number of Days to Update: 86

Source:  Department of Health Services
Telephone:  707-565-6565
Last EDR Contact: 03/15/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/01/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

STANISLAUS COUNTY:

CUPA STANISLAUS:  CUPA Facility List
Cupa facility list

Date of Government Version: 02/08/2022
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/10/2022
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/04/2022
Number of Days to Update: 83

Source:  Stanislaus County Department of Ennvironmental Protection
Telephone:  209-525-6751
Last EDR Contact: 04/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/22/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

SUTTER COUNTY:

UST SUTTER:  Underground Storage Tanks
Underground storage tank sites located in Sutter county.

Date of Government Version: 08/03/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/24/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/12/2023
Number of Days to Update: 19

Source:  Sutter County Environmental Health Services
Telephone:  530-822-7500
Last EDR Contact: 02/26/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/10/2024
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

TEHAMA COUNTY:

CUPA TEHAMA:  CUPA Facility List
Cupa facilities

Date of Government Version: 12/05/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/01/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/28/2024
Number of Days to Update: 27

Source:  Tehama County Department of Environmental Health
Telephone:  530-527-8020
Last EDR Contact: 01/29/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/13/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TRINITY COUNTY:

CUPA TRINITY:  CUPA Facility List
Cupa facility list

Date of Government Version: 01/17/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/18/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/03/2024
Number of Days to Update: 76

Source:  Department of Toxic Substances Control
Telephone:  760-352-0381
Last EDR Contact: 04/12/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TULARE COUNTY:

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-56

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



CUPA TULARE:  CUPA Facility List
Cupa program facilities

Date of Government Version: 10/07/2022
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/07/2022
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/21/2022
Number of Days to Update: 75

Source:  Tulare County Environmental Health Services Division
Telephone:  559-624-7400
Last EDR Contact: 01/29/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/13/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TUOLUMNE COUNTY:

CUPA TUOLUMNE:  CUPA Facility List
Cupa facility list

Date of Government Version: 04/23/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/25/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/25/2018
Number of Days to Update: 61

Source:  Divison of Environmental Health
Telephone:  209-533-5633
Last EDR Contact: 04/12/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

VENTURA COUNTY:

BWT VENTURA:  Business Plan, Hazardous Waste Producers, and Operating Underground Tanks
The BWT list indicates by site address whether the Environmental Health Division has Business Plan (B), Waste
Producer (W), and/or Underground Tank (T) information.

Date of Government Version: 12/26/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/24/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/08/2024
Number of Days to Update: 75

Source:  Ventura County Environmental Health Division
Telephone:  805-654-2813
Last EDR Contact: 01/16/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

LF VENTURA:  Inventory of Illegal Abandoned and Inactive Sites
Ventura County Inventory of Closed, Illegal Abandoned, and Inactive Sites.

Date of Government Version: 12/01/2011
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/01/2011
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/19/2012
Number of Days to Update: 49

Source:  Environmental Health Division
Telephone:  805-654-2813
Last EDR Contact: 03/22/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/08/2024
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

LUST VENTURA:  Listing of Underground Tank Cleanup Sites
Ventura County Underground Storage Tank Cleanup Sites (LUST).

Date of Government Version: 05/29/2008
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/24/2008
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/31/2008
Number of Days to Update: 37

Source:  Environmental Health Division
Telephone:  805-654-2813
Last EDR Contact: 02/02/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/20/2024
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

MED WASTE VENTURA:  Medical Waste Program List
To protect public health and safety and the environment from potential exposure to disease causing agents, the
Environmental Health Division Medical Waste Program regulates the generation, handling, storage, treatment and
disposal of medical waste throughout the County.

Date of Government Version: 12/26/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/23/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/09/2024
Number of Days to Update: 77

Source:  Ventura County Resource Management Agency
Telephone:  805-654-2813
Last EDR Contact: 01/16/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/29/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-57

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



UST VENTURA:  Underground Tank Closed Sites List
Ventura County Operating Underground Storage Tank Sites (UST)/Underground Tank Closed Sites List.

Date of Government Version: 11/28/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/29/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/26/2024
Number of Days to Update: 89

Source:  Environmental Health Division
Telephone:  805-654-2813
Last EDR Contact: 03/05/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/17/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

YOLO COUNTY:

UST YOLO:  Underground Storage Tank Comprehensive Facility Report
Underground storage tank sites located in Yolo county.

Date of Government Version: 12/18/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/26/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/19/2024
Number of Days to Update: 84

Source:  Yolo County Department of Health
Telephone:  530-666-8646
Last EDR Contact: 03/22/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/08/2024
Data Release Frequency: Annually

YUBA COUNTY:

CUPA YUBA:  CUPA Facility List
CUPA facility listing for Yuba County.

Date of Government Version: 01/22/2024
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/23/2024
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/08/2024
Number of Days to Update: 76

Source:  Yuba County Environmental Health Department
Telephone:  530-749-7523
Last EDR Contact: 01/22/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/06/2024
Data Release Frequency: Varies

OTHER DATABASE(S)

Depending on the geographic area covered by this report, the data provided in these specialty databases may or may not be
complete.  For example, the existence of wetlands information data in a specific report does not mean that all wetlands in the
area covered by the report are included.  Moreover, the absence of any reported wetlands information does not necessarily
mean that wetlands do not exist in the area covered by the report.

CT MANIFEST:  Hazardous Waste Manifest Data
Facility and manifest data. Manifest is a document that lists and tracks hazardous waste from the generator through
transporters to a tsd facility.

Date of Government Version: 11/06/2023
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/07/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/31/2024
Number of Days to Update: 85

Source:  Department of Energy & Environmental Protection
Telephone:  860-424-3375
Last EDR Contact: 02/06/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/20/2024
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

NJ MANIFEST:  Manifest Information
Hazardous waste manifest information.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/10/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/16/2019
Number of Days to Update: 36

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 03/29/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/15/2024
Data Release Frequency: Annually

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-58

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



NY MANIFEST:  Facility and Manifest Data
Manifest is a document that lists and tracks hazardous waste from the generator through transporters to a TSD
facility.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/30/2023
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/01/2023
Number of Days to Update: 1

Source:  Department of Environmental Conservation
Telephone:  518-402-8651
Last EDR Contact: 01/26/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/06/2024
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

PA MANIFEST:  Manifest Information
Hazardous waste manifest information.

Date of Government Version: 06/30/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/19/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/10/2019
Number of Days to Update: 53

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  717-783-8990
Last EDR Contact: 04/08/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/22/2024
Data Release Frequency: Annually

RI MANIFEST:  Manifest information
Hazardous waste manifest information

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2020
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/30/2021
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/18/2022
Number of Days to Update: 80

Source:  Department of Environmental Management
Telephone:  401-222-2797
Last EDR Contact: 02/12/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/27/2024
Data Release Frequency: Annually

WI MANIFEST:  Manifest Information
Hazardous waste manifest information.

Date of Government Version: 05/31/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/19/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/03/2019
Number of Days to Update: 76

Source:  Department of Natural Resources
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 03/01/2024
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/17/2024
Data Release Frequency: Annually

Oil/Gas Pipelines
Source:  Endeavor Business Media
Petroleum Bundle (Crude Oil, Refined Products, Petrochemicals, Gas Liquids (LPG/NGL), and Specialty
Gases (Miscellaneous)) N = Natural Gas Bundle (Natural Gas, Gas Liquids (LPG/NGL), and Specialty Gases
(Miscellaneous)). This map includes information copyrighted by Endeavor Business Media. This information
is provided on a best effort basis and Endeavor Business Media does not guarantee its accuracy nor warrant its
fitness for any particular purpose. Such information has been reprinted with the permission of Endeavor Business
Media.

Electric Power Transmission Line Data
Source:  Endeavor Business Media
This map includes information copyrighted by Endeavor Business Media. This information is provided on a best
effort basis and Endeavor Business Media does not guarantee its accuracy nor warrant its fitness for any
particular purpose. Such information has been reprinted with the permission of Endeavor Business Media.

Sensitive Receptors: There are individuals deemed sensitive receptors due to their fragile immune systems and special sensitivity
to environmental discharges.  These sensitive receptors typically include the elderly, the sick, and children.  While the location of all
sensitive receptors cannot be determined, EDR indicates those buildings and facilities - schools, daycares, hospitals, medical centers,
and nursing homes - where individuals who are sensitive receptors are likely to be located.

AHA Hospitals:
Source: American Hospital Association, Inc.
Telephone: 312-280-5991
The database includes a listing of hospitals based on the American Hospital Association’s annual survey of hospitals.

Medical Centers: Provider of Services Listing
Source: Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services
Telephone: 410-786-3000
A listing of hospitals with Medicare provider number, produced by Centers of Medicare & Medicaid Services,
a federal agency within the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services.

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-59

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Nursing Homes
Source: National Institutes of Health
Telephone: 301-594-6248
Information on Medicare and Medicaid certified nursing homes in the United States.

Public Schools
Source: National Center for Education Statistics
Telephone: 202-502-7300
The National Center for Education Statistics’ primary database on elementary
and secondary public education in the United States.  It is a comprehensive, annual, national statistical
database of all public elementary and secondary schools and school districts, which contains data that are
comparable across all states.

Private Schools
Source: National Center for Education Statistics
Telephone: 202-502-7300
The National Center for Education Statistics’ primary database on private school locations in the United States. 

Daycare Centers: Licensed Facilities
Source: Department of Social Services
Telephone: 916-657-4041

Flood Zone Data: This data was obtained from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). It depicts 100-year and
500-year flood zones as defined by FEMA. It includes the National Flood Hazard Layer (NFHL) which incorporates Flood
Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) data and Q3 data from FEMA in areas not covered by NFHL.

Source: FEMA
Telephone: 877-336-2627
Date of Government Version: 2003, 2015

NWI: National Wetlands Inventory.  This data, available in select counties across the country, was obtained by EDR
in 2002, 2005, 2010 and 2015 from the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service.

State Wetlands Data: Wetland Inventory
Source: Department of Fish and Wildlife
Telephone: 916-445-0411

Current USGS 7.5 Minute Topographic Map
Source: U.S. Geological Survey

STREET AND ADDRESS INFORMATION

© 2015 TomTom North America, Inc. All rights reserved.  This material is proprietary and the subject of copyright protection
and other intellectual property rights owned by or licensed to Tele Atlas North America, Inc.  The use of this material is subject
to the terms of a license agreement.  You will be held liable for any unauthorized copying or disclosure of this material.

TC7624121.2s     Page GR-60

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



TC7624121.2s   Page A-1

geologic strata.
of the soil, and nearby wells.  Groundwater flow velocity is generally impacted by the nature of the
Groundwater flow direction may be impacted by surface topography, hydrology, hydrogeology, characteristics

  2.  Groundwater flow velocity.
  1.  Groundwater flow direction, and

Assessment of the impact of contaminant migration generally has two principle investigative components:

forming an opinion about the impact of potential contaminant migration.
EDR’s GeoCheck Physical Setting Source Addendum is provided to assist the environmental professional in

2021Version Date:
50004258 MYOMA, CAEast Map:

2021Version Date:
50004950 CATHEDRAL CITY, CATarget Property Map:

USGS TOPOGRAPHIC MAP

308 ft. above sea levelElevation:
3739602.5UTM Y (Meters): 
556129.7UTM X (Meters): 
Zone 11Universal Tranverse Mercator: 
116.39365 - 116˚ 23’ 37.14’’Longitude (West): 
33.796846 - 33˚ 47’ 48.65’’Latitude (North): 

TARGET PROPERTY COORDINATES

RANCHO MIRAGE, CA 92270
KEY LARGO AVENUE / DINAH SHORE DRIVE
VACANT PROPERTY

TARGET PROPERTY ADDRESS

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE ADDENDUM®



TC7624121.2s   Page A-2

should be field verified.
on a relative (not an absolute) basis. Relative elevation information between sites of close proximity
Source: Topography has been determined from the USGS 7.5’ Digital Elevation Model and should be evaluated

SURROUNDING TOPOGRAPHY: ELEVATION PROFILES

E
le

va
tio

n 
(f

t)
E

le
va

tio
n 

(f
t)

TP

TP
0 1/2 1 Miles

✩Target Property Elevation: 308 ft.

North South

West East

304

307

311

311

315

324

324

323

313

308

300

288274257240

229

222

219

216
337

334

330

325

328

328

328

321

315

308

300 286 273 260 242 218 201

202

196

General NEGeneral Topographic Gradient:
TARGET PROPERTY TOPOGRAPHY

should contamination exist on the target property, what downgradient sites might be impacted.
assist the environmental professional in forming an opinion about the impact of nearby contaminated properties or,
Surface topography may be indicative of the direction of surficial groundwater flow.  This information can be used to
TOPOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

collected on nearby properties, and regional groundwater flow information (from deep aquifers).
sources of information, such as surface topographic information, hydrologic information, hydrogeologic data
using site-specific well data. If such data is not reasonably ascertainable, it may be necessary to rely on other
Groundwater flow direction for a particular site is best determined by a qualified environmental professional
GROUNDWATER FLOW DIRECTION INFORMATION

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®



TC7624121.2s   Page A-3

Not Reported

GENERAL DIRECTIONLOCATION
GROUNDWATER FLOWFROM TPMAP ID

hydrogeologically, and the depth to water table.
authorities at select sites and has extracted the date of the report, groundwater flow direction as determined
flow at specific points. EDR has reviewed reports submitted by environmental professionals to regulatory
EDR has developed the AQUIFLOW Information System to provide data on the general direction of groundwater

AQUIFLOW®

 Search Radius: 1.000 Mile.

Not found     Status:
1.25 miles     Search Radius:

Site-Specific Hydrogeological Data*:

* ©1996 Site−specific hydrogeological data gathered by CERCLIS Alerts, Inc., Bainbridge Island, WA.  All rights reserved.  All of the information and opinions presented are those of the cited EPA report(s), which were completed under
a Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Information System (CERCLIS) investigation.

contamination exist on the target property, what downgradient sites might be impacted.
environmental professional in forming an opinion about the impact of nearby contaminated properties or, should
of groundwater flow direction in the immediate area.  Such hydrogeologic information can be used to assist the
Hydrogeologic information obtained by installation of wells on a specific site can often be an indicator
HYDROGEOLOGIC INFORMATION

YES - refer to the Overview Map and Detail MapCATHEDRAL CITY

NATIONAL WETLAND INVENTORY
NWI Electronic
Data CoverageNWI Quad at Target Property

Not Reported

Additional Panels in search area: FEMA Source Type

 FEMA FIRM Flood data06065C1595G  

Flood Plain Panel at Target Property FEMA Source Type

FEMA FLOOD ZONE

and bodies of water).
Refer to the Physical Setting Source Map following this summary for hydrologic information (major waterways

contamination exist on the target property, what downgradient sites might be impacted.
the environmental professional in forming an opinion about the impact of nearby contaminated properties or, should
Surface water can act as a hydrologic barrier to groundwater flow.  Such hydrologic information can be used to assist
HYDROLOGIC INFORMATION

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®



TC7624121.2s   Page A-4

Map, USGS Digital Data Series DDS - 11 (1994).
of the Conterminous U.S. at 1:2,500,000 Scale - a digital representation of the 1974 P.B. King and H.M. Beikman
Geologic Age and Rock Stratigraphic Unit Source: P.G. Schruben, R.E. Arndt and W.J. Bawiec, Geology

ROCK STRATIGRAPHIC UNIT GEOLOGIC AGE IDENTIFICATION

Stratifed SequenceCategory:CenozoicEra:
QuaternarySystem:
QuaternarySeries:
QCode:    (decoded above as Era, System & Series)

at which contaminant migration may be occurring.
Geologic information can be used by the environmental professional in forming an opinion about the relative speed
GEOLOGIC INFORMATION IN GENERAL AREA OF TARGET PROPERTY

move more quickly through sandy-gravelly types of soils than silty-clayey types of soils.
characteristics data collected on nearby properties and regional soil information. In general, contaminant plumes
to rely on other sources of information, including geologic age identification, rock stratigraphic unit and soil
using site specific geologic and soil strata data. If such data are not reasonably ascertainable, it may be necessary
Groundwater flow velocity information for a particular site is best determined by a qualified environmental professional
GROUNDWATER FLOW VELOCITY INFORMATION

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®



EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.

1

2

0   1/16   1/8   1/4 Miles



TC7624121.2s   Page A-6
 

Somewhat excessively drainedSoil Drainage Class:

excessively drained sands and gravels.
Class A - High infiltration rates. Soils are deep, well drained toHydrologic Group:

fine sandSoil Surface Texture:

MyomaSoil Component Name:

Soil Map ID: 2

7.9
Max: 9 Min:

Min: 42
Max: 141   

Silty Sand.
Sands with fines,
SOILS, Sands,
COARSE-GRAINED

and Sand.
Clayey Gravel
200), Silty, or
passing No.
pct. or less
materials (35
Granularsand59 inches18 inches 2

7.9
Max: 9 Min:

Min: 42
Max: 141   

Silty Sand.
Sands with fines,
SOILS, Sands,
COARSE-GRAINED

and Sand.
Clayey Gravel
200), Silty, or
passing No.
pct. or less
materials (35
Granularfine sand18 inches 0 inches 1

Soil Layer Information           

Boundary Classification Saturated
hydraulic
conductivity
micro m/sec

Layer Upper Lower Soil Texture Class AASHTO Group Unified Soil Soil Reaction
(pH)

 
> 0 inchesDepth to Watertable Min:

> 0 inchesDepth to Bedrock Min:

HighCorrosion Potential - Uncoated Steel:

Hydric Status: Partially hydric

Somewhat excessively drainedSoil Drainage Class:

excessively drained sands and gravels.
Class A - High infiltration rates. Soils are deep, well drained toHydrologic Group:

fine sandSoil Surface Texture:

MyomaSoil Component Name:

Soil Map ID: 1

in a landscape. The following information is based on Soil Conservation Service SSURGO data.
for privately owned lands in the United States. A soil map in a soil survey is a representation of soil patterns
Survey (NCSS) and is responsible for collecting, storing, maintaining and distributing soil survey information
The U.S. Department of Agriculture’s (USDA) Soil Conservation Service (SCS) leads the National Cooperative Soil

DOMINANT SOIL COMPOSITION IN GENERAL AREA OF TARGET PROPERTY

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®



TC7624121.2s   Page A-7

1/2 - 1 Mile NorthUSGS40000138352   C11
1/4 - 1/2 Mile EastUSGS40000138255   A1

FEDERAL USGS WELL INFORMATION

LOCATION
FROM TPWELL IDMAP ID

1.000State Database
Nearest PWS within 1 mileFederal FRDS PWS
1.000Federal USGS

WELL SEARCH DISTANCE INFORMATION

SEARCH DISTANCE (miles)DATABASE

opinion about the impact of contaminant migration on nearby drinking water wells.
professional in assessing sources that may impact ground water flow direction, and in forming an
EDR Local/Regional Water Agency records provide water well information to assist the environmental

LOCAL / REGIONAL WATER AGENCY RECORDS

7.9
Max: 9 Min:

Min: 42
Max: 141   

Silty Sand.
Sands with fines,
SOILS, Sands,
COARSE-GRAINED

and Sand.
Clayey Gravel
200), Silty, or
passing No.
pct. or less
materials (35
Granularsand59 inches18 inches 2

7.9
Max: 9 Min:

Min: 42
Max: 141   

Silty Sand.
Sands with fines,
SOILS, Sands,
COARSE-GRAINED

and Sand.
Clayey Gravel
200), Silty, or
passing No.
pct. or less
materials (35
Granularfine sand18 inches 0 inches 1

Soil Layer Information           

Boundary Classification Saturated
hydraulic
conductivity
micro m/sec

Layer Upper Lower Soil Texture Class AASHTO Group Unified Soil Soil Reaction
(pH)

 
> 0 inchesDepth to Watertable Min:

> 0 inchesDepth to Bedrock Min:

HighCorrosion Potential - Uncoated Steel:

Hydric Status: Partially hydric

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®



TC7624121.2s   Page A-8

1/2 - 1 Mile WSWCADDW2000024231   18
1/2 - 1 Mile NNECAUSGSN00014943   D16
1/2 - 1 Mile SECADDW2000015406   15
1/2 - 1 Mile NECAUSGSN00005522   E13
1/2 - 1 Mile NNECADDW2000006830   D12
1/2 - 1 Mile NorthCAUSGSN00019118   C10
1/2 - 1 Mile WNWCADDW2000015012   9
1/2 - 1 Mile NorthCADDW2000018138   8
1/2 - 1 Mile ENECADDW2000007861   B7
1/2 - 1 Mile ENE4888   B6
1/2 - 1 Mile SECADDW2000024294   5
1/4 - 1/2 Mile WNW4893   4
1/4 - 1/2 Mile EastCADWR0000018383   A3
1/4 - 1/2 Mile EastCAUSGSN00013154   A2

STATE DATABASE WELL INFORMATION

LOCATION
FROM TPWELL IDMAP ID

Note: PWS System location is not always the same as well location.

No PWS System Found

FEDERAL FRDS PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM INFORMATION

LOCATION
FROM TPWELL IDMAP ID

1/2 - 1 Mile NNEUSGS40000138358   D17
1/2 - 1 Mile NEUSGS40000138323   E14

FEDERAL USGS WELL INFORMATION

LOCATION
FROM TPWELL IDMAP ID

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®



EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.

200
2

0
0

2 0
0

2 0 0

240

240

2 4 0

3 2 0

2
8

0

2 80

280

2 8
0

320

320

3
2 0

3 2 0

3

2 0

20
0

2 00

2

280

240
2 0

0

CA



TC7624121.2s   Page A-10

Not ReportedComment 2:Not ReportedComment 1:
IUStatus:8Precision:
1162400.0Longitude:334800.0Latitude:
WELL/AMBNT/MUN/INTAKE/SUPPLYStation ty:WELL 4627 - INACTIVESource nam:
GWater type:3310001System no:
WATUser id:14District:
33County:3310001039Frds no:
04S/06E-30D02 SPrim sta c:4893Seq:

4
WNW
1/4 - 1/2 Mile
Higher

4893CA WELLS

          Not ReportedGeoTracker Data:
          date=&global_id=&assigned_name=04S06E29E001S&store_num=
          https://gamagroundwater.waterboards.ca.gov/gama/gamamap/public/GamaDataDisplay.asp?dataset=DWR&samp_Groundwater Quality Data:

          Not ReportedGAMA PFAS Testing:          04S06E29E001SOther Name:
          Department of Water ResourcesSource:

          UNKWell Type:          04S06E29E001SWell ID:

A3
East
1/4 - 1/2 Mile
Lower

CADWR0000018383CA WELLS

          Not ReportedGeoTracker Data:
          amp_date=&global_id=&assigned_name=USGS-334751116231201&store_num=
          https://gamagroundwater.waterboards.ca.gov/gama/gamamap/public/GamaDataDisplay.asp?dataset=USGSNEW&sGroundwater Quality Data:

          Not ReportedGAMA PFAS Testing:          USGS-334751116231201Other Name:
          United States Geological SurveySource:

          UNKWell Type:          USGS-334751116231201Well ID:

A2
East
1/4 - 1/2 Mile
Lower

CAUSGSN00013154CA WELLS

          Not ReportedWell Hole Depth Units:
          Not ReportedWell Hole Depth:          Not ReportedWell Depth Units:
          Not ReportedWell Depth:          Not ReportedConstruction Date:
          Not ReportedAquifer Type:          Not ReportedFormation Type:

          Basin and Range basin-fill aquifersAquifer:
          Not ReportedContrib Drainage Area Unts:          Not ReportedContrib Drainage Area:
          Not ReportedDrainage Area Units:          Not ReportedDrainage Area:
          18100200HUC:          Not ReportedDescription:
          WellType:          004S006E29E001SMonitor Location:

          USGS California Water Science CenterOrganization Name:
          USGS-CAOrganization ID:

A1
East
1/4 - 1/2 Mile
Lower

USGS40000138255FED USGS

Map ID
Direction
Distance
Elevation EDR ID NumberDatabase

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

https://gamagroundwater.waterboards.ca.gov/gama/gamamap/public/GamaDataDisplay.asp?dataset=DWR&samp_date=&global_id=&assigned_name=04S06E29E001S&store_num=
https://gamagroundwater.waterboards.ca.gov/gama/gamamap/public/GamaDataDisplay.asp?dataset=USGSNEW&samp_date=&global_id=&assigned_name=USGS-334751116231201&store_num=


TC7624121.2s   Page A-11

          Not ReportedGAMA Pfas testing:
          3310001-040Other Names:          DDWSource:
          MUNICIPALWell Type:          CA3310001_040_040Well ID:

GAMA:

B7
ENE
1/2 - 1 Mile
Lower

CADDW2000007861CA WELLS

COVE COMMUNITIESArea serve:
59922Connection:167782Pop serv:
Not ReportedZip ext:92236Zip:
CAState:CoachellaCity:
P.O. Box 1058Address:COACHELLA VALLEY WTR DISTHqname:
Coachella Vwd: Cove CommunitySystem nam:3310001System no:

Not ReportedComment 7:
Not ReportedComment 6:Not ReportedComment 5:
Not ReportedComment 4:Not ReportedComment 3:
Not ReportedComment 2:Not ReportedComment 1:
ARStatus:8Precision:
1162300.0Longitude:334800.0Latitude:
WELL/AMBNT/MUN/INTAKE/SUPPLYStation ty:WELL 4628Source nam:
GWater type:3310001System no:
WATUser id:14District:
33County:3310001040Frds no:
04S/06E-20M01 SPrim sta c:4888Seq:

B6
ENE
1/2 - 1 Mile
Lower

4888CA WELLS

          Not ReportedGeoTracker Data:
          date=&global_id=&assigned_name=CA3310001_289_289&store_num=
          https://gamagroundwater.waterboards.ca.gov/gama/gamamap/public/GamaDataDisplay.asp?dataset=DHS&samp_Groundwater Quality Data:
          Not ReportedGAMA Pfas testing:

          3310001-289Other Names:          DDWSource:
          MUNICIPALWell Type:          CA3310001_289_289Well ID:

GAMA:

5
SE
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

CADDW2000024294CA WELLS

COVE COMMUNITIESArea serve:
59922Connection:167782Pop serv:
Not ReportedZip ext:92236Zip:
CAState:CoachellaCity:
P.O. Box 1058Address:COACHELLA VALLEY WTR DISTHqname:
Coachella Vwd: Cove CommunitySystem nam:3310001System no:

Not ReportedComment 7:
Not ReportedComment 6:Not ReportedComment 5:
Not ReportedComment 4:Not ReportedComment 3:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

https://gamagroundwater.waterboards.ca.gov/gama/gamamap/public/GamaDataDisplay.asp?dataset=DHS&samp_date=&global_id=&assigned_name=CA3310001_289_289&store_num=


TC7624121.2s   Page A-12

          Not ReportedAquifer Type:          Not ReportedFormation Type:
          Basin and Range basin-fill aquifersAquifer:

          Not ReportedContrib Drainage Area Unts:          Not ReportedContrib Drainage Area:
          Not ReportedDrainage Area Units:          Not ReportedDrainage Area:
          18100200HUC:          Not ReportedDescription:
          WellType:          004S006E19J002SMonitor Location:

          USGS California Water Science CenterOrganization Name:
          USGS-CAOrganization ID:

C11
North
1/2 - 1 Mile
Lower

USGS40000138352FED USGS

          Not ReportedGeoTracker Data:
          amp_date=&global_id=&assigned_name=USGS-334831116232901&store_num=
          https://gamagroundwater.waterboards.ca.gov/gama/gamamap/public/GamaDataDisplay.asp?dataset=USGSNEW&sGroundwater Quality Data:

          Not ReportedGAMA PFAS Testing:          USGS-334831116232901Other Name:
          United States Geological SurveySource:

          UNKWell Type:          USGS-334831116232901Well ID:

C10
North
1/2 - 1 Mile
Lower

CAUSGSN00019118CA WELLS

          Not ReportedGeoTracker Data:
          date=&global_id=&assigned_name=CA3310001_205_205&store_num=
          https://gamagroundwater.waterboards.ca.gov/gama/gamamap/public/GamaDataDisplay.asp?dataset=DHS&samp_Groundwater Quality Data:
          Not ReportedGAMA Pfas testing:

          3310001-205Other Names:          DDWSource:
          MUNICIPALWell Type:          CA3310001_205_205Well ID:

GAMA:

9
WNW
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

CADDW2000015012CA WELLS

          Not ReportedGeoTracker Data:
          date=&global_id=&assigned_name=CA3310001_164_164&store_num=
          https://gamagroundwater.waterboards.ca.gov/gama/gamamap/public/GamaDataDisplay.asp?dataset=DHS&samp_Groundwater Quality Data:
          Not ReportedGAMA Pfas testing:

          3310001-164Other Names:          DDWSource:
          MUNICIPALWell Type:          CA3310001_164_164Well ID:

GAMA:

8
North
1/2 - 1 Mile
Lower

CADDW2000018138CA WELLS

          Not ReportedGeoTracker Data:
          date=&global_id=&assigned_name=CA3310001_040_040&store_num=
          https://gamagroundwater.waterboards.ca.gov/gama/gamamap/public/GamaDataDisplay.asp?dataset=DHS&samp_Groundwater Quality Data:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

https://gamagroundwater.waterboards.ca.gov/gama/gamamap/public/GamaDataDisplay.asp?dataset=USGSNEW&samp_date=&global_id=&assigned_name=USGS-334831116232901&store_num=
https://gamagroundwater.waterboards.ca.gov/gama/gamamap/public/GamaDataDisplay.asp?dataset=DHS&samp_date=&global_id=&assigned_name=CA3310001_205_205&store_num=
https://gamagroundwater.waterboards.ca.gov/gama/gamamap/public/GamaDataDisplay.asp?dataset=DHS&samp_date=&global_id=&assigned_name=CA3310001_164_164&store_num=
https://gamagroundwater.waterboards.ca.gov/gama/gamamap/public/GamaDataDisplay.asp?dataset=DHS&samp_date=&global_id=&assigned_name=CA3310001_040_040&store_num=


TC7624121.2s   Page A-13

          MUNICIPALWell Type:          CA3310001_210_210Well ID:

GAMA:

15
SE
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

CADDW2000015406CA WELLS

          Not ReportedWell Hole Depth Units:
          Not ReportedWell Hole Depth:          Not ReportedWell Depth Units:
          Not ReportedWell Depth:          Not ReportedConstruction Date:
          Not ReportedAquifer Type:          Not ReportedFormation Type:

          Basin and Range basin-fill aquifersAquifer:
          Not ReportedContrib Drainage Area Unts:          Not ReportedContrib Drainage Area:
          Not ReportedDrainage Area Units:          Not ReportedDrainage Area:
          18100200HUC:          Not ReportedDescription:
          WellType:          004S006E20L001SMonitor Location:

          USGS California Water Science CenterOrganization Name:
          USGS-CAOrganization ID:

E14
NE
1/2 - 1 Mile
Lower

USGS40000138323FED USGS

          Not ReportedGeoTracker Data:
          amp_date=&global_id=&assigned_name=USGS-334821116225201&store_num=
          https://gamagroundwater.waterboards.ca.gov/gama/gamamap/public/GamaDataDisplay.asp?dataset=USGSNEW&sGroundwater Quality Data:

          Not ReportedGAMA PFAS Testing:          USGS-334821116225201Other Name:
          United States Geological SurveySource:

          UNKWell Type:          USGS-334821116225201Well ID:

E13
NE
1/2 - 1 Mile
Lower

CAUSGSN00005522CA WELLS

          Not ReportedGeoTracker Data:
          date=&global_id=&assigned_name=CA3310001_204_204&store_num=
          https://gamagroundwater.waterboards.ca.gov/gama/gamamap/public/GamaDataDisplay.asp?dataset=DHS&samp_Groundwater Quality Data:
          Not ReportedGAMA Pfas testing:

          3310001-204Other Names:          DDWSource:
          MUNICIPALWell Type:          CA3310001_204_204Well ID:

GAMA:

D12
NNE
1/2 - 1 Mile
Lower

CADDW2000006830CA WELLS

          Not ReportedWell Hole Depth Units:
          Not ReportedWell Hole Depth:          Not ReportedWell Depth Units:
          Not ReportedWell Depth:          Not ReportedConstruction Date:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

https://gamagroundwater.waterboards.ca.gov/gama/gamamap/public/GamaDataDisplay.asp?dataset=USGSNEW&samp_date=&global_id=&assigned_name=USGS-334821116225201&store_num=
https://gamagroundwater.waterboards.ca.gov/gama/gamamap/public/GamaDataDisplay.asp?dataset=DHS&samp_date=&global_id=&assigned_name=CA3310001_204_204&store_num=


TC7624121.2s   Page A-14

          Not ReportedGeoTracker Data:
          date=&global_id=&assigned_name=CA3310001_203_203&store_num=
          https://gamagroundwater.waterboards.ca.gov/gama/gamamap/public/GamaDataDisplay.asp?dataset=DHS&samp_Groundwater Quality Data:
          Not ReportedGAMA Pfas testing:

          3310001-203Other Names:          DDWSource:
          MUNICIPALWell Type:          CA3310001_203_203Well ID:

GAMA:

18
WSW
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

CADDW2000024231CA WELLS

          ftWell Hole Depth Units:
          986Well Hole Depth:          ftWell Depth Units:
          960Well Depth:          Not ReportedConstruction Date:
          Not ReportedAquifer Type:          Not ReportedFormation Type:

          Basin and Range basin-fill aquifersAquifer:
          Not ReportedContrib Drainage Area Unts:          Not ReportedContrib Drainage Area:
          Not ReportedDrainage Area Units:          Not ReportedDrainage Area:
          18100200HUC:          Not ReportedDescription:
          WellType:          004S006E20M001SMonitor Location:

          USGS California Water Science CenterOrganization Name:
          USGS-CAOrganization ID:

D17
NNE
1/2 - 1 Mile
Lower

USGS40000138358FED USGS

          Not ReportedGeoTracker Data:
          amp_date=&global_id=&assigned_name=USGS-334833116231001&store_num=
          https://gamagroundwater.waterboards.ca.gov/gama/gamamap/public/GamaDataDisplay.asp?dataset=USGSNEW&sGroundwater Quality Data:

          Not ReportedGAMA PFAS Testing:          USGS-334833116231001Other Name:
          United States Geological SurveySource:

          UNKWell Type:          USGS-334833116231001Well ID:

D16
NNE
1/2 - 1 Mile
Lower

CAUSGSN00014943CA WELLS

          Not ReportedGeoTracker Data:
          date=&global_id=&assigned_name=CA3310001_210_210&store_num=
          https://gamagroundwater.waterboards.ca.gov/gama/gamamap/public/GamaDataDisplay.asp?dataset=DHS&samp_Groundwater Quality Data:
          Not ReportedGAMA Pfas testing:

          3310001-210Other Names:          DDWSource:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

https://gamagroundwater.waterboards.ca.gov/gama/gamamap/public/GamaDataDisplay.asp?dataset=DHS&samp_date=&global_id=&assigned_name=CA3310001_203_203&store_num=
https://gamagroundwater.waterboards.ca.gov/gama/gamamap/public/GamaDataDisplay.asp?dataset=USGSNEW&samp_date=&global_id=&assigned_name=USGS-334833116231001&store_num=
https://gamagroundwater.waterboards.ca.gov/gama/gamamap/public/GamaDataDisplay.asp?dataset=DHS&samp_date=&global_id=&assigned_name=CA3310001_210_210&store_num=


TC7624121.2s   Page A-15

Not ReportedNot ReportedNot ReportedNot ReportedBasement
Not ReportedNot ReportedNot ReportedNot ReportedLiving Area - 2nd Floor
0%0%100%0.800 pCi/LLiving Area - 1st Floor

% >20 pCi/L% 4-20 pCi/L% <4 pCi/LAverage ActivityArea

Number of sites tested: 1

Federal Area Radon Information for Zip Code:   92270

             : Zone 3 indoor average level < 2 pCi/L.
             : Zone 2 indoor average level >= 2 pCi/L and <= 4 pCi/L.
     Note: Zone 1 indoor average level > 4 pCi/L.

Federal EPA Radon Zone for RIVERSIDE County:  2 

22092270

______________________
> 4 pCi/LNum TestsZipcode

Radon Test Results                                                                                 

State Database: CA Radon                                                                           

AREA RADON INFORMATION

GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS
RADON

®



TOPOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

USGS 7.5’ Digital Elevation Model (DEM)
Source: United States Geologic Survey
EDR acquired the USGS 7.5’ Digital Elevation Model in 2002 and updated it in 2006. The 7.5 minute DEM corresponds
to the USGS 1:24,000- and 1:25,000-scale topographic quadrangle maps. The DEM provides elevation data
with consistent elevation units and projection.

Current USGS 7.5 Minute Topographic Map
Source: U.S. Geological Survey

HYDROLOGIC INFORMATION

Flood Zone Data: This data was obtained from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). It depicts 100-year and
500-year flood zones as defined by FEMA. It includes the National Flood Hazard Layer (NFHL) which incorporates Flood
Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) data and Q3 data from FEMA in areas not covered by NFHL.

Source: FEMA
Telephone: 877-336-2627
Date of Government Version: 2003, 2015

NWI: National Wetlands Inventory.  This data, available in select counties across the country, was obtained by EDR
in 2002, 2005, 2010 and 2015 from the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service.

State Wetlands Data: Wetland Inventory
Source: Department of Fish and Wildlife
Telephone: 916-445-0411

HYDROGEOLOGIC INFORMATION

AQUIFLOW       Information SystemR

Source:  EDR proprietary database of groundwater flow information
EDR has developed the AQUIFLOW Information System (AIS) to provide data on the general direction of groundwater

flow at specific points. EDR has reviewed reports submitted to regulatory authorities at select sites and has
extracted the date of the report, hydrogeologically determined groundwater flow direction and depth to water table
information.

GEOLOGIC INFORMATION

Geologic Age and Rock Stratigraphic Unit
Source: P.G. Schruben, R.E. Arndt and W.J. Bawiec, Geology of the Conterminous U.S. at 1:2,500,000 Scale - A digital
representation of the 1974 P.B. King and H.M. Beikman Map, USGS Digital Data Series DDS - 11 (1994).

STATSGO: State Soil Geographic Database
Source:  Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS)
The U.S. Department of Agriculture’s (USDA) Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) leads the national
Conservation Soil Survey (NCSS) and is responsible for collecting, storing, maintaining and distributing soil
survey information for privately owned lands in the United States. A soil map in a soil survey is a representation
of soil patterns in a landscape. Soil maps for STATSGO are compiled by generalizing more detailed (SSURGO)
soil survey maps.

SSURGO: Soil Survey Geographic Database
Source:  Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS)
Telephone:  800-672-5559
SSURGO is the most detailed level of mapping done by the Natural Resources Conservation Service, mapping
scales generally range from 1:12,000 to 1:63,360. Field mapping methods using national standards are used to
construct the soil maps in the Soil Survey Geographic (SSURGO) database. SSURGO digitizing duplicates the
original soil survey maps. This level of mapping is designed for use by landowners, townships and county
natural resource planning and management.

TC7624121.2s     Page PSGR-1

PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE RECORDS SEARCHED



LOCAL / REGIONAL WATER AGENCY RECORDS

FEDERAL WATER WELLS

PWS: Public Water Systems
Source:  EPA/Office of Drinking Water
Telephone:  202-564-3750
Public Water System data from the Federal Reporting Data System.  A PWS is any water system which provides water to at

least 25 people for at least 60 days annually.  PWSs provide water from wells, rivers and other sources.

PWS ENF: Public Water Systems Violation and Enforcement Data
Source:  EPA/Office of Drinking Water
Telephone:  202-564-3750
Violation and Enforcement data for Public Water Systems from the Safe Drinking Water Information System (SDWIS) after

August 1995.  Prior to August 1995, the data came from the Federal Reporting Data System (FRDS).

USGS Water Wells: USGS National Water Inventory System (NWIS)
This database contains descriptive information on sites where the USGS collects or has collected data on surface
water and/or groundwater. The groundwater data includes information on wells, springs, and other sources of groundwater.

OTHER STATE DATABASE INFORMATION

Groundwater Ambient Monitoring & Assessment Program
State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone: 916-341-5577
The GAMA Program is Californias comprehensive groundwater quality monitoring program. GAMA collects data by testing

the untreated, raw water in different types of wells for naturally-occurring and man-made chemicals.  The GAMA
data includes Domestic, Monitoring and Municipal well types from the following sources, Department of Water Resources,
Department of Heath Services, EDF, Agricultural Lands, Lawrence Livermore National Laboratory, Department of Pesticide
Regulation,  United States Geological Survey, Groundwater Ambient Monitoring and Assessment Program and Local
Groundwater Projects.

Water Well Database
Source:  Department of Water Resources
Telephone:  916-651-9648

California Drinking Water Quality Database
Source:  Department of Public Health
Telephone:  916-324-2319
The database includes all drinking water compliance and special studies monitoring for the state of California

since 1984. It consists of over 3,200,000 individual analyses along with well and water system information.

Geothermal Wells Listing
Department of Conservation
Telephone: 916-445-9686
Geothermal well means a well constructed to extract or return water to the ground after it has been used for heating

or cooling purposes. Geothermal wells in California (except for wells on federal leases which are administered
by the Bureau of Land Management) are permitted, drilled, operated, and permanently sealed and closed (plugged
and abandoned) under requirements and procedures administered by the Geothermal Section of the Department of
Conservations Geologic Energy Management Division (CalGEM, formerly DOGGR).

California Oil and Gas Well Locations
Source: Dept of Conservation, Geologic Energy Management Division
Telephone:  916-323-1779
Oil and Gas well locations in the state.

TC7624121.2s     Page PSGR-2

PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE RECORDS SEARCHED



California Earthquake Fault Lines
Source:  California Division of Mines and Geology
The fault lines displayed on EDR’s Topographic map are digitized quaternary fault lines prepared in 1975 by the

United State Geological Survey. Additional information (also from 1975) regarding activity at specific fault
lines comes from California’s Preliminary Fault Activity Map prepared by the California Division of Mines and
Geology.

RADON

State Database: CA Radon
Source: Department of Public Health
Telephone: 916-210-8558
Radon Database for California

Area Radon Information
Source: USGS
Telephone:  703-356-4020
The National Radon Database has been developed by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
(USEPA) and is a compilation of the EPA/State Residential Radon Survey and the National Residential Radon Survey.
The study covers the years 1986 - 1992. Where necessary data has been supplemented by information collected at
private sources such as universities and research institutions.

EPA Radon Zones
Source:  EPA
Telephone:  703-356-4020
Sections 307 & 309 of IRAA directed EPA to list and identify areas of U.S. with the potential for elevated indoor
radon levels.

OTHER

Airport Landing Facilities: Private and public use landing facilities
Source:  Federal Aviation Administration, 800-457-6656

Epicenters: World earthquake epicenters, Richter 5 or greater
Source:  Department of Commerce, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration

California Earthquake Fault Lines: The fault lines displayed on EDR’s Topographic map are digitized quaternary fault lines,
prepared in 1975 by the United State Geological Survey.  Additional information (also from 1975) regarding activity at specific fault
lines comes from California’s Preliminary Fault Activity Map prepared by the California Division of Mines and Geology.

STREET AND ADDRESS INFORMATION

© 2015 TomTom North America, Inc. All rights reserved.  This material is proprietary and the subject of copyright protection
and other intellectual property rights owned by or licensed to Tele Atlas North America, Inc.  The use of this material is subject
to the terms of a license agreement.  You will be held liable for any unauthorized copying or disclosure of this material.

TC7624121.2s     Page PSGR-3

PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE RECORDS SEARCHED



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX E1 
 

AGENCY DOCUMENTS 

(REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARD) 

 
  



�������	
�������
�����
������
�������
�����
�����	������������������������������ �!

� ��� ������	

�

����������
�

�����"�#$%&'(#)
*�+*#�(,#�
,-
�,(#
.,�,-,(/


�-���
�����
����
0�1
2��
3
%�"$������
�4
���!

�%�5#�(


�,(#

�
������

	
���

���
������
���



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX E2 
 

AGENCY DOCUMENTS 

(DEPARTMENT OF TOXIC SUBSTANCES CONTROL) 
  



�������	
���������
��
�����
���������
�������
������	���������������������������� 

����!"#$%&'�#�
(")(#"�*#�
*+
�*�#
,*�*+*�-


�+���
�����
������
.�/
0���
1
%�!$������
��
���� 

� ��� ������	

�

����������
�

�
������

	
���

���
������
���

�%23#��


�*�#



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX E3 
 

AGENCY DOCUMENTS 

(CALIFORNIA GEOLOGIC ENERGY MANAGEMENT DIVISION) 

  



�������	
�������	�������	������	����������	�����	������������������������������������� 

� ����� ������	

�

����������
�

�����

��	
����

	�����������

�	����������
�������

�����



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX E4 
 

AGENCY DOCUMENTS 

(SOUTH COAST AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT) 
 
 



�������	
�����������������������������

���������	�
���������������������������

������������	������������ �!��"���"�#����$�����

%����
���� �����$���

#
���� �

$����

&���
�	���"����



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  F 

 

Appendix F 
Preliminary Drainage Study



PRELIMINARY DRAINAGE STUDY 

 
For 

 

Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments 
 

 

 

Rancho Mirage, California 

APN# 685-090-011 (Portion) 

 

 

 

 

Prepared for: 

 

The Pacific Companies 

430 E. State Street, Suite 100 

Eagle, ID 83616 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: 

 

Atlas Civil Design, Inc. 

872 Higuera Street,  

San Luis Obispo, CA 93401 

 (619) 307-2749 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared: October 2024 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments 

Preliminary Drainage Study 

October 2024   1 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION .................................................................................................................... 2 

Purpose ................................................................................................................................................. 2 

Project Summary .................................................................................................................................. 2 

II. EXISTING CONDITIONS ...................................................................................................................... 3 

III. PROPOSED CONDITIONS .................................................................................................................. 3 

IV. METHODOLOGY .................................................................................................................................. 5 

Overview ............................................................................................................................................... 5 

Hydrology .............................................................................................................................................. 5 

Basin Routing ........................................................................................................................................ 7 

Basin Drawdown ................................................................................................................................... 8 

Pipes Sizing ............................................................................................................................................ 8 

V. RESULTS .............................................................................................................................................. 9 

VI. WATER QUALITY NOTE ................................................................................................................... 10 

VII. CONCLUSION .................................................................................................................................... 10 

VIII. DECLARATION OF RESPONSIBLE CHARGE ................................................................................ 10 

 

 

APPENDICES 
  

Appendix A – Drainage Exhibits 

 

Appendix B – Hydrology and Routing Calculations 

 

Appendix C – Reference Material 

 

Appendix D – Geotechnical Report 

  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments 

Preliminary Drainage Study 

October 2024   2 

 

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 
Purpose 

 

The purpose of this drainage report is to provide hydrologic and hydraulic calculations in support of 

the preliminary plans for the Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments project.  This report will 

demonstrate compliance with the retention requirements of the City of Rancho Mirage and the 

methodology of the Riverside County Flood Control and Water Conservation District Hydrology 

Manual, dated April 1978. 

 

Project Summary 

 

The project is located within a portion of a vacant parcel west of Key Largo Avenue in the City of 

Rancho Mirage within Riverside County in the State of California.  The project is proposed within a 

5.00-acre portion of larger city-owned parcel.  The site is bounded by vacant land to the west, south, 

and east.  The project is bounded to the north by currently vacant land planned for a future 

multifamily development, known as Via Vail Village, with proposed construction dates before that of 

the subject project.  See the Vicinity Map below. 

 

The proposed development includes seven multifamily buildings with a total of 150 residential units, 

as well as parking areas and outdoor amenity space.  Offsite improvements include the construction 

of the public street, Via Vail, along the property frontage.  

 

The site is located in FEMA Zone X, designated as an area of minimal flood hazard determined to be 

outside the 0.2% annual chance floodplain.  The site is located within FEMA FIRM Panel No, 

06065C1595G, effective date August 28, 2008, which can be found in Appendix C. 

 

The site is located within the Indio Hydrologic Sub-Area (Sub-Area Number 719.47), Coachella 

Hydrologic Area, and Whitewater Hydrologic Unit, which ultimately drain toward the Salton Sea. 

 

 
Vicinity Map 

Not to scale 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments 

Preliminary Drainage Study 

October 2024   3 

 

II. EXISTING CONDITIONS 
 

The existing 5.00-acre site consists of vacant land covered in dune sand and sparse vegetation.  Site 

elevations fall from southwest to northeast at an average grade of 3%. 

 

Existing soils are sandy with relatively high infiltration rates.  Groundwater was not encountered in 

geotechnical explorations and is anticipated to be approximately 160 feet below the ground surface.  

See Appendix D for the full geotechnical investigation report. 

 

Runoff that does not infiltrate drains across the northern property line onto the proposed site of the 

Via Vail Village project or across the eastern property line onto vacant land planned for the future 

public street extension of Via Vail and a vacant parcel to the northeast. 

 

The site receives significant runon from surrounding vacant lands.  The open space property to the 

west and portions of the vacant land to the south all drain through the site toward the Via Vail Village 

site and the land planned for the public street, Via Vail. 

 

The adjacent Via Vail Village project proposes a temporary retention basin on the subject project site 

to capture any runoff that reaches the Via Vail Village site in the existing condition. 

  

The existing area tributary to and including the project has been delineated into two sub-basins.  E1 

includes the project area and upstream area that reach the northern and eastern property lines, 

continuing northeast.  E2 includes a small portion of the site and upstream area that drains north 

within the public park property.  Drainage from this area is tributary to a future retention basin for the 

park parcel proposed per the Via Vail Village plans. 

 

See the Existing Conditions Drainage Exhibit in Appendix A for a graphic depiction of the existing sub-

basins.  

 

 

III. PROPOSED CONDITIONS 
 

Proposed site improvements shall consist of seven multifamily housing buildings with surface 

parking and associated drive aisles, landscaping, pedestrian hardscape, and outdoor amenity areas.  

Site grades generally drain southwest to northeast as in the existing condition.   

 

Offsite improvements consist of the construction of the public street, Via Vail, fronting the property.  

Via Vail will include a 40-foot curb-to-curb drive aisle with a 6-foot meandering sidewalk on the west 

side.  

 

The proposed site has been delineated into the following sub-basins: 

 

P1 

 

P1 includes the onsite improvements.  It includes runoff from roof, landscape, pedestrian 

hardscape, and vehicular hardscape areas.  Drainage from roof areas will outlet at grade into 

planter areas surrounding the buildings.  Landscape swales direct runoff to the area drain 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments 

Preliminary Drainage Study 

October 2024   4 

 

system.  Pedestrian sidewalks drain into the adjacent landscape areas or onto the drive aisle 

where applicable.  Runoff in the drive aisle reaches a concrete gutter.  Gutter flow is captured 

in inlets throughout the drive aisle.  The private storm drain system collects runoff as 

described and conveys it to an underground storage tank, referred to as BMP 1.    

 

Basin 1 is designed to retain the 100-year storm.  Drainage is stored underground and 

infiltrated over time.  In an emergency overflow condition, drainage would enter an outlet 

pipe connected to an outlet structure.  Overflow drainage may exit the system through the 

grate and surface flow to the Via Vail right-of-way. 

 

P2 

 

P2 consists of the area within the Via Vail right-of-way west of the centerline.  The City of 

Rancho Mirage requires projects to collect and retain drainage from half of the right-of-way 

fronting each property.  This drainage will be collected in a storm drain inlet and piped onsite 

to BMP 1. 

 

P3 

 

P3 consists of the area within the right-of-way east of the centerline.  The full width of Via Vail 

will be constructed to serve the project.  While the project is not required to retain runoff from 

the eastern half of the right-of-way, the project proposes to collect and retain the drainage in 

BMP 1.  P3 has been tabulated separately from P2 in order to tabulate the drainage the 

project would not typically be required to retain. 

 

P4 

 

P4 consists of the offsite area south of the site that is tributary to the site.  This area is owned 

by the City of Rancho Mirage.  The project proposes to collect the runoff and store in an offsite 

retention basin, referred to as BMP 2.  BMP 2 is designed to retain the 100-year storm from 

the public parcel through infiltration.  In an overflow condition, drainage would overtop an 

emergency spillway and surface flow to the Via Vail right-of-way. 

 

P5 

 

P5 includes the portion of offsite, upstream area tributary to the easterly property line that 

naturally drains north toward the public basin proposed per the Via Vail Village project.  The 

drainage will continue to be directed north with a swale.  No additional retention feature is 

proposed for this area as the public retention basin per the Via Vail Village project has been 

designed for this area. 

 

See the Proposed Conditions Drainage Exhibit in Appendix A for a depiction of the proposed sub-

basins and retention features. 

 

  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments 

Preliminary Drainage Study 

October 2024   5 

 

IV. METHODOLOGY 
 

Overview 

 

The City of Rancho Mirage requires retention of the 100-year storm, considering the worst-case 

duration between the 1, 3, 6, and 24-hour storm durations.  Hydrology calculations shall be 

performed in accordance with the Riverside County Hydrology Manual. 

 

Hydrology 

 

As the City of Rancho Mirage requires full retention of the 100-year storm, the proposed condition 

hydrology is the focus of this study, as opposed to calculating a difference in flow from the existing 

condition. 

 

The Hydrology Manual specifies Rational Method for the 1-hour storm duration and the Synthetic 

Hydrograph Method for the 3-hour, 6-hour, and 24-hour storms.  The Synthetic Hydrograph Method 

considers distribution of rainfall over time, allowing storm volume over various storm durations to 

be calculated.  Retention basin sizing is based on storm volumes, and it was therefore necessary to 

utilize the Synthetic Hydrograph Method for all four storm durations.  

 

The Synthetic Hydrograph Method is typically utilized for watersheds over 300 acres.  The Hydrology 

Manual specifies a Short Cut Synthetic Hydrograph Method for retention basin sizing for drainage 

areas of less than 200 acres with lag times less than eight minutes.  The Short Cut Synthetic 

Hydrograph Method has been implemented for this project as the site is five acres and lag times are 

expected to be relatively short. 

 

The methodology outlined in Plate E-1.2 of the Hydrology Manual was followed and is described in 

more detail below.  References can be found in Appendix C.  The calculations described below were 

performed in Microsoft Excel and are provided in Appendix B. 

 

Point Precipitation  

 

Point rainfall data was obtained for the project location from the isohyetal maps for the 100-

year storm for the 1, 3, 6, and 24-hour durations from plates D-4.4, E-5.2, E-5.1, and E-5.6 of 

the Hydrology Manual.  

 

As the drainage areas are relatively small, aerial adjustment per Plate E-5.8 was not 

necessary. 

 

Precipitation Intensity Pattern 

 

Hydrology Manual Plate E-5.9 provides rainfall patterns in percentage for various time 

increments for the 3, 6, and 24-hour duration storms.  A 5-minute increment was used for the 

1, 3, and 6-hour duration storms.  A 15-minute time increment was used for the 24-hour 

duration storm.    

 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments 

Preliminary Drainage Study 

October 2024   6 

 

Plate E-5.9 does not provide a rainfall pattern for the 1-hour duration storm.  For the 1-hour 

storm 5-minute increments, the pattern provided for the 3-hour storm in 15-minute 

increments was utilized. 

 

For each time increment across the duration of each storm considered, the point 

precipitation was multiplied by the precipitation intensity pattern percentage for the given 

time increment.  This resulted in a rainfall intensity for each time increment. 

 

Loss Rate 

 

Anticipated runoff loss rates due to infiltration, surface interception, evaporation, and other 

factors were considered. 

 

The runoff curve number was obtained for the pervious area from Plate E-6.1, utilizing the 

value for urban, residential areas with good coverage and Type A soils. 

 

Next, the infiltrate rate for pervious areas (Fp) was obtained from Plate E-6.2.  The Hydrology 

Manual recommends Antecedent Moisture Condition II for the 100-year storm. 

 

The percentage of imperviousness for each sub-basin was tabulated.  The loss rate for 

pervious areas was then adjusted using the following equation: 

 

F = Fp(1.00-0.9Ai) 

 

Where: F = Adjusted loss rate (in/hr) 

 Fp = Loss rate for pervious areas (in/hr) 

 Ai = Impervious area (decimal percent)  

 

For the 1,3, and 6-hour durations, the loss is considered constant.  For the longer duration 

storm of 24-hours, the loss should be varied to decrease with time.  The 24-hour loss rate 

for each time increment was calculated per the following equation: 

 

 FT = [(F-Fm)/54](D-T)1.55 + Fm 

 

Where: FT = Adjusted loss rate at time T (in/hr) 

 F = Adjusted loss rate (in/hr) 

 D = Storm duration (hr) = 24 hours 

 T = time from beginning of storm (hr) 

 Fm = Minimum value on the loss curve (in/hr) 

 

Per plate E-1.1, Fm is typically 50 to 75 percent of F.  It was considered 50 percent of F for 

these calculations. 

 

For some time increments, the loss rate exceeded the rainfall in the given increment.  In 

those increments, a low loss rate was calculated.  Per Plate E-1.1, the low loss rate is 

typically 80 to 90 percent of the rain fall rate.  For these calculations, 90 percent was 

selected. 

 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments 

Preliminary Drainage Study 

October 2024   7 

 

Effective Rainfall Rate 

 

The effective rainfall rate for each time increment was calculated by subtracting the loss 

rate from the rainfall intensity for the given increment. 

 

Flood Hydrograph 

 

The flow rate over each time increment was calculated by multiplying the effective rainfall 

rate by the sub-basin area.  The result of the calculations is four time series of runoff over 

time for the four storm durations considered.   

 

Basin Routing 

 

In order to show retention of the 100-year storm, BMP routing calculations needed to be performed.  

BMP routing calculations were performed in the hydrology spreadsheet. 

 

For each time increment, a volume of runoff was calculated by multiplying the runoff rate from the 

hydrograph time series by the time increment (ie. 5 minutes or 15 minutes). 

 

Both BMPs were modeled as basins.  BMP 1 is an underground storage vault with 90 percent void 

space.  BMP 1 was modeled as a basin by considering the top area to be the same as the bottom 

area.  The void space was considered by modeling the dimensions (length, width, and height) as the 

cube root of 90 percent multiplied by each of the proposed dimensions.  BMP 1 also includes a gravel 

layer on all sides of the tank.  Although this layer provides additional storage, its volume has, 

conservatively, not been included in the routing analysis. 

 

For the basin shape, volume over various storage depths can be calculated using the volume 

equation for a pyramidal frustum based on the bottom area, top area, and depth per the following 

equation: 

 

 V = (1/3) d (Atop + Abottom + (AtopAbottom)0.5) 

 

Where: V = Volume at depth, d (CF) 

 d = depth of water in basin (ft) 

 Atop = Area of the top of basin (SF) 

 Abottom = Area of the bottom of basin (SF) 

 

Freeboard of 1 foot minimum is proposed for the retention BMPs.  For the calculations, the top of 

basin was considered to be below the freeboard.  Therefore, the maximum depth listed in the 

calculations is 1 foot below the graded top of basin. 

 

Infiltration was considered based on the geotechnical testing in Appendix D.  A factor of safety of 3 

was utilized per the Whitewater River Region Stormwater Quality BMP Design Handbook for LID 

Appendix B, Table 1.  The measured infiltration was divided by the factor of safety, resulting in a 

design infiltration rate.  Calculations are provided in Appendix B. 

 

For each time increment, the volume of drainage infiltrated was calculated based on the basin area 

and the design infiltration rate. 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments 

Preliminary Drainage Study 

October 2024   8 

 

 

Where the infiltration volume calculated exceeded the incoming flow volume for the time period, the 

infiltrated volume in the time period was considered to be the incoming flow volume.  Where the 

incoming flow volume exceeded the infiltration volume, the volume needing to be stored in the basin 

was calculated as the incoming flow volume less the infiltration volume. 

 

At each step, the incoming flow volume minus the infiltrated volume was added to the basin storage 

volume from the previous time step, resulting in the current volume being stored in the basin at each 

time step. The volume equation above was utilized to calculate the depth of water for the volume of 

water in the basin at each time step. 

 

If the volume needing storage exceeded the maximum storage of the basin, the difference between 

water volume needing storage and the maximum storage would be the volume overflowing from the 

basin at the given time period.  That volume would then be divided by the time increment length to 

calculate an overflow rate at the given time period. 

 

If the volume needing storage never exceeded the maximum storage, the storm can be considered 

fully retained with no overflow from the basin. 

 

Basin Drawdown 

 

Retention basin drawdown was calculated by dividing the high water depth by the design infiltration 

rate.  Calculations are provided in Appendix B. 

 

Pipes Sizing 

 

Pipes, gutters, and curb inlets were not sized in preliminary engineering.  In final engineering, public 

pipes, gutters and curb inlets will be sized per the Riverside County Flood Control Water 

Conservation District Hydraulic Design Manual, dated 2024.  The Hydraulic Design Manual requires 

pipes to be sized for the 100-year storm with the hydraulic grade line at least 0.5 feet below ground 

surface.  The manual requires gutter and inlet drainage to allow the 10-year storm to be contained 

within the limits of the curbs and the 100-year storm to be contained within the limits of the right-of-

way. 

 

Private onsite pipes, curbs, and gutters will be sized to ensure no flooding reaches the proposed 

buildings in the 100-year storm. 

 

  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments 

Preliminary Drainage Study 

October 2024   9 

 

V. RESULTS 
 

The table below summarizes the peak flow from the site and upstream tributary areas for the 100-

year storm in the proposed condition.  The worst-case duration of 1-hour is reported below.  Results 

for the 3-hour, 6-hour, and 24-hour are provided in the calculations in Appendix B. 

 

Peak Flow Results 

Sub-Basin Area (AC) 
Impervious 

Area (%) 

Unmitigated 

Q100 (CFS) 

 (Prior to BMP 

Routing) 

Mitigated  

Q100 (CFS) 

(Overflow from 

BMP) 

P1 4.77 82% 

    P2 0.23 89% 

P3 0.23 87% 

Total BMP 1 5.23 83% 16.8 0 

P4 15.54 0%     

Total BMP 2 15.54 0% 41.4 0 

P5 0.23 0%     

Total to Via 

Vail Village 

Offsite Basin 

0.23 0% 0.6 0 

 

The table below summarizes the parameters of the retention BMPs used in the routing analysis. 

 

Retention BMP Summary 

Retention 

BMP 

Drainage 

Retained 

Bottom 

Area (SF) 

Depth 

(ft) 

Side 

Slope 

(H:V) 

High 

Water 

Depth (ft) 

Freeboard 

(ft) 

Drawdown  

(hr) 

1 
Private 

and Public 
4,950 6.8 3:1 5.7  1.1 16.5 

2 Public 37,000 2.0 3:1 1.0 1.0 3.0 

 

The results of the routing analysis verify that the proposed retention BMPs have been sized 

adequately to retain the 100-year storm event with adequate freeboard and that the facilities will 

drawdown fully within appropriate time frames.  The County of Riverside Hydraulic Design Manual 

recommends 72 hours for detention basin drawdown, which this project is considering an 

appropriate guideline for retention BMPs. 

 

Hydraulic analysis of pipes, inlets, and gutters will be provided in final engineering. 

 

 

  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments 

Preliminary Drainage Study 

October 2024   10 

 

VI. WATER QUALITY NOTE 
 

The project is located within the Whitewater River MS4 Region.  Water quality requirements are 

addressed in a separate Water Quality Management Memo and are not discussed in this report. 

 

 

VII. CONCLUSION 
 

The proposed retention BMPs have been adequately designed to meet the City of Rancho Mirage 

retention requirements.  In a 100-year storm of durations 1-hour, 3-hour, 6-hour, and 24-hour, runoff 

will remain within the retention BMPs and underground pipe system, posing no threat to people or 

structures.   Overflow structures and overland flow paths to the Via Vail right-of-way are provided for 

conditions exceeding the 100-year storm. 

 

 

VIII. DECLARATION OF RESPONSIBLE CHARGE 
 

I hereby declare that I am the engineer of work for this project, that I have exercised responsible 

charge over the design of the project as defined in Section 6703 of the Business and Profession Code, 

and that the design is consistent with the prevailing standard of the engineering profession for similar 

work. 

 

I understand that the check of project drawings and specifications by the City of Rancho Mirage is 

confined to a review only and does not relieve me, as engineer of work, of my responsibilities for the 

project design. 

 

 

 

 

_____________________________________________________________ 

Shannon Dow-Davis Leandro   Date 

R.C.E. No. 84364  Exp. 09/30/25    



 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A 

Drainage Exhibits 



305

31
0

310

306

305

302

300

295

290

295

300

301

304

300

297

303

295

297

287

GINGER  ROGERS  ROAD

PROPERTY LINE

E1
20.55

AC
0%

E2
0.45
AC

0%

OFFSITE BASIN FOR PUBLIC
PARCEL DRAINAGE PER FUTURE

ADJACENT DEVELOPMENT

FUTURE ADJACENT
DEVELOPMENT

NOT A PART

TEMPORARY BASIN PER FUTURE
ADJACENT DEVELOPMENT

TEMPORARY CUL-DE-SAC PER
FUTURE ADJACENT DEVELOPMENT

K
E

Y
  
L
A

R
G

O
  
A

V
E

N
U

E

V
IA

  
V

A
IL

( IN FEET )

GRAPHIC SCALE
1600 8080

1" = 80' 

SITE INFORMATION

www.AtlasCivilDesign.com

Civil  Engineering  Site Optimization

DesignCivilCivil Design Tel: 1-619-307-2749

San Diego     Orange County     Los Angeles     San Luis Obispo     Monterey

EXISTING CONDITIONS DRAINAGE EXHIBIT

335

LEGEND



305

31
0

310

306

305

302

300

295

295

300

301

304

300

297

303

295

297

GINGER  ROGERS  ROAD

K
E

Y
  
L
A

R
G

O
  
A

V
E

N
U

E

V
IA

  
V

A
IL

T

T

T

P5
0.23
AC

0%

FUTURE ADJACENT
DEVELOPMENT

NOT A PART

OFFSITE BASIN FOR PUBLIC
PARCEL DRAINAGE PER FUTURE

ADJACENT DEVELOPMENT

BMP 1:
UNDERGROUND

STORAGE VAULT

BLDG 4

BLDG 3 BLDG 2 BLDG 1

BLDG 6BLDG 5
BLDG 7

COMMUNITY
BLDGPOOL

P4
15.54

AC
0%

P1
4.77
AC

82%

P2
0.23
AC

89%

P3
0.23
AC

87%

BMP 2:
RETENTION BASIN

( IN FEET )

GRAPHIC SCALE
1600 8080

1" = 80' 

www.AtlasCivilDesign.com

Civil  Engineering  Site Optimization

DesignCivilCivil Design Tel: 1-619-307-2749

San Diego     Orange County     Los Angeles     San Luis Obispo     Monterey

PROPOSED CONDITIONS DRAINAGE EXHIBIT

SITE INFORMATION

LEGEND

DMA1
X.X
AC

X.X

BMP SUMMARY

DMA SUMMARY

RETENTION BASIN DETAIL

UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK DETAIL



 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX B 

Hydrology and Routing Calculations 

  



Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments - Sub-Basin Area Tabulation

Existing Condition

Sub-Basin
Total Area 

(SF)

Total Area 

(AC)

Impervious 

Area (SF)

Pervious 

Area (SF)

Impervious 

Fraction

E1 895,000 20.55 0 895,000 0

E2 19,700 0.45 0 19,700 0

Proposed Condition

Sub-Basin
Total Area 

(SF)

Total Area 

(AC)

Impervious 

Area (SF)

Pervious 

Area (SF)

Impervious 

Fraction

P1 207,800 4.77 171,100 36,700 0.82

P2 10,000 0.23 8,900 1,100 0.89

P3 10,000 0.23 8,700 1,300 0.87

Total to 

BMP 1
227,800 5.23 188,700 39,100 0.83

P4 677,000 15.54 0 677,000 0

P5 9,900 0.23 0 9,900 0



Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments - Design Infiltration Rate

Test
1 Infiltration 

Rate (in/hr)

P-1 12.00

Factor of Safety
2 3

Design 

infiltration rate
4.00 in/hr

1
 Per infiltration testing results in Appendix D.

2
 Per Whitewater River Region Stormwater Quality BMP Design 

Handbook  for LID  Appendix B, Table 1.



1 of 6

HYDROLOGY CALCULATIONS - Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments - BMP 1 Program Updated 04/05/2024 by LZ

Using the RCFC&WCD Short Cut Unit Hydrograph Method 

Area Designations BMP 1 - Area P1, P2, P3

Area 1

Drainage Area (ac.) 5.2300

Unit time (minutes) 5 5 5 15

100 Year Storm Duration (hrs) 1 3 6 24

Total Precipitation (Plates D-4.4,E-5.2, 5.4, 5.6)(in.) 1.6 2.00 2.50 3.50 Or data from NOAA interactive website

Soils Group A

AMC index II Runoff Number (plate E-6.1) 32

Plate E-6.2 Pervious Area Loss Rate (Fp)(in/hr) 0.74 (AMC II)

Percentage of Impervious Cover (Ai)(%) (plate E-6.3) 83

Weighted Average Loss Rate (F=Fp(1-.9Ai))(in./hr.) 0.19 (used for 1, 3, and 6 hour storm, the 24 hour storm uses variable maximum loss rate per  plate E-1.1 (3 of 6))

Low Loss Rate Percent (%) 90 (typically 80-90%)

Minimum value percentage on loss rate curve (Fm)(int/hr) 50 (typically 50-75%)

Retention Basin Infiltration Rate (in/hr) 4 (also used for drywell percolation rate)

Percolation is taken incrementally.

Basin volume is calculated using the "truncated pyramid" formula, a more conservative estimate than "averaged end areas" sometimes used

Basin is zeroed out by reducing variables to 0.001, Zero would crash spreadsheet.

(Drywell can be "zeroed out" by reducing numbers to less than .001, but should not entered as zeros or program chokes.)

Drywell storage includes 40% of the 1' wide rock bed surrounding the drywell: formula (upper)*PI()*(diam/2)^2+(lower)*PI()*((diam/2)^2+0.4*((diam/2+(grav+0.4166))^2-(diam/2+0.4166)^2))

The drywell wall thickness is assumed at 5" (0.4166) and the gravel bed width is variable "grav"

Drywell design factors Upper sec. (ft.)= 0.001 Lower sec. (ft.)= 0.001 Ring diam. (ft.) = 0.001 Drywell lower max. (cf)= 0.00 Upper max.(cf)= 0.00

Gravel bed width around drywell= 0.001 Drywell total(cf)= 0.00

Ret. Basin design (area, depth) Top = 4610 s.f. Bot. = 4610 s.f. Max. Depth (d)= 5.5 Max. storage= 25355.00     (d/3)*(bottom+top+(bottom*top)^0.50)

Formulas     vol=(h/3)*(bottom+top+(bottom*top)^0.50)    area=bottom+(h/d)*(top-bottom) h=(vol*3)/(bottom+top+(bottom*top)^0.5) (values must be non-zero or error occurs)

Outside input from: N/A (Max. depth excludes the freeboard.  Freeboard provided is on top of max. depth.)

1 Hour Storm in 5 minute increments Drywell Drywell Drywell Drywell Overflow Basin Basin Basin

Time Pattern Storm Loss Rate Value Effective Flow Flow Outside Retention Period Storage Storage To Retention Period Storage Storage Overflow Overflow

% Rain (in/hr)Max. Min. Rain (in/hr)Rate (cfs) Vol. (cf) Input (cf) Area (sf) Perc. (cf) Vol. (cf) Depth (ft) Basin (cf) Area (sf) Perc. (cf) Vol. (cf) Depth (ft)Vol. (cf) Rate (cfs)

0:05 3.7 0.71 0.19 N/A 0.5232 2.7590 827.71 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 827.71 4610.00 128.06 699.65 0.15 0.00 0.00

0:10 4.8 0.92 0.19 N/A 0.7344 3.8728 1161.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1161.84 4610.00 128.06 1733.44 0.38 0.00 0.00

0:15 5.1 0.98 0.19 N/A 0.7920 4.1766 1252.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1252.97 4610.00 128.06 2858.36 0.62 0.00 0.00

0:20 4.9 0.94 0.19 N/A 0.7536 3.9741 1192.22 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1192.22 4610.00 128.06 3922.52 0.85 0.00 0.00

0:25 6.6 1.27 0.19 N/A 1.0800 5.6954 1708.61 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1708.61 4610.00 128.06 5503.08 1.19 0.00 0.00

0:30 7.3 1.40 0.19 N/A 1.2144 6.4041 1921.24 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1921.24 4610.00 128.06 7296.26 1.58 0.00 0.00

0:35 8.4 1.61 0.19 N/A 1.4256 7.5179 2255.37 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2255.37 4610.00 128.06 9423.58 2.04 0.00 0.00

0:40 9 1.73 0.19 N/A 1.5408 8.1254 2437.63 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2437.63 4610.00 128.06 11733.16 2.55 0.00 0.00

0:45 12.3 2.36 0.19 N/A 2.1744 11.4668 3440.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3440.03 4610.00 128.06 15045.13 3.26 0.00 0.00

0:50 17.6 3.38 0.19 N/A 3.1920 16.8332 5049.95 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5049.95 4610.00 128.06 19967.03 4.33 0.00 0.00

0:55 16.1 3.09 0.19 N/A 2.9040 15.3144 4594.31 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4594.31 4610.00 128.06 24433.29 5.30 0.00 0.00

1:00 4.2 0.81 0.19 N/A 0.6192 3.2653 979.59 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 979.59 4610.00 128.06 25284.82 5.48 0.00 0.00

1:05 0 0.00 0.19 0.00 0.0000 0.0000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4610.00 128.06 25156.76 5.46 0.00 0.00

Total volume (cf) 26821.49 Total Overflow (cf) 0.00

Note: Vault has 90% void ratio.

Volume = 0.9 x L x W x D

Volume = (0.9
1/3

xL) x (0.9
1/3

xW) x (0.9
1/3

xD)

Model area as (0.9
1/3

xL) x (0.9
1/3

xW)

Model Depth as (0.9
1/3

xD)

Depth below freeboard = 5.7 ft

Model depth = 5.5 ft

Area of footprint = 4950 SF

Model Area = 4610 SF



2 of 6

3 Hour Storm in 5 minute increments Drywell Drywell Drywell Drywell Overflow Basin Basin Basin

Time Pattern Storm Loss Rate Value Effective Flow Flow Outside Retention Period Storage Storage To Retention Period Storage Storage Overflow Overflow

% Rain (in/hr)Max. Min. Rain (in/hr)Rate (cfs) Vol. (cf) Input (cf) Area (sf) Perc. (cf) Vol. (cf) Depth (ft) Basin (cf) Area (sf) Perc. (cf) Vol. (cf) Depth (ft)Vol. (cf) Rate (cfs)

0:05 1.3 0.31 0.19 N/A 0.1248 0.6580 197.41 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 197.41 4610.00 128.06 69.36 0.02 0.00 0.00

0:10 1.3 0.31 0.19 N/A 0.1248 0.6580 197.41 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 197.41 4610.00 128.06 138.71 0.03 0.00 0.00

0:15 1.1 0.26 0.19 N/A 0.0768 0.4049 121.47 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 121.47 4610.00 128.06 132.13 0.03 0.00 0.00

0:20 1.5 0.36 0.19 N/A 0.1728 0.9112 273.35 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 273.35 4610.00 128.06 277.42 0.06 0.00 0.00

0:25 1.5 0.36 0.19 N/A 0.1728 0.9112 273.35 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 273.35 4610.00 128.06 422.72 0.09 0.00 0.00

0:30 1.8 0.43 0.19 N/A 0.2448 1.2909 387.26 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 387.26 4610.00 128.06 681.92 0.15 0.00 0.00

0:35 1.5 0.36 0.19 N/A 0.1728 0.9112 273.35 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 273.35 4610.00 128.06 827.22 0.18 0.00 0.00

0:40 1.8 0.43 0.19 N/A 0.2448 1.2909 387.26 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 387.26 4610.00 128.06 1086.42 0.24 0.00 0.00

0:45 1.8 0.43 0.19 N/A 0.2448 1.2909 387.26 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 387.26 4610.00 128.06 1345.63 0.29 0.00 0.00

0:50 1.5 0.36 0.19 N/A 0.1728 0.9112 273.35 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 273.35 4610.00 128.06 1490.92 0.32 0.00 0.00

0:55 1.6 0.38 0.19 N/A 0.1968 1.0377 311.32 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 311.32 4610.00 128.06 1674.19 0.36 0.00 0.00

1:00 1.8 0.43 0.19 N/A 0.2448 1.2909 387.26 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 387.26 4610.00 128.06 1933.39 0.42 0.00 0.00

1:05 2.2 0.53 0.19 N/A 0.3408 1.7971 539.14 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 539.14 4610.00 128.06 2344.48 0.51 0.00 0.00

1:10 2.2 0.53 0.19 N/A 0.3408 1.7971 539.14 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 539.14 4610.00 128.06 2755.56 0.60 0.00 0.00

1:15 2.2 0.53 0.19 N/A 0.3408 1.7971 539.14 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 539.14 4610.00 128.06 3166.65 0.69 0.00 0.00

1:20 2 0.48 0.19 N/A 0.2928 1.5440 463.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 463.20 4610.00 128.06 3501.79 0.76 0.00 0.00

1:25 2.6 0.62 0.19 N/A 0.4368 2.3034 691.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 691.02 4610.00 128.06 4064.75 0.88 0.00 0.00

1:30 2.7 0.65 0.19 N/A 0.4608 2.4300 728.99 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 728.99 4610.00 128.06 4665.69 1.01 0.00 0.00

1:35 2.4 0.58 0.19 N/A 0.3888 2.0503 615.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 615.08 4610.00 128.06 5152.71 1.12 0.00 0.00

1:40 2.7 0.65 0.19 N/A 0.4608 2.4300 728.99 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 728.99 4610.00 128.06 5753.64 1.25 0.00 0.00

1:45 3.3 0.79 0.19 N/A 0.6048 3.1894 956.81 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 956.81 4610.00 128.06 6582.39 1.43 0.00 0.00

1:50 3.1 0.74 0.19 N/A 0.5568 2.9362 880.87 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 880.87 4610.00 128.06 7335.21 1.59 0.00 0.00

1:55 2.9 0.70 0.19 N/A 0.5088 2.6831 804.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 804.93 4610.00 128.06 8012.08 1.74 0.00 0.00

2:00 3 0.72 0.19 N/A 0.5328 2.8097 842.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 842.90 4610.00 128.06 8726.92 1.89 0.00 0.00

2:05 3.1 0.74 0.19 N/A 0.5568 2.9362 880.87 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 880.87 4610.00 128.06 9479.73 2.06 0.00 0.00

2:10 4.2 1.01 0.19 N/A 0.8208 4.3285 1298.54 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1298.54 4610.00 128.06 10650.21 2.31 0.00 0.00

2:15 5 1.20 0.19 N/A 1.0128 5.3410 1602.29 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1602.29 4610.00 128.06 12124.45 2.63 0.00 0.00

2:20 3.5 0.84 0.19 N/A 0.6528 3.4425 1032.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1032.75 4610.00 128.06 13029.14 2.83 0.00 0.00

2:25 6.8 1.63 0.19 N/A 1.4448 7.6192 2285.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2285.75 4610.00 128.06 15186.84 3.29 0.00 0.00

2:30 7.3 1.75 0.19 N/A 1.5648 8.2520 2475.60 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2475.60 4610.00 128.06 17534.38 3.80 0.00 0.00

2:35 8.2 1.97 0.19 N/A 1.7808 9.3911 2817.33 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2817.33 4610.00 128.06 20223.65 4.39 0.00 0.00

2:40 5.9 1.42 0.19 N/A 1.2288 6.4801 1944.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1944.02 4610.00 128.06 22039.62 4.78 0.00 0.00

2:45 2 0.48 0.19 N/A 0.2928 1.5440 463.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 463.20 4610.00 128.06 22374.76 4.85 0.00 0.00

2:50 1.8 0.43 0.19 N/A 0.2448 1.2909 387.26 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 387.26 4610.00 128.06 22633.97 4.91 0.00 0.00

2:55 1.8 0.43 0.19 N/A 0.2448 1.2909 387.26 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 387.26 4610.00 128.06 22893.17 4.97 0.00 0.00

3:00 0.6 0.14 0.19 0.13 0.0144 0.0759 22.78 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 22.78 4610.00 128.06 22787.90 4.94 0.00 0.00

3:05 0 0.00 0.19 0.00 0.0000 0.0000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4610.00 128.06 22659.84 4.92 0.00 0.00

Total volume (cf) 27397.90 Total Overflow (cf) 0.00



3 of 6

6 Hour Storm in 5 minute increments Drywell Drywell Drywell Drywell Overflow Basin Basin Basin

Time Pattern Storm Loss Rate Value Effective Flow Flow Outside Retention Period Storage Storage To Retention Period Storage Storage Overflow Overflow

% Rain (in/hr)Max. Min. Rain (in/hr)Rate (cfs) Vol. (cf) Input (cf) Area (sf) Perc. (cf) Vol. (cf) Depth (ft) Basin (cf) Area (sf) Perc. (cf) Vol. (cf) Depth (ft)Vol. (cf) Rate (cfs)

0:05 0.5 0.15 0.19 0.14 0.0150 0.0791 23.73 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 23.73 4610.00 23.73 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:10 0.6 0.18 0.19 0.16 0.0180 0.0949 28.48 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 28.48 4610.00 28.48 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:15 0.6 0.18 0.19 0.16 0.0180 0.0949 28.48 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 28.48 4610.00 28.48 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:20 0.6 0.18 0.19 0.16 0.0180 0.0949 28.48 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 28.48 4610.00 28.48 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:25 0.6 0.18 0.19 0.16 0.0180 0.0949 28.48 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 28.48 4610.00 28.48 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:30 0.7 0.21 0.19 N/A 0.0228 0.1201 36.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 36.04 4610.00 36.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:35 0.7 0.21 0.19 N/A 0.0228 0.1201 36.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 36.04 4610.00 36.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:40 0.7 0.21 0.19 N/A 0.0228 0.1201 36.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 36.04 4610.00 36.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:45 0.7 0.21 0.19 N/A 0.0228 0.1201 36.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 36.04 4610.00 36.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:50 0.7 0.21 0.19 N/A 0.0228 0.1201 36.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 36.04 4610.00 36.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:55 0.7 0.21 0.19 N/A 0.0228 0.1201 36.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 36.04 4610.00 36.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:00 0.8 0.24 0.19 N/A 0.0528 0.2783 83.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 83.50 4610.00 83.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:05 0.8 0.24 0.19 N/A 0.0528 0.2783 83.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 83.50 4610.00 83.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:10 0.8 0.24 0.19 N/A 0.0528 0.2783 83.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 83.50 4610.00 83.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:15 0.8 0.24 0.19 N/A 0.0528 0.2783 83.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 83.50 4610.00 83.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:20 0.8 0.24 0.19 N/A 0.0528 0.2783 83.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 83.50 4610.00 83.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:25 0.8 0.24 0.19 N/A 0.0528 0.2783 83.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 83.50 4610.00 83.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:30 0.8 0.24 0.19 N/A 0.0528 0.2783 83.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 83.50 4610.00 83.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:35 0.8 0.24 0.19 N/A 0.0528 0.2783 83.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 83.50 4610.00 83.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:40 0.8 0.24 0.19 N/A 0.0528 0.2783 83.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 83.50 4610.00 83.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:45 0.8 0.24 0.19 N/A 0.0528 0.2783 83.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 83.50 4610.00 83.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:50 0.8 0.24 0.19 N/A 0.0528 0.2783 83.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 83.50 4610.00 83.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:55 0.8 0.24 0.19 N/A 0.0528 0.2783 83.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 83.50 4610.00 83.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2:00 0.9 0.27 0.19 N/A 0.0828 0.4365 130.96 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 130.96 4610.00 128.06 2.91 0.00 0.00 0.00

2:05 0.8 0.24 0.19 N/A 0.0528 0.2783 83.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 83.50 4610.00 128.06 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2:10 0.9 0.27 0.19 N/A 0.0828 0.4365 130.96 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 130.96 4610.00 128.06 2.91 0.00 0.00 0.00

2:15 0.9 0.27 0.19 N/A 0.0828 0.4365 130.96 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 130.96 4610.00 128.06 5.82 0.00 0.00 0.00

2:20 0.9 0.27 0.19 N/A 0.0828 0.4365 130.96 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 130.96 4610.00 128.06 8.73 0.00 0.00 0.00

2:25 0.9 0.27 0.19 N/A 0.0828 0.4365 130.96 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 130.96 4610.00 128.06 11.63 0.00 0.00 0.00

2:30 0.9 0.27 0.19 N/A 0.0828 0.4365 130.96 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 130.96 4610.00 128.06 14.54 0.00 0.00 0.00

2:35 0.9 0.27 0.19 N/A 0.0828 0.4365 130.96 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 130.96 4610.00 128.06 17.45 0.00 0.00 0.00

2:40 0.9 0.27 0.19 N/A 0.0828 0.4365 130.96 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 130.96 4610.00 128.06 20.36 0.00 0.00 0.00

2:45 1 0.30 0.19 N/A 0.1128 0.5948 178.43 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 178.43 4610.00 128.06 70.73 0.02 0.00 0.00

2:50 1 0.30 0.19 N/A 0.1128 0.5948 178.43 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 178.43 4610.00 128.06 121.10 0.03 0.00 0.00

2:55 1 0.30 0.19 N/A 0.1128 0.5948 178.43 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 178.43 4610.00 128.06 171.47 0.04 0.00 0.00

3:00 1 0.30 0.19 N/A 0.1128 0.5948 178.43 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 178.43 4610.00 128.06 221.84 0.05 0.00 0.00

3:05 1 0.30 0.19 N/A 0.1128 0.5948 178.43 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 178.43 4610.00 128.06 272.21 0.06 0.00 0.00

3:10 1.1 0.33 0.19 N/A 0.1428 0.7530 225.89 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 225.89 4610.00 128.06 370.05 0.08 0.00 0.00

3:15 1.1 0.33 0.19 N/A 0.1428 0.7530 225.89 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 225.89 4610.00 128.06 467.88 0.10 0.00 0.00

3:20 1.1 0.33 0.19 N/A 0.1428 0.7530 225.89 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 225.89 4610.00 128.06 565.71 0.12 0.00 0.00

3:25 1.2 0.36 0.19 N/A 0.1728 0.9112 273.35 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 273.35 4610.00 128.06 711.01 0.15 0.00 0.00

3:30 1.3 0.39 0.19 N/A 0.2028 1.0694 320.81 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 320.81 4610.00 128.06 903.77 0.20 0.00 0.00

3:35 1.4 0.42 0.19 N/A 0.2328 1.2276 368.28 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 368.28 4610.00 128.06 1143.99 0.25 0.00 0.00

3:40 1.4 0.42 0.19 N/A 0.2328 1.2276 368.28 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 368.28 4610.00 128.06 1384.21 0.30 0.00 0.00

3:45 1.5 0.45 0.19 N/A 0.2628 1.3858 415.74 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 415.74 4610.00 128.06 1671.89 0.36 0.00 0.00

3:50 1.5 0.45 0.19 N/A 0.2628 1.3858 415.74 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 415.74 4610.00 128.06 1959.57 0.43 0.00 0.00

3:55 1.6 0.48 0.19 N/A 0.2928 1.5440 463.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 463.20 4610.00 128.06 2294.72 0.50 0.00 0.00

4:00 1.6 0.48 0.19 N/A 0.2928 1.5440 463.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 463.20 4610.00 128.06 2629.86 0.57 0.00 0.00



4 of 6

4:05 1.7 0.51 0.19 N/A 0.3228 1.7022 510.66 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 510.66 4610.00 128.06 3012.47 0.65 0.00 0.00

4:10 1.8 0.54 0.19 N/A 0.3528 1.8604 558.12 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 558.12 4610.00 128.06 3442.54 0.75 0.00 0.00

4:15 1.9 0.57 0.19 N/A 0.3828 2.0186 605.59 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 605.59 4610.00 128.06 3920.07 0.85 0.00 0.00

4:20 2 0.60 0.19 N/A 0.4128 2.1768 653.05 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 653.05 4610.00 128.06 4445.06 0.96 0.00 0.00

4:25 2.1 0.63 0.19 N/A 0.4428 2.3350 700.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 700.51 4610.00 128.06 5017.52 1.09 0.00 0.00

4:30 2.1 0.63 0.19 N/A 0.4428 2.3350 700.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 700.51 4610.00 128.06 5589.97 1.21 0.00 0.00

4:35 2.2 0.66 0.19 N/A 0.4728 2.4932 747.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 747.97 4610.00 128.06 6209.89 1.35 0.00 0.00

4:40 2.3 0.69 0.19 N/A 0.5028 2.6515 795.44 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 795.44 4610.00 128.06 6877.27 1.49 0.00 0.00

4:45 2.4 0.72 0.19 N/A 0.5328 2.8097 842.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 842.90 4610.00 128.06 7592.11 1.65 0.00 0.00

4:50 2.4 0.72 0.19 N/A 0.5328 2.8097 842.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 842.90 4610.00 128.06 8306.95 1.80 0.00 0.00

4:55 2.5 0.75 0.19 N/A 0.5628 2.9679 890.36 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 890.36 4610.00 128.06 9069.26 1.97 0.00 0.00

5:00 2.6 0.78 0.19 N/A 0.5928 3.1261 937.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 937.82 4610.00 128.06 9879.02 2.14 0.00 0.00

5:05 3.1 0.93 0.19 N/A 0.7428 3.9171 1175.13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1175.13 4610.00 128.06 10926.10 2.37 0.00 0.00

5:10 3.6 1.08 0.19 N/A 0.8928 4.7081 1412.44 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1412.44 4610.00 128.06 12210.49 2.65 0.00 0.00

5:15 3.9 1.17 0.19 N/A 0.9828 5.1828 1554.83 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1554.83 4610.00 128.06 13637.27 2.96 0.00 0.00

5:20 4.2 1.26 0.19 N/A 1.0728 5.6574 1697.22 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1697.22 4610.00 128.06 15206.43 3.30 0.00 0.00

5:25 4.7 1.41 0.19 N/A 1.2228 6.4484 1934.53 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1934.53 4610.00 128.06 17012.91 3.69 0.00 0.00

5:30 5.6 1.68 0.19 N/A 1.4928 7.8723 2361.69 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2361.69 4610.00 128.06 19246.54 4.17 0.00 0.00

5:35 1.9 0.57 0.19 N/A 0.3828 2.0186 605.59 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 605.59 4610.00 128.06 19724.07 4.28 0.00 0.00

5:40 0.9 0.27 0.19 N/A 0.0828 0.4365 130.96 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 130.96 4610.00 128.06 19726.98 4.28 0.00 0.00

5:45 0.6 0.18 0.19 0.16 0.0180 0.0949 28.48 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 28.48 4610.00 128.06 19627.40 4.26 0.00 0.00

5:50 0.5 0.15 0.19 0.14 0.0150 0.0791 23.73 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 23.73 4610.00 128.06 19523.08 4.23 0.00 0.00

5:55 0.3 0.09 0.19 0.08 0.0090 0.0475 14.24 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 14.24 4610.00 128.06 19409.26 4.21 0.00 0.00

6:00 0.2 0.06 0.19 0.05 0.0060 0.0316 9.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 9.49 4610.00 128.06 19290.70 4.18 0.00 0.00

6:05 0 0.00 0.19 0.00 0.0000 0.0000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4610.00 128.06 19162.64 4.16 0.00 0.00

Total volume (cf) 26879.68 Total Overflow (cf) 0.00



5 of 6

24 Hour Storm in 15 minute increments Drywell Drywell Drywell Drywell Overflow Basin Basin Basin

Time Pattern Storm Loss Rate Value Effective Flow Flow Outside Retention Period Storage Storage To Retention Period Storage Storage Overflow Overflow

% Rain (in/hr)Max. Min. Rain (in/hr)Rate (cfs) Vol. (cf) Input (cf) Area (sf) Perc. (cf) Vol. (cf) Depth (ft) Basin (cf) Area (sf) Perc. (cf) Vol. (cf) Depth (ft)Vol. (cf) Rate (cfs)

0:15 0.2 0.03 0.33 0.03 0.0028 0.0148 13.29 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.29 4610.00 13.29 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:30 0.3 0.04 0.32 0.04 0.0042 0.0221 19.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 19.93 4610.00 19.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:45 0.3 0.04 0.32 0.04 0.0042 0.0221 19.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 19.93 4610.00 19.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:00 0.4 0.06 0.32 0.05 0.0056 0.0295 26.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 26.58 4610.00 26.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:15 0.3 0.04 0.31 0.04 0.0042 0.0221 19.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 19.93 4610.00 19.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:30 0.3 0.04 0.31 0.04 0.0042 0.0221 19.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 19.93 4610.00 19.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:45 0.3 0.04 0.31 0.04 0.0042 0.0221 19.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 19.93 4610.00 19.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2:00 0.4 0.06 0.30 0.05 0.0056 0.0295 26.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 26.58 4610.00 26.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2:15 0.4 0.06 0.30 0.05 0.0056 0.0295 26.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 26.58 4610.00 26.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2:30 0.4 0.06 0.30 0.05 0.0056 0.0295 26.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 26.58 4610.00 26.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2:45 0.5 0.07 0.29 0.06 0.0070 0.0369 33.22 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 33.22 4610.00 33.22 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3:00 0.5 0.07 0.29 0.06 0.0070 0.0369 33.22 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 33.22 4610.00 33.22 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3:15 0.5 0.07 0.28 0.06 0.0070 0.0369 33.22 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 33.22 4610.00 33.22 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3:30 0.5 0.07 0.28 0.06 0.0070 0.0369 33.22 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 33.22 4610.00 33.22 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3:45 0.5 0.07 0.28 0.06 0.0070 0.0369 33.22 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 33.22 4610.00 33.22 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4:00 0.6 0.08 0.27 0.08 0.0084 0.0443 39.87 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 39.87 4610.00 39.87 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4:15 0.6 0.08 0.27 0.08 0.0084 0.0443 39.87 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 39.87 4610.00 39.87 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4:30 0.7 0.10 0.27 0.09 0.0098 0.0517 46.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 46.51 4610.00 46.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4:45 0.7 0.10 0.26 0.09 0.0098 0.0517 46.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 46.51 4610.00 46.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

5:00 0.8 0.11 0.26 0.10 0.0112 0.0591 53.16 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 53.16 4610.00 53.16 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

5:15 0.6 0.08 0.26 0.08 0.0084 0.0443 39.87 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 39.87 4610.00 39.87 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

5:30 0.7 0.10 0.25 0.09 0.0098 0.0517 46.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 46.51 4610.00 46.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

5:45 0.8 0.11 0.25 0.10 0.0112 0.0591 53.16 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 53.16 4610.00 53.16 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

6:00 0.8 0.11 0.25 0.10 0.0112 0.0591 53.16 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 53.16 4610.00 53.16 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

6:15 0.9 0.13 0.24 0.11 0.0126 0.0664 59.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 59.80 4610.00 59.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

6:30 0.9 0.13 0.24 0.11 0.0126 0.0664 59.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 59.80 4610.00 59.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

6:45 1 0.14 0.24 0.13 0.0140 0.0738 66.45 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 66.45 4610.00 66.45 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7:00 1 0.14 0.23 0.13 0.0140 0.0738 66.45 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 66.45 4610.00 66.45 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7:15 1 0.14 0.23 0.13 0.0140 0.0738 66.45 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 66.45 4610.00 66.45 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7:30 1.1 0.15 0.23 0.14 0.0154 0.0812 73.09 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 73.09 4610.00 73.09 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7:45 1.2 0.17 0.22 0.15 0.0168 0.0886 79.74 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 79.74 4610.00 79.74 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

8:00 1.3 0.18 0.22 0.16 0.0182 0.0960 86.38 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 86.38 4610.00 86.38 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

8:15 1.5 0.21 0.22 0.19 0.0210 0.1107 99.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 99.67 4610.00 99.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

8:30 1.5 0.21 0.21 0.19 0.0210 0.1107 99.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 99.67 4610.00 99.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

8:45 1.6 0.22 0.21 N/A 0.0121 0.0637 57.37 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 57.37 4610.00 57.37 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

9:00 1.7 0.24 0.21 N/A 0.0291 0.1534 138.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 138.02 4610.00 138.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

9:15 1.9 0.27 0.21 N/A 0.0600 0.3166 284.98 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 284.98 4610.00 284.98 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

9:30 2 0.28 0.20 N/A 0.0770 0.4060 365.37 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 365.37 4610.00 365.37 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

9:45 2.1 0.29 0.20 N/A 0.0939 0.4951 445.63 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 445.63 4610.00 384.17 61.47 0.01 0.00 0.00

10:00 2.2 0.31 0.20 N/A 0.1108 0.5842 525.76 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 525.76 4610.00 384.17 203.06 0.04 0.00 0.00

10:15 1.5 0.21 0.19 N/A 0.0156 0.0824 74.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 74.17 4610.00 384.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

10:30 1.5 0.21 0.19 N/A 0.0185 0.0973 87.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 87.58 4610.00 87.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

10:45 2 0.28 0.19 N/A 0.0913 0.4812 433.09 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 433.09 4610.00 384.17 48.93 0.01 0.00 0.00

11:00 2 0.28 0.19 N/A 0.0940 0.4958 446.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 446.23 4610.00 384.17 110.99 0.02 0.00 0.00

11:15 1.9 0.27 0.18 N/A 0.0828 0.4364 392.78 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 392.78 4610.00 384.17 119.61 0.03 0.00 0.00

11:30 1.9 0.27 0.18 N/A 0.0855 0.4507 405.64 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 405.64 4610.00 384.17 141.08 0.03 0.00 0.00

11:45 1.7 0.24 0.18 N/A 0.0601 0.3172 285.47 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 285.47 4610.00 384.17 42.38 0.01 0.00 0.00

12:00 1.8 0.25 0.18 N/A 0.0768 0.4050 364.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 364.49 4610.00 384.17 22.70 0.00 0.00 0.00



6 of 6

12:15 2.5 0.35 0.17 N/A 0.1774 0.9356 842.05 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 842.05 4610.00 384.17 480.59 0.10 0.00 0.00

12:30 2.6 0.36 0.17 N/A 0.1940 1.0231 920.79 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 920.79 4610.00 384.17 1017.21 0.22 0.00 0.00

12:45 2.8 0.39 0.17 N/A 0.2246 1.1843 1065.83 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1065.83 4610.00 384.17 1698.87 0.37 0.00 0.00

13:00 2.9 0.41 0.16 N/A 0.2411 1.2714 1144.27 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1144.27 4610.00 384.17 2458.98 0.53 0.00 0.00

13:15 3.4 0.48 0.16 N/A 0.3136 1.6537 1488.35 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1488.35 4610.00 384.17 3563.16 0.77 0.00 0.00

13:30 3.4 0.48 0.16 N/A 0.3161 1.6667 1500.05 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1500.05 4610.00 384.17 4679.04 1.01 0.00 0.00

13:45 2.3 0.32 0.16 N/A 0.1645 0.8674 780.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 780.67 4610.00 384.17 5075.55 1.10 0.00 0.00

14:00 2.3 0.32 0.16 N/A 0.1669 0.8801 792.06 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 792.06 4610.00 384.17 5483.44 1.19 0.00 0.00

14:15 2.7 0.38 0.15 N/A 0.2252 1.1879 1069.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1069.08 4610.00 384.17 6168.36 1.34 0.00 0.00

14:30 2.6 0.36 0.15 N/A 0.2136 1.1263 1013.71 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1013.71 4610.00 384.17 6797.91 1.47 0.00 0.00

14:45 2.6 0.36 0.15 N/A 0.2159 1.1385 1024.63 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1024.63 4610.00 384.17 7438.37 1.61 0.00 0.00

15:00 2.5 0.35 0.15 N/A 0.2041 1.0766 968.94 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 968.94 4610.00 384.17 8023.15 1.74 0.00 0.00

15:15 2.4 0.34 0.14 N/A 0.1924 1.0145 913.09 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 913.09 4610.00 384.17 8552.07 1.86 0.00 0.00

15:30 2.3 0.32 0.14 N/A 0.1806 0.9523 857.07 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 857.07 4610.00 384.17 9024.97 1.96 0.00 0.00

15:45 1.9 0.27 0.14 N/A 0.1267 0.6684 601.54 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 601.54 4610.00 384.17 9242.34 2.00 0.00 0.00

16:00 1.9 0.27 0.14 N/A 0.1289 0.6796 611.63 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 611.63 4610.00 384.17 9469.81 2.05 0.00 0.00

16:15 0.4 0.06 0.14 0.05 0.0056 0.0295 26.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 26.58 4610.00 384.17 9112.22 1.98 0.00 0.00

16:30 0.4 0.06 0.13 0.05 0.0056 0.0295 26.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 26.58 4610.00 384.17 8754.63 1.90 0.00 0.00

16:45 0.3 0.04 0.13 0.04 0.0042 0.0221 19.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 19.93 4610.00 384.17 8390.40 1.82 0.00 0.00

17:00 0.3 0.04 0.13 0.04 0.0042 0.0221 19.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 19.93 4610.00 384.17 8026.17 1.74 0.00 0.00

17:15 0.5 0.07 0.13 0.06 0.0070 0.0369 33.22 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 33.22 4610.00 384.17 7675.22 1.66 0.00 0.00

17:30 0.5 0.07 0.13 0.06 0.0070 0.0369 33.22 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 33.22 4610.00 384.17 7324.28 1.59 0.00 0.00

17:45 0.5 0.07 0.12 0.06 0.0070 0.0369 33.22 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 33.22 4610.00 384.17 6973.34 1.51 0.00 0.00

18:00 0.4 0.06 0.12 0.05 0.0056 0.0295 26.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 26.58 4610.00 384.17 6615.75 1.44 0.00 0.00

18:15 0.4 0.06 0.12 0.05 0.0056 0.0295 26.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 26.58 4610.00 384.17 6258.16 1.36 0.00 0.00

18:30 0.4 0.06 0.12 0.05 0.0056 0.0295 26.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 26.58 4610.00 384.17 5900.57 1.28 0.00 0.00

18:45 0.3 0.04 0.12 0.04 0.0042 0.0221 19.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 19.93 4610.00 384.17 5536.34 1.20 0.00 0.00

19:00 0.2 0.03 0.11 0.03 0.0028 0.0148 13.29 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.29 4610.00 384.17 5165.46 1.12 0.00 0.00

19:15 0.3 0.04 0.11 0.04 0.0042 0.0221 19.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 19.93 4610.00 384.17 4801.23 1.04 0.00 0.00

19:30 0.4 0.06 0.11 0.05 0.0056 0.0295 26.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 26.58 4610.00 384.17 4443.64 0.96 0.00 0.00

19:45 0.3 0.04 0.11 0.04 0.0042 0.0221 19.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 19.93 4610.00 384.17 4079.41 0.88 0.00 0.00

20:00 0.2 0.03 0.11 0.03 0.0028 0.0148 13.29 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.29 4610.00 384.17 3708.53 0.80 0.00 0.00

20:15 0.3 0.04 0.11 0.04 0.0042 0.0221 19.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 19.93 4610.00 384.17 3344.30 0.73 0.00 0.00

20:30 0.3 0.04 0.11 0.04 0.0042 0.0221 19.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 19.93 4610.00 384.17 2980.07 0.65 0.00 0.00

20:45 0.3 0.04 0.10 0.04 0.0042 0.0221 19.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 19.93 4610.00 384.17 2615.84 0.57 0.00 0.00

21:00 0.2 0.03 0.10 0.03 0.0028 0.0148 13.29 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.29 4610.00 384.17 2244.96 0.49 0.00 0.00

21:15 0.3 0.04 0.10 0.04 0.0042 0.0221 19.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 19.93 4610.00 384.17 1880.73 0.41 0.00 0.00

21:30 0.2 0.03 0.10 0.03 0.0028 0.0148 13.29 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.29 4610.00 384.17 1509.85 0.33 0.00 0.00

21:45 0.3 0.04 0.10 0.04 0.0042 0.0221 19.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 19.93 4610.00 384.17 1145.62 0.25 0.00 0.00

22:00 0.2 0.03 0.10 0.03 0.0028 0.0148 13.29 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.29 4610.00 384.17 774.74 0.17 0.00 0.00

22:15 0.3 0.04 0.10 0.04 0.0042 0.0221 19.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 19.93 4610.00 384.17 410.51 0.09 0.00 0.00

22:30 0.2 0.03 0.10 0.03 0.0028 0.0148 13.29 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.29 4610.00 384.17 39.63 0.01 0.00 0.00

22:45 0.2 0.03 0.10 0.03 0.0028 0.0148 13.29 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.29 4610.00 384.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

23:00 0.2 0.03 0.10 0.03 0.0028 0.0148 13.29 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.29 4610.00 13.29 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

23:15 0.2 0.03 0.09 0.03 0.0028 0.0148 13.29 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.29 4610.00 13.29 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

23:30 0.2 0.03 0.09 0.03 0.0028 0.0148 13.29 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.29 4610.00 13.29 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

23:45 0.2 0.03 0.09 0.03 0.0028 0.0148 13.29 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.29 4610.00 13.29 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

24:00 0.2 0.03 0.09 0.03 0.0028 0.0148 13.29 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.29 4610.00 13.29 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

01:00:15 0 0.00 0.09 0.00 0.0000 0.0000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total volume (cf) 22099.76 Total Overflow (cf) 0.00



1 of 6

HYDROLOGY CALCULATIONS - Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments - BMP 2 Program Updated 04/05/2024 by LZ

Using the RCFC&WCD Short Cut Unit Hydrograph Method 

Area Designations BMP 2 - Area P4

Area 1

Drainage Area (ac.) 15.5400

Unit time (minutes) 5 5 5 15

100 Year Storm Duration (hrs) 1 3 6 24

Total Precipitation (Plates D-4.4,E-5.2, 5.4, 5.6)(in.) 1.6 2.00 2.50 3.50 Or data from NOAA interactive website

Soils Group A

AMC index II Runoff Number (plate E-6.1) 32

Plate E-6.2 Pervious Area Loss Rate (Fp)(in/hr) 0.74 (AMC II)

Percentage of Impervious Cover (Ai)(%) (plate E-6.3) 0

Weighted Average Loss Rate (F=Fp(1-.9Ai))(in./hr.) 0.74 (used for 1, 3, and 6 hour storm, the 24 hour storm uses variable maximum loss rate per  plate E-1.1 (3 of 6))

Low Loss Rate Percent (%) 90 (typically 80-90%)

Minimum value percentage on loss rate curve (Fm)(int/hr) 50 (typically 50-75%)

Retention Basin Infiltration Rate (in/hr) 4 (also used for drywell percolation rate)

Percolation is taken incrementally.

Basin volume is calculated using the "truncated pyramid" formula, a more conservative estimate than "averaged end areas" sometimes used

Basin is zeroed out by reducing variables to 0.001, Zero would crash spreadsheet.

(Drywell can be "zeroed out" by reducing numbers to less than .001, but should not entered as zeros or program chokes.)

Drywell storage includes 40% of the 1' wide rock bed surrounding the drywell: formula (upper)*PI()*(diam/2)^2+(lower)*PI()*((diam/2)^2+0.4*((diam/2+(grav+0.4166))^2-(diam/2+0.4166)^2))

The drywell wall thickness is assumed at 5" (0.4166) and the gravel bed width is variable "grav"

Drywell design factors Upper sec. (ft.)= 0.001 Lower sec. (ft.)= 0.001 Ring diam. (ft.) = 0.001 Drywell lower max. (cf)= 0.00 Upper max.(cf)= 0.00

Gravel bed width around drywell= 0.001 Drywell total(cf)= 0.00

Ret. Basin design (area, depth) Top = 40000 s.f. Bot. = 37000 s.f. Max. Depth (d)= 1 Max. storage= 38490.26     (d/3)*(bottom+top+(bottom*top)^0.50)

Formulas     vol=(h/3)*(bottom+top+(bottom*top)^0.50)    area=bottom+(h/d)*(top-bottom) h=(vol*3)/(bottom+top+(bottom*top)^0.5) (values must be non-zero or error occurs)

Outside input from: N/A (Max. depth excludes the freeboard.  Freeboard provided is on top of max. depth.)

1 Hour Storm in 5 minute increments Drywell Drywell Drywell Drywell Overflow Basin Basin Basin

Time Pattern Storm Loss Rate Value Effective Flow Flow Outside Retention Period Storage Storage To Retention Period Storage Storage Overflow Overflow

% Rain (in/hr)Max. Min. Rain (in/hr)Rate (cfs) Vol. (cf) Input (cf) Area (sf) Perc. (cf) Vol. (cf) Depth (ft) Basin (cf) Area (sf) Perc. (cf) Vol. (cf) Depth (ft)Vol. (cf) Rate (cfs)

0:05 3.7 0.71 0.74 0.64 0.0710 1.1132 333.95 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 333.95 37000.00 333.95 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:10 4.8 0.92 0.74 N/A 0.1816 2.8456 853.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 853.67 37000.00 853.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:15 5.1 0.98 0.74 N/A 0.2392 3.7481 1124.44 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1124.44 37000.00 1027.78 96.67 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:20 4.9 0.94 0.74 N/A 0.2008 3.1464 943.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 943.93 37007.53 1027.99 12.61 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:25 6.6 1.27 0.74 N/A 0.5272 8.2610 2478.29 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2478.29 37000.98 1027.81 1463.09 0.04 0.00 0.00

0:30 7.3 1.40 0.74 N/A 0.6616 10.3669 3110.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3110.08 37114.04 1030.95 3542.23 0.09 0.00 0.00

0:35 8.4 1.61 0.74 N/A 0.8728 13.6763 4102.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4102.90 37276.09 1035.45 6609.68 0.17 0.00 0.00

0:40 9 1.73 0.74 N/A 0.9880 15.4815 4644.44 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4644.44 37515.17 1042.09 10212.04 0.27 0.00 0.00

0:45 12.3 2.36 0.74 N/A 1.6216 25.4097 7622.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7622.90 37795.94 1049.89 16785.05 0.44 0.00 0.00

0:50 17.6 3.38 0.74 N/A 2.6392 41.3549 12406.48 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12406.48 38308.26 1064.12 28127.41 0.73 0.00 0.00

0:55 16.1 3.09 0.74 N/A 2.3512 36.8421 11052.64 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11052.64 39192.30 1088.68 38091.38 0.99 0.00 0.00

1:00 4.2 0.81 0.74 N/A 0.0664 1.0405 312.14 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 312.14 39968.91 1110.25 37293.26 0.97 0.00 0.00

1:05 0 0.00 0.74 0.00 0.0000 0.0000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 39906.70 1108.52 36184.74 0.94 0.00 0.00

Total volume (cf) 48985.87 Total Overflow (cf) 0.00



2 of 6

3 Hour Storm in 5 minute increments Drywell Drywell Drywell Drywell Overflow Basin Basin Basin

Time Pattern Storm Loss Rate Value Effective Flow Flow Outside Retention Period Storage Storage To Retention Period Storage Storage Overflow Overflow

% Rain (in/hr)Max. Min. Rain (in/hr)Rate (cfs) Vol. (cf) Input (cf) Area (sf) Perc. (cf) Vol. (cf) Depth (ft) Basin (cf) Area (sf) Perc. (cf) Vol. (cf) Depth (ft)Vol. (cf) Rate (cfs)

0:05 1.3 0.31 0.74 0.28 0.0312 0.4889 146.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 146.67 37000.00 146.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:10 1.3 0.31 0.74 0.28 0.0312 0.4889 146.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 146.67 37000.00 146.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:15 1.1 0.26 0.74 0.24 0.0264 0.4137 124.10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 124.10 37000.00 124.10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:20 1.5 0.36 0.74 0.32 0.0360 0.5641 169.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 169.23 37000.00 169.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:25 1.5 0.36 0.74 0.32 0.0360 0.5641 169.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 169.23 37000.00 169.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:30 1.8 0.43 0.74 0.39 0.0432 0.6769 203.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 203.08 37000.00 203.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:35 1.5 0.36 0.74 0.32 0.0360 0.5641 169.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 169.23 37000.00 169.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:40 1.8 0.43 0.74 0.39 0.0432 0.6769 203.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 203.08 37000.00 203.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:45 1.8 0.43 0.74 0.39 0.0432 0.6769 203.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 203.08 37000.00 203.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:50 1.5 0.36 0.74 0.32 0.0360 0.5641 169.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 169.23 37000.00 169.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:55 1.6 0.38 0.74 0.35 0.0384 0.6017 180.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 180.51 37000.00 180.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:00 1.8 0.43 0.74 0.39 0.0432 0.6769 203.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 203.08 37000.00 203.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:05 2.2 0.53 0.74 0.48 0.0528 0.8273 248.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 248.20 37000.00 248.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:10 2.2 0.53 0.74 0.48 0.0528 0.8273 248.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 248.20 37000.00 248.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:15 2.2 0.53 0.74 0.48 0.0528 0.8273 248.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 248.20 37000.00 248.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:20 2 0.48 0.74 0.43 0.0480 0.7521 225.64 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 225.64 37000.00 225.64 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:25 2.6 0.62 0.74 0.56 0.0624 0.9778 293.33 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 293.33 37000.00 293.33 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:30 2.7 0.65 0.74 0.58 0.0648 1.0154 304.62 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 304.62 37000.00 304.62 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:35 2.4 0.58 0.74 0.52 0.0576 0.9026 270.77 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 270.77 37000.00 270.77 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:40 2.7 0.65 0.74 0.58 0.0648 1.0154 304.62 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 304.62 37000.00 304.62 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:45 3.3 0.79 0.74 N/A 0.0520 0.8148 244.44 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 244.44 37000.00 244.44 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:50 3.1 0.74 0.74 N/A 0.0040 0.0627 18.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 18.80 37000.00 18.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:55 2.9 0.70 0.74 0.63 0.0696 1.0906 327.18 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 327.18 37000.00 327.18 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2:00 3 0.72 0.74 0.65 0.0720 1.1282 338.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 338.46 37000.00 338.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2:05 3.1 0.74 0.74 N/A 0.0040 0.0627 18.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 18.80 37000.00 18.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2:10 4.2 1.01 0.74 N/A 0.2680 4.1994 1259.83 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1259.83 37000.00 1027.78 232.05 0.01 0.00 0.00

2:15 5 1.20 0.74 N/A 0.4600 7.2080 2162.39 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2162.39 37018.09 1028.28 1366.16 0.04 0.00 0.00

2:20 3.5 0.84 0.74 N/A 0.1000 1.5670 470.09 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 470.09 37106.48 1030.74 805.51 0.02 0.00 0.00

2:25 6.8 1.63 0.74 N/A 0.8920 13.9772 4193.16 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4193.16 37062.78 1029.52 3969.15 0.10 0.00 0.00

2:30 7.3 1.75 0.74 N/A 1.0120 15.8575 4757.26 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4757.26 37309.36 1036.37 7690.04 0.20 0.00 0.00

2:35 8.2 1.97 0.74 N/A 1.2280 19.2421 5772.64 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5772.64 37599.38 1044.43 12418.25 0.32 0.00 0.00

2:40 5.9 1.42 0.74 N/A 0.6760 10.5926 3177.77 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3177.77 37967.90 1054.66 14541.36 0.38 0.00 0.00

2:45 2 0.48 0.74 0.43 0.0480 0.7521 225.64 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 225.64 38133.38 1059.26 13707.74 0.36 0.00 0.00

2:50 1.8 0.43 0.74 0.39 0.0432 0.6769 203.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 203.08 38068.41 1057.46 12853.36 0.33 0.00 0.00

2:55 1.8 0.43 0.74 0.39 0.0432 0.6769 203.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 203.08 38001.81 1055.61 12000.84 0.31 0.00 0.00

3:00 0.6 0.14 0.74 0.13 0.0144 0.2256 67.69 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 67.69 37935.37 1053.76 11014.77 0.29 0.00 0.00

3:05 0 0.00 0.74 0.00 0.0000 0.0000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 37858.51 1051.63 9963.14 0.26 0.00 0.00

Total volume (cf) 27671.08 Total Overflow (cf) 0.00



3 of 6

6 Hour Storm in 5 minute increments Drywell Drywell Drywell Drywell Overflow Basin Basin Basin

Time Pattern Storm Loss Rate Value Effective Flow Flow Outside Retention Period Storage Storage To Retention Period Storage Storage Overflow Overflow

% Rain (in/hr)Max. Min. Rain (in/hr)Rate (cfs) Vol. (cf) Input (cf) Area (sf) Perc. (cf) Vol. (cf) Depth (ft) Basin (cf) Area (sf) Perc. (cf) Vol. (cf) Depth (ft)Vol. (cf) Rate (cfs)

0:05 0.5 0.15 0.74 0.14 0.0150 0.2350 70.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 70.51 37000.00 70.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:10 0.6 0.18 0.74 0.16 0.0180 0.2821 84.62 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 84.62 37000.00 84.62 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:15 0.6 0.18 0.74 0.16 0.0180 0.2821 84.62 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 84.62 37000.00 84.62 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:20 0.6 0.18 0.74 0.16 0.0180 0.2821 84.62 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 84.62 37000.00 84.62 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:25 0.6 0.18 0.74 0.16 0.0180 0.2821 84.62 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 84.62 37000.00 84.62 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:30 0.7 0.21 0.74 0.19 0.0210 0.3291 98.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 98.72 37000.00 98.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:35 0.7 0.21 0.74 0.19 0.0210 0.3291 98.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 98.72 37000.00 98.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:40 0.7 0.21 0.74 0.19 0.0210 0.3291 98.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 98.72 37000.00 98.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:45 0.7 0.21 0.74 0.19 0.0210 0.3291 98.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 98.72 37000.00 98.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:50 0.7 0.21 0.74 0.19 0.0210 0.3291 98.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 98.72 37000.00 98.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:55 0.7 0.21 0.74 0.19 0.0210 0.3291 98.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 98.72 37000.00 98.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:00 0.8 0.24 0.74 0.22 0.0240 0.3761 112.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 112.82 37000.00 112.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:05 0.8 0.24 0.74 0.22 0.0240 0.3761 112.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 112.82 37000.00 112.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:10 0.8 0.24 0.74 0.22 0.0240 0.3761 112.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 112.82 37000.00 112.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:15 0.8 0.24 0.74 0.22 0.0240 0.3761 112.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 112.82 37000.00 112.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:20 0.8 0.24 0.74 0.22 0.0240 0.3761 112.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 112.82 37000.00 112.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:25 0.8 0.24 0.74 0.22 0.0240 0.3761 112.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 112.82 37000.00 112.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:30 0.8 0.24 0.74 0.22 0.0240 0.3761 112.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 112.82 37000.00 112.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:35 0.8 0.24 0.74 0.22 0.0240 0.3761 112.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 112.82 37000.00 112.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:40 0.8 0.24 0.74 0.22 0.0240 0.3761 112.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 112.82 37000.00 112.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:45 0.8 0.24 0.74 0.22 0.0240 0.3761 112.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 112.82 37000.00 112.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:50 0.8 0.24 0.74 0.22 0.0240 0.3761 112.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 112.82 37000.00 112.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:55 0.8 0.24 0.74 0.22 0.0240 0.3761 112.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 112.82 37000.00 112.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2:00 0.9 0.27 0.74 0.24 0.0270 0.4231 126.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 126.92 37000.00 126.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2:05 0.8 0.24 0.74 0.22 0.0240 0.3761 112.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 112.82 37000.00 112.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2:10 0.9 0.27 0.74 0.24 0.0270 0.4231 126.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 126.92 37000.00 126.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2:15 0.9 0.27 0.74 0.24 0.0270 0.4231 126.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 126.92 37000.00 126.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2:20 0.9 0.27 0.74 0.24 0.0270 0.4231 126.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 126.92 37000.00 126.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2:25 0.9 0.27 0.74 0.24 0.0270 0.4231 126.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 126.92 37000.00 126.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2:30 0.9 0.27 0.74 0.24 0.0270 0.4231 126.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 126.92 37000.00 126.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2:35 0.9 0.27 0.74 0.24 0.0270 0.4231 126.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 126.92 37000.00 126.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2:40 0.9 0.27 0.74 0.24 0.0270 0.4231 126.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 126.92 37000.00 126.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2:45 1 0.30 0.74 0.27 0.0300 0.4701 141.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 141.03 37000.00 141.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2:50 1 0.30 0.74 0.27 0.0300 0.4701 141.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 141.03 37000.00 141.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2:55 1 0.30 0.74 0.27 0.0300 0.4701 141.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 141.03 37000.00 141.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3:00 1 0.30 0.74 0.27 0.0300 0.4701 141.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 141.03 37000.00 141.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3:05 1 0.30 0.74 0.27 0.0300 0.4701 141.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 141.03 37000.00 141.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3:10 1.1 0.33 0.74 0.30 0.0330 0.5171 155.13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 155.13 37000.00 155.13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3:15 1.1 0.33 0.74 0.30 0.0330 0.5171 155.13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 155.13 37000.00 155.13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3:20 1.1 0.33 0.74 0.30 0.0330 0.5171 155.13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 155.13 37000.00 155.13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3:25 1.2 0.36 0.74 0.32 0.0360 0.5641 169.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 169.23 37000.00 169.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3:30 1.3 0.39 0.74 0.35 0.0390 0.6111 183.33 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 183.33 37000.00 183.33 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3:35 1.4 0.42 0.74 0.38 0.0420 0.6581 197.44 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 197.44 37000.00 197.44 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3:40 1.4 0.42 0.74 0.38 0.0420 0.6581 197.44 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 197.44 37000.00 197.44 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3:45 1.5 0.45 0.74 0.41 0.0450 0.7051 211.54 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 211.54 37000.00 211.54 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3:50 1.5 0.45 0.74 0.41 0.0450 0.7051 211.54 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 211.54 37000.00 211.54 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3:55 1.6 0.48 0.74 0.43 0.0480 0.7521 225.64 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 225.64 37000.00 225.64 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4:00 1.6 0.48 0.74 0.43 0.0480 0.7521 225.64 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 225.64 37000.00 225.64 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



4 of 6

4:05 1.7 0.51 0.74 0.46 0.0510 0.7991 239.74 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 239.74 37000.00 239.74 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4:10 1.8 0.54 0.74 0.49 0.0540 0.8462 253.85 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 253.85 37000.00 253.85 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4:15 1.9 0.57 0.74 0.51 0.0570 0.8932 267.95 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 267.95 37000.00 267.95 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4:20 2 0.60 0.74 0.54 0.0600 0.9402 282.05 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 282.05 37000.00 282.05 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4:25 2.1 0.63 0.74 0.57 0.0630 0.9872 296.15 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 296.15 37000.00 296.15 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4:30 2.1 0.63 0.74 0.57 0.0630 0.9872 296.15 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 296.15 37000.00 296.15 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4:35 2.2 0.66 0.74 0.59 0.0660 1.0342 310.26 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 310.26 37000.00 310.26 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4:40 2.3 0.69 0.74 0.62 0.0690 1.0812 324.36 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 324.36 37000.00 324.36 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4:45 2.4 0.72 0.74 0.65 0.0720 1.1282 338.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 338.46 37000.00 338.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4:50 2.4 0.72 0.74 0.65 0.0720 1.1282 338.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 338.46 37000.00 338.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4:55 2.5 0.75 0.74 N/A 0.0100 0.1567 47.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 47.01 37000.00 47.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

5:00 2.6 0.78 0.74 N/A 0.0400 0.6268 188.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 188.03 37000.00 188.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

5:05 3.1 0.93 0.74 N/A 0.1900 2.9772 893.16 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 893.16 37000.00 893.16 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

5:10 3.6 1.08 0.74 N/A 0.3400 5.3276 1598.29 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1598.29 37000.00 1027.78 570.51 0.01 0.00 0.00

5:15 3.9 1.17 0.74 N/A 0.4300 6.7379 2021.37 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2021.37 37044.47 1029.01 1562.86 0.04 0.00 0.00

5:20 4.2 1.26 0.74 N/A 0.5200 8.1481 2444.44 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2444.44 37121.81 1031.16 2976.14 0.08 0.00 0.00

5:25 4.7 1.41 0.74 N/A 0.6700 10.4986 3149.57 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3149.57 37231.97 1034.22 5091.49 0.13 0.00 0.00

5:30 5.6 1.68 0.74 N/A 0.9400 14.7293 4418.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4418.80 37396.84 1038.80 8471.49 0.22 0.00 0.00

5:35 1.9 0.57 0.74 0.51 0.0570 0.8932 267.95 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 267.95 37660.28 1046.12 7693.32 0.20 0.00 0.00

5:40 0.9 0.27 0.74 0.24 0.0270 0.4231 126.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 126.92 37599.63 1044.43 6775.81 0.18 0.00 0.00

5:45 0.6 0.18 0.74 0.16 0.0180 0.2821 84.62 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 84.62 37528.12 1042.45 5817.98 0.15 0.00 0.00

5:50 0.5 0.15 0.74 0.14 0.0150 0.2350 70.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 70.51 37453.46 1040.37 4848.11 0.13 0.00 0.00

5:55 0.3 0.09 0.74 0.08 0.0090 0.1410 42.31 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 42.31 37377.87 1038.27 3852.15 0.10 0.00 0.00

6:00 0.2 0.06 0.74 0.05 0.0060 0.0940 28.21 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 28.21 37300.24 1036.12 2844.24 0.07 0.00 0.00

6:05 0 0.00 0.74 0.00 0.0000 0.0000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 37221.68 1033.94 1810.30 0.05 0.00 0.00

Total volume (cf) 24604.25 Total Overflow (cf) 0.00



5 of 6

24 Hour Storm in 15 minute increments Drywell Drywell Drywell Drywell Overflow Basin Basin Basin

Time Pattern Storm Loss Rate Value Effective Flow Flow Outside Retention Period Storage Storage To Retention Period Storage Storage Overflow Overflow

% Rain (in/hr)Max. Min. Rain (in/hr)Rate (cfs) Vol. (cf) Input (cf) Area (sf) Perc. (cf) Vol. (cf) Depth (ft) Basin (cf) Area (sf) Perc. (cf) Vol. (cf) Depth (ft)Vol. (cf) Rate (cfs)

0:15 0.2 0.03 1.30 0.03 0.0028 0.0439 39.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 39.49 37000.00 39.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:30 0.3 0.04 1.28 0.04 0.0042 0.0658 59.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 59.23 37000.00 59.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0:45 0.3 0.04 1.27 0.04 0.0042 0.0658 59.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 59.23 37000.00 59.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:00 0.4 0.06 1.25 0.05 0.0056 0.0877 78.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 78.97 37000.00 78.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:15 0.3 0.04 1.24 0.04 0.0042 0.0658 59.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 59.23 37000.00 59.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:30 0.3 0.04 1.22 0.04 0.0042 0.0658 59.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 59.23 37000.00 59.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1:45 0.3 0.04 1.21 0.04 0.0042 0.0658 59.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 59.23 37000.00 59.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2:00 0.4 0.06 1.20 0.05 0.0056 0.0877 78.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 78.97 37000.00 78.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2:15 0.4 0.06 1.18 0.05 0.0056 0.0877 78.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 78.97 37000.00 78.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2:30 0.4 0.06 1.17 0.05 0.0056 0.0877 78.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 78.97 37000.00 78.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2:45 0.5 0.07 1.15 0.06 0.0070 0.1097 98.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 98.72 37000.00 98.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3:00 0.5 0.07 1.14 0.06 0.0070 0.1097 98.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 98.72 37000.00 98.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3:15 0.5 0.07 1.12 0.06 0.0070 0.1097 98.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 98.72 37000.00 98.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3:30 0.5 0.07 1.11 0.06 0.0070 0.1097 98.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 98.72 37000.00 98.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3:45 0.5 0.07 1.10 0.06 0.0070 0.1097 98.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 98.72 37000.00 98.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4:00 0.6 0.08 1.08 0.08 0.0084 0.1316 118.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 118.46 37000.00 118.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4:15 0.6 0.08 1.07 0.08 0.0084 0.1316 118.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 118.46 37000.00 118.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4:30 0.7 0.10 1.05 0.09 0.0098 0.1536 138.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 138.20 37000.00 138.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4:45 0.7 0.10 1.04 0.09 0.0098 0.1536 138.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 138.20 37000.00 138.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

5:00 0.8 0.11 1.03 0.10 0.0112 0.1755 157.95 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 157.95 37000.00 157.95 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

5:15 0.6 0.08 1.01 0.08 0.0084 0.1316 118.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 118.46 37000.00 118.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

5:30 0.7 0.10 1.00 0.09 0.0098 0.1536 138.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 138.20 37000.00 138.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

5:45 0.8 0.11 0.99 0.10 0.0112 0.1755 157.95 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 157.95 37000.00 157.95 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

6:00 0.8 0.11 0.97 0.10 0.0112 0.1755 157.95 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 157.95 37000.00 157.95 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

6:15 0.9 0.13 0.96 0.11 0.0126 0.1974 177.69 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 177.69 37000.00 177.69 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

6:30 0.9 0.13 0.95 0.11 0.0126 0.1974 177.69 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 177.69 37000.00 177.69 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

6:45 1 0.14 0.94 0.13 0.0140 0.2194 197.44 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 197.44 37000.00 197.44 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7:00 1 0.14 0.92 0.13 0.0140 0.2194 197.44 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 197.44 37000.00 197.44 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7:15 1 0.14 0.91 0.13 0.0140 0.2194 197.44 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 197.44 37000.00 197.44 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7:30 1.1 0.15 0.90 0.14 0.0154 0.2413 217.18 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 217.18 37000.00 217.18 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7:45 1.2 0.17 0.89 0.15 0.0168 0.2632 236.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 236.92 37000.00 236.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

8:00 1.3 0.18 0.87 0.16 0.0182 0.2852 256.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 256.67 37000.00 256.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

8:15 1.5 0.21 0.86 0.19 0.0210 0.3291 296.15 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 296.15 37000.00 296.15 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

8:30 1.5 0.21 0.85 0.19 0.0210 0.3291 296.15 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 296.15 37000.00 296.15 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

8:45 1.6 0.22 0.84 0.20 0.0224 0.3510 315.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 315.90 37000.00 315.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

9:00 1.7 0.24 0.83 0.21 0.0238 0.3729 335.64 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 335.64 37000.00 335.64 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

9:15 1.9 0.27 0.81 0.24 0.0266 0.4168 375.13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 375.13 37000.00 375.13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

9:30 2 0.28 0.80 0.25 0.0280 0.4387 394.87 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 394.87 37000.00 394.87 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

9:45 2.1 0.29 0.79 0.26 0.0294 0.4607 414.61 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 414.61 37000.00 414.61 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

10:00 2.2 0.31 0.78 0.28 0.0308 0.4826 434.36 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 434.36 37000.00 434.36 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

10:15 1.5 0.21 0.77 0.19 0.0210 0.3291 296.15 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 296.15 37000.00 296.15 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

10:30 1.5 0.21 0.76 0.19 0.0210 0.3291 296.15 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 296.15 37000.00 296.15 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

10:45 2 0.28 0.75 0.25 0.0280 0.4387 394.87 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 394.87 37000.00 394.87 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

11:00 2 0.28 0.74 0.25 0.0280 0.4387 394.87 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 394.87 37000.00 394.87 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

11:15 1.9 0.27 0.72 0.24 0.0266 0.4168 375.13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 375.13 37000.00 375.13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

11:30 1.9 0.27 0.71 0.24 0.0266 0.4168 375.13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 375.13 37000.00 375.13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

11:45 1.7 0.24 0.70 0.21 0.0238 0.3729 335.64 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 335.64 37000.00 335.64 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

12:00 1.8 0.25 0.69 0.23 0.0252 0.3949 355.38 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 355.38 37000.00 355.38 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



6 of 6

12:15 2.5 0.35 0.68 0.32 0.0350 0.5484 493.59 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 493.59 37000.00 493.59 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

12:30 2.6 0.36 0.67 0.33 0.0364 0.5704 513.33 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 513.33 37000.00 513.33 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

12:45 2.8 0.39 0.66 0.35 0.0392 0.6142 552.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 552.82 37000.00 552.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

13:00 2.9 0.41 0.65 0.37 0.0406 0.6362 572.56 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 572.56 37000.00 572.56 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

13:15 3.4 0.48 0.64 0.43 0.0476 0.7459 671.28 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 671.28 37000.00 671.28 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

13:30 3.4 0.48 0.63 0.43 0.0476 0.7459 671.28 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 671.28 37000.00 671.28 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

13:45 2.3 0.32 0.62 0.29 0.0322 0.5046 454.10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 454.10 37000.00 454.10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

14:00 2.3 0.32 0.61 0.29 0.0322 0.5046 454.10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 454.10 37000.00 454.10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

14:15 2.7 0.38 0.60 0.34 0.0378 0.5923 533.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 533.08 37000.00 533.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

14:30 2.6 0.36 0.59 0.33 0.0364 0.5704 513.33 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 513.33 37000.00 513.33 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

14:45 2.6 0.36 0.59 0.33 0.0364 0.5704 513.33 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 513.33 37000.00 513.33 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

15:00 2.5 0.35 0.58 0.32 0.0350 0.5484 493.59 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 493.59 37000.00 493.59 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

15:15 2.4 0.34 0.57 0.30 0.0336 0.5265 473.85 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 473.85 37000.00 473.85 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

15:30 2.3 0.32 0.56 0.29 0.0322 0.5046 454.10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 454.10 37000.00 454.10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

15:45 1.9 0.27 0.55 0.24 0.0266 0.4168 375.13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 375.13 37000.00 375.13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

16:00 1.9 0.27 0.54 0.24 0.0266 0.4168 375.13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 375.13 37000.00 375.13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

16:15 0.4 0.06 0.53 0.05 0.0056 0.0877 78.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 78.97 37000.00 78.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

16:30 0.4 0.06 0.53 0.05 0.0056 0.0877 78.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 78.97 37000.00 78.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

16:45 0.3 0.04 0.52 0.04 0.0042 0.0658 59.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 59.23 37000.00 59.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

17:00 0.3 0.04 0.51 0.04 0.0042 0.0658 59.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 59.23 37000.00 59.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

17:15 0.5 0.07 0.50 0.06 0.0070 0.1097 98.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 98.72 37000.00 98.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

17:30 0.5 0.07 0.49 0.06 0.0070 0.1097 98.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 98.72 37000.00 98.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

17:45 0.5 0.07 0.49 0.06 0.0070 0.1097 98.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 98.72 37000.00 98.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

18:00 0.4 0.06 0.48 0.05 0.0056 0.0877 78.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 78.97 37000.00 78.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

18:15 0.4 0.06 0.47 0.05 0.0056 0.0877 78.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 78.97 37000.00 78.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

18:30 0.4 0.06 0.47 0.05 0.0056 0.0877 78.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 78.97 37000.00 78.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

18:45 0.3 0.04 0.46 0.04 0.0042 0.0658 59.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 59.23 37000.00 59.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

19:00 0.2 0.03 0.45 0.03 0.0028 0.0439 39.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 39.49 37000.00 39.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

19:15 0.3 0.04 0.45 0.04 0.0042 0.0658 59.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 59.23 37000.00 59.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

19:30 0.4 0.06 0.44 0.05 0.0056 0.0877 78.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 78.97 37000.00 78.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

19:45 0.3 0.04 0.43 0.04 0.0042 0.0658 59.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 59.23 37000.00 59.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

20:00 0.2 0.03 0.43 0.03 0.0028 0.0439 39.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 39.49 37000.00 39.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

20:15 0.3 0.04 0.42 0.04 0.0042 0.0658 59.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 59.23 37000.00 59.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

20:30 0.3 0.04 0.42 0.04 0.0042 0.0658 59.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 59.23 37000.00 59.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

20:45 0.3 0.04 0.41 0.04 0.0042 0.0658 59.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 59.23 37000.00 59.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

21:00 0.2 0.03 0.41 0.03 0.0028 0.0439 39.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 39.49 37000.00 39.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

21:15 0.3 0.04 0.40 0.04 0.0042 0.0658 59.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 59.23 37000.00 59.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

21:30 0.2 0.03 0.40 0.03 0.0028 0.0439 39.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 39.49 37000.00 39.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

21:45 0.3 0.04 0.39 0.04 0.0042 0.0658 59.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 59.23 37000.00 59.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

22:00 0.2 0.03 0.39 0.03 0.0028 0.0439 39.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 39.49 37000.00 39.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

22:15 0.3 0.04 0.39 0.04 0.0042 0.0658 59.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 59.23 37000.00 59.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

22:30 0.2 0.03 0.38 0.03 0.0028 0.0439 39.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 39.49 37000.00 39.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

22:45 0.2 0.03 0.38 0.03 0.0028 0.0439 39.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 39.49 37000.00 39.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

23:00 0.2 0.03 0.38 0.03 0.0028 0.0439 39.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 39.49 37000.00 39.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

23:15 0.2 0.03 0.37 0.03 0.0028 0.0439 39.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 39.49 37000.00 39.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

23:30 0.2 0.03 0.37 0.03 0.0028 0.0439 39.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 39.49 37000.00 39.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

23:45 0.2 0.03 0.37 0.03 0.0028 0.0439 39.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 39.49 37000.00 39.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

24:00 0.2 0.03 0.37 0.03 0.0028 0.0439 39.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 39.49 37000.00 39.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

01:00:15 0 0.00 0.37 0.00 0.0000 0.0000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total volume (cf) 19743.57 Total Overflow (cf) 0.00



1 of 6

HYDROLOGY CALCULATIONS - Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments - Area P5 Program Updated 04/05/2024 by LZ

Using the RCFC&WCD Short Cut Unit Hydrograph Method 

Area Designations Area P5

Area 1

Drainage Area (ac.) 0.2300

Unit time (minutes) 5 5 5 15

100 Year Storm Duration (hrs) 1 3 6 24

Total Precipitation (Plates D-4.4,E-5.2, 5.4, 5.6)(in.) 1.6 2.00 2.50 3.50 Or data from NOAA interactive website

Soils Group A

AMC index II Runoff Number (plate E-6.1) 32

Plate E-6.2 Pervious Area Loss Rate (Fp)(in/hr) 0.74 (AMC II)

Percentage of Impervious Cover (Ai)(%) (plate E-6.3) 0

Weighted Average Loss Rate (F=Fp(1-.9Ai))(in./hr.) 0.74 (used for 1, 3, and 6 hour storm, the 24 hour storm uses variable maximum loss rate per  plate E-1.1 (3 of 6))

Low Loss Rate Percent (%) 90 (typically 80-90%)

Minimum value percentage on loss rate curve (Fm)(int/hr) 50 (typically 50-75%)

Retention Basin Infiltration Rate (in/hr) 4 (also used for drywell percolation rate)

Percolation is taken incrementally.

Basin volume is calculated using the "truncated pyramid" formula, a more conservative estimate than "averaged end areas" sometimes used

Basin is zeroed out by reducing variables to 0.001, Zero would crash spreadsheet.

(Drywell can be "zeroed out" by reducing numbers to less than .001, but should not entered as zeros or program chokes.)

Drywell storage includes 40% of the 1' wide rock bed surrounding the drywell: formula (upper)*PI()*(diam/2)^2+(lower)*PI()*((diam/2)^2+0.4*((diam/2+(grav+0.4166))^2-(diam/2+0.4166)^2))

The drywell wall thickness is assumed at 5" (0.4166) and the gravel bed width is variable "grav"

Drywell design factors Upper sec. (ft.)= 0.001 Lower sec. (ft.)= 0.001 Ring diam. (ft.) = 0.001 Drywell lower max. (cf)= 0.00 Upper max.(cf)= 0.00

Gravel bed width around drywell= 0.001 Drywell total(cf)= 0.00

Ret. Basin design (area, depth) Top = 0.001 s.f. Bot. = 0.001 s.f. Max. Depth (d)= 0.001 Max. storage= 0.00     (d/3)*(bottom+top+(bottom*top)^0.50)

Formulas     vol=(h/3)*(bottom+top+(bottom*top)^0.50)    area=bottom+(h/d)*(top-bottom) h=(vol*3)/(bottom+top+(bottom*top)^0.5) (values must be non-zero or error occurs)

Outside input from: N/A (Max. depth excludes the freeboard.  Freeboard provided is on top of max. depth.)

1 Hour Storm in 5 minute increments Drywell Drywell Drywell Drywell Overflow Basin Basin Basin

Time Pattern Storm Loss Rate Value Effective Flow Flow Outside Retention Period Storage Storage To Retention Period Storage Storage Overflow Overflow

% Rain (in/hr)Max. Min. Rain (in/hr)Rate (cfs) Vol. (cf) Input (cf) Area (sf) Perc. (cf) Vol. (cf) Depth (ft) Basin (cf) Area (sf) Perc. (cf) Vol. (cf) Depth (ft)Vol. (cf) Rate (cfs)

0:05 3.7 0.71 0.74 0.64 0.0710 0.0165 4.94 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.94 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.94 0.02

0:10 4.8 0.92 0.74 N/A 0.1816 0.0421 12.63 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12.63 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12.63 0.04

0:15 5.1 0.98 0.74 N/A 0.2392 0.0555 16.64 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 16.64 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 16.64 0.06

0:20 4.9 0.94 0.74 N/A 0.2008 0.0466 13.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.97 0.05

0:25 6.6 1.27 0.74 N/A 0.5272 0.1223 36.68 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 36.68 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 36.68 0.12

0:30 7.3 1.40 0.74 N/A 0.6616 0.1534 46.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 46.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 46.03 0.15

0:35 8.4 1.61 0.74 N/A 0.8728 0.2024 60.73 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 60.73 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 60.73 0.20

0:40 9 1.73 0.74 N/A 0.9880 0.2291 68.74 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 68.74 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 68.74 0.23

0:45 12.3 2.36 0.74 N/A 1.6216 0.3761 112.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 112.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 112.82 0.38

0:50 17.6 3.38 0.74 N/A 2.6392 0.6121 183.62 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 183.62 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 183.62 0.61

0:55 16.1 3.09 0.74 N/A 2.3512 0.5453 163.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 163.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 163.58 0.55

1:00 4.2 0.81 0.74 N/A 0.0664 0.0154 4.62 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.62 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.62 0.02

1:05 0 0.00 0.74 0.00 0.0000 0.0000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total volume (cf) 725.02 Total Overflow (cf) 725.02

Note: Basin not modeled. 
Drainage flows to offsite basin
designed for this area proposed
per separate project.



2 of 6

3 Hour Storm in 5 minute increments Drywell Drywell Drywell Drywell Overflow Basin Basin Basin

Time Pattern Storm Loss Rate Value Effective Flow Flow Outside Retention Period Storage Storage To Retention Period Storage Storage Overflow Overflow

% Rain (in/hr)Max. Min. Rain (in/hr)Rate (cfs) Vol. (cf) Input (cf) Area (sf) Perc. (cf) Vol. (cf) Depth (ft) Basin (cf) Area (sf) Perc. (cf) Vol. (cf) Depth (ft)Vol. (cf) Rate (cfs)

0:05 1.3 0.31 0.74 0.28 0.0312 0.0072 2.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.17 0.01

0:10 1.3 0.31 0.74 0.28 0.0312 0.0072 2.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.17 0.01

0:15 1.1 0.26 0.74 0.24 0.0264 0.0061 1.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.84 0.01

0:20 1.5 0.36 0.74 0.32 0.0360 0.0083 2.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.50 0.01

0:25 1.5 0.36 0.74 0.32 0.0360 0.0083 2.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.50 0.01

0:30 1.8 0.43 0.74 0.39 0.0432 0.0100 3.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.01 0.01

0:35 1.5 0.36 0.74 0.32 0.0360 0.0083 2.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.50 0.01

0:40 1.8 0.43 0.74 0.39 0.0432 0.0100 3.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.01 0.01

0:45 1.8 0.43 0.74 0.39 0.0432 0.0100 3.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.01 0.01

0:50 1.5 0.36 0.74 0.32 0.0360 0.0083 2.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.50 0.01

0:55 1.6 0.38 0.74 0.35 0.0384 0.0089 2.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.67 0.01

1:00 1.8 0.43 0.74 0.39 0.0432 0.0100 3.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.01 0.01

1:05 2.2 0.53 0.74 0.48 0.0528 0.0122 3.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.67 0.01

1:10 2.2 0.53 0.74 0.48 0.0528 0.0122 3.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.67 0.01

1:15 2.2 0.53 0.74 0.48 0.0528 0.0122 3.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.67 0.01

1:20 2 0.48 0.74 0.43 0.0480 0.0111 3.34 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.34 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.34 0.01

1:25 2.6 0.62 0.74 0.56 0.0624 0.0145 4.34 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.34 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.34 0.01

1:30 2.7 0.65 0.74 0.58 0.0648 0.0150 4.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.51 0.02

1:35 2.4 0.58 0.74 0.52 0.0576 0.0134 4.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.01 0.01

1:40 2.7 0.65 0.74 0.58 0.0648 0.0150 4.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.51 0.02

1:45 3.3 0.79 0.74 N/A 0.0520 0.0121 3.62 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.62 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.62 0.01

1:50 3.1 0.74 0.74 N/A 0.0040 0.0009 0.28 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.28 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.28 0.00

1:55 2.9 0.70 0.74 0.63 0.0696 0.0161 4.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.84 0.02

2:00 3 0.72 0.74 0.65 0.0720 0.0167 5.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.01 0.02

2:05 3.1 0.74 0.74 N/A 0.0040 0.0009 0.28 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.28 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.28 0.00

2:10 4.2 1.01 0.74 N/A 0.2680 0.0622 18.65 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 18.65 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 18.65 0.06

2:15 5 1.20 0.74 N/A 0.4600 0.1067 32.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 32.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 32.00 0.11

2:20 3.5 0.84 0.74 N/A 0.1000 0.0232 6.96 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6.96 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6.96 0.02

2:25 6.8 1.63 0.74 N/A 0.8920 0.2069 62.06 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 62.06 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 62.06 0.21

2:30 7.3 1.75 0.74 N/A 1.0120 0.2347 70.41 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 70.41 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 70.41 0.23

2:35 8.2 1.97 0.74 N/A 1.2280 0.2848 85.44 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 85.44 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 85.44 0.28

2:40 5.9 1.42 0.74 N/A 0.6760 0.1568 47.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 47.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 47.03 0.16

2:45 2 0.48 0.74 0.43 0.0480 0.0111 3.34 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.34 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.34 0.01

2:50 1.8 0.43 0.74 0.39 0.0432 0.0100 3.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.01 0.01

2:55 1.8 0.43 0.74 0.39 0.0432 0.0100 3.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.01 0.01

3:00 0.6 0.14 0.74 0.13 0.0144 0.0033 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 0.00

3:05 0 0.00 0.74 0.00 0.0000 0.0000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total volume (cf) 409.55 Total Overflow (cf) 409.55



3 of 6

6 Hour Storm in 5 minute increments Drywell Drywell Drywell Drywell Overflow Basin Basin Basin

Time Pattern Storm Loss Rate Value Effective Flow Flow Outside Retention Period Storage Storage To Retention Period Storage Storage Overflow Overflow

% Rain (in/hr)Max. Min. Rain (in/hr)Rate (cfs) Vol. (cf) Input (cf) Area (sf) Perc. (cf) Vol. (cf) Depth (ft) Basin (cf) Area (sf) Perc. (cf) Vol. (cf) Depth (ft)Vol. (cf) Rate (cfs)

0:05 0.5 0.15 0.74 0.14 0.0150 0.0035 1.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.04 0.00

0:10 0.6 0.18 0.74 0.16 0.0180 0.0042 1.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.25 0.00

0:15 0.6 0.18 0.74 0.16 0.0180 0.0042 1.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.25 0.00

0:20 0.6 0.18 0.74 0.16 0.0180 0.0042 1.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.25 0.00

0:25 0.6 0.18 0.74 0.16 0.0180 0.0042 1.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.25 0.00

0:30 0.7 0.21 0.74 0.19 0.0210 0.0049 1.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.46 0.00

0:35 0.7 0.21 0.74 0.19 0.0210 0.0049 1.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.46 0.00

0:40 0.7 0.21 0.74 0.19 0.0210 0.0049 1.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.46 0.00

0:45 0.7 0.21 0.74 0.19 0.0210 0.0049 1.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.46 0.00

0:50 0.7 0.21 0.74 0.19 0.0210 0.0049 1.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.46 0.00

0:55 0.7 0.21 0.74 0.19 0.0210 0.0049 1.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.46 0.00

1:00 0.8 0.24 0.74 0.22 0.0240 0.0056 1.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.67 0.01

1:05 0.8 0.24 0.74 0.22 0.0240 0.0056 1.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.67 0.01

1:10 0.8 0.24 0.74 0.22 0.0240 0.0056 1.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.67 0.01

1:15 0.8 0.24 0.74 0.22 0.0240 0.0056 1.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.67 0.01

1:20 0.8 0.24 0.74 0.22 0.0240 0.0056 1.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.67 0.01

1:25 0.8 0.24 0.74 0.22 0.0240 0.0056 1.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.67 0.01

1:30 0.8 0.24 0.74 0.22 0.0240 0.0056 1.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.67 0.01

1:35 0.8 0.24 0.74 0.22 0.0240 0.0056 1.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.67 0.01

1:40 0.8 0.24 0.74 0.22 0.0240 0.0056 1.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.67 0.01

1:45 0.8 0.24 0.74 0.22 0.0240 0.0056 1.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.67 0.01

1:50 0.8 0.24 0.74 0.22 0.0240 0.0056 1.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.67 0.01

1:55 0.8 0.24 0.74 0.22 0.0240 0.0056 1.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.67 0.01

2:00 0.9 0.27 0.74 0.24 0.0270 0.0063 1.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.88 0.01

2:05 0.8 0.24 0.74 0.22 0.0240 0.0056 1.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.67 0.01

2:10 0.9 0.27 0.74 0.24 0.0270 0.0063 1.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.88 0.01

2:15 0.9 0.27 0.74 0.24 0.0270 0.0063 1.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.88 0.01

2:20 0.9 0.27 0.74 0.24 0.0270 0.0063 1.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.88 0.01

2:25 0.9 0.27 0.74 0.24 0.0270 0.0063 1.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.88 0.01

2:30 0.9 0.27 0.74 0.24 0.0270 0.0063 1.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.88 0.01

2:35 0.9 0.27 0.74 0.24 0.0270 0.0063 1.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.88 0.01

2:40 0.9 0.27 0.74 0.24 0.0270 0.0063 1.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.88 0.01

2:45 1 0.30 0.74 0.27 0.0300 0.0070 2.09 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.09 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.09 0.01

2:50 1 0.30 0.74 0.27 0.0300 0.0070 2.09 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.09 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.09 0.01

2:55 1 0.30 0.74 0.27 0.0300 0.0070 2.09 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.09 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.09 0.01

3:00 1 0.30 0.74 0.27 0.0300 0.0070 2.09 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.09 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.09 0.01

3:05 1 0.30 0.74 0.27 0.0300 0.0070 2.09 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.09 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.09 0.01

3:10 1.1 0.33 0.74 0.30 0.0330 0.0077 2.30 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.30 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.30 0.01

3:15 1.1 0.33 0.74 0.30 0.0330 0.0077 2.30 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.30 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.30 0.01

3:20 1.1 0.33 0.74 0.30 0.0330 0.0077 2.30 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.30 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.30 0.01

3:25 1.2 0.36 0.74 0.32 0.0360 0.0083 2.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.50 0.01

3:30 1.3 0.39 0.74 0.35 0.0390 0.0090 2.71 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.71 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.71 0.01

3:35 1.4 0.42 0.74 0.38 0.0420 0.0097 2.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.92 0.01

3:40 1.4 0.42 0.74 0.38 0.0420 0.0097 2.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.92 0.01

3:45 1.5 0.45 0.74 0.41 0.0450 0.0104 3.13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.13 0.01

3:50 1.5 0.45 0.74 0.41 0.0450 0.0104 3.13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.13 0.01

3:55 1.6 0.48 0.74 0.43 0.0480 0.0111 3.34 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.34 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.34 0.01

4:00 1.6 0.48 0.74 0.43 0.0480 0.0111 3.34 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.34 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.34 0.01



4 of 6

4:05 1.7 0.51 0.74 0.46 0.0510 0.0118 3.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.55 0.01

4:10 1.8 0.54 0.74 0.49 0.0540 0.0125 3.76 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.76 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.76 0.01

4:15 1.9 0.57 0.74 0.51 0.0570 0.0132 3.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.97 0.01

4:20 2 0.60 0.74 0.54 0.0600 0.0139 4.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.17 0.01

4:25 2.1 0.63 0.74 0.57 0.0630 0.0146 4.38 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.38 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.38 0.01

4:30 2.1 0.63 0.74 0.57 0.0630 0.0146 4.38 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.38 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.38 0.01

4:35 2.2 0.66 0.74 0.59 0.0660 0.0153 4.59 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.59 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.59 0.02

4:40 2.3 0.69 0.74 0.62 0.0690 0.0160 4.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.80 0.02

4:45 2.4 0.72 0.74 0.65 0.0720 0.0167 5.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.01 0.02

4:50 2.4 0.72 0.74 0.65 0.0720 0.0167 5.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.01 0.02

4:55 2.5 0.75 0.74 N/A 0.0100 0.0023 0.70 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.70 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.70 0.00

5:00 2.6 0.78 0.74 N/A 0.0400 0.0093 2.78 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.78 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.78 0.01

5:05 3.1 0.93 0.74 N/A 0.1900 0.0441 13.22 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.22 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.22 0.04

5:10 3.6 1.08 0.74 N/A 0.3400 0.0789 23.66 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 23.66 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 23.66 0.08

5:15 3.9 1.17 0.74 N/A 0.4300 0.0997 29.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 29.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 29.92 0.10

5:20 4.2 1.26 0.74 N/A 0.5200 0.1206 36.18 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 36.18 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 36.18 0.12

5:25 4.7 1.41 0.74 N/A 0.6700 0.1554 46.62 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 46.62 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 46.62 0.16

5:30 5.6 1.68 0.74 N/A 0.9400 0.2180 65.40 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 65.40 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 65.40 0.22

5:35 1.9 0.57 0.74 0.51 0.0570 0.0132 3.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.97 0.01

5:40 0.9 0.27 0.74 0.24 0.0270 0.0063 1.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.88 0.01

5:45 0.6 0.18 0.74 0.16 0.0180 0.0042 1.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.25 0.00

5:50 0.5 0.15 0.74 0.14 0.0150 0.0035 1.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.04 0.00

5:55 0.3 0.09 0.74 0.08 0.0090 0.0021 0.63 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.63 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.63 0.00

6:00 0.2 0.06 0.74 0.05 0.0060 0.0014 0.42 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.42 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.42 0.00

6:05 0 0.00 0.74 0.00 0.0000 0.0000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total volume (cf) 364.16 Total Overflow (cf) 364.15



5 of 6

24 Hour Storm in 15 minute increments Drywell Drywell Drywell Drywell Overflow Basin Basin Basin

Time Pattern Storm Loss Rate Value Effective Flow Flow Outside Retention Period Storage Storage To Retention Period Storage Storage Overflow Overflow

% Rain (in/hr)Max. Min. Rain (in/hr)Rate (cfs) Vol. (cf) Input (cf) Area (sf) Perc. (cf) Vol. (cf) Depth (ft) Basin (cf) Area (sf) Perc. (cf) Vol. (cf) Depth (ft)Vol. (cf) Rate (cfs)

0:15 0.2 0.03 1.30 0.03 0.0028 0.0006 0.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.58 0.00

0:30 0.3 0.04 1.28 0.04 0.0042 0.0010 0.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.88 0.00

0:45 0.3 0.04 1.27 0.04 0.0042 0.0010 0.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.88 0.00

1:00 0.4 0.06 1.25 0.05 0.0056 0.0013 1.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.17 0.00

1:15 0.3 0.04 1.24 0.04 0.0042 0.0010 0.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.88 0.00

1:30 0.3 0.04 1.22 0.04 0.0042 0.0010 0.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.88 0.00

1:45 0.3 0.04 1.21 0.04 0.0042 0.0010 0.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.88 0.00

2:00 0.4 0.06 1.20 0.05 0.0056 0.0013 1.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.17 0.00

2:15 0.4 0.06 1.18 0.05 0.0056 0.0013 1.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.17 0.00

2:30 0.4 0.06 1.17 0.05 0.0056 0.0013 1.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.17 0.00

2:45 0.5 0.07 1.15 0.06 0.0070 0.0016 1.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.46 0.00

3:00 0.5 0.07 1.14 0.06 0.0070 0.0016 1.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.46 0.00

3:15 0.5 0.07 1.12 0.06 0.0070 0.0016 1.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.46 0.00

3:30 0.5 0.07 1.11 0.06 0.0070 0.0016 1.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.46 0.00

3:45 0.5 0.07 1.10 0.06 0.0070 0.0016 1.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.46 0.00

4:00 0.6 0.08 1.08 0.08 0.0084 0.0019 1.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.75 0.00

4:15 0.6 0.08 1.07 0.08 0.0084 0.0019 1.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.75 0.00

4:30 0.7 0.10 1.05 0.09 0.0098 0.0023 2.05 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.05 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.05 0.00

4:45 0.7 0.10 1.04 0.09 0.0098 0.0023 2.05 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.05 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.05 0.00

5:00 0.8 0.11 1.03 0.10 0.0112 0.0026 2.34 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.34 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.34 0.00

5:15 0.6 0.08 1.01 0.08 0.0084 0.0019 1.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.75 0.00

5:30 0.7 0.10 1.00 0.09 0.0098 0.0023 2.05 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.05 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.05 0.00

5:45 0.8 0.11 0.99 0.10 0.0112 0.0026 2.34 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.34 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.34 0.00

6:00 0.8 0.11 0.97 0.10 0.0112 0.0026 2.34 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.34 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.34 0.00

6:15 0.9 0.13 0.96 0.11 0.0126 0.0029 2.63 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.63 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.63 0.00

6:30 0.9 0.13 0.95 0.11 0.0126 0.0029 2.63 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.63 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.63 0.00

6:45 1 0.14 0.94 0.13 0.0140 0.0032 2.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.92 0.00

7:00 1 0.14 0.92 0.13 0.0140 0.0032 2.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.92 0.00

7:15 1 0.14 0.91 0.13 0.0140 0.0032 2.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.92 0.00

7:30 1.1 0.15 0.90 0.14 0.0154 0.0036 3.21 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.21 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.21 0.00

7:45 1.2 0.17 0.89 0.15 0.0168 0.0039 3.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.51 0.00

8:00 1.3 0.18 0.87 0.16 0.0182 0.0042 3.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.80 0.00

8:15 1.5 0.21 0.86 0.19 0.0210 0.0049 4.38 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.38 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.38 0.00

8:30 1.5 0.21 0.85 0.19 0.0210 0.0049 4.38 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.38 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.38 0.00

8:45 1.6 0.22 0.84 0.20 0.0224 0.0052 4.68 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.68 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.68 0.01

9:00 1.7 0.24 0.83 0.21 0.0238 0.0055 4.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.97 0.01

9:15 1.9 0.27 0.81 0.24 0.0266 0.0062 5.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.55 0.01

9:30 2 0.28 0.80 0.25 0.0280 0.0065 5.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.84 0.01

9:45 2.1 0.29 0.79 0.26 0.0294 0.0068 6.14 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6.14 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6.14 0.01

10:00 2.2 0.31 0.78 0.28 0.0308 0.0071 6.43 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6.43 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6.43 0.01

10:15 1.5 0.21 0.77 0.19 0.0210 0.0049 4.38 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.38 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.38 0.00

10:30 1.5 0.21 0.76 0.19 0.0210 0.0049 4.38 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.38 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.38 0.00

10:45 2 0.28 0.75 0.25 0.0280 0.0065 5.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.84 0.01

11:00 2 0.28 0.74 0.25 0.0280 0.0065 5.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.84 0.01

11:15 1.9 0.27 0.72 0.24 0.0266 0.0062 5.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.55 0.01

11:30 1.9 0.27 0.71 0.24 0.0266 0.0062 5.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.55 0.01

11:45 1.7 0.24 0.70 0.21 0.0238 0.0055 4.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.97 0.01

12:00 1.8 0.25 0.69 0.23 0.0252 0.0058 5.26 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.26 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.26 0.01



6 of 6

12:15 2.5 0.35 0.68 0.32 0.0350 0.0081 7.31 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7.31 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7.31 0.01

12:30 2.6 0.36 0.67 0.33 0.0364 0.0084 7.60 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7.60 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7.60 0.01

12:45 2.8 0.39 0.66 0.35 0.0392 0.0091 8.18 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8.18 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8.18 0.01

13:00 2.9 0.41 0.65 0.37 0.0406 0.0094 8.47 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8.47 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8.47 0.01

13:15 3.4 0.48 0.64 0.43 0.0476 0.0110 9.94 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 9.94 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 9.94 0.01

13:30 3.4 0.48 0.63 0.43 0.0476 0.0110 9.94 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 9.94 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 9.94 0.01

13:45 2.3 0.32 0.62 0.29 0.0322 0.0075 6.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6.72 0.01

14:00 2.3 0.32 0.61 0.29 0.0322 0.0075 6.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6.72 0.01

14:15 2.7 0.38 0.60 0.34 0.0378 0.0088 7.89 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7.89 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7.89 0.01

14:30 2.6 0.36 0.59 0.33 0.0364 0.0084 7.60 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7.60 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7.60 0.01

14:45 2.6 0.36 0.59 0.33 0.0364 0.0084 7.60 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7.60 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7.60 0.01

15:00 2.5 0.35 0.58 0.32 0.0350 0.0081 7.31 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7.31 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7.31 0.01

15:15 2.4 0.34 0.57 0.30 0.0336 0.0078 7.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7.01 0.01

15:30 2.3 0.32 0.56 0.29 0.0322 0.0075 6.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6.72 0.01

15:45 1.9 0.27 0.55 0.24 0.0266 0.0062 5.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.55 0.01

16:00 1.9 0.27 0.54 0.24 0.0266 0.0062 5.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.55 0.01

16:15 0.4 0.06 0.53 0.05 0.0056 0.0013 1.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.17 0.00

16:30 0.4 0.06 0.53 0.05 0.0056 0.0013 1.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.17 0.00

16:45 0.3 0.04 0.52 0.04 0.0042 0.0010 0.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.88 0.00

17:00 0.3 0.04 0.51 0.04 0.0042 0.0010 0.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.88 0.00

17:15 0.5 0.07 0.50 0.06 0.0070 0.0016 1.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.46 0.00

17:30 0.5 0.07 0.49 0.06 0.0070 0.0016 1.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.46 0.00

17:45 0.5 0.07 0.49 0.06 0.0070 0.0016 1.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.46 0.00

18:00 0.4 0.06 0.48 0.05 0.0056 0.0013 1.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.17 0.00

18:15 0.4 0.06 0.47 0.05 0.0056 0.0013 1.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.17 0.00

18:30 0.4 0.06 0.47 0.05 0.0056 0.0013 1.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.17 0.00

18:45 0.3 0.04 0.46 0.04 0.0042 0.0010 0.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.88 0.00

19:00 0.2 0.03 0.45 0.03 0.0028 0.0006 0.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.58 0.00

19:15 0.3 0.04 0.45 0.04 0.0042 0.0010 0.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.88 0.00

19:30 0.4 0.06 0.44 0.05 0.0056 0.0013 1.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.17 0.00

19:45 0.3 0.04 0.43 0.04 0.0042 0.0010 0.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.88 0.00

20:00 0.2 0.03 0.43 0.03 0.0028 0.0006 0.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.58 0.00

20:15 0.3 0.04 0.42 0.04 0.0042 0.0010 0.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.88 0.00

20:30 0.3 0.04 0.42 0.04 0.0042 0.0010 0.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.88 0.00

20:45 0.3 0.04 0.41 0.04 0.0042 0.0010 0.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.88 0.00

21:00 0.2 0.03 0.41 0.03 0.0028 0.0006 0.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.58 0.00

21:15 0.3 0.04 0.40 0.04 0.0042 0.0010 0.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.88 0.00

21:30 0.2 0.03 0.40 0.03 0.0028 0.0006 0.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.58 0.00

21:45 0.3 0.04 0.39 0.04 0.0042 0.0010 0.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.88 0.00

22:00 0.2 0.03 0.39 0.03 0.0028 0.0006 0.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.58 0.00

22:15 0.3 0.04 0.39 0.04 0.0042 0.0010 0.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.88 0.00

22:30 0.2 0.03 0.38 0.03 0.0028 0.0006 0.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.58 0.00

22:45 0.2 0.03 0.38 0.03 0.0028 0.0006 0.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.58 0.00

23:00 0.2 0.03 0.38 0.03 0.0028 0.0006 0.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.58 0.00

23:15 0.2 0.03 0.37 0.03 0.0028 0.0006 0.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.58 0.00

23:30 0.2 0.03 0.37 0.03 0.0028 0.0006 0.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.58 0.00

23:45 0.2 0.03 0.37 0.03 0.0028 0.0006 0.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.58 0.00

24:00 0.2 0.03 0.37 0.03 0.0028 0.0006 0.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.58 0.00

01:00:15 0 0.00 0.37 0.00 0.0000 0.0000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total volume (cf) 292.22 Total Overflow (cf) 292.21



Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments - Drawdown Calculations

Basin
High Water 

Level
1
 (ft)

Design 

Infiltration 

Rate
2 

(in/hr)

Drawdown 

Time
3
 (hr)

1 5.5 4.00 16.5

2 1.0 4.00 3.0

1
Maximum water depth in basin per routing calculations.

2 
See design infiltration rate calculations.

3 
Calculated as high water depth divided by design infiltration rate.



 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX C 

Reference Material  



Site



Hydrologic Soil Group—Riverside County, Coachella Valley Area, California

Natural Resources
Conservation Service

Web Soil Survey
National Cooperative Soil Survey

3/29/2024
Page 1 of 4

37
39

50
0

37
39

60
0

37
39

70
0

37
39

80
0

37
39

90
0

37
40

00
0

37
40

10
0

37
40

20
0

37
39

50
0

37
39

60
0

37
39

70
0

37
39

80
0

37
39

90
0

37
40

00
0

37
40

10
0

37
40

20
0

555800 555900 556000 556100 556200 556300

555800 555900 556000 556100 556200 556300

33°  48' 2'' N
11

6°
  2

3'
 5

1'
' W

33°  48' 2'' N

11
6°

  2
3'

 2
7'

' W

33°  47' 36'' N

11
6°

  2
3'

 5
1'

' W

33°  47' 36'' N

11
6°

  2
3'

 2
7'

' W

N

Map projection: Web Mercator   Corner coordinates: WGS84   Edge tics: UTM Zone 11N WGS84
0 150 300 600 900

Feet
0 50 100 200 300

Meters
Map Scale: 1:4,010 if printed on A portrait (8.5" x 11") sheet.

Soil Map may not be valid at this scale.



MAP LEGEND MAP INFORMATION

Area of Interest (AOI)
Area of Interest (AOI)

Soils
Soil Rating Polygons

A

A/D

B

B/D

C

C/D

D

Not rated or not available

Soil Rating Lines
A

A/D

B

B/D

C

C/D

D

Not rated or not available

Soil Rating Points
A

A/D

B

B/D

C

C/D

D

Not rated or not available

Water Features
Streams and Canals

Transportation
Rails

Interstate Highways

US Routes

Major Roads

Local Roads

Background
Aerial Photography

The soil surveys that comprise your AOI were mapped at 
1:24,000.

Warning: Soil Map may not be valid at this scale.

Enlargement of maps beyond the scale of mapping can cause 
misunderstanding of the detail of mapping and accuracy of soil 
line placement. The maps do not show the small areas of 
contrasting soils that could have been shown at a more detailed 
scale.

Please rely on the bar scale on each map sheet for map 
measurements.

Source of Map: Natural Resources Conservation Service
Web Soil Survey URL: 
Coordinate System: Web Mercator (EPSG:3857)

Maps from the Web Soil Survey are based on the Web Mercator 
projection, which preserves direction and shape but distorts 
distance and area. A projection that preserves area, such as the 
Albers equal-area conic projection, should be used if more 
accurate calculations of distance or area are required.

This product is generated from the USDA-NRCS certified data as 
of the version date(s) listed below.

Soil Survey Area: Riverside County, Coachella Valley Area, 
California
Survey Area Data: Version 15, Aug 30, 2023

Soil map units are labeled (as space allows) for map scales 
1:50,000 or larger.

Date(s) aerial images were photographed: Mar 15, 2022—May 
28, 2022

The orthophoto or other base map on which the soil lines were 
compiled and digitized probably differs from the background 
imagery displayed on these maps. As a result, some minor 
shifting of map unit boundaries may be evident.

Hydrologic Soil Group—Riverside County, Coachella Valley Area, California

Natural Resources
Conservation Service

Web Soil Survey
National Cooperative Soil Survey

3/29/2024
Page 2 of 4



Hydrologic Soil Group

Map unit symbol Map unit name Rating Acres in AOI Percent of AOI

MaB Myoma fine sand, 0 to 5 
percent slopes

A 32.2 38.2%

MaD Myoma fine sand, 5 to 
15 percent slopes

A 52.2 61.8%

Totals for Area of Interest 84.4 100.0%

Description

Hydrologic soil groups are based on estimates of runoff potential. Soils are 
assigned to one of four groups according to the rate of water infiltration when the 
soils are not protected by vegetation, are thoroughly wet, and receive 
precipitation from long-duration storms.

The soils in the United States are assigned to four groups (A, B, C, and D) and 
three dual classes (A/D, B/D, and C/D). The groups are defined as follows:

Group A. Soils having a high infiltration rate (low runoff potential) when 
thoroughly wet. These consist mainly of deep, well drained to excessively 
drained sands or gravelly sands. These soils have a high rate of water 
transmission.

Group B. Soils having a moderate infiltration rate when thoroughly wet. These 
consist chiefly of moderately deep or deep, moderately well drained or well 
drained soils that have moderately fine texture to moderately coarse texture. 
These soils have a moderate rate of water transmission.

Group C. Soils having a slow infiltration rate when thoroughly wet. These consist 
chiefly of soils having a layer that impedes the downward movement of water or 
soils of moderately fine texture or fine texture. These soils have a slow rate of 
water transmission.

Group D. Soils having a very slow infiltration rate (high runoff potential) when 
thoroughly wet. These consist chiefly of clays that have a high shrink-swell 
potential, soils that have a high water table, soils that have a claypan or clay 
layer at or near the surface, and soils that are shallow over nearly impervious 
material. These soils have a very slow rate of water transmission.

If a soil is assigned to a dual hydrologic group (A/D, B/D, or C/D), the first letter is 
for drained areas and the second is for undrained areas. Only the soils that in 
their natural condition are in group D are assigned to dual classes.

Rating Options

Aggregation Method: Dominant Condition

Hydrologic Soil Group—Riverside County, Coachella Valley Area, California

Natural Resources
Conservation Service

Web Soil Survey
National Cooperative Soil Survey

3/29/2024
Page 3 of 4



Component Percent Cutoff: None Specified 

Tie-break Rule: Higher

Hydrologic Soil Group—Riverside County, Coachella Valley Area, California

Natural Resources
Conservation Service

Web Soil Survey
National Cooperative Soil Survey

3/29/2024
Page 4 of 4

















SITE



SITE



SITE



SITE











 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX D 

Geotechnical Report 

 



10 6/7/2024

8 KTM

2 SP

5 to 10 ?

0.42 312

?

Initial, Do (ft.) Final, Df (ft.)

1 25 9.1 10 10.8

2 25 9.10 10 10.8

Initial, Do (ft.) Final, Df (ft.) (min/in.)

1 10 8.60 10.00 16.80 0.60

2 10 8.60 10.00 16.80 0.60
3 10 8.55 10.00 17.40 0.57

4 10 8.60 10.00 16.80 0.60

5 10 8.55 10.00 17.40 0.57

6 10 8.55 10.00 17.40 0.57

Ho = DT - Do

Hf = DT - Df 

Reference: 

Boring/Test Number: P-1

TEST RESULTS**

Percolation Rate

(gal/day/ft^2)(min/in.)

133.200.57

Inflitration Rate [Porchet Method]
#

(inches/hour)

12.00

Time 

Interval

Δt (min.)

Trial 

No.

Depth to Water, Dw
Change in 

Water Level

 ΔH (in.)

Diameter of Casing, d (in):

Depth of Slotted Casing (ft):

Trial 

No.

Time 

Interval

Δt (min.)

Depth to Water, Dw

Porosity of Annulus Material, n  :

4 tests minimum with at least two borings per basin

COSTA MESA   TEMECULA   LOS ANGELES   PALM DESERT   CORONA   ESCONDIDO

PERCOLATION TEST SUMMARY
Key Largo Avenue

Factor of Safety 

per Reference

#
 Where Infiltration Rate, It = ΔH (60r) / Δt (r + 2Havg)

PETRA GEOSCIENCES, INC.

Option 2

Testing Requirements

Tested By:

USCS Soil Type:

Depth to Groundwater (ft):

Ground Elevation (msl ft):

Change in 

Water Level

 ΔD (in.)

FACTOR OF SAFETY

DATE: June , 2024

3

    Rancho Mirage, Riverside County, CA
Appendix

BJ.N.: 24-112

Costa Mesa, California 92626
PHONE: (714) 549-8921

RCFCWCD, Design Handbook for LID, dated September, 2011

Testing Option

**Raw Results. Does Not

  Include a Factor of Safety

r = D / 2

3186 Airway Avenue, Suite K

ΔH = ΔD = Ho - Hf 

Havg = (Ho + Hf) / 2

132.32

133.20

133.20

Test Date:

Change in Height of Water 

Greater Than or Equal to 

6"? (Yes/No)*

SANDY SOIL CRITERIA TEST

yes

yes

PERCOLATION TEST

Percolation Rate

(gal/day/ft^2)

132.32

132.32
133.20

30Standard Time Interval Between Readings (min.),   [* if yes = 10, if no = 30]:

Depth from Existing Ground Surface to Bottom of Prop. Inflitration System (ft):

Total Depth of Boring, DT (ft):

Diameter of Hole, D (in):

existing

ground 

surface





EN
G

IN
EER

S  +
  G

EO
LO

G
ISTS  +

  EN
VIRO

N
M

EN
TAL   SC

IEN
TISTS

DESIGN-PHASE GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION REPORT
PROPOSED RANCHO MIRAGE APARTMENTS

APPROXIMATELY 5 ACRES SOUTH OF THE RANCHO MIRAGE DOG PARK
A PORTION OF ASSESSOR’S PARCEL NO. 685-090-011

RANCHO MIRAGE, RIVERSIDE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

NATIONAL CORE

July 25, 2024
J.N. 24-112



 
 

ENGINEERS   +   GEOLOGISTS   +   ENVIRONMENTAL   SCIENTISTS 

 

 
Offices Strategically Positioned Throughout Southern California 
DESERT REGION OFFICE 
42-240 Green Way, Suite E, Palm Desert, CA 92211 
T: 760.340.5303   F: 760.340.5096 
For more information visit us online at www.petra-inc.com 

 

 

July 25, 2024 

J.N. 24-112 

 

 

NATIONAL CORE 

430 E. State Street, Suite 100 

Eagle, Idaho 83616 
 

Attention: Ms. Taylor Libolt Varner 

 

Subject:  Design-Phase Geotechnical Investigation Report, Proposed Rancho Mirage 

Apartments, Approximately 5 Acres South of the Rancho Mirage Dog Park, a Portion 

of Assessor’s Parcel No. 685-090-011, Rancho Mirage, Riverside County, California 

 

Dear Ms. Libolt Varner: 

 

Petra Geosciences, Inc. (Petra) is submitting herewith our geotechnical investigation report for the 

proposed construction of approximately 150 apartments at the subject location in the city of Rancho Mirage. 

The proposed improvements will also include utilities, paved parking, landscaping, and on-site stormwater 

retention. This work was performed in general accordance with the scope of services outlined in our 

Proposal No. 24-112P, dated January 17, 2024. This report presents the results of our field investigation, 

laboratory testing, and our engineering and geologic analysis, judgment, opinions, conclusions and 

recommendations pertaining to geotechnical design aspects of the proposed improvements. 

 

It is a pleasure to be of service to you on this project. Should you have any questions regarding the contents 

of this report, or should you require additional information, please do not hesitate to contact us. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

PETRA GEOSCIENCES, INC. 

 

 

 

 

Alan Pace 

Senior Associate Geologist 

 

 

 

http://www.petra-inc.com/


NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

 

PURPOSE AND SCOPE OF SERVICES ..................................................................................................................... 1 

LOCATION AND SITE DESCRIPTION ..................................................................................................................... 2 

PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS .................................................................................................................................. 2 

FIELD EXPLORATION AND TESTING .................................................................................................................... 3 
Subsurface Exploration ...................................................................................................................................... 3 
Laboratory Testing ............................................................................................................................................. 3 
Percolation Testing ............................................................................................................................................. 4 

FINDINGS .................................................................................................................................................................... 5 
Regional Geologic Setting ................................................................................................................................. 5 
Local Geology and Subsurface Soil Conditions ................................................................................................. 5 
Groundwater ....................................................................................................................................................... 6 
Faulting .............................................................................................................................................................. 6 

Secondary Seismic Hazards ..................................................................................................................................... 6 
Seismically Induced Landsliding ....................................................................................................................... 6 
Seismically Induced Flooding ............................................................................................................................ 6 
Liquefaction and Seismically Induced Settlement ............................................................................................. 6 

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS ........................................................................................................ 9 
General Feasibility ............................................................................................................................................. 9 

Earthwork and Grading ............................................................................................................................................ 9 
General Specifications ....................................................................................................................................... 9 
Geotechnical Observations and Testing ............................................................................................................. 9 
Demolition, Clearing and Grubbing ................................................................................................................. 10 
Unsuitable Soil Removals and Bottom Processing .......................................................................................... 10 
Grading at Site Boundaries .............................................................................................................................. 11 
Excavation Characteristics ............................................................................................................................... 11 
Fill Placement .................................................................................................................................................. 11 
Imported Soils .................................................................................................................................................. 11 
Volumetric Changes - Bulking, Shrinkage and Subsidence ............................................................................. 12 
Temporary Excavations.................................................................................................................................... 12 
Expansive Soil Conditions ............................................................................................................................... 12 

PRELIMINARY FOUNDATION DESIGN CONSIDERATIONS ............................................................................ 13 
Seismic Design Parameters .............................................................................................................................. 13 
Discussion ........................................................................................................................................................ 15 
Foundation System ........................................................................................................................................... 16 
Allowable Soil Bearing Capacity, Anticipated Settlement and Lateral Resistance .......................................... 16 
Estimated Static Settlement .............................................................................................................................. 16 
Seismically Induced Settlement ....................................................................................................................... 17 
Lateral Resistance ............................................................................................................................................ 17 

Guidelines for Footings and Slabs on-Grade Design and Construction ................................................................. 17 
Conventional Slabs on-Grade System .............................................................................................................. 18 
Post-Tensioned Slabs on-Grade System ........................................................................................................... 20 
Foundation Excavation Observations ............................................................................................................... 23 

General Corrosivity Screening ............................................................................................................................... 23 
Post-Grading Considerations ................................................................................................................................. 24 

Utility Trenches ................................................................................................................................................ 24 
Site Drainage .................................................................................................................................................... 25 
Bottomless Trench Drains ................................................................................................................................ 26 

Retaining Walls ...................................................................................................................................................... 26 
Active and At-Rest Earth Pressures ................................................................................................................. 26 
Earthquake Loads Retaining Walls .................................................................................................................. 27 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

 

Subdrainage ...................................................................................................................................................... 27 
Waterproofing .................................................................................................................................................. 28 
Wall Backfill .................................................................................................................................................... 28 
Geotechnical Observation and Testing ............................................................................................................. 28 

Masonry Block Walls ............................................................................................................................................ 28 
Exterior Concrete Flatwork .................................................................................................................................... 29 

General ............................................................................................................................................................. 29 
Thickness and Joint Spacing ............................................................................................................................ 29 
Reinforcement .................................................................................................................................................. 30 
Edge Beams (Optional) .................................................................................................................................... 30 
Subgrade Preparation ....................................................................................................................................... 30 
Drainage ........................................................................................................................................................... 31 
Tree Wells ........................................................................................................................................................ 31 

Swimming Pool and Spa ........................................................................................................................................ 31 
Allowable Bearing and Settlement ................................................................................................................... 31 
Lateral Earth Pressures ..................................................................................................................................... 32 
Stability of Temporary Excavation .................................................................................................................. 32 
Temporary Access Ramps ................................................................................................................................ 32 
Pool Bottom ..................................................................................................................................................... 32 
Pool Decking .................................................................................................................................................... 32 

Plumbing Fixtures .................................................................................................................................................. 33 

ACCESS ROADS........................................................................................................................................................ 33 
Asphalt Pavement............................................................................................................................................. 33 

PLAN REVIEW .......................................................................................................................................................... 34 

REPORT LIMITATIONS ........................................................................................................................................... 34 

REFERENCES ............................................................................................................................................................ 36 
 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

 

FIGURES RW-1 through RW-3 – RETAINING WALL DETAILS 

FIGURE 1 – SITE LOCATION MAP 

FIGURE 2 – BORING LOCATION MAP 

APPENDIX A – BORING LOGS 

APPENDIX B – LABORATORY TEST PROCEDURES / LABORATORY DATA SUMMARY 

APPENDIX C – SEISMIC HAZARD ANALYSIS 

APPENDIX D – DRY SAND SETTLEMENT 

APPENDIX E – PERCOLATION / INFILTRATION 

APPENDIX F – STANDARD GRADING RECOMMENDATIONS/RETAINING WALLS  

 

 



 

 

DESIGN-PHASE GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION REPORT 

PROPOSED RANCHO MIRAGE APARTMENTS 

APPROXIMATELY 5 ACRES SOUTH OF THE RANCHO MIRAGE DOG PARK 

A PORTION OF ASSESSOR’S PARCEL NO. 685-090-011 

RANCHO MIRAGE, RIVERSIDE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

 

 

PURPOSE AND SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

Petra Geosciences, Inc. (Petra) is presenting herein our design-phase geotechnical investigation report for 

an apartment buildings complex and various improvements that are currently proposed at the vacant site 

located in the city of Rancho Mirage, California. The improvements include the construction of a series of 

apartment buildings and associated utilities, paved parking, landscaping, and on-site stormwater retention. 

The purposes of this investigation were to 1) obtain information regarding surface and subsurface geologic 

conditions within the area of the proposed construction, 2) evaluate the engineering properties of the onsite 

soil materials, and 3) provide conclusions and recommendations for design and construction of the proposed 

improvements. To accomplish these objectives, our scope of services included the following: 

 

1. Reviewing of published and unpublished literature and maps pertaining to regional faulting, seismic 

hazards and soil and geologic conditions within and adjacent to the site that could influence the 

design of the proposed structural elements. 

 

2. Reviewing of historical aerial photographs of the area of proposed construction. 

 

3. Performing a subsurface investigation within the area of proposed construction. The investigation 

consisted of drilling 3 exploratory borings to depths of 20 to 66 feet using a hollow-stem drilling 

rig. Additionally, drilling 1 exploratory boring to 10 feet below ground surface using the hollow-

stem auger drilling method and performing a falling-head percolation test in the borehole. The 

boring logs are presented in Appendix A and the percolation tests results and infiltration rate 

calculations are presented in Appendix E. 

 

4. Logging and field-classifying soil materials encountered in each boring in accordance with the 

visual-manual procedures outlined in the Unified Soil Classification System and the American 

Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM) Procedure D 2488-90. All field activities were 

performed by or under the direct observation of a State of California Certified Engineering 

Geologist. 

 

5. Collecting representative bulk and relatively undisturbed soil samples for laboratory analysis. 

Undisturbed samples will be retrieved at 3- to 10-foot depth intervals utilizing a 2.4-inch inside 

diameter, modified-California split-spoon sampler. In addition, where granular soils were 

encountered within the saturated zone, these materials were selectively sampled using the Standard 

Penetration Test (SPT) method in accordance with ASTM Procedure D 1586-92. 

 

6. Performing appropriate laboratory analysis on soil samples which included the following: in-situ 

and maximum dry density; in-situ and optimum moisture content; sieve analysis, remolded direct 

shear; collapse analysis; soluble sulfate and chloride content; general soil corrosivity (Sulfate, 

Chloride, pH and minimum resistivity). 

 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 2 

 

 

 

7. Engineering and geologic analyses of the field and laboratory data as they pertain to the proposed 

construction. 

 

8. An evaluation of faulting and seismicity of the region, and the possible impact of regional 

seismicity on the proposed construction. 

 

9. Preparation of this geotechnical report presenting the results of our evaluation and 

recommendations for the proposed development in general conformance with the 2022 California 

Building Code (2022 CBC) and in accordance with applicable state and local jurisdictional 

requirements. 

 

LOCATION AND SITE DESCRIPTION 

 

The area of study considered under the scope of this investigation consists of 5 acres located to the southeast 

of the Rancho Mirage Dog Park. The location of the site with respect to nearby roadways and other 

landmarks is shown on the Site Location Map, Figure 1. The subject site is vacant and is bordered on the 

north by vacant land and existing shopping center along Dinah Shore Drive, on the east by vacant land and 

Monterey Avenue, on the west by vacant land and Key Largo Avenue, and on the south by undeveloped 

vacant land. The topography is approximately flat and level, with approximately 10 feet of relief from the 

south end of the site to the north end. The subject site’s natural landscaping consists of few grasses and 

light desert scrub with no trees. 

 

PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS 

 

Petra understands that the site is to be developed into approximately 150 apartments. Additionally, the 

improvements will consist of utilities, paved parking, landscaping, and on-site storm water retention. 

Neither grading plans nor specific details related to the proposed improvements were provided to Petra at 

the time this report was prepared. Based on the nearby development and the relatively flat topography of 

the site, Petra assumes that earthwork is generally limited to minor cuts and fills to establish finished grade 

elevations. It should be noted, however, that remedial grading (i.e., excavation and re-compaction of any 

existing undocumented fill soils that are present on the site and loose native soils) will entail deeper cuts 

from exiting grades as recommended in subsequent sections of this report. No extensive subterranean 

construction is anticipated. 

 

  



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 3 

 

 

 

FIELD EXPLORATION AND TESTING 

 

Subsurface Exploration 

 

Our subsurface exploration was performed on June 7, 2024, and involved the following: 

 

• Drilling and sampling of two relatively shallow borings (B-2 and B-3) to depths of 20 feet below 

the existing ground surface and one deep boring (B-1) to a depth of 66 feet below the existing 

ground surface. All of the borings were drilled utilizing a truck-mounted, hollow-stem auger drill 

rig. 

 

• Drilling one boring to a depth of 10 feet (Boring P-1) and performing a percolation test to observe 

infiltration characteristics of subsurface materials for stormwater retention design. 

 

Earth materials encountered in each of the exploratory borings were field classified and logged in 

accordance with Unified Soil Classification System, USCS, procedures. In addition, our subsurface 

exploration included the collection of bulk and relatively undisturbed samples of the subsurface soils for 

laboratory testing purposes. Bulk samples consisted of selected earth materials obtained at various depth 

intervals from selected borings. Relatively undisturbed samples were collected using a 3-inch, outside-

diameter, modified California split-spoon soil sampler lined with 1-inch-high brass or stainless-steel rings. 

The modified sampler was driven with successive 30-inch drops of a hydraulically operated 140-pound 

automatic trip hammer. Blow counts for each 6-inch driving increment were recorded on the field logs. The 

central portions of the driven core samples were placed in sealed containers and transported to our 

laboratory for testing. The approximate locations of the exploratory borings are shown on the attached 

Boring Location Map, Figure 2, and descriptive exploration logs are presented in Appendix A. 

 

In addition to the above sampling method, Standard Penetration Tests (SPT's) were also performed at 

selected depth intervals in accordance with the American Society for Testing Materials (ASTM) Standard 

Procedure D 1586. This method consists of mechanically driving an unlined standard split-barrel sampler 

18 inches into the soil with successive 30-inch drops of the 140-pound automatic trip hammer. Blow counts 

for each 6-inch driving increment were recorded on the exploration logs. The number of blows required to 

drive the standard split-spoon sampler for the last 12 of the 18 inches was identified as the uncorrected 

standard penetration resistance (N). Disturbed soil samples from the unlined standard split-spoon samplers 

were placed in plastic bags and transported to our laboratory for testing. 

 

Laboratory Testing 
 
In order to evaluate the engineering properties of onsite soils, a number of laboratory tests were performed 

on selected samples considered representative of the materials encountered within the study area. These 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 4 

 

 

 

laboratory tests were performed shortly after completion of our field investigation and included 

determination of in-place dry density and moisture content, maximum dry density and optimum moisture 

content, sieve analysis, collapse potential, remolded shear strength, as well as chemical and electrical 

corrosivity potential (soluble sulfate and chloride content, pH, and minimum resistivity). A description of 

laboratory test methods is provided in the Laboratory Test Procedures section of this report (Appendix B). 

Summaries of the test data are presented on the exploration logs (Appendix A) and in Appendix B of this 

report. 

 

Percolation Testing 

 

Percolation testing was conducted in Exploratory Boring P-1 in accordance with County of Riverside 

Department of Environmental Health (RCDEH) test procedures and the guidelines presented in Appendix 

VII of the County of Orange Technical Guidance Document for WQMPs. The Orange County Manual 

references the RCDEH percolation test methods as an acceptable method of obtaining site infiltration data. 

The “percolation rates” determined in accordance with the RCDEH test procedures are based on both 

horizontal (lateral) and vertical percolation. Therefore, to consider vertical percolation only, the 

“percolation rates” were converted to a reasonable estimate of the “infiltration rate” using the Porchet 

Method presented in Appendix VII of the referenced County of Orange Technical Guidance Document. 

 

Boring P-1 was converted to a percolation test hole following drilling by placing a two-inch (I.D.) 

perforated PVC pipe in the test hole. The annular space around the pipe was filled with open-graded gravel, 

approximately ¾-inch, within the annular space between the pipe and boring walls and a 3-inch-thick layer 

of gravel below the pipe. The remainder of the annular space was backfilled with boring cuttings. Clean 

water was then added to the boring to pre-soak the adjacent soils prior to performing the percolation test. 

 

The percolation test was conducted in eolian sand that exists from the near surface to below the base of the 

percolation tests. Boring P-1 was drilled to a total depth of approximately 10 feet. The test hole was filled 

with clean water to approximately 5 feet from the ground surface. The drop in water level was measured at 

10-minute intervals. From these readings, the percolation characteristics of the underlying eolian sand 

deposits was estimated. Percolation test results are presented in Appendix E and are summarized in Table 1. 

We note that the calculated infiltration rate presented in this table has a factor of safety of 1 and the project 

engineer should use an appropriate factor of safety per project Specifications. 

  



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 5 

 

 

 

TABLE 1 

Unfactored Percolation Test Results 

Test No. 
Soil Type1 

(USCS) 

Depth of 

Hole 

(Feet) 

Measured 2 

Percolation Rate 

(Minutes/Inch) 

Infiltration Rate (It) 3 

per Porchet Method 

(Inches/Hour) (F.S – 1) 

P-1 SP 10 0.57 12.0 

1 Interbedded Strata – see Boring Logs, Appendix A 
2  RCDEH Test Procedure  
3 Minutes/inch converted to inches/hour per Porchet Method 

 

FINDINGS 

 

Regional Geologic Setting 

 

The proposed development is located in the Coachella Valley, which is part of the Salton Trough 

geomorphic province of California. The Salton Trough geomorphic province encompasses the Coachella, 

Imperial and Mexicali Valleys, which extend from northeast of Palm Springs near San Gorgonio Pass to 

the Gulf of California. The geologic structure of the trough is a result of extensional forces within the earth’s 

crust. The Coachella Valley is generally bounded by the San Jacinto and Santa Rosa Mountains on the west, 

the San Bernardino and the Little San Bernardino Mountains on the north, the Cottonwood Mountains and 

the Mecca Hills on the east, and the Salton Sea to the south. Alluvial (Streams), aeolian (wind-blown), and 

lacustrine (lake) sediments are the dominant geologic units of the Coachella Valley. 

 
The watershed of the Coachella Valley empties into the Salton Sea at the lowest part of the basin. This 

basin was periodically filled with water to form the ancient Lake Cahuilla, depending on which side of its 

delta the Colorado River would drain. The sediments of the delta form a topographic high that separates the 

Salton basin, which is below sea level, from the Gulf of California (Sea of Cortez). 

 

Local Geology and Subsurface Soil Conditions 

 

In general, the soil materials underlying the site as encountered in our borings were noted to consist of very 

loose to very dense, poorly graded eolian sand to the maximum depth explored of 66 feet. The upper 3 to 4 

feet of the soil was found to be dry and very loose to loose. Soils become medium dense to dense and finer 

grained with depth. The moisture content of these native soils is very low and on the order of less than 0.5 

percent. Laboratory testing of relatively undisturbed samples of eolian sand yielded in-place dry densities 

ranging from 98 to 109 pounds per cubic foot. 

 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 6 

 

 

 

Groundwater 

 

Free groundwater was not encountered within any of the exploratory borings advanced onsite to the 

maximum depth explored of 66 feet below grades. According to a monitoring well located approximately 

0.5 miles to the north, groundwater is located approximately 160 feet below the ground surface as of July 

18, 2023 (CDWR Station 338086N1163878W001). 

 

Faulting 

 

The Coachella Valley is a seismically active area and numerous northwest-trending active faults have been 

documented within the area. The San Andreas fault zone is the most prominent fault within the Coachella 

Valley and is considered to be “active”. An “active” fault is defined as a fault that has had displacement 

within the Holocene epoch, or last ±11,000 years. Based on our review, the site is not located within a Fault 

Hazard Zone (Bryant and Hart, 2007), as defined by the state of California in the Alquist-Priolo Earthquake 

Fault Zoning Act and no evidence for faulting was observed within the site during our study. 

 

Secondary Seismic Hazards 

 

Seismically Induced Landsliding 

 

The site exhibits a generally flat topography, and no landslides exist within or near the site. Based on the 

topography across the site, the potential for landsliding is considered negligible. 

 

Seismically Induced Flooding 

 

The types of seismically induced flooding that are generally considered as potential hazards to a particular 

site normally include flooding due to a tsunami (seismic sea wave), a seiche, or failure of a major reservoir 

or other water retention structure upstream of the site. The Salton Sea is situated approximately 25 miles 

southeast of the site with an elevation approximately 500 feet lower than the subject site. In addition, no 

major reservoir is located near or upstream of the site. Therefore, the potential for seiche or inundation is 

considered negligible. Because of the inland location of the site, flooding due to a tsunami is also considered 

negligible at the site. 

 

Liquefaction and Seismically Induced Settlement 

 

Liquefaction 

Liquefaction is a soil softening dynamic response, by which an increase in the excess pore water pressure 

results in partial to full loss of soil shear strength and post-liquefaction dissipation of this pore water 

pressure results in ground settlement shortly after the earthquake. In order for liquefaction to occur, the 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 7 

 

 

 

following four factors are required: 1) saturated soil or soil situated below the groundwater table; 

2) undrained loading (strong ground shaking), such as by earthquake; 3) contractive soil response during 

shear loading, which is often the case for a soil which is initially in a loose or uncompacted state; and 

4) susceptible soil type; such as clean, uniformly graded sands, non-plastic silts, or gravels. SP117A (CGS, 

2008) discusses preliminary screening methods sufficient to evaluate liquefaction potential without 

requiring a comprehensive liquefaction analysis; one of the considerations is the depth to groundwater. 

Sites with groundwater depth of around 50 feet below ground surface and deeper (including historic high 

ground water, current conditions, and future expectations), are considered unlikely to experience 

liquefaction within the upper 50 feet of the soil profile. Due to a very deep ground water table at the subject 

property (+160 feet) the potential for liquefaction at this site is considered negligible. 

 

Dry Sand 

Dry sand settlement can occur during moderate and large earthquakes when loose, natural or fill sandy soils 

are densified and settle, often unevenly across a site. In order for dry sand settlement to occur, the following 

four factors are required: 1) Relatively dry soil or soil situated above the groundwater table; 2) undrained 

loading (strong ground shaking), such as by earthquake; 3) contractive soil response during shear loading, 

which is often the case for a soil which is initially in a loose or uncompacted state; and 4) susceptible soil 

type; such as clean, uniformly graded sands. Structures situated above seismically densifying dry sandy 

soils may experience settlement or tilting of superstructures, or both. 

 

Seismically Induced Settlement Parameters 

Assessment of liquefaction or dry sand settlement potential for a particular site requires knowledge of a 

number of regional as well as site-specific parameters, including the estimated design earthquake 

magnitude, and the associated probable peak horizontal ground acceleration at the site, subsurface 

stratigraphy and soil characteristics. Parameters such as estimated probable peak horizontal ground 

acceleration can readily be determined using published references, or by utilizing a commercially available 

computer program specifically designed to perform a probabilistic analysis. In contrast, stratigraphy and 

soil characteristics can only be accurately determined by means of a site-specific subsurface investigation 

combined with appropriate laboratory analysis of representative samples of onsite soils. 

 

Seismically Induced ‘Dry Sand’ Settlement 

Propagating earthquake waves induces shearing stresses and strains in soil materials during strong ground 

shaking. This process rearranges the structure of granular soils such that there is an increase in density, with 

a corresponding decrease in volume, which results in vertical settlement. Seismically induced settlement 

has been well documented in wet, sandy deposits undergoing liquefaction (see Tokimatsu and Seed, 1987) 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 8 

 

 

 

and in relatively dry sediments as well (Stewart et al, 1996). Specific methods to analyze potential wet and 

dry dynamic settlement are reported in Tokimatsu and Seed (1987), Pradel (1998), and Stewart et al. (2001; 

2002). Most of the referenced papers focus on the seismic effects on dry, clean sands of a uniform grain 

size, though several reports extend the literature to fine-grained soils (Stewart et al., 2001 & 2002). State 

guidelines for evaluating dynamic settlement are provided in the California Geological Survey Special 

Publication 117A (CGS, 2008). 

 

To evaluate the potential for earthquake-induced dry sand settlement at the site and its impact on the 

proposed improvements, we performed a settlement analysis of the data from our 66 feet deep boring B-1 

using LiqSVs program (Geologismiki, Version 2.3.2.11). LiqSVs is a software that evaluates liquefaction 

potential and calculates the settlement of soil deposits due to seismic loads. For the purpose of dry sand 

settlement analyses, we considered a design groundwater level at a depth of 160 feet below the existing 

ground surface, peak ground acceleration for maximum considered earthquake (PGAM) in the site vicinity 

to be approximately 0.868g, and a predominant earthquake magnitude of 7.49 Mw. 

 

The results of our analysis indicate that the loose and medium dense poorly graded eolian sand encountered 

below the ground surface to the depth of approximately 10 feet in our borings appear to be prone to dry 

sand settlement during seismic shaking. Assuming that the upper 4 feet of soil will be replaced with an 

engineered fill soil not susceptible to dynamic settlement, we estimate that total dynamic settlement up to 

about 1½ to 2-inches is possible at the ground surface due to dry sand settlement from the MCE level 

earthquake. In our opinion, differential dry sand settlement of up to about 1½ -inch over a horizontal 

distance of approximately 100 feet may occur across the proposed improvements at the ground surface. A 

summary of our dry sand settlement analysis is presented in Appendix D. The estimated dry sand settlement 

should be considered during the structural design of the foundation system of the proposed improvements. 

 

It should be noted that in the literature, prediction of the seismic settlement for unsaturated sandy soils, 

referred to as ’dry sand’ settlement, is based on observation of performance of 5 sites that were comprised 

of clean sands, i.e. sands with 5 percent fines or less. However, the shallow site soils, above the assumed 

historic high groundwater level, are comprised of sands with substantial amounts of fines. The presence of 

fines influences (reduces) the settlement potential under a seismic event. To overcome this, the measured 

resistance parameters of soils with fines are first converted to that of clean sand values and then are used in 

the predictive routines. This is an indirect approach and, therefore, lacks the performance-based verification 

requirements. In addition, sandy deposits, especially within vadose zones, contain certain amount of pore 

water that, because of surface tension properties of water molecules, create tensile intra-particle forces, 

albeit, very weak, that are expected to reduce the particle rearrangement tendencies of sandy deposits during 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 9 

 

 

 

ground shaking. Further, sometimes the ‘dry sand’ seismic settlement calculation results are multiplied by 

factor of 2 to account for bidirectional nature of seismic waves propagations. That is, the investigators are 

provided with an optional factor of 2 to multiply the results of their seismic ‘dry sand’ calculations. It is 

our professional opinion that for the reasons cited herein dry sand settlement calculations are less reliable 

compared to that of the liquefaction settlement. It is perhaps for these and potentially other reasons that 

some review agencies do not require ‘dry sand’ settlement calculations as a part of their approval process. 

 

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

General Feasibility 

 

Although the detailed development plans are not fully available, from a soils engineering and engineering 

geologic point of view and based on our current knowledge of the project, the subject property is considered 

suitable for the proposed development. It is our opinion that the proposed construction will not adversely 

affect the geologic stability of adjoining properties in an adverse manner provided grading and construction 

are performed in accordance with current standards of practice, all applicable grading ordinances and the 

recommendations presented in this report. 

 

Earthwork and Grading 

 

General Specifications 

 

All earthwork and grading should be performed in accordance with all applicable requirements of the 

grading and excavation codes of the County of Riverside, and in compliance with all applicable provisions 

of the 2022 California Building Code (2022 CBC). Grading should also be performed in accordance with 

the recommendations provided in this report. 

 

Geotechnical Observations and Testing 

 

Prior to the start of earthwork, a meeting should be held at the site with the owner’s representative, 

contractor and geotechnical consultant to discuss the work schedule and geotechnical aspects of the grading. 

Earthwork, which in this instance will generally entail removal and re-compaction of the near surface soils, 

should be accomplished under full-time observation and testing by the geotechnical consultant. A 

representative of the project geotechnical consultant should be present onsite during all earthwork 

operations to document placement and compaction of fills, as well as to document compliance with the 

other recommendations presented herein. 

 

  



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 10 

 

 

 

Demolition, Clearing and Grubbing 

 

Following any demolition, clearing operations should also include the removal of any remaining trash, 

debris, vegetation and similar deleterious materials including the root balls from any trees. Any cavities or 

excavations created upon removal of any unknown subsurface structures or inclusions should be cleared of 

loose soil, shaped to provide access for backfilling and compaction equipment and then backfilled with 

engineered fill. Note that buried deleterious materials may be encountered within the site (i.e., buried 

organics or debris) due to the past site usage and may need to be removed by hand (i.e., root pickers), during 

grading operations. 

 

The project geotechnical consultant should provide periodic observation and testing services during final 

clearing and grubbing operations to document compliance with the above recommendations. In addition, 

should unusual or adverse soil conditions or buried structures be encountered during grading that are not 

described herein, these conditions should be brought to the immediate attention of the project geotechnical 

consultant for corrective recommendations. 

 

Unsuitable Soil Removals and Bottom Processing 

 

Any existing undocumented fill and near surface native soils are considered unsuitable for support of 

proposed structures and should be removed to underlying competent alluvial materials as approved by the 

project geotechnical consultant. As such, the estimated depth of removal is recommended to be 

approximately 4 feet below the existing ground surface, or 3 feet below the bottom of the deepest footing, 

whichever is deeper. Consideration should be given to locally deepening the excavation at the location of 

tree roots, any underground structures, or proposed subterranean features (if any), including swimming 

pools if proposed, in order to provide a uniform depth of compacted fill in all areas. Soil removals could be 

locally deeper depending upon the actual exposed conditions encountered during grading. At a minimum, 

the over-excavation should extend a distance beyond the perimeter of the supported structure equal to the 

depth of the over-excavation. The actual depths and horizontal limits of removals and over-excavations 

should be evaluated upon availability of the site grading plan and during grading on the basis of 

observations and testing performed by the project geotechnical consultant. Excavated soils, if found free of 

deleterious materials, are considered acceptable for use as compacted fill. 

 

Prior to placing engineered fill, the exposed bottom surfaces in the removal areas should be approved by a 

representative of project geotechnical consultant. The exposed bottom(s) should be scarified to a minimum 

depth of 12 inches, moisture-conditioned or air-dried to achieve approximately two percent above optimum 

moisture content and then compacted with a heavy construction equipment prior to placement of fill. The 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 11 

 

 

 

minimum compaction of the upper 12 inches of the removal bottom should meet or exceed 90 percent 

relative compaction. The laboratory maximum dry density, the standard for determining relative 

compaction, and optimum moisture content for each change in soil type should be determined in accordance 

with Test Method ASTM D 1557. 

 

Grading at Site Boundaries 

 

Average remedial removals within the building pad areas, extending horizontally beyond the limits of the 

proposed structures a distance equal to the depth of the overexcavation, are anticipated to be on the order 

of 4 feet below the existing ground surface, although locally deeper over-excavation is possible. A vertical 

cut at the perimeter of any overexcavation area along the property lines is not expected to remain stable. As 

such, vertical cuts immediately adjacent to existing structures (if any) are not acceptable from geotechnical 

standpoint. Specific recommendations for protection of any existing structures or improvements adjacent 

to the recommended overexcavation, either interior or at the perimeter of the site can be provided following 

review of site development plans. Recommendations may include shoring and slot-cutting for areas 

adjacent to property boundaries and underpinning, or other methods intended to prevent settlement or 

distress to existing improvements. 

 

Excavation Characteristics 

 

Based on the observed soil types in our borings, shallow excavation of soils within the site are expected to 

be readily excavatable with conventional earthmoving equipment. 

 

Fill Placement 

 

All fill materials should be placed in approximately 6- to 8-inch-thick loose lifts, watered or air-dried as 

necessary to achieve a minimum moisture content at least 2 percent above the optimum moisture condition, 

and then compacted in-place to a minimum relative compaction of 90 percent. The laboratory maximum 

dry density and optimum moisture content for each change in soil type should be determined in accordance 

with ASTM D 1557. 

 

Imported Soils 

 

If imported soils are required to complete the planned grading, these soils should consist of clean materials 

devoid of rock exceeding a maximum dimension of 4 inches, organics, trash and other deleterious materials. 

To avoid making revisions to the foundation design, imported soils should also be granular and exhibit a 

very low expansion potential (Expansion Index 0-20). Prospective import soils should be observed at the 

source, tested and approved by the geotechnical consultant prior to importing the soils to the site. It is 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 12 

 

 

 

recommended that the project environmental consultant should also be notified so that they can confirm the 

suitability of the proposed import material from an environmental standpoint. 

 

Volumetric Changes - Bulking, Shrinkage and Subsidence 

 

An average shrinkage factor estimated at 10 to 15 percent is anticipated when excavated on-site soils are 

replaced as properly compacted fill. A subsidence, estimated at 0.15 to 0.25 feet may also occur when 

exposed bottom surfaces in removal areas are scarified and re-compacted as recommended herein. These 

estimates of shrinkage and subsidence are intended for use by project planners in estimating earthwork 

quantities and should not be considered absolute values. Contingencies should be made for balancing 

earthwork quantities based on actual shrinkage and subsidence that will occur during grading. 

 

Temporary Excavations 

 

Temporary excavations up to a depth of up to roughly four feet below existing grades may be required to 

accomplish the recommended over-excavation of existing soils. Based on the physical properties of the 

onsite soils, any temporary excavations exceeding 4 feet in height should be cut back to an inclination of 

1.5:1 (h:v) or flatter for the duration of the over-excavation of unsuitable soil material and replacement as 

compacted fill, as well as placement of underground utilities. During remedial grading the estimated 1.5:1 

(h:v) recommendation may possibly be flattened or steepened, depending on conditions observed by a 

representative of the project geotechnical consultant. Other factors which should be considered with respect 

to the stability of the temporary slopes include construction traffic and/or storage of materials on or near 

the tops of the slopes, construction scheduling, presence of nearby walls or structures adjacent to the 

excavation and weather conditions at the time of construction. Applicable requirements of the California 

Construction and General Industry Safety Orders, the Occupational Safety and Health Act, OSHA, of 1970 

and the Construction Safety Act should also be followed. 

 

Expansive Soil Conditions 

 

Based on available data, including the non-plastic, granular nature of the soils encountered in the subsurface 

exploration and the Expansion Index equal to zero in the tested representative sample, near-surface soils 

are considered Very Low in expansion potential (Expansion Index less than 20). Additional sampling and 

testing should be performed during site grading for determining actual expansion potential of the supporting 

building pad soils. 

  



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 13 

 

 

 

PRELIMINARY FOUNDATION DESIGN CONSIDERATIONS 

 

Seismic Design Parameters 

 

Earthquake loads on earthen structures and buildings are a function of ground acceleration which may be 

determined from the site-specific ground motion analysis. Alternatively, a design response spectrum can be 

developed for certain sites based on the code guidelines. To provide the design team with the parameters 

necessary to construct the design acceleration response spectrum for this project, we used two computer 

applications. Specifically, the first computer application, which was jointly developed by Structural 

Engineering Association of California (SEAOC) and California’s Office of Statewide Health Planning and 

Development (OSHPD), the SEA/OSHPD Seismic Design Maps Tool website, https://seismicmaps.org, is 

used to calculate the ground motion parameters. The second computer application, the United Stated 

Geological Survey (USGS) Unified Hazard Tool website, https://earthquake.usgs.gov/hazards/interactive/, 

is used to estimate the earthquake magnitude and the distance to surface projection of the fault. The results 

obtained from these websites are presented in Appendix C. 

 

To run the above computer applications, site latitude and longitude, seismic risk category and knowledge 

of site class are required. The site class definition depends on the direct measurement of certain soil 

properties and the ASCE 7-16 recommended procedure for calculating the average shear wave velocity 

within the upper 30 meters (approximately 100 feet) of site soils. Several methods exist to determine the 

shear wave velocity, including correlation with SPT blow counts. Based on the blow counts obtained in 

boring B-1 (including converting California Modified Sampler blow counts to SPT after Burmister (1948)) 

and Petra’s knowledge of site geologic conditions, Site Class D (D – Stiff Soil as per the SEA/OSHPD 

software) has been assigned to the subject site. 

 

Petra has assumed that the proposed structures should be categorized as Risk Category II pursuant to 2022 

CBC Table 1604.5. If the specifics of the proposed project warrant a different Risk Category, the members 

of the design team responsible for this determination may assign the appropriate Risk Category. Seismic 

design parameters provided below are not impacted by the assumed Risk Category. 

 

The following table, Table 2, provides parameters required to construct the seismic response coefficient, 

Cs, curve based on ASCE 7-16, Article 12.8 guidelines. A printout of the computer output is attached in 

Appendix C. The results of conversion of blow count data to small-strain shear wave velocity are also 

provided in Appendix C. 

 

  

https://seismicmaps.org/
https://earthquake.usgs.gov/hazards/interactive/


NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 14 

 

 

 

TABLE 2 

Seismic Design Parameters 

Ground Motion Parameters Specific Reference 
Parameter 

Value 
Unit 

Site Latitude (North) - 33.796486 ° 

Site Longitude (West) - -116.394338 ° 

Site Class Definition Section 1613.2.2 (1), Chapter 20 (2) D-Stiff (4) - 

Assumed Risk Category Table 1604A.5 (1) II - 

Mw - Earthquake Magnitude USGS Unified Hazard Tool (3) 7.49 (3) - 

R – Distance to Surface Projection of Fault USGS Unified Hazard Tool (3) 6.61 (3) km 

Ss - Mapped Spectral Response Acceleration 

Short Period (0.2 second) Figure 1613.2.1(1) (1) 1.819 (4) g 

S1 - Mapped Spectral Response Acceleration 

Long Period (1.0 second) Figure 1613.2.1(2) (1) 0.757 (4) g 

Fa – Short Period (0.2 second) Site Coefficient Table 1613A.2.3(1) (1) 1.0 (4) - 

Fv – Long Period (1.0 second) Site Coefficient Table 1613A.2.3(2) (1) Null (4) - 

SMS – MCER Spectral Response Acceleration Parameter 

Adjusted for Site Class Effect (0.2 second) 
Equation 16-36 (1) 1.819 (4) g 

SM1 - MCER Spectral Response Acceleration Parameter 

Adjusted for Site Class Effect (1.0 second) 
Equation 16-37 (1) Null (4) g 

SDS - Design Spectral Response Acceleration at 0.2-s Equation 16-38 (1) 1.213 (4) g 

SD1 - Design Spectral Response Acceleration at 1-s Equation 16-39 (1) Null (4) g 

To = 0.2 SD1/ SDS
 Section 11.4.6 (2) Null s 

Ts = SD1/ SDS
 Section 11.4.6 (2) Null s 

TL - Long Period Transition Period Figure 22-14 (2) 8 (4) s 

PGA - Peak Ground Acceleration at MCEG 
(*) Figure 22-9 (2) 0.789 (4) g 

FPGA - Site Coefficient Adjusted for Site Class Effect 
(2) Table 11.8-1 (2) 1.1 (4) - 

PGAM –Peak Ground Acceleration (2) 

Adjusted for Site Class Effect 
Equation 11.8-1 (2) 0.868 (4) g 

Design PGA ≈ (⅔ PGAM) - Slope Stability (†) Similar to Eqs. 16-38 & 16-39 (2) 0.58 g 

Design PGA ≈ (0.4 SDS) – Short Retaining Walls 
(‡) Equation 11.4-5 (2) 0.49 g 

CRS - Short Period Risk Coefficient Figure 22-18A (2) 0.893 (4) - 

CR1 - Long Period Risk Coefficient Figure 22-19A (2) 0.879 (4) - 

SDC - Seismic Design Category (§) Section 1613.2.5 (1) Null (4) - 

References: 
(1)  California Building Code (CBC), 2022, California Code of Regulations, Title 24, Part 2, Volume I and II. 
(2) American Society of Civil Engineers/Structural Engineering Institute (ASCE/SEI), 2016, Minimum Design Loads and Associated 

Criteria for Buildings and Other Structures, Standards 7-16.  
(3) USGS Unified Hazard Tool - https://earthquake.usgs.gov/hazards/interactive/ 
(4) SEI/OSHPD Seismic Design Map Application – https://seismicmaps.org 
Related References:  
    Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), 2015, NEHERP (National Earthquake Hazards Reduction Program) 

    Recommended Seismic Provision for New Building and Other Structures (FEMA P-1050). 

Notes: 

*   PGA Calculated at the MCE return period of 2475 years (2 percent chance of exceedance in 50 years). 
†   PGA Calculated at the Design Level of ⅔ of MCE; approximately equivalent to a return period of 475 years (10 percent chance of 

exceedance in 50 years). 
‡   PGA Calculated for short, stubby retaining walls with an infinitesimal (zero) fundamental period. 
§   The designation provided herein may be superseded by the structural engineer in accordance with Section 1613.2.5.1, if applicable. 

  

https://earthquake.usgs.gov/hazards/interactive/
https://seismicmaps.org/


NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 15 

 

 

 

Discussion 

 

General 

Owing to the characteristics of the subsurface soils, as defined by Site Class D-Stiff Soil designation, and 

proximity of the site to the sources of major ground shaking, the site is expected to experience strong ground 

shaking during its anticipated life span. Under these circumstances, where the code-specified design 

response spectrum may not adequately characterize site response, the 2022 CBC typically requires a site-

specific seismic response analysis to be performed. This requirement is signified/identified by the “null” 

values that are output using SEA/OSHPD software in determination of short period, but mostly, in 

determination of long period seismic parameters, see Table 2. 

 

For conditions where a “null” value is reported for the site, a variety of design approaches are permitted by 

2022 CBC and ASCE 7-16 in lieu of a site-specific seismic hazard analysis. For any specific site, these 

alternative design approaches, which include Equivalent Lateral Force (ELF) procedure, Modal Response 

Spectrum Analysis (MRSA) procedure, Linear Response History Analysis (LRHA) procedure and 

Simplified Design procedure, among other methods, are expected to provide results that may or may not be 

more economical than those that are obtained if a site-specific seismic hazards analysis is performed. These 

design approaches and their limitations should be evaluated by the project structural engineer. 

 

Seismic Design Category 

Please note that the Seismic Design Category, SDC, is also designated as “null” in Table 2. For Risk 

Category is I, II, or III structures, where the mapped spectral response acceleration parameter at 1 – second 

period, S1, is greater than or equal to 0.75, the 2022 CBC, Section 1613.2.5 requires the assignment to 

Seismic Design Category E. 

 

Equivalent Lateral Force Method 

Should the Equivalent Lateral Force (ELF) method be used for seismic design of structural elements, the 

value of Constant Velocity Domain Transition Period, Ts, is estimated to be 0.71 seconds and the value of 

Long Period Transition Period, TL, is provided in Table 2 for construction of Seismic Response Coefficient 

– Period (Cs -T) curve that is used in the ELF procedure. 

 

As stated herein, the subject site is considered to be within a Site Class D-Stiff Soil. A site-specific ground 

motion hazard analysis is not required for structures on Site Class D-Stiff Soil with S1 > 0.2 provided that 

the Seismic Response Coefficient, Cs, is determined in accordance with ASCE 7-16, Article 12.8 and 

structural design is performed in accordance with Equivalent Lateral Force (ELF) procedure. 

 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 16 

 

 

 

Foundation System 

 

In consideration of the existing surficial soils and the recommended remedial grading herein, conventional 

shallow foundations, consisting of isolated column footings interconnected with tie beams and continuous 

footings, may be used for support of the proposed structures. Structural foundation loads are currently 

unknown but are assumed to be typical for two-story light-framed construction. 

 

Eccentrically loaded footings should be avoided if possible. In the event that the design requires eccentric 

loading, the design should consider the effective footing dimensions rather than actual dimensions. Pad 

footings located closer than 2 x B (where B is the footing width) to an adjacent footing should be designed 

as a single footing. Allowable bearing capacity for square footings apply as long as L/B is less than 5 (where 

L is the footing length). 

 

Allowable Soil Bearing Capacity, Anticipated Settlement and Lateral Resistance 

 

Pad Footings 

Based on the test results (ultimate friction angle of 26.4 degrees and negligible cohesion), an allowable soil 

bearing capacity of 2,000 pounds per square foot, including dead and live loads, may be utilized for design 

of 24-inch-square pad footings that are a part of the slab system and embedded a minimum of 12 inches 

below the lowest adjacent compacted final grade. This value may be increased by 20 percent for each foot 

of embedment and by 10 percent for each additional foot of width, to a maximum value of 3,000 pounds 

per square foot. The recommended allowable bearing value includes both dead and live loads and may be 

increased by one-third for short duration wind and seismic forces. 

 

Continuous Footings 

An allowable soil bearing capacity of 1,500 pounds per square foot may be utilized for design of continuous 

footings founded at a minimum depth of 18 inches below the lowest adjacent final grade. This value may 

be increased by 20 percent for each additional foot of depth and by 10 percent for each additional foot of 

width, to a maximum value of 3,000 pounds per square foot. The recommended allowable bearing value 

includes both dead and live loads and may be increased by one-third for short duration wind and seismic 

forces. 

 

Estimated Static Settlement 

 

Based on the allowable bearing values provided above, total static settlement of the footings under the 

anticipated loads is expected to be on the order of 1 inch. Differential settlement is expected to be less than 

¾ inch over a horizontal span of 30 feet. The majority of settlement is likely to take place as footing loads 

are applied or shortly thereafter. 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 17 

 

 

 

Seismically Induced Settlement 

 

As previously noted, if remedial grading removes and replaces the upper 4 feet of existing soils as 

compacted fill, the total seismic settlement is estimated at approximately 2 inches. Differential seismic 

settlement is estimated to be around 1 ½ inches over a span of 100 feet. 

 

Lateral Resistance 

 

A passive earth pressure of 250 pounds per square foot per foot of depth, to a maximum value of 2,500 

pounds per square foot, may be used to determine lateral bearing resistance for footings. In addition, a 

coefficient of friction of 0.30 times the dead load forces may be used between concrete and the supporting 

soils to determine lateral sliding resistance. The above values may be increased by one-third when designing 

for transient wind or seismic forces. It should be noted that the above values are based on the condition 

where footings are cast in direct contact with compacted fill or competent native soils. In cases where the 

footing sides are formed, all backfill placed against the footings upon removal of forms should be 

compacted to at least 90 percent of the applicable maximum dry density. 

 

Guidelines for Footings and Slabs on-Grade Design and Construction 

 

Based on the sandy nature of the material encountered in the borings and Petra’s experience in the area, the 

site soils have expansive indices less than 20. As indicated in Section 1803.5.3 of 2022 California Building 

Code (2022 CBC), these soils are considered non-expansive and, as such, the design of slabs on-grade is 

considered to be exempt from the procedures outlined in Sections 1808.6.2 of the 2022 CBC and may be 

performed using any method deemed rational and appropriate by the project structural engineer. However, 

the following minimum recommendations are presented herein for conditions where the project design team 

may require geotechnical engineering guidelines for design and construction of footings and slabs on-grade 

the project site. 

 

The design and construction guidelines that follow are based on the above soil conditions and 

may be considered for reducing the effects of variability in fabric, composition and, therefore, 

the detrimental behavior of the site soils such as excessive short- and long-term total and 

differential heave or settlement. These guidelines have been developed on the basis of the 

previous experience of this firm on projects with similar soil conditions. Although construction 

performed in accordance with these guidelines has been found to reduce post-construction 

movement and/or distress, they generally do not positively eliminate all potential effects of 

variability in soils characteristics and future heave or settlement. 

 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 18 

 

 

 

It should also be noted that the suggestions for dimension and reinforcement provided herein 

are performance-based and intended only as preliminary guidelines to achieve adequate 

performance under the anticipated soil conditions. However, they should not be construed as 

replacement for structural engineering analyses, experience and judgment. The project 

structural engineer, architect and/or civil engineer should make appropriate adjustments to 

slab and footing dimensions, and reinforcement type, size and spacing to account for internal 

concrete forces (e.g., thermal, shrinkage and expansion), as well as external forces (e.g., 

applied loads) as deemed necessary. Consideration should also be given to minimum design 

criteria as dictated by local building code requirements. 

 

Conventional Slabs on-Grade System 

 

Considering an expansion index of less than 20, we recommend that footings and floor slabs be designed 

and constructed in accordance with the following minimum criteria. 

 

Footings 

 

1. Exterior continuous footings supporting one- and two-story structures should be founded at a minimum 

depth of 18 inches below the lowest adjacent final grade, respectively. Interior continuous footings may 

be founded at a minimum depth of 12 inches below the top of the adjacent finish floor slabs. 

 

2. In accordance with Table 1809.7 of 2022 CBC for light-frame construction, all continuous footings 

should have minimum widths of 12 inches for one- and two-story structures. We recommend all 

continuous footings should be reinforced with a minimum of two No. 4 bars, one top and one bottom. 

 

3. A minimum 12-inch-wide grade beam founded at the same depth as adjacent footings should be 

provided across garage entrances or similar openings (such as large doors or bay windows). The grade 

beam should be reinforced in a similar manner as provided above. 

 

4. Interior isolated pad footings, if required, should be a minimum of 24 inches square and founded at a 

minimum depth of 12 inches below the bottoms of the adjacent floor slabs for one- and two-story 

structures. Pad footings should be reinforced with No. 4 bars spaced a maximum of 18 inches on 

centers, both ways, placed near the bottoms of the footings. 

 

5. Exterior isolated pad footings intended for support of roof overhangs such as second-story decks, patio 

covers, and similar construction should be a minimum of 24 inches square and founded at a minimum 

depth of 18 inches below the lowest adjacent final grade. The pad footings should be reinforced with 

No. 4 bars spaced a maximum of 18 inches on centers, both ways, placed near the bottoms of the 

footings. Exterior isolated pad footings may need to be connected to adjacent pad and/or continuous 

footings via tie beams at the discretion of the project structural engineer. 

 

6. The minimum footing dimensions and reinforcement recommended herein may be modified (increased 

or decreased subject to the constraints of Chapter 18 of the 2022 CBC) by the structural engineer 

responsible for foundation design based on calculations, engineering experience and judgment. 

 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 19 

 

 

 

Building Floor Slabs 

 

1. Concrete floor slabs should be a minimum of 4 inches thick and reinforced with No. 3 bars spaced a 

maximum of 24 inches on centers, both ways. Alternatively, the structural engineer may recommend 

the use of prefabricated welded wire mesh for slab reinforcement. For this condition, the welded wire 

mesh should be of sheet type (not rolled) and should consist of 6x6/W2.9xW2.9 (per the Wire 

Reinforcement Institute, WRI, designation) or stronger. All slab reinforcement should be supported on 

concrete chairs or brick to ensure the desired placement near mid-depth. Care should be exercised to 

prevent warping of the welded wire mesh between the chairs in order to ensure its placement at the 

desired mid-slab position. 

 

Slab dimension, reinforcement type, size and spacing need to account for internal concrete forces (e.g., 

thermal, shrinkage and expansion) as well as external forces (e.g., applied loads), as deemed necessary. 

Consideration should also be given to using a control joint spacing on the order of 2 feet in each 

direction for each inch of slab thickness. 

 

It should be noted that some of the non-climatic site parameters, which may impact slabs on-

grade performance, are not known at this time, as it is the case for many projects at the design 

stage. Some of these site parameters include unsaturated soils diffusion conditions pre- and 

post-construction (e.g., casting the slabs at the end of long, dry or wet periods, maintenance 

during long, dry and wet periods, etc.), landscaping, alterations in site surface gradient, 

irrigation, trees, etc. While the effects of any or a combination of these parameters on slab 

performance cannot be accurately predicted, maintaining moisture content equilibrium within 

the soils mass and planting trees at a distance greater than half of their mature height away 

from the edge of foundation may reduce the potential for the adverse impact of these site 

parameters on slabs on-grade performance. 

 

2. Living area concrete floor slabs and areas to receive moisture sensitive floor covering should be 

underlain with a moisture vapor retarder consisting of a minimum 10-mil-thick polyethylene or 

polyolefin membrane that meets the minimum requirements of ASTM E96 and ASTM E1745 for vapor 

retarders (such as Husky Yellow Guard®, Stego® Wrap, or equivalent). All laps within the membrane 

should be sealed, and at least 2 inches of clean sand should be placed over the membrane to promote 

uniform curing of the concrete. 

 

In general, to reduce the potential for punctures, the membrane should be placed on a pad surface that 

has been graded smooth without any sharp protrusions. If a smooth surface cannot be achieved by 

grading, consideration should be given to lowering the pad finished grade an additional inch and then 

placing a 1-inch-thick leveling course of sand across the pad surface prior to the placement of the 

membrane.. Foot traffic on the membrane should be reduced to a minimum. Additional steps would 

also need to be taken to prevent puncturing of the vapor retarder during concrete placement. 

 

To comply with Section 1907.1.1 of the 2022 CBC, the living area concrete floor slab should also be 

underlain with capillary break consisting of a minimum of 4 inches of gravel or crushed stone 

containing not more than 10 percent of material that passes through a No. 4 sieve. The capillary break 

should be placed below the 10-mil moisture vapor retarder and may be considered as the structural fill 

recommended above. 

 

  



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 20 

 

 

 

At the present time, some slab designers, geotechnical professionals and concrete experts view 

the sand layer below the slab (blotting sand) as a place for entrapment of excess moisture that 

could adversely impact moisture-sensitive floor coverings. As a preventive measure, the 

potential for moisture intrusion into the concrete slab could be reduced if the concrete is placed 

directly on the vapor retarder. However, if this sand layer is omitted, appropriate curing 

methods must be implemented to ensure that the concrete slab cures uniformly. A qualified 

materials engineer or contractor with experience in slab design, construction, and curing 

should provide recommendations for alternative methods of curing and supervise the 

construction process to ensure uniform slab curing. Additional steps would also need to be 

taken to prevent puncturing of the vapor retarder during concrete placement. 

 

3. Garage floor slabs should be a minimum 4 inches thick and reinforced in a similar manner as living 

area floor slabs. Garage slabs should also be poured separately from adjacent wall footings with a 

positive separation maintained using ¾-inch-minimum felt expansion joint material. To control the 

propagation of shrinkage cracks, garage floor slabs should be quartered with weakened plane joints. 

Consideration should be given to placement of a moisture vapor retarder below the garage slab, similar 

to that provided in Item 2 above, should the garage slab be overlain with moisture sensitive floor 

covering. 

 

4. Presaturation of the subgrade below floor slabs will not be required; however, prior to placing concrete, 

the subgrade below all dwelling and garage floor slab areas should be thoroughly moistened to achieve 

a moisture content that is at least equal to or slightly greater than optimum moisture content. This 

moisture content should penetrate to a minimum depth of 12 inches below the bottoms of the slabs. 

 

5. The minimum dimensions and reinforcement recommended herein for building floor slabs may be 

modified (increased or decreased subject to the constraints of Chapter 18 of the 2022 CBC) by the 

structural engineer responsible for foundation design based on calculations, engineering experience and 

judgment. 

 

Post-Tensioned Slabs on-Grade System 

 

In consideration of the expansion index of less than 20, as predominantly exhibited by onsite soils, any 

rational and appropriate procedure may be chosen by the project structural engineer for the design of post-

tensioned slabs on-grade. Should the design engineer choose to follow the latest Code-adopted edition of 

the procedure published by the Post-Tensioning Institute (PTI DC 10.5), the following minimum design 

criteria are provided Table 3, below. 

 

  



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 21 

 

 

 

TABLE 3 

Presumptive Post-Tensioned Slab on-Grade Design Parameters for PTI Procedure 

Soil Information 

Approximate Depth of Constant Suction, feet 9 

Approximate Soil Suction, pF 3.9 

Inferred Thornthwaite Index: -20 

Average Edge Moisture Variation Distance, em in feet: 

Center Lift 

Edge Lift 

 

9.0 

4.7 

Anticipated Swell, ym in inches: 

Center Lift 

Edge Lift 

 

0.25 

0.45 

 

Modulus of Subgrade Reaction 

The modulus of subgrade reaction for design of load bearing elements depends on the size of the element 

and soil-structure interaction. However, as a first level of approximation, this value may be assumed to be 

125 pounds per cubic inch. 

 

Minimum Design Recommendations 

The soil values provided above may be utilized by the project structural engineer to design post-tensioned 

slabs on-ground in accordance with Section 1808.6.2 of the 2022 CBC and the PTI publication. Thicker 

floor slabs and larger footing sizes may be required for structural reasons and should govern the design if 

more restrictive than the minimum recommendations provided below: 

 

1. Exterior continuous footings for one- and two-story structures should be founded at a minimum depth 

of 12 inches below the lowest adjacent finished ground surface. Interior footings may be founded at a 

minimum depth of 10 inches below the tops of the adjacent finish floor slabs.  

 

2. In accordance with Table 1809.7 of 2022 CBC for light-frame construction, all continuous footings 

should have minimum widths of 12 inches for one- and two-story construction. We recommend all 

continuous footings should be reinforced with a minimum of two No. 4 bars, one top and one bottom. 

Alternatively, post-tensioned tendons may be utilized in the perimeter continuous footings in lieu of 

the reinforcement bars. 

 

3. A minimum 12-inch-wide grade beam founded at the same depth as adjacent footings should be 

provided across the large entrances or similar openings (such as warehouse doors or bay windows). 

The grade beam should be reinforced in a similar manner as provided above. 

 

4. Interior isolated pad footings, if required, should be a minimum of 24 inches square and founded at a 

minimum depth of 12 inches below the bottoms of the adjacent floor slabs for one- and two-story 

buildings. Pad footings should be reinforced with No. 4 bars spaced a maximum of 18 inches on centers, 

both ways, placed near the bottoms of the footings. 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 22 

 

 

 

5. Exterior isolated pad footings intended for support of roof overhangs such as second-story decks, patio 

covers, and similar construction should be a minimum of 24 inches square and founded at a minimum 

depth of 18 inches below the lowest adjacent final grade. The pad footings should be reinforced with 

No. 4 bars spaced a maximum of 18 inches on centers, both ways, placed near the bottoms of the 

footings. Exterior isolated pad footings may need to be connected to adjacent pad and/or continuous 

footings via tie beams at the discretion of the project structural engineer. 

 

6. The thickness of the floor slabs should be determined by the project structural engineer with 

consideration given to the expansion index of the onsite soils; however, we recommend that a minimum 

slab thickness of 4 inches be considered. 

 

7. As an alternative to designing 4-inch-thick post-tensioned slabs with perimeter footings as described in 

Items 1 and 2 above, the structural engineer may design the foundation system using a thickened slab 

design. The minimum thickness of this uniformly thick slab should be 7.5 inches. The engineer in 

charge of post-tensioned slab design may also opt to use any combination of slab thickness and footing 

embedment depth as deemed appropriate based on their engineering experience and judgment. 

 

8. Concrete floor slabs and areas to receive moisture sensitive floor covering should be underlain with a 

moisture vapor retarder consisting of a minimum 10-mil-thick polyethylene or polyolefin membrane 

that meets the minimum requirements of ASTM E96 and ASTM E1745 for vapor retarders (such as 

Husky Yellow Guard®, Stego® Wrap, or equivalent). All laps within the membrane should be sealed, 

and at least 2 inches of clean sand should be placed over the membrane to promote uniform curing of 

the concrete. To reduce the potential for punctures, the membrane should be placed on a pad surface 

that has been graded smooth without any sharp protrusions. If a smooth surface cannot be achieved by 

grading, consideration should be given to lowering the pad finished grade an additional inch and then 

placing a 1-inch-thick leveling course of sand across the pad surface prior to the placement of the 

membrane. 

 

At the present time, some slab designers, geotechnical professionals and concrete experts view 

the sand layer below the slab (blotting sand) as a place for entrapment of excess moisture that 

could adversely impact moisture-sensitive floor coverings. As a preventive measure, the 

potential for moisture intrusion into the concrete slab could be reduced if the concrete is placed 

directly on the vapor retarder. However, if this sand layer is omitted, appropriate curing 

methods must be implemented to ensure that the concrete slab cures uniformly. A qualified 

materials engineer with experience in slab design and construction should provide 

recommendations for alternative methods of curing and supervise the construction process to 

ensure uniform slab curing. Additional steps would also need to be taken to prevent puncturing 

of the vapor retarder during concrete placement. 

 

9. Presaturation of the subgrade below floor slabs will not be required; however, prior to placing concrete, 

the subgrade below all dwelling and garage floor slab areas should be thoroughly moistened to achieve 

a moisture content that is at least equal to or slightly greater than optimum moisture content. This 

moisture content should penetrate to a minimum depth of 12 inches below the bottoms of the slabs. 

 

10. The minimum footing dimensions and reinforcement recommended herein may be modified (increased 

or decreased subject to the constraints of Chapter 18 of the 2022 CBC) by the structural engineer 

responsible for foundation design based on calculations, engineering experience and judgment. 

 

  



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 23 

 

 

 

Foundation Excavation Observations 

 

All footing trenches should be observed by a representative of the project geotechnical consultant to 

document that they have been excavated into competent bearing soils prior to the placement of forms, 

reinforcement or concrete. The excavations should be trimmed neat, level and square. All loose, sloughed 

or moisture-softened soils and/or any construction debris should be removed prior to the placing of 

concrete. Excavated soils derived from footing and/or utility trenches should not be placed in building slab-

on-grade areas or exterior concrete flatwork areas unless the soils are compacted to at least 90 percent of 

maximum dry density. 

 

General Corrosivity Screening 

 

As a screening level study, very limited chemical and electrical tests were performed on samples considered 

representative of the onsite soils to identify potential corrosive characteristics of these soils. The common 

indicators associated with soil corrosivity include water-soluble sulfate and chloride levels, pH (a measure 

of acidity), and minimum electrical resistivity. Test results are presented in Table 4 below. 

 

It should be noted that Petra does not practice corrosion engineering; therefore, the test results, 

opinion and engineering judgment provided herein should be considered as general guidelines 

only. Additional analyses would be warranted, especially for cases where buried metallic building 

materials (such as copper and cast or ductile iron pipes) in contact with site soils are planned for 

the project. In many cases, the project geotechnical engineer may not be informed of these choices. 

Therefore, for conditions where such elements are considered, we recommend that other, relevant 

project design professionals (e.g., the architect, landscape architect, civil and/or structural 

engineer) also consider recommending a qualified corrosion engineer to conduct additional 

sampling and testing of near-surface soils during the final stages of site grading to provide a 

complete assessment of soil corrosivity. Recommendations to mitigate the detrimental effects of 

corrosive soils on buried metallic and other building materials that may be exposed to corrosive 

soils should be provided by the corrosion engineer as deemed appropriate. 

 

In general, a soil’s water-soluble sulfate levels and pH relate to the potential for concrete degradation; 

water-soluble chlorides in soils impact ferrous metals embedded or encased in concrete, e.g., reinforcing 

steel; and electrical resistivity is a measure of a soil’s corrosion potential to a variety of buried metals used 

in the building industry, such as copper tubing and cast or ductile iron pipes. Table 4, below, presents test 

results. with an interpretation of current code indicators and guidelines that are commonly used in this 

industry. The table includes the classifications of the soils as they relate to the various tests, as well as a 

general recommendation for possible mitigation measures in view of the potential adverse impact on 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 24 

 

 

 

various components of the proposed structures in direct contact with site soils. The guidelines provided 

herein should be evaluated and confirmed, or modified, in their entirety by the project structural engineer, 

corrosion engineer and/or the contractor responsible for concrete placement for structural concrete used in 

exterior and interior footings, interior slabs on-ground, garage slabs, wall foundations and concrete exposed 

to weather such as driveways, patios, porches, walkways, ramps, steps, curbs, etc. 

 

TABLE 4 

Soil Corrosivity Screening Results 

Test Test Results Classification General Recommendations 

Soluble Sulfates  

(Cal 417) 
0.0018 percent 

S0(1) 

Not Applicable 

No cement type restrictions; no water/cement ratio 

restrictions; 

 min. f ’c = 2,500 psi 

pH 

(Cal 643) 
7.5 Slightly Alkaline No special recommendations 

Soluble Chloride 

(Cal 422)  
330 ppm 

C1(2) 

Moderate 

 

C2(4) 

Severe 

Residence: No special recommendations, f ’c 

should not be less than 2,500 psi. 

 

Pools & Decking: Water/cement ratio should not 

exceed 0.40; min. f ’c = 5,000 psi 

Resistivity  

(Cal 643) 
20,000 ohm-cm 

Mildly 

Corrosive(3) 

A corrosion engineer should be consulted for long 

term protection of metallic elements in contact 

with site soils 

Notes: 

1. ACI 318-14, Section 19.3 

2. ACI 318-14, Section 19.3 

3. Pierre R. Roberge, “Handbook of Corrosion Engineering” 

4. Exposure classification C2 applies specifically to swimming pools and appurtenant concrete elements 

 

Post-Grading Considerations 

 

Utility Trenches 

 

All utility trenches backfill should be compacted to a minimum relative compaction of 90 percent. Due to 

the nature of the upper onsite earth materials, flooding and jetting techniques should be avoided. Therefore, 

trench backfill materials should be placed in lifts no greater than approximately 12 inches in thickness, 

watered or air-dried as necessary to achieve near optimum moisture conditions, and then mechanically 

compacted in place to a minimum relative compaction of 90 percent. A representative of the project 

geotechnical consultant should probe and test the backfills to verify adequate compaction. 

 
As an alternative for shallow trenches where pipe or utility lines may be damaged by mechanical 

compaction equipment, such as under building floor slabs, imported clean sand having a sand equivalent 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 25 

 

 

 

(SE) value of 30 or greater may be utilized. The sand backfill materials should be watered to achieve near 

optimum moisture conditions and then tamped into place. No specific relative compaction will be required; 

however, observation, probing, and if deemed necessary, testing should be performed by a representative 

of the project geotechnical consultant to verify an adequate degree of compaction. 

 
If clean, imported sand is to be used for backfill of exterior utility trenches, it is recommended that the 

upper 12 inches of trench backfill materials consist of properly compacted onsite soil materials. This is to 

mitigate infiltration of irrigation and rainwater into granular trench backfill materials. 

 
Where an exterior and/or interior utility trench is proposed in a direction parallel to a building footing, the 

bottom of the trench should not extend below a 1:1 (horizontal to vertical) plane projected downward from 

the bottom edge of the adjacent footing. Where this condition occurs, the adjacent footing should be 

deepened, or the utility constructed and the trench backfilled and compacted prior to footing construction. 

Where utility trenches cross under a building footing, these trenches should be backfilled with on-site soils 

at the point where the trench crosses under the footing to reduce the potential for water to migrate under 

the floor slabs. 

 

Site Drainage 

 

Positive surface drainage systems consisting of a combination of sloped concrete flatwork/asphalt 

pavement, sheet flow gradients, swales and surface area drains (where needed) should be provided around 

the building and within any planter areas to collect and direct all surface waters to an appropriate drainage 

facility as determined by the project civil engineer. The ground surfaces of planter and landscape areas that 

are located within 10 feet of building foundations should be sloped at a minimum gradient of 5 percent 

away from the foundations and towards the nearest area drains. The ground surface of planter and landscape 

areas that are located more than 10 feet away from building foundations may be sloped at a minimum 

gradient of 2 percent away from the foundations and towards the nearest area drains. 

 
Concrete flatwork surfaces that are located within 10 feet of building foundations should be inclined at a 

minimum gradient of one percent away from the building foundations and towards the nearest area drains. 

Concrete flatwork surfaces that are located more than 10 feet away from building foundations may be sloped 

at a minimum gradient of 1 percent towards the nearest area drains. Surface waters should not be allowed 

to collect or pond against building foundations and within the level areas of the site. All drainage devices 

should be properly maintained throughout the lifetime of the development. Future changes to site 

improvements, or planting and watering practices, should not be allowed to cause over-saturation of site 

soil adjacent to the structures. 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 26 

 

 

 

Bottomless Trench Drains 

 

When gravel filled bottomless infiltration systems are constructed near foundations, a potential exists for 

oversaturation of the foundation soils which conflicts with the intended purpose of onsite drainage facilities. 

In addition, it has been our experience that a leading cause of distress to buildings and foundations is due 

to poor management of water next to building foundations. Petra recommends a setback of at least 15 feet 

between any infiltration system and building foundations. If this setback distance cannot be maintained, 

then a modified foundation system may be required to alleviate any distress that could be caused by 

infiltration of water near the footing. A modified foundation system could consist of constructing deepened 

footings within 15 feet of the infiltration system and installing extra reinforcement. Design of a modified 

foundation system is referred to the project structural engineer. 

 

Retaining Walls 

 

Due to the relatively flat and level site, it is anticipated that tall retaining walls will not be necessary for this 

project. Shorter retaining walls may be utilized for grading and landscaping purposes. Petra should be 

afforded the opportunity to review all proposed retaining wall design. Retaining walls retaining less than 6 

feet of soil and without additional surcharge may be designed according to the following recommendations. 

 

Allowable Bearing Values 

Proposed retaining walls should be supported on spread footings using the design criteria recommended 

previously for building footings; however, when calculating passive resistance, the passive earth pressure 

for retaining walls supported by descending slopes should be reduced to 150 pounds per square foot, per 

foot of depth, to a maximum value of 1,500 pounds per square foot. 

 

Active and At-Rest Earth Pressures 

 

1. On-Site Soils Used for Backfill 

On-site soil and bedrock materials have predominant very low expansion potentials. Therefore, for this 

condition, active earth pressures equivalent to fluids having densities of 35 and 51 pounds per cubic 

foot should be used for design of cantilevered walls retaining a level backfill and ascending 2:1 backfill, 

respectively. For walls that are restrained at the top, at-rest earth pressures of 53 and 78 pounds per 

cubic foot (equivalent fluid pressures) should be used. The above values are for retaining walls that 

have been supplied with a proper subdrain system (see Figure RW-1). All walls should be designed to 

support any adjacent structural surcharge loads imposed by other nearby walls or footings in addition 

to the above-recommended active and at-rest earth pressures. 

 

2. Imported Sand, Pea Gravel, or Rock Used for Wall Backfill 

Imported clean sand exhibiting a sand equivalent value (SE) of 30 or greater, pea gravel, or crushed 

rock may be used for wall backfill to reduce the lateral earth pressures provided these granular backfill 

materials extend behind the walls to a minimum horizontal distance equal to one-half the wall height. 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 27 

 

 

 

In addition, the sand, pea gravel, or rock backfill materials should extend behind the walls to a minimum 

horizontal distance of 2 feet at the base of the wall or to a horizontal distance equal to the heel width of 

the footing, whichever is greater (see Figures RW-2 and RW-3). For the above conditions, cantilevered 

walls retaining a level backfill and ascending 2:1 backfill may be designed to resist active earth 

pressures equivalent to fluids having densities of 30 and 41 pounds per cubic foot, respectively. For 

walls that are restrained at the top, at-rest earth pressures equivalent to fluids having densities of 45 and 

62 pounds per cubic foot are recommended for design of restrained walls supporting a level backfill 

and ascending 2:1 backfill, respectively. These values are also for retaining walls supplied with a proper 

subdrain system. 

 

Furthermore, as with existing soil backfill, the walls should be designed to support any adjacent structural 

surcharge loads imposed by other nearby walls or footings in addition to the recommended active and at-

rest earth pressures. All structural calculations and details should be provided to this firm for verification 

purposes prior to grading and construction phases. 

 

Earthquake Loads Retaining Walls 

 

Note 1 of Section 1803.5.12 of the 2022 CBC indicates that the dynamic seismic lateral earth pressures on 

foundation walls and retaining walls supporting more than 6 feet of backfill height due to design earthquake 

ground motions be determined. It is unlikely that any wall retaining 6 or more feet of backfill will be 

constructed onsite. Accordingly, dynamic seismic lateral earth pressures are not considered necessary for 

this project. 

 

Subdrainage 

 

Perforated pipe and gravel subdrains should be installed behind all retaining walls to prevent entrapment of 

water in the backfill (see Figures RW-1 through RW-3). Perforated pipe should consist of 4-inch-minimum 

diameter PVC Schedule 40, or SDR-35, with the perforations laid down. The pipe should be encased in a 

1-foot-wide column of ¾-inch to 1½-inch open-graded gravel. If on-site soils are used as backfill, the open-

graded gravel should extend above the wall footings to a minimum height equal to one-third the wall height 

or to a minimum height of 1.5 feet above the footing, whichever is greater. If imported sand, pea gravel, or 

crushed rock is used as backfill, subdrain details shown on Figures RW-2 and RW-3 should be utilized. 

The open-graded gravel should be completely wrapped in filter fabric consisting of Mirafi 140N or 

equivalent. Solid outlet pipes should be connected to the subdrains and then routed to a suitable area for 

discharge of accumulated water. 

 

If a limited area exists behind the walls for installation of a pipe and gravel subdrain, a geotextile drain mat 

such as Mirafi Miradrain, or equivalent, can be used in lieu of drainage gravel. The drain mat should extend 

the full height and lengths of the walls and the filter fabric side of the drain mat should be placed up against 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 28 

 

 

 

the backcut. The perforated pipe drain line placed at the bottom of the drain mat should consist of 4-inch 

minimum diameter PVC Schedule 40 or SDR-35. The filter fabric on the drain mat should be peeled back 

and then wrapped around the drain line. 

 

Waterproofing 

 

The portions of retaining walls supporting backfill should be coated with an approved waterproofing 

compound or covered with a similar material to inhibit infiltration of moisture through the walls. 

 

Wall Backfill 

 

Where imported sand (with a Sand Equivalent of 30 or greater) or the onsite soils materials are used as 

backfill behind the proposed retaining walls, the backfill materials should be placed in approximately 6- to 

8-inch-thick maximum lifts, watered as necessary to achieve above optimum moisture conditions, and then 

mechanically compacted in place to a minimum relative compaction of 90 percent. Flooding or jetting of 

the backfill materials should be avoided. A representative of the project geotechnical consultant should 

observe the backfill procedures and test the wall backfill to verify adequate compaction. 

 

If imported pea gravel or rock is used for backfill, the gravel should be placed in approximately 2- to 3-

foot-thick lifts, thoroughly wetted but not flooded, and then mechanically tamped or vibrated into place. A 

representative of the project geotechnical consultant should observe the backfill procedures and probe the 

backfill to determine that an adequate degree of compaction is achieved. 

 

To reduce the potential for the direct infiltration of surface water into the backfill, imported sand, gravel, 

or rock backfill should be capped with at least 12 inches of on-site soil. Filter fabric such as Mirafi 140N 

or equivalent, should be placed between the soil and the imported gravel or rock to prevent fines from 

penetrating into the backfill. 

 

Geotechnical Observation and Testing 

 

All grading and construction phases associated with retaining wall construction, including backcut 

excavations, footing trenches, installation of the subdrainage systems, and placement of backfill should be 

observed and tested by a representative of the project geotechnical consultant. 

 

Masonry Block Walls 

 

Footings for free-standing masonry block walls and other rigid structures should be designed and reinforced 

utilizing the criteria recommended for conventional building foundations. Where existing surface soils are 

not removed and re-compacted as recommended herein, the footings should be extended through these 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 29 

 

 

 

loose surface soils and founded in underlying competent materials. Positive separations in walls should also 

be provided at corners and at horizontal spacing of approximately 25 feet to permit relative movement. The 

separations should be provided in the blocks and not extend through the footings. The footings should be 

poured monolithically with continuous rebars to serve as effective “grade beams” below the walls. 

 

Where remedial grading cannot be performed due to site constraints, a reduced bearing value of 1,200 

pounds per square foot should be used for 12-inch-wide continuous footings founded at a minimum depth 

of 12 inches below the lowest adjacent final grade. No increase in bearing value may be used for wider or 

deeper footings for this condition. The recommended allowable bearing value includes both dead and live 

loads and may be increased by one-third for short duration wind and seismic forces. In addition, a reduced 

passive earth pressure of 175 pounds per square foot per foot of depth, to a maximum value of 1,750 pounds 

per square foot, should be used to resist lateral loads. A coefficient of friction of 0.3 times the dead load 

forces may still be used between concrete and the supporting soils to determine lateral sliding resistance. 

An increase of one-third of the above values may also be used when designing for short duration wind or 

seismic forces. 

 

Exterior Concrete Flatwork 

 

General 

 

Near-surface compacted fill soils within the site are expected to exhibit an expansion index of 0 to 20, i.e. 

non-expansive. Subgrade preparation for areas not supported by the compacted fill supporting building 

structures should follow the guidelines presented below for pavement design and construction. We 

recommend that all exterior concrete flatwork such as sidewalks, patio slabs, large decorative slabs, 

concrete subslabs that will be covered with decorative pavers, vehicular driveways and/or access roads 

within and adjacent to the site be designed by the project architect and/or structural engineer with 

consideration given to mitigating the potential cracking and uplift that can develop in soils exhibiting 

expansion index values that fall in the very low category. The guidelines that follow should be considered 

as minimums and are subject to review and revision by the project architect, structural engineer and/or 

landscape consultant as deemed appropriate. 

 

Thickness and Joint Spacing 

 

To reduce the potential of unsightly cracking, concrete walkways, patio-type slabs, large decorative slabs 

and concrete subslabs to be covered with decorative pavers should be at least 4 inches thick and provided 

with construction joints or expansion joints every 6 feet or less. Private driveways that will be designed for 

the use of passenger cars for access to private garages should also be at least 4 inches thick and provided 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 30 

 

 

 

with construction joints or expansion joints every 10 feet or less. Concrete pavement that will be designed 

based on an unlimited number of applications of an 18-kip single-axle load in public access areas, segments 

of road that will be paved with concrete (such as bus stops and cross-walks) or access roads that will be 

subject to heavy truck loadings should have a minimum thickness of 5 inches and be provided with control 

joints spaced at maximum 10-foot intervals. A modulus of subgrade reaction of 125 pounds per cubic foot 

may be used for design of the public and access roads. 

 

Reinforcement 

 

All concrete flatwork having their largest plan-view panel dimension exceeding 10 feet should be reinforced 

with a minimum of No. 3 bars spaced 24 inches on centers, both ways. Alternatively, the slab reinforcement 

may consist of welded wire mesh of the sheet type (not rolled) with 6x6/W1.4xW1.4 designation in 

accordance with the Wire Reinforcement Institute (WRI). The reinforcement should be properly positioned 

near the middle of the slabs. 

 

The reinforcement recommendations provided herein are intended as guidelines to achieve 

adequate performance for anticipated soil conditions. The project architect, civil and/or structural 

engineer should make appropriate adjustments in reinforcement type, size and spacing to account 

for concrete internal (e.g., shrinkage and thermal) and external (e.g., applied loads) forces as 

deemed necessary. 

 

Edge Beams (Optional) 

 

Where the outer edges of concrete flatwork are to be bordered by landscaping, it is recommended that 

consideration be given to the use of edge beams (thickened edges) to prevent excessive infiltration and 

accumulation of water under the slabs. Edge beams, if used, should be 6 to 8 inches wide, extend 8 inches 

below the tops of the finish slab surfaces. Edge beams are not mandatory; however, their inclusion in 

flatwork construction adjacent to landscaped areas is intended to reduce the potential for vertical and 

horizontal movement and subsequent cracking of the flatwork related to uplift forces that can develop in 

expansive soils. 

 

Subgrade Preparation 

 

Compaction 

To reduce the potential for distress to concrete flatwork, the subgrade soils below concrete flatwork areas 

to a minimum depth of 12 inches (or deeper, as either prescribed elsewhere in this report or determined in 

the field) should be moisture conditioned to at least equal to, or slightly greater than, the optimum moisture 

content and then compacted to a minimum relative compaction of 90 percent. Where concrete public roads, 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 31 

 

 

 

concrete segments of roads and/or concrete access driveways are proposed, the upper 6 inches of subgrade 

soil should be compacted to a minimum 95 percent relative compaction. 

 

Pre-Moistening 

As a further measure to reduce the potential for concrete flatwork cracking, subgrade soils should be 

thoroughly moistened prior to placing concrete. The moisture content of the soils should be at least the 

optimum moisture content to a minimum depth of 12 inches into the subgrade. Flooding or ponding of the 

subgrade is not considered feasible to achieve the above moisture conditions since this method would likely 

require construction of numerous earth berms to contain the water. Therefore, moisture conditioning should 

be achieved with sprinklers, or a light spray applied to the subgrade over a period of few to several days 

just prior to pouring concrete. Pre-watering of the soils is intended to promote uniform curing of the 

concrete, reduce the development of shrinkage cracks and reduce the potential for differential expansion 

pressure on freshly poured flatwork. A representative of the project geotechnical consultant should observe 

and verify the density and moisture content of the soils, and the depth of moisture penetration prior to 

placing concrete. 

 

Drainage 

 

Drainage from patios and other flatwork areas should be directed to local area drains and/or graded earth 

swales designed to carry runoff water to the adjacent streets or other approved drainage structures. The 

concrete flatwork should be sloped at a minimum gradient of one percent, or as prescribed by project civil 

engineer or local codes, away from building foundations, retaining walls, masonry garden walls and slope 

areas. 

 

Tree Wells 

 

Tree wells are not recommended in concrete flatwork areas since they introduce excessive water into the 

subgrade soils and allow root invasion, both of which can cause heaving and cracking of the flatwork. 

 

Swimming Pool and Spa 
 
Allowable Bearing and Settlement 

 

Plans for the proposed project were not made available to Petra at the time this report was prepared, but it 

is common to include one (or more) pools in a multi-unit apartment complex. If a pool is proposed for the 

project, the pool may be designed as a conventional pool shell founded on natural, medium dense eolian 

sand. Any loose sand below the pool shell should be removed and replaced with engineered fill. Therefore, 

the pool shell may be designed using an allowable bearing value of 1,500 pounds per square foot. A 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 32 

 

 

 

potential for seismic differential settlement on the order of one inch to occur across the pool/spa shells 

should be considered in the design. Petra should review final plans when available to verify there are no 

additional geotechnical concerns related to the construction of a pool. 

 

Lateral Earth Pressures 

 

The pool walls should be designed assuming that an earth pressure equivalent to a fluid having a density of 

90 pounds per cubic foot is acting on the outer surface of the pool walls. For this long-term condition, the 

walls should be designed using a lateral earth pressure of 62.4H pounds per square foot (where “H” equals 

the vertical depth in feet below the ground surface) that is acting on the inner surface of the pool walls. Pool 

walls should also be designed to resist lateral surcharge pressures imposed by any adjacent footings or 

structures in addition to the above lateral earth pressures. 

 
Stability of Temporary Excavation 

 

The pool excavation is expected to expose loose to medium dense eolian sand soil. Based on the anticipated 

physical characteristics of these materials, the pool excavation sidewalls will not remain stable at a vertical 

gradient during construction of the pool. Therefore, the temporary excavation sidewalls should be sloped 

at a slope ratio of 2:1 (horizontal to vertical) or flatter before forming of the pool walls. 

 
Temporary Access Ramps 

 

It is essential that all backfill placed within temporary access ramps extending into the pool excavation be 

properly compacted and tested. This will reduce the potential for excessive settlement of the backfill and 

subsequent damage to pool decking or other structures placed on the backfill. 

 

Pool Bottom 

 

It is expected that the swimming pool bottom will rest entirely on medium dense to dense eolian sand 

deposits. Therefore, care should be taken while excavating these structures to prevent disturbance of 

subgrade soils exposed at grade in the pool bottom. 

 

Pool Decking 

 

Pool decking should be constructed in accordance with the recommendations presented in the “Exterior 

Concrete Flatwork” section of this report. 

 

  



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 33 

 

 

 

Plumbing Fixtures 

 

Leakage from the swimming pool or from any of the appurtenant plumbing could create adverse saturated 

conditions of the surrounding subgrade soils. Localized areas of oversaturation can lead to differential 

expansion (heave) of the subgrade soils and subsequent raising and shifting of concrete flatwork. Therefore, 

it is essential that all plumbing and pool fixtures be absolutely leak-free. For similar reasons, drainage from 

pool deck areas should be directed to local area drains and/or graded earth swales designed to carry runoff 

water to a suitable discharge point. 

 

ACCESS ROADS 

 

Asphalt Pavement 

 

The proposed site improvements may include construction of new asphalt-paved roads, as well as 

improvements to the existing nearby access roads. We have developed the following preliminary 

recommendations for flexible pavement design based on an assumed R-value of 40 and using Traffic Index 

(TI) values of 5.0 and 6.0. The pavement design presented herein is based on the assumption that the 

pavement will be placed directly over engineered, compacted fill placed as specified above in the section 

for Subgrade Preparation of Exterior Concrete Flatwork. 

 

R-value and traffic index parameters presented herein have been assumed. We recommend that bulk 

samples of the actual subgrade materials be collected and R-Value tested after rough grading is completed. 

Additionally, the project civil engineer should be consulted to determine appropriate or required TI values. 

Once actual as-graded testing is complete and traffic loads are confirmed, additional or modified design 

recommendations may be presented. 

 

The pavement section thicknesses presented in Table 5 are considered as minimums for the subject site 

under the assumed conditions and may be superseded by the project requirements or jurisdictional agency 

specifications if more stringent. 

 

TABLE 5 

Suggested Minimum Flexible Pavement Thickness 

Traffic Index R-Value 
Hot Mix Asphalt (alternative) 

(inches) 

Aggregate Base 

(inches) 

5.0 (Light Traffic) 40 3 4 

6.0 (Truck Traffic) 40 3 6.5 

 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 34 

 

 

 

Subgrade soils should be properly compacted, smooth, and non-yielding prior to pavement construction. 

The subgrade soils should be compacted to at least 90 percent of ASTM D 1557-07. Subgrade preparation 

recommendations are provided below. 

 

Aggregate base materials may consist of Crushed Aggregate Base, Crushed Miscellaneous Base, or 

Processed Miscellaneous Base conforming to Section 200-2 of the Standard Specifications for Public 

Works Construction (Greenbook). It should be noted that base thicknesses recommended above are based 

on the use of Crushed Aggregate base material. For conditions where either Crushed Miscellaneous Base 

or Processed Miscellaneous Base Materials are used, a 10 percent increase in base section thickness should 

be incorporated in the design and construction of the structural pavement section. 

 

The base materials should be brought to a uniform moisture near optimum moisture then compacted to at 

least 95 percent of ASTM D 1557. Asphaltic concrete materials and construction should conform to Section 

203 of the Greenbook. 

 

Subgrade drainage is an important factor that enhances pavement performance. Subgrade surfaces below 

the flexible pavement structural section should be sloped to direct run-off to suitable collection points and 

to prevent ponding. The roadways should be raised above the surrounding ground surface to facilitate 

drainage from the roadway. 

 

PLAN REVIEW 

 

This report is based on certain assumptions related to the proposed development, since no plans were 

available for Petra’s review at the time this report was prepared. We recommend that our firm be engaged 

to review the final design drawings, specifications and grading plan prior to any new construction. If we 

are not provided the opportunity to review these documents with respect to the geotechnical aspects of new 

construction and grading, it should not be assumed that the recommendations provided herein are wholly 

or in part applicable to the proposed construction. 

 

REPORT LIMITATIONS 

 

This report is based on Petra’s understanding of the proposed project and geotechnical data as described 

herein. The materials encountered on the project site, described in other literature, and utilized in our 

laboratory investigation are believed representative of the project area, and the conclusions and 

recommendations contained in this report are presented on that basis. However, soil materials can vary in 

characteristics between points of exploration, both laterally and vertically, and those variations could affect 

the conclusions and recommendations contained herein. As such, observation and testing by a geotechnical 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 35 

 

 

 

consultant during the grading and construction phases of the project are essential to confirming the basis of 

this report. To provide the greatest degree of continuity between the design and construction phases, 

consideration should be given to retaining Petra Geosciences, Inc., as geotechnical engineer of record for 

construction services. 

 

This report has been prepared consistent with that level of care being provided by other professionals 

providing similar services at the same locale and time period. The contents of this report are professional 

opinions and as such, are not to be considered a guarantee or warranty. 

 

This report should be reviewed and updated after a period of one year or if the project concept changes 

from that described herein. 

 

The information contained herein has not been prepared for use by parties or projects other than those 

named or described herein. This report may not contain sufficient information for other parties or other 

purposes. 

 

This report is subject to review by the controlling authorities for this project. Should you have any questions, 

please do not hesitate to call. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

PETRA GEOSCIENCES, INC. 

 

 

 

    

7/25/24 
Alan Pace  Siamak Jafroudi, PhD 

Senior Associate Geologist  Senior Principal Engineer 

CEG 1952  GE 2024 

 

KTM/KB/AP/SJ/lv 

 
W:\2020-2025\2024\100\24-112\Reports\24-112 110 Design-Phase Geotechnical Report.docx 



NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 36 

 

 

 

REFERENCES 

 
American Concrete Institute (ACI), Building Code Requirements for Structural Concrete ACI 318-14. 

 

American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM) – Standard – Section Four – Construction, Volume 04.08 Soil 

and Rock. 

 

American Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE) and Structural Engineering Institute (SEI), 2017, Minimum Design 

Loads and Associated Criteria for Buildings and Other Structures (ASCE 7-16). 

 

A. O. Architects, 2024, Draft Site Plan, Via Vail Village, Rancho Mirage, California, The Pacific Companies, Job 

Number 2023-0361, dated March 8. 

 

Bryant and Hart, E.W., W.A., 2007, Fault-Rupture Hazard Zones in California, Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault 

Zoning Act with Index to Earthquake Fault Zones Maps; California Geological Survey, Special Publication 

42, interim revision. 

 

California Building Standards Commission, 2022, California Building Code, California Code of Regulations,  

Title 24, Part 2, Volume 1 of 2, dated June. 

 

California Building Standards Commission, 2022, California Building Code, California Code of Regulations,  

Title 24, Part 2, Volume 2 of 2, dated June. 

 

California Department of Water Resources, “Water Data Library (WDL) Station Map”, Groundwater Monitor Wells, 

accessed 1/24/2023, https://wdl.water.ca.gov/Map.aspx 

 

California Geologic Survey, 2008, Special Publication 117A. 

 

______, 2020, Earthquake Zones of Required Investigation, Rancho Mirage Quadrangle, accessed July, 

https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/EQZApp/app/ 

 

Cetin,K. et al, 2009, Probabilistic Model for the Assessment of Cyclically Induced Reconsolidation (Volumetric) 

Settlements, in Journal of Geotechnical and Geoenvironmental Engineering: Vol. 135, No. 3. 

 

County of Riverside Safety Element, 2003, Chapter 6 of the General Plan (adopted October 7, 2003). 

 

Dibblee, T.W., 1953, “Generalized geologic map of Imperial Valley region, California”:  in Jahns, R.A., (ed.), 1954, 

Geology of southern California:  California Division of Mines and Geology Bulletin 170 (scale 1” = 6 miles). 

 

Dillon, J.T., and Ehlig, P.L., 1993, Displacement on the Southern San Andreas Fault: in Powell, R.E., Weldon, R.J.II, 

and Matti, J.C., eds, The San Andreas Fault System: Displacement, Palinspastic Reconstruction, and 

Geologic Evolution: Geological Society of America Memoir 178. 

 

Frost, E.G., Suitt, S.C., and Fattahipour, M., 1997, Emerging Perspectives of the Salton Trough Region with an 

Emphasis on Extensional Faulting and its Implications for Later San Andreas Deformation: South Coast 

Geological Society Annual Field Trip Guide Book no. 25, p. 57-97. 

 

Fumal, T.E., Rymer, M.J., and Seitz, G.G., 2002, Timing of Large Earthquakes since A.D., 800 on the Mission Creek 

Strand of the San Andreas Fault Zone at Thousand Palms Oasis Near Palm Springs, California: Bulletin of 

the Seismological Society of America, v. 92, p. 2841- 2860. 

 

Google Earth™ 2020, by Google Earth, Inc., http://www.google.com/earth/index.html/ , accessed March. 

 

Ishihara, K., 1985, Stability of Natural Deposits During Earthquakes, 11th International Conference on Soil Mechanics 

and Foundation Engineering, Proceedings, San Francisco, Vol. 1., pp. 321-376. 

https://wdl.water.ca.gov/Map.aspx
https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/EQZApp/app/
http://www.google.com/earth/index.html/


NATIONAL CORE July 25, 2024 

Rancho Mirage Apartments / Rancho Mirage J.N. 24-112 

 Page 37 

 

 

 

REFERENCES 
 

Jennings, C.W., 1975, Fault map of California with location of volcanoes, Thermal Springs, and Thermal Wells: 

California Division of Mines and Geology, Geological Data Map Series, Map No. 2. 

 

Jones, L.M., 1988, Focal Mechanisms and the State of Stress on the San Andreas Fault in Southern California: Journal 

of Geophysical Research, v. 93, p. 8869-8891. 

 

Macedo, J. and Bray, D., 2018, Key Trends in Liquefaction-Induced Building Settlement, in Journal of Geotechnical 

and Geoenvironmental Engineering: Vol. 144, No. 11. 

 

Philibosian, B., Fumal, T.E. & Weldon, R., 2011, San Andreas Fault earthquake chronology and Lake Cahuilla history 

at Coachella, California: Bulletin of the Seismological Society of America, Volume 101, No. 1, p13-38.  

 

Pradel, D., 1998, Procedure to Evaluate Earthquake-Induced Settlements in Dry Sandy Soils: in Journal of 

Geotechnical and Geoenvironmental Engineering: Vol. 124, No. 4. 

 

Sieh, K.E., and Williams, P.L., 1990, Behavior of the Southernmost San Andreas Fault during the Past 300 Years: 

Journal of Geophysical Research, v. 95, p. 6629-6645.  

 

Smith, Merrit, 1964, Map Showing Distribution and Configuration of Basement Rocks in California (South Half), 

United States Geological Survey, Oil and Gas Investigations, Map OM-215 (Sheet 2 of 2).  

 

Sneed 2001; Detection and Measurement of Land Subsidence Using Global Positioning System and Interferometric 

Synthetic Aperture Radar, Coachella Valley, California, 1996-1998, U.S. Geological Survey, Water-

Resources Investigations Report 01-4193.  

 

Sneed 2007; Detection and Measurement of Land Subsidence Using Global Positioning System Surveying and 

Interferometric Synthetic Aperture Radar, Coachella Valley, California, 1996–2005, Scientific Investigations 

Report 2007–5251, United States Geological Survey.  

 

Sneed, M., Brandt, J.T., Solt, M., 2014, Land Subsidence, Groundwater Levels, and Geology in the Coachella Valley, 

California, 1993-2010, USGS, Scientific Investigation Report 2014-5075. 

 

Southern California Earthquake Center (SCEC), 1999, Recommended Procedures for Implementation of DMG 

Special Publication 117, Guidelines for Analyzing and Mitigating Liquefaction Hazards in California: 

organized through the Southern California Earthquake Center, University of Southern California. 

 

Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction The “Greenbook”, 2018 edition, BNi Publications, Inc. 

 

Structural Engineers Association of California (SEAOC)/Office of Statewide Health Planning and Development 

(OSHPD), 2018, U. S. Seismic Design Maps, https://seismicmaps.org/ . 

 

Tokimatsu, K. and Seed, H.B., 1987; Evaluation of Settlements in Sands due to Earthquake Shaking: in Journal of 

Geotechnical Engineering, Vol. 113, No. 8, p. 861-879. 

 

United States Geological Survey (USGS), 2014, Unified Hazard Tool,  

https://earthquake.usgs.gov/hazards/interactive/  

 

Working Group on California Earthquake Probabilities (WGCEP), Field, E.H., Biasi, G.P., Bird, P., Dawson, T.E., 

Felzer, K.R., Jackson, D.D., Johnson, K.M., Jordan, T.H., Madden, C., Michael, A.J., Milner, K.R., Page, 

M.T., Parsons, T., Powers, P.M., Shaw, B.E., Thatcher, W.R., Weldon, R.J., II, and Zeng, Y., 2013, Uniform 

California earthquake rupture forecast, version 3 (UCERF3) — The time-independent model: U.S. 

Geological Survey Open-File Report 2013–1165, 97 p., California Geological Survey Special Report 228, 

and Southern California Earthquake Center Publication 1792, http://pubs.usgs.gov/of/2013/1165/

https://seismicmaps.org/
https://earthquake.usgs.gov/hazards/interactive/
http://pubs.usgs.gov/of/2013/1165/


 

 

FIGURES 
  

  

 









Scale: 1” = 2,000’

Base Map: Portions of USGS Palm Springs, Cathedral City, Myoma, Rancho
Mirage, and La Quinta Quadrangles 7.5-Minute Topographic Series, 2015

N 3186 Airway Avenue, Suite K
Costa Mesa, California 92626

PHONE: (714) 549-8921

SITE LOCATION MAP

SW of Monterey Ave. & Dinah Shore Dr.
Rancho Mirage, California

DATE: July, 2024

J.N.: 24-112
Figure 1

PETRA GEOSCIENCES, INC.

COSTA MESA   TEMECULA   LOS ANGELES   PALM DESERT   CORONA  ESCONDIDO   

SITE



N

COSTA MESA   TEMECULA   LOS ANGELES   PALM DESERT   CORONA  ESCONDIDO   

0 400200

Scale: 1” = 200’

3186 Airway Avenue, Suite K
Costa Mesa, California 92626

PHONE: (714) 549-8921

BORING LOCATION MAP

SW of Monterey Ave. & Dinah Shores Dr.
Rancho Mirage, California

DATE: July, 2024

J.N.: 24-112
Figure 2

PETRA GEOSCIENCES, INC.

HA-1

TD=8’

HA-2

TD=8’

af

Qes

B-1

TD=51.5’

B-2

TD=26.5’

B-3

TD=26.5’

B-4

TD=26.5’

365 365 TP-1

TD=5’

TP-2

TD=5’

Qyf

af
B-1

TD=5’

B-2

TD=21.5’

B-3

TD=61.5’

EXPLANATION

Artificial Fill

Approximate Location of Exploratory Boring

af

HA-2

TD=6’

B-1

TD=66’

P-1

TD=10’

B-2

TD=26’

B-3

TD=26’

Base Map: Google Earth, 2024.   



 

 

APPENDIX A 
  

  

 

BORING LOGS 





0

5

10

15

20

25

30

EOLIAN DEPOSITS (Qe)
Sand with Silt (SP-SM): Gray, dry, loose, fine-grained sand.

@2': Becomes medium-dense.

Sand (SP): Off-white to gray, dry, medium-dense, fine- to
medium-grained sand.

Sand with Silt (SP-SM): Gray to off-white, dry, medium-dense,
fine- to medium-grained sand.

@20': Becomes dense.

6
8

13

6
10
11

4
5
8

5
10
15

12
22
31

13
25
41

8
14
20

9
16
21

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.8

102.8

98.7

MAX, EI, pH,
RES, CL,
S04, DSR

COL

Project: A-2 Rancho Mirage Apartments Boring No.: B-1

Location: Rancho Mirage Elevation: ±307'

Job No.: 24-112 Client: National Core Date: 6/7/2024

Drill Method: 8" Hollow Stem Auger Driving Weight: Logged By: KTM

Depth
(Feet)

Lith-
ology

Material Description

W
A
T
E
R

Blows
per
6 in.

Samples

C
o
r
e

B
u
l
k

Moisture
Content

(%)

Laboratory Tests

Dry
Density

(pcf)

Other
Lab

Tests

E X P L O R A T I O N   L O G

Petra Geosciences, Inc.

PLATE A-1



35

40

45

50

55

60

65

@50': Becomes dense.

@60': Becomes medium-dense.

@65': Becomes dense.

Total Depth= 66.5'
No groundwater encountered
Boring backfilled with cuttings.

9
20
27

10
16
17

5
10
13

10
17
26

10
17
24

4
7
9

18
28
34

0.4

0.6

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.3

0.5

Project: A-2 Rancho Mirage Apartments Boring No.: B-1

Location: Rancho Mirage Elevation: ±307'

Job No.: 24-112 Client: National Core Date: 6/7/2024

Drill Method: 8" Hollow Stem Auger Driving Weight: Logged By: KTM

Depth
(Feet)

Lith-
ology

Material Description

W
A
T
E
R

Blows
per
6 in.

Samples

C
o
r
e

B
u
l
k

Moisture
Content

(%)

Laboratory Tests

Dry
Density

(pcf)

Other
Lab

Tests

E X P L O R A T I O N   L O G

Petra Geosciences, Inc.

PLATE A-1



0

5

10

15

20

25

30

EOLIAN DEPOSITS (Qe)
Sand with Silt (SP-SM): Gray, dry, loose, fine-grained sand.

Sand (SP): Gray, dry, merdium-dense, fine- to medium-grained
sand.

@7.5': Becomes dry.

@15': Becomes gray to off-white.

@20': No recovery.

Total Depth= 21.5'
No groundwater encountered
Boring backfilled with cuttings.

6
9

14

3
5
6

9
9

13

2
4
6

11
17
30

7
10
14

2.0

1.9

1.6

0.3

0.3

105.1

107.3

Project: A-2 Rancho Mirage Apartments Boring No.: B-2

Location: Rancho Mirage Elevation: ±313'

Job No.: 24-112 Client: National Core Date: 6/7/2024

Drill Method: 8" Hollow Stem Auger Driving Weight: Logged By: KTM

Depth
(Feet)

Lith-
ology

Material Description

W
A
T
E
R

Blows
per
6 in.

Samples

C
o
r
e

B
u
l
k

Moisture
Content

(%)

Laboratory Tests

Dry
Density

(pcf)

Other
Lab

Tests

E X P L O R A T I O N   L O G

Petra Geosciences, Inc.

PLATE A-2



0

5

10

15

20

25

30

EOLIAN DEPOSITS (Qe)
Sand with Silt (SP-SM): Gray, dry, loose, fine-grained sand.

@2': Becomes medium-dense.

Sand (SP): Gray to off-white, dry, medium-dense, fine-grained
sand.

@7.5': Becomes gray with fine- to medium-grained sand.

@20': Becomes very dense.

Total Depth= 21.5'
No groundwater encountered
Boring backfilled with cuttings.

4
5
6

6
10
11

2
5
5

6
9

16

6
9

13

22
43

50/4"

1.2

1.0

0.7

0.5

0.3

0.4

105.0

Project: A-2 Rancho Mirage Apartments Boring No.: B-3

Location: Rancho Mirage Elevation: ±308'

Job No.: 24-112 Client: National Core Date: 6/7/2024

Drill Method: 8" Hollow Stem Auger Driving Weight: Logged By: KTM

Depth
(Feet)

Lith-
ology

Material Description

W
A
T
E
R

Blows
per
6 in.

Samples

C
o
r
e

B
u
l
k

Moisture
Content

(%)

Laboratory Tests

Dry
Density

(pcf)

Other
Lab

Tests

E X P L O R A T I O N   L O G

Petra Geosciences, Inc.

PLATE A-3



0

5

10

15

20

25

30

EOLIAN DEPOSITS (Qe)
Sand with Silt (SP-SM): Gray, dry, loose, fine-grained sand.

@2': Becomes medium-dense.

Sand (SP): Gray to off-white, dry, medium-dense, fine-grained
sand.

@7.5': Becomes gray with fine- to medium-grained sand.

Total Depth= 10'
No groundwater encountered
Perc test installed within boring utilizing a 2" perforated pipe and
gravel.

7
9

17
MA

Project: A-2 Rancho Mirage Apartments Boring No.: P-1

Location: Rancho Mirage Elevation: ±308'

Job No.: 24-112 Client: National Core Date: 6/7/2024

Drill Method: 8" Hollow Stem Auger Driving Weight: Logged By: KTM

Depth
(Feet)

Lith-
ology

Material Description

W
A
T
E
R

Blows
per
6 in.

Samples

C
o
r
e

B
u
l
k

Moisture
Content

(%)

Laboratory Tests

Dry
Density

(pcf)

Other
Lab

Tests

E X P L O R A T I O N   L O G

Petra Geosciences, Inc.

PLATE A-4



 

 

APPENDIX B 
  

  

 

LABORATORY TEST PROCEDURES 

 

LABORATORY DATA SUMMARY 



 
 

ENGINEERS   +   GEOLOGISTS   +   ENVIRONMENTAL   SCIENTISTS 

 

 
Offices Strategically Positioned Throughout Southern California 
LABORATORY 
1251 W. Pomona Road, Unit #103, Corona, CA 92882 
T: 714.549.8921   F: 951.737.3199 
For more information visit us online at www.petra-inc.com 

 

LABORATORY TESTING 
 
Associated with the subsurface exploration was the collection of bulk and relatively undisturbed samples 

of soil materials for laboratory testing. The relatively undisturbed samples were obtained using a 2.4-inch, 

outside-diameter, modified California split-spoon soil sampler lined with 1-inch-high stainless-steel rings. 

The driven ring samples were placed in sealed containers and transported to our laboratory located at 1251 

W. Pomona Road, Unit #103, Corona, CA 92882, for testing. 

 

Our laboratory testing capabilities include Soil Classifications, Moisture Content and In-Situ Moisture 

Content and Dry Unit Weight, Grain Size Distribution, Remolded Direct Shear, Consolidation; all in 

accordance with the latest procedures of American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM) and 

California Department of Transportation (Caltrans). 

 

To evaluate the engineering properties of site soils, laboratory testing was performed on selected samples 

of soil considered representative of those encountered. Appropriate tests were assigned by the project 

engineer and geologist based on project plans and specifications including the level of anticipated loads, 

when available, and subsurface stratigraphy. Test results were reviewed by the laboratory manager and 

engineer-in-charge of the laboratory or his qualified designee for completeness and accuracy. A description 

of laboratory test procedures and summaries of the test data are presented in the following pages. 

 

http://www.petra-inc.com/


LABORATORY TEST PROCEDURES 

 

_____________________________________________________   ______________________________________ 

 

PETRA GEOSCIENCES, INC. Laboratory Address: 1251 W. Pomona Road, Unit 103, Corona, CA, 92882 

J.N. 24-112 

Soil Classification 

Soil materials encountered within the property were classified and described in accordance with the Unified 

Soil Classification System and in general accordance with the current version of Test Method ASTM  

D 2488. The assigned group symbols are presented in the exploration logs, Appendix A. 

 

Moisture Content and In Situ Moisture Content and Dry Unit Weight 

Moisture content of selected bulk samples and in- place moisture content and dry unit weight of selected, 

relatively undisturbed soil samples were determined in accordance with the current version of Test Method 

ASTM D 2435 and Test Method ASTM D 2216, respectively. Test data are presented in the exploration 

logs, Appendix A. 

 

Laboratory Maximum Dry Unit Weight and Optimum Moisture Content 

The maximum dry unit weight and optimum moisture content of the on-site soils were determined for 

selected bulk samples in accordance with current version of Method A of ASTM D 1557. The result of this 

test is presented on Plate B-1. 

 

Corrosivity Screening 

Chemical and electrical analyses were performed on selected bulk samples of onsite soils to determine their 

soluble sulfate content, chloride content, pH (acidity) and minimum electrical resistivity. These tests were 

performed in accordance with the current versions of California Test Method Nos. CTM 417 (sulfate),  

CTM 422 (chloride), and CTM 643 (pH and resistivity) respectively. The results of these tests are included 

on Plate B-1. 

 

Direct Shear 

The Coulomb shear strength parameters, i.e., angle of internal friction and cohesion, were determined for 

selected, relatively undisturbed and/or reconstituted-bulk samples of onsite soil. This test was performed in 

general accordance with the current version of Test Method ASTM D 3080. Three specimens were prepared 

for each test. The test specimens were inundated and then sheared under various normal loads at a constant 

strain rate of 0.005 inch per minute. The results of the direct shear test are graphically presented on  

Plate B-2. 

 

Grain Size Distribution 

Grain size analysis was performed on selected bulk samples of onsite soils in accordance with the latest 

versions of Test Method ASTM D 136 and/or ASTM C 117, or Test Method ASTM D 422 and/or ASTM 

D 6913. The test result is graphically presented on Plate B-3. 

 

Single-Point Collapse 

Volume change (collapse) characteristics of selected undisturbed soil samples were determined by one-

dimensional single-point collapse test. This test was performed in general accordance with the latest version 

of the Test Method ASTM D 5333. Axial loads were applied to laterally restrained 1-inch-high samples. 

The resulting deformation was recorded at selected time intervals. At a load approximately corresponding 

to the existing overburden pressure or the anticipated future load, the test samples were inundated in order 

to evaluate the effect of an increase in moisture content, e.g., hydro-consolidation potential (or heave). The 

results of this test are graphically presented on Plate B-4. 

 
 



 

_____________________________________________________   ______________________________________ 

 

PETRA GEOSCIENCES, INC. Laboratory Address: 1251 W. Pomona Road, Unit 103, Corona, CA, 92882 

J.N. 24-112  Plate B-1 

LABORATORY DATA SUMMARY 

Boring/ 

Test Pit/ 

Sample/ 

Number 

Sample 

Depth 

(ft.) 

Soil/ 

Bedrock 

Description1 

Compaction2 Corrosivity Screening Expansion4 

Maximum 

Dry 

Unit Weight 

(pcf) 

Optimum 

Moisture 

(%) 

Soluble 

Sulfate 

Content3 

(%) 

Chloride 

Content4 

(ppm) 

pH5 

(Acidity) 

Minimum 

Resistivity5 

(Ohm-cm) 

Index Potential 

B-1 0-5 SP 115.5 11.5 0.0018 330 7.5 20,000 -0 Very Low 

 

Test Procedures: 1  Per Test Method ASTM D 2488 4  Per California Test Method CTM 422 

 2  Per Test Method ASTM D 1557 5  Per California Test Method CTM 643 

 3  Per California Test Method CTM 417 6  Per Test Method ASTM C 117 



B-2



B-3



B-4



 

 

APPENDIX C 
  

  

 

SEISMIC HAZARD ANALYSIS



J.N: 24‐112 Project: Date: 7/20/2024

Boring: B‐1 65 feet 5 feet

Top Bottom

ft ft ft ft blows/ft blows/ft blows/ft
1 0 2.5 2.5 2.5 21 14 0.18
2 2.5 5 2.5 5.0 21 14 0.36
3 5 7.5 2.5 7.5 13 8 0.67
4 7.5 10 2.5 10.0 23 15 0.84
5 10 15 5 15.0 53 35 0.98
6 15 20 5 20.0 66 43 1.10
7 20 25 5 25.0 0 34 1.24
8 25 30 5 30.0 0 37 1.38
9 30 35 5 35.0 0 47 1.48
10 35 40 5 40.0 0 33 1.64
11 40 45 5 45.0 0 23 1.85
12 45 50 5 50.0 0 43 1.97
13 50 55 5 55.0 0 41 2.09
14 55 60 5 60.0 0 16 2.40
15 60 65 5 65.0 0 62 2.48

1
2

3 Standard penetration resistance (ASTM D1586) not to exceed 100 blows /ft (305 blows /m) as directly measured in the field without corrections. When Refusal is met for a rock 
layer, this value shall be taken as 100 blows /ft (305 blows /m).

SPT Test Interval: every

Layer 
Thickness

(di)

N‐SPT3

(Ni)

Depth to Soil/Rock Layer

Modified California sampler blow counts as directly measured in the field without corrections.
Equivalent SPT blow counts are calculated from field measured Modified California sampler blow counts using the standard Burmister formula (Burmister, 1948).
Eq. N‐SPT = 0.651 x (Mod. Cal. Sampler Blow Counts)

SITE CLASSIFICATION DETERMINATION BASED ON BLOW COUNT, N‐SPT, FOR SEISMIC DESIGN
Per Table 20.3‐1 and Section 20.4.2 of ASCE 7‐16

Site Classification
Per Table 20.3‐1

= 26 D

Average Field Standard 
Penetration Resistance

(blows/ft)

Layer 
No.
(i)

Total Depth of Boring:

National Core Apartments

Mod. Cal. 
Sampler Blow 

Counts1

Equivalent N‐
SPT2

(Ni)
𝑑



ୀଵ


𝑑
𝑁



ୀଵ

𝑵ഥ ൌ
∑ 𝒅𝒊𝒏
𝒊ୀ𝟏

∑ 𝒅𝒊
𝑵𝒊

𝒏
𝒊ୀ𝟏



USGS web services were down for some period of time and as a result this tool wasn't operational, resulting in timeout error.
USGS web services are now operational so this tool should work as expected.

24-112 National Core Apartments
Latitude, Longitude: 33.796486, -116.394338

Date 7/21/2024, 11:06:57 PM

Design Code Reference Document ASCE7-16

Risk Category II

Site Class D - Stiff Soil

Type Value Description

SS 1.819 MCER ground motion. (for 0.2 second period)

S1 0.757 MCER ground motion. (for 1.0s period)

SMS 1.819 Site-modified spectral acceleration value

SM1 null -See Section 11.4.8 Site-modified spectral acceleration value

SDS 1.213 Numeric seismic design value at 0.2 second SA

SD1 null -See Section 11.4.8 Numeric seismic design value at 1.0 second SA

Type Value Description

SDC null -See Section 11.4.8 Seismic design category

Fa 1 Site amplification factor at 0.2 second

Fv null -See Section 11.4.8 Site amplification factor at 1.0 second

PGA 0.789 MCEG peak ground acceleration

FPGA 1.1 Site amplification factor at PGA

PGAM 0.868 Site modified peak ground acceleration

TL 8 Long-period transition period in seconds

SsRT 2.146 Probabilistic risk-targeted ground motion. (0.2 second)

SsUH 2.404 Factored uniform-hazard (2% probability of exceedance in 50 years) spectral acceleration

SsD 1.819 Factored deterministic acceleration value. (0.2 second)

S1RT 0.846 Probabilistic risk-targeted ground motion. (1.0 second)

S1UH 0.963 Factored uniform-hazard (2% probability of exceedance in 50 years) spectral acceleration.

U.S. Seismic Design Maps https://www.seismicmaps.org/

1 of 3 7/21/2024, 23:07



Type Value Description

S1D 0.757 Factored deterministic acceleration value. (1.0 second)

PGAd 0.789 Factored deterministic acceleration value. (Peak Ground Acceleration)

PGAUH 0.941 Uniform-hazard (2% probability of exceedance in 50 years) Peak Ground Acceleration

CRS 0.893 Mapped value of the risk coefficient at short periods

CR1 0.879 Mapped value of the risk coefficient at a period of 1 s

CV 1.464 Vertical coefficient

U.S. Seismic Design Maps https://www.seismicmaps.org/

2 of 3 7/21/2024, 23:07



DISCLAIMER

While the information presented on this website is believed to be correct, SEAOC /OSHPD and its sponsors and contributors assume no responsibility or
liability for its accuracy. The material presented in this web application should not be used or relied upon for any specific application without competent examination
and verification of its accuracy, suitability and applicability by engineers or other licensed professionals. SEAOC / OSHPD do not intend that the use of this
information replace the sound judgment of such competent professionals, having experience and knowledge in the field of practice, nor to substitute for the
standard of care required of such professionals in interpreting and applying the results of the seismic data provided by this website. Users of the information from
this website assume all liability arising from such use. Use of the output of this website does not imply approval by the governing building code bodies responsible
for building code approval and interpretation for the building site described by latitude/longitude location in the search results of this website.

U.S. Seismic Design Maps https://www.seismicmaps.org/

3 of 3 7/21/2024, 23:07





Unified Hazard Tool https://earthquake.usgs.gov/hazards/interactive/

2 of 5 7/21/2024, 23:05



∞

∞

Unified Hazard Tool https://earthquake.usgs.gov/hazards/interactive/

3 of 5 7/21/2024, 23:05



⁻ ⁻

₀

₀

ε₀

₀

∞

∞

Unified Hazard Tool https://earthquake.usgs.gov/hazards/interactive/

4 of 5 7/21/2024, 23:05



Unified Hazard Tool https://earthquake.usgs.gov/hazards/interactive/

5 of 5 7/21/2024, 23:05



*** Deaggregation of Seismic Hazard at One Period of Spectral Acceleration *** 
*** Data from Dynamic: Conterminous U.S. 2014 (update) (unknown) **** 
PSHA Deaggregation. %contributions. 
site: Test 
longitude: 116.394°W 
latitude: 33.796°E 
imt: Peak Ground Acceleration 
vs30 = 259 m/s (Site class D) 
return period: 2475 yrs. 
#This deaggregation corresponds to: Total 
Summary statistics for PSHA PGA deaggregation, r=distance, ε=epsilon: 
Deaggregation targets:  
  Return period: 2475 yrs 
  Exceedance rate: 0.0004040404 yr⁻¹ 
  PGA ground motion: 0.94442438 g 
Recovered targets:  
  Return period: 3248.499 yrs 
  Exceedance rate: 0.00030783448 yr⁻¹ 
Totals:  
  Binned: 100 % 
  Residual: 0 % 
  Trace: 0.06 % 
Mean (over all sources):  
  m: 7.21 
  r: 7.52 km 
  ε₀: 1.58 σ 
Mode (largest m-r bin):  
  m: 7.49 
  r: 6.65 km 
  ε₀: 1.5 σ 
  Contribution: 16.34 % 
Mode (largest m-r-ε₀ bin):  
  m: 7.49 
  r: 6.61 km 
  ε₀: 1.39 σ 
  Contribution: 11.82 % 
Discretization:  
  r: min = 0.0, max = 1000.0, Δ = 20.0 km 
  m: min = 4.4, max = 9.4, Δ = 0.2 
  ε: min = -3.0, max = 3.0, Δ = 0.5 σ 
Epsilon keys:  
  ε0: [-∞ .. -2.5) 
  ε1: [-2.5 .. -2.0) 
  ε2: [-2.0 .. -1.5) 
  ε3: [-1.5 .. -1.0) 
  ε4: [-1.0 .. -0.5) 
  ε5: [-0.5 .. 0.0) 
  ε6: [0.0 .. 0.5) 
  ε7: [0.5 .. 1.0) 
  ε8: [1.0 .. 1.5) 
  ε9: [1.5 .. 2.0) 
  ε10: [2.0 .. 2.5) 
  ε11: [2.5 .. +∞] 
Closest Distance, rRup (km) Magnitude (Mw) ALL_ε ε=(-∞,-2.5) ε=[-2.5,-2) ε=[-2,-1.5)
 ε=[-1.5,-1) ε=[-1,-0.5) ε=[-0.5,0) ε=[0,0.5) ε=[0.5,1) ε=[1,1.5) ε=[1.5,2)
 ε=[2,2.5) ε=[2.5,∞) 
70 8.1 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
70 8.3 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
50 7.5 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
50 7.7 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
50 7.9 0.015 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.015 
50 8.1 0.005 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.005 
50 8.3 0.005 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.005 
30 6.1 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
30 6.3 0.005 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.005 
30 6.5 0.005 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.005 
30 6.7 0.011 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.002 0.009 
30 6.9 0.016 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.002 0.014 
30 7.1 0.052 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.003 0.049 



30 7.3 0.058 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.004 0.054 
30 7.5 0.111 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.013 0.099 
30 7.7 0.143 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.018 0.125 
30 7.9 0.418 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.166 0.252 
30 8.1 0.749 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.003 0.493 0.253 
30 8.3 0.466 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.002 0.375 0.089 
10 5.1 2.816 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 1.104 1.403 0.309 
10 5.3 3.142 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 2.397 0.289 0.456 
10 5.5 3.553 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 1.763 1.059 0.256 0.474 
10 5.7 3.036 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 1.399 0.866 0.398 0.372 
10 5.9 2.387 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.993 0.677 0.475 0.242 
10 6.1 2.727 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.662 1.011 0.877 0.177 
10 6.3 2.847 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.429 1.544 0.744 0.130 
10 6.5 3.811 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.034 0.403 2.063 0.749 0.562 
10 6.7 1.333 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.065 0.237 0.805 0.176 0.051 
10 6.9 1.699 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.057 0.136 1.204 0.264 0.039 
10 7.1 1.569 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.042 0.310 0.618 0.518 0.080 
10 7.3 15.066 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.022 9.549 3.804 1.666 0.025 
10 7.5 16.336 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.006 11.818 3.664 0.848 0.001 
10 7.7 13.058 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 9.799 2.633 0.625 0.000 
10 7.9 7.180 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 5.286 1.523 0.368 0.002 
10 8.1 13.116 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.012 9.984 2.531 0.589 0.001 
10 8.3 4.263 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.495 2.796 0.795 0.177 0.000 
Principal Sources (faults, subduction, random seismicity having > 3% contribution 
UC33brAvg_FM31:  
  Percent Contributed: 38.53 
  Distance (km): 7.7522696 
  Magnitude: 7.6290489 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.5183046 
San Andreas (San Gorgonio Pass-Garnet HIll) [1]:  
  Percent Contributed: 31.12 
  Distance (km): 6.5353046 
  Magnitude: 7.6050927 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.4767216 
  Azimuth: 31.71136 
  Latitude: 33.845511 
  Longitude: -116.35786 
San Andreas (North Branch Mill Creek) [10]:  
  Percent Contributed: 3.95 
  Distance (km): 8.2781536 
  Magnitude: 7.8816596 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.3120476 
  Azimuth: 36.358309 
  Latitude: 33.853076 
  Longitude: -116.34417 
UC33brAvg_FM32:  
  Percent Contributed: 38.48 
  Distance (km): 7.7441979 
  Magnitude: 7.6245993 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.5185216 
San Andreas (San Gorgonio Pass-Garnet HIll) [1]:  
  Percent Contributed: 30.96 
  Distance (km): 6.5353046 
  Magnitude: 7.6018745 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.478169 
  Azimuth: 31.71136 
  Latitude: 33.845511 
  Longitude: -116.35786 
San Andreas (North Branch Mill Creek) [10]:  
  Percent Contributed: 4.16 
  Distance (km): 8.2781536 
  Magnitude: 7.8512625 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.3196983 
  Azimuth: 36.358309 
  Latitude: 33.853076 
  Longitude: -116.34417 
UC33brAvg_FM31 (opt):  
  Percent Contributed: 11.5 
  Distance (km): 6.7410744 
  Magnitude: 5.807404 



  Epsilon (mean values): 1.8045724 
PointSourceFinite: -116.394, 33.801:  
  Percent Contributed: 3.82 
  Distance (km): 4.9165462 
  Magnitude: 5.6568818 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.5987339 
  Azimuth: 0 
  Latitude: 33.800983 
  Longitude: -116.39434 
PointSourceFinite: -116.394, 33.801:  
  Percent Contributed: 3.82 
  Distance (km): 4.9165462 
  Magnitude: 5.6568818 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.5987339 
  Azimuth: 0 
  Latitude: 33.800983 
  Longitude: -116.39434 
UC33brAvg_FM32 (opt):  
  Percent Contributed: 11.49 
  Distance (km): 6.740285 
  Magnitude: 5.806952 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.8046318 
PointSourceFinite: -116.394, 33.801:  
  Percent Contributed: 3.82 
  Distance (km): 4.9166413 
  Magnitude: 5.6565838 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.5988436 
  Azimuth: 0 
  Latitude: 33.800983 
  Longitude: -116.39434 
PointSourceFinite: -116.394, 33.801:  
  Percent Contributed: 3.82 
  Distance (km): 4.9166413 
  Magnitude: 5.6565838 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.5988436 
  Azimuth: 0 
  Latitude: 33.800983 
  Longitude: -116.39434 
PSHA Deaggregation. %contributions. 
site: Test 
longitude: 116.394°W 
latitude: 33.796°E 
imt: Peak Ground Acceleration 
vs30 = 259 m/s (Site class D) 
return period: 2475 yrs. 
#This deaggregation corresponds to: GMM: Abrahamson, Silva & Kamai (2014) 
Summary statistics for PSHA PGA deaggregation, r=distance, ε=epsilon: 
Deaggregation targets:  
  Return period: 2475 yrs 
  Exceedance rate: 0.0004040404 yr⁻¹ 
  PGA ground motion: 0.94442438 g 
Recovered targets:  
  Return period: 3248.499 yrs 
  Exceedance rate: 0.00030783448 yr⁻¹ 
Totals:  
  Binned: 22.08 % 
  Residual: 0 % 
  Trace: 0.05 % 
Mean (over all sources):  
  m: 7.11 
  r: 7.89 km 
  ε₀: 1.82 σ 
Mode (largest m-r bin):  
  m: 7.49 
  r: 6.64 km 
  ε₀: 1.67 σ 
  Contribution: 3.51 % 
Mode (largest m-r-ε₀ bin):  
  m: 7.49 
  r: 6.61 km 



  ε₀: 1.67 σ 
  Contribution: 3.49 % 
Discretization:  
  r: min = 0.0, max = 1000.0, Δ = 20.0 km 
  m: min = 4.4, max = 9.4, Δ = 0.2 
  ε: min = -3.0, max = 3.0, Δ = 0.5 σ 
Epsilon keys:  
  ε0: [-∞ .. -2.5) 
  ε1: [-2.5 .. -2.0) 
  ε2: [-2.0 .. -1.5) 
  ε3: [-1.5 .. -1.0) 
  ε4: [-1.0 .. -0.5) 
  ε5: [-0.5 .. 0.0) 
  ε6: [0.0 .. 0.5) 
  ε7: [0.5 .. 1.0) 
  ε8: [1.0 .. 1.5) 
  ε9: [1.5 .. 2.0) 
  ε10: [2.0 .. 2.5) 
  ε11: [2.5 .. +∞] 
Closest Distance, rRup (km) Magnitude (Mw) ALL_ε ε=(-∞,-2.5) ε=[-2.5,-2) ε=[-2,-1.5)
 ε=[-1.5,-1) ε=[-1,-0.5) ε=[-0.5,0) ε=[0,0.5) ε=[0.5,1) ε=[1,1.5) ε=[1.5,2)
 ε=[2,2.5) ε=[2.5,∞) 
70 8.1 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
70 8.3 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
50 7.7 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
50 7.9 0.005 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.005 
50 8.1 0.002 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.002 
50 8.3 0.002 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.002 
30 6.3 0.001 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 
30 6.5 0.001 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 
30 6.7 0.002 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.002 
30 6.9 0.004 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.004 
30 7.1 0.016 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.016 
30 7.3 0.018 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.018 
30 7.5 0.036 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.036 
30 7.7 0.050 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.003 0.047 
30 7.9 0.133 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.033 0.100 
30 8.1 0.241 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.110 0.130 
30 8.3 0.148 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.148 0.000 
10 5.1 1.167 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.568 0.338 0.261 
10 5.3 0.920 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.681 0.000 0.239 
10 5.5 0.731 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.516 0.038 0.178 
10 5.7 0.608 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.412 0.067 0.130 
10 5.9 0.491 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.318 0.084 0.089 
10 6.1 0.604 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.255 0.290 0.059 
10 6.3 0.667 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.305 0.329 0.033 
10 6.5 1.002 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.081 0.507 0.121 0.293 
10 6.7 0.318 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.070 0.178 0.053 0.018 
10 6.9 0.398 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.039 0.287 0.053 0.019 
10 7.1 0.380 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.018 0.205 0.143 0.014 
10 7.3 3.373 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.007 3.058 0.308 0.000 
10 7.5 3.506 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.002 3.493 0.011 0.000 
10 7.7 2.621 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 2.618 0.003 0.000 
10 7.9 1.386 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 1.356 0.030 0.000 
10 8.1 2.466 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 2.453 0.013 0.000 
10 8.3 0.783 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.783 0.000 0.000 
Principal Sources (faults, subduction, random seismicity having > 3% contribution 
UC33brAvg_FM31:  
  Percent Contributed: 8.17 
  Distance (km): 8.1838797 
  Magnitude: 7.5998188 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.7365455 
San Andreas (San Gorgonio Pass-Garnet HIll) [1]:  
  Percent Contributed: 6.58 
  Distance (km): 6.5353046 
  Magnitude: 7.5831569 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.661708 
  Azimuth: 31.71136 
  Latitude: 33.845511 
  Longitude: -116.35786 



UC33brAvg_FM32:  
  Percent Contributed: 8.14 
  Distance (km): 8.1708632 
  Magnitude: 7.5947826 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.7381942 
San Andreas (San Gorgonio Pass-Garnet HIll) [1]:  
  Percent Contributed: 6.54 
  Distance (km): 6.5353046 
  Magnitude: 7.5792035 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.6632409 
  Azimuth: 31.71136 
  Latitude: 33.845511 
  Longitude: -116.35786 
UC33brAvg_FM31 (opt):  
  Percent Contributed: 2.89 
  Distance (km): 7.0774363 
  Magnitude: 5.730687 
  Epsilon (mean values): 2.051394 
UC33brAvg_FM32 (opt):  
  Percent Contributed: 2.89 
  Distance (km): 7.076764 
  Magnitude: 5.7302345 
  Epsilon (mean values): 2.0514829 
PSHA Deaggregation. %contributions. 
site: Test 
longitude: 116.394°W 
latitude: 33.796°E 
imt: Peak Ground Acceleration 
vs30 = 259 m/s (Site class D) 
return period: 2475 yrs. 
#This deaggregation corresponds to: GMM: Boore, Stewart, Seyhan & Atkinson (2014) 
Summary statistics for PSHA PGA deaggregation, r=distance, ε=epsilon: 
Deaggregation targets:  
  Return period: 2475 yrs 
  Exceedance rate: 0.0004040404 yr⁻¹ 
  PGA ground motion: 0.94442438 g 
Recovered targets:  
  Return period: 3248.499 yrs 
  Exceedance rate: 0.00030783448 yr⁻¹ 
Totals:  
  Binned: 43.34 % 
  Residual: 0 % 
  Trace: 0.09 % 
Mean (over all sources):  
  m: 7.14 
  r: 7.7 km 
  ε₀: 1.45 σ 
Mode (largest m-r bin):  
  m: 7.49 
  r: 6.69 km 
  ε₀: 1.37 σ 
  Contribution: 6.38 % 
Mode (largest m-r-ε₀ bin):  
  m: 7.49 
  r: 6.65 km 
  ε₀: 1.36 σ 
  Contribution: 6.35 % 
Discretization:  
  r: min = 0.0, max = 1000.0, Δ = 20.0 km 
  m: min = 4.4, max = 9.4, Δ = 0.2 
  ε: min = -3.0, max = 3.0, Δ = 0.5 σ 
Epsilon keys:  
  ε0: [-∞ .. -2.5) 
  ε1: [-2.5 .. -2.0) 
  ε2: [-2.0 .. -1.5) 
  ε3: [-1.5 .. -1.0) 
  ε4: [-1.0 .. -0.5) 
  ε5: [-0.5 .. 0.0) 
  ε6: [0.0 .. 0.5) 



  ε7: [0.5 .. 1.0) 
  ε8: [1.0 .. 1.5) 
  ε9: [1.5 .. 2.0) 
  ε10: [2.0 .. 2.5) 
  ε11: [2.5 .. +∞] 
Closest Distance, rRup (km) Magnitude (Mw) ALL_ε ε=(-∞,-2.5) ε=[-2.5,-2) ε=[-2,-1.5)
 ε=[-1.5,-1) ε=[-1,-0.5) ε=[-0.5,0) ε=[0,0.5) ε=[0.5,1) ε=[1,1.5) ε=[1.5,2)
 ε=[2,2.5) ε=[2.5,∞) 
70 8.1 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
70 8.3 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
50 7.5 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
50 7.7 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
50 7.9 0.010 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.010 
50 8.1 0.003 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.003 
50 8.3 0.003 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.002 
30 6.1 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
30 6.3 0.004 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.004 
30 6.5 0.004 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.004 
30 6.7 0.008 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.002 0.006 
30 6.9 0.011 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.002 0.009 
30 7.1 0.032 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.003 0.030 
30 7.3 0.035 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.003 0.032 
30 7.5 0.070 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.012 0.058 
30 7.7 0.085 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.012 0.073 
30 7.9 0.219 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.112 0.106 
30 8.1 0.378 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.003 0.372 0.004 
30 8.3 0.226 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.002 0.224 0.000 
10 5.1 0.991 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.536 0.446 0.010 
10 5.3 1.514 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 1.392 0.000 0.122 
10 5.5 2.134 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 1.763 0.001 0.218 0.152 
10 5.7 1.804 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 1.399 0.000 0.290 0.114 
10 5.9 1.361 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.993 0.000 0.309 0.058 
10 6.1 1.421 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.662 0.439 0.276 0.044 
10 6.3 1.378 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.409 0.788 0.129 0.053 
10 6.5 1.789 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.228 0.999 0.371 0.191 
10 6.7 0.546 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.112 0.382 0.040 0.012 
10 6.9 0.701 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.078 0.526 0.095 0.002 
10 7.1 0.656 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.006 0.279 0.118 0.254 0.000 
10 7.3 5.880 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.008 5.354 0.212 0.306 0.000 
10 7.5 6.383 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.003 6.348 0.018 0.015 0.000 
10 7.7 5.390 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 5.382 0.008 0.000 0.000 
10 7.9 2.976 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 2.917 0.059 0.000 0.000 
10 8.1 5.508 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.012 5.462 0.034 0.000 0.000 
10 8.3 1.822 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.495 1.319 0.007 0.000 0.000 
Principal Sources (faults, subduction, random seismicity having > 3% contribution 
UC33brAvg_FM32:  
  Percent Contributed: 15.91 
  Distance (km): 8.056292 
  Magnitude: 7.623832 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.3878356 
San Andreas (San Gorgonio Pass-Garnet HIll) [1]:  
  Percent Contributed: 12.14 
  Distance (km): 6.5353046 
  Magnitude: 7.6010797 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.3457294 
  Azimuth: 31.71136 
  Latitude: 33.845511 
  Longitude: -116.35786 
San Andreas (North Branch Mill Creek) [10]:  
  Percent Contributed: 2.13 
  Distance (km): 8.2781536 
  Magnitude: 7.8467268 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.0820297 
  Azimuth: 36.358309 
  Latitude: 33.853076 
  Longitude: -116.34417 
UC33brAvg_FM31:  
  Percent Contributed: 15.88 
  Distance (km): 8.0622881 
  Magnitude: 7.6287094 



  Epsilon (mean values): 1.3887459 
San Andreas (San Gorgonio Pass-Garnet HIll) [1]:  
  Percent Contributed: 12.19 
  Distance (km): 6.5353046 
  Magnitude: 7.6037953 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.3448949 
  Azimuth: 31.71136 
  Latitude: 33.845511 
  Longitude: -116.35786 
San Andreas (North Branch Mill Creek) [10]:  
  Percent Contributed: 2.02 
  Distance (km): 8.2781536 
  Magnitude: 7.8788431 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.0744497 
  Azimuth: 36.358309 
  Latitude: 33.853076 
  Longitude: -116.34417 
UC33brAvg_FM31 (opt):  
  Percent Contributed: 5.78 
  Distance (km): 6.709053 
  Magnitude: 5.8000703 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.6039007 
PointSourceFinite: -116.394, 33.801:  
  Percent Contributed: 2.01 
  Distance (km): 4.9908756 
  Magnitude: 5.6523822 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.3913807 
  Azimuth: 0 
  Latitude: 33.800983 
  Longitude: -116.39434 
PointSourceFinite: -116.394, 33.801:  
  Percent Contributed: 2.01 
  Distance (km): 4.9908756 
  Magnitude: 5.6523822 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.3913807 
  Azimuth: 0 
  Latitude: 33.800983 
  Longitude: -116.39434 
UC33brAvg_FM32 (opt):  
  Percent Contributed: 5.78 
  Distance (km): 6.7081391 
  Magnitude: 5.7996854 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.6039164 
PointSourceFinite: -116.394, 33.801:  
  Percent Contributed: 2.01 
  Distance (km): 4.9908925 
  Magnitude: 5.6521468 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.3914648 
  Azimuth: 0 
  Latitude: 33.800983 
  Longitude: -116.39434 
PointSourceFinite: -116.394, 33.801:  
  Percent Contributed: 2.01 
  Distance (km): 4.9908925 
  Magnitude: 5.6521468 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.3914648 
  Azimuth: 0 
  Latitude: 33.800983 
  Longitude: -116.39434 
PSHA Deaggregation. %contributions. 
site: Test 
longitude: 116.394°W 
latitude: 33.796°E 
imt: Peak Ground Acceleration 
vs30 = 259 m/s (Site class D) 
return period: 2475 yrs. 
#This deaggregation corresponds to: GMM: Campbell & Bozorgnia (2014) 
Summary statistics for PSHA PGA deaggregation, r=distance, ε=epsilon: 
Deaggregation targets:  
  Return period: 2475 yrs 



  Exceedance rate: 0.0004040404 yr⁻¹ 
  PGA ground motion: 0.94442438 g 
Recovered targets:  
  Return period: 3248.499 yrs 
  Exceedance rate: 0.00030783448 yr⁻¹ 
Totals:  
  Binned: 4.02 % 
  Residual: 0 % 
  Trace: 0.02 % 
Mean (over all sources):  
  m: 7.46 
  r: 6.7 km 
  ε₀: 2.26 σ 
Mode (largest m-r bin):  
  m: 7.49 
  r: 6.61 km 
  ε₀: 2.25 σ 
  Contribution: 0.81 % 
Mode (largest m-r-ε₀ bin):  
  m: 7.49 
  r: 6.61 km 
  ε₀: 2.25 σ 
  Contribution: 0.81 % 
Discretization:  
  r: min = 0.0, max = 1000.0, Δ = 20.0 km 
  m: min = 4.4, max = 9.4, Δ = 0.2 
  ε: min = -3.0, max = 3.0, Δ = 0.5 σ 
Epsilon keys:  
  ε0: [-∞ .. -2.5) 
  ε1: [-2.5 .. -2.0) 
  ε2: [-2.0 .. -1.5) 
  ε3: [-1.5 .. -1.0) 
  ε4: [-1.0 .. -0.5) 
  ε5: [-0.5 .. 0.0) 
  ε6: [0.0 .. 0.5) 
  ε7: [0.5 .. 1.0) 
  ε8: [1.0 .. 1.5) 
  ε9: [1.5 .. 2.0) 
  ε10: [2.0 .. 2.5) 
  ε11: [2.5 .. +∞] 
Closest Distance, rRup (km) Magnitude (Mw) ALL_ε ε=(-∞,-2.5) ε=[-2.5,-2) ε=[-2,-1.5)
 ε=[-1.5,-1) ε=[-1,-0.5) ε=[-0.5,0) ε=[0,0.5) ε=[0.5,1) ε=[1,1.5) ε=[1.5,2)
 ε=[2,2.5) ε=[2.5,∞) 
30 7.3 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
30 7.5 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
30 7.7 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
30 7.9 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
30 8.1 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
30 8.3 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
10 5.3 0.003 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.003 
10 5.5 0.016 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.016 
10 5.7 0.026 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.026 
10 5.9 0.035 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.005 0.029 
10 6.1 0.068 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.046 0.022 
10 6.3 0.135 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.108 0.027 
10 6.5 0.215 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.039 0.151 0.025 
10 6.7 0.089 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.027 0.053 0.009 
10 6.9 0.101 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.015 0.080 0.006 
10 7.1 0.065 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.007 0.053 0.005 
10 7.3 0.748 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.003 0.723 0.022 
10 7.5 0.812 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.811 0.001 
10 7.7 0.619 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.619 0.000 
10 7.9 0.332 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.330 0.002 
10 8.1 0.578 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.576 0.001 
10 8.3 0.177 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.177 0.000 
Principal Sources (faults, subduction, random seismicity having > 3% contribution 
UC33brAvg_FM32:  
  Percent Contributed: 1.79 
  Distance (km): 6.7784225 



  Magnitude: 7.5903583 
  Epsilon (mean values): 2.2502599 
San Andreas (San Gorgonio Pass-Garnet HIll) [1]:  
  Percent Contributed: 1.57 
  Distance (km): 6.5353046 
  Magnitude: 7.5636338 
  Epsilon (mean values): 2.2415974 
  Azimuth: 31.71136 
  Latitude: 33.845511 
  Longitude: -116.35786 
UC33brAvg_FM31:  
  Percent Contributed: 1.79 
  Distance (km): 6.7745372 
  Magnitude: 7.5940581 
  Epsilon (mean values): 2.2503848 
San Andreas (San Gorgonio Pass-Garnet HIll) [1]:  
  Percent Contributed: 1.58 
  Distance (km): 6.5353046 
  Magnitude: 7.567265 
  Epsilon (mean values): 2.2411248 
  Azimuth: 31.71136 
  Latitude: 33.845511 
  Longitude: -116.35786 
PSHA Deaggregation. %contributions. 
site: Test 
longitude: 116.394°W 
latitude: 33.796°E 
imt: Peak Ground Acceleration 
vs30 = 259 m/s (Site class D) 
return period: 2475 yrs. 
#This deaggregation corresponds to: GMM: Chiou & Youngs (2014) 
Summary statistics for PSHA PGA deaggregation, r=distance, ε=epsilon: 
Deaggregation targets:  
  Return period: 2475 yrs 
  Exceedance rate: 0.0004040404 yr⁻¹ 
  PGA ground motion: 0.94442438 g 
Recovered targets:  
  Return period: 3248.499 yrs 
  Exceedance rate: 0.00030783448 yr⁻¹ 
Totals:  
  Binned: 30.56 % 
  Residual: 0 % 
  Trace: 0.05 % 
Mean (over all sources):  
  m: 7.35 
  r: 7.1 km 
  ε₀: 1.52 σ 
Mode (largest m-r bin):  
  m: 7.49 
  r: 6.63 km 
  ε₀: 1.43 σ 
  Contribution: 5.64 % 
Mode (largest m-r-ε₀ bin):  
  m: 7.49 
  r: 6.56 km 
  ε₀: 1.43 σ 
  Contribution: 5.47 % 
Discretization:  
  r: min = 0.0, max = 1000.0, Δ = 20.0 km 
  m: min = 4.4, max = 9.4, Δ = 0.2 
  ε: min = -3.0, max = 3.0, Δ = 0.5 σ 
Epsilon keys:  
  ε0: [-∞ .. -2.5) 
  ε1: [-2.5 .. -2.0) 
  ε2: [-2.0 .. -1.5) 
  ε3: [-1.5 .. -1.0) 
  ε4: [-1.0 .. -0.5) 
  ε5: [-0.5 .. 0.0) 
  ε6: [0.0 .. 0.5) 



  ε7: [0.5 .. 1.0) 
  ε8: [1.0 .. 1.5) 
  ε9: [1.5 .. 2.0) 
  ε10: [2.0 .. 2.5) 
  ε11: [2.5 .. +∞] 
Closest Distance, rRup (km) Magnitude (Mw) ALL_ε ε=(-∞,-2.5) ε=[-2.5,-2) ε=[-2,-1.5)
 ε=[-1.5,-1) ε=[-1,-0.5) ε=[-0.5,0) ε=[0,0.5) ε=[0.5,1) ε=[1,1.5) ε=[1.5,2)
 ε=[2,2.5) ε=[2.5,∞) 
50 7.7 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
50 7.9 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
50 8.1 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
50 8.3 0.001 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 
30 6.7 0.001 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 
30 6.9 0.001 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 
30 7.1 0.004 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.003 
30 7.3 0.005 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.004 
30 7.5 0.005 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.004 
30 7.7 0.008 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.002 0.006 
30 7.9 0.067 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.020 0.046 
30 8.1 0.130 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.011 0.119 
30 8.3 0.091 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.003 0.089 
10 5.1 0.658 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.620 0.038 
10 5.3 0.704 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.324 0.289 0.091 
10 5.5 0.672 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.543 0.000 0.129 
10 5.7 0.598 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.454 0.042 0.103 
10 5.9 0.501 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.359 0.076 0.066 
10 6.1 0.634 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.317 0.264 0.053 
10 6.3 0.667 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.020 0.452 0.177 0.018 
10 6.5 0.805 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.034 0.093 0.518 0.107 0.053 
10 6.7 0.379 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.065 0.055 0.218 0.030 0.012 
10 6.9 0.499 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.057 0.019 0.376 0.036 0.012 
10 7.1 0.467 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.036 0.013 0.289 0.069 0.061 
10 7.3 5.065 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.015 4.187 0.531 0.328 0.003 
10 7.5 5.635 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.004 5.468 0.153 0.011 0.000 
10 7.7 4.429 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 4.417 0.008 0.003 0.000 
10 7.9 2.485 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 2.369 0.107 0.008 0.000 
10 8.1 4.565 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 4.521 0.044 0.000 0.000 
10 8.3 1.481 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 1.477 0.005 0.000 0.000 
Principal Sources (faults, subduction, random seismicity having > 3% contribution 
UC33brAvg_FM31:  
  Percent Contributed: 12.69 
  Distance (km): 7.2244671 
  Magnitude: 7.6532072 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.4368664 
San Andreas (San Gorgonio Pass-Garnet HIll) [1]:  
  Percent Contributed: 10.77 
  Distance (km): 6.5353046 
  Magnitude: 7.6254958 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.4010122 
  Azimuth: 31.71136 
  Latitude: 33.845511 
  Longitude: -116.35786 
San Andreas (North Branch Mill Creek) [10]:  
  Percent Contributed: 1.14 
  Distance (km): 8.2781536 
  Magnitude: 7.8911321 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.3969631 
  Azimuth: 36.358309 
  Latitude: 33.853076 
  Longitude: -116.34417 
UC33brAvg_FM32:  
  Percent Contributed: 12.65 
  Distance (km): 7.2138514 
  Magnitude: 7.6495929 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.438004 
San Andreas (San Gorgonio Pass-Garnet HIll) [1]:  
  Percent Contributed: 10.7 
  Distance (km): 6.5353046 
  Magnitude: 7.6222483 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.403131 



  Azimuth: 31.71136 
  Latitude: 33.845511 
  Longitude: -116.35786 
San Andreas (North Branch Mill Creek) [10]:  
  Percent Contributed: 1.2 
  Distance (km): 8.2781536 
  Magnitude: 7.8644919 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.405447 
  Azimuth: 36.358309 
  Latitude: 33.853076 
  Longitude: -116.34417 
UC33brAvg_FM31 (opt):  
  Percent Contributed: 2.61 
  Distance (km): 6.4949545 
  Magnitude: 5.8623336 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.9321758 
UC33brAvg_FM32 (opt):  
  Percent Contributed: 2.61 
  Distance (km): 6.4941944 
  Magnitude: 5.8617784 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.9323608 
PSHA Deaggregation. %contributions. 
site: Test 
longitude: 116.394°W 
latitude: 33.796°E 
imt: Peak Ground Acceleration 
vs30 = 259 m/s (Site class D) 
return period: 2475 yrs. 
#This deaggregation corresponds to: Source Type: System 
Summary statistics for PSHA PGA deaggregation, r=distance, ε=epsilon: 
Deaggregation targets:  
  Return period: 2475 yrs 
  Exceedance rate: 0.0004040404 yr⁻¹ 
  PGA ground motion: 0.94442438 g 
Recovered targets:  
  Return period: 3248.499 yrs 
  Exceedance rate: 0.00030783448 yr⁻¹ 
Totals:  
  Binned: 77.01 % 
  Residual: 0 % 
  Trace: 0.04 % 
Mean (over all sources):  
  m: 7.63 
  r: 7.75 km 
  ε₀: 1.52 σ 
Mode (largest m-r bin):  
  m: 7.49 
  r: 6.65 km 
  ε₀: 1.5 σ 
  Contribution: 16.3 % 
Mode (largest m-r-ε₀ bin):  
  m: 7.49 
  r: 6.61 km 
  ε₀: 1.39 σ 
  Contribution: 11.81 % 
Discretization:  
  r: min = 0.0, max = 1000.0, Δ = 20.0 km 
  m: min = 4.4, max = 9.4, Δ = 0.2 
  ε: min = -3.0, max = 3.0, Δ = 0.5 σ 
Epsilon keys:  
  ε0: [-∞ .. -2.5) 
  ε1: [-2.5 .. -2.0) 
  ε2: [-2.0 .. -1.5) 
  ε3: [-1.5 .. -1.0) 
  ε4: [-1.0 .. -0.5) 
  ε5: [-0.5 .. 0.0) 
  ε6: [0.0 .. 0.5) 
  ε7: [0.5 .. 1.0) 
  ε8: [1.0 .. 1.5) 



  ε9: [1.5 .. 2.0) 
  ε10: [2.0 .. 2.5) 
  ε11: [2.5 .. +∞] 
Closest Distance, rRup (km) Magnitude (Mw) ALL_ε ε=(-∞,-2.5) ε=[-2.5,-2) ε=[-2,-1.5)
 ε=[-1.5,-1) ε=[-1,-0.5) ε=[-0.5,0) ε=[0,0.5) ε=[0.5,1) ε=[1,1.5) ε=[1.5,2)
 ε=[2,2.5) ε=[2.5,∞) 
70 8.1 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
70 8.3 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
50 7.5 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
50 7.7 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
50 7.9 0.015 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.015 
50 8.1 0.005 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.005 
50 8.3 0.005 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.005 
30 6.5 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
30 6.7 0.001 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 
30 6.9 0.005 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.005 
30 7.1 0.042 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.042 
30 7.3 0.050 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.049 
30 7.5 0.108 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.011 0.097 
30 7.7 0.142 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.017 0.125 
30 7.9 0.418 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.166 0.252 
30 8.1 0.749 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.003 0.493 0.253 
30 8.3 0.466 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.002 0.375 0.089 
10 6.1 0.016 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.016 
10 6.3 0.834 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.519 0.277 0.038 
10 6.5 2.382 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.004 1.387 0.497 0.495 
10 6.7 0.501 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.004 0.438 0.042 0.017 
10 6.9 1.160 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.008 0.970 0.159 0.023 
10 7.1 1.266 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.231 0.506 0.455 0.075 
10 7.3 14.930 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 9.507 3.762 1.637 0.024 
10 7.5 16.300 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 11.806 3.651 0.842 0.000 
10 7.7 13.054 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 9.798 2.632 0.624 0.000 
10 7.9 7.178 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 5.286 1.522 0.368 0.002 
10 8.1 13.116 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.012 9.984 2.531 0.589 0.001 
10 8.3 4.263 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.495 2.796 0.795 0.177 0.000 
Principal Sources (faults, subduction, random seismicity having > 3% contribution 
UC33brAvg_FM31:  
  Percent Contributed: 38.53 
  Distance (km): 7.7522696 
  Magnitude: 7.6290489 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.5183046 
San Andreas (San Gorgonio Pass-Garnet HIll) [1]:  
  Percent Contributed: 31.12 
  Distance (km): 6.5353046 
  Magnitude: 7.6050927 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.4767216 
  Azimuth: 31.71136 
  Latitude: 33.845511 
  Longitude: -116.35786 
San Andreas (North Branch Mill Creek) [10]:  
  Percent Contributed: 3.95 
  Distance (km): 8.2781536 
  Magnitude: 7.8816596 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.3120476 
  Azimuth: 36.358309 
  Latitude: 33.853076 
  Longitude: -116.34417 
UC33brAvg_FM32:  
  Percent Contributed: 38.48 
  Distance (km): 7.7441979 
  Magnitude: 7.6245993 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.5185216 
San Andreas (San Gorgonio Pass-Garnet HIll) [1]:  
  Percent Contributed: 30.96 
  Distance (km): 6.5353046 
  Magnitude: 7.6018745 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.478169 
  Azimuth: 31.71136 
  Latitude: 33.845511 
  Longitude: -116.35786 



San Andreas (North Branch Mill Creek) [10]:  
  Percent Contributed: 4.16 
  Distance (km): 8.2781536 
  Magnitude: 7.8512625 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.3196983 
  Azimuth: 36.358309 
  Latitude: 33.853076 
  Longitude: -116.34417 
PSHA Deaggregation. %contributions. 
site: Test 
longitude: 116.394°W 
latitude: 33.796°E 
imt: Peak Ground Acceleration 
vs30 = 259 m/s (Site class D) 
return period: 2475 yrs. 
#This deaggregation corresponds to: Source Type: Grid 
Summary statistics for PSHA PGA deaggregation, r=distance, ε=epsilon: 
Deaggregation targets:  
  Return period: 2475 yrs 
  Exceedance rate: 0.0004040404 yr⁻¹ 
  PGA ground motion: 0.94442438 g 
Recovered targets:  
  Return period: 3248.499 yrs 
  Exceedance rate: 0.00030783448 yr⁻¹ 
Totals:  
  Binned: 22.99 % 
  Residual: 0 % 
  Trace: 0.06 % 
Mean (over all sources):  
  m: 5.81 
  r: 6.74 km 
  ε₀: 1.8 σ 
Mode (largest m-r bin):  
  m: 5.5 
  r: 6.19 km 
  ε₀: 1.75 σ 
  Contribution: 3.55 % 
Mode (largest m-r-ε₀ bin):  
  m: 5.3 
  r: 4.87 km 
  ε₀: 1.76 σ 
  Contribution: 2.4 % 
Discretization:  
  r: min = 0.0, max = 1000.0, Δ = 20.0 km 
  m: min = 4.4, max = 9.4, Δ = 0.2 
  ε: min = -3.0, max = 3.0, Δ = 0.5 σ 
Epsilon keys:  
  ε0: [-∞ .. -2.5) 
  ε1: [-2.5 .. -2.0) 
  ε2: [-2.0 .. -1.5) 
  ε3: [-1.5 .. -1.0) 
  ε4: [-1.0 .. -0.5) 
  ε5: [-0.5 .. 0.0) 
  ε6: [0.0 .. 0.5) 
  ε7: [0.5 .. 1.0) 
  ε8: [1.0 .. 1.5) 
  ε9: [1.5 .. 2.0) 
  ε10: [2.0 .. 2.5) 
  ε11: [2.5 .. +∞] 
Closest Distance, rRup (km) Magnitude (Mw) ALL_ε ε=(-∞,-2.5) ε=[-2.5,-2) ε=[-2,-1.5)
 ε=[-1.5,-1) ε=[-1,-0.5) ε=[-0.5,0) ε=[0,0.5) ε=[0.5,1) ε=[1,1.5) ε=[1.5,2)
 ε=[2,2.5) ε=[2.5,∞) 
50 7.5 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
50 7.7 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
50 7.9 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
30 6.1 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
30 6.3 0.005 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.005 
30 6.5 0.005 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.005 
30 6.7 0.010 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.002 0.008 



30 6.9 0.011 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.002 0.009 
30 7.1 0.010 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.003 0.006 
30 7.3 0.007 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.003 0.004 
30 7.5 0.003 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.002 0.001 
30 7.7 0.001 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
30 7.9 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
10 5.1 2.816 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 1.104 1.403 0.309 
10 5.3 3.142 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 2.397 0.289 0.456 
10 5.5 3.553 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 1.763 1.059 0.256 0.474 
10 5.7 3.036 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 1.399 0.866 0.398 0.372 
10 5.9 2.387 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.993 0.677 0.475 0.242 
10 6.1 2.712 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.662 1.011 0.877 0.162 
10 6.3 2.013 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.429 1.025 0.466 0.092 
10 6.5 1.429 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.034 0.399 0.675 0.253 0.068 
10 6.7 0.832 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.065 0.233 0.367 0.134 0.033 
10 6.9 0.539 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.057 0.128 0.234 0.105 0.017 
10 7.1 0.303 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.042 0.080 0.112 0.064 0.005 
10 7.3 0.136 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.022 0.042 0.042 0.029 0.002 
10 7.5 0.037 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.006 0.012 0.013 0.006 0.000 
10 7.7 0.004 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.000 
10 7.9 0.001 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
Principal Sources (faults, subduction, random seismicity having > 3% contribution 
UC33brAvg_FM31 (opt):  
  Percent Contributed: 11.5 
  Distance (km): 6.7410744 
  Magnitude: 5.807404 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.8045724 
PointSourceFinite: -116.394, 33.801:  
  Percent Contributed: 3.82 
  Distance (km): 4.9165462 
  Magnitude: 5.6568818 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.5987339 
  Azimuth: 0 
  Latitude: 33.800983 
  Longitude: -116.39434 
PointSourceFinite: -116.394, 33.801:  
  Percent Contributed: 3.82 
  Distance (km): 4.9165462 
  Magnitude: 5.6568818 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.5987339 
  Azimuth: 0 
  Latitude: 33.800983 
  Longitude: -116.39434 
UC33brAvg_FM32 (opt):  
  Percent Contributed: 11.49 
  Distance (km): 6.740285 
  Magnitude: 5.806952 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.8046318 
PointSourceFinite: -116.394, 33.801:  
  Percent Contributed: 3.82 
  Distance (km): 4.9166413 
  Magnitude: 5.6565838 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.5988436 
  Azimuth: 0 
  Latitude: 33.800983 
  Longitude: -116.39434 
PointSourceFinite: -116.394, 33.801:  
  Percent Contributed: 3.82 
  Distance (km): 4.9166413 
  Magnitude: 5.6565838 
  Epsilon (mean values): 1.5988436 
  Azimuth: 0 
  Latitude: 33.800983 
  Longitude: -116.39434 



 

 

APPENDIX D 
  

  

 

DRY SAND SETTLEMENT



S U M M A R Y  C A L C U L A T I O N  R E P O R T

Project title : 24-112 National Core Apartments

Location : Rancho Mirage

Petra Geosciences, Inc.

Orange County Office

3190 Airport Loop Drive, Suite J1, Costa Mesa, California 92626

www.petra-inc.com

Vertical Settlements

Test Name
B-1 I&B 2014 B-1 NCEER

S
e
tt

le
m

e
n
ts

 (
in

)

2

1.9

1.8

1.7

1.6

1.5

1.4

1.3

1.2

1.1

1

0.9

0.8

0.7

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.1

1.39

1.95

Vertical Settlements

Project File: Z:\24-112 Liq & Settle.lsvs

LiqSVs 2.3.2.11 - SPT & Vs Liquefaction Assessment Software



S P T  B A S E D  L I Q U E F A C T I O N  A N A L Y S I S  R E P O R T

:: Input parameters and analysis properties ::

Analysis method:
Fines correction method:
Sampling method:
Borehole diameter:
Rod length:
Hammer energy ratio:

Boulanger & Idriss, 2014
Boulanger & Idriss, 2014
Sampler wo liners
200mm
3.30 ft
1.20

G.W.T. (in-situ):
G.W.T. (earthq.):

Earthquake magnitude Mw:
Peak ground acceleration:
Eq. external load:

Project title : 24-112 National Core Apartments

Location : Rancho Mirage

Petra Geosciences, Inc.

Orange County Office

3190 Airport Loop Drive, Suite J1, Costa Mesa, California 92626

www.petra-inc.com

SPT Name: B-1 I&B 2014

160.00 ft
160.00 ft
7.49
0.87 g
0.00 tsf

Raw SPT Data

SPT Count (blows/ft)
50403020100

D
e
p
th

 (
ft

)

65

60

55

50

45

40

35

30

25

20

15

10

5

Raw SPT Data

Insitu

CSR - CRR Plot

CSR - CRR
10.80.60.40.20

D
e
p
th

 (
ft

)

65

60

55

50

45

40

35

30

25

20

15

10

5

CSR - CRR Plot

During earthq.

FS Plot

Factor of Safety
21.510.50

D
e
p
th

 (
ft

)

65

60

55

50

45

40

35

30

25

20

15

10

5

FS Plot

During earthq.

LPI

Liquefaction potential
0

D
e
p
th

 (
ft

)

65

60

55

50

45

40

35

30

25

20

15

10

5

LPI

During earthq.

CRR 7.50 clean sand curve

Corrected Blow Count N1(60),cs
50454035302520151050

C
y
c
li
c
 S

tr
e
s
s
 R

a
ti

o
*

0.8

0.7

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.0

CRR 7.50 clean sand curve

Liquefaction

No Liquefaction

F.S. color scheme

Almost certain it will liquefy

Very likely to liquefy

Liquefaction and no liq. are equally likely

Unlike to liquefy

Almost certain it will not liquefy

LPI color scheme

Very high risk

High risk

Low risk

Project File: Z:\24-112 Liq & Settle.lsvs

Page: 1LiqSVs 2.3.2.11 - SPT & Vs Liquefaction Assessment Software



This software is registered to: Kenton Buzbee

Raw SPT Data

SPT Count (blows/ft)
50403020100

D
e
p
th

 (
ft

)

66

64

62

60

58

56

54

52

50

48

46

44

42

40

38

36

34

32

30

28

26

24

22

20

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

2

Raw SPT Data

Insitu

CSR - CRR Plot

CSR - CRR
10.80.60.40.20

D
e
p
th

 (
ft

)

64

62

60

58

56

54

52

50

48

46

44

42

40

38

36

34

32

30

28

26

24

22

20

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

CSR - CRR Plot

During earthq.

FS Plot

Factor of Safety
21.510.50

D
e
p
th

 (
ft

)

64

62

60

58

56

54

52

50

48

46

44

42

40

38

36

34

32

30

28

26

24

22

20

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

FS Plot

During earthq.

Vertical Liq. Settlements

Cuml. Settlement (in)
10.50

D
e
p
th

 (
ft

)

64

62

60

58

56

54

52

50

48

46

44

42

40

38

36

34

32

30

28

26

24

22

20

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

Vertical Liq. Settlements

During earthq.

Lateral Liq. Displacements

Cuml. Displacement (ft)
0

D
e
p
th

 (
ft

)

64

62

60

58

56

54

52

50

48

46

44

42

40

38

36

34

32

30

28

26

24

22

20

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

Lateral Liq. Displacements

During earthq.

:: Overall Liquefaction Assessment Analysis Plots ::

Project File: Z:\24-112 Liq & Settle.lsvs

Page: 2LiqSVs 2.3.2.11 - SPT & Vs Liquefaction Assessment Software



This software is registered to: Kenton Buzbee

Test
Depth

(ft)

:: Field input data ::

SPT Field
Value

(blows)

Fines
Content

(%)

Unit
Weight
(pcf)

Infl.
Thickness

(ft)

Can
Liquefy

2.50 14 0.00 115.00 3.75 Yes

5.00 14 0.00 115.00 3.00 Yes

7.50  8 0.00 110.00 2.00 Yes

10.00 15 0.00 110.00 3.75 Yes

15.00 35 0.00 110.00 5.00 Yes

20.00 43 0.00 110.00 5.00 Yes

25.00 34 0.00 110.00 5.00 Yes

30.00 37 0.00 110.00 5.00 Yes

35.00 47 0.00 110.00 5.00 Yes

40.00 33 0.00 110.00 5.00 Yes

45.00 23 0.00 110.00 5.00 Yes

50.00 43 0.00 110.00 5.00 Yes

55.00 41 0.00 110.00 5.00 Yes

60.00 16 0.00 110.00 5.00 Yes

65.00 62 0.00 110.00 5.00 Yes

Abbreviations

Depth:
SPT Field Value:
Fines Content:
Unit Weight:
Infl. Thickness:
Can Liquefy:

Depth at which test was performed (ft)
Number of blows per foot
Fines content at test depth (%)
Unit weight at test depth (pcf)
Thickness of the soil layer to be considered in settlements analysis (ft)
User defined switch for excluding/including test depth from the analysis procedure

:: Cyclic Resistance Ratio (CRR) calculation data ::

CRR7.5Depth
(ft)

SPT
Field
Value

CN CE CB CR CS (N1)60 (N1)60csFC
(%)

σv

(tsf)
uo

(tsf)
σ'vo

(tsf)
Unit

Weight
(pcf)

Δ(Ν1)60m

2.50 14 1.70 1.20 1.15 0.75 1.30 32 32 4.0000.00115.00 0.14 0.00 0.14 0.37 0.00

5.00 14 1.60 1.20 1.15 0.75 1.30 30 30 4.0000.00115.00 0.29 0.00 0.29 0.36 0.00

7.50 8 1.53 1.20 1.15 0.80 1.18 16 16 4.0000.00110.00 0.42 0.00 0.42 0.46 0.00

10.00 15 1.28 1.20 1.15 0.85 1.26 28 28 4.0000.00110.00 0.56 0.00 0.56 0.39 0.00

15.00 35 1.06 1.20 1.15 0.85 1.30 57 57 4.0000.00110.00 0.84 0.00 0.84 0.26 0.00

20.00 43 0.99 1.20 1.15 0.95 1.30 72 72 4.0000.00110.00 1.11 0.00 1.11 0.26 0.00

25.00 34 0.93 1.20 1.15 0.95 1.30 54 54 4.0000.00110.00 1.39 0.00 1.39 0.26 0.00

30.00 37 0.89 1.20 1.15 1.00 1.30 59 59 4.0000.00110.00 1.66 0.00 1.66 0.26 0.00

35.00 47 0.85 1.20 1.15 1.00 1.30 72 72 4.0000.00110.00 1.94 0.00 1.94 0.26 0.00

40.00 33 0.82 1.20 1.15 1.00 1.30 49 49 4.0000.00110.00 2.21 0.00 2.21 0.26 0.00

45.00 23 0.73 1.20 1.15 1.00 1.30 30 30 4.0000.00110.00 2.49 0.00 2.49 0.36 0.00

50.00 43 0.78 1.20 1.15 1.00 1.30 60 60 4.0000.00110.00 2.76 0.00 2.76 0.26 0.00

55.00 41 0.76 1.20 1.15 1.00 1.30 56 56 4.0000.00110.00 3.04 0.00 3.04 0.26 0.00

60.00 16 0.59 1.20 1.15 1.00 1.17 15 15 4.0000.00110.00 3.31 0.00 3.31 0.47 0.00

65.00 62 0.73 1.20 1.15 1.00 1.30 81 81 4.0000.00110.00 3.59 0.00 3.59 0.26 0.00

Project File: Z:\24-112 Liq & Settle.lsvs

Page: 3LiqSVs 2.3.2.11 - SPT & Vs Liquefaction Assessment Software



This software is registered to: Kenton Buzbee

:: Cyclic Resistance Ratio (CRR) calculation data ::

CRR7.5Depth
(ft)

SPT
Field
Value

CN CE CB CR CS (N1)60 (N1)60csFC
(%)

σv

(tsf)
uo

(tsf)
σ'vo

(tsf)
Unit

Weight
(pcf)

Δ(Ν1)60m

σv:
uo:

σ'vo:

m:
CN:

CE:

CB:
CR:

CS:

N1(60):
Δ(Ν1)60

N1(60)cs:

CRR7.5:

Total stress during SPT test (tsf)
Water pore pressure during SPT test (tsf)

Effective overburden pressure during SPT test (tsf)

Stress exponent normalization factor
Overburden corretion factor

Energy correction factor

Borehole diameter correction factor
Rod length correction factor

Liner correction factor

Corrected NSPT to a 60% energy ratio
Equivalent clean sand adjustment

Corected N1(60) value for fines content

Cyclic resistance ratio for M=7.5

Abbreviations

σv,eq

(tsf)
rd CSR MSF CSReq,M=7.5 Ksigma CSR*

:: Cyclic Stress Ratio calculation (CSR fully adjusted and normalized) ::

Depth
(ft)

Unit
Weight
(pcf)

uo,eq

(tsf)
σ'vo,eq

(tsf)
FSMSFmax (N1)60csα

2.50 115.00 0.14 0.00 0.14 1.00 0.566 1.00 0.564 1.10 0.513 2.0002.12 321.00

5.00 115.00 0.29 0.00 0.29 0.99 0.563 1.00 0.561 1.10 0.510 2.0002.00 301.00

7.50 110.00 0.42 0.00 0.42 0.99 0.559 1.00 0.558 1.10 0.508 2.0001.35 161.00

10.00 110.00 0.56 0.00 0.56 0.98 0.555 1.00 0.553 1.10 0.503 2.0001.88 281.00

15.00 110.00 0.84 0.00 0.84 0.97 0.546 1.00 0.544 1.07 0.509 2.0002.20 571.00

20.00 110.00 1.11 0.00 1.11 0.95 0.536 1.00 0.534 0.99 0.542 2.0002.20 721.00

25.00 110.00 1.39 0.00 1.39 0.93 0.525 1.00 0.523 0.92 0.568 2.0002.20 541.00

30.00 110.00 1.66 0.00 1.66 0.91 0.513 1.00 0.511 0.87 0.590 2.0002.20 591.00

35.00 110.00 1.94 0.00 1.94 0.89 0.501 1.00 0.499 0.82 0.607 2.0002.20 721.00

40.00 110.00 2.21 0.00 2.21 0.86 0.488 1.00 0.486 0.78 0.622 2.0002.20 491.00

45.00 110.00 2.49 0.00 2.49 0.84 0.475 1.00 0.474 0.83 0.573 2.0002.00 301.00

50.00 110.00 2.76 0.00 2.76 0.82 0.462 1.00 0.461 0.72 0.643 2.0002.20 601.00

55.00 110.00 3.04 0.00 3.04 0.80 0.450 1.00 0.448 0.69 0.650 2.0002.20 561.00

60.00 110.00 3.31 0.00 3.31 0.77 0.437 1.00 0.437 0.87 0.500 2.0001.32 151.00

65.00 110.00 3.59 0.00 3.59 0.75 0.425 1.00 0.423 0.64 0.662 2.0002.20 811.00

σv,eq:
uo,eq:
σ'vo,eq:

rd:
α:

CSR :
MSF :

CSReq,M=7.5:
Ksigma:

CSR*:

FS:

Total overburden pressure at test point, during earthquake (tsf)
Water pressure at test point, during earthquake (tsf)
Effective overburden pressure, during earthquake (tsf)

Nonlinear shear mass factor
Improvement factor due to stone columns

Cyclic Stress Ratio
Magnitude Scaling Factor

CSR adjusted for M=7.5
Effective overburden stress factor

CSR fully adjusted (user FS applied)***

Calculated factor of safety against soil liquefaction

Abbreviations

1.00*** User FS:

:: Liquefaction potential according to Iwasaki ::

Depth
(ft)

FS F Thickness
(ft)

wz IL

2.50 2.000 0.00 9.62 0.002.50

5.00 2.000 0.00 9.24 0.002.50

Project File: Z:\24-112 Liq & Settle.lsvs

Page: 4LiqSVs 2.3.2.11 - SPT & Vs Liquefaction Assessment Software



This software is registered to: Kenton Buzbee

:: Liquefaction potential according to Iwasaki ::

Depth
(ft)

FS F Thickness
(ft)

wz IL

7.50 2.000 0.00 8.86 0.002.50

10.00 2.000 0.00 8.48 0.002.50

15.00 2.000 0.00 7.71 0.005.00

20.00 2.000 0.00 6.95 0.005.00

25.00 2.000 0.00 6.19 0.005.00

30.00 2.000 0.00 5.43 0.005.00

35.00 2.000 0.00 4.67 0.005.00

40.00 2.000 0.00 3.90 0.005.00

45.00 2.000 0.00 3.14 0.005.00

50.00 2.000 0.00 2.38 0.005.00

55.00 2.000 0.00 1.62 0.005.00

60.00 2.000 0.00 0.86 0.005.00

65.00 2.000 0.00 0.09 0.005.00

0.00

IL = 0.00 - No liquefaction
IL between 0.00 and 5 - Liquefaction not probable

IL between 5 and 15 - Liquefaction probable

IL > 15 - Liquefaction certain

Overall potential IL :

:: Vertical settlements estimation for dry sands ::

Depth
(ft)

(N1)60 τav p Gmax

(tsf)
α b γ ε15 Nc εNc

(%)
ΔS
(in)

Δh
(ft)

εNc

weight
factor

2.50 32 0.08 0.10 440.42 0.13 26059.76 0.00 0.00 15.06 0.16 0.0703.750.95

5.00 30 0.16 0.19 609.59 0.13 17193.03 0.00 0.00 15.06 0.20 0.0713.000.90

7.50 16 0.24 0.28 601.05 0.14 13598.84 0.01 0.01 15.06 1.38 0.3302.000.85

10.00 28 0.31 0.38 833.28 0.14 11493.75 0.00 0.00 15.06 0.25 0.1123.750.80

15.00 57 0.46 0.56
1288.6

3
0.15 9051.99 0.00 0.00 15.06 0.04 0.0245.000.70

20.00 72 0.60 0.75
1605.4

8
0.15 7634.05 0.00 0.00 15.06 0.03 0.0155.000.60

25.00 54 0.73 0.93
1629.0

2
0.16 6686.45 0.00 0.00 15.06 0.05 0.0295.000.50

30.00 59 0.85 1.11
1836.5

8
0.17 5998.99 0.00 0.00 15.06 0.04 0.0245.000.40

35.00 72 0.97 1.30
2118.7

3
0.17 5472.55 0.00 0.00 15.06 0.03 0.0165.000.30

40.00 49 1.08 1.48
1991.5

2
0.18 5053.65 0.00 0.00 15.06 0.06 0.0365.000.20

45.00 30 1.18 1.67
1793.0

8
0.19 4710.61 0.00 0.00 15.06 0.18 0.1075.000.10

50.00 60 1.28 1.85
2380.7

5
0.20 4423.37 0.00 0.00 15.06 0.04 0.0225.000.00

55.00 56 1.37 2.04
2439.6

8
0.20 4178.55 0.00 0.00 15.06 0.04 0.0255.000.00

60.00 15 1.45 2.22
1642.3

0
0.21 3966.81 0.01 0.01 15.06 0.82 0.4915.000.00

65.00 81 1.52 2.40
2998.4

9
0.22 3781.46 0.00 0.00 15.06 0.02 0.0125.000.00

Abbreviations

τav:
p:
Gmax:
α, b:

γ:
ε15:

Nc:
εNc:
Δh:
ΔS:

Average cyclic shear stress
Average stress
Maximum shear modulus (tsf)
Shear strain formula variables

Average shear strain
Volumetric strain after 15 cycles

Number of cycles
Volumetric strain for number of cycles Nc (%)
Thickness of soil layer (in)
Settlement of soil layer (in)

1.385Cumulative settlemetns:

Project File: Z:\24-112 Liq & Settle.lsvs

Page: 5LiqSVs 2.3.2.11 - SPT & Vs Liquefaction Assessment Software



S P T  B A S E D  L I Q U E F A C T I O N  A N A L Y S I S  R E P O R T

:: Input parameters and analysis properties ::

Analysis method:
Fines correction method:
Sampling method:
Borehole diameter:
Rod length:
Hammer energy ratio:

NCEER 1998
NCEER 1998
Sampler wo liners
200mm
3.30 ft
1.20

G.W.T. (in-situ):
G.W.T. (earthq.):

Earthquake magnitude Mw:
Peak ground acceleration:
Eq. external load:

Project title : 24-112 National Core Apartments

Location : Rancho Mirage

Petra Geosciences, Inc.

Orange County Office

3190 Airport Loop Drive, Suite J1, Costa Mesa, California 92626

www.petra-inc.com

SPT Name: B-1 NCEER

160.00 ft
160.00 ft
7.49
0.87 g
0.00 tsf

Raw SPT Data

SPT Count (blows/ft)
50403020100

D
e
p
th

 (
ft

)

65

60

55

50

45

40

35

30

25

20

15

10

5

Raw SPT Data

Insitu

CSR - CRR Plot

CSR - CRR
10.80.60.40.20

D
e
p
th

 (
ft

)

65

60

55

50

45

40

35

30

25

20

15

10

5

CSR - CRR Plot

During earthq.

FS Plot

Factor of Safety
21.510.50

D
e
p
th

 (
ft

)

65

60

55

50

45

40

35

30

25

20

15

10

5

FS Plot

During earthq.

LPI

Liquefaction potential
0

D
e
p
th

 (
ft

)

65

60

55

50

45

40

35

30

25

20

15

10

5

LPI

During earthq.

CRR 7.50 clean sand curve

Corrected Blow Count N1(60),cs
50454035302520151050

C
y
c
li
c
 S

tr
e
s
s
 R

a
ti

o
*

0.8

0.7

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.0

CRR 7.50 clean sand curve

Liquefaction

No Liquefaction

F.S. color scheme

Almost certain it will liquefy

Very likely to liquefy

Liquefaction and no liq. are equally likely

Unlike to liquefy

Almost certain it will not liquefy

LPI color scheme

Very high risk

High risk

Low risk

Project File: Z:\24-112 Liq & Settle.lsvs

Page: 6LiqSVs 2.3.2.11 - SPT & Vs Liquefaction Assessment Software



This software is registered to: Kenton Buzbee

Raw SPT Data

SPT Count (blows/ft)
50403020100

D
e
p
th

 (
ft

)

66

64

62

60

58

56

54

52

50

48

46

44

42

40

38

36

34

32

30

28

26

24

22

20

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

2

Raw SPT Data

Insitu

CSR - CRR Plot

CSR - CRR
10.80.60.40.20

D
e
p
th

 (
ft

)

64

62

60

58

56

54

52

50

48

46

44

42

40

38

36

34

32

30

28

26

24

22

20

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

CSR - CRR Plot

During earthq.

FS Plot

Factor of Safety
21.510.50

D
e
p
th

 (
ft

)

64

62

60

58

56

54

52

50

48

46

44

42

40

38

36

34

32

30

28

26

24

22

20

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

FS Plot

During earthq.

Vertical Liq. Settlements

Cuml. Settlement (in)
1.510.50

D
e
p
th

 (
ft

)

64

62

60

58

56

54

52

50

48

46

44

42

40

38

36

34

32

30

28

26

24

22

20

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

Vertical Liq. Settlements

During earthq.

Lateral Liq. Displacements

Cuml. Displacement (ft)
0

D
e
p
th

 (
ft

)

64

62

60

58

56

54

52

50

48

46

44

42

40

38

36

34

32

30

28

26

24

22

20

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

Lateral Liq. Displacements

During earthq.

:: Overall Liquefaction Assessment Analysis Plots ::

Project File: Z:\24-112 Liq & Settle.lsvs

Page: 7LiqSVs 2.3.2.11 - SPT & Vs Liquefaction Assessment Software



This software is registered to: Kenton Buzbee

Test
Depth

(ft)

:: Field input data ::

SPT Field
Value

(blows)

Fines
Content

(%)

Unit
Weight
(pcf)

Infl.
Thickness

(ft)

Can
Liquefy

2.50 14 0.00 120.00 3.75 Yes

5.00 14 0.00 120.00 3.00 Yes

7.50  8 0.00 120.00 2.00 Yes

10.00 15 0.00 120.00 3.75 Yes

15.00 35 0.00 120.00 5.00 Yes

20.00 43 0.00 120.00 5.00 Yes

25.00 34 0.00 120.00 5.00 Yes

30.00 37 0.00 120.00 5.00 Yes

35.00 47 0.00 120.00 5.00 Yes

40.00 33 0.00 120.00 5.00 Yes

45.00 23 0.00 120.00 5.00 Yes

50.00 43 0.00 120.00 5.00 Yes

55.00 41 0.00 120.00 5.00 Yes

60.00 16 0.00 120.00 5.00 Yes

65.00 62 0.00 120.00 5.00 Yes

Abbreviations

Depth:
SPT Field Value:
Fines Content:
Unit Weight:
Infl. Thickness:
Can Liquefy:

Depth at which test was performed (ft)
Number of blows per foot
Fines content at test depth (%)
Unit weight at test depth (pcf)
Thickness of the soil layer to be considered in settlements analysis (ft)
User defined switch for excluding/including test depth from the analysis procedure

:: Cyclic Resistance Ratio (CRR) calculation data ::

CRR7.5Depth
(ft)

SPT
Field
Value

CN CE CB CR CS (N1)60 (N1)60csα βFines
Content

(%)

σv

(tsf)
uo

(tsf)
σ'vo

(tsf)
Unit

Weight
(pcf)

2.50 14 1.64 1.20 1.15 0.75 1.20 29 0.00 1.00 29 4.0000.00120.00 0.15 0.00 0.15

5.00 14 1.48 1.20 1.15 0.75 1.20 26 0.00 1.00 26 4.0000.00120.00 0.30 0.00 0.30

7.50 8 1.35 1.20 1.15 0.75 1.20 13 0.00 1.00 13 4.0000.00120.00 0.45 0.00 0.45

10.00 15 1.25 1.20 1.15 0.85 1.20 26 0.00 1.00 26 4.0000.00120.00 0.60 0.00 0.60

15.00 35 1.07 1.20 1.15 0.85 1.20 53 0.00 1.00 53 4.0000.00120.00 0.90 0.00 0.90

20.00 43 0.94 1.20 1.15 0.95 1.20 64 0.00 1.00 64 4.0000.00120.00 1.20 0.00 1.20

25.00 34 0.84 1.20 1.15 0.95 1.20 45 0.00 1.00 45 4.0000.00120.00 1.50 0.00 1.50

30.00 37 0.76 1.20 1.15 1.00 1.20 46 0.00 1.00 46 4.0000.00120.00 1.80 0.00 1.80

35.00 47 0.69 1.20 1.15 1.00 1.20 54 0.00 1.00 54 4.0000.00120.00 2.10 0.00 2.10

40.00 33 0.63 1.20 1.15 1.00 1.20 35 0.00 1.00 35 4.0000.00120.00 2.40 0.00 2.40

45.00 23 0.59 1.20 1.15 1.00 1.20 22 0.00 1.00 22 4.0000.00120.00 2.70 0.00 2.70

50.00 43 0.55 1.20 1.15 1.00 1.20 39 0.00 1.00 39 4.0000.00120.00 3.00 0.00 3.00

55.00 41 0.51 1.20 1.15 1.00 1.20 35 0.00 1.00 35 4.0000.00120.00 3.30 0.00 3.30

60.00 16 0.48 1.20 1.15 1.00 1.20 13 0.00 1.00 13 4.0000.00120.00 3.60 0.00 3.60

65.00 62 0.45 1.20 1.15 1.00 1.20 46 0.00 1.00 46 4.0000.00120.00 3.90 0.00 3.90

Project File: Z:\24-112 Liq & Settle.lsvs

Page: 8LiqSVs 2.3.2.11 - SPT & Vs Liquefaction Assessment Software



This software is registered to: Kenton Buzbee

:: Cyclic Resistance Ratio (CRR) calculation data ::

CRR7.5Depth
(ft)

SPT
Field
Value

CN CE CB CR CS (N1)60 (N1)60csα βFines
Content

(%)

σv

(tsf)
uo

(tsf)
σ'vo

(tsf)
Unit

Weight
(pcf)

σv:

uo:
σ'vo:

CN:

CE:

CB:
CR:

CS:

N1(60):
α, β:

N1(60)cs:

CRR7.5:

Total stress during SPT test (tsf)

Water pore pressure during SPT test (tsf)
Effective overburden pressure during SPT test (tsf)

Overburden corretion factor

Energy correction factor

Borehole diameter correction factor
Rod length correction factor

Liner correction factor

Corrected NSPT to a 60% energy ratio
Clean sand equivalent clean sand formula coefficients

Corected N1(60) value for fines content

Cyclic resistance ratio for M=7.5

Abbreviations

σv,eq

(tsf)
rd CSR MSF CSReq,M=7.5 Ksigma CSR*

:: Cyclic Stress Ratio calculation (CSR fully adjusted and normalized) ::

Depth
(ft)

Unit
Weight
(pcf)

uo,eq

(tsf)
σ'vo,eq

(tsf)
FSα

2.50 120.00 0.15 0.00 0.15 1.00 0.563 1.00 0.562 1.00 0.562 2.0001.00

5.00 120.00 0.30 0.00 0.30 0.99 0.560 1.00 0.558 1.00 0.558 2.0001.00

7.50 120.00 0.45 0.00 0.45 0.98 0.557 1.00 0.555 1.00 0.555 2.0001.00

10.00 120.00 0.60 0.00 0.60 0.98 0.554 1.00 0.552 1.00 0.552 2.0001.00

15.00 120.00 0.90 0.00 0.90 0.97 0.548 1.00 0.546 1.00 0.546 2.0001.00

20.00 120.00 1.20 0.00 1.20 0.96 0.541 1.00 0.539 0.98 0.553 2.0001.00

25.00 120.00 1.50 0.00 1.50 0.94 0.533 1.00 0.531 0.93 0.569 2.0001.00

30.00 120.00 1.80 0.00 1.80 0.92 0.521 1.00 0.519 0.90 0.577 2.0001.00

35.00 120.00 2.10 0.00 2.10 0.89 0.504 1.00 0.502 0.87 0.576 2.0001.00

40.00 120.00 2.40 0.00 2.40 0.85 0.481 1.00 0.480 0.85 0.565 2.0001.00

45.00 120.00 2.70 0.00 2.70 0.80 0.454 1.00 0.453 0.83 0.546 2.0001.00

50.00 120.00 3.00 0.00 3.00 0.75 0.426 1.00 0.424 0.81 0.523 2.0001.00

55.00 120.00 3.30 0.00 3.30 0.70 0.398 1.00 0.397 0.80 0.498 2.0001.00

60.00 120.00 3.60 0.00 3.60 0.66 0.373 1.00 0.372 0.78 0.475 2.0001.00

65.00 120.00 3.90 0.00 3.90 0.62 0.352 1.00 0.351 0.77 0.455 2.0001.00

σv,eq:

uo,eq:
σ'vo,eq:

rd :

α: 

CSR :
MSF :

CSReq,M=7.5:
Ksigma:

CSR*:
FS:

Total overburden pressure at test point, during earthquake (tsf)

Water pressure at test point, during earthquake (tsf)
Effective overburden pressure, during earthquake (tsf)

Nonlinear shear mass factor

Improvement factor due to stone columns

Cyclic Stress Ratio (adjusted for improvement)
Magnitude Scaling Factor

CSR adjusted for M=7.5
Effective overburden stress factor

CSR fully adjusted (user FS applied)***

Calculated factor of safety against soil liquefaction

Abbreviations

1.00*** User FS:

:: Liquefaction potential according to Iwasaki ::

Depth
(ft)

FS F Thickness
(ft)

wz IL

2.50 2.000 0.00 9.62 0.002.50

5.00 2.000 0.00 9.24 0.002.50

7.50 2.000 0.00 8.86 0.002.50

Project File: Z:\24-112 Liq & Settle.lsvs

Page: 9LiqSVs 2.3.2.11 - SPT & Vs Liquefaction Assessment Software



This software is registered to: Kenton Buzbee

:: Liquefaction potential according to Iwasaki ::

Depth
(ft)

FS F Thickness
(ft)

wz IL

10.00 2.000 0.00 8.48 0.002.50

15.00 2.000 0.00 7.71 0.005.00

20.00 2.000 0.00 6.95 0.005.00

25.00 2.000 0.00 6.19 0.005.00

30.00 2.000 0.00 5.43 0.005.00

35.00 2.000 0.00 4.67 0.005.00

40.00 2.000 0.00 3.90 0.005.00

45.00 2.000 0.00 3.14 0.005.00

50.00 2.000 0.00 2.38 0.005.00

55.00 2.000 0.00 1.62 0.005.00

60.00 2.000 0.00 0.86 0.005.00

65.00 2.000 0.00 0.09 0.005.00

0.00

IL = 0.00 - No liquefaction
IL between 0.00 and 5 - Liquefaction not probable

IL between 5 and 15 - Liquefaction probable

IL > 15 - Liquefaction certain

Overall potential IL :

:: Vertical settlements estimation for dry sands ::

Depth
(ft)

(N1)60 τav p Gmax

(tsf)
α b γ

(%)
ε15 Nc εNc

(%)
ΔS
(in)

Δh
(ft)

2.50 29 0.08 0.10 435.37 0.13 25402.73 0.32 0.00 15.06 0.21 0.0933.75

5.00 26 0.17 0.20 593.69 0.13 16759.55 0.40 0.00 15.06 0.29 0.1063.00

7.50 13 0.25 0.30 577.12 0.14 13140.37 1.60 0.03 15.06 2.68 0.6442.00

10.00 26 0.33 0.40 839.61 0.14 11057.18 0.42 0.00 15.06 0.31 0.1383.75

15.00 53 0.49 0.60 1303.84 0.15 8669.41 0.16 0.00 15.06 0.05 0.0305.00

20.00 64 0.65 0.80 1603.23 0.16 7295.02 0.14 0.00 15.06 0.03 0.0215.00

25.00 45 0.80 1.00 1593.90 0.16 6380.88 0.22 0.00 15.06 0.08 0.0495.00

30.00 46 0.94 1.21 1758.87 0.17 5719.68 0.21 0.00 15.06 0.08 0.0465.00

35.00 54 1.06 1.41 2004.10 0.18 5214.39 0.17 0.00 15.06 0.05 0.0315.00

40.00 35 1.16 1.61 1854.13 0.19 4812.92 0.25 0.00 15.06 0.13 0.0765.00

45.00 22 1.23 1.81 1684.62 0.19 4484.53 0.37 0.00 15.06 0.33 0.1995.00

50.00 39 1.28 2.01 2149.12 0.20 4209.81 0.17 0.00 15.06 0.08 0.0465.00

55.00 35 1.31 2.21 2174.16 0.21 3975.82 0.17 0.00 15.06 0.08 0.0515.00

60.00 13 1.34 2.41 1632.34 0.22 3773.58 0.39 0.01 15.06 0.66 0.3985.00

65.00 46 1.37 2.61 2588.99 0.23 3596.63 0.11 0.00 15.06 0.04 0.0245.00

Abbreviations

τav:
p:
Gmax:
α, b:
γ:
ε15:
Nc:
εNc:

Δh:
ΔS:

Average cyclic shear stress
Average stress
Maximum shear modulus (tsf)
Shear strain formula variables
Average shear strain (%)
Volumetric strain after 15 cycles
Number of cycles
Volumetric strain for number of cycles Nc (%)

Thickness of soil layer (in)
Settlement of soil layer (in)

1.953Cumulative settlemetns:

Project File: Z:\24-112 Liq & Settle.lsvs

Page: 10LiqSVs 2.3.2.11 - SPT & Vs Liquefaction Assessment Software



This software is registered to: Kenton Buzbee

:: Lateral displacements estimation for saturated sands ::

Depth
(ft)

(N1)60 Dr

(%)
γmax

(%)
dz

(ft)
LDI LD

(ft)

2.50 29 75.39 0.00 3.75 0.000 0.00

5.00 26 71.39 0.00 3.00 0.000 0.00

7.50 13 50.48 0.00 2.00 0.000 0.00

10.00 26 71.39 0.00 3.75 0.000 0.00

15.00 53 100.00 0.00 5.00 0.000 0.00

20.00 64 100.00 0.00 5.00 0.000 0.00

25.00 45 100.00 0.00 5.00 0.000 0.00

30.00 46 100.00 0.00 5.00 0.000 0.00

35.00 54 100.00 0.00 5.00 0.000 0.00

40.00 35 82.83 0.00 5.00 0.000 0.00

45.00 22 65.67 0.00 5.00 0.000 0.00

50.00 39 87.43 0.00 5.00 0.000 0.00

55.00 35 82.83 0.00 5.00 0.000 0.00

60.00 13 50.48 0.00 5.00 0.000 0.00

65.00 46 100.00 0.00 5.00 0.000 0.00

0.00

Abbreviations

Cumulative lateral displacements:

Dr:

γmax:
dz:

LDI:

LD:

Relative density (%)
Maximum amplitude of cyclic shear strain (%)
Soil layer thickness (ft)
Lateral displacement index (ft)
Actual estimated displacement (ft)

Project File: Z:\24-112 Liq & Settle.lsvs

Page: 11LiqSVs 2.3.2.11 - SPT & Vs Liquefaction Assessment Software



References

⦁ Ronald D. Andrus, Hossein Hayati, Nisha P. Mohanan, 2009. Correcting Liquefaction Resistance for Aged Sands Using Measured 

to Estimated Velocity Ratio, Journal of Geotechnical and Geoenvironmental Engineering, Vol. 135, No. 6, June 1

⦁ Boulanger, R.W. and Idriss, I. M., 2014. CPT AND SPT BASED LIQUEFACTION TRIGGERING PROCEDURES. DEPARTMENT OF 

CIVIL & ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING COLLEGE OF ENGINEERING UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA AT DAVIS

⦁ Dipl.-Ing. Heinz J. Priebe, Vibro Replacement to Prevent Earthquake Induced Liquefaction, Proceedings of the Geotechnique-

Colloquium at Darmstadt, Germany, on March 19th, 1998 (also published in Ground Engineering, September 1998), Technical 
paper 12-57E

⦁ Robertson, P.K. and Cabal, K.L., 2007, Guide to Cone Penetration Testing for Geotechnical Engineering. Available at no cost at 

http://www.geologismiki.gr/

⦁ Youd, T.L., Idriss, I.M., Andrus, R.D., Arango, I., Castro, G., Christian, J.T., Dobry, R., Finn, W.D.L., Harder, L.F., Hynes, M.E., 

Ishihara, K., Koester, J., Liao, S., Marcuson III, W.F., Martin, G.R., Mitchell, J.K., Moriwaki, Y., Power, M.S., Robertson, P.K., 
Seed, R., and Stokoe, K.H., Liquefaction Resistance of Soils: Summary Report from the 1996 NCEER and 1998 NCEER/NSF 
Workshop on Evaluation of Liquefaction Resistance of Soils, ASCE, Journal of Geotechnical & Geoenvironmental Engineering, 
Vol. 127, October, pp 817-833

⦁ Zhang, G., Robertson. P.K., Brachman, R., 2002, Estimating Liquefaction Induced Ground Settlements from the CPT, Canadian 

Geotechnical Journal, 39: pp 1168-1180

⦁ Zhang, G., Robertson. P.K., Brachman, R., 2004, Estimating Liquefaction Induced Lateral Displacements using the SPT and 

CPT, ASCE, Journal of Geotechnical & Geoenvironmental Engineering, Vol. 130, No. 8, 861-871

⦁ Pradel, D., 1998, Procedure to Evaluate Earthquake-Induced Settlements in Dry Sandy Soils, ASCE, Journal of Geotechnical & 

Geoenvironmental Engineering, Vol. 124, No. 4, 364-368

⦁ R. Kayen, R. E. S. Moss, E. M. Thompson, R. B. Seed, K. O. Cetin, A. Der Kiureghian, Y. Tanaka, K. Tokimatsu, 2013. Shear-

Wave Velocity–Based Probabilistic and Deterministic Assessment of Seismic Soil Liquefaction Potential, Journal of Geotechnical 
and Geoenvironmental Engineering, Vol. 139, No. 3, March 1

LiqSVs 2.3.2.11 - SPT & Vs Liquefaction Assessment Software



 

 

APPENDIX E 
  

  

 

PERCOLATION / INFILTRATION 



10 6/7/2024

8 KTM

2 SP

5 to 10 ?

0.42 312

?

Initial, Do (ft.) Final, Df (ft.)

1 25 9.1 10 10.8

2 25 9.10 10 10.8

Initial, Do (ft.) Final, Df (ft.) (min/in.)

1 10 8.60 10.00 16.80 0.60

2 10 8.60 10.00 16.80 0.60
3 10 8.55 10.00 17.40 0.57

4 10 8.60 10.00 16.80 0.60

5 10 8.55 10.00 17.40 0.57

6 10 8.55 10.00 17.40 0.57

Ho = DT - Do

Hf = DT - Df 

Reference: 

Boring/Test Number: P-1

TEST RESULTS**

Percolation Rate

(gal/day/ft^2)(min/in.)

133.200.57

Inflitration Rate [Porchet Method]
#

(inches/hour)

12.00

Time 

Interval

Δt (min.)

Trial 

No.

Depth to Water, Dw
Change in 

Water Level

 ΔH (in.)

Diameter of Casing, d (in):

Depth of Slotted Casing (ft):

Trial 

No.

Time 

Interval

Δt (min.)

Depth to Water, Dw

Porosity of Annulus Material, n  :

4 tests minimum with at least two borings per basin

COSTA MESA   TEMECULA   LOS ANGELES   PALM DESERT   CORONA   ESCONDIDO

PERCOLATION TEST SUMMARY
Key Largo Avenue

Factor of Safety 

per Reference

#
 Where Infiltration Rate, It = ΔH (60r) / Δt (r + 2Havg)

PETRA GEOSCIENCES, INC.

Option 2

Testing Requirements

Tested By:

USCS Soil Type:

Depth to Groundwater (ft):

Ground Elevation (msl ft):

Change in 

Water Level

 ΔD (in.)

FACTOR OF SAFETY

DATE: June , 2024

3

    Rancho Mirage, Riverside County, CA
Appendix

EJ.N.: 24-112

Costa Mesa, California 92626
PHONE: (714) 549-8921

RCFCWCD, Design Handbook for LID, dated September, 2011

Testing Option

**Raw Results. Does Not

  Include a Factor of Safety

r = D / 2

3186 Airway Avenue, Suite K

ΔH = ΔD = Ho - Hf 

Havg = (Ho + Hf) / 2

132.32

133.20

133.20

Test Date:

Change in Height of Water 

Greater Than or Equal to 

6"? (Yes/No)*

SANDY SOIL CRITERIA TEST

yes

yes

PERCOLATION TEST

Percolation Rate

(gal/day/ft^2)

132.32

132.32
133.20

30Standard Time Interval Between Readings (min.),   [* if yes = 10, if no = 30]:

Depth from Existing Ground Surface to Bottom of Prop. Inflitration System (ft):

Total Depth of Boring, DT (ft):

Diameter of Hole, D (in):

existing

ground 

surface





 

 

APPENDIX F 
  

  

 

STANDARD GRADING SPECIFICATIONS 

 



STANDARD GRADING SPECIFICATIONS 

 

 

Page 1 

These specifications present the usual and minimum requirements for projects on which Petra Geosciences, 

Inc. (Petra) is the geotechnical consultant. No deviation from these specifications will be allowed, except 

where specifically superseded in the preliminary geology and soils report, or in other written 

communication signed by the Soils Engineer and Engineering Geologist of record (Geotechnical 

Consultant). 

 

 

I. GENERAL 

 

A. The Geotechnical Consultant is the Owner's or Builder's representative on the project. For the 

purpose of these specifications, participation by the Geotechnical Consultant includes that 

observation performed by any person or persons employed by, and responsible to, the licensed 

Soils Engineer and Engineering Geologist signing the soils report. 

 

B. The contractor should prepare and submit to the Owner and Geotechnical Consultant a work 

plan that indicates the sequence of earthwork grading, the number of "spreads" and the 

estimated quantities of daily earthwork to be performed prior to the commencement of grading. 

This work plan should be reviewed by the Geotechnical Consultant to schedule personnel to 

perform the appropriate level of observation, mapping, and compaction testing as necessary. 

 

C. All clearing, site preparation, or earthwork performed on the project shall be conducted by the 

Contractor in accordance with the recommendations presented in the geotechnical report and 

under the observation of the Geotechnical Consultant. 

 

D. It is the Contractor's responsibility to prepare the ground surface to receive the fills to the 

satisfaction of the Geotechnical Consultant and to place, spread, mix, water, and compact the 

fill in accordance with the specifications of the Geotechnical Consultant. The Contractor shall 

also remove all material considered unsatisfactory by the Geotechnical Consultant. 

 

E. It is the Contractor's responsibility to have suitable and sufficient compaction equipment on the 

job site to handle the amount of fill being placed. If necessary, excavation equipment will be 

shut down to permit completion of compaction to project specifications. Sufficient watering 

apparatus will also be provided by the Contractor, with due consideration for the fill material, 

rate of placement, and time of year. 

 

F. After completion of grading a report will be submitted by the Geotechnical Consultant. 

 

 

II. SITE PREPARATION 

 

A. Clearing and Grubbing 

 

1. All vegetation such as trees, brush, grass, roots, and deleterious material shall be disposed 

of offsite. This removal shall be concluded prior to placing fill. 

 

2. Any underground structures such as cesspools, cisterns, mining shafts, tunnels, septic 

tanks, wells, pipe lines, etc., are to be removed or treated in a manner prescribed by the 

Geotechnical Consultant. 

 

 



STANDARD GRADING SPECIFICATIONS 

 

 

Page 2 

III. FILL AREA PREPARATION 

 

A. Remedial Removals/Overexcavations 

 

1. Remedial removals, as well as overexcavation for remedial purposes, shall be evaluated by 

the Geotechnical Consultant. Remedial removal depths presented in the geotechnical report 

and shown on the geotechnical plans are estimates only. The actual extent of removal 

should be determined by the Geotechnical Consultant based on the conditions exposed 

during grading. All soft, loose, dry, saturated, spongy, organic-rich, highly fractured or 

otherwise unsuitable ground shall be overexcavated to competent ground as determined by 

the Geotechnical Consultant. 

 

2. Soil, alluvium, or bedrock materials determined by the Soils Engineer as being unsuitable 

for placement in compacted fills shall be removed from the site. Any material incorporated 

as a part of a compacted fill must be approved by the Geotechnical Consultant. 

 

3. Should potentially hazardous materials be encountered, the Contractor should stop work in 

the affected area. An environmental consultant specializing in hazardous materials should 

be notified immediately for evaluation and handling of these materials prior to continuing 

work in the affected area. 

 

B. Evaluation/Acceptance of Fill Areas 

 

All areas to receive fill, including removal and processed areas, key bottoms, and benches, shall 

be observed, mapped, elevations recorded, and/or tested prior to being accepted by the 

Geotechnical Consultant as suitable to receive fill. The contractor shall obtain a written 

acceptance from the Geotechnical Consultant prior to fill placement. A licensed surveyor shall 

provide sufficient survey control for determining locations and elevations of processed areas, 

keys, and benches. 

 

C. Processing 

 

After the ground surface to receive fill has been declared satisfactory for support of fill by the 

Geotechnical Consultant, it shall be scarified to a minimum depth of 6 inches and until the 

ground surface is uniform and free from ruts, hollows, hummocks, or other uneven features 

which may prevent uniform compaction. 

 

The scarified ground surface shall then be brought to optimum moisture, mixed as required, 

and compacted to a minimum relative compaction of 90 percent. 

 

D. Subdrains 

 

Subdrainage devices shall be constructed in compliance with the ordinances of the controlling 

governmental agency, and/or with the recommendations of the Geotechnical Consultant. 

(Typical Canyon Subdrain details are given on Plate SG-1). 

 

E. Cut/Fill & Deep Fill/Shallow Fill Transitions 

 

In order to provide uniform bearing conditions in cut/fill and deep fill/shallow fill transition 

lots, the cut and shallow fill portions of the lot should be overexcavated to the depths and the 

horizontal limits discussed in the approved geotechnical report and replaced with compacted 

fill. (Typical details are given on Plate SG-7.) 



STANDARD GRADING SPECIFICATIONS 

 

 

Page 3 

IV. COMPACTED FILL MATERIAL 

 

A. General 

 

Materials excavated on the property may be utilized in the fill, provided each material has been 

determined to be suitable by the Geotechnical Consultant. Material to be used for fill shall be 

essentially free of organic material and other deleterious substances. Roots, tree branches, and 

other matter missed during clearing shall be removed from the fill as recommended by the 

Geotechnical Consultant. Material that is spongy, subject to decay, or otherwise considered 

unsuitable shall not be used in the compacted fill. 

 

Soils of poor quality, such as those with unacceptable gradation, high expansion potential, or 

low strength shall be placed in areas acceptable to the Geotechnical Consultant or mixed with 

other soils to achieve satisfactory fill material. 

 

B. Oversize Materials 

 

Oversize material defined as rock, or other irreducible material with a maximum dimension 

greater than 12 inches in diameter, shall be taken offsite or placed in accordance with the 

recommendations of the Geotechnical Consultant in areas designated as suitable for rock 

disposal (Typical details for Rock Disposal are given on Plate SG-4). 

 

Rock fragments less than 12 inches in diameter may be utilized in the fill provided, they are 

not nested or placed in concentrated pockets; they are surrounded by compacted fine grained 

soil material and the distribution of rocks is approved by the Geotechnical Consultant. 

 

C. Laboratory Testing 

 

Representative samples of materials to be utilized as compacted fill shall be analyzed by the 

laboratory of the Geotechnical Consultant to determine their physical properties. If any material 

other than that previously tested is encountered during grading, the appropriate analysis of this 

material shall be conducted by the Geotechnical Consultant as soon as possible. 

 

D. Import 

 

If importing of fill material is required for grading, proposed import material should meet the 

requirements of the previous section. The import source shall be given to the Geotechnical 

Consultant at least 2 working days prior to importing so that appropriate tests can be performed 

and its suitability determined. 

 

 

V. FILL PLACEMENT AND COMPACTION 

 

A. Fill Layers 

 

Material used in the compacting process shall be evenly spread, watered, processed, and 

compacted in thin lifts not to exceed 6 inches in thickness to obtain a uniformly dense layer. 

The fill shall be placed and compacted on a horizontal plane, unless otherwise approved by the 

Geotechnical Consultant. 



STANDARD GRADING SPECIFICATIONS 

 

 

Page 4 

B. Moisture Conditioning 

 

Fill soils shall be watered, dried back, blended, and/or mixed, as necessary to attain a relatively 

uniform moisture content at or slightly above optimum moisture content. 

 

C. Compaction 

 

Each layer shall be compacted to 90 percent of the maximum density in compliance with the 

testing method specified by the controlling governmental agency. (In general, ASTM D 1557-

02, will be used.) 

 

If compaction to a lesser percentage is authorized by the controlling governmental agency 

because of a specific land use or expansive soils condition, the area to received fill compacted 

to less than 90 percent shall either be delineated on the grading plan or appropriate reference 

made to the area in the soils report. 

 

D. Failing Areas 

 

If the moisture content or relative density varies from that required by the Geotechnical 

Consultant, the Contractor shall rework the fill until it is approved by the Geotechnical 

Consultant. 

 

E. Benching 

 

All fills shall be keyed and benched through all topsoil, colluvium, alluvium or creep material, 

into sound bedrock or firm material where the slope receiving fill exceeds a ratio of 5 horizontal 

to 1 vertical, in accordance with the recommendations of the Geotechnical Consultant. 

 

 

VI. SLOPES 

 

A. Fill Slopes 

 

The contractor will be required to obtain a minimum relative compaction of 90 percent out to 

the finish slope face of fill slopes, buttresses, and stabilization fills. This may be achieved by 

either overbuilding the slope and cutting back to the compacted core, or by direct compaction 

of the slope face with suitable equipment, or by any other procedure that produces the required 

compaction. 

 

B. Side Hill Fills 

 

The key for side hill fills shall be a minimum of 15 feet within bedrock or firm materials, unless 

otherwise specified in the soils report. (See detail on Plate SG-5.) 

 

C. Fill-Over-Cut Slopes  

 

Fill-over-cut slopes shall be properly keyed through topsoil, colluvium or creep material into 

rock or firm materials, and the transition shall be stripped of all soils prior to placing fill. (see 

detail on Plate SG-6). 

  



STANDARD GRADING SPECIFICATIONS 

 

 

Page 5 

D. Landscaping 

 

All fill slopes should be planted or protected from erosion by other methods specified in the 

soils report. 

 

E. Cut Slopes 

 

1. The Geotechnical Consultant should observe all cut slopes at vertical intervals not 

exceeding 10 feet. 

 

2. If any conditions not anticipated in the preliminary report such as perched water, seepage, 

lenticular or confined strata of a potentially adverse nature, unfavorably inclined bedding, 

joints or fault planes are encountered during grading, these conditions shall be evaluated 

by the Geotechnical Consultant, and recommendations shall be made to treat these 

problems (Typical details for stabilization of a portion of a cut slope are given in Plates 

SG-2 and SG-3.). 

 

3. Cut slopes that face in the same direction as the prevailing drainage shall be protected from 

slope wash by a non-erodible interceptor swale placed at the top of the slope. 

 

4. Unless otherwise specified in the soils and geological report, no cut slopes shall be 

excavated higher or steeper than that allowed by the ordinances of controlling 

governmental agencies. 

 

5. Drainage terraces shall be constructed in compliance with the ordinances of controlling 

governmental agencies, or with the recommendations of the Geotechnical Consultant. 

 

 

VII. GRADING OBSERVATION 

 

A. General 

 

All cleanouts, processed ground to receive fill, key excavations, subdrains, and rock disposals 

must be observed and approved by the Geotechnical Consultant prior to placing any fill. It shall 

be the Contractor's responsibility to notify the Geotechnical Consultant when such areas are 

ready. 

 

B. Compaction Testing 

 

Observation of the fill placement shall be provided by the Geotechnical Consultant during the 

progress of grading. Location and frequency of tests shall be at the Consultants discretion based 

on field conditions encountered. Compaction test locations will not necessarily be selected on 

a random basis. Test locations may be selected to verify adequacy of compaction levels in areas 

that are judged to be susceptible to inadequate compaction. 

 

C. Frequency of Compaction Testing 

 

In general, density tests should be made at intervals not exceeding 2 feet of fill height or every 

1000 cubic yards of fill placed. This criteria will vary depending on soil conditions and the size 

of the job. In any event, an adequate number of field density tests shall be made to verify that 

the required compaction is being achieved. 

 



STANDARD GRADING SPECIFICATIONS 

 

 

Page 6 

VIII. CONSTRUCTION CONSIDERATIONS 

 

A. Erosion control measures, when necessary, shall be provided by the Contractor during grading 

and prior to the completion and construction of permanent drainage controls. 

 

B. Upon completion of grading and termination of observations by the Geotechnical Consultant, 

no further filling or excavating, including that necessary for footings, foundations, large tree 

wells, retaining walls, or other features shall be performed without the approval of the 

Geotechnical Consultant. 

 

C. Care shall be taken by the Contractor during final grading to preserve any berms, drainage 

terraces, interceptor swales, or other devices of permanent nature on or adjacent to the property. 

 

 
S:\!BOILERS-WORK\REPORT INSERTS\STANDARD GRADING SPECS 





















 

 

Project-Specific WQMP Summary Data Form 

Applicant Information 

Name and Title Don Slattery, Executive 

Company The Pacific Companies 

Phone (208) 461-0022 

Email dons@tpchousing.com 

Project Information 

Project Name 
(as shown on project application/project-specific WQMP) 

Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments 

Street Address Rancho Mirage, CA 

Nearest Cross Streets Via Vail and Key Largo Avenue 

Municipality 

(City or Unincorporated County) 
City of Rancho Mirage 

Zip Code 92270 

Tract Number(s) and/or Assessor Parcel Number(s) 685-090-011 (Portion) 

Other 
(other information to help identify location of project) 

 

Indicate type of project. Priority Development Projects (Use an "X" in cell preceding project type): 

 SF hillside residence; impervious area ≥ 10,000 sq. ft.; Slope ≥ 25% 

 SF hillside residence; impervious area ≥ 10,000 sq. ft.; Slope ≥ 10% & erosive soils 

 Commercial or Industrial ≥ 100,000 sq. ft. 

 Automotive repair shop 

 Retail Gasoline Outlet disturbing > 5,000 sq. ft.  

 Restaurant disturbing > 5,000 sq. ft. 

 Home subdivision ≥ 10 housing units 

X Parking lot ≥ 5,000 sq. ft. or ≥ 25 parking spaces 

Date Project-Specific WQMP Submitted October 2024 

Size of Project Area (nearest 0.1 acre) 5.23 AC 

Will the project replace more than 50% of the impervious 

surfaces on an existing developed site? 
N/A – No impervious area exists onsite. 

Project Area managed with LID/Site Design BMPs 

(nearest 0.1 acre) 
N/A - City of Rancho Mirage retention requirements govern. 

Are Treatment Control BMPs required? N/A - City of Rancho Mirage retention requirements govern. 

Is the project subject to onsite retention by ordinance or 

policy?   
Yes 

Did the project meet the 100% LID/Site Design 

Measurable Goal? 
Yes with City of Rancho Mirage retention requirement. 

Name of the entity that will implement, operate, and 

maintain the post-construction BMPs 
TBD 

Contact Name  

Street or Mailing Address  

City  

Zip Code  

Phone  

Space Below for Use by City/County Staff Only 

Preceding Information Verified by  

(consistent with information in project-specific WQMP) 

Name: 

Date:   

Date Project-Specific WQMP Approved:  

Data Entered by Name: 

Date:   

Other Comments  

 

 



Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

  May 2025 
 

City of Rancho Mirage  H 

 

Appendix H 
Noise and Vibration Analysis



Core Rancho Mirage 
NOISE AND VIBRATION ANALYSIS 
CITY OF RANCHO MIRAGE 

PREPARED BY: 

William Maddux, INCE 
bmaddux@urbanxroads.com 
(619) 788-1971

Noah Johnson 
njohnson@urbanxroads.com 

January 10, 2025 

15915-02 NA.docx 



 
 



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
I 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
TABLE OF CONTENTS ............................................................................................................................. I 
APPENDICES ......................................................................................................................................... II 
LIST OF EXHIBITS .................................................................................................................................. II 
LIST OF TABLES .................................................................................................................................... III 
LIST OF ABBREVIATED TERMS ............................................................................................................. IV 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ......................................................................................................................... 1 
1 INTRODUCTION ........................................................................................................................... 3 

1.1 Site Location ................................................................................................................................. 3 
1.2 Project Description ....................................................................................................................... 3 

2 FUNDAMENTALS ......................................................................................................................... 7 
2.1 Range of Noise .............................................................................................................................. 7 
2.2 Noise Descriptors .......................................................................................................................... 8 
2.3 Sound Propagation ....................................................................................................................... 8 
2.4 Noise Control ................................................................................................................................ 9 
2.5 Noise Barrier Attenuation ............................................................................................................. 9 
2.6 Land Use Compatibility With Noise ............................................................................................ 10 
2.7 Community Response to Noise ................................................................................................... 10 
2.8 Vibration ..................................................................................................................................... 11 

3 REGULATORY SETTING .............................................................................................................. 13 
3.1 State of California Noise Requirements ...................................................................................... 13 
3.2 City of Rancho Mirage General Plan Noise Element ................................................................... 13 
3.3 Operational Noise Standards ...................................................................................................... 14 
3.4 Construction Noise Standards .................................................................................................... 16 
3.5 Vibration Standards .................................................................................................................... 17 

4 SIGNIFICANCE CRITERIA ............................................................................................................ 19 
4.1 Noise Level Increases (Threshold A) ........................................................................................... 19 
4.2 Vibration (Threshold B) ............................................................................................................... 21 
4.3 CEQA Guidelines Not Further Analyzed (Threshold C) ................................................................ 21 
4.4 Significance Criteria Summary .................................................................................................... 22 

5 EXISTING NOISE LEVEL MEASUREMENTS ................................................................................... 23 
5.1 Measurement Procedure and Criteria ........................................................................................ 23 
5.2 Noise Measurement Locations ................................................................................................... 23 
5.3 Noise Measurement Results ....................................................................................................... 24 

6 TRAFFIC NOISE METHODS AND PROCEDURES ............................................................................ 27 
6.1 FHWA Traffic Noise Prediction Model ........................................................................................ 27 

7 OFF-SITE TRANSPORTATION NOISE IMPACTS ............................................................................ 31 
7.1 Traffic Noise level contours ........................................................................................................ 31 
7.2 Existing Condition Project Traffic Noise Levels ........................................................................... 38 
7.3 EA 2026 Traffic Noise Level Increases ......................................................................................... 38 
7.4 EAC 2026 Traffic Noise Level Increases ....................................................................................... 38 

8 ON-SITE NOISE ANALYSIS .......................................................................................................... 43 



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
II 

8.1 On-site Traffic Noise Analysis ..................................................................................................... 43 
8.2 On-Site Noise Analysis ................................................................................................................ 43 
8.3 Exterior Noise Level Compatibility .............................................................................................. 43 
8.4 Interior Noise Analysis ................................................................................................................ 43 

9 RECEIVER LOCATIONS ................................................................................................................ 47 
10 OPERATIONAL NOISE IMPACTS ................................................................................................. 49 

10.1 Operational Noise Sources ......................................................................................................... 49 
10.2 Reference Noise Levels ............................................................................................................... 49 
10.3 CadnaA Noise Prediction Model ................................................................................................. 52 
10.4 Project Operational Noise Levels ................................................................................................ 52 
10.5 Project Operational Noise Level Increases ................................................................................. 54 

11 CONSTRUCTION IMPACTS ......................................................................................................... 57 
11.1 Construction Noise Levels ........................................................................................................... 57 
11.2 Construction Reference Noise Levels ......................................................................................... 57 
11.3 Construction Noise Analysis ....................................................................................................... 59 
11.4 Construction Noise Level Compliance ........................................................................................ 60 
11.5 Temporary Construction Noise Level Increases .......................................................................... 61 
11.5 Construction Vibration Analysis .................................................................................................. 61 

12 REFERENCES .............................................................................................................................. 65 
13 CERTIFICATION .......................................................................................................................... 67 
 

APPENDICES 
APPENDIX 3.1:  CITY OF RANCHO MIRAGE MUNICIPAL CODE 
APPENDIX 5.1:  STUDY AREA PHOTOS 
APPENDIX 5.2:  NOISE LEVEL MEASUREMENT WORKSHEETS 
APPENDIX 7.1:  OFF-SITE NOISE LEVEL CONTOURS 
APPENDIX 8.1:  ON-SITE NOISE CALCULATIONS 
APPENDIX 10.1:  HVAC 
APPENDIX 10.2:  CADNAA OPERATIONAL NOISE CALCULATIONS 
APPENDIX 11.1:  CADNAA CONSTRUCTION NOISE CALCULATIONS 

 

LIST OF EXHIBITS 
EXHIBIT 1-A:  LOCATION MAP .............................................................................................................. 4 
EXHIBIT 1-B:  SITE PLAN ........................................................................................................................ 5 
EXHIBIT 2-A:  TYPICAL NOISE LEVELS .................................................................................................... 7 
EXHIBIT 2-B:  NOISE LEVEL INCREASE PERCEPTION ............................................................................. 10 
EXHIBIT 2-C:  TYPICAL LEVELS OF GROUND-BORNE VIBRATION .......................................................... 12 
EXHIBIT 3-A:  NOISE LEVEL AND LAND USE COMPATIBILITY ................................................................ 16 
EXHIBIT 5-A:  NOISE MEASUREMENT LOCATIONS ............................................................................... 25 
EXHIBIT 9-A:  RECEIVER LOCATIONS ................................................................................................... 48 
EXHIBIT 10-A:  STATIONARY SOURCE NOISE LOCATIONS .................................................................... 50 
EXHIBIT 11-A:  TYPICAL CONSTRUCTION NOISE SOURCE LOCATIONS .................................................. 58 



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
III 

 

LIST OF TABLES 
TABLE ES-1:  SUMMARY OF CEQA SIGNIFICANCE FINDINGS .................................................................. 1 
TABLE 3-1:  OPERATIONAL NOISE STANDARDS ................................................................................... 15 
TABLE 4-1:  SIGNIFICANCE CRITERIA SUMMARY ................................................................................. 22 
TABLE 5-1:  AMBIENT NOISE LEVEL MEASUREMENTS ......................................................................... 24 
TABLE 6-1:  OFF-SITE ROADWAY PARAMETERS ................................................................................... 28 
TABLE 6-2:  AVERAGE DAILY TRAFFIC VOLUMES ................................................................................. 29 
TABLE 6-3:  TIME OF DAY VEHICLE SPLITS ........................................................................................... 30 
TABLE 6-4:  TRAFFIC FLOW BY VEHICLE TYPE (VEHICLE MIX) ............................................................... 30 
TABLE 6-5:  ON-SITE ROADWAY PARAMETERS ................................................................................... 30 
TABLE 7-1:  EXISTING 2024 WITHOUT PROJECT CONDITIONS NOISE LEVEL CONTOURS ....................... 32 
TABLE 7-2:  EXISTING 2024 WITH PROJECT CONDITIONS NOISE LEVEL CONTOURS .............................. 33 
TABLE 7-3:  EA 2026 WITHOUT PROJECT CONDITIONS NOISE LEVEL CONTOURS ................................. 34 
TABLE 7-4:  EA 2026 WITH PROJECT CONDITIONS NOISE LEVEL CONTOURS ........................................ 35 
TABLE 7-5:  EAC 2026 WITHOUT PROJECT CONDITIONS NOISE LEVEL CONTOURS ............................... 36 
TABLE 7-6:  EAC 2026 WITH PROJECT CONDITIONS NOISE LEVEL CONTOURS ...................................... 37 
TABLE 7-7:  EXISTING OFF-SITE PROJECT-RELATED TRAFFIC NOISE IMPACTS ....................................... 39 
TABLE 7-8:  EXISTING AND AMBIENT OFF-SITE PROJECT-RELATED TRAFFIC NOISE IMPACTS ............... 40 
TABLE 7-9:  EXISTING, AMBIENT AND CUMULATIVE OFF-SITE PROJECT-RELATED TRAFFIC NOISE 
IMPACTS ............................................................................................................................................ 41 
TABLE 8-1:  EXTERIOR TRAFFIC NOISE LEVELS ..................................................................................... 43 
TABLE 8-2:  FIRST FLOOR INTERIOR NOISE LEVELS (CNEL) ................................................................... 44 
TABLE 8-3:  SECOND FLOOR INTERIOR NOISE LEVELS (CNEL) ............................................................... 45 
TABLE 8-4:  THIRD FLOOR INTERIOR NOISE LEVELS (CNEL) .................................................................. 45 
TABLE 10-1: REFERENCE NOISE LEVEL MEASUREMENTS ..................................................................... 51 
TABLE 10-2:  DAYTIME PROJECT STATIONARY/AREA-SOURCE NOISE LEVELS (dBA LEQ) ....................... 53 
TABLE 10-3:  EVENING PROJECT STATIONARY/AREA-SOURCE NOISE LEVEL (dBA LEQ) .......................... 53 
TABLE 10-4:  NIGHTTIME PROJECT STATIONARY/AREA-SOURCE NOISE LEVEL (dBA LEQ) ...................... 53 
TABLE 10-5: PROJECT OPERATIONAL COMPLIANCE ............................................................................ 54 
TABLE 10-6:  DAYTIME PROJECT STATIONARY SOURCE NOISE LEVEL INCREASES ................................. 55 
TABLE 10-7:  EVENING PROJECT STATIONARY SOURCE NOISE LEVEL INCREASES ................................. 55 
TABLE 10-8:  NIGHTTIME PROJECT STATIONARY SOURCE NOISE LEVEL INCREASES ............................. 56 
TABLE 11-1:  CONSTRUCTION REFERENCE NOISE LEVELS .................................................................... 59 
TABLE 11-2:  CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT NOISE LEVEL SUMMARY ................................................... 60 
TABLE 11-3:  CONSTRUCTION NOISE LEVEL COMPLIANCE ................................................................... 60 
TABLE 11-4:  DAYTIME CONSTRUCTION NOISE LEVEL INCREASES ....................................................... 61 
TABLE 11-5:  VIBRATION SOURCE LEVELS FOR CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT ...................................... 62 
TABLE 11-5:  PROJECT CONSTRUCTION VIBRATION LEVELS ................................................................. 63 

 

  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
IV 

LIST OF ABBREVIATED TERMS 
(1) Reference 
ANSI American National Standards Institute 
Calveno California Vehicle Noise 
CEQA California Environmental Quality Act 
CNEL Community Noise Equivalent Level 
dBA A-weighted decibels 
EPA Environmental Protection Agency 
FHWA Federal Highway Administration 
FTA Federal Transit Administration 
INCE Institute of Noise Control Engineering 
Leq Equivalent continuous (average) sound level 
Lmax Maximum level measured over the time interval 
mph Miles per hour 
PPV Peak Particle Velocity 
Project Core Rancho Mirage 
REMEL Reference Energy Mean Emission Level 
RMS Root-mean-square 
VdB Vibration Decibels 

 



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
1 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Urban Crossroads, Inc. has prepared this noise study to determine the noise exposure and the 
necessary noise mitigation measures for the  Core Rancho Mirage development (“Project”).  The 
Project site is located southwest of the intersection of Dianah Shore Drive and Monterey Avenue 
and east of the Rancho Mirage Dog Park in the City of Rancho Mirage.  The Project will develop a 
150-unit apartment complex.  This noise study has been prepared to satisfy applicable City of 
Rancho Mirage noise standards and significance criteria based on Appendix G of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines (1). 

The results of this Noise and Vibration Analysis are summarized below based on the significance 
criteria in Section 4 of this report, consistent with Appendix G of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines. (1)  Table ES-1 shows the findings of significance for each potential 
noise and/or vibration impact under CEQA before and after any required mitigation measures. 

TABLE ES-1:  SUMMARY OF CEQA SIGNIFICANCE FINDINGS 

Analysis Report 
Section 

Significance Findings 
Unmitigated Mitigated 

Off-Site Traffic Noise 7 Less Than Significant - 
On-Site Traffic Noise 8 - - 

Operational Noise 10 Less Than Significant - 
Construction Noise 

11 
Less Than Significant - 

Construction Vibration Less Than Significant - 

  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
2 

This page intentionally left blank  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
3 

1 INTRODUCTION 

This noise analysis has been completed to determine the noise impacts associated with the 
development of the Core Rancho Mirage (“Project”).  This noise study briefly describes the  
Project, provides information regarding noise fundamentals, sets out the regulatory setting, 
presents the study methods and procedures, and evaluates the future exterior noise 
environment.  In addition, this study includes an analysis of the potential Project-related long-
term stationary-source operational noise short-term construction noise, and vibration impacts. 

1.1 SITE LOCATION 

The Project is located southwest of the intersection of Dianah Shore Drive and Monterey Avenue 
and east of the Rancho Mirage Dog Park in the City of Rancho Mirage, as shown in Exhibit 1-A.  
The Palm Springs Airport is the nearest airport, located approximately 5.8 miles northwest of the 
Project site.   

1.2 PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The Project will develop a 150-unit apartment complex on a 5-acre site.  A preliminary site plan 
for the Project is shown in Exhibit 1-B.    



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
4 

EXHIBIT 1-A:  LOCATION MAP 

 

  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
5 

EXHIBIT 1-B:  SITE PLAN 

 

  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
6 

This page intentionally left blank  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
7 

2 FUNDAMENTALS 

Noise is simply defined as "unwanted sound."  Sound becomes unwanted when it interferes with 
normal activities, when it causes actual physical harm or when it has adverse effects on health.  
Noise is measured on a logarithmic scale of sound pressure level known as a decibel (dB).  A-
weighted decibels (dBA) approximate the subjective response of the human ear to broad 
frequency noise source by discriminating against very low and very high frequencies of the 
audible spectrum.  They are adjusted to reflect only those frequencies which are audible to the 
human ear.  Exhibit 2-A presents a summary of the typical noise levels and their subjective 
loudness and effects that are described in more detail below. 

EXHIBIT 2-A:  TYPICAL NOISE LEVELS 

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency Office of Noise Abatement and Control, Information on Levels of Environmental Noise 
Requisite to Protect Public Health and Welfare with an Adequate Margin of Safety (EPA/ONAC 550/9-74-004) March 1974. 

2.1 RANGE OF NOISE 

Since the range of intensities that the human ear can detect is so large, the scale frequently used 
to measure intensity is a scale based on multiples of 10, the logarithmic scale.  The scale for 
measuring intensity is the decibel scale.  Each interval of 10 decibels indicates a sound energy ten 
times greater than before, which is perceived by the human ear as being roughly twice as loud. 
(2) The most common sounds vary between 40 dBA (very quiet) to 100 dBA (very loud).  Normal 
conversation at three feet is roughly at 60 dBA, while loud jet engine noises equate to 110 dBA 



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
8 

at approximately 1,000 feet, which can cause serious discomfort. (3)  Another important aspect 
of noise is the duration of the sound and the way it is described and distributed in time.   

2.2 NOISE DESCRIPTORS 

Environmental noise descriptors are generally based on averages, rather than instantaneous, 
noise levels.  The most used metric is the equivalent level (Leq).  Equivalent sound levels are not 
measured directly but are calculated from sound pressure levels typically measured in A-
weighted decibels (dBA).  The equivalent sound level (Leq) represents a steady state sound level 
containing the same total energy as a time varying signal over a given sample period and is 
commonly used to describe the “average” noise levels within the environment. 

Peak hour or average noise levels, while useful, do not completely describe a given noise 
environment.  Noise levels lower than peak hour may be disturbing if they occur during times 
when quiet is most desirable, namely evening and nighttime (sleeping) hours.  To account for 
this, the Community Noise Equivalent Level (CNEL), representing a composite 24-hour noise level 
is utilized.  The CNEL is the weighted average of the intensity of a sound, with corrections for time 
of day, and averaged over 24 hours.  The time-of-day corrections require the addition of 5 
decibels to dBA Leq sound levels in the evening from 7:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m., and the addition of 
10 decibels to dBA Leq sound levels at night between 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. These additions 
are made to account for the noise sensitive time periods during the evening and night hours 
when noise can become more intrusive.  CNEL does not represent the actual sound level heard 
at any time, but rather represents the total sound exposure.  The City of Rancho Mirage relies on 
the 24-hour CNEL level to assess land use compatibility with transportation related noise sources. 

2.3 SOUND PROPAGATION 

When sound propagates over a distance, it changes in level and frequency content. The way noise 
reduces with distance depends on the following factors. 

2.3.1 GEOMETRIC SPREADING 

Sound from a localized source (i.e., a stationary point source) propagates uniformly outward in a 
spherical pattern. The sound level attenuates (or decreases) at a rate of 6 dB for each doubling 
of distance from a point source.  Highways consist of several localized noise sources on a defined 
path and hence can be treated as a line source, which approximates the effect of several point 
sources. Noise from a line source propagates outward in a cylindrical pattern, often referred to 
as cylindrical spreading. Sound levels attenuate at a rate of 3 dB for each doubling of distance 
from a line source. (2) 

2.3.2 GROUND ABSORPTION 

The propagation path of noise from a highway to a receiver is usually very close to the ground. 
Noise attenuation from ground absorption and reflective wave canceling adds to the attenuation 
associated with geometric spreading.  Traditionally, the excess attenuation has also been 
expressed in terms of attenuation per doubling of distance. This approximation is usually 



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
9 

sufficiently accurate for distances of less than 200 ft.  For acoustically hard sites (i.e., sites with a 
reflective surface between the source and the receiver, such as a parking lot or body of water), 
no excess ground attenuation is assumed.  For acoustically absorptive or soft sites (i.e., those 
sites with an absorptive ground surface between the source and the receiver such as soft dirt, 
grass, or scattered bushes and trees), an excess ground attenuation value of 1.5 dB per doubling 
of distance is normally assumed. When added to the cylindrical spreading, the excess ground 
attenuation results in an overall drop-off rate of 4.5 dB per doubling of distance from a line 
source. (4) 

2.3.3 ATMOSPHERIC EFFECTS 

Receivers located downwind from a source can be exposed to increased noise levels relative to 
calm conditions, whereas locations upwind can have lowered noise levels. Sound levels can be 
increased at large distances (e.g., more than 500 feet) due to atmospheric temperature inversion 
(i.e., increasing temperature with elevation). Other factors such as air temperature, humidity, 
and turbulence can also have significant effects. (2) 

2.3.4 SHIELDING  

A large object or barrier in the path between a noise source and a receiver can substantially 
attenuate noise levels at the receiver. The amount of attenuation provided by shielding depends 
on the size of the object and the frequency content of the noise source.  Shielding by trees and 
other such vegetation typically only has an “out of sight, out of mind” effect.  That is, the 
perception of noise impact tends to decrease when vegetation blocks the line-of-sight to nearby 
residents.  However, for vegetation to provide a substantial, or even noticeable, noise reduction, 
the vegetation area must be at least 15 feet in height, 100 feet wide and dense enough to 
completely obstruct the line-of-sight between the source and the receiver.  This size of vegetation 
may provide up to 5 dBA of noise reduction.  The Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) does 
not consider the planting of vegetation to be a noise abatement measure.  (5) 

2.4 NOISE CONTROL 

Noise control is the process of obtaining an acceptable noise environment for an observation 
point or receiver by controlling the noise source, transmission path, receiver, or all three.  This 
concept is known as the source-path-receiver concept.  In general, noise control measures can 
be applied to these three elements. 

2.5 NOISE BARRIER ATTENUATION 

Effective noise barriers can reduce noise levels by 10 to 15 dBA, cutting the loudness of traffic 
noise in half.  A noise barrier is most effective when placed close to the noise source or receiver.  
Noise barriers, however, do have limitations.  For a noise barrier to work, it must block the line-
of-sight path of sound from the noise source. 



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
10 

2.6 LAND USE COMPATIBILITY WITH NOISE 

Some land uses are more tolerant of noise than others.  For example, schools, hospitals, 
churches, and residences are more sensitive to noise intrusion than are commercial or industrial 
developments and related activities.  As ambient noise levels affect the perceived amenity or 
livability of a development, so too can the mismanagement of noise impacts impair the economic 
health and growth potential of a community by reducing the area’s desirability as a place to live, 
shop and work.  For this reason, land use compatibility with the noise environment is an 
important consideration in the planning and design process.  The FHWA encourages State and 
Local government to regulate land development in such a way that noise-sensitive land uses are 
either prohibited from being located adjacent to a highway, or that the developments are 
planned, designed, and constructed in such a way that noise impacts are minimized. (6) 

2.7 COMMUNITY RESPONSE TO NOISE 

Approximately sixteen percent of the population has a very low tolerance for noise and will object 
to any noise not of their making.  Consequently, even in the quietest environment, some 
complaints may occur.  Twenty to thirty percent of the population will not complain even in very 
severe noise environments. (7 pp. 8-6)  Thus, a variety of reactions can be expected from people 
exposed to any given noise environment.   

Surveys have shown that community response to noise varies from no reaction to vigorous action 
for newly introduced noises averaging from 10 dB below existing to 25 dB above existing. (8) 
According to research originally published in the Noise Effects Handbook (7), the percentage of 
high annoyance ranges from approximately 0 percent at 45 dB or less, 10 percent are highly 
annoyed around 60 dB, and increases rapidly to approximately 70 percent being highly annoyed 
at approximately 85 dB or greater.  Despite this variability in behavior on an individual level, the 
population can be expected to exhibit the following responses to changes in noise levels as shown 
on Exhibit 2-B.  A change of 3 dBA is considered barely perceptible, and changes of 5 dBA are 
considered readily perceptible. (4) 

EXHIBIT 2-B:  NOISE LEVEL INCREASE PERCEPTION 

 

  

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Just Perceptible
Barely Perceptible

Readily Perceptible
Twice as Loud

Noise Level Increase (dBA)



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
11 

2.8 VIBRATION 

Per the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Transit Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment 
Manual, vibration is the periodic oscillation of a medium or object.  The rumbling sound caused 
by the vibration of room surfaces is called structure-borne noise.  Sources of ground-borne 
vibrations include natural phenomena (e.g., earthquakes, volcanic eruptions, sea waves, 
landslides) or human-made causes (e.g., explosions, machinery, traffic, trains, construction 
equipment).  Vibration sources may be continuous, such as factory machinery, or transient, such 
as explosions.  As is the case with airborne sound, ground-borne vibrations may be described by 
amplitude and frequency. 

Additionally, in contrast to airborne noise, ground-borne vibration outdoors is not a common 
environmental problem and annoyance from ground-borne vibration is almost exclusively an 
indoor phenomenon. (8) Therefore, the effects of vibrations should only be evaluated at a 
structure and the effects of the building structure on the vibration should be considered. Wood-
frame buildings, such as typical residential structures, are more easily excited by ground vibration 
than heavier buildings. In contrast, large masonry buildings with spread footings have a low 
response to ground vibration (8).  In general, the heavier a building is, the lower the response will 
be to the incident vibration energy.  However, all structurers reduce vibration levels due to the 
coupling of the building to the soil.   

There are several different methods that are used to quantify vibration.  The peak particle 
velocity (PPV) is defined as the maximum instantaneous peak of the vibration signal. (8) The PPV 
is most frequently used to describe vibration impacts to buildings but is not always suitable for 
evaluating human response (annoyance) because it takes some time for the human body to 
respond to vibration signals.  Instead, the human body responds to average vibration amplitude 
often described as the root mean square (RMS).  The RMS amplitude is defined as the average of 
the squared amplitude of the signal and is most frequently used to describe the effect of vibration 
on the human body. (8)  However, the RMS amplitude and PPV are related mathematically, and 
the RMS amplitude of equipment is typically calculated from the PPV reference level.  The RMS 
amplitude is approximately 70% of the PPV (10).  Thus, either can be used on the description of 
vibration impacts.   

While not universally accepted, vibration decibel notation (VdB) is another vibration notation 
developed and used by the FTA in their guidance manual to describe vibration levels and provide 
a background of common vibration levels and set vibration limits (11). Decibel notation (VdB) 
serves to reduce the range of numbers used to describe vibration levels and is used in this report 
to describe vibration levels.   

As stated in the FTA guidance manual, the background vibration-velocity level in residential areas 
is generally 50 VdB.  Ground-borne vibration is normally perceptible to humans at approximately 
65 VdB.  For most people, a vibration-velocity level of 75 VdB is the approximate dividing line 
between barely perceptible and distinctly perceptible levels.  Typical outdoor sources of 
perceptible ground-borne vibration are construction equipment, steel-wheeled trains, and traffic 
on rough roads.  If a roadway is smooth, the ground-borne vibration is rarely perceptible.  The 
range of interest is from approximately 50 VdB, which is the typical background vibration-velocity 



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
12 

level, to 100 VdB, which is the general threshold where minor damage can occur in fragile 
buildings.  Exhibit 2-C illustrates common vibration sources and the human and structural 
response to ground-borne vibration.   

EXHIBIT 2-C:  TYPICAL LEVELS OF GROUND-BORNE VIBRATION 

 

Source:  Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Transit Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment Manual. 

  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
13 

3 REGULATORY SETTING 

To limit population exposure to physically and/or psychologically damaging as well as intrusive 
noise levels, the federal government, the State of California, various county governments, and 
most municipalities in the state have established standards and ordinances to control noise.  In 
most areas, automobile and truck traffic is the major source of environmental noise.  Traffic 
activity generally produces an average sound level that remains constant with time.  Air and rail 
traffic, and commercial and industrial activities are also major sources of noise in some areas.  
Federal, state, and local agencies regulate different aspects of environmental noise. Federal and 
state agencies generally set noise standards for mobile sources such as aircraft and motor 
vehicles, while regulation of stationary sources is left to local agencies. 

3.1 STATE OF CALIFORNIA NOISE REQUIREMENTS 

The State of California regulates freeway noise, sets standards for sound transmission, provides 
occupational noise control criteria, identifies noise standards, and provides guidance for local 
land use compatibility.  State law requires that each county and city adopt a General Plan that 
includes a Noise Element which is to be prepared per guidelines adopted by the Governor’s Office 
of Planning and Research (OPR). (12)  The purpose of the Noise Element is to limit the exposure 
of the community to excessive noise levels.  In addition, the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) requires that all known environmental effects of a project be analyzed, including 
environmental noise impacts. 

3.1.1 RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION 

The State of California’s noise insulation standards for all residential units are codified in the 
California Code of Regulations (CCR), Title 24, Building Standards Administrative Code, Section 
1206 to 1207.11.2.  These noise standards are applied to new construction that contains dwelling 
units or sleeping units, such as residential and hotel or motel uses, in California for controlling 
interior noise levels resulting from exterior noise sources.  For new buildings, the acceptable 
interior noise limit is 45 dBA CNEL in habitable rooms (13).   

3.2 CITY OF RANCHO MIRAGE GENERAL PLAN NOISE ELEMENT 

The City of Rancho Mirage has adopted a Noise Element of the General Plan (2017) to control 
and abate environmental noise, and to protect the citizens of and visitors to the City of Rancho 
Mirage from excessive exposure to noise.  The Noise Element is intended to help align the 
community’s various land uses with the existing and future noise environment and thus ensure 
that any negative effects of noise are minimized or completely avoided. 

The noise criteria identified in the City of Rancho Mirage Noise Element are guidelines to evaluate 
the land use compatibility of transportation related noise.  To assist the city in the planning 
compatible uses, a range of exterior noise thresholds for various land uses have been developed.  
Particularly sensitive land uses include residences, schools, libraries, churches, hospitals and 
nursing homes, and destination resort areas.  In addition, parks, golf courses, and other outdoor 
activity areas can be sensitive to noise disturbances.  Less sensitive land uses include commercial 



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
14 

uses, conventional hotels and motels, and playgrounds.  Least sensitive to noise are heavy 
commercial uses, transportation, communication, and utility land uses. 

To protect noise sensitive land uses, and minimize the effects of excessive and nuisance noise, 
the City of Rancho Mirage General Plan Noise Element has outlined the following noise policies 
with the goal (Goal N 1) of a noise environment providing peace and quiet that complements and 
is consistent with Rancho Mirage’s resort residential character: 

Policy N 1.1: Land use patterns, associated traffic and its distribution, and individual developments 
shall be assessed for their potential to generate adverse and incompatible noise impacts. 
Noise exceeding normally acceptable levels shall be appropriately mitigated. 

Policy N 1.2 Noise sensitive land uses, including residences, resorts, community open space, schools, 
libraries, churches, hospitals, and convalescent homes, shall be protected from high noise 
levels emitted by both existing and future noise sources. 

Policy N 1.3 Project designs shall be required to include measures that assure that interior noise levels 
for residential development do not exceed 45 dBA CNEL. 

Policy N 1.4 Land uses allowed adjacent to Rancho Mirage’s major arterial roads and highways, or the 
Southern Pacific Railroad/I-10 corridor, should generally be limited to those that are 
compatible with higher noise levels to maximize noise-related land use compatibility. 

Policy N 1.5 Develop and maintain a circulation plan that is consistent with the resort residential 
character of Rancho Mirage, avoids impacts to existing and planned sensitive 
receptors/uses, and provides fixed routes for existing and future truck traffic. 

The Noise Level and Land Use Compatibility matrix in the Noise Element shown on Exhibit 3-A 
provides guidelines to evaluate the acceptability of the transportation related noise level 
impacts.  Single-family residential land uses are considered normally acceptable with exterior 
noise levels below 60 dBA CNEL and conditionally acceptable with noise levels below 70 dBA 
CNEL.  Multi-family residential land uses are considered normally acceptable with exterior noise 
levels below 65 dBA CNEL and conditionally acceptable with noise levels below 70 dBA CNEL.  For 
conditionally acceptable land use, new construction or development undertaken only after a 
detailed analysis of the noise reduction requirements is made and necessary noise insulation 
features are included in the design.  Conventional construction, but with closed windows and fresh 
air supply system or air conditioning will normally suffice.  Outdoor environment will seem noisy. 

3.3 OPERATIONAL NOISE STANDARDS 

To analyze noise impacts originating from a designated fixed location or private property such as 
the Core Rancho Mirage Project, stationary-source (operational) noise such as the expected roof-
top air conditioning units, trash enclosure activity, and parking lot vehicle movements are 
typically evaluated against standards established under a jurisdiction’s Municipal Code.  The City 
of Rancho Mirage Municipal Code noise standards are provided in Appendix 3.1.  The City of 
Rancho Mirage Municipal Code (RMMC), Chapter 8.45 establishes the noise level standards for 
stationary noise sources.  The Project’s land use will potentially impact nearby noise-sensitive 



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
15 

uses in the Project study area.  For nearby noise-sensitive residential land uses in the Project 
study area, Section 8.45.030 identifies the base exterior noise level standard of 55 dBA Leq during 
the daytime hours (7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.), 50 dBA Leq during the evening hours (6:00 p.m. to 
10:00 p.m.) and 45 dBA Leq during the nighttime hours (10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m.). (14)  Table 3-1 
provides a summary of the City of Rancho Mirage operational exterior noise level standards for 
all land use types. 

TABLE 3-1:  OPERATIONAL NOISE STANDARDS 

Land 
Use1 Zone2 Time  

Period 

Exterior Noise  
Level Standards 

(dBA Leq)3 

Residential 
(Low Density) 

R-E, H-R,  
R-L-2, R-L-3 

Daytime (7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.) 55 
Evening (6:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m.) 50 

Nighttime (10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m.) 45 

Residential 
(Medium and High Density, 

Hospital, Open Space) 

OS, R-M,  
R-H, MHP 

Daytime (7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.) 60 
Evening (6:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m.) 55 

Nighttime (10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m.) 50 

Commercial Office, Resort 
Commercial, Mixed Use, 

Institutional 

O, P, Rs-H, 
M-U 

Daytime (7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.) 65 
Evening (6:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m.) 60 

Nighttime (10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m.) 55 

Commercial Neighborhood, 
General Commercial, Commercial 

Recreation, Light Industrial 

C-N, C-G, I-
L 

Daytime (7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.) 70 
Evening (6:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m.) 65 

Nighttime (10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m.) 60 
1 City of Rancho Mirage Municipal Code, Section 8.45.030 Exterior noise level limits (Appendix 3.1). 
2 City of Rancho Mirage Land Use and Zoning Map 

3 Leq represents a steady state sound level containing the same total energy as a time varying signal over a given sample period.  

  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
16 

EXHIBIT 3-A:  NOISE LEVEL AND LAND USE COMPATIBILITY 

 
Source:  City of Rancho Mirage General Plan Noise Element (2017) Exhibit 20 

3.4 CONSTRUCTION NOISE STANDARDS 

To analyze noise impacts originating from the construction of Core Rancho Mirage, noise from 
construction activities is typically evaluated against standards established under a City’s 
Municipal Code.  To control noise impacts associated with the construction of the Project, the 
City has established limits to the hours of operation.  The Rancho Mirage Municipal Code (RMMC) 
Section 15.04.030[A][11] indicates that construction, shall be limited to the hours of 7:00 a.m. 
and 7:00 p.m. with no activity on Sundays and holidays (15).  The city recognizes that construction 
noise is difficult to control and restricts allowable hours for this intrusion.  Still, construction, even 
when restricted to within these hours, presents a nuisance value when conducted in proximity 
to sensitive receptors (16).  However, neither the City of Rancho Mirage General Plan nor 



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
17 

Municipal Code establish numeric maximum acceptable construction source noise levels at 
potentially affected receivers.  Therefore, a numerical construction threshold based on Federal 
Transit Administration (FTA) Transit Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment Manual is used for 
analysis of daytime construction impacts, as discussed below. 

According to the FTA, local noise ordinances are typically not very useful in evaluating 
construction noise.  They usually relate to nuisance and hours of allowed activity, and sometimes 
specify limits in terms of maximum levels, but are generally not practical for assessing the impact 
of a construction project.  Project construction noise criteria should account for the existing noise 
environment, the absolute noise levels during construction activities, the duration of the 
construction, and the adjacent land use.  Due to the lack of standardized construction noise 
thresholds, the FTA provides guidelines that can be considered reasonable criteria for 
construction noise assessment.  The FTA considers a daytime exterior construction noise level of 
80 dBA Leq as a reasonable threshold for noise sensitive residential land use . 

3.5 VIBRATION STANDARDS 

Construction activity can result in varying degrees of ground-borne vibration, depending on the 
equipment and methods used, distance to the affected structures and soil type. (8)  Construction 
vibration is generally associated with pile driving and rock blasting.  Other construction 
equipment, such as air compressors, light trucks, hydraulic loaders, etc., generates little or no 
ground vibration. (8) 

To analyze vibration impacts associated with the Core Rancho Mirage, vibration-generating 
activities are appropriately evaluated against standards established under a City’s Municipal 
Code if such standards exist.  While Section 17.18.080 of the RMMC requires that no vibration 
associated with any use shall be allowed which is discernable beyond the boundary line of the 
subject property, the City of Rancho Mirage does not identify specific construction vibration level 
limits.  Therefore, for analysis purposes, the Caltrans Transportation and Construction Vibration 
Guidance Manual, (10 p. 38) Table 19, vibration damage are used in this noise study to assess 
potential temporary construction-related impacts at adjacent building locations.  The nearest 
noise sensitive buildings adjacent to the Project site can best be described as “older residential 
structures” with a maximum acceptable continuous vibration threshold of 0.3 PPV (in/sec).    



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
18 

This page intentionally left blank  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
19 

4 SIGNIFICANCE CRITERIA 

The following significance criteria are based on currently adopted guidance provided by Appendix 
G of the State CEQA Guidelines. (18)  For the purposes of this report, impacts would be potentially 
significant if the Project results in or causes: 

A. Generation of a substantial temporary or permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the 
vicinity of the project in excess of standards established in the local general plan or noise 
ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies? 

B. Generation of excessive ground-borne vibration or ground-borne noise levels? 

C. For a project located within the vicinity of a private airstrip or an airport land use plan or, where 
such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would 
the project expose people residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels? 

4.1 NOISE LEVEL INCREASES (THRESHOLD A) 

Noise level increases resulting from the Project are evaluated based on the Appendix G CEQA 
Guidelines.  Under CEQA, consideration must be given to the magnitude of the increase, the 
existing baseline ambient noise levels, and the location of receivers to determine if a noise 
increase represents a significant adverse environmental impact.  This approach recognizes that 
there is no single noise increase that renders the noise impact significant. (19)  This is primarily 
because of the wide variation in individual thresholds of annoyance and differing individual 
experiences with noise.  In general, the more a new noise level exceeds the previously existing 
ambient noise level, the less acceptable the new noise level will typically be judged.  Thus, an 
important way of determining a person’s subjective reaction to a new noise is the comparison of 
it to the existing environment to which one has adapted—the so-called ambient environment.  
The ambient noise level is the composite of noise from all sources, excluding the alleged offensive 
noise.  In this context, it represents the normal or existing level of environmental noise at a given 
location for a specified time of day or night.   

4.1.1 TRANSPORTATION NOISE (SUBSTANTIAL PERMANENT NOISE LEVEL INCREASE) 

The Federal Interagency Committee on Noise (FICON) (20) developed guidance to be used for the 
assessment of project-generated increases in noise levels that consider the ambient noise level.  
The FICON recommendations are based on studies that relate aircraft noise levels to the 
percentage of persons highly annoyed by aircraft noise.  Although the FICON recommendations 
were specifically developed to assess aircraft noise impacts, these recommendations are often 
used in environmental noise impact assessments involving the use of cumulative noise exposure 
metrics, such as the average-daily noise level (CNEL) and equivalent continuous noise level (Leq). 

As previously stated, the approach used in this noise study recognizes that there is no single noise 
increase that renders a noise impact significant, based on a 2008 California Court of Appeal ruling 
on Gray v. County of Madera. (19)  For example, if the ambient noise environment is quiet (<60 
dBA) and the new noise source greatly increases the noise levels, an impact may occur if the noise 
criteria may be exceeded.  Therefore, for this analysis, a readily perceptible 5 dBA or greater 



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
20 

project-related noise level increase is considered a significant impact when the without project 
noise levels are below 60 dBA.  Per the FICON, in areas where the without project noise levels 
range from 60 to 65 dBA, a 3 dBA barely perceptible noise level increase appears to be 
appropriate for most people.  When the without project noise levels already exceed 65 dBA, any 
increase in community noise louder than 1.5 dBA or greater is considered a significant impact if 
the noise criteria for a given land use is exceeded, since it likely contributes to an existing noise 
exposure exceedance.   

The FICON guidance provides an established source of criteria to assess the impacts of substantial 
permanent increase in baseline ambient noise levels.  Based on the FICON criteria, the amount 
to which a given noise level increase is considered acceptable is reduced when the without 
Project (baseline) noise levels are already shown to exceed certain land-use specific exterior 
noise level criteria.  The specific levels are based on typical responses to noise level increases of 
5 dBA or readily perceptible, 3 dBA or barely perceptible, and 1.5 dBA depending on the 
underlying without Project noise levels for noise-sensitive uses.  These levels of increases and 
their perceived acceptance at noise sensitive receiver locations are consistent with guidance 
provided by both the Federal Highway Administration (4 p. 9) and Caltrans (21 p. 2_48). 

The City of Rancho Mirage General Plan Noise Element, Noise Compatibility by Land Use Type 
was used to establish the satisfactory noise levels of significance for non-noise-sensitive land uses 
in the Project study area.  As previously shown on Exhibit 3-A, the completely compatible exterior 
noise level for non-noise-sensitive land uses is 70 dBA CNEL.  To determine if Project-related 
traffic noise level increases are significant at off-site non-noise-sensitive land uses, a barely 
perceptible 3 dBA criteria is used.  When the without Project noise levels are greater than the 
completely compatible 70 dBA CNEL land use compatibility criteria, a barely perceptible 3 dBA or 
greater noise level increase is considered a significant impact since the noise level criteria is 
already exceeded.  The noise level increases used to determine significant impacts for non-noise-
sensitive land uses is generally consistent with the FICON noise level increase thresholds for 
noise-sensitive land uses but instead rely on the City of Rancho Mirage General Plan Noise 
Element, Noise Compatibility by Land Use Type completely compatible 70 dBA CNEL exterior noise 
level criteria. 

4.1.2 NON-TRANSPORTATION NOISE (SUBSTANTIAL PERMANENT NOISE LEVEL INCREASE) 

The FICON criteria are also used to determine if Project-related stationary source (operational) 
noise level increases are significant at off-site receiver locations.  For non-transportation noise 
source activities, a substantial permanent noise level increase consists of increases of 5 dBA or 
readily perceptible, 3 dBA or barely perceptible, and 1.5 dBA depending on the underlying 
ambient noise levels.   

  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
21 

4.1.3 CONSTRUCTION NOISE (SUBSTANTIAL TEMPORARY NOISE LEVEL INCREASE) 

In addition to absolute noise limits, the temporary noise level increases over the existing ambient 
conditions must be considered under CEQA Significance Threshold A. Recent court cases have 
also placed an emphasis on the increase as opposed to the noise level limit.  However, limits and 
acceptable increases are not unrelated since, often, the noise level limits can subtly include the 
increase limit.   

While specific noise ordinances can vary widely, many jurisdictions across California set 
construction noise level limits around 75 to 80 dBA Leq and only allow construction during 
daytime hours (e.g., City and County of Los Angeles, City and County of San Diego, City and County 
of San Francisco, etc.) In contrast, everyday noise limits are stricter because they apply to 
continuous, long-term activities where excessive noise can greatly affect the quality of life over 
time. Thus, for everyday noise limits, many jurisdictions across California set residential daytime 
noise level limits around 55 dBA Leq during daytime hours.  This implies that during daytime hours, 
many California communities consider an increase of 20 dBA over the daytime limit an acceptable 
temporary increase for construction activities.  This is also illustrated in the adoption of many 
CEQA documents statewide that use an 80 dBA Leq limit for assessing construction impacts while 
using everyday noise level limits of local noise ordinances in assessing on-site operational 
impacts.  

However, since an increase of 20 dBA could result in noise levels over 85 dBA Leq, which the 
California Occupational Safety and Health Administration (CalOSHA) identifies as a potentially 
hazardous noise level, the increase should not be allowed to result in an absolute noise level 
greater than 80 dBA Leq at any residence, which is consistent with the FTA recommendations.   

Therefore, if the Project-related construction noise levels generate a temporary noise level 
increase over the existing daytime ambient noise levels in excess of 20 dBA Leq, and exceed 
80 dBA Leq, then the Project construction noise level increases will be considered a significant 
impact.   

4.2 VIBRATION (THRESHOLD B) 

As described in Section 3.6, the vibration impacts are appropriately evaluated using the Caltrans 
vibration damage thresholds to assess potential temporary construction-related impacts at 
adjacent building locations.  The nearest noise sensitive buildings adjacent to the Project site can 
best be described as “older residential structures” with a maximum acceptable continuous 
vibration threshold of 0.3 PPV (in/sec). 

4.3 CEQA GUIDELINES NOT FURTHER ANALYZED (THRESHOLD C) 

CEQA Noise Threshold C applies when there are nearby public and private airports and/or 
airstrips and focuses on land use compatibility of the Project to nearby airports and airstrips.  The 
Project site is not located within two miles of an airport or airstrip.  The closest airport is the Palm 
Springs Airport, located roughly 5.8 miles northwest of the Project site.  As such, the Project site 
would not be exposed to excessive noise levels from airport operations, and therefore, impacts 



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
22 

are considered less than significant, and no further noise analysis is conducted in relation to 
Appendix G to the CEQA Guidelines, Noise Threshold C. 

4.4 SIGNIFICANCE CRITERIA SUMMARY 

Noise impacts shall be considered significant if any of the following occur as a direct result of the 
development.  Table 4-1 shows the significance criteria summary matrix that includes the 
allowable criteria used to identify potentially significant incremental noise level increases. 

TABLE 4-1:  SIGNIFICANCE CRITERIA SUMMARY 

Analysis Receiving 
Land Use Condition(s) Significance Criteria 

Off-Site 
Traffic 

Noise- 
Sensitive1 

If ambient is < 60 dBA CNEL ≥ 5 dBA CNEL Project increase 
If ambient is 60 - 65 dBA CNEL ≥ 3 dBA CNEL Project increase 

If ambient is > 65 dBA CNEL ≥ 1.5 dBA CNEL Project increase 

Non-Noise- 
Sensitive1,2 

If ambient is < 70 dBA CNEL ≥ 5 dBA CNEL Project increase 
If ambient is > 70 dBA CNEL ≥ 3 dBA CNEL Project increase 

On-Site 
Noise Mixed2 

Interior Noise Level Standards  45 dBA CNEL 
Exterior Noise Level Standards 70 dBA CNEL 

Operational All3 Exterior Noise Level Standards See Table 3-1 

Construction 
Noise- 

Sensitive 

Shall be limited to the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. with no activity on 
Sundays and holidays4 

Noise Level Threshold5 80 dBA Leq 
All Vibration Level Threshold6 0.3 PPV (in/sec) 

1 FICON, 1992. 
2 City of Rancho Mirage General Plan Noise Element. 
3 City of Rancho Mirage General Plan Municipal Code, Section 8.45.030 
4 City of Rancho Mirage General Plan Municipal Code, Section15.04.030[A][10]. 

5 Federal Transit Administration, Transit Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment Manual. 
6 Caltrans Transportation and Construction Vibration Manual, April 2020 Table 19. 
  "Daytime" = 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m.; "Nighttime" = 10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m. 

  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
23 

5 EXISTING NOISE LEVEL MEASUREMENTS 

To assess the existing noise level environment, 24-hour noise level measurements were taken at 
five locations in the Project study area.  The receiver locations were selected to describe and 
document the existing noise environment within the Project study area.  Exhibit 5-A provides the 
boundaries of the Project study area and the noise level measurement locations.  To fully 
describe the existing noise conditions, noise level measurements were collected by Urban 
Crossroads, Inc. on Thursday, May 23, 2024.  Appendix 5.1 includes study area photos. 

5.1 MEASUREMENT PROCEDURE AND CRITERIA 

To describe the existing noise environment, the hourly noise levels were measured during typical 
weekday conditions over a 24-hour period.  By collecting individual hourly noise level 
measurements, it is possible to describe the equivalent daytime and nighttime hourly noise 
levels.  The long-term noise readings were recorded using Piccolo Type 2 integrating sound level 
meter and dataloggers.  The Piccolo sound level meters were calibrated using a Larson-Davis 
calibrator, Model CAL 150.  All noise meters were programmed in "slow" mode to record noise 
levels in "A" weighted form.  The sound level meters and microphones were equipped with a 
windscreen during all measurements.  All noise level measurement equipment satisfies the 
American National Standards Institute (ANSI) standard specifications for sound level meters ANSI 
S1.4-2014/IEC 61672-1:2013. (22) 

5.2 NOISE MEASUREMENT LOCATIONS 

The long-term noise level measurements were positioned as close to the nearest sensitive 
receiver locations as possible to assess the existing ambient hourly noise levels surrounding the 
Project site.  Both Caltrans and the FTA recognize that it is not reasonable to collect noise level 
measurements that can fully represent every part of a private yard, patio, deck, or balcony 
normally used for human activity when estimating impacts for new development projects.  This 
is demonstrated in the Caltrans general site location guidelines which indicate that, sites must be 
free of noise contamination by sources other than sources of interest. Avoid sites located near 
sources such as barking dogs, lawnmowers, pool pumps, and air conditioners unless it is the 
express intent of the analyst to measure these sources. (2)  Further, FTA guidance states, that it is 
not necessary nor recommended that existing noise exposure be determined by measuring at 
every noise-sensitive location in the project area.  Rather, the recommended approach is to 
characterize the noise environment for clusters of sites based on measurements or estimates at 
representative locations in the community. (8) 

Based on recommendations of Caltrans and the FTA, it is not necessary to collect measurements 
at each individual building or residence, because each receiver measurement represents a group 
of buildings that share acoustical equivalence. (8)  In other words, the area represented by the 
receiver shares similar shielding, terrain, and geometric relationship to the reference noise 
source.  Receivers represent a location of noise sensitive areas and are used to estimate the 
future noise level impacts.  Collecting reference ambient noise level measurements at the nearby 
sensitive receiver locations allows for a comparison of the before and after Project noise levels 



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
24 

and is necessary to assess potential noise impacts due to the Project’s contribution to the 
ambient noise levels. 

5.3 NOISE MEASUREMENT RESULTS 

The noise measurements presented below focus on the equivalent or the hourly energy average 
sound levels (Leq).  The equivalent sound level (Leq) represents a steady state sound level 
containing the same total energy as a time varying signal over a given sample period.  Table 5-1 
identifies the hourly daytime (7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.), evening (6:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m.) and 
nighttime (10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m.) noise levels at each noise level measurement location.   

TABLE 5-1:  AMBIENT NOISE LEVEL MEASUREMENTS 

Location1 Description 

Energy Average 
Noise Level 
(dBA Leq)2 

Daytime Evening Nighttime 

L1 Located northwest of the Project site near a 
residence at 102 Clear Water Way 55.5 56.8 54.4 

L2 Located west of the Project site near the Unitarian 
Universalist Church at 72425 Vía Vail 51.9 54.4 51.5 

L3 Located west of the Project site near a he Rancho 
Mirage Dog Park at 34100 Key Largo Ave 55.5 56.8 54.4 

L4 Located northwest of the Project site near a 
residence at 34620 Via Josefina 53.1 58.0 54.1 

L5 Located northwest of the Project site near a 
residence at 72740 Vía Florencia 52.9 59.0 51.5 

1 See Exhibit 5-A for the noise level measurement locations. 
2 Energy (logarithmic) average levels. The long-term 24-hour measurement worksheets are included in Appendix 5.2. 
"Daytime" = 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m.; "Nighttime" = 10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m. 

Table 5-1 provides the equivalent noise levels used to describe the daytime, evening, and 
nighttime ambient conditions.  These daytime and nighttime energy average noise levels 
represent the average of all hourly noise levels observed during these time periods expressed as 
a single number.  Appendix 5.2 provides summary worksheets of the noise levels for each of the 
daytime and nighttime hours.  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
25 

EXHIBIT 5-A:  NOISE MEASUREMENT LOCATIONS 

 

  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
26 

This page intentionally left blank  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
27 

6 TRAFFIC NOISE METHODS AND PROCEDURES 

The following section outlines the methods and procedures used to estimate and analyze the 
future traffic noise environment.  Consistent with the City of Rancho Mirage Land Use 
Compatibility guidelines, all transportation related noise levels are presented in terms of the 24-
hour CNEL. 

6.1 FHWA TRAFFIC NOISE PREDICTION MODEL 

The expected roadway noise level increases from vehicular traffic were calculated by Urban 
Crossroads, Inc. using a computer program that replicates the Federal Highway Administration 
(FHWA) Traffic Noise Prediction Model- FHWA-RD-77-108. (23)  The FHWA Model arrives at a 
predicted noise level through a series of adjustments to the Reference Energy Mean Emission 
Level (REMEL).  In California, the national REMELs are substituted with the California Vehicle 
Noise (Calveno) Emission Levels. (24)  Adjustments are then made to the REMEL to account for: 
the roadway classification (e.g., collector, secondary, major or arterial), the roadway active width 
(i.e., the distance between the center of the outermost travel lanes on each side of the roadway), 
the total average daily traffic (ADT), the travel speed, the percentages of automobiles, medium 
trucks, and heavy trucks in the traffic volume, the roadway grade, the angle of view (e.g., whether 
the roadway view is blocked), the site conditions ("hard" or "soft" relates to the absorption of 
the ground, pavement, or landscaping), and the percentage of total ADT which flows each hour 
throughout a 24-hour period.  Research conducted by Caltrans has shown that the use of soft site 
conditions is appropriate for the application of the FHWA traffic noise prediction model used in 
this analysis. (25)   

6.1.1 OFF-SITE TRAFFIC NOISE PREDICTION MODEL INPUTS 

Table 6-1 presents the roadway parameters used to assess the Project’s off-site transportation 
noise impacts.  Table 6-1 identifies the fourteen off-site study area roadway segments, the 
distance from the centerline to adjacent receiving land use based on the functional roadway 
classifications per the City of Rancho Mirage General Plan Circulation Element, and the posted 
vehicle speeds.  The ADT volumes used in this study are presented on Table 6-2 are based on the 
Core Rancho Mirage Traffic Analysis, prepared by Urban Crossroads, Inc. (26) for the following 
traffic conditions: 

• Existing 2024 Without Project Conditions 

• Existing 2024 With Project Conditions 

• Existing Plus Ambient Growth (EA) 2026 Without Project Conditions 

• EA 2026 With Project Conditions  

• Existing Plus Ambient Growth Plus Cumulative (EAC) 2026 Without Project Conditions 

• EAC 2026 With Project Conditions  
  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
28 

TABLE 6-1:  OFF-SITE ROADWAY PARAMETERS 

ID Roadway Segment Classification1 Distance from Centerline to 
Receiving Land Use (Feet)3 

Vehicle 
Speed 
(mph) 

1 Dinah Shore Dr. w/o Key Largo Ave. Major Arterial 60' 45 
2 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o Key Largo Ave. Major Arterial 60' 45 
3 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o George Montgomery Major Arterial 60' 45 
4 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o Shoppers Ln. Major Arterial 60' 45 
5 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o Monterey Ave. Major Arterial 60' 45 
6 Via Vail w/o Key Largo Ave. Local 30' 25 
7 Key Largo Ave. s/o Dinah Shore Dr. Local 30' 25 
8 Key Largo Ave. s/o Via Vail Local 30' 25 
9 Mirriam Wy. n/o Dinah Shore Dr. Local 30' 25 

10 George Montgomery s/o Dinah Shore Dr. Local 30' 15 
11 Shoppers Ln. n/o Dinah Shore Dr. Local 30' 15 
12 Shoppers Ln. s/o Dinah Shore Dr. Local 30' 15 
13 Monterey Ave. n/o Dinah Shore Dr. Major Arterial 60' 55 
14 Monterey Ave. s/o Dinah Shore Dr. Major Arterial 60' 55 
1 City of Rancho Mirage and City General Plan Circulation Element 
2 Distance to receiving land use is based upon the right-of-way distances. 

  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
29 

TABLE 6-2:  AVERAGE DAILY TRAFFIC VOLUMES 

ID Roadway Segment 

Average Daily Traffic Volumes1 

Existing  Existing Plus Ambient 
Growth 

Existing Plus Ambient 
Growth Plus Cumulative 

Without 
Project With Project 

Without 
Project With Project 

Without 
Project With Project 

1 Dinah Shore Dr. w/o Key Largo Ave. 8,750  8,840  9,100  9,190  10,690  10,780  

2 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o Key Largo Ave. 9,590  9,890  9,970  10,270  12,720  13,020  

3 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o George Montgomery 8,150  8,440  8,480  8,770  11,110  11,400  

4 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o Shoppers Ln. 8,850  9,120  9,220  9,490  11,780  12,050  

5 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o Monterey Ave. 10,640  10,660  11,070  11,090  11,670  11,690  

6 Via Vail w/o Key Largo Ave. 820  840  850  870  1,140  1,160  

7 Key Largo Ave. s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 780  1,050  820  1,090  1,940  2,210  

8 Key Largo Ave. s/o Via Vail 220  220  240  240  240  240  

9 Mirriam Wy. n/o Dinah Shore Dr. 1,580  1,580  1,640  1,640  1,690  1,690  

10 George Montgomery s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 1,350  1,360  1,400  1,410  1,470  1,480  

11 Shoppers Ln. n/o Dinah Shore Dr. 6,520  6,530  6,780  6,790  6,950  6,960  

12 Shoppers Ln. s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 2,130  2,140  2,210  2,220  2,300  2,310  

13 Monterey Ave. n/o Dinah Shore Dr. 16,070  16,230  16,720  16,880  23,460  23,620  

14 Monterey Ave. s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 14,200  14,280  14,770  14,850  20,980  21,060  
1 Core Rancho Mirage Traffic Analysis, Urban Crossroads. 

The ADT volumes vary for each roadway segment based on the existing traffic volumes and the 
combination of project traffic distributions.  Table 6-3 provides the time of day (daytime, evening, 
and nighttime) vehicle splits and Table 6-4 presents the traffic flow distributions (vehicle mix) 
used for this analysis.  The vehicle mix provides the hourly distribution percentages of 
automobile, medium trucks, and heavy trucks for input into the FHWA noise prediction model. 

  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
30 

TABLE 6-3:  TIME OF DAY VEHICLE SPLITS 

Vehicle Type 
Time of Day Splits1 Total of Time of 

Day Splits Daytime Evening Nighttime 

Autos 77.50% 12.90% 9.60% 100.00% 
Medium Trucks 84.80% 4.90% 10.30% 100.00% 

Heavy Trucks 86.50% 2.70% 10.80% 100.00% 
1 Typical Southern California vehicle mix. 
“Daytime” = 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m.; “Evening” = 7:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m.; “Nighttime” = 10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m. 

TABLE 6-4:  TRAFFIC FLOW BY VEHICLE TYPE (VEHICLE MIX) 

Classification 
Total % Traffic Flow 

Total 
Autos Medium Trucks Heavy Trucks 

All Roadways1 97.42% 1.84% 0.74% 100.00% 
1 Typical Southern California vehicle mix. 

6.1.2 ON-SITE TRAFFIC NOISE PREDICTION MODEL INPUTS 

The on-site roadway parameters including the average daily traffic (ADT) volumes used for this 
study are presented in Table 6-5.  To describe the future traffic conditions Average Daily Traffic 
(ADT) was taken from the Core Rancho Mirage Traffic Analysis.  The traffic volumes shown in 
Table 6-5 reflect future long-range traffic conditions needed to assess the future on-site traffic 
noise environment and to identify the appropriate noise mitigation measures, if any, that address 
the worst-case future conditions.  

TABLE 6-5:  ON-SITE ROADWAY PARAMETERS 

Roadway 
Segment Lanes Classification1 

Daily 
Capacity 
Volume2 

Speed 
Limit 

(mph)3 

Site  
Conditions 

Via Vail 2 Local 1,760 25 Soft 
1 Road classifications based upon the City of Rancho Mirage General Plan Circulation Element 2017. 
2 Source: Via Vail Village Traffic Analysis 2024. 
3 Posted speed limits on each roadway.  

  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
31 

7 OFF-SITE TRANSPORTATION NOISE IMPACTS 

To assess the off-site traffic CNEL noise level impacts associated with development of the  Project, 
noise level contours were developed based on Core Rancho Mirage Traffic Impact Analysis. (26)  
Noise level contour boundaries represent the equal levels of noise exposure and are measured 
in CNEL from the center of the roadway.  Noise level contours were developed for the following 
traffic scenarios: 

• Existing 2024 Without Project Conditions 

• Existing 2024 With Project Conditions 

• Existing Plus Ambient Growth (EA) 2026 Without Project Conditions 

• EA 2026 With Project Conditions 

• Existing Plus Ambient Growth Plus Cumulative (EAC) 2026 Without Project Conditions 

• EAC 2026 With Project Conditions 

7.1 TRAFFIC NOISE LEVEL CONTOURS 

Noise contours were used to assess the Project’s incremental 24-hour dBA CNEL traffic-related 
noise impacts at land uses adjacent to roadways conveying Project traffic.  The noise contours 
represent the distance to noise levels of a constant value and are measured from the center of 
the roadway for the 70, 65, and 60 dBA CNEL noise levels.  The noise contours do not consider 
the effect of any existing noise barriers or topography that may attenuate ambient noise levels.  
In addition, because the noise contours reflect modeling of vehicular noise on area roadways, 
they appropriately do not reflect noise contributions from the surrounding stationary noise 
sources within the Project study area.   

Tables 7-1 through 7-6 present a summary of the exterior dBA CNEL traffic noise levels.  Roadway 
segments are analyzed in each of the following timeframes:  Existing with and without Project 
conditions, Existing Plus Ambient Growth with and without Project conditions, Existing Plus 
Ambient Plus Cumulative with and without Project conditions.  Appendix 7.1 includes a summary 
of the dBA CNEL traffic noise level contours for each of the traffic scenarios. 

  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
32 

TABLE 7-1:  EXISTING 2024 WITHOUT PROJECT CONDITIONS NOISE LEVEL CONTOURS 

ID Road Segment 

CNEL at  
Receiving  
Land Use  

(dBA)1 

Distance to Contour from 
Centerline (Feet) 

70 dBA  
CNEL 

65 dBA 
CNEL 

60 dBA 
CNEL 

1 Dinah Shore Dr. w/o Key Largo Ave. 66.3 34 74 159 
2 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o Key Largo Ave. 66.7 36 78 169 
3 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o George Montgomery 66.0 33 70 152 
4 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o Shoppers Ln. 66.4 34 74 160 
5 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o Monterey Ave. 67.2 39 84 181 
6 Via Vail w/o Key Largo Ave. 52.8 2 5 10 
7 Key Largo Ave. s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 52.6 2 4 10 
8 Key Largo Ave. s/o Via Vail 47.1 1 2 4 
9 Mirriam Wy. n/o Dinah Shore Dr. 55.7 3 7 15 

10 George Montgomery s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 50.1 1 3 7 
11 Shoppers Ln. n/o Dinah Shore Dr. 56.9 4 9 19 
12 Shoppers Ln. s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 52.1 2 4 9 
13 Monterey Ave. n/o Dinah Shore Dr. 71.2 72 155 334 
14 Monterey Ave. s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 70.6 66 143 308 
1 The CNEL is calculated at the boundary of the right-of-way of the receiving adjacent land use. 
"RW" = Location of the respective noise contour falls within the right-of-way of the road. 

  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
33 

TABLE 7-2:  EXISTING 2024 WITH PROJECT CONDITIONS NOISE LEVEL CONTOURS 

ID Road Segment 

CNEL at  
Receiving  
Land Use  

(dBA)1 

Distance to Contour from 
Centerline (Feet) 

70 dBA  
CNEL 

65 dBA 
CNEL 

60 dBA 
CNEL 

1 Dinah Shore Dr. w/o Key Largo Ave. 66.4 34 74 160 
2 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o Key Largo Ave. 66.9 37 80 172 
3 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o George Montgomery 66.2 33 72 155 
4 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o Shoppers Ln. 66.5 35 76 163 
5 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o Monterey Ave. 67.2 39 84 181 
6 Via Vail w/o Key Largo Ave. 52.9 2 5 10 
7 Key Largo Ave. s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 53.9 3 5 12 
8 Key Largo Ave. s/o Via Vail 47.1 1 2 4 
9 Mirriam Wy. n/o Dinah Shore Dr. 55.7 3 7 15 

10 George Montgomery s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 50.1 1 3 7 
11 Shoppers Ln. n/o Dinah Shore Dr. 56.9 4 9 19 
12 Shoppers Ln. s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 52.1 2 4 9 
13 Monterey Ave. n/o Dinah Shore Dr. 71.2 72 156 336 
14 Monterey Ave. s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 70.7 67 143 309 
1 The CNEL is calculated at the boundary of the right-of-way of the receiving adjacent land use. 
"RW" = Location of the respective noise contour falls within the right-of-way of the road. 

  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
34 

TABLE 7-3:  EA 2026 WITHOUT PROJECT CONDITIONS NOISE LEVEL CONTOURS 

ID Road Segment 

CNEL at  
Receiving  
Land Use  

(dBA)1 

Distance to Contour from 
Centerline (Feet) 

70 dBA  
CNEL 

65 dBA 
CNEL 

60 dBA 
CNEL 

1 Dinah Shore Dr. w/o Key Largo Ave. 66.5 35 76 163 
2 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o Key Largo Ave. 66.9 37 80 173 
3 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o George Montgomery 66.2 34 72 156 
4 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o Shoppers Ln. 66.6 35 76 164 
5 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o Monterey Ave. 67.4 40 86 186 
6 Via Vail w/o Key Largo Ave. 53.0 2 5 10 
7 Key Largo Ave. s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 52.8 2 5 10 
8 Key Largo Ave. s/o Via Vail 47.5 1 2 4 
9 Mirriam Wy. n/o Dinah Shore Dr. 55.9 3 7 16 

10 George Montgomery s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 50.3 1 3 7 
11 Shoppers Ln. n/o Dinah Shore Dr. 57.1 4 9 19 
12 Shoppers Ln. s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 52.2 2 4 9 
13 Monterey Ave. n/o Dinah Shore Dr. 71.4 74 159 343 
14 Monterey Ave. s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 70.8 68 147 316 
1 The CNEL is calculated at the boundary of the right-of-way of the receiving adjacent land use. 
"RW" = Location of the respective noise contour falls within the right-of-way of the road. 

  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
35 

TABLE 7-4:  EA 2026 WITH PROJECT CONDITIONS NOISE LEVEL CONTOURS 

ID Road Segment 

CNEL at  
Receiving  
Land Use  

(dBA)1 

Distance to Contour from 
Centerline (Feet) 

70 dBA  
CNEL 

65 dBA 
CNEL 

60 dBA 
CNEL 

1 Dinah Shore Dr. w/o Key Largo Ave. 66.6 35 76 164 
2 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o Key Largo Ave. 67.0 38 82 177 
3 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o George Montgomery 66.4 34 74 159 
4 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o Shoppers Ln. 66.7 36 78 168 
5 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o Monterey Ave. 67.4 40 86 186 
6 Via Vail w/o Key Largo Ave. 53.1 2 5 10 
7 Key Largo Ave. s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 54.1 3 6 12 
8 Key Largo Ave. s/o Via Vail 47.5 1 2 4 
9 Mirriam Wy. n/o Dinah Shore Dr. 55.9 3 7 16 

10 George Montgomery s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 50.3 1 3 7 
11 Shoppers Ln. n/o Dinah Shore Dr. 57.1 4 9 19 
12 Shoppers Ln. s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 52.3 2 4 9 
13 Monterey Ave. n/o Dinah Shore Dr. 71.4 74 160 345 
14 Monterey Ave. s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 70.8 68 147 317 
1 The CNEL is calculated at the boundary of the right-of-way of the receiving adjacent land use. 
"RW" = Location of the respective noise contour falls within the right-of-way of the road. 

  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
36 

TABLE 7-5:  EAC 2026 WITHOUT PROJECT CONDITIONS NOISE LEVEL CONTOURS 

ID Road Segment 

CNEL at  
Receiving  
Land Use  

(dBA)1 

Distance to Contour from 
Centerline (Feet) 

70 dBA  
CNEL 

65 dBA 
CNEL 

60 dBA 
CNEL 

1 Dinah Shore Dr. w/o Key Largo Ave. 67.2 39 84 182 
2 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o Key Largo Ave. 68.0 44 95 204 
3 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o George Montgomery 67.4 40 86 186 
4 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o Shoppers Ln. 67.6 42 90 194 
5 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o Monterey Ave. 67.6 41 89 192 
6 Via Vail w/o Key Largo Ave. 54.3 3 6 12 
7 Key Largo Ave. s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 56.6 4 8 18 
8 Key Largo Ave. s/o Via Vail 47.5 1 2 4 
9 Mirriam Wy. n/o Dinah Shore Dr. 56.0 3 8 16 

10 George Montgomery s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 50.5 1 3 7 
11 Shoppers Ln. n/o Dinah Shore Dr. 57.2 4 9 20 
12 Shoppers Ln. s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 52.4 2 4 9 
13 Monterey Ave. n/o Dinah Shore Dr. 72.8 93 199 430 
14 Monterey Ave. s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 72.3 86 185 399 
1 The CNEL is calculated at the boundary of the right-of-way of the receiving adjacent land use. 
"RW" = Location of the respective noise contour falls within the right-of-way of the road. 

  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
37 

TABLE 7-6:  EAC 2026 WITH PROJECT CONDITIONS NOISE LEVEL CONTOURS 

ID Road Segment 

CNEL at  
Receiving  
Land Use  

(dBA)1 

Distance to Contour from 
Centerline (Feet) 

70 dBA  
CNEL 

65 dBA 
CNEL 

60 dBA 
CNEL 

1 Dinah Shore Dr. w/o Key Largo Ave. 67.2 39 85 183 
2 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o Key Largo Ave. 68.1 45 96 207 
3 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o George Montgomery 67.5 41 88 189 
4 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o Shoppers Ln. 67.7 42 91 197 
5 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o Monterey Ave. 67.6 42 89 193 
6 Via Vail w/o Key Largo Ave. 54.4 3 6 13 
7 Key Largo Ave. s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 57.2 4 9 19 
8 Key Largo Ave. s/o Via Vail 47.5 1 2 4 
9 Mirriam Wy. n/o Dinah Shore Dr. 56.0 3 8 16 

10 George Montgomery s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 50.5 2 3 7 
11 Shoppers Ln. n/o Dinah Shore Dr. 57.2 4 9 20 
12 Shoppers Ln. s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 52.4 2 4 9 
13 Monterey Ave. n/o Dinah Shore Dr. 72.9 93 200 432 
14 Monterey Ave. s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 72.4 86 186 400 
1 The CNEL is calculated at the boundary of the right-of-way of the receiving adjacent land use. 
"RW" = Location of the respective noise contour falls within the right-of-way of the road. 

  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
38 

7.2 EXISTING CONDITION PROJECT TRAFFIC NOISE LEVELS 

Table 7-1 presents the Existing 2024 without Project conditions CNEL noise levels, which are 
expected to range from 47.1 to 71.2 dBA CNEL, without accounting for any noise attenuation 
features such as noise barriers or topography.  Table 7-2 shows the Existing 2024 with Project 
conditions will range from 47.1 to 71.2 dBA CNEL.  As shown on Table 7-7 the Existing with 2024 
Project will generate a noise level increase of up to 1.3 dBA CNEL on the study area roadway 
segments.  Based on the significance criteria in Section 4.2 for off-site traffic noise impacts, the 
Project-related noise level increases are considered less than significant under Existing conditions 
at the land uses adjacent to roadways conveying Project traffic. 

7.3 EA 2026 TRAFFIC NOISE LEVEL INCREASES 

Table 7-3 presents the EA 2026 without Project conditions CNEL noise levels, which are expected 
to range from 47.5 to 71.4 dBA CNEL, without accounting for any noise attenuation features such 
as noise barriers or topography.  Table 7-4 shows the EA (2026) with Project conditions will range 
from 47.5 to 71.4 dBA CNEL.  Table 7-8 shows that the EA 2026 Project off-site traffic noise level 
increases of up to 1.3 dBA CNEL.  Based on the significance criteria for off-site traffic noise 
presented in Section 4.2 for off-site traffic noise impacts, land uses adjacent to the study area 
roadway segments would experience less than significant noise level increases due to 
unmitigated EA 2026 Project-related traffic noise levels. 

7.4 EAC 2026 TRAFFIC NOISE LEVEL INCREASES 

Table 7-5 presents the EAC 2026 without Project conditions CNEL noise levels, which are 
expected to range from 47.5 to 72.8 dBA CNEL, without accounting for any noise attenuation 
features such as noise barriers or topography.  Table 7-6 shows the EAC 2026 with Project 
conditions will range from 47.5 to 72.9 dBA CNEL.  Table 7-9 shows that the EAC 2026 off-site 
traffic noise level increases up to 0.6 dBA CNEL.  Based on the significance criteria for off-site 
traffic noise presented in Section 4.2 for off-site traffic noise impacts, land uses adjacent to the 
study area roadway segments would experience less than significant noise level increases due to 
unmitigated EAC 2026 Project-related traffic noise levels. 

 



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
39 

TABLE 7-7:  EXISTING OFF-SITE PROJECT-RELATED TRAFFIC NOISE IMPACTS 

ID Road Segment 

CNEL at Receiving 
Land Use (dBA)1 

Incremental Noise 
Level Increase 

Threshold2 

No 
Project 

With 
Project 

Project 
Addition Limit Exceeded? 

1 Dinah Shore Dr. w/o Key Largo Ave. 66.3 66.4 0.1 1.5 No 
2 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o Key Largo Ave. 66.7 66.9 0.2 1.5 No 
3 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o George Montgomery 66.0 66.2 0.2 1.5 No 
4 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o Shoppers Ln. 66.4 66.5 0.1 1.5 No 
5 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o Monterey Ave. 67.2 67.2 0.0 1.5 No 
6 Via Vail w/o Key Largo Ave. 52.8 52.9 0.1 5.0 No 
7 Key Largo Ave. s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 52.6 53.9 1.3 5.0 No 
8 Key Largo Ave. s/o Via Vail 47.1 47.1 0.0 5.0 No 
9 Mirriam Wy. n/o Dinah Shore Dr. 55.7 55.7 0.0 5.0 No 

10 George Montgomery s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 50.1 50.1 0.0 5.0 No 
11 Shoppers Ln. n/o Dinah Shore Dr. 56.9 56.9 0.0 5.0 No 
12 Shoppers Ln. s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 52.1 52.1 0.0 5.0 No 
13 Monterey Ave. n/o Dinah Shore Dr. 71.2 71.2 0.0 1.5 No 
14 Monterey Ave. s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 70.6 70.7 0.1 1.5 No 
1 The CNEL is calculated at the boundary of the right-of-way of each roadway and the property line of the receiving land use. 
2 Does the Project create an incremental noise level increase exceeding the significance criteria (Table 4-1)? 

  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
40 

TABLE 7-8:  EXISTING AND AMBIENT OFF-SITE PROJECT-RELATED TRAFFIC NOISE IMPACTS 

ID Road Segment 

CNEL at Receiving 
Land Use (dBA)1 

Incremental Noise 
Level Increase 

Threshold2 

No 
Project 

With 
Project 

Project 
Addition Limit Exceeded? 

1 Dinah Shore Dr. w/o Key Largo Ave. 66.5 66.6 0.1 1.5 No 
2 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o Key Largo Ave. 66.9 67.0 0.1 1.5 No 
3 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o George Montgomery 66.2 66.4 0.2 1.5 No 
4 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o Shoppers Ln. 66.6 66.7 0.1 1.5 No 
5 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o Monterey Ave. 67.4 67.4 0.0 1.5 No 
6 Via Vail w/o Key Largo Ave. 53.0 53.1 0.1 5.0 No 
7 Key Largo Ave. s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 52.8 54.1 1.3 5.0 No 
8 Key Largo Ave. s/o Via Vail 47.5 47.5 0.0 5.0 No 
9 Mirriam Wy. n/o Dinah Shore Dr. 55.9 55.9 0.0 5.0 No 

10 George Montgomery s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 50.3 50.3 0.0 5.0 No 
11 Shoppers Ln. n/o Dinah Shore Dr. 57.1 57.1 0.0 5.0 No 
12 Shoppers Ln. s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 52.2 52.3 0.1 5.0 No 
13 Monterey Ave. n/o Dinah Shore Dr. 71.4 71.4 0.0 1.5 No 
14 Monterey Ave. s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 70.8 70.8 0.0 1.5 No 
1 The CNEL is calculated at the boundary of the right-of-way of each roadway and the property line of the receiving land use. 
2 Does the Project create an incremental noise level increase exceeding the significance criteria (Table 4-1)? 

  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
41 

TABLE 7-9:  EXISTING, AMBIENT AND CUMULATIVE OFF-SITE PROJECT-RELATED TRAFFIC NOISE IMPACTS 

ID Road Segment 

CNEL at Receiving 
Land Use (dBA)1 

Incremental Noise 
Level Increase 

Threshold2 

No 
Project 

With 
Project 

Project 
Addition Limit Exceeded? 

1 Dinah Shore Dr. w/o Key Largo Ave. 67.2 67.2 0.0 1.5 No 
2 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o Key Largo Ave. 68.0 68.1 0.1 1.5 No 
3 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o George Montgomery 67.4 67.5 0.1 1.5 No 
4 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o Shoppers Ln. 67.6 67.7 0.1 1.5 No 
5 Dinah Shore Dr. e/o Monterey Ave. 67.6 67.6 0.0 1.5 No 
6 Via Vail w/o Key Largo Ave. 54.3 54.4 0.1 5.0 No 
7 Key Largo Ave. s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 56.6 57.2 0.6 5.0 No 
8 Key Largo Ave. s/o Via Vail 47.5 47.5 0.0 5.0 No 
9 Mirriam Wy. n/o Dinah Shore Dr. 56.0 56.0 0.0 5.0 No 

10 George Montgomery s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 50.5 50.5 0.0 5.0 No 
11 Shoppers Ln. n/o Dinah Shore Dr. 57.2 57.2 0.0 5.0 No 
12 Shoppers Ln. s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 52.4 52.4 0.0 5.0 No 
13 Monterey Ave. n/o Dinah Shore Dr. 72.8 72.9 0.1 1.5 No 
14 Monterey Ave. s/o Dinah Shore Dr. 72.3 72.4 0.1 1.5 No 
1 The CNEL is calculated at the boundary of the right-of-way of each roadway and the property line of the receiving land use. 
2 Does the Project create an incremental noise level increase exceeding the significance criteria (Table 4-1)? 

 



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
42 

This page intentionally left blank   



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
43 

8 ON-SITE NOISE ANALYSIS 

An on-site exterior noise impact analysis has been completed to determine the noise exposure 
levels that would result from adjacent transportation noise sources in the Project study area and 
to identify potential noise attenuation measures that would achieve acceptable Project exterior 
and interior noise levels.  The primary source of transportation noise affecting the Project site is 
anticipated to be from Via Vail.   

8.1 ON-SITE TRAFFIC NOISE ANALYSIS 

Using the FHWA traffic noise prediction model and the parameters outlined in Tables 6-3 to 6-5, 
the expected future exterior noise levels for the on-site Project land uses were estimated.  Table 
8-1 presents a summary of future on-site exterior traffic noise levels at future building facades.  
The on-site traffic noise analysis calculations are provided in Appendix 8.1.   

TABLE 8-1:  EXTERIOR TRAFFIC NOISE LEVELS 

Receiver 
Location Roadway 

Unmitigated 
Noise Level  
(dBA CNEL) 

Land Use 
Compatibility1 

Exterior 
Noise Level 
Threshold1 

Threshold 
Exceeded? 

BLDG 1 Via Vail 55.6 Normally Acceptable 70 No 
BLDG 7 Via Vail 55.4 Normally Acceptable 70 No 

1 Source: City of Rancho Mirage General Plan Noise Element, (2017) Exhibit 20. 
"n/a" = The City of Alhambra does not identify a specific noise level standard for the given land use. 

8.2 ON-SITE NOISE ANALYSIS 

The on-site exterior traffic noise analysis indicates that on-site locations will experience exterior 
noise levels ranging from 55.4 to 55.6 dBA CNEL from all transportation sources.   

8.3 EXTERIOR NOISE LEVEL COMPATIBILITY 

Based on City of Rancho Mirage Land Use Compatibility for Community Noise Exposure shown on 
Exhibit 3-A, the commercial and lodging land uses are considered as clearly acceptable to 
normally acceptable with unmitigated exterior noise levels of less than 70 dBA CNEL.  This noise 
analysis shows that the Project will satisfy the City of Rancho Mirage 70 dBA CNEL exterior noise 
level standards for lodging land uses without additional noise abatement measures.   

8.4 INTERIOR NOISE ANALYSIS 

To ensure that the interior noise levels comply with the interior noise level standards, future 
exterior noise levels were calculated at the estimated at the first and second floor building façade 
locations.  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
44 

8.4.1 NOISE REDUCTION METHODOLOGY  

The interior noise level is the difference between the predicted exterior noise level at the building 
façade and the noise reduction of the structure.  Typical building construction will provide a Noise 
Reduction (NR) of approximately 12 dBA with “windows-open” and a minimum 25 dBA noise 
reduction with “windows-closed.” (4) (27)  However, sound leaks, cracks and openings within the 
window assembly can greatly diminish its effectiveness in reducing noise.  Several methods are 
used to improve interior noise reduction, including: [1] weather-stripped solid core exterior 
doors; [2] upgraded dual glazed windows; [3] mechanical ventilation/air conditioning; and [4] 
exterior wall/roof assembles free of cut outs or openings. 

8.4.2 INTERIOR NOISE LEVEL ASSESSMENT 

To provide the necessary interior noise level reduction, Tables 8-3 and 8-4 indicate that Project 
land uses will satisfy Rancho Mirage interior noise standards with a windows-open condition.  
Tables 8-2 through 8-4 show that the future unmitigated traffic noise levels at the first and 
second-floor building façades are expected to range from 54.4 to 55.6 dBA CNEL.  The interior 
noise assessment shows that the City of Rancho Mirage interior noise level standards can be 
satisfied using standard construction techniques.   

8.4.3 INTERIOR TRAFFIC NOISE LEVEL COMPLIANCE  

Tables 8-2 through 8-4 show that on-site interior traffic noise levels will not exceed the 45 dBA 
CNEL interior noise level standard for residential land uses and additional noise abatement 
measures are not needed.   

TABLE 8-2:  FIRST FLOOR INTERIOR NOISE LEVELS (CNEL) 
 

Receiver 
Location 

Noise Level  
at Façade1 

Required 
Interior Noise 

Reduction2 

Estimated 
Interior Noise 

Reduction3 

Upgraded  
Windows4 

Recommended 
STC  

Interior 
Noise Level5 

BLDG 1 55.6 10.6 12.0 No 27 43.6 
BLDG 7 55.4 10.4 12.0 No 27 43.4 

1 Exterior noise level at the facade with a windows closed condition requiring a means of mechanical ventilation (e.g. air conditioning). 
2 Noise reduction required to satisfy the 45 dBA CNEL interior noise standards. 
3 A minimum of 25 dBA noise reduction is assumed with standard building construction; 12 dBA assumes open windows. 
4 Does the required interior noise reduction trigger upgraded with a minimum STC rating of greater than 27? 
5 Estimated interior noise level with minimum STC rating for all windows. 

  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
45 

TABLE 8-3:  SECOND FLOOR INTERIOR NOISE LEVELS (CNEL) 

Receiver 
Location 

Noise Level  
at Façade1 

Required 
Interior Noise 

Reduction2 

Estimated 
Interior Noise 

Reduction3 

Upgraded  
Windows4 

Recommended 
STC  

Interior 
Noise Level5 

BLDG 1 55.2 10.2 12.0 No 27 43.2 
BLDG 7 55.0 10.0 12.0 No 27 43.0 

1 Exterior noise level at the facade with a windows closed condition requiring a means of mechanical ventilation (e.g. air conditioning). 
2 Noise reduction required to satisfy the 45 dBA CNEL interior noise standards. 
3 A minimum of 25 dBA noise reduction is assumed with standard building construction; 12 dBA assumes open windows. 
4 Does the required interior noise reduction trigger upgraded with a minimum STC rating of greater than 27? 
5 Estimated interior noise level with minimum STC rating for all windows. 
6 Receiver location represents a less than two-story building. 

TABLE 8-4:  THIRD FLOOR INTERIOR NOISE LEVELS (CNEL) 

Receiver 
Location 

Noise Level  
at Façade1 

Required 
Interior Noise 

Reduction2 

Estimated 
Interior Noise 

Reduction3 

Upgraded  
Windows4 

Recommended 
STC  

Interior 
Noise Level5 

BLDG 1 54.6 9.6 12.0 No 27 42.6 
BLDG 7 54.4 9.4 12.0 No 27 42.4 

1 Exterior noise level at the facade with a windows closed condition requiring a means of mechanical ventilation (e.g. air conditioning). 
2 Noise reduction required to satisfy the 45 dBA CNEL interior noise standards. 
3 A minimum of 25 dBA noise reduction is assumed with standard building construction; 12 dBA assumes open windows. 
4 Does the required interior noise reduction trigger upgraded with a minimum STC rating of greater than 27? 
5 Estimated interior noise level with minimum STC rating for all windows. 
6 Receiver location represents a less than two-story building. 

  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
46 

This page intentionally left blank  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
47 

9 RECEIVER LOCATIONS 

To assess the potential for long-term operational and short-term construction noise impacts, the 
following sensitive receiver locations, as shown on Exhibit 6-A, were identified as representative 
locations for analysis.  Sensitive receivers are generally defined as locations where people reside 
or where the presence of unwanted sound could otherwise adversely affect the use of the land.  
Noise-sensitive land uses are generally considered to include schools, hospitals, single-family 
dwellings, mobile home parks, churches, libraries, and recreation areas.  Moderately noise-
sensitive land uses typically include multi-family dwellings, hotels, motels, dormitories, out-
patient clinics, cemeteries, golf courses, country clubs, athletic/tennis clubs, and equestrian 
clubs.  Land uses that are considered relatively insensitive to noise include business, commercial, 
and professional developments.  Land uses that are typically not affected by noise include: 
industrial, manufacturing, utilities, agriculture, undeveloped land, parking lots, warehousing, 
liquid and solid waste facilities, salvage yards, and transit terminals. 

To describe the potential off-site Project noise levels, five receiver locations in the vicinity of the 
Project site were identified.  The selection of receiver locations is based on FHWA guidelines and 
is consistent with additional guidance provided by Caltrans and the FTA, as previously described 
in Section 5.2.  Other sensitive land uses in the Project study area that are located at greater 
distances than those identified in this noise study will experience lower noise levels than those 
presented in this report due to the additional attenuation from distance and the shielding of 
intervening structures.  Distance is measured in a straight line from the project boundary to each 
receiver location.   

R1: Location R1 represents the private residence at 102 Clearwater Way, approximately 1,275 
feet northwest of the Project site.  R1 is placed in the residence’s outdoor living area 
(backyard) facing the Project site.  A 24-hour noise measurement was taken near this 
location, L1, to describe the existing ambient noise environment. 

R2: Location R2 represents the existing noise sensitive Unitarian Universalist Church at 7425 
Via Vail, approximately 1,353 feet west of the Project site.  Receiver R2 is placed at the 
façade facing the Project site.  A 24-hour noise measurement was taken near this location, 
L2, to describe the existing ambient noise environment. 

R3: Location R3 represents the existing noise sensitive Rancho Mirage Dog Park at 34100 Key 
Largo Avenue, approximately 648 feet west of the Project site.  Receiver R3 is placed in 
the outdoor areas facing the Project site.  A 24-hour noise measurement was taken near 
this location, L3, to describe the existing ambient noise environment. 

R4: Location R4 represents the existing noise sensitive residence at 34620 Via Josefina, 
approximately 1,181 feet southwest of the Project site.  Receiver R4 is placed in the 
private outdoor living area (backyard) facing the Project site.  A 24-hour noise 
measurement was taken near this location, L4, to describe the existing ambient noise 
environment. 

R5: Location R5 represents the existing noise sensitive residence at 72740 Via Florencia, 
approximately 1,025 feet south of the Project site.  Receiver R5 is placed in the outdoor 
living area (backyard) facing the Project site.  A 24-hour noise measurement was taken 
near this location, L5, to describe the existing ambient noise environment.  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
48 

EXHIBIT 9-A:  RECEIVER LOCATIONS 

 

  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
49 

10 OPERATIONAL NOISE IMPACTS 

This section analyzes the potential stationary-source operational noise impacts at the nearest 
receiver locations, identified in Section 9, resulting from the operation of uses allowed by the 
Core Rancho Mirage.  The Core Rancho Mirage is considered a noise-sensitive receiving land use 
and is not expected to include any meaningful sources of noise activity.  Additionally, according 
to the recently adopted Section 21085 of the CEQA Guidelines, “noise effects” on humans that 
are associated with “project occupants and guests” within residential Projects are not an impact 
on the environment.  Consequently, the swimming pool/spa and outdoor common area are not 
considered as part of this operational noise analysis.  It is expected that operational noise level 
impacts will be limited to the roof-top air conditioning units, trash enclosure activity, and parking 
lot vehicle movements.  Exhibit 10-A identifies the representative noise source locations used to 
assess stationary noise sources. 

10.1 OPERATIONAL NOISE SOURCES 

This operational noise analysis is intended to describe noise level impacts associated with the 
expected typical daytime and nighttime activities at the Project site.  The on-site Project-related 
noise sources are expected to include: roof-top air conditioning units, trash enclosure activity, 
and parking lot vehicle movements. 

10.2 REFERENCE NOISE LEVELS 

To estimate the Project operational noise impacts, reference noise level measurements were 
collected from similar types of activities, or taken from manufactures specification sheets, to 
represent the noise levels expected with the development of the Project.  This section provides 
a detailed description of the reference noise levels shown on Table 10-1 used to estimate the 
Project operational noise impacts.  It is important to note that the following projected noise levels 
assume the worst-case noise environment with the roof-top air conditioning units, trash 
enclosure activity, and parking lot vehicle movements all operating at the same time.  These 
sources of noise activity will likely vary throughout the day.   

10.2.1 MEASUREMENT PROCEDURES 

Unless noted in the following descriptions, the reference noise level measurements presented in 
this section were collected using a Larson Davis LxT Type 1 precisions sound level meter (serial 
number 01146).  The LxT sound level meter was calibrated using a Larson-Davis calibrator, Model 
CAL 200, was programmed in "slow" mode to record noise levels in "A" weighted form and was 
located at approximately five feet above the ground elevation for each measurement.  The sound 
level meters and microphones were equipped with a windscreen during all measurements.  All 
noise level measurement equipment satisfies the American National Standards Institute (ANSI) 
standard specifications for sound level meters ANSI S1.4-2014/IEC 61672-1:2013. (22)  

  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
50 

EXHIBIT 10-A:  STATIONARY SOURCE NOISE LOCATIONS 

 

  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
51 

TABLE 10-1: REFERENCE NOISE LEVEL MEASUREMENTS 

Noise Source 
Noise Source 

Height  
(Feet) 

Min./Hour1 
Reference 

Noise 
Level  

@50 feet  
(dBA Leq) 

Sound 
Power 
Level 

(dBA)2 Day Eve. Night 

Roof-Top Air Conditioning Units 8' 45' 45' 30' 44.4 76.0 
Trash Enclosure Activities 3' 10' 10' 10' 57.4 89.0 
Parking Lot Activities 0' 60' 60' 30' 31.4 63.0 
1 Anticipated duration (minutes within the hour) of noise activity during typical hourly conditions expected at the Project site.  
2 Sound power level represents the total amount of acoustical energy (noise level) produced by a sound source independent of 
distance or surroundings.  Sound power levels calculated using the CadnaA noise model at the reference distance to the noise source.  
"Day" = 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.; "Evening" = 6:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m.; "Night" = 10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m. 

10.2.2 ROOF-TOP AIR CONDITIONING UNITS  

To assess the noise levels created by the roof-top and ground-mounted air conditioning units, 
reference noise levels were taken from equipment specifications for a 3- to 5-ton residential 
packaged air conditioning unit (Carrier 50VR-A). The manufacturer's specifications are included 
in Appendix 10.1.  At a uniform reference distance of 50 feet, the units would generate a 
reference noise level of 44.4 dBA Leq. The air conditioning units were modeled 3 feet above the 
roof level, operating 45 minutes per hour during the daytime and 30 minutes at nighttime, which 
represents the typical maximum operating time for properly sized AC systems. 

10.2.3 TRASH ENCLOSURE ACTIVITY 

To describe the noise levels associated with a trash enclosure activity, Urban Crossroads collected 
a reference noise level measurement at an existing trash enclosure containing two dumpster 
bins.  The trash enclosure noise levels describe metal gates opening and closing, metal scraping 
against concrete floor sounds, dumpster movement on metal wheels, and trash dropping into 
the metal dumpster.  The reference noise levels describe trash enclosure noise activities when 
trash is dropped into an empty metal dumpster, as would occur at the Project Site. The measured 
reference noise level at the uniform 50-foot reference distance is 57.4 dBA Leq for the trash 
enclosure activity.  The reference noise level describes the expected noise source activities 
associated with the trash enclosures for the Project’s proposed building.   

10.2.4 PARKING LOT ACTIVITIES 

Parking activities are based on the area of the parking spaces.  The Project includes approximately 
171 new spaces, which are assumed to have up to 2 movements per hour for a total of 342 events 
in an hour.  Based on studies conducted in Europe and Australia, the average parking procedure, 
which included movement associated with either entering or exiting the parking area, parking 
the vehicles, and opening and closing doors resulted in a sound power level of approximately 63 
dBA Lw/square meter per event Invalid source specified. Invalid source specified..  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
52 

10.3 CADNAA NOISE PREDICTION MODEL 

To fully describe the exterior operational noise levels from the Project, Urban Crossroads, Inc. 
developed a noise prediction model using the CadnaA (Computer Aided Noise Abatement) 
computer program.  CadnaA can analyze multiple types of noise sources using the spatially 
accurate Project site plan, georeferenced Nearmap aerial imagery, topography, buildings, and 
barriers in its calculations to predict outdoor noise levels. 

Using the ISO 9613-2 protocol, CadnaA will calculate the distance from each noise source to the 
noise receiver locations, using the ground absorption, distance, and barrier/building attenuation 
inputs to provide a summary of noise level at each receiver and the partial noise level 
contributions by noise source.  Consistent with the ISO 9613-2 protocol, the CadnaA noise 
prediction model relies on the reference sound power level (Lw) to describe individual noise 
sources.  While sound pressure levels (e.g., Leq) quantify in decibels the intensity of given sound 
sources at a reference distance, sound power levels (Lw) are connected to the sound source and 
are independent of distance.  Sound pressure levels vary substantially with distance from the 
source and diminish because of intervening obstacles and barriers, air absorption, wind, and 
other factors.  Sound power is the acoustical energy emitted by the sound source and is an 
absolute value that is not affected by the environment.  The operational noise level calculations 
provided in this noise study account for the distance attenuation provided due to geometric 
spreading, when sound from a localized stationary source (i.e., a point source) propagates 
uniformly outward in a spherical pattern.  A default ground attenuation factor of 0.5 was used in 
the noise analysis to account for mixed ground representing a combination of hard and soft 
surfaces.   

10.4 PROJECT OPERATIONAL NOISE LEVELS 

Based on the reference noise levels, it is possible to estimate the Project's operational 
stationary/area-source noise levels at each of the sensitive receiver locations.  The daytime 
project stationary/area-source noise level calculations shown in Table 10-2 through Table 10-4 
account for the distance attenuation provided due to geometric spreading when sound from a 
localized stationary source (i.e., a point source) propagates uniformly outward in a spherical 
pattern.  With geometric spreading, sound levels attenuate (or decrease) at a rate of 6 dB for 
each doubling of distance from a point source (roof-top air conditioning units) and 4.5 dB for 
each doubling of distance from an area source (parking lot vehicle movements).  Table 10-2 
indicates that the hourly noise levels associated with the roof-top air conditioning units, trash 
enclosure activity, and parking lot vehicle movements are expected to range from 26.3 to 31.8 
dBA Leq at the nearby sensitive receiver locations for the daytime. Table 10-3 indicates a range 
of 26.3 to 31.8 dBA Leq for the evening, and Table 10-4 indicates a range of 24.8 to 30.3 dBA Leq 
for the nighttime.  The stationary/area-source noise level calculation worksheets are included in 
Appendix 10.2.   



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
53 

TABLE 10-2:  DAYTIME PROJECT STATIONARY/AREA-SOURCE NOISE LEVELS (DBA LEQ) 

Noise Source1 
Daytime Noise Level (dBA Leq) 

R1 R2 R3 R4 R5 

Roof-Top Air Conditioning Units 26.0 25.2 30.6 26.4 28.4 
Trash Enclosure Activity 18.8 18.1 24.0 14.8 22.0 
Parking Lot Activities 15.3 14.6 20.9 15.8 18.0 

Total (All Noise Sources) 27.1 26.3 31.8 27.0 29.6 
1 See Exhibit 10-A for the noise source locations. CadnaA noise model calculations are included in Appendix 
10.1. 

TABLE 10-3:  EVENING PROJECT STATIONARY/AREA-SOURCE NOISE LEVEL (DBA LEQ) 

Noise Source1 
Daytime Noise Level (dBA Leq) 

R1 R2 R3 R4 R5 
Roof-Top Air Conditioning Units 26.0 25.2 30.6 26.4 28.4 
Trash Enclosure Activity 18.8 18.1 24.0 14.8 22.0 
Parking Lot Activities 15.3 14.6 20.9 15.8 18.0 

Total (All Noise Sources) 27.1 26.3 31.8 27.0 29.6 
1 See Exhibit 10-A for the noise source locations. CadnaA noise model calculations are included in Appendix 
10.1. 

TABLE 10-4:  NIGHTTIME PROJECT STATIONARY/AREA-SOURCE NOISE LEVEL (DBA LEQ) 

Noise Source1 
Daytime Noise Level (dBA Leq) 

R1 R2 R3 R4 R5 

Trash Enclosure Activities 24.2 23.5 28.8 24.6 26.6 
Roof-Top Air Conditioning Units 18.8 18.1 24.0 14.8 22.0 
Parking Lot Activities 11.6 10.9 17.1 12.1 14.3 

Total (All Noise Sources) 25.5 24.8 30.3 25.2 28.1 
1 See Exhibit 10-A for the noise source locations. CadnaA noise model calculations are included in Appendix 
10.1. 

Table 10-5 shows the calculated Project operational noise levels during the daytime hours of 7:00 
a.m. to 6:00 p.m., evening hours of 6:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m. and the nighttime hours of 10:00 p.m. 
to 7:00 a.m.  Table 10-5 shows that the Project operational noise levels will range from 24.8 to 
31.8 dBA Leq. To demonstrate compliance with local noise standards, the Project-only operational 
noise levels are evaluated against the City of Rancho Mirage exterior noise level standards, 
previously shown in Table 3-1.  Table 10-5 shows the stationary/area-source noise levels 
associated with the Core Rancho Mirage land uses will satisfy the City of Rancho Mirage daytime, 
evening, and nighttime noise level standards at the nearby sensitive receiver locations.  

  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
54 

TABLE 10-5: PROJECT OPERATIONAL COMPLIANCE 

Receiver 
Location1 

Project Operational 
Noise Levels (dBA Leq)2 

Noise Level Standards 
(dBA Leq)3 Threshold Exceeded?4 

Day Eve. Night Day Eve. Night Day Eve. Night 

R1 27.1 27.1 25.5 55 50 45 No No No 
R2 26.3 26.3 24.8 55 50 45 No No No 
R3 31.8 31.8 30.3 55 50 45 No No No 
R4 27.0 27.0 25.2 55 50 45 No No No 
R5 29.6 29.6 28.1 55 50 45 No No No 

1 See Exhibit 9-A for the receiver locations. 

2 Proposed Project operational noise level calculations included in Appendix 10.1. 
3 City of Rancho Mirage exterior noise level standards by land use, as shown on Table 3-1. 
4 Do the estimated Project operational noise source activities exceed the noise level standards? 
"Day" = 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.; "Evening" = 6:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m.; "Night" = 10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m. 

10.5 PROJECT OPERATIONAL NOISE LEVEL INCREASES 

To describe the Project operational noise level increases, the Project operational noise levels are 
combined with the existing ambient noise levels measurements for the nearby receiver locations 
potentially impacted by Project operational noise sources.  Since the units used to measure noise, 
decibels (dB), are logarithmic units, the Project-stationary source and existing ambient noise 
levels cannot be combined using standard arithmetic equations. (2)  Instead, they must be 
logarithmically added using the following base equation: 

SPLTotal = 10log10[10SPL1/10 + 10SPL2/10 + … 10SPLn/10] 

Where “SPL1,” “SPL2,” etc. are equal to the sound pressure levels being combined, or in this case, 
the Project operational and existing ambient noise levels.  The difference between the combined 
Project and ambient noise levels describes the Project noise level increases to the existing 
ambient noise environment.  Noise levels that would be experienced at receiver locations when 
Project-source noise is added to the daytime, evening, and nighttime ambient conditions are 
presented in Tables 10-6, 10-7, and 10-8, respectively.  As indicated in Tables 10-6, 10-7, and 
10-8, the Project will generate an unmitigated operational noise level increase of less than 
0.1 dBA Leq at the nearby receiver locations. 

Tables 10-6, 10-7 and 10-8 show that the Project operational noise level contributions satisfy the 
operational noise level increase significance criteria presented in Table 4-1.  Therefore, the 
Project related operational noise level increases at all sensitive receiver locations will be less than 
significant.   



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
55 

TABLE 10-6:  DAYTIME PROJECT STATIONARY SOURCE NOISE LEVEL INCREASES 

Receiver 
Location1 

Total 
Project 

Operational  
Noise 
Level2 

Measurement 
Location3 

Reference 
Ambient 

Noise 
Levels4 

Combined 
Project 

and 
Ambient5 

Project 
Increase6 

Increase 
Criteria7 

Increase  
Criteria 

Exceeded?7 

R1 27.1 L1 55.5 55.5 0.0 5.0 No 
R2 26.3 L2 51.9 51.9 0.0 5.0 No 
R3 31.8 L3 55.5 55.5 0.0 5.0 No 
R4 27.0 L4 53.1 53.1 0.0 5.0 No 
R5 29.6 L5 52.9 52.9 0.0 5.0 No 

1 See Exhibit 9-A for the receiver locations. 
2 Total Project operational noise levels as shown in Table 10-5. 
3 Reference noise level measurement locations as shown in Exhibit 5-A. 
4 Observed daytime ambient noise levels as shown in Table 5-1. 
5 Represents the combined ambient conditions plus the Project activities. 
6 The noise level increase expected with the addition of the proposed Project activities. 
7 Significance Criteria as defined in Section 4. 

TABLE 10-7:  EVENING PROJECT STATIONARY SOURCE NOISE LEVEL INCREASES 

Receiver 
Location1 

Total 
Project 

Operational  
Noise 
Level2 

Measurement 
Location3 

Reference 
Ambient 

Noise 
Levels4 

Combined 
Project 

and 
Ambient5 

Project 
Increase6 

Increase 
Criteria7 

Increase  
Criteria 

Exceeded?7 

R1 27.1 L1 56.8 56.8 0.0 5.0 No 
R2 26.3 L2 54.4 54.4 0.0 5.0 No 
R3 31.8 L3 56.8 56.8 0.0 5.0 No 
R4 27.0 L4 58.0 58.0 0.0 5.0 No 
R5 29.6 L5 59.0 59.0 0.0 5.0 No 

1 See Exhibit 9-A for the receiver locations. 
2 Total Project operational noise levels as shown in Table 10-5. 
3 Reference noise level measurement locations as shown in Exhibit 5-A. 
4 Observed evening ambient noise levels as shown in Table 5-1. 
5 Represents the combined ambient conditions plus the Project activities. 
6 The noise level increase expected with the addition of the proposed Project activities. 
7 Significance Criteria as defined in Section 4. 

  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
56 

TABLE 10-8:  NIGHTTIME PROJECT STATIONARY SOURCE NOISE LEVEL INCREASES 

Receiver 
Location1 

Total 
Project 

Operational  
Noise 
Level2 

Measurement 
Location3 

Reference 
Ambient 

Noise 
Levels4 

Combined 
Project 

and 
Ambient5 

Project 
Increase6 

Increase 
Criteria7 

Increase  
Criteria 

Exceeded?7 

R1 25.5 L1 54.4 54.4 0.0 5.0 No 
R2 24.8 L2 51.5 51.5 0.0 5.0 No 
R3 30.3 L3 54.4 54.4 0.0 5.0 No 
R4 25.2 L4 54.1 54.1 0.0 5.0 No 
R5 28.1 L5 51.5 51.5 0.0 5.0 No 

1 See Exhibit 9-A for the receiver locations. 
2 Total Project operational noise levels as shown in Table 10-5. 
3 Reference noise level measurement locations as shown in Exhibit 5-A. 
4 Observed nighttime ambient noise levels as shown in Table 5-1. 
5 Represents the combined ambient conditions plus the Project activities. 
6 The noise level increase expected with the addition of the proposed Project activities. 
7 Significance Criteria as defined in Section 4. 

  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
57 

11 CONSTRUCTION IMPACTS 

This section analyzes potential impacts resulting from the short-term construction activities 
associated with the development of the Project.  Exhibit 8-A shows the construction noise source 
locations in relation to the nearest sensitive receiver locations previously described in Section 8.   

To prevent high levels of construction noise from impacting noise-sensitive land uses, RMMC 
Section 15.04.030[A][11] indicates that construction shall be limited to the hours of 7:00 a.m. 
and 7:00 p.m. with no activity on Sundays and holidays (15).   

11.1 CONSTRUCTION NOISE LEVELS 

The FTA Transit Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment Manual recognizes that construction 
projects are accomplished in several different stages and outlines the procedures for assessing 
noise impacts during construction.  Each stage has a specific equipment mix, depending on the 
work to be completed during that stage.  As a result of the equipment mix, each stage has its own 
noise characteristics; some stages have higher continuous noise levels than others, and some 
have higher impact noise levels than others.  The Project construction activities are expected to 
occur in the following stages: 

• Site Preparation 
• Grading 
• Building Construction 
• Paving 
• Architectural Coating 

11.2 CONSTRUCTION REFERENCE NOISE LEVELS 

using reference construction equipment noise levels from the Federal Highway Administration 
(FHWA) published the Roadway Construction Noise Model (RCNM), which includes a national 
database of construction equipment reference noise emission levels. (28) The RCNM equipment 
database provides a comprehensive list of the noise-generating characteristics of specific types 
of construction equipment. In addition, the database provides an acoustical usage factor to 
estimate the fraction of time each piece of construction equipment is operating at full power 
(i.e., its loudest condition) during a construction operation. According to the EPA, FTA, and FHWA, 
the overall construction noise level is governed primarily by the noisiest pieces of equipment. 
The quieter pieces do not affect the overall level, but they do reduce the magnitude of the 
fluctuations in the noise level. Therefore, a rough estimate of the noise level need only include 
the noisiest pieces of equipment expected at the site. (29) (8) (30) Consistent with FHWA and 
FTA guidance for detailed construction noise assessment, Table 8-1 presents the combined noise 
levels for the loudest construction activities expected for each stage, assuming all equipment 
operates simultaneously.  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
58 

EXHIBIT 11-A:  TYPICAL CONSTRUCTION NOISE SOURCE LOCATIONS 

 

  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
59 

TABLE 11-1:  CONSTRUCTION REFERENCE NOISE LEVELS 

Construction 
Stage 

Reference  
Construction Activity 

Reference Noise 
Level @ 50 Feet 

(dBA Leq)1 

Combined 
Noise Level 
(dBA Leq)2 

Combined Sound  
Power Level  

(PWL)3 

Site 
Preparation 

Crawler Tractors 78.0 

80.0 111.6 Hauling Trucks 72.0 

Rubber Tired Dozers 75.0 

Grading 
Graders 81.0 

83.0 114.6 Excavators 77.0 
Compactors 76.0 

Building 
Construction 

Cranes 73.0 
81.0 112.6 Tractors 80.0 

Welders 70.0 

Paving 
Pavers 74.0 

83.0 114.6 Paving Equipment 82.0 
Rollers 73.0 

Architectural 
Coating 

Cranes 73.0 
77.0 108.6 Air Compressors 74.0 

Generator Sets 70.0 
1 FHWA Roadway Construction Noise Model (RCNM). 
2 Represents the combined noise level for all equipment assuming they operate at the same time consistent with FTA Transit Noise and 
Vibration Impact Assessment guidance. 
3 Sound power level represents the total amount of acoustical energy (noise level) produced by a sound source independent of distance or 
surroundings.   

11.3 CONSTRUCTION NOISE ANALYSIS 

Construction projects involve various stages, and activities frequently shift from one location to 
another.  For example, during site clearing and grading, noise-generating activities may 
concentrate in an area for a short period to remove an obstruction, while the majority of the 
grading involves the equipment moving back and forth in a predictable pattern throughout the 
site; building construction and foundation work generally concentrate near the building 
footprint, while paving generally involves a predictable pattern of movement throughout the site. 
Therefore, construction activities are best evaluated as multiple moving point sources within the 
construction area since the speed and power of the equipment vary, and the equipment 
constantly changes position in terms of its distance and direction relative to the receivers. (11) 
(31)   

Using the reference construction equipment noise levels and the CadnaA noise prediction model, 
calculations of the Project construction noise level impacts at the nearby sensitive receiver 
locations were completed.  Consistent with FTA guidance for general construction noise 
assessment, Table 8-1 presents the combined noise levels for the loudest construction 
equipment, assuming they operate simultaneously.  As shown in Table 11-2, the construction 



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
60 

noise levels are expected to range from 46.0 to 57.4 dBA Leq at the nearby receiver locations.  
Appendix 11.1 includes the detailed CadnaA construction noise model inputs.  

TABLE 11-2:  CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT NOISE LEVEL SUMMARY 

Receiver 
Location1 

Construction Noise Levels (dBA Leq) 

Site 
Preparation Grading Building 

Construction Paving Architectural 
Coating 

Highest 
Levels2 

R1 49.6 52.6 50.6 52.6 46.6 52.6 
R2 49.0 52.0 50.0 52.0 46.0 52.0 
R3 54.4 57.4 55.4 57.4 51.4 57.4 
R4 50.4 53.4 51.4 53.4 47.4 53.4 
R5 52.0 55.0 53.0 55.0 49.0 55.0 

1 Noise receiver locations are shown in Exhibit 11-A. 
2 Construction noise level calculations based on distance from the construction activity, which is measured from the 
Project site boundary to the nearest receiver locations.  CadnaA construction noise model inputs are included in 
Appendix 10.1. 

11.4 CONSTRUCTION NOISE LEVEL COMPLIANCE 

To evaluate whether the Project will generate potentially significant short-term noise levels at 
the nearest receiver locations, a construction-related daytime noise level threshold of 80 dBA Leq 
is used as a reasonable threshold to assess the daytime construction noise level impacts.  The 
construction noise analysis shows that the nearest receiver locations will satisfy the reasonable 
daytime 80 dBA Leq significance threshold during Project construction activities, as shown in 
Table 11-3.  Therefore, the noise impacts due to Project construction noise are considered less 
than significant at all receiver locations. 

TABLE 11-3:  CONSTRUCTION NOISE LEVEL COMPLIANCE 

Receiver 
Location1 

Construction Noise Levels (dBA Leq) 

Highest Construction 
Noise Levels2 Threshold3 Threshold 

Exceeded?4 

R1 52.6 80 No 
R2 52.0 80 No 
R3 57.4 80 No 
R4 53.4 80 No 
R5 55.0 80 No 

1 Noise receiver locations are shown in Exhibit 11-A. 
2 Highest construction noise level calculations based on distance from the construction noise source activity 
to the nearest receiver locations, as shown in Table 10-2.  
3 Construction noise level thresholds as shown in Table 4-1. 
4 Do the estimated Project construction noise levels exceed the construction noise level threshold? 



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
61 

11.5 TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION NOISE LEVEL INCREASES 

To describe the temporary Project construction noise level contributions to the existing ambient 
noise environment, the Project construction noise levels were combined with the existing 
ambient noise level measurements at the nearest off-site receiver locations.  The difference 
between the combined Project-construction and ambient noise levels is used to describe the 
construction noise level contributions.  Temporary noise level increases that would be 
experienced at sensitive receiver locations when Project construction-source noise is added to 
the ambient daytime conditions are presented in Table 11-4.  A temporary noise level increase 
of 20 dBA is considered a potentially significant impact.  

TABLE 11-4:  DAYTIME CONSTRUCTION NOISE LEVEL INCREASES 

Receiver 
Location1 

Total Project 
Construction  
Noise Level2 

Measurement 
Location3 

Reference 
Ambient 

Noise 
Levels4 

Combined 
Project 

and 
Ambient5 

Project 
Increase6 

Increase 
Criteria 

Increase  
Criteria 

Exceeded? 

R1 52.6 L1 55.5 57.3 1.8 20 No 
R2 52.0 L2 51.9 55.0 3.1 20 No 
R3 57.4 L3 55.5 59.6 4.1 20 No 
R4 53.4 L4 53.1 56.3 3.2 20 No 
R5 55.0 L5 52.9 57.1 4.2 20 No 

1 Construction noise source and receiver locations are shown in Exhibit 11-A. 
2 Total Project daytime construction noise levels as shown in Table 11-2. 
3 Reference noise level measurement locations as shown in Exhibit 5-A. 
4 Observed daytime ambient noise levels as shown in Table 5-1. 
5 Represents the combined ambient conditions plus the Project construction activities. 
6 The noise level increase expected with the addition of the proposed Project construction activities. 

As indicated in Table 11-4, the Project construction will contribute to noise level increases ranging 
from 1.8 to 4.2 dBA Leq during the daytime hours at the nearest receiver locations.  The 
unmitigated construction noise analysis shows that the nearest receiver locations will not exceed 
the substantial 20 dBA Leq noise level increase significance threshold during Project construction 
activities.  The temporary construction noise level increase analysis shows that the noise impacts 
due to Project construction noise are considered less than significant. 

11.5 CONSTRUCTION VIBRATION ANALYSIS 

Construction activity can result in varying degrees of ground vibration, depending on the 
equipment and methods employed.  Operation of construction equipment causes ground 
vibrations that spread through the ground and diminish in strength with distance.  Ground 
vibration levels associated with various types of construction equipment are summarized on 
Table 11-5.  Based on the representative vibration levels presented for various construction 
equipment types, it is possible to estimate the potential for human response (annoyance) and 
building damage using the following vibration assessment methods defined by Caltrans.  To 



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
62 

calculate vibration levels at distance, Caltrans provides the following equation: PPVequip = PPVref 
x (25/D)1.5 

TABLE 11-5:  VIBRATION SOURCE LEVELS FOR CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT 

Equipment PPV (in/sec) 
at 25 feet 

Small bulldozer 0.003 

Jackhammer 0.035 

Loaded Trucks 0.076 

Large bulldozer 0.089 

Vibratory Roller 0.210 
Caltrans Transportation and Construction Vibration Guidance Manual, April 2020. 

Table 11-6 presents the expected Project-related vibration levels at the nearby receiver building 
façade locations.  At distances ranging from 648 to 1,353 feet from the building façade to the 
Project construction activities, construction vibration velocity levels are estimated to range up to 
less than 0.01 PPV (in/sec).  Based on the maximum acceptable continuous vibration threshold 
of 0.3 PPV (in/sec), the typical Project construction vibration levels will fall below the building 
damage thresholds at all the noise-sensitive receiver locations.  Therefore, the Project-related 
vibration impacts are considered less than significant during typical construction activities at the 
Project site.  Moreover, the vibration levels reported at the sensitive receiver locations are 
unlikely to be sustained during the entire construction period but will occur rather only during 
the times that heavy construction equipment is operating adjacent to the Project site perimeter. 

  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
63 

TABLE 11-5:  PROJECT CONSTRUCTION VIBRATION LEVELS 

Location1 

Distance 
to 

Const. 
Activity 
(Feet)2 

Typical Construction Vibration Levels  
PPV (in/sec)3 Thresholds 

PPV  
(in/sec)4 

Thresholds  
Exceeded?5 Small 

bulldozer Jackhammer Loaded 
Trucks 

Large 
bulldozer 

Vibratory 
Roller 

Highest 
Vibration 

Level 

R1 1,275' 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.30 No 
R2 1,353' 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.30 No 
R3 648' 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.30 No 
R4 1,181' 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.30 No 
R5 1,025' 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.30 No 

1 Receiver locations are shown on Exhibit 11-A. 
2 Distance from receiver building facade to Project construction boundary (Project site boundary). 

3 Based on the Vibration Source Levels of Construction Equipment (Table 11-4). 
4 Caltrans Transportation and Construction Vibration Guidance Manual, April 2020, Table 19, p. 38.   
5 Does the peak vibration exceed the acceptable vibration thresholds? 
"PPV" = Peak Particle Velocity 

  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
64 

This page intentionally left blank  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
65 

12 REFERENCES 

1. State of California. California Environmental Quality Act, Appendix G. 2018. 
2. California Department of Transportation Environmental Program. Technical Noise Supplement - A 

Technical Supplement to the Traffic Noise Analysis Protocol. Sacramento, CA : s.n., September 2013. 

3. Environmental Protection Agency Office of Noise Abatement and Control. Information on Levels of 
Environmental Noise Requisite to Protect Public Health and Welfare with an Adequate Margin of 
Safety. March 1974. EPA/ONAC 550/9/74-004. 

4. U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration, Office of Environment and 
Planning, Noise and Air Quality Branch. Highway Traffic Noise Analysis and Abatement Policy and 
Guidance. December 2011. 

5. U.S. Department of Transportation Federal Highway Administration. Highway Noise Barrier Design 
Handbook. 2001. 

6. U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration. Highway Traffic Noise in the 
United States, Problem and Response. April 2000. p. 3. 

7. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Office of Noise Abatement and Control. Noise Effects 
Handbook-A Desk Reference to Health and Welfare Effects of Noise. October 1979 (revised July 1981). 
EPA 550/9/82/106. 

8. U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Transit Administration. Transit Noise and Vibration Impact 
Assessment Manual, FTA Report No. 0123. September 2018. 

9. —. Transit Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment Manual, FTA Report No. 0123. September 2018. 

10. California Department of Transportation. Transportation and Construction Vibration Guidance 
Manual. April 2020. 

11. U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Transit Administration. Transit Noise and Vibration 
Impact Assessment Manual, FTA-VA-90-1003-06. May 2006. 

12. Office of Planning and Research. State of California General Plan Guidelines. October 2017. 
13. State of California. California Code of Regulations, Title 24, Part 2, Volume 1, Chapter 12, Section 

1206.4, Allowable Interior Noise Level. ICC Digital Coes. [Online] 2019. 
https://codes.iccsafe.org/content/CABCV12019/chapter-12-interior-environment. 

14. City of Rancho Mirage. Municipal Code, Chapter 8.45 Noise.  
15. —. Municipal Code, Sections 15.04.030.  

16. —. General Plan Update Draft Environmental Impact Report. 2005. 

17. U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Transit Administration. Transit Noise and Vibration 
Impact Assessment Manual. September 2018. 

18. California Natural Resources Agency. 2024 California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Statue and 
Guidelines. s.l. : Association of Environmental Professionals. 

19. California Court of Appeal. Gray v. County of Madera, F053661. 167 Cal.App.4th 1099; - Cal.Rptr.3d, 
October 2008. 

20. Federal Interagency Committee on Noise. Federal Agency Review of Selected Airport Noise Analysis 
Issues. August 1992. 

21. California Department of Transportation. Technical Noise Supplement. November 2009. 



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
66 

22. American National Standards Institute (ANSI). Specification for Sound Level Meters ANSI S1.4-
2014/IEC 61672-1:2013.  

23. U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration. FHWA Highway Traffic Noise 
Prediction Model. December 1978. FHWA-RD-77-108. 

24. California Department of Transportation Environmental Program, Office of Environmental 
Engineering. Use of California Vehicle Noise Reference Energy Mean Emission Levels (Calveno REMELs) 
in FHWA Highway Traffic Noise Prediction. September 1995. TAN 95-03. 

25. California Department of Transportation. Traffic Noise Attenuation as a Function of Ground and 
Vegetation Final Report. June 1995. FHWA/CA/TL-95/23. 

26. Urban Crossroads. Core Rancho Mirage Traffic Analysis. 2024. 

27. California Department of Transportation. Traffic Noise Analysis Protocol. May 2011. 
28. FHWA. Roadway Construction Noise Model. January 2006. 

29. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. Noise from Construction Equipment and Operations, Building 
Equipment, and Home Appliances. 1971. NTID300.1. 

30. U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration. Special Report - Measurement, 
Prediction, and Mitigation. Office of Planning, Environment, and Realty - Environment - Noise. [Online] 
2017. https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/noise/construction_noise/special_report/hcn00.cfm. 

31. —. FHWA Highway Construction Noise Handbook. Final Report August 2006. 

  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
67 

13 CERTIFICATION 

The contents of this noise study report represent an accurate depiction of the noise environment 
and impacts associated with the  Core Rancho Mirage Project.  The information contained in this 
noise study report is based on the best available data at the time of preparation. If you have any 
questions, please contact me at (619) 788-1971. 

 

William Maddux, INCE 
Senior Associate 
URBAN CROSSROADS, INC. 
(619) 788-1971 
bmaddux@urbanxroads.com 

EDUCATION 

Bachelor of Science in Urban and Regional Planning 
California Polytechnic State University, Pomona • June 2000 

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS 

ASA – Acoustical Society of America  
AEP – Association of Environmental Planners 
AWMA – Air and Waste Management Association  
INCE – Institute of Noise Control Engineers - Member 

PROFESSIONAL CERTIFICATIONS 

Approved Acoustical Consultant • County of San Diego 
FHWA Traffic Noise Model of Training • November 2004 
CadnaA Basic and Advanced Training Certificate • October 2008 

 

  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
68 

This page intentionally left blank 



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
 

 

APPENDIX 3.1: 
 

CITY OF RANCHO MIRAGE MUNICIPAL CODE 
  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
 

This page intentionally left blank  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
 

APPENDIX 5.1: 
 

STUDY AREA PHOTOS 
  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
 

This page intentionally left blank  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
 

APPENDIX 5.2: 
 

NOISE LEVEL MEASUREMENT WORKSHEETS 
  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
 

This page intentionally left blank  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
 

APPENDIX 7.1: 
 

OFF-SITE NOISE LEVEL CONTOURS 
  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
 

This page intentionally left blank  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
 

APPENDIX 8.1: 
 

ON-SITE NOISE CALCULATIONS 
  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
 

This page intentionally left blank  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
 

APPENDIX 10.1: 
 

HVAC 
  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
 

This page intentionally left blank  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
 

APPENDIX 10.2: 
 

CADNAA OPERATIONAL NOISE CALCULATIONS 
  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
 

This page intentionally left blank  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
 

APPENDIX 11.1: 
 

CADNAA CONSTRUCTION NOISE CALCULATIONS 
  



Core Rancho Mirage Noise and Vibration Analysis 

.~WRD2555 
 

This page intentionally left blank 



 

 

 

 

 

DATE:  November 12, 2024 
TO:   Nicole Criste, Terra Nova Planning & Research, Inc. 
FROM:  John Kain and Marlie Whiteman, Urban Crossroads, Inc. 
JOB NO:  15915-03 VMT Screening.docx 
 

CORE RANCHO MIRAGE VEHICLE MILES TRAVELED (VMT) 
SCREENING ANALYSIS 

Urban Crossroads, Inc. is pleased to provide the following Vehicle Miles Traveled 
(VMT) Screening Analysis for the CORE Rancho Mirage (Project), which is generally 
located south of Via Vail in Rancho Mirage. 

PROJECT OVERVIEW 

The proposed Project includes the development of consists of 150 affordable 
apartment dwelling units. The preliminary Project site plan is shown on Exhibit A. 

BACKGROUND 

The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requires all lead agencies to adopt 
VMT as the measure for identifying transportation impacts for land use projects. 
City of Rancho Mirage Resolution 2021-06 (City Guidelines) aligns the City’s VMT 
analysis policy with SB 743 and the City’s goals as set forth in the General Plan 
Update (2017).  The purpose of the policy is to comply with State laws while 
maintaining the resort residential character of the community.   

The City’s VMT policy establishes VMT as the metric to measure transportation 
impacts in conformance with CEQA. 

VMT SCREENING 

Exhibit A of Resolution 2021-06 sets forth screening criteria under which Projects 
are not required to submit detailed VMT analysis.  This guidance for determination 
of non-significant VMT impact is primarily intended to avoid unnecessary analysis 
and findings that would be inconsistent with the intent of SB 743.  VMT screening 
criteria for development projects include the following: 

  



WWW

D D D D

W

D

W

W

D

WWWW

DDDD

W

D D D D

WWWW

D

T

T

T

PROPERTY TO THE NORTH (PARCEL 1)

F
U

T
U

R
E

 V
IA

 V
A

IL
 E

X
T

E
N

S
IO

N

F
U

T
U

R
E

 P
U

B
L
IC

 P
A

R
K

SETBACK

20'-0" BUILDING
612' - 7 1/4"

SETBACK

20'-0" BUILDING
SITE DIMENSION

652' - 7 1/2" OVERALL 

PROPERTY LINE  (S89°35'36"W 652.62')

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E
  

(N
0

0
°0

3
'0

4
"E

 3
3

3
. 7

4
' )

PROPERTY LINE  (N89°35'36"E 652.62')

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E
  

(N
0
0
°0

3
'0

4
"E

 3
3
3
. 7

4
' )

V
IA

 V
A

IL
 C

L

30'-0" R.O.W. 30' - 0"

S
E

T
B

A
C

K

1
0

'-
0

" 
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
3

1
3

' -
 9

"

S
E

T
B

A
C

K

1
0

'-
0

" 
B

U
IL

D
IN

G

S
IT

E
 D

IM
E

N
S

IO
N

 

3
3

3
' -

 8
 3

/4
" 

O
V

E
R

A
L
L

 

55 COVERED STALLS

2
1
 S

T
A

L
L
S

(8 COVERED)

11 STALLS

VAN

EV
ACC.

VAN
EV

VAN

1
8

' 
- 

0
"

2
4

' 
- 

0
"

1
8

' 
- 

0
"

2
4

' 
- 

0
"

6
' 
- 

6
"

1
8

' 
- 

0
"

4
2

' 
- 

6
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

24' - 0"

EASEMENT 

44'-0" CVWD

GAME COURT POOL
POOL EQUIP

PLAYGROUND

UNIT BUILDING 7
(STORIES VARY)

L
O

A
D

IN
G

L
O

A
D

IN
G

UNIT BUILDING 1
(STORIES VARY)

UNIT BUILDING 2
(3 STORIES)

UNIT BUILDING 3
(STORIES VARY)

UNIT BUILDING 4
(STORIES VARY)

UNIT BUILDING 5
(3 STORIES)

UNIT BUILDING 6
(3 STORIES)

ELEC./
BATTERY

ELEC./
BATTERY

ELEC./
BATTERY

ELEC./
BATTERY

LAUNDRY
LAUNDRY

R.R.R.R.

COMMUNITY ROOM/
KTICHEN

BIKES OFFICE

LAUNDRY

R.R. R.R.

S
T

O
R

.

JAN.

MAIL
RM.

LEASING
OFFICE

BREAK
RM

MAINT.

ELECTRICAL

POOL 
SUPPLIES

E
L
E

C
./

B
A

T
T

E
R

Y

ELEC./
BATTERY

BICYCLE
RM.

TEEN
AREA

BBQ

C
O

V
E

R
E

D
P

A
T

IO

C
O

V
E

R
E

D
 P

A
T

IO

C
O

V
E

R
E

D
 P

A
T

IO

COMMUNITY BUILDING

BUTTERFLY GARDEN

(2) BED

(3) BED

(1) BED

(2) BED

(2) BED

(3) BED

(3) BED

(1) BED

(2) BED

(2) BED

(2) BED

(2) BED

(2) BED

(2) BED

(3) BED

(3) BED

(1) BED

(1) BED

(2) BED

(2) BED

(3) BED

(3) BED

(1) BED

(1) BED

(2) BED

(2) BED

(2) BED

(2) BED

(2) BED

(2) BED

(3) BED

(1) BED

(1) BED

(1) BED

(2) BED

(2) BED

(2) BED

(2) BED

(3) BED

(3) BED

(2) BED

(2) BED

(1) BED

(1) BED

(2) BED

(2) BED

(1) BED
(3-BED ABOVE)

(3) BED

(1) BED

(2) BED

(1) BED

(2) BED

6'-0" WIDE 
TRAIL 

6'-0" HIGH TUBE STEEL FENCE ALONG NORTHERN PROPERTY LINE 

6'-0" HIGH TUBE STEEL FENCE ALONG SOUTHERN PROPERTY LINE 

G
A

T
E

L
O

A
D

IN
G

L
O

A
D

IN
G

TRASHTRASH

TRASH
TRASH

PARKING SETBACK

20' - 0" MIN.

N

TURNAROUND
ENTRY

TURNAROUND
EXIT

EXIT

(3) STORIES

(1) STORY

SOLAR CARPORTS, TYP

6'-0" HIGH TUBE 
STEEL FENCE 
ALONG 
WESTERN 
PROPERTY 
LINE 

12 STALLS

POOL HOUSE
(1 STORY)

(3
) 

S
T

O
R

IE
S

(2
) 

S
T

O
R

Y

(3
) 

S
T

O
R

IE
S

(2
) 

S
T

O
R

IE
S

(2) STORIES

(1) STORY

(2
) 

S
T

O
R

IE
S

(3
) 

S
T

O
R

IE
S

(2) STORIES

(3) STORIES

(2
) 

S
T

O
R

IE
S

(3
) 

S
T

O
R

IE
S

(3) STORIES

(2) STORIES

SOLAR CARPORTS, TYP

SITE INFORMATION 

PARCEL: A-2
APN: 685-090-011
LOT SIZE:      +/- 217,800 SF (5 ACRES)

*SEE PROJECT DATA SHEET FOR 
FURTHER SITE & PARKING INFORMATION

SOLAR CARPORT, TYP
(23 COVERED)

24 STALLS

1

A.03

2

A.03

2
4

' 
- 

0
"

1
7

' 
- 

0
"

PEDESTRIAN 
GATE 
ACCESS

PEDESTRIAN 
GATE 
ACCESS

ENTRY 
PERGOLA

VEHICULAR
TELESCOPIC
GATE EXIT

VEHICULAR 
SLIDING 
GATE 
ACCESS

PEDESTRIAN 
GATE 
ACCESS

(53 COVERED)

66 STALLS

3
 S

T
A

L
L
S

T
Y

P
.

5
' 
- 

0
"

9' - 0"

9' - 0"TYP

9' - 0"

TYP

10' - 0"

10' - 
0"

9' - 0"

10' - 0"

2
0
' - 0

"

8' - 0"36' - 0"

30 STALLS

S
H

O
W

E
R

S

A.02

1

A.02

2

TYP

10' - 0"

TYP

10' - 0"

TYP

9' - 0"

CONCRETE PAVING

LANDSCAPE AREA, REFER TO LANDSCAPE 
DRAWINGS.

STANDARD ACCESSIBLE STALL

ELECTRICAL VEHICLE CHARGING STALLEV

VAN ACCESSIBLE STALL
VAN

ACCESSIBLE PATH OF TRAVEL 

(SHALL BE 48" MIN.  CBC 11B-403.5)

EASEMENT

SETBACK

PROPERTY LINE

SITE LEGEND

A.01SITE PLAN
3337-01-HS24 10/31/2024

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE APARTMENTS
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO

RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270

SCALE:  1" = 20'-0"
1

OVERALL SITE PLAN

0' 10' 40'20'

2



Nicole Criste, Terra Nova Planning & Research, Inc. 
November 12, 2024 

Page 3 of 4 

15915-03 VMT Screening.docx 

TABLE 1: SCREENING FOR LAND USE PROJECTS EXEMPT FROM VMT ANALYSIS 

Screening Steps Description Result 

1. Small Projects 
Screening 

Projects with low trip generation based on the County Greenhouse Gas 
Emissions Screening Tables resulting in a 3,000 metric tons of Carbon 
Dioxide Equivalent per year screening level threshold.  Specific examples 
include single family housing projects less than or equal to 110 dwelling 
units, multi-family housing projects less than or equal to 147 dwelling 
units, and retail buildings with area less than or equal to 60,000 sf. 

Does not meet 

2. Projects Near High 
Quality Transit 

Projects within a half mile of an existing major transit stop which 
maintains a service interval frequency of 15 minutes or less during peak 
commute periods. 

Does not meet 

3. Affordable Housing 
Projects with a high percentage of affordable units as determined by the 
Planning and Engineering departments. 

Meets 

4. Map Based 
Screening 

Projects within an area of development under threshold as shown on 
screening map allowed by the Engineering Department.  

Meets 

5. Redevelopment 
Projects 

Projects which replace an existing VMT-generating land use and do not 
result in a net overall increase in VMT. 

Does not meet 

PROJECT HIGH PERCENTAGE OF AFFORDABLE HOUSING  

Resolution 2021-06 indicates that projects in which “a high percentage of affordable housing is 
provided as determined by the Planning and Engineering Departments” can be presumed to have 
non-significant VMT impacts.   

The Technical Advisory on Evaluating Transportation Impacts in CEQA (California Governor’s 
Office of Planning and Research, December 2018) states that affordable housing generally 
improves jobs-housing match, shortens commutes and reduces VMT.  This technical advisory 
concludes that low income housing generates less VMT than market-rate housing.   

All (100%) of the 150 Project residential units are affordable housing.  In comparison, recent 
residential projects in Rancho Mirage have not included an affordable housing component. 

The Project is located near to existing off-site retail.  Adding affordable housing to this location, 
with existing off-site retail/service jobs located at Monterey Marketplace and Desert Gateway 
shopping centers along with Costco Wholesale, etc. provides housing opportunities for current 
employees in the area. Low-wage workers in particular would be more likely to choose a 
residential location close to their workplace, if one is available.  

  

3



Nicole Criste, Terra Nova Planning & Research, Inc. 
November 12, 2024 

Page 4 of 4 

15915-03 VMT Screening.docx 

PROJECT MAP BASED SCREENING  

The County Guidelines note that “residential and office projects that locate in areas with low VMT, 
and that incorporate similar features (i.e., density, mix of uses, transit accessibility), will tend to 
exhibit similarly low VMT.”1 Urban Crossroads has obtained a VMT data table from County Staff 
for all TAZs within Riverside County that identifies VMT per capita and VMT per employee for the 
purposes of identifying low VMT areas. The data utilizes the sub-regional Riverside 
Transportation Analysis Model (RIVTAM) to measure baseline VMT performance for individual 
TAZ’s and a comparison was made to the applicable impact threshold (e.g., VMT per employee 
for office or industrial land uses and VMT per capita for residential land uses). The Project’s TAZ 
was identified in the Riverside County Transportation Analysis Model (RIVTAM) as TAZ 4648. The 
County’s data table identifies the Project’s TAZ 4648 to generate 12.9604 VMT per capita. Whereas 
the County regional threshold is 15.2 VMT per capita2. The Project is located in a low VMT area 
for residential uses.  

CONCLUSION 

The Project was evaluated against screening criteria as outlined in the City Guidelines.  Based on 
the results of this screening analysis the following findings are made: 

 The Project’s residential component meets the Project Type Screening criteria for 
Affordable Housing by having 100% affordable housing.  

 The Project’s affordable housing will allow nearby interaction between Project residents, 
retail jobs, and retail services which will reduce auto VMT by encouraging pedestrian and 
bicycle activity. This determination of non-significant VMT impact is consistent with the 
intent of SB-743.  

 The Project’s location in a low VMT area for residential uses meets the map-based 
screening criteria and no further analysis is necessary. 

If you have any questions, please contact us directly at jkain@urbanxroads.com for John or 
mwhiteman@urbanxroads.com for Marlie.  

 

 

 
1 Technical Advisory; Page 12 
2 County Guidelines; Page 22 

4



CITY OF RANCHO MIRAGE 
69-825 Highway 111, Rancho Mirage, CA 92270-2898 (760) 324-4511/328-2266

NOTICE OF DETERMINATION AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

To:  Office of Land Use and Climate Innovation 
     1400 Tenth Street 
     Sacramento, CA 95814  

 Chief Deputy County Clerk 
     3470 12th Street  
     Riverside, CA 92501 

Project Title/Case Nos. Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments – Environmental Assessment Case No. EA25-0002 and 
Preliminary Development Plan Case No. PDP25-0002 

Applicant: National Community Renaissance 
Project Location: South of Via Vail and east of Key Largo Avenue 

Assessor’s Parcel Number: 685-090-016 
Project Description: The 5±-acre project site is located on the southern side of Via Vail, between Monterey Avenue and Key 

Largo Avenue in Rancho Mirage. The Rancho Mirage Affordable Housing Family Apartments is a 150- 
unit affordable housing community spanning five acres along Via Vail, southeast of the Rancho Mirage 
Dog Park. The development consists of seven residential buildings oriented around central courtyards, 
connected by an accessible paseo network. The project will offer 42 one-bedroom, 69 two-bedroom, and 
39 three-bedroom units, with one unit reserved for an on-site manager. Amenities include a pool, 
community center, laundry facilities, a tot lot, gardens, and bicycle storage. 

Notice of Determination 

Filing of Notice of Determination in compliance with Public Resources Code, Section 21108 or 21152. The City of Rancho Mirage has 
approved the above described project on   and has determined: 

1. The project will  will not have a significant effect/impact on the environment.
2. An Environmental Impact Report was prepared for this project pursuant to the provisions of CEQA.
3. A Mitigated Negative Declaration was prepared for this project pursuant to the provisions of CEQA.
4. Mitigation measures  were  were not made conditions of approval for the project.
5. A mitigation reporting or monitoring plan  was  was not adopted for this project.
6. A Statement of Overriding Considerations  was  was not adopted for this project.
7. Findings  were  were not made pursuant to the provisions of CEQA.

The City Council adopted the following Finding: The proposed project has been reviewed in compliance with the provisions of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). This is to certify that the project file and record of project approval are available to the general public 
at: City of Rancho Mirage, 69-825 Highway 111, Rancho Mirage, CA 92270. 

Mitigated Negative Declaration - Rancho Mirage City Council 

Date:  
Pilar Fløtterud 
Senior Planner 

I hereby certify that the City of Rancho Mirage has made the above findings of fact and that based upon the Mitigated Negative Declaration 
and hearing record the project will not have a significant effect on the environment. 

Date: 

Pilar Fløtterud 
 Lead Agency  Responsible Agency Senior Planner 

ATTACHMENT 5



1 

RESOLUTION NO. ___________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
RANCHO MIRAGE, CALIFORNIA, RECOMMENDING THAT THE CITY 
COUNCIL: 1) ADOPT RESOLUTION [NEXT IN ORDER] ADOPTING AND 
APPROVING THE MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING 
PROGRAM AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
(SCH#2025050959) FOR THE PROPOSED PROJECT BASED ON 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002; AND 2) 
ADOPT RESOLUTION [NEXT IN ORDER] APPROVING PRELIMINARY 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002 REGARDING THE 
PROPOSED RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE APARTMENTS 
AFFORDABLE 

WHEREAS, the City of Rancho Mirage is a charter city and a municipal corporation 
of the State of California, and recognized as a political subdivision of the State of 
California for certain purpose; and  

WHEREAS, National Community Renaissance of California and USA Properties 
Fund (“Developer”) and the Housing Authority of Rancho Mirage (the “Housing Authority”) 
entered into an agreement entitled Affordable Housing Disposition and Development 
Agreement, dated as of December 21, 2023, for the disposition of Housing Authority 
Property to Developer, upon satisfaction of various terms and conditions, including, but 
not limited to, obtaining all project entitlements from the City; and 

WHEREAS, Developer submitted an application for a Preliminary Development 
Plan for an affordable housing development – Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments – 
on approximately 5 acres located on real property having Assessors Parcel Number 685-
090-016 (the “Subject Property”), as depicted and described in more particularity on
Exhibit “A”, consisting of 150 units distributed across seven (7) two- and three-story walk-
up buildings, and amenities.  Of the 150 units, 149 will be income-restricted affordable
units, with one unit reserved for on-site management, all as set forth in more detail in the
Preliminary Development Plan (PDP25-0002), incorporated herein by reference (the
“Proposed Project”); and

   WHEREAS, the Planning Commission recommends the City Council approve and 
adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration (“MND”) and mitigation monitoring and reporting 
program (“MMRP”), attached hereto and incorporated herein in the proposed City Council 
Resolution as set forth in Exhibit “B”, based upon its determination that there is no 
substantial evidence in the whole record before it that the Proposed Project will have a 
significant effect on the environment that has not been mitigated to a level of less than 
significant, and that the MND reflects the City’s independent judgment and analysis of the 
Proposed Project and its potential impacts on the environment consistent with the 
provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act and CEQA Guidelines. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 

ATTACHMENT 6



 
 

2 
 

RANCHO MIRAGE, CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1.  RECITALS AND EXHIBITS. 
 
That the foregoing Recitals and attached Exhibits are true and correct and are 

hereby incorporated by this reference.  
 

SECTION 2.  EVIDENCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE RECORD. 
 
That the Planning Commission conducted a noticed Public Hearing on June 26, 

2025, and considered all of the evidence submitted into the administrative record for the 
Proposed Project, including, but not limited to, the following, which are all hereby 
incorporated herein by reference: 

 
(a) Rancho Mirage Municipal Code; 
(b) Rancho Mirage General Plan, Monterey Specific Plan, and Title 17 (Zoning) 

of the Rancho Mirage Municipal Code and all relevant provisions contained 
therein; 

(c) Preliminary Development Plan PDP25-0002; 
(d) Initial Study, Environmental Assessment Case No. EA25-0002; 
(e) Notice of Intent to adopt MND; 
(f) MND and MMRP (SCH#2025050959);  
(g) Notice of Planning Commission Public Hearing scheduled for June 26, 

2025, at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber, located at City Hall at 69-825 
Highway 111, Rancho Mirage, California;  

(h) Planning Commission Staff Report, attachments and Staff presentation for 
the Proposed Project, and all public documents, records and references 
related thereto submitted or provided at or prior to the June 26th, 2025, 
Planning Commission Public Hearing; 

(i) Testimony and/or comments from Developer and its representatives 
submitted or provided at, or prior to, the June 26th, 2025, Planning 
Commission Public Hearing; and 

(j) Testimony and/or comments from all persons that were provided in written 
format or correspondence, at, or prior to, the June 26th, 2025, Planning 
Commission Public Hearing. 
 

SECTION 3.  FINDINGS. 
 

That based on the foregoing Recitals and the Evidence contained in the 
Administrative Record for the Proposed Project, as set forth and described herein, the 
Planning Commission finds, acknowledge, accept, and approve, and make the following 
Findings and Determinations, and recommends the City Council find that: 
 

a) The proposed development (Proposed Project) is: 
1) Allowed within the respective zoning district; 



 
 

3 
 

2) Generally in compliance with all of the applicable provisions of title 
17(Zoning) that are necessary to carry out the purpose and requirements of 
the respective zoning district, including prescribed development standards 
and applicable design guidelines; and 

3) Consistent with the general plan and specific plan, if applicable; 
b) The proposed project would produce a comprehensive development incorporating 

a more enhanced environment and architectural excellence (e.g., appropriate 
variety of structure placement and orientation opportunities, appropriate mix of 
structure sizes, high quality architectural design, increased amounts of landscaping 
and open space, improved solutions to the design and placement of parking 
facilities, etc.) than would normally be possible under more standard district 
development requirements; 

c) The design, location, shape, size, operating characteristics, and the provision of 
public and emergency vehicle access and public services and utilities (e.g., 
drainage, fire protection, sewers, water, etc.), would ensure that the proposed 
development would not endanger, jeopardize, or otherwise constitute a hazard to 
the public convenience, health, interest, safety, or welfare, or injurious to the 
property or improvements in the vicinity and the respective zoning district; 

d) The design, location, and proposed uses would be compatible with the character of 
existing development in the surrounding neighborhood; 

e) The subject site (Subject Property) is physically suitable for the type and 
density/intensity of development being proposed; and 

f) The proposed project has been reviewed in compliance with the provisions of the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and there would be no potential 
significant negative effects upon environmental quality and natural resources that 
would not be properly mitigated and monitored, unless findings are made in 
compliance with CEQA. 

 
 SECTION 4.  RECOMMENDATIONS. 
 

That based on the foregoing Recitals and the Evidence contained in the 
Administrative Record for the Proposed Project, the Planning Commission Findings, as 
set forth and described herein, and the findings and determinations set forth in the June 
26th, 2025, Planning Commission Staff Report and the attached resolutions, the Planning 
Commission recommends that the City Council take the following actions: 

 
a)   Approve and Adopt the attached Resolution, adopting the MND and MMRP 

(Exhibit B); and 
b) Approve and Adopt the attached Resolution, approving the Preliminary 

Development Plan (PDP25-0002) (Exhibit C). 
 

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
That this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.   

 



 
 

4 
 

SECTION 6.  SEVERABILITY. 
 

That if any provision, section, paragraph, sentence or word of Resolution or any 
portion of the Administrative Record for the Proposed Project be rendered or declared 
invalid by any final court action in a court of competent jurisdiction or by reason of any 
preemptive legislation, the remaining provisions, sections, paragraphs, sentences or 
words as hereby adopted shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

SECTION 7.  CERTIFICATION. 
 

That the Secretary to the Planning Commission shall certify as to the adoption of 
this Resolution and shall cause the same to be processed in the manner required by law.  

 
SECTION 8.   REPEAL OF CONFLICTING PROVISIONS. 

 
That all provisions of any resolution in effect prior to the effective date of this 

Resolution as adopted by the Planning Commission that are in conflict with the 
provisions of this Resolution, are hereby repealed.  

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

5 
 

 
 
 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 26th day of June, 2025.  
 
 

_________________________ 
Pamela Chanter, Chair    

 
ATTEST: 

 
 

_____________________________ 
Kristie Ramos, Secretary  
 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 

_____________________________ 
Colin D. Kirkpatrick, City Attorney 
 

 

  



 
 

6 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 

SUBJECT PROPERTY 

THE LAND REFERRED TO HEREIN BELOW IS SITUATED IN THE CITY OF RANCHO 
MIRAGE IN THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AND IS 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
THAT PORTION OF THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN GRANT DEED RECORDED 
NOVEMBER 15, 1983 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 237642, OFFICIAL RECORDS OF 
RIVERSIDE COUNTY, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, LOCATED WITHIN THE NORTHEAST 
QUARTER OF SECTION 30, TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 6 EAST, SAN 
BERNARDINO MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
COMMENCING AT THE CENTER QUARTER COMER OF SAID SECTION 30 AS 
SHOWN ON RECORD OF SURVEY FILED IN BOOK 147, PAGE 6, OF RECORDS OF 
SURVEYS, OFFICIAL RECORDS OF SAID COUNTY; 
 
THENCE NORTH 89°35’36” EAST 667.17 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE 
SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 30; 
 
THENCE PARALLEL WITH THE EAST LINE OF THE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 
QUARTER NORTH 00°03’04” EAST 701.97 FEET TO THE TRUE POINT OF 
BEGINNING; 
 
THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID PARALLEL LINE, NORTH 00°03’04” EAST 
333.74 FEET; 
 
THENCE PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER 
NORTH 89°35’36” EAST 652.62 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 
QUARTER; 
 
THENCE SOUTH 00°03’04” WEST 333.74 FEET ALONG SAID EAST LINE; 
 
THENCE PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER 
SOUTH 89°35’36” WEST 652.62 FEET TO THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 

APN: 685-090-016 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

7 
 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 

CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION 

ADOPTING THE MND AND MMRP 

 

[TO BE ATTACHED] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

8 
 

 

EXHIBIT “C” 

CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION APPROVING  

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN  

PDP25-0002 

 

[TO BE ATTACHED] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 

RESOLUTION NO. ___________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RANCHO 
MIRAGE, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING AND APPROVING THE 
MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM AND 
MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION (SCH#2025050959) FOR THE 
PROPOSED PROJECT BASED ON ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT 
CASE NO. EA25-0002 

WHEREAS, the City of Rancho Mirage is a charter city and a municipal corporation 
of the State of California, and recognized as a political subdivision of the State of 
California for certain purpose; and  

WHEREAS, National Community Renaissance of California National Community 
Renaissance of California and USA Properties Fund (“Developer”) and the Housing 
Authority of Rancho Mirage (the “Housing Authority”) entered into an agreement entitled 
Affordable Housing Disposition and Development Agreement, dated as of December 21, 
2023, for the disposition of Housing Authority Property to Developer, upon satisfaction of 
various terms and conditions, including, but not limited to, obtaining all project 
entitlements from the City; and 

WHEREAS, the “Proposed Project” is a Preliminary Development Plan for an 
affordable housing development – Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments – on 
approximately 5 acres of that certain property located south of Via Vail and east of Key 
Largo Avenue, in Rancho Mirage, having Assessors Parcel Number 685-090-016 (the 
“Subject Property”), consisting of 150 units, distributed across seven (7) two- and three-
story walk-up buildings, and amenities.  Of the 150 units, 149 will be income-restricted 
affordable units, with one unit reserved for on-site management, all as set forth in more 
detail in the Preliminary Development Plan (PDP25-0002), incorporated herein by 
reference; and 

 WHEREAS, on June 26, 2025, the Rancho Mirage Planning Commission adopted 
Resolution [TO BE INSERTED], incorporated herein by this reference, recommending, in 
part, the City Council approve and adopt this Resolution, adopting the Mitigated Negative 
Declaration (“MND”) and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (“MMRP”) based 
upon its determination that there is no substantial evidence in the whole record before it 
that the Proposed Project will have a significant effect on the environment that has not 
been mitigated to a level of less than significant, and that the MND reflects the City’s 
independent judgment and analysis of the Proposed Project and its potential impacts on 
the environment consistent with the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act 
and CEQA Guidelines; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the draft Mitigation Monitoring and 
Reporting Program and proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration regarding the Proposed 
Project, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as Exhibit “A”.  

ATTACHMENT 7



 
 

2 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RANCHO MIRAGE, 
CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1.  RECITALS AND EXHIBITS 
 
That the foregoing Recitals and attached Exhibits are true and correct and are 

hereby incorporated by this reference.  
 

SECTION 2.  EVIDENCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE RECORD 
 
That the City Council has considered all of the evidence (“Evidence”) submitted 

into the administrative record (“Administrative Record”) for the Proposed Project, 
including, but not limited to, the following, which are all hereby incorporated herein by 
reference: 

 
(a) Rancho Mirage Municipal Code; 
(b) Rancho Mirage General Plan, Monterey Specific Plan, and Title 17 (Zoning) 

of the Rancho Mirage Municipal Code and all relevant provisions contained 
therein; 

(c) Preliminary Development Plan PDP25-0002; 
(d) Initial Study, Environmental Assessment Case No. EA25-0002; 
(e) Notice of Intent to adopt MND; 
(f) MND and MMRP (SCH#2025050959);  
(g) Notice of Planning Commission Public Hearing scheduled for June 26, 

2025, at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber, located at City Hall at 69-825 
Highway 111, Rancho Mirage, California;  

(h) Planning Commission Staff Report, attachments and Staff presentation for 
the Proposed Project, and all public documents, records and references 
related thereto submitted or provided at or prior to the June 26th, 2025, 
Planning Commission Public Hearing; 

(i) Testimony and/or comments from Developer and its representatives 
submitted or provided at, or prior to, the June 26th, 2025, Planning 
Commission Public Hearing; and 

(j) Testimony and/or comments from all persons that were provided in written 
format or correspondence, at, or prior to, the June 26th, 2025, Planning 
Commission Public Hearing. 

(k) Notice of City Council Public Hearing scheduled for [TO BE INSERTED], 
2025, at 1:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber, located at City Hall at 69-825 
Highway 111, Rancho Mirage, California;  

(l) City Council Staff Report, attachments and Staff presentation for the 
Proposed Project, and all public documents, records and references related 
thereto submitted or provided at or prior to the [TO BE INSERTED], 2025, 
City Council Public Hearing; 

(m) Testimony and/or comments from Developer and its representatives 
submitted or provided at, or prior to, the [TO BE INSERTED], 2025, City 
Council Public Hearing; and 



 
 

3 
 

(n) Testimony and/or comments from all persons that were provided in written 
format or correspondence, at, or prior to, the [TO BE INSTERTED], 2025, 
City Council Public Hearing. 
 

SECTION 3.  FINDINGS AND DETERMINATIONS 
 

That based on the foregoing Recitals and the Evidence contained in the 
Administrative Record for the Proposed Project, as set forth and described herein, the 
City Council acknowledges, accepts, and approves, and makes the following Findings 
and Determinations: 

 
(a) That the City has independently reviewed, analyzed, and considered the 

Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring Plan, and the 
whole record before it (including, the Initial Study and comments received) 
and, based on the foregoing, the City Council hereby finds that all 
environmental impacts of the Proposed Project, with mitigation measures, 
are below a level of significance and there is no substantial evidence 
supporting a fair argument that the Proposed Project will have a significant 
effect on the environment.  
 

(b) That the Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring Plan 
have been completed in compliance with CEQA and CEQA Guidelines. 

 

(c) That the Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring Plan 
represent the independent judgment and analysis of the Planning 
Commission and City Council as lead agency for the Proposed Project.  

 

(d) That the Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring Plan are 
adequate to serve as the required CEQA environmental documentation for 
the Proposed Project. 

 
SECTION 4. ADOPT THE MITIGATION MONITORING AND 

REPORTING PROGRAM AND APPROVAL OF MITIGATED 
NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

 
That based on the Findings and Determinations set forth herein and the substantial 

evidence included in the Recitals, Exhibits and Evidence contained in Administrative 
Record, the City Council hereby adopts the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 
and approves the Mitigated Negative Declaration, including the findings set forth therein 
which support a determination that all potentially significant environmental impacts from 
implementation of the Proposed Project have been identified and, with the implementation 
of the mitigation measures defined and set forth in the Mitigation Monitoring and 
Reporting Program, will be mitigated to a less-than-significant level.   

 
SECTION 5. NOTICE OF DETERMINATION  



 
 

4 
 

 
That the City Council authorizes and directs the Planning Division to prepare, 

execute, and file a Notice of Determination in accordance with Public Resource Code 
Section 21152. 

 
SECTION 6.  EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
That this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.   

 
SECTION 7.  SEVERABILITY 

 
That if any provision, section, paragraph, sentence or word of Resolution or any 

portion of the Administrative Record for the Proposed Project be rendered or declared 
invalid by any final court action in a court of competent jurisdiction or by reason of any 
preemptive legislation, the remaining provisions, sections, paragraphs, sentences or 
words as hereby adopted shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

SECTION 8.  CERTIFICATION. 
 

That the City Clerk shall certify as to the adoption of this Resolution and shall cause 
the same to be processed in the manner required by law.  

 
SECTION 9.   REPEAL OF CONFLICTING PROVISIONS. 

 
That all provisions of any resolution in effect prior to the effective date of this 

Resolution as adopted by the City Council that are in conflict with the provisions of this 
Resolution, are hereby repealed.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

5 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED on this ___ day of ____, 2025.  
 
 

_________________________ 
Ted Weill, Mayor    

 
ATTEST: 

 
 

_____________________________ 
Kristie Ramos, City Clerk  
 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 

_____________________________ 
Colin Kirkpatrick, City Attorney 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

6 
 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION &  

MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 

(EA25-0002) 

[TO BE ATTACHED] 

 

 

 

 

 



1 

RESOLUTION NO. ___________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RANCHO 
MIRAGE, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002 REGARDING THE PROPOSED RANCHO 
MIRAGE AFFORDABLE APARTMENTS 

WHEREAS, the City of Rancho Mirage is a charter city and a municipal corporation 
of the State of California, and recognized as a political subdivision of State of California 
for certain purpose; and  

WHEREAS, National Community Renaissance of California National Community 
Renaissance of California and USA Properties Fund (“Developer”) and the Housing 
Authority of Rancho Mirage (the “Housing Authority”) entered into an agreement entitled 
Affordable Housing Disposition and Development Agreement, dated as of December 21, 
2023, for the disposition of Housing Authority Property to Developer, upon satisfaction of 
various terms and conditions, including, but not limited to, obtaining all project 
entitlements from the City; and 

WHEREAS, on June 26, 2025, the Rancho Mirage Planning Commission adopted 
Resolution [TO BE INSERTED], incorporated herein by this reference, recommending, in 
part, the City Council approve and adopt this Resolution, approving Preliminary 
Development Plan PDP25-0002 (the “Preliminary Development Plan”, and sometimes 
referred to herein as the “Proposed Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the “Proposed Project” is a Preliminary Development Plan for an 
affordable housing development – Rancho Mirage Affordable Apartments – on 
approximately 5 acres of that certain property located south of Via Vail and east of Key 
Largo Avenue, in Rancho Mirage, having Assessors Parcel Number 685-090-016 (the 
“Subject Property”), consisting of 150 units, distributed across seven (7) two- and three-
story walk-up buildings, and amenities.  Of the 150 units, 149 will be income-restricted 
affordable units, with one unit reserved for on-site management, all as set forth in more 
detail in the Preliminary Development Plan (PDP25-0002), incorporated herein by 
reference; and 

WHEREAS, on [TO BE INSERTED], at a duly noticed meeting of the City Council, 
the City Council approved Resolution No. 2025-[TO BE INSERTED] adopting the 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program and approving the Mitigated Negative 
Declaration. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RANCHO MIRAGE, 
CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. RECITALS AND EXHIBITS 

That the foregoing Recitals and attached Exhibits are true and correct and are 
hereby incorporated by this reference.  

ATTACHMENT 8



 
 

2 
 

 
SECTION 2.  EVIDENCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE RECORD 
 
That the City Council has considered all of the evidence(“Evidence”) submitted into 

the administrative record (“Administrative Record”) for the Proposed Project, including, 
but not limited to, the following, which are all hereby incorporated herein by reference: 

 
(a) Rancho Mirage Municipal Code; 
(b) Rancho Mirage General Plan, Monterey Specific Plan, and Title 17 (Zoning) 

of the Rancho Mirage Municipal Code and all relevant provisions contained 
therein; 

(c) Preliminary Development Plan PDP25-0002; 
(d) Initial Study, Environmental Assessment Case No. EA25-0002; 
(e) Notice of Intent to adopt MND; 
(f) MND and MMRP (SCH#2025050959);  
(g) Notice of Planning Commission Public Hearing scheduled for June 26, 

2025, at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber, located at City Hall at 69-825 
Highway 111, Rancho Mirage, California;  

(h) Planning Commission Staff Report, attachments and Staff presentation for 
the Proposed Project, and all public documents, records and references 
related thereto submitted or provided at or prior to the June 26th, 2025, 
Planning Commission Public Hearing; 

(i) Testimony and/or comments from Developer and its representatives 
submitted or provided at, or prior to, the June 26th, 2025, Planning 
Commission Public Hearing; 

(j) Testimony and/or comments from all persons that were provided in written 
format or correspondence, at, or prior to, the June 26th, 2025, Planning 
Commission Public Hearing; 

(k) Notice of City Council Public Hearing scheduled for [TO BE INSERTED], 
2025, at 1:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber, located at City Hall at 69-825 
Highway 111, Rancho Mirage, California;  

(l) City Council Staff Report, attachments and Staff presentation for the 
Proposed Project, and all public documents, records and references related 
thereto submitted or provided at or prior to the [TO BE INSERTED], 2025, 
City Council Public Hearing; 

(m) Testimony and/or comments from Developer and its representatives 
submitted or provided at, or prior to, the [TO BE INSERTED], 2025, City 
Council Public Hearing; and 

(n) Testimony and/or comments from all persons that were provided in written 
format or correspondence, at, or prior to, the [TO BE INSTERTED], 2025, 
City Council Public Hearing. 

 
SECTION 3.  FINDINGS AND DETERMINATIONS 

 
That based on the foregoing Recitals and the Evidence contained in the 

Administrative Record for the Proposed Project, as set forth and described herein, the 



 
 

3 
 

City Council acknowledges, accepts, and approves, and makes the following Findings 
and Determinations: 

 
a) The proposed development (Proposed Project) is: 

1) Allowed within the respective zoning district; 
2) Generally in compliance with all of the applicable provisions of title 

17(Zoning) that are necessary to carry out the purpose and requirements of 
the respective zoning district, including prescribed development standards 
and applicable design guidelines; and 

3) Consistent with the general plan and specific plan, if applicable; 
b) The proposed project would produce a comprehensive development incorporating 

a more enhanced environment and architectural excellence (e.g., appropriate 
variety of structure placement and orientation opportunities, appropriate mix of 
structure sizes, high quality architectural design, increased amounts of landscaping 
and open space, improved solutions to the design and placement of parking 
facilities, etc.) than would normally be possible under more standard district 
development requirements; 

c) The design, location, shape, size, operating characteristics, and the provision of 
public and emergency vehicle access and public services and utilities (e.g., 
drainage, fire protection, sewers, water, etc.), would ensure that the proposed 
development would not endanger, jeopardize, or otherwise constitute a hazard to 
the public convenience, health, interest, safety, or welfare, or injurious to the 
property or improvements in the vicinity and the respective zoning district; 

d) The design, location, and proposed uses would be compatible with the character of 
existing development in the surrounding neighborhood; 

e) The subject site (Subject Property) is physically suitable for the type and 
density/intensity of development being proposed; and 

f) The proposed project has been reviewed in compliance with the provisions of the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and there would be no potential 
significant negative effects upon environmental quality and natural resources that 
would not be properly mitigated and monitored, unless findings are made in 
compliance with CEQA. 

 
SECTION 4. PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 
That based on the foregoing Recitals and the Evidence contained in the 

Administrative Record for the Proposed Project, which includes Preliminary Development 
Plan, and the Findings and Determinations set forth herein, the City Council hereby 
approves Preliminary Development Plan, attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, and incorporated 
herein by this reference. 

. 
SECTION 6. EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
That this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.   

 
SECTION 7.  SEVERABILITY 



 
 

4 
 

 
That if any provision, section, paragraph, sentence or word of Resolution or any 

portion of the Administrative Record for the Proposed Project be rendered or declared 
invalid by any final court action in a court of competent jurisdiction or by reason of any 
preemptive legislation, the remaining provisions, sections, paragraphs, sentences or 
words as hereby adopted shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

SECTION 8.  CERTIFICATION 
 

That the City Clerk shall certify as to the adoption of this Resolution and shall cause 
the same to be processed in the manner required by law.  

 
SECTION 9.   REPEAL OF CONFLICTING PROVISIONS 

 
That all provisions of any resolution in effect prior to the effective date of this 

Resolution as adopted by the City Council that are in conflict with the provisions of this 
Resolution, are hereby repealed.  

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

5 
 

 
 
 
  
PASSED AND ADOPTED on this ___ day of ____, 2025.  
 
 

_________________________ 
Ted Weill, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 

 
 

_____________________________ 
Kristie Ramos, City Clerk 
 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 

_____________________________ 
Colin D. Kirkpatrick, City Attorney 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

6 
 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN PDP25-0002 

EXHIBIT BOOKLET 

[TO BE ATTACHED] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PROJECT 

SITE

VIA VAIL

MONTEREY 
AVE

VIA JOSEFINA

KEY LARGO AVE

DINAH SHORE DR

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002

G.01COVER SHEET
3337-01-HS24 06/04/2025

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE APARTMENTS
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO, RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270

ADDRESS:

CONTACT:

EMAIL:

RRM DESIGN GROUP

10 E FIGUEROA ST, STE 200

SANTA BARBARA, CA, 93101

ARCHITECT

ARAMIS ARCIGA

AAARCIGA@RRMDESIGN.COM

ADDRESS:

CONTACT:

EMAIL:

GRAY ELECTRICAL CONSULTING + ENGINEERING (GECE)

2529 PROFESSIONAL PARKWAY

STE A, SANTA MARIA, CA 93456

ELECTRICAL
ENGINEER

HEATHER GRAY

HEATHER@GECECORP.COM

ADDRESS:

CONTACT:

EMAIL:

RRM DESIGN GROUP

3765 S HIGUERA ST, STE 102

SAN LUIS OBISPO, CA, 93101

LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT

SCOTT NEIMAN

SWNEIMAN@RRMDESIGN.COM

ADDRESS:

CONTACT:

EMAIL:

NATIONAL COMMUNITY RENAISSANCE (NATIONAL CORE)

9692 HAVEN AVENUE, STE 100

RANCHO CUCAMONGA, CA, 91730

APPLICANT

TAYLOR LIBOLT VARNER

TLVARNER@NATIONALCORE.ORG

DESCRIPTION:

THE PROJECT SITE CONSISTS OF APPROXIMATELY FIVE ACRES OF LAND.
THE PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN RANCHO MIRAGE AND THE PROJECT SITE
CONTAINS NO EXISTING STRUCTURES AND/OR ROADWAYS.

THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT IS FOR A 150 UNIT LARGE FAMILY
WORKFORCE HOUSING PROJECT FOR THE SITE. THE UNIT MIX IS EXPECTED
TO CONSIST OF APPROXIMATELY (25%) ONE-BEDROOM, (50%)
TWO-BEDROOM, AND (25%) THREE-BEDROOM UNITS. THE PROJECT WILL
OFF 42 ONE-BEDROOM, 69 TWO-BEDROOM, AND 39 THREE-BEDROOM UNITS,
WITH ONE UNIT RESERVED FOR AN ON-SITE MANAGER. PARKING WILL BE
PROVIDED AT A RATIO OF 1.46 SPACES PER RESIDENTIAL UNIT, WITH NO
ADDITIONAL GUEST SPACES. THE BUILDING(S) WILL BE CONFIGURED AS
THREE-STORY WALK UPS WITH NO ELEVATORS. THE PROJECT IS
PRESENTED AS A DESERT MODERN ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN STYLE. THE
AMENITIES INCLUDE A POOL, GAME COURT, 2-12 PLAY AREA, BUTTERFLY
GARDEN, AND COMMUNITY CENTER.

THE PROJECT IS ANTICIPATED TO BE 100% AFFORDABLE AND WILL BE
PURSUING 4% CALIFORNIA TAX CREDIT ALLOCATION COMMITTEE (CTCAC)
FUNDING AND VOUCHERS.

VICINITY MAP
SHEET INDEX PROJECT TEAM

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

ADDRESS:

CONTACT:

EMAIL:

ATLAS CIVIL DESIGN

872 HIGUEROA ST

SAN LUIS OBISPO, CA 93401

CIVIL
ENGINEER

SHANNON DAVIS

SDDAVIS@ATLASCIVILDESIGN.COM

NUMBER OF STORIES:

MAX. HEIGHT ALLOWED:(PER 2022 CBC TABLE 504.3)

CONSTRUCTION TYPE:

MAX. HEIGHT PROPOSED:

BUILDING INFORMATION:

OCCUPANCY GROUP:

SPRINKLERED:

ROOF RATING:

HIGH FIRE ZONE:

MAX. HEIGHT ALLOWED:

No

39' - 2 1/2"

VARIES

YES - NFPA 13

VA/VB

R-2, B, A-3

2-3

VARIESPER THE CITY OF RANCHO MIRAGE. MUNICIPAL CODE §
17.20.100

SITE INFORMATION:

APN:

STREET ADDRESS:

ZONING:

LOT SIZE:

LAND USE:

EXISTING USE:

PROPOSED USE:

SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO

RANCHO MIRAGE, CA 92270

685-090-016

HDR. RH, & AFF. HOUSING

MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL

VACANT LAND

217,800.72 SF (5 ACRES)

AFFORDABLE MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL

MAXIMUM FAR:

FLOOR AREA RATIO

PROPOSED FAR:

LOT COVERAGE

BUILDING:

HARDSCAPE/PAVING:

LANDSCAPE:

SETBACKS

FRONT:

REAR:

SIDES:

REQUIRED PROPOSED

SEE PROJECT DATA SHEET

.82

66,060 SF

+/- 108,938 SF

*5'-3 1/2"

*30'-9"

+/- 42,802 SF

*50'-0"

20'-0"

10'-0" (EACH) &
15'-0" (STREET)

20'-0"

PROJECT INFORMATION

*SETBACKS VARY PER BUILDING. SEE SITE PLAN & SITE CROSS SECTIONS
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION REGARDING PROPOSED SETBACKS

G.01 COVER SHEET

G.02 PROJECT DATA

G.03 PROJECT DATA

G.04 SITE PHOTO BOARD

G.05 COLOR AND MATERIALS BOARD

G.06 PHOTO SIMULATIONS FROM VIA VAIL

G.07 ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS

A.01 SITE PLAN

A.02 ENLARGED ENTRY AND EXIT PLANS

A.03 SITE CROSS SECTIONS

A.04 FIRE ACCESS SITE PLAN

A1.1 BLDG 1 - PLANS

A1.2 BLDG 1 - PLANS

A1.3 BLDG 1 - ELEVATIONS

A1.4 BLDG 1 - ELEVATIONS

A2.1 BLDG 2 & 5 - PLANS

A2.2 BLDG 2 & 5 - PLANS

A2.3 BLDG 2 & 5 - ELEVATIONS

A2.4 BLDG 2 & 5 - ELEVATIONS

A3.1 BLDG 3 & 4 - PLANS

A3.2 BLDG 3 & 4 - PLANS

A3.3 BLDG 3 & 4 - ELEVATIONS

A3.4 BLDG 3 & 4 - ELEVATIONS

A6.1 BLDG 6 - PLANS

A6.2 BLDG 6 - ELEVATIONS

A7.1 BLDG 7 - PLANS

A7.2 BLDG 7 - PLANS

A7.3 BLDG 7 - ELEVATIONS

A7.4 BLDG 7 - ELEVATIONS

A8 ENLARGED UNIT PLANS

A9 TRASH ENCLOSURES & POOLHOUSE

*SEE PROJECT DATA SHEET AND EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS FOR MAX.
HEIGHT ALLOWED & PROPOSED

CONCESSIONS & WAIVERS

PER GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 65916(d)(2)(D) ALLOWS FIVE DENSITY BONUS 
INCENTIVES FOR 100% AFFORDABLE PROJECTS. PLEASE SEE THE 
DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS TABLE ON PROJECT DATA SHEET G.02 FOR 
FURTHER INFORMATION.

1. MAIN BUILDING HEIGHT / NUMBER OF STORIES
2. SETBACKS & ADDITIONAL HEIGHT RESTRICTIONS SETBACKS
3. PRIVATE OUTDOOR LIVING SPACE
4. MINIMUM AREA FOR APARTMENTS IN R-H ZONING
5. LANDSCAPE AREA AT HEAD OF PARKING

CIVIL

C1 PRELIMINARY GRADING PLAN

C2 PRELIMINARY UTILITY PLAN

C3 PRELIMINARY CROSS SECTIONS

ELECTRICAL

E1 SITE ELECTRICAL PLAN

E2 SITE PHOTOMETRIC PLAN

E3 SECTOR SLEEVE CUT SHEETS

E4 TRANSFORMER CUT SHEETS

E5 LUMINAIRE CUT SHEETS

LANDSCAPE

L1 PRELIMINARY LANDSCAPE PLAN

L2 CONCEPTUAL PLANTING PLAN

L3 PLANT PALETTE

L4 FENCE, WALL, AND GATE PLAN

L5 FENCE AND GATE ELEVATIONS

L6 INSPIRATIONAL IMAGERY

Grand total: 45

*INCLUDES AREA WITHIN THE RIGHT OF WAY

ATTACHMENT 9



ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002

G.02PROJECT DATA
3337-01-HS24 06/04/2025

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE APARTMENTS
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO, RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270

TOTAL BUILDING FOOTPRINT

BUILDING AREA

BUILDING 1 9887 SF

BUILDING 2 10111 SF

BUILDING 3 10905 SF

BUILDING 4 10912 SF

BUILDING 5 10039 SF

BUILDING 6 4952 SF

BUILDING 7 8164 SF

POOL BUILDING 349 SF

TRASH
ENCLOSURES

734 SF

Grand total 66055 SF

TOTAL BUILDING AREAS

LEVEL Area

BUILDING 1

01-GROUND FLOOR 9887 SF

02-SECOND FLOOR 9887 SF

03-THIRD FLOOR 8097 SF

27870 SF

BUILDING 2

01-GROUND FLOOR 10111 SF

02-SECOND FLOOR 9964 SF

03-THIRD FLOOR 9964 SF

30039 SF

BUILDING 3

01-GROUND FLOOR 10904 SF

02-SECOND FLOOR 10404 SF

03-THIRD FLOOR 9052 SF

30361 SF

BUILDING 4

01-GROUND FLOOR 10912 SF

02-SECOND FLOOR 10428 SF

03-THIRD FLOOR 9171 SF

30511 SF

BUILDING 5

01-GROUND FLOOR 10039 SF

02-SECOND FLOOR 9960 SF

03-THIRD FLOOR 9960 SF

29959 SF

BUILDING 6

01-GROUND FLOOR 4952 SF

02-SECOND FLOOR 4952 SF

03-THIRD FLOOR 4952 SF

14855 SF

BUILDING 7

01-GROUND FLOOR 8164 SF

02-SECOND FLOOR 3908 SF

03-THIRD FLOOR 2135 SF

14208 SF

POOL BUILDING

01-GROUND FLOOR 326 SF

326 SF

Grand total 178129 SF

TOTAL AMENTITIES AREA(COMMUNITY
CENTER,LEASING,LAUNDRY,BIKE,POOL R.R.)

Comments Area

GROUND FLOOR COMMUNITY
CENTER/LEASING OFFICE

3353 SF

LAUNDRY,BIKE,POOL R.R. 755 SF

TOTAL CIRCULATION/COMMON*

Area

26868 SF

TOTAL NET RENTABLE SQUARE FOOTAGES

1 BD GROSS SF = 581 SF X (42 COUNT) = 24,402 SF
2 BD GROSS SF = 823 SF X (69 COUNT) = 56,787 SF
3 BD GROSS SF = 1,112 X (39 COUNT) = 43,368 SF

TOTAL: 124,557 SF

UNIT TYPE TOTALS

UNIT TYPE COUNT

1A BD 20

1B BD 22

2A BD 10

2B BD 59

3A BD 4

3B BD 35

*INCLUDES CORRIDORS, IDF, STORAGE, 
JANITORS, ELECTRICAL/BATTERY, 
MAINTENANCE, POOL EQUIP/SUPPLIES

UNIT MATRIX

UNIT TYPE COUNT

BUILDING 1

01-GROUND FLOOR

1B BD 2

2B BD 4

3B BD 2

02-SECOND FLOOR

1B BD 2

2B BD 4

3B BD 2

03-THIRD FLOOR

2B BD 4

3B BD 2

BUILDING 2

01-GROUND FLOOR

1A BD 3

2B BD 4

3B BD 2

02-SECOND FLOOR

1A BD 2

2A BD 1

2B BD 4

3B BD 2

03-THIRD FLOOR

1A BD 2

2A BD 1

2B BD 4

3B BD 2

BUILDING 3

01-GROUND FLOOR

1A BD 1

1B BD 2

2A BD 1

2B BD 2

3A BD 1

3B BD 2

02-SECOND FLOOR

1A BD 1

1B BD 2

2A BD 1

2B BD 2

3A BD 1

3B BD 2

03-THIRD FLOOR

1A BD 1

1B BD 2

2A BD 1

2B BD 2

3B BD 2

BUILDING 4

01-GROUND FLOOR

1A BD 1

1B BD 2

UNIT MATRIX

UNIT TYPE COUNT

2A BD 1

2B BD 2

3A BD 1

3B BD 2

02-SECOND FLOOR

1A BD 1

1B BD 2

2A BD 1

2B BD 2

3A BD 1

3B BD 2

03-THIRD FLOOR

1A BD 1

1B BD 2

2A BD 1

2B BD 2

3B BD 2

BUILDING 5

01-GROUND FLOOR

1A BD 3

2B BD 4

3B BD 2

02-SECOND FLOOR

1A BD 2

2A BD 1

2B BD 4

3B BD 2

03-THIRD FLOOR

1A BD 2

2A BD 1

2B BD 4

3B BD 2

BUILDING 6

01-GROUND FLOOR

2B BD 3

3B BD 1

02-SECOND FLOOR

2B BD 2

3B BD 2

03-THIRD FLOOR

2B BD 2

3B BD 2

BUILDING 7

01-GROUND FLOOR

1B BD 3

2B BD 1

02-SECOND FLOOR

1B BD 2

2B BD 2

03-THIRD FLOOR

BUILDING AREAS UNIT MATRIX DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS CODE ANALYSIS 

UNIT TYPE LEGEND KEY 

TYPE A = LONG SIDE ENTRY TO UNIT 
TYPE B = SHORT SIDE ENTRY TO UNIT

1A BD = 1-BEDROOM TYPE A
1B BD = 1-BEDROOM TYPE B
2A BD = 2-BEDROOM TYPE A
2B BD = 2-BEDROOM TYPE B
3A BD = 3-BEDROOM TYPE A
3B BD = 3-BEDROOM TYPE B

ALLOWABLE BUILDING HEIGHT (TABLE 504.3)

GENERAL BUILDING INFORMATION - ALLOWED
(BASED ON THE 2022 CBC)

ALLOWABLE NUMBER OF STORIES (TABLE 504.4)

ALLOWABLE BUILDING AREA PER STORY (TABLE 506.2)

TOTAL ALLOWABLE BUILDING AREA (TABLE 506.2)

CONSTRUCTION TYPE (TABLE 601)

OCCUPANCY CLASIFICATION (SEC. 302.1)

VA

70'-0"

4

36,000 SF

36,000 SF

R-2

BUILDING 1,2,3,4 
AND 5 NFPA 13

ALLOWABLE BUILDING HEIGHT (TABLE 504.3)

GENERAL BUILDING INFORMATION - ALLOWED
(BASED ON THE 2022 CBC)

ALLOWABLE NUMBER OF STORIES (TABLE 504.4)

ALLOWABLE BUILDING AREA PER STORY (TABLE 506.2)

TOTAL ALLOWABLE BUILDING AREA (TABLE 506.2)

CONSTRUCTION TYPE (TABLE 601)

OCCUPANCY CLASIFICATION (SEC. 302.1)

VB

60'-0"

3

21,000 SF

21,000 SF

R-2

BUILDING 6 NFPA 13

ALLOWABLE BUILDING HEIGHT (TABLE 504.3)

GENERAL BUILDING INFORMATION - ALLOWED
(BASED ON THE 2022 CBC)

ALLOWABLE NUMBER OF STORIES (TABLE 504.4)

ALLOWABLE BUILDING AREA PER STORY (TABLE 506.2)

TOTAL ALLOWABLE BUILDING AREA (TABLE 506.2)

CONSTRUCTION TYPE (TABLE 601)

OCCUPANCY CLASIFICATION (SEC. 302.1)

VA

70'-0"

3

34,500 SF

34,500 SF

B,A3,R2

BUILDING 7 NFPA 13

ALLOWABLE BUILDING HEIGHT (TABLE 504.3)

GENERAL BUILDING INFORMATION - ALLOWED
(BASED ON THE 2022 CBC)

ALLOWABLE NUMBER OF STORIES (TABLE 504.4)

ALLOWABLE BUILDING AREA PER STORY (TABLE 506.2)

TOTAL ALLOWABLE BUILDING AREA (TABLE 506.2)

CONSTRUCTION TYPE (TABLE 601)

OCCUPANCY CLASIFICATION (SEC. 302.1)

VB

60'-0"

1

9,000 SF

9,000 SF

S-1

POOL BUILDING

(NS) NON 
SPRINKLERED

ALLOWABLE AREA CALCULATIONS

GROUND FLOOR

OCCUPANCY R-2 A-3 B S-2 U SUM OF RATIOS
AREA SF 3,038 1,229 537 157 984
ALLOWABLE AREA SF 36,000 34,500 54,000 63,000 27,000
RATIO(AREA/ALLOWABLE) .084 .036 .010 .003 .036 .169<1

SECOND FLOOR

OCCUPANCY R-2
AREA SF 3,911
ALLOWABLE AREA SF 36,000
RATIO(AREA/ALLOWABLE) .011 .011<1

THIRD FLOOR

OCCUPANCY R-2
AREA SF 2,074
ALLOWABLE AREA SF 36,000
RATIO(AREA/ALLOWABLE) .058 .058<1

MIXED OCCUPANCY: MULTISTORY BUILDING W/ OCCUPANCIES SEPARATED PER TABLE 508.4.2

AGGREGATE SUM OF RATIOS PER CBC 506.2.2, EQUATION 5-3 SHALL NOT EXCEED 2: .238<2

NO PORTIONS OF THE BUILDING HAVE BEEN EXCLUDED FROM THE BUILDING AREA ANALYSIS.

ALL AREAS, INCLUDED BUT NOT LIMITED TO SHAFTS, STORAGE ROOMS, BATHROOMS, EQUIPMENT ROOMS AND UNOCCUPIED 
SPACES HAVE BEEN INCLUDED IN THE BUILDING AREA. 



PARKING TABLE

SEE THE CALCULATIONS BELOW FOR THE BREAKDOWN PER PARKING FACILITY AND CODE REFERENCES

NOTES:
• THE TOTAL PARKING DOES NOT INCLUDE LOADING ZONES
• ALL VEHICULAR SPACES ARE INTENDED TO BE ASSIGNED TO SPECIFIC UNIT OR EMPLOYEE UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED
• ISA SYMBOLS SHOWN FOR GRAPHIC COORDINATION ONLY. ADA SPACES TO COMPLY WITH 2022 CBC. 

3 PARKING FACILITIES
1. NORTHERN PARKING LOT
2. CENTRAL PARKING LOT
3. SOUTHERN PARKING LOT

ACCESSIBLE PARKING 

NORTHERN PARKING LOT:
95 SPACES TOTAL (57 COVERED/38 UNCOVERED)
65 UNITS - INCLUDING 3 ADA/CBC/504 MOBILITY UNITS

65 SPACES = 3 ACCESSIBLE (2 COVERED/ 1 UNCOVERED) PER 11B-208.2.3.1
1 VAN & 2 STD ADA (REQUIRED)

30 SPACES @ 2% = 1 ACCESSIBLE (COVERED) PER 11B-208.2.3.2
1 VAN (REQUIRED)

CENTRAL PARKING LOT:
20 UNCOVERED SPACES TOTAL
20 UNITS - INCLUDING 1 ADA/CBC/504 MOBILITY UNIT

20 SPACES = 1 ACCESSIBLE PER 11B-208.2.3.1
1 VAN (REQUIRED)

SOUTHERN PARKING LOT:
104 SPACES TOTAL (84 COVERED/20 UNCOVERED)
  65 UNITS - INCLUDING 4 ADA/CBC/504 MOBILITY UNITS

65 SPACES = 4 ACCESSIBLE (2 COVERED / 2 UNCOVERED) PER 11B-208.2.3.1
1 VAN & 3 STD ADA (REQUIRED)

39 SPACES @ 2% = 1 ACCESSIBLE (COVERED) PER 11B-208.2.3.2
1 VAN (REQUIRED)

ELECTRIC VEHICLE

NORTHERN PARKING LOT:
95 SPACES TOTAL (57 COVERED/38 UNCOVERED)

10% OF 95 SPACES = 10 EVCS
40% OF 95 SPACES = 38 EV RECEPTACLES
ACCESSIBLE EVCS = 0 PER CBC 11B-228.3.2 EXC. 2*

CENTRAL PARKING LOT:
20 UNCOVERED SPACES TOTAL

10% OF 20 SPACES = 2 EVCS
40% OF 20 SPACES = 8 EV RECEPTACLES 
ACCESSIBLE EVCS = 0 PER CBC 11B-228.3.2 EXC. 2*

SOUTHERN PARKING LOT:
104 SPACES TOTAL (84 COVERED/20 UNCOVERED)

10% OF 104 SPACES = 11 EVCS
40% OF 104 SPACES = 42 EV RECEPTACLES
ACCESSIBLE EVCS = 0 PER CBC 11B-228.3.2 EXC. 2*

NOTES:
• *CBC 2022 1B-228.3.2 - EXCEPTION 2: IN PUBLIC HOUSING FACILITIES, EVCS INTENDED FOR USE BY AN EV OWNER OR 

OPERATOR AT THEIR RESIDENCE SHALL NOT BE REQUIRED TO COMPLY WITH SECTION 11B-228.3.2
• WHERE FOUR OR FEWER TOTAL EVCS ARE PROVIDED WITHIN A FACILITY, THE ACCESS AISLE FOR VAN ACCESSIBLE SPACES 

MAY BE LOCATED ON THE DRIVER SIDE PER CBC 2022 11B-812.7.1 EXCEPTION. EVCS VAN ACCESSIBLE SPACES MUST 
MAINTAIN A 12'-0" WIDE SPACE AND 5'-0" AISLE MINIMUM.  

• STANDARD VAN SPACES TO HAVE AN ACCESS AISLE LOCATED ON THE PASSENGER SIDE

ADA MOBILITY ACCESSIBLE
THIS IS A MOBILITY FEATURE DWELLING UNIT THAT COMPLIES WITH THE ACCESSIBILITY PROVISION OF CBC 11B AND 2010 ADA STANDARDS. THIS 
UNIT, AS SHOWN ON THE SITE PLAN, IS ON AN ACCESSIBLE ROUTE. 

5% OF 150 UNITS = 8 UNITS
+/-25% (1) ONE-BEDROOM = 2 MOBILITY UNITS
+/-50% (2) TWO-BEDROOM = 4 MOBILITY UNITS
+/-25% (3) THREE-BEDROOM = 2 MOBILITY UNITS 

GENERAL NOTES
• THIS PROJECT DOES NOT HAVE ELEVATORS. ALL OF THE UNIT BUILDINGS ARE WALK-UPS.
• ALL MOBILITY UNITS TO BE LOCATED ON THE GROUND FLOOR 

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002

G.03PROJECT DATA
3337-01-HS24 06/04/2025

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE APARTMENTS
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO, RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270

PARKING CALCULATIONSACCESSIBLE MOBILITY UNIT INFORMATION

PARKING TYPE

TOTAL PARKING 219

TOTAL COVERED CARPORT SPACES 141

PROVIDED

TOTAL UNCOVERED SPACES 78

TOTAL STANDARD ACCESSIBLE SPACES 5

TOTAL VAN ACCESSIBLE SPACES 5

TOTAL EV CHARGERS 23

88TOTAL EV-RECEPTACLES



ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002

G.04SITE PHOTO BOARD
3337-01-HS24 06/04/2025

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE APARTMENTS
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO, RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270



A

C0

H

B

C2

E

A

A

D

G

F

I

F

F

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002

G.05COLOR AND MATERIALS BOARD
06/04/2025

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE HOUSING
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO, RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270



ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002

G.06PHOTO SIMULATIONS FROM VIA VAIL
3337-01-HS24 06/04/2025

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE APARTMENTS
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO, RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270



WIND ROSE-JANUARY

WIND ROSE-JULY

WIND ROSE-NOVEMBER

PREVAILING WINDS FROM THE NORTHWEST

TREES STRATEGICALLY 

PLACED TO BREAK UP

PREVAILING WINDS

MASSING ORIENTED TO 

SHIELD AGAINST 

PREVAILING WINDS

SHADING STRATEGIES USED TO 

LIMIT HEAT GAIN FROM 

SOUTHERN SUN EXPOSURE

AWNINGS AND 

OVERHANGS

INCORPORATED ON THE 

FACADES WITH THE MOST 

SOUTHERN SUN EXPOSURE 

TO LIMIT HEAT GAINDEEP INSET 

BALCONIES TYPICAL

COURTYARD SHADED 

BY BUILDINGS,

TREES, AND TRELLIS'S

STEPPED 

BUILDING 

DESIGN

FREQUENT 

SETBACKS

AND RECESSES

FACADE 

OPENINGS,

PUNCHES, AND 

PROTRUSIONS

LANDSCAPING 

TO BREAK UP 

WIND

PREVAILING WIND 

FROM NORTHWEST

STEPPED 

BUILDING 

DESIGN

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002

G.07ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS
3337-01-HS24 06/04/2025

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE APARTMENTS
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO, RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270

WIND DATA

SHADING STRATEGIES

SITE ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS

WIND TUNNEL PROTECTION STRATEGIES

NOTE: REFERENCE THE SITE PLAN FOR THE LATEST SITE & PARKING LAYOUT



B

B

B

K

A

A

A

A

2'

3
'

8
'

1
0'

1
0'

3 '

3 ' 1 0'

1 0'

3 '

3 ' 1 0'

1 0'

3
'

3
'

1
0'

1
0'

3 '

3 ' 1 0'

1 0'

T

T

T

T

T

T

W

D

WWWW

DDDD

4 CY
Garbage

4 CY
Garbage

4
 C

Y
T

R
A

S
H

4
 C

Y
R

E
C

Y
C

L
E

4
 C

Y
T

R
A

S
H

4
 C

Y
R

E
C

Y
C

L
E

4
 C

Y
T

R
A

S
H

4
 C

Y
R

E
C

Y
C

L
E

PROPERTY TO THE NORTH (PARCEL 1)

F
U

T
U

R
E

 V
IA

 V
A

IL
 E

X
T

E
N

S
IO

N

F
U

T
U

R
E

 P
U

B
L
IC

 P
A

R
K

SITE DIMENSION

652' - 7 1/2" OVERALL 

PROPERTY LINE  (S89°35'36"W 652.62')

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E
  

(N
0
0
°0

3
'0

4
"E

 3
3
3
. 7

4
' )

PROPERTY LINE  (N89°35'36"E 652.62')

(N
0
0
°0

3
'0

4
"E

 3
3
3
. 7

4
' )

V
IA

 V
A

IL
 C

L

DEDICATION 

33'-0" R.O.W.

B
L
D

G
 S

E
T

B
A

C
K

1
0

'-
0

" 
R

E
Q

.
3

1
3

' -
 9

"

B
L
D

G
 S

E
T

B
A

C
K

1
0

'-
0

" 
R

E
Q

.

S
IT

E
 D

IM
E

N
S

IO
N

 

3
3

3
' -

 9
" 

O
V

E
R

A
L
L

 

EASEMENT 

44'-0" CVWD

GAME COURT POOL
POOL EQUIP

PLAYGROUND

UNIT BUILDING 7
TYPE E

(STORIES VARY)

L
O

A
D

IN
G

L
O

A
D

IN
G

UNIT BUILDING 1
TYPE A

(STORIES VARY)

UNIT BUILDING 2
TYPE B

(3 STORIES)

UNIT BUILDING 3
TYPE C

(STORIES VARY)

UNIT BUILDING 4
TYPE C

(STORIES VARY)

UNIT BUILDING 5
TYPE B

(3 STORIES)

UNIT BUILDING 6
TYPE D

(3 STORIES)

ELEC./
BATTERY

ELEC./
BATTERY

ELEC./
BATTERY

ELEC./
BATTERY

LAUNDRY
LAUNDRY

R.R.R.R.

COMMUNITY ROOM/
KITCHEN

BIKES OFFICE

LAUNDRY
R.R. R.R.

JAN.

MAIL
RM.

LEASING
OFFICE OFFICE

MAINT.

ELECTRICAL

POOL 
SUPPLIES

E
L
E

C
./

B
A

T
T

E
R

Y

ELEC./
BATTERY

BICYCLE
RM.

BBQ
AREA

C
O

V
E

R
E

D
 P

A
T

IO

C
O

V
E

R
E

D
 P

A
T

IO

COMMUNITY BUILDING

BUTTERFLY GARDEN

(3) BED

(1) BED

(2) BED

(2) BED

(3) BED

(3) BED

(1) BED

(2) BED

(3) BED

(2) BED (3) BED

(3) BED

(1) BED

(1) BED

(2) BED

(2) BED

(3) BED

(3) BED

(1) BED

(2) BED

(2) BED

(2) BED

(2) BED

(2) BED

(3) BED

(1) BED

(1) BED

(1) BED
(2-BED ABOVE)

(2) BED

(2) BED

(2) BED

(2) BED

(3) BED

(3) BED

(2) BED

(2) BED

(1) BED

(1) BED

(2) BED
(3-BED ABOVE)

(1) BED

(1) BED
(2-BED ABOVE)

(1) BED

(2) BED

6'-0" WIDE 
TRAIL G

A
T

E

TRASH

TRASH

TRASH

N

EXIT
ONLY

(3) STORIES

(1) STORY

SOLAR CARPORTS, TYP

POOL HOUSE
(1 STORY)

(3
) 

S
T

O
R

IE
S

(2
) 

S
T

O
R

Y

(3
) 

S
T

O
R

IE
S

(2
) 

S
T

O
R

IE
S

(2) STORIES

(1) STORY

(2
) 

S
T

O
R

IE
S

(3
) 

S
T

O
R

IE
S

(2) STORIES

(3) STORIES

(2
) 

S
T

O
R

IE
S

(3
) 

S
T

O
R

IE
S

(3) STORIES

(2) STORIES

SOLAR CARPORTS, TYP

SITE INFORMATION 

PARCEL: A-2
APN: 685-090-016
LOT SIZE:      217,800.72 SF (5 ACRES)
TOTAL UNITS: 150 UNITS
TOTAL PARKING: 219 SPACES
*SEE PROJECT DATA SHEET FOR 
FURTHER SITE & PARKING INFORMATION

SOLAR CARPORT, TYP

PEDESTRIAN 
GATE 
ACCESS

ENTRY 
PERGOLA

VEHICULAR
TELESCOPIC
GATE EXIT

PEDESTRIAN 
GATE 
ACCESS

S
H

O
W

E
R

S

A.02

1

A.02

2
(2) BED

(2) BED

STOR.

IT

VAN

VAN
VAN

VAN

V
A

N

EV

EV EVEV

EVEV EV

EV EV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-R EV-REVEV

EV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-R

EV-REV-REV-REV-R

EV-REV-R

EV-REV-REV-REV-R

EV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-R

E
V

E
V

E
V

-R
E

V
-R

E
V

-R
E

V
-R

E
V

-R
E

V
-R

E
V

-R
E

V
-R

EV

EV-R

EVEV

EV EVEV

EVEVEV

EV-R EV-R

EV-R

EV-R

EV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-R

EV-REV-REV-REV-R

EV-R

EV-REV-R

EV-R
EV-REV-R

EV-R EV-REV-R EV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-R EV

REFERENCE CIVIL & 
LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS FOR 
RETAINING WALLS & FENCES.

REFERENCE CIVIL & 
LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS FOR 
RETAINING WALLS & FENCES.

BBQ AREA

RETAINING WALLS & 
FENCES. REFERENCE 
CIVIL & LANDSCAPE 
DRAWINGS.

(1) BED

LAUNDRY

(1) BED

(2) BED

(3) BED

(1) BED
(2-BED ABOVE)

LAUNDRY

TRASH RM

31

64

9

20

11
30

54

64

1

65

73 74 104

105

124

125
135

136

165

219166

EV

EV-R EV-R

(1) BED

(2) BED

22' - 10 1/2"

2
0

' 
- 

1
"

2
0

' 
- 

7
 1

/2
"

2
0

' 
- 

2
 1

/2
"

BUILDING 1 = 22 
BUILDING 2 = 27
BUILDING 3 = 26
BUILDING 4 = 26
BUILDING 5 = 27
BUILDING 6 = 12
BUILDING 7 = 10

TOTAL UNITS = 150 

UNIT INFORMATION

TOTAL 1-BED UNITS = 42 
TOTAL 2-BED UNITS = 69
TOTAL 3-BED UNITS = 39 (INCLUDES ONE MANAGER'S UNIT) 
TOTAL UNITS = 150 

UNIT COUNT PER BUILDING UNIT TYPE COUNT

TRANSFORMER 
(FOR FUTURE USE)

2
4

' 
- 

3
"

2
4

' 
- 

3
"

2
0

' 
- 

5
"

20' - 6"

20' - 0"

TYP

9' - 0"

10' - 0" END STALL, TYP

TYP

12' - 0" VAN

5' - 0"

TYP

9' - 0"

BLDG SETBACK

30' - 9" PROPOSED

BLDG SETBACK

20' - 0" REQ.

SECTOR SLEEVE, TYP

TRANSFORMER,TYP

TSS

T

T

T

T

T

SS

SS

FIRE TRUCK 
TURNAROUND

FIRE TRUCK 
TURNAROUND

NORTHERN PARKING LOT

SOUTHERN PARKING LOT

C
E

N
T

R
A

L
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 L

O
T

R
. O

.W
. 

D
E

D
IC

A
T

IO
N

6' - 1 1/2"

5' - 3 1/2"

6' - 4 1/2"

5
' 
- 

6
"

APPROX. DISTANCE FROM PL TO FULLY 
CANTILEVERED SOLAR CARPORTS

32' - 2"
APPROX. DISTANCE FROM PL TO FULLY 
CANTILEVERED SOLAR CARPORTS

32' - 2"

APPROX. DISTANCE FROM PL TO FULLY 
CANTILEVERED SOLAR CARPORTS

APPROX. DISTANCE FROM PL TO FULLY 
CANTILEVERED SOLAR CARPORTS 5

' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

STANDARD ACCESSIBLE SPACE WHEN SHOWN ON A PARKING SPACE
MOBILITY CBC/ADA/504 UNITS WHEN SHOWN ON A UNIT

ELECTRICAL VEHICLE RECEPTACLEEV-RVAN ACCESSIBLE SPACE
VAN

ACCESSIBLE PATH OF TRAVEL 

(SHALL BE 48" MIN.  CBC 11B-403.5)

EASEMENT

SETBACK

PROPERTY LINE

SITE LEGEND

ELECTRICAL VEHICLE CHARGING SPACEEV

SOLAR CARPORTS

(ISA SYMBOL SHOWN ON PLANS FOR GRAPHIC COORDINATION. 
SPACES TO BE PAINTED WITH ISA PER CBC) PARKING COUNT###

TRANSFORMER, REF. ELECTRICALT

SECTOR SLEEVE, REF. ELECTRICALSS

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002

A.01SITE PLAN
3337-01-HS24 06/04/2025

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE APARTMENTS
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO, RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270

SCALE:  1" = 20'-0"
1

OVERALL SITE PLAN

0' 10' 40'20'



F
U

T
U

R
E

 V
IA

 V
A

I L
 E

X
T

E
N

S
IO

N

V
IA

 V
A

IL
 C

E
N

T
E

R
L
I N

E
 (

N
0
0
° 0

3
' 0

4
" E

 3
3
3
.7

4
')

TURNAROUND
ENTRY ONLY

TURNAROUND
EXIT ONLY

PEDESTRIAN 
GATE ACCESS

VEHICULAR 
SLIDING GATE 
ACCESS
(ENTRY ONLY)

R.O.W. DEDICATION

33' - 0"

ENTRY CALL BOX 

2
4

' 
- 

0
"

CVWD EASEMENT 

44' - 0"

A.02

3

ELECTRICAL 
SECTOR SLEEVE

STONE WALL 

POTENTIAL 
LOCATION FOR 
SIGNAGE 

FENCE

*FIRE TRUCK 
ENTRY ONLY

R
.O

.W
 D

E
D

IC
A

T
IO

N

6
' 
- 

0
"

4
' 
- 

1
"

VEHICLE, TYP

WALKING PATH

R 29' - 11 1/2"

50' - 3 1/2"

2
0

' 
- 

0
"

EXIT
ONLY

VEHICULAR
TELESCOPIC
GATE EXIT

PEDESTRIAN 
GATE 
ACCESS

VEHICLE GATE ENTRY CALL BOX

BFT CELLULAR CALL BOX WITH KEYPAD-
PEDESTAL MOUNT OR OWNER APPROVED 
EQUAL.

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002

A.02ENLARGED ENTRY AND EXIT PLANS
3337-01-HS24 06/04/2025

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE APARTMENTS
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO, RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"

1 ENLARGED ENTRY TURNAROUND
SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"

2 ENLARGED EXIT PLAN

3 CALL BOX DETAIL

*NOTES:

• FIRE TRUCKS TO ACCESS THE SITE THROUGH THE ENTRY 
TURNAROUND AS DEPICTED IN ENLARGED PLAN DETAIL 
1/A.02. FIRE TRUCKS TO EXIT THE SITE USING THE SITE EXIT 
AS SHOWN IN ENLARGED PLAN DETAIL 2/A.02. SEE THE FIRE 
ACCESS SITE PLAN ON SHEET A.04 FOR FURTHER 
INFORMATION ON THE TURNING RADIUS AND DRIVEAISLE 
DIMENSIONS.



P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

R
.O

.W
. 

D
E

D
IC

A
T

IO
N

 L
IN

E

FUTURE PARK

V
IA

 V
A

IL
 C

E
N

T
E

R
L

IN
E

R
E

Q
. 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

T
B

A
C

K

20' - 0" 33' - 4"

R
E

Q
. 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

T
B

A
C

K

RESIDENTIAL UNIT BUILDING 3 RESIDENTIAL UNIT BUILDING 2 RESIDENTIAL UNIT BUILDING 1

SIDEWALK, TYP.
5' - 0" MIN. DRIVE AISLE

24' - 0"

PARKING

18' - 0"

SIDEWALK, TYP.
5' - 0" MIN.

TRAIL

6' - 0"

LOADING AREA
9' - 0"

VIA VAIL

R
E

Q
. 

IN
C

R
E

A
S

E
D

 S
E

T
B

A
C

K
2
 S

T
O

R
Y

 E
L

E
M

E
N

T
S

R
E

Q
. 

IN
C

R
E

A
S

E
D

 S
E

T
B

A
C

K

3
 S

T
O

R
Y

 E
L

E
M

E
N

T
S

R
E

Q
. 

IN
C

R
E

A
S

E
D

 S
E

T
B

A
C

K

3
 S

T
O

R
Y

 E
L

E
M

E
N

T
S

3 STORY

2 STORY

3 STORY

*NOTE: PROPOSED 
CONCESSION FOR THE 
INCREASED SETBACK OF 
THE 3 STORY ELEMENTS 
FROM THE WESTERN 
PROPERTY LINE

3' - 0"

R
E

Q
. 

IN
C

R
E

A
S

E
D

 S
E

T
B

A
C

K
2
 S

T
O

R
Y

 E
L

E
M

E
N

T
S

6' BLOCK 
WALL. 
REFERENCE 
CIVIL 
DRAWINGS

11' - 0" 20' - 0"

ROW DEDICATION

33' - 0"

BLDG SETBACK

30' - 9" PROPOSED

30' - 10"

*NOTE: PROPOSED 
CONCESSION FOR 
BUILDING SETBACK AND 
THE INCREASED SETBACK 
OF THE 3 STORY ELEMENTS 
FROM THE EASTERN RIGHT-
OF-WAY DEDICATION LINE

10' - 2"

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

NEIGHBORING PROPERTY
TO THE SOUTH 

NEIGHBORING PROPERTY
TO THE NORTH

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

3
9

' 
- 

0
"R

E
Q

. 
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

E
T

B
A

C
K

30' - 5"10' - 0"

R
E

Q
. 

IN
C

R
E

A
S

E
D

 S
E

T
B

A
C

K

10' - 0"38' - 0"

R
E

Q
. 

IN
C

R
E

A
S

E
D

 S
E

T
B

A
C

K

R
E

Q
. 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

T
B

A
C

K

F
O

R
 3

 S
T

O
R

Y
 E

L
E

M
E

N
T

S

10' - 0"

R
E

Q
. 

IN
C

R
E

A
S

E
D

 S
E

T
B

A
C

K

F
O

R
 2

 S
T

O
R

Y
 E

L
E

M
E

N
T

S

2 STORIES

3 STORIES

2 STORIES

3 STORIES

3
 S

T
O

R
Y

 E
L

E
M

E
N

T
S

2' - 10"

R
E

Q
. 

IN
C

R
E

A
S

E
D

 S
E

T
B

A
C

K

2
 S

O
R

Y
 E

L
E

M
E

N
T

S
 

6' - 6"

PARKING

18' - 0"

DRIVE AISLE

24' - 0"

PARKING

18' - 0"

SIDEWALK, TYP.
5' - 0" MIN.

SIDEWALK, TYP. 
5' - 0" MIN.PARKING

18' - 0"

DRIVE AISLE

24' - 0"

PARKING

18' - 0"6' - 6"
RESIDENTIAL UNIT BUILDING 5 RESIDENTIAL UNIT BUILDING 2COURTYARD

SHORT RETAINING 
WALL AS NEEDED 

WITH FREE STANDING 
FENCE ON TOP. 

REFERENCE CIVIL 
DRAWINGS

FREE STANDING PICKET 
FENCE. REFERENCE 
CIVIL & LANDSCAPE  

DRAWINGS

PROPOSED BLDG SETBACK

50' - 0"
BLDG SETBACK

50' - 0" PROPOSED

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002

A.03SITE CROSS SECTIONS
3337-01-HS24 06/04/2025

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE APARTMENTS
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO, RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270

SCALE:  1" = 20'-0"
1

SITE CROSS SECTION 1

SCALE:  1" = 20'-0"
2

SITE CROSS SECTION 2

SITE CROSS SECTION NOTES

-*PLEASE SEE THE PROJECT CONCESSIONS & WAIVERS FOR FURTHER INFORMATION 
-PER RANCHO MIRAGE MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 17.20.100(A) & (C) THE SETBACKS ARE TO BE 
INCREASED AT A MINIMUM RATE OF TWO FEET FOR EACH ONE FOOT OF ADDITIONAL BUILDING 
HEIGHT ABOVE TWENTY FEET, WHICH SHALL BE MEASURED FROM THE PROPERTY LINE TO EACH 
PORTION OF THE BUILDING THAT EXCEEDS TWENTY FEET. 
-REFERENCE CIVIL SITE CROSS SECTIONS FOR FURTHER INFORMATION



UP

W
W

D

D

UP

UP

W

D

WWWW

DDDDW
W

D

D

UP

WWD D DW

WWD D DW

A

B

B

A

A
B

K

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

2'

6'

6'

TRASH

T

T

T

T

T

T

PROPERTY TO THE NORTH (PARCEL 1)

F
U

T
U

R
E

 V
IA

 V
A

IL
 E

X
T

E
N

S
IO

N

F
U

T
U

R
E

 P
U

B
L
IC

 P
A

R
K

PROPERTY LINE  (S89°35'36"W 652.62')

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E
  

(N
0
0
°0

3
'0

4
"E

 3
3
3
. 7

4
' )

PROPERTY LINE  (N89°35'36"E 652.62')

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E
  

(N
0
0
°0

3
'0

4
"E

 3
3
3
. 7

4
' )

V
IA

 V
A

IL
 C

L

VAN

EV VAN
EV

VAN
R 24' - 0"

R
 45' - 0"

R
 4

5
' -

 0
"

R
 2

4'
 - 

0"R 24' - 0"

R
 4

5
' - 0

"

GAME COURT POOL PLAYGROUND

UNIT BUILDING 7
(STORIES VARY - NFPA 13)

L
O

A
D

IN
G

L
O

A
D

IN
GUNIT BUILDING 1

(NFPA 13)
UNIT BUILDING 2

(3 STORIES - NFPA 13)
UNIT BUILDING 3

(STORIES VARY - NFPA 13)

UNIT BUILDING 4
(STORIES VARY - NFPA 13)

UNIT BUILDING 5
(3 STORIES - NFPA 13)

UNIT BUILDING 6
(3 STORIES - NFPA 13)

COMMUNITY BUILDING

FIRE TRUCK TURNAROUND

PEDESTRIAN GATE
(PARK ACCESS)

TRASH

TRASH

N

TURNAROUND
ENTRY

TURNAROUND
EXIT

EXIT

(3) STORIES

(1) STORY

SOLAR CARPORTS, TYP

POOL HOUSE
(1 STORY - NS)

ENTRY 
PEDESTRIAN GATE
(WITH KNOX BOX)

PEDESTRIAN 
GATE (WITH 
KNOX BOX)

SOLAR 
CARPORT, 

TYP

(3
) 

S
T

O
R

IE
S

(2
) 

S
T

O
R

Y

(3
) 

S
T

O
R

IE
S

(2
) 

S
T

O
R

IE
S

(2) STORIES

(1) STORY

(2
) 

S
T

O
R

IE
S

(3
) 

S
T

O
R

IE
S

(2) STORIES

(3) STORIES

(2
) 

S
T

O
R

IE
S

(3
) 

S
T

O
R

IE
S

(3) STORIES

(2) STORIES

SOLAR CARPORTS, TYP

SITE INFORMATION 

PARCEL: A-2
APN: 685-090-016
LOT SIZE:      +/- 217,800 SF (5 ACRES)

*SEE PROJECT DATA SHEET FOR 
FURTHER SITE & PARKING INFORMATION

SOLAR CARPORT, TYP

FIRE ACCESS PLAN LEGEND

FIRE APPARATUS RADIUS 
(MIN.)

24'-0" WIDE FIRE ACCESS ROAD

FIRE TRUCK APPARATUS

150'-0" MAX. HOSE PULL 

PROJECT
ENTRY

R
2
4
'-0

"R45'-0"

R
 4

8
' - 0

"

R
 24' - 0"

TELESCOPIC
VEHICLE GATE 
(24'-0" WIDE MIN. 
WITH KNOX BOX)

PEDESTRIAN GATE
(WITH KNOX BOX)

150' HOSE PULL

1
5
0
' 
H

O
S

E
 P

U
L
L

150' HOSE PULL

1
4
7
' 
H

O
S

E
 P

U
L
L

150' HOSE PULL

150' HOSE PULL

+
/-

1
4
9
'-
1
0
" 

H
O

S
E

 P
U

L
L

1
4
9
'-
1
0
" 

H
O

S
E

 P
U

L
L

9
1

' -
 5

 1
/1

6
"

+
/-

1
4
7
'-
3
" 

H
O

S
E

 P
U

L
L

+
/-

1
4
4
'-1

" H
O

S
E

 P
U

L
L

1
5
0
' 
H

O
S

E
 P

U
L
L

150' HOSE PULL

1
0

' 
- 

0
"

1
0

' 
- 

0
"

10' - 0" 10' - 0"

150' - 0"

9
6

' -
 1

1
 2

4
1

/2
5
6

"

150' HOSE PULL

150' HOSE PULL

150' - 0"

2
4

' 
- 

0
"

2
4

' 
- 

0
"

2
4

' 
- 

0
"

A.02

1

Sim

1
0

' 
- 

0
"

1
0

' 
- 

0
"

10' - 0"

1
0

' 
- 

0
"

25' - 0"

2
9

' 
- 

0
"

2
5

' 
- 

0
"

2
0

' 
- 

0
"

45' - 0"

2
4

' 
- 

0
"

25' - 0"

2
9

' 
- 

0
"

2
5

' 
- 

0
"

2
0

' 
- 

0
"

45' - 0" R
 4

5
' -

 0
"

R 24' - 0
"

FIRE TRUCK TURNAROUND

FIRE TRUCK TURNAROUND

R
 2

4' - 0
"

R
 4

7
' - 5

"

60' - 0"

2
7
' - 7 1

/2
"

2
4

' 
- 

0
"

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002

A.04FIRE ACCESS SITE PLAN
3337-01-HS24 06/04/2025

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE APARTMENTS
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO, RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270

SCALE:  1" = 20'-0"
1

FIRE ACCESS PLAN



1

1

2

2

3

3

4

4

7

7

C C

D D

B B

5

5

6

6

A A

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

1-101

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

1-103

UNIT

3 BD / TYPE B

1-102

UNIT

3 BD / TYPE B

1-104

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

1-105

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

1-107

UNIT

1 BD / TYPE B

1-106

UNIT

1 BD / TYPE B

1-108

ELEC./ BATERY

STORAGE

BIKE STORAGE 5
5

' 
- 

6
 1

/2
"

157' - 4 1/2"

1

1

2

2

3

3

4

4

7

7

C C

D D

B B

5

5

6

6

A A

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

1-203

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

1-201 UNIT

3 BD / TYPE B

1-202

UNIT

3 BD / TYPE B

1-204

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

1-205

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

1-207

UNIT

1 BD / TYPE B

1-206

UNIT

1 BD / TYPE B

1-208

157' - 4 1/2"

5
5

' 
- 

6
 1

/2
"

BUILDING 1

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002

A1.1BLDG 1 (TYPE A) - PLANS
06/04/2025

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE HOUSING
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO, RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270

SCALE:  3/32" = 1'-0"
1

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

SCALE:  3/32" = 1'-0"
2

SECOND FLOOR PLAN

SEE SHEET G.02 FOR FLOOR PLAN SQUARE FOOTAGE

SEE SHEET G.02 FOR FLOOR PLAN SQUARE FOOTAGE



1

1

2

2

3

3

4

4

7

7

C C

D D

B B

5

5

6

6

A A

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

1-305

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

1-307UNIT

3 BD / TYPE B

1-304

UNIT

3 BD / TYPE B

1-302UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

1-301

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

1-303

157' - 4 1/2"

5
5

' 
- 

6
 1

/2
"

1

1

2

2

3

3

4

4

7

7

C C

D D

B B

5

5

6

6

A A

157' - 4 1/2"

5
5

' 
- 

6
 1

/2
"

APPROXIMATE AREA FOR SOLAR

BUILDING 1

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002

A1.2BLDG 1 (TYPE A) - PLANS
06/04/2025

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE HOUSING
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO, RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270

SCALE:  3/32" = 1'-0"
1

THIRD FLOOR PLAN

SCALE:  3/32" = 1'-0"
2

ROOF PLAN

SEE SHEET G.02 FOR FLOOR PLAN SQUARE FOOTAGE

SEE SHEET G.02 FOR FLOOR PLAN SQUARE FOOTAGE

ROOF PLAN GENERAL NOTES

• NO ANTICIPATED MECHANICAL 

EQUIPMENT AT ROOF. IF ANY EQUIPMENT 

IS ADDED TO THE ROOF IT WILL BE 

SCREENED. PARAPET HEIGHTS TO BE A 

MINIMUM OF 42" HIGH.



01-GROUND FLOOR

0' - 0"

THIRD FLOOR PLATE

29' - 2 1/2"

04-T.O. PARAPET

35' - 2 1/2"

GROUND FLOOR PLATE

9' - 0"

SECOND FLOOR PLATE

19' - 1 1/4"

02-SECOND FLOOR

10' - 1 1/4"

03-THIRD FLOOR

20' - 2 1/2"

ROOF

31' - 2 1/2"

D

B

C1

C0

E

A

F

3
8

' 
- 

9
"

3
5

' 
- 

4
"

01-GROUND FLOOR

0' - 0"

THIRD FLOOR PLATE

29' - 2 1/2"

04-T.O. PARAPET

35' - 2 1/2"

GROUND FLOOR PLATE

9' - 0"

SECOND FLOOR PLATE

19' - 1 1/4"

02-SECOND FLOOR

10' - 1 1/4"

03-THIRD FLOOR

20' - 2 1/2"

ROOF

31' - 2 1/2"

SECOND STORY PARAPET

25' - 4 1/4"

D

B

C2

C0

E

A

G

F

3
8

' 
- 

9
"

1
2

' 
- 

0
"

F

MATERIAL SCHEDULE

BUILDING 1

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002

A1.3BLDG 1 (TYPE A) - ELEVATIONS
06/04/2025

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE HOUSING
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO, RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"
1

WEST ELEVATION PRESENTATION

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"
2

NORTH ELEVATION PRESENTATION

0' 4' 16'8'

1

2

REFERENCE COLOR AND MATERIALS BOARD

MARK DESCRIPTION

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

SIDING & BALCONY RAILINGS - TREX COMPOSITE 

CLADDING - COLOR: TIKI TORCH 

EXTERIOR PLASTER - 16/20 SAND FINISH - EXTERIOR 

WALLS - LA HABRA: EGGSHELL 

EXTERIOR PLASTER - OMEGA STUCCO - AKROTIQUE FINISH -

COLOR C0: 02 CANYON / C1: 07 NATIVE BROWN / C2: 10 CYPRESS

STONE VENEER - EL DORADO STONE -

CLIFFSTONE: WHITEBARK

WINDOWS - JELDWEN VINYL - FINISH: WHITE

METAL - RAILINGS, PARAPET CAP, TRIM, & WINDOW SHROUDS -

PAINTED DUN EDWARDS: BLACKJACK

BALCONY DOORS - JELDWEN OR EQUAL - MASONITE -

FINISH: WHITE

METAL AWNINGS - LAWRENCE METAL - CANOPY & AWNINGS -

COLOR: BLACK 



01-GROUND FLOOR

0' - 0"

THIRD FLOOR PLATE

29' - 2 1/2"

04-T.O. PARAPET

35' - 2 1/2"

GROUND FLOOR PLATE

9' - 0"

SECOND FLOOR PLATE

19' - 1 1/4"

02-SECOND FLOOR

10' - 1 1/4"

03-THIRD FLOOR

20' - 2 1/2"

ROOF

31' - 2 1/2"

SECOND STORY PARAPET

25' - 4 1/4"

A

B

C2

C0

D

E

2
5

' 
- 

4
 1

/2
"

3
8

' 
- 

9
"

01-GROUND FLOOR

0' - 0"

THIRD FLOOR PLATE

29' - 2 1/2"

04-T.O. PARAPET

35' - 2 1/2"

GROUND FLOOR PLATE

9' - 0"

SECOND FLOOR PLATE

19' - 1 1/4"

02-SECOND FLOOR

10' - 1 1/4"

03-THIRD FLOOR

20' - 2 1/2"

ROOF

31' - 2 1/2"

SECOND STORY ROOF

21' - 1 1/4"

SECOND STORY PARAPET

25' - 4 1/4"

B

E

A

D

C2

C0

A

A

G

2
5

' 
- 

4
 1

/2
"

3
7

' 
- 

1
1

 1
/2

"

F

MATERIAL SCHEDULE

BUILDING 1

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002

A1.4BLDG 1 (TYPE A) - ELEVATIONS
06/04/2025

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE HOUSING
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO, RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"
1

EAST ELEVATION PRESENTATION

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"
2

SOUTH ELEVATION PRESENTATION

0' 4' 16'8'

1

2

REFERENCE COLOR AND MATERIALS BOARD

MARK DESCRIPTION

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

SIDING & BALCONY RAILINGS - TREX COMPOSITE 

CLADDING - COLOR: TIKI TORCH 

EXTERIOR PLASTER - 16/20 SAND FINISH - EXTERIOR 

WALLS - LA HABRA: EGGSHELL 

EXTERIOR PLASTER - OMEGA STUCCO - AKROTIQUE FINISH -

COLOR C0: 02 CANYON / C1: 07 NATIVE BROWN / C2: 10 CYPRESS

STONE VENEER - EL DORADO STONE -

CLIFFSTONE: WHITEBARK

WINDOWS - JELDWEN VINYL - FINISH: WHITE

METAL - RAILINGS, PARAPET CAP, TRIM, & WINDOW SHROUDS -

PAINTED DUN EDWARDS: BLACKJACK

BALCONY DOORS - JELDWEN OR EQUAL - MASONITE -

FINISH: WHITE

METAL AWNINGS - LAWRENCE METAL - CANOPY & AWNINGS -

COLOR: BLACK 



1

A2.4

7

7

6

6

5

5

4

4

1

1

DD

FF

BB

3

3

2

2

AA

GG

EE

CC

2

A2.3

2

A2.4

1

A2.3

UNIT

1 BD / TYPE A

2-105 & 5-105

UNIT

1 BD / TYPE  A

2-103 & 5-103

UNIT

1 BD / TYPE A

2-101 & 5-101

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

2-102 & 5-102

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

2-104 & 5-104

UNIT

3 BD / TYPE B

2-106 & 5-106

UNIT

3 BD / TYPE B

2-108 & 5-108

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

2-107 & 5-107

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

2-109 & 5-109

ELEC. / BATTERY LAUNDRY

156' - 11"

5
5

' 
- 

6
 1

/2
"

1

A2.4

7

7

6

6

5

5

4

4

1

1

DD

FF

BB

3

3

2

2

AA

GG

EE

CC

2

A2.3

2

A2.4

1

A2.3

UNIT

1 BD / TYPE A

2-201 & 5-201

UNIT

1 BD / TYPE A

2-203 & 5-203

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE A

2-205 & 5-205

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

2-202 & 5-202

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

2-204 & 5-204

UNIT

3 BD / TYPE B

2-206 & 5-206

UNIT

3 BD / TYPE B

2-208 & 5-208

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

2-207  & 5-207

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

2-209 & 5-209

156' - 11"

5
5

' 
- 

6
 1

/2
"

BUILDING 2

BUILDING 5

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002

A2.1BLDG 2 & 5 (TYPE B) - PLANS
06/04/2025

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE HOUSING
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO, RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270

SCALE:  3/32" = 1'-0"
1

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

SCALE:  3/32" = 1'-0"
2

SECOND FLOOR PLAN

SEE SHEET G.02 FOR FLOOR PLAN SQUARE FOOTAGE

SEE SHEET G.02 FOR FLOOR PLAN SQUARE FOOTAGE



1

A-201

1

A2.4

7

7

6

6

5

5

4

4

1

1

DD

FF

BB

3

3

2

2

AA

GG

EE

CC

2

A2.3

2

A2.4

1

A2.3

UNIT

1 BD / TYPE A

2-301 & 5-301

UNIT

1 BD / TYPE A

2-303 & 5-303

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE A

2-305 & 5-305

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

2-302 & 5-302 UNIT

3 BD / TYPE B

2-306 & 5-306 UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

2-307 & 5-307

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

2-304 & 5-304 UNIT

3 BD / TYPE B

2-308 & 5-308 UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

2-309 & 5-309

156' - 11"

8
2

' -
 5

 7
/1

6
"

7

7

6

6

5

5

4

4

1

1

DD

FF

BB

3

3

2

2

AA

GG

EE

CC

156' - 11"

8
2

' -
 5

 7
/1

6
"

APPROXIMATE AREA FOR SOLAR

BUILDING 2

BUILDING 5

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002

A2.2BLDG 2 & 5 (TYPE B) - PLANS
06/04/2025

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE HOUSING
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO, RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270

SCALE:  3/32" = 1'-0"
1

THIRD FLOOR PLAN

SCALE:  3/32" = 1'-0"
2

ROOF PLAN

SEE SHEET G.02 FOR FLOOR PLAN SQUARE FOOTAGE

SEE SHEET G.02 FOR FLOOR PLAN SQUARE FOOTAGE

ROOF PLAN GENERAL NOTES

• NO ANTICIPATED MECHANICAL 
EQUIPMENT AT ROOF. IF ANY EQUIPMENT 
IS ADDED TO THE ROOF IT WILL BE 
SCREENED. PARAPET HEIGHTS TO BE A 
MINIMUM OF 42" HIGH.



01-GROUND FLOOR

0' - 0"

02-SECOND FLOOR

10' - 1 1/4"

03-THIRD FLOOR

20' - 2 1/2"

THIRD FLOOR PLATE

29' - 2 1/2"

GROUND FLOOR PLATE

9' - 0"

SECOND FLOOR PLATE

19' - 1 1/4"

9
' 
- 

0
"

1
' 
- 

1
 1

/4
"

9
' 
- 

0
"

1
' 
- 

1
 1

/4
"

9
' 
- 

0
"

TOP OF PARAPET

35' - 6"

TOP OF BALCONY ROOF

39' - 4"

3
' 
- 

1
0

"
3

5
' 
- 

6
"

D

I

E

B

A

C1

D

A

C2

G

F

B

C2

A

C1

F

3
7

' -
 1

1
 1

/2
"

F

3
1

' 
- 

3
"

BUILDING 2

BUILDING 5

MATERIAL SCHEDULE

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002

A2.3BLDG 2 & 5 (TYPE B) - ELEVATIONS
06/04/2025

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE HOUSING
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO, RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270

0' 4' 16'8'

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"
1

WEST ELEVATION (SIM. BLDG 5)

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"
2

NORTH ELEVATION (SIM. BLDG 5
SOUTH ELEVATION)

1

2

REFERENCE COLOR AND MATERIALS BOARD

MARK DESCRIPTION

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

SIDING & BALCONY RAILINGS - TREX COMPOSITE 
CLADDING - COLOR: TIKI TORCH 

EXTERIOR PLASTER - 16/20 SAND FINISH - EXTERIOR 
WALLS - LA HABRA: EGGSHELL 

EXTERIOR PLASTER - OMEGA STUCCO - AKROTIQUE FINISH -
COLOR C0: 02 CANYON / C1: 07 NATIVE BROWN / C2: 10 CYPRESS

STONE VENEER - EL DORADO STONE -
CLIFFSTONE: WHITEBARK

WINDOWS - JELDWEN VINYL - FINISH: WHITE

METAL - RAILINGS, PARAPET CAP, TRIM, & WINDOW 
SHROUDS - PAINTED DUN EDWARDS: BLACKJACK

BALCONY DOORS - JELDWEN OR EQUAL - MASONITE -
FINISH: WHITE

METAL AWNINGS - LAWRENCE METAL - CANOPY & AWNINGS -
COLOR: BLACK 

I METAL ROOF - STANDING SEAM

*NOTES:
-BUILDINGS 2 AND 5 ARE SIMILAR AND MIRRORS OF EACH OTHER. EXTERIOR 
ELEVATION DESIGN TO UTILIZE EXTRUDED WINDOW AWNINGS AND SHROUDS ON 
THE SOUTHERN FACING ELEVATIONS ALONG WITH PORTIONS OF THE WESTERN AND 
EASTERN SIDES DEPENDING ON SOLAR EXPOSURE. REFERENCE THE 
ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS ON SHEET G.07 FOR FURTHER INFORMATION ON 
SHADING STRATEGIES.

*2(SIM.)

*1(SIM.)

*SEE NOTES ABOVE



01-GROUND FLOOR

0' - 0"

02-SECOND FLOOR

10' - 1 1/4"

03-THIRD FLOOR

20' - 2 1/2"

THIRD FLOOR PLATE

29' - 2 1/2"

GROUND FLOOR PLATE

9' - 0"

SECOND FLOOR PLATE

19' - 1 1/4"

ROOF

31' - 2 1/2"

TOP OF PARAPET

35' - 6"

TOP OF BALCONY ROOF

39' - 4"

F

D

C0

D

B

C1

A

3
9

' 
- 

4
"

F

I

01-GROUND FLOOR

0' - 0"

02-SECOND FLOOR

10' - 1 1/4"

03-THIRD FLOOR

20' - 2 1/2"

THIRD FLOOR PLATE

29' - 2 1/2"

GROUND FLOOR PLATE

9' - 0"

SECOND FLOOR PLATE

19' - 1 1/4"

TOP OF PARAPET

35' - 6"

TOP OF BALCONY ROOF

39' - 4"

D

B

A

C1

C0

F

C2

F

3
9

' 
- 

4
"

3
5

' 
- 

6
"

BUILDING 2

BUILDING 5

MATERIAL SCHEDULE

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002

A2.4BLDG 2 & 5 (TYPE B) - ELEVATIONS
06/04/2025

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE HOUSING
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO, RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"
1

EAST ELEVATION (SIM. BLDG 5)

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"
2

SOUTH ELEVATION (SIM. BLDG 5
NORTH ELEVATION)

0' 4' 16'8'

1

2

REFERENCE COLOR AND MATERIALS BOARD

MARK DESCRIPTION

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

SIDING & BALCONY RAILINGS - TREX COMPOSITE 
CLADDING - COLOR: TIKI TORCH 

EXTERIOR PLASTER - 16/20 SAND FINISH - EXTERIOR 
WALLS - LA HABRA: EGGSHELL 

EXTERIOR PLASTER - OMEGA STUCCO - AKROTIQUE FINISH -
COLOR C0: 02 CANYON / C1: 07 NATIVE BROWN / C2: 10 CYPRESS

STONE VENEER - EL DORADO STONE -
CLIFFSTONE: WHITEBARK

WINDOWS - JELDWEN VINYL - FINISH: WHITE

METAL - RAILINGS, PARAPET CAP, TRIM, & WINDOW 
SHROUDS - PAINTED DUN EDWARDS: BLACKJACK

BALCONY DOORS - JELDWEN OR EQUAL - MASONITE -
FINISH: WHITE

METAL AWNINGS - LAWRENCE METAL - CANOPY & AWNINGS -
COLOR: BLACK 

I METAL ROOF - STANDING SEAM

*NOTES:
-BUILDINGS 2 AND 5 ARE SIMILAR AND MIRRORS OF EACH OTHER. EXTERIOR 
ELEVATION DESIGN TO UTILIZE EXTRUDED WINDOW AWNINGS AND SHROUDS ON 
THE SOUTHERN FACING ELEVATIONS ALONG WITH PORTIONS OF THE WESTERN AND 
EASTERN SIDES DEPENDING ON SOLAR EXPOSURE. REFERENCE THE 
ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS ON SHEET G.07 FOR FURTHER INFORMATION ON 
SHADING STRATEGIES.

*SEE NOTES ABOVE

*2(SIM.)

*1(SIM.)



2

A3.4

2

A3.3

3

3

4

4

5

5

6

6

D D

F F

B B

A A

G G

E E

C C

2

2

1

1

1

A3.3

UNIT

3 BD / TYPE A

3-101 & 4-101

UNIT

1 BD / TYPE A

3-103 & 4-103

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE A

3-105 & 4-105

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

3-102 & 4-102

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

3-104 & 4-104

UNIT

3 BD / TYPE B

3-106 & 4-106

UNIT

3 BD / TYPE B

3-108 & 4-108

UNIT

1 BD / TYPE B

3-107 & 4-107

UNIT

1 BD / TYPE B

3-109 & 4-109

LAUNDRY

ELEC. / BATTERY

122' - 8 1/4"

2

A3.4

2

A3.3

3

3

4

4

5

5

6

6

D

F

B

A

G

E

C

2

2

1

1

1

A3.3

UNIT

3 BD / TYPE A

3-201 & 4-201

UNIT

1 BD / TYPE A

3-203 & 4-203

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE A

3-205 & 4-205

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

3-202 & 4-202

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

3-204 & 4-204

UNIT

3 BD / TYPE B

3-206 & 4-206

UNIT

3 BD / TYPE B

3-208 & 4-208

UNIT

1 BD / TYPE B

3-207 & 4-207

UNIT

1 BD / TYPE B

3-209 & 4-209

122' - 8 1/4"

1
0

4
' -

 5
 1

/2
"

BUILDING 3

BUILDING 4

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002

A3.1BLDG 3 & 4 (TYPE C) - PLANS
06/04/2025

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE HOUSING
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO, RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270

SCALE:  3/32" = 1'-0"
1

GROUND FLOOR PLAN
SCALE:  3/32" = 1'-0"

2
SECOND FLOOR

SEE SHEET G.02 FOR FLOOR PLAN SQUARE FOOTAGE SEE SHEET G.02 FOR FLOOR PLAN SQUARE FOOTAGE



2

A3.4

2

A3.3

1

A3.4

3

3

4

4

5

5

6

6

D D

F F

B B

A A

G G

E E

C C

2

2

1

1

1

A3.3

UNIT

1 BD / TYPE A

3-303 & 4-303

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE A

3-305 & 4-305

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

3-302 & 4-302

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

3-304 & 4-304

UNIT

3 BD / TYPE B

3-306 & 4-306

UNIT

3 BD / TYPE B

3-308 & 4-308

UNIT

1 BD / TYPE B

3-307 & 4-307

UNIT

1 BD / TYPE B

3-309 & 4-309

122' - 8 1/4"

3

3

4

4

5

5

6

6

D

F

B

A

G

E

C

2

2

1

1

1/4" / 1'-0"

1/4" / 1'-0"

1
/4

" 
/ 
1

'-
0

"
1

/4
" 

/ 
1

'-
0

"
1

/4
" 

/ 
1

'-
0

"

122' - 8 1/4"

1
0

4
' -

 5
 1

/2
"

APPROXIMATE AREA FOR SOLAR

BUILDING 3

BUILDING 4

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002

A3.2BLDG 3 & 4 (TYPE C) - PLANS
06/04/2025

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE HOUSING
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO, RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270

SCALE:  3/32" = 1'-0"
1

THIRD FLOOR PLAN
SCALE:  3/32" = 1'-0"

2
ROOF PLAN

SEE SHEET G.02 FOR FLOOR PLAN SQUARE FOOTAGE SEE SHEET G.02 FOR FLOOR PLAN SQUARE FOOTAGE

ROOF PLAN GENERAL NOTES

• NO ANTICIPATED MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT AT 
ROOF. IF ANY EQUIPMENT IS ADDED TO THE 
ROOF IT WILL BE SCREENED. PARAPET 
HEIGHTS TO BE A MINIMUM OF 42" HIGH.



01-GROUND FLOOR

0' - 0"

02-SECOND FLOOR

10' - 1 1/4"

03-THIRD FLOOR

20' - 2 1/2"

THIRD FLOOR PLATE

29' - 2 1/2"

GROUND FLOOR PLATE

9' - 0"

SECOND FLOOR PLATE

19' - 1 1/4"

TOP OF WEST PARAPET

36' - 7 1/2"

TOP OF PARAPET

32' - 8 1/2"

TOP OF ROOF

38' - 7 1/2"

3
6

' 
- 

7
 1

/2
"

3
8

' 
- 

7
 1

/2
"

D

B

A

H

E

C0

C2

C1

2
5

' 
- 

3
"

I

F

01-GROUND FLOOR

0' - 0"

02-SECOND FLOOR

10' - 1 1/4"

03-THIRD FLOOR

20' - 2 1/2"

THIRD FLOOR PLATE

29' - 2 1/2"

GROUND FLOOR PLATE

9' - 0"

SECOND FLOOR PLATE

19' - 1 1/4"

TOP OF WEST PARAPET

36' - 7 1/2"

TOP OF PARAPET

32' - 8 1/2"

TOP OF ROOF

38' - 7 1/2"

3
8

' 
- 

7
 1

/2
"

D

B

E

A

H

C0

A

G

C2

2
0

' 
- 

2
 1

/2
"

3
6

' 
- 

7
 1

/2
"

I

F

H

BUILDING 3

BUILDING 4

MATERIAL SCHEDULE

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002

A3.3BLDG 3 & 4 (TYPE C) - ELEVATIONS
06/04/2025

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE HOUSING
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO, RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"
2

NORTH ELEVATION (SIM. BLDG 4
SOUTH ELEVATION)

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"
1

WEST ELEVATION (SIM. BLDG 4)

1

2

REFERENCE COLOR AND MATERIALS BOARD

MARK DESCRIPTION

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

SIDING & BALCONY RAILINGS - TREX COMPOSITE 
CLADDING - COLOR: TIKI TORCH 

EXTERIOR PLASTER - 16/20 SAND FINISH - EXTERIOR 
WALLS - LA HABRA: EGGSHELL 

EXTERIOR PLASTER - OMEGA STUCCO - AKROTIQUE FINISH -
COLOR C0: 02 CANYON / C1: 07 NATIVE BROWN / C2: 10 CYPRESS

STONE VENEER - EL DORADO STONE -
CLIFFSTONE: WHITEBARK

WINDOWS - JELDWEN VINYL - FINISH: WHITE

METAL - RAILINGS & WINDOW SHROUDS -
PAINTED DUN EDWARDS: BLACKJACK

BALCONY DOORS - JELDWEN OR EQUAL - MASONITE -
FINISH: WHITE

METAL AWNINGS - LAWRENCE METAL - CANOPY & AWNINGS -
COLOR: BLACK 

0' 4' 16'8'

I METAL ROOF - STANDING SEAM 

*NOTES:
-BUILDINGS 3 AND 4 ARE SIMILAR AND MIRRORS OF EACH OTHER. EXTERIOR 
ELEVATION DESIGN TO UTILIZE EXTRUDED WINDOW AWNINGS AND SHROUDS ON 
THE SOUTHERN FACING ELEVATIONS ALONG WITH PORTIONS OF THE WESTERN AND 
EASTERN SIDES DEPENDING ON SOLAR EXPOSURE. REFERENCE THE 
ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS ON SHEET G.07 FOR FURTHER INFORMATION ON 
SHADING STRATEGIES.

*SEE NOTES ABOVE

2(*SIM.)

1(*SIM)



01-GROUND FLOOR

0' - 0"

02-SECOND FLOOR

10' - 1 1/4"

03-THIRD FLOOR

20' - 2 1/2"

THIRD FLOOR PLATE

29' - 2 1/2"

GROUND FLOOR PLATE

9' - 0"

SECOND FLOOR PLATE

19' - 1 1/4"

TOP OF ROOF

38' - 7 1/2"

B

C0

E

A

C2

3
8

' 
- 

7
 1

/2
"

2
5

' 
- 

3
"

3
7

' -
 1

1
 1

/2
"

I

F

D

01-GROUND FLOOR

0' - 0"

02-SECOND FLOOR

10' - 1 1/4"

03-THIRD FLOOR

20' - 2 1/2"

THIRD FLOOR PLATE

29' - 2 1/2"

GROUND FLOOR PLATE

9' - 0"

SECOND FLOOR PLATE

19' - 1 1/4"

TOP OF ROOF

38' - 7 1/2"

B

H

E

C0

C1

C2

D

3
8

' 
- 

1
 1

/2
"

3
5

' 
- 

4
 1

/2
"

3
8

' 
- 

7
 1

/2
"

I

F

BUILDING 3

BUILDING 4

MATERIAL SCHEDULE

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002

A3.4BLDG 3 & 4 (TYPE C) - ELEVATIONS
06/04/2025

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE HOUSING
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO, RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"
1

EAST ELEVATION (SIM. BLDG 4)

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"
2

SOUTH ELEVATION (SIM. BLDG 4
NORTH ELEVATION)

0' 4' 16'8'

1

2

REFERENCE COLOR AND MATERIALS BOARD

MARK DESCRIPTION

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

SIDING & BALCONY RAILINGS - TREX COMPOSITE 
CLADDING - COLOR: TIKI TORCH 

EXTERIOR PLASTER - 16/20 SAND FINISH - EXTERIOR 
WALLS - LA HABRA: EGGSHELL 

EXTERIOR PLASTER - OMEGA STUCCO - AKROTIQUE FINISH -
COLOR C0: 02 CANYON / C1: 07 NATIVE BROWN / C2: 10 CYPRESS

STONE VENEER - EL DORADO STONE -
CLIFFSTONE: WHITEBARK

WINDOWS - JELDWEN VINYL - FINISH: WHITE

METAL - RAILINGS & WINDOW SHROUDS -
PAINTED DUN EDWARDS: BLACKJACK

BALCONY DOORS - JELDWEN OR EQUAL - MASONITE -
FINISH: WHITE

METAL AWNINGS - LAWRENCE METAL - CANOPY & AWNINGS -
COLOR: BLACK 

I METAL ROOF - STANDING SEAM 

*NOTES:
-BUILDINGS 3 AND 4 ARE SIMILAR AND MIRRORS OF EACH OTHER. EXTERIOR 
ELEVATION DESIGN TO UTILIZE EXTRUDED WINDOW AWNINGS AND SHROUDS ON 
THE SOUTHERN FACING ELEVATIONS ALONG WITH PORTIONS OF THE WESTERN AND 
EASTERN SIDES DEPENDING ON SOLAR EXPOSURE. REFERENCE THE 
ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS ON SHEET G.07 FOR FURTHER INFORMATION ON 
SHADING STRATEGIES.

*SEE NOTES ABOVE

*2 (SIM.)

*1(SIM.)



4

4

3

3

2

2

1

1

C C

D D

B B

A A

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

6-101UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

6-102 ELEC./ BATTERY

UNIT

3 BD / TYPE B

6-103UNIT

2 BED / TYPE B

6-104

89' - 8 1/4"

5
5

' 
- 

6
 1

/2
"

E

E

4

4

3

3

2

2

1

1

C C

D D

B B

A A

UNIT

3 BD / TYPE B

6-201UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

6-202

UNIT

3 BD / TYPE B

6-203UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

6-204

89' - 8 1/4"

5
5

' 
- 

6
 1

/2
"

E

E

4

4

3

3

2

2

1

1

C C

D D

B B

A A

UNIT

3 BD / TYPE B

6-301UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

6-302

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

6-304 UNIT

3 BD / TYPE B

6-303

89' - 8 1/4"

5
5

' 
- 

6
 1

/2
"

E

E

4

4

3

3

2

2

1

1

C C

D D

B B

A A

89' - 8 1/4"

5
5

' 
- 

6
 1

/2
"

E

E

APPROXIMATE AREA FOR SOLAR

BUILDING 6

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002

A6.1BLDG 6 - PLANS
06/04/2025

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE HOUSING
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO, RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270

SCALE:  3/32" = 1'-0"
1

GROUND FLOOR PLAN
SCALE:  3/32" = 1'-0"

2
SECOND FLOOR PLAN

SCALE:  3/32" = 1'-0"
3

THIRD FLOOR PLAN
SCALE:  3/32" = 1'-0"

4
ROOF PLAN

SEE SHEET G.02 FOR FLOOR PLAN SQUARE FOOTAGE SEE SHEET G.02 FOR FLOOR PLAN SQUARE FOOTAGE

SEE SHEET G.02 FOR FLOOR PLAN SQUARE FOOTAGE SEE SHEET G.02 FOR FLOOR PLAN SQUARE FOOTAGE

ROOF PLAN GENERAL NOTES

• NO ANTICIPATED MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT AT 

ROOF. IF ANY EQUIPMENT IS ADDED TO THE 

ROOF IT WILL BE SCREENED. PARAPET 

HEIGHTS TO BE A MINIMUM OF 42" HIGH.



01-GROUND FLOOR

0' - 0"

02-SECOND FLOOR

10' - 1 1/4"

03-THIRD FLOOR

20' - 2 1/2"

THIRD FLOOR PLATE

29' - 2 1/2"

GROUND FLOOR PLATE

9' - 0"

SECOND FLOOR PLATE

19' - 1 1/4"

PARAPET

35' - 3 1/2"

D

B

E

A

C1

A

3
8

' 
- 

1
1

"

1
2

' 
- 

0
"

I

F

F

B

E

A

C1

C2

A

3
5

' 
- 

3
 1

/2
"

01-GROUND FLOOR

0' - 0"

02-SECOND FLOOR

10' - 1 1/4"

03-THIRD FLOOR

20' - 2 1/2"

THIRD FLOOR PLATE

29' - 2 1/2"

GROUND FLOOR PLATE

9' - 0"

SECOND FLOOR PLATE

19' - 1 1/4"

ROOF

31' - 2 1/2"

PARAPET

35' - 3 1/2"

B

D

A

E

C1

A

1
2

' 
- 

0
"

3
8

' 
- 

1
1

"

I

F

F

01-GROUND FLOOR

0' - 0"

02-SECOND FLOOR

10' - 1 1/4"

03-THIRD FLOOR

20' - 2 1/2"

THIRD FLOOR PLATE

29' - 2 1/2"

GROUND FLOOR PLATE

9' - 0"

SECOND FLOOR PLATE

19' - 1 1/4"

PARAPET

35' - 3 1/2"

D

B

E

A

C1

A

C2

3
8

' 
- 

1
1

"

1
2

' 
- 

0
"

BUILDING 6

MATERIAL SCHEDULE

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002

A6.2BLDG 6 (TYPE D) - ELEVATIONS
06/04/2025

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE HOUSING
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO, RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"
1

WEST ELEVATION PRESENTATION

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"
2

SOUTH ELEVATION PRESENTATION

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"
3

EAST ELEVATION PRESENTATION

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"
4

NORTH ELEVATION PRESENTATION

REFERENCE COLOR AND MATERIALS BOARD. 

MARK DESCRIPTION

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

SIDING & BALCONY RAILINGS - TREX COMPOSITE 

CLADDING - COLOR: TIKI TORCH 

EXTERIOR PLASTER - 16/20 SAND FINISH - EXTERIOR 

WALLS - LA HABRA: EGGSHELL 

EXTERIOR PLASTER - OMEGA STUCCO - AKROTIQUE FINISH -

COLOR C0: 02 CANYON / C1: 07 NATIVE BROWN / C2: 10 CYPRESS

STONE VENEER - EL DORADO STONE -

CLIFFSTONE: WHITEBARK

WINDOWS - JELDWEN VINYL - FINISH: WHITE

METAL - RAILINGS & WINDOW SHROUDS -

PAINTED DUN EDWARDS: BLACKJACK

BALCONY DOORS - JELDWEN OR EQUAL - MASONITE -

FINISH: WHITE

METAL AWNINGS - LAWRENCE METAL - CANOPY & AWNINGS -

COLOR: BLACK 

0' 4' 16'8'

4

31

2

I METAL ROOF - STANDING SEAM 



BB

1

1

AA

FF

CC

3

3

2

2

4

4

EE

DD

5

5

1

A7.3

2

A7.3

1

A7.4

2

A7.4

133 SF

BIKE STOR.

133 SF

OFFICE 1

128 SF

LEASING

130 SF

OFFICE 2

872 SF

COMMUNITY

ROOM

222 SF

LAUNDRY

96 SF

R.R.

96 SF

R.R.

146 SF

MAIL

MAINTENANCEELECTRICAL

POOL SUPPLIES

49 SF

JAN.

UNIT

1 BD / TYPE B

7-101 UNIT

1 BD / TYPE B

7-103

UNIT

1 BD / TYPE B

7-102

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

7-104

97' - 0 1/2"

1
2

6
' -

 9
 1

/2
"

44 SF

IT

70 SF

STOR.

130 SF

KITCHEN

118 SF

LOBBY

214 SF

TRASH

1

EX.1

2

EX.1

1

EX.2

2

EX.2

BB

1

1

AA

FF

CC

3

3

2

2

4

4

EE

DD

5

5

1

A7.3

2

A7.3

1

A7.4

2

A7.4

1 1/2" / 1'-0"

UNIT

1 BD / TYPE B

7-201 UNIT

1 BD / TYPE B

7-203

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

7-202 UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

7-204

97' - 0 1/2"

1
2

6
' -

 9
 1

/2
"

1

EX.1

2

EX.1

1

EX.2

2

EX.2

BUILDING 7

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002

A7.1BLDG 7 TYPE E) - PLANS
06/04/2025

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE HOUSING
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO, RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270

SCALE:  3/32" = 1'-0"
1

GROUND FLOOR PLAN
SCALE:  3/32" = 1'-0"

2
SECOND FLOOR PLAN

SEE SHEET G.02 FOR FLOOR PLAN SQUARE FOOTAGE SEE SHEET G.02 FOR FLOOR PLAN SQUARE FOOTAGE

PLUMBING FIXTURE COUNTS

COMMUNITY CENTER OCCUPANT LOAD: PLUMBING FIXTURES PER CHAPTER 4 CPC, T422.1:

ROOM AREA FACTOR OCCUPANT LOAD

LOBBY 118 SF 30 4
COMMUNITY CENTER 871 SF 30 29
WARMING KITCHEN 130 SF 30 5
STORAGE ROOMS 70 SF 150 1
LEASING OFFICE 128 SF 150 1
OFFICE 1 133 SF 150 1
OFFICE 2 130 SF 150 1
TOTAL OCCUPANT LOAD: 42

A-3 OCCUPANCY WITH OCCUPANT LOAD OF 42/2 = 21

(CALCULATED AT 50% MALE AND 50% FEMALE)

TYPE: REQUIRED: PROVIDED :

MALE:

WATER CLOSET 1 1
URINAL 0* 0*
LAVATORY 1 1

FEMALE:

WATER CLOSET 1* 1*
LAVATORY 1 1

DRINKING FOUNTAIN: 1 1
SERVICE SINK: 1 1

*PER 2022 CPC 422 TABLE NOTE 3 EXCEPTION - THE TOTAL NUMBER OF REQUIRED WATER CLOSETS FOR FEMALES SHALL NOT BE 
LESS THAN THE TOTAL NUMBER OF REQUIRED WATER CLOSETS AND URINALS FOR MALES. THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL NOT APPLY 
WHEN SINGLE OCCUPANCY TOILET FACILITIES ARE PROVIDED FOR EACH SEX IN AN "A" OCCUPANCY WITH AN OCCUPANT LOAD OF 
LESS THAN 50. EITHER: A) THE REQUIRED URINAL SHALL BE PERMITTED TO BE OMITTED OR B) IF INSTALLED, THE URINAL SHALL NOT 
REQUIRE A SECOND WATER CLOSET TO BE PROVIDED FOR THE FEMALE.



FF

CC

3

3

2

2

4

4

EE

DD

5

5

1

A7.4

UNIT

1 BD / TYPE B

7-301

UNIT

2 BD / TYPE B

7-302

55' - 6 1/2"

6
7

' -
 1

0
 1

/2
"

1

EX.2

BB

1

1

AA

FF

CC

3

3

2

2

4

4

EE

DD

5

5

1 1/2" / 1'-0"

1
/4

" 
/ 
1

'-
0

"

1/4" / 1'-0"

1/4" / 1'-0"

1
/4

" 
/ 
1

'-
0

"

1/4" / 1'-0"

1
/4

" 
/ 
1

'-
0

"

1
/4

" 
/ 
1

'-
0

"

1/4" / 1'-0"

97' - 0 1/2"

1
2

6
' -

 9
 1

/2
"

APPROXIMATE AREA FOR SOLAR

1/4" / 1'-0"

1
/4

" 
/ 
1

'-
0

"

TRELLIS

BUILDING 7

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002

A7.2BLDG 7 (TYPE E) - PLANS
06/04/2025

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE HOUSING
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO, RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270

SCALE:  3/32" = 1'-0"
1

THIRD FLOOR PLAN
SCALE:  3/32" = 1'-0"

2
ROOF PLAN

SEE SHEET G.02 FOR FLOOR PLAN SQUARE FOOTAGE SEE SHEET G.02 FOR FLOOR PLAN SQUARE FOOTAGE

ROOF PLAN GENERAL NOTES

• NO ANTICIPATED MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT AT 
ROOF. IF ANY EQUIPMENT IS ADDED TO THE 
ROOF IT WILL BE SCREENED. PARAPET 
HEIGHTS TO BE A MINIMUM OF 42" HIGH.



01-GROUND FLOOR

0' - 0"

02-SECOND FLOOR

11' - 2 1/4"

03-THIRD FLOOR

21' - 3 1/2"

THIRD FLOOR PLATE

30' - 3 1/2"

GROUND FLOOR PLATE

10' - 1"

SECOND FLOOR PLATE

20' - 2 1/4"

TOP OF PARAPET

36' - 8"

TOP OF BALCONY PARAPET

38' - 0"

3
8

' 
- 

0
"

1
7

' 
- 

0
 1

/2
"

D

C0

A

H

G

E

C0

F

01-GROUND FLOOR

0' - 0"

02-SECOND FLOOR

11' - 2 1/4"

03-THIRD FLOOR

21' - 3 1/2"

THIRD FLOOR PLATE

30' - 3 1/2"

GROUND FLOOR PLATE

10' - 1"

SECOND FLOOR PLATE

20' - 2 1/4"

TOP OF PARAPET

36' - 8"

TOP OF BALCONY PARAPET

38' - 0"

2
2

' 
- 

0
"

3
6

' 
- 

8
"

B

A

C2

C0

A

F

E

G

H

F

F

BUILDING 7

MATERIAL SCHEDULE

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002

A7.3BLDG 7 (TYPE E) - ELEVATIONS
06/04/2025

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE HOUSING
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO, RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"
2

NORTH ELEVATION

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"
1

EAST ELEVATION

2

1

REFERENCE COLOR AND MATERIALS BOARD

MARK DESCRIPTION

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

SIDING & BALCONY RAILINGS - TREX COMPOSITE 
CLADDING - COLOR: TIKI TORCH 

EXTERIOR PLASTER - 16/20 SAND FINISH - EXTERIOR 
WALLS - LA HABRA: EGGSHELL 

EXTERIOR PLASTER - OMEGA STUCCO - AKROTIQUE FINISH -
COLOR C0: 02 CANYON / C1: 07 NATIVE BROWN / C2: 10 CYPRESS

STONE VENEER - EL DORADO STONE -
CLIFFSTONE: WHITEBARK

WINDOWS - JELDWEN VINYL - FINISH: WHITE

METAL - RAILINGS, PARAPET CAP, TRIM, & WINDOW 
SHROUDS - PAINTED DUN EDWARDS: BLACKJACK

BALCONY DOORS - JELDWEN OR EQUAL - MASONITE -
FINISH: WHITE

METAL AWNINGS - LAWRENCE METAL - CANOPY & AWNINGS -
COLOR: BLACK 

0' 4' 16'8'

I METAL ROOF - STANDING SEAM



BUILDING 7

MATERIAL SCHEDULE

01-GROUND FLOOR

0' - 0"

02-SECOND FLOOR

11' - 2 1/4"

03-THIRD FLOOR

21' - 3 1/2"

THIRD FLOOR PLATE

30' - 3 1/2"

GROUND FLOOR PLATE

10' - 1"

SECOND FLOOR PLATE

20' - 2 1/4"

TOP OF PARAPET

36' - 8"

TOP OF BALCONY PARAPET

38' - 0"

3
8

' 
- 

0
"

2
6

' 
- 

5
"

D

A

E

B

C1

B

01-GROUND FLOOR

0' - 0"

02-SECOND FLOOR

11' - 2 1/4"

03-THIRD FLOOR

21' - 3 1/2"

THIRD FLOOR PLATE

30' - 3 1/2"

GROUND FLOOR PLATE

10' - 1"

SECOND FLOOR PLATE

20' - 2 1/4"

TOP OF PARAPET

36' - 8"

TOP OF BALCONY PARAPET

38' - 0"

3
8

' 
- 

0
"

3
6

' 
- 

8
"I

A

E

G

C1

D

B

F

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002

A7.4BLDG 7 (TYPE E) - ELEVATIONS
06/04/2025

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE HOUSING
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO, RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270

1

2

REFERENCE COLOR AND MATERIALS BOARD

MARK DESCRIPTION

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

SIDING & BALCONY RAILINGS - TREX COMPOSITE 
CLADDING - COLOR: TIKI TORCH 

EXTERIOR PLASTER - 16/20 SAND FINISH - EXTERIOR 
WALLS - LA HABRA: EGGSHELL 

EXTERIOR PLASTER - OMEGA STUCCO - AKROTIQUE FINISH -
COLOR C0: 02 CANYON / C1: 07 NATIVE BROWN / C2: 10 CYPRESS

STONE VENEER - EL DORADO STONE -
CLIFFSTONE: WHITEBARK

WINDOWS - JELDWEN VINYL - FINISH: WHITE

METAL - RAILINGS, PARAPET CAP, TRIM, & WINDOW 
SHROUDS - PAINTED DUN EDWARDS: BLACKJACK

BALCONY DOORS - JELDWEN OR EQUAL - MASONITE -
FINISH: WHITE

METAL AWNINGS - LAWRENCE METAL - CANOPY & AWNINGS -
COLOR: BLACK 

0' 4' 16'8'

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"
1

SOUTH ELEVATION

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"
2

WEST ELEVATION

I METAL ROOF - STANDING SEAM



24' - 0"

8
' 
- 

0
"

2
4

' 
- 

0
"

NET AREA: +/- 520 SF

GROSS AREA: +/- 569 SF

LIVING ROOM

BEDROOM

RESTROOMKITCHEN

PATIO/BALCONY

CONDENSER

8
' 
- 

0
"

2
4

' 
- 

0
"

24' - 0"

BEDROOM

RESTROOMKITCHEN

PATIO/BALCONY

NET AREA: +/- 541 SF

GROSS AREA:+/- 581 SF

CONDENSER

DEPARTMENT

No colors defined

8
' 
- 

0
"

2
4

' 
- 

0
"

34' - 0"

LIVING ROOM

BEDROOM

RESTROOMKITCHEN

PATIO/BALCONY

NET AREA: +/- 745 SF

GROSS AREA: +/- 810 SF

BEDROOM

CONDENSER

8
' 
- 

0
"

2
4

' 
- 

0
"

34' - 0"

BEDROOM

RESTROOM

KITCHEN

PATIO/BALCONY

NET AREA: +/- 756 SF

GROSS AREA: +/- 823 SF

BEDROOM

CONDENSER

8
' 
- 

0
"

2
4

' 
- 

0
"

46' - 0"

LIVING ROOM

BEDROOM

RESTROOM

KITCHEN

PATIO/BALCONY

NET AREA: +/- 1,016 SF

GROSS AREA: +/- 1,095 SF

BEDROOM

RESTROOM

BEDROOM

CONDENSER

8
' 
- 

0
"

2
4

' 
- 

0
"

46' - 0"

LIVING ROOM

BEDROOM

RESTROOM

KITCHEN

PATIO/BALCONY

NET AREA: +/- 1,029 SF

GROSS AREA: +/- 1,112 SF

BEDROOM

RESTROOM

BEDROOM

CONDENSER

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002

A8ENLARGED UNIT PLANS
3337-01-HS24 06/04/2025

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE APARTMENTS
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO, RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270

SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0"
1

ONE BEDROOM UNIT TYPE - 1A

SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0"
2

ONE BEDROOM UNIT TYPE - 1B

SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0"
3

TWO BEDROOM UNIT - TYPE 2A

SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0"
4

TWO BEDROOM UNIT - TYPE 2B

SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0"
5

THREE BEDROOM UNIT - TYPE 3A

SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0"
6

THREE BEDROOM UNIT - TYPE 3B



4
 C

Y
T

R
A

S
H

4
 C

Y
R

E
C

Y
C

L
E

B

B

A

A

22

11

2

A9

3

A9

4

A9

17' - 4"

1
4

' 
- 

0
"

COMPOST

COMPOST

6
' 
- 

7
" 9

' 
- 

9
 1

/2
"

7

A9

8

A9

10

A9

9

A9

1

1

2

2

AA

BB

20' - 8"

1
7

' 
- 

8
"

RESTROOM RESTROOM

POOL EQUIP / STORAGE

SHOWER

SHOWER

1
0

' 
- 

5
"

1
5

' 
- 

1
 1

/2
"

1
2

' 
- 

1
 1

/2
"

9
' 
- 

2
 1

/2
"

1
0

' 
- 

5
"

1
5

' 
- 

1
 1

/2
"

9
' 
- 

2
 1

/2
"

1
2

' 
- 

1
 1

/2
"

MATERIAL SCHEDULE

A

A

B

B

C0

B

G

I
H

F

B

F

F

B

J

J

B

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002

A9TRASH ENCLOSURES & POOLHOUSE
3337-01-HS24 06/04/2025

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE APARTMENTS
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO, RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270

SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0"
1

TRASH ENCLOSURE PLAN, TYP.

SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0"
2

TRASH ENCLOSURE ELEVATION - A
SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0"

3
TRASH ENCLOSURE ELEVATION - B

SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0"
4

TRASH ENCLOSURE ELEVATION - C

SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0"
6

POOL HOUSE FLOOR PLAN

SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0"
7

POOLHOUSE ELEV. - EAST
SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0"

8
POOLHOUSE ELEV. - NORTH

SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0"
9

POOLHOUSE ELEV. - SOUTH
SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0"

10
POOLHOUSE ELEV. - WEST

MARK DESCRIPTION

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

SIDING & TRELLIS - TREX COMPOSITE CLADDING -
COLOR: TIKI TORCH 

EXTERIOR PLASTER - 16/20 SAND FINISH - EXTERIOR 
WALLS - LA HABRA: EGGSHELL 

EXTERIOR PLASTER - OMEGA STUCCO - AKROTIQUE FINISH -
COLOR C0: 02 CANYON / C1: 07 NATIVE BROWN / C2: 10 CYPRESS

VENEER STONE - EL DORADO STONE -
STACKED STONE: DAYBREAK

WINDOWS - JELDWEN VINYL - FINISH: WHITE

METAL - RAILINGS, TRELLIS, & WINDOW SHROUDS -
PAINTED DUN EDWARDS: BLACKJACK

DOORS - JELDWEN OR EQUAL - MASONITE - FINISH: WHITE 
OR BRONZE

METAL AWNINGS - LAWRENCE METAL - CANOPY & AWNINGS -
COLOR: BLACK 

I

WOOD AND METAL TRASH GATE. METAL FRAME WITH TREX 
CLADDING - COLOR: TIKI TORCH 

NOTES:

• DIMENSIONS FOR HEIGHT SHOWN FOR TRASH 
ENCLOSURE AND POOL HOUSE ARE MEASURED 
FROM THE GROUND LEVEL OF THE BUILDING PADS. 

J

METAL ROOF - STANDING SEAM 



W

D

WWWW

DDDD

4 CY
Garbage

4 CY
Garbage

VAN

VAN VAN

VAN

VA
N

EVEV EVEV

EV

EV

EV

EV EV-REV-R EV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REVEV

EV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-R

EV-REV-REV-REV-R

EV-REV-R

EV-REV-REV-REV-R

EV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-R

EV
EV

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV

EV-R

EVEV

EV EVEV

EVEVEV

EV-R EV-R

EV-R

EV-R

EV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-R

EV-REV-REV-REV-R

EV-R

EV-REV-R

EV-R EV-REV-R

EV-R EV-REV-R EV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-R EV

N
O

 P
AR

KI
N

G
FI

R
E 

LA
N

E
N

O
 P

AR
KI

N
G

FI
R

E 
LA

N
E

TEMP. BASIN
SAND BOTTOM WITH BARK

SIDE SLOPE 5:1 MAX,
THEREFORE NON-STABILIZED.

TO BE REMOVED WITH
DEVELOPMENT OF A-3 PARCEL.

BOT=292.00
HWL=293.00

37,000 sq.

(TYP.)

44 FOOT COACHELLA VALLEY
WATER DISTRICT EASEMENT

PER INST. NO 2016-0188380

PROPOSED 33 FOOT
RIGHT-OF-WAY

DEDICATION TO
CITY OF RANCHO MIRAGE

15' ACCESS ROAD

15
' A

C
C

ES
S 

R
O

AD

RETAINING WALL
PER ADJACENT
DEVELOPMENT

LOADING
ZONEBLDG 7

BLDG 5 BLDG 6BLDG 4

BLDG 3 BLDG 2
BLDG 1

COMMUNITY
BUILDING

(P
U

BL
IC

)
VI

A 
VA

ILPOOL

PROPOSED OFFSITE
BASIN BY SEPARATE

PLAN AND PERMIT

90' DIA.
TEMPORARY
FIRE TRUCK

TURN-AROUND

A.P.N. 685-090-017

A.P.N. 685-090-015

A.
P.

N
. 6

85
-0

90
-0

02

FF=2
96

.50

FF=297.00

FF
=2

98
.0

0
FF=296.50

FF
=2

97
.5

0

FF=2
96

.00

FF
=2

96
.0

0

FF=295.00 FF=293.00

FF=293.50

FF=291.50

FF=293.00

FF
=2

91
.5

0

FF=292.50
FF=294.25FF=295.25

VAN
EVEV-R EV-R EV-R

CASE NO. EA25-0002
APN: 685-090-016

SHEET

OF 3

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE HOUSINGRECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL BY:

DATE

NAME:

PREPARED UNDER THE DIRECT SUPERVISION OF:

PRELIMINARY IMPROVEMENT PLANSTel: 1-760-718-8010
www.AtlasCivilDesign.com

Civil  Engineering  Site Optimization

DesignCivilCivil Design

San Diego     Orange County     Los Angeles     San Luis Obispo     Monterey

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

BENCHMARK: ELEVATION: 302.30

BASIS OF BEARINGS:

SHANNON DOW-DAVIS LEANDRO, PE.

OWNER:

RANCHO MIRAGE HOUSING AUTHORITY

( IN FEET )

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 60

1" = 30' 

0 3030

LEGENDFUTURE MULTI-FAMILY HOUSING
DEVELOPMENT VIA VAIL VILLAGE

(PRIVATE)

CONSTRUCTION NOTESCONSTRUCTION NOTES

PRELIMINARY GRADING PLAN C1
TIMOTHY R. JONASSON - ACTING CITY ENGINEER, RCE 45843

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002



W

D

WWWW

DDDD

4 CY
Garbage

4 CY
Garbage

TRASH

VAN

VAN VAN

VAN

VA
N

EVEV EVEV

EV

EV

EV

EV EV-REV-R EV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REVEV

EV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-R

EV-REV-REV-REV-R

EV-REV-R

EV-REV-REV-REV-R

EV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-R

EV
EV

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV

EV-R

EVEV

EV EVEV

EVEVEV

EV-R EV-R

EV-R

EV-R

EV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-R

EV-REV-REV-REV-R

EV-R

EV-REV-R

EV-R EV-REV-R

EV-R EV-REV-R EV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-R EV

N
O

 P
AR

KI
N

G
FI

R
E 

LA
N

E
N

O
 P

AR
KI

N
G

FI
R

E 
LA

N
E

BLDG 7
BLDG 5 BLDG 6BLDG 4

BLDG 3 BLDG 2 BLDG 1

COMMUNITY
BUILDING

VI
A

 V
A

IL
(P

U
BL

IC
 R

O
W

)

CASE NO. EA25-0002
APN: 685-090-016

SHEET

OF 3

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE HOUSINGRECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL BY:

DATE

NAME:

PREPARED UNDER THE DIRECT SUPERVISION OF:

PRELIMINARY IMPROVEMENT PLANSTel: 1-760-718-8010
www.AtlasCivilDesign.com

Civil  Engineering  Site Optimization

DesignCivilCivil Design

San Diego     Orange County     Los Angeles     San Luis Obispo     Monterey

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

BENCHMARK: ELEVATION: 302.30

BASIS OF BEARINGS:

SHANNON DOW-DAVIS LEANDRO, PE.

OWNER:

RANCHO MIRAGE HOUSING AUTHORITY

( IN FEET )

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 60

1" = 30' 

0 3030

LEGEND

WATER  CONSTRUCTION NOTES

FIRE CONSTRUCTION NOTES

SEWER CONSTRUCTION NOTES

STORM DRAIN CONSTRUCTION NOTES

PRELIMINARY UTILITY PLAN C2
TIMOTHY R. JONASSON - ACTING CITY ENGINEER, RCE 45843

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002



VI
A 

 V
AI

L
PU

BL
IC

 R
O

W
VI

A 
 V

AI
L

PU
BL

IC
 R

O
W

CASE NO. EA25-0002
APN: 685-090-016

SHEET

OF 3

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE HOUSINGRECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL BY:

DATE

NAME:

PREPARED UNDER THE DIRECT SUPERVISION OF:

PRELIMINARY IMPROVEMENT PLANSTel: 1-760-718-8010
www.AtlasCivilDesign.com

Civil  Engineering  Site Optimization

DesignCivilCivil Design

San Diego     Orange County     Los Angeles     San Luis Obispo     Monterey

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

BENCHMARK: ELEVATION: 302.30

BASIS OF BEARINGS:

SHANNON DOW-DAVIS LEANDRO, PE.

OWNER:

RANCHO MIRAGE HOUSING AUTHORITY

A
TYPICAL SECTION - WEST TO EAST

B
TYPICAL SECTION - WEST TO EAST

C
TYPICAL SECTION - SOUTH TO NORTH

D
TYPICAL SECTION - SOUTH TO NORTH

E
TYPICAL SECTION - SOUTH TO NORTH

KEY MAP

A A

B

C
D

E

C D E

B

CL

R/WR/W

F
TYPICAL STREET SECTION - VIA VAIL

F FVI
A 

VA
IL

FUTURE

PRELIMINARY CROSS SECTIONS C3
TIMOTHY R. JONASSON - ACTING CITY ENGINEER, RCE 45843

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002



W

D

WWWW

DDDD

4 CY
Garbage

4 CY
Garbage

4 
C

Y
TR

AS
H

4 
C

Y
R

EC
YC

LE

4 
C

Y
TR

AS
H

4 
C

Y
R

EC
YC

LE

4 C
Y

TR
ASH

4 C
Y

R
EC

YC
LE

3'

3'

6'

8'

10'

10'

3'

3'

6'

8'

10'

10'

3'

3'

6'

8'

10'

10'

3'

3'

6'

8'

10'

10'

3'

3'

6'

8'

10'

10'

T

T

T

T

T

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S3B
+15'-0" AFG

S3A
+15'-0" AFG

S3B
+15'-0" AFG

S3B
+15'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S3B
+15'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S3B
+15'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S3B
+15'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S3B
+15'-0" AFG

S3A
+15'-0" AFG

S3B
+15'-0" AFG

S3B
+15'-0" AFG

S3B
+15'-0" AFG

S3A
+15'-0" AFG

S3B
+15'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFGS2

+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S4
+9'-0" AFG

S4
+9'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S1
+14'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S3B
+15'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

S2
+8'-0" AFG

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE APARTMENTS
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO, RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270 3337-01-HS24 06/04/2025

2529 PROFESSIONAL PKWY
SUITE A - P.O. BOX #368

SANTA MARIA, CA 93455

P. 805-361-0525
E.INFO@GECECORP.COM
WWW.GECECORP.COM

DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND OTHER
DOCUMENTS, INCLUDING THOSE IN

ELECTRONIC FORM, PREPARED BY GRAY
ELECTRICAL CONSULTING + ENGINEERING,

CORP ARE THE INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE FOR
USE SOLELY WITH RESPECT TO THIS PROJECT
UNLESS OTHERWISE AUTHORIZED IN WRITING.

GRAY ELECTRICAL CONSULTING +
ENGINEERING, CORP SHALL BE DEEMED THE

AUTHOR AND OWNER OF THE INSTRUMENTS OF
SERVICE AND SHALL RETAIN ALL COMMON

LAW, STATUTORY AND OTHER RESERVED
RIGHTS, INCLUDING COPYRIGHTS.

SCALE:

SITE ELECTRICAL PLAN
1" = 20' - 0"

E1SITE ELECTRICAL PLAN

LUMINAIRE DESCRIPTION
S1 LITHONIA LIGHTING

VAP 4000LM PCL WD MVOLT GZ10 30K 80CRI

33W, 4' LONG LINEAR, WIDE DISTRIBUTION, CLEAR
POLYCARBONATE LENS, ENCLOSED & GASKETED.
SEE DETAIL 1 SHEET E5

S2 LITHONIA LIGHTING
WPX1 LED P1 30K MVOLT DDBXD

11W, 12" WIDE EXTERIOR WALL PACK,
8'-0" HEIGHT,
SEE DETAIL 2 SHEET E5

S3A LITHONIA LIGHTING
DSX0 LED P1 30K 80CRI T3M MVOLT SPA HS DDBXD

33W, 15' OVERALL HEIGHT, TYPE 3 DISTRIBUTION
BUG RATING - B1 U0 G2
SEE DETAIL 3 SHEET E5

S3B LITHONIA LIGHTING
DSX0 LED P1 30K 80CRI BLC3 MVOLT SPA DDBXD

33W, 15' OVERALL HEIGHT, TYPE 3 BACKLIGHT
CONTROL OPTICS
BUG RATING - B0 U0 G1
SEE DETAIL 3 SHEET E5

S4 BEGA LIGHTING
B77538 K3

17.9W, WIDE BEAM FLOOD LIGHT,
9'-0" HEIGHT,
SEE DETAIL 4 SHEET E5

ELECTRICAL SYMBOLS
LIGHTING

POLE MOUNTED AREA LIGHT (EXTERIOR)

WALL MOUNTED AREA LIGHT (EXTERIOR)

CANOPY MOUNTED LIGHT (EXTERIOR)

IID 3' X 6'-6" SECTOR SLEEVE
SEE DETAIL 1 SHEET E3

IID 8' X 8' TRANSFORMER PAD
SEE DETAIL 1 SHEET E4

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002



0.6 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.10.20.00.01.21.01.51.91.91.71.92.12.21.91.82.02.22.21.82.02.12.32.01.92.02.32.21.92.02.22.32.01.92.02.32.21.92.02.22.32.01.92.12.32.21.92.02.22.32.01.92.12.32.21.92.02.12.21.91.71.91.91.71.10.90.60.40.30.20.20.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.20.20.30.50.70.91.41.82.01.71.92.02.22.01.82.02.22.21.92.02.12.32.11.92.12.32.31.92.02.12.32.01.92.12.32.31.92.02.32.42.12.12.42.52.12.22.12.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.3

1.4

1.7

1.9

2.9

1.7

1.8

1.9

2.4

3.7

1.8

1.8

2.0

2.4

3.8

1.8

1.8

2.0

2.3

3.6

1.8

1.9

2.0

2.1

3.2

1.1

1.3

1.6

2.5

3.7

1.1

1.3

1.5

2.4

4.0

2.0

1.8

1.7

2.2

3.6

3.3

2.0

1.7

2.0

3.1

3.8

2.2

1.8

2.2

3.5

3.5

2.1

1.8

2.5

4.0

3.8

2.4

1.9

2.4

4.0

3.5

2.3

2.0

2.3

3.6

2.2

1.8

1.8

2.0

3.2

1.3

1.4

1.6

2.5

3.8

0.9

1.1

1.5

2.5

4.1

0.7

1.0

1.5

2.2

3.7

0.7

0.9

1.4

1.9

3.2

0.7

0.9

1.4

2.2

3.5

0.8

1.0

1.4

2.4

4.0

0.8

1.0

1.5

2.3

4.0

0.9

1.1

1.5

2.1

3.5

1.0

1.1

1.5

1.9

3.1

1.2

1.2

1.5

2.4

3.8

1.2

1.2

1.5

2.5

4.1

1.3

1.3

1.6

2.3

3.7

1.3

1.2

1.6

2.0

3.2

1.3

1.2

1.6

2.2

3.6

1.3

1.2

1.5

2.5

4.0

1.3

1.3

1.5

2.3

4.0

1.2

1.2

1.6

2.1

3.6

1.1

1.2

1.5

1.9

3.1

1.1

1.1

1.5

2.4

3.7

1.0

1.1

1.4

2.4

4.1

0.8

0.8

1.0

1.5

2.2

3.6

0.4

0.7

0.9

1.4

1.9

3.1

0.4

0.6

0.9

1.4

2.1

3.5

0.4

0.5

0.9

1.3

2.4

3.9

0.4

0.5

0.9

1.3

2.2

3.9

0.4

0.5

0.8

1.3

2.0

3.5

0.4

0.4

0.7

1.3

1.8

3.1

0.4

0.5

0.8

1.3

2.3

3.7

0.4

0.5

0.8

1.3

2.3

4.0

0.4

0.5

0.8

1.3

2.1

3.6

0.4

0.5

0.7

1.3

1.8

3.1

0.4

0.5

0.8

1.3

2.1

3.5

0.5

0.8

1.3

2.3

3.9

0.5

0.8

1.3

2.2

3.9

0.5

0.8

1.3

2.0

3.5

0.5

0.8

1.3

1.8

3.1

0.6

0.8

1.3

2.3

3.7

0.6

0.8

1.3

2.3

4.0

0.6

0.8

1.4

2.1

3.6

0.6

0.8

1.3

1.8

3.1

0.6

0.9

1.4

2.1

3.5

0.7

0.9

1.4

2.4

3.9

0.7

0.9

1.4

2.3

3.9

0.7

1.0

1.4

2.1

3.5

0.8

1.0

1.4

1.9

3.1

1.0

1.1

1.4

2.4

3.7

1.1

1.1

1.5

2.4

4.1

1.1

1.2

1.5

2.2

3.7

1.1

1.2

1.5

1.9

3.2

1.2

1.2

1.5

2.2

3.6

1.2

1.2

1.5

2.5

4.0

1.2

1.2

1.5

2.3

4.0

1.2

1.2

1.5

2.1

3.6

1.2

1.2

1.6

1.9

3.2

1.2

1.2

1.6

2.5

3.8

1.3

1.3

1.6

2.5

4.1

1.2

1.2

1.6

2.3

3.7

1.2

1.2

1.6

2.0

3.2

1.3

1.3

1.6

2.2

3.6

1.4

1.4

1.6

2.5

4.0

2.0

1.6

1.7

2.4

4.0

2.1

1.5

1.7

2.2

3.6

1.9

1.5

1.7

2.0

3.2

1.3

1.4

1.6

2.4

3.8

1.2

1.2

1.5

2.4

4.1

0.9

1.1

1.5

2.2

3.7

0.8

0.9

1.5

1.9

3.1

0.7

0.9

1.4

2.1

3.5

0.7

0.9

1.4

2.4

4.0

0.6

0.9

1.4

2.2

3.9

0.5

0.8

1.4

2.0

3.5

0.5

0.8

1.3

1.8

3.1

0.5

0.8

1.3

2.3

3.7

0.5

0.8

1.3

2.3

4.0

0.5

0.8

1.3

2.1

3.6

0.5

0.8

1.3

1.8

3.1

0.5

0.8

1.3

2.1

3.5

0.6

0.8

1.3

2.3

3.9

0.5

0.8

1.3

2.2

3.9

0.5

0.8

1.3

2.0

3.4

0.5

0.8

1.3

1.8

3.1

0.6

0.8

1.3

2.3

3.7

0.6

0.8

1.3

2.3

4.0

0.6

0.8

1.3

2.1

3.5

0.6

0.8

1.3

1.8

3.0

0.7

0.9

1.3

2.0

3.3

0.9

1.0

1.3

2.2

3.6

1.2

1.1

1.3

1.9

3.4

1.2

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.6

2.0

1.3

1.1

1.1

1.5

2.3

1.4

1.0

1.0

1.1

2.3

1.5

1.0

0.8

0.9

2.2

1.6

1.1

0.7

0.7

0.6

2.5

1.5

1.1

0.8

0.7

0.6

0.5

2.3

1.6

1.2

0.9

0.7

0.6

0.5

1.7

1.4

1.0

0.8

0.7

0.6

0.3

1.5

1.4

1.2

0.9

0.9

0.5

1.7

1.5

1.3

1.2

0.7

1.8

1.7

1.6

1.5

0.9

2.1

1.9

1.8

1.9

1.9

1.9

1.5

1.0

2.7

2.4

2.1

2.0

1.9

2.0

2.1

2.2

1.5

1.1

2.2

2.8

2.5

2.0

1.9

1.9

2.0

2.2

2.4

1.5

1.0

2.3

2.3

2.5

2.3

2.0

1.9

1.8

1.9

2.0

2.2

1.5

1.0

1.5

2.1

2.1

1.9

1.9

1.8

1.7

1.8

1.8

1.8

1.5

0.9

0.8

1.8

1.7

1.6

1.7

1.6

1.6

1.7

1.6

1.5

1.4

0.8

0.5

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.4

1.2

1.1

0.6

0.3

0.7

0.8

0.9

1.1

0.9

0.7

0.7

0.3

0.2

0.4

0.5

0.7

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.1

0.4

0.6

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.6

1.0

1.4

1.7

1.5

1.4

1.9

2.3

2.9

3.2

2.7

2.2

1.7

1.0

0.5

0.3

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.6

1.1

1.8

2.3

2.8

3.2

2.9

2.3

1.9

1.3

1.8

1.8

1.5

0.9

0.5

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.8

0.7

0.9

1.1

1.3

1.4

1.3

1.0

0.9

0.7

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.7

0.9

1.1

1.3

1.4

1.3

1.1

0.9

0.7

0.9

0.9

0.8

0.6

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.8

0.9

0.9

0.9

0.9

0.9

0.8

0.7

0.7

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.4

3.2

2.2

1.8

1.6

3.4

2.6

2.1

1.9

3.2

2.6

2.2

2.0

3.3

2.6

2.2

2.0

3.5

2.5

2.2

2.0

3.1

1.9

1.4

1.0

2.5

2.0

1.4

1.1

3.0

2.0

1.7

1.8

1.9

3.0

2.0

1.9

2.7

3.8

2.9

2.0

2.0

3.1

5.5

2.1

2.1

2.0

2.9

5.2

3.0

2.1

1.9

2.6

3.3

3.2

2.2

2.4

3.7

6.0

3.0

2.2

2.3

3.1

4.1

2.8

2.1

2.1

2.4

3.5

2.6

2.1

1.9

2.1

3.2

3.0

2.0

1.8

2.0

3.0

3.1

2.0

1.8

2.0

2.5

2.9

2.0

1.8

2.0

2.8

2.1

2.1

1.8

2.0

3.2

3.0

2.0

1.8

2.1

3.2

3.1

2.0

1.8

2.1

3.1

3.0

1.9

1.8

2.1

2.3

2.8

2.0

1.8

2.0

3.2

2.6

2.1

1.8

2.1

3.3

3.0

2.0

1.8

2.1

3.2

3.0

1.9

1.8

2.1

2.9

2.8

1.9

1.7

2.0

2.8

2.1

2.0

1.7

1.9

3.0

2.9

1.9

1.6

1.8

2.8

3.0

1.8

1.5

1.6

2.2

2.8

1.7

1.4

1.3

1.3

2.5

1.7

1.2

1.0

1.1

2.4

1.7

1.1

0.8

0.9

2.7

1.6

1.1

0.8

0.7

2.8

1.6

1.0

0.7

0.5

2.6

1.5

0.9

0.6

0.4

1.7

1.5

0.9

0.5

0.4

2.4

1.4

0.8

0.5

0.4

2.5

1.4

0.8

0.5

0.4

2.1

1.2

0.8

0.5

0.4

1.6

1.0

0.6

0.4

0.3

1.0

0.8

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.8

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.7

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.6

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.7

0.6

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.8

0.8

0.7

0.7

0.8

1.2

1.0

0.8

0.9

1.0

1.4

1.1

1.0

1.2

1.3

1.6

1.2

1.2

1.4

2.2

1.7

1.4

1.4

1.7

2.8

1.8

1.5

1.4

1.9

3.1

1.8

1.5

1.5

1.9

3.0

1.8

1.4

1.5

2.0

2.3

1.7

1.4

1.5

2.0

3.1

1.6

1.5

1.6

2.1

3.4

1.5

1.4

1.5

2.1

3.3

1.3

1.3

1.5

2.0

2.8

1.1

1.2

1.5

2.0

2.9

1.1

1.2

1.5

2.0

3.2

1.3

1.3

1.5

2.1

3.4

1.4

1.5

1.6

2.0

3.2

2.2

1.6

1.7

2.1

2.5

2.7

1.8

1.7

2.1

3.2

2.8

1.9

1.8

2.2

3.4

2.7

2.0

1.8

2.2

3.4

2.2

2.0

1.8

2.1

3.0

2.9

2.0

1.9

2.2

3.0

3.1

2.1

1.9

2.2

3.5

2.9

2.1

1.9

2.3

3.6

2.4

2.1

2.0

2.3

3.5

2.9

2.1

2.0

2.4

3.1

3.1

2.1

2.0

2.4

3.6

3.1

2.1

2.0

2.4

3.7

2.8

2.1

2.0

2.4

3.5

2.4

2.1

2.0

2.3

3.2

3.0

2.1

2.0

2.4

3.5

3.2

2.2

1.9

2.4

3.7

3.0

2.1

1.9

2.3

3.4

2.4

2.1

2.0

2.2

2.8

2.9

2.1

1.9

2.2

3.3

3.1

2.1

1.9

2.3

3.4

3.1

2.1

1.9

2.3

3.4

2.8

2.1

1.8

2.1

3.2

2.3

2.1

1.9

2.1

2.3

3.0

2.0

1.8

2.1

3.1

3.1

2.1

1.9

2.2

3.4

2.9

2.1

1.9

2.2

3.4

2.4

2.0

1.8

2.1

3.1

2.8

2.0

1.8

2.1

2.7

3.0

2.0

1.7

2.1

3.1

3.0

1.9

1.7

2.0

3.1

2.7

2.0

1.7

1.8

2.7

2.2

1.9

1.5

1.5

1.8

2.9

1.8

1.4

1.4

1.5

3.0

1.8

1.3

1.2

1.3

2.8

1.8

1.3

1.1

1.3

2.3

1.8

1.3

1.1

1.3

2.7

1.8

1.3

1.2

1.3

2.9

1.8

1.3

1.2

1.4

2.8

1.7

1.3

1.2

1.4

2.6

1.7

1.3

1.1

1.4

2.1

1.8

1.3

1.1

1.4

2.8

1.7

1.2

1.2

1.4

2.9

1.7

1.2

1.2

1.4

2.7

1.7

1.3

1.1

1.3

2.2

1.7

1.3

1.0

1.2

2.6

1.7

1.2

1.1

1.2

2.9

1.7

1.2

1.2

1.2

2.8

1.7

1.3

1.3

1.5

2.5

1.7

1.2

1.2

2.0

2.0

1.7

1.2

1.3

2.2

2.7

1.6

1.2

1.3

2.2

2.8

1.6

1.2

1.3

1.9

2.6

1.6

1.2

1.1

1.5

2.1

1.6

1.2

1.0

1.2

2.3

1.5

1.0

1.1

1.5

2.5

1.4

1.0

1.1

1.9

2.3

1.2

0.9

1.0

2.0

1.7

1.0

0.8

0.9

1.8

1.0

0.8

0.6

0.8

1.5

0.7

0.5

0.5

0.6

0.8

3.9

5.8

6.0

4.2

4.0

5.9

6.1

4.4

4.2

6.1

6.3

4.6

4.1

6.1

6.3

4.5

3.9

5.8

6.1

4.3

6.6

5.9

5.0

3.4

6.6

6.6

5.9

4.0

5.3

5.4

5.0

3.5

4.9

5.3

4.2

3.2

3.3

3.1

4.8

5.2

4.2

5.7

6.4

4.8

5.5

6.2

4.7

4.8

5.3

4.1

4.4

4.8

3.8

5.4

5.9

4.6

5.9

6.6

5.0

4.9

5.4

4.3

3.2

3.3

3.1

4.9

5.3

4.2

5.7

6.4

4.8

5.5

6.2

4.7

4.8

5.3

4.1

4.4

4.8

3.8

5.4

5.9

4.6

5.9

6.6

5.0

4.9

5.4

4.3

3.2

3.3

3.1

4.9

5.3

4.3

5.7

6.4

4.8

5.5

6.2

4.7

4.8

5.3

4.1

4.4

4.8

3.8

5.4

5.9

4.6

5.9

6.6

5.0

4.9

5.3

4.2

3.1

3.3

3.1

4.8

5.3

4.2

5.7

6.4

4.8

5.5

6.2

4.7

4.8

5.3

4.1

4.4

4.8

3.8

5.3

5.9

4.6

5.8

6.5

4.9

4.8

5.3

4.2

3.1

3.2

3.1

4.8

5.3

4.2

5.7

6.4

4.8

5.4

6.1

4.7

4.7

5.2

4.0

4.4

4.8

3.8

5.3

5.9

4.6

5.8

6.5

4.9

4.8

5.3

4.2

3.1

3.2

3.1

4.8

5.3

4.2

5.7

6.4

4.8

5.5

6.1

4.7

4.8

5.3

4.0

4.4

4.9

3.8

5.4

5.9

4.6

5.9

6.6

5.0

4.9

5.3

4.2

3.1

3.2

3.1

4.9

5.3

4.3

5.8

6.4

4.8

5.5

6.2

4.7

4.8

5.3

4.1

4.5

4.9

3.9

5.4

6.0

4.6

5.9

6.6

5.0

4.9

5.3

4.2

3.1

3.2

3.1

4.9

5.3

4.3

5.8

6.4

4.8

5.5

6.2

4.7

4.8

5.3

4.1

4.5

4.9

3.9

5.4

6.0

4.6

5.9

6.6

5.0

4.8

5.3

4.2

3.1

3.2

3.1

4.9

5.3

4.2

5.7

6.4

4.8

5.5

6.1

4.7

4.8

5.3

4.0

4.4

4.9

3.9

5.4

5.9

4.6

5.8

6.6

5.0

4.8

5.3

4.2

3.0

3.1

3.0

4.8

5.3

4.2

5.7

6.4

4.8

5.4

6.1

4.6

4.7

5.2

4.0

4.4

4.9

3.8

5.3

5.9

4.5

5.8

6.5

4.9

4.7

5.2

4.1

2.9

3.0

2.9

4.6

5.0

4.0

5.4

6.0

4.4

4.8

5.3

4.0

3.3

3.6

2.7

4.9

6.6

6.4

4.5

4.8

6.4

6.2

4.4

4.2

5.5

5.3

3.8

3.9

5.0

4.8

3.6

4.6

6.1

5.9

4.3

4.8

6.6

6.4

4.5

4.2

5.3

5.3

3.9

3.5

3.5

3.3

3.3

4.1

5.2

5.2

3.9

4.7

6.4

6.2

4.4

4.7

6.3

6.1

4.4

4.2

5.5

5.3

3.9

3.9

5.0

4.8

3.6

4.6

6.1

5.9

4.3

4.8

6.6

6.4

4.5

4.2

5.4

5.3

3.9

3.5

3.5

3.3

3.3

4.1

5.3

5.2

3.9

4.7

6.4

6.2

4.4

4.6

6.2

6.1

4.3

4.2

5.4

5.2

3.8

3.9

5.0

4.8

3.6

4.6

6.0

5.8

4.2

4.8

6.5

6.3

4.4

4.1

5.3

5.1

3.8

3.4

3.3

3.1

3.2

4.0

5.1

5.0

3.7

4.6

6.3

6.1

4.2

4.5

6.1

5.9

4.1

4.0

5.2

5.0

3.6

3.6

4.6

4.4

3.2

4.2

5.6

5.3

3.7

4.3

5.9

5.7

3.8

3.1

4.2

4.0

2.8

1.4

1.6

1.7

1.5

1.9

1.8

1.8

2.0

3.1

4.2

4.2

3.1

4.1

5.9

5.7

3.9

4.2

5.7

5.6

4.0

3.9

5.1

5.0

3.6

3.7

4.8

4.7

3.5

4.5

5.9

5.8

4.2

4.8

6.6

6.4

4.5

4.2

5.4

5.4

4.0

3.6

3.5

3.4

3.4

4.2

5.5

5.4

4.0

4.8

6.5

6.3

4.4

4.6

6.2

6.0

4.3

4.1

5.4

5.2

3.8

3.9

5.0

4.9

3.6

4.6

6.0

5.9

4.3

4.9

6.6

6.4

4.5

4.2

5.5

5.4

4.0

3.6

3.6

3.5

3.5

4.2

5.5

5.4

4.0

4.8

6.5

6.3

4.4

4.6

6.2

6.0

4.3

4.1

5.4

5.2

3.8

3.8

4.9

4.8

3.6

4.6

6.0

5.8

4.2

4.8

6.6

6.4

4.5

4.2

5.5

5.4

4.0

3.6

3.6

3.4

3.4

4.2

5.4

5.4

3.9

4.7

6.5

6.3

4.4

4.6

6.1

6.0

4.3

4.1

5.3

5.1

3.8

3.8

4.9

4.8

3.5

4.5

6.0

5.8

4.1

4.8

6.6

6.4

4.4

4.2

5.4

5.3

3.9

3.5

3.5

3.4

3.3

4.2

5.4

5.3

3.8

4.7

6.4

6.2

4.3

4.6

6.1

5.9

4.2

4.1

5.3

5.1

3.7

3.8

4.8

4.7

3.4

4.5

5.9

5.7

4.1

4.8

6.5

6.3

4.3

4.2

5.4

5.3

3.8

3.5

3.5

3.4

3.3

4.2

5.4

5.3

3.8

4.7

6.4

6.2

4.2

4.5

6.0

5.8

4.1

4.0

5.2

5.0

3.6

3.7

4.8

4.6

3.3

4.4

5.9

5.6

4.0

4.7

6.4

6.2

4.2

4.1

5.3

5.2

3.7

3.4

3.4

3.3

3.1

3.9

5.1

4.9

3.5

4.3

6.0

5.7

3.8

3.8

5.3

5.1

3.4

2.8

3.7

3.5

2.5

3.6

5.3

5.9

4.5

5.0

5.6

4.3

4.5

4.9

3.9

4.7

5.1

4.0

5.4

4.8 5.8

6.7

5.4

5.7

6.5

5.4

5.9

6.7

5.5

6.3

7.2

5.9

6.1

7.1

5.7

5.2

5.7

4.8 4.5

1.3

0.7

0.5

1.8

0.9

0.6

2.4

1.0

0.6

2.6

1.1

0.6

2.6

1.2

0.6

2.3

1.2

0.7

1.9

1.2

0.8

1.4

1.1

0.9

1.4

1.5

1.3

1.8

1.7

1.7

3.2

3.9

3.5

2.9

2.6

2.2

1.9

1.8

1.8

1.7

1.4

1.2

1.1

1.0

0.9

1.0

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.8

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.9

0.6

0.5

0.5

1.3

0.9

0.6

0.5

1.9

1.0

0.6

0.5

2.2

1.0

0.5

0.5

2.3

1.0

0.5

0.4

0.7

0.5

0.4

0.4

1.1

0.7

0.5

0.4

1.7

0.9

0.5

0.4

2.2

1.0

0.6

0.5

2.5

1.2

0.6

0.5

2.7

1.4

0.7

0.5

2.8

1.6

0.8

0.6

3.0

1.7

0.9

0.6

3.5

1.8

0.9

0.6

4.0

1.9

0.9

0.7

3.9

1.9

0.9

0.7

3.2

1.7

1.0

0.8

2.4

1.5

1.1

1.0

1.7

1.5

1.3

1.2

1.5

1.6

1.6

1.4

1.6

1.7

1.7

1.5

1.7

1.9

1.8

1.6

2.0

2.2

1.9

1.7

2.1

2.4

2.0

1.7

2.0

2.2

1.9

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.8

1.6

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.6

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.6

1.7

1.7

1.6

1.5

2.3

1.8

1.5

1.3

3.5

2.4

1.8

1.5

4.6

3.2

2.3

1.9

2.8

2.6

2.4

1.4

1.4

1.2

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.7

0.6

1.2

0.9

0.7

1.8

1.0

0.7

2.4

1.2

0.8

2.9

1.4

0.8

3.0

1.5

1.0

2.9

1.6

1.2

2.6

1.8

1.5

2.4

1.9

1.8

2.1

2.0

1.9

2.1

2.1

1.9

2.3

2.3

1.9

2.3

2.3

1.9

2.1

2.0

1.8

1.8

1.8

1.8

1.6

1.6

1.6

1.5

1.3

1.4

0.8

0.9

1.0

1.8

1.8

1.8

1.5

1.5

1.6

1.9

2.0

1.8

1.7

1.4

1.5

1.5

1.1

0.9

0.9

0.9

0.8

0.8

0.7

0.7

0.7

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.7

0.6

0.7

0.7

0.8

0.8

0.9

1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.6

1.7

1.7

1.5

1.9

2.1

1.8

1.5

2.1

2.3

1.9

1.5

2.1

2.3

1.9

1.6

1.8

2.0

1.9

1.6

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.2

1.4

1.5

1.7

1.0

1.1

1.2

1.4

0.8

1.0

1.0

1.1

0.9

1.0

1.0

1.1

1.1

1.2

1.2

1.2

1.7

1.6

2.0

2.0

1.9

2.2

2.4

2.0

2.0

1.9

1.7

1.8

1.6

1.5

1.4

1.2

1.1

1.6 1.9 2.2 2.2 1.9 1.6 1.3 1.0 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7

3.7

0.8

2.6

2.7

1.5

0.5

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.0

1.0

0.9

0.8

0.6

1.2

2.2

1.4

1.3

0.9

0.8

1.1

1.2

1.2

1.2

1.1

1.0

1.0

1.2

1.2

1.4

1.5

1.5

1.4

1.3

1.3

1.3

1.7

1.7

1.8

1.7

1.5

1.6

2.0

2.2

1.9

1.9

1.8

1.6

1.8

2.6

2.3

1.9

2.0

1.9

1.6

1.9

3.4

8.1

4.7

2.3

2.0

1.8

1.9

1.8

1.6

2.0

3.7

7.1

1.6

1.6

1.5

1.5

1.3

1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.8 1.1 1.8 2.8

2.4 2.4 3.0

5.6 2.6

1.4

1.1

2.7

1.6

1.0

0.6

2.6

0.5

3.0

1.1

4.7

2.4

8.2

5.6

10.0

8.0

5.8

10.2

7.6

6.5

9.3

7.7

7.0

4.1

4.6

1.7

3.2

0.7

2.5

0.3

2.3

0.3

2.5

0.3

2.2

0.2

1.7

0.2

1.3

0.4

1.2

1.3

1.3

1.3

0.6

1.6

2.4

3.0

2.6

1.9

3.0

3.0

1.1

2.3

3.1

3.2

5.0

5.5

4.1

4.6

3.0

4.2

5.1

5.3

2.9

3.0

5.6

4.4

5.6

7.4

7.0

5.1

3.3

2.6

3.0

6.0

6.1

6.8

6.0

6.3

6.1

5.0

6.9

3.3

5.0

5.3

6.4

3.8

1.7

1.6

1.7

5.1

5.1

4.5

5.2

5.2

3.6

7.4

5.0

4.5

3.4

6.9

2.7

3.0

2.5

3.1

2.4

0.8

0.9

0.8

2.8

2.1

2.2

3.0

2.9

4.9

4.4

3.6

2.4

3.3

4.6

1.3

3.3

5.9

6.8

6.0

6.6

6.2

3.7

1.5

0.6

0.3

1.2

1.2

0.4

0.4

0.4

1.2

0.9

0.5

1.0

2.5

5.1

6.9

6.2

6.3

6.5

4.7

2.1

1.7

4.5

2.7

1.8

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.7

0.8

0.9

1.0

1.1

1.1

1.1

1.1

1.0

0.9

0.8

0.7

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.3

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.6

0.6

0.7

0.7

0.8

0.9

1.1

1.2

1.4

1.5

1.5

1.4

1.2

1.1

0.9

0.8

0.7

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.8

0.9

0.9

0.9

1.0

1.1

1.1

1.0

1.0

1.0

1.0

0.9

0.8

0.8

1.0

1.1

1.3

1.6

1.7

1.7

1.6

1.4

1.1

0.9

0.8

0.7

0.6

0.6

0.7

0.9

0.9

1.0

1.0

1.1

1.1

1.0

0.9

0.8

0.8

1.3

1.7

1.9

2.1

2.0

2.0

2.0

2.1

2.1

1.9

1.5

1.0

0.8

0.8

0.9

1.1

1.4

1.6

1.7

1.7

1.6

1.4

1.1

0.9

0.8

0.7

0.6

0.6

0.8

1.4

1.9

2.2

2.2

2.1

2.0

2.1

2.1

1.9

1.6

0.2 0.3 0.5 0.7

1.5
1.9
2.4
2.8
2.9
2.8
2.4
2.1
2.5
2.8
2.9
2.7
2.2
1.4
1.0
0.8
0.8
0.9
1.0
1.2
1.3
1.6
1.7
1.9
1.8

1.1
0.9
0.8
0.7
0.6
0.6
0.6
0.8
1.2
2.1
2.8
3.1
3.0
2.6
2.1
2.4
2.9
3.1
2.9
2.3
1.6
1.1

2.2
2.5
3.2
4.9
5.6
4.5
3.0
2.3
3.1
4.8
5.6
4.7
2.8
1.5
0.9
0.7
0.7
0.8
0.9
1.0
1.2
1.4
1.8
2.0
2.0
1.8
1.5
1.2
1.0
0.8
0.7
0.6
0.5
0.5
0.5
0.7
1.2
2.5
4.6
6.0
5.1
3.3
2.2
2.7
4.5
5.8
5.2
3.1
2.1
1.6

3.3 4.9 8.2 8.4 6.3 5.2 6.5 9.2 10.19.4 10.18.7 5.7 3.6 2.7 2.3 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.6 3.7 5.3 8.2 10.49.7
9.3
9.9 9.8 6.9 4.4 3.4 3.1 3.3 3.8 3.9 4.0 4.0 3.5 2.6 2.2 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.7 3.5 5.5 8.5

8.3
9.5

8.2
8.9

7.2
9.5 7.3 3.9 1.9 1.1 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 1.1 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 0.8 0.3

2.0
1.7

1.8
1.7

2.5
2.7

4.1
3.4
3.3
3.8
3.7

6.0
4.0
3.6
4.8
6.5

4.1
3.6

3.6
3.3

2.7
2.6

4.0
3.7

3.7
3.5

2.4
2.6
2.8
2.8
2.7
2.6
2.5

1.4
1.5
1.7
1.9
1.9
1.7
1.5

0.9
1.1
1.3
1.4
1.4
1.3
1.1

0.9

0.9

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.5

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.4

1.7

1.9

1.9

1.4

1.9

2.3

2.1

1.5

2.0

2.5

2.2

1.5

1.9

2.4

2.1

1.4

1.7

2.0

1.9

1.2

1.6

1.7

1.8 1.7 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.9

7.8

4.8

2.1

0.9

7.9

4.5

2.0

0.9

1.9

1.7

1.3

1.0

0.9

0.8

0.9

0.8

0.7

1.3

1.1

1.0

1.6

1.5

1.4

1.8

1.8

1.6

0.6

2.1

2.2

1.5

0.6

2.3

2.5

1.5

0.6

2.3

2.5

1.6

0.6

2.0

2.1

1.5

0.6

1.8

1.8

1.6

0.7

1.7

1.5

1.5

1.7

1.7

1.5

1.5

1.4

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.4

1.3

1.3

1.1

1.4

1.7

0.9

1.6

2.9

0.9

2.0

4.0

0.9

2.2

5.0

8.2

0.9

2.2

5.0

8.2

1.4

18.2

18.3

3.3

2.0

3.7

7.1

8.2

7.1

3.7

2.0

1.9

1.0

3.0 3.2 2.9 1.4 1.1 1.7

1.4

1.2 1.6 2.5

3.3

1.5

2.4 1.3

1.0 1.3

3.6 3.0 1.6 0.7 0.4

0.3

1.7

2.6

1.8 2.1 3.0 3.7 4.4 4.9

8.2

4.7

8.1

3.7 2.9

3.1

2.7

3.0

2.9

3.0

3.0

2.9

2.8

3.8

3.1

2.5

2.5

7.8

4.3

3.1

7.3

3.9

2.6

2.9

1.9

2.0

1.4

1.1

1.0

0.9

1.0

1.0

1.1

2.8

2.8

2.5 2.8 2.8 2.9 2.6 2.4 2.0

1.3

1.3

1.3

1.5

2.0

1.1
1.2

1.8
2.1
2.3
2.2
2.0
1.7
1.7
2.1
2.4
2.6
2.7
2.5

2.6

2.8

2.7

2.6

0.4

0.4

0.8

0.5

5.0
2.6

1.8

1.0

4.9
3.4

3.2

2.0

1.5
2.4
3.1
3.5
3.5
3.1
2.3
1.8
1.4
1.5
1.9
2.5
2.8
2.9
2.7
2.6
3.0
4.5

3.3

3.8
3.7

2.2
3.1
5.0

4.0

5.5
5.7

1.3
1.4
1.5
1.8
2.4
3.4
4.9

3.9

8.2
8.3

1.3
1.7
2.2
2.9
3.6
4.3
4.7

3.0

1.3
2.2
3.5
4.6
5.7
6.2
5.5
4.3

2.6

4.9
7.4
8.4
8.5
7.9
5.7

2.3

8.0
5.8
3.8
2.7

6.3
5.7
4.4
3.8

4.7
5.5
5.1
5.0 6.0 6.9

8.8

8.1
7.4
6.4
7.3
9.1

7.2
7.6
6.5
6.6

8.6
7.8
6.1
5.8

9.4
7.9
5.7
4.5

8.7
7.8
5.0
3.1

2.6

0.4

0.8

1.7

2.9

3.7

3.6

2.5

1.5

1.0

2.6

2.8

1.6

2.6

2.2

5.2

0.8

1.9

3.8

0.8

2.0

4.7

0.8

1.9

3.9

2.4 5.2 6.3 4.3 3.4 5.5 7.8 8.1 8.4 5.7 2.6 1.3 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.2 1.2 1.4 2.7 5.8 8.8 9.3 9.9 6.8 3.3 2.0 1.6 1.8 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.9 4.0 6.2 5.0 2.2 0.8

1.0

0.5 0.8 2.0 5.0 7.7 8.0 7.9 5.8 2.7 1.3 1.0 1.2 1.5 1.8 2.0 1.8 2.0 1.8 1.5 1.7 2.8 5.7 8.1 8.2 7.9 5.3 2.2 0.8 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.0

3.6

4.0

1.7

1.7

2.0

2.9

3.5

3.6

3.2

2.2

1.5

1.2

3.2

2.5

1.9

3.5

3.3

3.1

2.5

2.0

1.9

2.2

2.9

3.0

2.8

3.1

1.1

1.6

3.4

5.9

5.9

1.1

1.1
0.7
0.7
0.6
0.6

1.4 2.0 3.1 3.6 3.7 3.2 2.1 1.3 1.2 1.7 2.7 3.4

3.1

3.6

7.1

2.2

3.1

4.3

1.6

2.0

2.1

1.0

1.1

8.6
8.6

0.9

0.5

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.4
0.5
0.4
0.4
0.4
0.5
0.5
0.4
0.1
0.1
0.1
0.3
0.6
1.3
2.5
3.8
4.8
5.7
5.4
4.6
3.4
2.0
1.0
0.4
0.5
0.4
0.4
0.4
0.3
0.3
0.2
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.2
0.3
0.2
0.2
0.2
0.1
0.1

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.1
0.3
0.3
0.3
0.3
0.3
0.3
0.2
0.1
0.1
0.1
0.2
0.5
1.0
1.5
2.0
2.6
2.8
2.8
2.5
1.8
1.3
0.8
0.4
0.3
0.2
0.2
0.2
0.1
0.1
0.1
0.1
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.1
0.1
0.1
0.1
0.1
0.1
0.1
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.1
0.2
0.2
0.2
0.3
0.3
0.3
0.3
0.3
0.3
0.2
0.2
0.2
0.1
0.1
0.0

0.1

0.0
0.0 0.0

2.1

2.3

3.4

5.5

1.6

2.0

2.9

4.2

1.3

1.5

2.0

3.0

1.3

1.5

1.7

2.0

1.5

1.6

1.5

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.6

1.5

1.6

1.8

1.7

1.6

1.7

1.9

2.0

1.8

1.7

2.0

2.3

2.0

1.8

2.0

2.4

2.0

1.7

1.9

2.2

2.0

1.6

1.8

1.9

1.8

0.9

1.2

1.4

1.5

1.4

1.9

2.2

2.5

2.0

2.3

2.7

3.7

3.3

4.6

5.1

5.4

4.5

6.6

7.0

6.6

4.4

6.2

6.9

6.7

3.9

5.5

6.3

6.4

4.0

5.7

6.5

6.9

4.6

6.5

7.3

7.9

4.9

7.0

7.8

8.2

4.3

6.0

6.9

7.0

3.4

3.7

4.2

5.6

4.2

5.4

5.8

5.2

4.8

6.7

6.7

5.0

4.7

6.5

6.3

4.5

4.2

5.3

5.3

3.9

3.9

5.1

5.0

3.6

4.5

6.0

5.8

4.1

4.8

6.6

6.4

4.5

4.4

5.9

5.8

4.0

3.5

3.7

3.6

3.5

4.3

5.4

5.3

4.1

5.0

6.9

6.8

5.0

5.0

6.9

7.1

5.7

4.5

5.7

6.2

6.2

4.6

6.0

6.9

7.1

5.2

7.3

8.0

8.3

5.1

7.2

8.0

8.2

4.6

5.9

6.7

7.2

4.6

5.9

6.4

6.4

5.1

7.0

7.2

5.9

5.0

6.9

6.9

5.3

4.4

5.6

5.6

4.5

3.6

3.9

4.0

4.0

4.3

5.6

5.5

4.4

4.9

6.7

6.5

4.8

4.5

6.0

5.9

4.4

3.7

5.0

4.9

3.7

3.5

4.6

4.5

3.5

4.2

5.6

5.4

3.9

4.9

6.7

6.4

4.5

4.5

6.1

5.9

4.3

3.5

4.5

4.7

3.9

4.1

5.4

5.8

5.1

4.6

6.5

6.9

6.3

4.3

6.2

6.9

6.9

3.3

4.3

5.3

6.6

4.6

6.4

6.4

4.6

4.0

5.5

5.5

4.3

3.4

4.8

5.0

4.1

3.8

5.3

5.8

5.5

4.5

6.4

7.1

7.0

4.7

6.9

7.9

8.1

4.1

5.7

6.7

7.8

3.5

3.9

4.8

6.7

4.1

5.6

6.3

6.5

4.7

6.7

7.1

6.0

4.7

6.6

6.8

5.2

4.1

5.5

5.5

4.3

4.0

5.0

5.0

4.0

4.3

6.0

6.0

4.2

4.1

5.9

5.8

4.1

3.0

3.9

3.9

3.0

4.9

6.0

6.2

5.0

4.7

6.4

6.4

4.7

1.1 1.6

1.6

1.6

1.9

1.9

1.8 2.0

1.7

1.8

1.8

1.8

1.4

1.5

1.5

1.7

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.4

1.1

2.6

4.8

6.2

6.5

5.4

3.4

1.5

0.5

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.6

0.7

0.6

0.4

0.4

0.6

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

W

D

WWWW

DDDD

4 CY
Garbage

4 CY
Garbage

4 
C

Y
TR

AS
H

4 
C

Y
R

EC
YC

LE

4 
C

Y
TR

AS
H

4 
C

Y
R

EC
YC

LE

4 C
Y

TR
ASH

4 C
Y

R
EC

YC
LE

3'

3'

6'

8'

10'

10'

3'

3'

6'

8'

10'

10'

3'

3'

6'

8'

10'

10'

3'

3'

6'

8'

10'

10'

3'

3'

6'

8'

10'

10'

T

T

T

T

T

RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE APARTMENTS
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO, RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270 3337-01-HS24 06/04/2025

2529 PROFESSIONAL PKWY
SUITE A - P.O. BOX #368

SANTA MARIA, CA 93455

P. 805-361-0525
E.INFO@GECECORP.COM
WWW.GECECORP.COM

DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND OTHER
DOCUMENTS, INCLUDING THOSE IN

ELECTRONIC FORM, PREPARED BY GRAY
ELECTRICAL CONSULTING + ENGINEERING,

CORP ARE THE INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE FOR
USE SOLELY WITH RESPECT TO THIS PROJECT
UNLESS OTHERWISE AUTHORIZED IN WRITING.

GRAY ELECTRICAL CONSULTING +
ENGINEERING, CORP SHALL BE DEEMED THE

AUTHOR AND OWNER OF THE INSTRUMENTS OF
SERVICE AND SHALL RETAIN ALL COMMON

LAW, STATUTORY AND OTHER RESERVED
RIGHTS, INCLUDING COPYRIGHTS.

E2SITE PHOTOMETRIC PLAN

SCALE:

SITE PHOTOMETRIC PLAN
1" = 20' - 0"

RESULTS GENERATED BY THIS TOOL ARE PROVIDED FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY, WITHOUT ANY WARRANTY AS TO ACCURACY,
COMPLETENESS, RELIABILITY OR OTHERWISE. THE CALCULATED RESULTS MAY BE DEPENDENT ON USER PROVIDED DATA OR DATA PROVIDED FROM
PUBLICLY AVAILABLE SOURCES AND DO NOT TAKE INTO ACCOUNT ALL FACTORS AND CIRCUMSTANCES. PHOTOMETRIC VALUES HAVE BEEN
CALCULATED USING METHODS RECOMMENDED BY THE ILLUMINATING ENGINEERING SOCIETY OF NORTH AMERICA (IESNA) AND/OR STANDARD
INDUSTRY PRACTICE. PHOTOMETRIC CALCULATIONS PERFORMED USING THIS TOOL ARE BASED ON PHOTOMETRIC DATA PROVIDED BY THE
MANUFACTURER, AND THE ACCURACY OF THE CALCULATED PHOTOMETRIC PERFORMANCE IS DEPENDENT ON THE ACCURACY OF THE DATA
PROVIDED. END-USER ENVIRONMENT AND APPLICATION (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, VOLTAGE VARIATION AND DIRT ACCUMULATION) CAN
CAUSE ACTUAL PHOTOMETRIC PERFORMANCE TO DIFFER FROM THE PERFORMANCE CALCULATED USING THE DATA PROVIDED BY THE
MANUFACTURER.

PHOTOMETRIC PLAN DISCLAIMER GENERAL NOTES
A. PHOTOMETRIC CALCULATION PLANE IS

SHOWN AT GRADE LEVEL UNLESS
OTHERWISE INDICATED.

B. REFER TO SITE ELECTRICAL PLAN FOR
LUMINAIRE DESIGNATIONS, SHEET E1.

C. BUILDING MOUNTED LIGHTS SHOWN AT
FIRST FLOOR LEVEL.

D. REFER TO SHEET E5 FOR PHOTOMETRIC
STATISTICS.

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002



RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE APARTMENTS
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO, RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270 3337-01-HS24 06/04/2025

2529 PROFESSIONAL PKWY
SUITE A - P.O. BOX #368

SANTA MARIA, CA 93455

P. 805-361-0525
E.INFO@GECECORP.COM
WWW.GECECORP.COM

DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND OTHER
DOCUMENTS, INCLUDING THOSE IN

ELECTRONIC FORM, PREPARED BY GRAY
ELECTRICAL CONSULTING + ENGINEERING,

CORP ARE THE INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE FOR
USE SOLELY WITH RESPECT TO THIS PROJECT
UNLESS OTHERWISE AUTHORIZED IN WRITING.

GRAY ELECTRICAL CONSULTING +
ENGINEERING, CORP SHALL BE DEEMED THE

AUTHOR AND OWNER OF THE INSTRUMENTS OF
SERVICE AND SHALL RETAIN ALL COMMON

LAW, STATUTORY AND OTHER RESERVED
RIGHTS, INCLUDING COPYRIGHTS.

E3SECTOR SLEEVE CUT SHEETS

SCALE: NOT TO SCALE

IID 3' X 6'-6" SECTOR SLEEVE1

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002



RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE APARTMENTS
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO, RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270 3337-01-HS24 06/04/2025

2529 PROFESSIONAL PKWY
SUITE A - P.O. BOX #368

SANTA MARIA, CA 93455

P. 805-361-0525
E.INFO@GECECORP.COM
WWW.GECECORP.COM

DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND OTHER
DOCUMENTS, INCLUDING THOSE IN

ELECTRONIC FORM, PREPARED BY GRAY
ELECTRICAL CONSULTING + ENGINEERING,

CORP ARE THE INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE FOR
USE SOLELY WITH RESPECT TO THIS PROJECT
UNLESS OTHERWISE AUTHORIZED IN WRITING.

GRAY ELECTRICAL CONSULTING +
ENGINEERING, CORP SHALL BE DEEMED THE

AUTHOR AND OWNER OF THE INSTRUMENTS OF
SERVICE AND SHALL RETAIN ALL COMMON

LAW, STATUTORY AND OTHER RESERVED
RIGHTS, INCLUDING COPYRIGHTS.

E4TRANSFORMER CUT SHEETS

SCALE: NOT TO SCALE

IID 8' X 8' TRANSFORMER PAD1

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002



RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE APARTMENTS
SE OF VIA VAIL & KEY LARGO, RANCHO MIRAGE, 92270 3337-01-HS24 06/04/2025

2529 PROFESSIONAL PKWY
SUITE A - P.O. BOX #368

SANTA MARIA, CA 93455

P. 805-361-0525
E.INFO@GECECORP.COM
WWW.GECECORP.COM

DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND OTHER
DOCUMENTS, INCLUDING THOSE IN

ELECTRONIC FORM, PREPARED BY GRAY
ELECTRICAL CONSULTING + ENGINEERING,

CORP ARE THE INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE FOR
USE SOLELY WITH RESPECT TO THIS PROJECT
UNLESS OTHERWISE AUTHORIZED IN WRITING.

GRAY ELECTRICAL CONSULTING +
ENGINEERING, CORP SHALL BE DEEMED THE

AUTHOR AND OWNER OF THE INSTRUMENTS OF
SERVICE AND SHALL RETAIN ALL COMMON

LAW, STATUTORY AND OTHER RESERVED
RIGHTS, INCLUDING COPYRIGHTS.

E5LUMINAIRE CUT SHEETS

SCALE: NOT TO SCALE

LUMINAIRE TYPE S11

SCALE: NOT TO SCALE

LUMINAIRE TYPE S22

SCALE: NOT TO SCALE

LUMINAIRE TYPE S3A & S3B3

SCALE: NOT TO SCALE

LUMINAIRE TYPE S44
SCALE: NOT TO SCALE

PHOTOMETRIC STATISTICS4

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002



RANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE APARTMENTS
Key Largo Ave & Vía Vail, Rancho Mirage, 92270 June 4, 20253337-01-HS24

GREY PEDESTRIAN CONCRETE

BUTTERFLY GARDEN WITH MOUNDS

BBQ AREA BENEATH CANOPY TREE

RAISED PLANTER BED WITH BENCH

LOUNGE SEATING

TABLE AND CHAIRS

TRASH AREA

NATURAL LAWN GAME COURT

TREE GRATES

OUTDOOR SHOWERS

OASIS PLUNGE POOL

LOUNGE CHAIRS AND UMBRELLAS

2-12 YEAR OLD PLAY STRUCTURE

DROUGHT TOLERANT PLANTS WITH ROCK MULCH

CARPORT OVER PARKING STALLS

BOULDER

SHADE TRELLIS

YOSEMITE BROWN BROOM FINISH SIDEWALK

BENCH

V
IA

 V
A

IL

UNIT BUILDING 1

UNIT BUILDING 6UNIT BUILDING 5UNIT BUILDING 4

UNIT BUILDING 3 UNIT BUILDING 2

COMMUNITY 
BUILDING

1.  PARKWAY PAVING SHALL BE INTEGRAL COLOR YOSEMITE BROWN CONCRETE WITH BROOM FINISH.

2.  ALL VEGETATION WITH SPIKES SHALL BE MINIMUM 3’ FROM EDGE OF WALKWAYS.

3.  ALL NEW PLANTING TO BE WATER EFFICIENT AND INSTALLED IN COMPLIANCE WITH CHAPTER 17.24 OF THE RANCHO MIRAGEMUNICIPAL CODE.

4.  ALL ELETRICAL AND UTILITY EQUIPMENT SHALL BE SCREENED IF ABOVE GROUND.

5.  BOULDERS SHALL NOT EXCEED 15’ IN HEIGHT AND SHALL NOT BE WITHIN 3’ OF A PUBLIC CURB.

6.  CANOPY TREES SHALL BE PLACED MINIMUM 10’ FROM PUBLIC STREET CURB AND 5’ FROM SIDEWALKS.

7.  PALM TREES TO HAVE MINIMUM TRUNK HEIGHT OF 10’

8.  TREES CONTAINER SIZES SHALL BE 30% 36” BOX, 50% 24” BOX, AND 20% 15 GAL

PEDESTRIAN GATE 
ACCESS WITH 

CONNECTION 
TO FUTURE PARK

1

1

36

8

15

2

9

16

17

18

19

3

10

4

11

LANDSCAPE KEYNOTESLANDSCAPE NOTES

5

12

6

13

14

7

CHILOPSIS LINEARIS

GEIJERA PARVIFLORA

LAGERSTROEMIA INDICA X FAURIEI ‘MUSKOGEE’

WASHINGTONIA FILIBUSTA

PROSOPIS ALBA ‘COLORADO’

PHOENIX DACTYLIFERA

PARKINSONIA ACULEATA

BISMARCKIA NOBLILIS

PRELIMINARY LANDSCAPE PLAN

TREE LEGEND

2

16

17

2

4

5

7

7
7

18

15

8

9

10

11

5

12

12

13

14 19

0’ 40’20’10’ 60’

SCALE 1” = 20’-0”
NORTH

L1
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002



CONCEPTUAL PLANTING PLANRANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE APARTMENTS
Key Largo Ave & Vía Vail, Rancho Mirage, 92270 June 4, 20253337-01-HS24

TRASH

VAN

VAN VAN

VAN

VA
N

EVEV EVEV

EV

EV

EV

EV EV-REV-R EV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REVEV

EV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-R

EV-REV-REV-REV-R

EV-REV-R

EV-REV-REV-REV-R

EV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-R

EV
EV

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV

EV-R

EVEV

EV EVEV

EVEVEV

EV-R EV-R

EV-R

EV-R

EV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-R

EV-REV-REV-REV-R

EV-R

EV-REV-R

EV-R EV-REV-R

EV-R EV-REV-R EV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-R EV

N
O

 P
AR

KI
N

G
FI

R
E 

LA
N

E
N

O
 P

AR
KI

N
G

FI
R

E 
LA

N
E

3'

3'

6'

8'

10'

10'

3'

3'

6'

8'

10'

10'

3'

3'

6'

8'

10'

10'

3'

3'

6'

8'

10'

10'

3'

3'

6'

8'

10'

10'

FU
TU

R
E 

VI
A 

VA
IL

 E
XT

EN
SI

O
N

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E 

 (N
00

°0
3'

04
"E

 3
33

.7
4'

)
VI

A 
VA

IL
 C

L

8'

TTTTT6' T6'6' T6'

EVEV EV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-R EV-REV-R EV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-R EV-R

VAN

EVEVEVEV-REV-REV-R EV-R

3'3'

3'3'
10'10'

10'10'

VAN
EV

EV-R

EVEV

EV EVEV

EV

EV-R

EV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-R

EV-R

EV-R

EV-R EV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV

10'10'

10'10'

VAN
EV EV-R EV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-R EV-R

3'

6'6'

8'

3'

6'

TTTTT

TTT

EV-REV-REVEV

EV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-R EV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-R

VA
N

VA
N

VA
N

VA
N

VA
N

VA
N

VA
N

VA
N

VA
N

VA
N

VA
N

EVEV EV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-R

EV
EV

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

3'

3'3' 10'10'

10'10'

10'10'

10'10'

VAN
EVEVEV-R EV-REV-R

3'3'

6'6'

8'

3'

6'6'

TRASHTRASH

TTTTT8'T8'

TTT

EV-R

T

BT
CP

CP

CP

CP

CP

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

BTBT BTBT BTBT BT BT

IA

IA

IA

ML ML ML ML ML ML

ML MLML

ML ML

ASASAS ASASASASASASAS

HY

TL

OP

OP

OP

ER ER ER

MC

IA

IAIA

IA

IAIA

IA

IA

IA

IA

BR

BRBRBRBRBRCPCP

MC MC MC MC MC MC

MC MC MC

TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC

TFC TFC TFC TFCMC

IA IA IAIA IA IA IAIA

CPCP

TL
TL

IAIA IA IA

RERERE
RE

RE
RE RE

ER
ER

ERERERER ER
ER

ER
ERER

ASASASASASAS

ASAS ASASAS ASASASAS

RE

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

RE
ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ASASASAS

GSGS
GS

GS

GS

GSGS

GSGS

GS

CP TL

TL
ASASASASASASASAS

ASASASAS
ASAS

ASASASAS

PB

PB

PB

PB

PB

PB

PB

PB

PB

PB

PB

TL

ASASASASAS

IAIAIAIA IAIA IA IAIAIAIA IAIAIA IA IA IAIAIA
TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC

CMCMCM

CM CM
CM

CM CMCM
CMCM

ASASASASASASCMCMCMCMCMCM

CM

CM CM

ER
ER

ER
ERER

ER

ER
ER

SAR SAR SAR

MC MC MC MC MC MC MC

HYHY HY HYHY HY HYHY

SA
SA

ML ML

HY

HY

HY

HY

HY

HYHY

HYHY

HYHY

HYHYHYHYHYHY

HYHY

HY
GSGSGS GS GSGSGSGS

SA SA ML ML

SAR

HYHYHYHYHY

SARSAR

HY

SAR

HYHY

CP

YR
YR

MC

ERERERERERERERERERER

ER ER

ER

ER

HY

HYHY

PB

SASA

SAR
SAR

SAR

IA

GSGSGS

GS

GS

GS
ASASASASASASASASAS

SAR
SAR

OP

ER

ER

ER

ER

ER
ER

ER ER ER

ER

ER

ER
ER ER

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CMCM

RE
RE RE RE

RE
RE

5'

4'

3'

5'

5'

4'

ER

CPCPCP

3'

3'

3'

4'
5'

3'

5'3'
4'

3'

4'

3'

3'

4'

5'

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HYMCMCMCMC

MCMCMCMC

MC

DW DW
DW

OP
OP

SAR

BR
BR

SAR

SAR

SAR

SAR

YR YR

ML
YR

HY

HY
SA SA SA

SAR

SAR

SAR

SARSARSARSARSARSAR

MLMLMLMLMLML

ML ML ML ML ML ML ML ML

SAR

SAR

SAR

SAR

SAR

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

3'

4'

DL

DL
DL

CPCP

CPCP

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM
CM

CM CMML ML ML

TL

TL

DL DL

DL

ML

ML ML

ML

ML ML

MLMLML

ML

DW

DW

DW

DW ML ML ML ML
APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP

APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP
APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP

APAP

APAP

APAPAP

DC

DC
DC

DC DC DC DC DC DC

MLMLML

ML

ML

ML

ML ML ML

ML ML

CP

CPCP

BR

IA IA IA

IAIA IAIA IA

IAIA IAIA IA

IA

LZLZLZLZLZ
LZLZLZLZ
LZLZLZLZLZ

LZLZ
LZLZLZLZ

LZ
LZLZ
LZ

LZ
LZLZLZ
LZ

LZ

LZLZ

LZ

ML

BR

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

DL
DLDL

HYHY

HY

LZ

SA

SA

SA

LZ

SA

SA

SA

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML
ML

ML

ML

ML ML ML ML

ML

ML

SAR

SAR

SAR

SAR

SAR

SAR

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

OP
OP

DC DC DC DCDC DCDC DCDC DCDC

DC DCDC DC DC DC DC DC

BT BT BT BTBT

ML ML

CP

APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP
APAP
APAP
APAP

APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAPAP

DW DW

DWDWDW
TLTL

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CMCM

DW DW DW

ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG

ERER

ER

ER

ER

ER

ER

ER

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML
APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAPAP APAPAPAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP

MC

MC

MC

MC

ERER

ER

ERERERERERERERERER

MC MC MC

MC

MC

5'

5'

ABPABP ABP

ABP

AAAA

AAAAAA

ARAR AR

ARAR ARAR AR

ML ML
ML

ML

ERER

ER

ER

ERERERERERER

ER

ERERER

ERERER
ERERERERER

ERER

EROP
OP

DWDWDWDWDWDW

DWDWDWDW

DWDW

TLTL

TL DL
DL

DL

5'

3'

4'

3'

3'

ABPABPABPABPABPABPABPABPABPABPABPABPABPABPABP

PB

PB

PB PB
PB

PB

PB PB
PB

DW
DWDWDWDW DWDW

AA

AA

AA

4'3'

MCMC

MC

5'

AAAAAA

ABPABPABPABPABPABPABPABPABPABPABPABPABPABPABP

APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP

ARARARARARAR

ARARARAR

ARARARAR

ARARARAR

4' BR
MC

MC

MC

AA

AAAAAA

AA

4'3'
ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG

ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG

ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG

ZG ZG ZG ZG

ZG ZG ZG

ZG ZG ZG ZG

5'

ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG

MCMC

APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP

BR
DCDCDCDCDCDCDCDCDCDCDCDCDCDCDC

ML

ML

ML

ML

ZG
ZG

MLMLML

AA
APAP
APAPAPAP
APAP
APAP
APAP APAP APAP

APAP

SA SA SA SA

CM CM CM CM CM CM CM CM CM CM CM CM CM CM CM

ER ER ER ERERERER ERERERER ERERERER ERERERER ERERERER ERERERER ERERERER ERERERER ERERERER ER

ML

ML

4'

DC

DC

DC

DC

DC

HY

HY

HY

HY

HY

HY

HY

HY

AAAAAAAA

AA

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA

AA

AAAA

AA

ER

ER

ER

ER

ER

HY

HY

HY

HY

HY

HY

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAHYHYHYHY

HY

HYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHY
HYHYHYHYHYHYHY

HYHYHYHYHYHYHY
HYHYHY

HYHYHYHYHYHYHY
HYHY

HYHYHYHYHYHYHYHY
HYHYHYHY HYHYHYHYHYHYHY HYHYHYHYHY HYHYHYHYHYHYHYHY HYHYHYHY HYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHY HYHYHYHYHYHY HYHY HYHYHYHYHYHY HYHYHYHYHYHY HYHYHYHYHYHYHY HYHYHYHYHY

HYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHY
HYHYHYHYHY

HYHYHYHYHYHYHYHY
HYHYHYHY

HYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHY
HYHYHYHYHYHYHY

HYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHY
HYHYHYHYHY
HYHYHYHYHYHYHYHY
HYHYHYHYHYHY
HYHYHYHYHY

HYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHY
HYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHY

HYHY

HYHYHY

HYHYHYHY

HYHY

HYHYHY

HY

HY

HYHYHYHY
HYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHY
HYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHY
HYHYHY
HYHYHYHYHYHY

HYHYHYHYHYHYHYHY
HYHYHY

HYHYHYHYHYHY
HYHY

HYHYHYHYHYHYHY
HYHYHYHYHYHY

HYHYHYHY HYHYHYHYHYHYHY HYHYHYHY HYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHY HYHYHYHYHYHYHYHY HYHYHYHYHYHYHYHY HYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHY HYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHY HYHYHYHYHYHY HYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHY HYHYHY
HYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHY

HYHYHYHYHYHYHY
HYHYHYHY

HYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHY
HYHYHYHY

HYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHYHY
HYHYHYHYHYHYHYHY

APAPAPAPAPAP

APAPAPAPAPAPAP

APAPAPAPAPAP

APAPAPAPAPAP

APAPAPAPAPAP

APAPAPAPAPAP

APAPAPAPAPAP

APAPAPAPAPAPAP

APAP

APAP

APAPAPAP

APAPAPAPAP

APAPAP
APAPAPAPAPAP

APAPAPAPAPAPAP
APAPAPAPAPAPAPAP

APAP
APAP

APAPAP

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

DC DC DC MC MC MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

ER ER

ER ER

APAP

APAPAPAP

APAPAPAPAP

APAPAPAPAPAPAPAP
APAPAPAP

APAPAPAP
APAPAP

APAPAP
APAP

APAP
APAP APAP

APAPAPAPAP

AP
APAPAPAPAPAP

AP
APAPAPAPAP

AP
APAPAPAP

AP
APAPAPAPAPAPAP

AP
APAPAPAPAPAPAPAP

AP
APAPAPAPAPAP

AP
APAPAPAP

MC

MC

MC MC MC MC

MC

MC

MC

MCMC

APAPAPAP APAPAPAPAP APAPAPAP APAPAPAP APAPAP APAPAP APAPAPAPAP APAPAPAP APAPAPAP APAPAP APAPAP APAPAPAPAP APAPAPAP APAPAPAP APAPAP APAPAP APAPAPAPAP APAPAPAP APAPAPAP APAPAP APAPAP APAPAPAPAP APAPAPAP APAPAPAP APAPAP APAPAP APAPAPAPAP APAPAPAP APAPAPAP APAPAP APAPAP APAPAPAPAP APAPAPAP APAPAPAP APAPAP APAPAP APAPAPAPAPAPAP APAPAPAP APAPAPAPAP APAPAP APAPAP APAPAPAPAP APAPAPAP APAPAPAP APAPAP APAPAP APAPAPAPAPAP APAPAPAP APAPAPAP APAPAP APAPAP APAPAPAPAP APAPAPAP APAPAPAP APAPAP APAPAP APAPAPAP APAPAPAP APAPAPAP APAPAP APAPAP APAPAPAP APAPAPAP APAPAPAPAP

3'

MC

MC

MC

MC

AA

AA

ARARARARAR

ARARARARARARARARAR

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

APAP

APAP

APAPAP

APAPAP
APAPAPAP

APAPAP
APAPAPAP

APAPAP
APAP

MCMCMC

MC

MC

DCDC

DCDC

DCDC

DC

HY

HY

HY

HY

HY

HY

HY

HY

ER

ERER

ER

ERERER

ERER

HY

HY

HY

HY

HY

HYHYHY

HY

HYHYHY

AAAAAA

AA

AAAAAAAAAA

AA

AAAAAAAAAAAAAA

AA

BR
HY

HY

HY HY HYHYHY HYHYHY HYHYHY

HY

OP

OP

ABPABPABP
ERERERERERERERERERERERERERER

APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAPAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP
APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAPAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP

DC DC DC DC DCDCDCDC DC

DW DW DWDW DW
DC

DCDC

ABP ABPABPABPABPABP ABPABPABPABPABPABP ABPABPABPABPABPABP ABPABPABPABPABP ABPABPABPABPABP
ASASASASASAS ASASASASASASAS ASASASASASAS ASASASASASASAS ASASASASASAS ASASASASASAS ASASASASASASAS ASASASASASAS

AA

AA

HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY

CP

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

CMCMCMCMCMCM

CMCMCMCM

CMCM

4'

5'

4'

3'

3'

4'

YR
YR

YR

YR

ER

ER

ER

ER

ERERERERERERERERER

MC MC MC MC

MC MC MC

DC

DCDCDC

DC

DC

DCDCDC

ABPABPABPABP

ABPABPABP

AAAAAAAAAA

AAAAAA
BTBT BTBTBT BT BTBTBTBT BT

IA

SA

DCDCDCDCDCDCDCDCDC

DCDCDC

AA AA
ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG

ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZGZG

ABPABPABPABP ABPABPABP ER

ER

ER

ML
ML

MLDL
DL

ML
ML

ML
ML

ML ML MLAA AA
PB

PB

PB

PB

PB

PB

PB

PB

PB

PB

PB

PB

PB

OP
APAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAP

APAPAP

3'

ERERER
SASASA

DCDCDCDCDCDCDCDCDC

TPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTP

TPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTP

TPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTL

4' 3'

3'

HYHYHY HYHYHY HYHYHYHY HYHYHY HYHY HYHYHY HYHYHY HYHYHYHY HYHYHYHY HYHY HYHYHYHYHYHYHY HYHYHY HYHYHY HYHYHYHY HYHYHYHY HYHY HYHYHY HYHYHY HYHYHY HYHYHYHY HYHYHY HYHY HYHYHY HYHYHY HYHYHYHY HYHYHYHY HYHY HYHYHY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HYHY HYHY HY HY HY HY HYHY HY HY

TL TL TL

ASASAS ASASASAS ASAS ASASAS ASAS ASAS ASASASASAS ASASAS
ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

ER

ER

ER

ER

ER

ER

ABP

ABP

ABP

ABP

ABP

ABPABP

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CMCM

ABPCMCMCM

CM

ABPCMCMCMCM

CM

ABPCMCMCMCM

CM

ABPCMCMCM

CM

ABPCMCMCM

CM

ABPABPCMCMCM

CMCMCM

SARSARSARSAR

4'

CM

CPCPCP

TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFCER ER ER ER ERER ER ER ER

TL TL TL TL TL

LZ
LZ
LZLZLZ
LZLZLZLZLZ
LZLZ

APAPAPAP
APAP
APAPAP
APAP
APAPAP
APAPAP
APAPAPAPAPAPAP
APAPAPAPAP

DC

DC

DC

DC

DC

DC BT BTBT BT
BT

BT
BTBT

ABP

ABP

ABPDC

5'3'

4'

OP

YR

YR

ERERERERERERERERERER

ER

ERER

ER

ER

ER

ER

DL

DL
ML

MLML
ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

AA AA

ML
ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MCMCMCMC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

APAPAPAPAPAP
MCAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAP

MCMCAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAP

APAPAP

APAPAP

APAPAP

APAPAP

APAPAP

APAPAPAPAP

AP

AP
APAPAPAPAPAPAP

MC
AP

AP
APAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAP

MC

AP

AP
APAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAP

AP

AP
APAPAPAPAPAP

MC
AP

APAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAP

MC

AP

AP
APAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAP

TFC

TFC

TFC

TFC

TFC

TFC

TFC

ER ER ERER ER ER

ABPABPABPABPABPABPABPABPABPABPABPABPABPABPABPABPABPABP

BR

TPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTP

TPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTP
DL DL

CM
CM

CMCMCM
CM

CM
CM

CMCMCM
CM

CM
MC

MC

MC

MC
MC TFC TFC TFC TFC

APAP APAPAP APAP APAPAP APAPAP APAP APAPAP APAP APAP ERERER ER ER ER ER ER ERER ER ER ER ER ER ERERER ERER ER ER ER ER ER ER ER

SA SA SA

SAR SAR SAR SAR SAR SAR SAR SAR SAR SAR

DW
DW

ML ML ML ML ML
TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFCER

ABPABPABPABP ABP ABP ABP ABP

AR AR AR AR AR AR AR AR AR AR

APAP APAPAPAP APAPAP APAPAPAPAP AR ARAR AR AR

OP

APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAPAP APAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAP APAP APAP APAPAPAP APAPAPAPAPAP APAPAP APAP APAP

AA

AA
4' 3'

ER

ERER

ERERER

ER

ER

ER

ER

ER

ABP ABPABP ABPABP ABP

CMCM CMCM CM CM CM CM CM CMCM

CMCM CM CM CM CM CMCM

TFC

TFC

TFC

TFC

TFC

TFC

TFC

TFC

BRBR

ML

ML

MLMLMLMLML

TL

TL

TL

ASAS
ASAS
ASASASAS
ASAS
ASAS
ASASAS
ASAS
ASAS
ASASASASAS

HYHYHYHYHY

HYHYHYHYHYHY

HYHYHYHYHYHY

HYHYHYHYHY

ASASASAS
ASASASASASAS
ASASASASASAS
ASASASASASASASAS

TP

TP

TP

TP

TP

TP

TP

TP

TP

SAR

SAR

SAR

SAR

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

AA
AAAA AAAAAAAA

AA
AAAAAA

3'
3'3'

ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG

ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG

ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG

ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG

ZG ZG ZG ZG

ZG ZG ZGZG

AA

AA 5'

ABPABPABPABPABPABPABPABPABPABP

AAAA AAAA AA AA
AR AR AR AR AR AR AR AR AR AR AR AR ARAR

ABP ABP ABPABP

ER ER ER ERER ER

MC MC MC MC MC

APAPAPAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAPAP APAPAPAPAP APAPAP

SAR SAR

APAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAPAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAPAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAPAPAP APAPAPAP APAP APAP APAPAPAP APAPAP

ML ML ML ML

ML

ML

MLMLMLML

ML

ML

MLMLMLML

5'

3'

OP

APAPAPAPAP
APAPAP

APAPAP
APAPAPAPAPAP

APAP
APAP

APAP
APAP

APAP
APAP

APAP
APAPAPAP

APAPAPAP
APAP

APAPAP

APAPAPAP
APAPAP

APAPAP
APAPAP

APAP
APAP

APAPAPAP
APAPAPAPAPAPAPAP

APAP

APAP
APAPAPAPAPAP

APAP

APAP

IA IA IA IA

APAPAPAP

APAPAPAPAP
APAPAPAP

DW

DW

DW

APAP

APAPAPAP

APAPAP

APAPAP

APAPAPAPAP

APAPAPAPAPAP

APAPAPAP

APAPAP

APAPAPAPAP

APAPAPAPAP

APAP

APAPAPAPAPAP

APAP

APAPAPAP

APAPAPAPAP

APAP

APAP

ML ML ML

ML ML ML

ML ML

ML

HY

HY

HY

HY

HY

HY

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MCMCMCMCMCMCMCMC

ER ER ER ER ER ER ER ER ER ERER ER

DC

DC

DC

AA

ML

ML

ML

ML
MCMC

MC

MC

MCMC

MC

MC

ML

ML

ML

MLMLML

MLML

MC MC MC MC MC MC MC MC MC MC MC MC MC

CM CM CM CMCM CM HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY HY

APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP APAP

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OE OEOE OEOEOE OEOE OE OE

OEOEOE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OEOEOEOEOEOEOEOEOEOEOEOEOE

OE

OE

OE

ABP

ABP MC MC MC

5'

TL

TL

TL

IA

IA

IA

IA

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

SA

SA

SA

HY

HYHY

HYHY

HY

HY

HY

HY

HY

HY

HY

HY

HY

HYHYHYHYHY

HYHYHYHY

HYHYHYHY

HY

HYHYHYHYHY

HYHY

IA IAIA IAIA

MC

MC

MC

PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL

PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

MC

MC

MC

CM

CM

CM

CMCM

CM

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

CM

CM

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CMCM

CMCM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CMCM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CMCM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CMCM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CMCM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CMCM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML
5'

3'

ML
ML

ML
APAP

APAP
APAP

APAPAP
APAP

APAPAPAPAP

APAP
APAP

APAP
APAP

APAPAPAPAP

MLML

MCMCMCMCMCMCMC

MC

MC

MC

MC MC MC MC MC MC MC

MC MC MC

MC MC MC

MC MC MC

MCMCMCMCMCMCMC

MC

MC

MC

MC MC MC MC MC MC MC

MC MC MC

MC MC MC

MC MC MC

ML

ML

ML

ML

DL

MC

ML

OP

PB

PIL

RE

SA

SAR

TL

TP

TFC

YR

ZG

TRASH

VAN

VAN VAN

VAN

VA
N

EVEV EVEV

EV

EV

EV

EV EV-REV-R EV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REVEV

EV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-R

EV-REV-REV-REV-R

EV-REV-R

EV-REV-REV-REV-R

EV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-R

EV
EV

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV
-R

EV

EV-R

EVEV

EV EVEV

EVEVEV

EV-R EV-R

EV-R

EV-R

EV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-R

EV-REV-REV-REV-R

EV-R

EV-REV-R

EV-R EV-REV-R

EV-R EV-REV-R EV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-REV-R EV

N
O

 P
AR

KI
N

G
FI

R
E 

LA
N

E
N

O
 P

AR
KI

N
G

FI
R

E 
LA

N
E

3'

3'

6'

8'

10'

10'

3'

3'

6'

8'

10'

10'

3'

3'

6'

8'

10'

10'

3'

3'

6'

8'

10'

10'

3'

3'

6'

8'

10'

10'

FU
TU

R
E 

VI
A 

VA
IL

 E
XT

EN
SI

O
N

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E 

 (N
00

°0
3'

04
"E

 3
33

.7
4'

)
VI

A 
VA

IL
 C

L

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML ML ML ML ML ML

ML MLML

ML ML

TL

OP

OP

OP

MC MC MC MC MC MC MC

MC MC MC

TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC

TFC TFC TFC TFCMC

TL
TL

RERERE
RE

RE
RE RE

RE

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

RE
ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

TL

TL
PB

PB

PB

PB

PB

PB

PB

PB

PB

PB

PB

TL

TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC

SAR SAR SAR

MC MC MC MC MC MC MC

SA
SA

ML ML

SA SA ML ML

SARSARSARSAR

YR
YR

MC

PB

SASA

SAR
SAR

SARSAR
SAR

OP

RE
RE RE RE

RE
RE

5'

4'

3'

5'

5'

4'

3'

3'

3'

4'
5'

3'

5'3'
4'

3'

4'

3'

3'

4'

5'

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC MCMCMCMC

MCMCMCMC

MC

OP
OP

SAR

SAR

SAR

SAR

SAR

YR YR

ML
YR

SA SA SA

SAR

SAR

SAR

SARSARSARSARSARSAR

MLMLMLMLMLML

ML ML ML ML ML ML ML ML

SAR

SAR

SAR

SAR

SAR

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

TL

3'

4'

DL

DL
DL

ML ML ML

TL

TL

DL DL

DL

ML

ML ML

ML

ML ML

MLMLML

ML

ML ML ML ML

MLMLML

ML

ML

ML

ML ML ML

ML ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

DL
DLDL

SA

SA

SA

SA

SA

SA

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML
ML

ML

ML

ML ML ML ML

ML

ML

SAR

SAR

SAR

SAR

SAR

SAR

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

OP
OP

ML ML

TLTL

ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML
MC

MC

MC

MC

MC MC MC

MC

MC

5'

5'

ML ML
ML

ML

OP
OP

TLTL

TL DL
DL

DL

5'

3'

4'

3'

3'

PB

PB

PB PB
PB

PB

PB PB
PB

4'3'

MCMC

MC

5'

4'
MC

MC

MC

4'3'
ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG

ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG

ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG

ZG ZG ZG ZG

ZG ZG ZG

ZG ZG ZG ZG

5'

ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG

MCMC

ML

ML

ML

ML

ZG
ZG

MLMLML

SA SA SA SA
ML

ML

4'

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC MC MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC MC MC MC

MC

MC

MC

MCMC

3'

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MCMCMC

MC

MC

OP

OP

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

4'

5'

4'

3'

3'

4'

YR
YR

YR

YRMC MC MC MC

MC MC MC

SA
ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG

ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZGZG

ML
ML

MLDL
DL

ML
ML

ML
ML

ML ML ML

PB

PB

PB

PB

PB

PB

PB

PB

PB

PB

PB

PB

PB

OP
3'

SASASA

TPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTP

TPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTP

TPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTL

4' 3'

3'

TL TL TL
ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

SARSARSARSAR

4' TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC

TL TL TL TL TL

5'3'

4'

OP

YR

YR

DL

DL
ML

MLML
ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

ML
ZG

ZG

ZG

ZG

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MCMCMCMC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

TFC

TFC

TFC

TFC

TFC

TFC

TFC

TPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTP

TPTPTPTPTPTPTPTPTP
DL DL

MC

MC

MC

MC
MC TFC TFC TFC TFC SA SA SA

SAR SAR SAR SAR SAR SAR SAR SAR SAR SAR

ML ML ML ML ML
TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC TFC

OP 4' 3'

TFC

TFC

TFC

TFC

TFC

TFC

TFC

TFC

ML

ML

MLMLMLMLML

TL

TL

TL

TP

TP

TP

TP

TP

TP

TP

TP

TP

SAR

SAR

SAR

SAR

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

3'
3'3'

ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG

ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG

ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG

ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG ZG

ZG ZG ZG ZG

ZG ZG ZGZG 5'

MC MC MC MC MC

SAR SAR

ML ML ML ML

ML

ML

MLMLMLML

ML

ML

MLMLMLML

5'

3'

OP

ML ML ML

ML ML ML

ML ML

ML

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MCMCMCMCMCMCMCMC

ML

ML

ML

ML
MCMC

MC

MC

MCMC

MC

MC

ML

ML

ML

MLMLML

MLML

MC MC MC MC MC MC MC MC MC MC MC MC MC MC MC MC

5'

TL

TL

TL

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

SA

SA

SA

MC

MC

MC

PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL

PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL PIL

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

MC

ML

ML

ML

ML

ML
5'

3'

ML
ML

ML

MLML

MCMCMCMCMCMCMC

MC

MC

MC

MC MC MC MC MC MC MC

MC MC MC

MC MC MC

MC MC MC

MCMCMCMCMCMCMC

MC

MC

MC

MC MC MC MC MC MC MC

MC MC MC

MC MC MC

MC MC MC

ML

ML

ML

ML

SYMBOL BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME CONT WUCOLS QTY

TREES

BISMARCKIA NOBILIS BISMARCK PALM 24" BOX VERY LOW 4

CHILOPSIS LINEARIS DESERT WILLOW 24" BOX LOW 15

GEIJERA PARVIFLORA AUSTRALIAN WILLOW 24" BOX LOW 4

LAGERSTROEMIA INDICA X FAURIEI 'MUSKOGEE' MUSKOGEE CRAPE MYRTLE 24" BOX LOW 8

PARKINSONIA ACULEATA MEXICAN PALO VERDE 24" BOX VERY LOW 11

PHOENIX DACTYLIFERA DATE PALM 24" BOX VERY LOW 6

PROSOPIS ALBA COLORADO COLORADO MESQUITE 24" BOX LOW 18

WASHINGTONIA FILIFERA CALIFORNIA FAN PALM 24" BOX VERY LOW 10

PLANT SCHEDULE
SYMBOL BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME CONT WUCOLS SPACING QTY

SHRUBS

ABUTILON PALMERI INDIAN MALLOW 5 GAL LOW 54" o.c. 65

AGASTACHE RUPESTRIS THREADLEAF HYSSOP 5 GAL MODERATE 24" o.c. 51

AGAVE ATTENUATA FOXTAIL AGAVE 5 GAL LOW 60" o.c. 59

ARISTIDA PURPUREA PURPLE THREEAWN 1 GAL LOW 24" o.c. 493

ASCLEPIAS SUBULATA DESERT MILKWEED 5 GAL LOW 36" o.c. 43

BACCHARIS PILULARIS `TWIN PEAKS #2` TWIN PEAKS #2 COYOTE BRUSH 5 GAL LOW 60" o.c. 21

BEAUCARNEA RECURVATA PONY TAIL PALM 15 GAL LOW 96" o.c. 12

CAESALPINIA PULCHERRIMA RED BIRD OF PARADISE 5 GAL LOW 84" o.c. 17

CHRYSACTINIA MEXICANA DAMIANITA 5 GAL LOW 24" o.c. 220

DALEA CAPITATA DALEA 5 GAL LOW 36" o.c. 77

DASYLIRION LONGISSIMUM TOOTHLESS DESERT SPOON 15 GAL LOW 48" o.c. 18

DASYLIRION WHEELERI GREY DESERT SPOON 5 GAL LOW 54" o.c. 28

EUPHORBIA RIGIDA YELLOW SPURGE 5 GAL LOW 36" o.c. 189

GAURA LINDHEIMERI 'SISKIYOU PINK' SISKIYOU PINK GAURA 5 GAL LOW 36" o.c. 13

ABP

AR

AA

AP

AS

BT

BR

CP

CM

DC

DL

DW

ER

GS

HESPERALOE PARVIFLORA 'YELLOW' YELLOW YUCCA 5 GAL LOW 36" o.c. 271

ISOMERIS ARBOREA BLADDERPOD 5 GAL LOW 60" o.c. 51

LEUCOPHYLLUM ZYGOPHYLLUM 'CIMARRON' CIMARRON BLUE RANGER 5 GAL LOW 36" o.c. 21

MUHLENBERGIA CAPILLARIS PINK MUHLY GRASS 1 GAL MODERATE 36" o.c. 312

MUHLENBERGIA LINDHEIMERI LINDHEIMER'S MUHLY 1 GAL MODERATE 54" o.c. 218

OLEA EUROPAEA 'LITTLE OLLIE' LITTLE OLLIE OLIVE 5 GAL LOW 36" o.c. 40

OPUNTIA FICUS-INDICA INDIAN FIG CACTUS 15 GAL LOW 72" o.c. 16

PENSTEMON BACCHARIFOLIUS ROCK PENSTEMON 5 GAL LOW 24" o.c. 34

PRUNUS ILICIFOLIA LYONII CATALINA CHERRY 5 GAL LOW 36" o.c. 401

RUSSELIA EQUISETIFORMIS FIRECRACKER PLANT 5 GAL LOW 48" o.c. 15

SALVIA APIANA WHITE SAGE 5 GAL LOW 72" o.c. 30

SENNA ARTEMISIOIDES SILVER SENNA 5 GAL LOW 60" o.c. 57

TAGETES LEMMONII COPPER CANYON DAISY 5 GAL LOW 72" o.c. 52

TEUCRIUM CHAMAEDRYS 'PROSTRATUM' PROSTRATE GERMANDER 5 GAL LOW 24" o.c. 67

TEUCRIUM FRUTICANS `COMPACTUM` COMPACT BUSH GERMANDER 5 GAL LOW 36" o.c. 72

YUCCA ROSTRATA 'SAPPHIRE SKIES' SAPPHIRE SKIES BEAKED BLUE YUCCA 15 GAL LOW 48" o.c. 11

ZINNIA GRANDIFLORA ROCKY MOUNTAIN ZINNIA 5 GAL LOW 12" o.c. 249

HY

IA

LZ
MC

ML

OE

OP

PB

PIL

RE

SA

SAR

TL

TP

TFC

YR

ZG

0’ 40’20’10’ 60’

SCALE 1” = 20’-0”
NORTH

L2
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002



PROPOSED TREES

Aristida purpurea

Euphorbia rigida

Prunus ilicifolia ‘Lyonii’

Asclepias subulata

Gaura ‘Siskiyou Pink’

Russelia equisetiformis

Baccharis x ‘Starn Thompson’

Hesperaloe ‘Yellow’

Salvia apiana

Beaucarnea recurvata

Isomeris arborea

Senna artemisioides

Caesalpinia pulcherrima

Leucophyllum ‘Cimarron’     

Tagetes lemmonii

Chrysactinia mexicana

Muhlenbergia capillaris

Teucrium chamaedrys
‘Prostratum’

Dalea capitata

Muhlenbergia lindheimeri

Teucrium ‘Compactum’

Dasylirion longissimum

Opuntia fi cus-indica

Yucca ‘Sapphire Skies’

Dasylirion wheeleri

Olea ‘Little Ollie’

Zinnia grandifl ora

Abutilon palmeri

Penstemon baccharifolius

PROPOSED PLANTING

Geijera parvifl ora Lagerstroemia ‘Muskogee’ Parkinsonia aculeata Prosopis alba ‘Colorado’ Washingtonia fi libustaPhoenix dactyliferaChilopsis linearisBismarckia nobilis

PLANT PALETTERANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE APARTMENTS
Key Largo Ave & Vía Vail, Rancho Mirage, 92270 June 4, 20253337-01-HS24

TREES

Bismarckia nobilis     Bismarck plam    Low
Chilopsis linearis     Desert willow    Low
Geijera parvifl ora     Australian willow   Low
Lagerstroemia ‘Muskogee’  Crape myrtle    Low
Parkinsonia aculeata    Mexican palo verde  Low
Phoenix dactylifera    Desert date palm   Low
Prosopis alba ‘Colorado’   Argentine mesquite  Low
Washingtonia fi libusta    Washinton palm   Low

Botanical       Common     Water use

Botanical       Common     Water use
SHRUBS / GRASSES / GROUNDCOVER

Abutilon palmeri     Indian mallow    Low
Agastache rupestris    Threadleaf hyssop   Med
Agave attenuata     Foxglove agave   Low
Aristida purpurea     Purple three awn grass Low
Asclepias subulata    Desert milkweed   Low
Baccharis ‘Twin Peaks #2’  Coyote bush    Low
Beaucarnea recurvata   Pony tail palm    Low
Caesalpinia pulcherrima   Red bird of paradise  Low
Chrysactinia mexicana   Damianita daisy   Low
Dalea capitata     Yellow dalea    Low
Dasylirion longissimum   Mexican grass tree  Low
Dasylirion wheeleri    Grey desert spoon  Low
Euphorbia rigida     Silver spurge    Low
Gaura ‘Siskiyou Pink’    Pink gaura     Low
Hesperaloe ‘Yellow’    Yellow yucca    Low
Isomeris arborea     Bladder pod    Low
Leucophyllum ‘Cimarron’   Blue ranger    Low
Muhlenbergia capillaris   Pink muhly     Med
Muhlenbergia lindheimeri   Lindheimer’s muhly  Med
Olea europaea ‘Little Ollie’  Little Ollie olive   Low
Opuntia fi cus-indica    Prickly pear    Low
Penstemon baccharifolius  Rock penstemon   Low
Prunus ilicifolia ‘Lyonii’    Catalina cherry   Low
Russelia equisetiformis    Coral fountain    Med
Salvia apiana      White sage    Low
Senna artemisioides    Feathery cassia   Low
Tagetes lemmonii     Mexican marigold  Low
Teucrium ‘Prostratum’    Trailing germander  Low
Teucrium ‘Compactum’   Germander    Low
Yucca ‘Sapphire Skies’   Sapphire skies yucca  Low
Zinnia grandifl ora     Prairie zinnia    Low

CONCEPTUAL PLANT PALETTE

L3
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002



TRASH

FU
TU

R
E 

VI
A 

VA
IL

 E
XT

EN
SI

O
N

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E 

 (N
00

°0
3'

04
"E

 3
33

.7
4'

)
VI

A 
VA

IL
 C

L

T

TT

TT

TRASHTRASH

T

T

T

0 10 20 40

SCALE: 1"=20'-0"

FENCE, WALL, AND GATE PLANRANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE APARTMENTS
Key Largo Ave & Vía Vail, Rancho Mirage, 92270 June 4, 20253337-01-HS24

6’-0”H FENCE AROUND THE PERIMETER

5’-0”H POOL ENCLOSURE FENCE

6’-0”H CMU BLOCK WALL

6’-0”H STONE VENEER WALL

6’-0”H FENCE AROUND THE PERIMETER 5’-0”H POOL ENCLOSURE FENCE 6’-0”H CMU BLOCK WALL 6’-0”H STONE VENEER WALL

FENCE AND WALL LEGEND

PEDESTRIAN GATE
ACCESS

COMMUNICATIONS
SYSTEMS

PEDESTRIAN GATE
ACCESS

PEDESTRIAN GATE
ACCESS

PEDESTRIAN GATE
ACCESS

PEDESTRIAN GATE 
ACCESS WITH CONNECTION 
TO FUTURE PARK

POOL ENCLOSURE 
FENCE

VEHICULAR GATE
ACCESS

VEHICULAR GATE ACCESS

L4
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002



1

2

3

3

2

1

FENCE AND GATE ELEVATIONSRANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE APARTMENTS
Key Largo Ave & Vía Vail, Rancho Mirage, 92270 June 4, 20253337-01-HS24

PRECAST CONCRETE
CAPSTONE

EL DORADO STONE:
STACKED STONE
DAYBREAK

3x3 TUBE STEEL FRAME

1 12" METAL PICKETS

6'
-0

"

6'
-0

"

6'
-0

"

PRECAST CONCRETE
CAPSTONE

EL DORADO STONE:
STACKED STONE
DAYBREAK

3x3 TUBE STEEL FRAME

1 12" METAL PICKETS

PRECAST CONCRETE
CAPSTONE

EL DORADO STONE:
STACKED STONE

DAYBREAK

3x3 TUBE STEEL FRAME

1 12" METAL PICKETS

BUILDING

PRECAST CONCRETE
CAPSTONE

EL DORADO STONE:
STACKED STONE
DAYBREAK

3x3 TUBE STEEL FRAME

1 12" METAL PICKETS

6'
-0

"

6'
-0

"

6'
-0

"

PRECAST CONCRETE
CAPSTONE

EL DORADO STONE:
STACKED STONE
DAYBREAK

3x3 TUBE STEEL FRAME

1 12" METAL PICKETS

PRECAST CONCRETE
CAPSTONE

EL DORADO STONE:
STACKED STONE

DAYBREAK

3x3 TUBE STEEL FRAME

1 12" METAL PICKETS

BUILDING

PRECAST CONCRETE
CAPSTONE

EL DORADO STONE:
STACKED STONE
DAYBREAK

3x3 TUBE STEEL FRAME

1 12" METAL PICKETS

6'
-0

"

6'
-0

"

6'
-0

"

PRECAST CONCRETE
CAPSTONE

EL DORADO STONE:
STACKED STONE
DAYBREAK

3x3 TUBE STEEL FRAME

1 12" METAL PICKETS

PRECAST CONCRETE
CAPSTONE

EL DORADO STONE:
STACKED STONE

DAYBREAK

3x3 TUBE STEEL FRAME

1 12" METAL PICKETS

BUILDING

NORTH VEHICULAR GATE ENTRANCE

SIGNAGE

SCALE: 1/4” = 1’-0”

SCALE: 1/4” = 1’-0”

SCALE: 1/4” = 1’-0”

PEDESTRIAN GATE ENTRANCE

SOUTH VEHICULAR GATE ENTRANCE
0’ 40’20’10’ 60’

SCALE 1” = 20’-0”
NORTH

L5
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002



INSPIRATION IMAGERYRANCHO MIRAGE AFFORDABLE APARTMENTS
Key Largo Ave & Vía Vail, Rancho Mirage, 92270 June 4, 20253337-01-HS24 L6
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT CASE NO. EA25-0002 AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN CASE NO. PDP25-0002


	RegularPlanningCommissionMeeting-2025-06-26
	Item 3A. 
	PC-Meeting-06-12-2025- draft minutes
	Item 4A. 
	Attachment 1 - Aerial Photo
	Attachment 2 - Conditions of Approval
	Attachment 3 – Public Hearing Notice
	Attachment 4 – Draft Mitigated Negative Declaration
	Attachment 5 – Draft Notice of Determination
	Attachment 6 - PC Reso
	Attachment 7 - CC Reso MND MMRP
	Attachment 8 - CC Reso PDP
	Attachment 9 – PDP25-0002 Exhibit Booklet

